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49 Victoria Alphabetical Index to Sessional Papers. A. 1886-

ALPHABETICAL INDEX
TO THE

SESSIONAL PAPERS
OF THE

PARLIAMENT OF CANADA.

FOURTH SESSION, FIFTH PARLIAMENT, 1886.

Accounts of Canada, Ontario and Quebec 18

Aid to Railways 2

Agriculture, Annual Report 10

American Indians

American tow boats

Ammunition 80a,

Anderson, James, Correspondence with.

38c

88

80c

80/

Auditor-General, Annual Report 3

Archives, Canadian

Arrears of Cullers' fees

Aspy Bay affair •

Assets for reducing Dominion debt..

106

616

75

64

Baie des Chaleurs Railway Co 84

Baker & Co., I. G 38^

Bank notes. 71

Banks, Shareholders of. 1?

Baptisms, Marriages and Burials 55

Barker, P. M., Amount paid 47a

Batoche papers 43 ^> 43 *

Bayfield Harbor 516

Black bass and pickerel We

Board of Examiners, Civil Service, Report of 50a

Bonds and securities 49

Bonuses for railway purposes 57

British Canadian Loan and Investment Co... 56

British Columbia, Dominion Lands in 61c

British Columbia fisheries Wd
British Mercantile Marine 70

Brockville and Ottawa mail trains 19

Brockville and Toronto mail trains 19

Bryer and Long Islands 63

C

Calgary to Fort McLeod, Mall from 30

Canada Temperance Act

:

Supreme Court cases 41a

Memorials and papers 47

AmountpaidP. M. Barker 47a

Monies paid to P. R. Jarvis « 476

Canadian Archives 106

Canadian Pacific Railway 35 to 35c

Fiscal Returns 35

Selection of route—Reports on progress

—

Land : Station grounds and ballast pits
;

200 ft. right of way—Payment of subsidy

and loan : Eastern section ; central sec-

tion—Rates, tolls and fares— Particulars

under Consolidated Railway Act.—Mis-

cellaneous: Form of mortgage; author-

ity to transfer western section of C.P.R.

to C.P.R. Company; claim of Lake Su-

perior Silver Mining Co. ; claim of A. S.

Farewell 35a

Correspondence between Interior Depart-

ment and C.P.R 356

Agreements between Andrew Onderdonk,

Wilson & McC ready, and Head, Wright-

son & Co 35c

North Shore Railway 35o*

Northern and Pacific Junction line 35c

Canal Statistics 5«

Cape Breton surveys 676

Cape Race Lighthouse 53

Cars, Private, I.C.R 6&a

Cartridges 80a, 80c

Census in Manitoba and N. W. Territories.. 36, 36a

Charts showing temperature lie?

Chief Kah-ke-wa-quo-na-by, Payments to 386

Chignecto Marine Transport Railway Co .... 68

Children's Carriages imported 33

Chinese Immigration 86

Civil Service List 48

Civil Service, Promotions and appointments 48a

Civil Service, Report of Board of Examiners. 50a

Claim made by D. B. Woodworth 21

Claim made by John Heney 91

Claim of Prince Edward Island 26

Claims of Half-breeds 45a

Commissioner, Dominion Police 44
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c

Commission, Military claims 80

Commissioner, North-West Mounted Police,

Annual Report 8a

Commission on Rebellion losses 52/

Commissioners of Indian affairs 38c

Companies incorporated under Canada Joint

Stock Companies Act 9a

Confidential letters respecting the Rebellion 52c

Consolidated Fund, Receipts and Expend-

iture chargeable to 31

Contractors for teams SOI

Councils held by Six Nation Indian Chiefs.... 38a

Cowan, David L., Murder of. 74

Criminal libel against Saunders and Wood... 27

Criminal Statistics 10a

Cullers' fees, Arrears of 616

Customs Laws, Alleged violation of.... 34, 34a, 73

D
Debt of Dominion, Assets for reducing 64

Deep-water fisheries, B.C 77o*

Deposits in P. 0. Savings Banks 37

Deschene, G. H., Payments to. 38

Dickey, James A., Letters from 35/

Dingman, Mr., Report of 38

Disallowance of railway charters 81

Distribution of Statutes 29a

Dodge, Brenton H., Dismissal of 72

Dominion aid to railways 20

Dominion Arbitrators, Section 16, 1.C.R 66/

Dominion Lands in B. C 61c

Dominion notes 71

Dominion Penitentiaries 696

Dominion Police Commissioner 44

E
Earnings and working expenses, I.C.R 6Qh

Electoral Franchise Act 87

Employees on the I.C.R 66*

Engineers' certificates 70

England, Expenses in travelling to 25

Esquimalt and Nanaimo Railway 62, 62a

Estimates, 1886-87 2

Expenditure arising out of the Rebellion 50

Expenses, Unforeseen ' 23

Export duty on oak, pine and spruce logs 40

Exports and Imports 42

F
Fire and Inland Marine1 Insurance Companies 14

Fiscal Returns, C.P.R 35

Fisheries, Annual Report 116

Fisheries in British Columbia 77<2

Fishery Regulations 77c

Fish Hatcheries 77c

Fishing vessels of U. S 77a

Flour for Indians. 38o*

Food for Indians 38/

Franchise Act 87

Gillis, Alexander, Trial of

Gold held by Government

Government properties in Sorel.

Governor General's Warrants

Grand Trunk Railway

Grand Trunk Railway Stockholders.

Grants of lands to Mr. Valin, M.P....

Grazing land leases

Half-breed grant in the North-West ,

Half-breed prisoners

Half-breed prisoners in the North-West

Half-breeds' claims

Hamilton and North-Western Railway Co.

Head, Wrightson & Co., Agreement with...

Hearn, James, Superannuation of.

Heney, John, Claim of

Hensley, Report of Justice

Hudson Bay Company's Supplies

Hudson Bay exploration

82

71

20*

24

19a

196

20a

206

86

45c

45

45a

35c

35c

22a

91

82

50

lie

I. G. Baker & Co 38ft

Imports and exports of liquor 47#

Incorporated companies under Canada Joint

Stock Companies Act 9a

Indian Affairs, Annual Report 4

Indian voters, Registration of 380

Indians, Food for 38/

Indians, Money due 38«

Indians of Fort William Reserve 61a

Indians of the North-West 38c

Inland Revenue, Annual Report 5

Inspectors of Indian affairs 38c

Instructions to Revising Officers 54

Intercolonial Railway 66 to Q6i

Rolling stock 66, 666

Private cars 66a

Station building, St. John, N.B 66c

Damage to property of George Lavoie 66<i

Plante, J. B., Claim of 66e

Section 16 66/

Stores purchased. 66^r

Earnings and working expenses 66ft

Number of employees 662

Interior, Annual Report 8

Interior Department and C.P.R., Correspon-

dence between 356

Jarvis, P. R., Moneys paid to 476

Judgments of Supreme Court....^ 416

Justice, Annual Report 15

Justice Hensley, Report of. 82

K

2
Kah-ke-wa-quo-na-by. Chief, Payments to.. 386
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Land and timber regulations, B.O 61c

Land, Grants of, to Mr. Valin, M.P 20a

Lands granted to railway companies 20/

Lavoie, George, Damage to property of. 66d

LeBel, Antoine, Payments to 38

Library of Parliament, Annual Report 16

License Act of 1883, Supreme Court on 41, 41a

Licenses to cut timber 61

Life-saving Service, Port Rowan 89

Liquor imported and exported 47e

Liquor manufactories 47c

Long Islands 63

M
Mail from Calgary to Fort McLeod 30

Mails between Toronto, Brockville and Ot-

tawa 19

Manitoba, Census in 36, 36a

Manitoba railway charters 81

Manufacture of liquors 47c, 47d

Marine and Fisheries, Report in 1869 776

Marine, Annual Report 11

Marine Police Force 77, 77c

McKenzie, John Leander, Alleged violation

of Customs laws by 34, 34a

Medals to volunteers 80m

Memorial of North-West Council 79

Meteorological Reports 35/

Metis prisoners 45c

Military Claims Commission 80

Militia, Annual Report 6

Militia pensions 80a*, 80c

Mongrain, Loison, Trial of. 74

Morin, Edouard, Claims of 38

Mounted Police, Annual Report of Commis-

sioner 3a

Municipal aid to railways 20

Muskoka, Post Offices in 30a

McDonald, Angus, Appointment of. 366

McLeod, Isaac, Dismissal of 83

Nipissing, Post offices in 30a

Non-combatants in the rebellion 80/

Northern and Pacific Junction line 35c

Northern Railway Co 35c

North Shore Railway and C.P.R 35d

North-West Coal and Navigation Go 20c

North-West Council, Memorial of. 79

North-West Half-breed grant. 86

Nova Scotia, Subsidy to ~ 786

Oak, pine and spruce logs, Export duty on... 40

Onderdonk, Andrew, Agreement with 35c

Ontario, Westerly Boundary of. 28, 28a

Ottawa and Brockville mail trains 19

1*

P. E. I., Refund of duties in 60

Parry Sound, Post offices in 30a

Pasture land leases • 206

Pearce, William, Report of. 86

Penitentiaries, Dominion 696

Penitentiary of St. Vincent de Paul 69, 69a

Pickerel and black bass ?7c

Pickering Post Office 306

Piers in Richelieu River 59

Pinault, Louis and Michel, Claims of 77/

Plante, J. B., Claim of 66c

Police Scouts.. 44«

Port Hastings, Public wharf at 26a

Port Hood Harbor 51a

Port Mulgrave 32

Port Rowan Life-saving Service 89

Postmaster-General, Annual Report 7

Post Office Savings Banks 37, 37a

Post Offices in Muskoka, Parry Sound and

Nipissing 30a

Prince Albert inhabitants, Claims of. 456

Prince Edward Island, Claim of 26

Prince Edward Island, Union with 76, 76a

Printing of voters' lists 87a

Property seized 80^

Provincial Accounts 18

Provincial aid to railways 20

Provincial legislation 15a

Public Accounts, Annual Report 2

Public Works, Annual Report 12

Purchasing agents 80&

Quebec Cartridge Factory 80a, 80c

Queen vs. St. Catharines Milling and Lum-
bering Co 90

.Railway charters, Disallowance of. 81

Railway companies, Lands granted to 20/

Railway companies subsidized 78

Railway purposes, Bonuses for 57

Railways, Aid to 20, 78a

Railways and Canals, Annual Report 13

Railways, Canals and Navigation, Expend-

iture on •«

Railway Statistics

Rebellion, 1885

:

Report; upon suppression of rebellion

Police scouts

Expenditure

Particulars as to trials 52, 52a # 6

Confidential letters 52c

Money paid to Members of Parliament or

Senators 52a"

Claims acknowledged ••• 52c

Commission on losses 52/

Military claims commission 80

39

13a

6a

44a

50

3
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R
Rebellion, 1885 -.—Continued.

Militia pensions 80o", 80e

Instructions to non-combatants 80/

Transport and supply 8(ty

Property seized 80A

Staff of Major-General Middleton 80*

Correspondence as to expenditure 80?

Purchasing agents * 80&

Contractors for transport 80Z

Medals for volunteers 80m

Receipts and Expenditure chargeable to Con-

solidated Fund 31

Reciprocal trade with U. S 65

Refund of duties in P. E. I 60

Registration of Indian voters 38^

Report as to Marine and Fisheries, 1869 776

Revised Statutes of Canada 29

Revising officers, Instructions to 54

Richibucto Harbor 51

Riel, Louis 43 to 43*

Report of medical men 43

Memorandum of Sir Alexander Campbell.. 43a

Instructions to the judge and court 436

Every document relating to trial 43c

Shorthand notes 43d

Petitions to carry out sentence 43e

Petitions for commutation 43/

The Queen vs. Louis Riel 43^

Batoche papers 43A, 43*

Riparian owners on Richelieu River 59

Rolling Stock, I. C. R 66, 666

S

Samples of flour for Indians 38d

Saunders and Wood, Criminal libel against.. 27

Savings banks 37a

Scatterie Fog-whistle, Superintendent of. 53a

Secretary of State, Annual Report 9

Section 16, Intercolonial Railway 66/

Seigniory of Sorel 20e

Seizure of property 80A

Seizures at port of Winnipeg 73

Shareholders of banks 17

Sheffield & McKenzie, Alleged violation of

Customs laws by 34, 34a

Short Line Railway 67, 67a

Six Nation Indian Chiefs, Councils by 38a

Staff of Major-General Middleton 80*

Staff Paymasters 806

Station Building, St. John, N.B 66c

Statutes, Distribution of. 29a

Statutes of Canada, Revised 29

St. Catharines Milling and Lumbering Co... 90

St. John Bridge and Railway Extension Co.. 58

Stockholders in G. T. R 196

Stores purchased for I. C. R 66^

St. Vincent de Paul Penitentiary 69, 69a

Subsidies to railway companies 78, 78a

Subsidy to Nova Scotia 786

Sums borrowed for temporary loan 46

Superannuation of James Hearn 22a,

Superannuations 22, 22a, 226

Supplementary Estimates 2

Suppression ot rebellion, Report on 6a

Supreme Court on License Act of 1883 41, 41a

Supreme Court judgments 416

Sweetnam, Inspector 306

T
Temperatures, Hudson Bay region 11a*

Temporary loan, Sums borrowed for 46

Timber licenses or permits 61, 61a

Toronto and Brockville mail trains 19

Towing in B. C. harbors 88

Trade and Navigation, Annual Report 1

Transfer of Cape Race Lighthouse 53

Transport and supply officers 80^r

Trials in connection with the rebellion..52, 52a $ b

V
Unforeseen Expenses 23

United States fishing vessels 77a

United States, Reciprocal trade with 65

V
Valin, Mr., M.P., Grants of land to 20a

Viger, Lands sold in 38

Voters' Lists, Printing of 87a

W
Warrants, Governor General's 24

Westerly Boundary of Ontario 28, 28a

Whitefish fry ^
Wilson & McCready, Agreement with 35c

Winnipeg and Hudson Bay Railway and

Steamship Co 20<*

Winnipeg, Seizures at port of 73

Woodworth, D. B., Claim made by 21
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LIST OF SESSIONAL PAPERS

Arranged in Numerical Order, with their Titles at full length; the Dates

when Ordered and when Presented to both Houses of Parliament
;
the

Name of the Member who movedfor each Sessional Paper, and whether

it is Ordered to be Printed or Not Printed.

ERRATA FOR LIST OF 1885.

On oaee 11, Return No. 14, read 1883 instead of 1884. On page 50, Return No. 127, read Not

^Z^PnnteS for Distribution only. On page 53, Return No. 140, read PnnteJ for

Sessional Papers only instead of Printed for Distribution only.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME A.

Census of the Three Provisional Districts of the North-West Territories, 1884-85-
Census or xne

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 1.

1 tTables of the Trade and Navigation of the Dominion of Canada, for the^?™«t*** 30th

June 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st March, 1886, by Hon M. Bowel -
June, i«80. r

printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 2.

2 Public Accounts of Canada, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1885. Presented to the House

of Commons, 1st March, 1886, by Hon. A. W. McLelan. Estimates of the sums reared or

the service of the Dominion, for the year ending 30th June, 1887
;
presentel 24th March 1886

^ZtLj Estimates of Canada for the fiscal year ending 30th June 1886 ;
presented^26 h

Mav 1886 Supplementary Estimates of Canada for the fiscal year ending 30th June 1887 ,

p^Lted 28th May, 1886..." Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 3.

3 Annual Report of the Auditor-General on Appropriation Accounts, for the fiscal year ended

30th June! 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st March, 1886 by Hon A. W.

McLelan Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 4.

4. Annual Report of the Department of Indian Affairs, for the year ended 31st December, 1885.

Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd March, 1886, by Sir John A Macdonald-

Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

5. Annual Report, Returns and Statistics of the Inland Revenues of the Dominion of Canada for

the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st March, 1886

by Hon. J. Costigan Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

Sa Canal Statistics for season of navigation, 1885, being Supplement No. 1 to the Inland Revenue

Report for the year ended 30th June, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd May,

f886 bv Hon J Costigan. Twelfth Report on Inspection of Weights, Measures and Gas

oeW Supplement No. 2 to the Report of the Department of Inland Revenue. Presented 2nd

J 1886
Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.



49 Victoria. List of Sessional Tapers. A. 1886

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 5.

6. Annual Report of the Depf rtment of Militia and Defence of the Dominion of Canada, for the
year ended 31st December, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th March, 1886, by Sir
Adolphe Caron Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

6a. Report upon the suppression of the rebellion in the North-West Territories, and matters in

connection therewith, in 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th May, 1886, by Sir

Adolphe Caron Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OP VOLUME No. 6.

7. Annual Report of the Postmaster-General, x or the year ended 30th June, 1885. Presented to
the House of Commons, 5th March, 1886, by Sir Hector Langevin—

Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

8. Annual Report of the Department of the Interior, for the year ended 3lst December, 1885.

Presented to the House of Commons, 8th March, 1886, by Hon. Thos. White—
Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

8a. Annual Report of the Commissioner of the North-West Mounted Police Force, for the year
1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th March, 1886, by Sir Hector Langevin—

Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

&b. Detailed Report upon all claims to land and right to participate in the North-West Half-breed
grant by settlers along the South Saskatchewan and vicinity west of Range 26, West 2nd
Meridian, being the settlements commonly known as St. Louis de Langevin, St. Laurent or
Batoche and Duck Lake. Presented to the House of Commons, 15th April, 1886, by the Hon.
Thos. White Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No, 1.

9. Annual Report of the Secretary of State of Canada, for the year ended 3lst December, 1885.

Presented to the House of Commons, 12th March, 1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau—
Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

Da. Synopsis of companies incorporated under the Canada Joint Stock Companies Act of 1869 and
1877, from 7th May, 1869, to 31st December, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 12th
March, 1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau Not printed.

10. Annual Report of the Minister of Agriculture for the Dominion of Canada, for the year ended
31st December, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 15th April, 1886, by Hon. J.

Carling Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

10a. Criminal Statistics for the year 1884 Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 8.

106. Report on Canadian Archives, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th May, 1886,

by Hon. J. Carling Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

10c. Abstracts of the Returns of Mortuary Statistics for the year 1885—
Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 9.

U. Eighteenth Annual Report of the Department of Marine, for the fiscal year ended 30th June,

1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st March, 1886, by Hon. G. E. Foster—

Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

11a. Report of the Chairman of the Board of Steamboat Inspection for the calendar year ended

31st December, 1885 Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
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ii6 . Annua, Report of the Department of Fisheries^ Domhuo» ^ °^_to ^ ^ ^
Panted to the House of Commons,M»«^X^2^^ »*-•**~

I*. Report of the seeond Hudson Bay Exploration, under the command^^^^„ 1885 presented to the House of Commons, 10th May, 1886, by Hon. G. E Foster

B.JN., 1880. rreaeurcu «
Printedfor Sessional papers only.

House of Commons, 10th May, 1886, by Hon. G. E. Foster /-

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 10.

«. Annual Report of the Minister of Public Works ofpanada, for the

£

£

=t! FeW^

„. Annual Report of the Minister of Railways a^Canals««,«^"mot

,*, Reports and Railway Statistics of Canada, and capital, traffic and worHng expenditure of

t^rtltr.^:^
M . Abstract of Statements of Fire and Inland Marine Insurance Companies^«£_«»

year !88, Presented to the House of ^^2Tl7otZr\ZTand Sessional Paper,.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 11.

M. Annual Report of the Ministers of Justice as -P—iariesJ^^*^.^
30th June, 1885. Presented to the House,0^Commons'™^

on^lssional Pape„.
Thompson x J

i
«„. Correspondence, Reports of the Minister of Justice, andO^^^lTllZ^t

of provincial legislation, 1867-84. Presented to the House ofJ™*^^ ^.
Hon. J. S. D. Thompson

,. Report of the Joint Librarians of Parliament on the state^^^"^
Presented to the House of Commons, 2Mb February, 1886, by Hon-Mr. Speaker^^^

„. Shareholders in the Chartered Banks of ^Dominion ofC^J »%**£?»*
1885. Presented to the House of^^JS^ and Seconal Paper,

Commons, 29th May, 1886, by Hon. A. W. McL^Un- ^^^^^^.^ p^,,.

X.. Return to an Order of the House of Commons,"^"S^^S^TS
the date and hour of departure from Toron and arnval a^ lie o,

^
Grand Trnuk Railway carrying Her Majesty's marts, f om 1st

^
February

J-
^

the years 1881, 1882, 1883, 1884, and ..the P-^^ar »P *o«»« ^^^
date and hour of departure from BrockTille an

d
^Ottawa and ot ar ^

T ille of all similar trains on that portion of the Canadian P.**]£££* Commons , ltt

points last named during the same periods of tune. Presented to the House ot

_^^^
March, 1886—Mr. Cameron (.Middlesex) •-—
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.19a. Supplementary Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1885, for
copies of the Returns as required to be made under the Consolidated Railway Act of 1879 and
the Acts in amendment thereof of 1881 and 1884, by the Grand Trunk Railway Company, for
the fiscal year 1883-84, in each case separately ; and 1st. The number of miles of main line of
Grand Trunk, with statement of actual total cost of construction and equipment thereof. The
separate cost per mile of construction thereof, without rolling stock. The total amount of
capital account now standing against the said railway, including its equipment. 2nd. A
statement in detail showing the several branches or side lines now owned by the said com-
pany, including the number of miles in each, with the amounts severally paid for each. How
such amounts were paid

; whether paid in cash or securities, and the statement and character
thereof in detail. The amount for which each of such securities was sold, and the net amounts
which were realized in each. 3rd. A statement in detail of any railway line or lines leased by
the Grand Trunk Company or agreed to be worked by them on a percentage of earnings or
•other terms, with the length of each of such lines and the conditions in detail of the agree-
ments in relation thereto. 4th. A statement in detail of any interest the Grand Trunk Railway
may have in any other railway or railways, with the securities in detail that they may hold in
relation thereto. 5th. A statement in detail of the net earnings of each of the railways men-
tioned in the four preceding clauses after the payment of working expenses for the past
financial year of each of the said railways, with a statement in detail of the percentage that
working expenses bear in each case to the gross earnings. 6th. Whether any and what amounts
were paid by the Grand Trunk Company towards the construction of the Toronto and Ottawa
Railway; and the amount thereof, with the statement of the gross as well as the net earnings
of the said railway for the past financial year of the said railway ; and a statement of where
these funds came from

;
also a statement as to where they appear in the accounts of the Grand

Trunk Company's accounts or returns. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st March,
1886.-Mr. Mitchell Not printed.

196. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1885, for a list of the
names, in detail, with the residence or business address of each of the several stockholders of
the Grand Trunk Railway Company of Canada, on the first day of January, last. Presented
to the House of Commons, 2nd March, 1886.—Mr. Mitchell Not printed.

20. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 3rd March, 1884, for a statement showing the respective amounts of Dominion, Provin-
cial and Municipal money paid, or grants of land given, either by way of bonus or otherwise,
paid towards the construction or equipment of railways (other than the Canadian Pacific Rail-
way) since Confederation, with dates of such payments and names of the respective railways
so aided. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st March, 1886.—Mr. Mulock Not printed.

•20a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 1st March, 1886, for a Return showing
all grants of land made to Mr. Valin, M.P., in the North-West Territories, with the date of the
Letters Patent therefor, the quantity, location, price and payments ; also all grants so made
either to Mr. Valin alone, or to others jointly with him. Presented to the House of Commons,
16th March, 1886.—Mr. Casgrain Not printed.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 12.

206. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return showing :

1. The total number of acres of grazing land placed under lease up to 1st March, 1886. 2. The
names of grazing land lessees who have cattle upon their leaseholds, the number of acres in

each leasehold, the date of the lease, the location of the land covered by the same, the number
of lease, the number of cattle reported on each leasehold, the date when the leasehold was first

stocked with cattle, and the aggregate area covered by such leases. 3. The names of grazing
lands lessees who have not placed cattle upon their leaseholds, the number of acres in each
leasehold, the location of the land covered by the same, the number of the lease, and the
aggregate area covered by such leases. 4. The total revenue derived from pasture land
leases.—All Returns asked for to be brought down to 1st March, 1886. Presented to the House
of Commons, 22nd April, 1886.—Mr. Charlton Printed/or Sessional Papers only.
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20c A certified eopy of a Eeport of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by
S
°%be HonorlleThe Deputy Governor in Conncil on the 19th day of May 1885, respecting^the

North-West Coal and Navigation Company. Presented to the House of Commons
'^f^

1886, by Hon. Thos. White ° p

2«<, A certified copy of a Eeport of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by

H* Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 29th March, 1886, respecting
^
the

Winnipeg and Hudson Bay Eailway and Steamship Company. Presented to the House of

Commons, 28th April, 1886, by Hon. Thos. White Not panted.

20«. Eeturn to an Address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 4th May

1886 for a list giving the names of all persons occupying, under annual leases, Government

properties situafld in'the Seigniory of Sore.. Presented to the Senate, 19*May,"£££
Mr. Guevremont

«,/ Conies of Orders in Conncil, correspondence, etc., relating to grants of Dominion Lands to

the following railway companies : Wood Mountain and Qu'Appelle Eailway Company
;
North-

west Cental Eailway Company; and Manitoba and North-Western Eailway Company

Presented to the House of Commons, 27th May, 1886, by Hon. Thos. White Not printed.

21 Eeturn to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 7th May, 1883, for copies ofiill corres-

ponlence, reports, accounts and other papers relating to any claim made by D B. Woo£o£

InA others for compensation for gravel, said to have been taken from claimants' land for use

t̂he Pembhra Branch of the Canadian Pacific Eailway , together with a copy of the^evidence

respecting such claim taken before the Board of Dominion Arbitrators, showing the amount

cWmed Ld the award, if any, made by said Arbitrators, and what sums have been paid

thereunder Presented to the House of Commons, 1st March, 1886.-ifr. Casey Notpnntei.

22 Statement of all superannuations and retiring allowances in the Civil Service during the year

™7edTst December, 1885, giving the name and rank of each person superannuated or

=toytw^^^^^«£££ S, sect-15. Presented to the House of«-«^
A. W. McLelan •?

22a Eeturn to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 2nd April, 1884, for copies of all corres-

pondence, papers and telegrams between the Government or any member thereof, andjui,

person or persons, relating to the superannuation of James Hearn, late Preventive Offi^r at

Irichat N S. ; and also all correspondence and telegrams relating to the appointment of hffl

fuccessorand'the continuance of the latter in office. Presented to the House ofCommon^

9th March, 1886.—Mr. Kirk

326 Eetnrn to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Eeturn showing:

1st The name of each person on the superannuation list on the first of January, AJKUW.

2nd The date at which each of such persons was superannuated. 3rd. The amoun paid into

the supe annuation fund by each person now on the list. 4th. The total amount paid^to each

person" now on the superannuation list up to the first of January, 1886. PresentedI* &e

House of Commons, 20th April, 1886.-*. McMullen Not prtntei.

33. Statement of payments charged to Unforeseen Expenses under Orders in Conncil from 1st

July 1885, to date; in accordance with the Act 48 Victoria, chapter 41. Presented.to the

House of Commons, 1st March, 1886, by Hon. A. W. McLelan-^^^.^^^^
24. Statement of Governor General's Warrants issued since last Session ofPf"C £"££

of fiscal years 1885-86 ; issued under the authority of 41 Victoria chaptei^^^-
section 2 Presented to the House of Commons, 1st March, 1886, by Hon. A. W. ^Eelan^

25. Eeturn to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 16th ^^'^'J^^^
showing the expenses, in detail, with dates, incurred by the several members of the Govern

y
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ment and any other person or persons in the service of the Government, sent to England or

elsewhere, on behalf of the Government, from 28th January, 1884, to date. Presented to the

House of Commons, 3rd March, 1886.

—

Mr. Somerville (Brant) Not printed.

86. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,,

dated 12th March, 1885, for copies of all correspondence between the Government of Prince

Edward Island and the Government of the Dominion, since the last Session of Parliament,

relating to the claim made by the former Government for moneys expended by them in the

construction and maintenance of piers and wharves, from 1st July, 1873, to January, 1883;

also of all reports made to the Minister of Public Works, or any of his officials, since last

Session upon such claims, together with all Orders in Council made thereon. Presented to

the House of Commons, 3rd March, 1886.

—

Mr. Davies Printedfor Distribution only.

2«o. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of all corres-

pondence with the Department of Public Works, the Minister of Railways and Canals, and the

Minister of Marine and Fisheries, relative to repairs of the public wharf at Port Hastings,

Inverness, N.S. Presented to the House of Commons, 31st March, 1886.

—

Mr. Cameron
(Inverness) Not printed.

27. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for copies of corres-

pondence and petitions on the subject of the cases of criminal libel against Saunders and
Wood, tried in December, 1884, before a judicial functionary in the North-West Territories.

Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd March, 1886. —Mr. Blake Not printed.

28. Return (in part) to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor
General, dated 9th March, 1885, for a copy of the short-hand notes of the argument before the

Privy Council in the late dispute between Manitoba and the Province of Ontario, as to the

westerly boundary of the Province of Ontario ; also copy of the claim as presented by the

Attorney-General of Ontario before the Privy Council ; also a statement of the reasons given

by the Attorney-General of Ontario for abandoning his claim to that part of the territory

lying between the Lake of the Woods and the Rocky Mountains ; also a copy of all corres-

pondence between the Government of the Dominion and the Government of Ontario in refer-

ence to the arbitration and award, and also in reference to the decision of the Privy Council
not already moved for or brought down. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd March,
1886.—Mr. Rykert Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

28a. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 8th March, 1886, for copies of all correspondence between the Government of Canada
and the Government of Ontario in reference to proposed Imperial legislation to confirm the

decision of the Queen in Council upon the west and north-west boundaries of Ontario.

Presented to the House of Commons, 1st April, 1886.—Mr. Mills-
Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

2S. Draft of the Revised Statutes of Canada, laid before Parliament on the 3rd February, 1885,

with which have been incorporated the Acts passed in the Session held in the 48th and 49th
years of Her Majesty's reign. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd March, 1886, by Hon.
J. S. D. Thompson Not printed.

29a. Return in conformity with the Act 31 Victoria, chapter 1, section 14, Distribution of the

Statutes of Canada during the year 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 8th March,
1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau Notprinted.

SO. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 1st March, 1886, for a Return showing
the names of all persons who tendered for the contract for carrying the mail from Calgary to
Fort McLeod, the amount of each tender, to whom the contract was let, together with all

papers and correspondence relating to said contract. Presented to the House of Commons,
4th March, 1886.—Mr. Landerkin Notprinted.

30a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 3rd March, 1886, for a Return of the

number of post offices established in the Muskoka, Parry Sound and Nipissing districts, with
the cost and revenue of each office for each year respectively, since 1879. Presented to the

House of Commons, 22nd March, 1886.—Mr. Cook Notprinted.

10
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,.» Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 5th March, 1886, for cop.es of all reports

m!de7 Inspector Sweetnam concerning alleged irregularities in connection with the manage-

ment of Pickering post office, in the county of Ontario, and in particular of Ins report upon the

rnve8tiJt*u^fd
P
byhim at the village of Pickering in December, 1883; and cop.es of all

::!^T*Z%T^V^ rented to^^±^^^f^Z—Mr. Edgar

,„„„ nrflpr of the House of Commons, dated ;ist March, 1886, for a Return of the

"• U
T Id Lu nd tore in detail, chargeable to the Consolidated Fund, from the 1st day of

7Z
'P

884 t the is tTy of March, island from the 1st day of July 1885, to the 1st day of

ST8
4

86! Presente/to the House of Commons, 5th March,>"££££££
a AA^e* nf thp House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

mm Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 28rd April, 1883, for a Return of the

Z If cbildren-s carriages imported into Canada each and every year from the 1st July,

XZitX! SS with Je amount of duty collected in each year.
-J---**;

House of Commons, 5th March, 1886.-ih>. McOraney *

M Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for copies of all papers

**'
o^Cetters Vouchers, correspondence or any other™—^™l^^Z
or under the control of the Department of the Minister of Customs, or any of the membereoi

the Government or of any of the officials of the Government, relating to, or m any way con-

lected w t7 h
'

alleged violations of the Customs laws by swearing to false invoices
,
or _m

Tv oth" mode, by one John Leauder McKenzie, of Canning, King's county Nova Scotia

tna o the"™ of Sheffield ft McKenzie, of the same place, with a copy of th<
;

decision oi the

Customs Department in such cases. Presented to the House of Commons,*«££
Mr. Moffat ..

Ma . Supplementary Return to an Order of the House of Commons dated 2Jth££^£.
copies of all papers, orders, letters, vouchers, correspondence or any othe memo

evL in the possession or under the control of th<
,
Departmer

,

o %£%££%****:
Torin^T^n^^^^
false ivotees, or in any other mode, by one John Leauder McKenzie, of Canning, King .

tuntrNova Scotia, and of the firm of Sheffield ft McKenzie of the same place, wi h a copy of

Z decifion of the Customs Department in such cases. Presented to the House ^Commons,

27th April, 1886.—Mr. Moffat

». Return (in part) under Resolution of the House of Commons, passed on tlle.20th February

Railway Act and amendments thereto, up to the end of the previous fi-ye, 9
Lta

com any or

S

anyMember or officer of either, relating to the affairs of the company. Presented

toX H'ouse of Commons, 8th March, 1886, by Hon. A. W.^^^^^
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tion of land. 4. The payment of moneys. 5. The laying out of branches. 6. The progress
thereon. 7. The rates of tolls for passengers and freight. 8. The particulars required by the
Consolidated Railway Act and amendments thereto, up to the end of the previous fiscal year.
9. Like particulars up to the latest practicable date before the presentation of the Return.
10. Copies of all Orders in Council and of all correspondence between the Government and
the railway company, or any member or officer of either, relating to the affairs of the company.
Presented to the House of Commons, 11th March, 1886, by Hon. J. H. Pope—

Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

35£. Return of correspondence between the Canadian Pacific Railway Company and the Depart-
ment of the Interior, as required by Resolution of the House of Commons of the 20th February,
1882. Presented to the House of Commons, 11th March, 1886, by Hon. Thos. White—

Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

35c. Articles of agreement entered into between Andrew Onderdonk and Her Majesty Queen
Victoria, represented by the Minister of Railways and Canals of Canada, to erect and complete
a combined passenger and freight building at North Bend

; one at Chinaman's Ranche, and one
at Pennie's, on the Canadian Pacific Railway, in British Columbia. Also between Wilson
and McCrady and Her Majesty Queen Victoria, represented by the Minister of Railways
and Canals of Canada, to erect a ten-stall engine house on the station ground of the Canadian
Pacific Railway at North Bend, British Columbia. Also between Messrs. Head, Wrightson
& Company and Her Majesty Queen Victoria, represented by the Minister of Railways and
Canals of Canada, to supply iron piles, caps and points for the Canadian Pacific Railway
Wharf at Port Moody, British Columbia. Presented to the House of Commons, 19th March,
1886, by Hon. J. H. Pope Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

-35d Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of all correspondence between the Government, or any member
of the Government, with the Canadian Pacific Railway Company and the North Shore Rail-
way Company, and between the two companies concerning the prolongation of the line of the
Canadian Pacific Railway to the harbor of Quebec ; of all contracts between the said two
railway companies in reference to the same ; of all Orders in Council passed in reference to the
same

;
together with a statement of all moneys paid by the Government, and of the names of

the persons to whom such payments were made, also in reference to the same, and in con-
formity with the Acts 47 Victoria, chapter 8, and 48-49 Victoria, chapter 58. Presented to the
House of Commons, 15th April, 1886.—Mr. Laurier Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

356. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for copies of any
agreements or contracts entered into between the Canadian Pacific Railway Company and the
Northern Railway Company of Canada, and the Hamilton and North-Western Railway Com-
pany as lessees of the Northern and Pacific Junction line from Gravenhurst to Callander,
providing for through rates and fares and proper traffic arrangements for freight and pas-
sengers over the line of the Canadian Pacific Railway, as stipulated in the agreement of 12th
April,'a884, under which the Government granted the subsidy of $12,000 per mile for the
construction of the railway from Gravenhurst to Callander. Presented to the House of
Commons, 15th April, 1886.—Mr. Edgar Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

35/. Copies of letters from James A. Dickey, Office of Government Inspecting Engineer, summit of
the Selkirks, enclosing extracts from diary, as to weather reports, snow-slides, etc. Presented
to the House of Commons, 3rd May, 1886, by Hon. J. H. Pope—

Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

36. Return under Act 48-49 Victoria, chapter 3, intituled :
" An Act to provide for the taking of

the Census in the Province of Manitoba, the North-West Territories and the District of Kee-
watin." Presented to the House of Commons, 9th March, 1886, by Hon. J. Carling—

Printedfor Sessional Papers only,

36a. Report of expenditure incurred on account of the Census of 1881, required by the " Census
and Statistics Act, 1879." Also a report of all things done and expenditure made under the
Act 48-49 Victoria, chapter 3, intituled :

" An Act to provide for the taking of a Census in the
Province of Manitoba, the North-West Territories and the District of Keewatin." Presented
to the House of Commons, 15th March, 1886, by Hon. J. Carling Not printed.

12
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366. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

'dated 31st March, 1886, for a copy of the appointment of Angus McDonald, of Upper Washa-

buck Victoria county, N.S., as census enumerator in 1881 ;
also copies of all correspondence

between the Government, or any member thereof, and any other person relative to the cancel-

lation thereof. Presented to the House of Commons, 29th April, 1886.- Mr. Kirk....Not printed.

37 Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1885, for a Return showing
'

the number of persons who, on the 30th June, 1884, had deposits in the Post Office Savings

Bank of the following amounts :-Number having sums not exceeding $100
;
number having

sums between $100 and $300; number having sums between $300 and $500; number having

sums between $500 and $1,000 ; and (if any) number having sums exceeding $1,000, and the

amount (if any) of the several sums exceeding $1,000, and in each class giving the number of

males and females depositing, also the Province in which the deposit was made and the same

information in all respects regarding depositors in the Government Savings Banks. Presented

to the House of Commons, 9th March, 1886.-ilfr. Fairbank JSot printed.

37a Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886 for a Return showing

the amount held by the Government, through the several savings banks and Post Office

Savings Banks throughout the Dominion, on the 30th June last, giving the location of each

savings bank or Post Office Savings Bank, and the sum held by the Government through each

separately. Presented to the House of Commons, 7th May, 1886.-Jfr. McMullen....Nat printed.

38 Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for a statement showing :

" '

l The number of lots sold in the township of Viger, Temiscouata, belonging to the Indians,

the amount of the sale and the name of the purchaser. 2. The payments made to the Depart-

ment to the agent, Mr. G. H. Deschene, and to Mr. Antoine LeBel, showing in detail the date

of such payments, when made and the amount of each payment. 3. A detailed statement of

the amounts transmitted to the Department by Messrs. Deschene and LeBel, out of all moneys

received by them up to date, and the date of such transmission. 4. Copies ol the report of Mr

DmTman, on the occasion of his visit to the Viger agency, in September 1884. 5. Copies of

correspondence with the Department in relation to the claims of Edouard Morm and others,

for lands purchased by them in the said Indian Reserve. Presented to the House^—J
9th March, 1886.—Mr. De St. Georges

38a Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th Mareh, 1886, for copies of minutes

o ^the councils held by the Six Nation Indian chiefs during the month of December, 1885

Presented to the House of Commons, 22nd March, 1886.-*. Person (.Brant, Sot printed,

«*. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency *•J^^^
dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing the amounts of money paid to Chief Kah-ke-wa-

quo-na-by (otherwise known as Chief Jones) editor of •' The Indian Newspaper," during the

past four years, with a statement of the services rendered for such payments, and all corres-

pondence'and Orders in Council in connection therewith. Presented to the Houseof—

•

23rd March, 1886.—*. SomerviUe (Brant)

as. Return (in part) to an Address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated

16th Apr
,

imtor copies of all correspondence between the Government of the Unite
1
States

aud that of Canada, relative to the presence of American Indians on Canadian so 1,
^com-

munication, from officers of the Mounted Police upon that subject, and all (WjmO^d
or Departmental instructions relating thereto, which have not already been published m the

Xnnual Report of the Indian Branch of the Department of the Interior. Also an estimate of

teTcrease or decrease of the Indian population of the North-West, based upon the numbers

who were paid at the various treaties made in 1871, and subsequent years, and the number now

paid; such information regarding the number of Indians who have adopted agricultural pur-

suits not hitherto printed, and copies of complaint, (if any) from the Aborigines Protec ion

Society, the bishops and clergy of the various missionary bodies to the North-West, and from

others! regarding the treatment of the Indians of the North-West. ^Iso an approximate

estimate of the cost of food supplies furnished to these Indians since Treaty Ho. 1, m.WU

Presented to the Senate, 23rd March, 1886.-iTon. Mr. Schultz JVotpnntea.
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38i. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 8th March, 1886, for reports made by
persons not in the service of the Government to whom samples of flour for the Indians in the

North-West were submitted for inspection during the years 1883, 1884, and 1885. Presented

to the House of Commons, 12th April, 1886.—Mr. Paterson (Brant) Not printed.

38e. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 31st March, 1886, for a copy of the Order in Council appointing certain persons as

inspectors or commissioners of Indian Affairs in the North-West in the year 1878, together with

the report, if any, of said inspectors or commissioners. Presented to the House of Commons,
14th April, 1886.

—

Mr. Landerkin , Not printed.

38/. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General, of

the 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing copies of all reports, communications, letters or

other papers from any Government agent or other person, to any member of the Government
or to any Department of the Government, since the first of April, 1882, referring to the insuffi-

ciency of the food, either as to quality or quantity, supplied by the Government to any Indians

in the North-West Territories, or referring to the case of any North-West Indians who may
have suffered or died from starvation. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th April, 1886.

—Mr. Mulock Not printed.

38y. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 1st April, 1886, for copies of all corres-

pondence between the Superintendent-General of Indian Affairs, or any official of the Indian

Department, or the revising officer for West Elgin, and Mr. Beattie, Indian Agent for the

Indian Reserve in the township of Orford, in regard to his duties or action in connection with

the registration of Indian voters, or as to the qualification of any Indian. Presented to the

House of Commons, 21st April, 1886.

—

Mr. Casey Not printed.

38A. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for a Return showing :

1. A copy of all contracts with I. G. Baker & Co. for supplies agreed to be furnished by them

to the Indians for the years 1884 and 1885. 2. A copy of all accounts for such supplies for said

years by said I. G. Baker & Co. Presented to the House of Commons, 28th April, 1886.

—

Mr.

Cameron {Huron) Not printed.

382. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 8th March, 1886, for a Return of all

statements and estimates made by the Department of Indian Affairs, of moneys due to Indians

under the Robinson Treaty
; also of all correspondence and documents whatever in relation to

the same subject. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th May, 1886.—Mr. Dawson—
Not printed.

39. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 8th April, 1885, for a statement of all

sums entered in the Public Accounts of Canada as having been expended for railways, canals

and navigation in British Columbia, the North-West Territories, Keewatin, Manitoba, Ontario,

Quebec, New Brunswick, Prince Edward Island, Nova Scotia proper, and Cape Breton Island,

up to the 1st January, 1885 ; also the superficies and population of each of the said divisions of

Canada respectively. Presented to the House of Commons, 9th March, 1886.

—

Mr. Vanasse—
Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

40.|Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for a Return of all

moneys received by the Government as export duty levied on oak, pine and spruce logs since

Confederation, up to 1st January, 1885, showing the amounts received from each shipping

point where such duties were levied, giving in detail the amounts collected each year, and
giving the names of each person from whom duties have been collected, and also the amounts

he or she has paid each year. Presented to the House of Commons, 9th March, 1886.

—

Mr.

Edgar Not printed.

41. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 12th March, 1885, for copies of all reports, Orders in Council and correspondence, not

already ordered, on the subject of the effect of the decision of the Supreme Court as to the

License Act of 1883, and of the steps to be taken to review the same, and of the steps to be

taken under the Act meanwhile, with copies of all letters or telegrams to the commissioners or

inspectors giving them instructions as to their conduct or action, or information as to the

intentions or action of the Government. Presented to the House of Commons, 9th March,

1886.

—

Mr. Blake Printed/or Sessional Papers only*

14
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«„ Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

^te^n March 1885, for the nnmber and title of all causes entered for argument upon he

docket of the Sup em Court of New Brunswick ft. banco, the date of each entry thereof, he

da e of the argument of each cause, and the date when judgment was given m each cause, he

Keturu toinLde all causes from 1st May, 1879, to 31st December 1884, and to spec, y the

causes in which questions arising under the provisions of the Canada Temperance Act of 18 8

or h Liquor License Act of 1883 were involved, and the cities or couut.es in which.said

actions were brought or such questions were first raised. Presented to the House ofC—n^
31st March, 1886.—Mr. Foster

416 Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 19th April, 1886, for a statement of the names of all cases in which judgment has been

gfenby the

P
Supreme Court of Canada, the reports of which have not yet been published

Aether with the respective dates on which such judgments were delivered. P—* * *'

House of Commons, 11th May, 1886.-*. Barker Not printed.

42. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 1st March, 1886, for a Return in the.form

used in the statements usually published in the Gatette, of the exports and impo.from the

1st day of July, 1884, to the 1st day of February, 1885, and from the 1st day of July, 1885 to

he 1st day of February, 1886, distinguishing the products of Canada and those of other

countries. Presented to the House of Commons, 9th March, IWL-ArAM
P̂'r!nt7d.

43. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the <*™~ <*"»|»

dated 1st March, 1886, for a copy of the report of the medical men appointed by the Govern

ment to enquire into the mental conditiou of Louis Riel, after hi. conviction. Presented to the

House of Commons, 9th March, \m.-Mr. Coursol- „..,,. , „ . , p „„.
Printed/or both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

43a. Memorandum of Sir Alexander Campbell in the case of Louis Kiel, convicted of
:

treasor^l and

executed therefor. Presented to the House of Commons, 11th March, 1886 by Hon^J. A.
execuiea im^iu

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
Chapleau...»«» •••«•• •»• ••....

4*6 Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 5°h March, 1886, for copies of all commissions, letters, telegrams or instructions what-

soever given furnished or sent by the Government, by any minister or ministers or any

officer of the Department of Justice, to His Honor Mr. Justice Hugh Richardson, in relaUon to

the trial of Louis Riel at Regina. Also copies of any instrnctions given to any person whom-

ever on the staff of the court presided over by the said judge, and to the ~^A"P^»f
the Government at the said trial. Presented to the House of Commons, 12th March, 1886 -
°

r 2myot Printed/or both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

4SC. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency^^ofKefZ^lr
dated 3rd March, 1886, for copies of all documents forming the record in the case of Her Majesty

against Louis Riel, tried at Regina, including the jury list, the names of the jurors ^"V*
and by whom they were challenged, the list of the jurors empannelled, the motions and affi-

davits filed, the evidence, the incidents of the trial, the addresses of counsel and of the

prisoner, the charge of the judge, the names of the judges or assistant judges who tried the

case, the names of the counsel for the prosecution and for the defence
;
and in short, of every

document whatsoever relating to the trial, and also of the verdict and of the -"iidatmn

to the mercy of the court. Presented to the House of Commons, 15th March, me-ifr.

Printedfo' both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

4Zd Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 4th March, 1886, for : 1. A copy of the shorthand notes of the application to postpone

the trial of Louis Riel for one month from the 21st July, 1885 ;
the arguments of prisoner s

counsel in favor of and the arguments of the Crown counsel against such postponement and

the observations and decisions or rulings of the judge thereon. 2. The shorthand notes of

that portion of Charles Nolin's cross-examination wherein Riel's counsel endeavored to estab-

lish Riel's insanity ;
Riel's protests against that line of defence and his desire to dispense with

15
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the services of his counsel ; and the arguments of counsel and the observations and decisions

or rulings of the judge thereon. Presented to the House of Commons, 15th March, 1886.— Mr.

Cameron {Huron) Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

43c. Petitions addressed to His Excellency the Governor General :—Of A. B. Dunnet, and others,

of Regina, N.W.T., and of A. G. Hamilton, and others, of Moosomin, N.W.T., severally pray-

ing that the sentence passed upon Louis Riel be not disturbed in any way ; that the iaw be

permitted to take its course, and that Executive clemency be refused. A communication

signed by James Boddy, district secretary, on behalf of the Loyal Orange Association of West
Toronto, urging the carrying out of the sentence of death passed upon Louis Kiel. Also a

letter addressed to the Honorable the Privy Council, signed by Charles O'Hara, of Cran-

bourne, in the province of Quebec, laborer, setting forth the necessity of the carrying out of

the sentence of "death passed upon Louis Riel. Presented to the House of Commons, 18th

March, 1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

43/. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 4th March, 1886, for copies of all petitions, communications and representations in favor

of the commutation of the sentence of Louis Riel. Presented to the House of Commons, 23rd

March, 1886.—Mr. Laurier Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

43a. The Queen versus Louis Riel, accused and convicted of the crime of high treason. Report of

the trial at Regina; Appeal to the Court of Queen's Bench, Manitoba; Appeal to the Privy

Council, England ; Petition for medical examination of the convict ; List of petitions for com-
mutation of sentence. Presented to the House of Commons, 11th March, 1886, by Hon. J. A..

Chapleau Printedfor Distribution only.

43^. Return {in part) to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for copies of

all papers found in the council room of the insurgents, or elsewhere at Batoche, especially

including: 1. The diary of Louis Riel. 2. The minute book, and Orders in Council of the

insurgent council. 3. The correspondence of Louis Riel. Presented to the House of Commons,
17th May, 1886.

—

Mr. Laurier Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

43?. Supplementary Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for

copies of all papers found in the council room of the insurgents, or elsewhere at Batoche,

especially including : 1. The diary of Louis Riel. 2. The minute book and Orders in Council
of the insurgent council. 3. The correspondence of Louis Riel. Presented to the House of

Commons, 17th May, 1886.

—

Mr. Laurier Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

44. Report of the Commissioner, Dominion Police, in compliance with the Act 31 Victoria, chapter
73. Presented to the House of Commons, 11th March, 1886, by Hon. J. S. D. Thompson

—

Not printed.

44a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1886, for a Return showing
the names and number of those who acted as police scouts during the North-West insurrection ~

T

also the names of those who have since applied for a land grant bounty for said services, the

same as that given to the volunteers. Presented to the House of Commons, 11th May, 1886.

—

Mr. Sproule Hot printed.

45. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of all Orders in Council in relation to the Half-breed prisoners

in the North-West, passed during the three months next preceding the 16th November, 1885.

Presented to the House of Commons, 11th March, 1886.—Mr. Desaulniers (Maskinonge)—
Not printed.

45a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing
the number of Half-breeds of the North-West Territories who proved their claims before the

Commission at Fort Qu'Appelle, Touchwood Hills, Qu'Appelle Valley, Regina, Maple Creek,

Calgary, Fort McLeod, Pincher Creek, Edmonton, St. Albert, Fort Saskatchewan, Victoria,

Fort Pitt, Battleford, Prince Albert, Batoche, Duck Lake, Forks of Saskatchewan, Fort a la

Come, Cumberland House, Moose Jaw and Willow Branch, in the North-West Territories

;

also at Grand Rapids, in Keewatin, and Winnipeg and Griswold, in Manitoba, giving in each

lb'
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already settled in Manitoba and^tho e who had no
.
« »

plementary list, and those

who proved their clams prior to the 20th of *Pm ™l °
Je House of Commons, 24th

d t * „„ nrrlsr nf the House of Commons, dated 7th March, 1883, for

156. Supplementary Return to an Order Jth^ ° ,

inhabitants of Prince

«. Keturn to an Address of the House of£— His Excellen

^

=;«
of Commons, 17th May, 1886. -Mr. JUius

March, 1886. -Sir Richard Cartwnght

r> , t, ,„ Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

"
datd 9th Ma:fh 188 for opics of all memorials and papers presented to the Government, or

"melt tteof, relating' to the Canada Temperance Act by^^^J*^
the 19th February last. Presented to the House ot Commons, 11th March, 1886. Mr. Sran^

: Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a
K^hoWing

amount pai

Mr. McMullen

476 Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return showing
476. Return to an uroe

Stratford, county of Perth, returning

H°^t Tempe antTcl i^tne county li Perth, Ontario, for the vote taken under
officer unttei tne i V

detailed statement of all moniea

the House of Commons, 15th April, 1886. -Mr. Trow Artjw.BMO

.- im,-™ to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 28th April, 1886, for a Keturn showing
47C

\he nnler of e tabUlints now in operation in Canada in which liquors of all hinds are

mannfectured • the number of hands employed ; the amount of capital invested and wages

"rdtrptees dnring the year ending 31st December, 188, Presented to Hie Honse of

Commons, 6th May, 1886—Jfr. RoberUon (Shelburne) notpromo

47d Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 28th April, 1886, for a statement showing

the amount of liquor of all kinds manufactured in Canada during the year 1885
;
the amount

ZZe exported, and the estimated value of same. Presented to the House of^Commons,

6th May, 1886.- Jfr. RoterUon (Shelburne) *

*,„ Upturn to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 28th April, 1886, for a statement showing

the amount o?tnor of all kinds imported into Canada during the year 1885, and duties

colleTed for same. Presented to the Honse of Commons, 11th May, £^j££2
K l1
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. IS.

48. The Civil Service List of Canada, on the 1st July, 1885, under the 59th section of the Civil

Service Act. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd May, 1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

48a. A Return of the names and salaries of all persons appointed to or promoted in the Civil
Service during the year ending 1885, specifying the office to which each has been appointed or

J promoted. (Section 58, sub-section 2, " Civil Service Act.") Presented to the House of
Commons, 15th March, 1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

49. Detailed statement of all bonds and securities registered in the Department of the Secretary of

State of Canada, in conformity with the Act 31 Victoria, chapter 37, section 15. Presented to

the House of Commons, 12th March, 1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau Not printed.

50. Return of expenditure under appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out of the"troubles in the North-West Territories, from 1st July" 1885, to 15th March, 1886 ; and
subsidiary statement, " Hudson Bay Company's Supplies." Presented to the House of

Commons, 30th March, 1886, by Hon. A. W. McLelan—
Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

60a. Report of the Board of Examiners for the Civil Service in Canada, for the year ended 31st

December, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 19th April, 1886, by Hon. J. A.

Chapleau Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

51» Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for copies of all corres-

pondence, reports* recommendations and representations received at, and sent from, the

Department of Customs since the year A.D. 1880 to this day, on the subject of the Richibucto

harbor, the Customs business done thereat, and in any way relating to the Customs service

thereat, including all claims made for extra services by or on behalf of any preventive officer

of the ports of Richibucto and Kingston. Presented to the House of Commons, 15th March,

1886.—Mr. Landry {Kent) Not printed.

51a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of all corres-

pondence with the Department of Public Works relative to protection required to the north of

Smith's Island to prevent the total destruction of Port Hood harbor, Inverness, N.S. ; also a

copy of the engineer's report thereon. Presented to the House of Commons, 31st March, 1886.

°*-Mr. Cameron (Inverness) Ai ot printed.

$lb> Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for copies of all corres-

pondence between the Municipal Council of Bayfield or other persons and the Department of

Public Works, in reference to the repairs to the harbor of Bayfield. Presented to the House of

Commons, 6th April, 1886.—Sir Eichard Cartwright Not printed.

52j Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of all documents forming the record in the cases of Her

Majesty against the different parties tried in connection with the late rebellion, including the

jury lists, the names of the jurors, the lists of the jurors empannelled, the motions and affi-

davits filed, the evidence, the incidents of the trial, the charges of the judge, the names of the

judges Who tried the different cases, the names of the counsel for the prosecution and for the

defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts and the sentences, and, in short, of every document

Whatever relating to the said trials. Presented to the House of Commons, 15th March, 1886.

—Mr. Laurier Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers,

53d $ b, A Supplementary Return and & final Supplementary Return to an Address of the House

of Commons to His Excellency the Goveror General, dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of all

documents forming the record in the cases of Her Majesty agaiust the different parties tried in

connection with the late rebellion, including the jury lists, the names of the jurors, the lists of

the jurors empannelled, the motions and affidavits filed, the evidence, the incidents of the trial,

the charges of the judge, the names of the judges who tried the different cases, the name» of

AS
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of Commons, 11th May, 1886.-Jfr.JfcifH««n

namesa^—. Resented to the Senate, 20th May, im.-Bon. M,^-^^
«»• Return to an Address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 7th April,

02/\" fop^s of the commission or commissions, and"^<J»J^SS£
appointed to enquire into and report npon the losses snsta.ned m_the Nortt W^™»
during the recent rebellion. Presented to the Senate, 20th*%^*Z£*™^

House of Commons, 2nd June, 1886.-J&. Kirk

Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governo,.Geneml,

to the House of Commons, 22nd March, 1886.-lfr. Casey

54.

55.

Francis
;
presented 2nd June, 1886

19
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57. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 28th March, 1884, for a statement showing the amount of bonuses that have been granted
for railway purposes by the townships of Artemesia, Bentinck, Egremont, Glenelg, Normanby
and the town of Durham

;
also for statement showing the amount expended by the Provincial

Government in aid of railways within said townships. Presented to the House of Commons,
.

24th March, 1886.—Mr. Thompson (Haldimand) Not printed.

58. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 8th March, 1886, for a Return of the
expenditure made by the St. John Bridge and Railway Extension Company .on their railway
and bridge connecting the Intercolonial and New Brunswick Railway, together with a state-
ment of the amounts advanced by the Government to the said company, and the dates of such
advances. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th March, 1886.—Mr. Weldon...Not printed.

59. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 1st March, 1886, for copies of all petitions or memorials received by the Government,
since the 1st January, 1882, from riparian owners on the Richelieu river, complaining that the
piers constructed in the said river near the towns of St. John and Iberville by the Stanstead,
ShefFord and Chambly Railway Company raise the waters of the said river, and that their
lands are consequently flooded, and praying for relief. Presented to the House of Commons,
24th March, 1886.—Mr. Bechard Not printed.

60. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 30th March, 1885, for a copy of the report of the commissioners appointed to enquire
into the claims of the merchants and fishermen of Prince Edward Island for a refund of duties
paid by them in the years 1871 and 1872, on fish exported to the United States. Also all

instructions furnished to said commissioner, and all correspondence between the commissioner
and the Government, or any of the Departments, relating to the said refund, or the evidence
or report of the said commissioner. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th March, 1886.—
Mr. Mills Not printed.

61. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 2nd February, 1885, for a Return
showing

: 1st. The total number of timber licenses or permits to cut timber granted since 1st
February, 1883, and the total area covered by such licenses or permits. 2nd. The total
amount of bonuses or premiums paid on such licenses or permits. 3rd. The name and residence
of each grantee of a timber license or permit ; the number of the license or permit ; the area
covered by each

;
the date of application for the same ; the bonus or premium per square mile

paid upon each
;
whether the survey of each berth or area covered by license or permit was

made by the Government previous to granting the same, for the purpose of obtaining informa-
tion as to its value

;
and the information, if any, in the possession of the Government as to the

quantity, quality and kind of timber upon each
; also the location of each berth or limit ; also

the names of all assignees of such licenses, and the consideration expressed in the assignment.
4th. The Crown dues or stumpage charged or chargeable on each license or permit. 5th.
Whether in each case where a license or permit was granted the berth was first put up at
public auction after public notice inviting tenders was given, and was sold to the highest
bidder, or whether granted upon application from the grantee without public competition
being invited. 6th. Copies of all petitions, remonstrances, claims or communications sent or
made to the Government respecting such timber licenses or permits

; and copies of all corres-
pondence had with the Government respecting such lands, licenses or timber, and the action
ot the Government thereon. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th March, 1886.- -J/r.
Charlton , r , . , ,

JSot printed.

61a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for copies of corres-
pondence between the Indians of the Fort William Reserve, or anyone on their behalf, and the
Indian Department, and between the Indian Department and Indian agent, whether by tele-
graph or otherwise, on the subject of the action taken under the existing timber licenses.
Presented to the House of Commons, 1st April, 1886.-Jfr. Blake Notprinted.

61 J. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1886, showing the names of
the persons who respectively owe the arrears of $43,860.95, on account of cullers' fees, which
appear to be according to the Report of the Department of the Interior for the year 1885, at
page 23. Presented>.the House of Commons, 10th May, 1886.—Mr. Casgrain Notprinted,
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„, Return to an Address of the Sena, to «££*£«~ dSe^en£
July, 1885, for copies of '''— *^Sl land and timber regulation*

the Interior or any member of£W°£j£^ ™!
to the Senate, 20th May, 1886.-

affecting Dominion Lands in butisn uoiumoid,.
tf t printed.

Hon. Mr. Mclnnes

^Reports of the Chief En^^^^^^^

S^^E^^^ to the^Cj^^A^l^
Hon. J. H. Pope

aa, Copies of teiegraphic communications^^^ff^T^"^ ^
sented to the Honse of Commons, 5th Apnl, 1886, by Hon. .LB. Pope^^^^^^

«,. Return to an Order of the House of^£S~^£ti^i£
report made F. N. Gisborne in February, 1885, on the^P"«™

Hh the mainland . Pre-

aud Long Islands, Digby eounty, for^^1M^™1~^.* Not printed.

sented to the House of Commons, 5th Apnl, 1886.--Mr. Vatl

j * a oq+v, Mnrrb 1886, for a statement, in

04. Return to an Order of the House of Commons dated 29th **%£* of Fiaance

detail, of the several assets forming the™^W*fc£Z Resented to the House of

C^mot«^^
C, Return to an Address of the House *<^»~*£^?£Z2&

dated 2ith April, 1885, for copies of"^ 3 S""twlen the Government

between the United States and Canada, and of a
1
oo respo

or fte GoTern.

of Canada and the British Government, the Bnt.sh Mm ster a Wa g , ^ ^ ^.^
ment of the United States, upon the subject of reciprocal trade

meat up0Q

States
i
also copies of all reports if any,^^f^ the Can* I ^

the same subject. Presented to the House of Commons, 5tb April,
Notpri,ted.

,.. Return to an Order of the House^^^ ê^^^^^^
during the year ending 31st December, 1885, also of the ro g ^^^
repaired at other workshops during the same period the phases where P_ ^
and the amounts paid. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th Apnl,

Notp:Med.

M, Return to an Order of the House of<^<££££^j£^ 'the

number of private or official cars built orP^'***..,
12th April, 1886-

year 1878, and the cost of each car. Presented to the House ol^™™
> ^p , inted.

M'. Weldoii, •

A a *a A Aih March 1886, for a Eeturn showing

666. Return to an Order of the House of Commons dated «h MarcV188b
six

the quantity of rolling stock purchased for the *»*"*>?* *%£&£»£** whether

months of the year ending 31st December, 1885, giv.ng each kind of rolling^s
,

purchased under contract or o-nerwise the parties ftomwhmjouglit and ^
kind. Also a statement showing what has been bu> in Government wo p

Presented to the House of Commons, 14th April, 1886. Mr. 11 ««*>»

6« c : Return to an Order of the House of Commons, datedfJ^T^ ^"llhe
the cost and monies expended upon the railway s.at.on tald ngua BtWta, N.

B
a

furniture and fittings therein, th/amount of the several ^t^^'"^
House of Commons,

the place of manufacture of such furniture and fittings. Presented to the House o^^^,
15th April, 1886.—Mr. Weldon »•
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66<£ Eeturn to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for copies of a report

made by Mr. Joseph Simard, Dominion Arbitrator, under date of 16th October, 1883, recom-

mending that a sum of money should be paid to George Lavoie, of the parish of Ste. Cecile du
Bic, for damages caused to his property by the Intercolonial Railway, or fixing the amount of

such damages. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd May, 1886.—Mr. Langelier—

Not printed.

66e. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 14th April, 1886, for copies of all docu-
ments addressed to the Honorable the Minister of Railways, praying, on the part of Jean
Baptiste Plante, of St. Charles, that his claim for two horses killed on the Intercolonial Rail-

way may be referred anew to the Dominion Arbitrators. Presented to the House of Commons,
6th May, 1886.— Mr. Amyot Not printed.

66/. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 28th April, 1886, for copies of the award
or report of the Dominion Arbitrators, with the evidence and papers connected therewith, in

the matter of claims in connection with section 16 of the Intercolonial Railway, on the part of
the estate of the late John Bannon, Esq. ; the late William Muirhead, Esq. ; William Wilkin-
son, Esq., and the other claims investigated at the same time as those named above, and
connected with the said report or award. Presented to the House of Commons, 31st May,
1886.—Mr. Mitchell Printed for Sessional Papes only.

G6y. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing
the quantity of stores purchased and taken into stock for the Intercolonial Railway during the
last six months of the year ending 31st December, 1885, specifying what stores and of what
kind purchased under contract, and the names of the several contractors, and the several
amounts paid under such contracts. Presented to the House of Commons, 31st May, 1886.—
Mr. Weldon Not printed.

66 h. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return of the
earnings and working expenses of the Intercolonial Railway for each month from 1st July,
1885, to 1st February, 1886, specifying the different sources of earnings and the amount (if
any) in e*ach month, credited from mechanical stores account to earnings. Presented to the
House of Commons, 31st May, 1886.—Mr. Weldon Printed for Sessional Papers only.

66*. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing
the number of men employed on the Intercolonial Railway between Campbellton and Halifax
and between St. John and Shediac, including the men employed at the different stations, speci-
fying the number at each station and the men employed on the machine shops atMoncton

; the
number and names of men dismissed or discharged from the employment of the railway since
1st October last, and the several causes of such dismissal or discharges

; also any reduction of
wages payable to the employees or any of them since the first day of October last. Presented
to the House of Commons, 31st May, 1886.— Mr. W, Idon-. Sot p inted.

67. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 8th March, 1886, for copies of all Orders in Council passed for the granting of the sub-
sidy authorized by the Acts 47 Victoria, chapter 8, and 48-49 Victoria, chapter 58, " for a line
of railway connecting Montreal with the harbors of St. John and Halifax by the shortest and
best practicable route

;
" of all reports of engineers upon which said Orders in Council may

be based, together with a statement of all monies paid in connection with the same, and of all
persons to whom such payments may have been made. Presented to the House of Commons,
5th April, 1886.- Mr. Laurier •. Sot minted.

67a. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 1st April, 1886, for copies of all correspondence between the Government of the
Dominion of Canada and the Government of Nova Scotia, in reference to the Short Line Rail-
way in Nova Scotia, and legislation affecting the same. * Presented to the House of Common's,
28th April, 1886.-JT. Tupper Notprited.

67J. Report of the Chief Engineer of Government Railways, submitting the reports of Messrs.
Donken and Hyndman on Cape Breton surveys, 1886. Presented to the House of Commons,
19th May, 1886, by Hon. J. S. D. Thompson—

Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
22
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69.

68 . Copy of an ag.ee.ent between the Chignecto Marine^nspori«™£"
and Her Majesty Qneen Victoria, represented ^^^Jl, 5th ^rf,, 1886, by Hon.

Canada, dated 4th March, 1886. Presented to the Ho-iae ot t-om
,

v '_ Kotpriated.

J. H. Pope

Ketnrn to an Address of the Senate to His^ZZ^ZT^Zt^M
1885, for a copy of all correspondence^^X^vZ last summL in regard

Parliament or others in relation to the

.

inTe" ,"*n°

de Pau , and tlie difficulties in the

to the administration of the penitentiary of S . Vmeant deJPMl, _^
administration of the said institution. Presented to the Senate, 30th Ma

, ^ .^
Bellerose

.*,. Ketnrn to an Address of the Senate tof**^J%^°%t^^
UN, for a copy of a protast of the deputjgarden of to. Tmcent d

witaegs ^ ^^
phore Onimet, objecting to the evidence of HectoiDemc, s , ^^
July, 1884, being taken before the commission f nqniry named

q^ Mareh)^^
meat of the aforesaid penitentiary in 1884. Presentea to« , Not pinted.

Mr. Bellerose

69, Ketnrn to an Order of the Honse of Commons, dated 3rd^^^it^li
the nnmber of convicts in the Dominion^.te^

a

^e for^^^ Qumbet

employed at work that competes with fiee labor the ana oi p ;

Tf i'Zson

Hector Langevin •

"amount of goid held by the Government and the banks for the redemption of

[

—
and bank notes at the same date. Presented to the Honse of Commons

,™*^$%^™
McMullen

73. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for copies ofdim

r:rz. 5 »...«. * «. »- •< ***» »»• s— '—« »"™

«

Commons, 15th April, 1886.—J/>. Moffat •

,3 Ketnrn to an Order of the Honse of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return showing

se u esmade at the port of Winnipeg, or any of its outports, by the Customs officers of

offidas between 1st January, 1885, and the 11th March, 1886, in which flues were imposed,

delosUs fo fe ted, or goods sold after seizure
;
giving the names of the persons upon whom

flues w re imposed, who forfeited deposits, or whose goods were sold after seizure
;

giving the

amount of each fine imposed, of each forfeit deposited, and of the amount **»**£*£*
in which goods were sold; and stating in detail the name, official position,*nd salary of each

officer to whom any part of the money so realized was paid, and the amount m each case thus

So thl said offi", Presented to the House of Commons, 15th^™^££
{Biant)

M Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

*4
'

date I March, 1886, for copies of all the evidence, together with the judge's charged

all other papers relating to the trial of Loison Mongram for the murder of David L. Cowan, a

'4'4
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policeman, late of the county of Carleton. Also all petitions, correspondence and Orders in

Council relating to the commutation of the d-?ath sentence of Loison Mongrain. Presented to

the House of Commons, 19th April, 1886.

—

Mr. Tiow Wot pointed.

75. Message from His Excellency the Governor General, transmitting copies of certain despatches

from the Right Honorable the Secretary of State for the Colonies, and of other papers, with

reference to the Aspy Bay affair. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th April, 1886, by

Sir Hector Langevin Prirtedfor Sessional Pape s o ly.

76. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 19th April, 1886, for copies of all despatches from or correspondence with the Imperial

Government, respecting the complaint of the Legislature or Government of Prince Edward

Island that the terms of Union between that Island and the Dominion have not been carried

out, or with respect to the mission of delegates to the Impierial Government from Prince

Edward Island on the subject of such complaint. Presented to the House of Commons, 19th

April, 1886.

—

Mr. Mclntye Pri< tedfo both Distributio <. and Sessional Pape s.

76a. Supplementary Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the

Governor General, dated 19th April, 1886, for copies of all despatches from or correspondence

with the Imperial Government, respecting the complaint of the Legislature or Government of

Prince Edward Island that the terms of Union between that Island and the Dominion have not

been carried out, or with respect to the mission of delegates to the Imperial Government from

Prince Edward Island on the subject of such complaint. Presented to the House of Commons,

30th April, 1886.

—

Mr. Mclntyre Piiutedfor both DisPibution and Sessio al Pape s.

77. Return to an Order'of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return of names,

tonnage, number of n.en and armament of steamers or sailing vessels forming the present

Marine Police Force of Canada, the extension of which is referred to in the Speech from the

Throne. Presented to the House of Commons, 22nd April, 1886.—if . Mitchell Notpnided.

77a. Return to aii Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return of the

numbers and names of United States fishing vessels frequenting the inshores of Canada for

fishing and kindred purposes, during each of the several years that the Treaty of Washington

has been in operation ; also the kinds and estimated quantities of fish taken yearly by each

American vessel, and the probable period of each fishing voyage or voyages. Presented to the

House of Commons, 22nd April, 1886.—Mr. Mitchell Not printed.

77b. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 29th March, 1886, for a copy of the Report of the Minister of Marine aud Fisheries to the

Privy Council under date of 15th December, 1869. Presented to the House of Commons, 22nd

April, 1886.—if--. Mitchell Printed for Sessional Papers only.

77c. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 1st April, 1886, for copies of all fishery regulations or official notices, and of instructions

to fishery officers or other persons commanding the alleged Marine Police Force of Canada,

under the Fishery Act of 1868, relative to fishing practices by United States citizens exercising

privileges conceded by the Treaty of "Washington in common with Canadian fishermen, the

said copies to be accompanied by a description of the various instances and of the manner and

effect of enforcing the said regulations or notices. Presented to the House of Commons,

28th April, 1886.—Mr. Mitchell Not printed.

77 d. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 5th April, 1886, for copies of all correspondence between the Government of British

Columbia, or any person, and the Dominion Government, with regard to the deep-water

fisheries on the coast of British Columbia. Presented to the House of Commons, 29th April,

1886.—Mr. Shakespeare Printedfor Sessional Papers only?

77 e. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1886, for a Return giving the

number of whitefish fry at the various fish hatcheries of the Dominion for distribution next

24
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spring • also the number of pickerel and black bass ; also the instructions that have been given

Kir distribution. Presented to thefflouse of Commons, 11th May, 188*-*. ft-**^

7,f Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 14th April, 1886, for copies of all claims

for flshing bounties by Louis Pinault and Michel Pinault, of Ste. Cecile, Bic, fishermen of all

Iffidavts or declarations in support of the said claims; of all correspondence in relation to

uTlls between the Department of Fisheries or any other^P— t of the Governm t

and the said Louis Pinault and Michel Pinault or other persons ;
also of all reports ot fishery

„s m relation to the said claims. ^^^^^^^^'^
Mr. Langelier

78 Return to an Order of the Honse of Commons, dated 2nd March, 1885, for a Return of the

names of the president, vice-president, directors (or provisional directors as the case may be,

an^sha eho ders of the various railway companies for whose lines snbsidies have been granted

Ty the Parhament of Canada, and the amount of the stock he!d by each individual Presented

to the Honse of Commons, 28th April, 1886.-.¥r £«<er Ifolpnntea.

-rsa Paners correspondence, etc., respecting subsidies to certain railway companies, and towards

the con teucTon of certa n rai ways, as follows : Moncton and Bnctouche RaHway Company ;,

h,e of aifway Inge -soil to Chaftam, Ontario; Northern and Western Railway Company;

rcLaonltLilway Company; Lake Brie, Essex and Detroit Railway Company; Thunder

^."coloniLtion Raflway Company; Parry Sound Colonization Railway Company
;

ra way

from New Glasgow to Montcalm, Quebec; railway from Hereford to Eaton Quebec
,
.railway

om S . Felix fo Lake St. Gabriel, Quebec ; railway from Gleuannan to Wingham Ontario,

Jway from McCann Station to Joggins, Nova Scotia ;
railway from L Assomption to L Epi

phanie Quebec; Montreal and Western Railway Company; railway from St Andiew, to

Lachute Quebe ;
Canada Atlantic Railway Company ;

railway from Truro to Newport, Nova

Lotia Quebec a^ Lake St. John Railway Company ; Cap Ronge and St. Lawrence Railway

Company" Long Sault to Lake.Temiscamingne ;
Gananoqne to Delta;"i^*^

Stewiacke Valley; Perth Station to Plaister Rock Island, New Brunswick; Fredencton to

Price William, New Brunswick; Newcastle to Douglastown, New Brunswick
;

point on

Canadian Pacific Railway to Eganville, Ontario; Napanee, Tamworth ^.jtoUway

Company; and Albert Railway Company. Presented to the House of Common*b^^ May,

1886, by Sir Hector Langevin

786 Return to an Address of the Honse of Commons to His Excellency «* governor General

dated 1st April, 1886, for copies of all petitions from the Legislatnre of Nova Scotia or any

member thereof and the Dominion Government or any member thereof; and all Orders in

Clien ot either Government, respecting the re-adjnstment or increase «f"ey subsidy

naid or to be paid, by the Dominion Government to the Government of Nova Scotia, not

^biydown 5

Presented to the House of Commons, 3,1 Ma,™^*£^
79 Return to an Address of the Honse of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General

dated Wth April 1886, for a copy of the memorial of the North-West Conncil presented to the

Go* rnmtn?by Messrs. Wilso/and Ross, members of said Council, and<*£™££%£
'said memorial and of any correspondence between the Government and^^ItoL
ernor of the North-West Territories or other parties in reference thereto. Presented to

Honse of Commons, 29th April, 1886.-*. JaU^.^^.^^^^ Papm ,

the same. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd May, 1886.-JTr. Irow F
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ment, and any officers of volunteer corps, whether on active service or not, all officials of

rifle associations, and other parties, in reference to the character of the ammunition made at

the Quebec Cartridge Factory and supplied for use in the field, for practice, or at rifle matches
;

including reports of all tests of such ammunition made by any such officers or officials of rifle

associations. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd May, 1886.

—

Mr. Casey Not printed.

SOb. Eeturn to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for a Eeturn of names
of the staff paymasters appointed, showing whether non-combatants or not, with rank and
corps of such as were in the active militia ; with rate of pay and length of services in all cases.

Presented to the House of Commons, 7th May, 1886.

—

Mr. Trow.. Not printed.

80c. Supplementary Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 7th April, 1886, for

copies of all correspondence between the Minister of Militia and Defence and any official of the

Militia Department, and any officers of volunteer corps, whether on active service or not, all

officials of rifle associations, and other parties, in reference to the character of the ammunition

made at the Quebec Cartridge Factory and supplied for use in the field, fo* practice, or at rifle

matches
; including reports of all tests of such ammunition made by any such officers or

officials of rifle associations. Presented to the House of Commons, 11th May, 1886.

—

Mr.

Casey Not printed.

SOd. Statement of militia pensions, awarded by Order in Council, consequent upon the rebellion

ot 1885, North-West Territories. Presented to the House of Commons, 13th May, 1886, by Sir

Adolphe Caron Printed/or Sessional Papers only.

SOe. Copy of a Eeport of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by His Excellency the

Governor General in Council on the 8th July, 1885, respecting regulations as to pensions and
gratuities, rebellion, North-West Territories. Presented to the House of Commons, lHth May,

1886, by Sir Adolphe Caron Piatedfor Sessional Papers only.

80/. Eeturn to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for copies of instruc-

tions to Major Bell, Major-General Laurie, S. L. Bedson, and other non-combatants, employed
during the North-West campaign, from the Minister of Militia, Major-General Middleton, or

the Adjutant-General of Militia, and of correspondence between the last-named authorities

and such non-combatants. Presented to the House of Commons, 13th May, 1886.

—

Mr. Trow—
Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

SOg. Eeturn to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 3lst March, 1886, for a Eeturn showing
names of all militia officers and non-combatants appointed as transport and supply officers,

giving rank and corps of militia officers, with dates of appointment, rates of pay, b}r whom
appointed, and on whose recommendation, and total payments to each to date. ^ Presented to

the House of Commons, 14th May, 1886.—Mr. Trow Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

80/j. Eeturn to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for a Eeturn of all

horses, ponies, cattle, furs, waggons, carts and other property seized by the Mounted Police or

Expeditionary Force, while on service in the North-West between 27th March and 1st August,

with the disposition made of the same, the names of persons from whom such* seizures were
made, and the amounts (if any) paid, received, or now payable or receivable, on account of

such property. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th May, 1886.—M'. Trow—
Printedfor Sessional Papers %nly.

80?. Eeturn to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for a Eeturn stating

name, rank and corps of all officers composing the staff of Major-General Middleton, and the

capacity in which each served. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th May, 1886.

—

Mr.
Trow Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

80/ Eeturn to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for copies of all corres-

pondence between one James Anderson and the Minister of Militia, Major-General Middleton,

and any member of the Government, with respect to the purchasing of supplies, cost of trans-

port and other expenditure incurred during the North-West Eebellion. Presented to the House
of Commons, 14th May, 1886.—Mr. Trow Printedfor Sessional Papers only.
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m z Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for a Return showing
$01. Kttmn to.an ""•

were d for transport, number of teams

^ge 'frtS^TratHf "pay per day per team, and the tota! amount paid to eaeh of

^contractors. Presented to the House of Commons,»^^^^U «*

80m Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General

""daw 31st March, 1880, for copies of all correspondence between the ^™™*£to™£
Kin -uom and the Canadian Government, or any members, officers or employees thereot

IZiZg the medals to be given to the volunteers who served in the recent msurrect.on m

theVrfiwes, Presented to the House of Commons,^^^^'ers **.

81 Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General

May, 1886.—Mr. Watson

Gillis, and all telegrams and letters upon the subject. 1
resented

Not p7 inted.

3,-dMay, 1886.—Ji>. Davits

to the House of Commons, 3rd May, 1886—Jfr. Cameron (Inverness) Not punted

f885 Pressed to the House of Commons, 6th May, 1886, by Sir Hector^™-
p^

• Petnrn to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return giving :

88. Return ^ an Ordero^
;_._ nta tw haTe arriyed in 0anada from the 20th day of Aug-

lorts at which such immigrants have

China. 3. The number that have

ZTllZm^ t». 5. The number of Chinese that have entered as tounsts, merchants

T The number of Chinese immigrants that have arrived in Canada from the 20th day o Aug-

from such immigrants. 5. The number of Chinese tnat nave m.»» »=~—
;

—

.

men of scie"" or students. 6. Whether in either case (if any) certificates were presented

r;th™ese Government endorsed by the charge d'affaires, consul or consular agen or

other representative of Her Majesty, at the place where the same was granted, or at the port

o place of departure. 7. The cost to the Department of Customs m consequence of he

admin stration by that Department of the Act restricting and regulating Chinese immigia ion

tato Canada. 8 Copies of all the correspondence (if any) between trades unions or other

oc cties, corporate or incorporate, or persons and the Department »f--.-^
strict supervision over Chinese immigration, together with complaints (if any) agam any

officer of Customs in connection with the administration of said Chinese Restriction Act.9

The total number of Chinese persons thathave left Canada during the same period^f^
to the House of Commons, 11th May, 1886.-*. Gordoa....Prtntedfor Sessional Papers only.

£1
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87. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 4th March, 1886, for copies of: 1. All Orders in Council or Departmental Orders respect-

ing the putting in operation "The Act respecting the Electoral Franchise." 2. All correspon-

dence between the Government or any Department of it and said revising officers. Presented

to the House of Commons, 25th May, 1886.

—

Mr. Cameron {Huron) Not printed.

87a. Return {in part) to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 1st April, 1886, for statements

from all revising officers in regard to the arrangements made by them for the printing of the

voters
1

lists in their respective electoral divisions, showing whether tenders were called for,

for such printing, or written contracts entered into for its performance, with copies of such

contracts ; names of parties with whom agreements (written or verbal) were made for such

printing, and number of times lists are to be printed ; stating rates allowed, per name or other-

wise, number of names on first list, whether first list is printed by polling sub-divisions or not,

manner of making alterations and additions after first printing, and all other details of such

arrangements, agreements and contracts for printing said lists. Presented to the House of

Commons, 29th May, 1886.—Mr. Casey Notprinted.

88. Memorandum as to whether it has come to the notice of the Government that American tow

boats have been towing in British Columbia harbors and within the " three mile limit" in Do-

minion waters. Presented to the Senate, 19th May, 1886.—Hon. Mr. Macdonald...Not printed.

89. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1886, for copies of correspon-

dence, not already brought down, between the Government and the captain or any of the crew

of the Life-Saving Service at Port Rowan, province of Ontario. Presented to the House of

Commons, 27th May, 1886.—Mr. Jackson Notprinted.

90. Correspondence, etc., in connection with the suit of The Queen vs. the St. Catharines Milling

and Lumbering Company. Presented to the House of Commons, 29th May, 1886, by'Hon.

Thomas White Notprinted.

91. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return of particulars of any claim made by John Heney, of

Ottawa, for a refund of tolls paid by him upon vessels or wood passing through the Govern-

ment canals, together with copies of all Orders in Council passed by the Government in rela-

tion to such claim, and copies of all correspondence between the Government and the said John

Heney, or any other person, respecting such claims for refund. Presented to the House of Com-

mons, 31st May, 1886.—Mr. Trow Notprinted.

28
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THE

CIVIL SERVICE LIST

OF CANADA

Qmiammg the Names of all persons employed in the several Depart-

ments of the Oivil Service, together with those employed
'

m the

two Houses of Parliament, upon the 1st of July, 18»o,

showing date of first Appointment, Promotion to

present rank, Age and Salary in each case

;

TO WHICH IS ADDED

" The Civil Service Act'
9 and " The Civil Service Superannuation Act

of 1883," with an Analytical Index to each.

THE WHOLE PREPARED AND ARRANGED UNDER THE DIRECTION

OF THE HON. THE SECRETARY OF STATE, PURSUANT

TO SEC. 59 OF "THE CIVIL SERVICE ACT."

OTTAWA:

Printed bt MacLean, Roger & Co., Wellington Street.

1886.
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COlsTTEHSTTS.

ill

iv

IV

iv

1. His Excellency the Governor General and Staff

2. Members of the Cabinet according to seniority of appointment

3. Deputy Heads of Departments accordiug to seniority of appointment ...

4. The High Commissioner for Canada in London

5. The Cvil Service List,™^%£«£«SJaST^St^
the several Departments of the Civil Service, ^geinei «
ployed in the two Houses of Parliament, upon the 1st July, 188^*»*

K date of first Appointment, Promotion to present rank, Age and ^
Salarv in each caseSalary in each case

6. The Civil Service Act, with Index to the same

7. The Civil Service Superannuation Act, 1883, with Index to the same

8. Index to Names in Civil Service List

9. Index to Subjects

165

191

201

231
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NOTE

Members of the Civil Service desiring to make correction of errors in data

respecting themselves should communicate with the Deputy Heads of their respec-

tive Departments not later than the 30th June next ensuing.

Department of the Secretary of State,

Ottawa, March, 1886.
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THE GOVERNOR GENERAL OF THE DOMINION OF CANADA AND STAFF.

Governor General-His Excellency the Most Honourable Hexry Charlbs Kbith Petty-

Fitzmauriob, Marquess op Lansdowne, G.C.M.G., &o.,Ao. (Appointed 18th August, 1883;

sworn in at the city of Quebec, 23rd October, 1883.)

Staff.

Governor General'* Secretary an I Military Secretary—Captain Henry Streatfeild, Grenadier Guards,

(Appointed 29th December, 1885.)

AHes-de-Camp—The Honourable Henry James Anson, Lieutenant 1st Battalion Highland Light

Infantry. (Appointed 24th Oct., 1883, ; Capt. Hon. Alfred J. G. Byng, 7th (Qneen's Own) Hnssars.

(Appointed 4th Feb., 1888) 5 Extra Aides- de- Camp-Lieut. Col. Hewitt Bernard, C.M.G. (Appointed

July, 1865) ; Captain Russell Stephenson. (Appointed 26th December, 1878.)

48—b »i
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MEMBERS OF THE CABINET.

(By Seniority of Appointment.)

1 The Right Honourable Sir John Alexandbr Maodoxald, P.O., G.C.B., D.C.L., LL.D.,

Q.C., President of the Queen's Privy Council, and Superintendent-General ofIndian Affairs

(Prime Minister.)

2. The Honourable Sir Alexander Campbell, K.C.M.Gf., Postmaster General.

3. The Honourable Sir Hector Ljuis Langevin, K.C.Mi.G., C.B., LL.D., Q.C., Minister of Public

Works.

4. The Honourable John Henry Pope, Minister of Railways aud Canals.

5. The Honourable Mackenzie Boweli, Minister of Customs.

6. The Honourable Sir Adolphe P. Caron, K.C.xM.G, Q.C., Minister of Militia and Defence.

7. The Honourable Archibald Woodbury MoLelam, Minister of Finance.

8. The Honourable John Carling, Minister of Agriculture and Statistics.

9. The Honourable John Costigan, Minister Oi' Inland Revenue.

10. The Honourable Frank Smith, {without portfolio).

11. The Honourable Joseph Adolphe Chapleau, LL.D., Q.C., Secretary of State.

12. The Honourable Thomas White, Minister of the Interior.

13. The Honourable John Sparrow David Thompson, Q.C., Minister of Justice.

14. The Honourable George Eulas Foster, Minister of Marine and Fisheries.

deputy heads of departments.

{By Seniority of Appointment.)

1. William Henry Griffin, Deputy Postmaster General.

2. Joseph Charles Tache, M.D., D.L., Deputy Minister of Agriculture and Statistics.

3. Toussaint Trudeau, C.E., Deputy Minister of Railways and Canals.

4. William Smith, Deputy Minister of Marine.

5. Alfred Richard Cecil Selwyn, F.R.S., LL.D., Director Geological Survey of Canada.

6. James Johnson, Commissioner of Customs.

7. Lt.-Col. Charles Eugene Panet, Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.

8. Colonel Walker Powell, Adjutant General of Militia.

9. John Mortimer Courtney, Deputy Minister of Finance.

10. George Frederic Baillairge, C.E., Deputy Minister of Public Works.

11. Lawrence Vankoughnet, Deputy Superintendent General of Indian Affairs.

12. John Joseph McGee, Clerk of the Privy Council.

13. George Wheelock Burbidge, Q.C., Deputy Minister of Justice.

14. Grant Powell, Under Secretary of State.

15. Edward Miall, Commissioner of Inland Revenue.

16. Alexander MacKinnon Burgess, Deputy Minister of the Interior.

17. Frederick White, Comptroller of the North Wtst Mounted Police.

18. John Tilton, Deputy Minister of Fisheries.

Auditor General of Canada :

John Lorn McDougall (41 Vic, cap. 7.)

HIGH COMMISSIONER FOR CANADA IN LONDON.

Hon. Sir Charles Tupper, G.O.M.G., C.B. (appointed 24 May, 1884;, 9 and 10 Victoria Chambers,

London, S.W.

Secretary Canadian Government Offices in London—Joseph G. Conner (address as above.)

Assistant Secretary and Accountant—Clarence C. Chipman.

IV
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THE SEVERAL DEPAETMENTS OF THE CIVIL SERVICE

OF CANADA.

"(o)-

l.-THE GOVERNOR GENERAL'S SECRETARY'S OFFICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Jones, Charles Jerome ,

Oampbell, William

McDermott, Peter Lawrence,

Smith, George

Clarke, George Henry

1 July'83

1 July'83

2nd class " 1 May '84

Messenger !
11 May '52

Orderly 5 Dec. 79

Present Date of

Salary. Birth.

$ cts.

1,900 00

1,500 00

1,150 00

500 00

490 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

4 Dec. '47

20 Dec. '52

25 June '53

13 Nov. '19

25 Dec. '48

1 July 75

1 Nov.72

1 July '83

11 May '52

5 Dec. 79

2.—THE PRIVY COUNCIL OFFICE.

McGee, John Joseph

Beaudry, Pierre Janvier

Ubalde

Clerk Privy Council

Alexander, Henry........

Lee, William Horace

Burpee, Lewis Johnston...

Baldwin, Robert Warren

Bennetts, Francis Kent

Brennan, Patriok John

Lelievre, Simeon

Newby, Frank

Moll, Oscar Louis Eugene. .

.

Chute, Lyman Harris

May, Henry Arthur

Foley, James

Naughten, Michael ,

Groome, William ,

Reynolds, William

•Chilton, Benjamin

Assistant Clerk of Privy

Council & Chief Clerk

1st class Clerk

1st class "

2nd class "

2nd class " .........

2nd class "

2nd class "

2nd class "

3rd class "

3rd class "

3rd class "

3rd class "
,

3rd class "
,

Doorkeeper & Messenger

Messenger ,

Messenger

Messenger

20 May '82

30 May '84

1 July '81

1 July '81

1 July '80

1 July '83

1 Oct. '83

1 July '84

1 July '84

23 Oct. 73

1 July '80

1 Jan. '82

1 May '84

1 July '85

10 Feb. '41

21 May 74

9 Feb. 75

4 Jan. 79

3,200 00

1,850 00

1,700 00

1,650 00

1,350 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,000 00

600 00

700 00

450 00

700 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

490 00

6 Aug. '45

4 Nov. '43

8 Jan. '37

12 Feb. '44

19 Apr. '46

3 Apr. '49

25 Apr. '54

31 Dec. '53

3 Nov, '59

1 Apr. '51

21 June '49

2 May '56

6 Aug.' 65

21 Oct. '52

Sept. '18

22 Jan. '28

15 Sep. '43

'67

7 Feb. '63

23 Apr. '56

23 Dec. '61

Uuly '67

3 June 74

1 July 75

24 Nov. "83

April '82

Mar. 72

1 July '80

1 Jan. '82

1 May '34

1 July '85

1 Oct. '40

21 May 74

9 Feb. 75

4 Jan. 79

1
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3.-THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.—INSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

*Burbidge, Geo. Wheeloek,
Q.C Deputy Minister

Chief Clerk

1 June '82

1 Jan. 79

$ cts.

3,600 00

2,150 00

6 Feb. '47

22 Dec. '47

1 June '82

Power, Augustus 1 July 75

Leslie, John 1st class Clerk

1st class ''

1 June '82

1 July '83

1,550 00

1,500 00

10 Oct. '47

14 Oct. '51

1 May 72.

Fraser, Geo. Levaek Bower.

.

13 Sept.76

Keefer, Augustus 1st class " 1 July '83

1 July '83

1,500 00 21 Oct. '19 1 Jan. 74

Gisborne, Francis Hernaman. 1st class " 1,500 00 19 May '58 15 Feb. '82

Hodgins, Wm. Egerton 2nd class " 1 Nov. '83 1,150 00 3 Oct. '51 1 Nov. '83

Blackadar, Wm. Hill 3rd class " 12 May '80 1,000 00 29 Mar. '32 12 May '80

Cote, Pierre Martial 3rd class "

Insp. of Penitentiaries..

11 Jan. '83

1 Nov. 75

750 00

2,800 00

30 Apr. '61

11 Jan. '26

11 Jan. '83.

1 June '69

Foster, Geo. Lawrence Accountant do 7 July '80 1,500 00 13 May '40 11 Aug. 74

Low, Henry 2nd class Clerk 1 July '80

1 Mar. 79

1,300 00 '41 1 Aug. 72

Lane, Hy. Bowyer Smith . .

.

3rd class '
l 1,000 00 12 Oct. '55 1 Mar, 79

Clay, John Messenger 1 July '81

1 July '82

470 00 25 Nov.'39 1 July '81

Curran, Patrick Messenger 290 00 23 Dec. '67 1 July '82

THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Kingston Penitentiary—Portsmouth Ont.

Lavell, Michael, M.D [Warden

Sullivan, William i Deputy Warden.

Strange, Orlando S., M.D. .

.

Scobell, Sidney William

Leahy, Mary

Surgeon

Accountant

Matr*

Cartwright, Rev. Conway
Edward, B.A '. J Protestant Chaplain . .

.

Roman Cath. Chaplain.

Warden's Clerk.. I

Twohey, Rev. Patrick A..

Creighton, Robt. Robison

O'Donnell, Patrick I Storekeeper

Adams, James I Clerk of Works

Weir, James 'Steward

Gemmill, William Trade Instructor

3 Feb.
'

1 Sept.

9 Feb.

1 Dec.

1 Oct.

25 Oct.

18 Dec.

1 Feb.

15 July

19 Jan.

1 Sept.

19 Jan.

'85 2,600 00

'81 1,400 00

'85 1.800 00

79 1.000 00

70 550 00

75 1,200 00

75 1,200 00

'82 800 00

70 900 00

70 1,100 00

.'81 700 00

70 1,000 00

29 Dec. '25

6 May '36

13 June '26

21 Oct. >24

10 Sept '38

*37

'49

27 Aug. '61

17 Mar. '36

29 Oct. '33

15 Oct. '50

6 Jan. '16

lOct. 72

1 Feb. '60

3 Nov. 71

1 Dec. 79

15 Jan. '61

25 Oct. 75

18 Dec. 75.

1 Feb. '82

19 June '57

1 Mar. '69

31 Oct. 76

19 Jan. 70

* Is also Solicitor to Department of Indian Affairs.

2



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Kingston Penitentiary—Continued.

Niiiue.

Mathewson, Jas. Bolwer.

Halliday, James

Bostridge, Mary

Wood, NialP

O'Connor, Patrick.

Coward, William ,

Kennedy, Michael

Leahy, Michael

Cunningham, David. .

.

Elsemere, Alexander. .

.

Davidson, Thomas

Evans, James

Hewton, Robt

Beaupre, Peter

McGeen, Bernard

Mooney, Edward

Hugo, Nicholas

Holland, George

Brennan, Michael

Priestly, Robert ,

Bryson, James

O'Driscoll, Jeremiah.

.

Pay tie, Thomas

Fitzgibbcn. Daniel

—

.Smith, Thom.°s

Regain John

McNeill, Charles

Doyle, Janes

Scully, John

Moore, Thomas

Present Rank.

Schoolmaster

Hospital Keeper

Deputy Matron

Fanner and Gardener..

Miller

Baker

Messenger

Keeper

Guard

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

26 Sept.72

29 Jan. '67

1 Oct. 71

1 June '85

18 Dec. '82

6 June '76

1 May '84

1 Nov. '59

8 Jan. '83

1 Jan. '71

1 Feb. 71

1 Nov. '81

1 May '82

4 May '85

1 Mar. '59

27 Sept. '64

lMaT.'65

1 Apl. '66

3 Oct. '65

4 June '55

7 June '66

10 Oct. '66

13 Dec. '66

j
1 Jan. '68

1

$ cts.

600 00 4 July '36

26 June '27

4 Mar. '26

'40

7 Aug. 53

19 June '55

18 Apr. '57

10 May '31

15 Aug. '31

29 May '29

12 May '33

12 July '36

4 Aug. '42

29 July '60

20 Nov. '37

10 Aug. '43

12 Feb. '23

'20

4 July '43

12 Mar. '24

1 Aug. '25

17 Nov. '31

12 Aug. '23

25 Dec. '28

12 Sept.'36

j
5 Dec. '29

|
31 Oct.

:20

I 10 Apr. '39

4 Apr. '37

8 Aug. '44

13 Apr. '59

1 Nov. '57

18 Jan. 68

1 Apr. '81

4 May '85

1 Mar. '59

27 Sept. '64

lMar. '65

lApr. '66

3 Oct. '65

4 June '55

7 June '66

10 Oct. '66

I

|
13 Dec. '66

j 1 Jan. '68

j
19 Mar. '60

|
18 Oct. '59

i 18 Aug. '5S

i 8 Aug. '68

I 4 May 70

9 May 70

48-1J



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Kingston Penitentairy—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Burke, Edward (Guard

Mills, John

McCauley, Robert

McCauley, George

Walsh, Lawrence

Hurst, William

Atkins, Richard;

Adams, Edwin J

Jamieson, Andrew

Donnelly, John

Applet on, Robert

Kennedy, John

Baldock, Jas. George. . .

.

Bostridge, Charles

Thompson, Thomas

Cunningham, John

Darragh, John

Rutherford, Jas. A

McCormack, William. .

.

Mills, James

Weir, Robert

Woodhouse, tUnry

Bell, William Charles...

Burke, Edward

McConville, Charles ....

Teamster.

Teamster.

Guard

Date
thereof.

20 June '68

17 Oct. 75

31 Jan. '68

2 Oct. 76

18 Dec. 76

13 Mar. 77

1 Apl. '85

1 July 71

2 Aug. 79

7 Nov.79

1 July '80

1 June '81

1 Aug. '81

10 Apl. '82

18 May '83

2 July '83

1 Feb. '84

1 Mar. '84

1 Mar.'84

2 Oct. 76

13 Oct. 79

1 Nov. 72

1 Apl. 77

Present
Salary.

1 July 77

$ cts.

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

500 00

Date of

Birth.

1 Apr. '18

1 Jan. '51

22 June '42.

24 July '40

14 Jan. '44

20 Jan. '41

24 Dec. '60

26 Feb. '59

June '57

8 May '55

16 Mar. '43

12 July '52

15 July '50

20 Nov. '48

17 Jan. '43

10 Nov. '61

10 Nov. '50

17 Feb. '51

22 June '51

11 July '41

2 May '48

;36

11 June '45

1 Jan. '61

9 Nov. '47

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

I
20 June '68

17 Oct. 75

31 Jan. '68

2 Oct. 76

18 Dec. 76

13 Mar. 77

1 April '85

1 July 71

2 Aug. 79

7 Nov. 79

1 July '80

1 June '81

1 Aug. '81

10 April '82

18 May '83

2 July '83

1 Feb

1 Mar

1 Mar

2 Oct.

\S4

'84

'84

76

13 Oct. 79

1 Nov. 72

1 April 77

1 July 77

St. Vincent de Paul Penitentiary—St. Vincent de Paul, P. Q.

Laviolette, Godefroy

Godin, Rev. Jos. Octave .

.

Allan, Rev. John

Warden

Roman Catholic Chap.

.

Protestant Chaplain....

21 Nov. '81 2,600 00

29 Sept. '83 1.200 00

20 May 73 1,200 00

1 Nov. '26

17 Jan. '37

6 Sept '13

21 Nov. '81

29 Sept. '83

20 May 73



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

St. Vincent de Paul Penitentiary.—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Ouimet, Telesphore

Pominville, Jos. T., M.D...

Malepart, Geo. Stanislas . .

.

Lanctot, Hypolite

McCarthy, Thomas

Lamarche, Geo. Bricot

Mazuret. Leandre. .

Devlin, James

Manning, John

Kenny, Edward

Dorais, Jos. Theodore

Vaudry, Jean

Therrien, Isidore

Leblanc, Thomas

Dumas, Procope

Ledue, Auguste

Beauparlant, Noel

Lefaivre, Adolphe

Lynch, John

Segouin, Onesime

Mcllwain, Francis Patrick..

.

Desormeau, Jean Baptiste . .

.

Blain, James

Demers, Joseph

Gadbois, Romuald

Dequoy, Alphonse

Lacasse, Zephirin

Gauthier, Jean Baptiste

Charbonneau, Napoleon

Chartrand, Gilbert

Carty, James

Messenger

Keeper

Guard

Date Present

thereof. ! Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Deputy Warden

Surgeon

Accountant

Clerk

Chief Keeper

Store Keeper

Steward

Engineer

Hospital Keeper

Farmer and Gardener .

.

Schoolmaster

Instructor

15 Dec. '81

20 May 73

1 June '82

15 Dec. 75

1 Dec. '81

1 Mar. '80 I

20 May '73
j

1 Dec. '74

1 May '82

1 Jan. '76

22 July '82

20 May '73

1 Jan. '80

23 Oct. '81

20 May '73

20 May '73

15 Apl. '77

13 July '73

20 May '73

19 May '73

20 May '73

20 May '73

20 May '73

1 Jan. 78

1 Feb. 78

1 May '80

14 July 73

1 July 73

7 July 73

13 July 73

7 Dec. 76

$ cts.

1,400 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

700 00

800 00

750 00

610 00

600 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

500 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

gOO 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

19 Jan. '44

16 Nov. '24

23 May '49

1 Apr. '16

27 Apr. '37

23 Apr. '42

25 Nov. '25

3 Nov. '50

15 May '51

29 Apr. '50

16 Oct. '43

17 Aug. '28'

20 Dec. '38

22 Dec. '20

I Jan. '47

10 Feb. '37

24 Dec. '32

12 May '40

27 May '38

21 Sept. '36

28 Dec. '40

9 Mar. '37

24 Nov.'34

1 June '47

II Feb. '47

17 Nov.'37

2 July '28

5 Nov.'42

28 June '50

6 July '41

24 July '27

15 Mar. ,79

20 May 73

1 June '82

15 Dec. 75

1 Dec. '81

1 Mar. '80

20 May 73

1 Dec. 74

13 July '82

1 Jan. 76

I 22 July '82

20 May 73

12 Jan. '80

23 Oct. '81

20 May 73

20 May 73

15 April 77

13 July 73

20 May 73

19 May 73

20 May 73

Uuly 73

20 May 73

19 May 73

19 May 73

19 May 73

14 July 73

1 July 73

7 July 73

13 July 73

7 Dec. 76



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

St. Vincent de Paul Penitentiary—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Lemay, Jean Baptiste

Taillon, Charles

Couvrette, Francois

Chartrand, Ferdinand

Prevost, Edouard

Rochon, Aristide

Plouffe, Napoleon

Durocher. Jos. Edouard . .

.

Leniaire, Olivier

Labelle, Roch

Plouffe, Francois

Boyer, Henri

O'Shea, David

Plouffe, Antoine

Lesage, Felix

Nixon, George

Malepart. Jean Baptiste..

.

Bisson, Vincent

Bastock, William Thomas.

Catellier, Adolphe

Pare, Alberic Victor

Sunders, Isaac

Cloutier, lsaie

Leblanc, Jeremie

Beland, Edouard*

Teamster

Clerk of Works.

Pageau, Narcisse"

Oburn, Delphus*

Cusson, Phileas*.

Instructor,

Date
thereof.

Chartrand, Ubald Guard 1 Jan. 78

Dagneeu, Elzear* -. Caretaker of Tools...

.

1 June 79 500 00

1 May '80 500 09

12 May '81 500 00

8 Nov.'81 500 00

20 Oct. '81 500 00

1 Mar. '82 500 00

6 Mar. '82 500 00

13 Mar. '82 500 00

21 Apl. '82 500 00

20 May '82 500 00

16 May '82 500 00

18 Aug. '82 500 00

22 Aug. '82 500 00

20 June '83 500 00

12 Nov. '83 500 00

6 Aug. '83 500 00

1 May '83 500 00

12 July '84 500 00

1 Oct. '84 500 00

24 Dec. *84 500 00

17 Apl. '85 500 00

7 May '85 500 00

8 Nov. '81 400 00

9 Nov.'81 400 00

2Sept.'81 1000 00

5 Aug. '81 560 00

22 Nov.'81 700 00

22 June '82 700 00

13 May 78 700 00

Present
Salary.

$ cts,

500 00

Date of

Birth.

1 Jan. '43

2 Aug. '38

18 Aug. '38

26 June '39

9 May '35

22 Aug. '50

2 Oct. '42

17 May '50

21 Apr. '40

22 Sep. '30

4 Dec. '39

17 July '39

19 Aug. '34

2 Mar. '60

9 Apr. '46

10 July '41

22 Oct. '44

21 Jan. '46

24 June '55

1 May '43

18 Jan. '47

16 Aug. '41

29 July '42

25 Dec. '43

21 Oct. '48

'32

5 Sep. '35

23 Feb. '22

4 Dec. '43

21 May '41

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

1 Jan. 78

1 June 79

1 May '80

12 May '81

8 Nov. '81

20 Oct. *81

1 Mar. '82

6 Mar. '82

13 Mar. '82

21 April '82

20 May '82

16 May '82

18 Aug. '82

22 Aug. '82

20 June '83

12 Nov. '83

6 Aug. '83

1 May »83

I

12 July '84

1 Oct. '84

24 Dec. '84

17 April '85

7 May '85

8 Nov. '81

9 Nov. '81

2 Sep. '81

5 Aug. '81

22 Nov. '81

22 June '82

13 May 78

These five employees represent the Department of Public Works in this Institution.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 43.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

DORCHESTER PeNITENTIAEY—DOECHESTEB, N. B.

Name. Present Rank,

Botstord, Blair

Forster, John Baker

Gray, John Andrew

Mitchell, Robert, M.D

Campbell, Rev. John Roy. .

.

Labbe, Rev. Edouard E

Keeffc, George

Warden

Deputy Warden

Accountant

Surgeon

Protestant Chaplain.

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Chief Keeper.

Fraser, John |Store Keeper.

22 June 79

22 June 79

1 Sept. ;80

1 July '80

1 Oct. '83

$ cts.

2,000 00

R. C . Chaplain I 1 July '80

Ross, Charles. Steward.

Piercy, James (Engineer

McGowan, Patrick

Short, Thomas

Miller, Charles

Downey, John

Tattrie, Nathan

Pipes, Herbert Sidney Farmer. . .

.

Hogan, William Keeper. . .

.

Oodsoe, Henry I

Johrston, John I

McDougall, James ! Messenger

Hospital Overseer

School Master ••

Carpenter Instructor.

.

Blacksmith Instructor.

Shoemaker Instructor.

Umlah, Richard

Earle, Robert

Barnes, Samuel

Derrah, Charles Nathaniel.

.

Alexander, William

Greenwood, Robert Vincent.

Corcoran, John

Legere, Vital

Connell, Patrick

Cormier, Jude

Guard

5 Aug. 76

1 July '80

1 July '80

11 May '85

1 July '80

1 July '80

1 Mar. 79

1 May '68

1 July '83

1 June '81

1 Sept.72

1 Aug. 73

15 June '81

1 July '83

1 May ,72

3 Oct. 72

1 Jan. 74

1 July 78

1 July '80

1 July '80

1 July '80

1 July '80

1 Aug. '81

8 Nov. '81

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

550 00

550 00

800 00

700 00

700 00

800 00

600 00

600 00

700 00

700-00

600 00

600 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

4 Jan. '21

5 Apr. '42

30 May '53

25 June '35

7 Aug. '41

'43

20 Mar. '23

14 Nov. '36

4 Mar. '35

19 Aug. '52

7 Jan'y '43

6 Mar. '55

20 Mar. '48

17 Mar. '40

3 Apr. '44

31 Oct. '55

16 Apr. '42

25 Dec. '33

11 July '42

19 July '41

8 May '17

11 Mar. '41

19 Sept.'34

15 July '45

31 Aug. '46

22 Feb. '37

12 Apr. '48

May '45

6 Aug. '50

500 00 30 Nov. '36

22 June 79

22 June 79

1 Sept. '80

1 July '80

I Oct. '83

Uuly '80

1 Dec. '61

Uuly '80

1 Nov. '67

II May '85

Uuly '80

Uuly '80

1 Mar. '68

1 May '68

1 Sept. 77

1 June '81

1 Jan. '69

1 Aug. '69

20 Mar. 71

Uan. 73

1 May 72

3 Oct. 72

Uan. 74

Uuly 78

Uuly '80

Uuly 80

Uuly '80

Uuly '80

Uuly '80

8 Nor. '81



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.

Dorchester Penitentiary.—Concluded.

Name.

Colburn, Robert

McNeil, Alexander...

Luther, James

Lane, James Ambrose.

Le Blanc, Joseph

Wathen, Robert

Hutchinson, Willard..

Allain, Adolphus

Poole, Henry Chessel .

.

Present Rank.

! Guard.

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Teamster

1 Jan. '82

15 Mar. '82

9 May '82

1 June '82

1 May '83

1 July '83

16 July '83

IDec. '83

1 May '84

$ cts.

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

350 00

Date of

Birth.

10 July '56

11 Oct. '58

1 June '39

14 Oct. '43

29 May '48

2 Oct. '59

1 Dec. '36

Feb. '55

2 Apr. '44

Manitoba Penitentiary—Stony Mountain,

Bedson, Samuel Lawrence..

.

Crookshank, Andrew Colville.

Green, Rev. Francis

Cloutier, Rev. Gabriel

Sutherland, W. R. D., M.D.

McDonell, ^Eneas Donald O.

.

Perrie, John Robert

Mustard, John

Garven, Alexander Beattie B.

Hall, Henry

Preston, Benjamin

Ennis, Patrick

Mulvaney, William

McCormick, Samuel

Fairbairn, James

Nelmes, Joseph

Smith, John

Watson, Jos. Henry

Warden

Aocoun't. & Storekeeper

Protestant Chaplain

R. Catholic Chaplain..

.

Surgeon

Chief Keeper

Engineer.

Steward & Schoolmaster

Guard & Trade Instr. .

.

Guard

Guard k Blacks'th Inst.

23 May 71 2,000 00

4 Oct. '82 1,000 00

1 June '82 500 00

4 Apl. '83 500 00

1 May '82 600 00

18 Jan. '81 900 00

19 Aug. '84 900 00

1 Sep. '84 1.000 00

1 July 78 820 00

16 Jan. 79 600 00

1 Sept.'82 600 00

1 Oct. '83 600 00

2 Dec. 77 600 00

1 Nov. '80 600 00

29 Apl. '82 600 00

1 Sept. '83 600 00

10 Dec, '83 600 00

1 Apl. '84 600 00

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

1 Aug. '81

15 Mar. '82

9 May '82

Uuly '80

1 May '83

1 June '83

16 July '83

10 July '83

1 May '84

13 Feb. '42

'61

'54

'57

8 Jan. '46

30 June '19

12 June '44

19 May '39

Aug. '34

9 Nov. '41

17 Mar. '40

'50

18 July '59

14 Jan. '52

5 Dec. '36

8 Dec. '48

12 Mar. '54

23 May 71

4 Oct. '82

1 June '82*

4 April '83

1 May '82

21 Sep. 76

19 Aug. '84

16 April '83

1 April 78

24 May 71

1 Sep. '82

1 Oct. '83

2 Dec. 77

26 Sep. 76

29 April '82

1 Sep. '83

10 Dec. '83

1 April '84



19 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Manitoba Penitentiary—Concluded.

Name. Present Rank.

Shead, Win. Henry.

Pugh, John

Eldon, George

Guard & Tailor Inst.

.

i <(

» & Gardener

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

1 Feb. '85

24 Mar. '85 !

15 Apl. '85

600 00 21 Jan. '47 1 Feb. '85

600 00 24 June '44 24 Mar. '85

600 00 31 Jan. '46
i 15 April '85

British Columbia Penitentiary-New Westminster, B. G

McBride, Arthur Hill

Fitzsimmons, James

Trew, Charles Newland, M.D

Keaiy, William Holland

Warden

Deputy Warden.

Surgeon. .,

Jamieson, Rev. Robert

Harris, Rev. Ed. M.J.,0.M.I

Mel lines, Thomas Archibald

Mackenzie, George

McRoberts, John

Fitzgerald, James

Quilty, Thomas William . .

.

Hutchinson, George

Dwyer, Daniel

Gordon, Alexander

Gordon, John Stuart ,

Cassidy, William

Stewart, Finlay

McKee, Hamilton

McKee, James

McDonald, Alex. Ronald.

.

Smyth, Patrick

Accountant, Store Keep-

er and Schoolmaster .

Protestant Chaplain....

Roman Cath. Chaplain.

Steward

Trade Instructor

ci

Guard

Messenger and Guard

Teamster

16 May '78

1 Mar. '79

9 Aug. '78

10 Mar. '84

4 Jan. I' 79

27 Sept. '78

10 May '82

1 Nov. '83

18 Apr. '84

15 Apr. '79

18 Jan. '82

16 Apr. '83

1 Mar. '84

1 Jan. '84

1 May '84

1 Apr. '85

1 Apr. '85

7 Nov.'84

Uune'85

1 July '85

21 Feb. '79

1,750 00

1,100 go

600 00

1 000 00

500 00

500 00

700 00

750 00

750 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

27 June '35

21 Mar. '41

25 Feb. '38

27 Apr. '57

28 Oct. '29

Aug. '32

15 Mar. '60

4 July '54

2 Apr. '43

26 Dec. '42

1 July '50

17 Mar. '48

17 May '55

15 July '55

21 Jan. '58

15 June '50

16 Aug. '52

24 May' 49

22 Mar. '54

2 Nov.'52

4 Mar. '43

Oct. '63

1 Sept. '57

7 Mar. 72

10 Mar. '84

4 Jan. 79

27 Sept. '78

10 May '82

1 Nov. '83

18 Apr. '84

15 Apr. 79

18 Jan. '82

16 Apr. '83

1 Mar. '84

1 Jan. '84

IMay '84

lApr. '85

lApr. '85

7 Nov. '84

1 June '85

Uuly '85

21 Feb. '7*

9



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A.. 1SSG

4.—THE DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE—INSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Panet, Lt. Col. Chas. Eugene

Suite, Benjamin

Lane, Henry David James. .

.

Benoit, Alphonse

Campbell, Colin

Lemieux, Edmond Emile....

Casault, Napoleon

O'Meara, Cornewall Herbert.

Macdonald, Lt. Col. Dold. A.

Lambert, Frangois Xavier. .

.

Aumond, Win. Henry

Holt, Edmd. Burnham

Aldrich, Frederick Ernest P.

Genest, Joseph Marie Eusebe.

Gow, John Wm
Macpherson, Lt. Col. John .

.

Bacon, Lt. Col. Thomas

Present Rank. Date
thereof.

Dep. Min. of Mil. & Def

1st class Clerk

2nd class "

2nd class "

2nd class "

3rd class "

Messenger

Chief Clerk Accountant.

1st class Clerk

1st class "

2nd class

2nd class

3rd class

3rd class

Chf. Clk. Dir. of Stores.

1st class Clerk

Donaldson, Capt. Jas. Ball. . 12nd class

Clarke, Patrick ,3rd class

Knight, Francis Edward

Foley, Lawrence

James, Henry

White, Lieut. Frederick Wm.

Wright, Wm. Richard

Seymour, Grant

Larose, Telesphore Chagnon.

Wainwright, Maj. Willis R. S.

Dion, Chrysostome Jean

Verrault, Eugene

3rd class "

3rd class "

Architect, 1st class.

3rd class Clerk....

Chief Clerk

1st class Clerk

2nd class "

2nd class "

Packer.

4 Feb. 75

19 May 70

1 July 79

20 Jan. '80

• 1 Apr. '82

7 Jan. '85

7 Aug.'67

1 July '81

2 Feb. 75

1 July 79

1 Feb. 73

21 June '84

1 May '82

30 June '84

1 July '67

25 Apr. '81

4 Dec. '83

30 June '84

22 May 77

15 Feb. '84

5 Aug. '85

30 June '84

30 June '84

1 July '69

'67

1 July 79

27 Apr. '85

12 Oct. 72

3 Apr. '82

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

3,200 00

1,800 00

1,400 00

1,350 00

1,250 00

600 00

500 00

2,250 00

1,800 00

1,550 00

1,400 00

1,150 00

1,000 00

450 00

500 00

3,000 00

1,450 00

1,150 00

1,000 00

900 00

450 00

1,600 00

850 00

2,350 00

1,450 00

1,400 00

1,100 00

500 00

490 00

Date Of
Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

17 Nov. '30

17 Sep. '41

7 Oct. '49

14 Sep. '42

9 Oct. '46

14 May '63

15 June '41

25 May '33

31 Oct. '45

6 Feb. '33

15 Jan. '40

1 June '40

2 May '54

7 Feb. '61

25 Sep. '37

8 Jan. '30

21 May '25

5 Aug. '42

17 Mar. '32

21 June '50

4 July '55

10 May '38

16 June '64

26 May '22

27 Apr. '41

20 July '37

22 June '37

27 Jan. '21

29 June '51

4 Feb. 75

19 Nov. '67

1 Dec. '67

1 July 73

13 Jan. 72

1 July '83

7 Aug. '67

1 June '61

22 Oct. 73

10 Dec. '59

16 Mar. '67

23 May '82

1 May '82

30 June '84

1 Sept. '56

1 Sep. 72

14 Dec. '66

1 Sep. '82

22 May 77

15 Feb. '84

5 Aug. '85

30 June '84

30 June '84

April '44

May '61

12 Aug. '62

13 June 79

12 Oct. 72

3 April '82

10



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

aSfc* m- O". C^gMilitiaj S

Powell, Colonel Walker

Wise, Capt. Heniy Ellison.

.

Irwin, Lt. Col.De la Cherois T

Jackson, Lt. Col. Wm. Hayes

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Adjutant General |
21 Apr. 75

Aide-ae-Camp to Gen. . . I 28 Oct.

Inspector of Artillery...

Dep. Adjt. Gen. Dist

No. 1

Avlmer, Lt. Col. Hon.

'Matthew

Dawson, Lt. Col. Melville

DeBlois

Brigade Major

District Paymaster..

.

14 Jan. '76

26 Dec. 73

13 Mar. 74

18 Feb. "84

Denison, Lt. Col. Robert

Britton

M'ilsom, Lt. Col. Thomas.

.

Alger. Lt. CoL Wm. Norcott

Villiers, Lt. CoL Henry

Phillipe Villiers

King, Major William

Lamontagne, Lt. Col. Ekear.

Lewis, Lt. Col. Jos. Wm....

Van Straubenzee, Lt. Col.

Bowen

Dep. Adjt. Gen. Dist.

No. 2 1 'jau
-

81

Brigade Major I
18 Mar. '63

Dist. Paymaster 25 June 79

*fa£^.—-^1 1 Apr. '81

Dist. Paymaster 10 July 79

^o.^."^ 1 Dec. '83

Brigade Major 1 Dec.

"

Worsley, Lt. Col. Pennyman
White

Dep. Adjt. Gen. Dist.

No. 5

Mattice, Lt. Col. Gregor

DeBellefeuille, Lt. Col. C. L.

Harwood, Lt. Col. Antoine

Chartier de Lotbiniere
No. 6,

Hughes, Lt. Col. Geo. Edou'diBrigade Major,

Duchesnay, Lt. Col. Theodore

Juchereau

Brigade Major

Brigade Major

Dist. Paymaster

Dep. Adjt. Gen. Dist
XT,-, ft

Dep. Adjt. Gen. Dist

No.7

Taschereau, Lt. Col. Joseph

Ernest De Montarville. . .

.

Forrest, Lt. Col. Wm. Hy. .

.

Brigade Major.

Dist. Paymaster.

6 May 76

14 Dec. 78

26 Dec. 73

26 July '81

23 Dec. '68

17 Dec. '83

6 May 76

1 Dec. '83

19 Jan. '69

$ cts.

4.000 00

3,200 00

1,000 00

2,300 00

1,700 00

1,200 00

600 00

1,700 00

1,200 00

600 00

1,700 00

600 00

1,700 00

1,200 00

1,700 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

900 00

4 Nov. '25

20 May '28

29 Sept. '59

31 Mar. '43

31 Mar. '28

28 Mar. '42

23 May '84

19 Aug. '62

28 Oct. '84

14 Jan. 76

28 Nov. '62

13 Dec. 71

1,700 00

1,200 00

1,700 00

1,200 00

600 00

28 Nov. '36 18 Feb. '84

28 Nov. '62

18 Mar. '63

19 Jan. '69

28 Nov. '62

9 Mar. 74

1 Dec. '61

lDec. '83

6 May 76

2 Sept. 70

26 Dec. 73

Nov. '62.

23 Dec. '68

17* Dec. 83

21 Nov. '62

1 Dec. '83

30 Nov. 'QQ

24 Apr. '21

27 Jan. '19

7 Sept.'09

28 June '31

18 Oct. '37

28 June '31

13 Mar. *34

2 Apr. '29

14*Aug. '38

13 May '45

7 Aug. '32

23 Apr. '25

5 July '47

2 Apr. '36

29 Mar. '46

27 Mar. '33



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Maunsell, Lt. Col. Ceo. Jos.. Dep. Adit. (Jen. Dist
No. 8

.'

Dist. Paymaster

Brigade Major

Dist. Paymaster

Baird, Lt. Col. Wm. Tell. . .

.

MacShane, Lt. Col. James
Ravenhill

Murray, Lt. Col. John Robert

Houghton, Lt. Col. Charles
Frederick

Date
thereof.

Dep. Adjt. Gen. Dist.
fo. 10.

Peebles, Lt. Col. Adam J. L. iDist. Paymaster

Col. JosiahlDep. Adjt. Gen. Dist.
Holmes, Lt
Greenwood

McDonell, Major Ranaid John

Freeland, Lt. Col. Russell Geo.

Cropley, Major Robt. Adams.

Hewett, Lt. Col. Edward
Osborne, C.M.G

D'Orsonnens, Lt. Col. Louis
Gustave d'Odet

Commdt. R. M. College

Com'g. Inf. Sch'l Corps

Otter, Lt. Col. Wm. Dillon. . Com'g. Inf. Sch'l Corps

Taylor, Lt. Col. John Barton. ICom'g Inf. Sch'l Corps.

sp. Ad
No. 1L

Dist. Paymaster.

Brigade Major. .

,

Dist. Paymaster.

1 Jan.

25 Jan.

5 Sept.

lFeb.

21 Mar.

INov.

6 Apr.

25 June

1 Jan.

25 June !

10 Nov. ;

9 July
'

9 July
'

8 July '

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

1,700 00

700 00

1,200 00

900 00

1,700 00

500 00

1,700 00

500 00

1,200 00

500 00

3,163 00

1,440 00

1,440 00

1.440 00

Date of

Birth'.

25 Aug. '36

17 Nov. '18

22 Apr. '33

9 Feb. '36

17 Apr. '39

24 Oct. '12

10 Nov. '45

21 Jan. '16

25 July '43

21 Jan. '16

25 Sept. '35

17 Apr. '42

3 Dec. '43

14 June '30

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

22 Nov. '65

19 Jan. '69

5 Sept. '75

1 Feb. 84

21 Mar. '73

'67

10 July. '74

24 Apr. 74

4 Nov. '73

10 Aug. '74

10 Nov. '75

3 Jan. '68

9 July '83

12 May '64

12



L9 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

>._THE DEPARTMENT OF SECRETARY OF STATE-INSIDE SERVICE.

Name. I
Present Rank.

Powell, Grant

Morgan, Henry James.

Colson, Frederick

Under Secy, of State,

,

Chief Clerk

2nd class Clerk

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Pnlford, Ernest George '3rd class

<3rd class

. I

Sansom, Charles Baskerville. |3rd class

Emond, Gustave.

Harrison, Major Edward. . . . 3rd class '

Labette,' Leonce Crebassa 3rd class "

Taehe, Louis Henri I
Private Secretary

Catellier, Ludger Aime Deputy Registrar Genljput
Chief Clerk.

Audet, Lieut. Col. Alphonse. !
Keeper of Records &

|
Chief Clerk

i

Brousseau, Elzear list class Clerk

Storr, Ira William 12nd class "

3rd class

3rd class

3rd class

3rd class

Bums, John

Learoyd, Arthur Gilpin .

.

Collins, George

Medlow, Charles

Kirwan, Philip Treacy !3rd class

McDonald, Donald D 3rd class

De Yillemure, Cajetan L. . . . 3rd class

Chamberlin, Lieut. Col. !

h C.M.G., D-O.L..-|Q^tate*CtaJ<.
7 june7Q

1st class Clerk | 1 July '85

25 Jan. '83

22 Dec. 75

20 Jan. '85

7 Feb. '81

1 Jan. '82

7 Feb. '81

1 Feb. '85

1 Apl. '85

1 Aug. '82

31 Oct. 73

6 Jan. '83

1 July *80

1 July '85

1 Jan. 74

1 Jan. 79

1 July '85

24 Feb. '81

1 Nov. 79

1 Feb. '80

1 Apl. '85

$ cts.

3,200 00 % Sept. '19

2,300 00 14 Nov. '42

1,200 00 23 July '54

900 00 7 July '47

800 00 I
21 Oct. "'62

800 00 17 Oct. '48

700 00 24 May '52

600 00 6 Sept.'61

600 00 30 Aug. '59

2,300 00

2,100 00

1,650 00

1,100 00

26 Mar. '35

14 Nov. '41

12 June '35

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

1 May '39

19 Nov. '53

20 Jan. '85

2 Dec. 78

" 8 Dec. '80

15 Aug. 79

30 July '82

I Jan. '85

lAug. '82

13 Aug. '59

II Feb. 79

lFeb. '64

17 Sept.'47 I 20 Oct. T-

1,000 00 10 June '28

1,000 00 15 June '53

900 00 29 June '31

2nd class

3rd class

Gliddon, William..

Mousseau, Albert Olivier.

.

Potvin, Auguste

Orison, Louis Armand 13rd class

Larochelle, Norbert '3rd class

l

Andrews, George ,3rd class

Young, James

7 Jan. '84-

1 Jan. 79

1 June '82

1 June '82

7 Jan. '84

800 00

750 00

750 00

400 00

2,400 00

1,400 00

1,150 00

1,000 00

850 00

700 00

450 00

Robertson, Thomas.

Chief Clerk (Stationery

Branch).... I
1 July '83

|
1,950 00

3rd class Clerk 1 Jan. 79 1,000 00

13

23 Sept. '32

29 Sept.'52

7 Feb. '48

17 Jan. '63

26 Mar. '27

18 Mar. '33

26 Dec. '57

7 July '47

9 Apl. '31

9 Apl. '51

25 Aug. '48

12 Feb. '29

10 Feb. '53

7 Feb. 73

20 Oct. 73

21 Mar. 74

28 Feb. 79

10 Sept. 78

1 Oct. 78

6 Oct. '84

7 June 70

lOct. 71

iMay '80

7 Dec. '69

Uuly 76

1 June '82

5 Dec. '83

18 Sept. '69

Uuly 71



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF SECRETARY OF STATE—INSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Roxborough, Thomas

Walsh, William

Gouldthrite, Frank Slocum.

Hughes, John

O'Keefe, Thomas
,

Allen, Harry
,

Foran, John
,

Elie, Alfred

Present Rank.

3rd class Clerk.

3rd class u
.

3rd class " .

r.

.Messenger.

Messenger

Messenger

Date
thereof.

1 Jan. 79

1 June '82

1 May '81

4 Aug, 73

1 Jan. 74

1 Jan. '80

1 July '83

15 Jan. '84

Present
Salary.

$ cts,

1,000 00

850 00

700 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

360 00

330 00

Date of
Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

13 Aug. '31

1 Aug. '32

2 Nov. '63

28 Mar. '46

23 Mar. '34

12 Jan. '47

17 Mar. '43

14 Oct. '42

1 Dec.

1 Jan.

Dec.

1 June

1 June

1 June

1 July

15 Jan.

'69

76

78

70

f66

74

'83

'84

Clerk of the Crown in Chancery.

Attached to the Department of the Secretary of State.

Pope, Richard. Clerk of the Crown in

Chancery and Chief
Clerk 21 Oct. 73 2,200 00 19 Oct. '27 7 Apr. '65

Board of Civil Service Examiners.

Supervised by the Secretary of State.

*Thorburn,John,M.A. ,LL. D. Chairman Bd. C.S.Exrs. 24 July '82 600 00 10 Oct. '30 24 July '82

fDecelles, Alfred Duclos.

.

Civil Service Examiner. 24 July '82 600 00 13 Aug. '43 24 July '82

LeSueur, Peter
{

G. S. Exr. & Secretary.
as Secretary. 24 July '82

600 00
700 00 10 Jan. 14

»

2 May '54

Xeays, James Alexander.. ... 3rd class Clerk 1 Jan. '85 550 00 27 Mar. '62 Oct. '84

* Is also Librarian to Geological and Natural History Survey.
| Is also Acting Librarian of Parliament.

14



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

6.-THE DEPARTMENT OF THE INTER10R.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Burgess, Alexander Mackin'n Deputy Minister

Date
thereof.

$ cts.

1 July '83 3,200 00 1 Dec. 76

Secretary's Branch.

Hall, John Richard...

Douglas, Peter Brown.

Henry, Kossuth Jarvis..

Ryley, George Urquhart.

Pope, Joseph

Secretary

1st class Clerk & Asst.

Secretary

Kinloch, Henry

Pereira, Lyndwode Charles

1st class Clerk & Regis

trar of Correspondence

1st class Clerk in charge

Timber and Mines. .

.

1st class Clerk & Private

Secretary to Premier.

1st class Clerk

Howe, "William.

2nd class Clerk k Private

Secretary

2nd class Clerk

Rogers, Christopher Chapman |2nd class

Chisholm, Arthur.

Rothwell, Thomas Gainsford

Checkley, Frank Stewart. .

.

Jarvis, Arthur Leonard F..

.

Brough, James Simpson.. .

.

Bonfellow, Robert Miles

Ardouin, George Germain. .

.

L'Etoile, Joseph

George Angrove

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

3rd class

3rd class

3rd class

3ru class

3rd classSouthwell.

Genest, Ernest j3ra class

Peterson, Washington Geo. . j3rd class

Hatch, Walter 3rd class

Nelson, Francis |3rd class

Capreol, Frederick Chase. . . . J3rd class

Hume, Herbert Elsworth. . . . (3rd class

Loyer, Frangois 3rd class

1 July '83

1 July '84

1 July '82

1 July '83

1 July '38

1 Jan. '85

1 Oct. '83

1 July 73

1 July 78

17 June '83

1 July '84

1 July '84

Uan. '85

1 Jan. '83

1 Jan. '83

15 Jan. 83

1 Apr. '82

1 July '82

1 June '82

1 July 79

22 Aug. '82

1 June '85

15 Feb. '84

1 June '85

1 July '82

2,300 00

1,450 00

1,550 00

1,500 00

1,500 00

1,400 00

1,800 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,200 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,100 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

850 00

850 00

850 00

850 00

800 00

700 00

700 00

13 Aug. '47

21 Dec. '41

5 Apr. '52

16 June '52

16 Aug. '54

9 June '48

19 Feb. '52

27 July '48

24 Nov. '40

11 Nov. '50

1 Feb. '51

7 June '51

17 June '52

21 Jan. '50

22 Feb. '51

30 Mar. '51

1 Nov. '47

Uuly '65

21 Dec. 72

30 June 71

18 Feb. '82

3 Dec. 78

7 Sept. 75

1 Jan. '83

30 June *Gfr

16 Sept. 70

23 Feb. 7*

1 Jan. '8S

Apr. 73

1 Sept. '68

71

28 Sept. '81

15 Jan. '83

5 June 74

I

600 00
|

600 00

550 00

21 May '64 1 May '81

16Aug. '5S May !80

I

6 Aug. '58 1 Aug. /«>

19 Nov, '56 1 10 Aug. 7$

12 June '59 i 4 Nov. '82

17 Oct. '60
I

24 Apr. '82

31 Aug. ^7

15 June '63

27 May '84

16 Feb. '82

i5



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPAETMENT OF THE INTERIOR,—INSIDE SERVICE.

Secretary's Branch—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First ap-

pointment.

Belleau, Marie Rene A. E

Bell, George

3rd class Clerk

3rd class "

3rd class "
,

1 June '85

1 June '85

1 Mar. '83

$ cts.

550 00

.550 00

500 00

21 Aug. '58

14 Jan. '50

27 May '60

June '82

2 Apr. '83

1 Jan. '83Dunne, John. Patrick

Survey's Branch.

Deville, Edouard Gaston D.

.

King, Wm. Frederick

Chief Clerk & Sur. Gen.

1st class clerk and In-
spector of Surveys . .

.

Grignard, Albert Marie E.

Symes, Peter Barclay

Lacasse, Louis Telesphore..

Billings, Braddish B

Rauscher, Rudolph E. F..

.

Sowter, Thomas Walter Fa

Brady, Martin

Connell, John Steers

2nd class Clerk.

2nd class "
.

3rd class "
.

3rd class "
.

3rd class "
.

3rd class "
.

3rd class "
.

3rd class "
.

1 Jan. '85

13 June '81

1 Aug. '82

1 July '83

1 Aug. 73

1 July '83

1 Jan. '83

1 Apr. '82

1 July 79

June '85

Land Grants Branch.

Goodeve, WilliamMorgan. .

.

Tetu, Nazarie

Wallis, Brown

Cox, Francis Henry Cowper.

Buchanan, Peter Toronto . .

.

Sherwood, Henry

Gliddon, Wm. Searle

Dunn, Daniel

Bruce, Henry Barnard D

Lambart, Hon. HenryOctavius

Chief Clerk

2nd class Clerk.

2nd class f '

.

3rd class '
'

.

.

3rd class " .

3rd class "
.

3rd class " .

3rd class '
s

.

3rd class "
.

3rd class ".
.

1 Jan.

1 Jan.

1 June

lAug.

21 June

1 Jan.

10 Dec.

10 Dec.

1 June

21 June

1,600 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

950 00

850 00

800 00

700 00

21 Feb. '49

19 Feb. '54

14 Feb. '46

24 Sep. '47

13 Oct. '48

6 July '46

2 Oct. *34

9 Oct. '60

13 Nov. '56

10 July '49

13 June '81

13 June '81

9 Mar. '80

June 70

2 Aug. 71

May 71

'69

8 Feb. '80

5 Mar. 79

July 73

1,800 00

1,400 00

1,250 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

900 00

900 00

750 00

700 00

600 00

16

6 Jan. '49

1 Apr. '39

21 June '34

13 Mar. '40

7 May '44

8 Aug. *55

7 Apr. '58

10 Mar. '50

29 July *48

10 Jan. '55

8 Feb. '66

20 Jan.
f

67

Feb. 73

15 Apr. 73

19 Dec. 78

26 Apr. '80

Uan. 74

1 Nor. 79

24 Dec. '80

1 Oct. '82



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR.—INSIDE SERVICE.

Accounts Branch.

Name.

!

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

rinard, Joseph Achille

Beddoe, Charles Henry

Turner, Henry Hamish

Chief Clerk Accountant

1st class Asst. Account't

13rd class Clerk...

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 Mar. '84

$ cts.

1,800 00

1,400 00

650 00

11 Mar. '42

17 Aug. '50

21 Sept. '49

11 Jan. '79

30 Apr. '83

10 Sept. '83

Ordnance and Admiralty Lands.

Mills, William

Keyes, Perley George.

1st class Clerk.

3rd class "

1 July '73

17 July 78

1,800 00

1,000 00

17 July '24 I 10 Aug. '58

15 Feb. '53 17 July 78

Chief Draughtsman.

Johnston, John. 1st class Clerk 4 Mar. 74 1,800 00 3June.'30 I May '56

Survey Records.

Clayton, Frank. 1st class Clerk 1 June '82 1,600 00 22 Dec. '47 Mar. 72

Messengers.

Owne, Christopher

•Swinburn, Arthur Richard .

Robertson, Peter

Dunnett, James

Chief Messenger.

Messenger

Messenger ,

Messenger

1 July 73 500 00

Uan. 75 500 00

17 Feb. 77 500 00

1 July 79 480 00

23 Nov. '24 13 Mar. '68

9 June '55

4 Nov. '53

4 Feb. '47

1 Oct. 73

17 Feb. 77

1 Apr. 7S

Geological and Natural History Survey.

Selwyn, Alfred R.C., LL.D.,

Dawson, George M., Ds.
;

F.G.S

Bell, Robert, LL.D., M.D.,

CM., F.G.S

AVhiteaves, Joseph F., F.G.S

48—2

Director & Dep'y Head.

Asst. Dir' tor, Geologist &
Chief Clerk

Asst.Dir'tor, Geologist &
do do

Assistant Director and
Palaeontologist do do

1 Jan. '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

4,000 00

1,950 00

1,950 00

1 July 77 1,950 00

28 July '24

1 Aug. '49

3 June '41

1 Dec. '69

19 July 75

Mar. '57

26 Dec. '35 I 1 Jan. '75

17



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF 1 NTERIOR.—INSIDE SERVICE.

Geological and Natural History Survey.—Concluded.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First ap-

pointment.

Hoffmann, George Christian. Asst. Director, Chemist
and Minei-alogist do

do ' 1 July '80

1 Jan. '82

$ cts.

1,900 00

1,650 00

7 June '37

17 Apr. '32

lSept. 72

Maeoun, John, F.L.S Botanist, 1st class clerk 1 Jan. '82

Barlow, Scott Chief Draughtsman, 1st

1 July '80

1 July '83

1 Jan. '83

1,500 00 27 Feb. '35 1 Dec. '56

Marshall, John Sec'y& Accountant, 1st

1,500 00 18 Sept. '56

9 Dec. '48

1 Mar. '72

Fletcher, Hugh Field Geologist, do 1,500 00 1 Sept. 72

Ells, Robert Whelock Field Geologist, do 1 July '83 1,500 00 26 July '45 1 May 72

Weston, Thomas Chesmer. .

.

Lapidary & Asst. Curator
2nd class clerk 1 July '81 1,300 00 17 Oct. '32 lFeb. '59

McConnell, Richard George . Field Geologist, do 1 July '83 1,300 00 26 Mar. '57 12 May 79

Adams, Frank Dawson Assistant Chemist and
Lithologist, do 1 July '83 1,200 00 17 Sept.' 59 77

Tyrrell, Joseph B., F.G.S... Field Geologist, do 1 July '83 1,200 00 1 Nov. '58 15 Aug. '81

Coste, Marius Antoine Eugene Mining Geologist, 2nd
class clerk 1 July '85

1 July '85

1,100 00

1,100 00

8 July *59 1 July '83

Ingallj Elfric Drew Mining Geologist, do 13 May '58 1 July '84

Lambe,' Lawrence Morris. . .

.

Artist, 3rd class clerk.. 1 Mar. '85 1,000 00 27 Aug. '63 1 Dec. '84

Willimott, Charles William . Asst. Curator, Mineralo-
gical branch, do 1 July '80 1,000 00 1 Feb. '52 15 Jan. 72

Cochrane, Augustus Southby. Asst. Topographer, 2nd
class clerk 1 July '85

1 July '82

1 July '82

1,100 00

850 00

4 Sept. '50

24 May '60

May 77

McMillan, John Surveyor & Explorer, 3rd
class clerk 27 Aug. 77

Low, Albert Peter Surveyor and Explorer,

3rd class clerk 850 00 24 May '61 June '81

Ami, Henry Marc 2nd Asst. Palaeontolog-
ist, 3rd class clerk . .

.

1 July '83 800 00 23 Nov. '58 13 June '82

Faribault, Eugene Rodolphe. Surveyor and Exploror,
3rd class clerk 1 July '83 800 00 4 Nov. '60 July '81

Broadbent, Ralph Lawton... Museum Asst., do 1 July '82 650 00 14 Apr. '59 26 Jan. '81

Brumell, Henry P. H Museum Asst., do 1 July '83 600 00 28 Oct. '63 1 May '82

*ThorburnJohn, M.A., LL.D Librarian 12 Apr. '82

1 July 77

1 July 77

600 00

700 00

10 Oct. '30

28 Sept.76

24 June '56

12 Apr. '82

1 Dec. '44O'Farrell. Michael Caretaker & Messenger.

MessengerMeade. John 500 00 4 Apr. 75

Is also Chairman of Board of Civil Service Examiners.
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49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 4 8.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Land Board at Winnipeg; Dominion Lands and Crown Timber Agejjcies in Manitoba,

North-West Territories and British Columbia.

Name. Present Bank.

Smith, Henry Hall...,

Pearce, William.

Date
thereof.

Burpe, Thomas Richard

Sutherland, James McPherson

Stephenson, Rufus

Commissioner of Dom.
Lands for Manitoba
andN.W.T

Superintendent of Mines
for Manitoba and N.
W. T., and Member
of the Land Board,

Winnipeg

Sec. to Land Board,

Winnipeg

Whitcher, Arthur Henry

Turenne, Joseph

Sabine, Herbert Lachlan....

Smith, Eugene Clementi. . .

.

Pentiand, William George..

Hiam, William Henry

Hilliard, Wm. Myers

Hays, James Alexander

Stevenson, Wm. Henry

Eraser, Alex. James

( lordon, John Macdonald

McTaggart, John

( Jauvreau, Pierre Francois

Louis V

McHugh, John Joseph

Stephenson, Edwin Fredk. ..

Newcomb, Geo. Henderson..

Anderson, Thomas

Gouin, Chas. Louis

Waggoner, David Jas

Truteh. Hon. Joseph Wm
C.M.G., C.E.

Clerk in Commissioner's
Office

Insp. of Colon. Assns.

in Man. & N. W. T.

.

Dom. Lands Agent. . .

.

Clerk

Clerk

Dom. Lands Agent

Dom. Lands Agent. . .

.

Dom. Lands Agent

Dom. Lands Agent

Dom. Lands Agent

Dom. Lands Agent

Asst. Dom. Lands Agent

Dom. Lands Agent . .

.

Dom. Lands Agent

Dom. Lands Agent

Dominion Lands Agent.

Crown Timber Agent. .

.

Agent

Crown Timber Agent. .

.

Crown Timber Agent..

.

Crown Timber Agent. .

.

Resident Agent of Can.
in British Columbia.

11 Mar. '85

15 Mar. '84

I Sept.'82

1 May '84

23 May '82

4 July '82

23 May '82

1 Jan. 75

12 Apr. '82

1 Nov.'82

1 May '84

1 July '83

1 May '84

4 June '83

1 May '84

1 May '82

1 Dec. '84

1 May '84

1 May '84

1 July '82

1 Jan. '75

29 Aug. '81

4 May '83

1 July '83

9 Dec. 79

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

| cts.

5,000 00

3,200 00

2,000 00

1,095 00

3,000 00

2,400 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,095 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,600 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

2.500 00

17 Dec. '46

1 Feb. '48

22 Aug. '48

1 Jan. '61

14 June '35

10 Apr. '40

12 Sept. '46

12 Feb. '28

3 Dec. '49

24 Oct. '16

19 May '33

8 Apr. '24

13 Oct. '34

12 Dec. '26

25 Feb. '57

10 Dec. '56

14 Sept. '46

1 Sept.'54

18 June '52

29 Nov. '58

13 Aug. '47

22 July '25

14 Dec. '30

5 Sep. '31

18 Jan. '26

Date of
First ap-

pointment.

15 May '84

4 Feb. '82

'64

11 July 79

23 May '82

8 May 72

23 May '82

1 Oct. 73

12 July '80

1 Apr. '82

7 Aug. '82

1 July '83

1 Dec. '82

1 Dec. '82

25 Apr. 79

25 Apr. 75

1 May '84

1 July '80

1 May '84

25 Mar. '81

lFeb. 73

29 Aug. '81

4 May '83

1 July '83

9 Dec. 79

Is also employed by Department of Public Works.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

North-West Council.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Forget, Amedee Emanuel Clerk of the North-West
7 Oct. 76

$ cts.

1,800 00 12 Nov. '47 7 Oct. 76

District of Keewatin.

Kirby, Walter Thomas. Secretary to Lieut. Gov.

of the District of Kee-

watin 2 Dec. '82 600 00 19 May '58 2 Dec. '82

Registrars for North-West Territories.

Scott, William James

Sproat, Alexander

McLean, Thomas Alexander.

Montgomery, Geo. Archibald

Registrar.

Registrar.

Registrar.

Registrar.

7 Oct. 76 2,000 00

9 Dec. '80 1,000 00

12 June '84 1,200 00

1 July '84 1,200 00

13 Apr. '42

19 June '34

28 May '28

8Feb.'25

7 Oct. 76

9 Dec. '80

12 June '84

Uuly '84

Caretakers of Ordnance Lands.

Purcell, William, jun.

Malhiot, Joseph.

May, John

Conover, Peter.

.

Lavoie, Louis. .

.

Caretaker of Ord. Lands

Caretaker of Ord. Lands

Caretaker of Ord. Lands

Caretaker of Ord. Lands

Caretaker of Ord. Lands

1 Nov. '83

13 Apr. 74

16 Apr. 79

1 Feb. '81

21 May 77

25c. per
diem .

.

60 00

200 00

50 00

50c. per
diem .

.

21 June '63

29 Aug. '48

24 June '33

22 Dec. '22

1 Feb. '37

1 Nov. '83

13 Apr. 74

16 Apr. 79

lFeb. '81

21 Mar. 77

7.—THE OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER. OF THE NORTH-WEST MOUNTED
POLICE.—INSIDE SERVICE.

White, Frederick.

Fortescue, Laurence

Comptroller and Deputy
Head

1st class clerk.

Fisher, Alexander 2nd class

Gallwey, Reginald Munro M,

Duplessis, Leonidas J. T. R.

3rd class

3rd class

1 July '83

1 July '81

1 July '80

1 July '84

1 July '84

3,200 00

1,550 00

1,350 00

600 00

600 00

16 Feb. *47

17 Aug. '45

11 Oct. '30

16 Dec. '63

1 Sept. '63

3 Mar. '69

1 June '75

Uuly 75

Uuly '84

1 July '84

20



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

NORTH-WEST MOUNTED POLICE FORCE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Irvine, Lt.-Col. Atcheson G..

Crozier, Major Lief Newry
Fitzroy

Herchmer, Lt.-Col. Wm. M.

Commissioner.

A.sst. Commissioner,

Superintendent. . .

.

Superintendent. . .

.

Superintendent

Superintendent

Superintendent—
Superintendent

Sub-Inspector

Cotton, Major John

Mclllree, Major John Henry.

Gagnon, Major Severe

Deane, Major Richard Burton

Neale, Major Percy Reginald

.

Steele, Samuel B

Perry, Aylesford Bowen (inspector

Griesbach, Arthur Henry.. . .ISub-Inspector

Macdonell, Alexander Rodk. Sub-Inspector

Dickens, Francis Jeffrey Sub-Inspector

Antrobus. William Denny..

.

Dowling, Thomas

Norman, Froncis

Howe, Joseph

Moffatt, George. Buchanan..

White-Fraser, Montague Hy

Morris, William S. M

Sanders, Gilbert Edward. .

.

Drayner, Frederic

Jukes, Augustus, M.B

Millar, Robert, M.D

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Sub-Inspector

Sub-Inspector

Inspector

Inspector

Inspector

Inspector

Inspector

Inspector

Inspector 1 15 Oct. '84

Senior Surgeon | 24 Jan. '82

1 Nov.'80

1 Apr. '85

1 Jan. '81

24 Jan. '82

24 Jan. '82

1 Apr. '83

1 Apr. '84

1 Apr. '84

31 Aug. 78

24 Jan. '82

1 June 75

1 Sept.'78

4 Nov.'78

1 Mar. '76

15 Sept.'78

24 Jan. '82

1 July '83

1 Sept.'83

1 May '84

1 May '84

1 Sept. '84

Assistant Surgeon.

Kennedy, George Allan, M.B. |Assistant Surgeon

25 Oct. '75

1 Oct. '78

$ cts.

2,600 00

1,600 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,400 00

1,200 00

1.200 00

7 Dec. '37 7 May '75

11 June '46

13 Dec. '44

19 Oct. '53

28 Feb. '49

8 Jan. '45

30 Apr. '48

14 Feb. '50

21 Aug. '60

22 Oct. '39

8 Oct. '40

15 Jan. '45

8 Aug. '45

12 May '28

19 Nov.'46

5 Sept.'55

13 Dec. '54

24 June '53

6 Sept.' 47

25 Dec. '63

13 Mar. '63

30 Oct. '21

16 Mar.'47

16 Apr. '58

4 Nov. '73

lAug. '76

1 Mar. '79

1 Apr. '74

3 Apr. '74

Uuly '83

15 July '75

31 Aug. '78

24 Jan. '82

1 June '75

1 Sept. '78

4 Nov. '74

lMar. '76

15 Sept. 78

6 May 74

1 July '83

1 Sept. '83

1 May '84

1 May '84

1 Sept. '84

15 Oct. '84

24 Jan. '82

25 Oct. '75

1 Oct. 78

2i



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48. A. 1886

-THE DEPARTMENT OF INDIAN AFFAIRS.—INSIDE SERVICE.

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Vankouglmet, Lawrence .

.

Sinclair, Robert

Plummer, William

Austin, William Augustus. .

.

Burbidge, George W.. Q. C.

.

Dingman, Absalom

DeBoucherville, Jovite Yer.

.

McNeill, Allan Napier

Smith, Frederick William . .

.

Kirkpa trick, Thomas Fred. S.

McLean, John Douglas

Scott, Duncan Campbell

Dalton, Robert Gladstone....

Benson. Martin

Stewart. Samuel

Dep.Supt. Gen. of Indian
Affairs

Chief Clk. & Account..

Comr. of Lands & Timber

Ch.Sur. & Draughtsman

Solicitor

1st class Clerk

2nd class "

McGirr, John

Bray, Samuel

Brook, Henry John

Delisle, Joseph

Coffey, Thomas

Ross, Henry Clarkson

Maingy,HelenusGilbert McL.

McKay, Hiram

Shore, John Willoughby

Oit, William Andrew

Kemp, Alfred E

Yielding, Fanny

Reiffenstein, Caroline

Bliss. Forster Donald Cameron

Hunton, William Alpheus. .

.

Austin, John

Starmer, Thomas

Slocombe, James

2nd class "

2nd class
'•'

2nd class "

2nd class "

2nd class "

2nd class "

2nd class "

2nd class "

2nd class ;
•

3rd class "

3rd class "

3rd class u

3rd class "

3rd class "

3rd class "

3rd class "

3rd class "

3rd class "

3rd class

3rd class "

3rd class "

3rd class u

3rd class "

3rd class "

Housekeeper.

Messenger

1 July

14 July

24 Nov.

7 June

1 June

22 July

1 Apr.

8 July

1 Jan.

1 Jan.

1 May

1 July

Uuly

1 Dec.

IDec.

1 July

1 4 June

3 Apr.'

23 June

17 July

12 Jan.

Uuly

9 July

24 Mar.

24 Nov.

1 Feb.

3 Apr.

24 Nov.

11 Mar.

11 May

30 June

1 July

1 Nov.

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

3,200 00

2,200 00

1,800 00

1,700 00

400 00

1,500 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,300 00

1,300 00

1,250 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,100 00

1,000 00

850 00

800 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

580 00

500 00

600 00

650 00

600 00

450 00

400 00

400 00

550 00

460 00

330 00

Date of

Birth.

7 Oct. '36

15 Feb. '29

'19

11 May '29

6 Feb. '47

13 July '27

8 Sept. '29

20 Nov. '46

8 Oct. '48

28 Mar. '37

13 Mar. '55

8 Oct. '60

25 Oct. '48

15 June '45

6 Jan. '52

31 July '46

5 Nov. '46

21 Nov. '36

15 Feb. '60

2 May '57

6 Jan. '62

22 Aug. '40

23 Dec. '55

3 Jan. '58

25 Apr. '55

25 Aug. '54

12 June '42

23 Apr. '46

27 Oct. '63

31 Oct. '63

5 Apr. '47

2 Jan. '22

1 Mar. '23

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

13 Feb. '61

7 June '59

May '68

7 June '83

Uune '82

22 July '82

May '65

8 July '74

Oct. '70

6 Aug. '73

1 Oct. '76

8 Oct. '80

July '71

22 Apr. '7Q

1 July '79

1 Aug. '77

14 June '84

Uan. 71

23 June '80

17 July '78

12 Jan. '83

Uuly '79

9 July '80

24 Mar. '84

24 Nov. '83

1 Feb. '84

3 Apr. '82

24 Nov. '83

11 Mar. '85

11 May '85

30 June '85

1 July '83

1 Nov. '83

22



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

Department of indian affairs.-outside service.

Name. Preaent Bank.

Gilkison, Lieut. -Col. Jasper T.

Andrews, Henry

Gordon. Thomas

Supt. & Commissioner

3rd class Clerk

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

24 Mar. '62

1 Apr. '55

[ndian Agent 30 Oct. 76

Beattie, John Indian Agent

Walton, Thomas S

Abbott, William Van

Phipps, James Charles

Ironside. Alexander McGregor

Cowan, Alexander Buchanan

Ross, Benjamin "Walker

Savage, Charles Bullen

Donnelly, J. P

Indian Agent

Indian Agent

Indian Agent

Clerk

Indian Land Agent.

Indian Land Agent.

Indian Land Agent.

Indian Agent

Date of

Birth.

Hill, Matthew Indian Agenl

Thackeray, John

Stephenson, James Richard.

Harris, Edwin

McPhee, Duncan J

McKelvey, Alexander

English, Adam

Brasseau, Alexander

Martin, James

Jermyn, J. W

Indian Agent. .

Indian Agent .,

Indian Agent .

Indian Agent .

Indian Agent .

Indian Agent .

Indian Agent .

Indian Agent

.

Indian Agent.

16 May 79

10 Apr. '84

Mar. 73

1 Apr. 73

j

8 Sept. '63

13 Jan. 73

1 Aug. 79

30 Apr. 78

23 Jan. '83
\

8 Oct. 72

31 Jan. '83

31 Jan. '83

31 Jan. '83

McDermott, George Burton. . Indian Agent

Stephen, Rich'd Milne, M.D.

Conaway, James Telfer

Otis, Ladislas Eucher

Boucher, Louis Fortunat

Vassal, Henry

Pither, Robt. John Nicholson

Martineau, Herman

Physician

Indian Agent

Indian Agent

Indian Superintendent

Indian Agent

Indian Agent

Indian Agent

McPherson, George I Indian Agent

18 Aug. '83

11 Sept. '84

6 Feb. '85

16 Mar. '85

31 July '83

1 June '82

9 June '85

73

27 Sept. 79

73

Feb. 70

July 76

76

$ cts.

1,600 00

900 00

600 00
|

400 00

900 00

700 00

1,200 00

720 00

250 00

400 00

400 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

400 00

600 00

500 00

150 00

1,000 00

500 00

300 00

400 00

200 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

13 Mar. '14

29 July '12

28 Apr. '26

15 Apr. '41

25 May '31

14 Jan. '26

18 Apr. '38

15 May '35

2 May '38

9 May '40

26 Mar. '33

25 May '40

13 Jan. '35

29 July '34

19 Oct. '45

21 Mar. '28

29 Aug. '30

8 May '58

13 Oct. '55

17 May '37

23 Feb. '41

26 Apr. '32

29 Oct. '24

18 Aug. 45

10 Aug. '14

Date of

First ap-

pointment.

24 Mar. '62

1 Apr. '55

30 Oct. 76

16 May 79

lApr. '84

Mar. 73

lApr. 73

8 Sept. '63

13 Jan. 73

I Aug. 79

30 Apr. 78

23 Jan. '83

8 Oct. 72

31 Jan. '83

31 Jan. '83

31 Jan. '83

18 Aug. '83

18 Aug. '83

II Sept. '84

6 Feb. '85

16 Mar. '85

31 July '83

1 June '82

9 June '85

'73

27 Sept. 79

73

Feb. 70

July 76

76



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1885

DEPARTMENT OF INDIAN AFFAIRS.—OUTSIDE.

McKay, Angus

Herchmer, Laurence William

McDonald, Allan

Chastellaine, N..*

McColl, Ebenezer

Muekle, Alexander Montgom-
ery

Leveque, Luc Joseph Arthur.

Wright, John Philip

* Dewdney, Hon. Edgar

Present hank.

Indian Agent

Indian Agent

Indian Agent

Interpreter

Inspector of Agencies.

Date
thereof.

Indian Agent

Clerk

Clerk

Wadsworth, Thomas Pa#e.

Commr. for Manitoba &
N. W. Territories

Inspector of Farms and
Agencies

McGirr, William

Anderson, William

Rae, John Macpherson

Macrae, James Ansdell

Ogletree, Francis

Mclntyre, John

Girard, F. X

Pocklington, William Boleyn

Powell, Lieut.-Col. Israel W.

Moffatt, Hamilton

Lomas, William Henry

Blenkinsop, George

Mackay, Joseph William

McTiernan, Patrick

Guillcd, Harry

Reed, Hayter

Clerk

Indian Agent. .

.

Indian Agent.

.

Indian Agent .

.

Indian Agent...

Indian Agent . .

.

Medical Officer.

Indian Agent. .

.

Indian Commissioner for

British Columbia

Clerk

Indian Agent.

Indian Agent.

Indian Agent.

Indian Agent.

Indian Agent.

Asst. Indian Commissi'
Manitoba & N. W. T

7 Oct. 78

5 Oct. 78

June 77

1 Sept.77

23 Apr. '81

5 July 77

1 Apr. 76

1 May 79

27 July 79

Dec. '81

21 Aug. '80

1 Apr. '80

26 July '80

11 Jan. 77

25 Nov. '80

18 May '83

17 Oct. '81

7 Oct. 72

14 June '83

Apr. '81

Apr. '81

Oct. '83

5 Apr. '81

18 Mar. '82

1 Mar. '81

Present
Salary.

$ ctsr

1,000 00

1,200 00

1.200 00

250 00

2,200 00

900 00

1,100 00

1,100 00

3,200 00

1,800 00

1,400 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

900 00

800 00

?00 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

3,000 00

1,800 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,600 00

Date of

Birth.

1 Nov. '36

25 Apr. '40

19 May '32

Date of

First ap-

pointment.

13 Aug. '35

3 Dec. '44

27 Nov. '46

3 Sept. 51

5 Nov. '35

Jan. '42

17 Dec. '55

8 Apr. '28

4 June '47

4 Apr. '26

8 Aug. '18

28 Jan. '47

27 Apr. '37

12 June '32

25 Nov. '40

18 Nov. '22

31 Jan. '29

17 Mar. '30

20 Aug. '38

26 May '49

7 Oct. 78

5 Oct. '78

June 77

1 Sept. 77

23 Apr. '81

5 July 77

1 Apr. 76

1 May 79

27 July 79'

Dec. '81

21 Aug. '80

lApr. '80

26 July '80

11 Jan. 77

25 Nov. '80

18 May '83

17 Oct. '81

7 Oct. 72

1 Mar. 73

Apr. '81

Apr. '81

Oct. '83

5 Apr. '81

18 Mar. '82

1 Mar. '81

Is also Lieutenant-Governor of the North-West Territories.
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

TZthe^ffice of the auditor general.-inside service.

McDougall, John Lorn.

Patterson, James. .

.

Asst. Auditor General &
Chief Clerk

1st class clerk

1st class
"

1st class
"

1st class "

Simpson, John Barker

Sutherland, Edward Daveup

Gorman, John

Hayter, Frederick

Dunlevie, Horace Gerald. . . .
!2nd class

Lynch, John Bernard 2nd class

Balderson, John Hewett 2nd class

Gray, Harry Hamilton 0. .

.

Torter, Thomas

Gibson, John Hugh Peden.. .
3rd class

Bolton, George Cahill 3rd class

3rd class

3rd class

MacDonald, John Carroll. .

.

Bissonnette, Louis Adolphe.

3rd class

3rd class

Hudson, Bartlett Arthur. ... 3rd class

Baldwin, Harma Adelaide.

.

Sherwood, Beverley Wilmot.

Casault, Frangois

Pender, John

3rd class

3rd class

Messenger

Messenger

1 Aug. '78

2>5



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 43.) A. 1886

10.—THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT—INSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

* Courtney, John Mortimer

Ross, Lieut. -Col. Thomas. .

.

Toller, Frederick,

Present Rank. Date
thereof.

Deputy Minister

Chief Clk & Accountant
of Contingencies

Anderson, Charles Joseph..

Torrance. John Andrew....

Baxter. Richard Watson . .

.

Robins, John
,

Diekieson, Matthew George.

Lowe, George, jun ,

Gough, Charles Archer
,

Jarvis, George Murray

Neeve, John Bonner H. . .

.

Nash, Lt.-Col. John Richard.

Turgeon, Charles Edward

Street, Charles Frederick. . .

.

Fripp, Herbert Russell

Clayton, James Alfred

Wiggins, Ezekiel Stone

Crookshank, George Young.

.

Garland, Nicholas Surrey . .

.

Hopkirk, James

McNichol, John

Treadwell, Clarence William.

Fraser, John

Belfour, John

Stanton, Cameron

Blair, William Livingston. .

.

Nutting, James Peasley

Chief Clk & Comptroller
of Dominion Currency

Chief Clerk & Head of

Savings Bank Branch.

Chief Clerk & Dominion
Book-keeper

1st class Clerk

1st' class "

1st class "

1st class "

1st class "

Supernumerary do do

2nd class Clerk

2nd class "

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

1 Aug.78

June '58

1 July '81

1 July 74

1 July '80

I July '66

1 June '80

1 July '80

1 Jan. '85

1 Apr. '85

Apr. '67

29 Mar. '65

1 Jan. 72

1 Feb. 76

1 July 73

1 July 74

1 Oct. 76

2 Dec. 78

1 Jan. '82

1 July 75

1 June '82

1 June '82

1 Oct. '83

1 Oct. '83

1 Oct. '83

1 Oct. '83

1 Jan. '85

1 Apr. '85

Present
salary.

$ cts.

4,200 00

2.600 00

2,400 00

2,350 00

2,250 00

1,800 00

1,800 00

1,600 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,350 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,100 00

1,100 00

Date of

Birth.

22 July '38

8 July '21

21 July '41

21 Feb. '35

15Dec. '18

27 Nov. '36

20 Jan. '28

7 Feb. '49

25 Dec. '41

16 Aug. '42

13 Apr. '24

4 Jan. '35

18 Sept. 15

22 Mar. '46

7 Sept. '43

25 Nov. '30

3 Sept. '42

4 Dec. '39

25 Mar. '56

8 June '45

3 Mar. '36

28 Aug. '40

5 July '54

13 Dec. '52

10 Mar. '39

13 July '61

28 Dec. '52

1 Aug. '56

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

2 June '69

Nov. '39

1 Oct. 71

16 Nov. '58

lApr. '66

16 Feb. '58

3 May '51

1 Jan. 74

Feb. 75

30 Apr. '69

'43

20 Mar. '65

June '57

lFeb. 76

1 June 73

1 July 71

26 Jan. 71

5 Dec. 78

10 Aug. 73

22 June 70

15 June '60

1 Sept. 75

18 Nov. '82

21 May 75

Uuly '68

1 June 79

15 Nov. 71

11 Mar. 76

* Is also Secretary to the Treasury Board.
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49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 4 8.) A. 1886

FINANCE DEPARTMENT.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Tasker, Charles James

Capbert Emile

Gilmour, Thomas

Coffin, Frederick Ashley

Boville, Thomas Cooper

Tabor, Charles Wm. Clifton.

Brittain, Edward L

Black, Ernest Augustus

Foster, Albert Brunswick . .

.

Hayes, William Hazen

Pender, Patrick

Connolly. Peter

Ostrom, William Henry

3rd class Clerk

3rd class "

3rd class

3rd class

3rd class

3rd class

3rd class

3rd class

3rd class

3rd class

vv

Messenger

Messenger

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

1 Feb. 73

1 Oct. '81
|

1 Feb. '82

1 Feb. '82

26 Jan. '83

26 Jan. '83

1 May '84

4 Oct. 79

1 Oct. '84

1 Oct. '84

1 Nov. '56

1 Nov. '67

1 July 78

$ cts.

1,000 00

900 00

850 00

850 00

650 00

600 00

500 00

750 00

450 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

Date of

Birth.

13 Nov. '33

7 Mar. '40

11 Mar. '37

12 Feb. '58

14 Mar. '60

4 Aug. '63

1 Feb. '66

17 June '60

11 Oct'. '68

11 July '59

17 Mar. '35

17 Mar. '47

13 Apr. '42

Date of

First ap-

pointment.

19 Feb. 72

12 Feb. '80

18 Sept. '81

27 Sept. 75

26 Jan. '83

26 Jan. '83

1 May '84

29 May 79

1 Oct. '84

1 Oct. '84

INov. '56

INov. '67

1 June 78

FINANCE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Tims, Thomas Dillon

Anderson, Charles Edward B.

Blackadar, Alfred Kimball. .

.

Financial Inspector

Chf. Clk. Insur. Branch

1st class Clk. Insur. Br.

McMinn, William John R. . . [2nd class Clerk

Campbell, Charles James

Ridout, John Grant

Eliot, Granville Percival.

Morrison, Stuart

Henderson, James

Wallace, John Roberts

.

Asst. Receiver General

Toronto

Teller

Junior Clerk

Junior Clerk

Messenger & Caretaker.

Asst. Receiver General

Halifax

1 Nov. '71

1 July 75

1 Oct. '83

1 July '83

Parker, Lewis

Johnston, Arthur Clement..

Belcom, John Horton

Lithgow, John Thomas

Dillon, John Patrick

Clk. in A. R. G. Office.

Clk. inSav. Bk. Halifax

Telr. in Sav. Bk. Halifax

Teller Savings Bank..

Clerk in Savings Bank

2,600 00

2,400 00

1,450 00

1,200 00

6 Jan. '25

17 Nov. '16

24 Oct. '52

21 Apr. '56

8 Sept. '58

16 May '45

1 Mar. 77

Uuly '83

9 Nov.'83 3,000 00 '21 9 Nov. '83

22 July 77 1,400 00 20 Apr. '45 8 July 72

16 Aug 76 1,200 00 6 Dec. '53 17 July 71

1 Mar. '84 450 00
} 66 IMar. '84

1 Nov. 73 600 00 28 Mar. '27 1 Nov. 73

30 June '63 2,200 00 15 Feb. '23 '42

Apr. 72 1,200 00 16 Oct. '44 Nov. ,69

10 Nov. 71 1,100 00 15 Dec. '53 10 Nov. 71

15 June 77 900 00 '41 15 June 77

11 Oct. '80 750 00 25 Jan. '56 11 Oct. '80

7 Nov. 76 800 00 4 May '54 7 Nov. 76
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49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

FINANCE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.
•

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First ap-

pointment.

$ cts.

Crookshank, Robert William. Asst. Receiver General,

St. John, N.B 31 May '73 2,200 00 '25 1 June '58

Patterson, Sydney Bolton . .

.

Teller Savings Bank . .

.

Aug. '73 1,200 00 31 Mar. '34 Mar. '68

Robinson, James Account. A. R. G. Office

Teller S. Bk. St. John.

Aug. ' 73

July '76

1,100 00

1,100 00

1 Feb. '30

'42

Aug. '73

Lancton, G. Frederic July 76

Salter, A. C. A Clerk S. Bk. St. John. 1 Oct. '84 800 00 '34 1 Oct. '84

Lawson, Thomas Stanford..

.

Janitor Dom. Buildings 1 May 79 500 00 '39 1 May 79

Drummond, Henry Mowat. .

.

Asst. Receiver General.

Winnipeg May '79

1 July '82

2.000 00 19 Aug. '48

'60

1 May 72

McMicken, Albert Clifton. .

.

Clerk in A. R. Genl's.

Office 1,100 00 May 79

Armstrong, Edward Win. H. Teller Savings Bank. .

.

June '82 1,000 00 '63 June '82

Mott, James A. Smith Clk. in A. R. G. Office. 1 July '83 1,000 00 '43 Uuly '83

Graham, John A. R.Gen.,Victoria,B.C Mar. '72 3,000 00 "27 April '59

Chambers, Coote Mulloy Acct. A. R. Gen. Office

& Savings Bank 9 Dec. '73 1,600 00 3 July '37 9 Dec. 73

Green, Roland Edward Teller Sav. Bk. & Audit 24 Mar. '75 1,300 00 8 Oct. '48 24 Mar. 75

Maclaughlin, Joseph Hugh.. Clerk A. R. G. Office... July '84 1,000 00 15 Apr. '39 July '84

Howe, Sydenham Dom. Auditor, Halifax. 14 Feb. '70 1,900 00 3 Mar. '43 July '61

Seeley, William Dom. Auditor, St. John.

Dom.Auditor, Charlotte-
town

30 Nov. '68

1 July '83

1,900 00

1,800 00

21 Oct. '14

'55

'47

Pope, Percy
Uuly 'S3

Foley, Thomas Account. Sav. Branch,
Charlottetown 9 Jan. '74 1,000 00 12 Dec. '44 9 Jan. 74

Leitch, William Clk. Audit Office &S.Bk 9 Jan. '74 800 00 20 Dec. 54 9 Jan. 74

Walker, George Clk. Audit Office &S.Bk

Asst. Messr. & Janitor,

Dominion Buildings.

.

30 Jan. '82

15 May '82

450 00

450 00

'27

'38

30 Jan. '82

Grant, James
15 May '81

Loughran, Francis Clk. Audit Office &S.Bk 1 July '82 600 00 '53 Uuly '82
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

11.-THB DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-1NSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Miall, Edward.... Comr. of Inld. Revenue

and Com. of Standards

Robins, Paul Moyle.. . . Acct. and Chief Clerk.

.

Himsworth, William Chief Clerk, Secretary.

.

Measam, Frederick Supernumerary 1st class

Heron, William Lewis Supernumerary 1st class

Campeau,FabienReneEdou'd|Asst. Acct. 1st class ...

Yalin, Joseph Elzear |Ut class clerk
j

1 July '83

Hall, Charles Russell 1st class " ...

]l Jan. '83
|

1 Oct. 78

1 July '84

1 July 73

1 Oct. 78

1 July '81

Present
salary.

$ cts.

3,200 00

800 00

2,200 00

1,850 00

1,800 00

1,700 00

1,650 00 1
19 July '44

1,500 00 | 17 Oct. '49

23 Dec. '47

13 Jan. '30

2 Sept. '42

LaMothe, Henri Guillaume

Carter, William

Nettle, Richard

Blatch, Frederick Kendall

.

Teakles, Brenton Halliburton

, . ™ • ( 2nd class '

•

Walsh, Matthew 1 rancis.
j

|

Ag Private Secretary. .

.

Lusignan, Alphonse '2nd class clerk

2nd class "

2nd class "

Supernumerary do do.

2nd class "
•

2nd class "
•

19 May '84

19 May '84

1 Oct. 79

1,450 00

1,400 00

1,350 00

1 July '81
j

1,300 00

Stewart, Neil

Devlin, Richard

Shaw, James Fitzwilliam

Chubbuck, Charles Edward.

.

Doyon, Joseph Alfred

Brunei, John

Brown, James Farnham

Fowler, John

Brunei, George

Byrnes, John |3rd class

Fowler, George Messenger.

Archambault, Romuald Messenger

Courtman, John Messenger

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

3rd class

3rd class

3rd class

1 Dec. '80

1 July '81

24 June '82

1 Aug. '82

1,300 00

1,300 00

1,250 00

600 00

1 July '83 1,200 00

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '85

« 1 July '83

19 May '84
|

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,100 00

900 00

16 Sep. '54

17 June '50

4 Nov.'33

29 July '15

11 Feb. '41

20 Oct. '44

30 June '68

1 Aug. '66

7 Oct. 72

6 Nov. 71

12 June 74

18 Jan. 77

1 Feb. 78

Uuly 73

13 July '57

Uan. 73

30 June '69

1 July '81

1 June '82

16 June '83

9 June '69

1 June 76

14 June '84

900 00

850 00

650 00

500 00

500 00

13 July '35

27 Sept.' 43

23 Mar. '41

25 May '44

14 May '56

13 July '48

23 Mar. '51

13 Apr. '48

9 Oct. '29

6 May '40

18 July '46

29 May '59

10 May '49

21 May '52

330 00 20 Mar. '54

24 June '82

20 Feb. 74

1 Sep. '64

June 73

Uan. 72

13 July 73

7 Feb. 76

17 June 73

25 Jan. '65

21 Oct. '67

lOct. 76

16 Jan. '83

9 June '69

7 May 75

1 Nov. '83
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Na

A Jams. John Stavriek

Adams, William Cornish

Alexander, Thomas

Present Rank.

3rd class Exciseman. . .

,

Asst. Inspector W.&M.

Coll'r Inland Revenue.,

Allan. Robert Kellock
;

Probationary Exciseman

Inspector of W. & M. .

.

3rd class Exciseman . .

.

Allison, Charles

Amor, William.

Arahill, John [Clerk (Canals)

Deputy Collector

Aubin, Napoleon

Baby, John Charles

Baby, Joseph

Baby, Wolstan Alex. Dixie

Barber, John Shortiss ,

Barker, Charles

Barrett, John

Barrett, John Kelley

Barrett, Thomas James

Battle, Martin

Battle, Timothy

Beasley, Richard

Beattie, Thomas

Beauchamp, J. Pantaleon .

.

Bedard, William George

Belland, Joseph Elzear jSpecificat'n Clk(Cullers)

Bellemare, Raphael District Inspector

Bellerive, Charles Clerk (Cullers)

Bennett, James [Deputy Collector

Berger, Norbert Asst. Collector of Canals

Bish, Philip 2nd class Exciseman . .

.

Black, Charles Edward Stuart Asst. Insp. of W. & M.

Blair, James Burns Special class Exciseman.

Date
thereof.

Gas Inspector

As Consulting Inspector

Special Class Exciseman

3rd class Exciseman. . .

.

2nd class Exciseman . .

.

2nd class Exciseman . .

.

2nd class Exciseman . .

.

Collector (Canals)

District Inspector

1st class Exciseman. . .

.

Coll'r Inland Revenue.

.

Asst. Collector (Canals)

.

Accountant

Asst. Inspector W.& M.

1st class Exciseman. . .

.

3rd class Exciseman. . .

.

1 May 76

8 Jan. '80

1 July '83

5 Sept. '82

1 Nov. 79

3 Oct. '83

1 July '83

19 Aug. '85

9 Feb. 75

1 Nov. '80

1 Jan. '83

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '84

19 Apr. '49

1 May '85

1 Jan. '85

1 Jan. 73

1 Jan. '83

1 July '84

3 Aug. '80

1 July '84

20 Oct. '80

20 Aug. '63

9 Oct. '69

1 May 77

1 Jan. '81

16 Sept. '65

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July 76

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

690 00

500 00

1,450 00

600 00

800 00

630 00

800 00

805 00

(1.400 00
'( 600 00

1,200 00

630 00

805 00

805 00

850 00

900 00

1,800 00

800 00

1,500 00

800 00

900 00

600 00

1,000 00

750 00

700 00

2,400 00

550 00

1,430 00

500 00

700 00

600 00

1,200 00

Present
Salary.

4 Apr. '30

24 Apr. '24

30 Oct. '45

11 June '61

22 Sept. '21

6 July '41

1 June '28

23 June '35

\ 12 Nov. '12

18 May '48

5 June '51

13 Apr. '57

25 Nov. '52

10 Mar. '20

22 June '18

6 June '50

8 Oct. '55

Aug. '28

22 Dec. '40

27 Feb. '39

4 Apr. '34

4 Aug. '54

10 Sept. '44

9 Dec. '43

21 Feb. '21

24 July '46

7 Oct. '27

7 Oct. "37

12 Sept.' 38

12 June' 41

24 July '48

Date of

First ap-

pointment.

1 Feb. :

75

8 Jan. '80

IDec. 70

5 Sept. '82

1 Nov. 79

9 Oct. '82

3 May 79

3 Sept. 77

9 Feb. 73

16 Dec. 79

1 Nov. '80

30 Nov. ' 76

20 June 79

8 Nov. '69

19 Apr. '49

5 Sept. '73

2 July '81

Apr. '60

28 May 73

22 Dec. 79

14 Aug. 79

1 June 75

25 May 78

20 Aug. '63

6 June '55

1 May 77

11 Feb. 71

16 Sept. '65

10 Oct, 82

1 May '83

6 Oct. 73
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4.8.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Boggs, George Walter

Bois, George A

Boivin, Charles Alphonse

Bolster, George Jever

Boomer, Joseph Boyle

Borradaile, Richardson

Bourassa, George

Bourassa, Philippe Edouard.

,

Bourget, Oneshne

Bouteiller, George Antoine.

.

Broadfoot, Samuel

Brougham, Michael Edward

Brown, John Johnstone

Browne, George Wheatland.

Bulmer, William

Burrows, William

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

Date of

Birth.

Asst. Insp. of W. & M.

Asst. Collr. of W. & M.

Collr. Inland Revenue.

.

nspector of W. & M. .

.

1st class Exciseman

District Inspector

3rd class Exciseman

Asst. Insp. of W. & M.

3rd class Exciseman...

Special class Exciseman.

1st class^Exciseman

3rd class Exciseman

1st class Exciseman. . .

.

2nd class Exciseman . .

.

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

Gas Inspector& Collector

of Canal Tolls....

Bussiere, Frank

Cahill, Joseph Hickey.

Cahill, Thomas

Cameron, Donald McPherson

Campbell, George Johnston

.

Campbell, John McDiarmid.

Campbell, Thomas

Camyre, Joseph Narcisse. .

.

Carroll, Daniel

Carter, William Hill

Carver, George William

Casey, Thomas

Caven, Alexander

Caven, William

Clerk (Canals)

Deputy Collector

3rd class Exciseman . . \
Gas Inspector J

Special class Exciseman

3rd class Exciseman

Special class Exciseman

Ferryman

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

2nd class Exciseman . .

.

Clerk (Culler's)

3rd class Exciseman—
3rd class Exciseman..

.

Collector Inland Rev.

.

1st class Exciseman. .

.

27 July '80

21 July '80

28 Jan. 74
|

3 Aug. '80
I

1 Aug. '82

6 Jan. 74

1 June '68

14 Aug. 79

1 Oct. '83

1 Jan. '83

1 July '85
j

4Apl.'76

1 Jan. '83 I

1 July 73

2 June 75

29 June '82

7 Mar. 76

3 Apr. '82

1 Jan. '85

1 Nov. "80

12 July 72

1 Jan. "83

1 Mar. 75

2 June 75

1 July '84

2 May 79

1 Oct. '83

3 Feb. '85

16 Dec. 73

1 July '85

Date of

First ap-

pointment.

3 Apr. '16
|

20 Feb. '31

25 Dec. '44

17 May "35

12 Nov.'50

5 Sept. '34

Dec. '24

15 Jan. '54

21 Feb. '55

14 Oct. '59

20 Dec. '53

29 Sep. '29

19 Feb. '54

805 00 I 21 Jan. '33

835 00 9 Aug. '29

500 00

600 00

800 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

2,200 00

800 00

600 00

630 00

1,200 00

800 00

750 00

920 00

1,000 00

800 00

1,200 00

f 500 00

)

\ 500 00 J

1,200 00

500 00

1,200 00

400 00

805 00

805 00

200 00

630 00

750 00

1,600 00

1,000 00

i

22 Mar. '29

9 Oct. '49

7 Jan. '38

20 Dec. '39

5 Dec. '55

5 Nov.
1

32

28 July '41

1 Apr. '32

10 Nov/39

4 Aug. '42

lAug. '39

4 Dec. '52

1 Sept. '38

13 Sept.' 36,

12 Jan. '60

14 Aug. 79

21 July '80

19 Jan. '69

14 Aug. 79

I Feb. '80

28 Mar. '68

1 June '68

14 Aug. 79

1 Sep. '80

19 Aug. 78

12 July '80

II June 72

5 Jan. '80

22 Feb. '69

1 Oct. 72

14 Aug. 79

7 Mar. 76

1 May '69

14 Aug. 79
3 Aug. '80

1 Nov. 72

1 Apr. '68

19 July '67

'

1 May 75

18 Nov. 72

16 May 76

2 May 79

17 May '80

26 Aug. 79

lMar. '69

Oct. 77
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Chabot, Frangois Xavier

Present Rank.

Chalut, Joseph Olier.

Chaloner, Henry J. .

.

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

Inspector of W. & M. .

.

Crown Timber Agent
I

and Collector of Slide

dues (Quebec)

Christie, William John

Clark, Albert Forneret. . .

.

Clark, Eleazar

Clark, William Beverley .

.

Code, Abraham

Coles, Frank Halstaff

Collier, Henry Haight ....

Conway, Bartley J

Cornellier, Hypolite

Cosgrove, John

Cosgrove, John Joseph. . .

.

Costigan, Henry A

C6te, Louis Abdon

* Coulter, Robert

Courtney, John J

Cowan, Edgar

Cowley, Walter

Coyle, James

Date
thereof.

1st class Exciseman. . .

.

Accountant

Inspector of W. k M. .

.

Collector of Canal Tolls.

Inspector of W. k M. ..

Assistant Accountant..

Collector of Canal Tolls.

Special Class Exciseman

Probationary Exciseman}

Asst. Inspector W. k M

3rd class Exciseman. .

.

Inspector W. & M. . . 1

Gas Inspector J

Craig, Joseph

Crawford, William Patrick.

Crevier, William

Crowe, Walter

Crysler, Charles Blaker.

Inspector W. & M

Collector Canal Tolls...

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

Asst. Inspector W. k M.

Asst. Inspector W. k M.

3rd class Exciseman

—

Probationary Exciseman

Special Class Exciseman

2nd class Exciseman . .

.

Clerk (Canal Office). . .

.

1st class Exciseman. . .

.

Inspector of W. k M. .

.

23 Aug. '80

20 Aug. '81

I May '82

1 Jan. '83

1 July '85

14 Aug. 79

1 July '83

31 Aug. '80

1 Oct. '83

1 July 77

1 July '81

1 July '82

6 Feb. '85

13 Dec. '83

22 Apr. ' 84
{

14 Aug. 79

2 Mar. 78

1 July '85

17 Aug. '80

II Nov.'84

1 Oct. '83

5 Sept. '84

1 Oct. '84

1 July '84

17 Aug. '81

1 July '84

31Aus.'80

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

$ cts.

500 00

1.300 00

2,200 00

1,000 00

900 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

900 00

200 00

1,200 00

500 00

500 00

690 00

1,200 00

)

'200 00 |

1,200 00

720 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

630 00

500 00

1,200 00

850 00

$2perdiem
during sea-

1

son oi na-|

vigation. .

.

'

920 00

1,000 00

6 Apr. '36

22 Mar. '47

18 Dec. '23

18 Mar. '56

21 Oct. '36

23 Feb. '11

3 Mar.' 56

28 Dec. '29

15 July '38

28 Nov. '18

25 July '50

4 Feb. '20

6 Oct. '52

26 Dec. '60

13 Feb. '28

30 Apr. '24

29 Nov. '56

7 Feb. '44

16 Apr. '62

1 May '20

11 Jan. '61

20 June '40

29 Sept. '38

14 May '40

16 Sept. '46

15 Dec. '10

Date of

First ap-

pointmeut.

7 June

18 Dec.

1 May

6 Feb.

28 Sep.

14 Aug.

1 May

14 Aug.

16 Apr.

1 July

22 Jan.

1 Sept.

6 Feb.

17 Nov.

'80

78

'82

'80

74

79

'82

79

72

77

75

'80

'85

79

1 Oct. '80

14 Aug.

2 Mar.

13 Jan.

14 Aug.

11 Nov.

11 Oct.

5 Sept.

7 Mar.

1 Mar.

79

78

79

79

74

'80

'84

76

17 Aug. '81

29 Dec. 79

14 Aug. 79

* Also holds an appointment in Department of Customs.
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Cullen, Patrick

Danis, Antoine Dosithee.

Daoust, Joseph A

Darby, John

Daveluy, George

Davis, John

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Collector Canal Tolls. .

.

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

Clk. CrownTimber Office

Dep. Superv. of Cullers

District Inspector and
lnsp. of Distilleries.

.

Special Class Exciseman

2nd Class Exciseman.

.

Collector Canal Tolls..

Specification Clerk

Davis, Thomas George

Dawson, William

Deane, Joseph

De Martigny, Charles Prime

Deschamps, Jean-Baptiste. . .
j
Clerk (Canals)

Desserres, Gaspard Book-Keeper

Desrivieres, Francois Lamy..

Desroches, David

Dibblee, William

Dick,James Walter

Dickson, Charles Thompson.

Dillon, Stephen

Dingman, Norman J

Dixon, Richard Benjamin...

Dodd, John

Dodds, Edward William

Donaghy , William.

Dorion, George Theophile . .

.

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

Collr. Inland Revenue.

Dep. Coll. Inland Rev.

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

Special class Exciseman.

Asst. Inspector W.& M.

Deputy Collector

Deputy Collector

Deputy Collector

3rd class Exciseman. . .

.

Special Class Exciseman

Asst. Inspector W.& M.

Dubord, Alphonse Col. Tmbr& Slides Dues

Dudley, William Hipwell...

Duguay, Joseph

Dumbrille, John

Dumbrille, Richard Willie .

.

Dumouchel, Leandre

Dunlop, Charles

1st class Exciseman. . .

.

ProbationaryExciseman

Collr. Inland Revenue.

3rd class Exciseman. . .

.

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

Deputy Collector

14 Aug. '83

1 Oct. 79

4 June '80

1 Aug. '83

2 May 79

1 Dec. 72

1 Apr. 75

1 July '85

1 July 70

6 May 78

1 May '82

7 Oct. 79

6 Jan. '80

1 July '83

27 Aug.77

1 Jan. '85

1 Mar. 76

6 Jan. '80

1 June '82

1 May '84

1 May 79

1 Jan. '83

1 Apr. 75

14 Aug. 79

Dec. '60

1 July '84

1 July '82

6 Apr. '85

1 Oct. '83

1 July '85

5 Aug. '80

$ cts.

500 00

850 00

700 00

850 00

900 00

2,500 00

1,200 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

400 00

500 00

650 00

300 00

700 00

1,200 00

600 00

1,200 00

1,400 00

1,430 00

630 00

1,200 00

750 00

350 00

920 00

500 00

1,400 00

630 00

700 00

1,100 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

9 June '36

5 Feb. '39

14 Oct. '44

28 Nov. '39

8 Oct. '52

19 July '37

15 Aug. '47

9 Feb. '48

16 Dec. '57

29 Jan. '42

2 Dec. '50

10 Oct. '55

25 July '16

10 Mar. '38

19 Oct. '34

11 Oct. '57

20 June '48

29 Sept.'23

25 May '45

23 Dec. '40

3 Sept. '19

12 Sept. '62

I 30 Oct. '41

24 May '46

17 June '20

15 Apr. '43

28 Apr. '16

2 May '23

17 July '58

24 Dec. '46

9 Dec. '39

14 Aug. '83

lOct. 79

4 June '80

IMay 75

2 May 79

7 Oct. '62

I Nov. 75

12 Nov. '83

5 Apr. '59

6 May 78

8 May 79

7 Oct. 79

6 Nov. .75

lFeb. '80

9 Nov. 75

4 Jan. '83

15 Dec. '68

6 Jan. '80

17 Feb. 75

17 Dec. '66

14 May '67

21 Nov. '81

lAug. 73

14 Aug. 79

May '59

22 Dec. 79

1 Sept. '80

6 Apr. '85

II Sept. '82

17 Jan. '82

4 Mar. 73

o6

48—3



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 18S6

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Duplessis, Charles Zephirin.

Dupont, Charles T

Dustan, William Moffatt. . .

.

Earle, Robert Henry

Egaii, James;

Egener, Adolph

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Elwood, George Vesey..

Erb, Abram Albert

Evans, George Thomas.

Evans, Henry Sugden.

.

Fahey, Edward. . . :

3rd class Exciseman

District Inspector

Deputy Collector I. R.

.

Special class Exciseman

Inspector W. & M

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

2nd class Exciseman . .

.

3rd class Exciseman. . .

.

1st class Exciseman. . .

.

Chief Analyst

Present
Salary.

Canal Clerk & 3rd class

Exciseman

Fahey, Owen

Falconer, James E.

3rd class Exciseman. .

.

3rd class Exciseman. .

.

Farley, James Frederick Collector Canal Tolls.

Ferguson, John

Flynn, Daniel

Forest, Eugene Roch

Fortier, Charles Gaspe

Fortier, Jean Jacques Odilon

.

Foumier, Joseph Alfred

Fox, John David

Fox, Thomas

Fraser, George James

Frederickson, John

Freeze, Edward Charles

3rd class Exciseman. . .

.

Asst. Insp. W. k M. ..

3rd class Exciseman. . .

.

Collr. Inland Revenue .

.

Colli'. Inland Revenue.

.

Asst. Collr. Canal Tolls

Probation aly Exciseman

1st class Exciseman. . .

.

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

3rd class Exciseman. . .

.

Inspector W. k M
Galbraith, Thomas Jefferson. ! Collector Canal Tolls. .

.

Gallagher, Francis

Ganong, John Edward

Gerald, Charles

Gerald, Walter Henry.

*Gerald, William

Specification Clerk

2nd class Exciseman . .

.

Special class Exciseman

3rd class Exciseman. . .

.

Preventive Officer

1 July '83

1 June 73

Nov. '84

1 July 75

14 Aug. 79

20 Aug. '80

16 Dec. 73

1 July '84

1 July '85
j

1 Sept. '84

f 1 Aug. '82

1 Feb. '85

1 Nov. 77

8 Oct. 79

1 Nov. '77

1 July 84

7 Mar. '85

1 Nov. 79

17 Mar. '85

1 May 73

5 June '83

1 Nov. '80

1 July '85

13 Feb. 74

17 Aug. '80

9 Sept. '65

12 Dec. '83

9 Dec.' 67

1 Nov. '80

1 Nov. '84

24 Aug. '58

Date of

Birth.

$ cts.

630 00

2,200 00

1,200*00

1,200 00

1,200 00

805 00

850 00

720 00

800 00

2,000 00

500 00 \ i

290 00 j

'

600 00

690 00

1.200 00

690 00

600 00

600 00

1,600 00

550 00

500 00

500 00

980 00

700 00

750 00

800 00

500 00

600 00

800 00

1.200 00

600 00

200 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

2 Jan. '49

26 Sept.'37

8 Oct. '57

1 July '50-

19 July '30

26 Sept. '27

20 Sept. '40

8 Mar. '29

23 Nov. '54

19 May '30

13 July '41

18 July '48

20 July '56

17 Aug. '32

17 Apr. '26

4 Dec. '44

5 Sept. '54

16 Feb. '18

25 Sept.' 48

21 Dec. '30

25 Mar. '65

10 Aug. '45

6 July '41

31 May '13

11 Aug. '25

5 Mar. '41

24 Dec. '34

24 Jan. '14

23 Oct. '52

6 Sept. '57

25 Mar. '23

13 Dec. '80

4 Sept. '63

7 Feb. '82

17 Feb. 73

14 Aug. 79

13 Aug. 79

22 Mar. 70

14 Aug. 79

1 Nov. '80

1 Sept. '84

30 Dec. 75

31 July '84

23 Dec. 76

8 Oct. 79

16 Nov. 76

24 Dec. '83

2 July '84

1 Apr. '63

17 Mar. '85

1 May 73

5 June '85

21 Apr. 76

1 July '84

1 Sept. '69

9 Oct. 75

9 Sept. '65

12 Dec. '83

9 Dec. '67

16 Dec. 76

14 Apr. '84

24 Aug. '53

Also holds an appointment in Customs Department.

31



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Gerald. William John

Gifiin, William Wells

Gill, William

Girard, Irenee

Girdlestone, Robert John M.

Giroux, Alphonse Philarome.

Godson, Henry

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Insp. of Tob. Factories.

Asst. Inspr. W. &M...

Deputy Collector

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

3rd class Exciseman . .

.

Clerk (Canals)

Chief Inspector of In-

land Revenue

Collector of Inl. Rev..

Asst. Inspr. of W. & W. 31 Aug. ^80

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

1st class Exciseman. . .

.

Collr. Inland Rev
|
28 Nov. '66

General Office Clerk .

.

Collr. Inland Rev

Colbr. Inland Rev

Good, Henry Berkeley

Gorman, Michael

Goron, David

Gosnell, Thomas Salter

Gaw, James

Gowen, Edmund

Graham, William Johnstone.

Grant, Henry Hugh

Gravely, William ICollr. Inland Rev. .,

Gray, John JDeputy Collector

Greey, Samuel |

Special class Exciseman

Grimason, Thomas

Grogan, Stephen Patrick. .

.

Hagarty, Patrick

Hall, John Joseph

Hamilton, Colin Macauley. .

.

Hamilton, Thomas Chetwood

Hamilton, William L

Hamond, Eugene

Hanford, Thomas

1 July '83

31 Aug. '80

1 May '80

10 Apr. '81

14 Jan. 75

1 Aug. '84

1 Jan. 73

1 Nov. '73

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

1 July '80

1 Nov. '80 i

3rd class Exciseman .

.

Specification Clerk

—

3rd class Exciseman. .

.

Collector In. Rev

3rd class Exciseman. .

.

3rd class Exciseman. .

.

District Inspector

Preventive Officer

District Inspector

Hanley, Archibald ,Book-keepe

Harney, Thomas

Hart, Philip Dacres

Hartley, Robert Alexander.

.

Messenger

2nd class Exciseman

19 Aug. 74

1 Apr. 74

15 Oct. '81

1 May 72

15 Nov. '84

1 Apr. 75

1 Oct. '83

15 Nov. 72

6 Apr. '69

1 Sept.73

1 Jan. '83

Nov. '83

1 Feb. '82

4 Apr. '85

9 Dec. '67

1 July '85

1 May '82

1 July '64

Deputy Collector
|

14 May '(

2,100 00

600 00

1,200 00

805 00

690 00

600 00

2,800 00
j

1,600 00

600 00

805 00

920 00

1,950 00

1,100 00

1,000 00

1,550 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

630 00

550 00

700 00

700 00

630 00

630 00

2,100 00

150 00

2,000 00

800 00

500 00

805 00

1,100 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

27 July '50

22 Sept. '30

I July '37

24 July '47

14 Nov. '43

23 Feb. '47

17 June '25

21 Sept.'30

15 Dec. '25

20 Aug, '44

— June '50

17 Oct. '26

II Apr. '36

16 Feb. '44

15 Apr. '39

17 May '14

25 Dec. '42

3 July '22

23 Feb. '56

10 Dec. '54

5 Apr. '37

28 Mar. '31

20 May '49

31 Oct./64

26 Mar. '42

23 Aug. '36

2 Sept. '13

20 June '46

27 Nov. '47

18 Dec. '51

25 Nov. '24

4 Apr- '67

14 Aug. '79

19 Dec. 70

3 May '80

17 Feb. 73

14 Oct. '82

lFeb. '62

22 Aug. 73

14 Aug. 79

1 Nov.' 75

27 Jan. 76

24 Nov. '66

19 Aug. 74

27 Feb. '68

1 Oct. 79

25 Feb. '67

27 May '84

26 Apr.
t
'67

7 Apr. '81

15 Nov. 72

6 Apr. '69

1 Sept. 73

18 Aug. '81

10 Nov. '81

7 Dec. '68

4 Apr. '85

9 Dec. '67

1 July '80

IMay '82

7 Jan. '80

20 Nov. 'QQ

Sa



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Harwood, Robert Unwin. . .

.

Hastie, "William

Haun, James Robert

Hawkins, William Louis. . .

.

Hayward, Walter John

Hebert, Charles Dupont

Helliwell, Horatio Nelson. .

.

Henderson, Thomas

Henderson, Wilbur

Heney, John Joseph

Henry, John Maxwell Barry.

Henwood, George

Hesson. Charles Ashton

Hicks, William Henry

* Hill, Arthur Marcus

Hobbs, George N

Howie, Alexander

Hubertus, Henry John

Hudon, Alphonse

1st class Exciseman. . .

.

Exciseman

Clerk (Canals)

Special class Exciseman

Inspector W. & M

Collr. Inland Rev

2nd class Exciseman . .

.

Mechanical Asst. W. &
Measures

Huggard. Richard Thomp-
son

Hughes, Thomas

Her, Burrit

Ironside, George Arthur

Irwin, Samuel

Jackson, John

James, Thomas Cuthbert. . .

.

Jodoin, Augustin Pierre

Johnson, William \

Johnston, George Elliot

1st class Exciseman. . .

.

3rd class Exciseman—
Deputy Collector

2nd class Exciseman . .

.

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

3rd class Exciseman

Excise Officer

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

3rd class Exciseman

Inspector of Gas

Exciseman

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Inspector of W. & M. .

.

Preventive Officer

Probationary Exciseman

Special class Exciseman

Collector Inland Rev..

.

Asst. Inspr. W. & M..

.

'[Messenger

Accountant

Collector Canal Tolls. .

.

Inspector W. & M.

.

Inspector of Gas .....

3rd class Exciseman. . .

.

1 July '85

Oct. '64

1 Nov. '83

1 Jan. '83

27 July '80

20 Oct. '80

1 July '85

9 Dec. '83

1 Jan. '85

lOct. '83

1 July 73

1 July '85

1 Jan. '85

1 Oct. '80

28 Sept. 75

1 Jan. '85

20 Oct. '80

18 Oct. 78

28 May 79

22 Apr. '84

28 May '85

1 Nov. '86

1 Apr. 70

9 Apr. '85

1 Aug. 71

1 July '83

11 Mar. 78

1 Nov.'80
J

1 Oct. '83

$ cts.

800 00

900 00

400 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

700 00

700 00

800 00

630 00

1,100 00

700 00

700 00

630 00

400 00 !

700 00

690 00

700 00

1,000 00

Date of

Birth.

800 00 1

300 00 J

500 00

1,200 00

750 00

500 00

500 00

900 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

)

150 00 J

630 00

20 Sept. '57

13 Oct. '25

7 Dec. '41

26 Jan. '64

18 Feb. '39

6 Oct. '45

18 Oct, '58

8 Jan. '42

2 Oct. '56

27 May '61

27 Jan. '28

22 Sept. '64

28 Mar. '60

13 Mar. '55

1 July '41

19 Feb. '55

1 Jan. '37

13 July '31

31 Jan. '43

6 June '34

20 Jan. '55

27 Nov. '51

2 Jan. '40

8 May '28

1 Oct. '35

29 Apr. '56

30 June '33

28 Sept. '42

17 June '32

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

27 Oct. '80

5 Mar. '61

1 Nov. '83

18 Sept. 79

14 Aug. 79

11 Oct. 76

7 Nov. '81

9 Dec. '83

8 Mar. '83

2 Sept. '82

6 May '67

19 Dec. '81

17 Jan. '83

14 Mar. '81

28 Sept. 75

15 May '80

18 Aug. 79

18 Oct. 78

lAug. 77

9 July 77

28 May '85

4 Jan. 76

1 Apr. 70

9 Apr. '85

1 Aug. 71

11 Sept. '82

11 Mar. 78

14 Aug. 79

21 Oct. '81

Also holds an appointment in Customs Department.
'66



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Johnstone, Washington J. . .

.

Jones, Richard ,

Keilty, Thomas ,

Kelley, Mencer

Kennedy, James Donaldson.

Kenning, James Hogan

Keogh, Peter Mary

King, Richard Marsters

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Kittson, Robert Henry

Knight, Joseph

Knowlson, James Baine

Lafontaine, Albert. ........

Lane, John

Lang, Victor

Langlois, Francois Xavier..

Laporte, George

Larose, Simeon Chagnon . .

.

Chief Insp. of Standards

Inspector W. & M...
Inspector of Gas

Deputy Collector

Collector Inland Rev. .

.

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

2nd class Exciseman

—

Collector Inland Rev. .

.

3rd class Exciseman

Inspector W. & M

Asst. Inspector W. & M,

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

Gas Inspector

Deputy Collector

Preventive Officer ....

Dep. Super, of Cullers

3rd class Exciseman. .

.

3rd class Exciseman. .

.

3rd class Exciseman...

,

Clerk Crown Timber
Office

Present
Salary.

_. , ,. Date of
Date of

Firgt Ap _

pointment.

LaRue, George

Lawlor, Henry

Lawlor, Richard A.

Leboeuf, Jules

Lecompte, Salem

Lecours, Henri Theophile. ..

Lee, Edward

Lefebvre, Henri

Collector Inland Rev. .

.

Deputy Collector

Collector Inland Rev. "I

Gas Inspector J

Collector Canal Tolls...

Specification Clerk ....

Assistant Accountant.

.

2nd class Exciseman

—

Clerk (Canal)

Legget, John Edward ,

Lemoine, James McPherson

1 Mar. '84

1 Aug. '84

1 July '85

1 Mar. 74

27 Dec. '80

1 July 71

1 Aug. '82

1 Sept.'80

12 Aug. '80

3 Aug. '80

14Aug. 79

30 Apr. 78

1 Jan. '69

1 Oct. '83

1 Apr. '84

1 July 79

1 Oct. '83

1 Oct. '83

1 Apr. '83

23 Aug. '80

1 July '84

1 Jan. '84
j

9 Apr. '50

1 Jan. '83

1 July '83

1 July '85

10 May '82

$ cts.

1,800 00

f 11,000 001

\\ 200 00 j

1,100 00

1,200 00

500 00

23 July '25

4 Feb. '51

26 July '38

15 Jan. '38

May 74

1 Aug. '84

15 Dec. 79

21 May '69

3 Feb. '53 27 Dec. '80

850 00 I 22 Sept. '21

Clerk (Canals) . .

.

District Inspector

10 May 70

12 Oct. '69

1.600 00

690 00

1,200 00

700 00

500 00

200 00

600 00

400 00

1,600 00

690 00

630 00

630 00

850 00

1,550 00

1,400 00

1,000 00 \
300 00 j

600 00

700 00

940 00

700 00

1.90 per

di'mdur-
ing Nav.

800 00

2,200 00

26 Apr. '35

24 June '42

22 Feb. '43

19 Oct. '31

6 Nov.'17

4 July '28

15 Apr. '33

21 Mar. '20

8 May '30

29 Sept.'41

23 May '30

13 July '45

14 May '55

21 Dec. '34

15 Dec. '53

11 July '52

25 Aug. '17

22 Mar. '35

22 Feb. '35

14 July '41

29 Dec. '52

18 Oct. '46

21 Feb. '25

lFeb. '67

24 Jan. '67

1 Sept. 79

14 Aug. '79

4 Aug. 79

27 Aug. 73

30 Apr. 78

1 Oct. '63

31 Jan. '81

lApr. '84

Uuly 72

28 Oct. '80

1 Sept. '82

10 Aug. 75

16 Feb. 78

1 Oct. 79

Uuue '83

9 Apr. '50

31 Dec. '81

1 Dec. 79

23 Aug. '81

10 May '82

10 May 70

23 June '47

37



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48. A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Lernoirie, Jules

Lepine, Louis

Leprohou, Rocli Martial

Lett, Frederick Piercy Austin

Levasseur, Louis Nazaire Z.

.

Levasseur, Zephirin

Present Rank.

Inspector of Gas

Specification Clerk

Lindsay, William |3rd class Exciseman

3rd class Exciseman . .

.

3rd class Exciseman . .

.

Collector Inland Rev. .

3rd class Exciseman . .

.

Logan, John

Lyiu'h, Patrick

Lynes, Kiernan

Lyons, John

Macdonald, Dugald

Macdonell, Angus Duncan.

.

Maekay, George "William. .

.

Malo, Toussaint

Manning, James

Harchand, Narcisse

Marentette, Alexandre

Marshall, Ferdinand

Mason, Frederick

Mason, James

Miller, Archibald

Miller, Joseph Elwood

Miller, Henry John

Miller. Pierre

Miller, William Frederic. . .

.

3rd class Exciseman . .

.

Asst. Inspr. W. & M..

1st class Exciseman. . .

.

Asst. Inspr. W. & M..

Accountant

Deputy Collector

3rd class Exciseman . .

.

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

3rd class Exciseman . .

.

Inspector of Gas

Asst. Inspr. W. & M..

3rd class Exciseman . .

.

Special class Exciseman

3rd class Exciseman . .

.

Inspector of Gas

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

Asst. Crown Timber
Agent

Date
thereof

Clerk in Crown Timber
Office

Special class Exciseman

Millier, Elie |3rd class Exciseman .

.

Milliken, Edwin

Moore, John Nugent.

Moore. Theophilus. .

.

2nd class Exciseman . .

.

Book-Keeper

2nd class Exciseman . .

.

1 Oct. '83

1 Oct. '83

20 Oct. '80

1 Oct. '83

2 Oct. 78

1 June '66

1 July '84

1 Nov. 77

1 Apr. '84

1 Jan. '85

3 Aug. '80

1 July '82

4 May '67

20 Oct. '80

1 July '84

1 Nov. 75

2 Jan. '82

14 Aug. 79

1 Nov. 77

1 July 75

1 Aug. 74

1 Dec. 75

1 July '85

22 Sept.'83

7 Nov.72

1 July 75

1 July "83

1 Nov. '80

1 Nov.78

1 July '84

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

630 00

630 00

900 00

630 00

1,000 00

650 00

600 00

690 00

500 00

800 00

700 00

1,200 00

1,100 00

690 00

805 00

750 00

200 00

600 00

690 00

1,200 00

660 00

1,200 00

700 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

700 00

805 00

1,000 00

805 00

Date of

Birth.

19 Oct. '54

19 Oct. '38

14 Oct. '32

17 Apr. '63

6 Feb. '48

18 May '22

3 Nov. '43

22 Nov. '30

— Mar. '27

25 Oct. '56

18 Sept. '25

28 Dec. '38

10 Mar. '18

4 Sept. '41

16 July '29

22 Nov. '33

4 Sept/49

19 Feb. '34

5 Feb. '35

5 Apr. '50

28 Aug. '17

1 June '35

19 Mar. '59

17 Feb. '49

8 July '31

23 Nov. '41

11 Dec. '44

11 Nov. '47

23 Oct. '32

6 May '42

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

20 July

18 Oct.

8 July

8 Nov.

2 Oct.

1 June

19 Aug.

27 Oct.

90ct.

14 Aug.

14 Dec.

— Mar.

13 Aug.

27 July

— Nov.

2 Jan.

14 Aug.

5 Dec.

24 Feb.

1 Aug.

IDec.

12 Dec.

'80

'80

79

'81

78

'66

'82

75

75

'82

79

70

'66

79

74

'69

'82

79

76'

72

74

75

'83

22 Sept. '83

22 May '68

15 July 73

7 July 79

2 May 74

20 Nov. 76

Uan. 74

3*



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Moore, William

Moreau, Joseph Allred.

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

Caretaker of W. & M. &
Gas Office

Date
thereof.

18 Sept. 77

District Inspector.

.

Collector lnl. Revenue.

Canal Clerk

3rd class Exciseman....

Asst. Collr. lnl. Rev
Asst. Inspr. of Gas..

1 May '84

1 Dec. '80

1 July '83

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

850 00

Date of

Birth.

19 Sept.'19

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

14 Jan. 75

Morrow, John

Mulhern. Michael Matthew 1

Mulligan, Joseph

Munro, Hugh David
|

Murphy, Daniel

Murphy, Francis

Murray, Alfred Sutton E. .

.

McAllister, Andrew ^Collector Inld. Rev. . .,.
|

1 Feb. '82

McCoy, William 3rd class Exciseman. ... L Sept. '84

McDonald, John |Asst. Inspr. W. & M. .

.

300 00
|
15 Jan. '34

2,400 00 I 17 Nov. '32

1 July '84

Collector Canal Tolls. . . 1 July 72

3,rd class Exciseman. . . . 1 Feb. '69

2nd class Exciseman. . . I 20 Oct. '80

McDonald, John Arthur.. .

.

McDonald, Michael Allen..

McDonnell, William John. .

.

McEachern, Archibald

McFarland, Duncan Elliot..

McHugh, Francis Jerome J.

.

McKay, John

McKay, John H

McKenzie, Thomas Howard.

McLean, Donald

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

Collr. Inland Rev

Asst. Inspr. W. & M..

Collr. Inld. Rev

Collr. Canal Tolls ,

1st class Exciseman. .

.

Inspr. W. & M

Collector Inld. Rev. .

.

Inspr. W. &M
Collr. Inland Rev

McMillan, Robert Pringle.. . Collr. Canal Tolls

McNamara, Matthew

McNally, Thomas

McNutt, Charles Stewart.

McPherson, Andrew F. .

.

McPhie, Donald

MePhillips, Henry T

McSween, James

3rd class Exciseman

Clerk (Canals)

Asst . CrownTimberAgt

Special class Exciseman

Gas Inspector

Asst. Inspr. W«. &M...

1 Jan. '82

1 July '85

12 Aug. '80

29 June '80

'60

1 Sept. 75

1 Jan. '85

3 Sept. '80

2 July '85

3 Aug. '80

1 Apr. 77

14 June '64

6 Feb. 74

1 Jan. 73

23 Jan. '64

1 July 76

1 Sept. 76

7 May '85

1st class Exciseman 1 Jan. '80

£9

690 00 I
14 Oct. '31

600 00
J

— June '46

700 00 I 8 June '13

805 00 I 17 Aug. '4g

1,300 00 14 Aug. '43

600 00 7 July '55

800 00 1 May '36

700 00 19 Sept.'57

750 00 22 Sept. '52

800 00 17 June '38

450 00 20 Sept. '19

1,400 00 1 Jan. '31

800 00 17 Nov. '57

900 00 1 Jan. '29

700 00 7 June '50

1,300 00 12 Aug. '11

1,550 00 18 Dec. '19

750 00 12 Mar. '43

750 00 — May '28

1,200 00 4 May '34

2,000 00 26 Jan. '15

1,200 00 14 Feb. '40

1,000 00 28 June '36

500 00 18 Mar. '50

920* 00 26 Nov. '51

23 Apr. '67

1 May '84

28 Nov. '6Q

7 Aug. 76

17 May 72

1 Jan. '81

Uuly 72

! 23 Aug. '56

Uan. 71

21 May 72

1 Mar. '84

lFeb. '81

5 Mar. '83

9 July 79

29 June '80

27 Jan. '60

1 Sept. 75

26 Dec. 79

3 Sept. '80

2 July '85

14 Aug. 79

$ Feb. '68

MJune
'

64

21 May '60

_— '55

13 Apr. '58

16 Nov. 71

1 Sept. 76

7 May '85

30 May 76



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

A. 1885

Name. Present Rank.

Nash, Samuel C
J

Collector Inland Rev. .

.

Neelands, Hamilton
J

3rd class Exciseman
i

3rd class ExcisemanNicholls, James Thomas.

O'Brien, James Francis.. 3rd class Exciseman. .

.

O'Donnell, John 13rd class Exciseman

Date
thereof.

O'Leary, Thomas Joseph. . .

.

O'Neil, John

Outram, Joseph

Painchaud, Jean Baptiste F..

Panneton, George Edouard.

.

Pare, Louis

Park, Robert Samuel

Parks, James D

Patton, James

Pennoyer, Henry Jesse

Perkins, Daniel C

3rd class Exciseman

Collector Canal Tolls...

3rd class Exciseman

Preventive Officer

3rd class Exciseman

Collector Canal Tolls...

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

Supervisor of Cullers. .

.

3rd class Exciseman. . .

.

Collector Inland Rev. .

.

Perkins, Levi Allan jDeputy Collector

,

Perry, George Lafayette

Petit, Jean Baptiste

Phelan, James Augustine. .

.

Pinsonnault, Alfred

Piper, Harry

Pirritte, Jonn

Pole, ChLWs William.

Poliquin, Ferdinand.

.

Pominville, Louis

Poupore, John

Powell, John Bleeker..

Power, Richard

Power, Thomas

Pridham, Alexander.

.

3rd class Exciseman

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

Collector Canal Tolls...

3rd class Exciseman

Inspector W. & M
Asst. Coll. Canal Tolls..

Book- Keeper

Clerk

Clerk

Crown Timber Agent .

.

Deputy Collector

Clerk in Culler's Office

.

Deputy Collector

Collector Canal Tolls...

2 July 79

1 Oct. '83

20 Dec. 73

1 Oct. '83

1 July '84

1 Oct. '83

1 Feb. 73

Nov.'84

1 July '80

Nov.'84

2 June '82

4 Nov. '80

1 July '84

30 June '82

1 Jan. '84

1 June 73

16 Apr. '68

30 June '84

6 Jan. '80

7 Dec. '64

1 May '84

19 May '81

1 July '83

1 July '85

29 Aug. 74

17 Oct. 72

14 Oct. '82

1 June '82

1 Oct. '84

1 Sept. '80

1 May 79

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

1,000 00

630 00

750 00

630 00

600 00

600 00

1,800 00

600 00

300 00

630 00

1,000 00

300 00

600 00

2,200 00

600 00

1,550 00

420 00

700 00

150 00

1,000 00

630 00

1,200 00

800 00

800 00

600 00

900 00

2,400 00

1,155 00

700 00

1,000 00

800 00

Date of

Birth.

4 Oct. '34

27 June '33

16 Dec. '33

20 Dec. '58

7 Nov. '42

14 July '53

3 Sept. '35

20 Jan. '34

1 Jan. '27

23 Jan. '49

7 Feb. '23

25 Sept. '41

25 Dec. '47

5 June '29

2 July '35

23 Apr. '14

25 July '24

13 July '26

23 Dec. '45

4 Jan. '35

20 May '40

29 Oct. '39

14 June '33

15 Dec. '45

15 Oct. '28

7 Aug. '39

10 Apr. '17

5 Aug. '48

27 Apr. '51

3 Aug. '48

27 Feb. '39

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

12 Dec.

15 June

7 July

9 Oct.

17 Feb.

1 Jan.

1 Apr.

12 Nov.

Uuly

5 Aug.

2 June

14 Aug.

1 Jan.

30 June

30 Oct.

1 June

16 Apr.

6 June

6 Jan.

7 Dec.

4 Nov.

4 Aug.

6 May

1 June

29 Aug.

17 Oct.

14 Oct.

9 July

|

1 Oct.

j

9 Mar.

1 May

70

'82

73

'82

'58

'83

'80

'83

'82

79

'84

'82

75

73

'68

77

'80

'64

'80

79

78

'82

74

72

'82

73

'84

78

79-

40



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND EEVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Provost, Jean Jacques.

Present Rank

Asst. Inspector W. & M. 1 Nov.'80

1 May '80

Quain, Redmond Collector of Bridge Tolls

Quesnel, Jules ICollector Canal Tolls. .
.

|

I Apr. 79

Quinn, John Dwyer jlst class Exciseman ....

Ramon, Pierre
|

Deputy Collector

Special class Exciseman

Asst. Inspr. W. & M...

Reddan, William

Richard, Jean Urgel

Redmond, John

Regnier, Pierre

Reid, John

Richard, Dasithe

Reddin, James

Richard, Raymond

Richey, William Metcalf

.

Ritchie, James

1 July,'85

1 July '83

1 July 76

26 Aug. '80

Date of

Birth.

Asst. Timber Counter. . 7 Jan. '84

Collector of Inland Rev.

Collector Canal Tolls...

Asst. Inspr. W. k M...

Inspr. W. & M

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

Collector Canal Tolls...

Robson, James

Rogerson, James Mounsey..

Ross,' Samuel Foster

Rouleau, Joseph

1 June '63

1 July '85

7 July '80

12 Aug. '80

1 July 71

1 July 72

Accountant, Crown Tim-

,

ber Office I 1 July 73

3rd class Exciseman . .

.

Special class Exciseman

Deputy Collector

3rd class Exciseman . .

.

Rowan, Archibald i Inspector of Gas.

Rowland, Edward

Rowland, Fleming

Russell, Alexander John.

2nd class Exciseman .

.

Collector Inland Rev..

Draughtsman, Crown
Timber Office

Scholfield, James ScholBeld. . jClerk of Canal Tolls .

.

1st class Exciseman. .

.

Inspr. W. & M

2nd class Exciseman.

.

Collector Inland Rev.

.

Asst. Inspr. W. & M..

Collector Inland Rev.

.

Schrarn, Burwell

Scovil, Walter Bates

Scullicn. William James

Seymour, James

Simard, Henri

Simpson, Arthur Fisher

1 Oct. '83

1 July 76

1 Dec. 73

8 Dec. '69

17 Nov. 75

1 July '84

1 May 76

1 Apr. '67

16 Oct. '56

1 July '84

14 Aug. 79

1 Jan. '85

6 Jan. 74

6 Jan. '80

18 June '85

$ cts.

500 00

800 00

800 00

80 00

1,430 00

1,200 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

750 00

500 00

1,000 00

950 00

200 00

1,600 00

690 00

1,200 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

9Sept.'39

27 Mar. '59

24 Jan. '33

6 Jan. '49

28 Aug. '33

5 Nov. '33

17 Oct. '41

— Aug. '33

16 May '29

29 Nov. '32

26 July '34

16 June '22

16 Aug. '23

8 Apr. '31

10 May '36

2 July '20

8 Apr. '29

1,300 00 6 Apr. '24

750 00

1.100 00

805 00

1,550 00

1,200 00

800 00

920 00

800 00

700 00

1,400 00

500 00

1 Nov. '28

30 Oct. '30

1 Nov. '80

1 May '80

lApr. 79

Uan. '84

17 Feb. 73

17 Feb. 73

14 Aug. 79

1 May 72

Uune '63

30 May '65

7 July '80

14 Aug. 79

16 Dec. '67

Uuly 72

19 May '60

22 Nov. 76

6 Mar. '69

14 May '67

6 Dec. '67

17 Nov. 75

20 Feb. '30
j
26 June 76

7 July '6810 Aug. '39

4 July '52

1 Oct. '22

9 May '36

2 Nov. '24

6 Sept. '57

5 Nov. '25

12 Feb. '32

1.000 00
I
31 July '48

lApr. '67

16 Oct. .'56

29 Oct. 73

14 Aug. 79

lAug. '82

14 Dec. 70

20 Nov. 75

18 June '85

41



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.—OTTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Slater, James

Slattery, Ralph

Slattery, Thomas

Smith, Edward Thomas..

.

Smith, Henry Anida

Smith, Peter

Spence, Francis Henry. . .

.

Spence, John

Spereman, James Joseph..

.

Standish, Joseph Gerald..

.

Steen, James

Stewart, James

Stratton, William Cox. . .

.

Sutherland, George

St. Louis, Adelard

St. Louis, Joseph

Ste. Marie, Jean B. E. L.

.

Ste. Marie, Louis Cesaire A

Tansey, James Patrick F.

.

Taylor, James F

Till, Thomas Mercer

Tipton, Thomas Lewis M.

.

Tompkins, Patrick

Toupin, Francois X. J. A.

Travis, George

Tremaine, Louis E

Urquhart, James Ronald..

Villeneuve, Jacques

Vincent, Joseph Louis

Wainwright, Frederick G.

Walsh, Thaddeus Joseph.

.

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Clerk

2nd class Exciseman.

Asst. Inspr. W. & M. .

.

Clerk

Book-Keeper

Asst. Inspr. W. & M..

.

1st class Exciseman

Collector Inland Rev. .

.

Special class Exciseman

1st class Exciseman. . .

.

Timber Counter

|2nd class Exciseman. .

.

Collector Inland Rev. .

.

Inspector of Gas

Assistant Accountant..

Clerk

3rd class Exciseman

Book-Keeper

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

Probationary Exciseman

Collector Canal Tolls...

3rd class Exciseman. . .

.

3rd class Exciseman

Deputy Collector

Inspr. W. k M

Asst. Inspr. W. & M . .

.

Excise Officer

Collector Inland Rev. .

.

3rd class Exciseman. . .

.

Cashier

1 Apr.

Uuly

20 May

Uuly

20 July

26 Aug.

Uuly

IMay

1 Nov,

1 Jan.

7 Jan.

1 Jan.

1 Dec.

8 Aug.

— Nov,

20 Oct.

20 Oct.

Uuly

Uuly

29 July

5 Oct.

INov.

15 Nov.

— Nov.

16 Aug.

12 Aug.

28 June

7 Jan.

1 May

IMay

1 Jan.

'83

'85

'84

70

71

'80

'85

76

'80

'85

'84

'85

'80

76

'83

*80

'80

'84

'84

'80

'82

'62

'82

'84
j

77 I

'80
|

'80

'69

79

76

'64

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

$ cts.

850 00

700 00

500 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

500 00

800 00

1,400 00

1,200 00

800 00

600 00

700 00

1,950 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

800 00

750 00

800 00

805 00

805 00

500 00

750 00

720 00

600 00

1,100 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

1,950 00

750 00

1,500 00

30 Apr. '47

3 Feb. '42

20 Apr. '38

26 Nov. '46

13 Nov. '27

27 Jan. '23

28 May '63

28 July '30

28 May '54

25 Jan. '49

17 June '30

10 June '48

31 July '46

24 Apr. '27

20 June '50

3 Feb. '55

14 Feb. '36

24 Nov. '47

31 Mar. *59

13 July '54

18 May '47

28 July '28

12 Dec. '46

29 Nov. '47

23 Aug. '21

1 Nov. '30

2 Apr. '54

30 Jan. '38

19 Mar. '35

1 Aug. '40

6 June '36

i
Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

21 Apr. 77

16 Apr. '83

20 May '84

23 June '64

|
— Aug. '69

14 Aug. 79

29 July '80

15 June '68

6 Apr. 78

18 Jan. '83

29 May '61

7 May '83

11 Feb. 71

8 Aug. 76

1 June 75

28 Apr. 79

26 June 76

1 June 74

18 June 79

16 Apr. 72

5 Oct. '82

1 Nov. '62

14 Aug. 79

24 Oct.' 83

I 9 Dec. '67

28 Oct. 75

28 June '80

— Oct. '68

1 Aug. '67

21 Nov. 73

Uuly '54

42



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEI'ARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present hank, thereof.

Watkins. John Andrew

Webster, Thomas

Westman, Thomas

Weynis, Charles

Whelan, William Frederick..

Whitteker, William

Williams, John

Wilmot, John Bentley

Wilson, Robert

Witton, Henry Buckingham

Woodward, George W..

Wright, Robert J

Yates, James McGee

Present
Salary.

3rd class Exciseman. .

.

3rd class Exciseman...

Messenger

•2nd class Exciseman..

Specification Clerk

Asst. InspectorW. & If.

Gas Inspector

Inspector W. & M. ....

3rd class Exciseman

Inspector of Canals

Special Class Exciseman

Asst. Inspector W.&M.

2nd class Exciseman. .

.

1 July '83

1 July '83

3 May '84

1 July '84

26 May 74

31 Aug. '80

1 July '83

17 Aug. '80

20 Oct. '80

1 Dec. 79

1 Jan. '83

1 Jan. '81

1 July '84

$ cts.

630 00

660 00

400 00

805 00

1.000 00

500 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

690 00

1,600 00

1,200 00

600 00

805 00

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

20 Jan. '31

27 July '36

26 Jan. '63

4 Mar. '42

17 May '32

14Sept.'34

27 Nov.'26

9 Feb. '42

21 Jan. '21

21 Oct. '31

22 Apr. '40

24 Dec. '51

27 Feb. '46

10 Oct. '81

21 Sept. '80

3 May '84

5 Feb. 72

26 May 74

14 Aug. 79

15 Nov. '80

14 Aug. 79

29 Apr. 76

1 Dec. 79

11 July 76

Uan. '81

UFeb. 71

43



19 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

12.—THE DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—INSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

$ cts.

* Johnson, James Commissioner 1 Jan. '75 4,200 00 20 May 16

27 Aug. '33

Aug. '57

19 Jan. 76Parmelee, William Grann is.

.

Assistant Commissioner 1 Jan. '85 2,800 00

Barry, James, Chief Clerk 1 June '82 1 950 00 10 Sept.*32

29 Nov. '52

2 Apr. '61

1 July '69Watters, Thomas John 1st class Clerk 1 July '80 1,800 00

I nee, George Vincent 2nd class " 1 July '81 1,300 00 11 Jan. '35 Feb. '69

Fairweather, Joseph Sydney. 2nd class '* 1 July '81 1,300 00 11 Oct. '46 18 Nor. '70

Harding, ClarenceHoldsworth 2nd class " 1 July '81 1,300 00 3 Feb. '52 1 May '71

Bennet, Frederick George 2nd class " 1 July '81 1,300 00 10 Mar. '52 24 Aug. '71

McKiel, Charles Edward 2nd class " 1 July '82 1,250 00 24 Apr. '46 1 Dec. 74

Bleakney, Arthur Crawley .

.

2nd class " 1 July '82 1,250 00 12 Aug. '53 1 Sept. 72

Fawcett, Guilford Heber 2nd class " 1 July '82 1,250 00 13 Nov. '50 6 Feb. 73

Baker, William Chipman . .

.

2nd class " 1 July '82 1,200 00 16 July '53 Oct. 73

Campbell, James Joseph 3rd class " . . 1 Feb. '82 950 00 10 July '51
'

12 Apr. 70

Russell, William 3rd class " 1 Feb. '82 850 00 28 May '44

22 Apr. '55

Uune 76

Robertson, George Stokes. . .

.

3rd class " 1 July '81 800 00 Uuly '81

Sanders, Edwin Lewis ..... I
3rd class "
Private Secretaiy

1 July '83 800 00 1

300 00 J
17 Mar. '56 1 Aug. '82

Ackers, John 3rd class " 1 June '80 750 00 16 July '46

28 June '57

Feb 79

Bliss, Thomas Alder Dickson 3rd class " 1 Oct. '82 700 00 23 May '82

Dunlevie, Sidney Alfred 3rd class " 1 July '83 700 00 4 June '47 4 June '80

Courtney, John 3rd class " 1 July '83

1 Apr. '82

700 00 27 June '48 7 Feb '82

Code, Thomas James 3rd class " 700 00 29 Jan. '64 1 Apr. '82

Farrow, Robinson Russell 3rd class " 1 June '84 750 00 7 Mar. '63 15 Jan. '81

Grafton, William Henry 3rd class " 1 Feb. '85 450 00 29 Nov. '50 1 Feb. '85

Lacerte, Alide 3rd class " 1 June '82 500 00 4 July '65

10 Jan. '57

1 June '82

Morin, Alfred 1 July '85

1 July '85

600 00

Christie, Jessie Blackburn. .

.

3rd class " 500 00 26 June '61 May '84

McKenzie, William John 3rd class " 1 July '85 600 00 15 Mar. '63 Nov. '84

Walls, John Messenger 6 July '58

16 June '81

500 00

500 00

11 Mar. '28

2 Apr. '47

6 July '58

Nov. '80Carleton, John a

Is also Chairman of the Board of Customs.

44



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Amherstburg.

Gott, George I

Collector.

.

Brown, John Landing Waiter.

Landing Waiter.

Collector

Landing Waiter,

Deming, Herbert Vilender. .

.

Belleville.

Webster, William

Beamish, William Addeiiey.

.

Lazier, Richard Leonard Landing Waiter

Covert, John ' Preventive Officer. .

.

Irwin, John Landing Waiter

Berlin.

Bowman, Anson Lewis Collector

Brantlbrd.

Leeming, Henry Blakey
j

Collector

McMichael, Solon W ' Clerk & L. Waiter.

.

Ostrom, William Albert Cle

Foster, Thomas L

Brighton.

- Loekwood, Milton Kingsley. . C

Brockville.
j

Easton, George Collector

Sibbald, Charles L. W. & Cleik.

.

Stewart, Alexander Landing Waiter.

Simpson, David Landing Waiter.

Munro, John McNab Sul

Stayner, Thomas A T

Chatham, Out.

Pennefather, John Going i
Collector,

McGregor, Abraham R.

.

Duck, John

Coatsworth, Caleb

Eberts, Joseph Melchoir.

L. W. & Clerk. . .

.

Landing Waiter. .

.

Preventive Officer.

Landing Waiter...

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

24 July ?84

27 Mar. 74

23 July 74

18 Oct. 78
j

8 June '58
t

20 Sep. 71

1 June '81

28 May '83

8 Apr. '80

1 May 76

5 Nov. 73

1 Jan. '84

27 Oct. 76

6 Apr. 71

$ cts.

1,000 00

500 00

600 00

1,300 00

900 00

300 00

300 00

600 00

850 00

1,300 00

800 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

18 Oct. '27

2 Aug. '28

3 July '30

4 Dec. '44

14 Dec. '32

28 Sept. '30

6 Jan. '25.

8 Feb. '44

26 Nov. '47

1 Nov. 73

27 Mar. 74

23 July 74

18 Oct. 78

8 June '58

20 Sept. 71

1 June '81

28 May '83

8 Apr. '89

5 Oct. '30
I

1 May 76

21 Mar. '68 1.300 00

14 Jan. '57 800 00

24 Jan. '50 700 00

1 July '84 600 00

1 Aug. '83 400 00

1 July '85 500 00

18 Nov. '48

29 Aug. '53

7 Dec. '39

27 June, '25

19 Dec. '12

9 May '51

5 Oct. '56

13 Feb. '65

5 Apr. 70

1 Sept.'84

5 Mar. 73

Uan. '84

27 Oct. 76

6 Apr. 71

21 Mar. '68

1,100 00

800 00

500 00

300 00

350 00

23 Sept. '19 14 Jan. '57

5 Jan. '29 24 Jan. '50

13 Oct. '43 1 July '84

4 Apr. '43 1 Aug. '83

13 Aug. '53 1 July '85

19 Sept. '25 9 May '51

10 Oct. '34 5 Oct. '56

7 Feb. '24 13 Feb. '65

6 Nov. '28 5 Apr. 70

21 Aug. '40 1 Sept. '84
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No, 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank. ,

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Clifton.
$ cts.

Collector 11 July '38 1,800 00 7 May '11 11 July '38

Clerk 18 Dec. '65 1,000 00 10 Feb. '37 18 Dec. '65

Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

June '54 900 00 20 Aug. '27 — June '54

Cannon, John Hemy 11 Nov. '69 650 00 16 Apr. '41 11 Nor. '69

Culhane, Patrick Landing Waiter 1 July 72 650 00 '29 Uuly 72

Battle John Sub- Collector 23 July, 74

1 July 75

700 00

600 00

31 Jan. '57

29 Feb. '40

23 July 74

WiUs, John Landing Waiter 1 July 75

Bender, Hiram Landing Waiter 2 Sept. 79 600 00 16 Oct. '42 2 Sept. 79

Harvey, Thomas Brunswick.

.

Flynn, James Joseph

Sub -Collector 11 Sept. 79

— Mar. '80

600 00 11 Sept. 79

— Mar. '80Landing Waiter 600 00 31 Aug. '58

Landing Waiter.

Landing Waiter

— Nov. 79

14 Mar. '82

600 00

600 00

2 Aug. '22

21 Aug. '57

— Nov. 79

Bartle, John Clarence 14 Mar. '82

Parker, William McMicking. Landing Waiter 29 Mar. '82 600 00 30 July '51 29 Mar. '82

Preventive Officer

Clerk & L. Waiter

Clerk & L. Waiter

18 June '80

1 Oct. '84

1 Oct. '84

600 00

600 00

600 00

4 Oct. '40

20 May '44

6 Dec. '64

18 June '80

Brown, James lOct. '84

Flynn, James Patrick 1 Oct. '84

McKenzie, Charles Janier. .

.

Clerk & L. Waiter 1 Oct. '84 600 00 22 Mar. '47 1 Oct. '84

Cobourg.

Collector 6 Nov. '65

2 Mar. '82

1,000 00

700 00

13 Apr. '30

2 Feb. '31

6 Nov. '65

Landing Waiter 2 Mar. '82

Godard, Alared Henry Preventive Officer 26 Nov. '69 400 00 25 Dec. '14 26 Nov. '69

Port Colborne.

McFarland, Duncan Elliott.. Collector 1 Sept. 75

18 Oct. '56

300 00

300 00

1 Jan. '31

1 Oct. '22

1 Sept. 75

^cholfield, James Scholfield.

.

Landing Waiter 18 Oct. '56

Haun, James Robert Preventive Officer 1 May '84 250 00 7 Dec. '41 IMay '84

Collingwood.

Watson, George Collector 22 Nov. '66

3 Apr. '82

1,000 00

500 00

2 Dec. '28

23 Jan. '59

22 Nov. '66

Hogg, William A • Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

3 Apr. '82

Galna, John 5 July '81 400 00 22 Feb. '49 5 July '81

Cornwall.

Collector 2 Dec. 78

15 Oct. 78

850 00

300 00

14 Apr. '48

1 Nov. '38

11 Aug. 75

Cook, Durtiam Landing Waiter 15 Oct. 78

Ridley, John Landing Waiter 15 Oct. 78 400 00 12 Feb. '51 15 Oct. 78
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Collector.

Collector.

Collector.

Collector

Landing Waiter

Cramahe.

Fovrlei, George Orchard.

Darlington.

Rankin, John

McClellan, James jLanding Waiter

Dover.
I

I

Barrett, Theobald Butler 'Collector

Matthews, John Sub-Collector

Maybee, Simon Pitt !
Sub-Collector

Desoronto.

Pile, Thomas Gibbet. .

.

Dundas.

Gillespy, William

Dunnville.

Brownson, Arr

Galbraith, Thomas Jefferson.

Fort Erie.

Brookfield,Emmanuel Wilters

Warren, Robert Grant

Treble, Charles

Richardson, Robert Watson..

Lewis, Charles Wesley

Schryer, Joseph

Newbigging, Thomas Leslie..

Crysler, John A

Wilkms, Oscar Fitzalwyn . .

.

Gait.

Peck, Thomas

Gananoque.

Ormiston, John

Goderich.

Farrow, Ascher

Radclitfe, Richard

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Collector !
IS July 77

Collector

Landing Waiter....

Landing Waiter...

Landing Waiter...

Clerk & L. Waiter.

Landing Waiter..

.

Landing Waiter...

Landing Waiter..

,

Landing Waiter. .

.

Collector.

Collector.

Collector.

Clerk. .

.

Nov. 70

7 Jan. '64

9 Feb. '69

1 Nov. '84

July 76

25 Oct. 76

1 Apr. 71

$ cts.

550 00

1,200 00

600 00

875 00

600 00

500 00

.p. .. e Date of

^.° First Ap-
i5ntn

'

\

pointnient.

5 July '32 13 July 77

12 Nov. 74

. . 6 Apr. 76

Oct. '20 Nov. 70

Oct. '10 7 Jan. '64

17 Nov. '17 25 June '53

29 June '39 1 Nov. '84

4 Jan. '27 July 76

29 Sept. '14 25 Oct. 76

1,200 00 24 Nov. '29 9 Dec, '69

I

800 00 I 23 Jan. '21 12 Nov. 74

100 00 I 5 Mar. '41 6 Apr. 76

1 May '85

16 Nov.'55

22 July '56

16 Jan. 70

1 Dec. 75

28 Feb. 74

27 Feb. 74

1 Sept.'84

1 Sept.'8'4

8 Apr. '84

17 Apr. '58

1,200 00

900 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

600 00

600 00

750 00

1,000 00

16 Oct. '37

7 Apr. '25

26 Nov. '44

9 Oct. '47

3 Oct. '35

13 June '42

6 Nov. '53

2 July '36

2 Sept. '21

3 Mar. '34

1 July '84
I

1,000 00
j
17 Apr. '40

Sept. 55

1 May '85

16 Nov. '55

22 July '56

16 Jan. '70

1 Dec. H
28 Feb. 74

27 Feb. 74

1 Sept. '84

1 Sept. '84

8 Apr. '84

17 Apr. '58

1 July '84

700 00 9 Apr. 38 I Sept. '55
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49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

16 May 79 1.200 00

1 Nov. 75 800 00

1 Oct. '80 400 00

25 Oct. 76 1,500 00

27 Oct. 76 1,400 00

1 Mar. 73 1,300 00

14 July 79 1,100 00

1 July '56 1,100 00

1 Aug. '66 1,000 00

1 Nov. '83 1,000 00

1 May 77 700 00

1 Oct. 78 600 00

1 June '84 600 00

5 Apr. '67 850 00

19 May 74 650 00

1 Mar. 72 600 00

28 May 74 600 00

8 Oct. 77 600 00

1 June 74 600 00

6 May 74 550 00

1 May '80 450 00

15 Sept. 72 1,200 00

18 June '57 750 00

1 June '80 600 00

8 Sept. '82 600 00

1 Oct. '82 350 00

29 June '82 1,700 00

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Guelph.

Hefferman, Thomas Augustus

Hutton, Edwin Henry

McNamara, Michael

Hamilton.

McKenzie, Alexander limes.

.

Whyte, Ralph Little

Collector

Clerk

Sub-Collector.

Surv'r & Act. Collector.

Chief Clerk

Thomson, John

Wyllie, Andrew Allison

Shepherd, Francis

Woodward, Henry William.

.

Murray, Hugh

Townsend, Samuel Watton.

.

Appraiser

Asst. Appraiser.

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Galbraith, David Blomfield. . Clerk

Alexander, A

Dixon, Herbert Anthony L .

.

Clerk

Chief L. Waiter.

Paterson, Mark Johnstone. . . Landing Waiter

O'Heir, Peter

McKinty, John

Wingfield, A. H

Halcrow, James

Cleary, Stephen

Ferguson, Alexander

Port Hope.

Burton, Edward J. W
Lauder, George P

Hagerman, Christopher A...

Kincardine.

Williamson, Archibald M

—

Davis, Henry

Kingston.

Hamilton, Clarke

Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

Locker and Gauger.. .

.

Searcher and Packer ...

Messenger

Collector. .... . .

.

Clerk

Landing Waiter,

Collector

Sub-Collector.

Collector.

11 May '37

6 Nov. '55

7 Mar. '41

6 Feb. '26

30 May '20

June '35

14 Sept. '26

4 Apr. '20

2 Apr. '26

26 June '43

4 Nov. '21

18 Feb. '19

29 July '32

13 Apr. '19

20 Sept. '42

May '20

18 Oct. '27

1 Aug. '28

9 Jan. '39

Dec. '33

20 Nov. '46

5 Jan. '48

Nov. '28

18 Oct. '42

4 July '37

4 June '43

17 Mar. '33

16 May 79

1 Nov. 75

1 Oct. '80

28 Mar. 76

27 Oct. 76

1 Mar. 73

14 July 79

1 July '56

1 Aug. '66

1 Nov. '83

1 May 77

1 Oct. 78

1 June '84

3 Apr. '67

19 May 74

1 Mar. 72

28 May 74

8 Oct. 77

1 June 74

6 May 74

1 May '80

15 Sept. 72

18 June '57

1 June '80

8 Sept. '82

1 Oct. '82

29 June '82

48



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. thereof.

Kingston (Con.)

Macalister, Alexander..

Shaw, Abraham

Anglin, R. D

Haddigan, M. J

Neish, William

Driver, Thomas ,

Meagher, Thomas

Present
Salary.

Surveyor

Chief Clerk....

3rd class Clerk.

3rd class "
.

3rd class "
.

Appraiser

24 Dec. 73

19 Jan. 75

23 Feb. 73

2 Aug. 77

23 July 77

23 June 75

ILanding Waiter I
11 Apr. '55

Kidd, Joseph Landing Waiter. .

.

Murphy, Joseph Landing Waiter.

.

Robinson, T Landing Waiter. .

McMillan, J Landing Waiter.

.

I-logle, John Sub-Collector

Briggs, George W (Preventive Officer.

Dugdale, Alfred H I Preventive Officer.

Dawson, John I

Preventive Officer.

Joslin, Almon

Rankin, David J

Pidgeon, George H

Nugent, Peter

Gaskin, Thomas

Kingsville.

King, Sidney Arthur....

McCormick, David

Scott, Matthew William.

Lindsay.

Browne, David

Castello, John

London, Out.

Reid, Robert

Collett, EdwardS. M...

Preventive Officer

Preventive Officer

Messenger and Packer.

.

Packer

14 Jan. '57

Uan. '62

1 Apr. 72

1 Dec. 79

1 Jan. 77

10 July 76

27 July '83

4 Sept -'67

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-

,

pointmeat.

16 Mar. '82

29 July 74

1 May '81

Tide Waiter j
1 June '85

Collector

Sub-Collector.

Sub-Collector.

Collector

Landing Waiter.

Collector. .

.

Chief Clerk.

1 Mar. 73

10 July 79

10 Jan. '81

5 Apr. 73

1 Nov.73

1 Jan. 78

19 July '65

$ cts.

1,100 00

1,100 00

900 00

550 00

600 00

1,000 00

650 00

650 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

450 00

550 00

300 00

200 00

150 00

150 00

500 00

500 00

600 00

400 00

300 00

300 00

600 00

400 00

1,9C0 00

1.3C0 00

29 May '19

11 Dec. '48

8 Dec. '38

10 Jan. '26

18 Jan. '34

15 Aug. '42

30 Oct. '24

17 Dec. '25

15 Aug. '18

24 Dec. 73

19 Jan. '75

23 Feb. 73

2 Aug. 77

23 July 77

23 June 75

11 Apr. '55

14 Jan. '57

Uan. '62

1 May '20
j

1 Apr. 72

26 June '34 1 Dec. 79

25 Nov. '26 1 Jan. 77

. '40 10 July 76

19 June '61 27 July '83

11 Feb. '28

1

4 Sept. '67

30 Mar. '33 16 Mar. '82

21 July '21 29 July 74

27 July '57 1 May '81

1 June '85
i

23 Jan. '44

29 July '15

1 Nov.'37

'28

25 Dec. '40

1 Tan. \2

19 July '26

1 Mar. 73

10 July 79

10 Jan. '81

5 Apr. 73

1 Nov. 73

1 Jan. 78

19 July C5
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DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

London, Ont. (Con.)

Siddons, John

Sutherland, George D. .

.

Millar, Thomas

Irwin, Richard

Erans, Richard Jones. .

.

Williams, John Lang..

.

Armstrong, Thomas

Taylor, James F

Keightly, Robert

McDiarmid, Finlay

Taylor, William

Morrisburg.

Carman, Hiram i Collector

Present Rank.

Appraiser

Assistant Appraiser.

.

Clerk

Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

Clerk and Locker

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer. ..

.

Preventive Officer

—

Clerk

Perkins, James

Napanee.

Elliott, George M

Perry, Charles B

Newcastle.

Farncomb, Frederick

Niagara.

Kirby, William

Thompson, Edward Henry.

,

Lowrey, David J

Oakville.

Chisholm, Robert Kerr

Foster, Henry

Sharp, Daniel M.

Oshawa.

Blarney, Geo. Frederick..

.

O'Dea, James

Sub-Collector.

Collector

Landing Waiter.

Collector.

Collector

Landing Waiter.

Landing Waiter.

Collector

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer.

Collector

Landing Waiter.

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

Date of

Birth.

28 Oct. 73

1 May '82

25 Apr. 76

22 Dec. '55

1 Oct. 71

7 Feb. '80

1 June '80

4 Sept. '82

1 Oct. '84

5 Apr. 70

1 Oct. 73

24 Dec. '67

24 Dec. 79

1 Feb. '84

1 May 79

30 June '55

1 July 71

18 Oct. 73

1 Apr. '82

30 Aug. '42

24 Sept. '80

23 June '85

1 Jan. '82

6 Feb. 78

1,300 00

1,200 00

850 00

800 00

750 00

650 00

600 00

300 00

500 00

100 00

500 00

4 Apr. '27

17 Jan. '32

Date of

First Ap-
pointment .

28 Oct. 73

IMay '82

13 May '41
| 25 Apr. 76

25 Sept. '25

3 Nov. '18

'30

15 Apr. '15

13 July '54

18 Dec. '45

28 Mar. '29

800 00 11 Jan. '28

400 00 22 June '28

900 00 17 Oct. '52

500 00 16 Sept.'27

700 00 15 Jan. '26

900 00 13 Oct. '17

600 00 12 June '39

400 00 10 June '25

700 00 25 May '19

400 00 5 Feb. '24

150 00

700 00 i
26 Nov. '33

550 00 20 Mar. '35

22 Dec. '55

1 Oct. 71

7 Feb. '80

1 June '80

4 Sept. '82

1 Oct. '84

5 Apr. 70

1 Oct. 73

24 Dec. '67

24 Dec. /79

I Feb. '84

1 May 79

30 June '55

Uuly 71

18 Oct. i 73

1 Apr. '82

30 Aug. '42

24 Sept. '80

23 June '85

1 Jan. '82

6 Feb. '78-

50



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name

.

Present Rank.

Ottawa.

"Wilson, Zachariah

Bartram, Joseph Thomas

Heney, Alexander

Patterson, Thomas

Horan, Gordian John

Steacy, John Butler

Collector

Surveyor ,

Landing Waiter ,

Appraiser
,

Clerk and Ldg. Wtr...

Clerk and Ldg. Wtr...

Keir, Samuel Cochrane j
Locker and Ldg. Wtr.

Marier, Pierre
j

Landing Waiter

McGovern, John James
j

Packer and Genl. Asst.

Date
thereof.

Present
l

Date of

Salary. ( Birth.

Date of

First Ap-

|

pointment.

Scott, Charles Stinson .

.

Bishop, Richard Samuel.

Warren, Joseph

Owen Sound.

Stevens, James Crispen .

Sing, Cyrus Richmond.

.

Paris.

Hall, Thomas ,

Clerk

Clerk

Sub-Collector.

Kinnear, A. M.

Penetanguishene.

Thompson, William M

Clark, George

Peterboro.

Stratton, James

Clementi, Charles Hamilton.

Picton.

Ross, Walter T

Mandeville, Francis W
McLean, William Henry

Pringer, John

Collector

Sub-Collector.

Collector

Landing Waiter

Collector

Sub-Collector.

Cadman, Joshua Mailer.

1 Feb. 73

9 June 76

15 Dec. '54

1 Apr. '83

1 Apr. 71

5 Apr. 73

4 Nov. 74

13 May '81

1 Sept. '81

1 July '83

1 July '84

19 May 76

1 Aug. '82

12 Nov. 72

1 Mar. 78

26 May 75

21 June '84

8 Apr. '82

Collector 18 July 76

Clerk and Ldg. Wtr.

Collector

Landing Waiter..

.

Landing Waiter . .

.

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

17 Dec. '84

23 May 78

49 Feb. '49

20 Oct. '64

13 Sept. '66

16 Dec. 71

51

$ cts.

1,300 00

800 00

1,200 00

800 00

800 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

800 00

600 00

400 00

700 00

400 00

1,000 00

600 00

7 Mar. '19

24 June '41

5 June '21

11 May '21

1 Apr. '25

10 Feb. '27

10 Mar. '07

20 Feb. '20

4 Feb. '52

22 Dec. '42

28 Sept. '62

15 Apr. '26

23 Jan. '47

21 Dec. '25

31 Jan. '35

500 00 10 Nov. '58

500 00 25 Jan. '31

1,000 00 22 May '30

600 00 2 Mar. '61

1 Feb. 73

1 Jan. '57

15 Dec. '54

lApr. '83

lApr. 71

5 Apr. 73

4 Nov. 74

13 May '81

1 Sept. '81

12 June '65

1 July '84

19 May 76

1 Aug. '82

12 Nov. 72

1 Mar. 78

26 May 75

21 June '84

8 Apr. .'82

18 July 76

17 Dec. '84

800 00

250 00

250 00

200 00

22 Jan. '47 I 23 May 78

2 June '16 2 Fel '49

22 Sept. '22

2 Sept. '19

100 00 i 11 Jan. '10

20 Oct. '04

13 Sept. 'QQ

16 Dec. 71
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DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Prescott.

Jessup, Hamilton D

Bellamy, Samuel Josephus.

Dowsley, Matthew

Gerald, William

Murphy, John

Gerald, Asahel Scott

Hollingsworth, Samuel

Reed, John

Mooney. John

Port Arthur.

Nicholson, Peter

Livingstone, John

St. Catharines.

Collier. Henry Haight

Anderson, Michael John. .

.

Hodge, Archibald

McClive, John

Spillette, Silas W
St. Thomas.

Dunham, Ephrairn A

King, John Dufficy

Smellie, John Reid

Finlay, James Thos. Clark..

Payne, Manuel

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary

.

Collector

Surveyor

Clerk, L. W. & Searcher

Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

Preventive Officer

Preventive Officer

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Collector

Sub-Collector,

Collector.

Surveyor

Landing Waiter & Clerk

Ldg. Waiter k Searcher

Sub-Collector & L. W.

.

Collector

Sub-Collector

Ldg. Waiter & Searcher

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Backhouse, William iSub-Collector.

Thompson, Thomas....

Sarnia.

Matheson, George N. .

.

Adams, Joshua Fourth.

Mclntyre, Joseph

Preventive Officer

Collector

Landing Waiter.

Landing Waiter.

_J_
52

7 Oct.

6 Nov.

21 Dec.

14 Sept.

1 July

25 Jan.

1 July

2 Oct.

28 Mar.

1(3 May

1 May

13 July
'

26 Oct.
'

13 Mar.
'

13 Mar.
'

12 May '

19 Sept.

'

23 Dec.
'

12 July
'

28 Mar.

'

1 July '

5 July
'

5 Apr.
'

26 Jan.
'

10 Aug. :

Sept.

72

$ cts.

1,200 00

900 00

800 00

700 00

550 00

600 00

500 00

125 00

400 00

700 00

600 00

Date of

Birth.

2 May '17

17 May '49

8 Apr. '27

21 Mar. '23

28 Mar. '45

31 Aug. '38

8 Dec. '32

Date of

First Ap-
pointment .

7 Oct.

6 Nov.

21 Dec.

14 Sept.

1 July

25 Jan.

1 July

•C>7

77

'70

fU
74

'62

;

8;i

29Nov.'32
j

18 May '65

I

7 Oct. '24
! 28 Mar. 76

77

|

1.200 00

57 800 00

76 800 00

n 600 00

'82 600 00

56

j

1,000 oo

79 800 00

75 750 00

74 700 00

84 300 00

81 200 00

70 100 00

'56 1,400 00

74 700 00

74 600 00 1

'35

30 Oct. '26

28 Nov. '18

29 Sept. '15

17 July '32

5 Jan. '50

15 Jan. '37

23 July '1

4

20 June '20

31 Mar. '29

7 Dec. '39

10 Feb. '45

Mar. '39

'20

2 Dec. '35

22 Apr. '40

16 May

1 May

13 July

26 Oct.

19 May

13 Mar.

29 May

19 Sept.

25 Sept.

12 July

28 Mar.

1 July

5 July

Apr.

74

72

77

'57

74

76

'82

'56

'54

75

74

'84

'81

70

26 Jan. '56

10 Aug. 74

Sept. 74



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Samia (Con.)

Collier, John C

Bartlet, William ....

Present Rank

.

Landing Waiter,

Landing Waiter

Dawson, Daniel i Sub-Collector

Heath, Edwin Lee jSub-Collector

Alcock, James Preventive Officer .

.

McLagan, John

Saugeen.

Fleming, James

Sault Ste Marie.

Wilson, Joseph

Ironside, James Symington.

.

Landing Waiter.

Collector.

Prout, Frank.

English, Richard

Ross, Benjamin Walker

De lamorandiere, Charles...

Stratford.

Hamilton, John

Deputy Collector.

Clerk

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Landing Waiter.,

Collector.

Ellison, John Lake |

Landing Waiter

MaeGregor, Chas. John

Ford, William Nelson

Dinsmore, David

Toronto.

Patton,Hon. Jas. LL.D.,Q.C

Douglas, John

McLean, Thomas

Paton, Robert Graham Alex..

Fleming, John Beverley

Beaty, John

Baxter. Charles Wesley

Golding, Joseph

Clerk

Sub-Collector.

Sub-Collector.

Date
thereof.

Collector

Surveyor

Chief Clerk

Cashier

Asst. Cashier & Clerk.

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Feb. '80

4 Nov. 74

16 Oct. 73

1 Sept. 79

18 June '84

1 Aug. 79

1 May 76

24 Feb. '48

31 Aug. '80

1 Oct. 79

19 Apr. 71

6 July '80

6 June 74

21 July '66

1 June 73

9 Apr. '85

1 June 78

12 July '83

14 Apr. '81

1 Jan. '58

1 Mar. 71

1 Jan. 77

1 Dec. 79

1 Apr. '65

22 Oct. 73

17 Jan. 76

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

| cts.

600 00

600 00

700 00

600 00

500 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

2 Oct. '35 Feb. '80

23 May 16
|

4 Nov. 74

16 Mar. '35 16 Oct. 73

9 Jan. '39
j

1 Sept. 79

11 July '45

600 00 31 Oct. '41

300 00

1,100 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

400 00

300 00

1,200 00

600 00

600 00

500 00

400 00

3,750 00

2,000 00

1,400 00

1,200 00

850 00

1,200 00

750 00

1,000 00

18 July '22

18 Mar. 18

13 July '35

26 Oct. '40

7 Feb. '34

2 May '37

10 June 17

20 Feb. '32

9 Jan. '23

25 Oct. '27

12 May '30

10 June '24

19 Mar. '26

22 Jan. '31

16 Mar. '30

22 Aug. '54

8 June '26

19 Jan. '57

29 Mar. '31

18 June '84

1 Aug. 79

1 May 76

14 Oct. '43

31 Aug. '80

lOct. 79

19 Apr. 71

6 July '80

6 June 74

21 July '66

1 June 73

9 Apr. '85

1 June 78

12 July '83

14 Apr. '81

1 Jan. '58

lMar. 71

16 Nov. '55

1 Dec. 72

1 Apr. '65

22 Oct. 73

17 Jan. 76

53



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4S.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank. Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Toronto (Con.)

Ridgway, Robert

Heakes, James Robert

Moffatt, Alexander James . .

.

Cowan, John Arpen

Charlesworth, John

McCaffry, James Robert ....

Pearson, Wesley

Patterson, jr., Alexander

Taylor, Conyngham Crawford

Ardagh, Henry Hatton

Tinning, William Karr S

Reiddy, Charles

Griffith, William...

Bovell, Howard

Sargant, Thomas .

Blackwood, Thomas Ferguson

Baker, Charles

Miller, James George

McCaw, Hugh

Duff, Alexander

Bell, Robert

Horgan, Jeremiah Warren. .

.

Lester, William Hollis

Yorston, James

Verner, John

McCarthy, Timothy

Howe, William

Anderson, Bouchette

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Appraiser

Appraiser

Appraiser

Assistant Appraiser. . .

.

Assistant Appraiser

Locker & Gauger

Gauger

Locker & Ldg. Waiter.

Locker

Locker

Locker

Chief Landing Waiter.

Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

Monro, George

Gowan, Harcourt Potter Landing Waiter

I

1 July 76

1 May 78

1 July 78

1 July 78

1 Aug. '80

26 May '69

13 May '82

1 July '82

22 Jan. '83

6 Feb. '83

1 May '82

1 July '83

1 Sept. '81

1 Apr. '84

14 Apr. 75

1 July '81

1 Apr. 72

1 July 73

1 July 77

1 Mar. '6Q

1 Apr. '83

13 Oct. '63

1 Mar. 73

1 July 77

1 July
'*

9 May '51

17 Mar. '64

1 June 70

20 May 72

5 Jan. '46

$ cts.

800 00

650 00

700 00

700 00

650 00

1,000 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

650 00

600 00

1,500 00

1,500 00

1,300 00

800 00

800 00

1,200 00
|

1,200 00

900 00

800 00

700 00

600 00

1,000 00

650 00

700 00

650 00

650 00

20 Oct. '23

11 July '49

11 June '50

11 Oct. '50

1 Aug. '22

6 Feb. '51

17 Feb. '51

4 Aug. '57

9 Aug. '23

11 Sept. '53

29 Aug. '62

22 July '40

27 Mar. '27

29 Mar. '40

16 Sept. '38

27 Dec. '33

26 Aug. '33

15 Apr. '32

10 Dec. '32

11 Aug. '20

8 June '32
|

Dec. '19

15 Jan. '33

12 July '44

14 Feb. '32

17 Mar. '18
I

I

6 May '26

29 Dec. '47

8 Aug. '31

9 Oct. '36

1 July

1 May

1 July

1 July

1 Aug.

26 May

13 May

1 July

22 Jan.

6 Feb.

IMay

Uuly

1 Sept.

1 Apr.

14 Apr.

Uuly

1 Apr.

Uuly

Uuly

1 Mar.

1 Apr.

13 Oct.

1 Mar

1 July

Uuly

9 May

17 Mar.

1 June

20 May

5 Jau.

76

78

78

78

'80

'69

'82

'82

'83

'83

'82

'83

'81

'84

75

'81

72

73

77

'66

'83

'63

73

77

'82

'51

'64

70

72

'46

54



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name- Present Rank.

Toronto (Con.)

Loarden, Cornelius

•Scott, Andrew

McClain, William

Fowler, Edwin

Burns, William

Lowther, John

Lefroy, George

Dickey, Walter

Mitchell, Thomas

Bickerstaft", Joseph

Black, David Nathaniel..

Plunkett, William

.Shortis, Edward

Milburn, Robert Baldwin

Graham, Nicholas

Hudson, John Wilkinson

O'Farrall, Robert

Wray, George

Lloyd, Frank

Thompson, John

Ferry, Thomas

Wright, Robert

Byers, Henry

Reid, William

Trowbridge, John

Slemin, Charles

Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter. . .

.

Landing Waiter....

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Landing Waiter...

Landing Waiter...

Landing Waiter...

Landing Waiter. .

.

Landing Waiter. .

.

Landing Waiter...

Tide Waiter

Preventive Officer.

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

House Keeper & Mes-

senger

Asst. Messenger.Williams, Thomas

Grant, John G Sub-Collector.

Campbell, Robert Peel Sub -Collector.

Trenton.

McGuire, Francis J Collector

16 May 72

1 Apr. 73

1 June 73

22 Oct. 73

22 Oct. 73

22 Oct. 72

28 Feb. 74

1 July 77

1 May 78

15 Aug. '81

1 Sept. '83

1 May '84

6 Mar. 73

1 July '81

1 July '81

1 July '81

1 July '81

1 July '81

1 July '82

25 Mar. '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

4 June 70

1 May 78

1 May 77

14 Dec. '81

9 July 75

„ . - Date of

%!,°f
First AP -

Birth.

$ cts.

650 00

700 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

650 00

700 00

650 00

650 00

600 00

600 00

500 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

450 00

500 00

500 00

550 00

21 Dec. '33
'

10 Nov. '47

'23

9 Oct. '34

2 June '26

22 May '35

29 Dec. '29

24 June '32

22 Jan. '44

19 Nov. '32

1 Nov. '37

1 July '52

5 Jan. '22

22 Dec. '48

12 July '33

14 Feb. '41

13 Nov. '38

17 Mar. '25

IDec. '52

23 July '40

12 July '29

13 Mar. '58

3 Mar. '56

10 June '45

29 July '52

20 Dec, '31

pointment.

16 May 72

lApr. 73

1 June 73

22 Oct. 73

22 Oct. 73

22 Oct. 72

28 Feb. 74

1 July 77

1 May 78

15 Aug. '81

1 Sept. '83

1 May '84

6 Mar. '73

Uuly '81

Uuly '81

1 July '81

1 July '81

Uuly '81

Uuly '82

1 July '82

25 Mar. '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

Uuly '83

Uuly '83

4 June 70

10 Aug. '39

31 Aug. '32

25 Aug. '38

'25

1 May 78

1 May 77

14 Dec. '81

9 July 75

55



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SS6

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Wallaceburg.

Fraser, Charles

Cronkj Asa

Muffins, Andrew....

Whitby.

Carson, George Alva.

Taylor, Charles

O'Leary, Louis

Collector

Out Port Collector

Landing Waiter..

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Windsor, Out.

Benson, William

Morton, William

Cowan, Miles Richard Buck.

Marentette, Joseph Laurent

.

Watson, John

Baby, William Lewis

Collector

Landing Waiter.

Landing Waiter.

Collector

Surveyor

Clerk

Landing Waiter.

Landing Waiter.

Landing Waiter.

Chevalier, Samuel I Sub-Collector.

Gibson, James

Hanrahan, Patrick. . . .

Drouillard, Albert

Brassard, Denis

McKee, Thomas

Fraser, James Malcolm.

Janisse, James D

Bailey. Henry A ,

Woodstock.

Yan Ingen, William Henry.

Hook, William

Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

Ldg. Waiter & Clerk. .

.

Preventive Officer

Appraiser

Preventive Officer

Landing Waiter

Collector

Sub-Collector.

Banting, Charles Ldg. Waiter & Clerk

Clarenceville.

Pattison. William Mead. Collector.

25 Apr. '56

7 June '84

7 Apr. '73

2 Aug. 75

IMar. 78

3 Oct. 78

2 June' 69

14 Mar. '54

1 Apr. '58

26 Sept. '55

23 July '65

30 Oct. 73

15 Feb. 73

21 Nov. 79

5 May '82

19 Dec. '83

15 Jan. '83

24 Sept. '80

1 Dec. '80

16 Dec. '84

1 Sept. '81

22 Nov. '66

11 Aug. 75

1 July '84

3 Nov. 73

$ cts.

700 00 i 14 Feb. '25

500 00

500 00

800 00

600 00

300 00

1,800 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

650 00

600 00

600 00

250 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

350 00

1,000 00

500 00

500 00

1,200 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

'33

2 Mar. '22

23 Feb. '32

28 Aug. '36

8 June '42

24 Jan. '12

17 Apr. '22

5 Mar. '33

19 Mar. '34

16 Jan. '24

13 Apr. '12

7 May '31

5 June '37

5 June '48

12 May '51

10 Jan. '32

16 May '27

4 Jan. '25

2 Apr. '46

14 Mar. '52

31 Oct. '32

30 July '27

7 Apr. '39

8 Feb. '28

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

25 Apr. '56

7 June '84

7 Apr. 73

2 Aug. 75

IMar. 78

3 Oct. 78

4 Nov. '48

25 Nov. '51

29 Nov. '55

26 Sept. '55

23 July '65

30 Oct. 73

15 Feb. 73

21 Nov. 79

5 May '82

19 Dec. '83

15 Jan. '83

24 Sept. '80

1 Dec. '80

16 Dec. '84

1 Sept. '81

6 Apr. '58

11 Aug. 75

1 July '84

28 Nor. 71

56



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Coat i cook.

Collector

Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

Clerk & Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

Preventive Officer. .

Sub-Collector 1 June 77

Collector

Sub-Collector.

Sub-Collector.

Doak, George Orel

Lacroix, Hilaire

Grant, John Blackwood..

.

Churchill, James

Durocher, Jean Baptiste..

.

Young, David

Bean, Edwin

Dundee.

Smith, Merritt Munson . .

.

Tyre, Robert

McGibbon, John

Freligheburg.

Baker, William Calet [Collector

Welk, George Washington.. Preventive Officer

Gaspe.

Kavanagh, Joseph John..

.

McGie, Donald Barnabas.

.

Le Gros, Peter Esnouf

Hemmingford.

Prober, Frederick Scrince. . . . | Collector

Roberts, Arthur jpreventive Officer

Kingsbery, William Clayton. 'Preventive Officer

Lacolle

.

Dazois, Pierre [Collector

Magdalen Islands.

Painchaud, Jean Baptiste F

Joncas, Pierre Leger

Montreal.

Ryan> Michael Patrick

Lewis, John

1 July '85

17 June '57

17 Dec. '60

1 Aug. '63

12 July '83

12 Nov. '64

Present
Salary.

Date of
Date of i FirstAp-
Birtn.

| pointment.

1,300 00

850 00
I

27 Mar. '28

I

900 00

Uuly '85

17 Jnne '57

Collector

Sub-Collector....

Landing Waiter.

15 Sept. '79

20 Feb. '65

14 Nov.'59

1 Apr. '82

9 May '59

1 Dec. '81

5 May '71

14 May '83

700 00

600 00

400 00

450 00
j

550 00

500 00

350 00

650 00

200 00

800 00

400 00

500 00

16 May '38
|
17 Dec. '60

1 Sept. '47 1 Aug. '83

8 May '50

4 Feb. '22

'36

12 July '83

12 Nov. '64

1 June 77

8 Dec. '34 14 Mar. '64

17 Aug. '12 j
20 Feb. '65

26 Apr. '23 14 Nov. '59

18 Jan. '32

23 Nov. '25

1 Apr. '82

9 May '59

27 Aug. '23
I
18 June' 55

Collector

Landing Waiter.

1

1 Jan. 77 600 00

1 Apr. '82 300 00

1 Apr. '82 200 00

12 Apr. 79 600 00

1 July '80 700 00

Collector.

Surveyor.

8 Sept. 75

1 July '82

Jan. '59

4,000 00

2,500 00

11 Oct. '37 5 May 71

28 Nov. '41 14 May '83

14 Dec. '39 12 Mar.
fm

23 Jan. '43 1 Apr. '82

28 Apr. '41 1 Apr. '82

5 Apr. '25 18 Jan. •65

1 Jan. '27 1 July '80

10 May '51 — Sept. 75

29 Sept. '25 Uuly '82

17 May '20 Aug. '41



49 Vietori; Sessional Papers (No. 43.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Montreal (Con.)

Meyer, Edward

Nelson, John

Date
thereof.

Chief Landing Waiter.

Landing Waiter

Blomelcy, Edwin (Landing Waiter

Tidinarsh. Samuel

Lamer, Joseph Emmanuel...

Charland. Magloire

Merrier, Edward Henry

Brosseau, Julien

Boyer Remi

€rispo, Francis

Selby, Charles

Lavoie, Francois Arthur

Purcell, John Pike

O'Hara, William Jerrold.

.

Cox, John

Dunne, James

Jordan, John Astralake.
. .

.

Laurin, Alphonse

Thomson, John Reid

Malboeuf, Arthur

Lemieux, Hermidas A

Chambers, Thomas

Campbell, John Francis
|

Clerk

Smith, George
I Clerk,

Tighe, Edward Clerk

Trestler, Henre Rodolphe S.. Clerk,

Donovan, Peter Clerk.

Barrett, Robert Phipps Clerk.

Duncan, David Logan Clerk.

Miller, John Stewart Clerk.

Davis, John Clerk.

Landing Waiter. .

.

Landing Waiter...

Landing Waiter...

Landing Waiter..

.

Landing Waiter..

.

Tide Surveyor

Chief Clerk

Cashier

Assistant Cashier.

.

Chief Stat. Clerk.

.

Clerk
,

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Present
Salary

.

Date of
Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment .

23 Aug. 71

— Sept. '63

16 Dec. ? 63

26 Mar. 74

26 Mar. 74

26 Mar. 74

26 Mar. 74

7 Apr. 73

7 Apr.;72

12 June '59

11 Apr. '55

17 Apr. '82

24 Sept. '55

1 July '69

26 Mar. 79

12Mar. '68

1 Aug. 71

1 July '69

— May '60

1 Apr. 71

26 Mar. 74

26 Mar. 74

24 June' 76

2 4 June 76

1 Apr. '82

1 Apr. 74

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

$ cts.

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

750 00

750 00

750 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

2,000 00

1,700 00

1,100 00

1,600 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

800 00

700 00

1,100 00

850 00

850 00

1,000 00

950 00

700 00

700 00
v

600 00

900 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

650 00

22 July '23

12 July '17

31 Jan. '24

14 Nov. '22

4 Feb. '44

4 Sept. '36

26 Oct. '38

10 Mar. '42

1 Oct. '42

18 Oct. '19

28 Jan. '28

26 Sept. '33

4 Dec. '25

14 Apr. '48

22 Dec. '34

10 July '27

17 Mar. '32

2 July '43

7 Feb. '37

8 Dec. '36

19 Jan. '37

26 May '43

4 Mar. '49

30 June '50

26 Nov.'47

24 Nov. '35

14 June '53

28 May '44

22 Apr. '52

22 Apr. '34

9 Nov. '39

23 June '53

3 Jan. '54

16 Dec. '63

'50

1 July 72

1 Apr. 74

26 Mar. 74

7 Apr. 73

7 Apr. 72

31 July' 45

11 Apr. '55

20 Jan. '65

24 Sept. '55

1 July '69

June '55

12 Mar. '68

1 Aug. 71

1 July '69

— May '60

1 Apr. 71

26 Mar. 74

— Apr. 72

24 June 76

24 June 76

1 Apr. '82

1 Apr. 74

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

Uuly '83

1 July '83

58



19 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary

.

Montreal—(Con.)

Date of

Birth.

Ryan, George William..

.

Cross, Samuel

Sorley, James Stewart

Isaacson, Herbert Noel

Belair, Gaspard Adelard P. .

.

Benoit, Michel

Girard, Adolphe

Butler, Tobias

Jokisch, H

Moir, Archibald

Hilton, John Fisher

Stevenson, James

Mercier, Pierre Alexis

Bernard, Lucien Hector

Faulkner, George

Lanthier, Auguste

Limoges, Narcisse

Ambrose, John David Long

Hatchette, John

Thomas, Richard Thain ....

Corner, Samuel

St. Jean, Louis

Coallier, Jean Baptiste

Bouiez, Odilon

Craven, George

Mailloux, Joseph

Hannan, John

Contant, Ludger

Labelle, Gregoire [Packer

Hodges, John Ust class Tidewaiter

Clerk

1
Clerk

IClerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Appraiser

Appraiser

Appraiser

Asst. Appraiser ...

Asst. Appraiser . .

.

Asst. Appraiser . .

.

Asst. Appraiser I 4 Apr. 74

Asst. Appr. & Packer. . I 1 Nov. '80

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

14 June '84

Dec. 73

July '84

'80

1 Aug. 77

8 Dec. 79

25 Oct. '80

Jan. '66

10 Mar. '82

1 Apr. 74

Appraiser

Appraiser

Ex-Warehouse Keeper

Weigher & Gauger

Asst. Weigher & Gauger

Chf. Locker & Ins. B'nds

Ticket Clerk

Warehouseman

Packer

Packer

Packer

1 Apr. '82

1 July '82

16 May 74

30 Apr. 72

30 Apr. 72

30 Apr. 72

28 June 76

1 Mar. '84

1 Nov. '67

26 Mar. 74

26 Mar. 74

26 Mar. 74

1 May 72

$ cts.

700 00

650 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

1,000 00

600 00

550 00

750 00

1,800 00

1,800 00

1,800 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

600 00

1,600 00

1,400 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

600 00

750 00

700 00

550 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

600 00

22 Aug. '42

9 Dec. '47

14 Aug. '60

6 Nov. '55

15 Sept. '58

Date of

First Ap-
pointment .

5 May '46

5 June '56

'45

26 July '20

19 Aug. '30

2 Dec. '30

4 May '35

25 Mar. '46

14 Feb. '29

20 Mar. '38

18 Oct. '21

28 Jan. '38

24 May '34

15 Nov. '40

4 Sept. '26

17 Oct. '45

26 Oct. '44

22 Aug. '36

'37

7 Apr. '31

24 June '21

8 Dec. '46

16 Dec. '42

13 Dec. '19

1 July '83

Uuly '83

Uuly '83

1 July '83

Uuly '83

14 June '84

Dec. 73

July '84

'80

1 Aug. 77

8 Dec. 79

25 Oct. '80

Jan. '66

10 Mar. '82

1 Apr. 74

4 Apr. 74

1 Nov. '80

1 Apr. '82

1 July '82

16 May 74

— May '56

30 Apr. 72

30 Apr. 72

28 June 76

1 Mar. '84

1 Nov. '67

15 Feb. '65

May '65

15 Feb. '65

May '47

59"



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Montreal (Con.)

Mullins, Henry

Montanari, Arubroise P. P

Tester, Thomas

Morrison, John

Present Rank. Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

1st class Tidewaiter.

.

1st class Tidewaiter.

,

1st class Tidewaiter.,

hst class Tidewaiter.,

Lapierre, Philias jlst class Tidewaiter.
i

Gallet, Alphonse

Madden, Hugh

Prendergast, John

1st class Tidewaiter.

1st class Tidewaiter.

1st class Tidewaiter.

Garault, Maxime 1st class Tidewaiter.

Tuff, David

Nicholson, Thomas William

Bennett, Frederick

McCluskey, John

Tessier, Louis Joseph

Fenoglio, Alexander

Green., Thomas

O'Lewy, John B

Sanguinette, Leonidas

Johnston, James

Leclerc, Paschal

Murren, Henry

Bonnet, Arthur

Lambert, Jeremiah

Yallee, Henri J2nd class Tidewaiter. .

.

Corbeil, Joseph Zephirin ! Tidewaiter & Locker. .

.

2nd class Tidewaiter. .

.

2nd class Tidewaiter. .

.

2nd class Tidewaiter. .

.

2nd class Tidewaiter. .

.

2nd class Tidewaiter. . . i

2nd class Tidewaiter. .

,

2nd class Tidewaiter. .

.

2nd class Tidewaiter. .

.

2nd class Tidewaiter. .

.

2nd class Tidewaiter. .

.

2nd class Tidewaiter. .

.

2nd class Tidewaiter. .

.

2nd class Tidewaiter. .

.

2nd class Tidewaiter. .

.

Yalois, Joseph Almeida

Porteous, John

"Wilkes, Edward Thomas

Richardson, William Henry.

McNeil, Peter

Rawley, William

Tidewaiter k Locker.

.

'm

1 May 72

1 May 72

1 May 72

1 May 72

1 May 72

1 May 72

1 May 72

Oct. 74

June 72

June 72

June 72

June 72

June 72

72

Apr. 72

1 May 72

30 June 72

May 72

May 72

27 Sept. 72

26 Mar. 74

26 Mar. 74

26 Mar. 74

1 Oct. '83

1 Apr. '84

Tidewaiter & Locker. . . I 1 Mar. '84

Tidewaiter & Locker. .

.

Tidewaiter & Locker. .

.

Tidewaiter

Tidewaiter,

1 May '84

1 May '84

1 Feb. '85

1 June '85

Date of
Birth.

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

600 00

600 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

600 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

600 00

500 00

600 00

500 00

29 Dec. '40

8 Oct. '23

22Jun. '39

29 July '32

8 May '46

20 Sept. '36

20 Nov. '23

7 May '24

26 July '34

1 Dec. '46

17 Jan. '38

15 Dec. '32

25 Dec. '45

20 May *42

2 Apr. '34

June '18

12 Mar. '20

21 Feb. '48

9 Sept. '35

1 June '31

25 Mar. '26

4 Nov. '42

Apr. '37

27 May '47

14 Dec. '50

29 Apr. '52

I 10 May '44

19 June '44

9 Sept. '52

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

31 Oct. '40

'66

'68

'61

'61

'63

May '62

18 Mar. '65

May '62

Oct. 74

June 72

June 72

June 72

June 72

June 72

72

Apr. 72

1 May 72

30 June 72

May 72

May 72

27 Sept. 72

Nor. 73

Apr. 74

74

1 Oct. '83

1 Apr. '84

1 Mar. '84

1 May '84

1 May '84

1 Feb. '85

1 June '85

60



[9 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTS1DE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary

.

Collector

Clerk

Landing Waiter..,

Preventive Officer

Landing Waiter ..

New Carlisle.

feauchesne, Pierre Clovis .

ffeagher, William Thomas

Ulard, W'illiam

Christie, Hugh

Sweetman, Patrick

Peres. !

Flynn, William Collector

Sirois, Joseph Octave JLdg Waiter & Surveyor

Potton.

Lynch, Walter

Perkins, Calvin Colburn

Mooney, Amos Austin..

Collector •

Landing Waiter . .

,

Preventive Officer

Tuck, John Yitz 'Preventive Officer

Quebec.

Blanchet,Hon.JosephG.,M.D

O'Meara, Dominick Daly. . .

.

Carter, William Henry

Cazeau, Vincent

Colley, George

Gouiu, Charles

Hawkins, Alfred George

Huot, Edouard

Giroux, Elzear Louis Joseph

Belleau. Narcisse Louis Gon. Clerk.

5 May 71

4 May '55

1 Aug. 74

23 May 73

8 May 77

1 Apr. 79

25 June 79

1 May 79

3 Oct. 74

Uan. 78

19 Aug. 73

1 Nov.'83

Date of

Birth.

$ cts.

1,000 00 8 June '41

Date of

First Ap-
pointment .

600 00

400 00

400 00

100 00

600 00

450 00

27 Sept. '26

12 Aug. '37

23 Sept. '32

13 July '23

23 July '36

29 Jan. '35

5 May 71

4 May '55

1 Aug. 74

23 May 73

8 May 77

18 June '58

25 June 79

600 00
j

7 Mar. '47
j

1 May 79

400 00 i 5 Dec. '33
|

3 Oct. 74

400 00 Aug. '31

200 00 26 Apr. '35

Collector

Surveyor I
24 July '83

Chief Clerk I 9 May 71

Cashier 2Nov.72

Clerk 8 Sept. '59

Clerk I
28 Apr. '60

20 Dec. '60

1 Apr. 72

1 Oct. 73

20 Oct. 73

1 Mar. 74

Clerk. .

.

Clerk. .

,

Clerk.

.

..Clerk..

..Clerk. 27 Oct. 77
Doucet, Eugene

Dion, Aurelien V
j

Wheeler, Alfred Tide Surveyor
j

18 Aug. 73

Larue, Panet Edward |

Assistant Tide Surveyor lSept.73

Langevin, Alfred Edward. .

.

Belanger, Frangois Xavier.

.

Chief Ldg. Waiter I
20 Oct. 70

Landing Waiter j
5 Aug. '81

61

3,200 00

1,600 00

1,400 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

800 00

600 00

700 00

550 00

700 00

i

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

600 00

7 June '29

15 Jan. '40

17 May '36

18 June '31

24 Apr. '14

2 Aug. '30

13 May '24

28 July '46

6 Jan. '39

6 Jan. '55

21 Aug. '49

18 May '39

8 June '33

3 Jan. '43

19 Nov. '28

— Dec. '50

1 Jan. 78

19 Aug. 73

1 Nov. '83

1 Nov. 70

9 May 71

Uan. '60

8 Sept. '&

28 Apr. '€•

20 Dec. '6d

lApr. 72

1 Oct. 73

20 Oct. 73

1 Mar. 74

27 Oct. 77

4 Mar. '61

1 Sept. 73

16 Mar. '68

5 Aug. '81



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.
— *

Name. Present Rank.

Quebec (Con.)

Xaurin, Louis Napoleon
jLanding Waiter

Dugal, Leandre
j
Warehouse. Keeper..

.

Gray, Frost Wood
|Preventive Officer...

.

Gauvin, Michel Assistant Appraiser.

.

Scott, Benjamin Alexander. . Sub-Collector

Radford, James Preventive Officer

Bussieres, Achille Gassard. . . Sub-Collector

Bilodeau, Ambroise Preventive Officer

Hamond, Eugene Preventive Officer

Griffiths, Jacob House-Keeper

Hogan, John Locker

Rouillard, Jean Locker..

Batterton, James Locker

Dion, Jeau Baptiste Locker

Cauehon, Romain Locker

Edge, W. E Locker

Trudel, Edmond Tide Waiter

Date
thereof.

Beauchamp, Andrew 'Messenger.

Juneau. Charles.

Deavy, John.. .

.

Fireman.

Porter...

Hannon, Owen Porter

Rimouski.

Martin, Joseph Adhemar 'Collector

Patton, John Hoopteller Ldg. Waiter and Surv'r

Cot£, Majoiique

Russeltown.

Rogers, Robert

St. Armand.

Bourret, Edmond Augustus.

.

Guy, George John William.

.

Preventive Officer.

12 June '82

31 Oct. 70

9 Apr. '84

29 Dec. '79

17 July '83

'47

4 July 66

1 Dec. '81

27 Mar. '85

1 July '69

'62

— Dec. '72

23 Oct. '73

1 Sept. '73

10 Nov. '74

1 Sept. 75

22 Sept.74

1 July '84

1 May '66

'69

— May '53

8 May '84

11 June 72

27 May '80

Collector.

Collector

Tide Waiter.

1 June 77

1 May 74

62

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

600 00

900 00

600 00

750 00

300 00

300 00

500 00

100 00

150 00

550 00

650 00

650 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

650 00

500 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

Date of
Birth.

|
8 July '52

I

4 Sept. '36

4 Apr. '42

— Sept. '24

'59

'13

29 Nov. '32

'32

24 Feb. '32

28 May '28

31 July '40

15 June '32

7 Jan. '27

6 May '33

24 June '34

3 Mar. '42

6 Sept. '49

12 Mar. '26

— July '26

8 Dec. '30

Date of
First Ap-
pointment,

400 00 12 Mar. '47

100 00

150 00

27 Apr. '57
|

600 00

700 00

600 00

10 Dec. '34

29 Nov. '23

22 May '22

/

16 Nov. '40

23 Apr. '44

12 June '82

31 Oct. 70

9 Apr. ' 84

'56

17 July '83

'47

4 July '66

1 Dec. '81

27 Mar. '85

1 July '54

'57

— Dec. 72

'59

1 Sept. 73

10 Nov. 74

1 Sept. 75

22 Sept. 74

Uuly '84

1 May '66

'65

— May '52

8 May '84

11 June 72

27 May '80

24 July '48

15 Oct. '62

1 May. 74



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-CUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Landing Waiter

Sub-Collector. . .

,

Collector.

Collector

Landing Waiter.,

Landing Waiter

.

Landing Waiter

Collector

Landing Waiter

Sub-Collector. . .

,

Collector.

St. Annand (Con.)

Bissonnette, Jean Baptiste .

.

Luke, Philip Edward

St. Hyacinthe.

Hamel, Joseph Antoine

St. Johns.

Perchard, Henry George.. .

.

Davignon, Amedee

Boivin, Charles ;

Crowhurst, William John...

Sherbrooke.

Perry, Charles Ermatinger .

Hunt, William Josiah

Barry, Thomas

Sorel.

Mathieu. Joseph

Stanstead.

Channell, Charles Stewart. .

.

Merriman, Lucien Thomas .

.

Clark, William Morrill

Elder, John Wallace

McGowan, William jr (Landing Waiter

Sutton.

Dunn, John

Langlois, Joseph Thibum

Allen, Jeremy

Three Rivers.

Lantier, Arthur Aurelien. . . .
Collector

Bathurst.

O'Brien, William J.

.

Leahy, David

4 Nov. 74

1 Nov. 77

11 Feb. 79

1 May '68

20 Dec. '81

$ cts.

600 00

250 00

600 00

Date of

First Ap,
pointment

.

22 Oct. '22

23 July '28

4 Nov. 74

15 Mar. '64

13Aug.'33 11 Feb. 79

14 July '83 600 00

29 Nov. '84 600 00

1 Jan. 75

18 Jan. '81

1 July 79

1,000 00 17 Feb. '41

600 00 13 Aug. '48

12 June '55

11 July '45

17 Mar. '39

18 Sept. '43

1 May '23

1,200 00

600 00

1,400 00

9 Apr. '84
I

500 00 20 Jan. '37

IMay '61

20 Dec. '81

14 July '83

29 Nov. '84

4 Feb. 70

19 June '81

IMay '49

9 Apr. '84

Collector

Sub-Collector

—

Landing Waiter

.

Landing Waiter

Acting Collector...

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Collector,

Clerk & Landing Waiter

3 May 70

14 Aug.79

1 Sept.79

1 July '80

6 Dec. '80

1 Aug. 77

31 Jan. '81

16 Sept. 73

14 Mar. 79

8 Jan. 77

1 Aug. '83

1,100 00

700 00

500 00

400 00

430 00

400 00

200 00

100 00

1,000 00

800 00

500 00

20 Mar. '20 20 Feb. '61

20 Mar. '31

22 July '48

22 Jan. '62

24 Feb. '49

10 May '43

10 Mar. '43

17 May '23

15 Oct. '45

28 July '56

13 May '54

lApr. 73

1 Sept. 79

Uuly '80

6 Dec. '80

1 Aug. 77

31 Jan. '81

16 Sept. 73

23 Oct. 73

8 Jan. 77

1 Aug. '83

63



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

N;

Bathurst (Con.)

Foley, Patrick J

Present Rank.

Sub-Collector

Armstrong, William (Preventive Officer.

Foley, Patrick.

Campobello.

Farmer, John
j
Collector.

Preventive Officer.

Date
thereof.

25 Aug. 74

— Oct. '66

4 Dec. '83

Present
Salary.

Wooster, Turner.

Caraquet.

Blackball. James George C.

.

Bourgeois, Mederic E

Benoit, Joseph

Landrv, James R

Chatham, N. B.

Ferguson, Daniel

Crimmen. Thomas

Anderson, William

Connors, William T

Dalhousie.

Montgomery, William . .

.

Stewart, Edmond James

Sub-Collector.

Collector

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Collector

Appraiser

Locker

Landing Waiter.

Collector.

Jamieson, William

McMillan, James

Doyle, William

McKenzie, Archibald

Chamberlin, Alexander Rufus

Dorchester.

Dobson, Walter

Boudreau, Alexandre

Belliveau, Frank.

Landing Waiter & Sear-

cher

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Sub-Collector

Landing Waiter & Sear-
cher

Collector

Sub-Collector.

Tide Waiter..

1 Oct. '66

1 July 71

16 Apr. '59

17 Apr. 75

16 June' 83

1 July '83

27 Mar. '65

19 May '81

12 May 70

12 May 71

1 July 71

14 May '67

1 July '67

1 July '67

1 July '67

12 July '83

7 Apr. 73

1 July '84

8 May '84

1 Aug. '53

I cts.

400 00

250 00

150 00

800 00

300 00

600 00

200 00

60 00

100 00

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-

I pointment.

!

I

1.200 00

750 00

550 00

450 00

1,000 00

300 00

200 00

100 00

100 00

400 00

260 00

1 May '42

1 Apr. '34

5 June '36

12 Dec. '12

8 Oct. '19

27 Jan. '27

15 Apr. '39

15 June '37

7 Nov. '45

30 Apr. '26

22 Sept. '48

13 June '26

3 Jan. '47

6 Oct. '38

21 Dec. '19

15 Dec. '23

1 Aug. '13

3 Nov. '27

29 May '41

31 Oct. '22

600 00
|

5 May '54

400 00 15 May '32

22 June '20

25 Aug.- 74

— Oct. 'm

4 Dec. '83

1 Oct. '66

1 July 71

16 Apr. '59

17 Apr. 75

16 June '83

1 July 'S:
J
>

27 Mar. '65

2 Aug. 71

1 May '51

18 May 70

1 July 71

14 May '67

1 July '67

Uuly '67

1 July '67

12 July '83

7 Apr. 73

*July '84

8 May '84

1 Aug. '53

64



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Fredericton.
i

Street, Alfred Foxcraf't Collector

Winter, Herbert Gayner Appraiser ,

Richards, James Frederick. . . Clerk

Carr, James Hamilton

Hillsboro'.

Stevens, William Edwin.

Cleaveland, David

Brewster, Gilbert

McKinley, Charles H. .

.

Anderson, Charles W. .

.

Brewster, John W
Calkin, Samuel

Moncton.

Binney, Irvine Whitty.

Dysart, Andrew K

Landing Waiter. .

.

Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

TideWaite*

Tide Waiter

Collector

Sub-Collector,

Rayworth, John Snowtall '[Landing Waiter

McQueen, Alexander

Newcastle, N. B.

Haddow, Richard B

McGruar, Daniel

Parker, Herbert Edwin..

Wheeler, Patrick

Richibucto.

Rusk, John

Renaud, Auguste

Russ,William Horen Botsford

Keswick, David

Sackville.

Milner, William C

Prescott, William

Sub-Collector.

Collector.

Locker.

.

Clerk....

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

1 Aug. '73

1 Jan. 71

1 May 78

17 Apr. 74

19 June '80

1 May '85

1 May '85

1 Sept. 75

1 May '85

26 June '67

1 May 73

16 Dec. 74

1 May 73

19 Aug. '85

26 Apr. 71

1 May 73

1 June '60

1 July 72

$ cts.

1,500 00

1,000 00

600 00

Tide Waiter I 1 Nov. 73

Collector

Sub-Collector.

Tide Waiter.

.

Tide Waiter.

.

Collector

Sub-Collector.

1 Aug. 77

1 Mar. '81

1 July 77

1 June 78

10 Dec. '81

1 May 73

28 Jan. '44

9 Nov. '50

28 Nov. '52

550 00 27 Jan. '49

600 00

300 00

300 00

200 00

100 00

100 00

100 00

1,000 00

500 00

500 00

300 00

1,200 00

600 00

500. 00

500 00

1,100 00

500 00

200 00

100 00

800 00

200 00

22 Feb. '39

'39

3 Sept. '30

20 Mar. '40

7 Jan. '43

16 Oct. '19

25 May '31

10 July '41

30 Aug. '38

24 Oct. '20

5 Dec. *30

29 May '15

22 Dec. '54

25 Dec. * 46

23 Dec. '25

30 Oct. '30

23 Jan. '38

30 Jan. '35

20 Jan. '46

24 Feb. '46

1 Jan. 73

1 Jan. 71

IMay 78

17 Apr. 74

19 June '80

1 May '85

1 May '85

1 Sept. 75

1 May '85

26 June '67

1 May 73

16 Dec. 74

1 May 73

19 Aug. '85

26 Apr. 71

IMay 73

'58

Uuly 72

1 Nor. 73

1 Aug. 77

IMar. '81

Uuly 77

1 June 78

10 Dec. '81

1 Mav 73

b5

48-5



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. ] 'resent Rank. Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Sackville (Con.)

Ward, Rufus Cote

Siddall, Stephen

Shippagan.

Sormany, Henry Armand .

.

St. Andrew's, N. B.

Gove, Charles M
,

Whitlock, William

Brown, John ,

Stinson, Thomas

Dixon, James E

St. George, N. B.

McKay, James

St. John, N.B.

Euel, James R

Matthew, George F.. .

,

Barber, James
,

Olive, Charles F

McLaren, John

Sandall, John

Atcheson, Anthony

Sandall, Henry P

Smiler, David

Snider, George H

Kain, Samuel W
Barber Keith A

Gleeson, D. J

Turner, Henry

Gerow, Stephen E

Daly, Paul

Humphry, John

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer.

Collector.

Collector ,

Landing Waiter & Clerk

Preventive Officer

Preventive Officer

Sub-Collector

Collector.

Collector

Chief Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Cashier
,

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Landing Surveyor.

.

Waiter & Searcher.

Waiter & Searcher.

1 Dec. '81

24 May '58

lAug. 77

1 Jan. '70

25 Jan. '70

1 Oct. '71

1 Apr. 74

July '67

1 Oct. 79

1 Nov. 70

28 May 79

16 June 74

22 May '66

— Jan. '68

24 Apr. '68

4 Mar. 70

4 May 71

1 Apr. '69

1 May 78

1 Feb. '83

1 Nov. '83

1 Nov. '83

1 Nov. '83

7 Jan. '70

1 Aug. 74

1 Aug. 74

$ cts.

100 00

100 00

600 00

1,200 00

800 00

600 00

500 00

400 00

600 00

3,000 00

1,500 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,100 00

1,200 00

950 00

800 00

850 00

700 00

450 00

550 00

' 550 "00

500 00

1,500 00

900 00

900 00

1 July '44

26 July '14

23 Oct. '35

4 Sept. '14

1 Apr. '48

— Apr. '31

17 Jan. '44

'18

11 Feb. '37

22 Oct. '20

12 Aug. '37

19 May '19

21 Dec. '48

20 Feb. '45

24 Jan. '10

10 Aug. '41

18 Mar. '50

4 Nov. '28

28 Apr. '50

13 Jan. '64

11 Oct. '57

21 Jan. '60

27 Oct. '51

25 Dec. '22

— Feb. '20

24 Feb. '22

1 Dec. '81

24 May '58

1 Aug. 77

1 July '68

1 Mar. '66

1 Oct. 71

1 Apr. 74

1 Aug. '61

1 Oct. 79

1 Nov. 70

1 May '53

15 July '57

22 May '66

— Jan. '68

— Apr. '52

4 Mar. 70

4 May 71

1 Apr, '69

1 May 78

1 Feb. '83

1 Nov. '83

1 Nov. '83

1 Nov. '83

1 Apr. '48

— Sept. '56

4 June '63

66



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1836

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

St. John, N. B. (Con.)

Johnson, William

McBeath, Allan

Whittaker, James E.

Roulston, Joseph

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Tide Surveyor

Appraiser

Appraiser

Packer for Appraiser.

Stewart, Edwin N. S |Gauger

Robinson, Samuel

Murphy, Timothy

Bustin, Thomas E

Carleton, William

Olive, William H ,

Pigeon, Charles

Owens, Michael B

Foley, Thomas Bain. . .

.

Sandall, Thomas

Whiting, James M. F..

.

Hanson, Gedeon Knight.

Carson, Joseph

Dunn, Albert T

Boyle, James

Watts, Sim...

Connolly, J. G.

Olive, Isaac

Forsyth, William..

Dobbin, Wilson L.

Rigby, George R..

.

Hunt, Henry G. ..

Farren, William. .

.

Price, George ,

Asst. Gauger

Sampler Gauger

—

Warehouse Locker.,

Warehouse Locker.

Warehouse Locker.

Warehouse Locker.

Warehouse Locker.

Warehouse Locker.

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Sub-Collector

Sub -Collector

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer.

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Landing Waiter..

.

Messenger

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Boatman

23 July 74

11 Aug. 73

1 Mar. '84

— July '68

— Sept. 74

1 July 75

1 July 75

1 July '67

19 June '65

1 July 71

1 Sept. 75

1 July 76

3 Sept.73

10 May '60

1 July 73

26 Sept.70

1 Sept.71

1 Sept. 71

16 June 74

16 May 79

- Oct. 71

1 Aug. '84

1 Nov. '58

1 July 72

4 Feb. 73

23 July 74

1 Aug. 74

1 Aug. 74

1 Aug. 74

— Sept.74

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

$ cts,

1,000 00

1,200 00

800 00

600 00

900 00

850 00

500 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

200 00

500 00

900 00

500 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

2 July '29

26 Apr. '28

30 June '31

25 Dec. '25

6 June '39

10 May '35

27 Dec. '29

17 Mar. '25

20 Nov. '31

27 Sept.'09

— Dec. '43

— Sept. '36

4 Jan. '33

29 Aug. '34

— Oct. '28

—- '29

4 July '38

6 Feb. '42

30 July '30

25 Mar. '37

28 Feb, '26

2 Feb. '53

i 12 June '30

21 Nov. '12

— Sept. '38

15 Feb. '50

14 Nov. '35

7 Feb. '30

18 Jan. '32

— Oct. '39

1 Apr .'54

11 Aug. 73

1 Mar. '84

— July '68

— Sept. 74

lNov. 71

Uuly 75

1 July '67

19 June '65

lApr. '68

3 Sept. 70

1 June 71

3 Sept. 73

10 May '60

1 July 73

26 Sept. 70

1 Sept." 71

1 Sept. 71

16 June 74

16 May 79

—
• Oct. 71

1 Aug. .'84

1 Nov. '58

1 July 72

4 Fob. 73

— June '67

1 Aug. 74

1 Aug. 74

1 Aug. 74

— Sept. 74

67

48- 5J



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

CUSTOMS DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

St. John, N. B. (Con.)

Fulton, Robert

Cowan, C. W
McAdoo, R. J

O'Keeffe, Philip J

Hutton, Samuel
,

Dougherty, William A

Barton, William H ,

Lowry, John ,

Coram. J. L ,

Cochran, John ,

St. Stephen.

Webber, Henry ,

Hill, Arthur Marcus

Grimmer, William Henry .

.

Stevens, William Henry. . .

.

McAdam, Hugh

McGowan, Moses

Boatman. ..

.

Tide Waiter.

Tide Waiter.

Tide Waiter.

Boatman. . .

.

Tide Waiter.

Tide Waiter.

Tide Waiter.

Tide Waiter.

Tide Waiter.

Woodstock, N.B.

Merritt, David Finley

Brown, Frederick William.

.

Bedell, George Augustus. .

.

Scholey, Henry Tyson

Hart, John

Killburn, Ivory

Wolhampton, Hanford

Kearney, Charles

Baird, George

Violette, Francis

Daigle, Firmin

Lynch, John

Collector

Surveyor & Gauge r.

Appraiser

Waiter & Searcher.

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub -Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub -Collector

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Date
thereof.

— Sept. 75

1 July 76

1 May 78

6 Sept. 79

— Nov. '81

8 June '82

29 June '82

1 Nov. '83

1 Nov. '83

Present
Salary.

1 Feb. 70

30 Oct. 75

9 Dec. '69

6 June 76

3 June 79

1 Mar. '84

1 Feb. 75

5 Nov. 74

5 Nov. 74

15 Sept.74

19 Feb. 79

15 Sept. 74

10 Nov. '66

5 Apr. '82

16 Apr. 73

24 Mar. 73

15 Apr. 79

31 Aug. '80

$ cts.

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

550 00

550 00

550 00.

500 00

550 00

550 00

1,600 00

750 00

700 00

650 00

700 00

500 00

900 00

500 00

600 00

300 00

400 00

400 00

150 00

200 00

200 00

150 00

200 00

100 00

Date of

Birth.

— Oct. '44

13 Sept. '36

15 July '44

6 Sept. '49

10 July '45

25 Feb. '41

— Apr. '51

'57

6 Jan. ' 48

12 Sept. '17

1 July '41

1 June '16

19 Mar. '36

8 Feb. '36

3 June '32

1 Sept. '40

5 Oct. '23

30 June '33

6 June '38

'16

13 July '30

15 Mar. '15

- May '36

'21

'40

24 Aug. '30

9 Mar. '30

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

— Sept. 75

1 July 76

1 July 76

6 Sept. 79

— Nov. '81

8 June '82

29 June '82

— Mar. 71

1 Nov. '83

1 Feb. 70

30 Oct. 75

9 Dec. '69

6 June 76

3 June 79

1 Mar. '84

1 Feb. 75

— Oct. '6Q

5 Nov. 74

15 Sept. 74

19 Feb. 79

15 Sept. 74

10 Nov. '66

5 Apr. '82

16 Apr. 73

24 Mar. 73

15 Apr. 79

31 Aug. '80

63



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1S8G

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of*

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Woodstock, N. B. (Con.)

Tobin, Richard |preventive Officer.. ..j 15Aug.'53

Robinson, George JPreventive Officer

Amherst, N.S.

Tupper, Nathan I
Collector

Ratchford, Charles Edward.

.

15 Sept. 74

5 Nov. 73

Clerk & Appraiser
|

17 Nov. 77

Sub-Collector 17 Dec. 72

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector.

Black, John Henry

Moffatt, John...

Brundige, Joseph Chappell

Bums, John Moore i

Forrest, George W Preventive Officer:

Chapman, Albert D Preventive Officer

Kerr, Charles E ........

Annapolis.

Fullerton, Augustus ....

Ditmars, Gilbert Fowler

Forter, Edgar Harold .

.

Gates, James Henry . .

.

Tracy, Thomas

Antigonish.

Grant, Roderick

Corbet, Edward

Randall, Edward G

Mcl6aac, Alexander

McDonald, Alexander Preventive Officer

Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer

Preventive Officer

11 May '64

1 July 71

1 Apr. '80

'64

2 July '51

2 Nov. '84

1 May 73

15 Apr. '41

11 Aug. 75

3 May '82

10 Apr. 75

1 Nov. 79

12 Apr. '53

1 July '65

Arichat.

Benoit, Remi

Shaw, James A

Brymner, William.

Urquhart, Donald

.

Boyd, William S |Sub-Collector.

Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector ,

I

Preventive Officer
|

1 Aug. '84

1 Aug. '84

12 Feb. 79

1 Sept.'67

7 Oct. 72

7 Oct. 72

6 June 76

Collector

Preventive Officer

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

$ cts.

100 00

250 00

1.200 00

600 00

450 00

300 00

200 00

100 00

60 00

60 00

250 00

900 00

200 00

150 00

100 00

60 00

800 00

150 00

250 00

100 00

100 00

15 May '38

11 Nov. '32

28 July '23

9 May '45

16 June '26

15 Aug. '53

15 Sept. 74

5 Nov. 73

27 Nov. 72

17 Dec. 72

3 Oct. '35
J

11 May '64

I

4 Sept. '37

9 June '46

18 Jan. '38

9 Feb. '28

3 June '33

16 July '31

14 Aug. '10

5 Apr. '51

20 Nov. '40

18 Apr. '19

800 00

200 00

150 00

6 Jan. '35

26 Dec. '16

25 May '36

6 Jan. '33

|

15 Jan. '20

3 Jan. '42

24 Dec. '38

2 Nov. '26

250 00 I
25 June '29

150 00 31 Oct. '56

1 July 71

1 Apr. '80

'64

2 July '51

2 Nov. '84

1 May 73

15 Apr. '41

11 Aug. 75

3 May '82

10 Apr. 75

1 Not. 79'

12 Apr. '53

1 July '65

1 Aug. '84

1 Aug. '84

12 Feb. 79

1 Sept. '67

7 Oct. 72

7 Oct. 72

6 June 76

69



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Arichat, (Con.)

LeLacheur, Peter

Fuller, Charles J

LeLacheur, Colin P

Fougere, Peter T

Baddeck.

Campbell, Laughlin G

McAuley, Donald

McDonald, David

Campbell, Donald

Shea, James

McLeod, Duncan

Kerr, Duncan

McDonald, William

Morrison, Norman

Barrington.

Sargent, Daniel

Taylor, John W
Snow, Nathan

Smith, Seth

Trefry, Hervey D

Bridgetown.

Ruggles, Stephen S

Graves, Walter

Brooks, Timothy R

Chute, Aaron M

Cornwallis.

Rand, Ebenezer

Orpen, John E

Morris, Henry

Barnaby, G. W

Present Rank.

Preventive Officer

Preventive Officer

Preventive Officer

Preventive Officer

Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer

Preventive Officer

Boatman

Boatman

Collector

Sub-Collector

Landing Waiter

.

Landing Waiter.

Landing Waiter.

Collector

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer

Preventive Officer

Collector

Sub- Collector.

Sub-Collector.

Sub-Collector.

Date
thereof.

Aug. '61

30 July '83

10 Dec. '83

1 Oct. '84

21 Jan. '82

27 Sept. 75

1 July 71

25 Aug. 74

1 June 77

15 June 71

6 Apr. 76

11 Aug. 75

11 Aug. 75

4 Apr. '65

15 Sept. 79

7 Sept. '53

11 May '64

3 Oct. 74

1 July 73

4 May '65

7 Sept. '53

29 May '65

1 Oct. '59

14 Mar. 74

1 Nov. '60

4 Au?. '83

Present
Salary

.

$ cts.

100 00

300 00

100 00

100 00

700 00

150 00

200 00

Date of

Birth.

24 Apr. '31

1 Jan. '40

13 Dec. '55

1 Nov. '43

20 Dec. '54

15 July '45

14 May '40

160 00 10 June '32

150 00

240 00

100 00

80 00

80 00

500 00

150 00

60 00

150 00

60 00

650 00

150 00

60 00

60 00

600 00

200 00

200 00

500 00

4 Aug. '45

'26

'34

8 May '20

9 Oct. '25

27 Sept. '26

9 Dec. '37

'22

23 Dec. '23

4 Jan. '40

10 Apr. '45

27 Sept.' 27

2 Dec. '02

10 Apr. '26

29 Jan. '20

31 Jan. '12

18 Mar. '25

Date of

First Ap-
pointment

,

Aug. '61

30Juh '83

10 Dec. '83

1 Oct. '84

21 Jan. '82

27 Sept, 75

1 July 71

25 Aug. 74

1 June 77

15 June 71

6 Apr. 76

11 Aug. 75

11 Aug. '75

4 Apr. '65

15 Sept. 79

7 Sept. '53

11 May '64

3 Oct. 74

1 July 73

4 May '65

7 Sept. '53

29 May '65

1 Oct. '59

'53

1 Nov. '60

4 Aug. '83

70



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name

Cornswallis (Con.)

Rawding, Stephen W
Lockwood, George S

Davison, Joseph Benjamin

Ogilvie, Abram

Porter, Simon N

Digby

Viets, Botsford

Troop, John

Ruggles, Benjamin H

Thurber, Isaiah

,

McKay, Edward

Reardon, William

Potter, Edward Wallace

Guysborongh.

Tory, James Alexander

Young, James William

Falconer, Alexander F
j

Sub-Collector

Giffin, Joseph D I

Sub-Collector

Hemlow, James
|

Sub-Collector

Feltmate, James H.

Milward, Thomas Frederick .

McKenzie, William S,

McCutcheon, Hugh.

Halifax.

Ross, Hon. William

Caldwell, Samuel R,

Morris, James George.

Garrison, William A.

Noble, Samuel.

Almon, Charles M.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 18S$

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Halifax (Con.)

Crawford, Samuel ,

Richardson, James F. .

.

O'Brien, James

Fenerty, Arthur

Eckersley, John

Tupper, Conrad W. . .

.

Piyor, Oswald

Cronan, William M
Hill, Philip Carteret. .

.

Withers, Edward

Caldwell, Thomas

Tremaine, Arthur D. B.

Blackwood, David

Beckwith, R. N

Woodill, Frederick B..

Romans, Charles

Kerr, James

Paw, George A. V

Jost, Thomas P

Geldert, John Morris . .

.

Artz, John

Reynolds, Wellwood . .

.

Gray, George G

McDonald, Norman

Burnham, J. F

McCurdy, W. J

Pitts, William

Conrod, Nelson

Bashford, W. H

Chipman, W. A

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Chief Warehouse Clerk.

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Statistical Clerk

Statistical Clerk

Clerk

Appraiser

Appraiser

Assistant Appraiser. . .

.

Gauger & Prev. Officer.

Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

Landing Waiter

Locker

Locker

Locker

Locker

Locker

Locker

Locker

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

3 May '82

5 May '68

15 Aug. 74

5 Jan. 77

1 July '68

1 Sept.74

1 July 75

1 Mar. 78

I Oct. '83

30 May 73

9 Dec. '81

1 Aug. '84

5 May 75

1 May '83

1 Jan. '82

5 May 75

1 Jan. '49

1 Jan. 71

1 July 71

30 Sept.72

29 May./76

1 Apr. '60

1 Nov.' 64

16 Apr. '60

May '66

18 Mar. '68

II Mar. '68

1 Dec. 72

20 June 72

1 July 71
|

$ cts.

650 00

800 00

700 00

600 00

1,200 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

550 00

800 00

800 00

550 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

900 00

800 00

800 00

650 00

650 00

730 00

650 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

650 00

550 00

26 Jan. '40

12 Sept.' 26

15 Nov. '38

12 May '51

21 Apr. '37

26 Oct. '49

20 July '50

8 Jan. '51

8 Apr. '57

28 June '37

24 June '50

18 June '56

20 Jan. '34

2 Apr. '34

27 June' 45

9 Dec. '36

17Sept.'26

30 Dec. '12

6 Apr. '22

8 Nov.'24

2 Mar. '30

28 Mar. '26

17 July '07

22 Dec. '24

27 Oct. '18

27 Nov. '26

1 Apr. '32

17 Mar. '34

15 Nov.'28

30 June '18

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

3 May '82

5 May '68

Sept. '68

5 Jan. 77

I July '68

1 Sept. 74

Uuly 75

Nov. 77

1 Oct. '83

30 May ' 73

1 June 73-

1 Aug. '84

19 May '65.

1 May '83

1 Jan. '82

5 May 75

1 Jan. '49

1 Jan. 71

1 July 71

30 Sept .72

29 May 76

1 Apr. '60

1 Nov. '64

16 Apr. '60

May '66

18 Mar. '68

II Mar. '68

1 Dec. 72

20 June 72

Uulv 71



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name

.

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary

.

Date of

Birth.

Halifax (Con.)

Fraser, Alexander

Barnstead, Edward H...

Hodges, Robert

Kelly, Alexander

Murray, John

Mason, Peter S

White, Stephen

Shanks, William E. . .

.

Tiider, Hemy W
Berry, William

Ormon, Henry Graham.

Howe, Philip J

Nunn, William

Beazley, John

Power, William

Blackman, William...

Robertson, Alexander.,

Carlton, Robert

Power, John R

3 Mar. '81

11 Aug.75

Sept. '66

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Tide Surveyor I 1 May '59

Locker |
1 Mar. 73

11 Apr. '68
Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Boatman

Boatman

Boatman

Boatman

Messenger 1 Jan. '63

Tide Waiter |
1 I>ec -

'

72

13 Dec. 72

1 Mar. 71

26 Apr. 72

4 Dec. 76

1 Jan. 72

1 Apr. '66

22 Apr. '66

Mar. '66

Tide Waiter.

Tide Waiter.

Caldwell, Albert H Tide Waiter

Hagarty, Hemy B

Hamilton, Hugh F

Edwards, John Thelison..

.

Mitchell, James A

Ashwood, Joseph C

O'Donnell, John M,

Keating, M. E

McFarlane, Malcolm

Henley, William. C

Gibbons, John

1 Dec. '80

12 Apr. '80

6 Aug. '81

9 Dec. '81

23 Apr. 78

1 Aug. '83

Clerk

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter 18 Nov. '83

Tide Waiter 9 Jan -

'

78

Tide Waiter

Packer

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

1 Nov.'82

1 Dec. '84

7 Mar. 73

9 Nov. '80

9 Nov. '80

$ cts.

500 00

600 00

600 00

900 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

24 Mar. '23

4 July '34

22 Dec. '34

1 Mar. '20

18 July '32

25 Feb. '38

30 May '31

29 Aug. '40

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

500 00 2 Jan. '45

73

600 00

600 00

500 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

550 00

600 00

500 00

600 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

200 00

60 00

60 00

26 Oct. '42

24Aug. '51

21 July '39

19 Nov.' 33

28 Oct. '41

10 Feb. '31

19 Mar. '23

17 Mar. '32

26 Feb. '45 !

7 Oct. '52

30 July '61

14 June '58

13 Jan. '39

12 Jan. '44

13 May '63

1 Jan. '40

23 Dec. *49

24 July '60

2 Apr. '22

24 Jan. '54

31 Jan. '38

3 Mar. '81

11 Aug. 75

Sept. '66

lMay '59

1 Mar. 73

11 Apr. '68

lAug. '66

13 Dec. 72

IMar. 71

26 Apr. 72

4 Dec. 76

1 Jan. 72

1 Apr. '66

22 Apr. '66

Mar. '66

1 Jan. '63

1 Dec. 72

1 Dec. '80

12 Apr. '80

6 Aug. '81

9 Dec. '81

23 Apr. 78

lAug. '83

18 Nov. '83

9 Jan. 78

1 Nov. *82

1 Dec. '84

7 Mar. 73

9 Nov. '80

I

9 Nov. '80



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Halifax (Con.)

Present Rank,
Date

thereof.

Preventive Officer.

Collector

Landing Waiter

Rawlings, George

Jamison, George H (Preventive Officei

Liverpool, N. S.

Dunlap, John Hugh

Freeman, Newton Perkins

Lockeport.

Stalker, George

Londonderry.

Dill, Robert

Fulmer, William Andrew.

9 Nov. '80

1 July '83

17 May 78

1 Mav 77

Collector
\ 25 Mav '68

Collector

Sub-Collector.

Corbett, Andrew Y
j Sub-Collector.

Fulmer, Harris Preventive Officer

Lunenburg.

Dowling, Edward
j
Collector.

Wentzel, William Reuben.. .Sub-Collector

Bernhardt, Henry A Sub-Collector,

Butler. William H I Sub-Collector.

Morash, John Tide Waiter.

.

Bates, James William [Landing Waiter..

Preventive OfficerRudolf, Josiah

Mills, George H

Margaretsville.

Landers, David W
Elliott Charles A

North Sydney.

Hamilton, Alexander G

Collins, Patrick

McDonald, Murdock. .

.

Eagen Denis

Phoran, Martin J

Preventive Officer

Collector

Sub-Collector

Collector

Preventive Officer

Sub-Collector

Boatman

Preventive Officer

9 Jan. 74

23 Jan. '82

1 July '69

• '57

1 Oct. '69

1 Mar. 79

5 Oct. '80

5 Oct. 75

1 Apr. 79

5 Apr. 74

1 May '65

1 May '66

1 Oct. '63

17 June '81

1 May 79

16 June 74

16 June 74

1 Aug. '80

25 Jan. '82

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

60 00

60 00

900 00

600 00

600 00

500 00

200 00

200 00

60 00

800 00

400 00

400 00

150 00

500 00

100 00

100 00

100 00

500 00

200 00

Date of

Birth.

4 Nov. '44

15 Apr. '43

4 Nov. '38

17 Nov. '53

2 Feb. '36

'12

21 Aug. '30

5 Dec. '19

26 Feb. '35

26 Jan. '25

4 Dec. '44

28 Apr. '53

7 Feb. '46

7 Apr. '26

11 Dec. '16

18 June '27

— Sept. '26

13 May '34

11 Feb. '30

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

800 00 | 16 Mar. '35
i

500 00
j

'33

100 00
I

15 Sept. '10

300 00 15 Sept. '32

350 00 29 Aug. '43

9 Nov. '80

1 July '83

27 May 75

1 May 77

25 May '68

9 Jan. 74

12 Dec. 71

27 Mar. '61

'57

1 Oct. '69

1 Mar. 79

5 Oct. '80

5 Oct. 75

1 Apr. 79

5 Apr. 74

1 May '65

1 May '66

1 Oct. '63

17 June '81

IMay 79

— May '67

16 June 74

1 Aug. '80

25 Jan. '82

74



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Parrsboro'.

LWnshend, Alexander Stew't

Hatfield, Francis Fraser

Ward, James

Ward, John W
Gillispie, Edward

Pictou.

McDonald, Daniel

Russell, James Anthony

Collector

Sub-Collector.

Sub-Collector.

Sub-Collector.

Clerk

1 July '71

July '64

7 May '80

| 28 Nov.'72

16 Aug. '81

Present.

Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Collector and Registrar.

Clerk

Johnston, George Elliott {Clerk

Campbell, James Alex. Glen. Sub-Collector

McDonald, John Frederick . . Sub-Collector

McGregor, Donald Sub-Collector

Connell, William Landing Waiter.. .

.

Campbell, David Preventive Officer .

.

Henry, John Robert Preventive Officer .

.

McDonald, Angus Preventive Officer .,

Harper, Montgomery Appraiser

Sutherland, George Tide Waiter

Port Hawkesbury, N. S.

Bourinot, Marshall Collector

Forbes, Henry Arthur Sub-Collector

Murray, David, jr Sub-Collector

Hadley, George B Preventive Officer .

Anderson, Jesse Preventive Officer .

Port Hood.

Tremain, Edward D Collector

Dunn, Miles A Sub-Collector

Au Coin, Severin Preventive Officer

Grant, William 'Preventive Officer

Port Medway.

Letson, Joseph Jones Collector

1 July '74

1 Mar. '77

16 Dec. '81

26 Oct. 76

1 May '79

24 Aug. '81

8 May '73

22 Oct. '73

12 Apr. '75

1 Nov.'84

1 Dec. '79

13 July '85

18 Nov.' 79

23 May '78

12 May 73

27 Dec. '65

13 June '61

8 May '59

1 Nov.'83

1 July '85

1 May '84

Uune '57

$ cts.

500 00

200 00

150 00

150 00

150 00

1,200 00

500 00

600 00

300 00

900 00

100 00

500 00

100 00

200 00

400 00

600 00

500 00

600 00

100 00

350 00

60 00

60 00

500 00

150 00

150 00

60 00

500 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

2 Aug.' 41

18 Aug. '05

12 Feb. '20

'38

1 May '62

31 Oct. '35

22 Oct. '55

4 June '49

25 Aug. '50

30 Sept. '50

27 Apr. '37

22 Jan. '34

14 Jan. '27

25 Jan. '51

17 Aug. '33

3 May '29

11 May '38

19 July' 43

19 May '33

30 Aug. '41

16 July '10

18 May '39

16 Oct. '51

15 Feb. '42

20 Oct. '31

16 May '08

Uuly 71

July '64

7 May '80

28 Nov. 72

16 Aug. '81

Uuly 74

1 Mar. 77

16 Dec. '81

26 Oct. 76

1 May 79

24 Aug. '81

8 May 73

22 Oct. 7

12 Apr. 75

INov. '84

IDec. 79

13 July '85

18 Nov. 79

3 Aug. 'Q6

12 May 73

27 Dec. '65

13 June '61

8 May '59

1 Nov. '83

Uuly '85

IMay '84

Uune '57

75



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank. Date
thereof.

Shelburne, N. S.

Atwood. Warren Wilson
j

Collector

MeKensie, Mathew D Sub-Collector.

Sydney.

McDonald. Rowald Collector.

Rigbv. Charles Henry Sub-Collector.

Kavanagh. Lawrence.

Bown. William Waine.

Mi Keen. David

Young. Walter

Sub-Collector.

Sub-Collector.

Sub-Collector.

Sub-Collector.

Sub-Collector.

McLean, Roderick Sub-Collector.

Townsend. Joseph. .

.

Truro.

Nelson, George P.

Blair, Henry C. .

.

MeCurdy, James.

Preventive Officer

Landing "Waiter ..

Collector

Clerk

Sub-CoUector.

( reelman, George Preventive Officer

i

Weymouth.

Jones, Xorman B Collector

Bourneuf, Ambroise Sub-Collector

Stuart, James Valentine Sub-Collector

Sanderson, Richard Sub-Collector.

Robicheau, Basil A Sub-Collector.

Windsor. X. S,

O'Brien, Edward Collector

Sterling,. John i Landing Waiter.

Lawrence. James W I Sub-Collector

Malcolm, Thomas A Sub-CoUector. . .

.

Roy. Alexander
! Sub-Collector

Parker, A. McNeil
! Sub-Collector

O'Brien. James Mitchell Preventive Officer

IDec. '75

7 Apr. '73

1 Aug. "82

16 Jan. '66

'59

28 June '69

14 June '61

7 July '69

21 June '84

5 Mar. '80

1 May '60

17 Sept. 74

1 May '85

1 June '82

3 Nov. '60

1 Nov.'60

6 Dec. '81

6 May '52

10 Mar. *65

11 May '64

'64

3 June '61

5 July '58

14 July '81

24 Apr. '61

26 Mar. '74

13 Mar. '67

9 Dec. '69

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

400 00

150 00

800 00

300 00

150 00

150 00

350 00

250 00

150 00

200 00

60 00

400 00

750 00

750 00

200 00

60 00

600 00

300 00

250 00

250 00

100 00

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

16 Apr. '41

3 Apr. '27

20 Nov. '40

28 Oct. '43

'18

17 Apr. '09

26Sept.'24

20 Sept.'39

'40

24 Dec. '30

'06

13 Feb. 13

8 May '59

15 Dec. '33

20 Apr. '29

18 May '34

'21

14 Feb. '06

'24

;

07

1/200 00 13 Oct. '14

450 00
|
27 Nov. '15

I

250 00 i
26 Mar. '45

200 00

200 00

150 00

60 00

14 July '28

Jan. '26

Jan. '23

'25

1 Dec. '75

7 Apr. '73

1 Aug. '82

16 Jan. '66

'59

Jan. '66

14 June '61

7 July '69

21 June '84

5 Mar. '80

1 May '60

17 Sept. 74

1 May '85

1 June "82

3 Nov. '60

1 Not. '60

6 Dec. 81

6 May '52

10 Mar. '65

11 May '64

: 64

3 June '61

5 July '58

14 July : 81

24 Apr. '61

26 Mar. 74

13 Mar. :67

9 Dec. '69

7(3



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name

Yarmouth.

Moody, William H

McGill, William

Bown, Thomas S

Campbell, Y\
r
illiam L

Coaldwell, Marsden

Bobbins, Ansel

Perry, Reuben

D'Entrernont, Peter Stillmai

Porter, David Leo

Lent, Adolphus S

Winnipeg.

Mingaye, Wrilliam Robert .

.

Bowell, John Moore

Clark, Thomas

Collector

Clerk

|
Special Officer

Appraiser

Granger

Landing Waiter..

.

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer

iCollector

Surveyor

Chief Appraiser and
Landing Waiter

Cape, John

Allan, Francis John

Thompson, William Henry. .1

McBratney, Robert T 'Chief Checker..

.

Caldwell, Bruce McGregor. . . Manifest Clerk .

.

Heintz, Robert Muralt Statistical Clerk.

Bays, Edmund Charles 'Statistical Clerk.

Sutton, Richard Landing Waiter.

Chief Locker

Landing Waiter.

Landing Waiter.

Sub- Collector

Sub-Collector

—

Wood, Zachary Taylor .

.

Jones, Richard lnglis....

Mclnnis, John Lindsay..

Marshall, David

Hesson, F. H

Emerson

.

Phillips, Edward Dixon.

Leslie, William Peel. .

.

1 July '83

1 Feb. 75

1 Mar. '81

1 May 79

1 July '83

1 July '84

Aug. '58

30 May '64

9 Aug. '83

19 Apr. '84
j

30 Oct. 73

5 Dec. '83

1 June '83

rk 1 Dec. '81

Chief Statistical Clerk . 1 July *83

Cashier I
10 Apr. '81

1 July '83

1 July '84

1 July '83

1 Dec. '84

1 Dec. '84

1 Dec. '84

1 Jan. '81

1 Feb. '81

13 Apr. '83

1 June '83

23 Nov. '53

10 Nov/83

1,200 00

900 00

800 00

700 00

650 00

500 00

13 Nov. '36

29 July '42

26 July '36

20 Sept. '35

2 Mar. '33

29 Aug. '32

150 00 24 Nov. '24

150 00 6 July '20

120 00 2 Apr. '47

75 00 I
2 Mar. '48

Collector

Sub-Collector.

3,000 00

1,800 00

1,700 00

1,400 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

800 00

1,000 00

800 00

800 00

700 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,500 00

1,000 00

28 Feb. '24

1 Oct. '56

31 Mar .'32

30 Dec.' 41

3 Feb. '56

28 June '59

20 Jan. '58

4 Nov. '58

15 Mar.,'52

1 Jau. '64

23 Feb. '43

17 Nov. '60

4 June '50

22 Jan. '34

3 Sept. '24

17 June '58

27 Jan. '28

27 Nov.' 52

1 July '83

lFeb. 75

1 May 74

6 Dec. 75

1 July '83 .

1 July '84

Aug. '58

30 May '64

9 Aug. '83

19 Apr. '84

1 June '54

Oct. 78

6 Nov. '60

1 Dec. '81

1 July '83

10 Apr. '81

Uuly '83

Uuly '84

Uuly '83

1 Dec. '84

1 Dec. '84

1 Dec. '84

1 Nov. 72

1 Feb. '81

13 Apr. '83

1 June '83

23 Nov. '53

1 May 74

77



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Clerk & Landing Waiter

Clerk

Emerson (Con.)

Kills, William

Kane, Roland

Charlottetown, P.E.I.

Currie, James

Bremner, George

McKenna, Henry Albert

MacLeod, Alexander Duncan

White, Edwin

McNeill, Duncan

Moran, Michael Joseph

Hogg, Robert

Macdonald, James

McPhillips, Bernard

Passmore, William

Lawson, James David ,

Curtis, James Frederick

McKenna, James Barron. . .

.

Robinson, George Frederick.

.

Hughes, Felix A

McRae, James Preventive Officer

Chandler, Edward Preventive Officer,

Landing Waiter.

Boatman

Hughes, John

McPhee, Allan

Owen, Charles

Hession, Thomas George.

Dalziel, William

Foley, Michael

McEachern, Bennett. . .

.

Lavie, Charles

McLean, Daniel

Chaisson, Alexandre

Preventive Officer.

.

Preventive Officer.

.

Sub-Collector

Landing Waiter. .

.

Locker

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer .

Preventive Officer .

Preventive Officer ...

Preventive Officer .

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Collector & Registrar. .

.

Assistant Collector

Chief Clerk

Clerk & Cashier

Clerk

Clerk

Clerk

Appraiser

Measuring Surveyor. . .

.

Locker

Landing Waiter

Gauger

Chief Landing Waiter.

.

1 Feb. '81

1 July '83

10 May '80

1 July 73

1 Nov.'81

8 May 77

1 Oct. '78

5 Nov. '81

1 June '85

18 May '80

13 Jan. '74

7 Nov.'73

8 Jan. '74

1 Sept. '80

1 Apr. '81

8 Jan. '74

14 Nov. '74

26 July '72

16 Nov. '74

10 Mar. '75

I

7 Nov. 74

20 Nov.75

7 Nov. 73

19 Jan. 74

7 Nov. 73

13 Nov.'80

13 Nov.' 80

13 Nov. '80

1 July 74

11 Aug. '81

$ cts,

850 00

850 00

1,800 00

1,200 00

900 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

500 00

1,000 00

500 00

600 00

500 00

600 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

150 00

50 00

50 00

40 00

50 00

700 00

400 00

300 00

400 00

100 00

100 00

40 00

40 00

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

18 Dec. '49

29 Jan. '53

7 Jan. '35

31 Jan. '40

25 Oct. '47

20 Aug. '43

3 Jan. '54

25 Dec. '54

15 June '55

13 Apr. '46

25 Jan. '36

17 May '23

22 Apr. '13

12 Aug. '52

23 Feb. '43

14Aug.'20

14 Jan. '24

'47

3 May '34

24 Feb. '12

'39

30 June '45

1 Apr. '38

23 Feb. '36

4 June '26

26 Oct. '49

31 Mar. '36

5 Apr. '37

'49

17 July '40

1 Apr. 76

1 July '83

10 May '80

Apr. ^7

Uuly 73

8 May 77

1 Oct. 78

5 Nov. '81

1 June '85

18 May '80

13 Jan. 74

7 Nov. 73

8 Jan. 74

1 Sept. '80

15 May 73

3 Nov. 73

14 Nov. 74

26 July 72

16,Nov. 74

10 Mar. 75

7 Nov. 74

20 Nov. 75

7 Nov. 74

14 Dec. 70

7 Nov. 73

13 Nov. '80

13 Nov. '80

13 Nov. '80

12 Sept. 72

11 Aug. '81



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Charlottetown (Con).

McEachern, Stephen

Leard, Solomon James Benj..

Myers, Wesley

Clark, Isaac

Aitken, James Montague

Brehaut, Henry James

McDonald, John John-

MacLeod, John

Crane, Thomas

McEwen, Edward

Crosby, Charles Alexander. .

.

MacDonald. James

Lewis, William Peterson

Murchison, Angus

Doyle, Thomas

Summerside (P.E. Island).

Strong, Charles Wesley.....

Murphy, Charles

Crabbe, George

Clark, Charles Russell ,

Lanigan, Patrick

Barry, Francis

Perry, Felix

McNutt, James Marshall. .

.

Stewart, Robert

Campbell, Stephen

Conroy, George

Phee, James

Hopgood, William

Date
thereof.

Present Date of

Salary. Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.*

Preventive Officer I 1 June '84

Sub-Collector
J

1 July 74

Preventive Officer |
16 Feb. 75

Preventive Officer 1 May '82

Sub-Collector ,

Sub-Collector

Sub- Collector

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub-Collector

Sub -Collector

Collector

Clerk

Clerk

Chief Landing Waiter.

Landing Waiter

Preventive Officer

Preventive Officer. . .

.

Sub -Collector

Preventive Officer. . .

.

Preventive Officer

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer

Sub-Collector

McArthur, Samuel Preventive Officer.

McKinnon, Philip I Preventive Officer.

11 Aug, '81

1 Nov. 74

1 July 74

14 Nov. 74

14 Nov. 74

14 Nov.' 74

14 Nov. 74

7 May '80

23 Jan. '80

7 Nov. 74

7 Nov. 74

5 May 73

1 Oct. '82

8 Jan. 74

8 Jan. 74

8 Jan. 74

7 Nov. 74

31 Jan. '81

1 Nov. 74

1 Nov. 75

2 Feb. '81

31 Jan. '81

16 Jan. 75

20 Nov. 75

16 Feb. 75

74

$ cts.

40 00

250 00

50 00

100 00

150 00

150 00

75 00

60 00

40 00

100 00

50 00

120 00

120 00

100 00

75 00

600 00

500 00

400 00

300 00

50 00

50 00

150 00

50 00

50 00

250 00

50 00

250 00

60 00

50 00

1 May '42

'40

'45

6 Nov. '14

21 July '38

5 Jan. '35

26 Apr. '29

22 Apr. '20

8 May '21

13 Mar. '15

22 Mar. '22

13 Mar. '32

'31

3 Jan. '29

8 Dec. '44

2 July '29

15 July '49

June '29

17 Sept.'36

10 Feb. '20

'32

29 Dec. '32

4 June '26

29 Oct. '38

6 June '46

13 June '60

Dec. '22

l4Feb. '22

3 Aug. '43

17 Sept.78

1 June '84

23 May 73

1 July 74

1 May '82

11 Aug. '81

1 Nov. 74

5 May 73

14 Nov. 74

14 Nov. 74

14 Nov. 74

14 Nov. 74

7 May '80

23 Jan. '80

7 Nov. 74

7 Nov. 74

5 May 73

1 Oct. '82

8 Jan. 74

8 Jan. 74

8 Jan. 74

7 Nov. 74

31 Jan. '81

1 Nov. 74

1 Nov. 75

2 Feb. '81

31 Jan. '81

16 Jan. 75

20 Nov. 75

16 Feb. 75

74

79



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 18S6

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Sumnierside P. E. I. (Con.)

Present Rank.

Sub-Collector

Preventive Officer,

Date
thereof.

Biennan, John Peter . .

.

Callaghan, William

Stewart, Alexander Preventive Officer

New Westminster (B.C.)

Clute, John Stillwell

Grant, Peter

Haynes, John Carmichael. .

.

Norris, John Gustavus

Johns, Isaac

Victoria (B.C.)

Hainley, Hon. Wymond. . .

.

Finlayson, Charles Studdest.

Collector

Landing Waiter & Clerk

Deputy Collector

Sub-Collector

Landing Waiter

Frye, George

Milne, Alexander Roland

Hunter, Richard

Fawcett, Edgar

Newbury, John C

Lawson, Robert ,

Morrison, Frederick J

Woollocott, Phillip. . .

Franklin, William A ,

Bunting, Charles Edward...

Nanaimo.

Smith, Bedford H

Peck, Thomas Eric

Board of Customs.

Johnson, James

Grose, John A

Watters, Albert Livingstone.

Collector. .

.

Chief Clerk.

Surveyor

Appraiser

Sub -Collector ..

.

Clerk

Clerk

Tide Waiter

Tide Waiter

Locker

Landing Waiter.

Landing Waiter.

Collector

Sub -Collector

Chairman

Special Officer.

Special Officer.

Evans, Henry Sugden [Chief Analyst.

I

Oct. 79

Mar. 77

5 July '81

1 Aug. 78

May '83

25 Feb. '62

21 July 76

8 Oct. 77

Sept. '58

8 June '60

1 May '62

1 Jan. 75

'66

Sept. '83

1 Sept. '83

1 Feb. '69

1 July '80

Aug. '83

8 Apr. '84

13 May 78

22 Oct. '84

15 Mar. 75

27 Nov. '83

27 Nov. '83

1 July 78

1 Sept. '84

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

250 00

50 00

50 00

1,400 00

1,000 00

1,704 00

1,600 00

1,000 00

3,800 00

1,800 00

1,704 00

1,600 00

1,600 00

900 00

900 00

696 00

700 00

800 00

800 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

800 00

800 00

1,000 00

2,000 00

Date of

Birth.

May '54

24 June '32

1 Dec. '39

15 June' 40*

27 Dec. '47

12 July '34

4 Oct. '29

'39

31 May '23

14 Mar. '24

20 Dec. '42

31 Jan. '39

1 Feb. '47

6 Feb. '62

3 May '29

3 Sept.' 47

1 Feb. '42

2Sept.'33

'28

1 June '49

23 July '38

20 May '16

6 Mar. '56

18 Feb. '58

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Oct. 79

Mar. 77

5 July '81

1 Aug. 78

May '83

25 Feb. '62

21 July 76

8 Oct. 77

Sept. '58

8 June '60

1 May '62

1 Jan. 75

'66

Sept. '83

1 Sept. '83

1 Feb. '69

1 July '80

Aug. '83

8 Apr. '84

13 May 78

22 Oct. '84

15 Mar. 75

27 Nov. '83

1 July 78

1 Sept. '84

1 Sept. '48

fcO



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Inspector of Ports.

Inspector 4 Jan. '66

1 July 77

1 June '84

1

1 July 79

31 July '85

1 July 74

$ cts.

2,000 00

2,000 00

2,000 00

1,600 00

2,000 00

2,000 00

9 Nov.'17 14 Aug. '39

Mewburn, Thomas Chilton.

.

"Rill William II

Oct. 75

Inspector 13 Oct. '36

30 Mar. '42

28 Nov. '36

5 Apr. '65

Wolff, James Fitzgerald
June '64

Inspector
1 May 73

Uuly 74

* Since deceased.

81

^8-6



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886.

13. THE POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—INSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Deputy P. M. General

.

Chief Clerk, Secretary.

.

Chief Clerk, Accountant

Stewart, John Cunningham .
j

Ch'f Cl'k Sup't Money
Order & Sav'gs Bank

I Branches

Griffin, William Henry

White, Lieut.-Col. William.

.

Wicksteed, Major Horatio

Asprey

Ashworth, John

Smithson, William Henry.

Lesueur, William Dawson.

Everett, George Frederick.

Matheson, David.

Smith, Sidney, jr.

Weatherley, Major Henry
Stewart

Chief Clerk, Cashier...

Chief Clerk, Assistant

Accountant

Ch'f Cl'k, Ass't. Sec'y.

Ch'f Cl'k Ass't Sup't

Money Order Office.

.

Ch'f Cl'k Ass't Sup't
Savings Bank Office .

.

Ch'f Cl'k Sup't of Print-

ing & Supply Branch

.

1st class clerk.

1st class clerk.Bucke, Philip Eustace .

.

Walsh, Major John 1st class clerk

Plunkett, James jlst class clerk

Lindsay, Arthur

Barrett, William John

Hopkirk, Henry Glassford. .

.

Harrington, William Hague.

Fortier, Joseph Octave

Brophy, John Purcell

Benjamin, Emanuel Hyman.

Hargrave, George Henry

Griffin, Henry Wilmot

Graham, John

Sangster, Charles

Creighton, Frederic William.

Smith, John Rcse

Shaw, Richard John

1st class clerk. ,

1st class clerk ,

1st class clerk

1st class clerk

Proby. 1st class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

12 June '57

1 July '69

1 July '69

25 Jan. '68

1 July '69

1 July 73

1 July '80

1 Oct. '81

1 Oct, '81

1 June '82

1 July '57

1 July '73

1 Jan. '79

1 July '81

6 Oct. '81

1 Apr. '82

1 July '83

1 July '84

1 Apr. '85

1 July '69

1 July '70

1 July' 70

1 July '72

1 July '73

1 Nov.'74

1 Dec. '77

1 Jan. '79

1 Jan. '79

$ cts

3,200 00

2,800 00

2,800 00

2,800 00

2,350 00

2,350 00

2,250 00

2,200 00

2,000 00

1,950 00

1,800 00

1,800 00

1,700 00

1,600 00

1,550 00

1,550 00

1,500 00

1,450 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 CO

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

7 Aug.'12

6 Jan. '30

11 July '11

6 Nov.'39

4 Apr. '24

28 Feb. '34

19 Feb. '40

1 Mar. '30

25 Oct. '40

29 July '50

3 Apr. '32

13 Jan. '31

13 Nov.' 43

26 Aug. '36

17 Apr. '40

3 Apr. '44

26 Nov.' 51

19 Apr. '53

16 Nov.' 40

— Feb. '25

21 Nov.'32

8 Sept.'26

5 Aug. '40

12 Feb. '45

16 July '22

18 Sept. '38

31 Aug. '50

23 Sept. '20

Date of

First Ap.
pointment.

23 Apr.

1 Dec.

'31

'54

1 May '39

25 Jan.

27 Apr.

1 May

23 Feb.

'60

'56

8 June 75

23 Nov. '63

23 Jan. 70

3 Nov. '53

1 Jan. '56

21 Mar. '62

26 Mar. '61

1 July '64

15 June 74

20 June '68

30 Nov. 70

15 June 72

—Sept. '53

1 Jan. '57

26 May '57

1 Apr. '60

28 May '64

20 Mar. '68

1 Jan. '66

1 July '67

12 Apr. '66

82



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT. -INSIDE SERVICE.

Nan Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Blanchet, Ludger .2nd class clerk.

Hiffgias. Connell James B. . . 2nd class clerk.

Patrick, George Muir

Throop, Arthur William

Eagleson, William Henry .

.

Falconer, Charles

White, George Rivers ,

O'Leary, James Maims

Thorne, Stephen Sneden . .

.

McPherson, Donald

Fairweather, James Hedly.

.

Johnstone, Washington J . . . 1
2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk
j

1 July '83

2nd class clerk |
1 July '83

1 Jan. 79

1 July '80

1 Oct. '81

1 Oct. '81

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

McLennan, Andrew

Binks, George John

McCarthy, Denis Francis. .
.*.

Bell, Edward Bowen

Wall, James Francis

Kreps, William Henricus .

.

Pouliot, Louis Hermenegilde

D'Auteuil, Norbert George.

Marsan, Godfroi

Stanton, Edmund Patrick. .

.

O'Brien, William Daniel

Oliver, Robert John

Dunlevie, Michael Krumm .

.

Fortier, James George

Jones, Edmund Alexander D.

McCuaig, William Hague. .

.

Bonner, John Cid

Wall, Arthur William

Spencer, James Hervey

Beatty, John George ,

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

Proby. 2nd class clerk.

Proby. 2nd class clerk.

.

Proby. 2nd class clerk.

.

Proby. 2nd class clerk.

.

Proby. 2nd class clerk.

.

Proby. 2nd class clerk.

.

Proby. 2nd class clerk.

.

Proby. 2nd class clerk.

.

Proby. 2nd class clerk.

.

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

1 July '83

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 June' 85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

3rd class clerk I 1 July ' 7!

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

1 July 79

1 Jan. '80

1 Apr. '82

$ cts.j

1,400 00

1,350 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,100 00

1,100 00

1,100 00

1,100 00

1,100 00

1,100 00

1,100 00

1,100 00

1,100 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

950 00

950 00

850 00

24 Mar. '39

4 May '34

25 July '32

3 Dec. '51

12 Mar. '51

12 Apr. '54

3 Oct. '56

11 Apr. '37

31 Dec, '51

22 Mar. '42

27 July '59

20 Oct. '54

28 July '40

24 Feb. '48

18 Feb. '46

6 Feb. '44

11.Apr. '31

30 June '50

15 May '52

16 Apr. '43

10 Sept. '58

25 Mar. '54

17 Mar. '45

1 Aug. '51

14 Feb. '50

8 Nov. '18

22 May '48

17 July '52

30 Jan. '44

14 Sept. '48

3 Feb. '48

21 July '54

27 Apr. '67

26 June 'G7

2 July '66

20 Aug. '69

20 Oct. 70

19 Sept. 71

27 Oct. 71

26 Dec. 71

1 Jan. '68

6 Mar. 74

28 Apr. 76

25 Oct. 76

12 Mar. 74

13 Aug. 74

22 May '68

June 70

19 Feb. 70

4 Aug. 70

12 Feb. 75

4 Jan. 79

29 Dec. 79

14 Feb. 74

8 May '62

9 Oct. '67

28 June '68

1 Dec. 71

19 Sept, 71

2 Feb. 72

7 Dec. 71

12 June 72

19 June 72

1 Apr. '82

83
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49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

TOST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—INSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

$ cts.

Leahy, Patrick Thomas 3rd class clerk 1 July '82 850 00 25 July '52 22 Aug. 73

MacDonald, Duncan A. C. .

.

•3rd class clerk 1 July '82 850 00 10 June '31 23 Feb. 74

McDermid, Angus John 3rd class clerk 1 July '82 850 00 5 Nov. '33 25 Feb. 74

MacDonald, John Archibald. 3rd class clerk 1 July '82 850 00 30 Mar. '57 24 Aug. 74

Frechette, William Joseph .

.

3rd class clerk 1 July '82

1 July '82

1 Oct. 76

850 00

850 00

29 May '49

19 Sept. '23

16 Nov. '47

11 Sept. 74

1 Apr. '68

7 Oct. 75Morton, Henry Hawtry

Barrett, Donald Alexander .

.

3rd class clerk 800 00

3rd class clerk 1 Oct. 76 850 00 19 Sept. '49 18 Dec. 73

1 Jan. '83 800 00 9 Jan. '32 1 Oct. 76

1 Jan. 77 850 00 13 May '46

25 June '59

15 Apr. 73

8 Oct. 73McGrail, Thomas 3rd class clerk 8 Oct. 78 700 00

Knauf, Henry

Chamard, John

25 Apr. 79

1 July '80

850 00 30 May '46

20 May '56

15'Dec. 77

3rd class clerk 650 00 12 June ' 79

Bollard, Joseph Henry 3rd class clerk 1 Oct. '80 600 00 19 Jan. '58 11 Sept. 79

3rd class clerk 1 Oct. '80

1 Jan. '81

600 00

650 00

10 Nov. '57

11 Aug. '63

22 Apr. '54

11 Oct. 79

Taylor, Plunket Bourchier .

.

Burpee, William Henry

Taylor, Edward Ellegood F .

.

Chesley, Henry Neville P . .

.

3rd class clerk 17 Feb. '80

3rd class clerk 1 Feb. '81 600 00 1 Feb. '81

3rd class clerk 1 Aug. '81 600 00 19 Dec. '65 16 July '80

1 Jan. '813rd class clerk 1 Jan. '82 650 00 29 Oct. '63

1 July '82

23 Jan. '82

1 Apr. '82

650 00 17 Apr. '63

22 Sept. '60

12 Dec. '61

4 Jan. '82

Finn, Michael John .

.

3rd class clerk 550 00

650 00

3 Nov. '81

Little, William Carruthers .

.

3rd class clerk 23 Mar. 81

3rd class clerk 1 Apr. '82

3 Apr. '82

1 May '82

28 June '82

650 00

550 00

600 00

750 00

16 Sept. '62

17 May '60

29 Apr. '59

3 Oct. '57

23 Mar. '81

3rd class clerk 3 Apr. '82

1 May '82

27 Jan. '80

3rd class clerk

Lally, Conrad Whitley

Stewart. William Charles E.

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk 1 July '82 600 00 13 July '64 22 June. '81

Geddes, Alfred Forbes L 3rd class clerk 1 July '82 650 00 25 June '62 7 Sept. '81

Mailleue, George Alfred Duff. 3rd class clerk 1 July '82 600 00 23 Feb. '62 1 Oct. '81

Powell, Percy Brigham 3rd class clerk 1 July '82 550 00 12 July '63 1 Jan. '82

Jenkins, Frank Maurice S . .

.

3rd class clerk 1 July '82 550 00 6 July '59 23 Jan. '82

3rd class clerk 1 July '82 550 00 4 May '61 1 Mar. '82

84



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—INSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Oliver, Thomas Mackey
J

3rd class clerk..

.

Mercer, Francis Hubert F. . . 3rd class clerk..

.

Grout, Francis Eric Sewell. . . 3rd class clerk..

.

Henderson, Robert 3rd class clerk.

Anderson, George * Clayton .

.

Roy, Theophile

Moon, Francis Graham

Date
thereof.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

1 July '82

i

1 July '82

I

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

3 Nov.'82

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Wilson, Edward

Yisser, Thomas Egbert

Lampman, Archibald

Rochester, Francis King.. .

.

Beroard, Charles Pierre V.

.

McGillivray, Hugh

Hanley, William Robert.. , .

.

Wilson, William Thomas

Oliver, Joseph Lactance

Northrop, Bradbury Mills...

Taylor, Ernest Luringston . .

.

Lemieux, Francis Xavier

Rowan, Walter

Greenfield, John Richard M.

.

Daubney, Edwin

Mullin, Jeremiah

Learoyd, Edward Long

Campbell, Herbert Sheridan

Bunel, Edmond

Shaw, Henry Soden

Hutton, Craig Leonard

Wood, George Carleton

Ainsborough, Thomas

Hayes, Edwin Clay

Hayes, George Hobart

3rd class clerk 1 5 Jan

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk .

,

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

6 Nov.'83

6 Nov. '83

20 Mar. '83

23 Mar. '83

27 Mar. '83

25 Mar. '83

4 June '83

5 Aug.79

7 June '83

28 June '83

3rd class clerk 1 July '83

3rd class clerk..

3rd class clerk..

3rd class clerk .

,

3rd class clerk..

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

8 Sept. '83

21 Sept.'83

1 Oct. '83

1 Oct. '83

4 Oct. '83

1 Dec. '83

1 Jan. '84

1 Feb. '84

1 Mar. '84

22 Apr. '84

$ cts.

550 00

550 00

650 00

550 00

650 00

550 00

1,000 00

950 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

600 00

600 00

550 00

550 00

850 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

950 00

^650 00

600 00

600 00

450 00

550 00

450 00

860 00

450 00

850 00

500 00

500 00

450 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

1 Aug. '56

19 Aug. '67

11 June '66

17 Sept. '59

1 Apr. '58

6 June '63

8 Oct. '60

21 Nov. '53

31 Jan. '55

17 Nov.' 61

31 July '61

3 Aug. '45

9 Jan. '57

16 Dec. '58

4 Jan. '58

12 Mar. '49

19 Aug. '54

9 Sept. '64

8 Apr. '39

25 May '57

5 Nov. '51

27 Dec. '45

9 Jan. '65

19 Oct. '64

30 Apr. '62

30 July '54

12 June '55

24 Sept. '53

4 Nov.'24

— Aug. '48

7 Apr. '58

19 Nov. '63

24 Apr. '82

18 Apr. '82

1 June '82

1 June '82

1 June '82

28 June '82

3 Nov. '82

I Aug. '70

23 Mar. '83

16 Jan. '83

20 Mar. '83

23 Mar. '83

27 Mar. '83

14 May '83

19 Mar. '83

5 Aug. '79

7 June '83

28 June '83

2 Jan. '82

lOct. 74

Uuly '83

Uuly '83

Uuly '83

8 Sept. '83

1 Oct. '83

24 Sept. '83

II Nov. 72

6 Nov. '83

12 Mar. 74

26 Jan. '83

9 Feb. '84

15 Apr. '84

85



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1836

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—INSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Breuot, Honore Alexandre . .

.

Alford, William

Curtis, Nathan "William

Pope, Charles

Pelton, James Edward

Breadner, Robert Walker. .

.

Conroy, Joseph Matthew. .

.

Robertson, Charles Robert..

Stevenson, James S

Weldon, Edward Dixon

Prendergast, Jeremie

Present Rank.

Merrick, Kathleen

Traversy, Isidore

Robinson, Lucy

Regan, Patrick

Plunkett, George Lynn

Bennett, Maurice ,

Dodd, John

Graham, Samuel ,

Courtney, Denis

Short, Samuel ,

Greenfield, Samuel

Ferguson, William

Clark, Charles Allnactt

Cooch, William

Galvin, Michael

Hartnedy, Timothy

Caffarati, Thomas Angelo.

.

Elbourne, George

Barrett, James.

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

Proby. 3rd class clerk

.

Proby. 3rd class clerk.

,

Proby. 3rd class clerk.

Proby. 3rd class clerk.

Proby. 3rd class clerk.

Proby. 3rd class clerk

.

Proby. 3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

Proby. 3rd class clerk.

Proby. 3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

Messenger

Messenger

Messenger

Messenger

Messenger

Packer and Sorter

Packer and Sorter

Packer and Sorter

Packer and Sorter

Packer and Sorter.. .

.

Packer and Sorter

Packer and Sorter

Packer and Sorter.. .

.

Packer and Sorter.. .

.

Packer and Sorter.. .

.

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

2 May '84

5 May '84

8 May '84

30 May '84

11 Sept. '84

13 Sept. '84

30 Sept. '84

1 Oct. '84

19 Oct. '84

20 Oct. '84

1 Jan. '85

1 Apr. '85

1 Apr. '85

1 May '85

Uune'85

17 June '85

1 July '85

15 June '63

25 Apr. 79

22 June '81

23 May '82

21 Oct. '84

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

_L_
86

$ cts,

550 00

500 00

1,000 00

860 00

400 00

450 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

450 00

400 00

850 00

400 00

400 00

800 00

500 00

500 00

480 00

455 00

300 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

485 00

470 00

470 00

455 00

455 00

440 00

425 00

13 June '56

8 Jan. '50

4 Mar. '34

24 Mar. '58

24 Feb. '65

13 Jan. '65

12 Nov. '63

17 Apr. '61

15 Nov. '63

15 July '63

7 Sept. '64

4 Feb. '64

6 Oct. '61

26Sept.'54

24 Jan. '61

21 Oct. '65

24 Dec. '57

'39

16 Oct. '26

'47

— Mar..' 45

21 Mar. '67

14 Mar. '23

27 Mar. '43

18 June '35

30 May '40

13 May '45

1 Nov. '30

9 Oct. '41

7 Jan. '44

31 Aug. '49

'60

15 Feb. '34

5 May '84

29 Jan. '57

17 Oct. '73

8 Sept. '84

13 Sept. '84

30 Sept. '84

1 Oct. '84

13 Oct. '84

20 Oct. '84

1 Jan. '85

lApr. '85

1 Apr. '85

1 May '74

1 June '85

17 June '85

4 Aug. '73

'60

27 Jan. '76

22 June '81

23 May '82

21 Oct. '84

Uuly '60

15 Oct. '75

Uuly '83

5 Aug. '72

1 Oct. '74

28 Dec. '70

21 Dec. '76

1 Sept. '77

Uuly '78

1 Apr. '81



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-1NSIDE SERVICE.

Name.
Date

Present Rank. thereof.

Morse, Alfred

Qarabut, Daniel

Elliott, James Henry . .

.

Laurie, John Burnet

Marier, Joseph

BeU, William

Wheatley, Ambrose

Goulden, Daniel Henry

Bradley, John

Mahon, Martin Joseph.

Bell, John

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

Packer

and Sorter

and Sorter

and porter

and Sorter

and Sorter

and Sorter

and Sorter

and Sorter

and Sorter

and Sorter

and Sorter

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

17 June '83

28 June '83

21 Sept. '83

26 Sept. '83

24 Mar. '84

1 Apr. '84

21 Oct. '84

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

425 00

425 00

425 00

360 00

470 00

360 00

330 00

330 00

330 00

330 00

500 00

Date of

Birth.

27 Oct. '40

27 Oct. '49

14 May '43

19 May '33

14 Feb. '50

28 July '68

17 Aug. '61

15 Aug. '60

27 May '56

16 Aug. '59

25 Apr. '46

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

1 May '81

10 July '76

16 July '72

2 July '82

1 Jan. '80

28 June '83

21 Sept.' 83

24 Sept. '83

10 Mar. '84

10 Mar. '84

19 June '72

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

MxVrine Mail Service.

Bowes, William Flavelle

Green, Samuel Turner

Ferguson, James

O'Hara, James

Tilstone, Charles Harry E. .

.

Mickleburgh, Francis Hunt.

.

Bent, Frank Pierce

1st el. Marine Mail C'k 14 Apr. '66

lstcl. Marine Mail C'k 1 Aug. '66

1st cl. Marine Mail C'k 1 Apr. '66

1st cl. Marine Mail C'k 1 May '70

1st cl. Marine Mail C'k 1 Oct. '73

1st cl. Marine Mail C'k 1 Nov. '74

1st cl. Marine Mail C'k! 14 Mar. '82

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

23 May '36

19 Apr. '18
j

Apr. '34
|

I

26 Apr. '36

10 Mar. '30

30 Sept. '42

7 May '56

16 Mar. '56

13 Apr. '60

26 Mar. '61

8 June '65

20 May '71

17 Sept. '70

7 June '72

Chief Inspector's Office

Dewe, John Chief Inspector,

Maingy, Lefevre Anstruther. 1st class clerk ..

25 May '70 |
2,800 00

2
1
1,250 00

i

5 July '21

17 Nov. '47

5 July '43

15 Nov. '75

Toronto D iv ision .

Sweetman, Matthew

Bumham, George Albert

Griffith, William Edward .

.

Gurnett, George Thomas B

.

Inspector

Assistant Inspector .

.

1st class clerk

2nd class clerk

13 June '57

6 July '80

1 Oct. '74

1 July '79

2,600 00

1,450 00

1,400 00

1,170 00

17 Oct. '31 ! July
'52

18 Apr. '41

20 Nov. '36

27 Oct. '42

30 July '61

11 Jan. '62

18 Oct. '73

87



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1885

TOST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Toronto Division—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Ashdown, William C

Tyner, Frederick

Bums, George Ferrier

Shaw, George Alexander

Birchall, Thomas Shivers

Byrne, Lawrence Vincent. .

.

Noble, William

Egan, John

Thompson, Andrew

Dundas, James

Costello, Peter John

Skelly, Dennis Joseph

KcLeod, John Edmond

Findlay, Alexander

Bell, Charles Thomas ,

Matthews, George

Higgins, Frank O'Connor

Beatty , Alexander

Greaves, Walter 2nd class clerk.

Henry, John 2nd class clerk

Crocker, William 2nd class clerk

Smallpiece, Henry William. . 3rd class clerk.

Sweetman, George Booker. . . 3rd class clerk,

McKillop, John Messenger

Harper, James Frederick. . . . Mail Transfer Agent .

.

Scholes, Adam Mail Transfer Agent. .

.

Winstanley, Charles James H Prob. Chf Ry. Mail C'k

Saulter, Joseph 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

McCormick, Thomas 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

Bennett, John Othniel 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

Beatty, William
J

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st. class Ry. Mail Clerk

Xst class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry . Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry . Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 May '81

1 Api:. '82

1 June '82

21 May 79

19 Apr. '84

4 J an. '82

9 Aug. '84

5 June '85

1 July '84

1 Oct. '73

1 Oct. '73

1 Mar. '74

1 May '75

1 Sept.' 79

1 Sept. 79

1 Sept.79

1 Oct. 79

1 Oct. 79

1 July '84

1 Jan. 73

1 Jan. 73

1 July 74

1 Dec. 74

1 Apr. 76

1 Oct. 77

1 July 79

1 July 79

9 Oct. 79

1 Jan. 78

1 Nov.'80

1 Jan. '81

$ cts.

1,090 00

1,050 00

1,050 00

800 00

440 00

490 00

400 00

430 00

1,000 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

10 Dec. '51

13 Jan .
'54

15 June '53

6 Feb. '27

13 Mar. '63

28 Aug. '44

31 July '57

17 Nov. '57

29 Apr. '47

22 May '32

28 May '23

14 May '31

14 Dec. '39

11 Nov.' 23

29 Oct. '37

4 Aug. '35

24 June '43

27 Oct. '33

June '46

3 Jan. '52

20 Aug.'35

14 Aug. '30

25 Aug.' 45

9 July '39

11 Aug.'50

3 June '54

10 Aug.' 42

Oct. '42

17 June '45

24 Aug. '58

13 Oct. '57

19 May 79

13 Feb. 73

21 June 72

21 May 79

7 Apr. '84

4 Jan. '82

9 Aug. '84

15 Sept. '80

12Nov.'67

16 Aug. '58

4 Sept. '55

24 June '64

19 Mar. '60

12 Apr. '66

5 June '6Q

5 June '66

2 May '67

22 Jan. '68

12 Oct. 71

7 Jan. 71

8 Aug. '68

Uuly 72

25 Nov. 72

5 Jan. 74

4 Mar. 75

lApr. 76

30 Oct. 76

2 June 79

1 Jan. 76

1 Oct. 78

23 Dec. 78

88



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Toronto Division—Continued

.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Boyle, Edwin Osmund
'

Piatt, William Meredith !

Elliott, Nelson Frame

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Prob. 2nd cl. Ry. M.C'k

Prob.2ndcl. Ry. M.C'k

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

~
1

j

1 Oct. '81

1 Sept.' 81

1 Feb. '82

1 Feb. '82

1 Aug. '82

1 July '83

1 June '81

1 Sept. '81

lDec. '72

1 July '84

1 July '85

10 Feb. '81

26 June '82

26 June '82

30 June '82

10 July '82

25 May '83

14 June '83

15 Feb. '84

1 Aug. '84

6 Sept.' 8

4

1 Jan. '85

: 1 Feb. '85

$ cts

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

640 00

640 00

720 00

720 00

800 00

600 00

600 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

I

12 May '60
|

8 Aug. '48

14 Jan. '58

12 Nov.' 38

31 Dec. '57

18 Sept. '45

28 Sept.' 53

21 Oct. '47

1 Aug. '40

28 July '40

23 Sept. '50

28 Sept. '53

24 Mar. '52

7 Sept.' 60

13 Mar.' 62

27 Dec. '54

29 Oct. '62

9 Feb. '42

20 Oct. '60

15 Feb. '59

2 June '56

20 May '61

10 Apr. '61

22 Aug. '79

1 Sept. '79

13 Jan. '80

13 Jan. '80

Smith, William Burton !

13 July '80

20 Dec. '80

29 Apr. '79

Griffin, Gilbert Wakefield. .

.

5 Aug. '78

17 Sept. '70

10 July '82

O'Loane, John Thomas

Coleman, Charles

30 Apr. '82

10 Feb. '81

26 June '82

Harris, George Michael

Clarke, Francis Carlisle

26 June '72

15 July '81

10 July '82

Little, William John
25 May '83

2 Oct. '78

Freel, Edwin Jerome

Ramsey, William James

Richardson, William

Mollard, John Thomas

Cheyne, Andrew Joseph

15 Feb. '84

29 July '84

6 Sept. '84

Uan. '85

1 Feb. '85

London Division. t

\

Barker, Robert William

Fisher, Charles Edward

. Inspector

. Assistant Inspector. .

.

. 1st class clerk

l

. 25 May 70

. 1 June '81

.
j

1 Nov. '76

. 1 July '84

. 1 July '79

2,400 00

1,450 00

1,300 00

950 00

800 0C

13 Jan. '39

! 13 Apr. '49

I

12 Jan. '28

1 22 Dec. '48

18 Oct. '54

21 Nov. '57

10 Nov. '08

Uuly '60

Blair, William

Mercer, Robert Graham

7 June '72

13 Jan. '72

_j



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

London Division— Continued.

N:i

Hampton, George

Matthews, Frederick William

Johnson, Joseph

Present Rank.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

Date
thereof.

McNeil, Robert 'Messenger.

Purdon, Percy

Rorisou, Basil Dunbar D. . .

.

Wynn, John

McWhmney, Arthur Gordon.

Matthews. William

Wright. Joshua Garrard

Cousins, Hindi

Essex. Theodore James.

Mitchell, William

Yorick, John

Edgar, William

O'Meara, Timothy James.

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

(

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Wright, Richard Pennefatherj2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Flyim, John

Mitchell, John

Gemmill, Francis Alexander.

McLaren, James William

Doyle, James Joseph

Tye, William Daniel

Cousins, Walter

Rogers, Edward O'Brien

Elliott, James Lewis Gordon

.

Scanlan, John Francis

Cleary, William Ambrose.. .

.

Farrow, John Moses

Coulter, Archibald F

McLean. Duncan John

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class By. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 Apr.

1 Apr.

11 Apr.

15 Feb.

1 July

1 July

1 July

1 Oct.

1 Oct.

lOct.

INov.

1 May

1 July

1 July

1 July

1 Aug.

1 Apr.

1 Apr.

1 Feb.

1 J une

27 Mar.

1 Jan.

1 July

1 Aug.

INov.

2 June

1 July

1 Jan.

1 July

1 July

1 July

'SO

'82

'83

'80

'57

'57

'57

65

'68

'GO

73

75

'84
!

'84

'8 4

74

70

77

77

78

'80

'80

'81

'SI

'82

'So

'84

'84

'84

'84

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

800 00

720 00

480 00

490 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

800 00-

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

640 00

720 00

640 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

17 Nov. '46

11 Oct. '57

1 Apr. '54

15 Mar. '46

6 Sept. '27

19 July '34

5 Oct. '31

22 Dec. '37

25 Sept.' 37

16 May '36

8 Feb. '37

18 Jan. '41

27 Dec. '51

14 May '48

7 May '47

17 July '48

16 May '54

4 June '51

10 Apr. '32

1 Apr. '46

4 Nov. '53

13 June '52

5 Oct. '59

18 Apr. '57

29 Nov.'59

Sept. '42

17 Sept.' 49

4 Mar. '47

2 Dec. '61

6 Jan. '60

16Auff.'63

1 Nov. 77

1 Aug. 75

16 Jan. '83

15 Feb, '80

15 Mar. '54

11 Nov. ? 56

1 Nov. '54

23 Dec. '56

15 Oct. '56

18 May '57

10 July '66

22 Sept. '65

24 Oct. '70

29 Feb. 72

13 Jan. 72

7 Apr. 70

21 Mar. 73

29 Dec. 73

21 Sept. 74

6 May 74

28 Jan. 73

16 Aug. 77

29 Oct. 77

10 July 79

20 Oct. 79

12 June '80

4 June 78

12 Jan. '82

1 June ,'81

23 Mar. '83

23 Mar. '83

90



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

London Division—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Dawson, Joseph

Elliott, Herbert

Arland, William Henry.. .

.

Casgrain, Joseph Philip

Puxdon, William

McMillan, William Jenniin;

Northwood, Alexander

Sinclair, Coll McLean

Young. George William. .

.

McNeal, William Lewis..

.

Corcoran, John

2nd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry

3rd class Ry

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

, Mail Clerk

1 July '84

1 Jan. '81

6 May '82

19 May '82

23 Mar. '83

1 Oct. '83

5 Nov. '83

24 Nov. '83

24 Nov.'83

21 Dec. '83

22 Apr. '84

$ cts.

600 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

14 Jan. '64

Apr. '59

14 Feb. '62

16 Mar. '61

3 Feb. '65

31 May '48

25 Nov. '56

13 Mar. '59

24 Mar. '59

20 Oct. '63

17 Mar. '59

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

25 June '82

1 Jan. '81

21 Apr. '82

8 Mar. '82

23 Mar. '83

1 Oct. '83

5 Nov. '83

24 Nov. '83

24 Nov. '83

21 Dec. '83

22 Apr. '84

Barbie Division.

Spry, Daniel

Henderson, James.

.

Forsyth, John

Mason, George John.

Ward, James

Inspector

Asst. Inspector.

1st class clerk..

2nd class clerk .

3rd class clerk .

.

Powell, John 1
3rd class clerk.

Boys, Thomas Ross

Harris, John

McCarthy, Alexander.

.

Hynes, Patrick

Kelly, MathewEyre...

Leslie, John Samuel. .

.

Murray, Robert

O' Connor, James

Skelly, Edward Joseph.

Martin, Thomas

Mason, Thomas

Proby. 3rd class clerk.

.

Messenger

Chief Ry. Mail Clerk. .

.

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

26 May '76 2,200 00 29 Nov. '35 19 Apr. '54

14 Dec. '77 1,250 00 14 Jan. '42 16 Dec. '71

1 July '76 1,200 00 26 Mar. '36 25 Mar. '58

1 Sept. '76 1,200 00 20 Sept.'30 lFeb. '55

1 July '82 560 00 20 Aug. '44 17 Apr. '80

1 July '82 520 00 10 Sept. '45 8 Apr. '82

1 July '85 400 00 17 Mar. '64 6 Apr. '85

13 Nov. '79 490 00 14 Apr. '25 13 Nov. '79

1 July '76 1,500 00 16 Dec. '26 5 July '52

1 Nov. '79 960 00 1 May '30 18 May '64

1 Jan. '73 800 00 10 May '42 16 Jan. 71

1 Aug. '74 800 00 18 July '51 — Oct. '71

1 Jan. '75 800 00 22 Sept. '40 8 July 73

1 Feb. '81 720 00 24 Dec. '42 11 Jan. 79

1 Feb. '81 720 00 6 Jan. '54 11 Jan. 79

1 Mar. '81 720 00 26 Sept. '41 11 Jan. 79

1 Aug. '81 720 00 28 Sept. '54 28 June 79

91



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 18SG

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Baerie Division—Continued.

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Bennett, John Henry

Dunn, Thomas

Moloney, Michael

Stokes, William

Cunningham, James David

,

Fierson, Charles

McDonald, Lowther P. M.

.

Golden, John Joseph

Atkins, John James

Duffy, Patrick Joseph

Leadley, William

Swan, William Henry

2nd class Ry.

2nd class Ry.

2nd class Ry.

2nd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

1 Aug.

1 Nov.

1 Aug.

1 July

10 Dec.

23 May

26 June

26 June

30 June

24 Nov.

24 Nov.

1 Dec.

1 Dec.

$ cts.

720 00

640 00

640 00

640 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

52£ 00

480 00

560 00

480 00

480 00

1 June '57

14 Aug. '43

21 Oct. '57

7 June ' 44

1 Oct. '56

4 May '62

29 Mar. '54

26 Oct. '59

15 Nov. '55

29 Dec. '52

26 May '60

31 May '60

7 Feb. '58

Kingston Division.

Griffin, Gilbert Elliott

Jones, Allan

Meagher, Jeremiah

Macarow, Philip Henry

Hopkirk, John Ewart

Strange, James Campbell. .

.

Scobell, Frederick
,

Hayland, John

Ketcheson, Henry Freeman.

Walker, David James, jr. .

.

Doller, Willet Jacob

Inspector

Assistant Inspector ....

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

3rd class clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 July

14 Aug.

1 July

1 Nov.

1 July

1 Oct.

24 Nov.

1 Dec.

31 Dec.

1 Feb.

'80 2,400 00

'79 1,250 00

74 1,200 00

'81 1,040 00

'82 1,150 00

'82 560 00

'81 720 00

81 520 00

84 480 00

84 480 00

'85 480 00

20 Aug. '20

5 Aug. '47

14 Feb. '14

7 Jan. '58

26 Nov. '50

24 Sept. '62

10 June '48

28 Dec. '30

25 Oct. '62

25 Apr. '62

27 June '65

Ottawa Division.

French, Thomas Patrick.

Bolduc, Archelas

Inspector i 15 Sept. '73

Assistant Inspector. . . .
j

1 Jan. '84

I

y2

2,400 00

1,250 00

17 Sept. '55

8 Mar. '79



9 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OtPTSJDE SERVICE.

Ottawa Division—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Sueur, Charles Philip list class clerk
|

1 Jan.

ioloney, Daniel 1
2nd class clerk L July

'Connor, John Francis

race, David Arthur...

Proby. 2nd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

1 July

21 July

1 Oct.hornpson, James Donald ... 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

ordon, Edward 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk! 1 Apr

urnham, William Frederick

orrell, George Taylor

eden, Robert

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk; 23 Jan. '82

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

hevrier, Joseph Alphonse . . 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

,egendre, Jean Baptiste Z...12nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

.eclair, Adolphus 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

lontgomery, Robert J2nd class Ry. Mail-Clerk

'urran, Charles '2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

laingy, Philip Anstruther

Jasgrain, Louis Charles A.

Mllessie, Joseph Bennett .

.

3lumb, Charles

jmith, Frederick Howard..

tfacdonald, Henry

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry . Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 Mar.

1 July

1 Mar.

1 July

23 Jan.

1 Mar.

1 Oct.

1 June

1 Apr.

1 July

1 July

billies, Hector Patterson.

Houston, Stewait

Griffith, John

Class, William Henry...

.

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 2 June

Probationary 2nd class

Ry. Mail Clerk
|

1 Oct,

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 6 Nov.

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Probationary 3rd class

Ry. Mail Clerk

84

'84

'85

'84

'66

76

2

'82

'84

79

'80

'82

'82

'81

'83

'84

'84

'84

'84

Eagleson, John

Nevins, John James

Lally, John Joseph..

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Cobum, Alexander Hugh J. . 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Hetherington, Jason E Probationary 3rd class

Ry. Mail Clerk

15 Feb.

30 Apr.

1 Dec.

4 Dec.

1 Jan.

1 Jan.

1 Jan.

2 June

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

$ cts.

1,300 00

950 00

900 00

400 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

760 00

750 00

640 00

640 00

600 00

600 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

8 Dec. '47

22 Nov. '41

30 June '54

26 Aug. '60

29 Aug. '33

12 Aug. '33

28 July '44

24 Oct. '44

14 May '49

9 Aug. '40

2 Dec. '38

2 Feb. '40

24 May '54

18 Apr. '48

18 June '49

1 May '51

15 Aug. '51

9 Sept.'55

2 Dec. '59

30 Oct. '57

24 Feb. '56

2 Mar. '63

8 July '29

5 Nov.' 59

12 May '60

6 Mar. '60

8 May '63

17 Nov.' 62

29 Jan. '59

1 Mar. '74

28 Mar. '71

24 Nov. 74

21 July '84

28 Jan. '57

5 June '66

17 Dec. '66

27 Dec. 73

5 Jan. '71

12 Feb. '79

23 Apr. '78

9 Mar. 77

9 Feb. '80

22 Aug. 79

25 Oct. 71

14 Aug. 74

1 Sept. 78

23 May '82

2 June '84

1 Oct. '84

25 Jan. '53

10 Jan. '84

22 Apr. '84

9 Apr. '84

4 Dec. '84

1 Jan. '85

1 Jan. '85

1 Jan. '85

2 June '85

93



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT. -OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Belleville Post Office.

Name

Meacham, James Hubbard

Reid, James 4. .

.

Duncan, Thomas

Gillen, Alfred

Lazier, Samuel Wilmot .

.

"Walker, William Blaind

.

Newbery, Isabella Mary..

Embury, William James

.

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Postmaster

Assistant Postmaster. .

.

Probationary 2nd class

clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

30 June '82

30 June '82

1 Jan. '85

'82

23 June '84

1 July '84

8 Sept,' 8

4

1 Dec. '84

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

$ cts.

1,400 00
;
18 Nov. '07

4 May '25

28 Mar. '61

10 May '59

25 Nov.' 62

28 June '63

14 Nov.'54

6 Apr. '56

1

,100 00

900 00

520 00

440 00

440 00

400 00

400 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

30 June '82

30 June '82

30 June '82

28 June '82

23 Nov. '83

15 Jan. 84

8 Sept. '84

25 Oct. '82

Hamilton Post Office.

Postmaster

Assistant Postmaster.

.

1st class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

Case, Horatio Nelson . .

.

Colbeck, Henry

Eager, Henry Abram . .

.

Burns, Thomas

Bull, George Harcourt
|

Ross, George 2nd class clerk

Crisp, Alfred Charles [3rd class clerk

Mathews, John Sutherland. . J3rd class clerk

Dunnett, Edward Howard. . . 3rd class clerk

Barber, Benjamin Franklin. . 13rd class clerk

Ecclestone, William Robert. . 3rd class clerk

Dinsse, Henry 3rd class clerk ,.

Smith, William 3rd class clerk

O'Donnell, Patrick Joseph.. . 3rd class clerk ,

Fitzgerald, Robert Michael . . 3rd class clerk

Flynn, William 3rd class clerk

Campbell, Donald Denoon . . . 3rd class clerk

Waterman, Walter Lincoln. . 3rd class clerk

Hill, Harry Frederic 3rd class clerk

Webber, John Albert 3rd class clerk

17 Nov.

1 Nov.

1 Mar.

1 July

1 Jan.

1 Jan.

1 July

1 July

1 July

1 July

'82

'82

'82

'82

'82

'82

'82

'82

'82

'82

2,400 00

1,800 00

1,300 00

1,200 00

900 00

900 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

680 00

680 00

680 00

680 00

600 00

600 00

560 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

11 Nov.'ll

24 Oct. '24

1 Apr. '32

21 Aug. '40

8 May '51

21 Feb. '53

17 Jan. '55

3 Aug. '51

y Jan.

6 Sept.

00

'43

7 Dec. '56

4 Nov. '35

31 Jan. '59

19 Mar. '35

27 Aug. '57

3 June '56

6 Nov. '57

13 July •'62

11 Aug. '62

10 Dec. '62

17 Nov. '74

1 Sept. '54

1 Jan. '54

12 Mar. '64

1 Feb. '71

14 June '75

17 Mar. '73

12 June '74

22 July '74

9 Oct. '74

10 May '75

10 Oct. '75

11 Nov. '76

7 May '77

3 May '79

13 May '79

22 June '80

24 Jan. '81

12 Apr. '81

24 Oct. '81

94



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 4 8.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Hamilton Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Filgiano, Henry Edward J

Judd, Charles

Beatty, Oliver

Morden, Josepli Ralph . .

.

Mackay, Jane Emily Blanche

MeCulloch, John Oliver

Harron, Robert James

Murphy, John

Austin, Thomas Bernard S.

.

Gore, John

Fearnside, John Henry

Flooks, William George

Coates, Henry Mansfield....! Letter Carrier

Fielding, Charles Walter W. Letter Carrier

Wilson, Joseph Letter Carrier

Gardner, John L

Stratton, Robert

Angus, William

Baillie, John Ezekiel Smith.. Letter Carrier..

Rennie, William Letter Carrier.

.

Anstey, Charles ] Letter Carrier.

.

Letter Carrier .

.

Letter Carrier..

Letter Carrier.,

Letter Carrier.

,

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk 21 Sept. '83

3rd class clerk 23 Jai

3rd class clerk.
.' 15 Feb. '84

3rd class clerk 23 Dec. '84

3rd class clerk 10 Mar. '85

3rd class clerk 10 Mar. '84

Supt. Letter Carrier. ... 1 Apr. '75

Letter Carrier 10 May ' 75

Letter Carrier 10 May 75

Letter Carrier 10 May '75

Letter Carrier 10 May '75

20 Oct. '75

3 Nov. '75

14Nov. '76

17 Jan. '78

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Dowrie, David Cook

Loney, Thomas Henry.

Griffin, Andrew

Dawe, William

James, William Henry.

Frank, Emil

North, John Webster...

Stickle, Charles Harris

,

Springate, George

Dawson, Meredith

4 July '78

20 Jan. '80

12 Mar. '80

20 Mar. '80

3 Feb. '81

24 Aug. '81

31 Aug. '81

4 May '82

28 June '82

28 June '82

28 June '82

21 Sept.'83

26 Sept.'83

4 Dec. '83

4 Dec. '83

Date of

Birth.

$ cts.

520 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

460 00

470 00

470 00

430 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

7 June '61

5 Dec. '48

3 Mar. '67

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

27 Mar. '82

19 Sept. '83

6 Nov. '83

30 Oct. '62
I 11 Feb. '84

5 Sept.' 65

15 Dec. '67

9 Dec. '65

30 Nov. '58

15 Nov. '55

30 Nov. '32

18 Aug. '58

13 Sept.' 32

25 Oct. '22

16 Oct. '56

11 Mar. '49

24 Dec. '30

25 Oct. '32

20 Sept.' 51

12 June '59

11 Dec. '36

11 Apr. '61

25 Oct. '56

29 May '56

26 Feb. '45

7 Apr. '63

5 Oct. '55

28 July '59

14 Sept.' 53

25 June '60

20 June '63

30 Aug. '37

I

23 Dec. '84

10 Mar. '85

10 Mar. '85

10 May '75

10 May '75

10 May '75

10 May '75

10 May '75

20 Oct. '75

3 Nov. '75

14 Nov. '76

17 Jan. '78

4 July '78

20 Jan. '80

12 Mar. '80

20 Mar. '80

3 Feb. '81

24 Aug. '81

31 Aug. '81

4 May '82

28 June '82

28 June '82

28 June '82

21 Sept. '83

26 Sept. '83

29 Nov. '83

4 Dec. '83

95



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Hamilton Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

7 Jan. '84

10 Mar. '84

1 Oct. 75

$ cts.

390 00

390 00

540 00

21 Aug. '44

19 Nov. '52

15 Aug. '41

31 Dec. '83

Mundy, Willian Antipas

"Walsh David

4 Mar. '84

Messenger 1 Oct. '75

Kingston Post Office.

Shannon, James

Shannon, William

Kelly, John

Burns, Robert Taylor. .

Strachan, John George.

Smyth, William Stuart.

McBride, James

Renton, John Lockhart.

Pense, James Phillips..

Voigt, Frederick Charles

McDonald, Frank

D'Arcy, Robert Jamss

Moore, Thomas

Miller, Albert Henry

Collins, John

Lewers, Robert

O'Reilly, William James. .

.

Howland, Patrick Joseph. .

.

Dunbar, Henry

Postmaster

Assistant Postmaster. .

.

1st class clerk

2nd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk ,

3rd class clerk ,

3rd class clerk ,

3rd class clerk ,

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk ,

3rd class clerk ,

3rd class clerk ,

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier ,

Letter Carrier ,

Messenger

6 Jan. '80

21 Jan. '70

1 Mar. '82

1 July '73

23 Dec. '78

4 Sept '80

'82

'82

1 Jan. '80

'82

— Dec. '83

11 Apr. '75

12 Feb. '85

28 Dec. '78

1 Jan. '80

28 June '82

1 Dec. '84

1 Dec. '84

18 Feb. '71

1,800 00

1,400 00

1,300 00

1,200 00

800 00

800 00

600 00

560 00

680 00

520 00

800 00

440 00

400 00

510 00

470 00

390 00

360 00

360 00

540 00

2 June '29

23 Feb. '24

29 Apr. '29

27 Nov. '36

13 Nov. '32

11 June '54

23 May '51

31 Oct. '56

31 Dec. '50

18 Apr. '60

17 Apr. '36

16 May '62

6 Dec. '56

12 Sept.'51

8 Dec. '47

26 Feb. '47

24 Aug. '65

18 Oct. '65

15 Apr. '21

6 Jan. '80

14 Sept. '59

17 June '54

5 Dec. '63

6 Feb. '73

11 Aug. '71

26 Dec. '78

12 Nov. '79

20 Sept. 75

16 Dec. '81

27 Mar. 75

19 Apr. '84

12 Feb. '85

28 Dec. 78

24 Mar. 79

28 June '82

1 Dec. '84

1 Dec. '84

18 Feb. 71

London Post Office.

Dawson, Richard Joseph C. .

.

Sharman, John Denis

Dalton, Henry Dixon

Hunter, John

Postmaster ,

Assistant Postmaster.

.

1st class clerk

2nd class clerk

1 June '81

1 June '81

1 Mar. '82

1 July 79

2,200 00

1,600 00

1,300 00

1,170 00

3 Oct. '35

29 Dec, '32

28 Apr. '43

19 Oct. '25

13 July '52

1 Feb. '59

5 Aug. '61

8 Aua. '66

m



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

London Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Matthews, Richard Fitzgerald

Hevey, Christopher

Ward, John

Ashton, Alfred Edwin

Shanly, Charles James N

McNeil, Neil

Lawless, Lawrence

Wheeler, Frederick Charles.

.

Nicholls, William

Skinner, William Henry. ... 3rd class clerk

Gunn, Robert Angus 3rd class clerk

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

cts

O'Meara, John

Murray, James Patrick. .

.

Carrother, Arthur

Devinney, Francis Josepl

Percival, James Henry. .

,

Haystead, Martin

Kennedy, John

Denahy, John

Beattie, John Nasmyth.

.

Hilton, George

Screaton, John Alexander. .

.

Evans, Goodison

Short, William Stephen..

.

Ward, Joseph

Birmingham, Frederick W
Burns, William Patrick. .

.

Brennan, Thomas

Phillips, Percy

Bartlett, Thomas William. .

.

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

Prob. 3rd class clerk...

Supt. Letter Carrier. . .

.

1 July 79

'82

1 July 79

1 July 79

'82

1 Apr. '82

'82

'82

'82

'82

'82

'82

26 Sept. '83

1 Jan. '84

27 Sept.'84

1 July '85

2 Oct. '84

1,170 00

Date of

Birth.

1 Nov. '32

900 00 I 29 Sept. '55

Letter Carrier 19 Apr. 76 I

Letter Carrier |
19 Apr. 76 I

Letter Carrier 19 Apr. 76

Letter Carrier.

.

Letter Carrier.

.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier..

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

,

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier

.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Wilson, John, Jr Letter Carrier

48-7

19 Apr. 76

6 Mar. 77

1 Sept.77

1 Feb. '80

3 Feb. '80

1 Feb. '81

12 May '81

26 June '82

26 June '82

26 June '82

26 June '82

800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

600 00

520 00

600 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

440 00

440 00

400 00

400 00

670 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

500 00

470 00

430 00

420 00

390 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

7 Oct. '54

15 Dec. '38

20 Dec. '19

20 Oct. '49

4 Sept.' 47

7 Sept. '55

4 Mar. '52

4 Nov.' 60

30 Mar. '60

22 Dec. '64

11 May '66

17 Apr. '59

24 Oct. '59

14 Mar. '63

9 Aug. '53

26 Dec. '66

26 Feb. '80

7 June 72.

3 June 74

13 Jan. 72

I Apr. 78

26 May 79

11 May '81

13 June 79

8 Aug. '81

6 Feb. '82

6 Feb. '83

26 Sept. '83

II Apr. '82

1 Sept. '84

Uuly '85

3 Feb. '80

25 Dec. '49 19 Apr. 76

24 June '29
|
19 Apr. 76

4 Jan. '36 19 Apr. 76

21 Oct. '55 19 Apr. 76

20 Sept; '49 6 Mar. 77

12 July '53

20 Aug. '46

18 Nov. '58

9 Jan. '56

6 Dec. '54

23 Nov. '62

390 00 I 17 Apr. '57

390 00 19 Aug. '51

390 00 6 May '54

1 Sept. 77

1 Feb. '80

3 Feb. '80

1 Feb.
;81

12 May '81

26 June '82

26 June '82

26 June '82

26 June '82

97



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4S.) A. 188G

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

London Post Office—Continued.

Name.

Phair, Thomas

Pontey, Francis

Walsh, Robert

Maitland, Malcolm John. . .

.

Cushing, John

Southcott, William Frederick

Cushing, James Joseph

Nicholson, James

Kern, John Wesley

Wright, Richard

O'Meara, Martin

Gouin, James Alfred

Hawken, Frank

French, Fleming

Bates, Edward Bruce

McDermott, Emmett S

O'Connor, Edward John ....

Shaw, Charles

Pennock, William Henry. . .

.

Poston, James Glover

Gordon, Daniel Baillie

Mercer, William Otterburn .

.

Smith, Albert Alexander

Wood, Ebin Burns

O'Neill, Hugh

Whitty, Moses

Bartlett, John Henry

Landriau, Eugene

Present Rank.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Box Collector..

Box Collector.,

Messenger

Date
thereof.

26 June

26 June

21 Sept.

2 May

9 Aug.

1 Sept.

1 Apr.

1 July

21 Dec.

3 Feb.

1 Apr.

'82

'82

'83

'8-1

'84

'84

'85

'85

74

'80

Present
Salary.

$ cts

390 00-

390 00

390 00

390 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

600 00

470 00

590 00

Date of

Birth.

10 Nov. '57

29 Oct. '58

27 Mar. '58

17 Nov. '62

13 Apr. '62

9 Feb. '60

21 Dec. '54

20 July '55

7 Oct. '21

7 Sept.'32

2 Dec. '36

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

26 'June '82

26 June '82

26 July '83

29 Mar. '84

2 June '84

1 Sept. '84

lApr, '85

Uuly '85

21 Dec. '74

3 Feb. '80

l'Apr. J 6Q

Ottawa Post Office.

Postmaster

Assistant Postmaster. .

.

1st class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

Proby. 2nd class clerk.

.

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3 Feb.

20 Feb.

1 Nov.

1 Jan.

Uuly

Uuly

1 Jan.

1 July

1 Nov.

Uuly

Uuly

1 July

1 July

Uuly

Uuly

7 Oct.

4 Jan

.

98

'85 2,000 00

73 1,800 00

'82 1,300 00

'78 1,200 00

79 990 00

'79 1,170 00

'82 1,050 00

'85 800 00

76 800 00

79 800 00

79 800 00

79 800 00

79 800 00

79 800 00

'81 760 00

78 640 00

'82 520 00

19 Mar. '35

4 Nov. '47

8 Nov. '39

12 Sept. '49

26 Dec. '50

18 Nov. '40

18 Oct. '29

29 Nov. '59

8 July '29

7 July '53

30 Nov. '56

25 May '57

21 Aug. '56

12 Aug. '57

15 Dec. '55

9 Aug. '36

20 Apr. '63

3 Feb. '85

1 July '67

1 Apr. '58

1 July '67

5 Nov. '69

16 Mar. 70

14 Feb. 70

30 June 71

2 May 78

IMar. 72

7 June 72

26 Apr. 73

1 June ' 71

13 Apr. 74

1 Aug. 75

7 Oct. 78

4 Jan. '82



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Ottawa Post Office—Continued

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

roole, Harry (3rd class clerk.

Bradbury, Samuel |3rd class clerk.

Carroll, Henry

Macdonald, Charles William

Yorke, Alexander

Chevrier, Eugene Louis

McQueen, George Robert. .

.

Garrett, Lenox 3rd class clerk

Gallup, Asa Henry |3rd class clerk

Noel, Louis Elize 3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

Present
Salary.

Matthewman, Ernest H

Brophy, William Martin. . .

.

Myers, Frederick Louis

Gemmill, William Henry M.

Catellier, George

Warwicker, Frederick Spurge

Brown, John

Larue, Philias

Dolan, Michael

Robert, Pierre

Dupuis, Adolphe

George, Frederick

Cuddie, Thomas

Lamb, William

Egan, Michael James

Favreau, Joseph Napoleon.

.

Larue, Joseph Napoleon

Bedard, Joseph Theodule. .

.

12 Jan. '82

23 May '82

23 May '82

1 Dec. '83

29 May '85

6 Feb. '83

22 Feb. '83

-20 May '84

24 Nov. '83

15 Feb. '84

24 Mar. '84

1 May '85

6Sept.'84

16 Feb. '85

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

Proby. 3rd class clerk. .15 June '85

Supt. Letter Carrier. . . 18 Nov. '80

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Fagan, Michael Letter Carrier

Barrow, John.

.

Marion, Nelson.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

8 Nov. '80

15 July 74

10 July 76
I

17 July 76

3 June 78

7 Oct. 78

9 June '80

1 Jan. '82

29 Jan. '82

28 Feb. '82

21 Sept.' 83

1 Jan. '84

15 Feb. '84

8 May '84

6Sept.'84

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

$ cts.

680 00

520 00

640 00

600 00

720 00

480 00

480 00

540 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

790 00

400 00
j

400 00

400 00

800 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

460 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

360 00

17 Apr. '53

11 Aug. '64

20 Feb. '37

8 Sept. '40

24 June '53

16 Jan. '60

16 Dec. '58

21 Mar. '62

27 Mar. '6Q

30 Apr. '63

8 Oct. '64

10 May '56

9 Aug. '66

25 Nov. '66

24 Mar. '66

18 May '46

8 Apr. '37

25 Mar. '53

24 June '39

25 Oct. '55

5 Sept.' 44

5 Feb. '52

28 July '56

22 Nov. '58

23 Dec. '62

10 Oct. '54

24 Oct. '64

16 Oct. '64

29 Sept. '63

2 Dec. '50

26 June '64

26 Apr.

18 Feb.

2 June
'

20 May '

27 Feb. '

6 Feb.
;

22 Feb.

20 May

24 Nov.

24 Jan.

5 Mar.

27 May

19 Aug.

16 Feb.

13 June

19 Apr.

Oct.

21 Nov.

10 July

17 July

3 June

7 Oct.

10 May

1 Dec.

19 Dec.

28 Feb.

21 Mar,

1 Dec.

11 Feb.

7 May

1 Aug

75

'82

77

78

'82

'83

'83

'84

'83

'84

'84

73

'84

'85

85

7o

'51

73

76

76

78

78

'80

'81

'81

'82

'83

'83

'84

'84

,

'84

99
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 18S6

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Ottawa Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Peers, Alfred Letter Carrier 1 Oct. '84

$ cts.

360 00

360 00

600 00

600 00

540 00

•

3 Apr. '63

16 Aug. '63

19 Nov. '39

24 Apr. '47

16 Mar. '38

22 Sept. '84

31 Oct. '84

4 Jan. '75

8 Jan. '75

16 Apr. '75

Duggan, Hugh Henry

Darcey, William

Letter Carrier

Box Collector

1 Dec. '84

4 Jan. 75

26 Jan. '75

16 Apr. '75

Goodwin, William

Duggan, Henry Messenger

Toronto Post Offige.

Patteson, Thomas Charles . . . ! Postmaster

Carruthers, John
| Assistant Postmaster.

I

1st class clerkDavis, John Henry

Cooper, Alfred

Moersehfelder, Jacob

Corke, Alfred

Thompson, Archibald Graham

Harstone, Archibald

Falkiner, Henry Frederick .

.

Londen, William

Armstrong, Bartholomew M.

Monaghan, John

Langley, Benjamin

Bascom, Benjamin

Chadd, Richard Edwin

Beatty, Alexander

BiddeU, Robert William ....

Hassard, Richard

Middleton, Alexander T. M..

Macpherson, William

Gorman, James Alphonse

Curran, Alfred

Douglas, William Henry

1st class clerk.

1st class clerk.

1st class clerk.

1st class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

12Feb.

lFeb.

1 Jan.

1 Feb.

lFeb.

1 Sept

1 Jan.

1 Jan.

1 Jan.

1 July

1 July

Uuly

Uuly

Uuly

Uuly

1 July

1 July

Uuly

Uuly

Uuly

Uuly

1 July

1 July

'79 3,000 00

'74 2,000 00

'71 1,400 00

'75 1,200 00

'75 1,400 00

.'79 1,200 00

'85 1,200 00

'73 1,200 00

75 1,200 00

'79 1,170 00

'79 1,170 00

'79 1,170 00

'79 1,170 00

'79 1,170 00

'79 1,170 00

'84 950 00

'84 950 00

'84 950 00

'85 900 00

'79 800 00

79 800 00

79 800 00

79 800 00

ct. '36

12 Nov. '31

18 June '31

14 May '34

28 Feb. '46

20 Mar. '25

16 Aug. '53

'30

13 Jan. '34

4 Dec. '36

31 Mar. '49

15 Apr. '30

31 Jan. '35

17 Jan. '53

31 Dec, '44

24 July '42

24 Jan. '54

15 Mar. '58

17 Aug. '53

17 Oct. '48

6 Mar. '49

14 Sept. '57

24 May '51

12 Feb. 79

7 May '52

7 May '52

11 June '55

13 Jan. '69

1 Apr. '56

12 Feb. 74

30 Mar. '59

20 Mar. '59

12 Nov. '66

5 Nor. '67

12 Nov. '67

22 Dec. '67

13 Jan. 72

29 Oct. '72

6 Dec. '69

10 Feb. 73

2 June 79

7 Jan. 71

10 Feb. 73

16 Apr. 74

16 Apr. 74

7 Oct. 74

100



9 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Toronto Post Office—Continued

.

Name. Present Rank.

Dunbar, John

Ulen, Henry Sherrard.

''allaghan, James

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

Scott,, John Hugh |3rd class clerk.

Boulter, Henry

Bonnick, William

Thompson, Robert

Aymong, Roch Amyot .

.

Thomas, George Arthur

Hynes, Michael Edward .... 3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk.

3rd class_clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

Bell, William Langley.

.

Wright, Joseph

Newell, William John [3rd class clerk.

Fraser, Joseph Robert j3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.
Aikins, James

Beatty, Albert Edward

Biddell, James Albert D .

.

Pinel, Arthur Albert

Lemon, William Edward.

.

Grandfield, James

Kirkpatrick, John Alexander

Macdonald, Murdoch

Boyd, Massom

Arthurs, William

Pridham, Richard Alfred

Riddle, William

Mclntyre, Archibald

Rutherford, James

Johnstone, James Kennedy.

.

Pridham, Richard

Boddy, James Somerville

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

!

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk. ....

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk 1 Jan. '84

"Tol

I July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 Jan. '82

II Jan. '82

20 Nov. 76

. '82

'82

. '82

_ '82

'82

'82

• '82

'82

'82

. '82

6 Feb. '83

5 Apr. '83

5 Apr. '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

4 Sept. ^83

4 Sept. '83

4 Sept. '83

21 Sept. '83

21 Sept. '83

21 Sept. '83

21 Sept. '83

26 Sept. '83

1 Feb. '84

$ cts.

800 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

680 00

600 00

560 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

670 00

440 00

440 00

800 00

440 00

23 Dec' 48

25 Jan. '56

15 Nov. '37

13 July '49

29 Jan. '37

29 Nov. '52

10 Mar. '59

26 Aug. '63

2 Apr. '55

20 Sept. '62

21 May '60

14 Jan. '63

29 Sept. '64

22 Mar. '62

5 Apr. '61

9 Jan. '54

l I

31 Jan. '64

6 Nov. '59

11 Aug. '63

1 Sept. '61

16 July '64

3 Oct. '55

28 May '63

17 Apr. '52

21 Oct. '64

12 July '60

7 May '50

!
5 Feb. '52

28 Oct. '49

j 27 Aug. '36

19 May '53

29 Dec. 74

1 Jan. 75

1 Aug. 75

1 Jan. '82

11 Jan. '82

20 Nov. 76

13 Dec. 78

9 Oct. 79

23 Oct. 79

8 Sept. '80

16 July '81

29 Nov. '81

26 Dec. '81

3>pr. '82

12 Aug. '81

23 May '82

24 Jan. '83

15 Sept. '82

12 Sept. '82

6 Oct. '82

19 Feb. '83

30 [Aug. '83

1 Sept. '83

3 Sept. '83

18 Apr. '83

4 June '83

3 Oct. 75

21 Sept. '83

1 Sept. '83

1 Jan. 72

16 July '83



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OtJTSIDE SERVICE.

Toronto Post Office—Continued.

Name.

Smith, Charles Edmund

Durham, Robert Francis

Dwyer, Henry Alexander

Briggs, James Robert

Sparks, Walter

Spencer, Edward

McCandless, Thomas Holmes

Hynes, William Albert

Patterson, Thomas

Gill, Thomas

Whiteside, James Arthur . .

.

Clode, John

Foster, William

Packham, Alfred

Reeves, Charles

Kenny, William

Watkins, John Lloyd

Barnes, James

Coffey, Michael

Curley, Thomas

Weatherbee, Joseph Howe .

.

Yates, George

Williams, Joseph

Stewart, John

Sargent, William Patrick

Stoddart, James

Sullivan, Michael

Moore, Charles Northwood .

.

Culms, Charles

Cuthbertson, James Radcliff'e

Murphy, Edward

Present Rank.

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk ,

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk ,

3rd class clerk ,

3rd class clerk

Proby. 3rd class clerk

.

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier'

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier
,

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Date Present
thereof. Salary.

19 Apr.

22 Apr.

22 Apr.

30 Apr.

30 Apr.

1 July

21 Oct.

21 Oct.

lFeb.

lFeb.

4 June

4 Dec.

19 June

4 Feb.

17 Dec.

17 Dec.

17 Dec.

15 Feb.

15 Feb.

15 Feb.

15 Feb.

15 Feb.

18 May

2 Sept.

1 July

9 Aug.

10 Feb.

16 July

28 Feb.

10 June

16 May

'84

'84

'84

'SI

'84

'84

'84

'84

'85

'85

'85

'68

72

74

74

74

74

75

75

75

75

75

75

76

76

76

77

77

78

Date of

Birth.

$ cts.

440 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

500 00

8 Dec. '53

17 Apr. '63

21 Sept. '64

26 Feb. '47

8 Apr. '63

3 Dec. '63

24 Feb. '58

4 July '66

24 Dec. '50

11 Nov. '56

6 Dec. '66

15 Feb. '23

3 Apr. '37

26 Aug. '49

24 July '49

8 Dec. '34

29 July '31

14 July '29

15 June '49

21 Dec. '28

27 June '42

7 Aug. '35

14 Feb. '50

26 Apr. '41

20 May '42

29 Jan. '48

16 Mar. '48

5 Jan. '42

21 Sept. '42

6 Sept. '48

22 Feb. '56

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

19 Apr. '84

11 Sept. '83

11 Apr. '84

4 June '83

12 Dec. '83

30 Apr. '84

21 Oct. '84

21 Oct. '84

30 Dec. 79

8 Feb. '81

4 June '85

4 Dec. '68

19 June' 72

24 Feb. '74

17 Feb. '74

17 Oct. 74

17 Dec. 74

15 Feb. 75

15 Feb. 75

15 Feb. 75

15 Feb. 75

15 Feb. 75

18 May 75

2 Sept. '75

1 July '76

9 Aug. '76

10 Feb. '77

16 July 77

28 Feb. 78

10 June 78

16 May 79

102



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Toronto Post Office—Continued.

A. 1SSG

Beale, Thomas

Marks, John

Crawford, John

Berney, Thomas

Hodgins, Robert

Jamieson, Robert

Askin, John

Gordon, John

McCandless, John

Sparks, Robert

Kimber, William

Gardiner, Richard Beecher .

Flack, jr., David

Durston, Robert •

Parry, William Stewart

Jackson, Albert Calvin W. .

.

Loudon, Robert

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier...

Letter Carrier. .

.

Letter Carrier...

Letter Carrier...

Letter Carrier..

.

Letter Carrier. .

.

Letter Carrier...

Letter Carrier...

Letter Carrier..

Letter Carrier..

Letter Carrier..

Letter Carrier..

Letter Carrier.

.

Letter Carrier..

Kirkpatrick, Robert Letter Carrier.

Kennedy, Charles

Watson, John

Treloar, Henry

Bowell, Byron Randolph.

Meadows, Alfred Henri .

.

Kirk, Frederick

Anderson, John

Swait, Charles Edward

Langstone, William; Henry .

.

Woodcock, William Robert.

.

Letter Carrier.

10 Oct. '79

22 Dec. 79

22 Dec. '79

6 Jan. '80

10 Jan. '80

12 Mar. '80

19 Apr. '80

22 Nov. '80

15 Dec. '80

24 Dee. '80

1 Mar. '81

1 Mar. '81

6 Feb. '82

22 Mar. '82

15 Apr. '82

12 May '82

23 May '82

23 May '82

28 June '82

Letter Carrier
|

27 Mar. '83

5 Apr. '83

5 Apr. '83

4Sept.'83

21 Sept.'83

21 Sept. '83

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier 10 Mar. '84

Letter Carrier 24Mar.'84

Letter Carrier.

Pollock, George [Letter Carrier.

19 Apr. '84

30 Apr. '84

d,;Samuel I Letter Carrier.. . 30 Apr. '84

Haycock, Thomas (Letter Carrier
|
15 May, 84

103

510 00

470 00

470 00

470 00

470 00

460 00

430 00

430 00

430 00

430 00

430 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

16 Mar. o/

24 June '34

23 Mar. '54

12 Dec. '53

13 Sept. '53

12 July '48

17 Mar. '53

10 Oct. 71

9 Feb. '79

22 Dec. '79

6 Jan. '80

10 Jan. '80

12 Mar. '80

19 Apr. '80

1 Feb. '58
i

22 Nov. '80

15 Dec. '80

10 Feb. '80

4 Feb. '81

14 Feb. '81

6 Feb. '82

22 Mar. '82

15 Apr. '82

12 May '82

2 Feb. '54

2 Dec. '59

31 Dec. '54

14 Feb. '60

15 Sept. '61

15 July '63

25 July '59

2 Nov.' 57

25 Sept. '59 23 May '82

14 May '63 I 23 May '82

3Sept.'61 I 28 June
'

29 Aug. '64

4 Aug. '60

27 Apr. '55

24 Sept.' 63

14 Apr. '65

8 Feb. '64

5 Mar. '57

6 Nov.'55

10 May '63

17 Oct. '54

7 Aug. '56

4 July '54

27 Mar. '83

19 Mar. '83

19 Mar. '83

4 Sept. '83

14 Sept. '82

4 June '83

7 Mar. '84

7 Mar. '84

27 Mar. '84

17 Sept. '83

17 Sept. '83

15 May '84



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 188^

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Toronto Post Office—Continued.

Name.

Booth, George
,

Thompson, Charles

Piatt, William James

Atkinson, Henry Rowland .

.

Smith, Thomas
,

Tement, David Robertson . .

.

Weir, Robert

Reid, John

McNair, William Cameron .

.

Smith, Theophilus

Ellis, George

Meadows, Edwin

Butler, John

Baxter, John Alexander

McMordie, Alexander

Ingram, John Albert

Kirk, Robert

Hutty, Robert Howland Gray

Parrett, James

Reynolds, James Whiteside.

.

Present Rank. Date
thereof.

Letter Carrier
i 21 June '84

Letter Carrier,

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Porter
,

Porter

Porter

Office Keeper. .

,

10 Aug. '84

10 Aug. '84

16 Feb. '85

20 Feb. '85

13 Mar. '85

1 Apr. '83

1 Apr. '85

1 May '85

22 May '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

5 Apr. '73

14 Oct. '80

27 Dec. '81

7 Oct. '82

Windsor Post Office.

Present
Salary.

Wigle, Alfred

Meloche, Francjois Xavier

Conway, William Alphonsus.

Langlois, Albert Charles

O'Connor, Eleanor

Cousins, Alexander Mortimer

Wagner, Elizabeth Rozena .

.

WT

agner, Mary Antonia

Postmaster

Assistant Postmaster.

.

Proby. 2nd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

18 Sept.'80

18 Sept. '80

1 July '85

1 Mar. '82

1 Mar. '82

1 Mar. '82

'82

'82

$ cts.

390 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

490 00

390 00

390 00

490 00

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment .

12 July '63

28 Dec. '65

16 Jan. '61

27 Jan. '57

1 Dec. '62

9 June '61

26 Feb. '66

20 Oct. '62

20 Sept. '60

18 Mar. '64

31 Jan. '64

23 Sept.' 60

26 Dec. '56

12Aug.'62

12 Aug. '54

16 May '61

About '26

17 Mar. '62

18 Oct. '51

24 Jan. '40

27 May

6 June

14 July

16 Feb.

20 Feb.

13 Mar.

1 Apr.

1 Apr.

1 May

20 May

15 Aug.

15 Aug.

15 Aug.

16 Aug.

17 Dec.

4 Apr.

5 Apr.

14 Oct.

27 Dec.

22 Dec.

'84-

'83

'83

'85

'85

'85

'85

'85

'85

'85

'84

'84

'84

'84

'84

'84

73

'80

'81

79*

1,400 00

1,100 00

900 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

520 00

520 00

28 July '48

5 Apr. '40

27 Oct. '58

17 May '52

17 July '46

26 July '53

1 Oct. '49

8 June '57

18 Sept. '8a

18 Sept. '80

18 Sept. '80

18 Sept. '80

18 Sept. '80

18 Sept. '80

18 Sept. '80

18 Sept. '80

lo4



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Windsor Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Bank.

Nesbitt, Margaret Wilson..

Ruthven, Adolphus

McHugh, Peter Joseph

Beuglett, Charles

Egan, Patrick

Jeffers, Joseph

Date
thereof.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

Messenger

Mitchell, Robert Porter ..*••%

'82

'82

4 June '83

13 June '83

1 July '83

28 June 82

28 June *82

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

520 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

500 00

390 00

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
paintment

.

28 July '50

3 Mar. '65

About '61

2 Nov.' 60

18 May '63

16 Mar. '28

390 00 I 29 Dec. '54

12 Apr. '81

30 June '82

4 June '83

13 June '83

15 Oct. '80

28 June '82

28 June '82

Montreal Division.

King, Edwin Francis

Nelligan, David

Logie, Frederick John

Madore, Joseph Adolphe.

.

Gervais, Joseph Eugene..

.

Pelletier, Joseph Ferreol..

.

Kearney, Matthew

McShane, James Anthony. .

.

Nelligan, Patrick

Briegel, Frederick

Walmsley, Alexander

Bayley, James

Lefebvre, Eustache

Jones, George

Lefebvre, Charles

Vallee, Joseph

Denis, Arthur

Menzies, Augustus

Lachapelle, Alphonse

McLellan, Norman

Somerville, Andrew

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

Messenger

Chief Ry. Mail Clerk...

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st cla-ss Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class clerk

Inspector |

21 Jan. '61

Assistant Inspector 14 Dec. '77

1 Jan. '75

1 July '84

1 July '84

4 Oct. '82

4 Oct. '82

30 Sept.'84

1 Apr. '57

1 Oct. '79

1 Feb. '67

1 Dec. '72

1 July '73

1 Jan. '74

1 Feb. '74

1 Mar. '74

1 Apr. '76

1 Sept.'79

1 Apr. '84

30 Apr. '84

1 Apr. '62

2,600 00 12 May v30 5 Mar. 46

1,250 00 11 July '48 22 Nov. 67

1,200 00 19 May '26 18 Aug. '6^

950 00 3 Mar. '55 7 Oct. '74

950 00 19 July '53 1 July '80

560 00 19 Oct. '47 25 Aug. '79

680 00 31 Oct. '54 15 Nov. '75

400 00 27 Sept.' 58 17 July '84

590 00 13 Mar. '22 1 Apr. '57

1,500 00 3 Apr. '43 17 Mar. '66

1,200 00 28 Apr. '25 11 June '56

960 00 24 Mar. '26 12 Feb. '60

960 00 2 Apr. '37 26 Mar. '61

960 00 4 Sept.'35 26 Mar. '61

960 00 3 Aug. '24 12 Jan. '63

960 00 14 June '32 9 Aug. '61

960 00 1 Nov. '40 21 Nov. '64

960 00 31 Jan. '43 16 Aug. '66

960 00 13 Nov. '43 30 May '71

960 00 26 June '52 7 June '71

800 00 30 May '42 6 Feb. '60

lu5



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SS6

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Montre at- D

i

vision—Continued.

Name.

Beatty, Christopher Charles.

Anderson, Jacob Dewitt

Filion, Henri Dominique. . .

.

Fairman, Daniel

Hayden, Charles

Beaudoin. Charles

Pri it Rank.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk

Channel], Henry Edgar 2nd class clerk.

Dorion, Edouard 2nd class clerk.

Goodfellow, Henry Groves. . . 2nd class clerk.

Beique, Louis « 2nd class clerk.

Labreche, Viger Joseph 2nd class clerk.

'Regan. William Henry. . . . 2nd class clerk.

Crevier. Louis Celestin 2nd class clerk

Armstrong. Arthur

Dewar, Guy Richards

Murphy, John

Hall, John Peasley

Frost, Daniel Taylor

Mackenzie, James Edward. .

.

Genest, Joseph Valere

Guevremont, Jean Baptiste .

.

Smith, Eustache LaHaie

Peters, William Norman

Tuck, Frederick

McRobie, James Alexander.

.

Webb, Frederick Whitcomb.

Evans, Albert Hale

Whitcher, Charles Frank

Ford, John

Chavot, Cyprien

Jones, William Emerson C. .

.

Date
thereof.

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 Dec. 73

1 Jan. 74

1 July 74

1 Sept.74

1 Mar. 75

1 May 75

1 Aug. ' 75

1 Oct. 75

14 Mar. 77

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 Jan. '80

1 July '80

1 July '80

1 July '80

1 Nov. '80

1 Jan. '81

1 Jan. '81

1 Apr. '81

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 Apr. '85

22 Mar. '80

30 Oct. '80

28 Feb. '81

23 Mar. '83

1 July '84

1 July '84

Present
Salary.

S> cts.

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

560 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

Date of

Birth.

7 Sept. '50

20 Nov. '44

21 May '44

3 Oct. '44

23 Feb. '53

30 Jan. '48

27 Feb. '54

10 Nov. '42

23 Aug. '40

19 Sept.'29

3 May '42

10 May '44

10 Aug. '40

19 May '58

1 Feb. '41

5 Sept.'51

13 Mar. '52

20 July '35

1 Oct. '48

12 Dec. '23

6 May '53

18 Dec. '58

14 Jan. '42

29 Oct. '53

18 Aug. '58

20 Dec. '59

16 Oct. '53

1 Dec. '55

21 Oct. '50

22 Apr. '55

1 July '58

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

18 Jan. 70

19 Oct. 71

1 Feb. 72

9 Aug. 72

13 Feb. 73

26 Apr. 73

8 July 73

20 Feb. 74

2 Feb. 70

25 Apr. 76

18 Nov. 74

26 Mar. 77

28 Apr. 77

15 Oct. 77

18 Apr. 78

lApr. 74

31 May 78

8 Oct. 78

23 Dec. 78

23 Dec. 78

17 Mar. 79

21 Nov. '81

30 June '82

23 July 79

20 May '81

22 Mar. '80

30 Oct. '80

28 Feb. '81

20 Mar. '83

Uuly '84

17 June '84

106



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1888

rOST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Montreal Division—Continued

.

Name

.

Present Rank.

Murphy, William

Hay, Edward William.

Chase, Clark

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Mail Transfer Agent ... 6 Sept. '84

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

9 Aug. '84

31 Mar. '85

$ cts.

590 00

480 00

400 00

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment .

28 May '55 lApr. 75

17 May '61 31 Mar. '85

4 Mar. '51 lApr. '84

Quebec Division.

*Sheppard, William Grut.

.

Anctil, Jean Laughlin

Frechette, Onesiphore

Vohl, Cyprien Joseph

Carrier, Joseph Emile

Bourget, Joseph Guillaume.

Boivin, Jules George

Deslauriers, Joseph

Lapointe, Gregoire

Beaudet, Noel Athanase..

.

Inspector

Asst. Inspector

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

Messenger

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

Blondeau, F. E. dit Eugene. 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

Dionne, Louis Napoleon

Gaudry, Basile Tancrede

Kinilin, Henry John

Blondeau, Donat Severin

Garneau, Louis Honore

Pageau, Joseph Octave ,

Bourget, Rigobert Goderick.

Talbot, Octave Zephirin

Roy, Joseph Etienne

Furois, Joseph Leger

Labbe, Francois Xavier

Evanturel, Edouard Eric G.

Hudon, Leon Emile

Dagneau, David Calixte,

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 Feb. '61

8 Feb. 79

1 Jan. 73

1 Apr. '82

'82

1 Feb. '84

1 Oct. '69

1 Oct. 79

1 Sept.'80

1 June '81

1 Oct. '81

1 Aug. 72

1 July 73

1 July 73

• 1 Feb. 74

1 Nov. 74

1 Oct. 75

1 Nov. 75

1 Oct. 77

1 Oct. 77

1 July 79

1 Oct. 79

1 Jan. '80

1 Mar. '81

1 Mar. '81

2,400 00

1,250 00

1,200 00

1,050 00

680 00

760 00

490 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

800 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

14 Sept -'29

25 Jan. '32

6 Sept. '30

23 May '45

29 Aug. '48

19 July '50

28 Sept. '37

26 May '21

6 May '32

24 Dec. '25

17 Aug. '40

7 Aug. '41

4 June '43

8 Oct. '46

20 May '48

14 June '47

28 Dec. '37

27 Oct. '48

10 Sept. '52

13 Feb. '38

14 May '38

1 Mar- '41

13 Feb. '52

16 Nov. '44

8 Jan. '38

7 Sept. '54

25 Jan. '61

30 Jan. '62

Uuly 70

20 Sept. 75

26 Mar. 74

lOct. '69

30 May '67

7 Aug. '67

17 Feb. '65

INov. '67

20 Apr. 70

30 May 71

7 June 71

25 Nov. 71

29 Oct. 72

6 Sept. 73

7 Apr. 73

8 Oct. 75

8 Oct. 75

Uuly 76

Uune '65

12 Dec. 77

12 Feb. 79

12 Feb. 79

' Since deceased.
107



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Quebec Division—Continued.

Present Rank.

Miquelon, Arsene Cyr

Bedard, Charles

Beaudry, Pierre A. L. A. .

.

Methot, Arthur

Laberge, Michel Philias

Blondeau, Antoine

Green, Samuel Tanner

Thibault, Louis Philippe. .

.

2nd class Ry.

2nd class Ry.

2nd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

3rd class Ry.

Mail Porter.

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Mail Clerk

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

1 Aug. '81

1 June '82

14 Jan. '84

11 Feb. '82

7 Jan. '84

2 May '84

1 July '85

1 Feb. 79

I cts

720 00

640 00

800 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

490 00

Date of
Birth.

25 June '61

5 May '41

25 Aug. '48

18 July '58

28 Sept. '58

25 Oct. '48

21 Feb. '64

12 Feb. '55

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

19 May '79

27 May '80

21 May '79

11 Feb. '82

20 Mar. '83

28 Apr. '84

1 July '85

21 Jan. '79

Three Rivers Division.

Bourgeois, George A

Chillas, Joseph Philip

Bailey, George Oscar

Dorais, Louis Napoleon A

,

Inspector

Assistant Inspector. . .

.

3rd class clerk.. ,

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 Oct. '32

27 Oct. '50

16 July '49

17 Jan. '59

26 July 79

7 Jan. 71

4 Oct. 79

6 Feb. '83

Montreal Post Office.

LaM othe, Guillaume

Emery, Michel

Bourret, Hormidas Alexis..

Huddell, Henry Allison R.

.

McKeon, John

Baillargeon, Vital

Palmer, Joseph Lawrence

Larseneur, Thomas Frangois

Senez, Joseph

Pridham, Frederick

Mayer, Edouard

Sims, James Campbell

Clement, Olivier

Loftus, Anthony

Postmaster

Assistant Postmaster.

1st class clerk

1st class clerk

1st class clerk

1st class clerk

1st class clerk

1st class clerk

1st class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

18 July 74

1 Nov. 72

1 Jan. 71

1 July 71

1 Feb. 72

1 Feb. 72

1 Dec. 72

1 July 74

1 July '85

1 July 71

1 Apr. 74

1 July 74

1 July 74

1 July 76

108

4.000 00

2,000 00

1,500 00

1,400 00

1,500 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,300 00

1,200 00 !

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

14 Sept '24

3 Jan. '25

3 Feb. '39

30 Nov '28

14 Oct. '30

19 Mar. '23

2 Dec. '40

27 Jan. '35

24 Feb. '43

16 Sept. '33

4 Feb. '42

6 Mar. '36

24 June '45

18 July 74

1 July '49

9 Aug. '61

3 Sept. '45

24 June '53

26 Mar. '61

9 Aug. ! 61

9 Aug. '61

27 June 70

2 Apr. '60

Sept '61

9 June '64

23 Aug. '65

11 Jan. '67



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4.8.) A. 1SSG

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Montreal Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Restaing, Alfred de 2nd class clerk

Desnoyers, Thomas

Ooyette, Henri

Daoust, Jean Baptiste A

Lefebvre, Gaspard Joseph D

Harding, Thomas

Duncan, Robert

Arless, Richard James

Auger, Arthur Edouard

Filiatrault, Marie Joseph T.

Doray, Alfred Amable

2nd class clerk..

2nd class clerk..

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk

.

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Beaudoin, George 3rd class clerk.

21 July 76

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 Apr. '84

1 July '84

1 July '85

1 Oct. 73

1 Oct. 73

1 Apr. 75

1 Aug.75

1 July 79

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment .

Renaud, Joseph Edmond. . . . 3rd class clerk 1 July 79

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk

Lefebvre, Louis

Chagnon, Edmond

Hayden, William

Leduc, Charles Anatole T . .

.

Thompson, James

Chase, Isaac Sargison .

.

Larose, Anatole J3rd class clerk .

.

Rondeau, Ulysse [3rd class clerk..

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk .

,

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk

,

Ouudry, Horace Daniel . .

.

Coutlee, George

Lord, Alfred

Gillies, Joseph

Lefebvre, Charles

•Conlon, Bernard

Thimens, Joseph

Daniel, Robert Thomas

Ouellette, Edouard Henri. ..

Johnston, William

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 Jan. '82

23 May '82

23 May '82

'82

'82

'82

$ cts.

1,200 00

1,130 00

1,170 00

1,170 00

950 00

950 00

900 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

760 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

680 00

600 00

680 00

28 July '41

1 Mar. '38

26 Mar. '46

28 Nov.' 42

6 Feb. '54

18 Sept. '48

24 Aug. '42

26 Dec. '39

21 May '28

10 Apr. '50

16 Mar. '48

30 Jan. '52

15 Oct. '54

22 Dec.' 49

9 Nov. '58

15 May '56

30 May '49

23 Feb. '37

7 Feb. '48

10 Mar. '53

27 Aug. '50

15 Oct. '53

30 Jan. '56

11 July '45

21 Mar. '57

July '51

4 Jan. '39

23 May '45

2 Jan. '43

27 Apr. '51

23 Jan. '33

1 Apr. 75

16 Dec. '67

3 Apr. '68

27 June 70

10 Apr. 74

20 May 73

25 Jan. '68

18 Jan. >6S

Jan. '54

14 Aug. 72

23 Apr. 72

29 Feb. 72

21 Mar. 73

7 Nov. 71

18 Dee. 73

1 June 74

1 June 74

12 May 71

23 May 72

31 Oct. 72

10 Aug. 74

3 Sept. 74

27 Oct. 73

9 Nov. 74

16 Nov. 74

6 Feb. 71

28 Dec. 74

13 Jan. 75

1 Jan. 76

5 Sept. 78

27 Aug. 77

ioy



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Montreal Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date, of

First Ap-
pointment.

Forbes, Edniond Henri

McElroy, William Joseph...

Lapointe, Theophile Pierre.

.

3rd class clerk 1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

6 Feb. '83

22 Feb. '83

5 Apr. '83

13 June /83

21 Sept. '83

4 Oct. '83

1 Jan. '84

1 Jan. '84

1 Feb. '84

10 Mar. '84

10 Mar. '84

10 Mar. '84

19 Apr. '84

22 Apr. '84

6 Sept.'84

6 Sept.'84

1 Oct. '84

1 Oct. '84

1 Oct. '84

1 Oct. '84

1 Dec. '84

1 Dec. '84

1 Dec. '84

1 Dec. '84

13 Dec. '84

$ cts.

600 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

15 Oct. '26

10 May '50

8 Mar. '60

24 July '61

6 July '59

11 Mar. '63

1 May '48

27 Mar. '47

18 Dec. '61

22 Dec. '57

15 May '53

17 Oct. '58

27 Feb. '58

25 Apr. '59

17 Nov. '62

21 Feb. '65

10 Apr. '63

16 July '65

30 Oct. '64

25 July '62

18 Oct. '63

3 June '65

14 Dec. '63

6 May '63

14 Apr. '65

21 Sept.' 52

25 Aug. '65

6 Jan. '63

5 Aug. '60

18 Dec. '60

13 Nov. '63

29 Apr. 79

23 June '803rd class clerk

3rd class clerk 13 July '80

1 Jan: '81

Whelan, James Patrick 9 Feb. '82

3rd class clerk 30 June '82

O'Neill, Patrick 3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

6 Feb. '83

Jolicceur, Eugene 22 Feb. '83

Mayer, Louis Dominique E .

.

21 Mar. '83

Beresford, John 3rd class clerk 1 Sept. '83

4 Oct. '83Guillemette, Joseph Edmond.

O'Donoghue, Daniel

Plouffe, Fran9ois

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk 28 June '82

8 June '83

3rd class clerk 1 Feb '84

Chandler, Henri 3 Mar '84

Mcintosh, Alfred Dieudonne.

Lamoureux, Edouard A

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

4 Oct. '83

4 Mar. '84

Lamoureux, Arthur Edouard. 3rd class clerk 8 Apr. '84

22 Apr. '84

4 Oct '83

Giroux, Theophile Avila

Sauriol, Alphonse

3rd class clerk

Barbe, Wilfrid 5 Sept. '84

28 June '82Clermont, Ulderic 3rd class clerk

3rd class clerkLeclaire, Charles Joseph A .

.

Gaudet, Michel Henri A

24 Nov. '83

3rd class clerk 19 Apr. '84

10 Mar. '84Cote, Allen Bernard 3rd class clerk

Carpenter, George Arthur. ..

Crowe, William Joseph

Grondin, Albert Louis

3rd class clerk 13 June '83

3rd class clerk 24 Mar. '84

3rd class clerk 24 Nov. '84

Florence, Charles 1 Dec. '84

Simard, Maxime 3rd class clerk 13 Dec. '84

110



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1S86

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Montreal Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Brophy, Thomas

Bazeau, Edmond

Ermatinger, Philip T. H..

LaManque, Thomas

Morin, Alcidas

Lacroix, Eugene Oscar Henri

Dowd, Edward Christopher.

.

Lapointe, Prospere

Dufresne, Auguste

Plante, Jean Baptiste

Callary, James

Kelly, James

Callary, Patrick

Dube, Louis

Thibodeau, Jean

Rozon, William

Clark, Patrick

Bergin, "William

Plante, Gaspard

Lagace, Philippe

3rd class clerk .

.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

|3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Date
thereof,

Present
Salary

.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment

23 Dec. '84

26 Dec. '84

1 Feb. '85

19 Feb. '85

16 May '85

22 May '85

14 Feb. 70

28 Mar. 70

30 Mar. 70

1 Aug. 71

10 Apr. 73

Letter Carrier I 28 Apr. 73

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Bathurst, James Letter Carrier.

Bissonnette, Antoine Isaie... Letter Carrier.

Cousineau, Hormidas Letter Carrier.

Laramee, Simeon Letter Carrier.

Lefebvre, Germain Letter Carrier.

Terroux, Charles Alexandre E Letter Carrier.

Gorman, Thomas 'Letter Carrier,

Giroux, Joseph

Beaulnes, Felix Ozee. .

.

Cusson, Narcisse

Moreau, Jean Baptiste.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier,

19 May 73

4 Aug. 73

15 July 74

1 July 75

1 July 75

1 July 75

1 July 75

1 July 75

1 July 75

1 July 75

1 July 75

1 July 75

1 July 75

1 July 75

1 July 75

28 Dec. 75

7 Feb. 76

4 Jan. 77

23 Mar. 77

$ cts.

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

9 Dec. '65

20 Aug. '57

1 Aug. '58

10 July '54

27 Feb. '65

19 Feb. '64

10 June '48

22 Nov.'SO

26 Oct. '45

20 Jan. '38

18 June '48

26 Dec. '31

19 May '44

20 Oct. '27

28 Feb. '20

5 Apr. '54

10 Dec. '45

18 Dec. '41

17 Jan. '56

23 Aug. '51

1 Apr. '57

2 Dec. '43

20 Mar. '53

24 Apr. '41

29 Jan. '53

9 Oct. '54

6 Mar. '37

29 Sept.' 47

23 Apr. '30

29 Dec. '39

30 Dec. '45

23 Dec. '84

26 Dec. '84

12 Jan. '85

19 Feb. '85

16 May '85

22 May '85

14 Feb. 70

28 Mar. 70

30 Mar. 70

I Aug. 71

10 Apr. 73

28 Apr. 73

19 May 73

4 Aug. 73

18 Dec. 73

1 July 74 •

1 Sept. 74

1 Sept. 74

1 Sept. 74

II Sept. 74

18 Feb. 75

24 Mar. 75

8 June 75

17 June 75

Uuly 75

1 Sept. 74

28 May 75

28 Dec. 75

7 Feb. 76

4 Jan. 77

28 Mar. 77

111



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

TOST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Monteeal Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date « f

First Ap-
pointment.

Letter Carrier 7 Dec. 77

4 Apr. 78

12 May '81

26 Aug. '81

21 Oct. '81

1 Dec. '81

23 Jan. '82

28 Jan. '82

21 Feb. '82

25 Apr. '82

3 June '82

29 Oct. '82

22 Feb. '83

23 Mar. '83

2 Apr. '83

4 Sept.'83

21 Sept.'83

21 Sept. '83

4 Oct. '83

4 Oct. '83

5 Nov. '83

24 Nov. '83

10 Dec. '83

10 Dec. '83

15 Feb. '84

22 Apr. '84

30 Apr. '84

15 May '84

21 July '84

6 Sept. '84

6 Sept. '84

$ cts.

600 00

600 00

420 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

14 Aug. '39

12 July '54

5 Nov. '48

3 July '57

1 Oct. '60

22 Jan. '60

18 Dec. '63

28 May '50

7 Jan. '62

12 Apr. '49

17 Mar. '53

29 Apr. '57

24 June '61

10 Aug. '62

9 Feb. '65

15 Aug. '65

4 Aug. '44

22 Jan. '49

5 May '62

8 Aug. '52

23 July '50

6 Aug. '60

27 May '58

13 Oct. '59

1 Nov.'58

10 Oct. '59

11 May '56

20 July '64

31 Oct, '55

20 Apr. '64

2 Sept. '59

7 Dec. 77

McShane, James Francis. . .

.

Letter Carrier 4 Apr. 78

12 May '81

26 Aug. '81

21 Oct. '81

Lussier, Joseph Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

1 Dec. '81

Boudreau, Jacques Achille..

.

Doray, Joseph Louis Exelda.

23 Jan. '82

Letter Carrier 28 Jan. '82

Letter Carrier 21 Feb. '82

25 Apr. '82

3 June '82

11 Sept. '82

15 Feb. '83Fenaughty, John

5 Mar. '83

Carle, Louis Eugene Letter Carrier 2 Apr. '83

30 Aug. '83

28 Aug. '83

21 Sept. '83

4 Oct. '83

Mitchell, William Francis. .

.

Letter Carrier

Duinesnil, Alfred Emile Letter Carrier

Dagenais, Fabien 4 Oct. '83

Daoust, Damase Ludger Avila

Mathieu, Alfred

Letter Carrier 1 Nov. '83

24 Nov. '83

Valeur, Joseph Alfred

Mazurette, Wilfrid

Letter Carrier 10 Dec. '83

10 Dec. '83

1 Feb. '84

Giguere, Joseph 10 Apr. '84

21 Apr. '84

15 May '84

7 July '84

10 Mar. 'S4

Collard, Joseph Antoine

Xing, Joseph.

Duboula}r
, Adolphe

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Lepine. Magloire Letter Carrier

Pepin, Joseph Letter Carrier 10 Mar. '84

112



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Montreal Post Office—Continued.

Name.

Latimer, Thomas

SaurioL Jean Baptiste.

Bisson, Joseph Louis.

.

O'Mahony, Myles

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

$ cts

Date of
Date of

First A
pointment.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Lortie, Alphonse I
Letter Carrier

Kelly, Thomas John

Belair, Arthur

Masse, Arthur

Moore, Thomas

Lapierre, Joseph Theophile H

Perrault, Denis Romulus

Pepin, Felix

Collins, John (Messenger & Porter.

Maher, James Messenger & Porter.

.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

Bennett, John..

Renois, Ludger.

Messenger & Porter.

Messenger & Porter.

1 Oct. '84 360 00 16 Mar. '52 29 Sept. '84

3 Oct. '84 360 00 1 Sept. '62 20 Sept. '84

1 Nov. '84 360 00 23 May '58 INov. '84

1 Nov. '84 360 00 21 Mar. '50 1 Nov. '84

16 Dec. '84 360 00 11 Sept. '66 16 Dec. '84

23 Dec. '84 360 00 9 Sept. '52 23 Dec. '84

26 Dec. '84 360 00 4 Dec. '56 26 Dec. '84

16 Feb. '85 360 00 5 Nov. '60 16 Feb. '85

1 Apr. '85 360 00 14 Nov.'66 lApr. '85

1 May '85 360 00 24 Jan. '62 1 May '85

22 May '85 360 00 24 June '61 22 May '85

27 June '85 360 00 3 Feb. '63 27 June '85

1 Oct. 74 600 00 29 June '36 25 Apr. 74

23 Nov. 77 590 00 5 Sept. '32 23 Nov. 77

31 Mar. '82 390 00 25 Apr. '57 31 Mar. '82

1 Jan. '81 590 00 20 Oct. '34 28 May 79

Quebec Post Office.

Tourangeau, Adolphe, N . P.

.

Bolduc, Joseph Etienne

Chamberland, Charles

Lebel, Jean Alfred William.

.

Handford, William

Rochette, Leon Ambroise

White, William.

Gagnon, Zoel

English, Edward

Gaboury, Felix j3rd class clerk

Myler, Michael [3rd class clerk.

Postmaster

Asst. Postmaster.

2nd class clerk. .

.

2nd class clerk. .

.

2nd class clerk. .

.

2nd class clerk. .

.

3rd class clerk...,

3rd class clerk...

3rd class clerk...

L

5 July '83

1 July 75

1 Jan. 71

12 Dec. 77

1 July 79

1 July '85

1 July 74

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

Vezina, Ulric [3rd class clerk 23 May '82

2,000 00

1,400 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,170 00

950 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

15 Jan. '31

1 July '28

24 Nov. '32

11 Nov.'38

9 July '30

8 Jan. '33

28 Apr. '51

9 Mar. '42

11 Aug. '51

17 Nov. '45

5 Nov.' 46

26 Aug. '51

5 July '83

1 Nov. '54

3 Oct. '5£

13 Apr. '74

21 July '66

20 Nov. '6$

6 Nov. 71

17 Aug. 72

29 Oct. 72

12 Aug. 71

22 Oct. 73

24 June 71
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Quebec Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of
Birth.

•Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Caouette, Jean Baptiste

Turner, James Bailey

3rd class clerk 23 May '82

1 July *82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

17 Apr. '83

7 Jan. '84

3 Oct. '84

2 Mar. '85

2 Mar. '85

1 July '85

14 Apr. '59

18 Apr. 72

15 July '74

19 Mar. '75

20 Mar. '75

20 Mar. 75

23 Mar. 75

28 June 78

6 Feb. 79

23 Mar. '79

1 June '82

6 June '82

4 Jan. '83

1 Feb. '83

6 Feb. '83

6 Nov. '83

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '84

$ cts.

720 00

640 00

560 00

560 00

520 00

520 00

480 00

440 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

500 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

510 00

510 00

390 00

490 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

29 July '54

24 Aug. '51

17 Oct. '54

7 Jan. '47

24 Feb. '46

29 June '34

28 Mar. '65

28 Dec. '56

29 May '63

23 June '51

19 Apr. '67

23 Feb. '60

17 Jan. '27

26 Jan. '36

6 Feb. '46

22 Sept. '45

23 Aug. '40

27 July '51

7 Nov.'40

9 Aug. '59

15 Nov.'42

7 Mar. '48

18 Aug. '55

20 Aug. '44

16 Nov. '56

24 Oct. '45

11 July '55

25 July '53

8 July '61

20 Oct. '52

21 Mar. '55

16 Apr. '75

3rd class clerk 1 Mar. 77

3rd class clerk 26 Sept. '79

18 Mar. '80

3rd class clerk 12 Jan. '82

3rd class clerk 23 Jan. '82

3rd class clerk 17 Apr. '83

Eckhardt, William Henry A. 3rd class clerk 7 Jan. '84

3rd class clerk 3 Oct. '84

Gagnon, Charles Alphonse. .

.

Larue, Louis Joseph. Henry.

.

3rd class clerk 2 Mar. '85

3rd class clerk 2 Mar. '85

3rd class clerk :
25 June 79

Letter Carrier 14 Apr. '59

Letter Carrier 18 Apr. '72

Keynar, Thomas Letter Carrier 19 July 73

"Wilkinson, Robert Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

19 Mar. 75

Mercier, George 20 Mar. 75

20 Mar. 75

Pelletier, Frangois Xavier R.

Kelly, Henry Pierce

Letter Carrier 23 Mar. 75

Letter Carrier 28 June 78

Letter Carrier 6 Feb. 79

Gingras, Jean Philippe T

Gauvin, Pierre Napoleon

Letter Carrier 23 Mar. 79

Letter Carrier 1 June '82

Letter Carrier 27 Sept. 79

Mercier, Jean Adolphe D. . .

.

Duhault, Charles Eusebe. . . «.

Letter Carrier 4 Jan. '83

Letter Carrier 28 June '82

O'Dowd, Francis Letter Carrier 6 Feb. '83

Pelletier, Joseph Amable. . .

.

Joannet, Napoleon TJ'lric. . .

.

Boulet, Wilfrid Joseph A. .

.

Ouellet, Frangois Xavier. . .

.

Letter Carrier 15 June '83

Letter Carrier 6 Dec. '83

Letter Carrier 15 Apr. ;84

Letter Carrier 15 Apr. '84
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1885

POST OFFICE DEPAKTMEMT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Quebec Post Office—Continued

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary,

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

Letter Carrier 1 Nov. '84

24 Nov. '69

1 May 74

$ cts

360 00

490 00

860 00

25 July '53

27 Aug. '22

23 Oct. '20

3 Sept. '84

Messenger 24 Nov. '69

Denechaud, Telesphore Office Keeper & Letter

Collector
IMay 74

New Brunswick Division.

McMillan, Hon. John

Paisley, William

Whittaker, William C

Avery, William Richard. .

.

Hatch, Willoughby

Murray, Charles Alex

Bannister, William

Blizard, Frederick Wiggins .

.

Estey, Frederick Augustus .

.

Ryan, George Melville

Starkie, Walter

Philps, James

Weldon, William John, jr..

Pidgeon, Jacob Robert

Barker, George Augustus

Gross, Albert John

Wathen, Henry,

Price, David

Miller, John Gardiner

McKendrick, Dawson

Brittain, Alfred

Magee, Richard Graham

Jack, Samuel Rutherford. .

.

Maxwell, Samuel Rice

Willis, Edward LeRoc

Inspector I 7 Aug.'67

1st class clerk

1st class clerk

2nd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

Messenger

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk.

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class By. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 July 70

1 July '81

1 July 79

28 June '82

4 Oct. '83

1 July '67

1 Jan. '80

1 Jan. 73

1 Jan. 73

1 Aug.74

1 Aug. 74

1 Aug. 74

1 Feb. 75

1 Sept.76

1 Oct. 76

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 Sept.'81

1 Apr. '84

1 Apr. '84

1 Apr. '84

1 Jan. '82

20 Mar. '82

2,200 00

1,400 00

1,350 00

1,170 00

720 00

800 00

550 00

960 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

640 00

640 00

640 00

520 00

520 00

4 Aug. 16

4 Nov.' 31

6 Sept. '37

16 Apr.;' 56

29 June '26

!

7 Mar. '48

19 June '18

17 Oct. '46

5 Aug. '39

3 Nov. '54

17 Mar. '46

14 June '21

13 May '54

10 Apr. '30

20 Feb. '46

28 Sept. '55

17 Dec. '39

25 July '43

30 Nov.' 45

5 Apr. '59

21 Mar. '59

11 June '52

23 Mar. '54

17 Sept. '45

18 Dec. '61

7 Aug. '67

Uuly '67

9 Dec. '65

25 June '69

16 June 76

lApr. '81

Uuly '67

Uuly '67

16 Jan. '71

16 Jan. 71

29 Jan. 72

19 Aug. 72

1 Aug. 72

lFeb. 73

28 Aug. '74

1 Oct. 74

Uuly 76

Uuly 76

1 July 76

1 Sept. 79

1 Jan. '82

20 Mar. '82

20 Mar. '82

1 Jan. '82

20 Mar. '82
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

New Brunswick Division—Continued.

Name.

Freeze, Robert John

Oulton, George Heber

Murray, Alexander

Campbell, John

Hoyt, John Wesley

Edgecombe, Arthur Clarence.

Ketchum, Francis Edwin. . .

.

Present Rank.

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

30 June '82

4 Oct. '83

24 May '84

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 8 May '84

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Dec. '84

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 28 Feb. '85

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 6 Mar. '85

|> cts.

520 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

Date of

Birth.

26 July '48

14 Apr. '44

16 June' 56

22 Dec. '38

26 Sept. '54

25 Apr. '66

12Nov.'58

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

30 June '82

4 Oct. '83

24 Mar. '84

8 May '84

1 Dec. '84

28 Feb. '85

6 Mar. '85

Fredebicton Post Office.

McPeake, Patrick ,

Cameron, John ,

Phair, William Barry

Vavasour, Edwin W ,

Wilson, Albert Edward. . .

.

Phillips, Robert Bedford H.

Phair, Andrew Stratton

Postmaster. . .

.

2nd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk

.

Letter Carrier.

1 Aug. '80 1,600 00

1 May 75 1,200 00

1 July 79 800 00

1 July '82 680 00

21 Sept. '83 440 00

1 July '85 400 00

10 June 79 500 00

16 Apr. '36

31 Aug. '33

25 July '53

4 Oct. '54

8 June '61

24 July '61

22 Dec. '61

1 Aug. '80

Uuly '67

13 Jan. 72

Uan. '76

21 Sept. '83

2 Apr. '85

10 June 79

St. John Post Office.

King, Stephen James.

Woodrow, James.

Potter, Michael James

Reed, Augustus William

Otty, Henry Phipps

McNichol, Andrew

Mclntyre, Robert Charles . .

.

Ring, George Frederick

Flaglor, James Second

Finen, James Louis

Ring, John Wightman

Woodrow, Ross Dougal

Postmaster

Assistant Postmaster

1st class clerk ,

1st class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

11 Feb. '80

Uuly '68

1 Mar. 77

1 July '85

1 July 79

1 July '81

1 July '81

31 Jan. '82

2nd class clerk
j

1 July '82

2nd class clerk 1 July '85

3rd class clerk 1 July 79

3rd class clerk 1 July 79

2,400 00

1,500 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,170 00

1,090 00

1,090 00

1,200 00

1,050 00

900 00

800 00

800 00

16 Jan. '38

17 Mar. '33

3 Dec. '44

3 Oct. '54

31 Jan. '24

24 Mar. 45

27 Feb. '45

2 May '41

15 Mar. '53

7 Dec. '59

2 July '54

23 May '57

11 Feb. '80

22 Oct. '58

6 Apr. '63

lSept. 70

1 Nov. '64

2 Nov. '68

7 Jan. '69

31 Jan. '82:

1 Aug. 7a

15 Aug. 77

1 Aug. '71

6 Oct. 73
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

St. John Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Bank

.

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary

.

Date of

Birth.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

Hamlin, Ross Alexander

Jenkins, Thomas

Ritchie, Joseph Hunter 13rd class clerk.

Bell, John Parker 3rd class clerk.

Thompson, Alexander 3rd class clerk

Clark, James Clarence 3rd class clerk

Lee, Henry Percy

Harrison, John Swaison

Fairweather, Edmund W. H

Ferguson, Frederick

Copp, John Rowe

Hipwell, John Parkenson. . .

.

Hall, William Seymouth

McLaughlin, Robert

Young, "William

Belyea, Caleb

Plumpton, George William .

Lane, William

JVIcManus, James

Beamish, John

Withers, George Edward . .

.

Belyea, Uriah

Morgan, Archibald

Hill, Robert JLetter Carrier

Grant, James Oscar Letter Carrier.

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

. J3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk ,

3rd class clerk

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier. ....

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier 16 Nov. 77

Letter Carrier 16 Jan. '80

Letter Carrier |
21 Sept. '83

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

26 Jan. '83

20 Oct. '84

1 Dec. '84

1 Apr. '85

30 May '85

1 July '85

1 June '75

1 June 75

18 May 75

19 May 75

29 May 75

Letter Carrier.

Letter Carrier.

21 Sept.' 83

19 Apr. '84

1 July '84

1 Dec. '84

Elston, Charles Henry (Letter Carrier.

-

L Dec. '84

Bell, George. Office Keeper. .

.

J

26 May 71

$' cts.

800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

720 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

470 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

360 00

360 00

490 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

18 Dec. '55

24 Apr. '57

1 May '54

18 June '32

29 Aug. '57

8 Sept. '61

30 Aug. '56

15 Apr. 'GO

24 Mar. '51

28 Feb. '66

19 Jan. '60

10 Apr. '58

13 Dec. '50

18 May '22

19 Jan. '22

12 July '45

21 May '29

Uan. 74

6 Aug. '75

6 Aug. 75

1 Sept. 77

6 Sept. 77

Uan. '82

27 Sept. '82

26 Jan. '83

20 Oct. '84

27 Nov. '84

lApr. '85

30 May '85

Uuly '85

1 June 75

1 June 75

18 May 75

19 May 75

25 Mar. '58 29 May 75

8 May '38

19 July '41

22 Apr. '63

8 May '37

4 Apr. '49

27 Nov.' 41

25 May "55

16 July '39

2 Nov. 12

16 Nov. 77

16 Jan. '80

1 Nov. '82

27 Feb. '83

19 Apr. '84

7 May '83

30 June '82

11 Mar. '84

26 May 71

Nova Scotia Division.

Macdonald, Charles John. . . . Inspector

Story, John Douglas Assistant Inspector.

19 May 79 2,200 00

1 June '71 1,250 00

4 Apr. '41

3 Apr. '52

19 May 79

1 Jan. '69
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40 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 188ft

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Nova Scotia Division—Continued.

Name.

Stewart, Douglas.

Davison, Thomas Edmund. .

.

Sircom, Stephen John Rupert

Costley, Alfred

Kearns, "William

Meagher, Michael Henry

Bent, Edgar Augustus

Gabriel, James McNutt

Browne, Alfred

Davison, Robert

Cameron, John "William H .

.

McNeill, John

Crowley, "William

Hall, Samuel

Hawkesworth, George Alex.

.

Hoss, John David

Campbell, John

Hustis, Sydney Osborne

McKinnon, "William Crane .

.

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

Messenger -.

CM Ry. Mail Clerk....

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

McLean, David Yon R 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Keith, James Thomas.

McRobert, "William Henry .

.

Bemiett, William

Power, Charles Edward

Eaton, "William Payzant

Southall, Frederick

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '82

20 Jan. '82

4 Oct. '83

4 Oct. '83

1 Jan. '82

1 Apr. '85

1 Mar. '74

1 Dec. '74

1 Oct. '75

1 Aug. '76

1 July '79

1 Nov. '81

1 Nov. '81

1 Apr. '85

17 Dec. '80
j

20 Jan. '82
I

20 Jan. '82

20 Jan. '82

3 May '82

3 May '82

3 May '82

28 June '82

21 Sept. '83

21 July '84

Present
Salary.

| cts.

950 00

950 00

680 00

520 00

440 00

430 00

1,500 00

960 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

600 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

Date of

Birth.

17 Jan. '55

11 Sept. '56

1 Oct. '58

25 July '62

24 Aug. '55

18 June '36

14 May '51

23 Sept. '55

10 July '48

6 Feb.
r

34

24 May '41

17 Feb. '48

11 Apr. '50

2 Dec. '44

17 July '58

10 Dec. '50

20 Aug. '51

19 Aug. '54

15 Sept. '59

26 May '62

7 May '58

26 Feb. '54

22 July '43

27 May '63

7 Aug. '54

20 Feb. '60

Date of
First Ap-

pointment.

1 Apr. '73

9 Sept. '75

23 Nov. '76

20 Jan. '82

4 Oct. '83-

4 Oct. '83

13 Oct. 71

26 Nov. '72

2 Feb. 72

25 Nov. 72

10 Sept. 73.

23 July 74

16 Dec. 76

4 Oct. 79

4 Oct. 79

17 Dec. '80

17 Dec. '80

20 Jan. '82

20 Jan. '82

20 Jan '82

3 May '82.

3 May '82

3 May '82.

28 June '82

21 Sept. '83-

21 July '84

Halifax Post Office.

Blackadar, Hugh "William. .

.

Tremain, Frederick Valentine

Postmaster

Assistant Postmaster.

.

5 Nov. 74

1 Mar. 75

2,400 00

1,600 00

4 Mar. '43

17 Jan. '45

5 Nov.74

4 June '68

J18



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1S8G

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Halifax Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Cunningham, Arthur Henry. |2nd class clerk

Chamberlain, "William H. .

.

O'Bryan, Joseph Stanislas.

.

Creighton, Thomas Grassil.

.

Casey, Thomas William

Smith, William Villiers

Mulcahy, Patrick Joseph. . . . |3rd class clerk

Fraser, Charles Daniel 3rd slass clerk

Lownds, Charles Matthew R.

Power, Frank Joseph

Travis, Lewis Whitney

Parker, William

Delaney, Edward Joseph

Crowe, Albern Crawley

Walker, William Henry

P>oggs, Herbert Alfred

Sullivan, Edmund Addy ....

Kaye, Frank Crossley

Logan, Alfred

Saunders, Sampson

Fitzgerald, James

Wilson, John

Carroll, Edward «

Laurilliard, Henry Salter. .

.

Mahal*, John

O'Malley, John

Myers, Robert

Brodie, Neil

Grant, John Archibald

Wall, John

Davis, George

2u:l class clerk

2nd class clerk,

2nd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

I

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

Supt. Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier

Letter Carrier



40 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1S8G

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Halifax Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salaiy

.

$ cts.

600 00

580 00

390 00

390 00

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

Wood, John Samuel Michael.

Mulcahy, Joseph James. . .

.

Payne, Edward

Theakston, Major John

Crable, Otto Russell

Haszard, Thomas Walter

Box Collector

Box Collector

Box Collector

Messenger

25 Sept. 75

20 July 78

25 July '81

5 Apr. '83

21 Feb. '54

22 Aug. '47

17 Mar. '46

5 Nov. '58

25 Sept.75

20 July 78

25 July '81

5 Apr. '83

Prince Edward Island Division.

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 July 79

1 Oct. '83

720 00

640 00

11 Apr. '57 23 June 75

27 Jan. '54
j
11 Aug. 75

Charlottetown Post Office.

Brecken, Hon. Frederick de
St. Croix, Q.C.

Harris, "William Henry

Lawson, John Auld

White, Nicholas

Trainor, Bernard

Campbell, John Munro

McCarey, Joseph

Macdonald, Daniel Joseph..

.

Brown, John George W
Murphy, Mathew William. .

.

Robertson, John Neill

Postmaster and Assist,

Inspector

2nd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

1 Aug. '84

1 Mar. '82

1 Oct. 74

1 July 79

1 July 79

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

5 Apr. '83

6 Sept. '8

4

1 July '85

2,000 00

1,050 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

680 00

520 00

520 00

480 00

400 00

400 00

9 Dec. '28

21 Mar. '45

23 July '42

13 Sept. '55

16 Apr. '56

13 Apr. '56

15 Jan. '64

4 May '58

20 Oct. '62

13 Nov. '60

30 Jan. '51

1 Aug. '84

20 June 73

1 Oct. 74

Uuly 73

1 Oct. 74

lApr. 75

6 Dec. '80

1 Sept. '81

lApr. '83

6 Sept. '84

Uuly '85

Manitoba Division

McLeod, William Wallace. .

.

McGillis, Alexander

Tuck, Charles Favor

Broughton, James Leeman. .

.

Macpherson, William T

Marshall, Thomas Hadzor . .

.

Inspector

2nd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

1 Mar. '82

5 Aug. '81

1 July '82

23 Mar. '83

1 July '85

1 July '85

2,200 00

1,050 00

680 00

480 00

400 00

400 00

25 Mar. '49

23 Dec. '22

1 July '61

7 Jan. '52

21 July '59

30 Apr. '61

6 June 7W
19 Feb. 74

28 June '82

23 Mar. '8,3

1 July '85

Uuly '85
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Manitoba Divivision—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Kavanagh, Charles E

Patton, Andrew Jackson

Carman, James Adam Roy. .

.

Cox, Willis Thomas. . . ,

Norris, James George

Stewart, Charles Richard. .

.

O'Loane, James Thomas

Sewell, Langley

Moore, John Green

Brown, Joseph Henry Patrick

Sloan, William Bennett

Phinney, Henry Havelock .

O'Farrell, John

Harrison, Francis Edgar.. .

,

Gleeson, Cornelius

Date
thereof.

Chief Ry. Mail Clerk .

.

1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Present
SuLary

.

Date of

Birth.

15 Apr. '82

1 Dec. '72

1 May '83

1 Feb. 72

1 Nov. '81

1 July '84

1 July '85

1 Aug. 72

25 Oct. '81

5 Nov, '83

4 Dec. '83

22 Apr. '84

8 May '84

1 Sept. '84

1 Sept. '84

£ cts.

,200 00

960 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

600 00

600 00

800 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

31 Mar. '56

2 Dec. '38

16 Mar. '54

12 Mar. '51

27 Nov. '57

26 June '53

23 Sept. '50

14 Mar. '50

21 Sept. '35

11 Mar. '63

27 Aug. '62

19 Feb. '62

I
13 Nov.'62

1 Feb. '61

11 July '61

1 Aug. '80

21 July '65

17 Sept. 72

20 Aug. '68

4 Oct. 79

1 May '82

18 Apr. '82

4 Jan. 70

10 Oct. '81

5 Nov. '83

4 Dec. '83

23 May '82

8 May *84

1 Sept. '84

1 Sept. '84

Winnipeg Post Office.

Hargrave, William

Brough, Richard Redmond .

.

Poitras, John O'Connor

Barrett, Edward

Boswell, Charles Musgrave .

.

Allen, George Henry

Cairns, Albert William

Taylor, John, jr

Lynch, John Archibald

Prud'homme, Louis T

Scott, John

Dumas, Henri Cregg

Simons, John Robinson

Postmaster

Assistant Postmaster. .

.

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

14 Dec. 77 2,400 00 9 May '38 30 Apr. 74

1 Oct. '84 1,800 00 30 May '42 29 Jan. 72

1 Apr. 79 1,170 00 6 Dec. '48 4 Mar. 72

3 Apr. '82 1,050 00 1 Feb. '36 3 Apr. '82

1 Apr. '82 1,050 00 10 July '49 23 Mar. 81

1 Sept. '82 1,000 00 1 Aug. '55 1 Sept. '82

1 July '84 950 00 25 May '54 14 Mar. 782

25 Apr. '81 800 00 20 June '58 25 Apr. '81

31 Jan. '82 720 00 10 Feb. '60 31 Jan. '82

1 Mar. '82 720 00 4 Jan. '60 18 Sept. 79

3 Apr. '82 720 00 21 July '36 3 Apr. '82

3 Apr. '82 720 00 3 Aug. '58 3 Apr. '82

3 Apr. '82 720 00 20 Sept. '61 3 Apr. '82

1
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1836

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Winnipeg Post Office—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salaiy.

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

Cairns, Thomas Alfred

Bice, William Anglin

Lamothe, Alfred Felix W...

3rd class clerk 6 June '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

27 Mar. '83

25 May '83

21 Sept. '83

1 July '79

9 Jan. '84

12 Apr. '82

28 June '82

28 June '82

% cts.

720 00

560 00

560 00

52b 00

480 00

480 00

440 00

800 00

490 00

490 00

490 00

590 00

18 Aug. '52

25 June '63

21 Sept. '65

21 Nov. '64

6 Jan. '58

9 Mar. '57

8 Oct. '57

19 Jan. '51

6Juue '82

3rd class clerk 16 Feb. '81

24 Mar. '81

3rd class clerk 28 June '82

3rd class clerk 7 Sept. '82:

9 Sept. '82:3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk ......... 21 Sept. '85

IMar. 72

Griffith Edward Alfred Supt. Letter Carrier

—

12 Apr. :82

12 Apr. '82

28 June '82

Cunningham, "William ......

Letter Carrier 27 Feb. '61

29 Dec. '46Messenger 28 June '82

British Columbia Division.

Fletcher, Everard Hyde

J^onnan, "William Henry

Ferguson, Horace Albert

Eooney, John

"Wallace, Robert

Chadwick, Thomas

Newberry, Cowper William.

.

Finlayson, Charles William.

.

Inspector

2nd class clerk

3rd class clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 July '84 2,000 00

1 May 76 1,200 00

21 June '84 800 00

1 Oct. '73 800 00

8 May '51

23 Oct. '56

21 Mar. '54

16 Oct. '52

4 June '68

1 May 76-

8 July 73

11 July '71

Victoria Post Office.

Postmaster. . .

.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

1 Feb. '84 2,200 00

1 July '82 560 00

20 May '84 440 00

1 Dec. '84 400JO

8 Dec. '20

16 July '63

21 Apr. '66

20 Oct. '66

22 Oct. 73

15 Dec. '80

20 May '84

1 Dec. '82

122



9 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1-386-

14.—THE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE.--INSIDE SERVICE.,

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

foch.6, Joseph Charles, M .D.

,

Deputy Minister of Ag-
11 Aug. '64

29 Sept. 71

$ cts.

3,200 00

2,500 00

24 Dec. '20

20 Feb. '24

5 Dec. '59

Secretary, Chief Clerk..
29 July '70

Branch 1.—First Division.—Correspondence and Immigration.

Small, Henry Beaumont

Boardman, William Frears.

.

Currier, James Ewett Wilson.

lyAuray, Louis

Chief Clerk

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

3rd class clerk..

Poper, John Charles 3rd class clerk.

liemieux, Joseph Evariste. .

.

Moreau, Baithelerni

Cote, Didace

Desjardines, Wilfred Alfred.

Beaudoin, Joseph

Pruneau, Hector

3rd class clerk

Messenger

Messenger

Messenger

Packer

Packer

1 Jan. '85 1,800 00 31 Oct. '31 8 Feb. '68

29 June '82 1,250 00 1 Mar. '48 12 Feb. '80

5 May '84 1,200 00 26 July '49 1 Nov. '78

19 June '82 1,000 00 29 Apr. '49 22 Apr. '72

7 June '83 880 00 10 July '48 24 Nov. '81

23 May '82 700 00 22 Nov. '31 20 Nov. '62

1 Aug. '63 500 00 27 Jan. '20 '52

23 May '82 390 00 25 Mar. '58 14 Dec. '80

15 Feb. '84 330 00 26 July '59 28 Mar. '81

21 June '84 330 00
i

25 Apr. '36 25 Nov. '80

21 June '84 330 00 23 Nov. '43 7 Oct. '67

Second Division.—Historical Archives.

Brymner, Douglas |lst class clerk & Ar-

chivist

Marmette, Joseph Etienne E. 2nd class clerk & Asst.

Archivist

23 June '80

14 July '83

1,700 00

1.300 00

3 July '23

25 Oct. '44

26 June '72'

24 Oct. '67

Third Division.—Copyrights, Trade Marks, &c.

Jackson, Josias Barnwall

Tetu, Eugene Hilaire

1st class clerk..

2nd class clerk,

14 June '83

12Nov.'74

1,550 00

1.400 00

31 Oct. '46

1 Aug. '38

12 Sept. '65

11 Feb. '64

Branch 2.—First Division.

Cambie, Alexander Jeffrey. .

.

D'Auteuil, Joseph Elzear

Lynch, William Joseph

Chief Clerk. . .

.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

30 Nov. '69

23 May '82

23 May '82

2,350 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

13 Mar. '35

7 Nov. '42

30 Jan. '53

15 Sept. '57"

12 July '64

15 Aug- '66
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE—INSIDE SERVICE.

Branch 2.—First Division—Continued.

Name

.

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of
Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

Belaud, Louis Joseph

Vemer, James William David

3rd class clerk 23 May '82

1 June '84

20 May '84

$ cts.

900 00

650 00

650 00

15 Mar. '53

14 Mar. '45

15 July '38

1 May 76

12 May '813rd class clerk

Copping, John George E 3rd class clerk 79

Second Division.

Dionne, Joseph Ferreol 1st class clerk.

.Leveque, Auguste 3rd class clerk.

Caron, Charles Francis 0. . . . 3rd class clerk.

Lyster, John Henry 3rd class clerk

Hanright, William. 3rd class clerk.

1 July '83 1.500 00

23 May '82 900 00

23 May '82 850 00

23 May '82 850 00

23 May '82 650 00

8 Mar. '35

9 Mar. '50

1 Oct. '47

7 Oct. '55

3 Mar. '49

8 Apr. '68

18 Apr. '74

4 July '81

18 Feb. '80

20 Dec. '81

Third Division.

Casgrain, Hermenegilde .

.

Kouthier, David Alfred. .

.

Tache, Arthur Guillaume.

1st class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

12 Nov.74 1,600 00

12 Nov.74 1,400 00

1 July 79 650 00

27 Apr. '42

1 Oct. '44

24 Dec. '57

3 Sept. '61

1 June '61

7 Feb. 78

Fourth Division.

McCabe, Thomas

Fraser, Joseph Alexandre.

Leveille, Joseph

Lemaitre, George

Chabot, Louis Zacliarie . .

,

2nd class clerk.

.

3rd class clerk. .

.

Model Repairer .

,

Model Guardian.

Model Guardian.

1 July '83 1,300 00

22 Jan. '81 900 00

19 Nov.70 500 00

10 May '80 500 00

10 May '80 500 00

22 July '34

15 June '38

16 July '43

18 Sept. '36

25 Oct. '40

4 Aug. 73

15 Apr. 71

19 Nov. 70

20 Jan. 70

25 Mar. 73

Branch 3.

—

Statistics and Census.

Layton, John Gregory G . . .

.

Statistical Officer 30 Sept.'84 1,550 00 23 Oct. '19 18 Mar. '69

Tanguay, Rev. Cyprien, D.L. Attache Special 1 July '68 1,400 00 15 Sept. 19 16 Mar. '65

St. Denis, Emery Henri 3rd class clerk 23 May '82 850 00 18 July '51 9 Feb. 74

Lyster, Mrs. Amy Florence.

.

3rd class clerk 12 May '84 600 00 20 Oct. '59 lAug. '81

Fraser, Mrs. Henriette Lydia 3rd class clerk 12 May '84 450 00 24 Jan. '50 12 May '84
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49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Baker, Malcolm Clapp.

Brown, Charles B

Caimiff, William, M.D.

Present Rank.

Assistant Inspector. .

.

Caretaker Quarantine

Hospital

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

i
First Ap-

j

pointment.

12 May '84

21 June '84

, Mortuary StatisticalOffi-

1 cer.... 23May'84

Chipman, Clarence Campbell 2nd class clerk & Acct.,

London Office

Clarke, John, M.D,

Clement. Albert W
Coburn, George Hayward.

Mortuary StatisticalOffi-

cer

1 Feb. '82

11 Apr. '85

1 Jan. '84

Connolly, Thomas

Couture, Joseph Alphonse

Daniel,JohnWaterhouse,M .D

Dixon, Edmund William A.

Dyke, John Henry Sadler..

Fee, Samuel Henry, M.D. .

.

Veterinary Inspector. .

.

Mortuary StatisticalOffi-

.

cer.... 26Sept.'83

Emigration Agent, Dub-
lin. I 7 May '80

$ cts.
|

800 00

400 00

316 03

1,800 00

117 03

$5 p. day

115 54

23 Dec. '49

30 Sept.'31

'30

'55

10 Mar. '50

9 Feb. '57

'55

Superintendent Cattle

Quarantine

Mortuary StatisticalOffi-

cer

3rd class clerk.

Government Agent Liv-

erpool

Mortuary StatisticalOffi-

Foy, Charles

Graham, Thomas...

Grignan, Theodore.

Hopkirk, William H
.
, M . D

.

Jackson, William

Jessop, John

cer

Emigration Agent. ..

.

Emigration Agent....

Constable, Sheep Scab
Quarantine

Medical Superintendent

Quar.Offi'r,Vict'ia,B.C

Immigration Agent,Vic-

toria, B.C

21 May '79

7 Feb. '83

11 Feb. '74

29 Apr. '78

23 Mar. '85

14 Oct. '69

17 Oct. '72

: Apr. '85

1,000 00 10 July '24

Johnson, Richard, M.D

Keating, Thomas A., M.D.

Kirkwood, Henry, M.D

LaRocque, Alphonse B ., M.D

Leveque, Charles

800 00

165 31

600 00

2,100 00

135 22

1,000 00

1,300 00

600 00

15 Dec. '50

27 Jan. '45

26 Dec. '57

29 May '74 400 00

18 Aug. '83

4 Dec. '83

5 Apr. '83Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Mortuary Statis'l Officer! 7 Mar. '85

Inspecting Physician. . . | 1 July '79

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Veterinary Inspector. .

.

Lefebvre, Louis D {Constable and Guardian

10 Feb. '83

7 Apr. '85

7 Apr. '85

1,000 00

1,000 00

128 71

124 72

400 00

451 86

1,800 00

600 00

'40

26 Oct. '28

20 Mar. '40

28 Dec. '15

28 Nov. '34

10 Nov. '30

30 Oct. '37

1 May '36

21 July '23

20 Jan. '27

20 Jan. '27

26 May '79

21 June '84

23 Mar. '83

'67

11 Apr. '85

I May '83

26 Sept. '8S

1 Aug. '71

21 May '79

7 Feb. '83

II Feb. '74

29 Apr. '78

23 Mar. '85

14 Oct. '69

17 Oct. '72

7 Apr. '85

29 May '74

18 Aug. '83-

4 Dec. '83

5 Apr '83

7 Mar. '85

1 July '79

10 Feb. '83

7 Apr. '85

7 Apr. '85
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 188G

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Xevesque, Charles

Miquelon, Joseph Zoel Cyr .

.

Moriu, Edward, M . D

McEachran, Duncan

McEachran, Charles

McLeod, William M., M.D.

Neilson, William J., M.D..

O'Reilly, Francis

Pare, Frederic, M.D

Eobillard, Adolphe, M.D.

Eowand, Alexander E., M.D

Eutherford. James Page,M.D

Eyall, Isaac, M.D

Smith, Andrew

St. Germain, J. H. L., M.D

Sylvester, George Perry, M.D

Sylvestre, Isaie, M.D

Tracy, Robert, M.D

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Wickwire, William N
.
, M .D i Inspecting Physician,

Halifax

Present Rank.

Veterinary Inspector. .

.

Asst. Immigra'n Agent.

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Chief Vet . Inspector . .

.

Veterinary Inspector. .

.

Insp'ng Phy'n, Sydney.

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Messenger, Quebec

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Medical Insp 'r, Quebec.

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Chief Veterinary Insp'r
for Ontario

Devlin, John

Devlin, Mary

Harding, William S
.
, M .D .

.

Doherty, Catherine

Matheson, George Gordon.. .

Mclsaac, Donald John

Stafford, Lawrence

Doyle, Patrick

Stein, Leonce Francois L. .

.

Steward, Quarantine
Station. Halifax

Quarantine Matron .

.

Inspecting Physician

Stewardess.

Steward Quarantine
Hospital

Caretaker Quarantine
Hospital

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Immig'tion Agent, Que-
bec

Asst. Immigra'n Agent,
Quebec

Chief Clerk of Immigra-
tion Office, Quebec. .

.

7 Apr. '85

10 May '83

11 Feb. '84

12 May '84

16 Mar. '85

1 Aug. '83

4 Aug. '83

1 Aug. '81

9 Feb. '85

10 Feb. '83

1 Mar. '65

29 Jan. '85

23 Mar. '83

20 Mar. '82

20 Feb. '85

20 Feb. '85

2 July '85

16 June '85

71

15 July '65

13 Aug. 73

3 June 74

1 Feb. 75

11 Aug. '81

12 Jan. '85

3 July '68

5 June 77

5 June 77

$ cts,

$5 p. day

800 00

256 11

1,500 00

1,800 00

1,000 00

119 96

365 00

118 07

168 53

1,200 00

119 58

189 90

500 00

113 30

112 96

114 47

123 79

1,200 00

560 00

150 00

1,200 00

300 00

300 00

400 00

1,700 00

1,100 00

1,000 00

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

24 Jan. '38

11 Feb. '34

20 Apr. '54

27 Oct. '41

28 May '63

4 July '54

4 Mar. '54

3 Aug. '31

23 Sept. '37

18 Sept. '36

25 Dec. '20

11 Dec. '44

12 May '30

'36

15 July '33

19 Dec. '52

22 Aug. '46

20 Feb. '36

18 Nov. '39

'31

'37

18 Jan. '14

1 May '37

3 Jan. '51

'42

1 Apr. '20

21 May '38

21 Feb. '50

7 Apr. '85

10 May '83

11 Feb. '84

12 May '84

16 Mar. '85

1 Aug. '83

4 Aug. '83

1 Aug. '81

9 Feb. '85

10 Feb. '83

1 Mar. '65

29 Jan. '85

23 Mar. '83

20 Mar. s

82

20 Feb. '85

22 Feb. '85

20 July '85

16 Jan. '85

'65

15 July '68

13 Aug. '73

14 Aug. '47

lFeb. 75

11 Aug. '81

12 Jan. '85

26 Nov. '61

20 Apr. '69

IMay 74



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Anderson, William.

.

Daley, John Joseph..

Present Rank.

Interpreter

Immigration Agt.,Mon-
treal

Date
thereof.

Macpherson, Richard.

Hitchen, Harry ,

Wills, William John

Donaldson, John Andrew

. Smith, Andrew John

Smyth, Alfred George

Gardner, Samuel

Clay, Edwin McCully

Graham, William Cameron B

Immigration
Kingston .

Agent,

Caretaker.

Present
Salary.

Bennett, Thomas

Baker, Adam Jacob.

McGovern, James Michael.

Immigra'n Agt. ,Ottawa

Immigtn. Agt.,Toronto.

Immigtn.Agt.,Hamilt'n

Immigtn . Agt
.

, London

Immigtn, Agt., St. John

Immigtn. Agt., Halifax

Immigration Agt., Win-
nipeg

Immigtn. Agt. , Brandon

Immigration Agent

Immigration Agent,

Port Arthur

Tetu, Jean Etienne I

Immigration
Emerson.

.

Agent.

Montizambert, Frederick,MD

Osgoode, Henry

Anderson, Andrew. .

.

Brantigam, William].

Langlois, Come

Dancose, George

Medical Superintend' t,

Grosse Isle

Steward, Grosse Isle . .

.

Interpreter, Grosse Isle.

Asst. Steward, Grosselsle

Boatman, Grosse Isle.

.

Boatman, Grosse Isle.

Turcotte, Xavier I
Boatman, Grosse Isle

Turcotte, Jean Baptiste

Masson, Edouard

Trenaman, Thomas, M .D .

.

Tweedale, John B., M.D. .

.

Walsh, William

Boatman, Grosse Isle..

Baker, Grosse Isle

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Foreman, Cattle Qua-

rantine

24 Apr. '68

7 Aug. '69

2 May 70

6 May 72

17 Aug. '61

1 Sept. '64

30 Sept. 74

May 74

11 Feb. '80

2 Mar. '84

5 Feb. '83

12 Apr. '82

1 Apr. '83

5 June '84

1 Apr. 76

18 Mar. '69

11 Aug. '83

1 May '55

27 Apr. 72

20 Apr. 72

1 July 79

20 Apr. 72

1 July 79

8 Apr. 74

!0 Apr. '83

$ cts.

660 00

1,300 00

1,300 00

$1.25 per

day..,

Date of

Birth.

22 June '40

4 Sept. '42

23 Sept.'31

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

10 Jan. '85

1 May 77

1,300 00

1,650 00

1,250 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1
;
000 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

400 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

600 00

400 00
|

I

266 m
350 00

240 00

350 00

240 00

400 00

190 25

120 91

600 00

24 Dec. '37

25 June18

4 Mar. '16

18 Mar. '28
I

29 Apr. '24

13 Dec. 13

20 July '59

18 Mar. '35

14 Nov. '30

22 Sept. '21

29 Sept.'54

26 Dec. '49

3 Feb. '43

26 May '30

31 Mar. '31

2 Feb. '49

4 Sept. '41

1 May '49

22 Sept. '42

16 July '43

16 Oct. '23

21 Sept. '52

Apr. '67

7 Aug. '69

2 May 70

6 May 72

17 Aug. '61

'61

30 Sept. 74

'66

11 Feb. '80

I Nov. '82

23 Feb. 78

12 Apr. '82

16 Apr. '83

23 May '82

lApr. 76

18 Mar. '69

II Aug. '83

1 May '55

27 Apr. 72

20 Apr. 72

Uuly 79

20 Apr. 72

1 July 79

8 Apr. 74

30 Apr. '83

I 10 Jan. '85

13 May 72
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40 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

Secretary to High Com-

$ cts.

3 Jan. '56

Robert, Francois

missioner in England

Constable Sheep Scab
Quarantine

Constable Sheep Scab

25 Oct. '81

16 Mar. '85

16 Mar. '85

1,800 00

600 00

600 00

— Mar. '80

16 Mar. '85

16 Mar. '85

15.—THE DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.—INSIDE SERVICE.

Smith, William Deputy Minister

Hardie, John [Chief Clerk

Magee, William Loftus 1st class clerk

Gourdeau, Frangois Evariste. Chief Clerk

Anderson, William Patrick.

.

Alexander, William Hewitson

McElhinney, Mark Patton .

.

Oxley, James Macdonald. . .

.

Carleton, William Byron. . .

.

Halkett, James Brooke

.Nicholson, Moses Vernon C.

Stumbles, William W
Owen, Alfred Wallace

McLelan, Thomas Edwin. . .

.

Steele, Henry Vivian

Halkett, Andrew

McClenaghan, James Edward

Morin, Jules

Robertson, James Alexander.

1st class clerk

2nd class clerk

2nd class clerk.

3rd class clerk ,

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk ,

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

11 Nov. '67

22 Jan. '72

1 July '73

1 July '85

1 July '80

15 June '82

1 Aug. '82

17 Apr. '83

23 Nov. '71

7 Nov. '73

10 July '79
I

1 July '80

3rd class clerk i 29 Oct. '81

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

Messenger

Messenger

15 June '82

1 May '84

1 July '79

1 July '83

7 Oct. 72

6 June '74

3,200 00

2,400 00

1,800 00

1,800 00

1.700 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

1,000 00

950 00

950 00

950 00

900 00

950 00

850 00

800 00

700 00

550 00

500 00

500 00

12 June '21

25 Aug. '33

18 Sept. '40

20 Oct. '44

4 Sept. '51

5 Mar. '47

18 Mar. '37

22 Oct. '55

31 Oct. '49

24 Sept '45

10 July '46

20 Mar. '46

|
19 Apr. '43

19 Dec. '58

18 June '47

28 Oct. '54

21 Jan. '62

7 Oct. '42

25 July '60

'42

11 Nov. '67

11 Feb. '70

13 May 70

1 May '75

11 Nov. '67

1 Aug. '82

17 Apr. '83

23 Nov. 71

7 Nov. '73

10 July '79

Uuly '80

29 Oct. '81

15 June '82

IMay '84

Uuly 79

Uuly '83

7 Oct. 72

6 June '74

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

\gency at Quebec.

Gregory, John Uriah Agent

Buteauj E. E Clerk to Agent.

1 July '85

1 July 76

2,200 00

900 00

7 Nov. '30

23 May '37

22 Aug. '64

1 July '61
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49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1836

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE,

Agency at Quebec—Continued

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Blanchette, Louis Alfred

Bruneau, John Gregory

Clerk to Agent

Clerk to Agent

1 July '82

1 Dec. 72

$ cts.

1,000 00

821 25

28 May' 48

11 Nov.'57

14 May 72

1 Dec. 72

Agency at St. John, New Brunswick.

Harding, John Henry.

Harding, Frederick J

.

Agent

Clerk to Agent.

1 July '83

1 Jan. '84

1,800 00

800 00

2 Jan. '18

1 Aug. '53

1 Oct. 71

1 Nov. 71

Agency at Halifax, Nova Scotia.

Johnston, Henry Wentworth.

Dalby, Henry

Agent

Clerk to Agent.

1 July '80

1 July '80

2,000 00 j 25 May '34

1,100 00 4 Apr. '18

1 Dec. '67

4 Jan. 73

Agency at Victoria, British Columbia.

Lewis, Herbert George
j

Agent „ 11 May '85 1,600 00 2 Jan. '30 11 May '85

Agency at Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island.

Lord, Artemas. Agent
I

1 Sept. '84 I 1,200 00 14 May 'i 1 Jan. '81

Superintendent of Light Houses.

Mitchell, James

Hutchins, Charles Alfred

Barbour, William

Harty, Patrick

Supt. of Lights.

Supt. of Lights.

Supt. of Lights.

Supt. of Lights.

1 Nov.71

15 Feb. '84

23 Mar. '83

1 July '83

1,200 00 10 Oct. '25 1 Nov. 71

1,200 00 4 Dec. '42 15 Feb. '84

1,200 00 16 Oct. '31 10 May 80

1,200 00 25 May '35 1 June '80

Board of Examiners of Masters and Mates.

Scott, Capt. Peter Astle, R.N

Taylor, John

Chairman

Clerk to Chairman,

25 May '82

5 Nov.'83

2,000 00

550 00

25 Feb. '16

1 Aug. '52

7 Mar. 71

5 Nov. : 8i

129
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Board op Steam Boat Inspection.

Name. Present Rank.

Risley, Samuel
\

Chairman.

Smith, William Morgan

Meneilly, Walter James

Burgess, John

Adams, Edward

Samson, Joseph

Abell, Edmund R

St. John, Oliver Phelps

Vigor, Edward Samuel

Deputy Chairman.

Inspector

Inspector

Inspector

Inspector

Inspector

Inspector

Inspector

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

27 July '57

5 July '54

1 July '84

7 July '73

2 May '83

1 Jan. '85

24 Nov. '83

19 Apr. '84

30 Apr. '84

$ cts.

1,800 00

1,400 00

1,300 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

Date of

Birth.

14 May '22

4Nov.'18

28 Nov. '31

20 Nov. '25

22 Nov. '40

4Nov.'33

11 Apr. '26

28 Apr. '46

7 July '47

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

27 July r57

5 July '54

2 Mar. '72

7 July '73

2 May '83

24 Jan. '67

2 Feb. '77

19 Apr. '84

30 Apr. '84

Inspectors of Hulls and Equipment.

Coker, Charles R

Harbottle, Thomas

Brunelle, Pierre

McElhinney, Mark Paton...

Dick, James

Inspector.

Inspector.

Inspector.

Inspector.

Inspector.

5 Apr. '83

5 Apr. '83

5 Apr. '83

5 Apr. '83

22 Apr. '84

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

800 00

15 July '25

10 Aug. '29

29 Jan. '29

18 Mar. '37

29 Apr. '26

26 Sept. '82

5 Apr. '83

5 Apr. '83

5 Apr. '83

22 Apr. '84

Meteorological Service.

Carpmael. Charles,

Menzies, Thomas

Stewart, William Alleyne . .

.

Davison, William Iletcher.

.

Superintendent of Me-
teorological Office and
Director of Magnetic
Observatory at To-
ronto ,

Observer, Magnetic Ob-
servatory

Observer, Magnetic Ob-
servatory

Observer, Magnetic Ob-
servatory

13 Jan. '80 2,000 00 &
Director's

House, es-

timatedat
$400

Apr. '53 540 00

Apr. '53 540 00

June '65 540 00

19 Sept. '46

29^May'21

25 Jan. '28

4 Mav '37

13 Jan. '80

Apr. '53

Apr. '53

June '65

130



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE-.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Light House Service.

Name. Present Rank.

,

Lights above Montreal.

Hackett, Andrew

Date
thereof.

Keeper

.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Campbell, Thomas

Turcotte, Colise Keeper

Lambert, William McGregor.; Keeper

Hoar, John Keeper

Keeper I 1 Apr. 75

Baker, Benjamin Booth.

Swetman, Frederick

Keeper

Keeper !
31 Mar. '63

cts.

lOct. 75 685, allow-

1

ed fori

buoys
|150

300 00

250 00

450 00

425, allow-

ance §10

350 00

425, allow-

ance $10

1 Nov.' 77

1 Oct. '80

28 Mar. '68

8 Oct. '75

Date of

First Ap-
pointment .

4 Oct. '44

1 Apr. '32

15 May '32

20 Sept. '44

6 Oct. '45

3 Jan. '27

Duman, George '.Keeper of Light and Fogj
^^ ^ ^^

auce $1 10

McDonald, George Nicolson.

Root, Albert

Light Keeper ! 1 Apr. '75

Light Keeper.

Laberge, Alfred !

Light Keeper

Patterson, Garret Wellington I
Light Keeper i

27 Apr. '81

15 Dec. '63

26 Jan. '66

Shannon, William I Light Keeper

Shannon, George Assistant Light Keeper

Roddick, Robert !
Light Keeper

Currie, George

De Lamorandiere, Pierre R .

.

Meloche, Simon

Leger dit Parisien, Charles.

.

Veaudry, Olivier

Taillefer, Isa'ie

Johnson, George H

Light Keeper .

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Hill, Thomas Henry.

.

Wallace, John Ganard

48-81

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

27Sept.'6

27 Sept. '66

Mar. '72

1 Apr. 78

1 Apr. '84

1 May '80

1 May '80

29 Apr. '82

1 Apr. '81

18 Mar. '59

1 July '84

22 Julv '82

400, allow-

ance $10

250 00

240, allow-

ance $10
I

350, allow-

1

ance $10|

425, allow-!

ance $10j

'25

17 Feb. '27

13 July '40

1 Jan. T7

2 Feb. '36

4 Feb. '32

'44

175 00 i
18 Nov.'51

500 00 2 Jan. '40

650 00 15 Sept.'44

400 00 2 July '44

250 00 22 May '32

200 00 26 Feb. '24

300 00 23 Nov. '39

300 00 28 Feb. '41

250, allow-

ance $75 I 27 Dec. '31

325 0C • 10 Apr. '52

250 00 16 May '54

13 Jan. '64

1 Apr. 75

1 Nov. 77

1 Oct. '80

28 Mar. 68

8 Oct. 75

31 Mar. '63

31 May '54

1 Apr. 73

15 Dec. '63

26 Jan. '66

27 Apr. '81

27 Sept. '66

27 Sept. '66

Mar. 72

lApr. '%

24 Sept. '80

1 May '80

1 May '80

29 Apr. 72

1 Apr. '81

18 Mar. '59

1 July 77

1 July '81

131



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SSG

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Light House Service—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Mackenzie, Donald

Woodward, Henry Hitchcock

Dickinson, William E

Cullis, William

Davieau, Hyacinthe

Smithers, Richard Hudson..

Chisholm, Robert Kerr.

Dunlop, Albert

Collins, George

Lawson, Adam Alexander. .

.

•Charlebois, Edmond

Leclerc, Moi'se

Gloude, Benjamin

Grubb, William Andrew

Burlingham, James

Pringer, John

Dick, Andrew

Sutherland, Alexander

Fortier, David Hugh A

Hunter, David

Scholfield, Fergus

Ead, Charles

Morgan, Henry

Simpson, George Benedict. .

.

Sherwood, William Henry...

. Hudgins, Louis

Pye, Robert

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper and Fog
Alarm Engineer

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper and Fog
Alarm Engineer .'

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Keeper and Guardian of

Presqu'Isle Lights &
Buoys

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Date
thereof.

21 May 74

24 May '69

30 Sept.79

19 Sept/82

1 July '81

20 Feb. 73

1 Oct.

28 Feb.

'

1 Jan.

1 July

1 May

19 Sept.

7 Sept.

1 Sept.

1 May

4 Jan.

10 Aug.

1 Apr.

31 Jan.

1 July

10 Apr.

25 Feb.

20 Oct.

1 Sept.

1 Apr.

25 Mar.

5 Apr.

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

350 00

425, allow-

ance $10

400, allow-

ance $10

700 00

400 00

400, allow.

anee $10

200 00

350 00

Date of

Birth.

28 Jan. '28

9 Nov. '29

24 Aug. '38

24 Aug. '50

15 Aug. '30

7 Sept. '24

25 May '19

21 Apr. '45

425 0<* it Jan. '17

400 OCt

200 00

300 00

300 00

500 00

400 00

300 00

400 00

225 00

500 00

350 00

350 00

300 00

260 00

475 00

375 00

300 00

400 00

»

4 May '46

Feb. '40

7 Jan. '27

22 Nov. '51

2 Mar. '50

5 Mar. '37

2Sept.'19

13 Oct. '32

14Nov.'54

12 July '40

4 Aug. '30

4 July '44

20 Oct. '35

10Sept.'04

13 July '13

24 Dec. '35

15 Jan. '15

28 Apr. '26

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

20 May

24 May

30 Sept.

1 Oct.

1 July

20 Feb.

1 Oct.

28 Feb.

20 Sept.

1 Nov.

1 May

19 Sept.

7 Sept.

1 Sept.

1 May

4 Jan

.

10 Aug.

7 May

'67

79

77

'81

73

'66

72

'59

'81

74

'68

72

78

76

'67

•80

74

11 Apr. '65

29 Oct. 79

10 Apr. 71

7 June '69

20 Oct. '64

28 Jan. 70

29 Apr. 74

25 Mar. 79

5 Apr. 77
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DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Light House Service—Continued.

Name. Present Rank

.

| Date
thereof.

Orr, Nathaniel Taylor Light Keeper

Jackson, William. Light Keeper.

Shepherd, William Light Keeper

Mason, John

Kay, William

Brown, Lemuel S

MeAvoy, Patrick

Baxter, William

Borron, Edward

Valoisj Felix

Maiison, John

Harrison, Thomas

Young, Reuben

Purvis, William

McKay, Charles Stephen. .

Boyter, Robert

Miller, George Scott

Covert, John

Mcintosh, Daniel

Light Keeper..

Light Keeper.

.

Light Keeper.

.

Light Keeper.

.

Light Keeper.

.

Light Keeper.

,

Light Keeper.

.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

2 Oct. '68

1 Aug. '80

23 Oct. '69

Present
Salary

.

; cts.

425, allow

ance $70

400, allow-

ance 1 50

300, allow-

ance $25

Date of

Birth.

McKay, Bryan Eight Keeper.

12 Nov. 70

'

1 Oct. '83

10 May '80

1 July '80

23 May '82

13 Sept.'25

8 Oct. 75

11 Apr. '83

1 Sept.76

8 Aug. 76

21 Mar. 77

27 Aug. 77

1 Oct. '83

1 July '82

! 1 June '81

1 May '84

26 Oct. '21

Date of
First Ap-
dointment.

200 00

350 00

150 00
|

150 00

3Q0 00

500 00

200 00

500 00

400 00

150 00

500 00

500 00

350 00

150 00

200 00

200 00

300 00

14 Feb. '22

30 June '30

11 May '17

30 Oct. '20

24 Jan. '24

10 Jan. '30

9 Nov. '30

8 May '37

9 Jan. '56

29 Mar. '15

12 Dec. '45

16 Oct. '17

19 July '05

21 Aug. '35

15 Feb. '38

31 July '35

22 Apr. '12

6 Jan. '25

20 Mar. '33

8 Oct. '41

2 Oct. '68-

1 Aug. '80<

23 Oct. '69

12 Nov. 70

• 5 Mar. 75

10 May '80

1 Apr. 75

23 May '82

13 Sept. 75

8 Oct. 75-

1 May '80:-

1 Sept. 76*

8 Aug. 7©

21 Mar. 77

27 Aug. 77."

2 Oct. 79-

11 Feb. '80

1 June '81

1 Oct. '81

26 Oct. '81

Lights Betwkbm Montreal and Qusb«.c.

Boisvert, Francis Light Keeper.

Fiset, Jean Hector Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Auger, Olivier

Magnon, Amedee...

Giguere, Denis

Menard, Denis

Brunelle, Constant .

26 Sept. '55

22 Apr. 75

20 Apr. '67

26 Mar. 74

24 Apr. 70

28 Apr. 73

28 Apr. 73

150 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

300 00

170 00

200 00

6 May 1795 26 Sept. '55.

4 Nov.'U 22 Apr. 75

20 May '11 |
20 Apr. '67

8 Feb. '31 26 Mar. 74

25 Apr. '37 24 Apr. 70

2 Feb. '49 28 Apr. 73

14 Aug. '15 28 Apr. 73
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DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Lights Between Montreal and Quebec—Continued.

Name

.

Martin, Paul, jr..

.

Hammond, Ira W

.

Present Rank.

Light Keeper 28 Apr. 73

Light Keeper 8 Sept.75

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Lights Below Quebec.

€orrnier, William,

Oagne, Thomas . .

.

Pope, Edward . .

.

Carter, William.

.

Malouin, Alfred

Galibois, Jean Baptiste.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Col "en, Michael

Parent, Etienne

Turbide, Telesphore ....

Richard, Alphonse

Cote, Louis Trefie

Dion, Samuel

Locke, Henry Light Keeper

Trudeau, Auguste I Light Keeper

Landry, Elimine
I

Light Keeper

Painchaud, Joseph (Light Keeper

Setter, Robert
|

Light Keeper

Cassidy, James 'Light Keeper

Wyatt, Matthew Thomas 1 Light Keeper

Esnouf, Charles Dumaresq. . . Lt. Keeper & Engineer

Lindsay, Gilbert William . .

.

' Light Keeper

Desjardins. Thomas Roy I Light Keeper

Boulliane, Pierre Light Keeper

-C&te, Paul.

Bertrand, Auguste.
J HI;

Desjardins, Octave.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

26 Apr.

9 Sept.

21 Oct.

1 Oct.

1 July

23 June

1 Jan.

19 July

16 Sept.

7 Oct.

1-0 Sept.

1 Jan.

11 Nov.

17 Oct.

27 Oct.
:

1 Oct.
:

9 Oct.
!

9 Oct.
!

26 Sept.

19 Sept.
:

11 Feb.
:

1 July

2 Dec.
:

3 Nov.'

21 Dec. '

23 May

'

$ cts.

150 00

200 00

Date of

Birth.

10 July '33

2 Apr. '52

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

28 Apr. '73

8 Sept. '75

300 00

400 00

400 00

900 00

400 00

320 00

900 00

600 00

1,300 00

400 00

300 00

400 00

500 00

400 00

300 00

320 00

200 00

300 00

800 00

800 00

500 00

450 00

200 00

500 00

300 00

250 00

21 June '46

Oct. '22

11 Mar. '23

17 Feb. '44

1 Apr. '52

23 Jan. '41

9 Oct. '51

15 July '28

6 June '48

1 Oct. '46

26 Aug. '37

3 May '42

21 June '37

24 Mar. '36

7 Apr. '24

15 July '44

31 Mar. '17

24 Sept. '36

13 Mar. '32

3 Nov. '50

24 May '28

9 June '26

12 July '30

29 Mar. '40

25 Dec. '45

2 Aug. '30

26 Apr.

9 Sept.

21 Oct.

1 Oct.

1 July

23 June

1 Apr.

19 July

16 Sept.

7 Oct.

10 Sept.

17 June

11 Nov.

17 Oct.

1 Apr.

1 Oct.

9 Oct.

23 Sept.

26 Sept.

19 Sept.

11 Feb.

14 Nov.

14 Apr.

3 Nov.

21 Dec.

23 May
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Lights Below QuEBEC-Continued

.

A. 1886

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary

.

Simard. Edouard Light Keeper.

David Light Keeper.
Desjardins.

Babin, Lonis Damase, jr. . ,.|Light Keeper.

Tafford, Louis Ferdinand. . . .
Light Keeper.

.

Loud, John Light Keeper..

Lemieux, Ferdinand Light Keeper.

Chabot, Edouard Light Keeper.

Tremblay, Dorilas Light Keeper.

Eodricpie, Francois Frederic. Light Keeper.

Frazer, Elzier .. Light Keeper.

Lafleur,Leon...
Light Keeper.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment .

Thurber, William

Martin, Jules

Beck, John

Pelletier, Edouard. . .

,

Leblanc, Capt. Regis.

1 July '83

1 Apr. '81

23 Feb. 74

26 Oct. '72

1 Mar.79

28 Oct. '81

1 Aug. '80

1 May 75

22 Jan. '58

22 Oct. '61

15 Mar. '67

5 Oct. 78

23 Dec. 79

1 Sept.74

15 July '82

> cts.

300 00 i 18 Dec. '44

340 00 9 Apr. '26

450 00 16 Aug. '48

400 00
J

5 Mar. '23

150 00
j
15 Mar. '22

12 Nov. '29

19 Jan. '46

8 Aug. '35

Delisle, Treffle

Gcurdeau, Capt. Isaac

Beaubien, Joseph Hudon dit

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper Light Ship

27 May '80

8 May '66

%K*-'"*^«
Quay, Louis

Gauthier, Jean

Arcand, Flavien

Beaumont, Louis Couillard de Light Keeper,

Savard,Jean
ILightKeeper

Light Keeper 1 May 77

Light Keeper |
21 Feb.76

Light Keeper

Tremblay, Hilaire

Ascah, James,

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper,

20 Apr. 76

23 May 78

4 June '83

4 June '83

2 Sept. '80

400 00

300 00

350 00

250 00

500 00

150 00

175 00

300 00 I

400 00

1,500 00

500 00

500 00

2,300 00

250 00

300 00

300 00

500 00

400 00

300 00

300 00

400 00

28 Oct. 70

lApr. '81

23 Feb. 74

26 Oct. 72

1 Mar. 79

28 Oct. '81

lAug. '80

18 Feb. 75

26 Dec. '37 |
22 Jan. '58

22 Oct. '61

15 Mar. '67

5 Oct. 78

23 Dec. 79

1 Sept. 74

16 May 79

11 Jan. 78

27 May '80

8 May '66

29 Oct. 75

13 Aug. 75

21 Feb. 76

12 Mar.' 37

7 Aug. '23

Uime'35

'56

23 Apr. '29

llJan.'28

21 Apr. '38

24 May '54

29 Mar. '36

25 Oct. '45

7 Jan. '41

2 Sept. '30 i
20 Apr. 76

22 May '32 23 May 78

9 Mar. '07

14 Jan. '33

17 Mar. '31

25 Oct. 76

25 Oct. 76

2 Sept. 80

MacFarlane, John

Ellis, William Enslie Light Keeper

135



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Lights in Nova- ScotiA—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Tate. James

DeCoste, Christopher...

Snow. George Henry. .

.

Hall, John William....

Morrison, Donald

Ruggles, Henry M
Power, Lawrence

Robichaud, Mathurin. .

,

Doane, Isaac

McKenzie, Roderick . .

.

Johnson, Edward

LeQuesne, John
,

Creighton, Henry H

Smith, George Edward.

.

Fulker, Benjamin

Condon, William, jr. .

.

White. Joseph B

Sellon, S.T.N

Duarie, William

Pearl, Albert

Orchard, Lorenzo Dow.

.

McDougall, Langhlin...

Wolf, Enos

Crooks, Seth

MacDonali, Alexander
! Light Keeper

Firth, Charles Morrison Light Keeper

Light Keeper,

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

,

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper .

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper .

,

Light Keeper .

,

Light Keejier.,

Light Keeper.,

Peters, John Grant.

Ernst, John Andrew,

Burke, James

Early, William
,

Light Keeper

Light Keeper,

Light Keeper,

Light Keeper.

Date
thereof.

1 Jan. '67

14 June 75

1 Apr. '81

8 Oct. 77

31 Mar. '68

IDec. '64

14 Jan. 79

31 Mar. '68

1 July 71

1 Aug. '81

14 May 72

18 May '81

6 May 74

7 July '80

4 Oct. 78

6 May 74

16 Nov. '64

1 Jan. '55

30 Oct. 71

29 Dec. 73

1 Jan. 77

30 Nov. '57

11 July '64

20 June 72

3 Dec. 72

30 June '80

1 Oct. '65

29 Oct. '64

2 May 71

Oct. '58

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

380 00

250 00

350 00

400J)0

350 00

400 00

200 00

500 00

800 00

300 00

500 00

300 00

200 00

800 00

380 00

500 00

280 00

240 00

500^00

500 00

400 00

420 00

360 00

350 00

500 00

350 00

460 00

300 00

300 00

230 00

Date of

Birth.

15 Jan. '20

24 Dec. '44

29 Mar. '56

10 Feb. '48

18 Aug. '23
j

22 Mar. '37
DIM:
10 Dec. '41

9 Nov. '10

13 Sept. '54

2^Jan.'33

29May"'30

6 Dec. '48

11 Sept. '37

30kMay '20

12 May '19

1 Mar. '55

19 Mar. '16

27 Dec. '08

15 Sept. '43

29 Nov. '40

30 May '50

30 June '25

9 July '22

16 May '30

15 July '37

23 Nov. '47

16 Jan. '32

19 Feb. '04

4 Sept. '22

17 Apr. '06

Date of
First Ap-
pointment .

1 Jan. '67

14 June 75

lJApr. '81

8J3ct. 77

31 Mar. '68-

IDec. '64

14_Jan. 79

31 Mar. '68

1 July 71

1 Aug. '81

14 May 72

18 May '81

6 May 74

1 July 72

1 Apr. '61

6 May 74

16Nov.'64

1 Jan. '55

30 Oct. 71

29'Dec. 73

1 Jan. 77

30 Nov. '57

11 July '64

20 June 72

3 Dec. 72

30 June/80

1 Oct. '65

29 Oct. '64

2 May 71

Oct. '58
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DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Lights in Nova Scotia—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary

.

Horn, Edward

Mullins, Zebud

McKinnon, James

McKay, Robie I

Light Keeper

Newcomb, John Hatfield. . . . \
Light Keeper

Light Keeper 1 Feb. 79

Light Keeper 1 May '84

Light Keeper
j

1 July '85

4 Feb. '82

30 June '74

Hogg, James William Light Keeper

Chisholm, Colin A Light Keeper

Bonner, George

McDonald, John Allan

McDonald, Joseph H (Light Keeper

McDonald, James I

Light Keeper

Perry, Elson

Dunn, James M.

.

Amew, Mathurin

Beaton, Angus .

.

Gilkie, Alfred. .

.

Mundell, Joseph (Light Keeper

Brown. James William

$ cts.

500 00

1 July '81

5 Mar. 77

Light Keeper 18 Apr. 74

Light Keeper

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

10 May '80

1 July '80

1 Apr. 75

31 Dec. '53

26 Oct. '59

15 Dec. '53

1 Nov. 78

1 July '81

18 Oct. '69

Crowell, Corning

Morrison, Angus Bain

Bigsby, Charles William. .

.

DeMings, Francis

Goudock, Edward

Amerault, Basil

Munn, George

Suthern, Rupert De George.

Dillon, James P

Doane, John Hiram ,

Supt. and Keeper of Hu-

mane Establishment

and Foff Whistle .... 5 June 85

Keeper Lighthouse and

Engineer Fog Whistle

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper Lt.&F.W.

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

'Tiro

Doane, Joshua Light Keeper

16 Apr. '80

17 Jan. 76

9 Nov. 74

10 May '80

3 Dec. '80

17 Apr. 71

11 Aug. 75

16 June 75

llMay '67

1 July 71

23 Feb. 74

Date of

First Ap-
dointment

.

23 Oct. '21

8 Aug. '23

10 May '29

12 Aug. '45

10 May '10

27 Sept. '52

17 Jan. '42

31 Oct. '38

7 June '45

14 Oct. '50

17 Mar. '22

11 Aug. '30

8 Feb. '41

18 Oct. '21

12 Aug. '24

16 Aug. '50

23 Feb. '44

800 00

800 00

140 00

200 00

400 00

250 00

200 00

250 00

300 00

400 00

800 00

350l>0

31 Mar. '6a

16 June 74

20 June 72

4 Feb. '82

30 June 74

1 Julj '81

5 Mar. 77

18 Apr. 74

10 May '80

3Nov.77

15 Mar. 70

31 Dec. '53

26 Oct. '59

15 Dec. '53

1 Nov.78

8 Jan. 77

18 Oct. '69

5 June '34 22 July 75

27 Mar. '46
j

11 Jan. '42

15 June '23

12 May '54

13 Oct. '28

25 Dec. '18

2 Feb. '37

14 Aug. '53 I
16June^75;

1 Jan. '39 1 May '67

23 Dec. '44 1 July 71

(

30;Jan. '31 23 Feb. 74
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DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Lights in Nova Scotia—Continued.

Name.

Latimer, Charles

Smith, Robert Innis

McNeil, Stephen

McKay, Donald John

Qninn, James

Saulnier, John Hilaire ,

Wrayton, William "Walsh .

.

Samson, Cyrille

Campbell, Samuel Cunard.

.

Muirhead, Robert

Kenney, James Rodman .

.

Christian, Patrick, sr

McRae, Donald

Gerrior, Dennis

Palmer, Howard Walter..

Gilkie, Alexander

Present Rank.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Date
thereof.

Keeper of the two light-

houses & Sunt, of Hu-
mane Establishment
on St. Paul's Island.

.

Engineer of Fog Whistle

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Winton, Robert Bruce

Wrayton, Arthur McAvoy.

.

Bollong, James

Card, Nelson

Rand, Allan T

Perry, John

Baker, Thomas

Webb, William John

Monroe, William Leander. .

.

McLeod, Angus

Ferguson, John ,

Engineer & Keeper of

Fog Whistle

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Engineer Fog Whistle.

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

IDec.

11 Nov.

14 Mar.

14 Mar.

1 Apr.

8 Aug.

13 Jan.

1 Dec.

17 Apr.

6 Nov.

27 May

27 Sept.

29 Nov.

17 June

22 May

8 Jan.

1 May

25 Nov.

6 Aug.

12 Nov.

5 Sept.

17 Dec.

1 Oct.

26 Sept

28 Oct.

27 Oct.

29 Oct.

74

73

74

74

75

78

80

74

71

74

75

75

75

78

78

77

78

'74

'77

77

77

78

'83

'79

79

'80

'80

Present
Salary.

$' cts.

300 00

300 00

120 00

160 00

200 00

200 00

350 00

350 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

200 00

250 00

200 00

500 00

450 00

150 00

300 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

350 00

200 00

300 00'

400 00

120 00

Date of

Birth.

14 Jan. '30

15 May '44

June '40

30 Mar. '25

'24

20 June '49

22 Mar. '57

15 Sept. '31

19 Oct. '36

14 Nov. '51

24 Jan. '20

28 July '31

15 June '35

25 Mar. '54

11 Sept.' 59

2 Mar. '30

20 Sept. '49

12 Apr. '39

15 Mar. '18

26 Mar. '41

20 May '37

26 Jan. '38

7 Feb. '55

21 Oct. '52

15 Mar. '37

21 Apr. '40

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

1 Dec. '74

11 Nov. 73

14 Mar. 74

14 Mar. 74

13 Apr. 74

8 Aug. 78

13 Jan. '80

1 Dec. 74

17 Apr. 71

6 Nov. 74

27 May 75

27 Sept. 75

29 Nov. 75

17 June 78

22 May 78

8 Jan. 77

28 Apr. 77

25 Nov. 74

6 Aug. 77

12 Nov. 77

5 Sept. 77

17 Dec. 78

19 May 79

26 Sept. 79

28 Oct. 79

27 Oct. '80

29 Oct. '80
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DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Lights in New Brunswick.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary

.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Sutherland George A

Bent, Arthur Wellesley. . .

.

Blacklock, George Coleman.

Leblanc, Charles Placide.

.

Phillips, Thomas

Williston, William W
Kent, Oliver Arthur | Light Keeper

Light Keeper.

.

Light Keeper.

.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Reinsburrow. Robert

McEwen, David

Daly, Timothy

Wilson, James

Gallant, William Abel . .

.

Stymest, James

Richard, Fabien

Pendlebury, George Alex.

1 July '85

15 Sept.75

19 May 73

4 May 72

19 Sept. 73

Light Keeper I

31 May 73

20 Jan. '80

12 Oct. 72

22 July 75

1 Oct. 78

1 Jan. '83

14 June 75

8 Dec, '81

1 July 75

6 Apr. '52

Date of

Birth.

Clark, Timothy

Morrison, Duncan

ilobertsou, Mier

Dumaresq, Francis Xavier.

.

Munrow, Ezra

Kent, John Ward

Savoy, Thomas

Archer, William

Robichaux, Dosithe J. B. .

.

Dutch, John

Tatton, James

Snell, Edward Dukes

Forbes, Joseph jLight Keeper

Davidson, Alexaxder (Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keej)er

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper
|

1 May 75

Light Keeper 1 19 Sept. '82

19 Mar. 77

7 Apr. 77

7 Jan. '84

25 Feb. '80

7 Apr. 77

30 Apr. '84

19 Sept. '82

1 Apr. 73

9 July 73

7 Nov. 72

20 Apr. 71

7 May 75

f
cts.

200 00

300 00

400 00

250 00

800 00

300 00

600 00

200 00

300 00
|

700 00

800 00

400 00

200 00

185 00

300, allow-

ance $20

470 00

300 00

23 Mar. '39

20 Dec. '44

18 Oct. '26

17 Oct. '41

11 July '24

29 Dec. '43

3 Apr. '37

10 May '15

Date of

First Ap-
pointment .

20 Mar. '82

15 Sept. 75

19 May 73

4 May 72

19 Sept. 73

31 May 73

20 Jan. '80

12 Oct. 72

3 July '44
I

22 July 75

30 June '30

16 May '32

28 Nov. '44

4 Aug. '18

6 Jan. '13

14 Feb. '19

4Dec.'36

29 Dec. '28

Maloney, Hugh

280 00

500 00

400 00

200 00

'

240 00

250 00

200 00

500 00

650 00

150 00

250 00

350 00

250 00 I 29 July '42

12 Dec. '40

12 Mar. '34

23 June '40

17 Dec. '18

22 Dec. '46

14 Aug. '30

10 Jan. '35

28 May '09

31 Aug. '18

15 Feb. '20

27 Nov. '27

29 May '16

1 Oct. 78

5 Dec. '57

1 Apr. 71

8 Dec. '81

lMay '64

6 Apr. '52

20 Dec. 72

25 Feb. '80

29 Dec. 73

9Nov. 72

15 Jan. 76

1 Apr. 73

9 July 73

7 Nov.72

lApr. 75

7 May 75

1 July 74

3 Apr. 73

19Mar.77

7 Apr. 77

10 Aug. '80
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DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.
Lights in New Brunswick—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Ross, Elijah Light Keeper

Hamm, Charles Philip. Light Keeper

Leger, Pacifique
I Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper

.

Roy, Hilarion

Helms, George

McLaughlin, Walter B.

Seely, Neil

Daggett, Mark

McKnight, Joseph

Date
thereof.

Hachey, Octave i Light Keeper

27 Jan. '80

14 Jan. 79

16 May 79

25 June 79

3 May :

82

29 Oct. 79

3 May '80

15Nov.'83

1 July '81

12 July '81
|

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

300 00

300, allow-

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment .

17 Aug. '45

ance $25 20 Feb. '32

200 00 10 May '33

150 00 22 Nov '19

400 00 4 Feb. '33

500 00 24 Jan. '29

700 00 12 May '46

400 00 10 Oct. '36

150 00 28 July '36

150 00 '34

5 Mar. 78

14 Jan. 79

16 May 79

25 June 79

3 May '82

1 Apr. '53

3 May '80

15Nov.'83

1 July '81

12 July '81

Lights in British C OLUMSIA.

Argyle, Thomas

Cox, Emanuel

Erwin, Walter

McKinnon, Alexander.

Gray, Robert

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

1 Jan. '80 1,500 00

21 Dec. 77 500 00

5 Oct. 'SO 700 00

21 Dec. 77 500 00

5 Nov. 76 600 00

3 Aug. '39

20 Jan. '32

14 Aug. '52

25 Dec. '36

12 Oct. '35

1

20 July 71

21 Dec. 77

5 Oct. '80

21 Dec. 77

5 Nov. 76

Lights in Prince Jijuward Island.

McLaine, Archibald

McCabe, John

Beaton, Alexander Rentforth.

McLellan, Angus Jerome

McDonald, William

McLeod, Michael

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Ronaghan, Peter
|
Light Keeper.

McDonald, William

McMillan, James

Walsh, James

McDonald, Angus (Neil's son)

Hewson, William
,

Munn, Thomas Hugh

26 July 73

11 May '85

26 July 75

30 Oct. '80

30 Oct. '80

26 July 75

26 July 75

1 Dec. 75

7 Oct. '80

15 Nov. '81

13Nov.'80

18 Aug. '81

Light Keeper I 11 Nov. '81

140

Light Keeper,

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper.

Light Keeper

.

Light Keeper.

1

300 00

200 00

250 00

250 00

300 00

300 00

250 00

300 00

5 Aug. '23

28 Jan. '55

1 Nov.'22

30 Nov. '12

6 Jan. '27

27 Mar. '24

16 Apr. '46

29 Aug.' 46

250 00 I 9 May '29

300 00 20 Feb. '30

200 00
I
10 May '31

200 00

300 00

Sept.'34

Oct. '34

3 Apr. '67-

1 June '80

10 July '67

20 Apr. 73

20 Nov. '53

3 June 73

21 Apr. 73.

1 Dec. 75

7 Sept. 76

15 Nov. '81

13 Nov. '80

18 Aug.' 81

11 Nov. '81
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16.-THE DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Deputy Minister.

Chief Clerk

2nd class clerk. .

.

3rd class clerk..

.

Tilton, Major John

Bauset, Samuel Pierre .

.

Venning, Robert Norris.

Webster, James Sutton.

Belliveau, Aime Henri |3rd class clerk.

Kent, Silas Blair 3rd class clerk

Aumond, Telmont 3rd class clerk

Murray, John Adam 3rd class clerk

1 July '84

21 Sept.'85

15 June '82

15 June '82

15 June '82

1 June '82

1 July '83

15 June '82

$ cts.

3,200 00

1,800 00

1,250 00

850 00

850 00

850 00

750 00

550 00

27 Mar. '37

6 Dec. '32

14 Feb. '54

14 Dec. '46

20 Apr. '54

28 Apr. '55

15 Sept. '51

20 Oct. '59

Date of

First Ap-
pointment .

11 Nov. '67

— Apr. '54

15 July '69

1 Sept. '69

8 Oct. '78

23 June '82

11 Feb. '81

13 Feb. '80

DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Wilmot, Samuel |Supt. of Fish Culture

Wilmot, Charles

Parker, William. . .

,

* Radford, Joseph.

,

Vibert, Philip

Mowat, Alexander.

Moore, Aloan Head.

In charge of Newcastle,

Out., Fish Hatcheiy

& Clerk to Supt

In charge of Sandwich
Ont., Fish Hatchery

In charge of Tadousac,

Que. Fish Hatchery..

In charge of Gaspe (Que

fish H

1 July '76

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '74

Fish Hatchery
J

1 Jan. '85

1 Sept. '82
In charge of Restigoiiche

(Que.) Fish Hatcheiy.

In charge of Magog(Que)
Fish Hatcheiy

Wilmot, Asa Burnham K*^/ *$£
J

Hatchery

Farquhareo„, C. A
|
VSjSl* hSGE?

Sheasgreen, Isaac

McCluskey, Charles

Clark, Henry.

In charge of Mirimachi
(N.B.) Fish Hatchery

In charge of St. John
River (N. B.) Fish

Hatchery

In charge of Dunk River

(P.E.I) Fish Hatchery

In charge of Fraser River

(B.C.) Fish Hatchery.

1 Feb. '81

1 Nov. '75

1 Sept. '81

1 Jan. 74

1 Aug. '82

1 July '80

1 Aug. '85

2,000 00

750 00

1

250 00 [

750 00

600 00

300 00

600 00

600 00

22 Aug. '22

2 Apr. '55

15 Aug. '42

27 Jan. '44

22 Sept. '56

20 Apr. '36

15Nov.'46
800 00 i

500 00
I
20 Dec. '35

500 00

600 00

400 00

Aug. '21

22 Apr. '34

1,200 00 15 May '59

1 June '66

1 July '82

1 July '82

Uuly '74

1 Jan. '85

lFeb. '82

1 Feb. '81

1 Nov. '75

1 Sept. '81

1 Jan. '74

1 Aug. '82

1 July '80

1 Aug. '85

Since deceased.
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DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank. Date
thereof.

!
Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Rogers, "William Henry Insp. of Fisheries for

Nova Scotia 1 July '81

$ cts.

1,800 00 14 June '22 Sept. '68

Yenning, "William Henry Insp. of Fisheries for

2s ew Brunswick 1 Aug. '67 1,800 00 5 July '22 1 Aug. '67

Duvar, John Hunter .

.

Insp. of Fisheries for

Prince Edward Island 16 May 79 800 00 29 Aug. '30 16 May '79

Bertram, Alexander Charles. Fishery Ojficer for Cape
Breton Island 22 Apr. '84 500 00 '50 22 Apr. '84

Pittendrigh, George Insp. of Fisheries for

British Columbia 10 Aug. '8 4 800 00 1 Sept. '31 1 July 79

McQueen, Alexander 1 Insp. of Fisheries for

Manitoba £ X.W.T.. 1 Dec. '84 900 00 22 Jan.,'50 1 Dec. '84

Gilchrist, Frederick Charles .

;

Fishery Overseer,
Qu'Appelle District.

.

22 Oct. '84 300 00 20 Apr. '59 22 Oct. . '84

"Wakeham, William Commander of Fisheries
Protection Steamer
'•La Canadienne." .

.

2 June '79 1,200 00 30 No v. '45 2 June 79
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17.-THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.-1NSIDE SERYICE.

Name, Present Rank.

Bailliarge, George F., C.E .

Cobeil, Antoine

Perley, Major Henry F., C.E

Fuller, Thomas

Dionne, Octave

Steckel, Louis Joseph Rene

Arnoldi, John Rogers

Date
? thereof.

Deputy Minister

Secretary & Chief Clerk

Chief Engineer

Chief Architect

Acct't. & Chief Clerk.

.

Present
Salary

.

Chief Clerk

Macpherson, Major James P

Bance, Edmond Pierre

Mechanical Engineer

and Chief Clerk...

Chief Clerk

2nd class clerk, Ac
countant's Branch. .

.

Roy, Elzebert

Lightfoot, Francis Cuthbert..

Tache, Joseph Charles

Macpherson, Donald Alma. .

.

Cartier, Pierre

Kingston, Alfred George

Dionne, Ernest.

f 2nd class clerk

\ Pvte. Sec. to Minister

2nd class clerk, Engi-

neering Branch

2nd class clerk, Chief

Draughtsman

4 Oct. 79

29 June '85

15Nov.'80

9 Dec. '81

10 Dec. '79

1 July '80

7 July '83

15 Feb, '8 4

1 July '80

1 July'84

1 July '83

1 July '83

Date of

Birth.

$ cts.

3,200 00

1,800 00 I 22 Sept.' 53

3,200 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

3,200 00

2,050 00

2,050 00

2,100 00

1,800 00

1,350 00

1,150 00

1

400 00 J

1,200 00

1,200 00

5 Mar. '31

8 Mar. '23

8 Mar. '35

6 Sept. '44

31 Jan. '39

29 May '39

25 Feb. '40

13 Oct. '60

3 Apr. '47

25 Mar.' 50

31 Oct. '81
3rd ciass clerk, Corre-

spondence Branch . .

.

3rd class clerk, Accounts
, Branch 7 Feb. '82

3rd class clerk, Accounts

Branch I
1 July 83

Verrault, Jules Edouard.

Talbot, Horace.

Clk., Secretary's Branch

3rd class clerk, Secre-

tary's Branch

Clk., Secretary's Branch

O'Brien, Stephen Edward. . . 3rd class clerk, Engi-

neering Branch

Belleau, Antoine E...

.

Smith, Edmund John

Hennessey, George Francis.

Clk., Secretary's Branch

3rd class clerk, Secre-

tary's Branch

13 Oct. '79

23 Aug.' 79

13 Oct. '79

23 May '82

10 Mar.'84

18 May '85

Potvin, Henri

Chabot, Joseph Alfred.

3rd class clerk, Chief!

Clerk, Architect' s Br. 4 June 83

Messenger
j

22 June '
61

Messenger 4 June '83

~T48

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

950 00

650 00

650 00

550 00

550 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

19 Feb. '50

28 Nov. '53

10 Oct. '54

21 Aug. '49

10 May '42

1 Jan. '48

1 Sept.' 64

8 July '54

2 Apr. '62

22 Sept. '44

17 May '72

1 May' 72

Oct. '59

27 Apr. '64

Jan. '61

6 Dec. '59

1 May '64

'72

1 Feb. '82

1 July '74

Jan. '72

10 July '74

27 Oct. '78

24 June '72

29 June '81

13 Oct. '79

23 Aug. '79

13 Oct. '79

1 Sept. '80

10 Mar. '84

4 June '82

26 Dec. '64

21 Oct. '26

00 27 Oct. '63

4 June '83

22 June '61

4 June '83
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Telegraph and Signal Service in British Columbia.

Name. Present Rank.

Manager & Asst. Supt.

.

Assistant Operator

Night Operator

Assistant & Messenger.

.

Messenger

Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer .

Archibald, William F..

Sinclair, George A

Christie, William

Leclaire, Maximilien. .

.

Jacklin, Thomas J

Smith, John j Caretaker

Sherwood, Charles H Operator and Repairer.

Skinner, Mrs Operator

Conway, Annie

Callaghan, Jeremiah A.

.

O'Neil, Maurice

Wake, Baldwin H

Edwards, Henry J

Wilson, James

Mackintosh, Samuel T.

.

MacLure, Susan E

Hadley, Mark L

McMurphy, George

Good, John H

Maclure, John

McCutchen, John

Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer.

.

District Superintendent

Manager & Asst. Supt.

.

Assistant Operator

Night Operator

Messenger

Operator

Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer.

.

Ryder, Roland Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator

r

Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer.

.

Date
thereof.

Wirth, Jordan M. . .

.

Brown, Frederick S .

.

Fraser, William

Pearson, Edward

Reynolds, William K.

O'Hare, Daniel

Good, Henry L

Mackay, John J

1 Jan. '81

1 Dec. '82

1 Jan. '85

1 Aug. '82

1 Nov. '85

1 Jan. '82

8 Jan. '84

Testing

1 Aug. '85

1 Aug. '83

16 Dec. '84

15 Aug. '81

1 June '81

22 May '80

9 May '82

1 May '81

8 July '85

1 Dec. '84

22 Nov.'84

1 Mar. '65

15 June '65

1 Jan. '83

1 June '85

13 May '81

1 Aug. '83

20 July '85

10 June '85

27 May '80

16 Feb. '85

20 Sept. '85

Present
Salray.

$ cts.

per month.

100 00

60 00

75 00

30 00

15 00

5 00

50 00

office no

60 00

80 00

10 00

30 00

50 00

125 00

100 00

60 00

75 00

20 00

40 00

60 00

50 00

30 00

50 00

50 00

30 00

50 00

60 00

60 00

60 00

60 00

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

17 Dec. '37

27 Feb. '06

5 Feb. '63

29 May '68

20 Sept.' 71

15 Mar. '62

salary

7 May '54

28 Feb. '55

21 Dec. '72

30 Jan. '52

29 Oct. '67

13 July '56

1 Mar. '61

23 Oct. '57

8 Aug. '60

21 Dec. '70

14 July 70

11 July '31

8 Jan. '42

22 Mar. '55

8 Mar. '68

13 Aug. '60

27 Mar. '70

28 Aug. '36

11 Dec. '56

11 Nov.'54

16 Oct. '63

4 Feb. '52

1 Jan. '81

1 Dec. '82

1 Jan. '85

lAug. '82

1 Nov. '85

1 Jan. '82

8 Jan. '84

attached

.

1 Aug. '85

1 Aug. '83

16 Dec. '84

15 Aug. '81

1 June '81

22 May '80

9 May '82

1 May '81

8 July '85

1 Dec. '84

22 Nov. '84

1 Mar. '65

15 June '65

1 Jan. '83

1 June '85

13 May '81

1 Aug. '83

20 July '85

10 June '85

27 May '80

16 Feb. '85

20 Sept. '85
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Telegeaph and Signal Service in British Columbia—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

Yenn, Albert J Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer.

.

Operator and Repairer.

.

28 Oct. '81

23 Sept.'82

1 May '80

June '66

20 Apr. '82

17 Feb. 73

29 July '85

$ cts.

per month.

60 00

50 00

50 00

60 00

47 00

83 33

40 00

11 Apr.' 61

28 Jan. '59

1 Oct. '39

Mar. '32

6 May '65

10 Feb. '43

17 Jan. '52

28 Oct. '81

Lebourdais, Alhert J

Walker, William.

23 Sept. '82

1 May '80

Yeates, Henry June *66

Barlow, Isabel 20 Apr. '82,

Stone, James. 17 Feb. '73

Hardy, Frederick C 29 July '85

48—10
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18.—THE DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.—INSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Trudeau, Toussaint, C.E.

Page, John, C.E

Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Deputy Minister,

Chief Engineer Canals.

Schreiber, Collingwood, C.E. j Chief Engineer & Gen-
eral Manager Gov't

Rys., & Chief Engin-
eer C.P. Railway

Bradley, Alexander Priestly,

Baine, James

18 Mar. '64

15 Mar. '64

Oct. 73
July '80

23 May '82

Cross, Thomas

Fissiault, Hypolite Adolphe

Bonneville, Jean Francis N

.

Tilley, "William James

Maynard, Martin Wilkins..

Jones, Louis Kossuth

Dixon, Frederick Augustus. . 1st class clerk

Stewart, Douglas Bayne

Secretary

Accountant & Chief

Clerk ...J, 1 July 72

Chf. Clerk Intercol. Ry. 1 Feb. '80

Law Clerk I 21 Dec. '69

1st class clerk

.

1st class clerk.

1st class clerk.

1st class clerk.

1st class clerk & Assist-

ant Accountant

McLaughlin, Samuel |2nd class clerk.

Filteau, Louis Honore !2nd class clerk.

Greenfield, Arthur Narraway 2nd class clerk,

Costin, Charles |2nd class clerk.

Almon, Andrew Uniacke. . . . ,2nd class clerk.

Fortier, Lucien Napoleon

Dion, Louis Didier

Shannon, Samuel Leonard, .

.

Cameron, Alexander "Walker.

Hill, William Bruce Almon.

Pugsley, John William

Methot, Joseph Eugene

Deslauriers, Isidore N

Nevill, Christie Stephen

Deslauriers, Isidore

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

3rd class clerk

Chief Messenger

Assistant Messenger. .

.

Assistant Messenger. .

.

8 Oct. 78

8 Oct. 78

23 Mar. '80

1 Feb. '80

1 Jan. '81

23 May '82

July 71

22 Oct. 73

1 June '82

30 June '82

1 Mar. '83

1 July 73

9 July 73

22 May '82

29 June '82

29 June '81

1 July '83

1 July '83

Oct. '67

16 Jan. '80

1 July '82

$ cts.

4,100 00

4,500 00

| 4,000 00

2,400 00

2,400 00

2,050 00

1,800 00

1,700 00

1,700 00

1,550 00

1,550 00

1,550 00

1,350 00

1,400 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

1,300 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

850 00

850 00

600 00

800 00

800 00

500 00

460 00

390 00

Date of

Birth.

28 Sept.' 26

9 July '15

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

13 Dec. '59

Sept. '42

14 Dec. '31 1 May '64

26 Oct. '31

7 Sept.'22

9 Dec. '36

8 Oct. '28

27 Feb. '29

18 May '39

25 Feb. '49

9 June '50

7 May '43

20 June '50

28 Jan. '26

27 June '44

1 Jan. '59

1 June '29

25 July '52

6 Apr. '49

26 May '43

18 Jan. '62

25 May '52

22 Dec. '59

12 Mar. '61

5 Nov.'57

28 Apr. '35

24 Mar. '64

9 Sept. '52

31 Jan. '57

June '65

15 June '60

5 Feb. '56

11 July '69

May '69

Nov. 70

15 Apr. 73

9 Jan. 79

Oct. '59

8 Mar. 70

May 74

21 Dec. 79

1 Nov. 78

1 Oct. '69

'65

'80

13 Feb. 79

29 June 81

25 Feb. '80

24 Dec. '80

May '59

Uuly 75

79
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Miscellaneous.

Name. Present Rank

.

Tomlinson, Joseph.

.

Brophy, John Byrne

Cowan, James

Compton, William.

.

Simard, Joseph.. ....

.

Muaia, Henry

Thibault, Charles...

Inspector of Bridges

Divisional Engineer, C.

P.R., B.C

Date
thereof.

9 Feb. '80

1 Apr. '80

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

$ ctse

2,500 00

2,160 00

22 June '16

24 Feb. '44

Date of

First Ap-
pointment ,

1 Jan. '70

1 Jan. 76

Dominion Official Arbitrators.

Official Arbitrator.

Official Arbitrator.

24 May '69

24 May '69

Official Arbitrator i 13 Dec. '79

Official Arbitrator 1 Oct.

Secretary to Board of

Official Arbitrators. . . 22 Nov.'80

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

3 Nov. '03

12 Feb. '26

'28

1,000 00
|

2 Oct. '25

j

2,000 00 ' 16 Sept.' 40

24 May '69

24 May '69

13 Dec. 79

2 Sept. 73

22 Nov. '80

Cornwall Canal.

Macdonell, Duncan Allan

Tackaberry, William; ....

Gillie, John

Gillespie, Daniel

Phillips, William

Cass, Edward

Denneney, James

Denneney, John

Stoneburner, John A

Smith, John

Lalonde, Frank

Hames, William

Degan, Lawrence

Bridges, John

Hurlly, Robert

Carr, Thomas

Bowie, John

Denneney, Patrick

48-10J

Supt. of Canals

Lock Master

Lock Master

Lock Master

Lock Master

Lock Master

Bridge Keeper

Assistant Keeper.

.

Lighthouse Keeper.

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Sept.'49

Aug. '49

Mar. 75

Nov.'84

Mar. 75

Dec. '48

Mar. '69

Apr. '68

Sept. '81

Apr. 77

May '84

May '84

Apr. '80

July 70

Sept. '81

Oct. '80

May '67

'64

1,400 00

1.50 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1. 25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25,p.day

75c. p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1 . 25 p . day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

Dec. '16

Oct. '28

Jan. '45

Oct. '30

Aug. '32

'18

Sept. '47

'44

Nov. '47

'45

'42

July '56

Mar. '43

Nov. '39

Dec. '57

Feb. '39

Apr. '36

'35

Oct. '34

Aug. '49

June '62

May '50

Sept. '54

Dec.
%
48

Mar.^ '69

Apr. '68

Sept. '81

Apr. 77

May '84

May '84

Apr. '80

July 70

Sept. '81

Oct. '80

May '67

'64
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Cornwall Canal—Continued

.

Name.

Robinson, Thomas.

O'Keefe, Owen

Gollinger, George..

Gillespie, David.

Heath, Angus. .

.

Bridges, William

Kennedy, William John.

Gleason, James

Grones, James

Derousil, James

Ross, John

Fraser, James ,

Chisholm, John

Sheales, Timothy

Gaffney, Lawrence

Winters, William

Dawson, Francis

Macdonell, Duncan

Lockerbury, Robert

McLaughlin, Edward

Bradley, Robert

Mc Namara, John ....

Neil, John

Ryckman, David. . .

.

Present Rank.

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer ,

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer ,

Lock Laborer ,

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Carpenter & Diver..

.

Carpenter

ceate •

thereof.

Lock Master

.

Assistant

Bridge Master,

Lock Master.

,

Assistant

Swayzie, Rufus I Assistant

Reuter, Jacob

Higgins, Nelson

Upper, Albert Horatio.

Bridge Master.

Bridge Master.

Bridge Master.

Apr. 73

Aug. '57

May '69

May 72

'80

May 72

Apr. 73

Oct. '61

Jan. '80

May 70

Nov. '84

June '83

May 72

Apr. 73

Mar. 75

Apr. '69

May '67

Nov. 71

June '82

July '67

July '67

20 Apr. '80

4 July '62

14 Oct. '63

16 Oct. 78

6 July '80

Apr. '60

2 Aug. 71

11 Aug. '65

1 May '81

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

$ cts.

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

1.25 p. day

.00 p. day

2. 00 p. day

per month.
38 00

38 00

38 00

42 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

'52

July '25

June '45

: '32

'59

'47

'49

'37

Nov. '49

May '42

'57

Jan. '41

'51

'41

July '45

Aug. '43

July '33

'44

'39

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Oct. '25

Mar. '30

25 Sept. '29

26 June '35

'24

16 Jan. '34

15 Mar. '45

'31

27 Sept. '29

18 June '40

27 Aug '52

Apr. 73

Aug. '57

May '69

May 72

'80

May 72

Apr. 73

Oct. '61

Jan. '80

May 70

Nov. '84

June '83

May 72

Apr. 73

Mar. 75

Apr. '69

May '67

Nov. 71

June '82

July
f

67

July
f

67

20 Apr. '80

4 July '62

14 Oct. '63

16 Oct. 78

6 July '80

Apr. '60

2 Aug. 71

11 Aug. '65

1 May '81
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DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Cornwall Canal—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Hi«'o-

ins, William Lock Master

Assistant

July '51

27 Mar. 75

Apr. '50

2 Aug. '71

$5 cts.

per month.
38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

4 Oct. '24

'37

1 Oct. '30

22 Dec. '31

July '51

27 Mar. '75

Lock Master Apr. '50

Foreman on Banks 23 Feb. '64

Welland Canal.—Feeder Canal

Scott, John Edwin.

Hannah, George.

.

Harris, George

—

Corcoran, Michael.

Thrush, Charles. .

,

Overseer.

Lock Master

Bridge Master

Lock Master

Regulator of Water

17 Apr. '71

May '56

May J66

9 July 75

Nov. '50

800 00

per month.

>
38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

9 May '37

28 Mar. '29

5 Aug. '15

15 Oct. '35

4 Nov. '15

12 May '60

May '56

May '66.

9 July 75

Nov. '50

St. Peter's Canal, N. S.

Kavanagh, Wallace Morgan. Lock Master 3 June 70 540 00 22 Oct. '37 3 June 70

Rideau Canal.

Wise, Frederick Ayshford M.
C.E

Abbott, Francis.

Carroll, James

Cooper, Robert Wallace

Addison, William George

Curran, Peter

Wallace, Martin ,

Miller, William ,

Shore, Robert

Hagarty, George

Little, John

Superintend' t Engineer.

Book-keeper and Pay-
master

Foreman of Works

Clerk and Wharfinger.

.

Lock Master. .

.

Lock Laborer.

.

Lock Laborer..

Lock Laborer.

.

Lock Laborer.

.

Lock Laborer..

Bridge Tender

1 Oct. 72

23 Dec. 72

11 Nov.72

1 Jan. 73

10 Jan. '57

1 July '46

15 Apr. '50

9 June '68

14 May 70

20 June 73

1 Nov.'66

2,000 00

1,000 00

750 00

800 00

per diem.
2 00

1 00

1 20

1 20

1 20

1 20

1 00

31 July '34

27 Feb. '22

21 Apr. '32

4 Dec. '40

12 Dec. '21

12 July '10

17 Mar. '22

1 May '28

26 Dec. '18

12 Nov '17

15 Apr. '33

1 Oct. 72

20 Apr. '57

11 Nov. 72

Uan. 73

10 Jan. '57

Uuly '46

15 Apr. '50

9 June '68

14 May '70

20 June 73

INov. '66

149



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Rideau Canal—Continued.

Pilson, Henry

Pndvah, Joseph

Gleeson, Thomas

Nevins, Nicholas

Hardy, Robert Evens.

Healey, James

Clarke, George

Driseoll, Thomas

Driscoll, Jerry

Driseoll, James

Beckett, Thomas

Todd, James

Present Rank.

McGowan, Patrick.

Newman, William

Real, Patrick ,

Lincas, John

Newman, John Jarvis

Miller, Peter

Johnston, Mathew Henry . .

.

Lisson, John

Gorman, Thomas

Newcome, William Alfred.

.

Newcome, Albert Edward..

Mills, William Wesley

Lill, Henry

McCreary, Robert

Phillips, John

Richey, William Metcalfe .

.

Jones, James Gordon

Jones, Arthur Sidney

Pearson, William Omond.

.

Lock Master . .

,

Lock Laborer.

.

Lock Laborer.

.

Lock Laborer.

.

Lock Master. .

.

Lock Laborer.

.

Lock Master. .

.

Lock Laborer..

Lock Laborer.

.

Bridge Tender.

Bridge Tender

Lock Master. .

,

Bridge Tender.

Lock Master. .

,

Lock Master.

.

Bridge Tender.

Lock Master.

.

Lock Laborer..

Lock Master.

.

Lock Laborer .

Lock Laborer.

Lock Master.

.

Lock Laborer.

Lock Master.

.

Lock Laborer.

Lock Master.

.

Lock Laborer.

Lock Master.

.

Lock Master.

.

Lock Laborer.

Lock Master.

.

Date
thereof.

19 Mar.

'

1 Sept.
:

1 Sept.
:

1 July
'

1 Nov. 1

15 Apr.

3 Apr.

2 Sept.

12 Apr.

4 Aug.

25 June

16 Jan.

15 Apr.

1 July

15 Apr.

15 Apr.

1 July

15 Apr.

1 Sept.

18 Apr.

15 Apr.

1 July

15 Apr.

1 May

18 Apr.

20 May

1 July

13 May

1 July

12 July

1 July

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

per diem.
90

1 00

1 00

1 00

90

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

90

90

90

90

90

1 00

1 00

90

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

90

1 00

90

1 00

90

1 00

1 00

90

1 00

90

Date of

Birth.

10 Aug. '39

30 Apr. '34

6 Jan. '42

6 Sept. '48

15 May '34

15 Aug. '17

9 Oct. '45

3 Aug. '51

'62

7 May '49

15Feb.'ll

20 Dec. '33

14 Mar. '23

20 Dec. '40

25 Mar. '28

10 Jan. '40

29 Aug. '45

I 22 Mar. '31

i 14Dec.'42

Apr. '41

30 Nov. '42

12 Dec. '48

31 Aug. '52

28 May '35

20 Jan. '60

11 June '35

16Dec. '19

8 Apr. '31

26 Oct. '53

1 June '55

13 Dec .'51

Date of -

First Ap-
pointment .

19 Mar. '69

lSept. '58

lSept. '77

Uuly '78

INov. 'GQ

15 Apr. '41

3 Apr. '82

2 Sept. '70

12 Apr. '80

4 Aug. '71

25 June '67

16Jan. '80

15 Apr. '45

INov. '66

15 Apr. '70

15 Apr. '72

15 Apr. '64

15 Apr. '72

15 Apr. '64

18 Apr. '81

15 Apr. '73

15 Apr. '67

15 Apr. '72

15 Apr. '57

18 Apr. '81

20 May '82

1 July '71

13 Mar. '71

15 Apr. '69

12 July '72

1 July '71
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Welland Canal.

Name. Present Rank.

Ellis, William

Dunn, Richard Douglas.

Demare, Jacob Griffiths .

Hamilton, Andrew

Cooke, William

Carter, Charles Henry.,

Date
thereof.

Superintendent

.

Paymaster

Overseer

Overseer

Harbor Master

.

Harbor Master

.

1 Jan. '80

2Dec.74

1 May '82

30 May 76

4 Mar.73

30 May 76

Present
Salary

.

Date of

Birth.

Assistant

Assistant

Bridge Master.

Lock Master .

.

Assistant ....

Lock Master .

,

Assistant ....

Woodall, Jonathan May

Howe, George

Paxton, John

Gorman, Cornelius

Flynn, John

Hare, Comnolly Briggs

Freeman, Richard

Bradley, James

Mulvey, James

Hare, Henry (Assistant

Wilson, Alexander Assistant

Strong, William

Flynn, Thomas

McAuley, James

Moran, Austin

Collins, John ,

Freel, Thomas

McNamara, Patrick...,

Commerford, Thomas .

Corbett, John

McCarthy, Michael. .

.

Collier, Charles Henry

Lay, Frederick

Higgins, Richard

Lock Master
j

1 May '82

Assistant 24Mar.75

Lock Master . .

.

Assistant

Assistant

Assistant

Assistant

Assistant

Assistant

Assistant

Assistant

Lock Master .

.

Lock Master .

.

Assistant

Bridge Master.

24 Mar. 75

24 Mar.75

Apr. 71

1 May '82

24 Mar.75

4Mar.'65

20 July' 81

10 Oct. '67

— Sept.73

15 May 73

17 Mar. 76

July 76

Dec. '52

27 Mar.75

5 Nov. 75

24 Mar.75

21 Oct. 76

18 Aug. 71

27 Mar.75

13 Oct. 74

7 Aug. 77

24 June 73

$ cts

2,900 00

1,400 00

900 00

600 00

750 00

750 00

per month.

42 00

45 00

45 00

45 00

45 00

47 00

45 00

47 00

45 00

45 00

45 00

47,00

45 00

45 00

45 00

45-00

45 00

45 00

45 00

45 00

47 00

42 00

45 00

45 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

31 Aug. '26

12 July '22

8 Aug. '48

17 Aug. '33

June '24

15 Aug. '21

30 Sept.' 50

4 Nov. '57

14 Mar. '37

10 Mar/41

12 Apr. '54

2 June '52

'30

15 Jan. '45

8 Sept. '45

17 Aug. '32

24 Feb. '55

2 Feb. '53

18 Dec. '47

23 Oct. '36

'32

17 May '42

7 Mar. '58

Feb. '34

'43

3 May '35

'41

'42

'35

15 Mar. '44

1 Jan. '80

2 Dec. 74

22 Mar. 71

24 Aug. '64

4 Mar. 73

30 May 76

18 Aug.71

24 Mar.75

24 May 75

24 Mar. 75

— Apr. 71

13^0ot. 74

24 Mar. 75

4 Mar. '65

20 July '81

10 Oct. '67

— Sept. 73

15 May 73

17 Mar.76

— July 76

— Dec. '52

27 Mar.75

5 Nov.75

24 Mar.75

21 Oct. 76

18 Aug. 71

27 Mar.75

13 Oct. 74

7 Aug. 77

24 June 73
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DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Wellanu Canal—Continued.

Name. Present Rank. Date
thereof.

Present
Salary,

Date of
Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

O'Leary, Daniel

O'Leary, Bartholomew

Thompson, George. . .

.

McCoppin, James

Walsh, James

Edmonds, James
,

Foster, James

Hannah, Charles
,

Hannah, Alexander.. .

,

Bonaberg, Emil ,

Henshaw, John
,

Cook, John

Stevens, John
,

Aikens, William

Bradley, John
,

Smith, John Bradley ..

Duffin, Samuel

Smith, William Lee . .

,

Edgroft, Robert

Weaver, Walter

Johnson, Terrence

Charles, Henry

Sullivan, John

McClorey, William

Sullivan, Timothy

Walker, Alexander

Sherer, Frederick

Livingstone, James

Bridge Master

Bridge Master

Assistant
,

Lock Master
,

Assistant

Bridge Master

Bridge Master

Bridge Master
,

Assistant

Bridge Master

Lock Master

Assistant

Assistant Lock Tender.

Assistant Lock Tender.

Ferry Man

6 Dec. '62

21 Oct. 76

10 July '59

6 Dec. '62

24 Aug. '63

23 Feb. '6Q

29 Aug. '68

3 Feb. '65

13 July 71

30 Apr. '80

1 July '83

27 Mar. 75

27 Mar. 75

27 Mar. 75

4 Nov. '80

$ cts.

per month.
45 00

45 00

45 00

47 00

45 00

45 00

45 00

45 00

45 00

45 00

42 00

42 00

42 00

42 00

42 00

3 Mar. '32

'40

11 Dec. '25

'34

'24

11 Nov. '22

2 Dec. '22

11 May '33

12 Aug. '36

1 June '55

Mar. '34

12Mar.'49

28 Oct. '50

16 May '44

10 Nov. '38

6 Dec. '62

21 Oct. 76

10 July '59

6 Dec. '62

24 Aug. '63

23 Feb. '66

29 Aug. '68

3 Feb. '65

13^July 71

30 Apr. '80

— May '56

27 Mar.75

27 Mar.75

27 Mar. 75

4 Nov. '80

Old Welland Canal.

Overseer

Lock Master..

.

Assistant

Assistant

Lock Master .

.

Assistant

Assistant

Assistant

Bridge Master.

Assistant

Lock Master.

.

Assistant

Lock Master.

.

17 May 73 100 00

1 May '82 42 00

2 July 75 42 00

24 Mar. 75 42 00

1 July '83 42 00

24 Mar. 75 42 00

24 Mar. 75 42 00

22Apr. '80 42 00

8 Sept. '81 38 00

12 June 77 38 00

13 June '83 38 00

18 Aug. 71 38 00

18 Sept. '80 42 00

20 June '24

lApr. '29

30 July '26

9 May '25

27 June '23

22 May '35

17 Feb. '31

15 June '32

27 Dec. '26

'41

20 Aug. '37

— July '34

— Sept. '27

17 May 73

24 Mar. 75

2 July 75

24 Mar.75

15Apr. '52

24'Mar. 75

24 Mar. 75

22jApr. '80

8 Sept. '81

12 June 77

|llSept.73

18 Aug.71

18 Sept. '80
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DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Old Welland Canal—Continued

Name. Present Rank.

Lock Master.

.

Lock Master.

.

Assistant

Lock Master.

.

Assistant ....

Assistant ....

Lock Master.

,

Lock Master.

Assistant ....

Lock Laborer.

White, Michael

Boyle, Robert

Bradley, Arthur Wellington

Clarke, Bernard.

Bradley, Casper Wright.. .

.

Nestor, Martin

Cogan, James

Darley, Barnett

Gibson, Robert

Best, Edward

Mooney, Michael jLock Master.

Carty, William jLock Laborer

Johnston, John Lock Master

Simmons, James William

Howarth, James

Campbell, Duncan

Forster, Alfred ,

Bolton, Robert

Geaner, John Ellis ,

Johnston, Thomas ,

Virtue, Crawford

Smith, William

Deane, Patrick

Keays, James

Milne, Charles

McGillivray, Henry

Deane, Joseph

Redmond, John

Doyle, James

Sargant, Robert

Lock Master. .

.

Lock Laborer.

.

Bridge Tender.

.

Lock Master. .

.

Lock Master. .

.

Lock Laborer.

.

Lock Laborer.

.

Lock Laborer.

.

Lock Laborer.

.

Lock Master. .,

Lock Laborer

.

Lock Laborer .

Lock Master..

Lock Master.

.

Lock Laborer.

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary

.

9 July 75

— Apr. '54

15Aug.'64

Sept. '56

&Nov.70

14 Sept. '63

May '55

18 Aug.71

17Mar.'68

17 June 72

1 Dec. 74

15Apr. 75

'57

'57

4 Aug. '68

25 July 74

14 May '64

1 July 71

1 May '81

— Apr. '44

1 July 71

15 Apr. 74

'57

15 Apr. '63

15 Apr. 71

9 Oct. '82

9 Sept. '67

22 June '54

$ cts.

per month.
42 00

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

Lock Laborer j

15 Apr. '57

Lock Laborer.

Connors, Maurice (Lock Laborer.

15 Apr. '68

1 Apr. 73

42 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

per day.
1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

90

1 00

1 50

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

I

'50

'32

12 June '44

— Apr. '36

12 Mar. '50

— Nov. '26

— Jan. '25

30 Aug. '50

19 May '36

14 Mar.'36

17 Aug. '36

15 Apr. '49

16 July '17

26 Mar. '23

9 Aug. '27

15 Oct. '15

1 Feb. '49

6 Aug. '36

2 May '54

— Nov. '21

— July '45

— May '34

— Nov. '28

— May '45

25 Feb. '48

1 July '55

16 Dec. '37

29 Sept.'26

1 Apr. '26

25 Oct. '53

4 Oct. '49

9 July 75

Apr. '54

15 Aug. '64

Sept. '56

5 Nov.70

14 Sept. '63

May '55

18 Aug. 71

17 Mar.'68-

17 June 72

14 Apr. 70

15 Apr. 75

9 Apr. '42

— Apr. '38

4 Aug. '68

25 July 74

14 May '64

15 Apr. '61

IMay '81

— Apr. '44

Uuly 71

15 Apr. 74

15 Sept. '44

15 Apr. '63

15 Apr. 71

18 Sept. 70

5 Apr. '59

22 June '54

15 Apr. '57

15 Apr. '68

lApr. 73
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DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.—OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Trent Canal Works.

Name. Present Rank. Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of
Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

Brownscomb, William Lock Master 26 Aug. 75

26 Aug. '44

$ cts.

per an.
200 00

200 00

— Jan. '30

'07

26 Aug. 75

'44Coughlin, Timothy Lock Master

Carillon and Grenville Canals,

Forbes, William Billsbury. .

,

Hartley, George Christopher,

Brophy, John
,

Mason, Henry Edward

Hartley, Horatio

Foreman, Thomas

Cox, William Richards

Williamson, Thomas Hugh .

,

dimming, Hugh

Perrier, William

Lafrance, Martin

Sauve, Frangois

Poirier, Alphonse

Teck, Joseph

Superintendent.

Overseer ....

Lock Master.

,

Lock Master

.

Lock Master.

Lock Master.

,

Lock Master .

Lock Master.

Lock Moster .

Lock Laborer.

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer.

Lock Laborer.

Lack Laborer.

1 May

17 Sept.

12 June

3 Aug.

lOct.

1 Apr.

4 Sept.

9 May

15 June

1 May

IMay

23 June

1 July

1 June

'67 1,300 00

per day.

'83 2 00

72 1 25

71 1 25

75 1 25

'68 1 25

73 1 25

70 1 25

'56 1 25

70 1 25

'66 1 25

'69 1 25

'69 1 25

70 1 25

28 May '31

30 Oct. '35

15 Jan. '35

8 Nov. '48

24 Jan. '51

8 Mar. '48

28 Mar. '44

18 Mar. '54

19 May '13

1 July '36

18 Dec. '37

3 Nov. '32

IMar. '42

10 Apr. '54

15 Apr. '55

30 May '65

12 June 72

3 Aug. 71

Uuly '67

1 Apr. '68

4 Sept. 73

9 May 70

15 June '56

1 May 70

IMay '66

23 June '69

Uuly '69

1 June 70

St. Anne's Lock.

Daoust, Joseph Lumina.

Larente, "Regis

Macdonell, Alexander G. . . .

Casselman, William Ira.

Toye, Robert

Caldwell, Henry

Farley, Christopher J. .

.

Superintendent.

Lockman

18 Dec. 78

25 Jan. 77

800 00

per day.

1 25

Superintendent Wil-
hamsburgh Canals . .

.

Lock Master.

Lock Master.

Lock Master.

Lock Master.

26 Apr. 75

1 Jan. 73

Sept.' 68

1 May 71

1 Apr. 72

10 Aug. '43

10Sept.'41

1,400 00

per day.

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

19 Feb. '16

26 May '30

6 May '23

17 Mar. '25

17 Apr. '49

18 Dec. 78

25 Jan. 77

26 Apr. 75

Uan. 73

Sept. '68

1 May 71

1 Apr. 72
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DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

>titt, John

Morgan, Rodney...

Sutler, Amelia

McDougall, Hugh.

Mullen, Thomas. .

.

lohnston, James. .

.

Black, John

Beare, Robert ....

Mellon, John.

Beure, Alexander.

Flynn, jr., James.

Present Rank.

Lock Master.

.

Lock Laborer .

Lock Laborer .

Lock Laborer ,

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Lock Laborer

Date
thereof.

Armstrong, Robert | Foreman on Repairs. .

.

2 Dec. 79

29 Apr. 79

23 Aug. 71

Aug. 71

1 May 73

1 July 79

30 Dec. 79

29 July '54

3 Apr. '51

15 Oct. 72

26 May '83

3 Oct. 78

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

per day.
1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 50

Chambly Canal.

Lock Master No. 1

Lock Master No. 2....

Lock Master No. 3

—

Lock Master No. 4. .

.

Lock Master Mo. 5.

.

Lock Master No. 6.

.

Lock Master No. 7..

Nolin, Guillaume

Bell, Samuel

Labossiere, Israel

Hedner, Andre

Leblanc, Pierre

Mailhot, Solomon

Berger, Frangois Xavier

Lynch, John 'Lock Master No. 8.

Berger, Norbert Lock Master No. 9.

Fryer, Thomas

Sauvage, Mo'ise

Papineau, Louis

Collette, Jacques

Ste. Marie, Joseph

Dulive, Charlotte

Mailhot, Edmond

Bridge Keeper No. 2

Bridge Keeper No. 3

Bridge Keeper No. 4

Bridge Keeper No. 5

Bridge Keeper No. 6

Bridge Keeper No. 7

Bridge Keeper No. 8

! 9 May 74

17 Oct. 70

|
1 Jan. '81

1 May '54

1 May '54

7 Nov. '63

14 Nov. '61

30 Sept. 73

1 May '54

20 June '68

9 May '54

15 May 79

1 May '54

15 May 79

7 Sept.' 63

20 June 74

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-

pointment.

13 Oct. '32

'21

5 July '29

6 Aug. '24

10 Aug. '49

12 Nov.'34

3 May '37

26 Nov.'26

12 July '26

24 May '37

7 May '48

22 Dec. '36

2 Dec. 79

29 Apr. 79

23 Aug. 71

Aug. 71

IMay 73

Uuly 79

30 Dec. 79

29 July '54

3 Apr. '51

15 Oct. 72

26 May '83

3 Oct. 78

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

28 Mar. '18

11 Mar. '41

15 Feb. '39

18 Feb. '25

29 June '31

15 June '19

8 Oct. '15

1 Jan. '30

12Jun. '17

3 Mar.' 36

3 May '22

15 Nov.'51

15 July '37

5 Apr. '25

15 May '20

15 June '45

9 May 74

17 Oct. 70

Uan. '81

Apr. '46

Apr. '50

7 Nov. '63

14 Nov. '61

30 Sept. 73

1 May '54

20 June 68

Sept. 50

15 May 79

IMay '54

15 May 79

7 Sept. '63

20 June 74
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DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

St. Ours Lock.

Name. Present Rank. Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of
Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

Larue, Levi Superintendent 24 Apr. '58

1 Oct. '53

25 May '55

. $ cts.

per day.

1 25

1 25

4 June '10

19 Nov. '20

13 Apr. '23

24 Apr. '58

1 Oct. '53

25 May '55

Duval, Felix

Lemay, Charles Lockman .

Paymaster's Office.

Dowker, George Paymaster 1 1 July '82 $1,600 00
per year. 28 Oct. '30 31 Dec. 78

Lachine Canal

Conway, Michael Superintendent

Lock Master No. 1Fitzpatrick, Patrick

Conway, John Lock Master No 2

Simard, Leon Bridge Keeper No. 1

Bridge Keeper No. 2 .

.

Lock Master No. 3. . .

.

Newman, Ralph

Redmond, Patrick

McKeown, Edward Bridge Keeper No. 3 .

.

Rinahan, James Lock Master No 4

Charlebois, Arsene Bridge Keeper No. 5 .

.

Lock Master No. 5Enright, James

Gauthier, Pierre Bridge Keeper No. 6 .

.

Neagle, John Boom Master. .

.

Morrissey, John

Carroll, James

"Walker, James

O'Brien, William

Grennan, Thomas

Enright, Michael

Deschamps, sr., Joseph.

Murphy, William

Corbeille, Frangois

Lockman No. 1

Asst. Bridge KeeperNo.l

Asst.Bridge KeeperNo.l

Lockman No. 3

Lockman No. 3

Asst. Bridge KeeperNo.3

Lockman No. 4

Asst. Bridge KeeperNo. 5

Wharfinger

1 July 76

1 May '81

1 May 75

1 June 70

1 May '58

26 May '57

24 Oct. '81

1 Sept.'82

1 May 74

1 Apr. '82

1 Mar. 77

June '56

Oct. '67

1 June '68

1 Nov. '83

1 Sept. '68

1 Aug. 70

May '63

1 May 70

May 74

10Sept.74

1,800 00

per month.

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

45 00

per day.

1 2

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

700 00

13 May '32

16 Jan. '32

20 Dec. '35

1 Feb. '45

22 May '30

Mar. '26

5 May '27

23 Dec. '39

15 Dec. '16

25 Nov. '43

29 June '42

May '24

20 Jan. '24

July '15

15 June '38

Aug. '26

Dec. '20

Nov. '45

Mar. '16

'20

5 Apr. '50

18 Sept. '54

1 May '81

1 May 75

1 June 70

1 May '58

May '46

24 Oct. '81

15 Jan. '80

1 May 74

1 May 70

1 Mar. 77

May '48

Oct. '67

1 June '68

1 May '57

1 Sept. '68

1 Aug. 70

May '63

1 May 70

Sept. '45

28 June 79

156



9 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No, 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Steam Dredge No. 1.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

ockburn, Alexander. iCaptain 1 Aug. '56

LcMuUen, Ennis i Engineer. 1 Nov. '64

$ cts.

per day

.

2 50

per month.

75 00

Date of

Birth.

22 June '82

15 Mar. '38

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

1 Aug. '56

1 Nov. '64

Beauhaenois Canal.

iergin, Joseph Flavien I

Superintendent.

loy, Jean Baptiste

jefort, Pierre

Sourbonnais, Olivier. .

.

^egault, Gilbert

Smith, Samuel

Bertrand, Louis

Poirier, Antoine

De Groseillier, Pierre .

.

Lafleur, Olivier

Lafleur, Joseph

Chatigny, Pierre ,

Lecours, Luc

Roy, Michel

Gendron, Charles

Auger, Israel

Bonnin, Isidore

Leduc, Clodonier

Lefebvre, Toussaint .

.

Eoy, Joseph

Grenier, Adolphe

Hebert, Andrew

Grenier, Etienne. . . .

,

Charette, William.

.

Leduc, Gilbert

Lock Master No. 6. ...

Lock Master No. 7 ....

Lock Master No. 8 . . .

.

Lock Master Mo. 9

Lock Master No. 11...

Lock Master No. 12. ..

Lock Master No. 14.

.

Bridge Keeper

Ferry Keeper No. 1 . .

.

Ferry Keeper No. 2...

Lockman No. 6

Lockman No. 6

Lockman No. 7

Lockman No. 7

Lockman No . 8

Lockman No. 8

Lockman No. 9

Lockman No. 10...

.

Lockman No. 10. ..

.

Lockman No . 11 ...

.

Lockman No. 12....

Lockman No. 12....

Lockman No. 13. ..

.

Lockman No. 13 ...

.

1 Dec. '83

29 Apr. '81

I June '72

30 Sept. '61

10Mar.'76

14 Apr. '60

5 Feb. '80

22 June '71

28 June '76

1 Sept. '65

II Mar. '52
I

27 Oct. '79 !

5 July '72

30 Apr. '70

22 June '71
i

24 Aug.' 69

5 Feb. '80

5 Feb. '80

1 May '64

30 Sept. '73

7 Aug.76

24 Apr. '74

24 Apr. '74

29 Apr. '81

Nov. '56

1,400 00
1

per day.

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

5 Feb. '29

26Aug.'37

17Aug.'50

4 Feb. '21

21 Sept. '51

31 Jan. '26

5 Sept. '50

10 Jan. '35

20 Dec. '33

15 Apr. '37

5 Feb. '26

15 June '52

30 Sept. '37

12 Aug. '27

14 July '21

15 Mar. '40

16 Aug. '49

10 Nov. '46

16 July '26

29 Nov. '48

25 July '41

22 Oct. '36

28 Mar. '36

30 July '50

21 May '27

26 Mar. '74

29 Apr. '81

I June '72

30 Sept. '61

10 Mar. '76

14 Apr. '60

5 Feb. '80

22 June '71

28 June '76

1 Sept. '65

II Mar. '52

27 Oct. '79

5 July '72

30 Apr. '70

22 June '71

24 Aug. '69

5F.b. '80

5 Feb. '80

1 May '64

30 Sept. '73

7 Aug. '76

24 Apr. '74

24 Apr. '74

29 Apr. '81

Nov. '56
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DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Beauharnois Canal—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

Tirst Ap-
pointmant.

Lockman No. 4 25 Apr. '80

19 Oct. '84

$ cts.

1 25

750 00

5 May '49

27 Apr. '30

25 Apr. '8

26 Apr. '5
Denault, Benjamin Gedeon.

.

Superintending Engineer's Office.

Lesage, Louis Alphonse Secretary & Accountant! 1 July '84 1,400 00

1

18 Apr. '49 1 17 Aug. '7

Intercolonial Railway.
—

—

—

.

Pottinger, David

Taylor, George

"Whitney, Henry Augustus .

.

Chief Superindt. I.C.R

General Freight Agent
I.C.R

Mechanical Superinten-

dent I.C.R

Chief Acct . & Treasurer

District Supt. I. C. R.

Halifax & St JohnDiv

Paymaster I . C . R

Dec. '81

1 Jan. '83

1 Jan. '83

July '82

1 May '83

Jan. '83

4,000 00

2,400 00

3,200 00

2,400 00

1,900 00

1,400 00

7 Oct. '43

28 Aug. '32

Feb. '34

June '46

Apr. '47

Apr. '44

July '6

3 June '5

July '5
1

Aug. 7

25 May '6

Oct. '6
Trites, Edward Trueman ....

It8

/
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19.—THE SENATE OF CANADA.

Name. Present Rank.

Langevin, Edouard J<«^L
koftheSenftte,Ma»

I ter in Chancery, Cash-

ier and Accountant .. i
7reb. oo

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Adamson, James

Creighton, James George A.

Lander, Yen'able J.S.,D.C.L

Boucher, Antoine Alphonse

.

Clerk Asst. and Master

in Chancery

Law Clerk, Master in

Chancery, Clk. of Com-
'tees & Eng. Trans' tor

Chaplain.

Miller, Peter

Stephen, Robert William. .

.

Soutter, Alexander Robert .

Date of

Birth.

2nd Clerk Asst., Master

in Chancery and Chief

French Translator. .

.

1st Eng. Clerk & Clerk

of English Journals .

.

2nd Eng. Clerk & Clerk

of Routine Proceed 'gs

3rd Eng. Clerk & Clerk

of Private Bills

1st French Translator.

.

Garneau, Alfred

LeMoine, J. de St Denis. ...jSergeant-at-Arms

Tache, Ivanhoe

Gibbs, Charles Theophilus

McCord, Frederick Augustus

Kimber, Rene Edouard

Clk. of French Journals

& Depy . Sgt.-at-Arms

Assistant Accountant.

Junior Clerk

Myrand, Jean Baptiste.

Dunne, Peter

Ratty, Pierre ,

Young, Charles ,

Gilbert, Frederick

Gentleman Usher of the

Black Rod ..

Postmaster

House Keeper

Door Keeper

Speaker's Messenger.. .

.

Keeper of the Wardrobe
& Asst. Door Keeper.

Wheeler, Thomas

Dunne, John

Gravelle, Andre jHouse Carpenter

Archambault, Odilon permanent Messenger.

27 June '82

27 June '82

9 Nov. '83

10 Mar. '84

16 Feb. '83

10 Mar.'84

27 May '83

14 May '73

9 Feb. '84

16 Mar. '84

17 July '85

10Mar.'84

4 June 75

20 Mar. '68

1 Sept. '74

1 Nov. '74

15 Mar. '76

Newsroom Keeper.

Bank Messenger.

.

$ cts.

3,400 00

2,800 00

2,200 00

400 00

2,200 00

1,600 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,900 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

900 00

900 00

1,350 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

800 00

800 00

Date of

First Ap-
pointment.

Larose, Joseph

Pelletier. Joseph H.

Davis, Thomas

Permanent Messenger.

Permanent Messenger

.

Permanent Messenger.

10 Mar. '84

1 Nov. '83

10 Mar. '84

9 Apr. 77

5 May. '82

1 Jan. '83

10 Mar. '84

10 Mar. '84

I Oct. '33

15 Oct. '26

12 June '50

21 Mar. '29

6 Feb. '31

4 July '37

3 Aug. '39

II July '46

20 Dec. '36

13 July '50

6 Nov. '36

28 Jan. '47

29 Aug. '56

24 Dec. '46

10 Oct. '29

25 Mar. '24

13 June '34

29 Jan. '52

750 00

800 00

750 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

24 Aug. '26

17 Dec. '24

2 June '39

30 Mar. '29

26 Aug. '42

19 Aug. '49

8 Apr. '50

28 Dec. '55

4 Jan. '65

15 Sept. '42

2 Mar. '82

9 Nov. '83

IMay '57

Apr. '68

. 73

Nov. 74

'61

18 May '69

17 Mar. 75

10 Mar. '84

10 Mar. '84

4 June 75

7 Feb. '59

1 Sept. '56

7 Feb. '59

'60

'56

6 Nov. '67

Mar. 'QQ

'6Q

. '62

'65

10 Apr. 74

Feb. 71
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20.-THE HOUSE OF COMMONS OF CANADA.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Name,

Bourinot, John George

Rouleau, Frangois Fortunat.

.

Macdonell, Donald William.

* Smith, Major Henry Robert

Present Rank.

Clerk of the House. . .

.

Assistant Clerk

Sergeant- at-Arms

Depy. Sergeant-at-Arms
(1st class clerk.)

Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

1 Dec. '80
| 3,400 00

1 June '82

14 June '54

Jan. 72
1 July '85

2,400 00

2,400 00

1,400 00

Date of
Birth.

24 Oct. '37

4 July '49

7 May '24

30 Dec. '43

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

1 June '82

14 June '54

1 May '59

Chief Branch.

Ross, William Blow .........

t Poetter, Herrman

Chapleau, Joseph Raoul E .

.

MacGillivray, Farquhar. . .

.

Taylor, Alexander George D

.

Rivet, Pierre

Bowles, William Cochrane. .

.

Taylor, Isaac Bolton ,

Dalton, James

Balzaretti, Napoleon

Tasse, Elie

Duvernay, Ludger Denis. ..

Panet, Charles . . ,

Todd, Walter

Hartney, Edward Patrick . .

.

Chief Clerk...

1st class clerk.

1st class clerk,

1st class clerk.

1st class clerk.

1st class clerk.

1st class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

1st class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk

.

2nd class clerk.

Moffat, Robert McGowan D. . 2nd class clerk.

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

I July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1,950 00

1,750 00

1,800 00

1,650 00

1,550 00

1,750 00

1,650 00

1,250 00

1,100 00

1,000 00

1,500 00

1,000 00

1,400 00

1,250 00

1,400 00

1,400 qo

10 May '32
,

13 Dec. '17

28 Apr. '44

4 Jan. '33

10 Nov. '30

30 Apr. '32

23 Sept.' 41

20 Feb. '30

— June '40

'52

23Nov.'51

23 Aug. '36

17 Dec. '39

6 Oct. '56

6 Mar. '51

22 Apr. '40

18 Jan. '49

12 Aug. '50

June '54

'49

'50

23 Feb. '55

'79

75

70

79

'84

Feb. '60

Uuly 74

72

Nov. 70

Law and Translation Branch.

Wicksteed, Gustavus W.,Q.C

Wilson, William, M .D

Coursolles, Toussaint Gedeon.

Genand, Joseph Auguste

Frechette, Leonard Achille .

.

Law Clerk. .

.

Chief Clerk. .

.

Chief Clerk. .

.

1st class clerk.

1st class clerk.

14 June '41 3,400 00

1 July '85 2,200 00

1 July '85 2,200 00

1 July '85 1,500 00

1 July '85 1,500 00

21 Dec. 1799

22 Nov '35

1 Oct. '32

19 Dec. '39

13 Oct. '47

Oct. '28

Apr. '58

June '57

Aug. '65

Mar. 74

* Also Private Secretary to the Speaker.
t Since deceased.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS.—INSIDE SERVICE.

Law and Translation Beanch—Continued.

Name. Present Rank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of

First Ap-
pointment ,

Laframboise, Louis

Desaulniers, Joseph M. A. D

1st class clerk.

1st class clerk.

Darners, Frangois Xavier |2nd class clerk.

Perrin, Emiry

Query, Elie

Hayes, Finn Barr

Wicksteed, Richard John.

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk

.

1st class clerk.

2nd class clerk

.

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

$ cts.

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,250 00

1,100 00

1,100 00

1,650 00

1,250 00

10 July '40

21 Aug. '53

28 Feb. '46

13 Dec. '43

12 Oct. '49

7 Nov. '30

3 Oct. '42

lOct, '76

Uan. '81

'84

'79

Feb. '74

26 Feb. '58

Apr. '72

Miscellaneous Branch.

Hartney, Henry

Brewer, Robert

Romaine, Robert

Clark, Charles Edward

Stuart, Henry Boulton

Ouimet, Trefne

Dube, Wilfred

Robidoux, Narcisse

Stansfeld, Joshua

Pelletier, Alphonse Edouard.

Lemieux, Frangois Xavier L

.

Accountant. .

.

2nd class clerk.

1st class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk

.

3rd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk.

31 Mar. '74 2,800 00 10 Aug. '22 Nov. '38

1 July '85 1,250 00 8 July '48 Mar. '74

1 July '85 1,550 00 21 July '20 1 Feb. '79

1 July '85 650 00 28 Sept. '49 '84

1 July '85 1,200 00 23 Nov. '20 '39

1 July '85 900 00 26 Mar. '47 '81

1 July '85 400 00 18 May '68 '82

1 July '85 650 00 '55 '80

1 July '85 1,150 00 19 July '49 '69

1 July '85 850 00 16 June '59 '78

1 July '85 400 00 12 June '52 '79

The Seegeant-at-Aems' Depaetment.

Messengers, Etc.

Dube, Lucien ChiefMessenger &House
Keeper Mar. '74

1 July '82

'76

71

'60

'54

1,200 00

900 00

800 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

30 Sept. '42

31 Mar. '45

28 June '19

15 Dec. '22

3 Mar. '29

20 July '34

Mar. '74

Assistant Messenger &
House Keeper

Curator Reading Room

.

Bank Messenger

House Carpenter

Messenger

Storr. Edward

'59

2 Sept. '52

Dec. '53

Sinclair, James '60

Roberge, Olivier. '54
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HOUSE OF COMMONS.—INSIDE SERVICE.

The Sergeant-at-Arms' Department—Continued.

Name. Present R.ank.
Date

thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of

Birth.

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

Messenger - '55

May '68

21 Sept. '67

'85

Oct. 76

'83

1 May '81

74

76

$ cts.

700 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

530 00

530 00

400 00

380 00

27 Sept. '18

3 May '54

11 Nov. '43

1 May '29

'27

9 Apr. '49

23 Dec. '62

22 Apr. '59

'19

Feb. '55

Asselin, Joseph Emile

Smith, George

May '68

Night Watchman

Night "Watchman

Messenger

21 Sept.'67

Craig, Robert 76

Oct. 76

Messenger . 79

Boudreault, George Andre. .

.

The Clerk's Messenger.

Messenger

73

72

Door Keeper 76

Department of the Printing op Parliament.

Clerk Joint Print. Com. '59 Nov. '38

Voucher Clerk — May '82

1 July '85

1 July '85

'69

Mar. 74

Romaine, Robert Sunt, of the Printing of

Sessional Papers of
1 Feb. 79

Clarke, Charles Edward

Botterell, Edward

Assistant Proof Reader.

Distributor of Printed
Documents 1,400 00 11 May '34 '56

Boulet, Napoleon 1st Asst. Distributor.. '69 1,000 00 27 Oct. '47 '63

Botterell, Henry Alfred 2nd Asst. Distributor.

.

1 July '85 800 00 23 Feb. '59 79

Wiltshire, John. Permanent Messenger.

.

'85 500 00 12 Sept. '47 '84
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21.—THE LIBRARY OF PARLIAMENT.

Name.

DeCelles, Alfred Duclos.

Laperriere, Augustin

Todd, Major Alfred Hamlyn

Fletcher, James

Sylvain, Louis Phillipe ....

Thayne, E. Stewart

Casault, Louis Joseph

Dunlop, James Heuderson

.

Ryan, Joseph William

Rattey, Joseph Napoleon. .

.

Ternent, Duncan Wm. McD

Present Rank,

Assistant Librarian. . .

.

Senior Clerk (French).

.

Senior Clerk (English)

.

Accountant

Junior Clerk (French &
English)

Catalogue Clerk

Caretaker & Chief Mes-
senger

Messenger

Messenger

Messenger

Clerk in charge of Su
preme Court LawBooks

Date
thereof.

12Feb. '80

1 July '80

1 July '80

1 July '80

1 May 78

'84

76

Feb. 77

9 Feb. 77

lAug.77

23 May '82

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

2,400 00

1,800 00

1,400 00

1,150 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

900 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

600 00

Date of

Birth.

15 Aug. '43

28 Dec. '29

25 Oct. '51

28 Mar. '52

2 Oct. '45

6 May '36

9 May '38

13 May '45

'30

3Mar.'57

June '29

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

12 Feb. '80

16 June '50

1 Apr. .'69

1 July 76

1 May 7$

14 Not. 79

1 Feb, '56

1 Feb. 72

9 Feb. 77

'66

79
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APPENDIX NO. i.

sum

48-49 VIC, CAP. 46.

An Act to amend and consolidate the Civil Service Acts

of 1882,1883 and 1884.

[Assented to 20th July, 1885.]

HEE Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the Preamble.

Senate and House of Commons of Canada, enacts as

follows :

—

SHORT TITLE.

1. This Act may be cited as " The Civil Service Act" short title *

INTERPR STATION.

2. In this Act, unless the context otherwise requires,—- Jta?*™**"

(a.) The expression " Head of a Department" means the Department."

Minister of the Crown for the time being presiding over

such Department

;

(b.) The expression " Deputy," " Deputy Head " or " Deputy jg^*
Head of the Department," means the Deputy of the Minister

of the Crown presiding over such department and also in-

cludes the " Auditor General," in all cases where such

meaning is not inconsistent with his powers and duties

under the " Act to provide for the better auditing of the Public

Accounts.'
1

CONSTITUTION OF THE CIVIL SERVICE.

3. The Civil Service, for the purposes of this Act, includes
gj£

hg^
and* consists of all classes of employees in or under the shaii consist.

several departments of the Executive Government of

Canada, and in the ofhce of the Auditor General, included

in the schedules A and B to this Act, appointed by the

Governor in Council or other competent authority before the

first day of July, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-two,
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As to North-
West Terri-

tories.

or thereafter appointed in the manner provided by the Civil
Service Act for the time being in force, and such officers

and employees in the North- West Territories holding
positions, which, if held in other parts of Canada, would
bring tnem under the provisions of the Civil Service Acts,
as the Governor in Council brings under the provisions of
such Acts.

Two divisions. 4. The service shall be divided into two divisions :

Inside
division

.

The First or Inside Departmental Division shall comprise
employees of those classes mentioned in schedule A, em-
ployed on the several Departmental staffs at Ottawa, and in
the office of the Auditor General

:

Outside
division.

The Second or Outside Departmental Division shall com-
prise employees of those classes mentioned in schedule B,
and who are employed otherwise than on the Departmental
staffs at Ottawa.

Regulations
to be made by
Order in

Council.

Governor in
Council to
determine
number of

employees.

If the actual

number
exceeds that
allowed.

As to em-
ployees when
this Act
passes.

5. The Governor in Council may, from time to time, make
general rules and regulations, not inconsistent with the
provisions of this Act, respecting the appointments and
promotions of the officers in the Civil Service and all other
matters pertaining thereto.

6. From time to time the Governor in Council shall
determine the number of officers, chief clerks, clerks, mes-
sengers and other employees that are required for the work-
ing of the several departments in each division of the Ciril
Service, but the collective amount of the salaries of each
department shall, in no case, exceed that provided for by
Vote of Parliament for that purpose :

2. If the number of employees then attached to any depart-
ment in either division thereof is greater than the number
allowed to the department, as herein provided, the Governor
in Council shall name the persons to fill the several offices

;

and the remainder shall be supernumerary clerks, without
being eligible for increase of salary, of that class respectively
which they rank, and shall so remain until promoted in the
manner herein provided or until severed irom the service.

7. Any person who is a member of the Civil Service at

the time of the passing of this Act, shall be classified in the
respective class in which he has been appointed. *

BOARD OF EXAMINERS.

Board of 8. A Board of Examiners shall, from time to time, be

fandTdaS for
aPP°inted by the Governor in Council, who, for the pur-

the service, poses of this Act, shall be known and are hereinafter referred
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to as "the Board," consisting of three members one
,

of

^

ff
-t.

whom may be appointed secretary of the Board -and they duties .

shall examine all candidates for admission to the Civil

Service of Canada, and give certificates of qualification to

such persons as are found qualified according to such

regulations as are authorized by the Governor in Council

for the guidance of the Board :

2. The Board shall be supervised by the Secretary of^T
State :

3 The meetings of the Board shall be held at such times, Meetings.

and the proceedings thereof shall be governed by such rules

and regulations as the Governor in Council from time to

time determines :

4. Each member of the Board shall receive a salary of six^ ofmem*

hundred dollars per annum :

5 The members of the Board shall be paid such travelling Travelling ex-

expenses while engaged in their work as are determined by

the Governor in Council :

6 Such persons as are selected by the Board to assist Assistants,

them in the conduct of examinations may receive such sum,

not exceeding five dollars per diem, as is fixed by the

Governor in Council

:

7 The Governor in Council may appoint a secretary to Secretary.

the Board, with a salary not exceeding one thousand dollars

per annum, and a clerk holding a certificate of having passed

the qualifying examination, to assist the Board ;
and the lat-

ter shall be a third-class clerk.

9. The Board may obtain the assistance of persons who^ ^/J*
have had experience in the education of the youth oi Canada, assistants.

and with such assistance shall hold, or cause to be held,

periodical examinations for admission to the Civil Service,

in the cities of Halifax, St. John, N.B., Charlottetown, Places and

Quebec, Montreal,, Ottawa, Toronto, Hamilton London t

a

1

minations;

Winnipeo", Victoria, and such other places as are determined

by the Governor in Council ; it shall not be necessary to

hold such examinations in all the said places, bnt the times

and places at which the examinations shall be held, shall
Expenses>

be determined, from time to time, by the Governor m how paid.

Council ; examinations shall, as far as possible, be m writ-

ing and the cost thereof shall be defrayed out of moneys

previously voted by Parliament for that purpose,

APPOINTMENTS AND SALARIES IN THE SERVICE.

JO. Except as herein otherwise provided,- %£$$£&
167
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Limits as to

age.

(a.) All appointments to the Civil Service shall be dur-
ing pleasure, and no person shall be appointed
or promoted to any place below that of a Deputy-
Head unless he has passed the requisite exami-
nation and served the probationary term herein-
after mentioned

:

(b.) No person shall be appointed to any place in the
First or Inside Departmental Division of the Civil
Service, other than that of a Deputy Head, on
probation or otherwise, whose age exceeds thirty-
five years, or who has not attained, in case the
appointment is to a lower grade than that
of a third class clerk, the full age of fifteen years,
or in other cases the full age of eighteen years.

11. The Deputy Heads of Departments shall be appointed
by the Governor in Council, and shall hold office during
pleasure

; but whenever such pleasure is exercised in the
direction of removing a Deputy Head from his office, a state-
ment of the reasons for so doing shall be laid on the table of
both Houses of Parliament within the first fifteen days of
the next following session.

IS. The salaries of the Deputy Heads shall be determined
by the Governor in Council, according to the duties and
responsibilities of their respective departments ; the mini-
mum salary of a Deputy Head shall be three thousand two
hundred dollars, and the maximum salary shall be four
thousand dollars,

13. The Deputy Head of each department shall, subject to
the directions of the Head of the department, oversee and
direct the officers, clerks and employees in the department,
and shall have general control of the business thereof,
and shall perform such other duties as are assigned to
him by the Governor in Council.

formedia lis"
*4

- la the absence of any Deputy Head, a chief clerk
named by the Head of the Department shall perform the
duties of such Deputy Head, unless the performance of such
duties is otherwise provided for by the Governor in Council

;

and there shall be in the office of the Auditor General a
chief clerk, who shall at all times, act for the Auditor Gen-
eral in his absence.

Appointment
ofDeputy
Heads to be
during
pleasure.

Salaries.

Minimum.

Maximum.

Duties and
Sowers of

>eputy

Heads.

absence

.

Chief clerk-

ship.

Condition of
creation of
office.

15. A chief clerkship in any department shall only be
created by Order in Council, passed after

—

(a.) The Deputy Head has reported that such an officer

is necessary ior the proper performance of the
public business in the department, stating the
reasons on which he has arrived at that conclusion;
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(b.) The concurrence of the Head of the Department in Concm™
m

such report ; and after the salary has been voted

by Parliament.

16. The minimum salary paid to a chief clerk shall be Salary.

one thousand* eight hundred dollars, with an annual increase

of fifty dollars up to a maximum of two thousand four

hundred dollars.

17. A first-class clerkship shall only be created by Order bgte
in Council, passed on the report of the Deputy Head conditioa of

concurred in by the Head of the Department, setting creation.

forth the reasons for creating the office, and after the salary

has been voted by Parliament.

18. The minimum salary of a first-class clerk shall be one Salary.

thousand four hundred dollars per annum, with an annual

increase of fifty dollars up to a maximum of one thousand

eight hundred dollars.

19. A second-class clerkship shall only be created by s
1

e

e

c

r̂ :
class;

Order in Council passed on the report of the Deputy Head, condit^^f

concurred in by the Head of the Department, setting creation.

forth the reasons for creating the office, and after the salary

has been voted by Parliament.

20. The minimum salary of a second-class clerk shall be Salary.

one thousand one hundred dollars per annum, with an

annual increase of fifty dollars up to a maximum of one

thousand four hundred dollars.

21. A third-class clerkship or the office of a messenger, a S^L,,
packer or a sorter, shall only be created by Order in Council condition of

passed on the report of the Deputy Head, concurred in creation.

by the Head of the Department, setting forth the reasons for

creating the office, and after the salary has been voted by

Parliament.

22. The minimum salary of a third-class clerk shall be gggjj*
four hundred dollars per annum, with an annual increase of clerks .

fifty dollars up to a maximum of one thousand dollars.

2i*. The minimum salary of a messenger, packer or sorter °
e

f

r^s

c

en~

shall be three hundred dollars per annum, with an annual sels >

increase of thirty dollars up to a maximum of five hundred

dollars.

24. The salary of a clerk on appointment or promotion to^^^
any class, shall begin at the minimum of such class, except

in the case of third-class clerks, who may receive, in addi-

tion, fifty dollars for each optional subject (not to exceed

four) in which they may have passed before their appoint-
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Promotion

.

Salaries to be
regulated as

perjschedule

Conditions of
increase.

ment, and except in the case of lower grade permanent
employees who, upon passing the qualifying examination,
may be appointed third-class clerks, provided there is no
increase ot salary.

25. The officers, clerks and employees mentioned in sche-
dule B to this Act shall bo paid according to the scale thereby
established

;
and the salaries of officers, clerks and employees

in the Second or Outside Division of departments other than
the Customs, Inland Revenue and Post Office Departments
shall, subject to the provisions of any Act relating thereto,
be fixed in each case by the Governor in Council.

SO. No officer, clerk or employee shall receive any increase
of salary except by Order in Council passed on the report
of the Deputy Head, concurred in by the Head of the Depart-
ment, stating that such officer, clerk or employee is deserving
of such increase :

May be sus-

pended for

neglect

.

2. The increase of salary of any officer, clerk or employee
authorized under this Act for the then current year may be
suspended by the Head of the Department for neglect of
duty or misconduct, and may be subsequently restored by
such Head, but without arrears.

From what
time payable.

27. The increase of salary shall be payable from the first

day of the official quarter next succeeding the date on which,
from his length of service, any clerk or employee for
whom such increase is recommended is eligible for such
increase :

In case of

promotion.

Must have
been appoint-
ed according
to law.

2. In case of promotion, the increase of salary shall become
payable from the day on which such promotion takes
place.

28. No salary shall be paid to any member of the Civil
Service, whose appointment or promotion, or whose in-
crease of salary after the first day of July, one thousand eight
hundred and eighty-two, has not been made in the manner
provided by the Civil Service Act in force at the time of
such appointment, promotion or increase.

EXAMINATIONS.

^appoint- 29. Except as herein otherwise provided, no appointment
Saminatio°n. sna^ be made to either division of the Civil Service unless

the person appointed has passed an examination, which
shall be of two kinds

—

£fwmit
iaiT

' The first or "preliminary " examination to qualify for the

pointinents." following appointments, that is to say, as

—

Messengers in either division,
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Porters,

Sorters,

Packers,

Letter carriers,

Mail transfer agents,

Box collectors,

Tide waiters,

Assistant inspectors of Weights and Measures,

Temporary copyists, and—

For such other offices in the lower grades as are deter-

mined by the Governor in Council

:

The second or "qualifying" examination to qualify for

the following appointments :—

To third-class clerkships in the First Division ;

To third-class clerkships and to the offices of landing-

waiters and lockers, in the Second Division for Customs

service

;

To third-class clerkships and to the office of exciseman, in

the second division for Inland Revenue service ;

To third-class clerkships, to railway and marine mail

clerkships, and to the offices in the Second Division lor 1 ost

Office service

;

But nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent Can^ate^

candidates passing both examinations, at their option. examinations
voluntarily.

30. No person shall be admitted either to the preliminary Condon, for

or qualifying examination until ho has satisfied the .board— *
ualifyillg ex-

* jo
animations.

(a.) That at the time appointed for such examination he

will if the examination is for a place below that

of a'third class clerk, be of the lull age of fifteen

years, and in other cases be of the full age of

eighteen years, and if for the Inside Departmental

Division, that his age will not then be more than

thirty-five years

;

(b ) That he is free from any physical defect or disease

which would be likely to interfere with the pro-

per discharge of his duties ;

(c.) That his character is such as to qualify him for

employment in the service.

31. The preliminary and qualifying examinations shall ^beheld un-

be held under such regulations not inconsistent with this tions.
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Fees.

In either

language

,

Act as are, from time to time, made by the Governor in
Council and published in the English and French languages
in the Canada Gazette.

Jxa^Sons
32 Th? examinations shall be open to all persons who

shall be open, comply with the requirements of this Act as to proof of age,
health and character, and conform to the regulations made
as herein provided, upon payment of such fees as are deter-
mined by the Governor in Council ; and all examinations
under this Act shall be held in the English or French
language, or in both, at the option of the candidate.

a^d
ic

ia?eof
me 3S Notice of every examination to be held under this Act

holding?
(

f°r admission into the Civil Service shall be published in
the English and French languages in the Canada Gazette at
least one month before the date fixed for the examination,
and the notice so published shall state -

(a.) When and where the examination is to be held

;

(b
) The subjects to which the examination will extend.

^onsfoulf"
34 Immediately after each examination a list of the per-

qualified to sons who are found qualified shall be made out and pub-
be made, lished in the Canada Gazette.

Proceedings
when new ap-
pointments
are required.

Selection of

candidates.

Probation.

Rejection
during pro-
bation.

Report of
Head before
permanent
appointment

NEW APPOINTMENTS.

35. When it becomes necessary to make any appoint-
ment to any of the classes to which it is herein provided
that first appointments shall only be made after qualifying
examination, such necessity shall be reported to the Head
of the Department by his Deputy ; and upon such report
being approved by the Head of the Department, and after
the salary to be paid has been voted by Tarliament, the
Head of the Department shall select and submit to the
Governor in Council, for probation, from the lists of qualified
candidates made by the Board, a person fitted for the vacant
place

:

2. The person so selected shall not receive a permanent
appointment until he has served a probationary term of at
least six months

:

3. The Head of the Department or the Deputy Head may,
at any time during the period of probation, reject any clerk
or employee appointed to his department.

SO. No probationary clerk shall remain in any depart-
ment more than one year, unless, at or before the end of
that time, the Deputy Head signifies to the Head of the
Department, in writing, that the clerk is considered by him
competent for the duty of the department

:
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2 If he is rejected the Head of the Department shallP"

£

report to the Governor in Council the reasons for rejecting tioll .

him and another clerk shall thereupon be selected in like

m
m

ner in his stead ; and the Head of the Department hall

Ee whether the name of the person rejected shall be

struck off the list as unfit for the service generally, or

whether he shall be allowed another trial.

37 When the Deputy Head of a Department;in which^a A*> to.office,

vacancy occurs, reports that, for reasons set forth in such gMquali-

report,

—

la.) The qualifications requisite for such office or em-
1

' ployment are wholly or in part professional or

technical; and

—

(b) The requisite qualifications are not possessed by
V

any person then in the service of that depart-

(c) ThaTft would be for the public interest that the

examination herein provided for should as re-

gards such vacancy, be wholly or partially dis-

pensed with ;

The Governor in Council may, without reference to the *jjg»
»d

ore of the person (if the Head of the Department concurs in

^h report), select and appoint such person as is deemed bes

fitted to fill the vacancy, subject to such examination as is

suggested in the report ; and such appointment shall be ftjmflg

made from the Civil Service, if any person employed therein available .

is found available

:

2. City Tostmasters; Inspectors, Collectors and *»**££»
ventive officers in the Customs Department; inspectors enumerated

of Weights and Measures; Deputy Collectors and Pre- office.,.

ventive officers in the Inland Revenue Department may

be appointed without examination and without reference to

the rules for promotion herein prescribed

:

3. The qualifying examination may be dispensed with in %**~~
the case of any person actually and continuously employed on «

xamillatjon

and since the first day of July, one thousand eight hundred maybe a*

and eighty-two, if the Deputy Head of the Department, with P-* w

the concurrence of the Head of the Department reports that

the said employee has the requisite qualifications for the place

to be filled by him; and such person may receive an

appointment in the Civil Service for which he is otherwise

eligible, if at the date of such temporary employment his age

did not exceed thirty-five years.

38 If a vacancy occurs in the office of the Auditor Gen- ASS Gen-

eral, the report required to fill such vacancy shall be made erd. office,

to the Minister of Finance.
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PROMOTIONS.

^byexamin .
3!> No promotion in either division of the Civil Service

ation under shall take place without special examination, under regula-
tions made by the Governor in Council

;

regulations.

To whom
open.

Subjects of ex-
amination .

2. Except as herein otherwise provided, such examination
shall be open to any person who holds a position below that
to which the promotion is to be made in either division of
the service of the department in which the vacancy to be
filled by promotion exists ; and shall be in such subjects as
may be determined from time to time for each department
by the Governor in Council, and in such subjects, as by
report of the Deputy Head of the Department in which
the promotion is to be made, concurred in by the Head of
the Department, are submitted to the Board as best
adapted to test the fitness of the candidates for the vacant
office

:

In inside

division

.

May be dis-

pensed with
as to profes-
sional men

.

Special case of
excisemen

.

Yearly esti-

mate of

probable
vacancies

.

In first

division

,

Additions.

3. When the vacancy to be filled by promotion exists in
the Inside Division the examination shall not be open to
persons employed in the Outside Division who, at the date
of their first appointment, were of a greater age than thirty-
five years

:

4. In the case of barristers, attorneys, engineers (military
or civil), officers of artillery in the Militia Department, and
graduates of the Royal Military College, architects, actuaries,
land surveyors and draughtsmen, when employed or when
seeking promotion in the line of their profession, the exami-
nation may be dispensed wTith on a report from the Deputy
Head, concurred in by the Head of the Department, that it

is not necessary

:

5. No such examination shall be required for the re-em-
ployment or promotion of excisemen who passed the depart-
mental examinations for the special class in the Excise ser-
vice before the first day of July, one thousand eight hundred
and eighty- two.

40. Once in each year, the Deputy Head of each depart-
ment shall make an estimate of the number of vacancies
likely to occur therein, during the ensuing year, in the First
Division in the classes of

—

(a.) Chief clerks

;

(b ) First-class clerks
;

(c.) Second-class clerks :

2. To the number so estimated shall be added such fur-

ther number as the Deputy Head of the Department deems
necessary to compensate for any death, failure of health, or
other contingency :
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3. A similar estimate shall be made at the same time of ^econd

the number of vacancies likely to occur in the Second Divi-

sion, to which promotions can be made

:

4 The numbers so estimated shall be those with reference Use of

to which the examinations for promotion shall be held, as estimate.

herein provided.

41 Notice of each examination for promotion in the ser- Notices of ex-

vice shall be published in the English and French languages animations.

in the Canada Gazette at least one month before the exami-

nation is to be held ; and such notice shall state the number

of promotions expected in each class in each division.

4*. Except as herein otherwise provided, when any &£&*«£
vacancy occurs in one of the higher classes, m either dm- higher

sion, the Head of the Department shall select from the list classes.

of successful candidates for promotion, the person whom he

considers best fitted for the office, having due reference to

any special duties incident to such office, to the qualification

and fitness shown by the candidates respectively, during

their examination, and to the record of their previous con-

duct in the service : Provided, that when no person employed pr0viso :
if

in the department is found suitable for promotion therein, ^fc

fi

e

t

ria

an examination shall be held of persons employed m the

service, of other departments, with a view to the promotion

being made, as far as practicable, from the service.

43. Every promotion so made shall be subject to a pro- ?*™f™
bation of not less than six months ; but at any time during probation.

the first year the Head of the Department may reject the

person promoted, or he may be definitely accepted at any time

during the second period of six months after his promotion ;

2. If the person so selected is rejected he shall then return if rejected.

to the performance of the duties in which he was previously

engaged.

44. When any clerk who is promoted on probation is Further^

rejected, the Head of the Department shall select another m
his stead from the candidates still remaining on the lists of

qualified persons made by the Board.

45. During the period for which a clerk is promoted on^^
probation the duties of the office previously held by him whom per-

shall, if necessary, be performed by a per son selected for that formed.

purpose by the Head of the Department.

46. An exchange of positions between two officers serving^^f
in different departments, or in different divisions of the officers with-

same department, and the filling of a vacancy m one depart

ment by a transfer from another division of the same depart

xT5

out examina-
tion.
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Condition

.

Employment
of assistance
in cases of
temporary-
pressure .

Term of em-

imited, &c.

The same,
and i ate of

remuneration

.

Out of what
funds pay-
able.

ment or from another department, may be authorized by the
Governor in Council to be made without examination of
either officer, but such exchange or transfer shall be made
without increase of salary of the person exchanging or trans-
ferred, and no person shall be transferred from an Outside
to an Inside Division whose age at the date of his first ap-
pointment exceeded thirty-five years.

SUPERNUMERARY AND TEMPORARY CLERKS.

47. When, from a temporary pressure of work, or from
any other cause, the assistance of temporary clerks becomes
necessary in any branch of the first or second division, the
Head of the Department may -if he is satisfied that such
necessity exists—on the requisition of the Deputy Head of
the Department, select from the lists of qualified candidates,
for whom no vacancies have, up to that time, been found,'
such number of temporary clerks as are required, or may
employ any other person qualified for the service in question,
if the list does not furnish such a person. But such other
person shall not be continued in such temporary employment
after the period in which a preliminary or qualifying exam-
ination is held, unless he presents himself for examination
and obtains a certificate of having passed the necessary
examination :

2. The services of persons in the temporary employment
of the several departments on the first day of July, one thou-
sand eight hundred and eighty-two, may be continued in
such employment so long as the Heads of the respective
departments deem necessary ; the rate of remuneration to be
paid for such temporary service shall not, however, exceed
the minimum salary ot a third-class clerk, unless the service
to be performed is technical and requires special qualifica-
tions

;
and such temporary employment shall not be con-

sidered as giving any claim to permanent appointment

:

3. The temporary and supernumerary clerks so employed
shall be paid only out of money voted by Parliament for
payment of the contingencies of the department, division or
office of the service in which such clerks are employed, or
out of money voted by Parliament for the construction of
works upon which they are employed.

Private
secretaries of
Ministers

:

salary.

Must have
been voted,

PRIVATE SECRETARIES.

48. Any member of the Civil Service may be appointed
private secretary to the Head of a Department, and may be
paid an additional salary not exceeding six hundred dollars
per annum whilst so acting :

2. No salary shall be payable to any private secretary
unless the amount has been voted by Parliament
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GENERAL PROVISIONS.

49. The Head of a Department, and, in his absence, the
£b

s

s
*^aVB of

Deputy Head of such Department, may grant to each chief
a

clerk, officer, clerk or other employee, leave of absence for

purposes of recreation, for a period not exceeding three weeks
in each year ; and every such officer, clerk or employee,

whetherin the First or Second Division, shall take the leave

so granted at such time during each year as the Head or

Deputy Head of the Department determines

:

2. In case of illness, or for any other reason which to him in case of

seems sufficient, the G-overnor in Council ma,y grant to any l ess

officer, chief clerk, clerk or other employee, leave of absence

for a period not exceeding twelve months.

50. The Head of a Department, and in his absence the Suspension of

Duputy Head of such Department, may,

—

°f™™
f°r

(a.) Suspend from the performance of his duty or from the In what

receipt of his salary any officer or employee guilty ofmis-
ca

conduct or negligence in the performance of his duties
;

(b.) Remove such suspension ; but no person shall receive Removal of

any salary or pay for the time during which he was under susPenslon -

suspension

:

2. All cases of suspension by the Deputy Head of the^rtinsuch

Department shall be reported bv him to the Head of the
ca

Department.

51. No extra salary or additional remuneration of any in what cases

kind whatsoever shall be paid to any Deputy Head, officer
™

Ply shaUbe

or employee in the Civil Service of Canada, unless a sum has allowed.

been placed for that purpose, in each case, in the estimates

submitted to and voted by Parliament

:

2. When the duties of any superior officer or clerk during
ff

e

g[Cefper-

his absence, or by reason of his demise, but not through forming duties

superannuation, are continuously performed by an officer or of superior,

clerk of an inferior class or junior rank, during a period of

more than three months, the officer or clerk performing such

duties may, on the report of the Deputy Head, concurred in

by the Head of the Department, under an Order in Council,

and provided that funds are available under parliamentary

vote for such payment, receive, in addition to his ordinary

pay, the difference between such ordinary pay and the pay

of the officer or clerk whose duties he has performed, for the

time he has performed such duties

:

3. When the absence of an officer is not occasioned by ^mpay for

his employment on other duties' by the Government, by unauthorized

48—12 HI absence.



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 188&

As to officers

having re-

signed and
wishing to re-

enter service

.

Certain pay-
ments to he
made only
under Order
in Council.

Act not to

prejudice cer-

tain officers.

Powers of
Governor in
Council not
impaired.

Proviso.

Attendance
books to he
kept, their

Oath of alle-

giance by
officers and
employees.

leave of absence or on account of illness, certified by an
authorized medical practitioner, appointed by the Governor
for that purpose, his salary for each day of such absence

shall be deducted from his monthly salary.

52. Any officer, clerk or employee who has resigned, shall

be eligible, without examination, under the authority of an
Order in Council, to re-enter the service, at the same salary

in the class in which he was serving at the time of such

resignation, and provided that funds are available for the

payment of his salary.

58. All payments of money to permanent employees,

other than salaries, to be made under the provisions of this

Act, and whether specifically stated in the estimates sub-

mitted to Parliament, or payable under sub-section two of

section fifty-one, shall be made only under the authority of

the Governor in Council.

54. Nothing contained in this Act shall prejudicially

affect the salary or emoluments of any Deputy Head, officer,

clerk or employee in the Civil Service of Canada, appointed

on or before the first day of July, one thousand eight

hundred and eighty-two, so long as he is continued in office,

nor shall anything herein contained affect any salary or

emolument granted and fixed by any Act in force at the

time hereinbefore mentioned.

55. No provision herein contained shall impair the power
of the Governor in Council to remove or dismiss any Deputy
Head, officer, clerk or employee, but no such Deputy Head,

officer, or employee, whose appointment is of a permanent
nature, shall be removed from office except by authority of

the Governor in Council.

56. There shall be kept in each department, and in the

office of the Auditor General, at the seat of Government, and
in each office of the Second Division, a book or books, to be

called the attendance book, which shall be in such form as

is determined by the Governor in Council, in which each

officer and employee of such office or department shall sign

his name, at such times as are determined by the Governor

in Council.

57. The Deputy Heads of Departments and all officers,

chief clerks, clerks, messengers, sorters and packers of the

Civil Service who have not already done so, and every

Deputy Head, officer, chief clerk, clerk, messenger, sorter or

packer hereafter appointed, before any salary is paid him,

shall take and subscribe the oath of allegiance and also the

oath contained in schedule C to this Act, or such other oath

as is provided by some other Act in that behalf

:
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2. In the case of the Clerk of the Privy Council, and all Addition to

officers under him, and in the case of any officer of whom S^ses!"
the Governor in Council requires the same, there shall be

added to the oath at the asterisks, in the form of the oath in

the said schedule C, the words contained in schedule D to

this Act

:

3. The Clerk of the Queen's Privy Council for Canada g^^J;
-

shall take and subscribe the said oaths before the G-overnor

G-eneral or some one appointed by him to administer the

same:

4. In the case of persons residing or coming to reside at Before whom

the city of Ottawa, the oaths shall be taken and subcribed in ottawa -

before the Clerk of the Privy Council

:

5. In other cases the oaths may be taken and subscribed ^^lse"

before a justice of the peace or other proper authority, who
shall forward the same to the clerk of the Privy Council

:

6. The Clerk of the Privy Council shall keep a register Register.

of all such oaths.

58. The Secretary of State shall lay before Parliament, Annual re-

within fifteen days after the commencement of each session, g^^S"
a report of the proceedings of the Board of Examiners under and what it*

this Act during the preceding year, which report shall must shoTf -

include a copy of the examination papers, a statement of all

examinations held and of the number of candidates at each,

and the names of the successful candidates, and also the rules

and regulations made during the year under the provisions

of section five of this Act

:

2. The Secretary of State shall lay before Parliament in Further par-

like manner a return of the names and salaries of all persons

appointed to or promoted in the Civil Sorvice during the

said year, specifying the office to which each has been

appointed or promoted.

59. The Secretary of State shall cause to be printed each J^*^
year a list, to be called the Civil Service List of Canada, of be printed and

all persons employed in the several departments of the Civil p^^nt.
Service together with those employed in the two Houses of

Parliament, upon the first day of July last preceding, show-

ing the dates of their several appointments and promotions,

their age, rank in the service, and salary ; and shall lay the

same before Parliament within the first fifteen days of each

session.

60. The several Acts passed in the forty-fifth, forty-sixth Former Acts

and forty-seventh years of Her Majesty's reign, consolidating rePealed -

and amending the Civil Service Acts are hereby repealed.

48 - :;
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SCHEDULE A.

(a.) Deputy Heads of Departments

;

(b.) Officers who have special professional or technical

qualifications ;

(c.) Chief Clerks;

(d ) First-class Clerks ;

(e.) Second-class Clerks

;

(/*.) Third-class Clerks ;

(g) Messengers, Packers and Sorters.

SCHEDULE B.

All the officers, clerks, and employees hereinafter enume-

rated, and such other officers in the lower grades as are

determined by Order in Council :

CUSTOMS.

Scale of Salaries.

Inspectors salary from $1,600 to 2,500

Collectors " 400 to 4,000

Surveyors " 1.200 to 2,500

Chief Clerks " 1,200 to 2,000

Clerks " 400 to 1,200

Chief Landing Waiters *...
u 800 to 1,200

Landing Waiters " 400 to 1,000

Gaugerl " 600 to 1,200

Chief Lockers " 800 to 1,200

Lockers " 400 to 800

TideSurveyors.'.'.'.'.*.^ " 800 to 1,000

Tide Waiters " 400 to 600

Messengers " 200 to 500

Appraisers " 800 to 2,000

Assistant Appraisers " 600 to 1,500

INLAND REVENUE.

Chief Inspector $ 2>800

Inspectors $1,600 to 2,500

Collectors 500 to 2,200

Deputy Collectors 400 to 1,500

Clerks (Accountants) 600 to 1,200

Special Class Excisemen 1,200

First, Second and Third-class Excisemen... 600 to 1,000

Probationary Excisemen 500

Messengers 200 to 500
180
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To which may be added for surveys of important mann-

factoriLan additional salary for the special class Excisemen

who perform that dnty, not exceeding $200 per annnm.

POST OFFICE,

Post Office Inspectors

:

4j>2 goo
Chief Inspector

2
'

200
1st Class, on appointment ..,..#. "'

00
After 10 years' service *>*™

u oo •* Aovv
2 000

2nd Class, on appointment..... '

00
After 10 years' service •• ^

« 20
"

'

Assistant Post Office Inspectors

:

On appointment, $1,200, with an annual increase of $50,

to a maximum of $1,600 :

The scale of salaries of clerks in Post Office Inspectors'

offices shall be the same as for clerks m City Post Offices .

Railway Mail Clerks

:

A. 1886

1

1

On Appoint-

ment. After

2

years'

service

in

any

j

class

of

Railway

Mail

Clerks.

;

After

5

years'

service

in

any

class

of

Railway

Mail

Clerks

.

After

10

years'

j

service

in

any

class

of

Railway

Mail

Clerks.

DayService

.

III

DayService.

Night
Service

.

•—I &
rJl

Night
Service

.

0)

m

Phipf Clerk

1 $ 1 %

1,000

720 1
880

600
J

720

1,200

800

640

520

1,000

800

640

%

1,350

880

720

560

%

1,100

880

700

1,500

960 1,200

800 1,000

3rd Class 480
\

600
640 800

cars.
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Marine Mail Clerks

i

appoint-

ment.

After
2 years.

After
5 years.

After
10 years.

After
15 years.

O

b
eS

""3 TripAllow-
ance. TripAllow- ance.

W.

TripAllow- ance.

02

Trip

J

Allow-

1

an.ce.

b
13

TripAllow- ance.

1st Class 480

1

80

$

540 80 600

1

80

$

800

1

100 1,000

$

100

2nd Class... 360 *50 420 50

Note.—Trip means the round voyage from Quebec or Halifax to Liverpool and
back.

* Only one-half, or $25, to be allowed whilst learning duty.

City Postmasters :

Class 1. where postage collections exceed

—

$80,000 $2,600
do 2, do are from 60,000 to $80,000 2,400
do 3, do 40,000 to 60,000 2,200
do 4, do 20,000 to 40,000 2,000
do 5, do are less than 20,000 1,400

to 1,800, as the Postmaster-G-eneral determines. These
salaries shall not be supplemented by any allowances, com-
missions or perquisites whatsoever.

Assistant Postmasters :

Class 1 $2,000
do 2 , I j800
do 3 l )60o
do 4 1)400
do 5 $1,100 to 1,400

Clerks in City Post Offices :

3rd Class, $400 by annual increase of $40 to $800.
2nd Class, $900 by annual increase of $50 to $1,200.
1st class—Specific duties in each case with fixed salaries

to be determined by the Postmaster-General ; no salary shall
be less than $1,200 or more than $1,500

;

Superintendent of Letter Carriers, not to exceed $800
;

Mail Transfer Agents, $400 with an annual increase of $40
to a maximum of $600

;

Letter Carriers, Messengers, Box Collectors and Portersi
$360 to $600 by annual increase of $30.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.

Inspector of Penitentiaries :

The same scale as Post Office Inspector.
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SCHEDULE C.

I (AB) solemnly and sincerely swear that I will faith-

anv sum of money, services, recompense or matter or thing

# * * So help me God.

SCHEDULE D.

And that I will not, without due authority in that behalf,

disckTseormake known any matter or thmg which comes

to my knowledge by reason of my employment as {at the

case map be).

OTTAWA tinted by^^-^ Pri°te * «*^^
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ANALYTICAL INDEX

TO THE

CIVIL SERVICE ACT

ABSENCE, LEAVE OF

:

three weeks, yearly

in case of illness

without leave, &c, carries suspension of pay.

ACTS:
repealed by the present Act.

APPOINTMENTS

:

conditions of.

limits as to age.

of Deputy Heads
of Chief Clerks
of First class clerks

of Second class clerks

of Third class clerks

none without examination
new, how made .

report, before appointment of a probationary clerk

of clerks requiring special qualifications

from the Service if available

exceptions to rules in cases of certain special appointments,

annual return of, by the Secretary of State ,

Section.

ATTENDANCE BOOKS :

their use

AUDITOK GENERAL :

his office included in the Civil Service

.

deputy of the, who shall be
vacancy in office of the

BOARD OF EXAMINERS

:

how appointed
number of members
secretary of
duties of.

supervision of
meetings of.

proceedings of
salary of members
travelling expenses ........

assistants

appointment and salary of secretary, of. . .

.

" ofclerkof. '

who may be assistant

places and dates of examinations .

expenses, and how, paid
report of proceedings by Secretary of State.

CANDIDATES :

can pass both examinations at their option

if.for a place below 3rd class clerk, must be 15 years old.

in other case 18 years old

if for the Inside Division not more than 35 years old

must be free from physical defect

character such as to be employed
fees for examinations fixed by Governor in Council

185

Sub
Section.

Page.

60

10
10
11
15
17
19
21

29
35
36
37
37
37
58

56

29
30
30
30
30
30
32

3
H
38 •'•

8
8, .

.

8 . .
:

8 = ,

.

8 2

8 3

8 3
8 4

8 5
8 6

8 7
8 7'

9 .

.

9 .

.

9 .

.

58 ..

177
177
177

17&

16&
168
168
168
169
169
169
170
171
171
172
172
172
179

178

165
16$
172

16*
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
179-

171
171
171
171
171
171
172
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Section,
Sub

Section.

CANDIDATES—Continued :

selection made for appointments out of list of qualified

supernumerary or temporary clerks to be chosen out of list of qualified.

.

CIVIL SERVICE :

constitution of

classification of. ;

list, annual
special clerks, appointed from Civil Service, if available

CLERKS

:

number and salaries of.

salaries of

supernumerary
when number exceeds that allowed
who shall be, when Act passes
chief, when and how appointed
" salary of

first-class, now appointed
'

' salary of.

second-class, how appointed
" salary of. '.

third-class, how appointed
" salary of

increase of salary may be suspended
offices requiring special qualifications
appointment of special

special, appointed from Civil Service if available
exceptions as to certain officers

may be rejected after promotion
supernumerary aud temporary, when and how selected
their term of employment limited
rate of remuneration of temporary.
out of what funds are paid temporary and supernumerary
no extra salary unless appropriation for same be voted
additional pay for those performing the duties of a superior
pay suspended for absence without leave
those having resigned may re-enter the service without examination. . .

.

shall sign the attendance books
shall take the oath of allegiance
and the oath in schedule C
and add to the last mentioned oath, when required or employed in the

Privy Council, the words in schedule D
the Clerk of the Privy Council to take these oaths before, the Governor

General or some one appointed by him

DEPARTMENT

:

head of

deputy
deputy head
deputy head of a.

divisions of

DEPUTY

:

who is the
salary of the

,

appointment of the .".*.' .'

,

.' .' *.","." '.......'.

duties and powers of the
" by whom performed in his absence

the Governor in Council can only remove the

DIVISION OF DEPARTMENT :

first or inside
second or outside
examination for promotion to a vacancy in inside division
no transfer from outside to inside division, when over 35 years old

,

EXAMINATIONS
:

no appointment without
preliminary—for what appointments '.

3

7
59

37

6

6

7

15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22
26
37
37
37
37
43

47
47
47
47
51

51

51

52
56

57

29

29
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LAMINATIONS—Continued

:

qualifying—for what appointments
***

candidates can pass both, at option

condition for preliminary. y •

when and how are regulations made xor

to whom open

in what language made
when dispensed with qualifying.

promotion only made after special

to whom open
subjects of

ya^^'-saKsasffS& »****?*
be dispensed with

none required in the case of excisemen '/..'.".'.!'.!!.'.'.'

.'

notices of . • • • • • • • • • • •
• ".".*..

exchanges of position allowed without. . . .

may be dispensed with on re-appomtment

annual return of examination papers. . • • • • • • • '"'''"'i
''''

annual return of-showing number of candidates, and namestf sue

cessful ones

XAMINERS—BOARD OF :

how appointed
number of members
secretary of.

duties of. ... .

supervision of

meetings of

proceedings of

salary of members of

travelling expenses of.

appointment and salary of secretary of

" of clerk of

who may be assistants

places and dates of examinations

expenses, how paid :••"/ '

report of proceedings, by Secretary of btate

EXCHANGE OF POSITIONS :

allowed without examination

EXCISEMEN^
d.^eiised w

.

th
.

u cage re.employmellt on promotion,

HEAD OF DEPARTMENT :

who he is
'

INTERPRETATION :

of expressions in Act

,

LEAVE OF ABSENCE :

three weeks, yearly

in case of illness :••":'

suspension of pay when absent without

LIST—CIVIL SERVICE :
•

to be printed yearly and laid before Parliament.

MESSENGERS, PORTERS, &c. :

salary of

examinations for

OATHS
of allegiance

S scheduk D foVofficVrs'of'PrivVfi^'^^SB^^a' '

'

taken before the Governor General by the Clerk of the Privy Council. .

,

taken before the Clerk of the Privy (5ouncil by those residing in Ottawa

1&7

41

46

52

58

58

3
8

9

9

9

58

46

39

2

2

59

57

57
57
57
57

171
171
171
172
172
172
173
174
174
174
174

174
174
175
175
178
179

179

166
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
167
179

175

174

165

165

177
177
177

179

169
170

178
178
179
179
179
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OATHS—Continued :

taken before a Justice of the Peace in other cases ,

register of—to be kept by the Clerk of the Privy Council. .

.

OFFICERS :

number and salaries of

salaries of

supernumerary
when number exceeds that allowed
who shall be when Act passes
exceptions from regulations, as to certain
permanent—removable only by Governor in Council ,

oath of allegiance
,

oath in schedule C
" " with words added schedule D if required.

PAYMENTS:
additional to permanent employees only made under Order in Council. .

.

POWERS OF GOVERNOR GENERAL :

not impaired by this Act

PREAMBLE:
of this Act,

PROBATION :

how long before appointment,
rejection during
provision incase of rejection,

required in case of promotion.

Section.

PROMOTION :

salary on
none without examination

.

subject to probation
annual return of

REGULATIONS :

for Civil Service, how made
,

for examinations
made during the year, annual statement of..... '.

REPORTS

:

to create a chief clerkship
" first-class clerkship
" second "
" third »

,

in case of increase of salary .'

" a new appointment
" a rejection
" officers requiring special qualifications.

.

when qualifying examinations are dispensed with,
as to subjects of examinations.
as to exempt professional men from examinations for promotion.
as to probable vacancies in both divisions
to be made in all cases of suspension
of the proceedings of the Board, yearly, by the Secretary of State
of appointments and promotion's ''during the year
Civil Service list of Canada, yearly

SALARY :

collective amount of—not to exceed appropriation.
how determined
increase of.

of members of Board of Examiners'. '. ....!!!!
."

',
'.

'.

of secretary of "board "
of deputy head ..........'.

of chief clerks ..'....'.

of first-class clerks
of second " ,. . . .

*188

6

6

6

6

7
37
55
57
57

57

24

39
43

59

Sub
Section.

5

31

58 ••

15 a
17
19
21

26
35
36 2

37 .

.

37 3

39 2

39 4

40 .

.

50 2

58

58 2

59

8 4

8 7

12
16
18 .

,

20 ..
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SALARY—Continued :

of third class clerks

initial and increase

regulations as to

conditions of increase of

increase of—may be suspended

increase of—from what time payable

increase on promotion . . ••••.••;

increase only when appointed according to law

no increase, in exchange of position

of private secretaries :,••••, 'L'ir a « none paid unless voted

none paid during suspension

^xtra none allowed unless voted .•••:"•;*;

additional-for performing duties of a superior, m what case.

deductions of—for absence without authorization ,

not affected by this Act....... •

extra—only payable by Order in Council

SCHEDULES:
A, Classification ot officers

B, Salaries of officers enumerated therein

C, Form of oath

D, Additional form of oath

SECRETARY OF STATE :

.upervision of the Board of Examiners.

report of proceedings of Board of Examiners yearly... • •
•

;;

return of all person's appointed or promoted during the yeai.

Civil Service List, yearly

SECRETARY :

of Boartl of examiners .

a " salary of

private secretary of Minister ... -
.^

.

.
~

•
• ^ • • -j-——

SELECTION: . . . . . A
further, when a probationary clerk is rejected.

new if a clerk is rejected after promotion •
•

•
:

• •
•

of a person to perform duties ofa clerk promoted on probation.
person

SUSPENSION :

of increase of salary

of an officer for cause

in what cases

removal of

no salary paid during • • •

of pay in case of unauthorized absence.

TITLE SHORT :

of this Act,

VACANCY : .. ^ _.. ,

in Auditor General's office, how filled.

in inside division, how filled

in higher classes, how filled

Section,

22
24
25
26
26
27
27
28
46
48

48

50
51

51

51

54
53

Sub
Section

.

36
44

45

2G
50

50
50

50
51

42

Page.
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169
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170
170
170
170
170
176
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177
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179
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APPENDIX No. 2.

Jfe

46 VIC, CAP. 8.

An Act to amend and consolidate the Acts relating to

the Superannuation of persons employed in the Civil

Service of Canada.

[Assented to 2bth May, 1883.]

TTFR Maiestv by and with the advice and consent of the Preamble.

H Senafe and Ilouse of Commons of Canada, enacts as

follows :

—

1 The Civil Service for the purposes of this Act shall in- Who*^

elude and consist of— s™ts -

1 All officers, clerks and employes in or under the several Those to

TWartments of the Executive Government who are paid a c . 4) applies.

veaTvTakrrand to whom " The Canada Civil Serviee Aet,

1882" applies and those who in case they were or are

IppointeZfter the coming into force of that Act were or are

appointed in conformity with its provisions :

Governor in Council may, from time to time, designate .

3 The permanent officers and servants of the Senate and officered

House of Commons, and the permanent officers and servants genate aud

emploved infte Library of Parliament, who for the purposes Cor—

Xhis Act shall be held to be in the Civil Service ol Canada.

ylng tlwa^ all legal rights and privileges o ei her Ho s

as respects the appointment or removal of its olhcers ana

servants or any of them :

4 All persons now contributing to the Superannuation £££*"£
; *

,
* the fund.

Fund

:
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Certain
others

.

Conditions
and rates of

allowance

.

Maximum
rate, for 35
years.

Breaks in ser-

vice not to

count

.

5. All persons to whom the Acts relating to superannua-
tion hereby repealed are by some other Act not repealed de-
clared to apply.

2. The Governor in Council may grant to any person
having served in an established capacity in the Civil Service
for ten years or upwards, and having attained the age of
sixty years, or being incapacitated by bodily infirmity from
properly performing his duties, a superannuation allowance
calculated on his average yearly salary during the then last
three years, and not exceeding the following rates, that is to
say :—If he has served for ten years, but less than eleven
years, an allowance of ten-fiftieths of such average salary, and
if for eleven years and under twelve years an annual allow-
ance of eleven- fiftieths thereof, and in like manner a further
addition of one- fiftieth of such average salary for each addi-
tional year of service up to thirty-five years, when an annual
allowance of thirty-five-fiftieths may be granted, but no
addition shall be made for any service beyond thirty-five
years

;
if the service has not been continuous, the period or

periods during which such service has been interrupted shall
not be counted, and the Order in Council made in such case
shall be laid before Parliament at its then or then next ses-
sion.

Governor in

Council may
add to service

of persons
appointed on
account of

special quali-

fications.

Preliminary
enquiry by
Treasury
Board on cer-

tain points
made
requisite.

3. The Governor in Council may, in the case of any per-
son who entered the Civil Service after the age of thirty
years, as being possessed of some peculiar professional or
other qualifications or attainments required for the office to
which he was appointed, and not ordinarily to be acquired
in the public service, add to the actual number of years ser-
vice of such person, such further number not exceeding ten,
as may be considered equitable, for reasons stated in the
Order in Council made in the case ; and such additional
number of years shall be taken as part of the term of service
on which the superannuation allowance of such person shall
be computed,—the Order in Council in any such case being
laid before Parliament, at its then or then next session.

4. The superannuation of any civil servant shall be pre-
ceded by an enquiry by the Treasury Board,

—

(a) Whether the person it is proposed to superannuate
is eligible within the meaning of this Act ; and—

(b) Whether his superannuation will result in benefit
to the service, and is therefore in the public inter-
est ; or

—

(c) Whether it has become necessary in consequence of
his mental or physical infirmity :

192
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2. And no civil servant shall be superannuated unless the Report of

Treasury Board reports that he is eligible within the mean- Boar(L

ing of this Act and that such superannuation will be in the

public interest.

5. Towards making good the superannuation allowances 2 per cent, de-

hereinbefore mentioned, an abatement shall be made from
salaries of°

m

the salary of each person in the Civil Service to whom this pooormore,

Act applies, at the rate of two per centum per annum on ]4m Lkries
such salary, if it be six hundred dollars or upwards, and of below $600.

one and a quarter per centum per annum thereon, if it be
less than six hundred dollars, and the sum so deducted shall

form part of the Consolidated Kevenue Fund ; but such Proviso.

abatement shall be made only during the first thirty-five

years of service.

6. The full superannuation allowance as aforesaid shall io years' con-

only be granted to persons who have been subject to the qSeXrfuii
said abatement during ten years or upwards ; the superan- allowance.

nuation allowance of any person who has not paid it, or has
paid it for a less period, being subject to a diminution of one Diminution

per centum for every year less than ten during which he f°r les
^
period

has not paid it ; except that the superannuation allowance tion.

of any person hereafter retiring, shall not be subject to any
such diminution by reason of his not having paid the abate- Exception.

ment hereinbefore mentioned, during any^year or years after

his first thirty-five years of service.

7. Ketirement shall be compulsory on any person to whom Compulsory

the superannuation allowance hereinbefore mentioned shall
retirement -

be offered, and such offer shall not be considered as implying
any censure upon the person to whom it is made ; nor shall

any person be considered as having any absolute right to Allowance

such allowance, but it shall be granted only in consideration
£n
n
g ^

1

<j

mal

of good and faithful service during the time upon which it service.

is calculated ; and nothing herein contained shall be under- Right of dis-

stood as impairing or affecting the right of the Governor to P1^.1 not

dismiss or remove any person frornthe Civil Service.
impaire .

8. If the Head of a Department reports with respect to Diminution

any person employed in his Department, and about to be g
1^ sports

7

superannuated, from any cause other than that of ill-health unsatisfactory

or age, that the service of such person has not been satisfac-
servlce -

tory, the Governor in Council may grant such person a
superannuation allowance being less than that to which he
would have otherwise been entitled, as to him may seem fit.

9. If any person to whom this Act applies, is constrained Gratuity

from any infirmity of mind or body to quit the Civil Service alkwance^not

before the period at which a superannuation allowance earned.

might be granted him, the Governor in Council may allow
193
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injury on
duty

Provision for

abolition of

office, reduc-

tion of staff,

&c.

Gratuity in him a gratuity not exceeding one month s pay for each year

case of bodily
f his service ; and if any such person is so constrained to

quit the service before such period, by reason of severe

bodily injury received without his own fault in the discharge

of his public duty, the Governor in Council may allow him

a gratuity not exceeding three month's pay for every two

year's service, or a superannuation allowance not exceeding

one-fifth of his average salary during the then last three

years.

10 If any person to whom this Act applies is removed

from office in consequence of the abolition thereof, m order

to the improvement of the organization of the department to

which he belongs or is removed or retired from office to

promote efficiency or economy in the Civil Service, the

Governor in Council may grant him such gratuity or super-

annuation allowance as will fairly compensate him lor his

loss of office, not exceeding such as he would have been

entitled to if he had retired in consequence of permanent

infirmity of body or mind, after adding ten years to his actual

term of service.

1 1 Any person receiving a superannuation allowance, and

beiuo- under the age of sixty years, and not disabled by bodily

liable to serve m̂ ntal infirmity shall be liable to be called upon to nil,

IJndTpe^ltyin any part of Canada, any public office or situation for

of loss of which his previous services render him eligible, and not
allowance. ^^ ^ rank or emolnment than that from which he retired

;

and, if he refuse or neglect so to do, he shall forfeit his said

allowance.

Service before ** Service in an established capacity in any of the

confedera- public departments of the Government or offices of the

Legislature of any of the Provinces now included in the

Dominion of Canada, before such Province became a

portion of the Dominion, by any person who has thereafter

entered the Civil Service of Canada shall be reckoned m
computing his period of service for the purposes of this Act.

13. In any case of doubt the Governor in Council may, by

general or special regulations, determine to what persons the

provisions of this Act do or do not apply, and the conditions

on which, and the manner in which, they shall apply in any

case or class of cases.

Pensioners
under 60

tion to be
counted

Discretion-

ary power
of Governor
in Council.

Payment of

allowances.

14 The allowances and gratuities granted under this Act,

shall be payable out of the Consolidated Revenue Fund of

Canada.

Annual re- 15. The Minister of Finance shall lay before Parliament,

turn to be within fifteen days after the commencement of each session,

{?a

a

ment
0Par

"

a return of all superannuations and retiring allowances m
194
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the Civil Service within the year, giving the name and
rank of each person superannuated or retired, his salary, his
age, length of service, the allowance granted to him on
retirement, the cause of his superannuation and whether the
vacancy has been subsequently filled, and if so, whether by
promotion or by a new appointment, and the salary of the
new appointee.

16. The following Acts and parts of Acts are hereby Kepeaioffoi*

repealed :— merActs.

33 Vic, c. 4, intituled "An Act for better ensuring the

efficiency of the Civil Service of Canada, by providing for the

Superannuation of persons employed therein, in certain cases.'
11

3G Vic, c 32, intituled " An Act to amend the Civil Service
Superannuation Act."

38 Vic, c 9, intituled "An Act to further amend the Civil
Service Superannuation Act."

"Section 54 and sub-section 3 of section 55, of "The Canada
Civil Service Act, 1882."

18. This Act may be cited as " The Civil Service Super- Short title.

annuation Act, 1883."

OTTAWA : Printed by Brown Chamberlin, Law Printer to the Queen's
Most Excellent Majesty.

195
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ANALYTICAL INDEX

TO THE

CIVIL SERVICE SUPERANNUATION ACT

ABATEMENT :

es fa^ op Snperanmlation Fund.

none after 35 years service.

Section.

ABOLITION OF OFFICE:
j

10

provision m case of

ACT
Civil Service, 1882—to whom it applies

repealed by tl

Superannuation
repealed by this Act .. ..

. ..^—— *

conling under its provisions!

ADDITIONAL SERVICE; ^ ^.^^ 3Q years of age , with special

to those having entered

ALLOWANCE :

rates and conditions of. . . ..... ,.•• u_; v '

full after 10 years' contribution to «ie Fund

decreased 1 p. c. for every year less than 10

d^crS^^ \

\

'

Era?^t^^^^^± dc

reqm
ofConsoiidated Revenue'Fund ofCanada

paid out

APPLIC
o

A
f™

N
Aet to be defined by the Govern Council in any case of

doubt.

BREAKS, IN SERVICE

:

OrLThfcouncil'to be LSd before Parliament in case of.

CENSURE
none 1mplied when superannuation is offered.

CIVIL SERVANTS : _ .

who, under this Act, are deemed.

CIVIL SERVICE ACT, 1882 :

to whom it applies

CLERKS
^ igions of civil service Act, 18812.... . . • •

of outside division under the provisions of this Act.

TOMP^E£SS5SSS allowance is offered

.

CONDITIONS: .

of superannuation allowance.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO SUPERANNUATION FUND :

2
6

6

7

8

10

11

14

Sub
Section.

Page.

1,2,3,4,5

13

1,2,3,4,5

193
193

194

191
195
191

191
191

192
193
193
193
193
194

194
194

194

192
192

193

191

191

191
192

193

192

193

193

less than 10.
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DEDUCTION

:

scale of—on salaries for superannuation.

MINUTION :

allowance on Deputy Head's report that services were not satisfactory

DIVISION OF CIVIL SERVICE—OUTSIDE : -

officers of—coming under provisions of this Act

EMPLOYEES :

under provision of Civil Service Act, 1882, coming under this Act.
ot the outside division who come under this Act

ENQUIRY :

by Treasury Board in every case of superannuation

FUND, SUPERANNUATION :

those contributing to, under the provisions of this Act
rate of abatement on salaries for

GOVERNOR IN COUNCIL :

may grant allowance at certain conditions and rates
may add to the services of those entered Civil Service, 'a'ft'er'36 'years of

age, with special qualifications
his power of dismissal or removal not impaired or affected by this Act.'may reduce allowance, when services unfaithful..
may give gratuities in certain cases
may determine to what persons this Act does or does not apply.'.'.'.'.'.

GRATUITY :

paid in certain cases when allowance is not earnedm above cases—rate of
paid out of Consolidated Revenue Fund'.'.

HOUSE OF COMMONS :

permanent officers of—under the provisions of this Act

.

INPERRUPTED SERVICE :

not counted

LIBRARY, PARLIAMENT :

permanent officers of—under provisions of this Act.

OFFICE : .

nrovision in case of abolition of.

.

OFFICERS :

falling under the provisions of the Civil Service Act, 1882, come undermis .A-Cl

of outside service who come' aider tha provisions' of this Act
.'.'.'.

ot both Houses (permanent) and Library coming under this Act ..'.'. .' .' .'

!

ORDER IN COUNCIL :

in case of break in service to be laid before Parliamentm case ot additional service granted for special qualification's'.'
.' .' ,' .' .' .' .' .'

.'

\

OUTSIDE DIVISION OF CIVIL SERVICE :

officer of—coming under the provisions of this Act

PARLIAMENT :

Order in Council in case of break of service to be laid before .

.

cVwMdbefore
Se °f additional service Sranted for special qual'ifr

all superannuations within the year' 'reported by Minister' of Finance',

PARLIAMENT LIBRARY :

permanent officers of—coming under the provisions of this Act.

198

Section

10

2

3

15

Sub
Section

1

5

4

2 *•

3

7
8

10
13

..

9

10
14

1 3

2

1 3

Page.

193
193..

193

191

191
191

192

191
193

191

192
193
193

193-4
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193
194
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Sub
Section.

'section

>ENSI°SS
60 when efficient liable to serve, if required

™AKSS Library coming under the provisions of this Act. . .

.

PREAMBLE :

3UALIFS„°afiSWersons entering Civil Service after 30 years of

Orderfn Council toto 'laid bete P^moit in snch cases

RATES
of allowancess^SS—

»

^a^arXnyearfySoVanceianot earned.

g

REDUCTION OF STAFF

:

provision in case of

REPORT

within the commencement of each Session

days

REPEALED ACTS :

List of

KETIKEc™ory when fnll superannuation allowance is offered.

KETTJBN : . mad. early by Minister of Finance 15 days

«*js^^^«^*^.'-
MINISTER OE FINANCE : ^ jm ent of each seSsion, give a return

of all superannuations during the year ,

RIGHT :

to superannuation not absolute.

SSSS^^taS^ or affected by this Act.,

SENAT
permanent officers of, under provisions of this Act.

SERVANTS CIVIL :

^^^oSH^ritibW.-'-aer-proviaion, of this Act. .

.

11

SERVICE: ,
. . , .••

Si^lo^cc^Tuatttioi^vhen" Arsons entered Civil Serv.ce

" . • P - -i. Jn^.nnoOC ollnWATlPP ..«••••••• * *.* * *

"-^tfeffl be
1

cTted for ihe pnrpose of this Act.
before

CIVIL SERVICE ACT, 1882

to whom it applies. .

.

SHORT TITLE: am- 1RSV» Civil Service Superannuation Act, l»»a

^^^K^^ entering Civil Service after 30 years of age,

OrdeT^Council'tV to kid'tato Pariikment^i such cases

10

4

15

16

15

15

3

7
8

12

1

18
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192
193
193

194

192
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Section.

STAFF :

provision in case of reduction of.

SUPERANNUATION :

preceded by an enquiry by the Treasury Board..

.

rates and conditions of allowance
maximum rate after 35 years "..*./.".

not increased for services beyond 35 years.
'

full after 10 years' contribution to the fund.'
'.'.

no diminution for non-contribution after 35 year's
no absolute right to
G0

lu?n
r

of

n
s?a°ff

n
&c
"^ *""** ^ ™ removal for abolition of office,' 'rediicl

loss of—when pensioners under 60 refuse to serve if requiredAct—persons falling under its provisions ',

SUPERANNUATION FUND :

those contributing to under provisions of
built up from deductions from salaries of civil servants.'

TITLE, SHORT :

" Civil Service Superannuation Act, 1883 "

TREASURY BOARD

:

in case of superannuation, enquiry by
before superannuation of civil servants, 'report' of.

10

4

2
2
2
6

6
7

10
11

1

18

Sub-
Section.

1,2,3,4,5

4
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INDEX TO NAMES
IN

CIVIL SERVICE LIST.

Page.

Abbott, Francis ^
Abbott, William V .if.

Abell, Edmund K ^f
Ackers, John _ ,

R
Adams, Alexander \fl
Adams, Edward l6K

i

Adams, James .

Adams, Edwin J 1R
Adams, Frank Dawson £°

Adams, John Stavrick fi
Adams, Wm. Cornish j>"

Adams, Joshua Fourth *>*

Adainson, James \°*

Addison, William G
Aikens, William
Aikins, James
Ainsborough, Thomas °jj

Aitken, James Montague {.;?

Alcock, James JJJ

Aldrich, Fred. E. P ™
Alexander, William '

Alexander, A
Alexander, Thomas
Alexander, William H
Alexander, Henry
Alford, William H
Alger, Lt.-Col. Wm. Norcott ll

Allain, Adolphus Jt

Allan, Francis John '

'

Allan, Kobert Kellock 6y)

Allan, Kev. John *

Allard, Thomas ,%t

Allen, George Hy \f.\
Allen, HenryS 10*

Allen, Jeremy 5^
Allen, Harry it
Allison, Charles

6
ri

Almon, Andrew TJ
1 *!)

Abnon, Charles M ti

149
152
101
85

30
128

1

86

L 59
137

Ambrose, Jno. D
Amerault, Basil - „_
Amew, Mathurin ^

'

Ami, Henry Marc £°

Amor, William ^
Anctil, Jean Laughlin *W
Anderson, William

\

1 '

Anderson, Andrew J*£
Anderson, William P ]f
Anderson, Jacob Dewitt 1 £>

Anderson, John * :~

Anderson, George Clayton »{>

Anderson, Jesse 'J*

Anderson, Charles W , ™
Anderson, Michael John ^
Anderson, Bouchette °*

Anderson, William °*

Anderson, William £*
Anderson, Charles Jos j£
Anderson, Charles Ed. B ^
Anderson, Thomas *o
Andrews, Henry r*

Andrews, George I.

6
.

Angers, Frangois

Page.

Anglin, E. D f-
Angus, William ™
Anstey, Charles ™
Antrobus, William Denny Z1

Appleton, Robert *

Arahill, John J™
Arcand, Flavien \'™

Archambault, Odilon A
gj?

Archambault, Romuald ^
Archer, William \f
Archibald, William F J

t\
Ardagh, Henry Hatton i>*

Ardouin, George G *

Argyle, Thomas ^
Arland, William H »J
Arless, Richard J

"™
Armstrong, Robert _ _

fi

Armstrong, Arthur J"
Armstrong, Bartholomew M *""

Armstrong, Thomas
fi

.

Armstrong, William °*

Armstrong, Edw. Wm. H f
Arneil, Frank Jjf
Arnoldi, John R -

ftl

Arthurs, William *>»

Artz, John
Ascah, James
Ashdown, William C
Ashton, Alfred E v '

Ashwood, Joseph C '^
Ashworth, John

n n„

Askin, John •

Asselin, Joseph E >

Atcheson, Anthony
Atherton, Robert
Atkins, John Jas

Atkins, Richard
1Q

.

Atkinson, Henry R
7fi

Atwood, Warren Wilson '

J
Aubin, Napoleon - fg
Au Coin, Severin i„
Audet, Lt.-Col. Alphonse *|

Auger, Olivier ^
Auger, Israel , na
Auger, Arthur E t™
Aumond, Telmont *

ft

Aumond, Wm. Henry Jj
Austin, Thomas B. S

*J|

Austin, William Augustus *|

I Austin, John ., -, *
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RETURN
(48a)

Of tlie Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in

the Civil Service during the year 1885, specifying the office to which

each has been appointed or promoted. (Sec. 58, sub-sec. 2, " Civil Ser-

vice Act.")

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Secretary of State.

Department of the Secretary of State,

12th March, 1886.

Betubn of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the

Civil Service, during the Year 1885, specifying the office to which each has been

appointed or promoted. (Sec. 58, sub-sec. 2, " Civil Service Act.")

DEPAETMENT OF PUBLIC WOEKS.

APPOINTMENTS—NIL.

Mowat.

Samuel Pierre Beauset.

4da—

1

PROMOTIONS.

Name. Age.

Date
of Appoint-
ment or

Promotion.

Inside
or

Outside.

Rank or Office. Salary.

A. Gobeil 32
31

31

31

38

Jan. 29...

July 1...

do 1...

do 1...

Not. 23...

Inside...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Secretary, Chief Clerk

$ cts.

1,800 00
1,100 00
1,100 00

A. Belleau <Jnd uiass .,-.^

do

A. G. Kingston do .."

1st Class

1,100 00
1,400 00

DEPAETMENT OF FISHEEIES,
APPOINTMENTS.

27 Aug. Outside. Officer in charge of the Fraser

Rirer Hatchery, British Col-

umbia.

1,200 00

PROMOTIONS.

53 Sept. 21... Inside. Chief Clerk 1,800 00
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IEeturn of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the>

Civil Service during the Year 1885—Continued.

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.

APPOINTMENTS.

PROMOTIONS.

Francois Fr6deric Gourdeau.
Alfred Wallace Owen

July 1...

October 1...

Inside...

do ..,

Chief Olerk and Accountant
2nd Class Clerk

Name. Age.

Date
of Appoint-
ment or

Promotion.

Inside
or

Outside.

Rank or Office. Salary.

Henry George Lewis 55 May 11... Outside. Agent at Victoria, British Col-

umbia.

$ cts.

1,600 00

DEPARTMENT OP AGRICULTURE.
APPOINTMENTS.

R. Tracey
J. B. Tweedale .......

J. P. Rutherford..

P. Pare
G. P. Sylvester

JF. H. L. St. Germain
Thos. Hating
S. H. Fee
Wm. Jackson
J. Olark
J. Sylveetre
J. G. Badeau
T. V. Hutchinson
Thos. Casey
W. G. Ibbotson

61
40
47
32
51

48
45

35

38
39
44
42
58

Jan. 16... Outside.
do 16... do ...

do 29... do ...

Feb. 9... do ...

do 20 . do ...

do 20... do ...

March 7... do ...

do 23... do ...

do 27... do ...

April 4... do ...

July 10... do ...

October 27... do ...

Dec. 10... do ...

February 3... Inside...

July 31... Outside.

Health Officer

do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

3rd Class Clerk
Immigration Agent

PROMOTIONS.

H. B. Small

.

H. H. Bailey
54
37

January 1...

Dec. 4...

Inside,

do .

Chief Clerk
2nd Class Cleik.

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.
APPOINTMENTS.

H. F. Dinning...
J. D. Sherman ..

J. T. Colton
J. Baxter
A. McMordie
E. Meadows
J- Butler
G.Ellis.
D. H. Goulden ..

J. A. Ingram
H. F. Thompson
H. Cooch

26
19

33
23
31
25
29
21

25
24
26
23

Sept.

do
Oct.
July
do
do
do
do
do
do
Sept
July

Outside.
do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Inside...

Outside.

do ...

(nside...

3rd Class, R.M.C
do
do

Letter Carrier .....

do
do
do
do

3rd Class
Letter Carrier
ard Class, R.M.C
Packer.,
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Return of the Hames and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the

Civil Service during the Year 1885—Continued,

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT—Continued.

APPOINTMENTS— Continued.

Name.

W.S.Hall
W. A. McCague
N. A. Goad
J. J. Durack .

E. Ballantine -

N. Dorion
A. Samuels. ••

K. M. N. O'Connor
B. Steele
Jbhn N. Robertson .,

Thomas R. Boys
Robert B. H. Phillips

William Lawrence
J. Seymour *

D. Clarabut
W. M. Burrows
W. G. Cuthbert, jun
T. L'Ecuyer
M. Pelletier

F. O. A. Seguin
J. P. Ripwell
Lucy Robinson
J. E. Hetherington
J. A. Whiteside
J. Nicholson
J H. Percival ••••

F. Pepin ...

G. L. Plunkett
R. Greenfield..

H. Nadeau
Geo. Catellier

J. E. Morissette

W. Strongman ......

N. Renaud •

J. Huggard
P. Regan
W. J. H. Adams
L. P. Thibault
A. Taylor
Robert Gilmour
J. Cushing
M. W. Sloan «

S. Green
W. &. Wiley
W. G. Milligan -
Jonas L. French
CT. A. Hunt.,
J. P. Howard —
W. Crawford
W. T. Macpherson
G. J. M. Skelly
Jeremiah Coffey
T. H. Marshall
J. Ledoux •»

8. Short
G. R. Parish
W. H. Cheney
J. R. Sayers
W. W.McVicar

Age.

Date
of Appoint-
ment or

Promotion.

35
25
23
26
27
34
45
17

27
34
21

24
35
47
36
25
24
25
25
28
27
24
26
19
30
22
22
28
31
21
19

34
22
33
22

20
21
30
50
45
31

35
21

30
22
35
36
30
19
26
29
22
24
23
18
23
27
28
18

July 1...

October 1...

do
do
do
do
July
do
Nov.
July
do
do
Nov.
July
do
do
do

10...

1...

1...

10...

1...

1...

1...

1...

1..

1..

9..

1..

1..

1...

1...

Inside
or

Outside.

Rank or Oflice.

October 1...

July 1...

October 17...

May 30...

June 1...

do 2...

do 4...

July 1...

do 1...

June 27...

July 1...

August 5...

July 24...

June 15...

August 1...

do 1...

do 5...

do 1...

June 17...

July 24...

Sept. 21...

October 1...

August 14..

April 1..

Sept. 19..

July 1..

Sept. 19..

do 21..

do 21..

do 19..

do 19..

do 19..

July 1..

Sept. 19..

do 19..

do 19..

do 9..

October 1.

do 1..

do 1.

Sept. 21.

do 26.

do ..

Outside
do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

Inside...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Outside,
do ...

Inside...

do ...

Outside,
do
do
do

Inside...

Outside.
Inside...

Outside,
do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Inside...

do ...

Outside,
do
do
do
do
do

Inside
do

Outside.
do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Inside ...

do ...

Outside.
do ...

do •*•

do ...

do ...

do ...

Inside...

do ...

do ...

Outside.
do

6

3rd Class
do

Letter Carrier ..

3rd Class
do

Salary.

..

do R.M.C
do •

do
do
do
do
do

Letter Carrier

3rd Class
do

Letter Carrier
do

3rd Class
do
do

3rd Class
do •..•

do Railway Mail Clerk..

do >

Leuer Carrier

3rd Class
Leuer Carrier
3rd Class »«

do
do *

do
do Railway Mail Clerk..

Let ter Carrier
Assistant Inspector

3rd Class
do

Mail Transfer Agent
Letter Carrier -

do
do

3rd Class Railway Mail Clerk.

do do
do do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do j

Letter Carrier

3rd Class
Messenger
PfLckcr ••••••••• ••••••••• • •••••• ••••••«

3rd Class Railway Mail Clerk

do do

Railway Mail Clerk.

Railway Mail Clerk,

do
do

$ cts.

400 00
400 00
360 00
400 00
400 00
480 00
400 00
400 00
400 00
400 00
400 09
400 00
360 00
400 00
425 00
360 00
360 00
400 00
500 00
400 00
400 00
400 00
480 00
400 00
360 00
400 00
360 00
800 00
500 00
480 00
400 00
480 00
360 00

1,100 00
400 00
400 00
400 00
490 00
460 00
360 00
360 00
480 ©0
480 00
480 00
400 00
480 00
400 00
450 00
480 00
400 00
480 0O
400 00
400 00
360 OO
400 00
300 00
300 00
480 00
480 00
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Eetukn of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the
Civil Service daring the Year 1885

—

Continued.

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT—Continued.

IAPPOIN-mmUS—Concluded.

Name.

0. Fox
J. J. Lally
T. Mollard
A. J. Cheyne
J. Pre.idergast
W. J. Doller
A. H. J. Coburn
Thos. Gill

P. T. H. Ermatinger
Thos. Patterson
Thos. Moore
W. H M. Gemmill.
A, Masse
Hy. R. Atkinson
Thos. Lamanque
Thos. Smith ,

A. Edgecomb ,

L. J. H. Larue ,

A. Gagnon ,

F. E. Ketchum
Robt. Karron
J. 0. McOulloch
W.J Mankey
Henry Spiers
D. R. Ternent
E. W. Hay
Jno. A.Jackson
Thos. Moore
John Reid
J. R. Oopp
R. Weir
K. Merrick
T. L'Ecuyer (declined appoint-
ment) ..

J. T. fl. Lapierre
A. Morin
E. 0. fl. Lacroix ...

O. Leblanc
W. 0. McNair ....

Theo. Smith
D. R. Perrault
C. A Meikle (on account of

illness, declined appoint-
ment)........

Age.

35
23
25
25
22

21

24

30
28
36
30
20
26
29
32
24
20

19
35
28
21
19
25
30
25
25
22
20
24
26
26
25

Date
of Appoint-
ment or

Promotion.

*ept. 26..

January 1..

do 1...

February 1..

January 1..

February 1..

January 1..

February 1..

do 1..

do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

March
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

April
do
do
do
do
do

May
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

do

Inside
or

Outside,

1..

12..

16..

16..

16.
19..

20..

28..

2..

2..

2 ,

10..

10..

13..

13..

23..

31.,

It.

1.,

1..

1..

1..

1.,

1.,

1.,

16.,

22.

26.

1..

22.

22.

22...

Outside.
do ...

do ...

do ...

Inside .

.

Outside.
do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Inside...

Outside.
do ...

do ...

do ...

Inside...

Outside,
do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ..,

do ...

do ..,

Inside ...

Rank or Office.

3rd Class Railway Mail Clerk.
do
do
do

Clerk
Railway Wail Clerk,

do

do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

do ..T7!.
"".*."" """.'"."

do
Letter Carrier

do
3rd Class
Letter Carrier

3rd Class Railway Mail Clerk

,

do do
do do
do do
do
do

Letter Carrier
do .......M
do

3rd Class Railway Mail Clerk
do Clerk

Letter Carrier
do

3rd Class
Letter Carrier ~
3rd Class

Letter Carrier.

do
3rd Class

do
Letter Carrier ,

do
do
do

3rd Class .

PROMOTIONS.

A . G. Thompson
G. Ross
O. H. bull
A. J. McRobie,,.
D. F. McCarthy .

O. Fortier
J T. O'Loane ...

J. D. Ross
J. McN. Gabriel
G. Marsan

January 1

do
do

April
June
April
July
April
do

July

1... Outside.
1... do ...

1... do ...

1... do ...

1... Inside...

1... do ...

1... Outside.
1... do ...

1... do ...

1... Inside ...

1st Class Clerk
2nd Class

do
do Railway Mail Clerk
do do

1st Class do
2nd Class do

do do
do do

1st Class do
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Keturn of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the

Civil Service daring the Year 1885—Continued.

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT—Concluded.

P ROMOTIONS—Concluded.

Name.

B. P. Stanton....

W. D. O'Brien.....

L. N. Pouliot

N. (t. D Auteuil

J. F. Wall
B. B.Bell
W. H. Kreps
W. A. Conway..
A. T. Middleton
B. Duncan
T. A. Cairns
J. Senez ,

J. F. O'Connor..
T. Duncan
A. W. Reed
J. L Finen
W. H. Pennock.,

Age.

31
40
33
42
54
41

35
27
32
43
33
43
31
24
22
26
26

Date
of Appoint-
ment or

Promotion.

July
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

Inside
or

Outside.

Inside...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Outside.
do ...

do ...

do ...

do
do
do
do
do
do ...

Rank or Office.

2nd Class..

do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

1st Class
2nd Class

do
1st Class
2nd Class

do

Salary.

$ cts.

1,100 00
1,100 00
1,100 00
1,100 00
1,100 00
1,100 00
1,100 00
900 00
900 00
900 00
900 00

1,200 00
900 00
900 00

1,200 00
900 00
900 00

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.
APPOINTMENTS.

H. P. Blair

S. Boyd
D. G. Taylor
D. Stewart
P. Stewart
J. A. G. Mott
J. A. Marshall
W. H. Grafton .,

Jessie B. Christie....

A. Morin
W. J. McKenzie
J. D. Janiase
H. Joki3ch
J. Cochrane
G. W. Briggs
C. J. McGregor
B. Hamond
P. McNeil
E. W. Brookfield....

A. Joslin
D. M.Sharp
C. W. Anderson ....

D. Oleaveland
6. Brewster
G. P. Nelson
M. Benoit
M. J. Morin
W. Rawley
G. O. Doak
J. S. Rayworth
G. Sutherland
S. Ancoin
T. Gaskin
T. A. Stayner
E. Jessup

37
43
30
46
21

43
27
35
24
28
22
40
39
48
48
52
49
36
58
39
53
35
46
55
44
40
30
45
45

October 1..

Nov. 17..

Dec.
do
do
do
do
February 1...

July 1...

June 1...

July 1..

January 1..

February 1..

do 5..

April 1..

do 9..

do 14..

February 1..

May 1..

43
35
32
52

do 16.

do 1.

do 1.

do 1.

do 1.

do 1.

June 1.

do 1.

do 1.

July 1.

do 1.

do 13

do 1.

June 1

July 1

August 1

Outside

.

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Inside...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Outside.
do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ...

do ..

do ...

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

5

Preventive Officer

Sub-Collector -....

do
do • ••••«

Preventive Officer

Clerk
Sub-Collector
3rd Clas3 Clerk

do
do
do

Preventive Officer

Clerk and Assistant Appraiser.

Tide Waiter
Preventive Officer

Clerk
Preventive Officer

Tide Waiter......

Collector
Preventive Officer

do .

do
Sub-Collector ~

do
Collector ~. '

Clerk
do -

Tide Waiter
Collector
Landing Waiter
Tide Waiter
Preventive Officer

Tide Waiter
do *.

Collector.

300 00
500 00
200 00
400 00
50 00

1,000 00
1,000 00
450 00
500 00
600 00
600 00
500 00
750 00
550 00
550 00
600 00
150 00
600 00

1,200 09
150 00
150 00
100 00
300 00
300 00
750 00

1,000 00
500 00
500 00

1,300 00
500 00
500 00
150 00
600 00
500 00

1,200 00
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.Return of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the
Civil Service during the Year 1885, &c.

—

Continued.

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS—Concluded.

APPOINTMENTS—Concluded.

Name.

H. S. Creighton ....

F. Robidoux
L- Robitaille
H. S. Evans
J. Walker
H. St. G. Hawkins
G. J. Chadd
P. Flynn
E. Pelletier ,

J. ML G. Dixon
D. J Lemieux

,

T. Losey
A. Chalut
L. D. Perham
T. A. Cahill
J. Morrison

Age.

25

49
55

35
48
53
60
43
32
41

41

30
40

54

Date
of Appoint-
ment or

Promotion.

August 1.

do
July
do

Sept.

do
October 1,

do
do

July
do
do
do
do
do
Nov.

Outside
or

Inside.

Outside,
do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Rank or Office.

Clerk
Sub-Collector
Inspector
Analyst ,

Preventive Officer

Sub-Collector ,

do
Collector ,.

Sub-Collector „
Tide Waiter and Locker

do
do
do
do
do

Packer ~...~.

PaOMOTIONS.

R. Boyer
,

J. O. Collier ....

A. Robert on....,

BT. G. Parmalee 52

July 1... Outside.
Dec. 1... do ...

August 19... do ...

January 1... InsideJ...

Tide Surveyor
,

Sub-Collector .. ,

Gauger
Assistant Commissioner

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.
APPOINTMENTS.

Thos. H. Cahill
Thos. Casey..

,

John J. Cosgrove... ....

J. J. 0. Fortin
B. Forest
Samuel Irwin ..

John Dumbrille ,

Eugene Hammond
H. McPhillips
Thos. Hughes
Wm. M. Kelly
A. F. Simpson
J. D. Fox
John H. McKay
John Yeuill
Geo. Williams
Barnard B. Smyth ....

James J. Coleman ....

E P. McMillan
Jos. Devine
Michael Shanacy ,

Arthur W. Goodman.
Burwell Schram

,

J. J. Cosgrove «..

John W. Custello ,

Geo. .Rennie
,

fi. A. Coatigan r
R. T. Hugga'd

47

'32*

Jan.
Feb.
do
March
do
do
do
April
do
May

49
32

June
do
do
Aug.
Sept.

Oct.
do
do
Nov.
do
do
do
do
Dec.
do
Nov.
Dec.

5.

5.

5.

6.

3.

23.

23.

27.

23.

23.

27.

23.

27.

9.

21.

27.

Outside.
do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Probationary Exciseman
do

Assistant Inspector of W. & M
Collector of Inland Revenue...,

Exciseman ~

Assistant Inspector of W. & M.

Collector of Inland Revenue. ..,

Preventive Officer

Assistant Inspect r of W. & M.
Probationary Exciseman
Preventive Officer

Collector of Inland Revenue ..

Probationary Exciseman ,

Collector of Inland Revenue ...

Assistant Inspector of W. & M,

Deputy Collector of Inland Rev
Probationary Exciseman

do
Clerk of Canal Office ,

Deputy Collector of Inland Rev
do

Probationary Exciseman
Chief Preventive Officer

Prev. Officer .....

Assistant Inspector of W. & M.

Deputy Collector of Inland Rev.
do

Inspector of Gas ...!.'«
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Beturn of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in tho

Civil Service during the Year 1885—Continued.

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE—Concluded.

PROMOTIONS.

Name.

J. K. Barre't

R. Devlin .,

J. F. Shaw
C. EL Chubbuck...
J. A. Doyon
J. G. Standish
W. Henderson
P. J. J. McHugh ..

T. J. Barrett...

K. Lynes
K. M Harwood
J. W. Scullion

F. H. Spence
James Stewart .....

W. Caven
J. W. Disk
G. N Hobbs
C. A. Hesson ......

B. U. Helliwell....

George J Fraser..

J. A- McDonald ..

H. Dawson
George Henwood.
P. Bieh
J. J. Courtney
R. Slattery.

J. B. Miller

L. Dumouchel ....

Thofl. Keilty

Age.

35

27

29

27

25

Date
of Appoint-
ment or

Promotion.

28

38
46

April
*June
•July
* do
* do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

ft do

t do

t do
do
do

{Aug.
do

t do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

Inside
or

Outside.

Rank or Office.

tOct.

20...

30...

31...

31...

31...

31...

31...

31...

31...

31...

31...

31...

31...

31...

31...

31...

31...

31...

5..

5...

5...

5...

5...

5...

5...

5...

5...

5...

23...

Outside.
Inside...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Outside
do ...

do ...

do ...

do ..

do ..

do ...

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do .,

do .,

do .

G.J Fraser.... \ .

J. D- Parks )§
O. Fahey /»
Wm. Lindsay

[
-g •

Charles W- Pole \ | •
John J. Hall / S g
Jas. Reid V.S«
A.Hanly \ g,

J.D. Fox ]%
R. T. huggard /

"^

To date from
Feb. 6

Mar. 16

do 16

May 11

Oct. 23

do 27

do 27

do 27

Dec. 21

do 9

Feb.
July
Feb.
July
do

1, '85

1, '84

1, '85

1, '84

1, '85

District Inspector of Inland Rev,

2nd Class Clerk
do
do
do

1st Class Exciseman
do
do
do
do

2nd Class Exciseman

Salary.

July 1, '85

do 1, '85

Jan. 1, '86

do 1, '86

do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

Deputy Collector of Inland Rev.

Exciseman
Assistant Inspector of W. & M.
Exciseman .....

do
Bookkeeper, Excise
Collector of Inland Revenue....

Collector of Canal Tolls

Bookkeeper, Inland Revenue....

Exciseman
Inspector ofWeights & Measures

$ cts.

1,800 00
1,100 W
1,100 0O
l,100f oo
1,100 00>

800 00>

800 00)

800 00)

800 00)

800 00)

700 00
700 ©9
70© 09
70® 0*
7C0 00
700- OO
700' 00
700 00
70Q>' QO
700 09
709- 09
700 00)

70$> 00)

7C0 00)

70O 00)

700 GO
700 CO
700 00)

1,109b CO

600 0O
60OQ9
600- CO
60^00
80O CO
700 0O
750 00)

800' 00>

6CS> 00>

1,0®$ oo

Promotion to date from July I, 1884.

do January 1, 1885.

do July 1, 1885.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE.
APPOINTMENTS.

Wm. Fitzgerald .

Anthony O'Rielly
Robert Golding ...

Charles Hayward

40 Dec. 1... Inside...

19 Oct. 1... do ...

40 Dec. 1... Outside.

21 Nov, 1... do ...

Superintendent of Insurance

3rd Class
Clerk, G. B., Winnipeg

do Victoria

2,800 0G>

500 0©
1,000 0G>

900 GO
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JReturn of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the
Civil Service during the year 1885

—

Continued.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE—Concluded.

PROMOTIONS.

Name.

Geo. Lowe, jr.

C. A. Gough...
W. L. Blair

J. P. Nutting ,

Age.

44
33
23
29

Date
of Appoint-
ment or

Promotion.

Jan. 1,

April I.

Jan. 1.

April 1.

Inside
or

Outside.

Inside...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Rank or Office.

1st Glass

.

do
2nd Glass

do

DEPARTMENT OF INDIAN AFFAIRS.
APPOINTMENTS.

Laurence Donald Cameron
Foster Bliss

William Alpheus Hunton.......

John Ansten
James Martin
John Webb Jermyn
James Telfei Conway

22
22
38
40
40
60

March 16... Inside ...

May 11... do ...

July 6... do ...

February6... Outside
March 16... do ...

June 9... do ...

3rd Class
do
do

Indian Agent
do
do

DEPARTMENT OF AUDITOR GENERAL.
APPOINTMENTS.

Harm A. Baldwin.. 34 July 1... Inside... 3rd Class 500 00

PROMOTIONS.

37
29

July 1...

do I...

Inside...

do ...

1st Class mm 1,400 00
1,400 00Frederick Hayter do

PROMOTIONS.

Samuel Stewart
Martin Benson...
John McGirr
B. W. Wright ...

^L. W. Herchmer

33

40
39
34
45

Dec. 1, '84... Inside...

do 1, '84... do ...

July 1... do ...

October 23... Outside.
do 23... do ...

2nd Class
do
do

Indian Agent
Inspector of Agencies

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR.
APPOINTMENTS.

Frank Nelson 26
37
^36_
18

35
27
34

June 1...

do 1...

do 1...

do 1...

do 1...

do 1...

August 5...

Inside...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Outside.

8

3rd Class Clerk «. ...

do
700 0C

H. B. D. Bruce. 700 0C

JD. J. Steers .............^.«. do 700 OC

H. E. Hume
George Bell

do
do

600 0C

550 OC

Eugene Belleau
JS. A. Nash......... mm..............

do 550 6C

Agent of Dominion Lands for

the Dist.of Battleford,N .W.T. 1,200 0(
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Jeturn of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the

Civil Service during the Year 1885 - Continued,

DEPARTMENT OF THE LNTERIOR-
APPOINTMENTS— Concluded.

Concluded.

Name.

Lmos Rowe

Jeorge Roy

3has. D. Rickards

Age.

48

37

37

Date
of Appoint-
ment or

Promotion.

Sept. 3.

August 3.

Nov. 27.

Inside
or

Outside.

Outside,

do ...

do ...

Rank or Office.

Agent of Dominion Lands for

the Dist. of Calgary, N.W.T...
Registrar for the District of
Edmonton, N.W.T

Permanent Staff of the Out9ide
Service in Manitoba and
North-West Territories.

Salary.

$ eta.

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,095 00

PROMOTIONS.

?eter Brown Douglas

3dward Deville. ...........

WTilliam M. Goodeve
3enry Kinlock
Narcisse Omer Cote
i. L. Jarvis
frank S. Checkly
F. A. Pinard
Dhas. H. Beddoe

Eenry Hall Smith ,

John Macdonald Gordon

43

36

36
37
26
33
34
43
35

38

29

July 1, '84.

January 1.

do 1.

do I.

do 1

do 1.

July 1, '84.

July 1.

do 1.

March 11.

Sept. 3.

Inside ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

uo ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Outside.

do ...

1st Class Clerk and Assistant
Secretary

Chief Clerk and Surveyor-Gen-
eral

Chef Clerk of Patents
1st Class Clerk
2nd Class Clerk.

do
do

Chief Clerk and Accountant....
1st Class Clerk and Assistant
Accountant ....

Commissioner of Dominion
Lands for Province of Mani-
toba and N.W.T

Inspector of Dominion Lands
Agencies and Member of the
Land Board

1,400 00

2,200 00
1,800 00
1,400 00
1,100 00
1,100 00
1,100 00
1,800 00

1,400 00

5,000 00

2,000 00

GEOLOGICAL SURVEY.
APPOINTMENTS.

Lawrence Morris Lamb
Eugene Coste
Elfric D. Ingall

Augustus 8. Cochrane.

March 1... Inside...

July 1... do ...

do 1... do ...

Artist

Mining Geologist
do

1,000 00
1,100 00
1,100 00

PROMOTIONS.

35 July 1.. Inside... 2nd Class and Assistant Topo-
grapher

DEPARTMENT OF SECRETARY OF STATE.
APPOINTMENTS.

Frederick Colson
Edward Major Harrison
LeoDce Crebassa Labelle.

Cajitan Lefebvre DeVillemure
James Alexander Keays

January 20.

.

February 1..

April 1..

do 1..

January 1.

.

Inside...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

2nd Class
3rd Glass.

do
do
do

1,100 00

1,200 00
700 00
600 00
400 00
500 00
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Return of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the
Civil Service during the Year 1885

—

Continued.

DEPARTMENT OF SECRETARY OF STATE-Concluded.

PROMOTIONS.

Name. Age.

Date
of Appoint-
ment or

Promotion.

Inside
or

Outside.
Rank of Office. Salary.

William Gliddon 51
38
23

July 1...

do 1...

Dec. 1...

Inside...

do ...

do ...

l3t Class
$ eta.

1,400 00
Ira William Storr 2nd Class «. 1,100 00

1,100 00Gustave Emond do

DEPARTMENT OF MIHTIA AND DEFENCE.
APPOINTMENTS.

Major James Douglas Irving...

Lieut .-Ool. John Barton Taylor

"Lawrence Foley

€ai>t. Lawrence Buchan .

,

Alfred Codd,M.D.

Lieut.-Col. Pennyman White
Worsley.

Lieut. George Hnnter Ogilvie.

Lieut Oscar Charles Casgrain
Pelletier.

Oapt. Jas. Chas. McDougall..

Oapt. James Alex. Bremner...

Lieut. Robert Cartwright

Lieut. J. Edmond Chinic .......

Oapt. J. Chas. Gaspard Drolet

James Kidd Oswald

John Bray Cochrane

Alfred Geo. Godfrey Wurtele

30

39

43

April

July

4...

8...

August 5...

do 15...

do 15...

47 do 23.

25 do 29.

23 do 29.

22 do 29.

24 do 29.

25 do 29.

27 do 29.

21 do 29.

34 do 29.

25 Dec. 23.

28 do 23..

Outside,

do ...

Inside ...

Outside.

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

Brigade Major, District 12

Commandant Mounted Infantry

3rd Class Clerk, Accountant
Branch.

Captain, Mounted Infantry

Surgeon, Mounted Infantry

Deputy Adjutant-General, Dis-
tricts 9 and 12.

Lieutenant, Regt. Canadian
Artillery,

do do

Lieutenant, Inf. School Corps..

do do

do do

Lieutenant, Infantry School....

Lieutenant, Mounted Infantry..

do do

Professor, Royal Mil. College...

do do

1,200 00
per ann.

4 00
per diem,
with $1.25
for allow-

ance.
450 00

per ann.
300

per diem,
with q'trs.

3 00
per diem,
with q'trs.

1,700 00
per ann.

2 00
per diem.

2 00
per diem.

2 00
per diem.

2 00
per diem.

2 00
per diem.

2 00
per diem.

2 00
per diem.

2 00
per diem.
1,000 00
per ann.
1,000 "00

per ann.

PROMOTIONS.

Major Willis Reddick Stowe
Wainwright.

48 April 27... Inside .. 2nd Class Clerk. 1,100 00

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.
APPOINTMENTS.

Orlando Sampson Strange. 59 February 7... Outside. Surgeon, Kingston Penitentiary 1,800 00

10
""
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Return of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in th©
Civil Service during the Year l885--Continued.

DEPAKTMENT OF JUSTICE—Concluded.

PROMOTIONS.

Name. Age.

Date
of Appoint-
ment or

Promotion.

Inside
or

Outside.

Outside.

Rank of Office. Salary.

Michael Lavell, M.D ........ 60 February 3... Warden, Kingston Penitentiary
$ eta.

2,600 00

DEPAKTMENT OF PRIVY COUNCIL.
APPOINTMENTS.

James G. Foley
Alexander Robertson

July 1...

Novem. 27...

Inside ..

do ..

3rd Glass Clerk
Messenger

700 00
365 00

PROMOTIONS—NIL.

DEPARTMENT OF LIBRARY,
APPOINTMENTS.

M. J. Griffin

M. 0. MaeCormac
John Smith
F. A. Gordon
T. A. W. Lynton

August 6...

Novem. 27...

March 2...

Novem. 27...

do 27...

Inside
do
do ,

do ,

do .

Parliamentary Librarian
2nd Glass Clerk
Extra Clerk
3rd Class Clerk ..

Messenger ..

3,000 00
1,100 00
730 00
400 00
500 00

PROMOTIONS.

A. D. DeOelles
fA. H.Todd ,

J. Fletcher
L. P. Sylvain
{John Smith

July 1... Inside ...

Novem 27... do ...

do 27... do ...

do 27... do ...

do 27... do ...

General Librarian
1st Class Clerk ....

1st do
2nd do
3rd do

3,000 00
1,600 00
1,400 00
1,100 00
750 00

*Mr. Smith was appointed an Extra Clerk on 2nd March, and was made a permanent officer of the
Department by Order in Council of 27th November, 1885, at a salary of $750. dp to the present time,
however, this amount has not been paid. (See contra).

tBy Order in Council of 27th November, Mr. Todd's salary was raised to $1,600 per annum, but
salary has only been paid at rate ot $1,400 per annum up to the present time.

JMr. Smith was appointed permanently by Order in Council of 27th November, 1895, but has only-
received salary at the rate of $730 per annum. {See contra).

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSE OF COMMONS.
APPOINTMENTS.

B. Perrin
Wilfred Dube

,

Francois Xavier Lemieux
Robert Craig
Claire Hugg

42
17
32
56
26

July
do
do
do
do

20... Inside ...

20... do ...

20... do ...

20... do ...

20... do ...

2nd Class Clerk .

3rd do
3rd do
Night Watchman
Messenger

1,100 00
400 00
400 00)

600 00

IX
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Return of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the
Civil Service during the Year 1885

—

Concluded.

DEPARTMENT OP HOUSE OF COMMONS—Concluded.

PROMOTIONS.

Name.

Wm. O. Bowles.
I. B Taylor

Age.

Date
of Appoint-
ment or

Promotion.

December1
...

do ...

Inside
or

Outside.

Inside .

.

do ...

Rank or Office. .Salary.

Clerk of Votes and Proceedings
Assistant Clerk of .Votes and
Proceedings .,„

$ Ct3.

1,650 00

1,250 00

DEPARTMENT OF SENATE.

APPOINTMENTS-NIL.

C. T. Gibbs ....

PROMOTIONS.

38 July 17... Inside .

,

Assistant Accountant .

,

900 00

12
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EXPENDITURE
(50)

Under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out of troubles in the North-West Territories, from 1st July, 1885, to

15th March, 1886. Also Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under

same Appropriation, &c, Hudson Bay supplies, &c.

Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, from 1st July, 1885, to 15th March
1886.

Expenditure at Ottawa.

Extra Clerks, &c—
J. A. Polkinghorne, 267 days, at $2
A. N. Bell

J. A. McOann
J. P . A. Sproule
W. H. Pardey
J. McTaggart
F. A. Blais

246
243
226
194
172
120

do
do
do
do
do
do

Miss E. K. Maybee, to Jan. 31, at $1.50 per day, $309.50
;

1 bot. machine oil, 40c
W.J. Tilley, secretary, Surgeon-General's office, 86 days,

at $2
J. K. Low, Surgeon-General's office, 58 days
A. E. Panet, copying, 45,800 words, at 10c. per folio ....

Mrs.M. A- Finn do 22,177 do do
R. G. Belleau, copying documents....-
Mrs. M. E, Wood, copying 13 folios, Surgeon-Genl.'s office..

A. Benoit, extra work ^.
F. E. P. Aldrich, extra work Mt..

Cab hire for Minister
C. Campbell, meals, $6.75; cabs, $4 50
F. Bocquet, meals at Commons for Minister's secretaries djing

night work, March to July
G. N. W. Telegraph Co., telegrams
Dominion Express Co.. freight ..,

Canada Bank Note Engraving and Printing Co.

—

Preparing stone, $50 ; 300 copies maps, $15
Plate of land warrant, and 6,000 copies of do

Dr. F. X. Valade, professional services

A. J. Stephens, inspecting boots, at $5 per day
Canada Mutual Telegraph Co., $4.15 ; 1 embossing press, $13..

H. G. Dunlevie, 56 copies " Our Volunteers in the North-West'
Washing, $13.20; cartage, $6

General Supplies.

Jas, O'Brien & Co., Montreal—
5,400 iDfantry great coats, at $5.48..
2,013 rifle do 5.48..

1,000 artillery do 5.76..,

250 cavalry do 7.22..

24 school do 6.59,.

$ cts.

534 00
492 00
486 00
452 00
388 00
344 00
240 00

309 90

172 00
58 00
45 80
22 18

35 00
2 60

500 00
400 00

65 00
567 50

29,592 00
11,031 24
5,760 00
1,805 00
158 16

$ cts.

4,481 48
211 05
11 25

66 85
3,821 88
3,185 94

632 50
300 00
113 74
17 15
8 40
19 20

48,346 40

$ cts*

12,869144
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $3,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out of troubles in the North-We*t Territories. &c— Continued.

General Supplies— Continued.

S.

H. Shorey & Co., Montreal, clothing

W. E. Santord & Oo., Hamilton, clothing - ..

& H. Borbridge, Ottawa—
33 prs. stirrup leathers, stirrup irons, &c, at $34.12

33 tapaderos, at $2.20, $72 60 ; 9 extra linches, $27

50 heavy felt numnahs. $150; 50 oak-tanned halters, $325..

12 sacks, $2 40; 115 rifle belts, at 85c, $97 75

6,560 white haverspcks, at 40c, $2,624 ; 550 black haver-

sacks, at 55c, $302 50

1,000 halter shanks, $330 ; 1,000 brown leather great coat

straps, $300 ,

501 knapsack straps, $50.10; samples, $76 20

799 prs. leggings, at b8c

Mdtntyre 4 Sons, Montreal, 2,003 single grey blankets, at $1.45

Young, Bigg«r & Co., Gait, 2,500 prs. leather mitts, at 46c...

J. Hamel et Freres, Quebec—
4,002 prs. wool socks, ar 25c

2,000 linen towels, at 17£c T

$ cts.

1,125 96
99 60

475 00
100 15

2,926 50

630 00
126 30
543 32

Less—Freight charges .

J. M. Garland, Ottawa—
1,037 prs. blankets at $1.49.

2*698 towels, at 17|c ,

Tooke Bros , Montreal, 1,000 shirts, at 46c

S. Davidson, Toronto, 55 doz. wool caps, at $4, $220 express,

$3.
J. Cniiderhose, Eganville, 200 blankets, at $1.80

R. J. Devlin, 68 Scotch caps, at $7.50, $51; making over 2

helmets, $1 20 !

Cantlie, Ewan & Co., Montreal—
2,501 suits underglothing, at $1.10...'

Less—Freight charges

Goodyear Rubber Co., Montreal, 375 army tent blankets, at 85c.

W. Lee, 565 pairs green serge trousers <

J. Coristine& Co., 1,000 hair seal wedge caps., ,

J. G. Desormeau & Co., 1,438 pairs yellow caribou mitts ,

Packing cases with goods -
James Lockhart & Co , Toronto—

50 doz. wool mitts, at $4.50, $225 ; 43 scarfs, at $6, $258...

2 doz scarfs,, at $7, $14 ; 2 doz. scarfs, at $8, $16
2 cases, at $1.75; expenses, $2.25

1,000 50
357 50

1,358 00
6 86

1,545 13
482 27

2,751 10
20 62

Eev. PereParadis, O.M.I., Ottawa, 1 doz. bottles mosquito oil,

at 50c - • •

<J. F. & J. Gait, Winnipeg—
350 lbs. coffee, at 18c, $63 ; 480 lbs. tea, at 25c, $120

52 do pepper, at ?5c, f 13 ; 3787 lbs.cheese, at 13c, $492.31

3,750 do sugar, at 9jc, $356.25 ; 937 lbs. salt, $9.37

1,875 do pot barley, at 4c.

Woods & Co., Winnipeg—
30,029 lbs. biscuit, at 5^c , less 10 per cent..

351 packages, at 40c

Shaw & Masterman, Winnipeg

—

4(8£ bush, potatoes, at 80c «...

Less -Freight paid at Calgary

Masterman & Benard, Winnipeg 2,867 lbs. beef, at 10£c
W. Bateman & Co. do 7,772 do bread, at 3|c.

Gallagher & Sons do 1,258 do beef, at lOAc

W. J. Boyd do 532 do bread, at 3|c.

a

483 00
30 00
4 25

183 00
505 31
365 62
75 00

1,486 44
140 46

328 60
142 66

$ Cts.

41,511 03
10,000 00

6,026 83
2,904 35
1,150 00

1,351 14

2,027 40
460 00

223 00
360 00

52 20

2,730 48
318 75

1,553 75
1,000 00
787 31

69 90

517 25

6 00

1,128 93

1,626 84

183 94
383 98
259 06
132 09
17 29
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

oat of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.

—

Continued.

Gbnbbal Supplies—Continued.

Berryman & Co., Winnipeg,
Dick, Banning & Co. do
J. Bernard do

80 bash, potatoes
lumber
1 day's board and lodging of

6 wounded

J. G Hargrave, Winnipeg—
14$ cords wood, $85.25; 384 Iba. biscuit, at 6i|c, $24.96..

«

384 lbs. meat, at 17&C, $68 5 48 lbs- cheese, at 15c, $7.20

6 do tea, at 40c ,
$2.40 ; 48 lbs. sugar, at 7£, $3.60

cts.

McBean Bros., Winnipeg—
7,693J bush, oats, at 60c, $4,616 ; 338 seamless baes, $84.50

Freight paid Canadian Pacific Railway, $975.81 ; 795 forage

rations, $183.82

J. S. Gibb & Co., Calgary, provisions-.... 4.

Lyon, Mackenzie & Powis, 3,000 lbs. sugar, at 15c £....

H. S. Masterman, 13,000 lbs. beef, at 16c

Hudson Bay Company, Calgary, provisions.
do materials for flags

do 10 tons hay ,'

do 765 lbs. beef, at 13c
do provisions

3,398 lbs. beef, at 15c, $509.70; 9

G. C. King & Co
W. Mitchell
A. P. Samples
S. B. Lucas
M. McCauley, Edmonton,

seamless sacks, $4 50

George Robertson, Moose Jaw, 9,885£ lbs bread, at 3£c
American Hotel, Winnipeg, board of men . „.

M. Maloney, Edmonton, 55£ bush, wheat, $55.53 ; 46T
B^ bush.

barley, $46.54
D. E. Noyes, Edmonton, 20$ bush, potatoes
R.Logan do 147|| bush barley

M. McDougall do 550 lbs. beef, at 15c

J. F. Clarke, Clarke's Crossing—
1,497 lbs. meat, at 25c

,
$374.25 ; 350 lbs. beef, at 17c, $59.50

62* bush, potatoes, at $2.50, $156.25; 65 loaves bread,

$22.75
Board and lodging, $31.75; stabling, 17.85.,

48 barrels, $60; rent, $80
1 saddle and bridle, $30 ; 3 cords wood, $15 «

Conveying message from Fish Creek

110 21

75 20
6 00

4,700 50

1,159 73

G. Whitford, Victoria, 560 lbs. beef, at 15c, $84 ; 10$ bush.
barley, $10 50

J. House, Victoria, 758 lbs. beef, 15c,

J. M. Andeison, board of two men
T. McKenzie, Beaver River, attendance on horses

Lt.-Col. Whitehead—
Expenses of yacht and sundry payments meeting General

at Selkirk
Beef, $11.20 ; hire of dishes, $2.65
5 galls. 7-year old rye, $15 ; 2 doz. Margan, $17.50
2 doz. Appolinaris, $4 ; 2 doz. English soda, $3.50
2 bottles Hennessey brandy, $2.75 ; 1 bottle bitters, $1
100 cigars, $13 ; 1 box cigarettes, $1.75
2 kegs, $2.50 ; oxtongue, turkey, shrimps, $27.70

Lamoureux Bros , Calgary, bullet mould ......«„

H. Yarlett, tent pegs and poles , ,

J. Coleman, 13 seamless sacks , ,

Prince Bro3., Battleford, lumber M
A. McDonall, Battleford—

9| tons hay, at $16, $156 ; 1 ox, $90
764 lbs. sugar, at 25c, $191 ; 864 lbs., at 30c, $259.20

(Canned milk, 80c ; rope, $23.25 ...,.,

Stationery, $8
;
pans, dishes and plates, $6.

433 75

179 00
49 60
140 00
45 00
30 00

6 75
13 85
32 50
7 50
3 75

14 75
30 20

4 tins harness oil, at 65c

246 00
450 20
24 05
14 00
2 60

$ cts.

28 00
31 72

6 00

191 41

5,860 23
119 65
450 00

2,080 00
679 81
16 18

160 00
99 45
126 84

514 20
345 99
37 75

102 07
20 50
147 27
82 50

877 35

94 50
113 70
13 00
60 00

109 30
4 00 I
32 50

7 05

736 85

$ cts.

sa-i£
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,H00,000 to defray expenses and loss es arising
out of troubles in the North- West Territories, &c.

—

Continued.

Gbnhral Supplies— Concluded.

Mahafly & Clinkskill, Battleford—
9 cords wood, $36 ; 200 rounds cartridges, $6
Rope, $33.50 ; 40 bushels lime, $40
1,200 lbs. sugar, at 14c, $168 ; 5 lbs. nails, 75c

43. B. Rouleau, Batcleford

—

Horse brashes and curry comb, $5.60
;
pails, shovels, &c,

$7.70
Lumber and shingles .. -

P. Otfen, 4 loads hay, $64 ; bake tins, $10 ; 9 loads wood, $36
S. Warden, 1 cook stove ,

R. Guthrie, 1 buckboard
D. L. Clink, Battleford, lumber /.

do
do
do
do
do

shoeing horses
1 heifer...... ..

1 ox ^

1 ox
2,050 lbs. beef, at 17c, $348.50; 1

W. Latour
J. Simpson
T. Deman
E. Dufers
R. Guthrie

calf, $20
H. Na9h, 19 bush, oats, at $2.50 .'.".

D. Pinlayson, 1,500 lbs. hay, at 80c cwt
L. Sayers, Battleford, 1,200 lbs. meat, at 17c
R. Wyld do 9 cords wood
Hudson Bay Co. do 392 lbs. tea, at 45c
Gallagher & JSons, Battleford, 5,069 lbs. beef, at 18c
Inspector Normand. N.W.M P., 555 rations, groceries, meat,

Ac, at Fort Osborne

Hospital and Mbdioal Service.

Dr. Bergin, balance of pay (£2 10s.).

do transport

Dr. Sullivan, pay ($5.87 and $3 50 allowance)
Dr, Roddick, advance onaccountpay .........

Dr. F. W. Strange, pay
Dr. Nattress, balance of pay

do do expenses of Red Cross corps »

Dr. Reddick, pay, $469.95 ; travelling expenses, $50.55
Dr. ti. Hooper, pay, $465 35

; do $21.00
Dr. E. A. Gravely, pay and allowances
Dr. M. O. Cloutier, pay $470 25 ; travelling expenses, $42.25...
Dr. N. O. Walker, pay and allowance..... .......

Dr. J. W. Whitford do
Dr. H. R. Casgrain, balance of pay and expenses ,

Dr. Pelletier, balance of expenses ....

Dr. J. A. Grant, jun., pay, $164.15
; travel ling expenses, $26 25

Dr. Murray, pay, $48 76
;
goods returned, $4.50

Dr. F. H. Powell, field allowance, $81 ; travelling expenses, $27
Dr. F. H. Newburn, pay „

Dr. J. Kerr
Dr. Edwards
Dr. Might
Dr. Jas. Bell

Dr. A. Henderson
Dr. Oodd
Dr. Rolston

do
do
do
do
do
do
do

J. P. Tobin, assistant purveyor, pay, $464.25 ; expenses, $ 4.50.
J. Thomson &Co

;
, Winnipeg, funeral expenses of Dr. Corbett...

Dr. GrifFen, Hamillon, attendance on private Jarvis
Pay of medical board at Toronto
Board of wounded at Winnipeg general hospital
Pay of ambulance corps
Pay of dresses, hospital sergeants, &e

4

$ cts.

42 00
73 50

168 75

13 30
48 00

1,261 49
15 33

413 25
106 75

$ cts.

284 25

61 30
110 00
45 00
80 00
30 00
14 25
75 00
96 90
90 00

368 50
47 50
12 00

204 00
38 25

176 40
760 42

229 21

1,276 82
1,320 47
3,000 00
830 10

520 00
520 50
476 35
271 20
5i2 50
85 75
105 40
19 00
40 66
190 40
53 25

108 00
163 80
318 07
175 15

120 90
4i6 07
232 50
261 17

165 00
603 75

30 00
19 0')

120 45

1,824 25

5,289 45
763 80
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Expenditure under Appropriation of 82,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out of troubles in the North-West Territories

—

Continued

Hospital and Medical Service— Continued.

J. Rea, $7.75; W. H. Wilbur, $33; F.travelling expenses
Winnett, $9

Soard at Winnipeg — ••

ST. H. Jackson, Winnipeg, drugs
r. F. Caldwell do
W. J. Mitchell do - •

ZJartage and cabs at Winnipeg
r. H. Scott, Winnipeg. 20 stretcher *

rurner, McKeand & Co., Winnipeg, provisions

reaming for ambulance corps ~ •

Lieut-Col. Houghton, travelling expenses of medical board to

Birtle and back.

R. Irvine, bringing in dead soldiers under fire

Heals at Calgary, $119.50 ;
drugs, $176.12

Scrubbing at Calgary, $1.50; casing coffins, $80

At Troy, cook, $14 ; waggon hire, $22 ;
cushions and neck-

yoke, $8.50 •• ••••••

At Battleford, washing, $99.50; milk and eggs, $98.87

do provisions, $53.70; knives, dashes, $33.86
^•%£!1 do meals, $43.05; drugs, $13.15

Blankets, $125 ; rent at Prince Albert, $16.

Bedding removed from steamers with invalids

Manitoba Penitentiary, 3 lined buffalo robes for Fish Creek

At Saskatoon

—

Orderly, $130.75; chaplain, Moosejaw, $150

Rent, labor and washing
Lumber, $194.67; tinware, $566.79 -

Provisions, $246.82 ; fuel, $t>5 58

Labor and cooking, $703.37; cartage, $665
Pay of nurses and staff.

$ cts.

280 75

104 26
761 46
302 40

1,368 37
769 90

At Moosejaw

—

Boots, $20.95; blankets, $31
Provisions, $4928; drugs, $8.60 .

Harness, $15.25 ; washing, $34.30.

Water supply, $16 ; slings, $2.75.,

Rent, $80 ; telegrams, $86.67

At Edmonton-
Washing, $7 ; milk, $6.(

Provisions, $86.50; 1 box, $3.50

At Swift Current, provisions -
At Qu'Appelle, board of invalids

At Rat Portage; meals for invalids •••• •*••••

Dr. A. Henderson, professional services rendered Lieut. -Col.

Ouimet ••

J. A. Yeomans, services at Victoria hospital «»

L. D. Mulkins, 12 teams
J. D. Higinbotham, McLeod, drugs
J. C. Skelton, conveying Dr. Rolph to Fort Pitt

P. W. Kerr, 1 cow... ,

G. C. Mortimer, Winnipeg, stationery

Leo Gaetz, Red Deer, drugs Tr,*V*"
C. MacLennan (B. M. Infantry Co ) hospital charges, $61.50;

travelling expenses, $38.90 ;••

J. McGowan, Saskatoon, 112 days' pay, $336 ;
travelling ex-

penses, $61.40 ,

G. E. Rutter, Qu'Appelle, hotel expenses at Winnipeg
July, pay of invalids at Montreal » •,."";

J. Martin & Co., Montreal, 1 copy regulations for medical

51 95
57 88
49 55
18 75

166 67

13 60
90 00

department, H. M.'s army.
H. Filteau, pay and travelling expenses,

A. H. Girard, New York—
100 Garfield cots, at $3.75 , ...

25 Bsmarck's rubber bandages ........

375 00
65 63

cts.

51 75
218 70

261 64
215 20
18 10

194 00
20 00
78 03

122 50

50 00
10 00

295 62
81 50

44 50
198 37
87 56
56 20

141 00
21 75

39 00

3,587 14

344 80

103 60
55 00
59 60
1 05

40 00
50 00
546 00
150 00
35 00
20 00
3 00
12 00

100 40

397 40
10 00
68 70

75
70 25

$ cts4
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.

—

Continued.

Hospital and Medioal Service— Concluded.

A. H. Girard, New York—
CommiBsion, 15 per cent, on $1,841.88
Bank charges ,,....,

Medical supplies (voucher not received yet)

lyman, Sons & Co., Montreal, medical supplies

Dr. K. D. Graham, Ottawa, drugs
Evans, Sons & Co., Montreal do „

T. D. Daniel & Co., Toronto do .„

W. L. Wood, Toronto, fcj doz. enow spectacles

D. B. Ross & Co., Cornwall, building one army medical trans-

port cart

Canada Atlantic Railway, freight on cots ,

Dr. Bergin, sundry office expenses ,

J. Bergin, Cornwall, drawing contract "army medical cart,'

&c.
Travelling expenses and subsistence of invalids.,

Sundry supplies at Saskatoon....1
?

Ideals at Moosomin
Carpenters at Saskatoon

Transport and Mail Service.

Canadian Pacific Railway, transport, $2,009; advance,$400,000.
Grand Trunk Railway
North Shore ' do
Intercolonial do
.New Brunswick do
Manitoba and North-Western Railway
JNorthern and North-Western do
'•Canada Transport Co — .....

Prince Edward Island Railway .v «

St. Lawrence and Ottawa Railway
Kingston and Pembroke do ,

North-West Coal and Navigation Co., advances c

Winnipeg and Western Navigation Co.

—

Steamer " Northeote," April 7 to June 3, 58 days, at $250...

do " North-West," May 12 to July 12, 62 days, at $250.

do "Marquis of Lome," May 1 to July 12, 73 days, at

$250.... ,

Transport oi baggage by tramway at Grand Rapids....,

Damage to "Northeote" at batoche
Transport of Winnipeg Light Infantry, Fort Pitt to Battle

ford.........

^North-West Navigation Co.

—

Freight on gun wheels, $17.12 ; on horses, $34.
Transport of 1,440 men, at $5

do 145 officers, at $9
Meals, $758.50 ; special trip, $100
4 fares, at $13.50

North-West Transport Co. , Sarnia

—

Transport 33 officers and 341 non-commissioned officers and
men, Port Arthur to Sarnia

2,584 meals, at 25c, $646; forage, $12.80
Transport of horses

Barnia to Halifax

—

2,244 meals, at 35c, $785.40 ; Pullmans, $155 ,

374 officers and men, 1,351 miles, at 2c ,

Freight on horses, $92 ; 144 meals, at 25c, $36...., ,

6

$ cts.

276 20
1 86

73 35

14,500 00
15,500 00

18,250 00
141 00
950 00

1,385 50

51 12

7,200 00
1,305 00
858 50
54 00

3,305 50
658 80
50 00

940 40
10,105 48

128 00

$ cts.

792 04
4,225 29
332 86
29 65

312 96
44 67

200 00
24 60
18 83

15 00
94 25
473 35
10 50

297 20

402,009 00
10,402 29
1,939 80
724 96
664 52
594 40
514 68
293 72

49 75
22 20
16 20

20,000 oo;,

50,726 50

9,468 62

15,188 18
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under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arisiLg

.. „i + *k7~ q S« tfcA Worth- Wast Territories. &c— Continued.XPENDITU^ of tr0U
J

b je8 \n the North West Territories,

Transport and Mail Service—Continued.

John Stewart, freighting— „*«iia
Moose Jaw to Clarke's Crossing, 572f£ tons, at $1 10.

do to Saskatoon, 2 2V& tons, at »100

Teaming, at $5 a day.... •

Liss-Forage and rations supplied $3,652 76

Shortage, $962.01 ;
damage, $50 1,012 01

Telegrams

Sell, Lewis & Co., Winnipeg, frighting-

Troy to Clarke's Crossing, 318^|ff
tons, at $140.00

Troy to Humboldt, 9l 6̂3
f

do IOd.OO

TroJ to Touchwood, 9*tf2 d° 52 ' 50 >"

$ cts.

63,021 80
215 50

560 00

4 666 10

LHSS-Shortage, $93.60; freight on shortage, $655.20

W'^^I^si^^ Battleford to Swift

Teaming 36,700 lbs., Battleford to Pnnce Albert..... ......

250 bags, at 12*e., $31.25 ;
24 days teaming, at $5, $120....

Teamife 7th Fusi iers, Clarke's Crossing to Moose Jaw .....

MaTce
g
ot frefghting account, as settled by War OommiBSion

P Howard Wright, freighting, Saskatchewan Landing to Battle-

44 523 29
9,635 58

601 90

54,660 77

748 80

ford, lBO^H ton3
>
at

$i
2
-
5 -:-

Less—Shortage and freight on do

2 teams, 111 days each, at $5
BcnNEff

X G. Baker & Co., Fort McLeod—
18 teams, 8 days each, at $9

Between Fort McLeod and Edmonton—

82 days with 9 6-yoke ox teams, at ifl>l5.

3* do 24 do do

Between Fort McLeod and Calgary—

15 days with 8 6-yoke ox teams, at $15.

15 do 6 do do

Qu'Appelle Valley Farming Co.—

4,010 00
265 00
350 00

1,713 89
151 25

690 00

45,802 81

20,107 44
99 70

20,007 74

1,110 00

1,296 00

11,070 00

1,260 00

1,800 00

1,350 00

Appeiie vauey miming ^.-
Teaming, 1,019 days, at $10.

do 308 do 5.

do 30 do 8.

Less—Overcharge, 2,420 days, at $2.

10,190 00
1,540 00

240 00

11.970 00

4,840 00

$ cts.

59,131 20

53,911 97

BoyalMail Line, express charges and toighj.»..y..^..«-.vj%

A & P, McDonald, damages to schooner "M.L. Buck, used

in crossing north shore, Lake Superior •••'•;•'"',

Collmg^ood and Lake Superior Line, transport of Montreal

J. B^S^fpSrtSa'M"; 335'teams'Vransporimgiroop"s;'aT$6

^inspof^g nurse Miller, Moose Jaw to Saskatoon .. 80 00

MoonJaw !nd Clarke's Crossing, 17 loads, at 50o.„ ......... ^ ™
Moose Jaw an(

417 days teaming, at $5.

52,982 95

22,C58 81

21,117 74

16,776 00

7,130 00
192 35

245 50

897 00

2,010 00

2,173 50

cts.
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Expenditure under Appropriation of * 3,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising:
out of troubles in the l^orth-West Territories, to.—Continued.

G.

Transport and Mail Service—Continued.

J. Chink, Battleford—
9,005 lbs. stores, Swift Current to Battleford, at 3c
Transport of 26 men, at $6

'

G. Reman, freighting 162 tons oats, Clarke's Crossing to Hudson
Bay Crossing, at $20

Leeson & Scott

—

1 man, Calgary to Edmonton
1 man, Battleford to Swift Current .'.

S. A. Kerr, 2 men to Moose Jaw and Clarke's Crossing .. ,

H. Keith, teaming 35,810 lbs. from mail station, Touchwood, 'to
Government farm, at 15c a cwt

H. Nash, teaming 960 lbs , Swift Current to Battleford,' at" 4c".'
J. A. MacFarlane, Battleford, transport of two men, Battleford

to Swift Current
Teaming at Calgary—

15 4-horse teams, 1,065 days, at $12
3 do 102 do 9 1....!."!""!'".!'.

17 2-horse teams, 1,299 do 8 .,...,

6 do 246 do 6 „.*...."."...

1 do 4 do 5
9 carts, 317 days, at $3 60
1 do 48 do 3.00 .",........"'

1 horse, 19 do 1.00

At Edmonton

—

3 2-horse teams, 182 days, at
2 do 43 do
Sundry teaming
1 cart, 10 days, at $3

$ cts.

270 15
150 00

25 00
25 00

12,780 00
918 00

10,392 00
1,476 00

20 00
1,109 50
144 00
19 00

Calgary and Edmonton—
2 2-horse teams, 63 days, at
24 carts, 888 days, at $3.50..

Calgary, Edmonton and Fort Pitt, 8 2-horse teams, 797 days,
at $8 .......

Calgary and Fort Pitt—
1 4-horse team, 93 days at $12
2 2-horse teams, 194 days at $8,

.'"

1 horse, 10 days, at $1.50 ..»!!«!!!!!!'."!"]

At Battleford—
5 teams, 142 days, at $4. „
Mail service

At Swift Current, 5 days, at $4.50.
At Winnipeg

—

2 teams, 29 days, at $6
1 do 32 do 5

,

Sundry teaming

At Fort McLeod, 4 teams, 283 days, at $8.

At Red Deer—
1 4-horee team, 10 days, at $8
1 2-horse do 10 do 6
1 ox team, 10 days, at $5 ...

1,456 00
258 00
245 00
30 00

604 00
3,108 00

1,116 00
1,552 00

15 00

568 00
97 50

174 00
160 00
459 50

80 00
60 00
50 00

Calgary and Battle River, 4 2-horse teams, 48 davs, $5 ..

do High Rirer ........ ...
Fort Saskatchewan, 1 team, 9 days, at $6 .".".......

Battlef trd and Swift Current, 34 carts
Moose Jaw and Clarke's Crossing, 1 team, 14 days,' at $5.
Fish Creek and Moose Jaw, 16 days, at $6/50
Saskatoon and Moose Jaw, 21 days, at $8

"
8
"

$ cts. $ cts

420 15

3,240 00

50 00
30 00

53 71
38 40

50 00

26,858 50

1,989 00

3,612 00

6,376 00

2,683 00

665 50
22 50

793 50
2,264 00

190 00
240 00
14 00
54 90

810 00
70 00

104 00
168 00
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Sxpenditttre under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c—Continued.

Transport and Mail Service—Continued.

Linchan, Calgary—
5 4-horse teams, 395 days, at $12.00.

2 2-horse do 192 do 8.00

1 do do 24 do 6.00.

2 4-horse do 48 do 9

113 days as transport officer, at 3,50.

McGuire, Calgary—
17 carts, 969 days, at $3.50.

,

17 do 578 do 3.00..

,eeson & Scott, Qu' Appelle, teaming and transport

lire of 2 ponies at Regina, 20 days, at $3
Ierchant9 Bank, Winnipeg, 2 horses ~

Mtish American Ranche Company, lteam.....

compensation for 3 horses killed ,

do 2 mules and wagon lost

3. Robb, 1 wagon lost -

3ol. Smith, pay of boat-builders •£•;•«
). E. Hughes, Prince Albert, express on boxes and bales

f. Fraser Tims, freighting and transport

if. Lavalle, 16 teams on transport duty
tforth-West Navigation Company, freight on stores...

Jeo. P. Dunn, Moosomin, livery hire and transport, $30; board,

$6.75 .

;
«•

P. Millar, Red Deer, team hire and work ••

Gteorge Beatty, Red Deer, freighting 1,904 bush, oats, at 5c

Sauling lumber at Calgary, $3 ;
hauling lumber, $3

T. Kelly, 101 days' team hire, at $12
ff. Mayette 24 do do 9

J.BrewsterlOl do do 8..........

lames Bight, removing freight out of reach of water

W. K. Dickson, Parkdale, teams and meals i

B. J. Parker, Battleford, teaming, &c
A. Bogue, hauling hay.
William McDonnell, horse hire ..-.

E. Field, transport 8 men, Russell to Moosomin
R. J. Molloy, Clarke's Crossing, hire and loss of boat

Geo. Levasseur, Fort McLeod, 30 days' transport of R.M.R ....

J. Glen, Calgary, bonus for satisfactory travelling

Men searching for lost horses

Transport of Boulton's Mounted Infantry at Birtle

Barrett & Lamb, care of sick horse

A. McDonald, blacksmithing and rent of shop

Captain Mcintosh, freight and express.

F. F. Tims, Swift Current, freight on helmets .....

A. D. McPherson, carting powder and shot, Red Deer to Cat

gary •.... --•••••• ••••••• ..••••• ••< .......

Van Allan & Co., Winnipeg, wagon tongues, whiffle-trees, &c.

H. J. Grassett, Toronto, 20 cart covers

Jacques Bros., Calgary, 1 light wagon, $80 ;
cartage, $8

H. G. Forsyth, buckboard and harness.

$ cts.

4,740 00
1,536 00
144 00
432 00
395 50

3,391 50
1,734 00

W. Riddle, Moose Jaw, 2 tents and poles -

Kendall & Gleason, 1 Chatham wagon
L. Lovell, sleierh, box, pole, &c .............

S. J. Hogg & Co., Calgary, wagon poles and lumber

J. H. Rodney do stove pipes, &c
Balance of Guy's October voucher 2il ; no details ....

Pay of herders of Montana cattle

1 wagon-master, 142 days, at $4.00

4 do
1 do
9 herders
5 do
1 do

15 drovers
1 do

304
89
524
245
19
763
33

do
do
do
do
do
do
do

3.50
2.50
3.50
3.00
2.50.

1.75

0.76.

$ cts.

7,247 50

5,125 50
81 00
60 00

400 00
275 00
300 00
515 00
20 00
48 50
49 75
29 00
60 50
7 40

36 75
95 50
9> 20
6 0>

1,212 00
216 00
808 00

6 25
22 00
136 00

5 00
3 00

40 00
25 00

240 00
10 CO
25 00
38 00
21 00

149 50
15 85
16 20

15 00
536 00
95 00
88 00
90 00
3* 00
70 00
20 00
15 08
9 37

325 50
111 00
568 00

1,064 00
242 50

1,834 00
735 00
47 25

1,335 25
24 75

$ t/ts.%.
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &o.

—

Continued.

Transport and Mail Service— Concluded.

1 cook 93 days, at $2.50
2 do 61 do 2.00 ,

3 watchmen 12 do 3.50......

1 stableman 22 do 2.00......
f

Labor, at Calgary, $5 ; at Saskatchewan Landing, $9 ...

Horse-shoeing, Edmonton, $212 ; Calgary, $277.16
Cabs, Winnipeg, $6 ; teaming, at Selkirk, $32.20
2$ orris & Carey, Edmonton, 4 pairs blankets, $12 ; curry

combs, &c, $2.15
Leo Gaetz, Red Deer, 19 boxes axle grease
Forage, Calgary, $67.75; Qu'Appelle, $5 *

<Lo Winnipeg, $168 ; Bear's Hill, $22 50...*!

do Swift Current, $17.70 ; Blindman's River, $2.
JRepairs to waggons, buckboards, &c
Bent of stables and offices, Calgary, $80

;
Qu'Appelle, $18.75...

Meals at Calgary, $298.02 ; telegrams, $2.47
Depot clerks and etoremen
1 ravelling expenses of depot clerks, &c
Lumber at Regina, $36.26 ; Building ferry at Red Deer, $5
Swimming horses at Red Deer, $9 ; drawing lumber, $9

J5ovd & Crowe, Winnipeg-
Freighting 527 tons across river at Clarke's Crossing.
2 barges for moving wounded
Tools, rope, nails, &c, for Capt. Andrews
Ferrying 62 tons, at 75c......

Bow River ferry, $39 ; Battle River ferry, $200
Hed Deer ferry, $849.93; Swift Current, $99.20
Terrying at Calgary, $228 ; at Qu'Appelle, $32.25.

do Saskatchewan
do Fort McLeod
do Regina „,

do Edmonton
!F, Damoureux, ferrying ..,

Hontgomerie & Workman, shipping charges on rifles.

Telegraph Service.

J. Stewart, transporting telegraph poles, &c, from Moose Jaw
to Wood Mountain _

CJreat North-Western Telegraph Co.

—

Operator Linkskail, 127 days, at $4
do Pike, 127 days, at $4

Lineman and operator Hall, 120 days, at $5
Assistant lineman Biggar, il9days, at $2.50
Lineman Labelle, 142 days, at $3
Personal and travelling expenses
Wire, $42.50; insulators, $14
Side pins, $6 ; sp.kes, $1.50
Spades, $6 ; shovels, $1.50 ,

2 sets field instruments ,

10,560 feet wire, including duty, freight charges, &c
1 tool bag, pliers, spurs, &c .....

Miscellaneous articles '.

Rent and repairs telephone magnetics
5 digging bars

T. Lewis, Touchwood Hills, 83 days' pay as operator, at $1 50.

W. F. Harris, pay as operator, 139 days, at $2
*>. S. Wood, chief operator, 4 months, at $75 -

"W. McLimont, 129 days, at $2
Less—Unexpended balance of advance

$ cts.

395 25
250 00
22 00
46 50

239 00
949 13

260 25

26 85
60 45
58 45

212 35
10 60

508 00
508 00
600 00
297 50
426 00
315 95
36 50
7 50
7 50

52 95
358 17

22 95
13 82
25 (0
7 50

258 00
6 50

$ cts.

232 50
122 00
42 00
44 00
14 00

489 16

38 20

14 15

4 75
7^ 75

190 50
19 70

314 60
98 75
290 49
712 00
186 60
41 26
18 00

713 75

1,817 08
3,006 55

4,000 00

$ cts.

835,199

3,187 34
124 50
278 00
300 00

251 50

10



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1886

Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c— Continued.

Telegraph Service— Concluded.

J. Horn, operator—
27 days' pay, at $2
108 days' living allowance, at 76c.

Advance for expenses

C- 0. McNab, operator

—

64 days' pay, at $2 ......

Board, $66 ; travelling expenses, $57.

H. McCleneghan, operator—
14 days' pay, $28 ; board, $28 50 ;

travelling expenses, $94.

Less—Advance, $50 ;
goods supplied, $24.20.. .....

cts.

54 00
82 08
10 00

128 00
123 00

F. Browne, operator, 15 days' pay . •""•""'
7,:

J. S. Macdonald, operator, pay, 133 days, $266; travelling

expenses, $228 ..--.. »

J. J. Hall, in charge of outfit, expenses, meals, board, &c

Camp outfit -

150 50
74 20

45 45
19 30

G. H. Campbell, Winnipeg, 3 tickets, Winnipeg to Qu'Appelle.

Staff and Officers.

Major-Gen eral Sir F. E. Middleton, staff allowance, at $5 per

day, $725 ; travelling expenses, $63 • •.••»

Major-General Strange, pay and allowances, $2,670 ;
travelling

expenses, $82.65
Major-General Laurie, balance of pay ...........

Captain H. B. Wise, Aide-de-Camp, 138 days' pay and allow-

ances, $483; travelling expenses, $12.50 ...-•

Lieutenant A. E. Doucet, Aide-de-Camp, 210 days' pay, $714;

123 days' field allowance, $123
Subsistence, $176.25; travelling expenses, $25.60... "•••••"

Pay and travelling expenses of nurse, $145 ;
medicines, $29.10..

Lt.-Col. Jackson, pay and allowances, $:,691.55; tiavelling

expenses, $73.70 •• • ••—

Lt.-Col. Whitehead, pay and allowances, $1,688.05 ;
travelling

expenses, $100.33 • • •

Lt.-Col. Forrf st, pay and allowacces, $1,490 ;
travelling expen-

ses $34.45 • •»•••• *

Lt.-Col. Fraser"pay and allowances, $987 08; car fares, Win
nipeg, $3 • •

Major Guy, pay and allowances, $2,063.50 ; travelling expenses

$47 74..

Lt-Col. Peebles,"difference of pay of rank and superintendent

of stores •"•

Xt.-Col. Otter, pay and allowances
do Van Straubenzee, pay and allowances •-

do Houghton, 10 days' field allowance... -

Major Dale, jay and allowances, $795.90 ;
travelling expenses

837 00

201 75
174 10

$53
Major E. A. Brisbois, pay, $£96.90 ;

tiavelling expenses, $99...,

do Smith, staff allowance, $283.50; travelling expenses

$14.45 >. «
do Vaughan, 88 days' allowance
do Griesbach, 91 days' pay
do Hatton, pay V"" j***omoo
do Rickaids, pay and allcwances, $512.60 ;

board, $138

Captain Allan do $249.55; travelling expen-

ses, $53.25 -
••••••

Captain Haig, R.E., pay and allowances, $583; travelling

expenses, $134 t >•

Captain Freer, pay and allowances, $422.22 ;
travelling expen-

ses,' $60. 76 ~ ••

$ cts.

146 08

251 00

76 30
30 00

494 00

64 75

34 80

788 00

2,752 65
475 70

495 50

1,212 85

1,765 25

1,788 38

1,524 45

899 08

2,111 24

829 50

1,781 89

1,092 16

10 00

848 90
495 90

297 95
146 16

273 00
95 CO
650 60

302 80

717 00

482 97

$ lets.

9,238 27



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1886

Expenditure under Appropriation of 82,300,000 to defray expense* and looses arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, ka.—Continued.

Staff and Officers—Continued.

do
do
do
do
do

do
do
do
do
do

travelling

Captain Wright, pay and allowances
do A. W. Morton do

W. G. Mutton do ,..........".

Drury, travelling expenses !'.!

H. Hamilton, pay and allowances
H. Swinford do
Hudson, pay and allowances, $449.96

expenses, $92.15 w
Harston, acting Brigade-Major, allowances
Joung do balance of pay
E. Palliser, pay, allowances, &c
Kirwan, 5 days' pay and subsistence
Lavasseur, extra work

Lieutenant Sears, pay and allowances
Lieutenant Dixon, pay and allowances, $574.88; 'traveliing

expenses, $79,95 ,

Major Street, pay ....!!!!!!

Lieutenant H. G. Bate, pay and allowances, $249.98 : travelling
expenses, $26.40

Lieutenant Cole, pay and allowances
"

Lieutenant R. W. Leonard, pav and allowances, $504.70:
travelling expenses, $60,50

'

Lieutenant H. B. Strange, pay and allowances, $860.78"f 'hote'l
expenses, $27. 50

Lieutenant E. R. A. Tascbereau, pay and ailowaVcesTwTis •

travelling expenses, $9
'

Rev. W. P. Mackenzie, Chaplain, Alberta Field ForceV*76 days'
pay and allowance

t ^
Major Vaughan

,
field allowance ""..'!.""".."".".".""!!!!!

Quartermaster Disbrowe, pay and allowances, $196."98*;" small
payments, $4 .'

H. Bach, Orderlvto Generkl Middleton...".".*..
^l'".*.."!!!.*.."."*"!.!*"!"

Staff-Sergeant Potts, in lieu of clothing !!!!!!!!.
do Benn, pay ..'......'!!!!!!!.!..,'!.

S.L. Bedson, Transport vffieer, pay ..".'.V..!..!.'*.".".

J% H
ii
S
o
SecretaD

>
159 day s ' Pay> $1,351 ;

travelling expenses,'
$13.50

A. McGibbon, T.O., pay and allowances, $1,359.'40 ;" travelling
expenses, $31

, ><##
*

P. H. Underwood, S.O., pay and allowances
!""".'!""!."!"!"""

£ ^;
S trachan, pay, $534 90 ; travelling expenses, &c, $784.79

M. I. Feron, S.O., pay and allowances, $337 80; travelling
expenses, 5-20

\mn f
James Anderson, SO., pay and allowances','$1.056.86 : travel-

ling expenses, $118.95
J
a 9; Woolsey< S.O , pay, $217.25; travelling expenses! '$7'.'Si"
A. McQueen, S.O , Troy, pay „ ..„..
S. Swinford, Assist. Commissary, 73 days' pay and^allowances.
Dr. Duncan, V\S., 146 days' pay and allowances
J. R. Benson

—

17 days purchasing horses, at $3.90
16 do teamhire,

*

2 saddles

J. C. Nelson—
15 days purchasing horses.

board, $45; travelling expenses, &c, '$43.6o!15 do

W. R. Murray, W.F.B
, 93 days' allowance as postmaster

T. Houne 100 dpys as courier witn Major-General Middleton.
fo. Ballandine, H3 days as guide do do
North- West Cattle Co., 1 horse .!.'

T. F. Burns, commission and expenses on sale of 2 horses'.'...!.'
Major Jar vis, 17 days' attendance Kiel's trial
Captain Young do do
At Winnipeg

—

Pay of Winnipeg Commissary Staff..
,

12

$ cts

66 30
80 00
45 00

75 00
88 60

$ cts,

312 36
195 05
733 08
45 00
728 10
820 20

642 11

185 00
139 32
148 34
17 90
38 00

1,155 74

654 83
258 00

274 38
410 59

565 20

96 25

271 32
31 00

200 98
143 20
12 00

158 00
1,590 00

1,364 50

1,390 40
423 90

1,319 69

357 80

1,175 81
305 20
181 40
357 70
511 00

191 30

163 60
245 00
500 00
165 00
130 00
15 50
66 30
47 94

3,080 86

$ Cts.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1886

Expenditure under Appropriation of 82,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &o.

—

Continued.

Staff and Officebs—Concluded.

At Winnipeg

—

C. P. R. Tel. Co., $2,072.03: G. N. W. Tel. Co., $147.83...

Dominion Express Co., freight, $356.96; N. W. Navigation

Co., freight, $3 75 ....

Cabs at Winnipeg, $86 05 ;
cartage, $521.95

Clerks, &c , at Winnipeg, $652.90 ; labor, $127.85

Rent of office, furniture and safe, $322 : telephone, $30
Conveyances, $25.80; water supply, $25
Horse hire, $22 ; forage, $98 50

Furniture, $10.50; repairs, $14.65
Hardware, $14.83; wood, $49.75 ,

Stationery, -6162.45; postage, $39.28.... -- . -

Druge, $48.95; board at Winnipeg Hospital, $392.75

Oil and lamps, $ 7.50; board, $12
Sundry supplies, $5 50; ice, $6.50
Recovering lost goods
Storage, $36.79; value, $6 .....

AtCalgary-
Pay of clerks, &c , $2,000; labor, $155.10

Stationery, $211.65; stamps, &c, $25.18

Cartage, $78; transport $25
Meals, $268.46; forage. $52.50

Supplies, $45.91 ; hardware, $29.70

Wood, $7.25; water, $3 00; I valise, $5.75

Furniture, $15.50; rent $70 ; storage, $43
Drugs, $5 50 ; Dr. A. Henderson, professional services, $25

AtQu'Appelle—
Pay of clerks, Ac ,

$87885 ; travelling expenses, $98 10

Meals and provisions, $12 ; building shed, $313

At Troy, pay of clerks, &c, $80 ; supplies, $6.10

At Edmonton

—

Pay of clerks. &c ,
$323 50

; labor, $68 95

Rent, $250; telegrams, $10.97
;
provisions, $3

At Battleford, rent, $7.50; stationery and supplies, $3.15

At Moose Jaw

—

Pay of clerks. &c.,$l49; rent, $80
Furniture, $198 05; repairs, $8.50..

Provisions, $16 60; teaming, $36
Hardware, $79.05 ; lumber, $^9 43

At Swift Current, pay of clerks, &c, $84 ; rent/$52 50

At Fort Pitt, pay of staff, &c
At Red Deer do . ...

At Battle River do $165; rent, $112 50

At Prince Albert, stttionery ,

At Selkirk, horse hire, $4 ; telegrams, $3 65 «

At Saskatoon, rent $20 ; carrying despatches, $18

At Spring Lake, forage, meals, &c ,

At Pine Creek, horse-shoeing +.,

W. Wright, courier ,

<J. Young, Calgary, X cook stove

J.Walker do 19 rifle cases ... ..,

T. C. Power., 1 set double harness

Hudson Bay Co., 5 pair blankets

At R' gina—
Lumber, $6 23; cartage, $38
Stationery, $8.50; furniture, $4

Winnipeg Times, advertising, $118; printing, $13.50
Manitoba Printing House, printing

Proctor Bros., Calgary do
Saskatchewan Herald do ,

Calgaiy Herald, advertising, $26.25; printing, $4.50
Regina*Leader, printing

E.[B. Holt, secretaryWar Commission, pay and allowance, $3.85

;

travelling expenses, $15.25

G. Murphy, traveling expenses attending War Commission
W. E. Jones do do
€. F. Jones, copying evidence •

13

$ cts. $ cts.

2,219 86

360 71
608 00
780 75
353 00
50 80
120 50
25 15
64 58

201 73
441 70
39 50
12 00
14 25
42 79

2,155 10

236 83
103 00
300 95
75 61
16 00

128 50
30 50

976 95
325 00
86 10

39^ 45
266 97
15 65

229 00
206 55
51 60
108 48
136 50
39 90
68 00

277 50
6 47
7 65

38 00
26 25
4 50
5 00
75 00
53 40
45 00
40 00

44 23
12 50

131 50
3 00

21 50
18 00
30 75
11 55

400 25
38 95
30 60
115 50

$ cts.
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses aod lo3ses arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c— Continued.

Staff and Officers—Concluded.

Major 0. H. Dale, 11 days' services
R. D. Richardson, stationery for War Commission
Aitkens, Culver & Hamilton, legal services t

Sir A. P. Caron, advances for travelling expenses
J. A. Ouimet, on account services as commissioner to settle

losses (to be transferred to Governor General's warrant for
that service)

,

L. W. Herchmer do do

% cts.

Arms and Ammunition.

Beaudet & Chinic. Quebec—
20,808 lbs. R.F.G. powder, at 17$c. „
Freight, $93 60 ; boxes, $3.50 ,

Issues from Her Majesty's Stores, England.

1,000 Martini-Henri rifles, scabbards, bayonets, &c, half paid.
Paid on account of buff accoutrements ,...

32nd Battalion.

Express on stores, $3.60 ; telegrams, $5.06 ; livery, $28.50 ....

Board of 7 men, Co. 4, at Paisley, $39 ; A. McNeil do $39
G. S. Wilson, $10.25; A. E. Campbell, $98; Chas. Briggs,$18

Chas. King, $11.50. (Expenditure for which vouchers
cannot be obtained)

John F. Kleist, compensation for loss of time through illness
Lieut. Gadsby (15th Battalion) travelling expenses t ..

Lieut. Hotson (23th do ) ao

Toronto Garrison Artillery.

Pay June 1 to 22

J. C. Devlin, 990 grocery rations, at 4c
W. Carlyle, 1,485 lbs of bread, $42.69 : 990 lbs. potatoes, $9 99.
G. Beddingfield, 990 lbs. meat, at 7£c „. Z
P. Purns, coal

Toronto Field Battery.

W. H Scripture, drugs, $18 73 ; R. Bovil, ambulance, $1
Lugsden & Barnett, leather, $19.80; J. Spry, reDairinc harness,

$9.50 ,
.*

...

O. Johnson, £ doz. brass keys, $1.75; P. KennedyrVdoz'.
brooms, $1.20 ,...,*

Toronto Lime Co., lime.... ...'...„"!!!!!!

W. M. Adams, 2 galls, neat's foot oil, $4:4 whitewash
brushes, $1

H. C. Howard, shoe for sponge stave, 60c. ; J. Lecture," 4
potato nets, $5.

J. F. Ross, hardware and oil, $33 80 : E. Blain & Co.Vi doz.
pails, $2.10

,

14th Battalion.

S. Cannem, washing
,

G. M. Wilkinson, 6 brooms !.".".""

J. Noble, 99tfr cords of wood "....".'

T. R. Carnovsky, 12,009 lbs. bread
,

J. P. Henderson, 2,711 lbs. grocery and potato rations.
J. Gowdy, 2,711 lbs. meat ...„ .,

S. Loynes & Co., 55| galls, oil

14

$ cts.

64 90
3 05

65 50
470 00

1,000 00
1,167 50

3,641 40
97 10

75,488 86
73,000 00

37 16
78 00

137 25
8 00
8 70
5 00

690 86
39 60
52 58
74 25
7 50

19 73

29 30

2 95
60

5 00

5 60

35 90

61 27
1 50

589 54
323 46
105 05
139 08

10 64

$ cts.

59,936 07

3,738 58

148,488 86

274 11

864 80

99 08
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Expenditure uDder Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out of troubles in the North-West Territories, ko,- Continued.

14th Battalion.—Continued.

Pay of staff and detachment • •••

T J. Donohue, 9,295 lbs. grocery andpotato rations.

do 2,520 lbs. straw, at 30c. per cwt

T. Ketching, 9,298 lbs meat
McKelvey & Birch, 94f galls, oil ... ..

do paint brushes and lime ....

Capt. H. J. Spriggs, 13 days extra service

Dr. W. H. Henderson, services and medicines

J. E. Dunlop, 183 forage rations

$ cts

56th Battalion.

Advance of pay • •

Balance July pay
r
'""~"n t**""""«j£»

Wm. Maganan, straw, $4 ; Mrs. H. Press, washing, $4.^7

E. 0. Field, M D., medical attendance ..... ........ •••••_

A. O. Harding, drugs, $19.37 ; R. McCarthy & Co., wood, $6.

W. Willard, 6 galls, oil, at 25c, $1.50 ; 3 scrubbers, at 25c., 75c.

J. W. Plumb, 1,347 lbs. beef, at 9c, $121.23 ;
Wm. McGrory,

2,020ilbs. bread, at 3c, $60.61 »••»•

John P. Hayden,,l,3471bs. rations, groceries and potatoes, at 5£c

1st Prince op Wales Rifles.

Gleaning and disinfectants, $1.50 ;
cab-hire, Lieut Tait, $1.50.

6 tubs and water, $5.05 ; W. L. Heron, cab-hire, $2.50

Sharpe's city express

John Martin & Co.

—

. _ _,

131ft doz. Glengarry's, at $7, $96.83 ;
badge, $1

Handcuffs, $4 ; 25 yds. bunting, $7.80 ;
helmets, $9 ....... .

10 lanterns, 3 do repaired, $5.30 ; box, &c, $4.75 ;
tin box

for quartermaster, $1. 75 •

J. Warren, cleaning accoutrements, $12 ;
cartage, 75c ....

B. Jackson, cartage, $13.50 ;
Canada Co-Operative Associa-

tion, blacking, $4.50.
H. Prinee, 4 snare drums, $56.

J. Burns, plumbing, $7.45 ; _

J. B. Young, stove pipe, 60c ; 26 flue tops, at 50c, $13 ,
b

sq. cones, at $1.75, $10 50 .............. ...

T C. Elliott, cartage and sundries, $10.05 ;
Wm. Bruce, cab

hire, 50c.

R. & M. Marmington—
Coffee pot, $1.50 ; oil can, 40c, coal oil, 35c

Wash pan, 35c ; ladle, 25c ;
strainer, 30c

Funnel, 10c ; car fares, 30c ;
examining range, $1.20

97 83
20 80

11 80

2 25
90

1 60

T. Davidson, 3T
7
2 doz. dish pans, at $6.60-

Gault Bros. 10 doz. towels, at $1.14 ....

David Crawford, brooms, brushes and candles

Kearney Bros., candles, soap, &c
Caverhill, Learmont & Co., hardware

Princess Louise Dragoon Guards.

S. & H. Borbridge, 40 cavalry valises and lettering, at $2.75,

Quebec Garrison Artillery.

Pay «

Captain Roy, expenses to Ottawa and return.

Funeral expenses gunner Page ...

J. Boivan, 3 prs. boots, at $2.98

$ cts.

6,501 88
371 92

7 56
510 45
18 01

12 90
33 84
276 00
42 09

5,383 62
10 00
10 00
8 94

Levis Garrison Artillery.

Pay.

830 18
12 10

8 37
71 00
25 37
2 25

181 84
74 08

3 00
7 55
7 75

130 43
12 75

18 00
63 45

24 10

10 55

4 75

2 J 65
11 40
17 80
9 81

100 00

$ eta.

9,005 19

5,412 56

2,831 40

1,206 19

444199

uaoa

15
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Expenditube under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c—-Continued.

Supplies—Quebec G. A. and Levis G. A.

Renaud & Co., 55| galls, oil, at 22c . -*.

James McCorkell, 11,044£ lbs. bread, at 2§c
T. Delaney, ll,014i% lbs. meat, at 6£c
Turcotte & Prevost, 10,994 lbs. grocery and potato rations
M. Brophy, 155 rations for horses, $34.88 ; straw, $9.12
Mrs. Marshall, washing bedding
Mrs. Coyne do
Captain Boulanger, expenses to Quebec as witness

New Brunswick Provisional Battalion.

Lt.-Col. Baird, 2 days at Sussex camp, paying battalion,
GcJbrge Black, removing 4 sick men ../ ,

Freignt and express charges, |9.63 ; cartage, $7.75
Mrs. J. Marshall, washing 890 blankets
Western Union Telegraph Co., telegrams , ,

Queen's Own Rifles.

Pay of officers and men
Ration allowances ?.

E. F. Hutchings, Winnipeg

—

100 days repairing accoutrements
Leather trimmings, &c

865 meals, at 25c

$ cts

12 27
265 07
748 96
552 33
44 00
19 62
7 47
5 82

300 00
115 76

7th Battalion.

Pay of officers and men
C. S. Hymon & Co.—

312 prs. reg. gaiters, at 75c
125 do tongue boots, at $2.00 .

78 do lace boots, at 1.90.

56 do do
5 gross leather laces

254 cans dubbing
2 cutters

Packing cases

2.10

350
0.10

1,304 meals, at 35c , „„..
2,347 lbs. beef , \

Field allowance
,

Travelling expenses
,

H. B. Elliott, expense bringing son's body, Prince Albert to
London

JSobbs, Osborne & Hobbs, tools
S- Stewart, London, pails

,

Longhren & Tackaberry, water bottles
,

2£ doz. Glengarrys
, ,

6 stretchers

Repairing accoutrements .'.',

Hay and oats ...

Medicine chest and supplies
Ration allowance "[

Stabling and feed for 5 horses,...., ,
'..!....!""

Hardware-

234 00
250 00
148 20
117 60
17 50
25 40
1 50
4 20

9th Battalion.

Paj of officers and men
,

Martin Bros., Calgary, hardware , „.,

3,273 meals
Field allowance !"..!!".'.!!,

John Gamble, Fort McLeod, baking, 56 days, at $L50.!

16

$ cts,

1,655 54

9 74
2 00

17 38
44 50
23 69

14,439 56
752 58

415 76
302 75

6,665 86

798 40
456 40
398 99
531 00
113 00

108 15
25 04
25 74
29 05
17 25
19 00
8 62
12 19

21 60
3 00
5 00

40 70

13,872 23
1,587 60
1,233 00

1,074 06
84 00

$ cts

9,899 50

97 31

15,910 65

9,278
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out ot troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.

—

Continued,

9th Battalion—Continued.

Cartage at Quebec • •••• •

lire. Shearer, Fort McLeod, making 64 palliasses and pillow

cases, at 75c

A. C. Sparrow, Calgary, 291 lbs. beef, at 12c...

Repairing boots
Water supply <

•

Knapsack straps

Hay and oats

5 days' subsistence, Pte. Portin returning home .

St. George's S.S. Club, Winnipeg, damages to grand stand

10th Royal Grenadiers.

Pay of officers and men -

Rations .«

Field allowance -

Compensation in lieu of boots and underclothing.

768 meals, at 35c -

Dickie & Mitchell, 263 pr. leggings, at 90c

Medical services, Lieut. Morrow
Advance to pay invalids

J. H. Rogers, 63 hats, $1.25
Travelling expenses, Chaplain Whitcome
"W. & D. Dineen, 46 cape, $1.50.

Lt.-Col. Grassett, no voucher furnished .,

Fulton & Michie, 5 doz. fluid beef.

do wines, for Lieut. Morrow
Incidental expenses for do
Carting baggage «
Team hire ~ ••••<

Water supply —•••

$ cts.

Governor General's Body Guards.

Pay of officers and men ,

Field allowance ,

631 meals •

79 pairs long boots, $4 »..

Hay and oats
C. Hewson, compensation for loss of horse.

Horse medicine and shoeing
J. F. Ross—

10 camp kettles

Use ol stoves, &c >

J. Kirkpatrick, repairing saddles.

J. Bose, cartage ~

and " B" Batteries.

Pay and field allowance

—

Officers and men of "A
do "B

Transport and travelling expenses

3,835^ lbs. beef ...

Meals ~
16^5^ tons hay .....

Horse feed, stabling and medicine
50 pairs mocassins
30 tuques, at 62§c, $18.75; 32 C. caps, $14 40 .

2 doz. pairs mitts, at $15.60, $31.20; 56 pairs socks, $54.19

Lieutenant Drury, advance for expenditure en route

Car?cadden k Pell, 15f doz. pairs mitts at $8
British American Ranche Co., 5 horses, at $150
Capt. Rutherford, compensation for horse shot at Cut Knife Hill

S. Oenison, repovering horse

11
50—2

30 00
13 92

14,736 95

17,047 81

50 00
33 15

85 39

$ cts.

72 75

48 00
34 92
26 70
33 00
12 40
16 70
5 00

20 00

21,907 48
1,489 80
1,560 57

227 70
200 50
187 50
78 75
117 90
69 00
168 50
40 85
11 15
10 40
33 90
5 00
3 00

8,191 29
509 15
280 25
316 00
45 01
105 00
90 50

43 92
17 00
11 25

31.784 76

1,453 45
523 10

312 20
169 69
98 30

168 54
200 00
127 06
750 00
125 00
25 00

$ cts.

18,120

28,450

9,609 ZT
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $J,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out eft oubiea in the Nurlh-West Territories, &c— Continued.

"A" and "B" Batteries—Continued.

Hudson Bay Co —
100 yards duffle ....

8^ doz. woollen hose.—.
10 boxes soap
4£ doz. knives and forks.

4| doz. shaving brushed ..

8| doz. spoons.
10 galls. 7-year-old rye. ....

Keg and case
1 case H. V. 0. brandy

11 caddies tobacco

E. C. McDonald, 19,680 lbs. hay
Hardy & Moffatt, provisions !

Gallagher & Son, Baitleford, 6,008£ lbs. beef, at 15c
fl. McDougall, Prinze Albert, 2,02^£ lbs. bread, 6£c
Medicine and provisions ,

Hudson Bay Co —
Groceries and provisions
14 loads hay
Leather, $17.15 ; 2 pairs boots, $18
1 wheel, $6; hardware, $34.18
5 cords wood, $15; freight, $25 37 ,

1 box matches.....

$ cts.

50 00
69 71

36 00
10 42
12 50
7 92

30 00
2 50
19 00

118 25

Stationery . „...

Telegrams

S. H. Caswell, Qu'Appelle—
1,677 lbs. bread, at 5|c

, $96.43; 1,265 lbs. potatoes, at
)£c, $15 81

891 lbs. meat, at 12£c
,
$111 37 ; 227 lbs. mutton* at 18c

$40.86 '.
,

Groceries ,

. 5 cords wood, at $3.60. $17.60; candles and coal oil, $4.60
Hay, oats, straw and bran .

Lumber, $15.15; hardware, $54.40....

1 pquare tent

24£ bushels potatoes ,

18 cords wood
13$ lbs. bread, $4.13 ; 41 pairs overstockings, 50c, $20.50.
8 cotton duck cloth valises, at $3.5J >

Board and subsistence
Milk and washing at Prince Albart
Huduon Bay Co., 6 head collars ,

Subsistence for 2 invalids
Contingent expenses...
Blacksmithing

,

Herding horses, Swift Current to BattlefOrd
He-lining 23 overcoats , ,

Mahaffy & Clinkskill, cook stove ,

Liquor permit for " A"
Saskatchewan Herald, printing
W. J. Mitchell, Winnipeg, 100 pairs goggles
Garscadden & Peck, 8£ doz. tuques, at $5
J. H. Rogers, Winnipeg, 2 buffalo coats ,

Winnipeg Light Infantry.

Pay, officers and men
.Field allowance
Allowance in lieu of rations.

William Wellbank, Winnipeg-—
294 pairs long boots, at $2.75,
294 do laced do 1.65.

1,173 11

141 00
35 15
40 18
40 37
33 00

17 60
23 48

112 24

152 23
85 98
22 10
53 90
69 53

25,252 90
1,321 34
497 94

18

808 50
485 10

$ cts

356 30
122 49
112 22
901 27
126 40
37 40

1,462 81

41 08

496 00
15 00
24 67
44 10
24 63
28 00

132 44
12 46
9 00
16 60
96 28
32 00
22 00
23 00
38 00
6 00
11 00
12 50
41 es
54 00

27,072 18

40,036 31



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 18&5

Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

*out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.

—

Continued.

Winnipeg Light Infantry—Continued.

H. Shorey & Co., 294 pairs trousers, at $1.75 .

Meals * •-

3,239 lbs. beef
Camp equipage
O. W. Graham, horse hire while organizing

Mulholland Bros., hardware ... •

Hudson Bay Co ,
40 pairs blankets <

H. Shorey & Co., 292 Glengarry caps

A. McDonald, Battleford—
1 doz. rifle oil ~

2 kegs butter, 63 lbs. ; 2 cheese, 118 lbs. ; 1 bag rice, 255 lbs

2,000 lbs. coal, and sacking '...,

3,844$ lbs. bread ~
158 brls. water
Recovering lost oxen
L. M. Lewis, repairing 250 rifle3

Winnipeg L. Co, lumber
Strange & Co , 6 boxes soap, $18 ; I case matches, $4
R. J. Whitla, 15 packing cases, at $1.50

J. O. Ashdown, 4 galls, oil, 16 ; 18 lbs. pipe-clay, $1.44 .

J. P. Cameron, altering clothing

A. McDonald, 1 ox *

Mulholland Bros., 7 lbs. pipe-clay

S. Aston & Co., 4 bugles, at $7, $28 ; cord, |6
Estate A. McDermott, rent of steamer, "

12th April, at $5
Telegrams
Mrs. Watson

—

Cleaning hall and £ ton coal

1 Bible for battalion
3 cords wood
Scissors, oil, &c • ~

$ cts.

9 00
111 60

Pride of West," 2nd to

Use of stoves, &c
W. Welband, 10 lbs. dubbin
C. W. Graham-

Travelling expenses
Delay at Winnipeg
Personal losses at Fort Pitt.

J. G. Golden, rent and damage to stores

Stationery
Ross Bros., 2 kettles

Cleaning house used by Kildonan Co.
Transport, travelling expenses and cartage

12| cords wood
Hay and oats
-64|& bush, potatoes - •

E. P. Leacock, goods returned to store

D. Meangare, 1 ox...

Col. R. Smith, 2 saddles returned to store .,

25 00
2 00

18 00
4 00

19 20
6 00
6 50

Midland Battalion.

Pay and allowances
R. Bullock, Selkirk, bread and cheese

J. Heggarty, Ignace, 297 meals, at 35c ,

Meals and feed at Muston's Dock
Bread and cheese, en route

C. Olewes & Sons, Port Hope, provisions, &c «- i

P.A.Thompson do 737 lbs. beef ,

W.Jewell do 680 lbs. bread
Cartage, $23 ; water, $5.25
'Wood, $15; labor, $12
Lumber, $12.90; hand-cuffs, $9.50
Postage, telegrams, &c, $19.56 ; sundry accounts, $343.89
Transport of remains of late Lt.-Col. Williams

50—24 19

$ cts.

514 50
487 65
352 59
269 89
194 25
170 79
118 40
182 50

120 60
12 75

128 15

47 00
10 00
12 50
38 51
22 00
22 50
7 44

22 85
90 00
. 1 05
34 00

55 00
17 05

49 00
14 75
6 00

31 70
59 60
31 60
8 50
25 00
66 30
75 00
33 17

48 80
30 00
80 00
90 00

30,770 87
12 73

103 95
15 00
40 65
29 75
55 27
17 00
28 25
27 00
22 40
363 45
200 00

$ cts.

31,947 07
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^Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising-

out of troubles in the North-West Xerritoi ies, &c.

—

Continued*

Midland Battalion— Continued.

Guard of 46th Baft, at Ool. Williams' funeral . .

Lieutenant Halliwell, travelling expenses
Captain Clewes do
liieutenant J. M. Weller do
Captain Hunter do ...

Major Harrison do
Color-Sergt. W. F. Wrighton do
Private S. Bell, advance tor compensation

do J. Barton, 51 days' do

Montreal Garrison Artillery.

Pay and allowances
Tinning & Hoskins, Regina, 12,633 grocery rations
Colonization Store Co., 1,736 do

do 292 lbs. biscuit

C Slinn, 21,115£lbs. bread, at 3£c

B. Robson, 1,736 do meat, at life
do 12,633 do do 14c

Sibbald, Lindsay & Lyon, 4,860 lbs. potatoes, at l£c ,

McNicol Bros., 2,887 do He
G. Brickland, 4,285 » do ljc
Sprague & Scarlett, 30 cords wood
J. Windebank, water supply ,

Candles, $1 ; coal oil, $1.42 ; lanterns and wick, $2.25
292 meals at Winnipeg, at 35c -.,

292 do Rat Portage
289 do Toronto Junction
293 do Carleton
293 do Calumet

4 coffee boilers carried away from Calumet
J. Martin, Montreal, 276 white helmets, at $1.80

J. Linton & Co , Montreal

—

276 pairs leggins, at $1 ; 3 cases, $1 ,..

t0 do ammunition boots, $105 ; 25 doz. dubbin, $50

It. Tooke, Montreal—
21 doz. tuques, at $6 00

7| do 5.00,

13* do 4.50

Captain Trotter, travelling expenses ,

Gunner Challacombs do ....,....,

do Lee, 21 days in hospital

Captain Cole, 5 days' pay, Board of Enquiry.
do Campbell do do

Sharpshooters.

Pay and allowances
£30 meals at Rat Portage, at 35c
95 do Toronto Junction
50 do Carleton, at 75c
ClufJBros., cartage ,

Citizen Publishing Co , advertising ....

S. & H. Borbridge—
51 pairs beef moccasins, at $2.25.
1 pair soled do

Private F. H. Cunningham, travelling expenses
,

do J. C. Mullin do ,

Lt.-Col. Ross, for issue of 40 new forage caps to G. G. F. Guards

Winnipeg Troop op Cavalry.

Pay and allowances
Allowance to 34 men for kits, $13.95 each
James Harris, V.I3., attendance and medicines

$ cts.

277 00
155 00

14 00
35 83
60 75

114 75

4 50

i> cts.

42 10
105 00
36 10

6 10
7 50
9 00
8 00
50 00
51 00

7,889 04
610 26
97 02
29 20

703 85
206 15

1,768 62
60 74
38 50
57 13

209 80
11 00
4 67

102 20

102 20
144 50
146 50
146 50
20 00

496 80

432 00

110 58
17 40
3 00

21 00
14 10

14 10

2,115 31

17 50
47 50
37 50
4 00
4 50

119 25
7 50
7 25

70 00

683 59
474 30
26 00

$ cts t

32,001 \%

13,456 8S

2,430 31
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

oat of troubles in the North-West Territories, &q.—Continued.

Winniphg Troop of Cavalry— Continued.

A. Lindeburgh, Touchwood, 2 tons hay

N. Bawlf, Winnipeg, hay and cartage

Manitoba Warehousing and Cartage Co., cartage. .. .....

J. Bell, Portage la Prairie, 16 suppers, at 35c. ; 2 lunches, 50c.

65th Battalion.

311 meals at Medicine Hat, at 50c

307 do Mattawa, at 50c

307 do Tgnace. at 35c

2 do Rat Portage, at 35c

130 do Calgary, at 50c

2,577 lbs. bread, $108.33; provisions $62.33, C
*}?f

J ''••'': "

1^300 lbs. beef, at 10c, $130; 1,074 lbs. pork, at 12c, $128.

4 do£
a
fluTd\eXat5^ Calgary....

55 pairs boots, $'38 62 ; camp outfit, $63.30, Calgary

1,740 lbs. bread at Red Deer '"'••*»"^
j W

14 lbs. coffee, at 50c, $7 ;
provisions, $12.25, Red Deer

Horse hire, Red Deer 2"k"*A"\V'"1""\
Board, $520 20 ;

travelling expenses, $10.50, Montreal

Provisions, Bear's Hill, &9 \ tobacco, JS5......

Quinine wine, ?4; hospital supplies, $42.80
.Y"^""""

•'

Ration allowance, $461.90; 6 bottles rangoon oil, $4.50 ....

Captain Des Georges, travelling expenses........ ......

Pay and field allowance from 28th March to 31st July

Paymaster's account
Clothing, $27.90 ;

foragecaps, $269

Repairs to uniform, $1 ;
goggles, $ l0-;"

1;*"Tio
4 days' pay, board of enquiry, $11.28; labor, $12

Burial expenses, $105.92 ;
repairing bugle, 25c....

Postage and stationery, $91.58; telegrams, $9.55

Information from Indian guide ... •-•••••••••

Target materials, $1.85; cartage, $112 50

Hardware, $668.31 ; blacksmithing, $40

Lumber * '

$ cts.

90th Battalion.

Pay and field allowance, May, June and July ,

Compensation to wounded at Fish Creek

Allowance of $13.95 to 292 N. C. O. and men for kit

Hation allowance, 15th July to 20th ™r*'IV"^-"";

72 meals, at 40c. , '$28.80
; 141 meals, at 50c, $70 .50, Winnipeg,

Meals at Brandon, $20 ; 47 lunches, at 25c, $11.75 do

Hospital expenses, $1630; Pte. M. O. Jarvis, travelling

expenses, $17.75

100 pairs grey blankets, at $3.50 •"•

3£ tons hay, at $20, $70; cartage, $10. ..........

Printing forms, $16 ; 50 pairs goggles, $12.50.-

Shoemaker's work

91st Battalion.

Carscaden & Peck,Winnipeg, 408 pairs drawers, at $10.50 per doz
* j~ Af\Q An b.f>0 CIO ...

do
do
do
do
do
do
do

do
do
do
do

do
do
do
do
do
do
do

do
do
do
do

do
do
do
do
do
do

408" do 6.50

408 under shirts 10.50

408 do 6.50

408 blue serge shirts 15.50

408 pair knit shirts 1.00

400 pair plain shirts 1.00

808 pairs shirts and drawers,

$6.50 per doz

1224 pair socks, at $3.45 per doz...

800 do 3.50 do ...

808 pair gloves 6.25 do

600 pair blankets 2.80

21

at

357 CO

221 00
357 00
2J1 00
527 00
408 00
400 00

437 67
351 90
233 33
420 83

1,680 00

$ cts.

30 00
5 97
10 00
6 10

155 50
!53 50
107 45

70
65 00
170 66

258 88
18 75

201 92
139 00

19 25
69 00
530 70

14 00
46 80
466 40
88 00

19,429 70
41 25

296 90
11 00
23 28

106 17

101 13
2 00

114 35
708 31

214 80

16,741 58
588 50

4,073 40

1,175 61

99 30
31 75

34 05
350 00
80 00
28 50
23 50

$ Ct3.

1,235 96

23,554 40

23,226 m
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of troubles in the North.West Territories, &c—Continued.

9 1st Battalion—Concluded.

Oarscaden & Peck, Winnipeg, 350 pairs blankets, at $2.10
do do 4 boys' overcoats at 7.50

Lkss— Deduction by Lt.-Col. Jackson.

J. A. Wright, Winnipeg, 100 pair blankets
R. J. Whitla & Co , Winnipeg, 25 pair blankets. £75 ; 106 yds,

Russia crash, $12.72
.

H. Shorey & Co., Montreal, shirts and drawers. ......
..7*'".

7*'*.**

400 pair pants, at $1.90, $760 ; 34 doz. tuques, at $7.50, $255...
Pay and field allowance
Ration allowance

$ cts

735 00
30 00

6,379 73
2,502 33

433 meals, at 35c, $151.55
;
provisions, $175.22, Regina

1,444£ lbs. bread, $48.15 ; 1,801 lba. beef, $223.13 do
Bread, $56.46

; water supplied, $29.50, Winnipeg
63 rubber sheets, at $1.85, $116.55 ; 67 rubber sheets, at $2.00,

$134.00 ......„..,
The Ames Hoiden Co —

408 pairs long boots, at $3.75
408pairslace do $2.50 "

4 gross laces .1...."."..'."!!!.7!

Jas. H. Rogers—
34 caps, at 75c
374 do 60c.

400 pairs shoulder straps, $600.00 ; clothing, $15.20....
T. H. Scott, Winnipeg—

7 tables, at $5 00, $35.00 ; 1 table, $4.50; 1 table,
1 doz. chairs, $10.50 ; 1 doz. chairs, $9.00

.50....

77 lbs. pipe clay, at 15c, $11 f 5 ; 12 water barrels, $3.00
Hospital furniture, $4300 ; cotton, $10 35
Bugle, $6.00 ; 2 revolvers, returned to militia stores by Lt.-Coi

Scott, $26.40
J

Hay and oats, $83 72 , cases and cartage, $49.50
116 sacks, at 30c, $34 80 ; 18 lanterns, at $1.00, $18.00 .

4 boxes candles, $44.60 ; towelling, $28.42
Stoves, wood and lamps, $113.43 ; teaming, $73.00
Postage and stationery, $39.95 ; relegrams, i$19.29
Advertising, $8.00 ; lumber, $14.20; labor, $28.00
Cleaning privy, $5 00 ; altering tunics, $74.00
Hardware

"C" Infantry School.

Pay and field allowance 1st April to 31st October
Groceries and potatoes, $124.53 ; 160 lbs. meat, at 8|c, $14 Or.

70 meals at Ignace, at 35c, $24.50; 73 meals at Brandon, at
35c, $25.55

73 meals at Mocsomin, at 35c
nipeg, at 3^c, $5 00

15 days' subsistence, $52.50 ; Lieut. Sears for "forage, $8.00
W. D. Blachford k Bros., Winnipeg—21J lbs. soleleather, at

35c, $7.44 ; 5f lbs. kip, $5.75. .! ..

Travelling expenses and transport of baggage, &c. of N.C.6
and men from Battleford to Swift Current

Express charges

$25 55; 160 lbs. bread, Win-

Cavaley School Corps.

Pay and field allowance
Meals at Quebec, $30.00

; 6 meals at Montreal," aTeOc.",' $3.0o!".'.
6 meals at Ottawa, at 50c, $3.00 ; 50 meals at Oarleton Place,

at 50c, $25.00.
\

48 meals at Mattawa, at 50c, $24.00 ;' 49 "meal's at"wi'nnipegj
at 35c, $17.15 •••... ..

2-J"

1,530 00
1,020 00

16 00

25 50
224 40

46 00
19 50

$ cts

3,877 40
210 00

87 72

4 20
1,015 00
8,794 18
2,325 33
326 77

271 28
85 96

250 55

2,566 00

249 90
615 20

65 50
14 55
63 35

*32 40
133 22
52 80
73 02

186 43
59 24
50 20
79 00

471 16

5,417 88
138 53

50 05

30 55
60 50

13 19

652 00
2 20

1,782 87
33 00

28 00

41 15
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F-xpenditube under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses anting
fePBN™ut "f troubles in the North-West Territories, ^.-Continued.

Cavalry School Corps—Continued.

48 meals at Rat Portage, at 35c, $16.80 ; 47 meals at Broad-

view, at 35c, $16.45

C Little, V.S., Winnipeg, attending mare...

Jas. Harris, V.S., attendance and medicines

F. Marwood, Touchwood, shoeing horses

Halifax Provisional Battalion.

$ cts.

Pay and field allowance ......... -

fl^MlSt^^5ffeo; 5,939 Ibs.meat.at^c,

$4.20

$ cts.

33 25
10 00

60 50
50 50

$ ctaj

1 2,039 27

8,911 09

$19.50

1,139 58

538 85

27 69
125 95
89 04*> onrku wood. $107.50 ; 1,845 lbs. hay, $18.45....

?965 lbs oats at 80c per bushel, $69.54 ;
cartage, $L».dui o» 3

ifpairs
9

overails,$25.00
P

;
lumber, $18.75; 1 saw, $3.50 47 5

Stationery, $1.00 ; 6 axe handles, $2.10

130 00

40 00
17 00
51 85

J
* \ Padfic^efr

P
an
g
gTs, $90 00 ; 1 cooking range, $40 00

? Union cookiDg Jove? $34.00 ; 1 box stove, guardroom

$6.00
:

1 20-leet smoke chimney ...•••
."uUr'iTfifln"'

Stove pipe, boilers, &o, *35.86 ; 32 hours' labor, $16.00....

H. Shorey & Co., Mcntreal-350 wool tuques, at $7.50 per dcz.

Tweed & Ewart, Medicine Hat-

ra&s&^^&=~-~
IS8DCy

eo
H
n'fca

S
8

t

e
a
S^tru

X
mTn tS and medicine chest

15 per cent, departmental expenses

44 72

25 25

1,971 46

238 85

218 75

Dempsey Bros , Medicine Hat, 1,083 Ids. m^at, at 13c

J C. Colter, Medicine Hat, 2,296 lbs. bread, at 4c;••••—;j-jj:"

744 meals, at 35c, $260 40, Winnipeg ;
343 meals, at 35c, $120.05,

348me^ S
r

oSQue;$^
24i yds. sheeting, at 38c, for targets, Moose Jaw

200 ft. lumber for targets. Moose Jaw .--in •;;

n 05 ; °coffin, $16.18 ;
target, $3.40....

Adverting, $3; postage, $10; cartage, $32

Winnipeg Field Battery.

69 97

232 39
234 39

91 84

380 45
97 25
9 22

5 60
51 63

14 13
16 40

45 00

Pay and allowances.. .-.••• •••

Kit allowanc , 32 men, at $13.95.. "'""I"
Less—Supplies at Prince Albert.

I: O.Kp^^^^
J M Campbell, Prince Albert, 13 doz. eggs

H. McDongall, Prince Albert, baking

Prince Albert limes, printing .. ... •••»

J. Sinclair, Prince A.bert, altering uniforms

J L. Johnson, Prince Albert, scythe and stone..-

B. H. Bra naber, Prince Albert, metering boots.

J. Gunn, lead harness lor gun •-

'fait, Prince Albert, hhv of buckboard ...

446 40
197 46

W.
A. Stackhouse, Princ, Albert, extracting teeth.

3,302 73

248 94
27 00
26 60
3 25
4 00
5 00

67 55
3 25
2 00
5 00

2 00

5 Q\j

12,588 42

2*
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.Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of troubles m the North- West Territories, &c—Continued.

Winnipeg Field Batteuy— Concluded.

postage, $4

J. Panl, ferry st Ba oche ..,

Tea, $165; bath buck, 40c
Reward for finding horse...,
Teaming, $5; drugs, $2 25 !."."."».".".".".".".*.".

...... '.'.'.'.['.

Blacksmith's work and repairs I
Washbasin, 75c.

;
goggles, $12.50 '.,....

"".'„'. .'."""

J. B. Millikin, Qu' a ppelle, 1 doz. bridle reins. $9 ; 2 hoistersVii'
E. Burling, Winnipeg, lu halter br dies, $25 ; harness fittnge',

$33 02
A. Schmidt, Winnipeg, 4 limber keys .""....".'.""!

Meals for 45 men, 3 days, at 60c. per day ...'.'..'...".'...!!".'

"""

C. P. R. Dining Room, Winnipeg, 47 meals '..*.. '.SZi
J. Hoie, Winnipeg, 6 camp beds ...'.'... "..7".

J. Stevens & Sons, 1 veterinary case ..'..',

Drugs at Winnipeg
G. Stractun, 15 yds. veiling
M. Kea<hiH, cartage
Surgeon Uodd, travelling expenses

$ cts,

York and Simcoe Battalion.

Pay and allowances
,

Expenses calling out troops .'."""*]

W. H. Henback, Touchwood, 1,175 lbs. b7er,"aVl7c"!
J. Harris, V.S

, Moosomin, medicines for horses.
O. P. R. Dining Rooms, Winnipeg, 351 meals, at 35c
J. Heggarty, Ignace, 355 meal3, at 35c
Water t u Dply, Winnipeg; ^21 ; telegrams, $ J 60

der, &c, $5.50
Toronto Shoe Co., 26 pairs lace choes ......

Horse hire, $9; board, $17.9

baking pow-

Invalids' allowance, $123
; Capt. Hunter, trave.liag'expenses,

«C, $66 45

Boulton's Mounted Infantry.

Pay.
Pte. H. B. Pernn, 212 days' compensation for wound, $212 : ex-

penses to Winnipeg, $20.05
'

Pay 7 teamsters, at $7 per day '.'".„.
1...,

G. W Ludlow, board and meals .V"...///"".V"V..."."/..".T..."
P. J. Thompson, travelling expenses home .....'.".*.".'.'.[.

'.'.".V.!"!!!'

"
R. Clavering, 1 team without waggon 58 days, at £±

"*"

Field allowance, July 4-22, $110.16
; 4 months' stationery al

lowance, $16 ; allowance for horse hire, $1,021
Sanderson & JLooly, Edmonton, shoeing horse
A. Doig, Birtle—

4 candle sticks, $1 ; 3 pails, $2.55
78 spoons, $1.55 : 30 plates, $r.50 '....

John McDougall, Birtle, meals and horse feed, $115 ; inspecting
norses, iplO

Thos. Yeaudle, Birtle, blaeksmithing .'."!'...*.'..'.".'.'

'

Sheriff Adams, Birtle, meals and horse feed
.*.*."*...'.".'.*.'.'.'.".""

Thos. Gillrnan, Moosomin

—

Board, 299 meals
Board am lodging .... ..'.!.*"!! ..'.'.'.'.

Jas. S. Aylesworth, Birtle, services buying horses
Ed. Mariott, keeping 8 horses 6 days "
Dan. Smith, Prince Albert, iron w'ork for post's tethering horses
J. A. Simpson, Russell, 200 lbs. chop (sick horses) ....
George McKennith, Moosomin, 33 meals
George F. Dunn, 1 saddle, $10 ; 7 days' employment iu.'..."Z
George J. Cox, Quartermaster disbursements
J. P. Wallem-, 142 lbi beef

3 55
9 05

8 J 85
80 40

W. F. Buchanan, 36 prs. heavy Mexican spurs

$ cts.

18 90
6 05
10 00
7 25
6 90
13 25
11 00

58 02
4 00

81 00
16 45
30 00
20 50

325 80
3 75

16 75
33 60

24

17,194 72
39 25
199 75

6 00
122 85
124 25

30 10
52 00
26 95

189 45

7,834 47

232 05
3,926 09

33 15

7 50
232 00

1,147 16
7 50

12 60

125 00
20 50
41 15

1S3 25
8 00

17 50
3 75
2 50

13 65
24 00
26 80
17 04
46 80

4,3*5 44
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c— Continued.

Boulton's Mounted Infantry— Continued.

H. Hope, Shoal Lake-
Pay, 1st June to 22nd July, at 75c.

52 days' horse hire

Mrs. J. Scott—
10 days' board, 10 troopers, $1.50

18 meald and beds, 2 troopers, at 35c...

A: Hamilton, travelling expenses

Gatling Gun Brigade.

Pay account -.

Captain A. u. Howard, personal and living expenses.

Gatling Gun Company, Hartford—
2 gatling guns -

2 carriages and limbers

8 magazines
Packing 2 guns ...

Bank commission, J per cent

Alberta Mounted Rifles.

Pay account
J. Finnigan, 374 meals, at 25c

Meals at Calgary
:

«

Barrett A Lamb, meals, horse feed and hire

Trooper C. D. White, compensation for horse ,

A. C. Sparrow, Calgary, 747£ lbs. beef.

T. J. Claxton do bread

E. L. Bell, injury to a horse

Edmond Hotel, board and lodging ....

I. G. Baker & Co., Calgary, 100 shirts and drawers.

Dennis' Intelligence Corps.

Pay account
Expenses of men returning home
W. E. Chaloner, D.L.S.—

Travelling expenses
Meals and board
19 days' allowance

B. J. Saunders, travelling expenses, Troy to Ottawa.

^French's Scouts.

Pay of scouts

R. S. Cook, advance on sick pay .•••;•

Wm. Sutherland, Qu'Appelle, 1 mare, $225; 1 saddle and

bridle, $25

Battleford Rifles.

Pay and allowances •• • :v"T
Mahafify & Clinkskill, Battleford 3 yds. towelling, 60c. ;

blank

books, $5.25
Alex. Macdonald, Battleford—

100 pairs blankets
Groceries, $10.50

;
plates, &c, $37.45

Moose MountahTScouts.

Officer's hotel expenses *

Dr. W. L. Bain, professional services

Boyd & Co., Winnipeg, repairing carbine.

Stalker & Hutchinga, 1 doz. wood stirrups

$ cts.

39 00
52 00

150 00
6 30

2,500 00
560 00
300 00
10 00
4 25

35 00
42 00
19 00

577 50
47 95

$ cts.

91 00

156 30
2 50

458 25
214 00

3,374 25

9,053 77
9? 50
18 50
3b" 00
100 00

89 70
33 16
8 00
14 50
95 00

5,912 63
568 70

96 00
16 75

12,822 88
10 00

250 00

2,297 18

5 85

625 45

56 75
6 60
1 50
3 00

$ cte.

14,192 3T

4,046 fid

9,542 IS

6,594 OS

13,082 sa

2,928 48

6185

25
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.

—

Continued,

Battleford Home Guard.

Pay list- ... »
Allowance in lieu of kits, 49 at ill5

A. McDonald, Battleford, 1 cook stove, $40 ; 6 pans, $3.75...,

Mahaffy & Clinkskill, Battleford—

2£ doz. spoons, at $1, $2.50 , 6 cups, at 15c, 90c. ; knives
aDd forks, $2

1 tin, $1 50 : 8 soap, $1 ; 1 axe, $1.50 ,

Stationery, $2.45 ; nails, $1.13

Birtle Company.

Pay listand allowances

Rocky Mountain Rangers.

Pay list and allowance
TiA-relling expenses Captain Stewart and officers, Ottawa to

Fort McLeod , ,

Lieutenant Christie, travelling expenses ,

X G. Baker & Co , Fort McLeod—
3 pack saddles, $37.60 ; 346^ lbs. rope, $69.30
€ampss outfit, $105.35 ; 8,700 cartridges, &391.50

62 pair$ grey blankets, at $7, $364 ; 52 suits underclothing,

at 6
.60, $338 «

29 hats, at $6, $174; 7 rubber sheets, $17.50 ; 100 Colt's

pistol cartridges, $3.50 ,

Quail & Scott, Fort McLeod, 2 pair stretchers

J. D. fiiginbotham & Co., drugs for horses
A.B. Heney & Co., Fort McLeod—

50 gun slings, at 75c, $37.50 ; 58 do at $1, $58...

6 pairs stinups, at $2, $12 ; 11 bitte, at $1.50, $16.50.

2 halters, atJ3, $6 ; 1 linch, $3.50

€L€- King & Co., Calgary—
24 woollen blouses, at $4.50, $108 ; 18 woollen shirts, at

$3.50, $63.. .%
25 felt hats, at $3

W\ F. Ftster,M(dicine Hat, shoeing horses and repairing waggon
C P. R. Telegraph Co., telegrams —

do freight on saddlery and linen
Smiler& Claik, Fort McLet'd, shoeing, $54 ; 75 picket piris, $75
Ferriage, Fcit Kipp, May and June
dovernment telegraph, telegrams «
R. Payne, hoise shoeing -

FeriLge at Fort McLeod ,

Tweed & Ewart, Medicine Hat

—

15 Sombrero hate, $42.75 ; 12 Montana suits, canvas cloth,

51100.50

7 pahs sluis, $16 ; 10 halters, at $2.75, $27.50
49 blankets atd 15 horte blankets ,

1\\ lbs. rope, $14.30; ammunition, $36.75
2 tents, tent poles and pins
Mallet, hammer, sledge, rope and axe
Drugs, $5.40 ; caup supplies, $109.45 ; stationery, $22.30.

Winder & Co.—
82 pairs gr* y blankets, at $6, $492 ; 4 pairs white blankets,

at $7, $28
Waggon sheet, $14 ; 2 large tents, $50 ,..

6 tents and poles
Camp supplies m „

J. B. Smith & Bro., 60 pair Hudson Pay blankets, trail, at \

Learner &[Stedman, hiie of team and driver to High River.,
Transport, Fort McLeod to Calgary

$ cts.

5 40
4 00
3 58

106 80
496 85

702 00

195 00

95 50
28 60
9 50

171 00
75 00

143 fJ5

43 50

270 50
51 05
35 00
10 95

137 15

520 00
64 00
96 00
144 55

18 00

$ cts.

4,692 67
735 00
43 75

12 98

17,050 38

279 37
47 25

1,500 65
8 00
9 50

133 50

246 00
202 50
61 18

28 50
129 00
16 75
5 35
12 50
3 00

691 40

824 55
300 00
30 00
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.

—

Continued.

Rocky Mountain Rangers— Concluded.

Pullman, $15 ; cabs, $2

Hotel, $16.50; meals, $13.50 ,

Heney & Co., Ottawa—
250 ammunition belts and knife sheathes with knives

Packing

St. Albert Mounted Rifles.

Pay-list ;.v
Lieutenant St. George, travelling expenses

Bev. J. J. M. Lestaux, O.M I , St. Albert—
803 lbs. flour, at 9c, $72.27; 430 lbs. bacon, at 35c, $150.50

1,286 lbs. beef, at 20c, $257.20 ; 300 lbs. fish, at 6c, $18 ...

8brls. potatoes, at $1.50, $12; peas, $3 ; oats, $3

14J lbs. tea, at $1, $14.25 ; 15 lbs. tobacco, at 75c;, $11.25..

Ant. Ducharme, LacLaBiche, 1 sack flour

Scouts with Major Perry.

24 meals, $12; hay, &c, $3

Shoal Lake Home Guard.

D. L. Wilson, Shoal Lake, transport of arms and ammunition...

Supplies to Indians.

McDonell Bros., Gleichen, 4 lbs. tobacco, at 70c, $2.80; 2 lbs,

tea, $1

$ cts.

17 00
30 00

237 65
2 00

Scouts, Guides, Couriers, &c.

Magnus Brown, guide, Red Deer
4 Indian scouts, 88 days, at $2 ...

6 lbs. tobacco to each, at 75c

222 77
275 20
18 00
25 50

Meals and forage
Thos. Howrie, 53 days, at $5, W. L. I

Donald Sutherland, 15 days' horse hire, at $1.50

Sam. Renauld, Fort Saskatchewan

—

Pay as scouting, 77 days, at $2.50

Less—Horse, paid by Government ....

J. Steele, pay as scout, 9 days, at $2.50

John Whitford, Beaver Lake
Pay as scout, 17 days, at $3

do 64 do $5

176 00
15 00

192 50
125 00

51 00

320 00

Less—Horse, paid by Government $85 00

Rations for family, 3 months 47 58

John Henderson, Fort Saskatchewan

—

Pay as scout, 76 days, at $2.50

Less—Horse, paid by Government 180 00

Rations for family 52 26

Levasseur & Steadman, Fort McLeod, 1 horse, 2 days, as courier

Jasper Smith, High River, 49 days' horee hire, at $1.50

Smith & Chalmers, High River—
77 meals, at fcOc « •

26 days' hay for 2 horses *

780 lbs. oats « «

371 00

132 58

190 00

132 26

38 50
26 00

31 20

27

$ cts.

65 00

239 65

2,865 84
157 00

541 47
13 00

5 00

191 00
327 75
265 00
22 50

67 50
22 50

238 42

57 74
3 00
73 50

95 70

$^ [cts*

3,577 31

15 00

14 25

3 80
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.—Continued.

Scouts, Guides, Couriers, ko.— Concluded.

F. Geroche, St. Albert, 17 days' pay, at $2.50
N. Delannes do do
H. St. Amand do do ,

J. Gladu do do
G. L. H. Roudelle do do
G. Loyer, St. Albert, 17 days' courier, at $2.50
Chas. Henderson, Fort Saskatchewan

—

8 davs' scouting, at $3. 00
67 do 2.50

Less— Rations for family

.

IB. J. Collins, Fort Saskatchewan—
84 days' scouting, at $2.50 ,

Less—Horse

L. D. Mulkins, Fort Saskatchewan, 11 days' scouting, at $2.50.
^P. Nelson, Fort Saskatchewan

—

7 days' scouting, at $2.50 ,

67 do 5.00
,

Less—Horse paid by Government

J. H. Cummings, Calgary, 52 days' courier service between Cal-
gary and Edmonton, at $100 per day ,..

Pay list, couriers between Calgary and Fort McLeod
Saylers Bros., carrying despatches
M. C. Macdonald, despatches from Battleford to Lt.-Col. Otter,

3 days, at $3.50

Steele's Scouts.

Pay and allowances
,

Captain Oswald, pay for extra hazardous services
Pay of invalids
Compensation for 8 horses killed

,

Meals and board at Calgary
Horse feed and stabling at Calgary
Stationery, $67.60: cartage, $13.25
Blacksmithing, $57.50; rent, $70 ,

I. G. Baker & Co., 1 tent
T. J. Claxton, Calgary, bread
A. O. Sparrow do 747£ lb3. beef, at 12c „
T. P. McHugh, 6 cords wood
M. A. Armstrong, making 50 scarfs
Hudson Bay Co., 1 doz. scarlet sashes, $5 ; rations, $20 90
Jno. Richard, Red Deer, care of horses
R. W. McLellan, Red Deer—

132% tons hay, at $25
Rent, wood, flour, &c

Dr. H. C. Wilson, Edmonton, drugs, &c ....

Tin box, $6.50; bootjacks, $1.05
Hudson Bay Co., advance to Sergeant Stiff

Scouts with Colonel Otter.

Pay of men scouting
Hire of horses for scouts at $1 per day
D. Smith, 29 days looking for horse ...

1,262 lbs. beef at Battleford, at 17c

Escort Scouts with Captain Donnelly.

11 horsesfor Scouts
F. F. Tims, 1 horse and 2 saddles

$ cts.

24 00
167 50

191 50
66 50

210 00
60 00

17 50
335 60

352 50
125 00

336 25
31 00

$ cts.

42 50
42 50

42 50
42 SO

42 50
42 50

125 00

150 00
27 50

227 50

5,200 00
2,054 25

7 50

10 50

16,245 55
1,239 50
129 00
735 00
472 50
161 00
80 35
127 50
14 00
33 17

89 70
24 00
10 00
25 90
21 50

367 25
56 00
7 55

170 00

3,466 00
374 00
58 00

214 54

1,645 00
153 00

28
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising:

out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c— Continued.

Escort Scouts with Captain Donelly—Continued.

M. Teko, 2 saddles and 3 bridles..

Pay, 13 men, at $4 per day ...

do 2 do 64 days, at $3

Yobkt«n Company.

Pay-list *

Allowance in lieu of rations

2 pairs blankets, at $5
Medicine ••-••••

Stationery
Travellirg expenses, Major Watson
Forage cap, $2 ; trousers, $6
Overcoat, $5; boots, $6

cts.

Battle Rivbr Bridge.

Pay-list, home guard work
3,433 ft planking..., .,

760 ft. spruce logs, at 9c .,

1,540 ft. timber, at 9c
160 rails, at 5c

1 cross-cut saw ••

120 ft. poplar logs, at 6c ...

Poplar poles

110 lbs. iron spikes

3$ days with team
J. G. Oliver, 9 days superintending

5 galls coal oil, $4.50; 1 qt. vinegar, 50c.

Matches, pepper and salt

8 00
11 00

5 00
2 35

1 tape line.

Sundry Payments—No Vouchers.

Wm. Quigley, Savanne, meals
T. W. Gravely, team hire ...

H. Gisborne, sundries

Jas. Alexander, interpreter

Boss & Riddle, waggons, team3, &c
ao transporting mules ...

do do hospital stores ...

J. A. Hill, teaming ~

Wm. Hunter do .....

Jas. Ceilings do
F. K yworth, herding cattle

R. P. Corrydon, lumber, &c ...

Rott. W^son, transporting Lieutenant Weller

J. 8. Connell, slaughter ng cattle

D.Hatti^, carpenter work.

Geo. Hillmrd do
H. Goodwin, fori, &c
J. A. Mooney, carpenter work
Thos. Stevenson, services -<>....

H C. McQuarrie, 8 pairs gloves

Martin Bros , stoves, &c
J. McGregor, driving cattle

Dr. Bain, Prince Albert, fees

"W. D Barron, coffin lining

O. P. R. Telegraph Co., tel?grams «

W. J. Holmes, Moose Jaw, rent

M. Filer, house rent

J. G. Ouilleau, 9 days' use of pony
O. B. Fysh, horse shoes

29

$ cts.

55 00
949 00
192 00

346 20
84 25
10 00
10 00
3 85

8 00

19 00

37 50
153 41

68 40
169 40

8 00
6 50
7 20
7 00

16 50

17 50
45 00

7 35
4 50

556 25
12 00
25 75
84 00
250 00
160 CO
80 00
40 00
40 00
40 00
15 00
10 00
8 00
48 50
8 00

144 42
24 05
36 00
6 00
5 00
8 55

34 00
5 00
6 15

20 37
10 00
20 00
13 50
1 75

$ cts.

2,994 00

481 3C

548 26T

1,712 2S
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising

out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &o.

—

Continued.

Sundry Expenses.

Washing 4,198 pairs blankets at 8c, at Winnipeg
J. Oottinghatn, Calgary, advance for saddlery,...,

At Toronto—
7 horses, 3 days' for funerals, Lieut. Fitch and Moore
P. Burns, use of ca*t and harness, 13 days .,

Pte. Beaumont, balance of pay
Toronto Garrison Battery, coal oil..

At Kingston and Port Hope-
Telegrams, $10.97 ; livery hire, $5
Drivers and horses, funeral of Lieut. -Col. Williams.
Board of prisoners, Frontenac county gaol
McKelvey & Birch, hardware .....

J. O'Brien, cartage

At Montreal, cartage -. ....

At Quebec, Quebec and Levis ferry

North-West Mounted Police, proportion of 0. P. Ry.'s. Tele-

graph Co 's. accounts
Public Works, telegrams over Government lines

4 months' salary, P. Hourie, interpreter

Bank of Montreal, commission on Hourie's salary

Indian Consolidated Fund, 30 cords wood ..

Balances in hands ofpaymasters

—

Paymaster Alger, balance, 1st Jan
do King do

do subsequent advances
DeBellefeuille, balance, 1st Jan
Forrest (at Quebec) do ,

do subseque at advances
Peebles, balance, 1st Jan „,

do subsequent advances ,

Lieut.-Col. Jackson, balance, let Feb
Bank of Montreal, cost of telegram from Winnipeg, trans-

ferring balance
Lieut.-Col. Jackson, February advance
Major Guy, balance, 1st Feb ,

do
do
do
do
do
do

Bank of Montreal, charges on Lieut.-Col. Jackson's drafts-
Advances to Hudson Bay Co. {See accompanying state'

ment) ..

Refunds.

Balances on hand, 1st July, 1885—
Paymaster Jackson

do Guy
do Forrest
do Alger ,

Proceeds of sales of horses, supplies, &c.
Gallagher & McGregor, beef returned.. ..

Refund of advance to Capt. Peters.
Lieut. Sears, ,

Infantry School, 1 horse ...

Major Bell & J. Neilly, blacksmithing....
Hudson Bay Co., paid them in error.

Lieut. Leonard, refund for revolver issued.

Capt. Drury, balance of advance
Dr. Roddick do
Rev. Mother Superior do
Surgeon-General Bergin, Dr. Casgrain's

penses -

Dr. Sullivan, refund «
Surgeon Newburn

do Wright
Lieut. Cole
91at Battalion, pay, &c.
Yorkton Rifle Co., stoppages ,..».

travelling ex-

$ cts,

48,613 20
12,589 22

8,845 34
236 16

$ cts.

335 84
50 00

21 00
13 00
20 50
1 62

15 97
16 90
21 00
17 45
34 00
18 00
37 50

729 59

$ cts.

51 51
300 00

3 00
105 00

666 99
564 88

5,000 00
60 52
5 24

9,000 00
869 06

2,000 00
1,752 02

1 56
100,000 00
11,355 34

70,283 92
28,279 44
1,344 00
500 00
200 00
216 75
145 12
13 20
51 05

105 60
67 00

37 10
48 45
24 80
91 96
20 00
15 50

51 25

1,791

131,275 61
1,123 85

700,000 00

2,535,897 18
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Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising:

out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.

—

Concluded.

Refunds— Concluded.

Steele's Scouts, overpay to Sergeant Stiff,

Winnipeg Light Infantry, rations issued in excess......

do overdraft on account of Brigade

Major King
Major Kelly, Midland Battalion, refunds

J. P. Clarke, Clarke's Crossing, over-charge in Guy's
November voucher 182 ,

North-West Mounted Police, for transport ammunition...

Public Works Telegraph Lines, oats supplied ..........

Net expenditure to date
Less—Amount charged to Governor Gen-

eral's Warrant of 23rd Feb....

$ cts. % cts.

19 75
25 00

10 50
30 00

50
42 86
720 00

$ cts.

102,343 75

2,433,553 43

133,553 43

2,300,000 00

Expended as follows :—
By the Department of Interior - $ 2,167 50

do Militia and Defence 2,431,385 93
2,433,553 43

Lisa—Amount charged to Governor-General's Warrant 133,553 43

$2,300,000 00

J. L. McDOUGALL,
Auditor-General,

31
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000, to defray*

expenses and losses arising out of troubles in the North-West Territories.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY'S SUPPLIES.

Staff and Officers.

From Winnipeg, for Troy—

$ cts. $ cts.

59 45

79 35

43 05

20 33

66 11

5 49

60 00

6 00

24 89

1,083 82

*] cts.

AtQu'Appelle—

-At Calgary

—

Unloading cars $24.00 ; storage, $15 00 39 00
4 05

At P;^ nee Albert

—

Stationery, $17 43 ; broom, 40e
1 call coal oil, $2.00 : matches, 50c ••

17 83
2 50

AtEdmonton—
6 30

11 25
1 60
3 50
2 25

12 00
6 50
4 75
4 10

3 00
9 00

18 do fruits - ••••

Axe, $1.60; 2 an ger bits, 75c
—

9 ofllla poh.1 < il 12 00" 6 )amt)8. $10
20 lbs. soap, $5 00 ; 2 butcher knives, $1-50

3 pairs butts, 75c. ; 26 paces glass, $4.00

Nails, $3.10 ; twine, $1.00

Pins, $1.50 ; cotton, $1.50
Cleaning sheds for stores «

Hospital and Medical Service.

Wiotn Winnipeg, for Moose Jaw—
ft tHq oilcloth ^ 17 • 24- Ihq varn. $2 32

268 2»

At Prince Albert

—

30 galls lime iuice at $2 00 «

_At Cumberland, for Steamer '« Alberta"—
*>ftft lha iop $5 00* 20 lbs fish $100

At Qu'Appelle—
1 69
3 80
3 05
3 60
1 10

5 55
3 10

90
2 10

1ft lhsj hntmr SK2 DO • 4 hfttt.lpQ nirkpla. $1 80

20 lbs soda biscuits $2 00 • 1 tin syrup, $1.60

4 tins mustard, 80c. ; 1 bottle vinegar, 30c ~

21 lbs bacon $3 15 • 12 lbs. cheese, $2.40
6 tumblers $2 40 2 wash basins, 70c

6towels, $1.50 j toilet soap, 60c

A.t Edmonton-
Lumber, $255.93 ; shingles, $6 25 -

Building paper, $16.44 ; laths, 60c
n«.rnf»Titpr's work ^378 10 • nail a $17 00

262 18
17 04

395 10

2 90
3 20
8 35

11 70
89 00
249 25
14 60
11 10
4 25
4 80
2 35
8 00

Screws, $2.65 : chalk aud chalk line, 25c »

Lock and bolts, $2.50 ; latch and hinges, 70c y ..

Glase, $6.00 ; thread and twine, $2.35
30 yds Hessian $6 60 : 17 yds. duck, $5.10
46 yds cotton, $5 00 ; 12 pairs blankets, $84.00
Drugs, $240 25 ; 6 bottles chlorodyne, $9 «
28$ lbs. butter, $11.40

;
provisions, $3.20

Kettles, pots and pans, $10.10 ; 2 brooms, $1.00

Cups and saucers $3 25 : 100 lb?, bran, $1 00 ,

6 towels, $3; tar soap, $1.80...

Cleaning boat shed tor hospital

General Supplies.

,At Winnipeg, for Moose Jaw, &c.

—

3,123 75
1 1,116 97

1,180 20

20,063 lbs. biscuit, at 5&c, $1,103.47 ; 180 bags salt, $13.50
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES—Continued.

SU

General Supplies—Continued.

1,054 lb3. tea, at 35c, $368.90
;
10 kegs syrup, $20.00

2,200 lbs. sugar, at 9Jc, $203.50 ; 35 lbs. pepper, $8.75 ..

34£g bush, beans, at $1.75, $61.16 ; 1,499 lbs. apples, at
7£c , $112.43

10 sacks oatmeal, $35 10 ; 17 sacks, $4. 25
249 boxes and barrels „ ...

150 pairs blankets, at $2.80

At Qu'ippelle, 656 lbs. bacon, at 14c, $91.84; 1 doz. sacks,
$3.75

At Prince Albert

—

2,098 lbs. tea, at 75c, $1,573.50 ; 10,870 lbs. sugar, at 25c,
$2,717.50

Salt, 560 lbs., at 12jc ; 280 lbs., at 12c
100 lbs. evaporated apples, $40; 10 cords wood
Soap, 300 1b3.,at 18c; 120 lbs., at 20c '.

1 doz. axe handles, $5 ; 1 sheath and belt, $1.05
6 knives, $5.70; 2 hammers, $3.90

$30.

At Saskatchewan—
5 doz. canned meat, $36; 2\ doz. canned fruit, $18
6 lbs. tea, $4.50; 15 lbs. sugar, $3.75
2 lbs. coffee, $1 ; 36 loaves bread, $4.50

12 lbs. butter, $4.80 ; 1 month's rent of warehouse, $10

At Edmonton

—

18,618 lbs. bacon, at 25c, $4,654.50; 6,915 lbs. corn beef,
at 30c, $2, 074. 50

Jlour, 284 bags, at $7, $1,988; 79 bags, at $6, $474
1,884 lbs. tea, at 65c, $1,224.60; 28,382 lbs. chop feed, at

i$c, $425.72 .....;. :....

Sugar, 6,750 lbs., at 25c, $1,687.50 ; 730 lbs. beans, at 15c,
$109.60...

432 lbs. yeast powder, at 70c, $302.40 ; 4 doz. baking
powder, at $7.20, $28.80

20 lbs. coffee, $10; 455 lbs. dried apples, at 20c, $91....
200 lbs. catmeal, $20 ; 1,728 lbs. potatoes, at l£c, $25.92

1,960 lbs. salt, at 7c ,$137. 20; 2 brls. salt, $30
4 (lbs. pepper, at 50c, $20 ; 50 lbs. oats, at 3c, $1.50...,
21 galls, coal oil, $21 ; 30 lbs. candles, at 35c, $10.50 ...

Soap, 20 lbs., at 25c, $5; 11 lbs., at 30c
,
$3.30

Axle grease, 96 boxes, at 30c ; 32 boxes, at 35c ~.
2 office desks, $20 ; 1 pair desk handles, 40c ...„
1 horse blanket, $6; 3 saddle blankets, $6.75 ,,...

3 surcingles, $5.25 ; 3 h»y forks, $3
625 seamless bags, $245; 579 sacks, $86.85

2 tents, $60; 1 reindeer skin, $4 ,

83 lbs. rope, $20.75; 6 tin kettles, $8.30....

21^ yards flannel, $10.75; 80 yards duck, $24
10 do print, 1.50; 2 do Turkey red, 60c
2 do white cotton, 50c ; wool and braid, $150
1 duck suit, $3 ; darning needles and twine, 37c
2 axes, $3.50; 3 butcher knives, $2.75
3 files, $1; 2 rasps, $2

Nails and screws, $2.65
;
packing case, 25c -.

Hinges, 25c ; 253 lb3. lead, at 10c, $25. 30
150 lbs. gunpowder, at 70c

$ cts.

388 90
212 25

173 59
39 35
124 50
420 00

At Calgary

—

12,301$ lbs. bacon, at 15c ,$1,845.23 ; 600 lbs. beef, at 18c,
$108 !

54 tins eorn beef, at 50c, $27; 991 tins meat, at 25c,
$247.75

1 doz. tins brawn, $6.00; \ doz. tins ox tongues, $5.10
4,740 lbs. biscuit, at 12Ac, $592.50; 3,927* lbs. beans, at

8c., $314.20....

4,291 00
103 60
70 00
78 00
6 05
9 60

54 00
8 25
5 50

44 80

6,729 00
2,462 00

1,650 32

1,797 00

331 20
101 00
45 92
167 20
21 50
31 50
8 30

40 00
20 40
12 75

8 25
331 85
64 00
29 05
34 75

2 10
2 00
3 37
6 25
3 00
2 90
25 55
105 00

1,953 23

274 75

11 10

906 70

$ cts

5,599 31

95 59

4,558 25

112 55

14,036 16

$ cts.

50—3



49 Victoria. {Sessional Tapers (No. 50.) A. 1886

Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray

expenses, &c—Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES— Continued.

General Supplies—Continued.

At
Breid7vi9i lbs.,' at 4c, $84.78; 3,514 lbs., at 9fe, $122.99

823* lbs. cheese, at 25c, $205.69; 975| lbs. rice, at 10c,

$97 58 •••• •

Potatoes, 8,525 lbs , at go., $213.14 ;
759 lbs., at 2c, $15.18

Tea, 112 lbs., at 65c, $72.80; l,768flb 8 ., at 50c
,
$884.17

Sugar, 4,630^ lbs., at 15c, $694.53; 499| lbs., at 12$c,

3451 lbs. coffee," at"50c.",' $172.55; 1,856 lbs. flour, at 3c,

1921 lbs. barley* $19.25 ; 362 \ lbs. oatmeal, at 6c, $21.73..

67t! lbs. salt, 5 5o., W\n ; o7J lbs pepper at 50c. $28 75

106 lbs. baking powder, at 50c, $53 ;
325 lbs. butter, at

40c, $130 ;••• ••""'"•

121 quarts molasses, $1.21 ; 40 lbs. wine biscuits, $8

6 lbs. fresh pork, $1.20; 1 can apples, 75c...........

1 box exfcact coffee, 75c ; 1 box extract meat, 75c. .......

7 bottles pickles, $5.25; 14 bottles Worcester sauce, $7.

61 doz. canned fruit and vegetables, $24.20
; \ doz. jelly, $3

406 lbs. candles, at 35c. ,
$142. 1 1 ; 46 J gross matches, $46.50

Soap, 27 boxes, at $6, $162 ; 719 lbs., at 10c
,
$71.90

2 lbs. Castile soap, 40c ; 1 lb. mustard, 75c......

3 quarts sweet oil, $3.50 ; 4 bottles salad oil, $3

1 uoz. lime juice, $12; 28 lbs. tobacco, $28

2 do briar pipes, $21 ; 4 buffalo robes, $48

242 seamless sacks

Overcoats, 5, at $11 ; 12, at $9

1 field glass, $20 ;
40 towels, $16

Eelt hats, 28, at $2.50; 11, at $2
4'2 pairs serge trousers, at $4, $168 ; 12 duck suits, $120

Riding trousers, 5 pairs, at $9 ; 15 pairs, at $7

2 suits overalls, $25 ; 1 pair overall trousers, $1.50

6 suits underclothing, $24 ; 21 duck coats, at $8, $168

Socks, 2 pairs, at $1 ; 15 pairs, at 50c... ..............

Gloves, 35 pairs, at $2.50, $87 50 ; 15 pairs, at $3, $45 ......

do 2 pairs, at $2, $4 ; riding boots, 3 pairs, at $7.50,

$22.50 •

Riding boots, i pair, at $7 ; 5 pairs, at $6, $30 .......

do 18 pairs, at $5.75, $103.50 ; 31 pairs, at $5,

Blankets/ 16pai'rg," at'$T6', $160 ; 27 pairs, at $8, $216

2 shirts, $5 ; 6 scarlet belts, $1.50 <

28 yds. scarlet merino, $28 ; 9& yds. canvas, $2.33 .....

26 do cotton, $3.35; needles and thread, 80c; tape line

qt2 75

372 oart covers'/ at $3.75, $1,395; 40 doz. axle grease, $80..

Coal oil, 15 galls., at 70c, $10.50 ; 5 galls., at 60c, $3

Wicks, 36c; 10 chimneys, $1 50; oil can, $1

Lanterns, 4, at $1, $4; 15, at 75c, $11.25

6 lantern globes, $2.10; 2 lamps. $4....

3 large tents, $75; 1 small tent, $18

8 do flags. $16; 8 do flags, $10

1 set scales, $15 ;
30 water flasks, $30

6 bridles, $12 ; 3 rifle covers, $4 50

5 rifle slings, $3.75 ; 2 linches, $2
Towels, 30, at $1, $30 ; 2, at 75c, $1.50

Rope, 336 lbs., at 15c, $50 10 ; 480 lbs., at 20c, $96

Paint, oil and brushes -

:i"«mka
1 gall, rangoon oil, $4; £ doz. castor oil, $1.50

3 doz. knives and forks, $7.50 ; 13 doz. spoons, $6.50. ..

71 do plates, $7.50 ; 9$ doz. cups, $14 25^

do glass-coated plates, basins and saucers

22 frying pans, $11 ; 7 tin pails, $5 25

16 can-openers, $4; 1 doz. blacking, $1.75....... ...............

«

3 blacking brushes, $1.50 ; 5 galls, neatsfoot oil, $12.50...

3 brooms, $1.50 } 20 butcher knives, $10 ""••",

$ cts.

207 77

303 27
223 32

956 97

756 93

228 23
40 98
62 47

183 00
9 21

1 95
1 50

12 25
27 20
188 61
233 90

1 15
6 50
40 00
69 00
100 40
163 00
36 00
92 00
288 00
150 00
26 50
192 00
9 50

132 50

26 50
37 00

258 50
376 00
6 50
30 33

6 90
1,475 00

13 50
2 86
15 25

6 10
93 00
26 00
45 00
16 50
5 75

31 50
146 40
23 30
5 50
14 00
21 75
4 50
16 25
5 75
14 00
11 50

$ cts. $ <&u



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No, 50.) A. 188$

Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON B1Y COMPANY SUPPLIES—Continued.

General Supplies—Concluded.

At Calgary-
Towelling, 75c; window glass and putty, 95c ,

3 pudding dishes, $2.75; 3 bsKe pans, $1 05.. ,

1 tea pot, $2 ; coffee pot, $1.50; tin kettle, $1.50
1 steel, 50c. ; 1 dipper, 25c. ; 6 bathbricks, 75c
1 camp stove, pipes and elbows

,

1 lock and key, $2.50 ; curry comb and brush, $1.15....
Lampblack, 40c. ; twine, 20c. ; nails and tacks, $3.64.
12 axe bandies, $4.20 ; 12 spades, $15
2 shingling axes, $2 ; 3 saws, $5
3 screwdrivers, $1.80 ; 2 hammers, $2.25
2 braces and bits, $6 50

; 2 augers, $2.75
1 doz. files, $2.25 ; 3 chisels, $2
1 draw knife, $1 ; 1 hatchet, $1.25

,

2 scythe stones, 30c. ; 2 lbs. iron, 20c,
1 meat saw, $2.25; 200 rounds ammunition, $6

Stationery

9th Battalion.

At Winnipeg

—

271 lbs. barley, at 4£c, $3.02 ; 144 lbs. cheese, at 16c,
$23.04 ! |

18 do tea, at 35c, $6 30 ; 144 lbs. sugar, at 9ic, £\S!i%".
36 do salt, 72c; 2 lbs. pepper, 51c
24 do coffee, at 35c, $8 40 ; 5 galls, oil, $2

"

1 oil can, 85c ; 6 lbs. candles, $1.26
1 doz. lamp wicks

10th Grenadiers.

At Prince Albert—
£ doz. Worcester sauce, $3 ; 4 bottles pickles, $3

10 lbs. biscuits, S3
; 12 tins marmalade, $6

5 galls, syrup, $12.50
; 12 tins lemon sugar, $6.60

12 tins jam, $6 ; 2 tins egg plums, $1.20 .—
25 galls, lime juice, $50 ; 60 lbs. lard, at 75c, $45
6 bottles Eno's fruit salt, $7.50 : 1 bottle essence oranee,

80c
&}

scrubbing brush, 60c.
lb. black paint, 60c

Hinges, 15c; cartage, $3.25

1 snaffle bridle, $2.90
padlock, 5Dc

At Winnipeg

—

15$ lbs. barley, at 4£c, 66c ; 31 lbs. cheese, at 16c, $4.96.
31 do tea. at 35c, $1.36 ; 31 lbs. sugar, at9£c, $2.87....

do coffee, at 35c, $1.81 ; salt, 16c
;
pepper, lie

3

4
65th Battalion.

At Edmonton

—

2 sacks flour, $12 ; 10 lbs. butter, $4
lbs. cheese, $7.20 ; 20 lbs. tea, $13.60
do chewing tobacco, $9 ; 10 lbs. oatmeal, $1
pairs trousers, $23 ; 20 pairs gambroon pants, $55. ..

flannel shirts, $40 ; 4 pairs drawers, $6
pairs knee boots, at $4.50, $175.50 ; 42 pairs socks, at

65c, $27.30 '.
.

yards cotton, $3.75 ; 2 kettles, $2.90
"'." '.'".'.

1 buck saw, $1.25 ; 1 frying pan, $1
5 galls, coal oil, $5 ; 1 water barrel, $7
2 wash basins, $2 ; 40 lbs. castile soap, $12
1 doz. knives and forks, $2.50

; $ doz. teaspoons, $1.80..
£ do tin cups, $1.20

; £ doz. earthenware plates, $1.20.
39 boxes blacking, $9.75 ; 1 broom, 50c ... .....

35
50—3J

24
15

5
20
39

33

$ CtS.
! $ ctS,

1 70
3 80
5 00
1 50
9 65
3 65
4 24
19 20
7 00
4 05
9 25
4 25

2 25
50

8 25
13 05

26 06
19 62
1 23

10 40
2 11

24

6 00
9 CO
19 10

7 20
95 00

8 30
3 50
1 10
3 40

5 62
4 23
2 08

16 00
20 80
10 00
78 00
46 00

202 80
6 65
2 25

12 00
14 00
4 30
2 40

10 25

10,727 37

$ ctg^

35,129 23

152 60

11 93

59 66

164 53



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 188§

Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray

expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SXJPPLIKS-Continued.

65th Battalion—Concluded.

J& Edmonton

—

7 lbs. Dails, $1 05 ; stationery, $10 50

1 bottle horse liniment,

.At Fort Cumberland, 110 lbs. lump sugar, at 25c

At Grand Rapids—
18 lbs. nails, $2.70 ; 2 brooms, $1

\ gross maiches

90th Battalion.

At Prince Albert, 180 lbs. Myrtle Navy tobacco, at $1

91 st Battalion.

AtQu'Appelle—
$8.07

lbs. tea, at 45c, $18.17 ; 80| lbs. sugar, at 10c

do salt, 60c. ; lj lbs. pepper, 63c ••.••

do beans, at 8c, $6 46 ; 60£ lbs. apples, at 14c, $3.48

do bread, at 7$c, $72.67 ;
616 lbs. potatoes, at 2£c

$16.15
cord wood, $4 ; 1 doz. clothes lines, $3

axe handles, $4.20 : 6 lbs. nails

$ cts.

11 55
75

3 70

1 50

36c

26 24
1 23

14 94

7 00
4 56

At Winnipeg, 1 ration of groceries >

"A" and "B" Batteries.

At Prince Albert—
60 lbs. lard, $22. 50; 54 lbs. tobacco, $a4

Jumpers, 18, at $2 ; 88, at $1.10 ...... • ;•••

Overalls, 8a pairs, at $1.50 ; 12 pairs, at $1.30 ; 9 pairs, at

ag
l ,10

6 lbs. chocolate, $5^6 ; 44 lbs. rope, $15.40

4 doz. buckets, $3.70; 4 doz rivets, 60c

At Qu' Appelle—
6 bush, oats, at 90c

3 do $1.12 (for Touchwood).

76 50
132 bO

159 00
20 80
4 30

5 40
3 36

At Saskatchewan— _, „ , x _„ __

7,368 lbs. beef, at 17c, $1,252.56 ; 1,197J lbs. beans, at $8.36

$100.09.... ••- ;;-
862^ lbs. sugar, at $15.29, $131.87; 145* lbs. tea, at 44c.

:

$63.97
9 lbs. salt, 57c ; 23 lbs. pepper, $9 54 ~.«.

18A lbs. coffee, at $20.68, $3.84; 43^1 lbs. do at 55c, $24.09

105 lbs. candles, $27.14 ; 33 {% Ids. apples, at $5.09

10 do oatmeal, $1.65 ; 10 lbs. soda biscuits, $1.50

21 do flour, $1.57 ; 606 lbs. potatoes, $10.10

600 do iee, $3 ; 13 cords wood, $39

4 loads hay, $30 ; 1 gross matches, $1.20

24 lbs. coarse salt, $3. ! 2 ; 25 sponges, $19 25

14 do Russet leather, $9.80 ; 3£ M lumber, $131.25

500 ft. scantling, $18.75 ; 1 keg nails, $9 75

Riding boots, 2 pairs at $9.25; 1 pair at $8.75

do 3 do 8.00; 6 do 6.50

do 1 do 6.75

Lumber, $17. 50 ;
scantling, $5.50

1 double waggon, $150 ; 1 sett double harness, $65

2 bush, charcoal, $1.10 : Btovepipes, $2 55

10 lbs. horseshoe nails, $5 ; 10 lbs. tallow, $2.50

l^ton hay, $8 21 ; l£gal. sweet oil, $5.76

25 curry combs and brashes

24 mane combs, $7.20 ; 25 water brushes, $25

25 nose bags, at $1.75, $43.75j 2 lanterns, $1.80

36

1,352 65

195 84
10 U
27 93
32 23
3 15

11 67
42 00

31 20
22 37
141 05
28 50
27 25
63 00
6 75

23 00

215 00
3 65

7 50
13 96
45 00

32 20

45 55

$ Cts.

437 75

27 50

5 20

$ cts.

470 45

180 Qfr

142 79

45 00
143 24

393 40

8 76



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 18SG

.Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray

expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES— Continued.

A " and " B " Battheies— Concluded.

10 lbs. beeswax, $12 ; 10 chain burnishers, $10

Ink, $1 ; cotton, 60c.
;
pipe clay, $1.50

12 boxes axle grease, $3 ; tools and nails, $10.49

Materials for repairs to harness-

Cups, pitchers, &c, $5.90 ;
brooms, pails, &c, $3.50.

Cavalry School Corps.

AtQu'Appelle

—

1,204$ lbs. beef, at 20c, $240.90; 1,181$ lbs. bread, at 10c

$118.15 ••

85 lbs. bread, at 7$c., $6.37 ; 226$ lbs. biscuit, at 12c. $27.18

Tea, 58tV lbs., at 60c, $34.83 ; 4$£ lb*, do at 45c, $4.22...

Sugar, 116$ lbs., at 15c, $17.42: 9$ lbs., at 10c, 99c ,

Apples, 88U lbs., at 16c, $14.19 ; 2$ lbs., at 14c, 35c

67 lbs. potatoes, at l$c, $1.67 ; 17f lbs. beans, at 8c, $1.39

Salt and pepper, 14c. ; 30 lbs. soap, $4.50

5 galls, coal oil, at 75c, $375 ; 6 lanterns, $5.10

10$ cords wood

Governor General's Body Guard.

AtQu'Appelle—
116 lbs. bread, $11.60 ; 116 lbs. beef, $23.20

7$ do tea, at 60c, $435 ; 14$ lbs. sugar, $2.17 „..

Halifax Battalion.

'At Winnipeg—
164^ lb*, barley, at 4£c. $6.99 ; 328$ lbs. cheese, at 16c

$52.54

41xV lbs tea, at 35c, $14.37 ; 328$ lbs. sugar, at9$c, $30.37

82 lbs. salt, $1.64; 4| lbs. pepper, $1.15

54f lbs. coffee, at 35c

Midland Battalion.

At Grand Rapids, 6 pairs brogan boots, at $2.25

Montreal Garrison Artillery.

At Winnipeg—
24$ lbs. cheese, at 16c, $3. 92 ; 3$ lbs. tea, at 35c, $1.13....

6$ do salt, 12c ; 4f lbs coffee, at 35c, $1.54

Pepper, 10c ; 13 lbs barley, at 4ic, 55c

26$ lbs. sugar, at 9$c «~

Queen's Own Rifles.

At Winnipeg, 16& lbs. barley, at 4$c. 70c. ; 33$ lbs. cheese, at

16c, $5.30
4$- lbs. tea, at 35c, $1 46 ; 33$ lbs. sugar, at 9£c, $3.06....

Salt and pepper, 29c ; 5$ lbs. coffee, at 25c, $1.93

Winnipeg Light Infantry.
At Edmonton—

1,000 ft. lumber, $25 ; 2 water barrels, $15
38 pairs Shetland pants, at $1 .85, $70.30 ; 38 pairs under

shirts, at $1.25, $47.50

122$ lbs. barley, at 4$c, $7.55 ; 355$ lbs. cheese, at 16c

$56.82

28| do tea, at 35c $10.04 ; 355$ lbs. sugar, at 9£c, $33.84

89 do salt, $1.78; 3 lbs. pepper, 76c

37$ do coffee, at 35c, $13.12; 40 lbs. biscuits, at 5$c,

$2.20

If doz. corn beef, at $3.75, $6.25 j 10 lbs. candles, $2.10

3*7

$ cts.

22 00
3 10

13 49
4 09
9 40

359 95
33 55
37 05
18 41

14 54
3 06
4 64
8 85

42 00

34 80
6 52

59 53
44 74

2 79

19 16

5 05
1 66
65

2 44

6 00
4 52
2 22

40 00

117 80

64 37
42 88
2 54

15 32
8 35

$ cts.

2,433 64

$ cts.

2,835 80

521 IS

41 32

126 22

13 50

9 80

12 74

291 2S



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1886

Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c— Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES— Continued.

Winnipeg Troop of Cavalry.

At Winnipeg—
3£ lbs. barley, at 4|c, 14c. ; 6£ lbs. cheese, at 16c. $1.02...
Tea, 27c.

; sugar, 21c. ; coffee, 37c. ; salt and pepper, 5c. ...

Winnipeg Field Battery.

At Prince Albert-
Sundry supplies to men
575 lbs. beef, at 17c

, $97.75 ; 100 lbs. bacon, $30
12 bags flour, at $8 50, $102 ; 15 lbs. soap, $2.70
3 lbs mustard, $3.60; 40 lbs. candles, $20
2 do pepper, $1.25; 2 kegs syrup, $25
36 do tobacco, $27 ; 2 boxes wood matches, $1
6 boxes wax matches, $2.22 ; 8 straw hats, $2
2£ cords wood, $7-50

; 1 doz. axle grease, $3
6 whip lashes

At Winnipeg-
Drugs and medical supplies
Biding boots, 6 pairs, at $5.25, $31.50; 2 pairs, at $4.25,

$8.50
8 kegs battery powder, $40 ; 26 black rubber sheets, $2.20,

$57.20 •

3 doz. surcingles, at $14 25, $42.75 ; 20 yds. cod line, 35c.
4 pickaxes, $4.25; 2 wr' nches
2 pairs farriers pincers, $1 50

; £ doz. gimlets, 38c
4 axes, $3.84; 8 spades, $7.76
3 nail hammers, $1.65 ; 1 hand hammer, 90c
4 boxes axle grease, 50c. ; 1 qt. machine oil, 50c
40 lbs. castor oil, $5.20; 2 jack screws, $12 :

4 hand screws, $6 ;
60 lbs. lixel rope, at 9c, $5 40

63 lbs. manilla rope, $8.19 ; 32 lbs. cotton rope, §8
2 augers, $2.80; 4 lbs. nails, 20c
4 bed cords, $1.20 ; 12 sheet-iron kettles, $5.20
4 frying pane, $1.30; 2 butchers' knives, 70c
2 doz. granite plates, $4.32; 2 doz. cups, $1.50

York and Simcob Battalion.

.At Qu'Appelle—
88 lbs. bread, $8.80 ; 88 lbs. meat, $17.60
88 do potatoes, $2.20; 16£ lbs. apples, $2.64
11 do sugar, $1.66; 11 oz9. salt, 4c
5£ do tea, $3.30; pepper, 10c
Screwdriver, 50c. ; cold chisel, 50c
Hammer, $1 ; 15 lbs. Dails, 75c
21 yds. sheeting, $1.25 ; 6 yds. cotton, $1.20...

$ cts.

1 16

90

197 46
127 75

104 70
23 60
26 25
28 00
4 22
10 50
2 40

At Winnipeg

—

43£ lbs. barley, at 4£c. $1.87 ; 87£ lbs. cheese, at 16c, $14,
11 do tea, at 35c, $3 84 ; 87£ lbs. sugar, at 9^c, $b.09...
Salt, 43c

;
pepper, 30c ; 14| lbs. coffee, at 35c, $5.12

Supplied to Indians.

At Edmonton

—

44 lbs. bacon., at 25c, $11 ; 75 lbs. flour, at 6c, $4.50 ....

2 cans corn beef, $1.20; £ lb. baking powder, 35c.
210 lbs. oats, $3, $6.30; 8 lbs. tea, at 65c, $5.20
26 do sugar, at 20c, $6.20 ; 56 lbs. potatoes, at ljc, 84c
16 do tobacco, at 75c, $12 ; 6 bunches matches, 12c
1 tin pan, 60c ; 4 slates, 50c

38

110 46

40 00

97 20
43 10

5 25
1 88

11 60
2 55
1 00

17 20
11 40
16 19
3 00
6 40
2 00
5 82

26 40
4 84
1 70
3 40
I 00
1 75
2 45

15 87
11 93
5 85

15 50
1 55

11 50
6 04

12 12

1 10

$ cts.

524 88

$ cts.

2 06

375 05

41 54

33 65

899193

75!1*

47 81
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray

expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES—Continued.

Alberta Mounted Rifles.

At Edmonton—
35 yds. duck, at 25c, $8 75; twine, $1 ....-•••••• •

5 lbs. butter, $2 : 4f lbs. cheese, at 30c, $1.43 ..

4f do chewing tobacco, at 60c ..«• ••

Boulton's Mounted Infantry.

M
^^Bafbacon, at 14c, $29.40 ; 167 lb", biscuit, at 12c, $20.04

13 do bread, $130 ; 16 lbs. ham, $4=...= •;••'•-—
1 caddie M. N. tobacco, $12 ; 2 snaffle bridles, $5

1 Pelbam bridle, $6.50 ; 1 common bridle, $1.50

2 wool jackets, $12 ; 2 waterproof sheets, $11

11 pairs stirrup irons, *8. 80 ; 5 pairs jack straps, $9

1 cow-bell, 75c ; 1 butcher knife, 50c

£ gross pain killer

$ cts

9 75
3 43
2 85

At Prince Albert— __
1 caddie tobacco, $18 ; 12 pairs blankets, $108

2 yds stroud. $1.50; stationery, $1.25

Auger, $1 ; nails, 30c ;
hinges, 30c

Dennis' Intelligence Corps.

At Prince Albert, 6 yds. red flannel, at 55c

28
12
15

39
1

49 44
5 30
17 00
8 00
23 00
17 80
1 25

21 60

126 00
5 75
1 60

Edmonton Volunteer Company.

At »»«**£-
ftt 65c 323.60 .

lf 087f lbs flour, at 9c, $93 37

188A do sugar, at 20c, $37.74 ;
97o§ lbs. potatoes, at ljc-

flElO 1Q ,

do coffee,' at McT$i4.02 ;'62f lbs. rice, at 20c, $12 57

do biscuit, at 15c
:
$1 80; 8 lbs. apples, at 25c, $2..

do bacon, at 25c, $3.75 ; 5 cans corn beef, at 65c.

$3.25 • ••••••;

do yeast powder, 17c
; £ lb. baking powder, 35c

do salt, at 8c
,
$3.12 ; 1$ lbs. pepper, at 40c, 64c...

do mustard, 90c ; 1 lb. corn starch, 25c

3 tins lunch tongue, $2.40; 1 can ham, 25c

2 lbs. raisins, 50c ;
2 bottles essence lemon, $1 ............

83 do oats, at 4c, $3.32 ; 305 lbs. chopped feed, at l£c,

$4 58 -

Spikes and nails, $28.25 ;
lumber $308.75 ..... ......... ........

9* lbs. rope, at 25c, $2.38 ; 9£ yds. cotton, at 12$c, $1.20.

38 tin cups, at 25c $9 50 ; 36 tin plates, $3.60. ..••••••••••-

6 galls coal oil. $6 ; 35 lbs. gunpowder, at 75c, $26.25...

3 yds. holland, $1 05 ; 1 yd. muslin, 30c

5 do flannel, $2.50 ;
buttons 56c

Chalk Une, 20c ; coffee-pot. $1 50

1 pail, $1; I butcber knite, $1
kettles, $7.25; 10 pans, $tt.l0

spoons, $1.80; 1 granite basin. 75c

scythe stone, 20c ; 1 meat saw, $1.25

yds. duck, 60c ; 2 yds. white flannel, $1.20

3$ do girthing, 63c ; thread, 15c

Files, $1 50; 1 auger, $1 ; nails, 19c

1 lb. candles, 40c ; 4 towels, 60e »»

2 cakes soap, 25c ; 1 looking glass, 25c... -

Matches -

4
12
1
2

Moose Mountain Scouts.

A Qn'Appelle, Medicines $18.75 ; 4 axe-handles, $1.40

116 87

49 87
26 59
3 80

7 00
52

3 76
1 15
2 65
1 50

7 90
337 00

3 58

13 10

32 25
1 35
3 06
1 70
2 00

13 35

2 55
1 45
1 80

68
2 69

90
50
79

$ cts. $ cts.

16 03

143 29

133 35
276 64

3 30

640 36

20 15



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1886

Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES—Continued.

Major Perry's Scouts.

Ait JEdmonton, 1,155 lbs. oats, at 3c « • .

$ cts. $ cts. $ cts«

34 65.

Steele's Scouts.

At Edmonton—
25 pairs blankets, $125 ; horse shoeing $35
Gamp supplies

160 00
42 63

1

202 63

208 78

15 00

St. Albert Rifle Co.

At Edmonton—
45 pairs blankets, at $3.50, $157.50; 50 lbs. powder, $32.50.
Shot and caps, $10 ; moulds, $1.50; seamless sacks, $7.20.

190 00
18 70

...... r«..«. ..!..

Sturgeon River Home Guard.

At Edmonton, 500 rifle cartridges *

Scouts and Couriers.

At Edmonton

—

92 lbs. flour, at 6c, $5.52 ; 131 lbs. bacon, at 25c , $32.75.
12 lbs. tea, at 65c, $7.80 ; 16 lb*, sugar, at 20c, $3.20
17 lbs. sugar, at 25c, $4 25; 2 lbs. sug«r, at 40c, 80c
9 cans corn beef, at 60c, $5.40 ; 4 cans corn beef, at 65c,
» $i.60
8 tins lunch tongue, at 80c, $6.40 ; 4 tins pigs' feet, at 65c,

38 27
11 00
5 05

8 00

9 00
3 15
1 10
1 90
5 73
3 25
1 55
3 70
2 00
2 90
19 37
7 85
1 00
2 05
20 25
4 44
1 13
6 50

200 00
?5 00

275 00
16 00

!

3 cans ham, at 35c, $1.05 ; 3 lbs. baking powder, $2.10....

1 bag salt, 40c.
;
yea&t i owder, 70c

10 lbs. biscuit, at l-*c , $1.50 ; 1 bot. coffee, 40c
Matches, $1.23; 4 kettles, $4 50
6 tea cups, $1 25; 2 tea bells, $2
Knives and forks, $1 ; 4 tin plaies, 55c
43 lbs flour, at 8c

, $3.44; pepper, 26c
1 fry pan, $1 ; 1 bread pan, $1
3 wash basins, $2 ; tin pail, 90c ..

692 lbs chop feed, at l£c, $10.37 ; 1,200 lbs. hay, $9
255 lbs. oats, at 3c, $7.65

; £ lb candles, 20c
2 cotton bags, 40c ; 6 towplg, 60c
Curry comb and bru<=h, $1.75; soap, 30c

• 20 lbs. bail, at 20c
, $1 ; 25 lbs gunpowder, at 6dc, $16. 25.

Gun caps. $1.44; 10 ibs. pitch, $3
l£ lbs. nails, 38c. : li yds flannel, 75c
1 blanket, $4.50; labor on canoes, $2..... ,

2 canoes, at $25, $50 ; horse, bridle and halter, $150
Paid L. Larocque—5 uays' courier, $25; 1 saddle, $10
F. Smith, for 2 horses lodt on courier service
Horse hire, $10 ; carrying de.-patches, $6 ,

•685 19

Transport Service.

At Winnipeg—
200 waggon covers (for Moose Jaw) , 950 00

214 35
493 15

1,657 50

227 25

869§ bush, oats, at 55c

At Qu' Appelle

—

2 months, 27 days' use of stable, at $35
5 tons loose hay, at $20
Stationery, $25

;
padlock and staples, 75c ~

101 50
10O 00
25 75

40



19 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 500 a. isse

Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,o00,000 to dofeay

expenses, &c—Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES—Concluded. ___^_^__

Transport Service—Continued.

It Prince Albert—
47 days' rent of warehouse

Stabling 3 horses, 47 days, at 25c

Teaming, $5 ;
3 bush, oats, $4-50.

1 camp kettle, $1 ; 1 tea kettle, $4.75 .........

6 tin cups an.! plates, $2.07 ; 6 granite plates, $2.40.

Nails. 75c. ; teapot, $1.60 "•••:•"•'

J pairs knives and forks, at 60c , $2 ; 2 table knives,

2 E. plate dessert forks, $2.20 ; 2 lbs. cheese, $1

2 lbs. sugar, 50c.
; $ lb. tea, 37c............ • •• •—•

12 lbs. so:a biscuits, $2.40 ; 2 lbs. frmt biscuits, 70c.

2 tins chicken, $3.75 ; 3 tins turkey, $4.50

3 tins sardines, $2.25; 2 cotton bags, 50c

6 tins jam, $3

$2.70

$ cts.

47 00
35 25
9 50
5 75
4 47

Scows, Flat Boats, &c.

At Edmonton

—

„ . „ H
Lumber, 42,888 ft., $1,435.42 ; 7 pieces, f 7.. •••;•;••••••••

1 large scow, $260 ;
material and labor for targets, $6.

125 lbs. hoop iron, $18 75 ;
ironwork, $28 63 ................

Nails, 1,800 lbs., $180 ;
347 lbs. rope, at 35c, $86.75. -.

Pitch 286 lbs., at 30c, $85.80 ; 10 galls- tar, $30
^ -.«. a>*A Af\. ;™« 2 lbS., 40C

186 lbs. oakum, at 40c, $74.40 ;
iron,

40 lbs. beef, at 20c , $8 ; 130 lbs flour, at 9c, $11.70

235 lbs. flour, at 8c, $18.80; 429» lbs. potatoes, $6.04 .....

20 lbs. sugar, at 20c, $4 ; 481 lbs. sugar, at 25c, $12 07..

3 lbs. baking powder, at 70c, $2.10; 14$ lbs. rice, at

5 lbs?'appies, SlTiolbs. apples, at,25c ., $2.50

5 lbs. currants, $1; 5 lbs. raisins, $1.25 •

Mustard, 45c ;
salt and pepper, 90c •

Soap, 75c
;
jam, 25c ••

Cotton, 25c ;
candles, 20c ;

matches, 8c

Dishpan, $1; washpan, 50c

10 cups, $2.50; 15 plates, $1.88

3 kettles, $3.75; fry pan, $1
Superintending boatmen.... ....

V'TY. "7k„"*'
Nails and screws, $2.41 ; hinges, 25c ;

latch, 15c

2 35
4 70

3 20
87

3 10

8 25
2 75
3 00

1.442 42

Total Hudson Bay Company Supplies...

Bank op Montreal.

•Charges on drafts on the Hon. the Minister of Militia and

Defence, commission on drafts }

—

£ per cent, on $960,000 iTT^'T^V^ooV
8 days' interest, at 7 per cent., on draft No. 6 ($250,000).

11
day* .- -, ~ - r- - ,

dQ 7 ($250)0oo).

Discount on draft No. 8 at 30 days ($250,000)

do 9 do (*250,000)

do 10 do ($100,000)

20 days' interest on draft No. 10, at 7 per cent.

1*66 00
47 38
266 75

115 80
74 80
2 25

32 50
19 70
24 84
16 07
5 08

5 CO
3 50
2 25
1 35
1 00

53
1 50
4 38
4 75

40 00
2 81

600 00
383 60
527 45

1,917 80
1,917 80
767 12

383 53

$ cts. $ cts.

130 19
2.014 94

2,380 66

48,970 63

6,497 3$

55,467 96

41
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of 82,300
;

00 to defray
expenses, &c— Continued,

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS.

Staff and Officers.

Depdtand Transport Clerks, Winnipeg ,

do do Edmonton
do do Calgary .,,

do do Port Pitt
do do Saskatchewan

Labor and watchmen, Edmonton
,

do Qu' Appelle
do Fort Pitt ,

Rent of offices and warehouses, Qu'Appelle
do do do Station
do do Troy

Office furniture, &c, Edmonton
do Qu' Appelle
do do Station

Stationery, Calgary,. ..„ «
do Troy ....

do Qu' Appelle Station
do Edmonton ..«..

O. P. R. Tel. Co., * 782.73; G. N.-W. Tel. Co., $1.42
C. P. Ry., freight, $3il.38 ; Dom. Exp. Co., $7.70
P. G. Laurie, Winnipeg, advertising
F. ©liver, Edmonton, printing $15; advfrtising, $?.55
Calgary Herald, printing, $307.60 ; advertising, $9.40
Regina Leader, printing
Major Butler (with Maj.-Gen. btrange) 42 days' pay, at $5 90...

Rev. J. McDougall, Morleyville, 77 days as interpreter arid guide
do do 77 days horse hire L

do do Services as chaplain

Rev. » Canon McKay, Cumberland, interpreter and scout
J. Rutherford, 62 days waggon master
Qu'Appelle Valley Farming Co., 3 horses
F. Stimson, High River, 2 horses, with saddles, &c
J.Ellis, Calgary, 2 horses
Geo. Murdock, Red Deer

—

3 saddles, $195; 3 bridles, $12
60 belts and frogs, $100 ; 2 pairs blankets, $12 ..

1 doz. gun straps,.., ,.

$ cts

308 00
77 00
50 00

S. McGillvray, Edmonton, 1 saddle....,

M. Cook ao 1 do
Brown & Curry do 1 bridle

,

J. B. Milliken, Qu'Appelle, 4 saddle girths, $4; 2 curry combs
and brushes, $2.50

J. Looly, Edmonton, repairing straps
Cuny Bros., Swift Current

—

4 pairs blankets, $24; stationery, $1.15
Baidware, $3.25; broom, 80c ,

Lard

~W. Byers, Calgary, horse shoeing BMe„

J". McEwen, Qu'Appelle do
Meals and forage, Horse Hill Plains

do Saskatchewan » ......

.

do Troy
do Edmonton

J.Walter, Edmonton, 1 skiff

R. Congdon, Saskatchewan, I skiff.

Repairing waggons, Ac, at Saskatchewan
W. D. HurBt, reward for repairing whistle of

under fire at Batoche r......

S. J. Donaldson, Saskatchewan

—

Warehousing 1,000 bush, oats
1 day team hire

Northcote,

207 00
112 00

6 00

25 15
4 05
2 25

25 00
8 00

42

% cts.

425 50
416 00
120 50
148 00
108 00
80 25
99 48
3 12

355 85
200 00
191 40
25 CO
7 50

18 90
23 40
14 90
1 95

11 00
784 15

319 08
1 50

17 fi5

316 90
49 00
247 80

435 00
150 00
186 00
725 00
425 00
275 00

325 00
35 00
16 00
5 00

6 50
2 50

31 45
25 00
2 25

28 00
20 00
15 00
8 00

40 00
30 00
22 00

50 00

33 00



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1886

Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000, to defray

expenses, &c.

—

Continued,

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS— Continued.

Staff and Officers— Continued.

C. G. King & Co., Calgary, material for blinds

C. L. Gowen, Calgary, 1 tent, $12; backing map, $1.50. .......

G. P. Player, Calgary, Supply Officer, travelling and sundry

office expenses
Conveyance of telegrams, &c, at Calgary .. ....--.

C. B. Rouleau, conveying Dr. Kennedy and party from Swift

Current to Battleford

Conveying General Laurie to South Branch

A. P. Wismer, Troy-
Box stove and pipes

3 despatch boxes, $8 ; 1 pail, 60c

2 galls, coal oil, 80c. ; 1 flour scoop, 40c

$ cts.

40 00
2 00

H. Caswell, Troy-
Hardware, $4.25 ; 1$ cords wood, $6.

2 lamps, $2 ; 2 galls, oil, 80c

J. Walker, Calgary, lumber-
L. W. Mulholland, Qu' Appelle Station-

Horse hire, 1£ days -•...

Fare, J. Anderson, to Qu' Appelle and back
do Colonel Forrest, to Troy

6 90
8 60
1 20

10 25
2 80

L. Langis, Qu' Appelle Station, 3 cords wood
Russell & Davis, Qu' Appelle, corraling horses .

A, V. Whitehead do 1 day with team
A. S. Empey, Leopold, needles and twine, $1.50 ; letter clip, 50c.

Wm. Harder, Winnipeg, cartage
Major-General Strange, 1 pair top boots >

Dr. H. C. Wilson, Edmonton, drugs, &c

7 00
4 00
2 00

Hospital and Medical Service.

G C. King & Co , Calgary, 2 pairs blankets, $13.00 ; 20 yds

cotton, $2.50 ••••-

B. R. Pughe, Calgary, 40 days' labor, $40.00 ;
oatmeal, 75c...

J. H. Vanwart, Calgary, 116 pints milk, $5.80 ; 10 lbs. oatmeal,

50c
Norris & Carey, Edmonton—

32 tins canned fruits and vegetables

\ gall, vinegar, $1.00 ; 2 doz eggs, $1.00

6 cans milk, $1.20
;
jam and jelly, $1. 15...

Cups and plates, $4.20 ; tin dishes, $1.

Scrubbing brush, 50c. ; 1 tub, $2.00.

3 towels, $1.75 ; 2 yds. cotton, 30c...

Edmonton, medical supplies

2 medicine chests

drugs
burial expenses of A. Mc-

J. A. McDougall & Co.

D. McLeod do
Dr. H. C. Wilson do
Jas. McDonald do

Kenzie, killed by lightning

A. Wismer, Troy-
Tin bath, $4.00 ; stove pipes and elbows, $1.60

4 pails, $2.20 ; tea kettle, $1.25

2 galls, coal oil

S. H. Caswell, Troy—
3 months' rent of hospital

Provisions, $13 85 ;
hardware, $1.70 ...

Table and cooking utensils

Cotton, duck and towels

18 80
2 00
2 35

5 80
2 50
2 05

43

5 60
3 45
80

60 00
15 55
12 90
3 03

$ cts.

2 00
13 50

47 80
13 60

42 00

16 70

13 05
144 92

13 00
11 00
9 00
3 00
2 00
62 00
8 00
17 75

15 50
40 75

6 30

33 50
416 00
40 00
17 50

60 08

9 85

91 48

% cts.

7,296 75



4? Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A.

Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,OJO to defray
expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYmSTS- Continued.

Hospital and Medical Service— Concluded.

JBaker & Lee, Moose Jaw-
Provisions, $27.05 ; soap and candles, 45e.
Castor oil, $75c. ; matches, 50c
Cups, plates, &c, $2.30 ; lantern, $1.25 ...

Oil, 25c. ; 3 sacks, 45c

JE. M. Robinson, Moose Jaw-
Provisions, $10.19 ; towel and matches, 25c.
4 pairs blankets, $12.00 ; cups, &c, $1.60 ...

A. S. Empey, Leopold, cook stove, $13.50 ; 36 yds duck, $9.24
Love & Raymond, Troy, 3 doz. lemons
L. Langis do 1 cord wood
<J, H. V. Bulyea do 206 lbs. bread, at 6c
L. W. Mulholland, fare, Dr. Wright, to Fort Qu'Appelle
O. Gibson, Qu'Appelle Station, 16 lbs. bread

* €urry Bros , Swift Current—
1 Winchester rifle and ammunition <

2 rubber blankets, $5.00 ; 30 knives and forks, $8.00.'
3 spoons, $1.00 ; 6 ladles, $1 50
1 lb. batter, 35c. ; 4 tins fruits, $1.30.

8. W. Trott, Calgary, 1 horse
J. Lineham do do ,

A. D. Osborne, Edmonton, stationery
A. McDonald & Co. do 1 bath tub ....!....."

M. A. Walker do sewing canvas for stretchers
T. Welsh, Troy, 114 quarts milk
A. V. Whitehead, Troy, 9 cordd wood
North-West Coal and Navigation Co., 1 four-horse team. .....

J. C. Price, Troy, repairing stretchersWm Hallett do scrubbing hospital
U. W. Caswell, Clarke's Jrossing, 35 days' horse hire for

messengers

$ cts.

27 50
1 25
3 55

70

10 44
13 60

32 00
13 00
2 50
1 65

General Supplies.

Gallagher Sons & McGregor, Winnipeg, 15,775£ lbs. beef, at
I <c ................ . ..........................

Mahaffy & Clinskill, Winnipeg, 1,200 lbs. beef, at 17c.
A. H. Sayers, Winnipeg, 1,200 lbs. beef, at 17c

,

Crawfoid & Robinson, Troy, 385 bushels potatoes
S. Parrish & Co., Calgary—

4,600 lbs. potatoes, at 2£c „

50,000 lbs. oats, at2£c

J. Sinclair, Calgary, 60,000 lbs. oats, at 2§c
I. G. Baker & Co., Calgary—

5 pairs blankets, $28 75 ; 3,259 lbs. rope, $651.80.
288 lbs. myrtle na^y tobacco, at 58c
92 lbs. chewing tobacco, at 45c
5 cases axle grease, $28. 75c. ; 2 lanterns, $2.....*

'.

T. C. Power & Co., Calgary, 6,198 lbs. beef, at 13c
C. G. King & Co., Calgary, 9Si lbs, ham, $19.70 ; 175 lbs.
» ^coffee, $78.75 ... ,

P. Quirk, Calgary, blacksmiths' outfit .......".'.'."""

T. McHagh, Calgary, 24 tons hay, at $12 ",",'.

A. G. McDouald, Calgary, 3 tons baled hay
Goyette & Arnott do 358 meals „
J. Walker do lumber „.,
A/E. Shelton do 10 flags
Leeson & Scott, Calgary—

23 feeds of hay
6,944 lbs. oats (at Blindman's River) at £8c

115 00
1,250 00

680 55
167 04
41 40
30 75

5 75
555 52

44

$ cts

33 00

24 04
22 74
3 00
3 00

12 36
2 00
96

49 15
200 00
150 00

2 00
4 00
2 00

11 40
22 50

600 00
11 00
4 00

157 50

2,681 83
204 00
204 00
385 00

1,365 00
1,650 00

919 74
805 74

98 45
54 00

288 00
60 00
179 00
12 90
5 60

561 27
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray

expenses, &c— Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS—Continued. ^

General Supplies—Continued.

t McGinnis, Calgary, 3,900 lbs hay ....

'. S. Gibb & Co., Calgary, 100 lbs. rice.

logers & Grant, Calgary—
1 truck, $15 ;

ammunition, $14.75.

1 galvanized iron box, lettered ....

Camp supplies and general hardware.

&.. C&te, Calgary, cleaning rifles

J. A. McDougall & Co., Edmoiton—
300 bushels oats, $450 ; 13 sacks nour, $117

50 do potatoes, $50 ; 32 sacks, $16

10 gallons coal oil, $25 ; 2 oil cans, $5

Brown & Curry, Edmonton—
119 lbs. baking powder, at 70c... ;""4rA :V
10 lbs. hops, $8 ; 1$ doz. canned meats, $10.50.

6 axes, $13.50 ; 3 gross matches, $1.80

cts.

28 75
11 00
14 30

567 00
66 00
30 00

Horris & Carey, Edmoaton—
9 kegs gunpowder, at $12.50

6 boxes Winchester primers --. .........

47 bushels oats, $17 ;
170 lbs. beans, $20 40 .....

3 doz. baking powder, $21.60; matches, $3 75.

7J do canned fruits and vegetables

1 do condensed milk -

25 sacks

83 30
18 50
18 30

1L McCauley, Edmonton, beef, 5,653 lbs., at 20c.
;
1,024 lbs., at

25c

C. Sanderson7Edmonton, 36 bushels potatoes, $36 ;
38 bushels

J. McPhersol^
8

Edmonton,!^' buBbeYs"oats, $35.62 ;
14 sacks,

112 50

6 00
67 40
25 35
48 50
4 50
7 20

$3.50
W. Lenney, Edmonton, horse shoeing ....

J.Walter do 12 loads wood .

555$ bushels barley, at Edmonton, at $1

J. Price, 20 bushels oats, at $1 ..

"iVor*
J. Coleman, Edmonton, 28 bushels oats, at $1.25.

W.J.Burns do 1 ton hay

M. McCauley do 60 bushels potatoes

P.Kelly do 21 eacks for barley

H. Collings do hauling water

A. Simpson, Edmonton—
4,635 lbs. crushed feed, at 2£c

2,248 do barley, at 2c

1,958 do oats, at 3c

50 do horse-shoe nails, at 30c

71 do horse-shoes, at 16c

262 do nails, at 10c

1 set platform scales

1 rasp

Boss Bros , Edmonton—
16 kettles. $35 50 ; 17 fry pans, $17.

65 cups, $16.25; 75 plates, $11.25

73 knives and forks, $29.40 ; 6 pans, $9.

2 reflectors, with pans

Sanderson & Looby, Edmonton-
Shoeing horses —

•

6f bush, oats »•••

115 88
44 96
58 75
15 00
11 36
26 20
45 00

50

50 50
27 50
38 40
6 00

107 50
6 75

$ cts.

24 62
9 00

54 05
45 00

663 00

120 10

271 45

1,386 60

74 00

39 12

82 75

72 00
555 70

20 00
35 00
15 00

60 00

10 50
15 00

317 65

122 40

114 25

$ cts.

45
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, kc—Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Continued.

General Supplies— Continued.

L. Larocqu^, Edmonton, 2,200 lb', hay ,

J. Mewhort, Fort Saskatchewan, 50 bush, oats, at $1.35*
H. Schultz, Fort Saskatchewan, 75 bush, oats
B. McKeozie, Red Deer, 800 lbs. beef, at 15c
R. W. McClelan, Red Deer-

Use of field for grazing, 1 day....,

2§ cords wood
[[

33 sacks '"•••—"

J. B. L. Smith, Lone Pine, 12 meals
F.Lucas, Peace Hills, hay
H. McDougall, Prince albert, baking 2,000 lbs. bread"'
J. D. McCall do 1 649 lbs. hay, at 18c
A. J. Stalker, Clarke's Crossing, 175 lbs. bread, at 10c,
A. McDonald, 102 bu3h. oats
J. Norn, 12 bush, potatoes

,

O. Spence, Victoria, 700 lbs. beef
'

Mickanow, Bear's Hills, 500 lbs. potatoes
A. W. Colpman, 1 doz. canned vegetables.

9th Battalion, Quebec Voltkjeubs.

1,826 meals at Calgary, at 50c „
Beds for officers at Calgary, 9, at 50c «

'. '. ,

<J. C. King & Co., Caigury—
Straw hats, 51, at 50c. ; 88, at 15c
24 helmets, $60; l£yds. sheeting, 19c '.'.'.....

5 yds. blue de laine, $1.25 ; 2i yds. Turkey red, 63c
Butter, 84 lbs., at 30c. ; 61 lbs., at 25c ..

270 lbs. rice, at 7£c. ; 50 lbs. pipe clay, at 25c.
6 doz. corn beef, at $4.50; 10 yds. canvas, at 25c...

Wrapping paper, $1.80; twine, 25c

J\ J. Claxton, Calgary-
Bread, 2,823 lbs., at 4£c.
75 lbs. biscuits, at 16c...

936£ lbs., at 5c.

A. O. Sparrow, Calgary, 2.524£ lbs. beef, at 12c ,

J. S. Gibb & Co., Calgary, 4 doz. corn beef
I. G. Baker & Co., supplies for trip to mountains ...,

S. W. Trott, Calgary, drugs
,

<Geo. Murdoch do l set buggy harness ......."..!

H. Yarlette do 1 coffin and case... .......!!
A.Lake do cleaning barracks
Wm. Byers do 70 lbs. spikes, $10.50 ; blacksmithine. $5
Dominion Express Co., express

k ..

Telegrams and cartage at Calgary "...!!"!'

€urry Bros., Swift Current, 9 yds. cotton, 90c. ; i hammer, 80c!
€. P. R. Tel. Co., telegrams at Gleichen..
P. Beaupre, Gleichen

—

3 bottles syrup, $3 ; 2 bottles vinegar, 50c
4 lbs. butter, $1.60 ; 4 doz. eggs, $1.60 '.",„,

1 bottle lime juice, $1.50; lemons, 25c
6 bottles pain killer, $1.50 ; candles, 15c .'.".

13 plugs tobacco, $3.25 ; 2 tins lobsters, 50c '."."..

Coal oil, 40c. ; matches, 25c
600 lbs. hay, $9 ; 115 lbs. bran, $3.45 Z"

""""' ."."!"."

G. Weale, Crowfoot, 921 meals, $203.25 ; fuel and coal oil,
J. Smith, High River—

13 meals,; |6.50 ; forage, $2.25 ; .....
Ferriage ,... v

cts

10 00
16 00
12 00

38 70
60 19

1 88
40 45
32 75
29 50
2 05

173 85
12 00

3 50
3 20
1 75
1 65
3 75
65

12 45

M. K. Kennefick, Mosquito Creek, 38 meals, $19 ; horse feed, $16

46

8 75
59 50

$ cts.

11 00
67 50
101 25
120 00

38 00
3 00
4 00

40 00
296 82
17 50

102 00
12 00

140 00
20 00
5 00

913 00
4 50

205 52

185 85
302 94
24 00
60 00
67 85
45 CO
27 00
12 00
15 50
8 30

18 00
1 70

16 86

26 95
238 25

68 25
35 00

$ cts.

14,559 79

2,276 4T
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,00

expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS—Continued

to defray

65th Battalion.

J. A. McDougall & Co., Edmonton—
Long boots, 4 pairs, at $8, and 2 pairs, at ^ '••"''' '•'••'--

42 pairs pants, at $10, $420 ; 59 pairs socks, at 60c, $35.40.

70 suits underclothing, at $4
28 towels '

W. L. Wood, Edmonton—
1 month's rent of furniture, $5 ; 1 large lamp, $4...

Plates, cups, saucers and dishes -••••

Brown & Curry, Edmonton—
3 pairs pants, $13 ; 33 pairs socks, at 60c

,
$19.80.

28 lbs. tobacco, at 75c, $21 ; stationery, $6 ...

$ cts.

44 00
455 40
280 00
28 00

A. D. Osborne, Edmonton, stationery..

R. Holmes do

M. McKenzie. do
A. Macdonald & Co. do

1 bag turnips

105J lbs. bread, at 12£c

2 doz. canned vegetables

12 lbs. leather, $12 ;
repairing ac-

coutrements, $6 50

3 chairs -

horse brush and ccmb
shoeing horses ...« •••

C. J. Duchesnay, travelling expenses

F. Oliver, 1,500 ft. lumber •••• —— •••

O. G. King & Co., Calgary, 100 yds. cotton, $15 ; 5 cart covem

J. Latulippe

X. St. Jean
Norris & Curry
W. Lenney

do

do
do
do

9 00
6 70

32 80
27 00

$30
A. G. McDonald, Calgary, hire of buckboard....... ..................

W. Byers, Calgary, 288 lbs. hinges, $57.60 ; 76 lbs. bolts, $38.

A. E. Shelton, Calgary—
12 ambulance stretchers •

24 flags •
*—

"

S. W. Trott, Calgary, drugs

Thomson Bros, do stationery..

523 meals at do at 50c

J. Haly, Red Deer Crossing—
82 lbs. tea, at 75c, $61.50 ; 25 lbs. coffee, at 60c, $15

15 do pepper, at 75c, $11.25; 100 lbs. potatoes, $2 ..

120 do barley, at 7c, $8.40 ; 300 lbs. oats, at 6c, $18.

200 do oats, at 5c, $10 ; 74 house logs, $74

1 counter scale, $15; 2 dippers, $1.50

Soap, $4.50 ; 20 flannel shirts, $60

Clock, $3 ; 1 gall, coal oil and can, $1.75

1 bag salt, 35c ;
stationery, $4.50

2 candle-sticks, 50c ; 1 bucket, $1.50

1 coffee-pot, 75c ; 1 axe, $2.50

2 yds. cotton, 50c ;
matches, 65c

102 lbs. pork, at 25c <

30 00
14 40

D. McKenzie, Red Deer, l,346j lbs. beef, at 18c

R. W. McLellan, Red Deer—
1 cook stove and furniture «•

1 large box stove, $20
;
pipes and elbows, $12

7 chairs, $8.75 ; 3 lamps, $3.75... .».«..

2 doz knives and forks, $7 ; 1$ doz. table spoons, $1.50

2 doz. large plates, $5 ; 1 doa. cups and saucers, $3 ....

F. Lucas, Peace Hills, 49 days' rent, 4c~..« ••.••

L. Thompson, Victoria, 25 bush, barley, $25 ; 18 bush, potatoes

$18
Leo Gaetz, Red Deer, 24 lbs. tea A
M. McPberson do 2 tons hay

W. Reade do 400 lbs. oats ,

47 1

76 50
13 25
26 40
84 00
16 50
64 50
4 75
4 85
2 00
3 25
1 15

25 50

50 €0
32 00
12 50
8 50
8 00

$ cts.

807 40

15 70

59 80
14 30
2 00
13 19

12 00

18 50
6 00
2 50
5 00
10 00
45 00

45 00
10 00

95 60

44 40
50 68
4 25

261 50

322 65
242 37

111 00
15 00

43 00
12 00
60 00
24 00
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure tinder Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c.

—

Continued,

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS—Continued.

65th Battalion—Continued.

W. McDonnell, Battle River—
30 lbs. rice, $6 ; 45 lbs. beans, $9
2 sacks flour, $14 ; 10 sacks salt, $4.50
5 lbs. butter, $2.50 ; rope, $425
6 cans baking powder, $3; 24 cakes soap, $3
5 bottles pain-killer, $2.50 ; cartage $2

D. Barker, Birtle River

—

1 overcoat, $10 ; 2 sacks potatoes, $2 „

1 tin pail, $2 ; 2 auger bits, $1
Saw, $1.50; plane, $1.50 ; hammer, 60c

A. Pepin, Battle River, 3 sacks flour .....«, ,„.
A. W. Colpman, Battle River

—

1 cook stove, $20 ; 1 cart, $15
2 sets harness, $10 ; 1 bridle and saddle, $5
2 sacks flour, $16.50 ; 2 sacks potatoes, $6.. „,

100 lbs. dried apples. $26; 65 lbs. beans, at 16c, $10.40 ...

25 lbs. soap, $5 ; 50 lbs. split peas, $8 .

10 do coffee, $5; 25 lbs. t^a, $13.75
25 do salt, $2.50; 28 lbs. biscuits, $5.04 m
4 cans baking powder, $3 ; 8 cans pepper, $4.80
7 lbs. hops, $7.70; 2 qts vinegar, $1
2 galls, coal oil, $2.20; 1 lantern, $1.50

11 pairs long boots, $66; 1 moleskin coat and vest, $7.50
6 do lace do $31.50; 2 woollen shirts, $4
2 shirts, $3.50 ; 2 towels, $1.70 ,

20 lbs. rope, $4 ; 25 yards netting, $3.75
6 pairs overalls, $7 50 ; 6 wash tubs, $12
9 spades, $15.75; 1 grindstone, $9 01
10 lbs. wire, $7.50; 7 pails, $7.50
Axes, hatchets and handles
1 two-man saw, $5.25; nails, $4 ,

1 bush, barley $3 ; 1 coffee mill, $2.60
Frying pans and aish pans *

Washboard, 50c. ; 3 brooms, $1.50
Screws, $1.85 ; screw-driver, 75c
20 yards cotton, $3.40 ; 1 curry comb and brush, $1 7*...

6 bottles gun oil, $4.50; 6 lamp chimneys, $2.10
1 auger

90th Battalion.

H. Caswell, Troy, 262 lbs. meat, at 20c

91st Battalion.

Thomson & Nelson, Troy, lumber
S.H.Caswell do stationery
C. Gibson, Qu'Appelle Station, 105 lbs. bread
W. Henly do 12 cords wood
L. W. Mulholland do 3 cords wood, $12 ; stage fare, $2
A. Wismer do stove and pipes
L. Langis do 10£ cords wood ,...

E. A. N. R. Cameron, team hire, $32; interpreter, $5
Paymaster Ccpeland, travelling expenses
Pte. J. Grey, fare Calgary to Qu'Appelle ,

A" and "B" Batteries of Artillery.

Winnipeg and Western Transport Co., freight
Freight and charges at Winnipeg
Owen, Hughes & Co., Prince Albert, expressage ..

Shannon McLeod, Prince Albert—
Shoepacks, 21 pairs, at $3.50 ; 20 pairs, at $2
4 canvas jumpers, $6 ; 1 gross laces, $4 ,

$ cts

15 00
18 50
6 75
6 00
4 50

12 00
3 00
3 60

35 00
15 00
22 50
36 40
13 00
18 75
7 54
7 80
8 70
3 70

73 50
35 50
5 20
7 75

19 50
24 76
15 00
13 25
9 25
5 50
6 00
2 00
2 00
5 15
6 60
1 50

113 50
10 00

$ cts.

50 75

18 60
21 00

400 85

6 12
8 95

6 00
30 00
14 00
3 25

52 50
37 00
47 00
3 25

48

2 60
67 95
33 80

123 50

$ cts.

2,844 04
• 1HLT

'

52^40

208 07:
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray

expenses, &c.

—

Continued,

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS—Continued,

and " B " Batteries of Artillery— Concluded.

H. McDougall, Saskatchewan, 6,881 J lbs. bread

W. H. Clark & Co , Saskatchewan, drugs

M. Kobinson, Saskatchewan, 30 qts. milk

$ cts.

Cavalry School Corps.

R. S. Smith, Fort Qu'Appelle, 1 ton hay
G. H. V. Bulyea, Fort Qu'Appelle, 1 ton bran.

C. Gibson, Qu'Appelle Station, 100 lbs. bread.,

R. McManus, Troy, 50 meals ,

P. Galerneau, Touchwood-
Waggon hire, Touchwood to Qu'Appelle .

Hire, buckboard and harness
2 waggons and teams to Troj

J. Milligan, Touchwood, 2| tons hay, at $10

Governor General's Body Guard.

Mrs. McLean, Qu'Appelle, 48 lbs. bread, at 6£c.

.

C Gibson, Qu'Appelle, 16 lbs. bread, at 5c
Peter McDonald, 3 days as scout and interpreter

10 00
10 00

50 00

Winnipeg Light Infantry.

1,350 meals at Calgary, at 50c
Lodgings for officers, &c ,

G. Murdoch, Calgary, 25 canteen straps

W. Byers, Calgary, repairs to buckboard .,

G, C. King & Co., Calgary, 1 water barrel ,

W. Carr, Calgary, 1 saddle and briddle ,

J. H. Cummings, Calgary, 2 horses, $185; stabling and forage
$15 '..

Jas. Ross, Calgary, 2 horses, $210; saddle and bridle, $65 .....

Miss Armstrong, Calgary, 90 havelocks
A. Ferland & Co , Calgary, rifle and ammunition
A. C. Sparrow, Calgary, 185 lbs. beef, at 12c

S. W. Trott, Calgary, drugs, $97.20; towels and brushes, $2.75
A. E. Shelton, Calgary, 4 flags

D. Henderson, Calgary, 27 loads water
,

Thomson Bros , stationery ,

J. R. Kevin, Calgary, telegrams v
J. A. McDougall & Co., Edmonton

—

20 pairs long boots, at $10
42 towels, $42 ; 1 bucksaw, $3

200 00
45 00

Brown & Curry, Edmonton, 190 havelocks, at 35c
J. McDonald, Edmonton, 1 box for stores

J. Noran, Battle River—
170 lbs. apples, at 25c

, $42.50 ; 50 lbs. salt, $12.50
6 bush, potatoes, $6; 5 sacks, $5

W. McDonnell, Battle River, 23 sacks potatoes
Smith & Chambers, High River, 65 meals, $32.50 ; hay for 8

teams, $8.
J. W. Trolinger, Mosquito Creek

—

77 meals, $38 50 ;
hay for 8 teams, $ 12.

1 bag potatoes, $3.70; 1 bag salt, 25c. ; fuel, $10

315 meals at Maple Creek, at 50c
D. A. Fraser, New Oxley, 220 meals, $110; hay for men's

beds, 1,12

Leo Gaetz, Red Deer—
20 lbs. yeast germs, $11 ; 10 lbs. pepper, $4.50
50 lbs. salt, 13; 1 padlock, $1

55 00
11 00

50 50
13 95

15 50
4 00

50—4

$ cts.

430 09
27 20
3 00

20 00
20 00
6 00

25 00

70 00
110 00

3 00
80

10 00

675 00
38 50
25 00
6 50
5 00
25 00

200 00
275 00
90 00
31 00
22 20

99 95
4 00

40 50
25 80
2 t0

245 00
66 50
5 50

66 00
38 00

40 50

64 45
157 50

122 09

19 50

$ eta.

688 K

251 W

13 W

49
2,390 4®
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray

expenses, &c.

—

Continued,

HUDSON- BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS— Continued.

Winnipeg Troop Cavalry.

K. Bawlf, Winnipeg, 12£ bush, oats, at 65c, $7.95; 204 lbs.

hay, $6.30
Holman Bros., Winnipeg, 50 lbs. potatoes

Wm. Scott, Winnipeg, \ cord wood

Winnipeg Field Battery.

M. Keachie, Winnipeg, hack hire

J. P. Caldwell & Co., Edmonton, medical supplies ~..

Moore & Macdonald, Prince Albert lumber
Wm. Gordon, Prince Albert, blacksmitbing

H. McDougall, Prince Albert, baking 2,523 lbs. flour, at 2c.

J. L. Johnston & Co., Prince Albert, hardware, &c
R. H. Bratnober, Prince Albert, repairing saddlery

T. J. Agnew, Prince Albert—
1 doz. horse brushes, $4; 10 curry combs, $3.50

26 sheets emery cloth, $2.50; 1 gall, oil, $150
1 doz. emery, $1

;
padlock, staples and screws, $2

2 iron pails

$ cts.

7 50
4 00
3 »0
2 CO

W. H. Clark & Co., Prince Albert, medical supplies.

Cr. E. Carter, Prince Albert, l£ bush, potatoes

York and Simcob Battalion.

Gallagher, Sons & McGregor, 325 lbs. beef at 17c

Dr. Hall, Qu'Appelle, 1 case medicine

L. Langis do 1 load wood
L. W. Mulholland, fare, Troy to Qu'Appelle and return.

Alberta Mounted Rifles.

L G. Baker & Co., Calgary—
33 Dutch overcoats, at $8, $264 ;

9 great coats, at $15, $135

3 prs. blankets, at $5. 75, $17 25 ; 48 duck suits, at $7. $336

50 pairs gauntlets, at $2.75, $137.60 ; 100 pairs socks, at

65c, $65

J. Cottingham, Calgary, 9 saddles

G. Constantine, Calgary, shoeing 17 horses .....

41 hats, at $3 25, $1 J 3 25 ; 25 single ticks, at $1.15
;
$28 75.

18 seamless sacks, $4.50; 50 lbs. rope, $7.50

1 yd. cotton, 15c. ; 2 yds. Turkev red, E0c ;
braid 25c

3 waterproof sheets, $5; tacks, 25c. ; matches, 25c

399 00

353 25

202 50

G. Murdoch, Calgary, 3 halters, $12; 6 cartridge belts, $12...

J. A. McDougall & Co., Edmonton—
17 pairs ridiug boots, $170 ; 17 pairs riding breeches, $170.

17 overshirts, at $3 50, $59.50 ; 17 suits underclothing, &68

34 pairs sock?, at 60c, $20.40; 17 towels, $17
1 sack flour, $10 ; 1 box soap, $10
2 scythes, $3.50; 2 snath?, $4
2 scythe stones, 50c ; 100 revolver cartridges, $3

JF. Looly, Edmonton

—

30 rifle slings, $30; 7 linches, at $3, $21
6 linches, at $1, $6 ; repairing 14 linches, $14

Kepairing halter, $2.50; 1 stirrup leather, $1.50...

162 00

12 00
90

5 50

340 00
127 50
37 40
20 00
7 50
3 50

R. A. Fraser, Willow Creek, 15 meals, $7.50; horse feed, $7.50

N. T. Williams, Gleichen, 475 lbs. oats, at 3c

Mickanow, Edmonton, h( use rent for headquarters

J. D. Gilchrist, 1 horse killed

W. Rowland, 51 days as guide, at $3.50

51 00
20 00

4 00

$ cts.

14 25

53
4 00

9 25
164 00
72 00
60 75
50 46
35 67
22 50

16 50
13 15

3 00

55 25
33 05
6 00
4 00

954 75

297 00
68 00

180 40
24 00

:

1

535 90

75 00
15 00
14 25
5 00

150 00
178 50

18 7*

2,497

50
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray

expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS—Continued.

Boulton's Mounted Infantry.

J. Hing3ton Smith & Co., Winnipeg—
25 Winchester rifles, at $21

10 M cartridges, at $20.90..... .»•.

40 rifle covers, $90 ; 40 cartridge belts, $50

Gun oil, $3; lights, $11.10; packing, $1.25

F. Spain, transport and expenses of 2 men from Birtle to

Qu'Appeiie ••••••;•: '

E. McManus, Qu'Appeiie, board and lodging

Joyner Bros. & Atherton, Qu'Appeiie, 3 meals

L. W. Mulholland do use of corral

O. W. Evans do blacksmithing ...... .

J. R. McPhail, Prince Albert, 2 sheet-iron stoves, $26 ;
stove

pipes, $2 '

9

W. Gordon, Prince Albert—
1 sledgehammer, $5; crowbar, $4

8 hooks, $4 ; 8 bands, $3

$ Ct8.

525 00
209 00
140 00
15 35

R. H. Bratnober, Prince Albert, harness and repairs

T. C. Agnew do cups, plates, &c .....

J Sinclair do making and trimming breeches

P. R. Danby, Fort Ellice, 74 bush, oats, at 40c.

R P. Easson do board and lodging 8 men

A. Henderson do ferriage

T. Almack, Birtle, board and team hire

O. McPhee, travelling expenses

D. A. Smith, teaming volunteers to Birtle

T. Gillman, Moosomin, 17 days' board :•""••
\

H. Trairs, Prince Albert, paid on account of teams for transport

.Di. Redmond, Moosomin, medical attendance .

Dennis' Intelligence Corps.

9 00
7 00

€. Gibson, Qu'Appeiie Station, 60 lbs. bread

L. W. Mulholland, Troy, stabling

D. W. McKenzie, Red Deer, 50 lbs. beef

Curry Bros.. Swift Current—
120 lbs. rope, $24 ; 3 whips, 75c v 1""'"

10 lbs. soap, $1 ; £ doz. bottles sweet nitre, $1.20.

Edmonton Volunteer Company.

Pav of men, $934.80; scouts, $50 ...............

Carpenters, $205.53; boatbuilders, $111.70.

J.Sinclair, Edmonton, 1,950 cartridges, at $3.00, $58.50 ;
500 lbs.

fe* gan powder, $30 t

J. Knowlee, 2,100 lbs. hay, at $15......... .....»

Brown & Curry, 1 keg syrup, $8 ; 1^,^»r;"
Mary Sutter, making 42 cartridge pouches and 40 powder bags..

W. S. Robertson, 20 lbs. bacon, $5 ; 400 lbs. hay, $2

W. Lenney, blacksmithing -

W. Humberstone, 3 tons coal »

L. Larocque, 5 cords wood
G. Goodridge, 1 water barrel -

A. D. Osborne, stationery •«.

J. McDonald, 25 plugs for cannister shot

24 75

2 20

984 80
317 23

GatlingJGun Brigade.

iti W, Mulholland, Qu'Appeiie, stabling

$ cts.

889 35

20 00
9 50
1 50
4 00

11 40

28 00

16 00
14 50
7 90
3 00
29 60
13 75

12 00
5 00
26 25
4 00
25 50
60 00
21 00

3 60
1 50
9 00

26 95

1,302 03

88 50
15 75
9 50
14 50
7 00
25 90
12 00
20 00
6 00
3 70
2 12

..... ....•»..» i

$ cts.

1,202 25

41 05

1,507 001

150

51
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,00(Tto defray
expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAT COMPANY PAYMENTS— Continued.

Moose Mountain Scoots.

J.'H. Shillington, Troy—
4 tons hay, $20 ; 13 loads wood, $52.

12 bush, oats

©. H. V. Bulyea, Troy, 150 lbs. bread ...

S. H. Caswell do 2 frying pans

A. N. Wismer, Qu'Appelle Station, 4 lanterns, $B 40

pan, 60c

J3. Hislop, Wolesley, blacksmithing .

1 frying-

Major Perry's Scouts.

Wm. Connor, Edmonton, I saddle

Iff. Sutter do 100 ammunition bag3

Edmonton Hotel, 92 meals

Jj. Gaetz, Red D°er

—

Stationery, $1 30 ; oil, $1 ; twine, 30c

Nails, $1 ; 3 pails, $3; 2 washdishes,$l...

Teapot, $1 ; 1 campkettle, 90c

St. Albert Mounted Rifles.

J. McDonald, Edmonton—
1 sack flour, $!• ; 32 lbs. sugar, $8.

50 lbs. biscuits, at 25c ..,

E. Page, Edmonton, I ton hay
J. A. Youmans, ferrying at Beaver River

Steele's Scouts.

I. G. Baker & Co., Calgary—
12 fur lined coats, at $12 ,

40 yards red cashmere, at 50c.

S. W. Trott, Calgary, drugs ...

J. L->oly, Edmonton—
£ doz. belts andknive sheaths.

24 cartridge belts

Brown & Curry, Edmonton

—

3 dandy brushes, $2.25 ; 9 curry combs, $4.50

2 raanilla lines, $1 ; 8 lbs. rope, $2.40 >

2 epades, $3 ; 1 axe and handle, $2. -

9 horse brushes, $3.50 ; 2 pkgs. condition powders, $1

W. Lenney, Edmonton, shoeing horses

Sanderson & Looly do
W. T. Spearin, rifle broken in service ....

E. Lftframboise, Edmonton, 1 saddle and bridle.

11 horses purchased at TCdmontoa
R. W. McClellan, Red Deer, meals
Leo Gaetz, Red Deer—

10 bundbs hay, $2.50 ; 13 lb?, rope, $2.60..

1 tea pot, 50c. ; 2 camp kettles, $3

P. Whitford, Victoria—
42 bush, barley, $12 ; 3 bush, wheat, $7.50

2 bags flour, $10 ; 8 bags bran, $8

L.'Lapointe, Saddle Lake, 250 bush, barley

Telegraph Operators.

!. W. Mulholland, Qu'Appelle Station, fare H. McCleneghan to

Fort Qu'Appelle , < »

52

$ cts,

72 00
9 00

2 60
5 00
1 90

18 00
12 50

144 00
20 00

9 00
96 00

6 75
3 40
5 00
14 50

5 10
3 50

49 50
18 00

$ cts.

81 00
9 00
1 00

3 90
14 50

45 CO
25 00
46 00

9 50

80 50
15 00
25 00

164 00
88 00

105 00

29 65
45 00
10 00
25 00
15 00

1,375 00
15 00

8 60

67 50
250 00

$ cts.

109 40

12551

m
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray

expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMBNTS-Continued.

Scouts, Couriers, &c.

A. McDonald, Calgary-
Courier service, Fort Saskatchewan to front, under con-

tract, 24 days, at $150 •• ':::'''"

Courier service, Calgary and Edmonton, 14 days, at $50...

18 men, 664$ days in all, at $5.00.

4 do 47 do 4.00.

4 do 71 do 3.50

10 do 109 do 3.00.

20 do 733 do 2.50.

3 do 92 do 2.00.

1 do 7 do 1.50.

Horse Hire, forage, ferriage, &e ....

Less—Stoppages for supplies, hoise, &c,

B. W. Tate, Prince Albert, carrying despatches •

A. G. Macdonald, Calgary do -.«.

B. Laboucane, despatches, Beaver Hill to Battle River

J. LaRonde do
Q. Sinclair do
C. Rossiter do
A. Margot do
L. Bushman do
Jas. Grant do

do Peace Hills

to Whitefish and Saddle Lake
Fort Pitt to Battleford-

do
do
do

P. Henry, Prince Albert, 2 days' team hire

W. W. Clarke (Saskatchewan) £ day's team hire.

J. Mewhort, 40 days' horse- hire » ...

A. Brazeau, 1 horse

.

W.
w.

$ cts.

3,600 00
700 00

3,322 50
188 00
248 50
327 00

1,832 50
184 00
10 50
80 50

6,193 50
308 08

House, care of sick horse
F. Myers, Prince Albert

—

2 teams and saddle horse, 3 days •••..

I man, 3 days, $6 ; meals and provisions, $19

250 lbs. hay, $10 ; 5 bush- oats, $10

J. Smith, Calgary, 15 meals, $7.50 ; horse feed, $5.25 ....

S. Watson, Calgary, meals and horse feed

Jas. Goodridge, Edmonton, meals
" Sampson's Wife," forage and rations. •...

A. W. Colpman, Battle River, 16 meals, $8 ;
feed, $5.75

Donald Ross, meals and forage

F. Lucas, board of men, $25; horse feed, $13.25 ,

J. Pruden, Beaver Lake

—

18 days' horse hire, $18 ; 108 lbs, beef, $16.20 ,

50 lbs. flour, $3.13; 9 lbs. sugar, $2.25

3 lbs. tea, at $1 «

69 00
25 00
20 00

J. A Patterson, Fort Saskatchewan, 1 saddle

T. W. Robinson, Calgary, 1 bridle

W. Lenney, Edmonton, horse shoeing *

Sanderson & Looly do do ''"'^'""11"'"

A. Boag, 1 day teaming, $5 ; 5,150 lbs. hay, at $20, $51.50-...

H. F. Ross, 3 tons hay, at $15
K. A. McLeod, 2 tons hay, at $10
C. Sanderson, 1,800 lbs. hay, at $15
J. Coleman, 25 bush, oats, at $1.25

J. Goodridge, 4| do 100 m
Brown & Curry, Edmonton, 3 bush, oats, $3; ammunition, &20

J. A. McDougall & Co., Edmonton, oats, 16$f bush., at $1,

$16.42 ; 12*1 bush., at 65c, $8.30 .........

A. D.Osborne, Edmonton, 13 bush, oats, $16.25; 2 trips to

Boggy Plains, $5.....

Kingston Powell, 3,400 lbs. hay
A. D. Macdonald & Co., Edmonton, 22$ bush, oats

L. Larocque, 2 tons hay """•-

Do

34 20
5 38
3 00

$ cts.

4,300 00

5,885 42
40 00
130 00
8 00
10 00
25 00
50 00
50 00
50 00
50 00
10 00
3 00
40 00
80 00
10 00

114 00
12 75
51 50
10 00
3 00
13 75

163 10

38 25

42 58
25 00
2 50
14 25
6 25
56 50
45 00
20 00
13 50
31 25
4 75
23 00

24 72

21 25
17 00
33 75

20 00

$ cts.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1886

Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray

expenses, &c.

—

Continued. .

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS— Continued.

Scouts and Couriers—Continued.

O. Osborne, 1 canoe for scouting
Norris & Carey, Edmonton, 100 cartridges, $1.50; 3 boxes

primers, 45c •

W. G. Ross, 16-lb. trade ball

J. Chase, Fort Saskatchewan, repairing arms
41 Special Constables " at Edmonton

—

1 sergeant and 18 men, pay •

Pay for horses ;»
Compensation for disabled horse, $25.50 ; medicine, $6

Transport Servicb.

®. Labrican, Calgary, freighting 21,320 lbs. between Calgary

and Edmonton, at 8c - <

P. Laboocane, freighting

—

12,060 lbs., Calgary to Edmonton, at 8c
330 do Red Deer, at 4c

$ cte.

213 00
375 00
31 50

Mrs. Gardipie, freighting 5,040 lbs., Calgary to Edmonton, at 8c.

S. La Marsh, freighting—
4,171 lbs., Calgary to Edmonton, at 8c

944 do Red Deer, at 4c. -

T. McNicol, freighting 40 sacks oats, Saskatchewan Landing to

Swift Current •

Stewart & Earl, 100 teams, 4,308 days, at $6. 50

Thos. Howard, 74 do 4,664 do 6.50......

Howard & Co, 98 do 5,806 do 6.60

Sinclair & Flanagan—
54 teams, 5,722 days, at $8
19 do 1,779 do 7

Manitoba Cartingand Warehousing Co., 12 teams, 432 days, at $8

Armitt & Kelly, 99 teams, 7,294 days, at $6.50

Rockwood Teams, 36 teams, 1,466 days, at $8
Portage la Prairie, 41 teams, 1,167 days at $8
Battleford "B. "—

49 teams, 1,432 days, at $8
16 do 565 do 7

6 carts, 347 do 3

964 80
13 20

333 68
37 76

45,776 00
12,453 00

Battleford " B. B.»—
10 teams, 251 days, at $8
4 do 116 do 7

6 carts, 119 do 5

8 do 739 do 3

5 teams, under paid, 231 days.

Battleford " E."—
29 teams, 802 days, at $6....

2 do 18 do 8....

Battleford " F."—
1 team, 60 days, at $8.00.

4 teams, 111 do 7.00.

1 do 29 do 6.50.

11 * do 369 do 6.00.

1 do 301 do 5.00.

Battleford " U.," 50 teams, 810 days, at $5
do " W.," 46 teams, 1,093 days, at $5.,

Moose Jaw « C."—
4 teams, 105 days, at $6.
20 carts, 280 do 3

11,456 00
3,965 00
1,041 00

812 00
595 00

2,217 00
231 00

4,812 00
144 00

480 00
777 00
188 50

5,214 00
152 50

630 00
840 00

$ cts.

25 00

1 95
4 00
30 00

619 50

54

1,705 60

978 00
403 20

371 44

40 00
28,002 00
30,316 00

37,739 00

3,456 00
47,411 00
11,728 00

16,452 00

5,863 00

4,956 00

3,812 00
4,050 00
5,465 00

1,470 00

$ cts

12,229 52



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1885

Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defrajr

expenses, &e.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS—Continued.

Transport Service—Continned.

^Qa'Appelle « E."-
47 teams, 1,389 days, at $10 ; less $17 for rifle.,

2 do 79 do 8

2 do 12 do 5 «

Qu'Appelle " F."—
14 teams, 212 dajs, at $10.

1 team, 20 days, at $8 ....

fioy " B. B.»-
22 teams, 296$ days,
2 do 66 do
1 do 7 do

Troy "B. B. B."—
5 teams, 158 days,
25 do 1,154 do
15 do 280$ do
5 do 76 do

at $ 8.

10.

7.

at $10.00.
8.00.

7.00.

6.50.

Troy "B. B. B. B."—
1 team, 44 days, at $10 00.

8.00
7.00.

6.50.

6 00.

5.00.

4.50.

21 teams, 772 do
2 do 73 do
5 do 52 do
2 do 8 do
6 do 83 do
1 team, 4 do

Troy " D. D.," 3 teams, 18 days, at $7.00.

Troy M D. D. D. D."—
12 teams, 98$ days, at $6.50
4 do 36 do 7.00

Troy «« E."-
23 teams, 422 days, at $6.
1 do 46 do 5.

Troy " F."—
20 teams, 762 days, at $8.00.

5 do 179 do 7.50.

15 do 710 do 7.00.

6 do 62 do 6 50.

Troy " V."—
1 team, 40 days, at $7
2 teams, 67 do 6

28 do 931 do 5
1 team, 57 do 1. ......

Troy " W.," 11 teams, 316 days, »t $5
do " X. X.," 19 teams, 290 days, at $5.
do " Y. Y.,"22 do 795 do 5,

do 15 do 493 do 8.

Pay-rolls, vouchers absent (Statement 9).

Sundry pay-rolls

—

9 teams, 880 days, at $8
1 team, 46 do 7

2 teams, 46 do 5

13).Teaming (Voucher ab3ent, V. 115, st.

Between Calgary and Edmonton—
8 4-horse teams, 266 days, at $12,...

11 do 293 do 9...

48 2-horse teams, 1,200$ days, at $8.

37 do 863 do 6

$ cts.

13,873 00
632 00
60 00

2,120 00
160 00

2,372 00
660 00
49 00

1,580 00

9,232 00
1,963 50
494 00

440 00
6,176 00
511 ©0
338 00
48 00

415 00
18 00

640 25

252 00

2,532 00
230 00

6,096 00

1,342 50
4,970 00
403 00

280 00
402 00

4,655 00
57 00

7,040 00
322 00
230 00

3,192 00
2,637 00
9,C04 00

$ cts.

14,565 00

2,280 00

3,081 00

13,269 50

7,946 00
126 00

892 25

2,762 00

12,811 50

5,394 00
1,580 00
1,450 00
3,975 00
3,984 00

21,100 46

7,592 00
184 00

$ cts.

55



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No, 50.) A. 1888

Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray

expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS—Continued.

Transport Sbrvicb— Continued.

Between Calgary and Edmonton—
8 carts, 168 days, at $4.00

70 do 1,788 do 3 50

61 do 1,528 do 3.00

3 transport officers, 98 days, at $4.

D. McLeod, team hire , ...

4 waggon masters, 187 days, at $4.

1 cart driver, 9 days, at $2
1 head herder, 40 days, at $4

24 herdere, 698 days, at $3.50

6 cooks, 208 do 2.00

Between Calgary and Fort Pitt—
17 4-horse teams, 1,618 days, at $12
1 do 38 do 9.

72 2-horse teams, 6,400 do 8.

2 carts, 202 days, at $4.00

1 horse, 92 do 1.50

2 transport officers, 192 days, at $5.

3 waggon masters, 237 days, at $4...

1 farrier, 88 days, at $5
1 blacksmith, 90 days, at $1.50

1 herder, 89 d»ys, at $4
18 herders, 1,464 days, at $3.50

1 cook, 89 days, at $2 50

1 do 94 do 2.00

Less—deducted for horse shoeing

Between Calgary, Edmonton and Fort Pitt—
1 4-horee team, 76 days, at $12

3 2-horse teams, 247 do 8

2 herders, 194 days at $3 50

1 cook, 96 days, at $2

Calgary, Edmonton and Red Deer—
2 4-horse teams, 63 days, at $12

1 do 18

1 2-horse team, 26

1 do 18

1 waggon master,24

do
do
do
do

Calgary and Fort McLeod

—

1 4-horse team, 10 days,

10 do 48 do
12 2-horse teams, 94 do

at $12.
10

8.

Calgary and Red Deer—
4 2-horse teams, 51 days, at $8
Cart driver, 16 days, at $1.75.

Calgary, Edmonton and Willow Creek—
1 2-horse team, 39 days, at $8
1 do 22 do 6

Edmonton and Fort Pitt

—

1 4-horse team, 60 days, at $12.

38 2-horse teams, 2,352 days, at

Oats for 2 teams

Edmonton and Red Deer

—

1 4-horse team, 14 days at $12.

14 2-horse teams, 156 do 8,

8 do 88 do 6.

$ cts

672 00

6,258 00
4,584 00
392 00
40 00
748 00
18 00
160 00

2,443 00
416 00

19 416 00
342 00

51,200 00
8C8 00
138 00
960 00
948 00
440 00
135 00
356 00

5,124 00
222 50
188 00

80,277 50

24 25

912 00
1,976 00
679 00
192 00

756 00
162 00
208 00
108 00
96 00

120 00
480 00
752 00

408 00
28 00

312 00
132 00

720 00
18,816 00

8 08

168 00

1,248 00
528 00

$ cts.

36,342 00

$ cts.

80,253 25

3,759 ©0

1,352 00

436 00

444 00

19,544 08

56
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray

expenses, &o.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS- Continued.

Transport Service—Continued.

Edmonton and Red Deer

—

3 carts, 36 days, at $4.00
Forage and rations .

Edmonton, Calgary and Victoria

—

3 4-horse teams, 183 days, at $12
8 2-horse do 249 do 8

Edmonton and Victoria

—

3 2-horse teams, 23 days, at $3 ...

Horse hire, $24.50; veterinary charges, $6

Edmonton and Port Saskatchewan, 11 teams.

do and Peace Hills, 6 teams
do Fort Saskatchewan and Lac la Biche.

do and Lac la Biche, 1 team
do and Red Deer, 1 horse

Fort McLeod and Medicine Hat, 2 teams
Calgary and Medicine Hat
Saskatchewan and Hudson Bay Co.'s Ferry—

102 teams, 825 days, at $6.50
10 do
9 carts,

8 do
5 do
1 herder,

170
99
64
80
23

do
do
do
do
do

6.00
4.00.
3.00
2.50.

2.50.

and courier service betweenA. House, cart hire, scouting
Edmonton and Lac la Biche

Sundry teaming—
1 team, 24dys.,at$9.00, $216; 4 teams, 162 dys., at $8, $1,296
1 do 6 do 6.50, 39; 3 do 22 do 6, 132

2 do 45 do 5.00, 225; 1 cart 31 do 1, 31

Teaming at Calgarv, $372 ; at Edmonton, $162
do Troy, $24; at Red Deer, $505
do Prince Albert

Bonuses of $10 each to teamsters ...

Compensation to 18 teamsters for injuries to horses, &c.
3 depot clerks at Prince Albert, 154 days, at $2 50

2 guides, 16 days, at $6 00
1 guide, 15 do 2.00....

3 waggon masters, 154 do 3 50..^ ...

1 waggon master, 8 do 3 <>0

1 do 11 do 2.00

2 herders,

3 do

2 cooks,
1 cook,

28

43

do
do

do
do

4 00..

U.00.,

2.50..

1.00...

2 butchers, 5 days each
2 drivers, 56 do at $1.75.
4 watchmen, 16 do at 3.50.

3 do 46 do at 2.00.

Labor, Calgary, $47.50; Qu' Appelle, $91 ; Saskatchewan, $95.05
Qu'Appelle Valley Farming Co.

—

39 tons loose hay, at $20 „
193| do baled do 22

Leeson & S<ott, Qu'Appelle

—

5 tons bay at Touchwood, $250 ; 15 tons at Houghton, $525
Meals, $8; feed, $10 50; stage fares, $37
Horse hire, $99 ; conveyance of mail, $175

$ cts.

144 00
35 96

2,196 00
1,992 00

184 00
30 50

5,362 50
1,020 00
396 00
192 00
280 00
57 50

1,512 00
171 00
25S 00
534 00
529 00

3 25

539 00
24 00
22 00

112 00
136 00

170 00
43 00

56 00
92 00

780 00
4,264 35

775 00
55 50
274 00

57

$ cts,

2,123 98

4,188 00

214 50
244 00
148 00
390 00
76 00
15 00

368 00
40 00

7,308 00

535 00

3,005 25
230 00

1,890 00
385 00
96 00
30 00

585 00

248 00

213 00
15 00
98 00

148 00
233 55

5,044 35

1,104 50

$ cts.

50—5
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS—Continued.

Transport Service— Continued.

Fraser Tims

—

Pony, cart and harness, $100; team hire, $139.50
Ferriage at Saskatchewan Landing <

Freighting, Switt Current to Saskatchewan Landing, 6,410

lbs

2 saddles and bridle, $45; neck yoke and strap, $10
Freight on horses, $12; stabling, $18
Labor, $3 ; reward tor finding horses, $5
Carrying mail, $6; lumber, twine and nails, $7.05....-

Wm. Schoutts, Winnipeg,~9 tons hay, at $17.50

J. L. Mclnnis, Winnipeg, 40 bush, oats

N. Bawlf, Winnipeg, 112 lbs. hay, $1.68; 224 lbs. oats, $4.48.

G. A. Kerr, transport of Riel and escort, Saskatchewan to

Moose Jaw

—

5 double teams. 9 days each, at $8
3 single buckboards ~

J. A. Carson, Edmonton, 39§£ bush, oats, at $1.10.

C.Sanderson do 24|f do barley.
J.Coleman do 69 a ays' horse hire

J. McDonald, 1 cart collar and harness ,.

W. Macdonnell, Peace River, 9 sacks potatoes
F. Lucas, Peace Hills 3 bags do
G. Murdoch, Calgary

—

Repairs to harness
Fly nets, $17.25 ; neck-yokes, &c, $3

$ cts.

239 50
821 66

64 10
55 00
30 00
8 00
13 05

360 00
90 00

J. S- Gibb & Co., Calgary, rope , «

R. McLellan, 10 tons hay
S. W. Trott, Calgary, drugs
G. C. King & Co., 370 lbs. rope, $55.50 ; 36 boxes axle grease,

$12.60
J. McBwen, Troy, horseshoeing „

J. Gilmour, Moose Jaw, saddlery
O. B. Fysh do blacksmithing, $62.90 ; 6 hay raeks, $30
L. Langis, Qu' Appelle—

1$ cords wood
Forwarding cases sent by ladies

J. Murphy, teamster
J. J. McLean, Moose Jaw

—

43$ lbs. chewing tobacco, $21.75; 1 caddie T & B, $10.75...

18 boxes axle grease, $3,60; labor, $14.80
Candles, 40c. ; soap, *4 ;

provisions, $58.20 ,

93 50
20 25

12 00
91 50

McManus House, Qu' Appelle, 34 meals.
C. Gauthier, reward finding pony.
Baker & Lee, Moose Jaw, 6 doz. axle grease
F. Plante, Moose Jaw, 24 pairs blankets
A. M. McLean, Qu' Appelle

—

Rent of stables, 3£ months «.

Use of blacksmith shop ....

1 set of harness, $30 ; 2 tons hay, $24...

Ourry Bros., Swift Current

—

1 case axle grease, $9.60 ; horse brushes, &c.,$1.40.
Oilcloth, $2.75; twine, $1.20
Toola, $6.25; nails and tacks, $1.70
Bolts, $1.50; camp outfit, $23.50

D. J. Campbell, Prince Albert, 1$ tons hay
P. Fraser, do hay for horses, $6 ; coming and

going for horse, $5 ,

J. L. Johnson & Co. do carpenters' tools-

J.R. McPhail do do
58

32 50
18 40
62 60

134 00
42 40
54 00

11 00
3 95
7 95

25 00

$ cts.

1,231 31
157 50
25 15
6 16

450 00
43 87
24 64
69 00
4 00

•11 75
4 50

113 75

2 00
400 00
35 53

68 10

56 25
49 30
92 90

106 50
37 35

113 50
17 00
5 00

18 00
75 00

230 40

47 90
40 00

11 00
15 00
8 20

$ cts.
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Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray

expenses, &c.

—

Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS— Continued.

Transport Service—Continued.

Prince Albert Times, printing

J. Meade, Prince Albert, making pack saddle .........

G P. Murray, Qu'Appelle, 3 tons hay «

W. McLean do 1 neck yoke ,..

Crawford & Robinson, Indian Head

—

8£ tons hay, $165; 4 doz. timebooks, $6
2 galls, coal tar, 75c. ; 2 lbs. horseshoe nails, 40c.

J. Harris, Qu'Appelle, veterinary surgeon
J. B. Milliken, harness and repairs

S. H. Caswell, Troy, 4 whips, $3.50 ; rope, 85c. ; fry pans, $7.

W. Walker, Qu'Appelle, 1 cord wood
G. Thorburn, herding, &c t

J. W. Rigby, 94 days' paymaster of teams, at $4.50

A. Wismer, Troy, coal oil and can, $1.60 ; cups, &c, $5.50....

G. H. V. Bulyea, Leopold, 815 Vo*. bread, at 6c

R. Wilso'i, Beaver Oreek, 6 tons hay ...

W. Walsh, Moose Jaw, wood, $8 ; hay-racks, $15 ; feed, $9 75

R. Alexander do 1 tent, $15; checking freight, $3 ,

L. W. Mulholland, Troy, 1 set double harness, $40; horse hire,

$5
W. Gibson, Troy, 2 cords wood
O W. Evans, Qu'Appelle, blacksmithing
A. Smith, Troy, repairing buckboard
Lyman, Sons & Co., Moose Jaw, medicines
Ottawa House. Moose Jaw, 453 meals, at 35c
A. McKenzie, Moose Jaw, blacksmithing
R. Bogue, Moose Jaw

—

8 axes. $10; 3 doz, axle-grease, $7.20 ,

Rope, $4.35; camp outfit, $60.85

$ cts

171 00
1 15

17 20

65 20

Meals and forage at Calgary ,

do do Edmonton
Repairs to waggons, Calgary -.

do do Edmonton
Horse shoeing at Calgary
Pte. O. Coombe, "C " Company, reward for repairing whistle

on "Northcote"
H. Bolster, drawing contracts and other instruments between

Government and Mr. Sinclair, for freighting, &c

Scows and Flat Boats.

G. A. Simpson, Edmonton—
1 ferry scow, $300 ; 1 capstan, $20
1,000 ft. wire rope, $160 ; 76 lbs. manilla, $11.40
8 blocks, $18.80 ; freight on cable, $52.56
Freight charges

320 00
171 40
71 36
3 25

J. M=Lestanc, St. Albert—
Oakum, $2 ; tarred rope, $3.25
Making 131 lbs. oakum

J. McDonald, Edmonton, 1 skiff, $30; 1 day's work, $5 .

Brown & Curry, 150 cotton bags, $27; carpenter's tools, $28.45

W. Smith, Red Deer, carpenter's work
D. W. McKeuzie, Red Deer, lumber
D. Thorburn, carpenter's work
2 men towing scow at Red Deer
D. Noyes, rope
F. Lamoureux, fitting scows with aprons
A. D. Osborne, 3 bush, potatoes
A. MacDonald & Co, 75 lbs. spikes *

W. Humberstone, fuel • ......

J. D. Snell, teaming and labor
2 scouts, 4 days each, at $3 M

59

5 25
32 75

$ cts

9 50
5 40

45 00
2 00

172 15
186 10

15 50
11 35
4 00
47 00
423 00

7 10

48 89
240 00
32 75

18 00

45 00
8 00

122 25
3 00
5 90

158 55
54 00

82 40
585 25

55 50
10 00
55 34
9 00

50 00

25 00

566 01

38 00
35 00
55 45
6 00

65 16
8 00
10 00
56 00
25 0J
3 00
9 3(
2 00

85 00
24 00

$ cts*

553,319
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)

A. 1686

Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c .

—Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS- Concluded.

Scows and Flat Boats— Concluded.

T. McKay, lumber
2 men, 3 days at Edmonton, making trade balls

57 boat builders and carpenters

Ferrying, Road Makimg, &c.

J Walter, ferrying at Edmonton
F. Lamoureux, ferrying at Fort Saskatchewan
6. Hamilton do Bow River
T. Bannerman do Red Dt er

J. M. Davis, Calgary, 10 days supt. of construction of scow
J. Stewart do 1,400 ft. timber
R. W. McClellan, lumber for Red Deer ferry
Drawing do do
S. T. Searlett (at McGibbon Bridge), meals and grain, $15

:

labor, $10
F Greenwood, Edmonton, 2\ tons hay .......

K. Cameron, meals, hay and bedding
9 men making road, 90 days, at $1.50 *.

12 do repairing Battle River bridge. _.....

9 do \\ days each, repairing roads
1 man, with team, 2 days, at $12
6 men, telegraph and bridge construction, 71| days, at $4.50...
W. Bird, Edmonton, horse hire

Norris k Carey, supplies. s

A. Macdonald, Edmonton, paint, $3; carpenter's tools, $10.40.,

S. Watson, toll on Pine Creek bridge

Total Hudson Bay Company Payments.

$ cts $ cts

121 71

24 00
1,688 25

804 85
198 85
174 40
72 50
50 00
350 00
68 00
6 00

25 00
25 00
25 00

135 00
18 00
27 00
24 00

322 90
3 00
2 91
13 40
9 00

$ cts.

2,821 95

2,354 81

611,671 74

SUMMARY OF HUDSON BAY COMPANY STATEMENTS.

Unsettled July 1st, 1885 (Auditor General's Report, p. 498)
Hudson Bay Co. supplies

do payments.
Commission, 5 per cent, on payments .....

Bank charges on dratts

Less—Balance unsettled .... ,

65,852 65
48,970 6i

611,671 74
30,583 59

6,497 33

763,575 94
63,575 94

700.0C0 00

60
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board op Civil Service Examiners,

Ottawa, 25th January, 1886.

Sir,—In obedience to the Kules governing this Board, I have the honor of send-

ing yon herewith a Eeport oftheir proceedings for the year ending the 31st December

last, embracing :

—

1. A statement of the number of candidates, of all classes, present at the

•xaminations in May, 1885.

2. A similar statement of the candidates present at the examinations in Novem-

ber of the same year.

3. A complete set of the examination question papers, submitted to the

candidates at the examinations in May.

4. A similar set of those used at the examinations in November.

5. Lists of the successful candidates in May.

6. Ditto of the candidates in November.

*7. A statement of the special examinations held during the year.

1 have the honor to be, Sir,

Your obedient servant,

P. LeSUEUE,

Secretary.

The Honorable

J. A. Chapleau,

Secretary of State.
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—
i

REPORT
OF THE BOARD OP

CIVIL SERVICE EXAMINERS
FOE THE YEAK ENDED 31st DECEMBER, 1885.

The Honorable

J. A. Chapleau,

Secretary of State.

Sir,—The undersigned Commissioners, under the Civil Service Act of 1882 and

its amendments, charged with the duty of examining persons desirous of obtaining

employment in the Civil Service of , Canada, beg respectfully to report, that during

the year ended the 31st December, 1885, they held and personally superintended the

several examinations required by the Act to be held, at Ottawa, Montreal and

Toronto, and by employing sub-examiners, caused similar examinations to be held at

Halifax, N.S., St. John, N.B., Charlottetown, P.E.I., Quebec, Kingston, Hamilton,

London, Winnipeg and Victoria, B.C.

The spring examinations began, as usual, with the Preliminary or lower grade,

which was held on Tuesday, the 12th of May. This was followed on the 13th and 14th

by the QualifyiDg or higher grade, and on the 15th and 16th by the examination in

Optional Subjects.

The number of Candidates in attendance at the Preliminary Examination was :

At Halifax, N.S 7

At St. John, N.B ; 6

At Charlottetown, P.E.I 1

At Quebec 18

At Montreal.... 74

At Ottawa 56

At Kingston 11

At Toronto 47

At Hamilton 13

At London
, ...., 11

At Winnipeg , 6

At Victoria, B.C 2

In all 252

50a—
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At the Qualifying or Higher Grade Examinations, there were Candidates,

present, viz. :

—

At Halifax, N.S . 8

At St. John, N.B 33

At Charlottetown, P.E.I 6

At Quebec < 14

At Montreal 80

At Ottawa 80

At Kingston 21

At Toronto 65

At Hamilton 15

At London 37

At Winnipeg n
At Victoria, B.C 2

327

Of these 63 had taken the Preliminary Examination, so that the total number of

Candidates present will be as under :

—

Preliminary ' 252

Qualifying 372

Less those who had taken the Preliminary 63

309

Total number present 561

From among the Qualifying Candidates 133 came up for Optional Subjects, of

whom 45 gained 1 each, 9 gained 2, 2 gained 3, and 2 gained 4.

On the Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday of the following week a Promotion

Examination was held at the various places where there were vacancies to be filled.

From the Inside Service at Ottawa 47 Candidates came forward, and from the Outside

Service, 37—in all, 84, of whom 55 were successful.

Pursuant to an Order in Council, a special class Excise promotion examination

was held in Montreal and St. John, N.B., commencing on the 17th August, when 4

candidates in the former place and 2 in the latter presented themselves. As on

previous occasions of Promotion (Excise) Examinations, the work of the Candidates

(which was almost altogether of a technical character) was submitted to experts for

inspection and valuation, and the ascertained results reported to the Secretary of

State.

Concurrently with the Special Class Excise Promotion Examination at St. John,

N.B., one Candidate from Halifax for the office of Gauger in the Custom House of

that city was also examined, and his work was, in like manner, reported to the

Secretary of State.
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The Fall Examinations began with the Preliminary on Tuesday, the 10th day of

November. This was followed on Wednesday and Thursday by the Qualifying, and

on Friday and Saturday by the examination in Optional Subjects;

The number of candidates at the Preliminary Examination was :

—

At Halifax, N.S 6

St. John, N.B 10

Quebec * 12

Montreal 69

Ottawa 56

Kingston 6

Toronto 54

Hamilton 22

London • 20

Winnipeg 8

Victoria, B.C ~ 1

264

The number of Candidates present at the Qualifying Examination was :

—

At Halifax 9

St. John, N.B 24

Charlottetown 3

Quebec 20

Montreal * 42

Ottawa 96

Kingston - 1*

Toronto 50

Hamilton 21

London • 22

Winnipeg ^
Victoria, B.C 7

322

Deduct Candidates who came up for this examination as well as

for the Preliminary - 58

264

Add Preliminary Candidates 264

Total numbe/in attendance 528

3

50a—1J
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At the examination in Optional Subjects, 100 candidates came up, of whom 21

gained, each, one option, five gained 2 each, and one gained 3.

In connection with the Qualifying Examination at Toronto, one candidate was

specially examined for the office of Financial Inspector, in connection with the

Department of Customs, and his work was reported to the Secretary of State.

We have the honor to be Sir, your obedient servants,

J. THOEBUKN, LL.D., Chairman.

A. D. DeCELLES.

P. LeSUEUK, Secretary.

Board of Civil Service Examiners,

Ottawa, 23th January, 188t>.
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MAT, 1885.

Papers Submitted to the Candidates.

No. 1.

CIVIL SEEVICE OP CANADA.

PRELIMINARY OR LOWER GRADE EXAMINATION.

60

60

Tuesday, 12th May, 1885, from 10 a.m. to 10.45.

Candidates are required to observe the Regulations strictly.

PENMANSHIP.

Copy the following :

—

A great deal of talk has been going on lately about the Congo Confer-

ence, and it may not be amiss to state what it all means. Stanley first

thoroughly explored the valley of the Upper Congo and established a

route. He was then, as representative of the Belgian Geographical

Society, together with Mr. de Brazza acting for the French Government,

commissioned to examine the country more minutely, which he did, and

established trading stations along the river, so forming the country into a

Franco-Belgian territory. Now Portugal steps in and claims it by right of

ancient discovery and occupation. Other European Powers decline to

recognize her claim, and on various pretexts of treaties with the native

Princes, and of explorations, put in claims for themselves—hence the

Conference. The country seems to be a fertile and salubrious one, and as

a railway through it is already projected, we may soon hear of a large

emigration thereto.

No. 2.

Tuesday, 12th May, 1885, from 10.45 a.m. to noon.

ORTHOGRAPHY.

This exercise is purposely mis-spelled, and the duty of the Candidates

will be to correct the errors. For every mistake 3 marks will be deducted.

PAWPERISM.

Pawperism is sayed to be on the increese. If so, it is not dificult to

find the reeson. It is the old storey of intemprance, idelness and waist—
of opportunities throne away and of good advice unheeded. Parants may

have done their dooty fathefully by givpg their childrin good council

and settin befoar them good exampels, yet in manny instances mstad of

apreciating theese advantages, the young think they must doo as others

doo, and enjoy dangerous and perhapps and unlawfull pleazures, if only for

a seeson. In time, and often when two lait, they find out that, after all,

the ril£ way is not onley better, but in reallity eesier, than the wrong, and

that it is that alone witch brings trew appiness. The missery is that the

bad habbits formed meenwhile are very stuborn, and therefour hard to

overcome. Still, ther is no cause for despare, for thousans have overcome,

and with Divine help and good courrage anny one may.
5
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No. 3.

Tuesday, 12th May, 1835, from 1.30 to 3 p.m.

ARITHMETIC.

State in words the sums given below in figures:

Value.
60

10

10

10

1st line

2nd "

3rd "

4th "

5th "

6th "

130,000.005

1,000,000,000

1,100,022

33,333,333,333

17,001

10,000,010

2. Add up the above figures.

3. Add up the following in Dollars and Cents
Dollars. Gents.

100,231,999.33

19,888,111.05

1,777,222.58

18,996,444.21

113,658,199.87

211.01

4. Subtract the top line from the lower one:
299,558,672,413

300,699,783.304

5. Multiply the following line of figures by 6k
8,182,838,485,868,878

6. Divide the following line of figures by 9

9) 199,666,999,888,999,777
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No. 4.

Preliminary or Lower Grade Examination.

Tuesday, 12th May, 1835, 3 p.m. to 4 p.m.

reading print and manuscript.

The reading was accomplished by using some of the printed and some of the

written matter.

No. 5.«

Qualifying or Higher Grade Examination.

Wednesday, 13th May, 1835, from 9.30 am. to 10.30 a.m.

The Candidates are required to observe the Eules strictly.

PENMANSHIP.

Value

100.

Copy the following

:

The hou8e occupied by Gibbon, and in which he wroteJ^"*
{"Jf

°f

his immortal work, is still in good preservation and is the!g»2? °^age
attraction to all travellers. « It was here "-to quote^^t\%S
in which Gibbon has perpetuated the memory ot the event— it was nere

on tie aay, or rather on the night of the 29th June, 1787, that I wrote the

?ast Unes of the last page of my history in a summer-house in my
,

garden

After laving down my pen I took several turns m a covered walk which

commas *a prospe/t
P
f the country, ^e lake and the mountain^ The

air was temperate, the sky was serene, the ^erorbof the moonwas

reflected from the water, and all nature was silent. I will not »le
the first emotions of joy on recovery of my freedom and perhaps th^estab

lishment of mv fame ; but my prido was soon humbled, and a sober meian

I cholywas spTe
y
au oTc my mind, by the idea that I had taken an ever ast

1 W leave ofVn old and agreeable companion, and that whatsoever might

bTthe future fate of my history, the life of the histor.au must be short

and precarious."

{From Guide to English Civil Service.)

Yalue.

15

No. 6.

Wednesday, May 13th, 1885, from 10.30 a.m. to noon.

COMPOSITION.

1. Change the following passage from the Indirect to the Direct form

°f9P
He

h
saidit was therefore his opinion that, if bis Majesty were to

applfthe gold aid silver, which now superfluously adorned his men to

thfl nnrnose of hiring an army from Greece, to contend with the Greeks, he

might hC someChances L success; otherwise he «
-
nc

.

rea.on

£

SSeot anything else than that his army should be defeated, as all others

ban been who had encountered the irresistible Macedonians.

7
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13

10

12

50

100

forIS^^^l**^* WOrd8 in th* ™°™g extracts

i^smed out of the^ °f
* «&^^s?^:^^^

3. Transpose the following passage of poetry into the order of prose :-
A chieftain's daughter seemed the maid:
Her satin snood, her silken plaid,
Her golden brooch, such birth betrayed.
And seldom was a snood amid
Such wild luxuriant ringlets hid

;

Whose glossy black to shame might bring
The plumage of the raven's wing.

4. bhow how the following sentence may be improved :—

instrui7offhr^
8pr°feSS °nLy

t0 Please '
the7 secretly advise and give

(toLS^l^^^tr^ him ^ *"-— * *• **

Yalues,

10

10

10

20

25

25

100

No. 7.

Wednesday, May 13th, 1885, from 1:30 to 3 p.m.

Note.— The work of each question must be fully giyen.

ARITHMETIC.

™»1 1:A man
,

in
J.n l^ l~

f his Capital in bank 8tock
> f ofthe remainder inreal estate and still has $6,000 left. Find his capital

\txJh tnt
a11 18 4

j\
feet long and lljfeetwide; what will it cost to coverit with a carpet 27 inches wide, at $1.75 per yard ?

3. A mechanic earns on an average $1.87* a dav and works 22 dav«per month; if his expenses are $25.75*a month, how^any years wilMttake to save $1,116, there being 12 months in the year?
J *

anH t

4/^^rade3+man marks his goods with two prices, one for ready monevand the other at credit of three months; what ratio ought the twoTricesto bear to each other, allowing 8 per cent, discount ?
S P

*mq wWhe30^ I)«?m
1̂

,1882 f abiU for $350 was discounted for$343
,
when was it nominally due at 10 per cent ?

b If a building society lends money at the nominal rate of 8 ner centpayable half-yearly in advance, what is the real rate of interest

T

"
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No. 8.

Thursday, 14th May, 1885, from 3 p.m. to 4 p.m.

GEOGRAPHY.

1. How many zones are there on the terrestrial globe, and where are

they situated ? What do the terms zodiac, ecliptic, promontories, straits,

peninsulas and archipelagos mean ?

2. Give the boundaries of the seven Provinces of Canada and enumer-

ate the principal railways and canals therein

.

3. Grive the names of three rivers in the Province of Quebec flowing

from the south and discharging their waters into the St. Lawrence; name
also the principal lakes and mountains of the same Province.

4. Name the principal cities and towns in the Province of Ontario,

and also its larger lakes and rivers.

5. What are the principal harbours, bays and basics of Nova Scotia

and New Brunswick ; the principal towns on the line of the Intercolonial

Kailway? What is the strait which separates New Brunswick from

Prince Edward Island ?

6. What are the principal lakes and rivers in Manitoba, and the chief

products of the Province ?

7. What are the principal straits, mountains and Islands in British

Columbia ?

8. What are the States and Territories of the American Union bound-

ing Canada at the east and west ?

9. What route would a vessel follow in passing from Chicago to Halifax,

N. S?
10. Name the States comprised in New England and their capitals.

No. 9.

Thursday, May 13th, 1885, from 9.30 a.m. to 11 a.m.

HISTORY.

ENGLISH.

1. Who was Richard, surnamed Coeur de Lion ? Why was he so char-

acterized, and how did he die?

2. With what Xing did the Stuart dynasty originate ?

3. In virtue of what relationship did James the 6th of Scotland ascend

the Throne of England—in other words, what was the connection between

the two Royal families ?

4. How long did James reigo, and who was his successor ?

5. State as concisely as you can the ca ises of the great civil war in

England between the Parliament and Royalists ?

FRANCE.

6. From what historical event did the name of "France " originate.

7. Who was the founder of the Royal (Capet) family ?

8. Briefly describe the Feudal System and state its disadvantages.

9. When was the first standing Army in France formed ?

10. Give some account of the Chevalier Bayard, when he lived and

how he died ?

9
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10

5

15

CANADA.

11. Was the liquor traffic in Canada at any time previous to its con-

quest by England the cause of any serious trouble ? If so, give as full an

account of the matter as you can.

12. What was the estimated number of immigrants from France into

Canada during the 130 years the country belonged to Prance ?

13. Give as fully as you can the terms ot the Capitulation by which

Canada became a British dependency.

No. 10.

Yalue.

11

14

14

21

Thursday, 14th May, 1885, from 11 a m. to 12 (noon).

ENGLISH GRAMMAR.

1. Into what classes are pronouns divided? Give the compound per

sonal pronouns. Distinguish between the use of who, which and that.

2. Give an example of that as a relative pronoun, as a pronominal

[adjective and as a conjunction. Mention a peculiarity about the relative

that in connection with the word on which its case depends;

3. Give the present and perfect participle of the following verbs :~-

bereave, bet, dare, rive, split, wake, wet.

4. What is meant by conjunctive adverbs? Give six examples o

fcTlGSG

5. Correct the following sentences, when necessary, giving you

reasons:

—

a. Was you present at the last meeting ?

True politeness has its seat in the heart.

32

100

6.

Thou art afraid—else, what ails you ?

It is generally understood that rain seldom or ever falls at Lima.

Give no more trouble than you can possibly help.

The Greeks, fearing to be surrounded on all sides, wheeled about and

halted, with the river on their backs.

Nor was Philip wanting in his endeavours to corrupt jDemosthenes

as he had most of the leading men of Greece.

Parse the following couplet :

—

Who would not sing for Lycidas ? He knew
Himself to sing, and build the lofty rhyme.

Yalue.

100

No. 11.

Thursday, 13th May, from 1.30 to 2.30 p. m.

ORTHOGRAPHY.

Copy the following extract, correcting the bad spelling but not chang-

ing words. Five marks will be deducted for every mistake.

Bacon's mynd was wonderfully quick in perceeving annalogies of all sorts,

but like sevral imminent men we coold mension, he sometimes appeered

exseedingly deficient in the power of distinguishing rashonal from fansiful

annalogies. This wont of ackurate discriminashion has led to manny strange

pollitical speculations. One othor dedused a theory of Goverment from

the propperties of the pyrramids and Southey's sistem of finnance is cheefly

grounded on the phennomenna of the evapporation and rane. In theollogy

10
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this pervarted injenuity has made still widler work. Grave divines have

freequeDtly ben led into expossitions ofscripture ofinconceeveable absurdity

by mear incappacity to distinguish annalogies proper from annalogies met-

taphorical; and espeshally the seperate treatise on the sublime and beauti-

full, though written on a subject which the coldest mettaphysician could

hardly treat without being occashonally betrayed into florrid writing, is

the most unadorned of all the works of Burke.

(English Civil Service Guide.)

No. 12.

Thursday, 13th May, 1885, from 2.30 to 3.30 p.m.

TRANSCRIPTION.

This was a lithographed manuscript paper, purposely interlined and altered,

from which neat and correct copies were to be made. It cannot, of^ourse, be

reproduced in print.

Yalue.

100

15

10

50

No. 13.

QUALIFYING EXAMLNATION.-OPTIONAL SUBJECTS.

Thursday, May 14th, 1885, from 3.30 to 4.30 p. m.

Candidates are required to observe the Regulations strictly.

FRENCH COMPOSITION.

(For candidates who have taken English composition in the Qualifying

Examination.)

1. Conjuguez a toutes les personnes du singulier et du pluriel, le verbe

se tromper, a l'inndicatif present

2. Corrigez les phrases qui suivent :

—

(a.) Personne peut esperer reussir dans une entreprise sans travailler.

(b.) Pensez-vous que votre maitre veut laisser vous alier avec moi ?

(c.) Je ne veux pas permettre vous de faire cela.

3. Donnez la forme du discours direct au passage qui suit :

—

" II est heureux de revoir son fils et il constate avec plaisir qu'il a fait

de grands progres dans ses etudes. II ne regrette pas les sacrifices qu'il

s'est imposes pour lui procurer une instruction qui le mettra en etat de

gagner honorablement sa vie."

4. Ecrivez uue lettre sur ce sujet :—Les consequences de la decouverte

de la vapeur. (La lettre devra contenir au moins 150 mots.

No. 14.

Friday, May 15th, 1885, from 9.30 to 10.30 a. m.

(English into French—for English Candidates.)

TRANSLATION.

Translate the following article into French:

—

Many a man has spent a life of hard work and business anxiety m order to

accumulate a large fortune, and before the task has been fully accomplished he has

11
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laid himself down, and left his accumulations, not to be shared by his friends and
legitimate heirs, but to be divided as plunder by the courts and the lawyers. A
fresh illustration has been recently furnished in connection with the estate of a New
York millionaire. He left a princely fortune, providing liberally in his will for his
best loved friends, but there was some legal technicality about a clause, or some
phrase which brought the legality of the whole into court, and there it was argued
and considered, and re-argued and re-considered until nearly the entire estate was
eaten up in costs. Of course the lawyers struck a rich vein, but the heirs struck it

poor. That is very much as it often goes. The principal remedy appears to be for a
man to be his own executor so far as bequests of any kind are concerned. However,
thousands of prosperous business men are cut down before the matter of bequests
begins to be considered.

No. 15.

| PRECIS.

Friday, 15th May, 1885, from 10.30 a.m. to 12.30 p.m.

Note.—The Candidates are expected to make a satisfactory Summary or Precis of this paper
within one quarter of the space it embraces.

1. Hudson's Bay, situated between 51° and 63° of North Latitude, is a vast sheet
of salt water measuring 1,300 miles in length, with an average width of about 600
miles. It occupies the centre of British North America, and drains a territory over
three millions of square miles in superficial extent. From Labrador, in the east, and
from the Rocky Mountains, in the west, numerous large rivers flow down through
Provinces, districts great as Provinces, and vast solitudes into this inland sea;
towards the south the extremity of its basin reaches to the sources of the Mississippi.
The average depth of this Mediterranean of Canada is seventy fathoms, as stated by
Lieutenant Chappelle, R.N., and such is the uniformity of the bottom that Dr. Bell,
of the Geological Survey, does not hesitate to assert that, if through any convulsion
of nature, the water were to retire, we should see an immense plateau similar to the
prairies of the West. There are no rocks or dangerous places to impede navigation

;

the western shore is low, and affords but one well sheltered, spacious and perfectly
safe harbour, Churchill, situated 200 miles from York Factory.

2. The temperature of the waters of Hudson's Bay in summer is 14° higher than
that of the waters of Lake Superior. Storms are very rare, and by no means
formidable, and no icebergs are ever to be met with; fogs are of rare occurrence and
short duration. The tide is first felt on the western shore, it runs down towards the
south and then up by the east shore. Certain winds are, it is asserted by many
persons, periodical.

3. Towards the south, a deep opening of the land forms James Bay, a kind of
prolongation of Hudson's Bay, situated 281 miles from Lake Superior. Its greatest
extent from north to south measures 360 miles, its average breadth is about 150
miles. The east coast is woody and the west low and swampy. The country east of
Hudson's Bay is extremely rich in iron ore, according to Dr. Bell. Anthracite is

also found there, and lignite in abundance on James Bay.
4. The waters of Hudson's Bay reach the Atlantic by way of Hudson's Strait, an

arm of the sea 500 miles in length, and with an average breadth of 100 miles. The
chief outlet of the Strait is only 45 miles wide, between Resolution Island and Button
Islands on the north coast of Labrador. The depth of water is over 340 fathoms in
the Strait. The current is very rapid and runs as high as 6 miles an hour. The
tide rises from 30 to 40 feet. The coast is very high and bold, especially towards
the north, the land in many places, as seen by navigators, attaining from 1,000 to
2,000 feet in height. Were it not for the presence of the polar ice, which comes

12
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down from the great Arctic seas by way of Fox Strait, during the months of April,

May, June and July, Hudson Strait would, it is admitted by all, be exceptionally safe,

awing to the uniform great depth of water and the entire absence of reefs or danger-

ous islands. These masses of ice, when emerging from the Strait, meet the icebergs

from Davis Straits and Baffin's Bay, and are thus retarded on their way to the ocean.

Ibis is the chief, if not the only obstacle, which impedes the navigation of the Bay and
greatly curtails its duration. The Circumpolar charts published by the Hydro-
graphical Office of the United States Navy Department, show the existence of a
current which passes round Greenland and shows itself to the east of Davis Strait,

running towards Baffin's Bay, and then down in the direction of Labrador, coming
in contact in its course, with the rush of waters from Hudson's Strait.

5. The Bay of Ungava, a sharp indentation of the Labrador coast, lies at the
Bastern end of Hudson's Strait. White porpoise are here to be found in such large

numbers, that according to eye-witnesses, in calm weather the water appears as

though it were agitated by a great wind. Salmon abound in ail the estuaries, and it

is known that the Hudson's Bay Company yearly export large quantities of frozen

salmon to the English markets. The same Company have a fort, Fort Chimo, where
they carry on a porpoise fishery on a small scale.

6. As regards the object in which we are now interested, that enquiry furnishes

us valuable information regarding the Navigation of Hudson's Bay. Thus the Com-
pany state that between 1719 and 1748, they had sent out two, three and even four

vessels a year, .and yet there is no mention made of a single disaster or the slightest

accident.

7. It would be curious to compare this enquiry, made nearly a century and a
half ago, with some of the evidence collected at the present time by your Committee.
It would be observed among other things, that the navigation of these unknown seas

was then characterized as safe and comparatively easy ;—now this facility of ap-

proach and this safety are found to be confirmed in our time. And if the number of

vessels sent out by the Company is less in our time, it is because since the establish-

ment of railways to the south of Manitoba, it cost them less to export by this route

a great portion of the goods that they formerly dispatched by way of Moose or York
Factory.

8. Besides it is shown by the evidence annexed to this Report, that Hudson's
Bay has for several years not been frequented only by vessels belonging to the Com-
pany, The hardy sailors of New England, periodically betake themselves to the

north part of the Bay to carry on the whale fishery, usually wintering on Marble
Island, and sailing back the following season with their vessels laden with a rich

booty. Mention is in fact made of an American who has established a post on
Hudson's Strait. Fishermen from Dundee, Scotland, also occasionally visit Hudson's
Bay*

9. It is well known that the question of navigating Hudson's Bay has suddenly
acquired a new importance. It is ever tbe problem of finding a North West passage,
not this time in order to reach the China seas, but to gam access to the immense
harvests of wheat which await, in the prairies of the west, the European buyer.

10. A large proportion of importation from Europe would take this road ; the
immigrants proceeding westward would see that they could shorten the annoyances,
the delays and the costs of a journey across the continent by some 800 to 900 mi'es;
the export of butchers' meats would alone furnish a considerable portion of the lading
of Hudson's Bay steamers ; and many persons are of opinion that this route would
command a considerable portion of the import and export trade of the north-western
States of the Union. We speak merely incidentally of the Hudson's Bay fisheries,

and of the working of the minerals, almost inexhaustible in their richness, which are
to be found there. To sum up the whole, Hudson's Bay appears to us to be destined
to perform the same service for the vast territories ot the North-West that the Gulf
of the St. Lawrence does for the vast and fertile valley bearing the same name.
Churchill is 2,926 miles from Liverpool ; Montreal is 2,990 via Cape Kace, and New
York, 3,040 ; there is, therefore, a difference of 64 miles over the route by Montreal,
and 114 miles over that by New York, in favour of Churchill.

13
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11. Ifwe sum up the evidence collected by the Committee, as to the present con-

dition of the navigation in Hudson's Bay and Strait, we find that the great majority of

those who have been there, and consequently who know, reckon the duration of

navigation in these waters at three and four months. For more than two hundred
and fifty years, sailors have counted upon having an uninterrupted navigation of from
two months and one-half to three months, and this without marine charts, without

an accurate knowledge of these waters, without lighthouses, without a system of tele-

graphic communication, and without the aid of steam. It is not then an unwar-

ranted belief, that with all the appliances now at the disposal of nautical science, this

navigation will be prolonged for some weeks.

12. There also results, from the evidence gathered by your Committee, a neces-

sity for the Government to examine a great number oi questions intimately con-

nected with the navigation of Hudson's Bay and Strait. Without the intervention

of the State this navigation will remain what it is at the present moment—uncer-

tain, of short duration, without any attraction for capitalists. In this direction,

several have set forth their opinions as to the nature of the examinations which the

Government might have made, and as to the organization and character of a proposed

surveying and exploring expedition.

13. They almost all agree in etating that these observations should cover a period

of at least three years, and should be conducted by means of observatories erected on

the shores of the Strait, as well as on certain places on the coasts of Hudson's Bay.

The information obtained cannot be said to form a complete examination of the

question ; but your Committee are satisfied if they have been able, by their efforts,

to contribute to the critical examination, and solution of a problem which will assure

to Canada an immense development of its marine, the monopoly of the traffic of the

North-West, and a fresh pledge of pr( sperity and grandeur.

The whole of which is respectfully submitted.

No* 16.

Friday, 15th May, 1885, from 1.30 p.m. to 4 p.m.

BOOK-KEEPING.

Noth.—The whole work involved in the subjoined statement must be completed, inclusive of a Trial

Balance. As neither Day nor Cash Book is to be used, the Journal must state ihe nature of

the transactions in full.

Statement,
\

The County of Smith has to repay in London, England, a loan of £20,000 stg.,

and for that purpose issues debentures to the extent of $100,000 in batches of $10,000
each, payable 5 years apart, viz ., on the 1st day of May of th^ years 1890, 1895,

1900, and each succeeding fifth year up to A.D. 1935.

The debentures bear 5 per cent, interest, and Messrs. Mills & Co., who are

employed to dispose of them, are to receive £ th.s of 1 per cent, commission (on the

face amount, of course).

The 1st batch of $10,000 sells at an average of $95 17 per $100.
« 2nd " "

" 3rd " »

" 4th
" 5th " "

lt 6th " "

< l 8th " "

" 9th " "

" 10th " "

14

95 79
95 86
96 03
96 31
96 66
96 65
96 98
97 30
97 55
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The Treasurer of the Corporation deposits the proceeds in the Bank of Ottawa,

od pavs Mills & Co. their commission by cheque.

Finding the net proceeds will not quite suffice to pay the £20,000 stg., the

'reasurer (pending the collection of taxos) obtains permission from the bank to over-

raw for what he may need. , m

He then buys Bills of Exchange on London at 60 days for £20,000 for which he

ays (by cheque on the Bank of Ottawa) 9£ per cent, (over the old par, of course).

Le remits the Bills to Morton & Co., London, with instructions to take up the bonds

for the £90,000).
Morton & Co. get the Bills of Exchange discounted at 5 per cent., and charge

iq interest (60 days) to the Municipality (the County of Smith) together with \ of

ne per cent, commission, which it is agreed they are to receive for their services.

Journalize, post, and show the condition of the accounts.

No. IT.

SHORTHAND.

Saturday, the 16th May, 1885, at such a time as the Examiner and the Candi-

ates may arrange as most convenient. In the absence of Candidates at the hours

Dotted to the Options (or some of them) on Friday the 15th, this subject may be

Seven (7) minutes will be allowed for taking the notes and 25 for extending

hem. The Examiner will have to be very precise in timing, and if the work is

one in less time than is allowed, he wiil mark the exact extent to \ of a minute on

he Candidate's papers.

Scientific Materialism a Fallacy,

Kev. Dr. Sexton, in introducing his subject, said that the form of skepticism

ionstantly changed, and the form which now had to be contended with was entirely

afferent to that in existence in the early part of the century. He divided the skep-

ticism of the present day into three classes—scientific skepticism, the skepticism

^hich denies the Divine authority of the sacred records, and that which deals more

particularly with the social side of mankind. It was of the first of these that he

purposed to speak. The form in which the skepticism of to-day made its attack on

-eligion, he said, was an entirely new one—a neutral position being taken, and the

ittack being made from the standpoint of ignorance. Those who took this stand

sailed themselves Agnostics—a word which seemed very profound but was almost

meaningless. They said : in effect, "We don't know whether there is a God or not,

ind you don't know either." The lecturer said there was a great deal of non-

sense talked on the ground that we have no direct sources of information as to the

earth and man's origin—revelation being rejected, and we being left to grope our

way among the phenomena of creation. The skeptic therefore said that theology

was a mere speculation ; while at the same time designating other great studies,

sciences. And if it could be shown that the prevailing ideas concerning God had

been arrived at by precisely the same means as were used in the great sciences, then

surely theology was entitled to be called a science, and the highest of all sciences.

If it was asked how the Copernican system of astronomy was arrived at,

no one could give a direct answer. The method was really by induction
;
the facts

were arranged and a theory was evolved from them and accepted as a truth when it

Bquared with the facts ascertained. If it could be shown that religion squared with

all the facts, then its truth was established. The lecturer drew a number of parallels

demonstrating the force of his assertions, and spoke upon the various experi-

ments made by supporters of both sides in the endeavour to prove their contention,

He had propounded to several leading Agnostics, without receiving a single answer,

15
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what may be very briefly set forth as follows : Some form of force, it was admitted,

must have been eternal ; its highest form was intelligence, therefore intelligence

was eternal ; intelligence involved consciousness, and consciousness involved person-

ality, therefore a conscious, intelligent, personal being—God—must have been

eternal. The lecturer met one by one the various objections urged by modern skep-

tics, giving logical and conclusive arguments in support of his contentions.

No. 18.

TELEGRAPHY,

Saturday, 16th May, 1885, or at such time as may be arranged between the

Examiner, the Candidate and the Telegraph office at which the test is to be made,
The Examiner will arrange for the test with the Officer in charge of the telegraph

office. '

The telegraph operator who supervises the test, will understand that 50 marks
are allowed for " sending," and 50 for " receiving." These marks mean high excellence

and lower ones will indicate the estimated measure of efficiency if the highest has

not been exhibited.

The operator will please mark the papers and return them by mail to the Secre-

tary of the Board of Civil Service Examiners at Ottawa, together with his account.

$2 is allowed for each candidate.

Receiving the following message :

—

Singleton, Dunn & Co.'s timber trade circular, dated Glasgow, 5th March, con-

tains the following statement respecting the present condition and the prospects of

the trade :

—

" A somewhat firmer tone prevails in the trade, and this is confirmed by the fact

that most of the sawmillers are fully employed—indeed some of them are busy. Since

our last several contracts for ships have been placed with builders, and a week ago
an important Government order for six boats was received by one firm, and it is

expected some even more important orders from the same source will find their way
here. In house building no sensible improvement is experienced

;
yet there are now

some very large contracts in the market which will absorb a considerable quantity
of wood. General business is very dull and this acts prejudicially on the consump-
tion of low qualities of deals. A spring trade is talked of and this may give a start

to things. Our Quebec trade is being more keenly than ever run with both Baltic

deals and timber and pitchpine. From both sources prices are quite easy, though
that is caused more by the abnormal depression in freights than by any lowering of

prices at ports of shipment. Contracting for all kinds of wood has shown fully an
average, though the Clyde has perhaps operated on a smaller scale than usual."

Send the following message :

—

Dr. Bergin has succeeded in getting Friday next fixed for the discussion of his

new Factory Act. The Bill as it now appears is different both from the Government
measure of last year and also from the Act which was first intoduced by the mem-
ber for Cornwall this session. It provides that children under thirteen years shall

not be employed in any factory ; that young persons, viz., all under the age of eigh-

teen years, and women shall not be employed for more than sixty hours per week.
All the clauses of the previous Bill relating to the education of children are expunged
from this measure as being an infringment of the powers of the Local Legislatures.

The rest of the Bill deals with protection from dangerous machinery j means of escape

in case of fire ; cleanliness of workrooms and proper sanitary arrangement.

16
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No. 19.

TYPE WRITING.

To betaken on Saturday, the 16th of May, 1886, at the time most convenient to
ho Examiner and the Candidates ; but if Friday is not altogether occupied with the
reatment of other Options, then this Option may be taken on that day.

The Candidates must furnish their own instruments, and they will be allowed
fom 5 to 10 minutes to do the work.

If done in a perfectly satisfactory manner in 5 minutes
they will be awarded 100 marks.

Jfin 6 minutes 90 "

If in T " 80 "
Ifin 8 " 70 "

Ifin 9 " 60 "
lfinlO " 50 "

All Options, this included, must merit 50 marks at least in order to success.

The work will be judged by time, accuracy and neatness, and the Examiners
rill be very particular in marking upon the paper of the Candidates the exact time
ccupied.

Copy the following article :

—

Q'he American Manufacturer, noticing the fact that the British Government htd
warded a firm in the United States the contract for a large Dumber of pumping
ngines to be used in forcing water through a line of four-inch pipe across the desert
etween Suakim and Berber, a distance of nearly three hundred miles, says:—"The
British Government is about the last one from which orders such as those mentioned
ould be expected—for two reasons ; first, because England is well supplied with
aanufactories, shipyards and skilled workmen ; and, second, because the people
iave heretofore entertained the idea that they were superior to all others in all

hings that are worth knowing or having. But it seems that our good cousins—with
11 their faults we love them still—have at last got their eyes open far enough to see
hat there are at least some things which their new-world relatives can do better
nd faster than they. And well it is that they have, for we fear that they will have

j

pretty lively tussle with the False Prophet if they do not make a liberal use of the
uggestions, the skill and the genius which are going to waste in the land of the free
nd the home of the brave." The Manufacturer expresses the opinion that thanks
re largely due to the policy of Protection in operation in the United States for
•ringing about such a reversal of the order of things as far as England is concerned.

No. 1.

CIVIL SEKVICE OF CANADA,

PROMOTION EXAMINATION, MAY, 1885.

Penmanship (30 Minutes.)

Candidates are required to observe the Regulations strictly.

Copy the following article :

—

Value. ! sunshine.

100 I Some of us will remember the old fashioned parlour, with curtains

j

closed all the year round, save perhaps on some special family gathering,

j

or when the minister made a pastoral call—which might be twice a year
and for half an hour on each occasion. The consequence was a damp

17
50a—
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room and an element of disease, which only the large proportion of out

door life could counteract.

Tho later generation is learning that not only ventilation but sunshine

is essential to healthy living in the house. Sun light and good air are as

much food for body and soul as are the meat and grain and vegetables we
eat.

Wo are too niggardly of sunshine. It cannot be too freely used.

There is no better physician than nature, no better doctor than sunlight.

We use too little judgment in its enjoyment. It is the gift of God and a

i great boon to man.
Open your windows ! What if your carpets fade and other ornaments

suffer! Your children in robust health are the noblest ornaments of the

household.
Your own health is of more consequence than all the bric-a-brac the

world can gather. If either must be sacrified let it be rather the inani-

mate things which are merely the adornments, not the elements of human
happiness.

—

Truth.

No. 2.

Yalues.

20

30

50

100

composition. (One hour and a half)

1. Show how the ambiguity of the following sentences may be reme-

died :

—

(a.) Arbitrary power I look upon as a greater evil than anarchy

itself, as much as a savage is a savage in a happier state of life than a

galley slave.

(b.) I have hopes that when W. confronts him, and all the ladies

on whose behalf he engages him cast kind looks and wishes of success

at their champion, he will have some shame.

2. In what respect are the following extracts objectionable ?

how they may be improved :

—

Show

(a.) The academy set up by Cardinal Eichelieu, to amuse the wits

of that age and country, and divert them from raking into his politics

and ministry, brought this into vogue : and the French wits have, for

this last age, been wholly turned to the refinement of their style and

language ; and, indeed, with such success that it can hardly be equalled,

and runs equally through their verse and their prose.

(b ") The Britons, daily harassed by the Picts, were forced to call

in the Saxons for their defence, who, after having repelled the invad-

ers, turned their arms against the Britons themselves, drove them into

the most remote and mountainous parts of the kingdom, and reduced

the greater part ot the island under their dominion, so that, in the

course of a century and a half, the country became almost wholly

Saxon in customs, religion and language.

3. Write an official letter to the Deputy Minister of your Department

in regard to some supposed irregularity that has occurred in your branch,

showing how it was discovered, what means have been taken to rectify it,

&c. (This letter to contain not fewer than 250 words.)

18
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No. 3.

Constitution of Canada— (B. N. Act.) 1 hour.

1. Which Government is entrusted with the defence of the country ?

2. What are the powers cf the Governor General ?

3. What are the causes for which a Senator may lose his seat ?

4. By what means can the Provincial Constitutions and the Federal
Constitution be amended ?

5. What Legislature posseseses the power to make laws on the follow-

ing subjects, viz., the regulation of trade and commerce ; navigation and
quarantine

,
property and civil rights ; banking, prisons, reformatories,

penitential ies, marriage and divorce ?

6. What are the provisions of the Act of 1867 regarding education ?

7. Can a resolution affecting the public chest be presented to the Senate ?

No. 4.

DUTIES—POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT. (1^ HoWS.)

Note—The " duties " question papers are prepared by the Deputy
Heads of Departments, who also judge of the answers.

1. Under what circumstances are redirected letters forwarded without
extra charge ?

2. What should be done with a letter having affixed thereon a postage
stamp which had been previously used ?

3. What are the limits in length and width of a packet of miscellane-

ous matter ?

4. What is the Post Office definition of a circular, and what is the rate

of postage thereon ?

5. In what way can book packets posted in Canada for delivery in the
Dominion be registered, and what is the fee ?

6. If a parcel be posted insufficiently prepaid, to what additional post-

age does it become liable ?

7. What should be done with an insufficiently prepaid registered letter ?

8. What is done with money contained in Dead Letters, the writer of

which cannot be found ?

9. What is the charge, if any, upon a Canada Post Card addressed to

the United States ?

10. Name half a dozen of the principal countries comprised in the
Postal Union and a similar number of those not in the Union.

11. Has the Postmaster General power to enter into contract for per-

formance ofMail Service without inviting tenders, and if so, within what
limit ?

12. Can the Postmaster General renew a mail contract, if so, for what
term, and upon what conditions ?

13. What power has the Postmaster General in respect to the convey-
ance of mails by Eailway ?

14. Give an outline of the duties of a P. O. Inspector.

15. State what you consider to be the principal duties of a City
Postmaster.

5a-2|
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No, 4.

Tuesday, 19th May, 1885, 2:30 to 4 p.m.

auditor-general's office—duties of the office.

1. Audit Act, section 29. Describe the parliamentary proceedings which take

place in carrying out this section.

2. Change the wording of section 30 of the Audit Act so as to make it agree

with the practice.

3. Compare the ideas involved in, and the appropriateness of, the phrases

Exchequer Account and Beceiver-General's Account.

4. Define any difference between the Consolidated Fund Account here and iit

England.
5. Give reasons for or against the part of section 50 of the Audit Act which

begins at Provided and ends at 'passed by him,

6. Describe and give reasons for the different duties of an examiner of the

account of the expenditure under departmental letters of credit,

7. Give briefly the history of Ways and Means.

8. What principles should be kept in view when classifying for Parliament the

accounts of the expenditure for the year.

Values.

10

6

10

100

No. 4.

department of marine—duties—(1 J hours.)

1. When was the Department of Marine formed, and what duties ar

imposed upon it by Acts of Parliament now in force ?

2. State the different Funds under control of the Department
what composed and how collected ?

3. Give a general idea of the nature of the work performed in the

Department.
4. Name the votes usually granted for the expenditure of the Depart-

ment, and state the nature of the service for which they are intended

.

5. Describe the mode of making payments by the Department.

6. State the method of keeping an account of the expenditure of the

Department, both with its officers and with the votes.

7. What is the nature of the returns respecting expenditure w*hich the

law requires to be made periodically to the Auditor General ?

8. What relation do Shipping Masters bear to the Department ? What
returns are required of them, and how are they remunerated for their ser-

vices, and what are their duties?

9. Give similar information as to Harbour Masters, as required by
previous question.

10. Give similar information in regard- to Kegistrars of Shipping and
Measuring Surveyors ?

11. What persons shall be entitled to own British ships ?

12. What British ships are required to be registered ?

13. Describe the difference between a Certificate of Service granted to

Master or Mate, and a Certificate of Competency so granted, and state to

what persons such certificates shall be granted?
14. What steamboats are exempt from the requ rements of the Steam-

boat Inspection Act, and what Steamers are partially exempted ?

15. Name the classes of Steamboat Inspectors, and state how Engineers
are classified.

20
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No. 4.

DEPARTMENT OP THE INTERIOR.

May, 1885.

1. Explain the method of balancing the accounts of the Department.10

10

10

10

10

5

5

5

5

5

5

100

2. What is the tenure upon which the Government holds the Naval

Keserve Lands ?

3. Explain the difference between Capital and General Account.

4. In what year and under what authority were the Ordnance and

Admiralty Lands divided into two classes?

5. Define the different kinds of scrip issued by the Department.

6. Where are the Orduance Lands in Class 2 principally situated?

7. What commission is allowed to Forest Eacgers on seizures ?

8. What duty is entru*tei to the Department of the Interior in con-

nection with theCanada Military Asylum ?

9. State the practice with reference to bond fees.

10. At what price are wood lots sold ?

11. Explain the difference in the timber dues chargeable to those who
cut under license and under permit.

12. To what account is the clerical work in connection with the survey

of Dominion Lands charged ?

13. What proportion of the cost of survey of Dominion Lands is

charged to the Hudson's Bay Company ?

14. How is the expense of Homestead Inspection met ?

15. What expenditure at Headquarters is charged to Dominion Lands

Income ?

DEPARTMENT OP CUSTOMS.

Tide Surveyor.

1. What would be the first duty of a Tide Surveyor, on the arrival at his port of

ship from a foreign country ?

2. If any cargo be found on board, what steps should be taken by the Tide

urveyor?
3. "Under what conditions only, should such cargo be allowed by the Customs

nicer on board, to be landed from such vessel ?

4. To whom only, should the goods from such vessel be delivered ?

5. What document would form a guide for the Tide Waiter on board, as to the

roper discharge of cargo ?

21
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6. When a day's work is completed, but the vessel is not wholly discharged,

what is the duty of the Tide Surveyor ?

7. When the unloading of the vessel is completed, what is the duty of the Tide
Surveyor before he relieves such vessel from the superintendence of the Tide Waiter
in charge ?

8. Should other goods than the necessary ships' stores be found onboard such
vessel after her complete discharge according to the manifest, what should be done ?

9. What penalties would be incurred through the finding of any goods, in excess,

on board such vessel ?

10. In what case only, would such penalties not be exacted ?

11. If a vessel were not wholly discharged at sunset, and there was no available

Tide Waiter to place in charge for the night, what precaution should be taken before

the vessel was left by the officer in charge ?

12. To what fine would the Captain of the vessel be subject, if any hatchways
fastened by the Custom officer, were afterwards opened by such Captain, or with his

assent ?

13. If such fine were not paid by the Captain, what might be done to ensure its

payment ?

14. State the penalty incurred by any person who procures, hires or induces any
person or persons to be concerned in the landing of any goods for which permission
has not been granted by the Collector or proper officer of Customs ?

15. If, after goods are so illegally landed, any person knowingly conceals the
same, to what penalty does such person subject himself?

16. What goods have been designated as coming properly within the term
" Ships' Stores," for sailing vessels ?

17. What should be added to such list in the case of a steam vessel ?

18. If a Canadian vessel arrives in port, and on being boarded by the Tide
Surveyor the Captain states he has only made a coasting voyage, what should be the
action of the Tide Surveyor ?

19. If the goods on board a sea-going vessel on her arrival in port are found to

be in excess of those which should properly be claimed as ship's stores (and not to

be part of the alleged cargo) what should be done with such excessive ships' stores ?

20. If the captain desires to have the sams for future use, what may be done ?

Yalue—5 marks for each question.

DEPARTMENT OF INDIAN AFFAIRS.

Correspondence Branch,

1. State concisely the duties which appertain to the Branch in which you are

employed.
2. Give a short description of the course through which an official communica-

tion received by the Department, and referring to previous correspondence, should

pass before it reaches your Branch for reply.

3. State the precautions, if any, which are observed to guard against errors in

the extension of a note into a draft, and the transcription of a draft into the form
of a letter.

4. What number of employes are engaged in the Correspondence Branch, and
how are the duties divided amongst them ?

5. When one or more enclosures are to accompany a letter, what special pre-

cautions, if any, are taken that the letter shall not be transmitted without them ?

5. State what you know respecting the duties which belong exclusively to the

Kegistry Branch of the Department, what methods are used in tracing correspond-

ence, and how files are kept with a view to easy reference.

22



\ Victoria, Sessional l'apers (No. 50.) A. 1886

1. Of what branches other than the Correspondence and Registry Branches

>fore mentioned, is the Department of Indian Affairs composed ? state in a few words

iture of the duties performed in each.

8. From what source are money payments made on account ot the Indians m the

>veral Provinces of the Dominion other than Ontario and Quebec derived ?

9. Give the organization of the Department as regards its outside service

iroughout the Dominion ; name the principal officers, where they are located, and

hat are the duties performed by each.
#

10. Name the agencies in British Columbia ; state their position to each other

aographically, and give the boundaries of the North-West Coast Agency.

Value—10 marks to each question.

Statistical Branch.

1. State the particular duties assigned to you in the Department of Indian

2. Name the several kinds of statistics the examination and compilation of

rhich is confided to your Branch of the Department.

3. In what way is the Department kept advised of the work done from day to

ay and of the progress made by the pupils in the various Indian schools through-

ut the Dominion. , .

4. What rates of remuneration are granted to teachers of Indian schools t Are

11 teachers paid alike? >nd if not, state what differences in the mode of payment

xist, and the cause therefor. , „

5. How is the average attendance of pupils during any quarter ascertained t

^^what places in Ontario are Indian Industrial Schools established ? What

3 the cost to the Department per pupil at the Mount Elgin Institution, and in what

ray is the Industrial School at Wikwemikong paid by the Department t
#

1. Has the Industrial School system been extended beyond the Province ot

)ntario ? If so, name the other Province or Provinces in which it is established

;

tate where they are located and say in what manner schools of that nature outside

he Province of Ontario are maintained—whether the cost is defrayed by a yearly

>ayment for each pupil, and if not, in what other way, and how funds for the pur-

>ose become available. , , .. ,, ,. .

8. How is a census of the Indians obtained, and what, m detail, are the salient

>oint8 in a census return ? „ T i.

9. You keep records of Government property under the charge of Indian

Igents and others. State the periods at which the returns are submitted and the

lature of the examination they undergo in order to test their correctness.

10. From what fund are schools in the Maritime Provinces built and maintained (

Value— 10 marks to each question.

No. 4.

DEPARTMENT OF PFjBLIC WORKS.

Duties—Secretary.

1. In what year after Confederation was the Act regarding the Department of

Public Works passed ? _

'

„ r .
tt. A

2. What, according to the said Act, are the duties of the Secretary ? Uive the

"T By what Act of Parliament was the Department of Public Works, as at

present existing, constituted ?
. Pn/wi'T^iAl

4. Through what medium can the Secretary communicate to the Provincial

Governments, the decisions or demands of the Department which concern them (
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5. By what means are properties required for the use of the Department bought
or others sold which are no longer needed ?

6. Of how many branches is the Department of Public Works composed ? Name
them.

7. Over what Public Works does the Department exercise control ?

8. Of how many Departments is the Government of Canada composed ? Give
the names of the Ministers, the Deputy Ministers and the Secretaries,

9. Through what hands in the Department must a letter from outside, relating
to Public Works pass, from its reception until the question to which it relates is.

settled ?

10. By what process are the contractors for Public Works paid ?

Yaltje— 10 marks to each question.

No. 4.

Yalue.

10

10

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.

Duties of Accountant.

1. What is the system of book-keeping in use in the Accounting Branch
of the Department of Public Works ?

2. How many sets of books are there used ?

3. Give the names of the books in each set ?

4. Through what set of books do the payments made by the Finance
office pass ?

5. Through what set of books do the payments pas's which are made;
directly to the Department of Public Works ?

6. On what side of the Ledger would you enter the payments made
on account of grants ?

7. If entries had to be made in the Individual Ledger on what side

would you enter the payments ?

8. Would you pay an account drawn up in this form :
—

The Minister of Public Works,
Dr. To M. Samson,

For wood furnished to the Public Buildings,

Ottawa $225 43
9. If no, give the reasons for refusing the said payment.
10. Who are the officials of the Department required to certify

accounts before payment can be authorized.
11. By whom are the accounts certified?

(a) For expenses on Public Buildings.

(6) For expenses on Harbors, Piers and Slides.

(c) For expenses on Telegraph lines.

(d) For expenses on heating and lighting the Public Buildings.
12. To what grant would you charge an account of M.. Bosange for

books and stationery furnished to the Superintendent of Works at St.

Maurice.
13. Two years ago the Department advanced $2,500 to Mr. JeanBaril,

contractor, on account of his contract for the erection of a Custom House
at Batoche, N.W.T. The building being now completed the contractor
demands payment of the balance due him ($2,000). The Minister
authorized the said payment out of the grants placed at his disposition in

1884-5. To which of these grants would you charge this payment ?

14. The Bngineerin-Chief has transmitted to the Department for pay-
ment a progressive estimate (No 3) in favor of Gaspard Trudel for

24



Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1886

10

100

"Value.

10

5

5

5

5

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

100

$255,850. Orders have been given to pay what may be due the con-

The first estimate was for $155,260

The second do do 220,640

The third do do 253,850

What was the actual amount of the two first payments, and what will be

the amount of the third after deducting a reserve of 10 per cent, in each

case.

15. What are the sums carried to the credit of Mr. Trudel in each of

these cases.

No. 4.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.

Duties in Connection with the Correspondence Branch.

1. In how many branches is the Department divided, and who are the

perfeons at the head of each ?

2. Who is the Officer of your Department who has the general direc-

tion of the correspondence ?

3. Under whose control are the Archives of the Department ?

4. By what Officer is the erection of Wharves, Piers and Slides con-

trolled? r ,
_ _ .. _ ...

5. Under whose charge is.the erection and repairs of the Public .buila-

b\ What is the usual classification in the Department of the different

works under its control, in regard of the books of reference ?

7. What is the average number of letters sent and received by the

Department per annum ?

8. If you receive a letter from outside, what will you do in reference

to it before the question, of which it may treat, is examined ?

9. When the matter is settled, what will be done with the letter?

10. When the answer to a letter has been signed by the Secretary,

what will you do with it before and after it has been despatched ?

11. Which Department pays the cost of works performed under the

Department of Public Works after the proper officer has granted the

necessary certificate ?
#

,

12. What are the hours, coming and leaving, by the omcers ot the

Department, and can they go out during the day ?

NOVEMBER, 1885.

No. 1.

CIVIL SERVICE OF CANADA.

PRELIMINARY OR LOWER GRADE EXAMINATION,

Tuesday, 10th November, 1885, from 10 a.m. to 11 a.m.

PENMANSHIP.

(The candidates must observe the Rules strictly.)

Value, I Copy the following extracts:

—

60
J

A Portuguese sailor— Magellan—was the first to circumnavigate the

marks. I globe, and has left his name stamped forever upon the geography of the

I earth.
25
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The gallant Drake, an Englishman, explored the north-west coast of
America as far as Oregon, and followed in Magellan's wake around the
world.

From early in the century the maritime nations of Europe pursued the
whale in the Gulf of St Lawrence and fished for cod on the banks of New-
foundland. In 1578 four hundred vessels gathered the harvest of the sea
upon these fertile banks. One hundred and fifty were French, and the
rest were English. A profitable trade in peltry along the seaboard and
far up the St. Lawrence had also sprung up, and is yet, to some extent,
carried on, but the fur-bearing animals have been nearly driven into the
interior and uninhabited parts of the country.

In 1497-98 the Portuguese navigator, Vasco de Gama, rounding the
Cape of Good Hope, reached the Coast of India—the chief object of the
voyages of discovery of this period.

No. 2.

PRELIMINARY (OR LOWER GRADE) EXAMINATION.

Tuesday, 10th November, 1885, from 11 a.m. to noon.

ORTHOGRAPHY.

Yalue,
60

Copy the following extract, correcting the errors in the spelling (which
have been purposely introduced) ; 3 marks will be deducted for every
mistake.

The reall discovrer of Canada was Jacques Cartier, a natif of St. Malo,

in Britanny. On the 20th of April, 153-4, he saled from that porte with too

small vessells of about sixtey tuns eech, and acumpanny in awl of one hun-

dred and twenty too men. In twentey days he reeched the cost of New-
foundland, were he was detaned ten dayes by the ise. Saling throogh the

I Strates of Belle Isle he skanned the barron cost of Labrador, and turning

south-westward, passed the Magdalen Islands, abbounding in burds, flours

and berris. On a butiful daye in July he enterred the large baye to witch,

on account of the grate heet he gave the name of Des Chaleurs. Landing
at the rockey hedland of Gaspe he ereckted a large cross bearin the Lilly

sheild of France, and tooke posession of the cuntry in the naim of his

Soverein Francis 1st. Takin with him too of the natifs, from whoom he
learned the ecsistence of a grate river, he saled up the gulf of St. Law-
rence til he coold sea the land on either side. The seeson being lait he
ressolved to return, postponing further eesplorations til the folowing

summer.

26
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Value,

60
marks.

oj 03

No. 3.

ARITHMETIC.

Tuesday, 10th November, 1885, from 1:30 p.m. to 3 p.m.

1. Express in words the following sums

:

100,032,000
300,005
10,024

5,303,609

90,007,020

10
8
5

9

2. Add up,

3. Add up—

4. Add up—

$898,003.71

1,200,385.29

707,941.85

3,365,892.25
311.90

£619 16s.

1,308 13

2,277 5

141,919 11

13 14

lid.

9

5

11

2

5. Substract the smaller from the larger sum

—

6903,875,643.17
394,986,754.28

6. Multiply 1,897,679,113,422 by 9

9

7. Multiply 721,985,346 by 5678.

8. Multiply $6,935.18 by $325.50.

9. Divide $896,775.25 by 5.

10. Divide 35,648,217,900 by 5899.
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No. 4.

Reading treated as at the May examination, which See.

No. 5.

QUALIFYING OR HIGHER GRADE EXAMINATION.

Yalue,
100

marks.

Penmanship.

Wednesday, 11th Nov., 1885, from 9:38 a.m. to 10:30 a.m.

Copy the following paper. Flourishing and fanciful letters are not
desirable. A plain, neat and easily read hand will find most favor.

The proper function of Knowledge.

To find right remedies or right methods. Here is the great function
of knowledge

; here the life of one man may make a fresh era straight
away, in which a sort of suffering that has existed shall exist no more. For
the thousands of years, down to the middle of the sixteenth century, that
human limbs had been hacked and amputated, nobody knew how to stop
the bleeding except by searing the ends of the vessels with red-hot iron.
Rut then came a man named Ambrose Pare, who said, " Tie up the
arteries !" That was a fine word to utter. It contained the statement of
a method—a plan by which a particular evil was for ever assuaged. Let
us try to discuss the men whose words carry that sort of kernel, and choose
such men to be our guides and representatives—not choose platform swag-
gerers, who bring us nothing but the ocean to make our broth with.

To get the chief power into the hands of the wisest, is a problem as
old as the very notion of wisdom. Selfishness, stupidity, sloth, persist in
trying to adapt the world to their desires, till a time comes when the world
manifests itself as too decidedly inconvenient to them. To discern between
the evils that energy can remove and the evils that patience must bear,
makes the difference between manliness and childishness, between good
sense and folly.—From Address to Workwomen, by Felix Holt. Essays of
" George Eliot: 7

Yalue.

14

12

10

No. 6.

Wednesday, 11th November, 18s5, from 10:30 a.m. to noon.

COMPOSITION.

1. Define nouns, adjectives and adverbial clauses. In the following sen-
tences indicate the clauses and give the kind to which each belongs :

—

The sea which washes the shore of Britain is her best defence. I can
easily explain the reason he acted so. Whilst he was thinking over
the matter, the messenger arrived. Where have you been ? was the
first question asked.

2. Distinguish between simple, complex and compound sentences. Give
an example of each.

3. Form into a single compound sentence the following simple sentences :

—

He passed through many adventures.
2b
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He assumed many disguises.

He wandered about in imminent peril during forty one days.

He escaped in a sloop to Shoreham.
He arrived safe at Fecamp.
Fecamp is in Normandy.

4. What is meant by a rhetorical arrangement of words in sentences ?

How is it characterized ? Give three examples with explanations.

5. Distinguish between direct and indirect forms of speech. Give an
example of each.

6. Write a letter of not less than 250 words on the sanitary measures proper
to be used in cities and towns for the preservation of health and pre-

100 venting the ravages of infectious disease.

Values.

10

10

15

15

25

25

100

No. 7.

Wednesday, 11th Nov., 1885, from 1.30 p.m. to 3 p.m.

Note—The work of each question must be fully given.

ARITHMETIC.
1. Find the compound interest on $4,000 at 6 per. cent, per annum for

three years (computed yearly).

2. A cistern containing 480 gallons can be filled by one pipe in 32

minutes, by another in 24 minutes, and can be emptied by a third in 16

minutes. If the cistern be empty, and all the pipes open at once, in what
time will it be filled ?

3. A bankrupt owes $5,641.25 to A, $3,020 50 to B, and $2,789.75 to

C ; his estate is worth $7,424. How much can he pay in the dollar, and
what will A, B and receive respectively ?

4. Simplify l*±3i--Jj±M-F
' 8J+3H 3|+14J

("3S"

5. A broker in England advises a'broker in Toronto to credit a Loaning
Company with £3,600 sterling. The bank credits the Company with

$17,430. Find the rate of exchange.
6. Two merchants trade together, A's share in the business being three-

fourths. At the dissolution of the co-partnership the stock in hand
amounted to $12,820 and the debts due the firm to $18,290. A has the
debts assigned to him at 75 cents in the dollar, and B takes the goods at

5 per cent, discount. How will matters stand between them ?

Yalues.

10

20
15

10

No. 8.

Wednesday, 11th November, 1885, from 3:30 p.m. to 4:30 p.m.

GEOGRAPHY.

1. Name of the different Provinces in Canada and their Capitals. State

also the populations of the said cities, according to the last census.

2. What are the principal rivers, canals and railways in Canada ?

3. What are the principal seaports on the eastern and western coasts of
Canada and the ports in the interior, viz., on rivers and lakes?

4. Name the largest mountains in the Provinces of Quebec and British

Cjlumbia.
29
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5. By what Canadian railways will one be able to travel at an early day
from the porta in Nova Scotia to those of British Columbia ?

6. What course must a vessel take from Liverpool, in England, in order to
reach British Columbia ?

1. Name four—in each country—of the chief cities of England, Ireland
and Scotland.

8. What are the principal seaports of France and Belgium ?

9. Name the largest rivers and the mo^t considerable seaports in the
United States.

10

10

10

10
5

Yalue,
100

10

10

10

10

10

5

10

10

No. 9.

Thursday, 12th Nov., 1885, from 9 30 a.m. to 11 a.m.

BRITISH AND CANADIAN HISTORY.

1. State the alleged causes of the war, of 1812, between Great Britain
and the United States, in which Canada was also involved.

2. Specify the population of the United States and that of Canada at
that juncture.

3. Explain the ultimate object of the American Government in
entering upon the sanguinary war, and indicate the political party in the
United States by whom it was promoted.

4. Did the United States reap any real benefits from the war,
and if you think so, mention what they were ; if the reverse, explain as
fully as you can ?

5. Give some account of the causes of dissension between the
Legislative Assembly of Lower Canada, about the year 1827, and the
Governor General.

6. How were the difficulties overcome ?

7. In what year was the first steamboat run on the St. Lawrence ? by
whom ? and on what route ?

8. How was the produce of Upper Canada brought down to Montreal
at that time ?

9. When were Lakes Erie and Ontario so connected as to create

a navigable passage ? by what means ? and by whom was the work
projected ?

10. Who was the first Mayor of Toronto ? What was he ? and how
did he acquire his influence ?

11. Who was Lieutenant Governor at that time; why did he leave?
and who succeeded him ?

12. Indicate briefly the nature of the relations between England and
Scotland during the Stuart rule.

13. What causes led to the passing of the Act of Union between Eng-
land and Scotland ? What were its principal terms and what its effects?

No. 10.

Thursday, 12th Nov., 1885, from 11 a.m. to noon

Values. GRAMMAR.

1. Mention the different ways in which adjectives can be compared. Give
examples.
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12

35

19

100

Value,

100.

2. Distinguish between the use of later and latter, latest and last, farther

and further.

3. In what respect do Interrogative Pronouns chiefly differ from Kela-

tives ?

4. How are verbs divided with respect to their forms ? Give examples

.

5. Define regular, irregular, defective, redundant and impersonal verbs.

Give an example of each

.

6. A verb may be conjugated affirmatively, negatively, interrogatively as

well as interrogatively and negatively. Give an example of each.

7. Correct the following sentences, where necessary, and give reasons for

correction

:

a. All the virtues of mankind are to be counted upon a few fingers,

but his follies and vices are innumerable.

b. It is undoubtedly true what I have heard with respect to his

coming

.

What is the cause of the leaves curling ?

At this stage of advancement, there is little difficulty in the

pupil's understanding the passive and neuter verbs.

e. Who dares apologize for Pizarro ? Who is but another name for

rapacity.

f. Some people are rash and others timid; these apprehend too

much, those too little.

g. Wert thou some star, which from the ruin'd roof

Of shak'd Olympus by mischance didst fall ?

8. Parse all the words in the following :

Th' Egyptian Crown I to your hands remit

;

And with it take his heart who offers it.

c.

d.

No. 11.

Wednesday, I lth November, 1885.

ORTHOGRAPHY.

* Note.—Many of the words in this exercise are purposely mispelled, and it will there-

fore be the duty of the candidates to give the proper spelfing. For every error 5

marks will be deducted.

JAMES ANTHONY FKOUDE.

His Stile.—Mr. Froude is amung the best mastirs, liveing or ded, of

the art off riting the English langwidge. His sentenses are allways cleer,

plane and compleat ; there is no slovanliness, no opscurity, and no deffi-

ciency. The reeder is saved all unnecessary effort, and has no nead to go
back and dissintangle the thred of the thought in some illaddjusted quail i-

fying clauss. He illustrates Mr. Herbert Spencer's principple of stile by
"eeconomisirg the atention of the reeder. Floawing, perspiccuous, and

abundant as Mr. Froude's stile is, it seldom atracks atention to itself. Pro-

bably most of his reeders purruse his works without anny fealing that

they are those of a finished mastir of the art of riting. But a stile wich

had onley the quality we have naimed would fall short of the best.

Smoothe and cleer staitment is of innestimabel valine ; but in the best

litterature there are higher qualities. When we quoat him we must
quoat him for his thought as well as for his stile. Probably no other

liveing riter has sayed so many wise things so well. Mr. Froude's career

as a man of letters is a new prooff that adverse circumstances are useful

to men of strength. If he had not been driven to " make his way across

countrey on the back of litterature," it is not probable that he would have

so marked his jorney as to interest mankind in the vississitudes of his life.
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No. 12.

Thursday, 12th November, 18c5, from 2.30 p.m. to 3.30 p.m.

TRANSCRIPTION.

Conditions—to be carefully considered by the Candidates,
This exercise is in the nature of a rough manuscript draft, which the

Value, candidate is expected to reproduce in proper form. The interlineations
and marginal additions are to be embodied at the proper places in the
text, and the words scored out must of course be omitted. With care,
a perfect copy may very easily be made, and therefore the merit of the
performance will be estimated by the accuracy and neatness displayed.
For every blot, blur, omission and error in orthography, from one to ten
marks will be forfeited. Conspicuous slovenliness in writing will also be
similarly treated.

The Examiners will deliver to each Candidate one of these printed
slips with the lithographed paper to be transcribed.

Value,
100

5

5

5

5

5

25
50

No. 13.

OPTIONAL SUBJECTS.

FRENCH COMPOSITION.

This exercise is to be taken by the Candidates who took composition
I in the English at the Qualifying Examination.
1

1. Correct the following phrases :

—

(a.) Personne est content de son sort.

(6.) Je suis faim
;
je suis soif.

(c.) Cet homme et femme sont aimable.

{d.) .L'un et l'autie a subi son examen avec sucees.

(e.) Ce navire est entre et est sorti du port de Montreal hier.

2. Give the first person singular of the future and of the subjunctive of the
following verbs :—Parler ; venir; voir; prendre.

3. Write a letter of about 250 words (in French of course) to a friend on
the importrnce of cultivating habits of industry and perseverance in

order to success in life.

Value,

100

No. 14.

Translation (English into French.)

Friday, 13th November, 1885, from 9:30 a.m., to 10:30 a.m.

This exercise is for the Candidates who have taken the Qualifying
Examination subjects in English.

The Earliest Printed Books.

The first book that was issued from the presses ofFaust and his associ-

ates at Mentz was an edition of the Vulgate, commonly called the Mazarine
Bible, a copy having been discovered in the library that owes its name to

Cardinal Mazarin at Paris. This is supposed to have been printed
between the years U50 and 1455. Several copies of this book have come
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to light since its discovery. In 1457 an edition of the Psalter appeared^
and in this the invention was announced to the world in a boasting

colophon, though certainly not unreasonably bold. Another edition of the

Psalter, one of an ecclesiastical book, Durand's account of liturgical offices,

one of the Constitutions of Pope Clement V, and one of a popular treatise

on general science, called the Catholicon, fill up the interval till 1462, when
the second Mentz Bible proceeded from the same printers. This, in the
opinion of some, is the earliest book in which cast types were employed;
those of the Mazarine Bible haying been cut with the hand. But this i»

a controverted point. In 1465 Faust and Schceffer published an edition

of Cicero's Offices, the fir&t tribute of the new art to polite literature. Two
pupils of their school, Sweenheim and Pannartz, migrated the same year
into Italy, and printed Donatus' grammar and the works of Lactantius, at

the motiastry of Subiaco, in the neighborhood of Home. Venice had the
honor of extending her patronage to John of Spira, the first who applied

the art on an extensive scale to the publication of classical writers. The
last twenty years of the Middle Ages, according to the date which I have
fixed for their termination in treating of political history, might well invit-

one by their brilliancy to dwell upon that golden morning of Italian litere

ture, but in the history of letters they rather appertain to the modern thaa
to the middle period.

—

Henry Hallam's " Middle Ages"

No. 15.

Friday, 13th November, 1885, from 10:20 a.m. to 12:30 p.m.

PRECIS.

' Note.—Give, within about one-fourth of the space taken by the following documents,
the contents and substances of the same, specifying each paper in the order in which it

appears. The whole must be done with neatness and accuracy, as the manner of the per-
formance will tell upon the value which may by affixed thereto. No account will be taken
of papers estimated to be of smaller value than 50 marks.

RETURN
To an Address of the Rouse of Commons, dated 28th March, 1884 :

—

For copies of all Despatches, Correspondence and Papers having
reference to the notice given to the United States Government, terminat-

ing the Fishery clauses of the Treaty of Washington, or relating to any
negotiations that may have been opened, or steps taken by the Govern-
ment, on the subject of the use, by American Fishermen, of the Sea Fisheries

of the Dominion, in view of the approaching termination of those Fishery
clauses.

By Command,
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

Secretary of State.

Washington, 16th January, 1883,

Sir,—I have the honor to enclose to you, herewith, printed oopy of

the Joint Resolution, introduced into the Senate, providing for the termina-

tion of Articles 18 to 25, inclusive, and Article 30 of the Treaty between
the United States of America and Her Britannic Majesty, of 8th May, 1871-

I have, &c,
L. S. SACKYJLLE WEST.

Lieutenant-General Sir Patrick L. MaoDouqall, K.C.M.G.
[Public Resolution—No. 20.J

Joint Resolution providing for the termination of Articles numbered
eighteen to twenty-five, inclusive, and Article numbered thirty of the

Treaty between the United States of America and Her Britannic

33
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Majesty, concluded at Washington, May eighth, eighteen hundred
and seventy-one.

Resolved by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of

America in Congress assembled:—
That in the judgment ofCongress the provisions of Articles numbered

eighteen to twenty-five, inclusive, and of Article thirty of the Treaty

|
between the United States and Her Britannic Majesty, for an amicable

(settlement of all causes of difference between the two countries, concluded

at Washington on the eighth day of May, anno Domini eighteen hundred and
seventy-one, ought to be terminated at the earliest possible time, and be no
longer in force, and to this end the President be, and be hereby is, directed

to give notice to Her Britannic Majesty that the provisions of each and

every of the Articles aforesaid will terminate and be of no force on the

expiration of two years next after the time of giving such notice.

Sec. 2. That the President be, and he hereby is, directed to give and
communicate to the Government of Her Britannic Majesty such notice of

such termination on the first day of July, anno Domini eighteen hundred

and eighty-three, or as soon thereafter as may be.

Sec 3. Than on and after the expiration of two years' time required by
said Treaty, each and every of the said Articles shall be deemed and held

to have expired and be of no force and effect, and that every Department

of the Government of the United States shall execute the laws of the United

States (in the premises), in the same manner and to the same effect as if

said Articles had never been in force ; and the Act of Congress, approved

March 1st, anno Domini, eighteen hundred and seventy-three, intituled :

" An Act to carry into effect the provisions of the Treaty between the

United States and Great Britain, signed in the City of Washington the

eighth day of May, eighteen hundred and seventy-one, relating to the

fisheries," so far as it relates to the Articles of said Treaty so to be termin-

ated shall be and stand repealed, and be of no force on and after the time of

the expiration of said two years.

Approved 3rd March, 1883.

Washington, 27th February; 1883.

My Lord,—With reference to my despatch of yesterday's date, I have

the honor to report that the Senate Joint Resolution for the termination of

Articles 18 to 25 and 30 of the Treaty of Washington, was yesterday read a

third time in the House, and passed.

I enclose, at the same time, a report of the Congressional Record of a

speech made by Mr. Rice, of the Committee on Foreign Affairs, explaining

the reasons why the United States Government is anxious to denounce the

fishery clauses.

They are briefly that, in their opinion, the fisheries are not worth the

sum awarded by the Halifax Commission, and that as the term of years fsr

which compensation was awarded expires next year, the United States

would, were no steps taken to free themselves from this obligation, be liable

to be again called upon to pay largely for privileges which they do not

consider worth keeping.
I have, &o.,

The Earl Granville, K.G. DUDLEY E. SAURIN.
Mr. Rice

y of Massachusetts

:

—I think if the gentleman from Minnesota

will hear the explanation which I will briefly give, it may, perhaps, satisfy

him on all points, with reference to the propriety of the adoption of this

measure. By the Treaty of Washington certain sections were devoted to

rights given in British waters, to American fishermen. The amount that

the United States was to pay for the privilege was to be settled by the

Halifax Commission. The sum that was to be awarded by that Commission
34
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paid for that right for the term of twelve years, and no longer* The
sum awarded by the Halifax Commission was $5,500,000. We must now
give notice, by the 1st of next July, of the abrogation of these clauses of
that Treaty, aad provision is contained in the Treaty for the abrogation of
these clauses, and nothing else. So that the matter stands by itself, or else
we enter upon another term, for which England may demand ample pay-
ment from the United States according to the enormous and unjust awards
of the Halifax Commission for privileges which nobody in the United
States, who has investigated the subject, considers worth keeping. The
Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs unanimously reported this Resolu-
tion. It was adopted by the Senate without an objection ; and the
Committee on Foreign Affairs of this House, having fully examined
the matter, unanimously instructed me to move the adoption of the .Resolu-
tion by the House, which I now do, under that instruction. With this
explanation, I trust that no objection will be made to the consideration of
the Resolution, which, I am very sure, I can satisfy everybody, ought to be
adopted to avoid liability to further payment of an extortionate sum to
Great Britain, for that which is not considered worth anything to us by
parties who are interested in the matter and who have examined into it.

The Speaker.—The Chair will submit the question, whether there is

objection to the present consideration of this joint resolution ?

There was no objection. *

The Speaker.—The Joint Recolution is before the House for considera-
tion. Does the gentleman from Massachusetts (Mr. Rice) desire to be
heard on it ?

Mr. Bice, of Massachusetts—I do not desire to occupy any time.
The Speaker.—Does any gentleman desire to be heard In opposition ?
(After a pause). The Chair does not observe any gentleman rising in

opposition. The question is on the third reading of the Joint Resolution.
The Joint Resolution was ordered to a third reading, and it was accor-

dingly read the third time, and passed.

Downing Street, 3rd May, 1883.
) My Lord,—I have the honor to transmit to you a copy of a letter
from the Foreign Office, enclosing a note from the United States Minister
[at this Court, informing Her Majesty's Government that a formal notice
[will be given, on the part of the United States Government, on the 2nd of
July next, for the termination, after two years from that date, of Articles
18 to 25 inclusive, and Article 30 of the Treaty of Washington, of the 8th
of May, 18*73.

Although the Articles in question will remain in force for two years
after the notice is given, your Government will, no doubt, agree with me
in the opinion that it is desirable that no time will be lost in taking into
consideration the course which it will be best to adopt in regard to the
fisheries question, on the termination of the articles of the Treaty relating
thereto.

Her Majesty's Government will be glad if your Minister*- will favor
them with their views in the matter, as soon as they may be in a position
to do so.

I have, &c,
DERBY.

Governor-General, the Right Hon. the
Marquis of Lome, K*T., G.C.M.G.

Legation op the United States, London, 18th April, 1883.
°11?(TMy Lord,—I have received to-day from Mr. Frelinghuysen a despatch
enclosing the copy of a Joint Resolution of both Houses of Congress of the
United States, providing for the termintion of certain articles of the Treaty
between the United States of America and Her Britannic Majesty, concluded

50a—3J
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at Washington, 8th May, 1811, which articles, under the Protocol, signed

•7th June, 1873, took effect on the 1st day of July, 18*73, and, by the terms

lof the original Treaty, are subject to termination by either party on two

'years' notice being given at the expiration often years from 1st July, 1873.

This Eesolution, which was approved 3rd March, 1883, directs the Presi-

dent to give notice to the Government of Her Britannic Majesty that the

provisions of each and every of the articles numbered 18 to 25 inclusive,

and of Article 30 of the Treaty of 8th May, 1871, will terminate and be oi

no force on the expiration of two years next after the time of giving such:

notice which the President is further directed to give on the 1st day ofJuly,

1883, or as soon thereafter as may be. .

I am, therefore, instructed to comply with the directions of Congress

in this matter, as set forth in the Eesolution, by giving the notice required*,

and, as the 1st day of July falls on Sunday, I am directed to give this

notice on the next succeeding day.

I beg also, in compliance with farther directions, to inform your .Lord-

ship of the purport of this instruction, and of my contemplated action

under it. _
I have, &c,

J. E. LOWELL.
The Eight Hon. the Earl of Granville, K.G.

Downing Street, 30th Januaiy, 1884.

My Lord,—With reference to my despatches of the 3rd of May and of

the 28th December last, I have the honor to request that you will move

your Government to take an early opportunity of placing me in possession

of their views as to the course to be pursued in consequence of the approach-

ing termination of the fishery articles of the Treaty of Washington.

In connection with this subject, you will, no doubt, have observed the

suggestion contained in an early part of the Message of the President of

the United States, communicated to the two Houses of Congress on the 4th

of December last.

I have, &c,
DEEBY.

Governor General, the Most Honorable
the Marquis of Lansdowne.

Legation of the United States, London, 2nd July, 1883.

My Lord,—Eeferring to my note to Your Lordship of the 18th April

last and to Your Lordship's reply of the 27th of the same month, I have

the honor to recapitulate the statements I made in that note, to the follow-

ing effect: That I received, on the said 18th April, a despatch from Mr.

Frelinghuysen inclosing the copy of a joint resolution of both Houses 01

Congress of the United States, providing for the termination of certain

articles of the Treaty between the United States of America and Her

Britannic Majesty, concluded at Washington on the 6th May, 1871 ;
which

Articles, under the Protocol signed on the 7th June, 1873, took effect on the

1st July, 1873, and, by the terms of the original Treaty, are subject to ter-

mination by either party on two years' notice given at the expiration ot

ten years from the 1st July, 1873. This resolution, which was approved

on the 3rd March, 1883, directs the President to give notice to the Govern-

ment of Her Britannic Majesty that the provisions of each and every ot

the Articles numbered 18 to 25 inclusive, and of the Article 30 ot the

Treaty of the 8th May, 1871, will terminate and be of no force on the expi-

ration of two years next after the time of giving such notice ;
which the

President is further directed to give on the 1st July, 1883, or as soon there-

er

i

a

an^
a

therefore, instructed by the President of the United States to

comply with the direction of Congress in this matter, as set forth in the
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Resolution, by giving the notice required; and as the 1st July falls on

Sunday. I am further instructed to give this notice on the succeeding day.

I do, therefore, this 2nd day of July, 1883, on behalf of the President

of the United States, hereby give notice to the Government of Her Britannic

Maiesty that the provisions of each and every of the Articles numbered 18,

19 20 21, 22, 23, 24, 25 and 30 of the Treaty of the 8th May, 1871, between

the United States of America and Her Britannic Majesty, will terminate

and be of no force on the expiration of two years next after the time ot

'giving such notice.II have, &c.,

I J. R. LOWELL.

No. 16.

Friday, 13th November, 1885, from 1.30 p.m. to 4.30 p.m.

BOOK-KEEPING.

Note.—As no" Day Book is required, the business recorded in the

Statement of Transactions must be given in detail in the Journal entries,

but need not be repeated in the Ledger. A Balance Sheet will be wanted

showing the total debits and credits—and the balances of course—when

there are balances.
~ ASSETS.

M. Oliver Boswell, of Quebec, pursues no regular calling, but is ready

to enter into any speculations which seem to promise good returns. On
1st May, 1885, his assets are as under :

—

No. 1. Cash, $27,825.

2. 50 Shares Chaudiere Bank Stock, $50 each, bought at 15 per

cent, discount.

3. 10 Eailway Bonds of $ 1,000 each, bought at 65 per cent, discount*

4. The promissory note of Tbomas Carter for $5,000, bearing

interest at 10 per cent., dated 1st January, 1884, and due 1st

August, 1885.

5. A farm, for which he has paid $6,500.

6. Five-sixteenths of the steamer " Spray," valued at $9,000.

TRANSACTIONS.

1885.

May 1, Deposits his cash ($27,825) to his credit in the Bank of Com-
merce (as he does the moneys which subsequently come into

his hands, and draws out by cheque the sums he requires).

lT~Buy8 the fine~British~Barque " Waverly," wrecked on the Island

of Anticosti, for $13,475, and pays for the same by cheque No.
1 on the Bank of Commerce.

Hires the Steamer " Dolphin " at $85 per day, and wo Schooners

at $25 per day each, and proceeds to Anticosti. E^turns in the

Steamer at the end of 9 days, and pays her off as

Cheque No. 2.

15. Pays $370 tor wages. Cheque No. 3.

" 16. Pays $1,185 for materials and supplies. Cheque^No. 4.

" 23. The vessel and the two schooners arrive in port
;
pays off the

two schooners, 17 days each as stipulated. Cheque No. 5.
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" 25. Sells the ship's stores and the materials remaining over, to ft

jobber for $180 cash, which he lodges in the bank.

" 29. Docks the barque at Point Levi for more complete repairs, and
insures her against fire for a month, in the sum of $45,000 at 1|
per cent., paying the premium by cheque No. 6.

June 10. Pays, by cheque No. 7, $1,922 on account of repairs.

17. Pays, by cheque No. 8, $1,385.75, the balance due the Dock
Company for repairs.

18. During a violent thunderstorm at night the "Waverley" is
struck by lightning and greatly damaged, and Mr. Boswell
receives $13,330 from the insurers.

" 2b*. Sells the vessel as she is for £4,000 stg., taking Bills of Exchange
on London, which he sells to his Bank (the Commerce) at 8 per
cent, premium, the Bank crediting him their value.

28. Sells his 50 shares of Chaudiere Bank stock at 10 discount on the
par, and deposits the proceeds to his credit in the Bank.

29. Effects an exchange ot his Railway bonds for the yacht "Foam, 1

which vessel is valued at $5,000.

July 4. Enters the " Foam " lor a race, paying $100 by cheque No. 9.

4. Wins $1,000 and sells the yacht for $7,500, and banks both sums.

" 15. Sells his interest in the steamer " Spray " for $8,750, and lodges
the money in the same way.

" 18. Exchanges his farm for a house in town, paying $3,500 to boot,

Cheque No. 10.

Aug. 1. Collects, through the Bank, which credits him with the amount,
Thos. Carter's note, with the accrued interest. (See Assets).

Falls into bad health. Buys $60,000 Bank of Commerce stock at 2J
per cent, premium, paying by cheque No. 11, together with J per cent
brokerage, cheque No. 12, gives up business and lives on his dividends.

Value.

100

No. 17.

SHORT-HAND.
,.

This subject may be taken on Friday afternoon, the 13th November,
18£5, if there is time, if not, then on Saturday forenoon, the 14th.

The Examiner will read the paper to the Candidates, in exactly 5
minutes, which will be at the rate of 70 words a minute, and ifany of them
fail to keep up with the reading, they must of necessity drop out.

Half an hour will be allowed for the extension of the notes, and the
Candidates who present perfectly correct transcriptions will be allowed
100 marks.

For every word omitted, and for every wrong word introduced, 5 marks
will be deducted from the 100.
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GREEK AND ROMAN JEWELLERY.

Greek goldsmiths surpassed all others in taste and skill, and their

lapidaries excelled in the polishing of gems. Eings were worn upon both

hands, although eventually the custom came to be viewed as effeminate

when adopted by men. Bracelets encircled both the wrists and the upper

arms, sometimes even the ankles, and appear to have been common gifts

in the middle ages. The Roman women are described as wearing them of

the incredible weight of from six to ten pounds. They were ajso given to

soldiers for extraordinary valour. Eings were set with cam elian, agate

and other stones, and earrings with pendants of pearls and jewels. Gold

pins and combs were essential to the head-dress of the Greek and Eoman
ladies, who also wore pearl necklaces, or gold wrought upon a band with a

fringe of precious stones suspended . Glass beads (from the number which

have been found in various parts) must have been much in use. Associated

with them have been discovered beads of rock, crystal and agate. So lavish

was the use of jewellery by the wealthy, that Pliny the Elder valued the

ornaments of the beautiful wife of Caius C*esar at between £300,000 and

£400,000 ($1,500,000 and 8^,000,000). The cutting of signet riugs was

carried to great perfection in Greece, and jewels were employed to enrich

the workmanship of gold and silver goblets and vases.

The ostentation displayed in many of the houses was even greater than

that exhibited in dress. Massive silver tables, laden with gold and silver

plate and costly works of art, were displayed in the apartments of the

wealthy, and bowls of the same precious material were spread before the

guests at banquets. Croesus presented to the oracle at Delphi a golden

bowl weighing nine talents, and a second of silver much heavier. Such

profusion of wealth rendered the goldsmith's art one of high esteem, and

the names of many artists, together with their chief productions and the

sums paid them therefor, are often referred to by both Greek and Roman
historians.

No. 18.

Value,
50

TELEGRAPHY.

Saturday, 14th November, 1885, or at such time as may be agreed upon

between the Examiners, the Candidate and the Telegraph Office at

which the test is to be made.

The Examiner will arrange for the test with the Officer in charge of

the telegraph office.

The Telegraph Operator who supervises the test will please note that

50 marks are allowed for " sending^' and 50 for " receiving " a message.

These marks mean the highest ability—which can hardly be expected ofthe

Candidates—and fewer marks, must, therefore, be given if the highest

efficiency has not been exhibited.

The Operator will inscribe upon the papers of the Candidates his esti-

mate of their performances, attesting the same with his signature, and will

please address them by mail to " the Secretary of the Board of Civil Service

Examiners, Ottawa," together with his account, $2 being allowed for each

Candidate tested.

Send the following message :

—

We learn that Sir William Dawson, Principal of McGill University,

Montreal, has been elected President of the British Association for the

Advancement of Science, a fitting recognition of his reputation and attain-

ments as well as a high compliment to Canada. The annual Conference
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of the Association has just been held at Aberdeen, Scotland, and lasted from
the Uth to the 17th instant.

Receive the following :

—

Value, The British press is justly incensed over the recent very injudicious

50 and unstatesmanlike speech of Vice- President Hendricks in laudation of

Parnell and Home Rule for Ireland. Few people would have believed

that a Vice President of the United States could so far forget himself as to

utter such indiscrete sentiments. Very much less has often given serious

offence and caused war between nations. But Mr. Hendricks had not well
settled down in the Vice-President's chair before he satisfied all that he
was entirely unfitted for his high position, and the speech referred to only
more clearly demonstrates what was already too apparent.

—

Scottish Ameri-
can Journal.

No. 19.

On Saturday morning, November 14th, at 9.30 a.m.

TYPE WRITING.

Five minutes will be allowed for the transcription by the Candidate of

the paper which follows—a copy of which will be delivered to each Candi-
date. For perfect work within the time specified, 100 marks will be
awarded ; but for each wrong or omitted word, or for any other real defect

5 marks will be deducted.

The Candidates will have to supply their own type writers.

THE PARLIAMENT OP CANADA—ROYAL AUTHORITY.
In Canada the King or Queen is represented by a Governor General,

who is appointed by the Secretary of State for the Colonies. An adminis-
trator or other officer may be appointed to carry on the government of
Canada on behalf of and in the name of the Queen, aad all the provi-
sions of the Confederation Act, in reference to the Governor General, apply
to such administrator, or under whatever other title he may be known.
The Queen may authorize the Governor General to appoint any person or
persons jointly or severally, to be his deputy or deputies to exercise during
his pleasure, such powers, functions and authorities of the Governor General
as the latter may deem necessary or expedient to assign to him or them,
subject to any limitations or directions expressed or given by the Queen.
Any such appointment, however, does not affect the powers, authorities

and functions of the Governor General himself. The death of a Governor
does not dissolve Parliament. It is called to consult with the Queen and
not with him, and there might be ten Governors during the reign of one
Queen, with the same Parliament assisting at the last as well as the first.—Manual of Government.

PROMOTIONS OF MAY, 1885.

No. 4.

DEPARTMENT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE.

Note.—The papers on the " Duties of Officers " are prepared by the Deputy
Heads of Departments.

DUTIES OP OPPIOE—CORRESPONDENCE BRANCH. (NO. 1.)

1. What is the daily procedure relating to the receipt of all documents in the
Correspondence Branch by the Under-Secretary of State ?
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2. What are the duties of the Register Keeper ?

3. What is the immediate action on the receipt of an Address or an Order of the

House of Commons at the Department, and how is it dealt with thenceforth ?

4 Describe the action necessary to complete a Petition for Letters Patent under

the Canada Joint Stock Companies' Act, 1877, from the date of its receipt at the

Department until the Letters Patent are completed.
#

5. What is a Petition of Right ? State fully how it is dealt with until it is

placed in the Record by the Attorney-General ?

6. What would you do on the recommendation of the Attorney-G-eneral that a

oonvict be released from a county jail.

7. State, as concisely as you can, the progress through the Department ot a

Petition under the Canada Temperance Act, 1878, for bringing into force the second

part thereof in a county or city. What would you do if objections were filed against

the Petition ?

8. What are the Estimates? How are they prepared

?

.

9. What are the Statutory increases? How are extra clerks paid? What is

the system of paying the permanent employes, and how is it controlled ?

10. Write a Despatch to the High Commissioner on the subject of the Canadian

Exhibit at the Exhibition at Antwerp.

DUTIES OF OFFICE—CORRESPONDENCE BRANCH. (NO. 2.)

1. What is your present position ? State your duties.

2 Into how many branches is the Department of the Secretary ot btat*

divided ? Name the heads of the respective branches. What is the primary function

of the branch in which you are ? —.'','-
••

3. What is understood by " Convict cases." Write the letter for non-executiva

interference, in English and in French.
m j t

4. Describe concisely the registration of the papers received in the Department.

5 On the receipt of a Petition for charter under the Canada Joint Stock Com-

panies Act, what is the immediate action? What is the action in the following

matters, viz., application by a Judge for leave of absence, draft commissions to

Judges, draft charters, draft proclamations under the Scott Act.
#

6. How would voudeal with the triplicate return from the Prothonotanes of the

Province ol Quebec of the births, deaths and burials in their respective districts.

7. Write an official letter informing an applicant that he has been appointed a

third class clerk in the Civil Service.

DUTIES OF OFFICE—STATIONERY OFFICE.

1. Give the names and standard weights of all the regular sizes of Handmade

2
P
Paper is required for 750 copies of a volume of 452 pages, Demy, 8vo. Give

quantity (including waste) required in reams, &c, and net value at $3.05 per ream.

3. A Blank Book is required of 7">0 pages, medium folio; to be ruled, wi«*

printed heading. Give quantity to be issued, including waste, &c, net value at $7.7*

4. h!m. Paper is imported at 70s., stg., per ream, charges and freight amount to

$8jl and duty to 22| per cent, on net price. Give net cost, laid down, in $ and e-

5. M.H. tf. Paper is imported at 38s. 6\., stg., per ream, less 5 per cent dis-

count ; charges amount to 9| per cent, on net price. Give net cost, laid down, duty-

free, in $ and c. ,. .

6. Steel pens are imported at Is. 9d. per' gross, less 20 per cent, discount

charges are 2f per cent, on net price. Give net cost in $ and e. $34^.

7. An article costs 10s., stgM per dozen, less 5 per cent discount ;
charges are &

per cent on net price. Give net cost in $ add c
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DUTIES OF OFFICE—REGISTRY BRANCH.

1. How to deal with a Security Bond when received, and what are all the other

processes through which it has to go, and what is to be done with it ?

2. What is to be done with a Certificate of Association of a Board of Trade ?

3. How is an Instrument cancelling a Patent of land to be dealt with ?

No 5.

Wednesdsy, 20th May, 1885, 1.30 to 4 p.m.

AUDITOR GENERAL'S OFFICE.—ARITHMETIC.

1. Find the average of 3.J i* of 3* i_ and I8
17 4 6£ 25 51-

2. What is the value of -36 of -1458 of 2 miles, 3 poles.

3. A closed veesel, whose external dimensions are 4 feet 4 inches, 6 feet 6 inches
and 8 feet 8 inches, is 3 inches thick aid weighs SCO lbs., find the weight of a solid

of the game material, with dimensions the same as the external dimensions of this.

4. Taking the diameter of the earth to be 7,^17 miles, and the highest mountain
29,000 feet, find to 6 places the decimal of a metre by which the mountain ought to

be represented on a globe one yard in diameter, the metre being 39 37079 inches.

5. Extract the square and cubic roots of 51 to 3 places of decimals.
6. Find the value in Canadian currency of 1,000 francs when Exchange betwee

Paris and London is at 25*20 and between Canada and London at 8£.
7. A, B, C and D begin to play with equal sums, each staking one-fourth of

what he then has at the beginning of a game, A wins the first game, B the second,
Cthe third, and D the fourth. In what proportions are the sums which they havo
at the end of the fourth game ?

8. A clock which shows three minntes to 6 at 6 o'clock in the morning points
to 12 when it is one minute after noon, find the time in the afternoon when it appears
by the clock to be one minute after 2.

9. If a note for $50 at one month, one for $100 at two months, and a third for

$200 at three months, all dated the 1st of May, are discounted on the 16th of May
and yield $344.61, find the rate of interest.

10. Find the difference between the sums which at simple and compound interest

respectively will amount to $3,000 at the end of 2| years at 5 per cent
11. If the Canadian 3J per cents be at £91 2s. 6d., what sum must be invested

in order to secure from them an income of £858 after paying an income tax of 6d.
on the pound, brokerage being at J per cent.

12. Explain the advantages which would result from adopting the French
metric system.

o

No. 6.

BOOK-KEEPING. (2J hours.)

Notb.—This exercise assumes to exhibit the operations for one day of a Branch Bank—say the
Marine Bank. It has the use of a capital of $400,000, and has authority to draw upon the Bank's agents
in London at discretion—in sterling, of course. It can also draw upon the New York agents, upon tho
Head Office at Montreal, and upon the other breeches of the Bank throughout the country. It has a
note issue of its own, and it receives deposits on current accounts ; it also discounts notes, collects
notes for its customers, and pays their cheques without charge—in other words, it does an ordinary and
general banking business.
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The exchange on London bought or sold goes to the debit or credit of the Lon-

don Agents' account, at par, and the premium, as well as the premium and commis-

sion on other transactions, to " Exchange and Commission Account."

The proceeds of Bills discounted, and of Exchange and Drafts bought, are

credited to the parties interested— customers—as are the deposits, while the cheques

paid are in like manner debited to their accounts.

A Journal and Ledger will be sufficient to show the capacity of the candidates,

but as neither Day, Cash nor Bill books are demanded, it becomes necessary that

the Journal entries should be full and explicit.

Transactions,

Keceived irom the Head Office,

Cash (capital to be used in the business) $400,000

Note Account,
Taken from Yault notes $10,000

Sold, Bills of Exchange on London agents, for £500 ster-

ling, at sight, at 10£ per cent

Keceived in Deposit (current accounts),

From John Smith $ ?35 15

George Withers 1,102 10

Samuel Trotter 213 75-

William Trail 500 00

Charles Sawyer 330 15

Aaron .Risen » 1,^0 40

Sold, drafts on New York agents, for $740, $310, $400 and $30, at f per

cent, premium •

Sold, drafts on Montreal (Head Office), for $510, $255 and $100, at J per

cent a

Discounted the following notes, and credited the parties with the proceeds—

For JohnSmith $ 800 00, interest deducted$14 10

do 509 20 do ... 9 05

do 455 50 do ... 7 65

Arthur Eisch 1,377 75 do ... 31 09

George Withers 1,735 75 do ... 43 s0

Bought of William Trail, draft on Victoria, B.C., for $2,500, at If dis-

count, and credited him with the proceeds

Bought of John Smith, Bills of Exchange on London for £2,800 stg., at 60

days, at 8 per cent, and credited him the proceeds

Collected for Head Office, Montreal, sundry notes amounting to $7,306 10

i
— ——

deceived transfer from Quebec branch of £2,000 stg., in London, at 9f per

cent ,
•

Transferred to credit of Toronto branch with New York agents, $10,000

at § per cent., to be charged to Head Office, Montreal
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Sold, through New York agents, Bills of Exchange on London for £5,000

Htg., at sight, and at 10J per cent

Paid cheques on Current Accounts, viz. :—
John Smith, $110, $13.13, $55 and $180.50.

Aaron Risch, $800, $1,300, $220.90.

Samuel Trotter, $39.17, $17.66.

William Trail, $90, $46, $22, $31, $19.55.

Yalue.

100

No. 7.

orthography. {Half an Hour,)

Copy the following extract, correcting the spelling, which has been
purposely been made bad.

WISE HINTS.

Sydney Smith wrote " Nothink contributes more certingly to the
annimal spirrits than bennevolence. Servants and comon peeple ar allways
about you, and if you endeavour to please, the efort will insensibley leed

you to a more happey state of mind. Plasure is very reflective and if you
give it you will feal it. The plasure you give by kindness of mannor
returns to you, and, offten, with compound interrest. The receept for

cheerfullnees is not to have one moteve only in the day for living, but a
number of little moteves; a man who from the time he rizes til bed-time,

conducks himself like a gentilman, who throes some littel kondessension in
his mannor to infeeriors, and who is allways contrifiog to lesson the
disstance betwean himself and the poor and ignorent ; is allways improve-
ing his annimal spirrits and adding to his happinness. L recommend lit»

as a grate improver of annimal spirrits. Bverry nite the room in which I
sit is lited up like a town after a grate naval victorry, and in this brite

gallaxy and with a blazing fire, it is scarsely possible to be lowe spirritei,

and I can see the little blew demons skampering off like parrish boyes
persued by the beedle.

—

Sydney Smith.

No. 8.

PRECIS WRITING. (2 TwWTS).

Note.—The excellence of a Precis or digest—for that is what is meant—consists in presenting all
<ihe important particulars in a brief, concise and comprehensive manner. The digest should not at
the outside extend to over half the length of the Examination paper.

1. The Select Standing Committee of the House ofCommons on Immigration and
Colonization respectfully submits its Report for the Parliamentary Session of 1880-81.

2. The subjects which mainly occupied the attention of the Committee this Ses-
sion have been as follows :—(1.) The total immigration arrived from Europe for
the past year; the number of the total arrivals settled in the Dominion; the
expenditure on immigration, and the migration of settlers from the older Provinces
to Manitoba and the North-West Territory of Canada. (2.) The export trade of
cattle and sheep from Canada to Great Britain, and the like imports thence to
Canada.

3. From the evidence submitted by Mr. Lowe, the Committee finds that the
total number of immigrants who arrived in Canada for the calendar yearlSSO wa3
85,850, of which there settled in Canada 38,505. This shows an increase in the
vtotal arrivals for the past year of 45,358 over lhe previous year, 1879. Oat of the
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total arrivals for the year 1880 there settled in Canada 38,505, from which Manitoba

received 16 422 To the latter number the United States contributed 2,280.

6 The total arrivals at the various points were 85,850. The actual settlers m
Canada were 38,505. The total expenditure on immigration, for the year 1880 was

8181 532 67, covering the outlay for this service in every direction. The expendi-

ture for 1819 was $176,343; for 1878 it was $185,856, showing that for the last year

the expenditure was slightly in excess of that lor the previous year, and about

equally less than that for 1878. , 1QQn ..

7 The Committee find that a portion of the expenditure for 1880 was of an

exceptional kind, such as $12,000 for the expenses of the Farmers' Delegates from

the British Islands, and $10,000 for the publishing of 200,000 copies of their report

in Britain. Less thete two exceptional items, the total cost of immigration for the

nast vear would have been unprecedently moderate in proportion to the number of

immigrants arrived, and for the number which settled in the country. It is believed,

however that securing the visit of the Faimers' Delegates was a practical step in the

right direction, as being specially adapted to reaching a most
#

desirable class of

agricultural immigrants, and that the results will be felt to exercise a salutary influ-

ence on immigration to this country for years to come, and the Committee here

desire to suggest the desirability of reaching the small tenant farmers of the British-

Islands, by afi such means as may appear to the Government best adapted to that

eD
*8 In connection with immigration it has come under the notice of the Com-

mittee that Canada has not as yet received any considerable proportion of the very

large influx of German immigration coming into America. In order to secure, it

possible, a portion of the very valuable class of immigrants furnished from Germany

the Committee recommend that the Government invite a German Delegation to visit

this country, as has been done in the case of the British tenant farmer* Aeon-

venient medium of communication for this purpose presents itself through the

"Commercial and Geographical Association of Germany," with whom a correspond-

ence might be opened up with a view to reaching the German agricultural class

9 Whilst it has been brought out in evidence, that there is a veiy consider-

able migratory movement, with a view to peimanent settlement among the agri-

cu tuSlass of the older Provinces, to Manitoba and the
,

fforth-Wesi, it is pleasing

to note that such migration does not arise from want of confidence in the
:

agricul-

tural capabilities of these older Provinces, nor yet from a dissatisfaction with their

climate nor from discontent with their civil and social institutions, but solely from

a desire to obtain larger holdings in prairie lands with a view to carrying on agricul.

tural operations on the more extended scale which these prairie lands afford. From

the circumstance of these vacated lands having been puichased mainly by residents

already holding lands contiguous to them, it would appear as if the tendency, in the

old Provinces also, is in the direction of extended land holdings.

10. In referring to the subject of migration, the Committee desires to call the

snecial notice of the Government to the revelation brought out chieflym Mr. Prittie s

evidence, viz.: That the Grand Trunk and Great Western Kailway Companies have

arrangements with the United States land and railway companies by which the

Canadian railway companies named, pay a much larger percentage ^ tooke* and

land agents who engage in the sale of tickets for points in the United States, to

migrating parties, than is given by these companies to such agents as canvass and

secure the sale of tickets to Manitoba. In some cases it appears that the commission

paid by the railway companies named, to ticket agents selling for points in the

tJnited States, is about three times what these companies pay to agents selling

tickets to Manitoba, notwithstanding that the distance is longer and the railway fare

considerably higher to Winnipeg than to points of American desRation This

marked railway discrimination against parties migrating to Manitoba together with

ZaCdanT equipment in maps, posters, etc., furnished by United States railway

and land companies, with the additional stimulus of the much larger commission paid

to the agents acting in their interest, by Canadian railway companies, exercises a



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1886

most injurious influence, in the way of being the direct means of influencing Cana-
dian migrating settlers to stop within United States territory, in place of proceeding
to Manitoba and the North-West, as in the majority of such cases they probably
would do, if left unbiased by the exertions of active and interested agents of another
country,

10. A compact of this kind, injurious to Canada, entered into and carried out by
railway companies essentially Canadian by location and existence, is a matter which
the Committee hope the Government of Canada, being now aware of it, may be able
to devise some effectual means of counteracting.

as intimated at the outset of this report, has come under review, and the Committee
is impressed with a conviction of the importance of a due care in fostering the trade
in export of cattle to Great Britain, as likely to be, in the near future, one of our
most important export trades.

11. It has been brought prominently to the notice of the Committee, through
the evidence of Mr. McEaohran, and by communications from shippers, that there is

much to be done in the way of absolutely necessary improved accommodation for the
proper care of cattle and sheep at ports of shipping and also on board ships, in order
to secure sufficient profits and permanency of trade to stock raisers and shippers. It is

found that animals, awaiting shipment at Montreal, are penned in spaces entirely too
small in area, exposed to the weather and sunk in depths of mud and filth for succes-

sive days, and unprovided with feeding troughs and hay cribs. In other iustances
they are confined in small dirty yards surrounded by a poisonous atmosphere;
sometimes animals are confined for a day or more in railway cars on the wharf with-
out food or water ; frequently they are put on board ship, crazed and bruised by
being driven through crowded thoroughfares of traffic, and hustled in this condition
into the hold of a ship the atmosphere of which is densely ladden with the dust from
grain loading ;—a combination of circumstances strongly tending both to rapidly
deteriorate

1

the condition of the animals and to induce disease. Also better ventila-

tion and more care of the proper preservation of feed on board ships appear to de-

mand increased attention.

12. In view of the yearly rapid development of the export cattle trade of this

country, the Committee recommends the enactment of the following regulations :

—

(1.) Improved accommodation for the due care of animals at the port of shipping,
especially at Montreal, at present the chief shipping depot for Canadian cattle ; also

in view of the likelihood of a very great increase in the shipment of store cattle, that

the present regulations affecting space on board ship be modified so as to regulate
the allotted spaces to suit the varied sizes of animals to be shipped ; and that the
stowage of all other freight on board be completed before any shipment of cattle into

a ship be commenced; and the simultaneous shipment of grain or other cargo with
cattle be prohibited. (2.) That carrying animals on deck from the 15th of October
to the 1st April, in each year, be prohibited. (3.) That it be made a necessary part
of the Inspector's report to enable cattle carrying ships to obtain a clearance sea-

wards. That such report contain an assurance that the men going in charge of the
cattle are provided with suitable sleeping and eating places, and with such food, in

quantity and quality, as the Inspector deems necessary to the health and comfort of
men having arduous duties to perform. If found practicable to obtain a wharf at

Montreal, set apart exclusively for the shipment of cattle, it would alleviate many of
the present difficulties in cattle shipment.

13. The only branch of agriculture brought under the notice of the Committee
had reference to cultivation of the tobacco plaut. Experience seems to have demon-
strated that tobacco of excellent quality can be grown in Canada, and with profitable

results. There is, however, the drawback of lack of general information among the
farmers as to the best modes of cultivation, and the proper methods of preparing the
leaf for the manufacturer after it is gathered. The Committee, therefore, recommend

46
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that the Department of Agriculture direct efforts towards the preparation of a

pamphlet for publication, giving reliable practical directions on the cultivation and

curing of the tobacco plant, and that to such pamphlet there should be annexed a

eynopsis of the Excise law of Canada regulating the cultivation and sale of tobacco.

Value
100.
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No. 9.

GEOGRAPHY. (1J hours.)

1. State how many degrees of loDgitude the Dominion extends oyer.

2. Give the name of the most soath-westerly town in the Dominion,

and state what latitude it is in.

3. Give the names of the three largest islands in and bordering upon

the Gulf of St. Lawrence.
4. Name the three longest islands on the Pacific Ocean side ol the

Dominion.
5. What is the principal river in New Brunswick ?

6. What is the principal river in British Columbia?

7. Name two oi the largest rivers running through the Province of

Manitoba.
8. Give the names of two of the largest rivers in the North- West

Territories*

9. State which is the largest bay in the Dominion.

10. By how many ways (giving their names) can a vessel pass from

the Gulf of St. Lawrence into the Atlantic Ocean ?

1 1. What are the principal exports ot Nova Scotia ?

12. What are the principal exports of New Brunswick ?

13. What are the principal exports of Prince Edward Island ?

14. What are the principal experts of the Province of Quebec ?

15. What are the principal exports of Ontario ?

No. 10. {Extra.)

type-writing. (5 Minutes.)

Legal Brevities.—A note dated on Sunday is void. A note obtained by fraud,

or from one intoxicated, is void. If a note be lost or stolen, it does not release the

maker, he must pyy it. An endorser of a note is exempt from liability if not served

with notice of its dishonor within twenty-four hours of its non-payment. A note by

a minor is void. Notes bear interest only when so stated. Principals are responsible

for their agents. Each individual in a partnership is responsible for the whole

amount of debts of the firm. Ignorance of the law excuses no one. It is a fraud to

conceal a fraud. It is illegal to compound a felony. The law compels no one to do

impossibilities. An agreement without consideration is void. Signatures in lead

pencil are good in law. A receipt for money is not legally conclusive. The acts of

one partner bind all the others. Contracts made oo Sunday cannot ba enforced,

contract made with a minor is void. A contract made with a lunatic is void. Wri

contracts concerning land must be under seal,—Things worth knowing.

A
tten

No. 11. {Extra)

short-hand—(403 words, 5 minutes allowed).

86. Is there any prospect of establishing a German emigiation agency ?-—That

question engaged the attention of the Department during last season. It is really
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the most difficult question we have to deal with. There is a large German emigration

to the United States which we have scarcely been able to touch. Yery careful

enquiries were made into the means by which such an emigration could be induced

to come to Canada. With the view of prosecuting enquiries, by the instruction of

the Minister I twice visited New York during this summer, and held communication

with the directors of the German steam lines, from whom I obtained a good deal of

valuable information bearing on the question. There are two great German Atlantic

lines, the North German Lloyds and the Hamburg Packet Line. I found that the

North German Lloyds, commencing so early as the very beginning of 1880—in fact

long before the season of western communication opened—began to receive prepaid

passages to the extent of about a thousand a month ; and each of these prepaids

represented five or six other passengers. The Department prepared a pamphlet

—

which was translated into German—embodying the suggestions I received, but we
were generally told that neither commissions nor information distributed that way
would be so successful as we expected, as the Germans depended almost entirely

upon the representations of their friends.

87. Friends who had come to America before them?—Yes, friends who had come
out before them. The large German emigration which took place to the United

States, was mainly based upon these representations, supplemented by the assistance

of prepaid passage tickets. I have the United States immigration returns, which
show, ior the fiscal year, that 84,638 Germans arrived. We are now endeavoring ta

get up small parties of German settlers. There is one special party to arrive out

and go to Manitoba or the North-West in the spring. It is the intention of the

Department to take special and particular care of that little colony, to see that it is
\

well settled on good land. I am afraid, however, that as far as influencing German i

immigration, simply by representations we may make, is concerned, we shall not

succeed by the use of that method alone ; or, at least, we shall not be so successful as

we desire to be. We certainly have not been in the past.—Evidence of Mr. Lowe
before the Immigration Committee of the House of Commons, 1881.

LIST OF CANDIDATES WHO PASSED SUCCESSFULLY THE ClYIL
SERYICE PRELIMINARY EXAMINATION.

May, 1885.

Blethen, Charles W.
Ellis, John.

Baxter, Joseph.

Mailman, John A.

Cameron, John.

Aub6, Elzear.

Bellerive, Leon E.

Boivin, David.

Gingras, A. Elie.

At Halifax,

Finlay, Wm. James.
Mahoney, Wm. P.

At St. John, N.B.

McYey, Andrew.
O'Brien, Thos. A.

At Gharlottetcvm.

At Quebec.

Griffith, Geo. A.
Langlois, Napoleon.
Marmion, George.

Nolin, Ulric.
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Mumford, Emmanuel C.

Yuill, John.

Thompson, George.

Renaud, Leon.
St. Aubin, Marie B. de
St. Aubin, Mad. E. B. de
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Ihearn, Owen J.

Imyot, Philippe.

Balthazard, Bernard.

3arthelemy, Paul.

Benoit, Desire Abel.

Bourgeois, Joseph (fils),

Barnes, Thos. M.
Belleville, Alphonse.
Bissett, Alexander.
Bruneau, Eugene.
Jadotte, Jobeph,

Jarr, Nina Maria.

Champagne, Zephirin.

Clermont, Wilfred.

Oonnolly, James
Cunningham, John.
Dahill, James.
Ohabot, J. Ferdinand.

Dhaput, Zotique.

Oloran, Edward.
Cote, Joseph.

Auclair, Odillon.

Beaupre, Victor.

Bollard, John D.
Cave, Mary Maude E.

Cheney, W. H.
Cooch, Henry.
Corbeil, Edward.
Cote, Georgina.

Cdte, Sophie.

Cousineau, Edward.
Doran, William.
Duhamel, M. Therese.

Durocher, Olivier.

Egan, Thos. J.

Fairer, Martha R.

Barrett, Wm.
Cox, Lawrence.
Dorland, Philip N.

Ashmead, Henry A.
Belcher, Felix,

Belcher, William.
Best, William.
Bills, Thos. H.
Booth, Albert Edward,
Bridges, George.
Chilton, James P.

50a—

4

At Montreal.

Dumont, Ovide.
Ducharme, Louis A.

Dupuis, Charles.

Ferry, Edward.
Gendreau, A. B.

Guernon, Ernest.

Gauthier, E. J.

Grant, Edward E.

Hebcrt, Emile J.

Hunt, Geo. A.
Lalande, J, B. A.
Lapalme, Philias.

Latour, J. A. A, H.
Leclair, Eugene.
Lapage, Joseph Z.

Leriche, Edward.
Le Sieur, T. J.

Martin, James.
Mathyl, Emile.

Mongeon, Joseph.

At Ottawa,

Farrell, W. H.
Ferland, A.

Flemming, Ella E.
Gareau, Fortunat.

Goulden, Eobt. A.
Hayes, Jeremiah.
Kelly, Isabella 0.

Leslie, George H.
Loucks, Ettie.

Merrick, Bessie L.
Mosgrove, Thomas.
Montgomery, Ida V. B.

Munro, Isabel Adeline.

McEwan, Wm. Eance.

At Kingston.

Fulford, Charles C.

Gilmour, Robert.
Hicks, Amos.

At Toronto,

Gautt, Robt. J.

Goad, Nelson A.
Henderson, Robt. H,
Hodson, Fred. W.
Hurst, Geo.
Hyatt, Fred. F.

Kirby, Thomas.
Martin, Thomas.
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McClenaghan, Michael.

McLaughlin* Francis.

McMorrin, Hugh.
Nault, Pierre.

Neville, James F.
O'Neill, Patrick.

P&quet, Jean Flavien.

Pare, Joseph Omer.
Radekir, Alfred.

Renaud, Albert H.
Rosa, Gaudiose.

Roy, John.
Shehan, Michael.

St. Arnault, Urbain H.
St. Jean, Thomas.
St. Jean, L. J.

St. Onge, Arthur.
Thurlow, Albert Edward.
Whelan, Aloysius M.
Yelle, Urgel.

McNamara, Patrick L.
Murphy, Wm. Henry.
Noonan, P. D.
Norton, Bella.

O'Connor, Herbert.
O'Reilly, Anna.
Patchell, Edward Moore
Ricard, Urgel.
Sawyer, D. S.

Steele, Mary.
Stioulger, C.
Turner, George H.
Tytier, John.
Wills, Geo. W.

Ross, Donald D.
Terrill, Archelaus.

Vanluven, Fred'k.

Page, Mary.
Parker, Albert E.

Pearman, John H'y.
Perkins, Joseph.

Price, Geo. C.

Riddall, Norman G.
Robinson, Robt. John,

Rodgers, James,
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Cleary, Michael.

Courtney , Jonathan

,

D'Askwith, Edward.
Bench, Thos. Q.

Fowler, James M.

Beatty, Stephen.

Bingham, Albert Job.

Latham, John,

Clarke, John.

Comiakey, Thomas.
Crawford, Walter.

Code, A, E.

Gow, Walter John.

Shakespeare, Henry P.

Mitchell, Eobert.

Mooney, Isaac-

McDonald, John A.
Mcintosh, Alexander.

McKee, William.

At Hamilton,

McKay, Eichard.

O'Heir, James.

Eoss, Thos. H.

At London*.

Holland, Charles.

Lawrence, Chas. M. B.

Orr, Eobinson Jno.

At Winnipeg,

Lilley, John Henry.
Marshall, Thomas H.

At Victoria, B, C.

Simpson, Geo. F. D.

(Signed)

Salter, James.
Slean, John.
Spence, James H.
Williamson, James.
Wilson, John McLaren.

Sharpies, James.
Thomas, Alexander,

Waterman, Ezra S.

Eeaume, James L.

Eyan, William.
Winterbotham, Wm. Geo.

Sheppard, Geo. P.

j. thoebuen,;ll.d.,
Chairman,

A. D. DeCELLES,

P. LeSUEUE,
Secretary.

LIST OF CANDIDATES WHO PASSED SUCCESSFULLY THE QUALIFYING
EXAMINATION.

Graham, Wm. J.

King, Donald A.

Beck, James.
Clark, A. Arthar.

Day, Eobert G.
Dunham, W. O.
Goodspeed, Millard H.
Gross, Harrison.

Hall, W. S.

Hoben, Charles F.

May, 1885.

At Halifax,

Little, Hugh E.

McKay, John H.

At St, John, N. B,

Lindsay, Alex. H.
Mailman, John A.

Munro, George.
Nadeau, Hector.

McCloskey, John Eich.

McLatchy, Asa H.
O'Eeilly, Chas. E.

Peck, Henry B,
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Peppard, W. W.
Potter, Alexander.

Eaymond, Wm. Tyng.
Eead, Frank S.

Eichards, Chas. L.

Eobinson, Elisha H

.

Smith, Eufus E.

Smyth, Bernard B.

Troop, J. G. C.

Yanbuskirk, James F.
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At Charlottetown,

Haley, Frederick F.

Kelly, Lucius 0.

ChassS, E, T.

Desjardins, Joseph,

Amyot, Philippe.

Audet, F. J.

Barthelemy, Paul U.
Beard, George W.
Bedard, Louis.

Belaud, B. O,

Bellerose, L. H. Rival dit

Bourret, Romeo.
Bourret, Joseph.

Bowden, Georgina M.
Coleman, James J.

Cloran, Edward.
Coffee, Jeremiah.

Ballauline, Elizabeth.

Catellier, George.

Close, Chas. William.

Chevrier, Alphonse.

Corbett, Harold L.

Drouin, Alphonse M. P.

Desrochers, Rodolphe.

Fortier, James Gordon.

Greene, Florence.

Gordon, Francis A.

Garrett, Wm. P.

Grenier, Adolphe.

Cox, Lawrence.
Dorland, Philip N.
Hicks, Amos.

Bell, Thomas.
Brookfield, W. Wesley,

Davidson, James.
Doyle, John J.

English, Fred. W. P.

Fawcett, Edw. A.

Fox, Charles.

Francy, Charles.

Qalbraith, Wm. M,

Kennedy, James T.

Laverty, Michael.

At Quebec,

Doriou, Napoleon.

At Montreal

Connolly, Anthony Jas.

Cullinan, Michael.

Curran, James.

Dore, L. J. S.

Dumont, Ovide.

Dubuc, Victor.

French, Jonas L.

Gendreau, A. B.

Gladu, L. Joseph.

Heriot, Ralph R.

Hunt, George A.

Kane, James J.

Laurin, Alphonse.

At Ottawa.

Howard, John P.

James, Alfred.

Kehoe, Thomas C.

Lawrence, Charles Lewis.

Lynch, Patrick.

Magnan, Francois.

McKenzie, Wm. J.

Maybee, Emily Kate.

McCabe, Francis.

O'Reilly, Anthony.
O'Reilly, Anna.

At Kingston.

Sherman, John D,

Sayers, John R.

At Toronto.

Galbraith, William.

Henry, Thos. H.
Henderson, Robt. H,
Hipwell, Humphrey T.

Herst, Samuel.
Huggard, John.
Irwin, S.

Moore, Thos. F.

McDonald, John A,
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McPhail, Colin.

Maguire, Thos* Moore.

LeSieur, T. J.

Latouche, A. M.
Libert, Emile.

Mantha, J. Arthur.

McEvoy, Patrick.

Prieur, Auguste.

Renaud, A. H.
Roll and, David.

Tessier, W. O.

Tansey, Timothy.
Yaleur, Charles.

Whelan, Aloysius,

Parmelee, Alice.

Robillard, R. J.

Robertson, Peter.

Seguin, F. O. Avila.

Short, Samuel.

Stevenson, John

.

Shore, Evangeline.

Steele, Mary.
Stewart, Robert.

Taylor, William.

Toms, Fanny E;

Terrill, Archelaus.

Walker, Edward M.

McKee, William.

Noble, John.

Reid, John W.
Riley, Bernard.

Somerville, Archibald,

Spence, Jos. W.
Stewart, Obas. E.

Watson, Wm. E.

Willoughby, Sam. J.
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Aikins, Lillie.

Davis, Lydia.
Hall, Mary Anna

Askin, John Fred.
Ayearst, John A.
Belleperche, Peter A,
Clarke, John.
Colton, John Thos.
Coulter, Geo. T.

At Hamilton.

Henderson, Anna J. R.
Miller, Eobt. S.

At London,

Crawford, Walter.
Coulter, Wm, Watson.
Holland, Charles
Morton, Charles.

Grott, Ellen Jane.
Northrop, Wm.

Robertson, A. R.
Troup, Jane Lundie.

Regan, Patrick.

Schulte, Sam'l John
State, Joseph.
Steele, Emily C.

Tyrrell, Jeremiah.
Winthrop, Farbrace.

At Winnipeg.

Macpherson,Wm. Torrence. Marshall, Thos. Hadzor. Turnock, Francis H.

At Victoria, B.C.

Carmichael, Francis A.

J. THORBURN, LL. D.,

Chairman,

A. D. DeCELLES,
P. LeSUEUR,

Secretary.

CANDIDATES WHO PASSED IN OPTIONAL SUBJECTS AT THE CIVIL
SERVICE EXAMINATION HELD IN MAY, 1885.

John H. McKay, Precis.

At HalifaXi

At St. John, jN. B.

Day, Robert G., Precis.
Dunham, W. 0., Precis.

Goodspeed, M. H., Precis.
Hoben, Chas. F., Precis.
Nadeau, Hector, Precis.
Read, Frank S., Precis.

Raymond, W. Tyng, Precis.

At Charlottetown,

Haley, Fred. F., Telegraphy.
Laverty, Michael, Precis.

At Montreal.

Amyot, Philippe, Precis.
Audet

?
F. J,, Translation and Precis.
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Beland, B. O., Precis.

Bellerose, L. H. Eival dit, Translation.

Bourret, Eome*o, Composition.

Connolly, Anthony James, Translation.

Dumont, Ovide, Translation,

Laurin, Alphonse, Composition and Precis.

Libert, Emile, Book-keeping and Precis.

Prieur, Auguste, Precis.

Holland, David, Translation.

At Ottawa.

Brittain, E. L., Stenography.
Chateauvert, Geo. E., Book-keeping and Precis.

Christie, Jessie B., Typewriting and Precis.

Clarabut, D., Composition.

Fortier, James Gordon, Telegraphy.

Hennessy, Geo. P., Translation.

Howard, John P., Precis.

Hunton, Wm. A., Precis.

Lyster, Florence, Typewriting and
McCann, John, Precis.

McKenzie, Wm. J., Typewriting, Book-keeping, Precis and Stenography.

O'Eeilly, Anna, Precis.

O'Eeilly, Anthony, Precis and Stenography.

Parmelee, Alice, Precis.

Eobillard, E. J., Book-keeping and Precis.

Steele, Mary, Precis.

Stevenson, James S., Precis.

Taylor, William, Composition, Translation and Precis.

At Kingston.
4

Cox, Lawrence, Precis.

Dbrland, Philip H., Book-keeping.
* Turner, H. H., Composition, Precis, Book-keeping and Telegraphy.

Walker, Edw. M., Precis.

At Toronto.

Galbraith, Wm., Precis and Telegraphy.
Henderson, Eobert H., Precis and Telegraphy.
Huggard, John, Precis.

Noble, John, Precis.

Eeid, John W., Precis.

Eiley, Bernard, Precis.

Watson, Wm. E., Book-keeping.

At Hamilton,

Henderson, Anna J. E., Precis.

Eobertson, Augustus E., Precis.

Troup, Jane Lundie, Precis.

At London,

Ayearst, John A., Precis.

Colton, John Thos., Precis.

Coulter, Geo. T., Telegraphy.

•Omitted in June, 1883. v
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At Winnipeg.

Marshall, Thos. H., Typewriting, Precis and Stenography.
Turnock, Francis H., Book-keeping and Precis.

J. THORBURN, L.L.D,,

Chairman*

A. D. DjsCELLES,

P. LeSUEUR,
Secretary.

LIST OF CANDIDATES WHO PASSED SUCCESSFULLY THE CIVIL SERVICE
PRELIMINARY EXAMINATION.

November, 1885.

Bently, Percy D.
Brennan, Patrick F.

Baillie, John.
Budge, Benjamin.
Devoe, Wm. Judson.
Driscoll, Daniel Jas.

Battis, Robt. Wm.
Duprat, Jos. L. M.
Giroux, Edmond.

Auger, Arthur L. M.
Beaton, Alex. M.
Bouchard, C. Ed.
Brown, Alfred.

Cadorette, Rodolphe.
Carroll, Edward.
Cecire, Ludger.
Conaughton, James P.

Corbeil, Philippe.

Cormier, Ephrem.
Costigan, James John.
Cote, F. X.
Cotret, L. D. A., Rene de.

Crevier, J. W.
Cross, Gray.
Delorme, Edmond,
Diot, David J.

Doody, Thomas,

At Halifax.

McDonald, James J.

Pender, Percy T.

At St. John, A\ B.

Fanjoy, Wm. T.

Hunter, George D.
Martin, Thos. J.

At Quebec.

Hamel, Alexander.
Hamel, F. M. M. S.

O'Reilly, Miss M. A.

At Montreal.

Genest, Evariste.

Germain, Clement.
Gibbon, Thos. James.
Gillies, James A.
Giroux, Andre.
Goyer, Augustin.
Grandpre, Arthur.
Gravelle, R. E.
Green, Harvey A.
Harney, W. T.

Holland, James C.

Jones, Thos. Michael.
Juteau, Abundius.
Knox, James S.

Laberge, J. B. H.
Lamadeleine, Theodore de
Leblanc, Ernest.

Leclercq, Luc>n,

Theakston, Henry S*

Thompson, David.

Millidge, Louis D. B.
Richards, John T.

Roxborough, William,

Santerre, Louis Napoleon,
Verge, Joseph A.

Mathieu, Joseph.

Moffatt, James J.

Murray, John.
McRobie, J. T.

Pardellian, Alexander.
Philpot, Harvey W. G.

Poitras, Thermas.
Roach, Michael.

Rollins, Wm. Edw.
Roy, Desire*.

Ryan, Michael J.

Ryan, John.
Sauve, J. V.
Sullivan, Thos.
Thetu, Rodolphe.
Thdrien, Charles.

Thomson, F. A.

Vanier, H. J,
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)oyle, Patrick,

raudreau, Jules.

Abbott, Susie.

Sambrick, Eliza Ann,
Senn, James Chas.

Seroard, Louise.

*iggs, Mary Jane,

irennan, May.
Campbell, James.
Cherry, William.

Jarcey, Mary.
Juffy, Peter M.
3uggan. Cornelius.

Duval, Octave,
^arrell, Louise M.
?air, Eobert Wm,
xagnier, Yictor.

Jaudry, Blizia.

xraham, Cam. F.

Hawkins, Joseph.

Burns, Frank L.
Jhamberlain, Allan,

Allen, Horace B.
Barnhart, D'Arcy B.

Baxter, James H.
Baylis, James,
Blaber, Trayton.
Bloomer, Eichard.

Bowdidge, John.
Brackley, James.
Buchannan, John Thos.

Burgess, Archibald.

Burns, William.

Carroll, James.
Cordingley, B. A.

Cull, Henry James.
Davidson, John.

Davis, Julius.

Aikens, Wm. John.
Armstrong, Jason B.

Bale, Thomas.
Bishop, James B.

Bucke, John J.

Dowd, Patrick.

Foley, M. C.

Marcil, John.
Martin, Joseph.

At Ottawa.

Healey, James.
H inton, George C.

Kains, Mary McM.
Kealy, Theresa.

Lawless, Edith M.
Lefebvre, Amanda*
Lepage, Yictor.

May, Ida M.
Mathews, Agnes B.
Meiamphy, Mary.
McAnulty, James.
McLaren, Eobert.

McMahon, Thos. Jas.

Peck, Jas. W.
Purcell, John.

Eoy, Minnie.

Eoy, Eugenie.

Eoy, Hormidas.

At Kingston.

Elliott, J. J.

Harback, Horace A.

At Toronto.

Denison, Minnie.

Edmand, J. W.
Frizzel), Albert B.

Ferry, James.
Fowler, P. L.
Grainger, Eobert A.
Haynes, Lionel S.

Henderson, Alfred.

Hunter, David.

Jackson, F. J.

James, Clarkson W*
Johnston, Eichard.

Knowlton, Joseph,
Laws, William.
Linton, John.
Moor, Eobert.

At Hamilton.

Gordon, Bobert.

Hamilton, Helen Jessie,

Leaver, Uriah.
Mahoney, Eobert P.

McCollum, Eobert C,

McDonald, Eobert.

Phillips, John.
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Villeneuve, Mathias.

Withell, Eich'd P.

Eyan, John*
Shaw, Mary.
Shaw, Margaret.
Spittal, Eobert.

Story, James.
Taylor, James M.
Traversy, Agnes.
Yaillancourt, Damase.
Yeilleux, Leon.
Waggoner, S. H.
Warburton, Annie.
Watts, Eeginald.

Webber, S. Agnes.
Williams, Louise.

Williams, Wm. Geo.
Wood, George C.

Wright, Samuel E,

Kearns, Bobert.

Morriessy, John,

Moor, David.
Mann, Geo. Bobt.
McCurrah, John.
McKay, Kenneth*
McMullen, Oliver*

Oxenham, Fred. Chas.
Parker, Thomas G.
Pretty, John.
Scott, John L.
Service, Wm. Alexander,
Smith, Thos. S.

Summers, Jas. Alex.
Tolley, Wm. James.
Tyner, Wm. Edward.
Yandervoort, Jos. W.

Eainey, Albert B.

Eolston, Edward.
Smith, Daniel B.

Thomas, James E.
Truman, Charles.

Williams^Thos. F,
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Arnold, John F.

Dalton, Harry E.

Dickens, Joseph.
Egan, William.
Fmnegan, Edward,
Forsyth, Jamas F.

Flesher, Frederick C.

Fletcher, Matthew.
Hezelwood, Thomas.

Dickson, Chas. Edward.

At London,

Hoolihan, Thomas.
Jeffery, Jos. W*m.
Kidner, Edward.
Lee, Frederick.
Macdonald, James.
Monok, Richard Henry.

At Winnipeg.

McDonald, John.
Pridham, George A.
Smith, Sydney James.

At Victoria
y
B.C*

Morrison, Theodore,
Perrin, Charles N.
Peters, Arthur E.
Tanner, William.
Williams, Mary T.

Taylor, Wm. Henry,

J. THOKBUKN, LL. D.,

Chairman*

A. D DECELLES,

P. LeSUEUE,
Secretary,

LIST OF CANDIDATES WHO PASSED .SUCCESSFULLY THE CIVIL
SERVICE QUALIFYING EXAMINATION.

November, 1885.

Bentley, Percy D.
Curren, Thomas J.

Allen, Singleton S.

Budge, Benjamin.
Burgess, Sherman W.
Burrell, James George.

Covert, Daniel H.
Cudlip, Amelius.
Edgecombe, Eichard S.

Chouinard, Ephrem.
Fletcher, Cecil Charles,

Bissonette, O. A.
Cecire, Ludger.

At Halifax, N. S.

Kelley, Willard M.

At St. John, N. B.

Frost, S. L. Tilley.

Guion, Alonzo H.
King, Elmer E.

McLean, Charles.

McOullougb, Thomas.
Murray, Frederick Wm,
Myles, Weslay J. S.

At Quebec.

Gosselin, Louis.

Gosselin, Pierre.

At Montreal.

Dudley, Henry.
Eagleson, James S.
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Miller, George J.

Nichols, Craig Wm.
Reed, Thomas L.
Smith, H. E. L.
Virtue, William J.

White, J. Hunter.
Watt, John H.

Nolet, Jean.

Lippe, Alexandre.

McClanaghan, Michael,
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OoHtigan, James John.
Cunningham, John.

Doody, Thomas.
Dueharme, L. J. O.

Aird, Geo. B.

Aird, H. E. Louisa.

Bate, Charles W. C.

Bell, George Wylie*
Bell, Marion E.

Bourns, Eobt. Geo.

Briggs, John.
Cowen, Edmund.
Casey, Maurice W.
Charles, Joseph H.
Code, Wm. Abraham.
Copping, Louis,

Craig, Mary Ann.
Curley, John J.

Durocher, Olivier.

Barrett, William.

Conger, Marshall B.

Edwards, John W.

Coulter, Wm. Geo.
Durham, Sydney.
Hall, Wm. E.

Hardison, W. B.

Jackson, F. I.

Kennedy, W. C.

Little, Eobt. H.

Aikens, Wm. John.
Armstrong, Jason K.
Beresfor-d, Miss M. B.
Bucke, John J.

Cobean, George A.

Bradley, Charles John.
Crotty, John.
Elliot, Fredk.
Fisher, Lucy.

Black, Alex. P,
Clinton, John.
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Gawne, D. McLeod.
Laberge, J, B. H.
Lalande, J. B. A.
Linahen, James B.

At Ottawa,

Ferguson, William.

Finch, George.

Fripp, Fred'k Bowles.

Greenshields, Eobert
Horan, Arthur John.

Johnstone, Winifred.

Kains, Mary McMillan.
Lynch, David.
Maher, John.
Martin, Annie.
Matheson, George M.
Mathews, Agnes Bertha.

Merrick, Bessie L.

McDonagh, James.

At Kingston.

Hardy, Wm. A. G.
Kinney, John.
Little, Joseph.

At Toronto.

Lougheed, Geo. Edwd.
Lynch, John Joseph.

Martin, Louis K.
McAllister, Geo. D.
Palling, James.
Patterson, Charles.

Pollock, Geo. B.

At Hamilton.

Dempsey, J. H. C,

Elliott, Thomas.
Hamilton, Augusta M.
Hill, Jonathan A.
Hinchliffe, Ada.

At London.

Flynn, W. Joseph.
Harris, Wm. N.
Hastings, Samuel J.

Jones, Samuel.

At Winnipeg.

Ferguson, George L.
Flesher, Fredk. C.
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Mathyl, Emile.

Theberge, Phileas.

Ward, Wm E.

McKenzie, Agnes B.

McLean, Walter.

Parish, Geo. H.
Payne, Alonzo N.
Payne, John L.

Bidley, Constance.
Eochester, James K
Eogers, Herbert E.
Eyan, John.

Sawyer, John A.
Sims, Eichard J.

Smith, Josephine E.

Stuart, F. E.

Wright, Samuel E*

Morden, Geo. H.
O'Eeilly, Wm. James.

Price, Geo. C.
Eichardson, John H.
Eoberts, Geo. J. H.
Sanderson, Frank.
Waters, Geo. A. W.
Wilkinson, Alex'r.

Mahony, Eobt. P.

McCullough, Hattie.

McLeod, Carrie.

Smith, Gertrude.

Johnson, E. W. S.

Lawe, Eobert.

Minhinnick, W. B.

White, Eichard 1£.

James, Arthur 0.
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At Victoria, B.C.

Fawoett, Eowland C. Kaye, Ernest Edwd.
J. THORBURN, LL.D.,

Chairman.
A. D. DECELLES,
P. LeSUEUR,

Secretary .

CANDIDATES WHO PASSED IN OPTIONAL SUBJECTS AT THE CIVIL
SERVICE EXAMINATION HELD IN NOVEMBER, 1885.

At St. John.

Burgess, Sherman W., Precis.

Murray, Fredk Wm., Precis.

Virtue, Wm. J., Precis.

At Montreal.

Eagleson, James S., Book-keeping.
Gawne, D. McLeod, Precis.

Linahen, James E., Composition and Translation.

Theberge, Phileas, Precis.

Valeur, Charles, Precis.

At Ottawa.

Aird, Geo. B., Precis.

Aird, H. E. Louisa, Composition, Translation and Precis.

Bate, Charles W. C, Precis.

Bell, Marion E., Precis.

Briggs, John, Stenography,
Casey, Maurice W., Precis.

Charles, Joseph H., Book-keeping and Precis.

Horan, Arthur John, Composition.
Matthews, Agnes Bertha, Precis.

Payne, John L., Precis and Telegraphy.
Parish, Geo. H., Precis.

Rochester, James K., Book-keeping.
Ryan, John, Precis.

Sims, Richard J., Composition and Precis.

Stuart, F. E., Precis.

At Kingston.

Barrett, William, Book-keeping and Telegraphy.

At Toronto.

McAllister, Gee. D., Book-keeping.

At Hamilton,

Armstrong, Jason R., Precis.

Beresford, Miss M. E., Composition and Precis.

Smith, Gertrude, Precis.

J. THORBURN, LL.D,,
Chairman.

A. D. DECELLES,
P. LeSUEUR,

Secretary.

8
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This paper was accidentally omitted from the English version of the Beport of 1884,

and is inserted here to make the record complete.

No. 6.—(Duties.)

CIVIL SERVICE OF CANADA.

Values.

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

PROMOTION EXAMINATION,

Monday, 19th May, 1884.

100

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT—INSIDE SERVICE.

MONET ORDER BRANCH.

1. Name the Books and Blanks forming the equipment of a Money
Order Office.

2. Describe the various operations,connected with the treatment of a

Money Order Account, from the time of its receipt at the Department,

until it passes into the Ledger Clerk's hands.

3. In case of a mistake in the addition of the " Issues " in a Postmaster's

Money Order Return, what should make it certain that the error will be

discovered in the Head Office ?

4. In case of a loss of a Money Order by the remitter or payee, where
can a duplicate be had ? And what means are taken to prevent the pay-

ment of the original order if subsequently found ?

5. Describe the means by which the Postmaster of a Money Order
Office, who has no official credit at a neighbouring bank, is placed in

possession of funds to meet Money Orders drawn upon his Office.

6. If a Postmaster in Ontario issues a Money Order on a Foreign

Country and does not account for the amount in his returns to the Depart-

ment, what means does the M. O. Branch possess of discovering the

omission, and what will be the greatest possible interval between the

irregularity and its detection ?

7. Name all the countries, including British possessions, to which
money may be remitted from Canada by Money Order, distinguishing :

—

1st. Between those in which the original Order, issued in Canada, will

be paid on presentation, and those where a second Order of the

domestic form of the couutry of payment, will be supplied to the

payee.
And 2nd. Between those having a direct convention or arrangement

with Canada, and those with which the exchange is through the

intermediate agency of the Postal Department of a third country.

8. A person in Canada receiving the sum of $100 by Money Order
from Germany, returns the amount to the remitter by the same mode of

transmission. Will the remitter in Germany receive back the exact sum
in Gorman money, which he paid in in the first place ? If not, what will

be the difference, and how is it explained ? The commission on the Orders

need not be considered.

9. What remuneration is allowed to Postmasters of Money Order

Offices, for Money Order duties ? How is it computed, and how paid to

them?
10. Describe the relations between the Money Order and Savings Bank

Branches, and the advantages of the arrangements under which Savings

Bank transactions enter into the Money Order Accounts.
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RETURN
(IN part)

(52)

To an Address of the House of Commons, dated 5th March, 1886 ;—For

copies of all documents forming the record in the cases of Her Majesty

against the different parties tried in connection with the late rebellion

including the jury lists, the names of the jurors, the lists of the jurors

empannelled, the motions and affidavits filed, the evidence, the

incidents of the trial, the charges of the Judge, the names of the

Judges who tried the different cases, the names of the counsel for the

prosecution and for the defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts and

the sentences, and, in short, of every document whatever relating to

the said trials.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,

Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

15th March, 1886.

Department of Justice, Ottawa, 15th March, 1886.

Upon the reference of an Address of the Honorable the House of Commons,,

dated the 5th instant, for copies of all documents forming the record in the cases of

Her Majesty against the different parties tried in connection with the late rebellion,

including the jury lists, the names of the jurors, the lists of the jurors empannelled, the

motions and affidavits fyled, the evidence, the incidents of the trial, the charges or the

judge, the names of the judges who tried the different cases, the names of the counsel

for the prosecution and for the defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts and the sen-

tences, and in short, of every document whatever relating to the said trials, the under-

signed has the honor, in part compliance with the said Address, to transmit herewith

transcripts of the records and proceedings of the fifty-five cases mentioned in the

schedule hereto annexed.
With the exception of the transcript of the records and proceedings in the trials

held at Battieford—-which are now being prepared and will form a supplementary

partial Return—these are all the papers covered by the Address in possession of this

Department.
The Clerk of the Stipendiary Magistrate's Court at Begin a and Battlefoid

respectively, have been asked by telegraph to send copies of the records in the cases

of all other parties held for trial in connection with the late rebellion.

A. POWER, for Deputy of Minister Justice.

QUEEN VS. OKA-DOKA ET AL.

The Queen vs. Oka-doka and four other Indians, charged on the 14th Septem-

ber, 1885, before His Honor Judge Kichardson, when he elected to be tried by a jurpy

the charge being as follows :

—

52—1
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Canada :
")

North-West Territories. J

The information and complaint of Frederick Kelloch Gibson, in the town of
Eegina, in the North-West Territories of the Dominion of Canada, deputy sheriff*
taken the fourteenth day of September, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five
before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in and for the
said North-WeRt Territories, who saith :

That Oka doka, otherwise called The Hole, Wah-mah-de-dota, otherwise called
Red Eagle, Oah-hr-ee-ta-mah-hitchi, otherwise called Poor Crow, Mahto dota, other-

and of right ought, to bear towards our said Lady the Queen, on the twenty-sixth
day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty five.

,~ levy war against
our said Lady the Queen, within Canada, in order, by force and constraint, to compel
her to change her measures and counsels, and the said felonious compassing, imagina-
tion, invention, device and intention, then feloniously and wickedly did express, utter
and declare, by divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say :—

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing,
imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said persons above
charged, and each of them afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-sixth day of March, in
the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as after that
day, at and near the locality called Dock Lake, in the North-West Territories of
Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together, with divers
other evil-dispoped persons to the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, to raise,
make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within
this realm.

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing,
imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said persons above
cha-ged, ar»d each of them afterwards, to wit, on the twelfth day of May, in the
year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as after that day,
at or near the locality known as Batoche, in the said North-West Territories of
Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together, with divers
other evil disposed persons to the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, to raise,
mnke and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within
this realm.

In contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil example of
all others in the like case offending against the form of the statute in such case made
and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

FRED. K. GIBSON.
Sworn before me the day and year first above

)
mentioned, at the town of Eegina, in the V
North-West Territories of Canada. J

Hugh Eichardson,

Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North- West Territories of Canada.

And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary
magistrate and a justice of the peace with the intervention of a jury of six or before
a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way, without the intervention of a iurv*
Which do you elect ?

J J

The prisoners were charged on the above charge on J4th September, 1885, before
His Honor Judge Eichardson, and they elected to be tried by a jury, and the trial

2
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proceeds on this day Thursday, 17th September, before His Honor Judge Richard-
son and Dr. Dodd, J.P.

Mr. Joseph Morin, is sworn as interpreter.
Messrs. D. L. Scott and W. 0. Hamilton, counsel for the Crown.
F. B. Robertson, counsel for prisoners.
Prisoners are asked to plead, which they did, pleading " not guilty," and Mr.

Robertson says they are ready for their trial.

The following jury was sworn : George Wallace, William Williamson, George
Webb, Marshall Ingersoll, John Child, Josiah Gilbert.

Charge read to the jury.

Clerk of Court.—Upon this charge the prisoners at the bar have been arraigned,
and upon arraignment have pleaded not guilty, your duty therefore is to enquire
whether they be guilty or not guilty, and hearken to the evidence,

Mr. Scott.—May it please your Honors, and gentlemen of the jury : The charge
you have just heard read is for the offence known as treason-felony, it is punishable
upon conviction by such term of imprisonment as the court may sea fit to pronounce.
The substance of the charge is that these men designed and intended to levy war
against Her Majesty, which means the lawfully constituted Government of the
country, and, to fulfil that intention, they conspired with others oq certain occasions
to raise and levy rebellion. There are two acts charged. The first is at Duck Lake
on the ^6th March, the second is at Batoche on the 12th May. Now, although you
have all heard of the late rebellion in the north and know all about it, it will be nec-
essary for us to show that there was a rebellion, that a rebellion existed there about
those dates, we will show that the country in that neighborhood broke out into open
rebellion about the 18th March last, when a large number of half-breeds under the
leadership of Louis Riel took possession of that part of the country and orgarized an
armed rebellion against the Government with the intention of setting up a Govern-
ment in opposition to it. On the 26th March a fight occurred at Duck Lake in which
several volunteers and some policemen were killed on the side of the Government,
and some loss of life on the part of the rebels. The rebellion, as I said, continued
until the 12th May, several fights ensued in that interval, but on that day the Gov-
ernment troops under General Middleton were victorious, the rebels were routed, and
the rebellion in that part of the country was at an end. These prisoners are charged
with being implicated in that rebellion. The first charge is at Duck Lake on the
26th March, we will show that at least one of the prisoners w s there on that occa-
sion—we may not be able to show that the others were there—and that he was seen
going towards the fight, and that he was armed and was seen with the rebels going
towards the fight, and was seen afterwards on several occasions in the Indian camp—
the rebel camp. -

Three of the others, as will be pointed out to you as the case proceeds, were
seen several times during the time of the rebellion, with the rebels, and were seen
at the rifle pits in the rifle pits at Batoche, about the 12th May last They were seen
there, we cannot show that they were seen shooting at all, but they were there in
the rifle pits, when one of the witnesses whom we will call was passing through and
saw them there. That is the substance of the evidence that we will be able to pro-
duce against these prisoners.

His Honor will tell you whether or not in his opinion such evidence is sufficient
in law to lead you to find them guilty of the offence with which they are charged, that
is, with designing and intending to levy rebellion. I don't know that I need say any-
thing more. I have explained the case suflloiently to you, and the evidence will dis-
close it more fully as it is called.

William Tompkins sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott

:

"^Q. You are an interpreter in the Indian Department or were, at Carlton ? A.
Yes.

Q. What happened to you on the 18th March last? A. I was taken prisoner.

52-1
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Q. Where? A. At Batoche.

Q. By whom ? A. By Eiel and his followers.

Q. In what state were they ? A. In a state of rebellion.

Q. How do you know ? A. I seen them all with arms -

Q How many were they ? A. 1 think about between 400 and 500.

Q. Of what class of people? A. Sioux, Crees and half-breeds.

O Was Louis Kiel the leader? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know what their object was? A. They wanted to have » new

Government. (Interpreter interprets this to the prisoners in Sioux and Oree.)

Q Where were you taken to on the 18th March ? A. I was taken to the church.

S £?toLgtr^tpt'there ? A. I was kept there until the next night,

th6
^A^^^tbeoMneofyoaT^ A. We were taken over to Walters' store

across the river.

J SEi^^l^&U^T A. Kept there until the morning of the

^l^th^wWilKaSrt. The nest night we went to

Garnot's house.

Q. Where is that ? A. At Batoche.

O. In the same settlement ? A. Yes. _ . +oVflr. +

q! Were you taken across the river again? A. Yes, the time I was taken to

Duck Lake.
O When was that? A. 26th March. ^. ,

O And where were you placed at Duck Lake? A. In Mr. Mitchells house

S DM anything happen that day at Duck Lake? A. Yes; the rebels and the

police had a fight.

Q. Where ? A* About two miles from Duck .Lake.

% Wcirh
U
ow

e

do
?

you-ktw they had a fight? A. I heard reports, and then

afterwards Eiel came and told us. ^a n a vflfl

Q. You heard the firing ; I suppose you mean by the reports ( A. les.

Q. And Eiel afterwards came and told you ? A. Yes.

Q. Were there any other prisoners there besides you i A. les.

Q flow many ? A. Six.

Q. Eiel came afterwards ; was it on the same day I A. les.

O. And told you that there had been a fight ? A. Yes.

Q. What did he say about it? A. He said he was glad to have a victory over

thG
^Did he say what had happened during the fight ? A. He said that they had

killed quite a number.
Q Of what? A. Of volunteers and policemen

.

q! Anddid he say what the result was ? A. The result in his way, he thought

it would favor hi- ^^^ r ? A> ye8.

O HoJ long wore you detained a prisoner? A. Until thelsith May.
§' wZre wllyo/kept during that time? A We were kept around the

country We were at Carlton, and then they brought us from Carlton back toS «J"put us in Baptisto Boyer's house, and then on the day of the Pish Creek

^X A^LTdfd 'you know there was a battle at Fish Creek ? A. Half-breeds

told
(Tyou hoard from them that there had been a battle at Fish Creek ? A. Yes.

n On th at dav vou were put in the cellar? A. Yes.

« Bow lonjwe ylu kept there ? A. We were token out twice. I am not

sure. I thinkTtWs twice and then we were put back again when the fight came

at Batoche, and in the cellar then four days.

4
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Q. You knew the fight lasted for four days at Batoche ? A. Yes.
Q. And ended on the 12th May ? A. Yes.
Q. How many prisoners were there in the cellar at that time ? A. Six besides

myself.

Q. Then on the 12th what happened? A. We were released.

Q. By whom? A. Gen. Middleton and his forces. (Interpreted in Cree and
Sioux to prisoners.)

Q. Then did that part of the country continue in a state of rebellion for that
time after the 18th March ? A. Yes.

Q. Up to? A. 12th May.
Q. Did you see any of the prisoners during that interval ? A. I saw them all.

Q. Where did you see No. 1, for instance, The Hole ? A. I saw him at Batoche.
Q. What was he doing ? A. The same as the rest ; he had arms, carrying arms.
Q. How many times did you see him ? A. I seen him frequently. I could not

say how many times.

Q. What opportunity had you of seeing him ? A. Seeing him through the window.
Q. Through the window of the house where you were imprisoned ? A. Yes

;

they used to come out and dance.

Q. Where there any other Indians with him ? A. Yes ; all the Sioux Indiana
used to dance, and the Crees used to join in with them.

Q. That is all you remember about him, is it ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know anything else about him besides what you have told? Ai,

Well' nothing only what they
Q. No. 2. Did you see him, Bed Eagle ? A. Yes.
Q. Where ? A. At Batoche.

Q. What was he doing? A. Carrying arms in rebellion, the same as the rest.
Q. That is all you know about him? A. Yes.
Q. Was he armed ? A. Yes.
Q. No. 3, Poor Crow? A. The same—I seen him too.

Q. No. 4 ? A. Yes ; Eed Bean.
Q. Just the same? A. Yes.
Q. You saw him frequently armed ? A. Yes.
Q. No. 5, Left Hand? A. I seen him also.

Q. Where ? A. At Batoche and Duck Lake.
Q. You saw him at Duck Lake on what day ? A. 26th March.
Q. That was the day of the fight ? A. Yes.
Q. Was it before or after the fight you saw him? A. He was just going out-

after the fight I saw him, and I saw him before the fight,

Q. You saw him before the fight, going out where? A. Going out with the>
rest of them.

Q. Which way ? A. Towards the battle.

Q. He was going out towards the battle with the other rebels ? A. Yes.
Q Was he armed? A Yes.
Q. And you saw him afterwards ? A. Yes.
Q. On that day ? A. He used to be riding my horse around.
Q. Did you see him afterwards ? A. Yes ; I saw him frequently after that.
Q. Where? Ai At Batoche.

Q. What was he doing at Batoche? A. Doing the same as the rest, carrying
arms.

Q. Armed, I suppose ? A. Yes.
Q. Now, did you know these prisoners before ? A. I have seen them.
Q. Before the rebellion ? A. No, I don't know. I have seen them, but I don't

know them. I know the Cree.

Q. You knew him before ? A. Yes.
Q. But the other four you did not know before the rebellion ? A. No.
Q. Were there many Sioux there ? A. Yes, quite a number. (Interpreted ia

Cree and Sioux to the prisoners.)

5
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Cross-examined by Mr. Bobertson :

Q. When you say you saw these people at Batoche, where was it that you were

a prisoner ? A. At Batoche.

Q. In the village ? A. Tes. I guess you can call it a village, there are lour or

five houses.

Q. On what days of the month can you tell us did you see these different men

sX Batoche ? A. I could not.

Q. You cannot say that ? A. No.

Q. Somewhere about the beginning of May ? A. Yes. I seen them on the 10th

of April, the first, that is when White Cap's band came in.

Q. Where were you when White Cap's band came in ? A. Looking out of a

pane of glass in the window. -

Q. How many of them were there ? A. I could not say. I should think there

was about twenty-five or thirty. - \
Q. Had you ever seen any of them before ? A. I seen White Cap. 1 used to

:give him rations.

Q. Had you seen any of the others before ? I could not say.

Q. You did not recognize any in particular then ? A. Yes, I recognized those.

Q. At that time ? A. Yes.

Q. You had never seen them before ? A. Yes ; but I seen them too often after-

Q*. Did you recognize them then, when you saw them first ? A; No, I did not.

Q. Then you saw them afterwards at different times about the village? A. Yes.

Q. And that is what you refer to when you say that you saw them frequently

- tBatoche ? A. Yes.

Q. How long have you known the Indians ? A. About seven years.

Q. And it is a fact is it not that an Indian very rarely moves about without his

gun ? A. Yes, generally, they have their gun.

Q. Generally, they carry their guns wherever they go ? A. Yes.

Q. Now, what arms had these different men that you speak of
;
you say they

were armed ? A. Do you mean rifle or shot gun ?

Q. Tell us what arms ? A. They had their guns.

Q, Which they generally carried ? A, The Sioux, principally, have rifles.

Q. They generally carry them ? A. Yes.

Q. And they had then just the same guns and rifles that they generally carry

A. Yes.

Q. When you saw them ? A. Yes

.

Q. That is what you mean by saying that they were armed ? A. Yes.

Q. Where were you just immediately before the fight at Duck Lake? A. We
-were just coming in as they were going out from Batoche.

Q. You were coming in as they were going out ? A. Yes.

Q. As who were going out ? A. The rebels.

Q. From Batoche ? A. No ; they had gone the night before to Duck Lake, from

Batoche, part of them. There was a guard left on us, we went next morning.

Q. You were a prisoner before that ? A. Yes. I was taken on the 18th, and I

don't know, I think there was about three hundred started the night before from

Batoche and went to Duck Lake, and then on the next morning we were taken over

to Duck Lake, and we were just coming into Duck Lake when part of them were

going out.

Q. When who were going out ? A. The rebels.

Q. From Duck Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. You were just being brought in then to Duck Lake when this party of

rebels was going out from Duck Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. And you say that you saw one of these prisoners there on that occasion r

JL. Yes ; but I did not say I saw the Sioux.

Q. You saw the Cree, No. 5, Left Hand ? A. Yes.

Q. You saw the Cree that morning ? A. Yes.
6

,
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Q. Now that was before the fight at all ? A. Yes.

Q. You saw a good many other people there coming and going, did'nt you ?

a Yes.

Q, Did you go out with them to where the fight took place ? A. I went out

afterwards.

Q. You did not go at that time? A* No.

Q. You remained at Duck Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. When the lot of them went away, you remained at Duck Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. How far was it where you remained from where the fight afterwards occurred ?

A. I should think it would be about a mile and a half.

Q. How many did you see going out from Duck Lake ? A. I think there were

about 400.
.

Q. About 400 went out from Duck Lake that morning ? A. Yes.

Q. Now, for all you know, some of those men who went out that morning may

not have gone to where the fight occurred at all ? A. That is so.

Court. Shall I have this repeated to the prisoner, Mr. Kobertson ?

Mr. Kobertson.—I think not.

John W. Astley sworn :—

Examined by Mr. Scott

:

Q. Where do you live, Mr. Astley ? A. Prince Albert.

Q. What is your occupation ? A. Surveyor and explorer.

Q. What were you doing on the 17th March ? A. If I was to give my evidence

where I eeen each of these men separately

Q. I want to commence at the beginning—where were you on the 17th March ?

A. In Prince Albert, and I went up with Capt. Moore with a certain amount of

special constables aDd volunteers to Carlton, and when I was at Carlton I went out

scouting for Major Crozier through the French settlement, and I was taken prisoner

on the 26th March, three o'clock in the morning, at Duck Lake, by half breeds and

Indians, under the leadership of Louis David Eiel, in open rebellion against the Queen.

Q. What happened on the 26th March ? A. On that same day of the 26th

March, after Kiel and a certain amount of half-breeds came in from Batoche, I saw

that Left Hand.
#

Q Were you in the same ? A. I was in the same room, upstairs, with lom-

hins, and I saw that Cree, Left Hand, going in the direction of where Eiel told me,

afterwards, the fight had taken place with the rest of the half-breeds and Indians.

Q. He was going with the rest of the half-breeds and Indians in the direc-

tion—— ? A. Of where the fight took place.

Q. You know a fight took place ? A. Yes ; Eiel came up that same day and

told me that a fight had taken place near Duck Lake.

Mr. Eobertson.—That is not evidence.

Mr. Scott.— I think the statement of Eiel is evidence as to what had been done.

Court.—Eiel's statement of a fight having taken place is evidence.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Had you any other means ;of knowing that a fight had taken place? A^

There was a wounded vol unteer brought up into the room, Charlie Newett, and I

had to dress his wounds for him.

Q. Any other reason for knowing? A. Except seeirg the half-breeds going

out and returning.

Q. And what did they do after they returned, or did they do anything ( A.

Uo, Eiel just came up and told us, and that was all, and then of course some of the

volunteers came from Prince Albert and took the bodies away the following Sunday,

and I was moved to Carlton, and from that taken to Batoche, and I arrived there the

3rd of April, and that was the first time, from that on, when I saw these Sioux

Indians. .. 19 ,,

Q. Then you were imprisoned in the same prison with Tompkins untu l-m

Jlay ? A. 12th May.
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Q What happened on the 12th May ? A. On the 12th May I carried a note oat
lor Kiel to General Middleton, and there was firing going on at that time, and I saw-
that. '

Q. What did you do on that day ? A. I rode out first of all to the general.
Q. Kiel sent 3 ou with a note to General Middleton ? A. Yes.
Q. Took you out of the place where you were confined and sent you with a note

to General Middleton ? A. To General Middleton.
Q. How did you get to General Middleton ? A. I rode out on horseback.
Q. What had you to go through to get there? A. I had to pass through the

rebel lines.
r &

Q. Were they fighting or not at the time ? A. There was fighting going on at

Q. You passed through the rebel linos and got to General Middleton ? A. Yes.
Q. And after you got there what did you do ? A. I took a note back from him

to Kiel.

Q. Going through the lines the second time? A. Second time, yes.
Q And then what happened after that ? A. I talked to Kiel some time and

took another note out about two o'clock in the aftern on.
Q. To whom ? A. To the general, the second time.
Q. You passed through the lines how many times? A. Three times.
Q. Going between Kiel and General Middleton ? A. Yes.
Q. On the 12th May ? A. On the 12th May.

$•'
Were thGJ firing ? A

*
TheF were firin£ when l wont out tho first time

>
and

the faring stopped from half-past nine or ten till half-past nine. The last twice 1 went
through, there was firing all the time.

Q. Then they were not firing the first time ? The first time they were firing,
but the firing stopped when 1 was talking with Eiel.

Q. But the second time you went through? A. They were firing.
Q. Where did you see No. 1, The Hole ? A. I saw him at Batoche when I arrived

there about the 3rd April.

Q. What was he doing ? A. Inarms from that day until I saw him the last day.
Q. How many times would you tee him during that time ? A. I used to see

him very nearly every day in front of our window.
Q. Did you see him anywhere else? A. The last day I saw him when I was

coming back the second time and looking for Kiel, on horseback. I saw him with a
gun in his hand among where the half-breeds and Indians were. The troops were
firing, and of course they were firing, but I could not see him firing at the time.

Q. Who were firing? A. The half-breeds and Indians aod troops.
Q. The half breeds and Indians with whom No. 1, The Hole, was with at the

time ? A. Yes.

Q Where were they ? A. He was more to what would be my left, going out
from the half breed camp. 6

Q. How far from the settlement ? A. About half-way between the head of the
rebel settlement and the general's, among some sand-hills when I was looking for
Kiel, that is where the Sioux were situated.

Q, Thev were among some saDd-hills ? Were there any rifle pits in the neigh-
borhood of Batoche ? A. There were rifle pits in all directions around there.

Q. Were there any near where these men were that you saw with The Hole ?A
.
There were some a little further up, near where the troops were.
Q. But there were a number of rebels with him in that place? A. Yes, scattered

all through.

Q, Wa> that a place for a man who would want to keep out of the fight ? A.
No, not a very good place to keep out of the fight.

Q. Not the best place that he could have found ? A. No, not the safest place.
Q. Was he armed on that occasion ? A. He was armed at that time.
Q. No. 2. Red Eagle, where did you first see him ? A. I saw him about the

10th April. He belongs to White Cap's band. They were not there when we arrived at
8
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Batoche's first, and I aaw him off and on, armed the same as\^ t

d
°
ô °^u^

the time, up to 12th May, and then I saw him in a rifle pit lower down the river

where White Cap's band was situated when I went out the nrst time.

Q. You baw him in a rifle pit? A. Standing up at that time

O When you went out the first time to General Middleton ? A. Yes.
_

O What was he doing ? A. Several of them standing around and the remainder

you could see with part of the head over the pit. I could see some few of them stand,

^g around near their pits, but the majority ofthem woald have their heads poking

up out of the pits every now and then. .. ... ., m . n T oaw ,.m
Q. Was this man in a pit ? A. Standing alongside of the pit when I saw him.

O. Was he armed ? A. Armed, at that time.

Q How iar would that ba from the settlement, from the houses ? A. It would

be very near half a mile below where we were imprisoned

.

Q And how far from General Middleton's lines ? A. From where the troops

were at that time and the General himself, it would be about 400 yards.

Q. And about half a mile from Batoche ? A. Yes.

q! No. 3. Poor Crow, where did you see him ? A. I saw him the same time I

^W Q° AbouTt
e

he 3rd April ? A. About the 3rd April when we arrived there, andl

saw him about the same place on the last day.

O Where was that? A. Among those sand-hills when I was coming back from

Ike second tHpto General Middleton. I was looking for Kiel then and I had to come

backwards and forwards through their lines looking for him.

f Q That was the second ptssage through the lines ? A My second trip back.

Q What was he doing there ? A. Just around about the same as No. 1.

Q How far were those sandhills that you saw No. L and No, 3 in from the

houses? A. About halfway, perhaps about 200 yards.
?

. T/esthe
Q. About half way between the houses and the generals lines? A. .es, tue

bouses where we were prisoners and the general's lines.

O No 4 ? A. Bed Bean, that is I saw him about the 3rd, the same time that I

saw the rest of them there, armed off and on till the end of the time, but I did not sea

him
Q
he
Nor^

d
rd
y
you see him before the 3rd ? A. No, I did not see him at^aU before.

Q. That is aU you can say about him ? A That is all I know atouUum.

Q. That you saw him there armed in the rebel camp ? A. In the rebel camp.

O No 5 Left Hand ? A. I saw him first at Dack Lake on the 26th Mare^

g^toLtiZ^ where the fight took place or where Kiel told me the %ht *ad

taken place, with the rest of the half-breeds and Indians, and I saw him off and on^ Then, he was with the crowd of half-breeds and Indians that were going out

in that directs.11< A Yes. ^^ ^^^ d ,

Batoche's I saw him at the same plate as I saw One Arc**, when I went oat the first

fam
°Q Where did you see him ? A. It was when I was going out the first time,

had to pass through where he was standing with the rest of them on the side of aML
There was some of the same men firing at the troops at that time. They woald step

up on top of the hill and fire, and then fall back agairi.

Q. Did you see him firing ? A. No, I did not see him firing.

Q. He was with others who were firing ? A. Yes.

O. And whom you saw firing at the troops ? A. Yes.

Q. Was he armed ? A. He was armed at that time. Kiel went with me and

*"
Q m^a^Tny of these before ? A. I knew Laft Hand No. 5, and I seen

No. 2; Red Eagle, but I never saw the others before I saw them at Batoche. ( Chis is

interpreted in Cree and Sioux to the prisoners.)
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Cross-examined by Mr. Bobertson

:

I-&1ftlrSySSf rf th6m? A- We"' I ^between half-breeds a„d

of^41^0^ many of them -

l^LoT^C^Ha2^^1^ A
"
Iu WWt«°^ ^d I have Been

I saw thlm at

a

BaT
0U
h
neVer *** *** °therS UDtil y0U Saw them at Batoche ? A

-
Till

„™ Q * Tf '

exc
.
eP* Le[

t Hand and No. 2 Bed Eagle, you had never seen them untilyou saw them at Batoche ? A. I did not see the others before Batoche.
.
f,
QWun Td

t
{\ y°u had *een No

«
2

>
Eed Eagle, before? A. I have seen him

I believe
S " throu^h Prince Albert di«trict. He is his son-in-law,

„ 'A^'S ? m™B
%
°f thT J

arge bodies of men that y°u saw the™ are you prepared
to identify ? Weil, out of the lot that were in the barracks, those are the only lotthat I would swear to—those few.

J

m
Q. These are the only few that you would swear to ? A. Yes. There are acer-

^acS°m
Dt m°re

°
Ut6ide tLat I might SWear t0, but n0De 0f these are amonS tho

Q. I suppose ycu have heard of the many very extraordinary cases of mistaken
identity, mistakes people have made about the identity of people ? A. Well, 1 havegot certain reasons to remember certain men, and I am not very likely to forget them.

V5 -men it is because you have certain reasons for remembering? A. That Iremember those few, more than others.

* .

Q
,V

Te11 UB ™h&t is the certain reason for which you remember No. 1 ? A. I wasout talking to Kiel one day just after the Fish Creek fight, and Eiel told me, in talk-ing tome, to keep my eye on some man that was standing behind me with a gun.
for fear he might shoot me. So I remember him quite right

wv*n D
l
Wl

i
at *? S

/?e 8pedal rea80E for No
'
2 ? A - Because he belongs to theWhite Cap band, and 1 have seen him

.

T-44w?*
a 3? A\ Eecause Ihave a particular friend among them there named

i™! ™ J!i*l
d*^eard the nan.e "Crow" used, and I thought it was the same man,

but one of the half-breeds pointed him out to me not as Little Crow and I knew the

n
E^' 1S Way 1 Cbme t0 remem*>er him.

™- <a :
4
\
E

?
d
l?

8?^ A
* * JUBt remember him, being in front of our room

l?J \ ^lf lTg B£d Bea
P J

he wae P°iBted out t0 me by some English speaking»eich half-breeds. He used to be in front of our windov-the prisoners' window,^hey used to come and dance in front of our window eveiy day.

^w„i ii i

Ha
?
d
I
A

*
0i cot,r6e 1 kBew him as belonging to One Arrow's

tiandi J have known him for some years.
Q. I just wanted to be sure theie was no mistake about them. Now, which of

thete do \ou say belonged to White Cap's band ? A. Bed Eagle, No. 2.

i»dt iywi^o1

.

7 0De ? A - He is the oniy °De that beiongs to white cap,s

w Q-'
"D0 y °U kJT ™yth™g ab°ut bis previous character ? A. Well, as far as the

V 8 ^B
L
c

.

erB *d
' }

have alway8 heard them well spoken of.
Q. White I ap e band has been always well spoken of ? A. Yes.
14. Uo you knew anything about this man in particular against him ? A. Except

whb|a rifle? "
*™ °ff "^ 0D

'

Md theB °n the la8t da^ standiDS outside

#limn
Q;^e

f

n T IT 9
e"

A
me aDyttiDg about the character of the others, taking

tl? 8ft
!f T

tb
,f
°^ ? A

'
The other three Sioux-I know nothing about the*

^atoX
e

ri

a

ht ak)n°

n
^ ^cw anything more about them than seeing them armed at

lg a Bg*

10
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Q. And Left Hand ? A. Well, he is like One Arrow. All his band are not

what you would call a good specimen of Indians.

ffi Well, they don't work very hard ? A. No, they don t.

Q. But that is about the worst you can say against them ? A. That is about as

bad as 1

^
c

h
a

a

n
t^

e
-

idea; ou are a very energetic man? A. That is the worst I

know of them. I know nothing against his character, anything worse than that.

O Now when you were riding through the lines on those occasions you were

pretty excited, weren't you ? A. No, I can't say I was excited I was a hide mad

Q. You don't consider you are excited when you are mad ? A. No, I was not

at all

^

ex
T
c

^
ed

b
-

ulletg were flying pretty thickly ahout you ? A. Well, I did not notice

thfimatall I did not bother my head about them.

Q. And yet you were not excited? A. No, I was not at all excited, I was just

mad
O
h
ThTfs

L
rather a strange state of mind. I would like to understand

it. A man riding through between two lines where firing was going on actually not^^&Sg
g. Do

S
you say that? A Well, I had something else to think

about I never thought once about it at all the whole time I was travelling except

perhaps an odd man would take a shot at me a little too close.

Then you are not prepared to swear there was firing going on ? A. I seen

smoke! I heard bullets whistling around in every direction, and what I mean to

sav is that I was not excited about it.
m

Q. Now, did you notice the firing or did you not ? A. I noticed it m the respect

that 1 knew the firing was going on by the smoke and the whiz of the bullet*, but it

did not excite me at all. ,,'.,, i n n *i +

Q. You were running the gauntlet ? A. I don't know what you call the gauntlet.

Wa
Q.°You

m
were running the gauntlet of those two fires. You were riding out

between the opposing lines ? A. Certainly.

0. Exposing yourself to the fires of both lines? A. Yes.

You were doing that, and you were very anxious at the time to bring about

a parley, and to stop that firing ? A. Yes, for the sake of the prisoners and Eiel.

That was the purpose, and you were running about trying to find Kiel when

you saw them, these men'? A. When I saw these two men, I was perhaps half-an-

hour riding backwards and forwards before I could find him at all that time.

Q And you saw a great many other Indians that day ? A. Yes
;
but some I

could not remember again. I might remember them if 1 saw them, but I could not

swear to them ; but those two I remember all right enough.

Q It is the only two that you remember ? A. That is all I remember the

second time. The first time 1 saw No. 2, the second time I saw No. 1 and No. 3.

Q. On the first time the circumstances were very much the same, there was

firing going on ? A. Firing going on, but it was more distant.
m

Q. You were riding through the lines just the same ? A. But it was in a differ-

ent direction.

Q. The same thing going on ? A. Yes.

Q. A hot fight going on ? A. It was not very hot at that time.

Q Now Mr. Astley, don't you think that it is just possible you may be mistaken

about these men ? A: If 1 had not known them for those same reasons before that,

I would perhaps not have remembered them so well, but when I knew those same

men for those same reasons before then, and had reason to know them when 1 passed

them and noticed them ; there were other Indians I passed, not noticing who they

were at all. - .
'

.,,

Q. I only want your honest opinion about it, and I know that is all you will

give us ; when you think it quietly over, don't you think it is rather stretching a

point to say thtt you can be perfectly positive that these identical men were there,

that you may not have seen somebody else and mistaken them for these in the
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excitement ol the moment ? A. I don't know ; if I saw you some place I would
remember your face again, and those men can be distinguished from other Indians.

Q. You might see somebody else like me and take him for me, because, when a
man is familiar with one face and sees another that is like it, another face ; when he
is in a state of excitement his mind naturally jumps at one idea—that is the man I
know ? A. It may be with some people.

Q. You have made that mistake yourself, haven't you, with people you fancied
you knew, and you found out you were mistaken ? A. I may have in an odd case

.

but then I had not the same reason to remember those people that I had to rememi
ber these.

Q. Were you thinking of remembering these people theu ? A. No, not at that
time

; but I had certain reasons for remembering them, and the moment I saw them
I remembered their faces ; but others I did not remember.

Q. Had you any more reason for remembering them than you had, for instance,
on other occasions when you have told us you have met people that you mistook for
some person that you knew well ? A. I don't know any case where I have done
that, but still it may have happened.

Q. May it not be that you may be mistaken, just be mistaken in that sort of
way about these men. A. Well, I would not admit it, because I feel perfectly positive
of it.

Case for the Crown closed.

No evidence for defence.
Mr. .Robertson.—I am not going to address the jury, and I leave it for your

Honor. *

Court.—Gentlemen of the jury. From what you have heard those two witnesses
state in that witness-box, you are called upon to pronounce whether or not exercis-
ing your province as a jury—whether or not as I say, you are conclusively convinced
that all or any one or more of these men who are here before you were implicated in
the rebellious acts which are described and set forth, either one or more of the rebel-
lious acts which are set forth in the charges preferred against them ? The charges
are generally against them all, and they say they were at Duck Lake. Well, the
evidence certainly does not show, does not establish that all of them were at Duck
JJake. The utmost that could be said upon the evidence, is that the Left Hand, the
Cree, was at Duck Lake, but not so with regard to the other overt act which is
charged at Batoche, for there, if reliance is to be placed upon the evidence, I chink
you have evidence which supports it.

In disposing of this case, however, gentlemen, recollect that they are entitled to
just as much consideration as if they were not Indians. They are entitled to the
same consideration as any white man, or any person who is under the protection of
the British Crown, and they ought not to be convicted, no conviction ought to take
place unless a jury is convinced, conclusively, and as a result from considering,
undoubtedly in their minds, that they were implicated.

If, therefore, you have a doubt as to the reliability of the evidence, or that the
witnesses could be mistaken, you think, and a reasonable doubt at that, why give
them or give any of them the benefit of it. If, on the other hand, you are conclusively
convinced that they were there, then as deliberately say so.

I don't see that I need detain you longer. I shall ask you to retire and consider,
and you will then say how you find them all, or any of them.

Mr. Scott.—I don't know that your Honor has made it sufficiently clear to the
jury, that as to each one of the prisoners, if they find him guilty of either one of the
overt acts, there will be a conviction.

Court.—I think I have. Gentlemen, counsel for the Crown doubts whether I have
sufficiently explained to you. Guilt as to any one of the charges, or any one of the
overt acts charged is sufficient to convict them upon proof. If you are convinced by
proof which has been offered to you of coorplicity in any one of these charges, that
is sufficient to convict. I drew your attention to each of the charges for the purpose
of pointing out that with regard to Duck Lake there was only one of them identified.

12
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Then at the same time, 1 also drew your attention to the fact that if the wit-

Besses were to be believed, all of them were at Batoche. Now what the learned conn-

LTwhoTas charge of the 'prosecution seemed to think was, that the verdict should

be dTstributive! that is not necessary, it is not so. If they're implicated m any one

of these^overt acts charged, a verdict of « guilty » should be entered. I think I have

PUt
Mr^ScottS'hink your Honor misunderstood my objection. I did not-pretend

to say that at all, I did not mean that. I did not think the verdict should be dis-

telbU
Jury retire at 11.30 and return at 12 noon, verdict, " guilty, " with recommenda-

tion to mercy.
r

'

.
-'"

;

Court here adjourned till 25th September instant.

QUEEN VS. KAH-PAH-YAK-AS-TO-CUM

North-West Territories

Canada : )

3.)

The thirteenth day of August, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hun-

dwd^nd^^e, afL tow of Eegina, in the North-West Territories before

Hu^h Richfrdson Esquire, one of the stipendiary magistrates of the North-West

ffit£t&3orfa^ P^™ 0f *» North-West

^t^ "One Arrow," you stand charged oo

oath before me, as follows :

—

Canada : )

North-West Territories. ,

The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of

Hamilton, in the Province of Ontario, in the Dominion of Canada chief^of po ice

•token the thirteenth day of August, in the year of our Lord oneJ^^L^
hundred and eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty s stipendiary

magistrates in and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith :—
g

l Ct Kah-pah-yak-as-to-cum, otherwise called One Arrow, not regarding

the duty of his allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love obedience fidelity andXKTwhXviy Wand faithful subject of our said Lady the Queen should

andot righT ought to bear towards our said Lady the Q™f-T
thet

XTtJ,J daT
of March, in the year aforesaid, and on divers days as well before as after that day

together with divers other evil-disposed persons, to the said Alexander David Stewart

unknownfeloniously and wickedly did compass, imagine, invent, devise and intendto

Tevy Tr' agaLst o
y
ur said I*d/the Q™& *""» Can»d«•* "*«& ^niout

restraint to compel her to change her measures and counsels, and the said felonious

compassing,Tarnation, invention, device and intention then telomously and wick-

edly did express, utter and declare, by divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter men-

^"fn order tofulfil/plrfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing, imagination,

invention, demean/intention aforesfid he, the ^^•P^tl^nThe ytr
wise called One Arrow, to wit, on the twenty-sixth day of March in the year

last above-mentioned, on divers other days and times as well before as after that day,

at the locality called Duck Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid

folonLusly and wickedly did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet

together with divers ath« evil-dieposed persons, to the said Alexander David
I
Stewart

unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady

tHett^in oXtfulfil, perfect and bring to effecf.his felonious compass-

ing, imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Kan-pan-yafc
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as-to-cum, otherwise called One Arrow, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-sixth
day of March, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times as well before
as after that day, at the locality called Duck Lake, in the North-West Territories of
Canada aforesaid, together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said Alex-
ander David Stewart unknown, armed and arrayed in a warlike manner, that is to
say, with guns, rifles, pistols, bayonets and other weapons, being then wickedly and
feloniously assembled and gathered together against our said Lady the Queen, most
wickedly and feloniously did levy and make war against our said Lady the Queen, at
the said locality known as Duck Lake, in the said the North-West Territories of
Canada and within this realm.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious compassing,
imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Kah-pah-yak-
as-to-enm, otherwise called One Arrow, afterwards, to wit, on the ninth day of May,
in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times as well before as after that
day, at the locality called Batoche, in the North-West Territories of Canada, afore-
said, feloniously and wickedly did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet
together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said Alexander David Stewart
unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady
the Queen within this realm.

And further, in order to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing
imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Pah-kah yak-as-
to-cum, otherwise called One Arrow, afterwards, to wit, on the ninth day of May, in the
year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as after that day,
at the locality called Batoche, in the North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid,
together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said Alexander David Stewart
unknown, armed and arrayed in a warlike manner, that is to say with guns, rifles, pis-
tols, bayonets and other weapons, being then wickedly and feloniously assembled and
gathered together against our said Lady the Queen, most wickedly and feloniously
did levy and make war against our said Lady the Queen, at the said locality known
as Batoche, in the said North-West Territories of Canada, and within this realm; in
contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, and to the evil example of all
others ia the like case offending against the form of the statute in such case made
and provided, and against the peace of our said Lady the Queen, her Crown and
dignity.

Sworn before me the day and year above men-
")

A. D. STEWART.
tioned at the town of Regina, in the >

North W est Territories of Canada

.

J
Hugh Richardson,

Stipendiary Magistrate in andfor the North-West Territories of Canada.
And take notice that you have the option of being tried by a stipendiary magis-

trate and a justice of the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or before a
stipendiary magistrate in a summary way and without the intervention of a jury,
pursuant to the Statute of Canada, 43rd Victoria, chapter twenty-five, section seventy-
six, sub-section five, as amended by the Statute of Canada, 43-49 Victoria, chapter
fifty-one. Which do you elect ?

Clerk opens court, and reads to prisoner the charge against him. What say
you

;
are you guilty or not guilty ? Prisoner answers " not guilty."

Clerk.—Are you ready for your trial ?

Mr. F. Beverley Robertson, counsel for prisoner, says he is quite ready.
Clerk (to the prisoner).—These good men whom you shall now hear called, are

those that are to pass between Our Sovereign Lady the Queen and you. If there-
fore you will challenge them, or any of them, you must challenge them as they come
to the book to be sworn, and before they are sworn, and you shall be heard.

A jury of six is now sworn.
Clerk raads indictment to the jury. Upon this charge the prisoner at the bar

has been arraigned, and upon his arraignment he has pleaded " not guilty." Your
inquiry therefore is to enquire if not guilty, and hearken to the evidence.

14
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Mr. Casgrain (for the Crown).—May it please the court, gentlemen of the jury

:

The charge which you have just heard read puts this man before you on an accusa-
tion of treason-felony. The facts which will be brought out in evidence would
probably have warranted the Crown in accusing this man of the highest crime which
is known to the law, that is treason, but the Crown, believing that the Indians in
this country have an indefinite notion of thj allegiance which they owe to their

Sovereign, it was thought proper to bring this man before you on an accusation for

a crime of a lesser degree than that of treason. As you have hoard the charge read
to you, several overt acts are laid against this man. He is accused of the crime of
treason-felony, and if in the evidence aDy of these overt acts are sustained, these
overt acts sustained by the witnesses, any one of them sustained, then the crime is

brought home to him, and there will be probably no difficulty about your verdict.

We will endeavor to prove before you that on divers days mentioned in the
charge the locality known as Duck Lake, and the locality known as Batoche were in
a state of insurrection, that is, that the people, that the half-breeds, in that locality

were in a state of rebellion against the Govermneat. Upon this point we think
that there will be no difficulty in establishing that there was an insurrection.

One Arrow, the prisoner now before you, w*»s the chief of a band of about 15
braves, and his reserve was situated near Batoche. He is a treaty Indian, and, as
the charge goes on to say, not regarding the allegiance which he owed to the
Government and to the Queen, not regarding that treaty which passed between him
and the Government of this country, he joins the rebels at Batoche and at Buck
Lake. He is seen almost continuously during the period which elapsed between the
26th March and the 9th, 10th and 11th days of May, 1885, in arms with the other
rebels. He joins them and fights with them at Duck Lake, and he joins and fights
with them at Batoche.

Now, gentlemen, if the Crown proves these overt acts, or any of them, as £ have
already said, you will have no difficulty in coming to a conclusion. The ca^e is a
very simple one in our minds. The evidence will not be long. These Indians
having a treaty with the Government and being treated by the Government of this
country as probably no other Indians are treated by any Government, must be made
to understand that if they are thus treated by the Government they must stand by
the Government, they must maintain their allegiance to the Government, to the
country and to the Queen, and they must also understand that if any breach o
allegiance takes place amongst them, that they will be visited by punishment,
that any crime against the laws committed by them will be put down by the str

arm of the law. i

Now, gentlemen, we will go into the evidence, and it will be short, as I have
already said. I think the case will not take long, and we request your attention for
a very short time.

John W. Astley, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Osier

:

Q. Where do you live, Mr. Astley, and what is your occupation ? A. Prince
Albert, and I am a surveyor and explorer. (Interpreter states this to prisoner in
Cree.)

Q. Do you know, Mr. Astley, whether there was existing, in the districts of
Batoche and Duck Lake, during March, April and May of this year, any armed
rebellion against constituted authorities ? A. Well, 1 think so. I was a prisoner
there from the 26th March till 12th May.

Q. You were a prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. A prisoner in whose custody? A. Louis David Kiel's, and he was one of

his men.
Q. The prisoner was one of his men? A. Jes.
Q. Tell the court and jury shortly what was the nature of the organization whom.

they were opposing ? A, Well, as far as I know, I was taken prisoner-
15
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Mr. Robertson.—I would ask my learned friend to ask the witness to state
definite facts and not to state in a general way.

Mr. Osier.—I am going on to prove the existence generally of a rebellion, and
then I am going to bring it home to this man as participating in it. I cannot do it

otherwise, 1 submit.
Mr. Robertson.—The witness has already made one broad statement.
Mr. Osier.—Not in answer.
Mr. Robertson.—Certainly not in answer ; but the witness should be careful to

state only facts within his own knowledge, and he should not state in answer to a.

general question matters which are only matters of opinion. He seems a little prone
to do that.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—I thought it was from his own knowledge.
Mr. Osier. —1 think it will appear it was of his own knowledge.
Q. State, as far as you know yourself, the nature of the organization and rebel-

lion, who were they rebelling against and who were they opposed to? A. Well, as
far as I know, I was taken prisoner 26th March, at Duck Lake, by Louis David Riel,

who was in command of the breeds, the half-breeds, Cree Indians and Sioux Indians.

Q. What was the object of the armed force ? A. It was against the Government,
the Hudson Bay Company and the police. (This is interpreted to the prisoner in
XJree.)

Q. Do you know of your own knowledge that the prisoner was one of that armed
force ? A.I saw him at Duck Lake, the first time, the morning of the 26th March.

Q. In what condition? What was he doing? A. With a band of armed men
belonging to Riel. That was on the 26th March. (This is interpreted to the prisoner
in Cree.)

Q . Did you see him at any subsequent date ? A. The next time I saw him was
after we moved from Carlton to Batoche. After we were at Batoche I saw him, off
and on, all the time I was prisoner there.

Q. What was he doing ? A. Around among the other men. He is chief over a
certain band of Indians, and whenever those Indians were used at all he was the man
that looked after them, as far as I could see.

Q. When did you see him? A. The last day at Batoche, 12th May, I saw him.
Of course, I saw him armed off and on

;
prisoner from 3rd April till 12th May.

Q. You, as a prisoner, saw him armed on and off from 3rd April till 12th May ?
A. Yes.

Q. Where was that ? A. At Batoehe's. (The interpreter states this to the
prisoner in Cree).

Q. Did you see him do anything particular with reference to the contest that
was going on ? On the last day, 12th May, when I went out to see the general with
the first note, I passed his band of Crees, and some of the other Crees when the
general was making an attack on the breeds on the left flank, and he was on the side

of the hill with his Indians and other bands of Indians, and Riel himself went up
with me to the Indians. I saw him there as I was going, and as I was returning with
the first message.

Q. Doing what ? A. Just defending that hill from the attack the general was
making from the left.

Q. Defending the hill from an attack of General Middleton, you mean ? A. Yes

;

General Middleton.

Q. That he was making from the left ? A. Yes. (The interpreter states this to

the prisoner in Cree.)

Q. That, I understand, was on the 12th May ? A. 12th May, about 9 or half-

past 9 in the morning.
Q. What was he doing ? A. He was there with his braves, or with his followers.

Q. How many ? A. There was most of his band there, and a lot of other Crees—about 40 or 50 in that same lot.

Q. What shape were they in? Had they anything with them? A. They were
All armed, every one of them, as far as I could see.

16
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Q. What were they doing with their arms ? A. Just now and again, when some
of the volleys were fired from the general's side, one of them would go up on the

fcrow of the hill and fire in return.

Q. Did you see that ? A. I saw that when I was passing and going.

Q. There was firing from the hill, from what you understood to be the general's

forces? A. From his men, about 400 yards away, and then some Indians would go

up on top of the brow of the hill and fire back again. Those were his men, and part

the other Crees and Indians.

Q. What was he doing there ? A. At the time I saw him he was standing

there. They could not all fire at once ; there was a kind of a hill scooped out, and
then as they would go up on top of the hill they would fire and come back j but when
I came back they had ceased firing.

Q. Do you know, from anything you saw on either occasion, who was in com-

mand ? A. Among the Indians or the breeds ?

Q. Among the Indians ? A. Oh, I think I don't know anything about it.

Qi I am not speaking of the whole forces, but who commanded this band of

Indians ? A. The chief was supposed to command his own band.

Q. Never mind supposing ? A. I don't say for certain ; I could not tell.

Q. Did you ever see the prisoner doing anything with his band ? No more
than every time when his band would be taken and sent off on any scouting party,

Hiel himself personally would see him and speak to him, ardthen toe prisoner would

speak to his men, and they would go off and do as they were told. That was the

same way with all the chiefs.

Q. What did you see done ? A. Whenever the Indians were sent ont, previous

to them being sent out in any direction as scouting parties, or off to Fish Greek,

for instance, Kiel was seen talking to the chiefs.

Q. Speaking generally, did you ever see Kiel talking to the prisoner ? A. I
nave seen him talking to One Arrow himself.

Q. Then have you immediately after that seen One Arrow talk to the Indians ?

A. I have seen him talk to his men.
Q. What have you seen after that talking ? A. Then I have seen those men go

away and do whatever—I could not hear what they told him, but I have seen them
go away in a body.

Q. Then after Eiel talked to the prisoner and the prisoner talked to his men,
yon have seen the men go away in a body ? A. Go away in a body.

Q. In what way ? A. Before Fish Creek. They were sent off there one time.

Q. How were they when they went away as to arms ? A. They were afcll

armed. (The interpreter states this to the prisoner in Cree.)

Q. Now you know who commanded the whole movement ? A. Yes.

Q. Now do you know what the object of that movement was, from anything

that the leader told you ? A. Yes ; from what Kiel told me himself. Of course he
•was after, you might say, his own ends. That is what he was aUer.

Q. What was the object of the movement as against the Government ? A. It

•was supposed to be for the French half-breeds' claims.

Q. How were they carrying ont that claim j in what way ? A. By rebelling

to get their rights, as far as I

Q. Had they any prisoners ; had they taken any prisoners ? A. There were
seven in the cellar besides myself, and some in the other rooms.

Q. What were those prisoners held for ? A. Well, just from what he admitted

to me, he wished to keep them so that if himself and his council got in danger, to

.make use of them in making terms

.

Q. Were the seven prisoners kept during all the time you were in prison ?

A~ Either in my room or with me all the time. Six besides myself

Q. Well what forces were they opposing—fighting against ? A. Against the

troops of the Government. First against the police and volunteers and then against

the troops under General Middleton.

Q. The Canadian volunteers? A. Canadian volunteers.

17
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Q. And the Canadian mounted police ? A. Mounted police. (The interpreter
states this to the prisoner in Cree.)

Q. Now were you present on any occasions on which there was fighting
between the two armed forces ? A. Yos ; on the 12th May, the last day.

Q. You were present ? A. Yes.
Q. And what went on on the 12th May that you saw ? A. Well, where I men-

tioned that I saw him the first time in the morning at the attack of the general—

—

Q. You told us that particular object, bat I want to know what was the nature
of the general fight at Batoche on the 12th day? A. Between the half breeds and
Cree Indians and Sioux, and the troops and volunteers under Gen. Middleton.

Q. Had that organization anything to do with the organization of which Louis
Eiel was chief? A. lie was the leader of the breeds, the Crees and Sioux Indians.

Q. Were you present at wnat is known as Duck Lake ? A. I was a prisoner at
that time.

Q. Do you know anything of that contest? A. They came upstairs after the
thing was over, and Eiel himself claimed that he was the—called on his own men to
:fire, and was proud of his victory, as far as that went.

Q. Did anything eUe take place that you know of on that occasion which would
indicate a contest ? A. As far as talking about Indians, one time he told me the
reason he had called the Indians in was because certain people had not joined him.

Q. Well, do you know anything about the fight at Duck Lake going on from
anything that you saw ? A. Yes ; I heard a cannon shot ; that was all I heard. I
saw the troops going out and I saw them returning.

Q. What troops? A. Half-breeds and Indians.

Q. You saw them going out in what way ? A. In the direction of Carlton an
in the direction the police were coming from.

Q. Did you see the prisoner there that day? A. I saw him there that morning
just previous to when they came.

Q. What condition was he in as to arms when'you saw him ? A. Well, I would
not like to say what he ljad that day.

Q. What was the assembly at Duck Lake for on that occasion ? A. Just opposing
for their rights ; that is what it was supposed to be, against the police and volunteers.

Mr. Robertson

:

Q. You supposed that? A. No.

Mr. Osier :

Q. Did you see anybody brought in after the fight ? A. There was a wounded
prisoner brought in, and I dressed his wounds, one of the wounded volunteers.

Q. Brought in after the contest? A. Yes, after it was over, and I dressed his

wounds for him

.

Q. Who asked you to dress his wounds ? A. Well, I may have offered to do it

when Eiel brought him up.

Cross-examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q. Mr. Astley, it was you that so bravely carried the messages between Kiel

and General Middleton on the 12th May, I believe ? A. Well, I had the pleasure of
doing that.

Q. And it was while you were behaving in that gallant way that you saw the

prisoner, as you have told us ? A. That is where I saw him at Batoche. j$j

Q. You have lived a good while in that neighborhood, have you ? A. Very
nearly four years.

Q. Do you know the Indians in thai neighborhood pretty well ? A. Well, I
know most of them ; I know most of the chiefs.

Q. Have you known this man, the prisoner ? A. I have seen him off and on
ever since I have been in the country.

Q. Have you ever had any transaction with him ? A. No, I only stopped in

the reserve perhaps once or twice passing through.
18
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Q. Do you know wMat character he has always had up to the time of this

rising ? A. Well, not a ver^ good character as far as I have always heard.

Q. Now, what did you ever hear against him ? A. Well, that he was more fond

of loafing around than working ; of course that may be a characteristic of the Indian.

Q. Was that the worst you ever heard of him ? A. Weil, I never bothered

much ; I never heard anything exeept that. I heard in plain English that he was a

worthless Indian.
,

',. , ,. *
Q. You have heard that about a great many other Indians, haven t you ? A.

Well, a few, his brother-in-law in particular.

Q. That is your opinion of most Indians, isn't it ? A. No, it is not.

Q. Are there many Indians you think are not worthless ? A. Yes, there are

some of the other chiefs in that part of the country that I would say a good word for.

Q. Bat that is the worst you can place or tell us against this man ? A. Yes,

that he is a worthless hound.

Q. Now where was the prisoner the morning of the 26th March, when you say

you saw him at Duck Lake ? A. When Louis David Riel came in from Batoche in

the morning after I had been taken prisoner, I saw Oae Arrow and some of the other

Indians coming in in the same direction with the same body of half-breeds.

Q. They Came in with the same body of half-breeds ? A. With the same body

of hall-breeds.

Q. That was ail you saw of him on that day? A. On that day—yes.
Q. Then you saw him again while you were a prisoner at Batoche ? A. At

Batoche's—yes ; that would be from the 3rd April tjll the last day.

Q. How often during that time did you see him? A. Oh, perhaps every day or

every second day
;
you might say every second day to be safe.

Q.' Will you swear positively you saw him every second day ? A. Well, he was
in a room underneath ; that is where he used to stop part of the time, and he used to

go in and out there, and I might see him perhaps ten times one day and not notice

him the next. I will swear positively I saw him over thirty times during that time.

Q. Now that was between what ? A. 3rd April and 12th May^.

Q. So you must have seen him pretty nearly every day? A. No, that may have

been four or frve times one day and perhaps the next day I would not notice him.

Q. Where were you during that time ? A. A prisoner, part of the time up stairs

mer the room where some of the Indians used to sleep.

Q. At the village in Batoche ? A. At the village in Batoche.

Q. How far back from the rifle pits was that ? A. There were same rifle pits

further djown the river, some 250 yards from the house.

Q. How far was it from the front line of rifle pits that were afterwards taken at

Batoche ? A. Tne furthest, at right angles to the houses and parallel to the river,

would be about 300 or 400 yards ; that would be the front row rank.

Q. Was that the line close to the general ? A. Yes.

Q. About 400 yards ? A. About 400 yards.

Q. Prom where you were? A. From where we were—yes.
Q. And it was during tWte time that this prisoner was in the same house that

you were down stairs ? A. It was during the same time, from the 3rd April until

the 12th May.
Q Now^where was he on the 12th May ? A. I saw him on that day when I

was carrying the first message down on the outside row of rifle pits.

Q. Where was he on the I lth? A. I don't know; I was in the cellar on the

9th, 10th and 11th.

Q. So you cannot say anything about the prisoner's movements during those

days? A. No.
Q. All you know about his movements during that time is that you saw him

standing doing nothing as you were on your way back ? A. He was with his band.

Q. With tho Indians ? A. Yes*

Q. But he was doing nothing himself? A. He was not shooting at that time.

19
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Q. Did you hear him say anything to his men ? A. No, I did not take very

long passing. Some oi them would go up and fire and come back again.

Q. You don't understand Cree ? A. No, I don't.

Q. How often were you a witness to Eiel speaking to the prisoner? A. Wellr
I could not say for certain, perhaps about ten or fifteen times—ten times say, that

you would see him just talking to his men and then the men would be sent off and
would make small scouting parties—his tribe.

Q. They would go off some place ? A. They would go away to Fish Creek. All

the Indians were sent off there, and he would have to speak to each chief, like White
Cap, with his men and another chief. I know the way the Indians work. The chief

has got the whole run of them.

Q. I am not asking you about the other chiefs, I ask you to tell us on how many
occasions you saw Kiel talking to this prisoner as you have told us ? A. Well I am
certain about five different occasions.

Q. Now, when was the first time ? A. The first one, as far as I can remember,

was some excitement expected from Prince Albert. I was out talking to Eiel at the

time, he spoke to One Arrow and he took his men with him and went down towards

+he ferries as if they were going to cross the river. That was when I was out of

doors.

Q. That is all you know about that ? A. That time, yes.

Q. What was the next time ? A. The next time, as far as I can remember, he

went talking out in front of the window and I saw him go up and speak to him,,

and then you could see him getting his men together, and then they went down the

river, about in the same direction/

Q. Down the river ? A. Yes, as if they expected something down the river.

Q. Then the third time ? A. That will be the third time, twice in that same
way, that they went in the same direction. And then just previous to the Fish Creek

iight Eiel had a talk, where I was watching from the window, and some of the other

chiefs, and then this roan at the same time, and then his band went off in the direc-

tion of Fish Creek. That would be the fourth time.

Q. Did he guide them? A. Of course I could not see him. I did not see him*

He started at the time with his men from there, but I don't know whether he went

to Fish Creek. I was not at Fish Creek. T\

Q. You don't know where any of them went ? A. No. The last day when Eiel

went with me personally

Q. E want to get the different occasions on which you heard this taking place ?

A. That is the fourth time.

•Q. That is all you can tell us about each of those occasions ? A. Yes.

Q. What was the fifth time ? A. The last time when I went out with them

—

No, Eiel went with me personally, and in speaking to the Indians right there on that

side of the hill, instead of telling a whole lot of Indians what I was doing, he told

One Arrow himself.

Q. You don't know what he said to him ? A. No, I don't understand Cree, and
when I came back of course I saw him in thje same position again, and they told him
not to shoot me, or something.

Q. Was One Arrow painted on that occasion ? A. Not that I noticed.

Q. Have you been much on One Arrow's reserve ? A. Oh, I have passed through

the reserve off and on every year.

Q. There was a road through that reserve wasn't there ? A. A winter road.

Q. And a eood deal of traffic on it ? A. Yes, a good deal of traffic during the

winter months.

Q. And you never heard anything worse against One Arrow than that he^was.

worthless ? A. A worthless hound.

Q. Who used that expression ? A. Well, I think taking the Indian agents or

any man around the country that has known his previous record, perhaps as much
before he came to the reserve

Q. Tell us one that called him worthless? A. It was almost every man,
20
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Q Then you can easily tell ns one who said it? A. I have heard it so often

iliat T Viftvfir think of anv man's name that mentioned it to me.

Q You have heard
7
it so often that you cannot tell us one man that ever said it t

A. No, not just at the time being.

Q. You have said it yourself? A. I may have done so.

J X^rATdSCi^^«'.^;bat tt b the general ex-

Q. You have heard Mr. Lash call him a worthless hound ? A, About to the

^^Ha've you heard him call him a worthless hound ?J JA. No, I won't say those

aret

Q
e

TnTbo""el
8

se ? A. I think Mr. McRae will give him a very good (?) reputa-

%. Which Mr. McRae? A. Indian agent that was at Carlton

Q. Did you ever hear him call him a worthless hound ? A. That is the plain

^^NoVthis is a matter of practical life and death to this mam or may be
;
now,

release be careful what you say-you have said you heart him frequently called a

^thlees hound ? A. That is the general expression used in that part of the country.

Q TeU TO one man you havener heard use that expression with reference to

this man ? A. I gave you two gentlemen that perhaps know that Indian better than

I do I gave you Mr. Lash and Mr. McRae.

'o. They know him better than you do? A.Yes.
«..«.-*«*

q. Do you know Mr. Hughes ? A. I know him as a magistrate in that part o£

^
Q?Does he know One Arrow? A. Well, he should do it, he has been there

year

Q
e

Ts
U
he
b
oneofthemenwho will say he is a worthless hound? A. I don't

tad*^^«S^ory ; tell us somebody else whom you ever heard

say he was a worthless hound? A. I cannot go and remember a ^gl*6 ^*: .

O You cannot tell us a single man that said that except yourself? In plain

English what other expression would you like to use ? A. I say the general expres-

siof as rlards him as an Indian is that a man is either a hard working Indian or else

a worthless hound. That is the general expression. It may not mean as bad as that>

I don't say it does, but as a general thing in applying any term to an Indian you apply

that term, that is, the half-breeds themselves.

Q You can't tell us a single man whom you ever heard, on your oath t A. just;

at the time I cannot remember. I don't talk about the maa.

Re-examined by Mr Osier :

Q. How far is the reserve this prisoner ought to be on ? A. It adjoins the river

lots^^^^ from Batoche ? j
Ai About four and a quarter miles from where the

houses,were.^^ Qn Ms reserve at that time ? Ai He was off the reserve at that

""a Well, on these five different occasions that you saw the interview take place

between Kiel and the prisoner and the men go out, were they armed t A. iney

were all armed at that time.

Q. All armed? A. Yes.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. Don't Indians generally carry arms in the most peaceful times ? A. You don't

findthem in groups whin you do, but when they are hunting they generally carry arms.
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Q* Doesn't he generally do so ? A. Not when he is not hunting.

By Mr. Osier :

Q. Were there other armed men around there? What was the gathering
around there ? A. They were all in arms.

Q. How many men do you suppose you ever saw together in arms? A*
Between 400 and 500.

John B. Lash, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Oasgrain

:

Q. Where have you lived for the last few years, Mr. Lash ? A. Well, I have
been in the north and south.

Q. Have you lived near the locality called Batoche? A.- Carlton. I went
there in January last.

Q. You were there in the months of March, April and May last ? A. Yes j the
best part of the time I was a prisoiaer.

Q. What position did you occupy ? A. I was a prisoner.
Q. But before you were a prisoner what were you doing there? A. I was

Indian a£ent.

Q. Do you know the* prisoner? A. I do.
Q. Where is his reserve situated ? A. About four and a-half miles south of

JSatoche.

Q. What is the prisoner's position among his people ? A. He is chief of the
band.

Q. Had you occasion to see him any time in the month of March last ? Yes I
eaw him about the 18th March, on the reserve.

Q. Well, about that time, about the 18th March, and the days subsequent to that
day, what waR the state of the country around Batoche and Duck Lake, or in what
state were the people there ? A. They were a little excited, in arms and one thing
and another. * &

Q. Well, will you please tell the jury the exact state in which the people were
at that time ? A. Well, on the 18th March, when I was arrested, I was arrested by
an armed mob of about forty or fifty, 1 should gay.

Q. What people were they ? A. They were chiefly breeds. On the 19th the
prisoner and his band fell into the band all armed.

Q. Who was in command of the half-breeds there ? A. Kiel.
Q. Louis Eiel ? A. Yes.

Q. On the 19th you say the prisoner fell in with the rest ? A. He did.
Q. You saw him on the 19th ? A. I saw him on the 19th.
Q. Had he anything with him ? A. He was armed.
Q. Had he any people with him ? A. Yes.

m
Q* How many about ? A. About fifteen or twenty of his band. I cannot swear

positively how many were with him, but there were quite a number with him.
Q. Did they carry anything with them ? A. Most of them were armed.
Q. Well, what did they do on the 19th ? A. On the 19th we were all kept in

the church. They were in there knocking around the church all day.
Q. These people were ? A. Yes.
Q. You saw the prisoner there that day ? A. Yes.
Q. On the 26th March did anything happen that you know ? A. On the 26th

March I was taken to Duck Lake.
Q_By whom ? A. By an armed guard. I can't give you the names ; and after

I was there a short time, I saw the rebels returning from the Duck Lake fight. I
beard fighting going on meantime. I saw them return. The prisoner was one of
them returning. He was returning. 1 could not swear that he was in the right,,
but he was returning with the armed mob that came in.

Q. Who was in command of this armed mob ? A. Eiel.
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Q. Did yon see the prisoner on any day subsequent to this ? A. I saw him again

after the 3rd April.
, » , w „ ^i *• x. \.~a

Q. Under what circumstances did you see him? A. Well, at that time he had

the whole of his band ; he came down to Batoche to the tents.

Q. Was that their usual place of abode? A. No; their usual place was the

reserve.

Q What were they doing there ? A. Well, they were all there, armed with the

rest of them, walking around and watching for the enemy, as they called them.

Q. Who was the enemy? A. The enemy was supposed to be the (government,

and the police, and the Hudson Bay Company.

Mr. Kobertson.—Never mind what was supposed. n

Q. From what you know personally who were the opposing forces there C

A. The police and the troops under Gen. Middleton.

Q. And on the other side ? A. The breeds and Indians.

Q. Well, this was on the 3rd April, you say? A. 3rd April we returned to

Q °And you saw the Indians there? A. I saw them from that right along.

Q. Did you see Louis Kiel and this man together ever ? A. I have seen them

1alkl

Q
g

After the talk did anything happen ? A. Yes ; he would go away over to

the band and talk to them. I couldn't hear what they were saying; it was some

e

Q.

]

From what you saw, what were the relations that existed between this man

and his band? _ _ ti . , . . ,.

Mr. Kobertson.—Let him tell us what he saw, and don't let him generalise.

Mr. Caegrain.—He has just been saying what he saw.

Mr. Kobertson.—Then it is for the jury to say what their intentions were.

Q. What did this prisoner do after he had any communication i A. He would

eo over and communicate with his band.

Q And then what would his band do ? A. Well, I could not tell you what they

-would do ; they were away over about a quarter of a mile from the house. I couldn t

gee what they would do.

Q. Were you not a prisoner at that time ? A. I was.
^ oat

Q. Did you see him on any subsequent days after this—the prisoner? A. 1 saw

him off and on there till I was put in the cellar.

Q On what day were you put in the cellar ? A. I can't give you the date.

Q About what date? A. It was about a week before the attack on Batoche.
^

Q. And up to that date you saw the prisoner there all the time ? A. 1 saw him

frequently. , , T i .

Q Was he carrying anything ? A. He was always armed when I saw hinu

Mr. Justice Kichardson.—Do you wish this interpreted to the prisoner ?

Mr. Kobertson,—No, your Honor ; I don't think it is worth while taking up

your time with that.

Examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q. Mr. Lasb, how long do you say you had known the prisoner? A.I went

and took charge of the agency in January last.

Q. You have only known him a short time? A. I have only known him a

"very short time. -
. . T .,

Q. You know a much travelled road passed through his reserve? A. In the

winter. It is a winter road.
A

. _

Q. Did you ever hear anything against him before this? A. Well, I nave

heard, but hearsay is nothing, I guess. ..V- *!• o a t ™ q w i™«.
Q. Well, do you know anything against him before this ? A. I was not long

enough in the treaty to form an opinion. «.'••,* *v—
Q. Did you ever describe him as a worthless hound ? A. No, it is more than

likely I have, from the stories I have heard about him, I would not say.
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Jodia^'
N°W> WhUt 8tGlieS dM >0U 6Ver hear ? A> l heard fchat he was a worthlosa

Q. What else did you ever hear? A. I can't remember everything that way
• Q-, CaQ 7°u remember something ? A. No, I can't say that I can. I heard itm the broad riense ofthe word that he was a worthless Indian. That comes to agood deal.

Q. You heard there was a prejudice against him. Did he ever give vou anir
trouble? A. No, he did not.

5 ^ 7

Re-examined by Mr. Casgrain :

Q. You spoke of a treaty, was this Indian a treaty Indian ? A. He was
Harold D. Ross, sworn :—

Examined by Mr. Casgrain :

Q. Where do you reside, Mr. Ross ? A. Prince Albert.
Q. What is your occupation ? A. I am deputy sheriff there,
Q. Do you know the prisoner? A. I do.
Q. When did you see him first ? A.I first saw him in 1880.
Q. You have known him a long while ? A. I have known him a long time vesHe fought against us in 1880. Six of us took him prisoner. I was one of the sixthat took him prisoner in 18 at Duck Lake.
Q. In what state was the country around Batoche and Duck Lake in MarchApril and May last? A. Well, it was in a state of great excitement. They were

all up in arms. J

Q. Who were up in arms ? A. Half-breeds and Indians.
Q. Did you have occasion to see the prisoner at that time? A. I saw the

prisoner some time during the day. I forget now when, on the 26th March. I wasa prisoner then.

Q. In whose hands were you ? A. In the hands of Riel.

Indian's

What WaS LDUiS Riel at that time ? A
*
He WaS leader 0f the half-breeds a**

March
Against whom ? A

*
A2ain8t the police and volunteers. That is on the 26th

Q. You were a prisoner at that time? A. I was.

+u- S>' ^H*??!*
yon 8eo the P^s°Qer do at that time ? or did you see him do any.xnmgr A. I did not. I saw him armed, that is all I saw

««.!$' W^^PP^d^day? A. There was a fight' between the volunteersand the police, and the half-breeds and Indians.
Q. At Duck Lake ? A. At Duck Lake.

till the mi7Ma
Dg W0r

° y°U a pri80ner ? A
-
From the morning of the 23th March

Q. Well, did you see the prisoner subsequently to the 26th March? A. I sawnim home time during the winter before that.

Q. I mean between the 26th March and the day you were release!? A Wewere taken from Da± Lake to Carlton and from Carlton to Batoche, and I saAimthere off and on fro n 3rd April, I think it was, until the 12th May, except a fewhour* when we were in the cellar.
J F

Q. What was he doing there ? A. Always armed, sitting out in front of thawindow; generally eating [ saw him.
Q. Who was with him ? A. With all his followers. All his band was there.

X wu
e a treaty Indian ? A

"
He i8

-
l have Paid nil* bis treaty.

Q. Where does he live with his band ? A. Four and a half miles from Batoche.
<^. Has he a reserve ? A. He has.
Mr. Robertson.—I have no questions to ask.
Mr. Justice Richardson.—Do you wish what he has stated interpreted ?
Mr. Robertson.—No, your Honor.
Mr. Osier.—That will be the case for the Crown.
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Mr Kobertson.—I submit that the Crown has not made out a case to justify

your honors in leaving it to the jury. Not a tittle of evidence has been gLven here

to show that this man at all participated in the purpose for which this rising was

made. The most that is shown is that he was present when fighting was going on,

but he himself doing nothing. It seems to me that that is the gist of the whole

evidence. It amounts to nothing more than that. We have Mr. Astley's statement

that the only occasion upon which he saw him where fighting was going on was oa

the morning of the 12th May, when he said he was standing ; the prisoner was just

standing there. There is not a tittle of other evidence to show anything of the kind.

It is also said that Eiel was seen to speak to him, and he was seen to speak to>

somebody else, and other men to whom he spoke then moved away. Now nothing

is to be inferred as to the intent with which those men moved away. There is no*

significance whatever to be attached to the mere circumstance that a conversation!

took place, and men walked away in consequence of it, unless that is to be given to

it because there were armed men there. Now it is perfectly consistent with the

presence of this man with the armed force that has been spoken of, that he was there

innocently. It is perfectly consistent with that. There may be 50 reasons that took

him there. He might have been there out of idle curiosity. He might have had hi«

gun with him perfectly innocently. Your Honors know, as I am informed is the

fact, that an Indian rarely moves without his gun, and there is nothing to show that

he committed any overt act at all.

Now I admit that if it were shown that the prisoner was present there under-

standing the intent with which these people were assembled, if it had been showm

that he knew what they were intending to do, that they were intending to levy war

against the Qaeen for some public general purpose, because it must be that—it he

had known that, his presence there would have been enough ; but in the absence o£

evidence of that, his presence there is not enough, unless it is shown that he took:

active part in it. It is laid down in East's Pleas of the Crown, "joining with rebels

freely and voluntarily in any rebellion, any act of rebellion is levying war against

the king, and this too, though the party was not privy to their intent.
'

_

" Joining them in any act of rebellion" ; but it seems necessary in this case either

that the party joining with the rebels and ignorant of their intent at the time (it is

essential to know their intent) should do some deliberate act towards the execution

of their design, or else should be found to have aided and assisted those who did.

Now I submit that there is no evidence here to show that the prisoner took such am

active part that the jury should be asked even to say whether or not he ought to be

held guilty. . , ~
« Therefore, in the cases of Green and Bedell, who with others were indicted tor

levying war and pulling down bawdy houses and opening prisons, it being only lo^d
that they were present and not fighting, any particular act of force committed bjr

them, or that they were aiding or assisting to the rest, which is a fact that must he

found by the jury and cannot be implied (that is in cases left to the jury, if^there

were any evidence of it), they were discharged, and if the act of those who suddenly

joined the insurrection being ignorant of their design, appeared to be more inconsid-

erate than wilful or mischievous, such as throwing up their ^hands or hallooing witte

the mob, this will fall under the same lenient consideration."

There is a case reported in Cox's criminal ca*es as to the effect of presence at

an unlawful assemblage, Queen vs. Atkinson 2, Cox's criminal cases, page 330. That

was an indictment for a riot. On an indictment for a riot, persons are not liable

merely on account of their having been present and among the mob, even although

they had the power of preventing it, unless they by word or act helped, incited and

encouraged it. That was a case of riot arising out of an election.

Now, the evidence, your Honors will see was very strong, it was evidence irom

which very probably at first oue would be inclined to infer the man was there assist-

ing and encouraging. The evidence against the principal defendant was that he took

,a strong interest in the election and was present when there was a serious riot and m

systematic attack upon the houses of the opposite party, and finally upon the polling:

booths, though many of the rioters were in his own employment;
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Now, a point is attempted to be made here that this man'/? Indians were there,
that his band were there.

In i he election case many of the rioters were in this man's employment, he did
nothing to restrain them, and when asked to do so, he only laughed. It was held
that there was no evidence against him, nor against any others who were present
except such as were proved by word or action to have taken part in, helped or
Incited the riotous proceedings.

Now, it does seem to me upon that that this is a case in which your Honors*
discretion would be wisely exercised in withdrawing it from the jury altogether, and
I don't think that my learned friends ought to press for a verdict upon such evidenoo
as this. It does not seem to me that it shows a sufficient case against him, particu-
larly bearing in mind the extreme difficulty there is in properly ascertaining the
Tyhole of the facts in such a manner as I might be able to do if the prisoner were a
"white man. If he were a white man who understood the nature of a trial and what
lie was here for, it would be a totally different matter, but your Honors 1 am very
ssire know, as I have lately found out how extremely difficult it is to make them
understand the nature of the proceedings and make them understand the importance
of explaining the true facts of the case,

I would ask your Honors to gay that there is not evidence upon which the jury
can properly find him guilty, and if so, it is your Honors' duty to withdraw the case-
Jroni the jury.

Mr. Osier.—We think your Honors we have made a very strong case indeed
against the prisoner. We have brought him within the rule of law that casts the
onus upon him of explaining his presence there. We have shown organized armed
rebellion against the Crown, a contest against Her Majesty's forces, the police and
^volunteers, and that brings it within the rule laid down in the books. A convenient
jeference is Arch bold, page 78(5.

Mr. Justice Eichardson.—Isn't that case of the Queen vs. School, on all fours
with this ?

Mr. Osier.—Yes, and the case of Eegina vs. the Earl of Essex. They seem to
show that it is quite conclusive that the onus is upon the prisoner to explain his acts,
a£ier such evidence has been given.

Mr. Justice Eichardson.— I think, Mr. Eoberteon, it must go to the jury. There
is the fact of the fight at Duck Lake, the fact of the rebellion and the fact of the fight
going on, and he was seen coming back. There was then a fight going onatBatoche.
He was on the hill with the party who were firing upon General Middleton. Now,
i think i*. is upon him to explain why he was there, and that he was there innocently.

Mr. Eobertson.—His own mouth being closed ?

Mr. Justice Eichardson.— His mouth won't be closed, because I shall ask him if
he wishes to sajp anything to tbe jury, and what he docs say he can say in his own
language, and it will be interpreted.

Mr. Eobertson. I wish to call Owen Hughes, as to the prisoner's character, that
is all. (Witness not present.) He promised to be here, and I don't find him ; it is

only a matter of character, and I don't know that it makes very much difference.
May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury, I am sure you feel as every

*me concerned in this case must feel, that the duty we here have to discharge is a
very important one, and one involving very serious responsibilities. We must all

Jetl, that in dealing with these unfortunate Indians we are dealing with a race of
people who are unlike ourselves, of whose motives and actions it is extremely diffi-

cult for us to judge with justice, particularly as our minds are naturally disposed, by
antipathy cf the race, to judge harshly what they do. The crime with which the
prisoner is charged is a very serious one, and one which, no doubt, when a white man
ia« committtd, should be severely punished. It is a crime, however, involving
altogether in its enormity the ideas peculiar to white people, the people accustomed
to live under civilized forms of government, and to people who understand that they
owe duties to society at large, ot which an Indian has not the first idea. An Indian
JtaaB no notion of the nature of civilized society j he has no notion of the importance
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of maintaining law and order. It will be said that he should be taught that. Truly

he should be taught that, and he must be taught it, but it is very important, in our

own interests, that we by coming and teaching him that lesson, should teach

him that the very essence of the law is fairness and mercy. It is a sacred

principle of the law of England, as you all know that no man shall be
judged guilty of any crime until he is convicted of it, and not upon suspicion,

not upon merely suspicious circumstances which he may find it difficult to

explain, because of accident or because of his incapacity to take care of his

own interests ; but upon evidence which conclusively establishes, beyond any
reasoLable doubt, that the man committed that crime with the criminal intent

which is of its essence. So sacred is that principle, and so thoroughly is it recog-

nized, I am thankful to say in this our Dominion, that I am here to try and help you,

not as the hired advocate of this unfortunate man. It is not at his request I am here,

I am here at the request of the Government. The very Government that prosecutes

him brings me, because, they say, we wish to see that no innocent man or no man
is convicted unless he is clearly pioven to be guilty, and to that end we wish some
one who will take the side of the prisoner ana do what he can to help the jury in

getting at the truth, in exercising judgment upon which, practically, that man'b life-

may depend, because the punishment for this crime may be imprisonment for life,

and you know, as I know from what I have seen of the effects oi tho imprisonment,

that some of these poor men have endured for only a couple of months. You know
as well as I know that a punishment, not for life, but for years, a couple of years,

would be almost certainly fatal to any one of them. You know that they die under
confinement, so that practically you have in your hands today the life of that man.
That responsibility rests upon you, and it rests upon all of us who are engaged in

this trial.

Let us approach the consideration then of the evidence upon which you have to

determine that grave question with perfect fairness and without prejudice, and let us

try to judge this unfortunate man at least as fairly as if he were a white man. Let
us not disgrace our race by any hasty condemnation of another because he is of a dif-

ferent race. Let us show that we are really superior to the unhappy race to which
he belongs. Now, is there evidence that conclusively proves that that man levied

war against Her Majesty with intent by force and constraint to compel her to change
her measures and counsels? My learned friends, of course, say, on behalf of the

Crown, that if he levied war the intent may be presumed. No doubt a jury may pre-

sume it as against a white man, in many cases we presume it, because a white man
found with a band of armed men, arrayed against the troops, must know what he was
doing and must know it, and a jury would naturally infer it ; but it does not follow

at all that a jury need say that an Indian did that, or was there with any such intent

as that. We know that an Indian, when any excitement is going on, is very apt to

go where the excitement is in the hope that he might get something to eat. Now,
that is not treasonable felony. It is not treasonable felony even for a band of Indians

to go and rob a store to feed themselves, by any means. It is not i reasonable felony

for a band of Indians to go to tiy and release one of their own number that is in

prison. It is not treasonable felony for them to go and attack an individual. It is not

treasonable felony for them even to riot, to meet in large numbers and use violence,

unless it is for some public general object. Now, gentlemen, I am speakirg by the

hook when I say that. I am not talking at random. To constitute a levying of war,

it is laid down in perhaps the best authority we have on the subject, Aichlolo's

criminal pleading and evidence, there must be an insurrection, there must be lorce

accompanying that insurrection, and it must be for an object of a general nature ;
for

instance for the purpose of deposing or imprisoning the Queen or of getting her into

the power of the rebels or of forcing her to put away her minister, or the like, or for

the purpose of effecting innovations of a public general nature by an armed forces as

for the purpose of attempting by force to obtain the repeal of a statute (something
that eflects all the people), to alter the religion established by law, or to obtain the
redress of any other public grievance, real or pretended, but an insurrection for the
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purpose of throwing down enclosures of a manor, park, common, &c, or upon a mere
^quarrel between private persons, or to deliver one or more particular prisoners out of
gaol, though not being imprisoned for treason or holding a house by force and against
the sheriff or posse comitatus is not treason, so that if an armed batch of men enter a
town, their object being not to take it or attack the military force there, bat merely
to make a demonstration of force, of their strength to the magistrate in order to pro-
cure the liberation or mitigate the punishment of prisoners convicted of some politi-

cal offence, this, though aggravated misdemeanor, is not high treason. It does
not come within the Treason-felony Act, because levying war, under Treason-felony
Act, is the same thing as levying war that constitutes high treaaon. Now, what
idea, such as any of those, had this man? What notion had he of the kind? And
that is of the very essence of the crime. Unless he had some idea of that kind, unless,
for instance, he understood what Mr. Eiel was alter, unless he understood his scheme,
and that he wanted to depose the Queen, to drive her out of these territories, and
establish a new republic of his own, unless he understood all that, and did it for that
purpose, and was there encouraging and aiding in that, he is not guilty of this offence,
and it in not for you, with all deference to what my learned friends say—I say that
you are not at all bound to make any such inference as they say, from the facts that
aro before you. The only undoubted facts are that the Indian was there and he had
his gun. Is that an extraordinary thing for an Indian ? Is it an extraordinary thing
for him to be off his reserve in a time of excitement ? And is it an extraordinary
thing for him to have his gun with him when he is off it ? There is the whole thing.

Now, gentlemen, I have an explanation to suggest to you of why he was there.
Unhappily, he cannot speak English. I cannot acquire his confidence. I don't know
the Indians well enough, and I have not been able to get anyone to assist me, who
does know them well enough, to enable me to prepare properly for their defence.
The most that I can do is to sit here and watch the case made by the Crown, and
appeal in you to consider it leniently, and to bear in mind the difficulties of this
unfortunate man's position. Now, the explanation I have to suggest to you is this

:

Kiel, we know perfectly well, it is matter of public notoriety that Kiel carried on the
whole of this scoundrelly business by means of all kinds of intimidation, and false-

hood and imposture. We know that, and my explanation to you is that these people
wore frightened and imposed upon by him, just as it was proved at his trial that he
imposed upon hundreds; that this poor man, among the rest, was terrified and imposed
upon until he was induced, and brought in there, but that it was against his will, and
that is why we find him there ; but we don't find him raising a finger against any-
body. Now, as matter of fact, he did not raise a finger against anybody—not a
finger—and his previous character I say is good. Now, I say that, in spite of what
Mr. Astley says. Mr. Astley is a very gallant man ; he deserves all praise for his
noble conduct on the 12th May, in carrying in the public spirited way in which he
did. those messages between Eiel and General Middleton. Undoubtedly he is a gallant
man, but a gallant man is often impetuous, and a gallant man often jumps quickly to
conclusions, and that was apparent in that box I think. I would not say for a
moment he wished to injure this man unjustly, but he was carried away a good deal
hy a very bad opinion of all Indians in general, and in fact the definition of an
Indian by him is that he is a worthless hound. He got that into his head, and he
said it was a common definition, but he could not give us a single man that had ever
said it. He is prejudiced against the Indians, there is no doubt about it. You all say
that, and withal, the worst he could say against this man was that he had heard
that, although, remember, there goes through his reserve a public, much-travelled
road, a road much travelled in winter, he told us himself. Now, gentlemen, if this
were such a bad Indian, if the Indian and his band were such bad Indians, shouldn't
we have neard something worse than that against him? One witness here did inter-

polate something ; he said he fought against him, and he took him prisoner once, but
it was a most improper thing for that witness to make that statement. Of course, it

comes as a complete surprise to me ; it has nothing whatever to do with the charge
that is here, and I have no doubt it could be perfectly explained ifI had had the warning
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of it, and had the opportunity of enquiring into it I think their Honors will tell you that

you shouldn't pay the slighest attention to that remark. It was improperly interpolated

and it just showed a little more of that bias against them, against these Indian people

have to contend with in dealing with white people. I don't think you will have that

same prejudice, and as you pit there and upon your oaths to administer British

justice to this poor man, I think I may rely upon your perfect impartiality. I am
sure that I can and I ask you to think over all the evidence and see what it amounts

to and see if you cannot explain anything that this man appears to have done upon

an hypothesis of that kind, quite consistently with the absence of any intention or

wish on his part to subvert the Government and compel Her Majesty to change her
measures or counsels or any such object of a public nature, anything of that kind, he
may have been there to get some prub in the hope of that, and it is very probable

indeed he was. Kiel led them when he came there, and no doubt he got many or
them about him in that way. Any of these hypotheses is quite consistent with the

evidence given here,

I ask you, gentlemen, not because I am this man's hired advocate, but jnst in the

cause of simple British justice to consider the facts that are before you carefully and

see if you think you can upon such mere suspicion as that, convict that man of a
crime which renders him liable practically to the punishment of death—according to>

to the statute, imprisonment for life.

Mr. Osier.—May it please your honors, gentlemen of the jury : The importance of
this case, one of a class, renders it necessary for me, as one of the counsel representing;

the Crown, to say a few words telling you why we think the evidence justifies you in

finding the prisoner guilty. We are to give him a fair trial. His counsel here,

assigned by the Indian Department to see that he gets a fair trial has done all that

could be done, and said all that could be said in his favor. The charge is a serious oner
it is not, though, a capital one, the sentence is in the discretion of the court and all

mitigating circumstances may be brought before the court or, after sentence, before

the executive, you have nothing to do with that. The question for you to pass on is,,

is this man guilty ?

Now my learned friend read you some law, but he has not I think gone quite far

enough. His general principles were no doubt from authority, and given by the

authority of the various cases. All we have to show however is that there was a state

of war or insurrection for some general purpose existing. Well, we have shown that,

I think to your satisfaction. That is a matter of history, but you must not act upon;

history, you must act upon evidence, that is in evidence before you, by the evidence

of Mr. Astley. There was an armed insurrection for a general purpose—that is, for

redressing certain grievances existing or supposed to, and that insurrection, that.

armed rebellion was directed against the police, and the armed forces of the Govern-

ment. Now, of that question upon the evidence, there can be no doubt.

Then there being an actual state of war, did the prisoner participate ? If he did

participate, his individual intent has nothing to do with it. As long as we prove the

general intent, and an actual state of armed force, then everybody who participates, no
matter what their personal intentions are, is guilty. That is well laid down. The
books say the intention however, is not capaole of positive proof, it can only be
implied from overt acts, and every man is supposed to intend the necessary and reason-

able conseqences of his own acts. I read that to you, because it is an authority from
the same book that my learned friend has been depending upon. Then, again reading-

from the same book, it may be necessary here to mention that in the case ofwar levied

directly against the Queen, which this technically is, all persons assembled and march-
ing with the rebels are guilty of treason, whether they are aware of the purpose of the

assembling and aid or assist in committing acts ofviolence or not.

JNow, of course, if we wore going before a jury here on a case of constructive

treason, that is to say, by reason of acts, certain acts, treason was to be inferred, and
were not here on a direct act of levying war or open insurrection, what my learned

friend read to you would be perfectly and strictly correct, but the moment we have

j>roved an actual state of existing insurrection, and the moment we prove to your
29



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 188S

satisfaction that the prisoner took part in that, and was guilty of an overt act in that
as charged, then the evidence is, as I read the law, conclusive against him, and the
burden of proof is upon him to show that he was there for some innocent purpose.

Now can the acts of the prisoner be consistent with innocence ? Granting that
he is an Indian, and granting that he is not to be measured by the same light as one
of a more civilized race, we have him a treaty Indian without any grievances that
we have heard of. He had no part in auy half-breed grievance if such existed. He
was there, fed and kept by the Government under the treaty he had made. Now he
had no right, even if there was a seeming right or a claimed right on the part of the
half-breeds in arms, for he had nothing to redress. Now where do we find him ?
First, with his band he comes in under arms, on the occasion spoken of by Mr. Lash.
He goes out with his band under arms to Duck Lake and comes back. There is

evidence of a contest having taken place and of a wounded man prisoner being
brought in—because I want you to confine yourselves to the evidence here, not what
you have heard in the newspapers.

Then at Batoche Mr. Astley sees him, apparently getting orders from the leader,

Louis Eiel, five times. Bach time the order is given to him he apparently gives an
order to his band. You can only judge of the actions. After a communication of the
rebel chief to the chief of this band, he apparently makes a communication and they
go oft armed in concert. It is for you to say whether they went off armed for a law-
ful or an unlawful purpose . Then you have the evidence of Mr. Astley, that upon
the last day of the fight, on the 12th May, this man was apparently in charge of the
Indian band and firing at the troops. We don't, need to prove a gun in this man's
liand on that occasion. We don't need to prove that he fired at the troops. Do you
believe from the evidence that he was there giving orders ? That he was there in
charge of his band, that his band were there opposed to the troops, to General Mid-
dleton ? The evidence, gentlemen, as to that, is ail one way. Now, while we desire,

if there is a shadow of reasonable doubt as to the guilt of the prisoner, if there is any
reasonable doubt as to his guilt, that you should give him the benefit of it. You
have got, on the other hand, to consider the evidence and say whether you can
justify yourselves to society as it exists here, whether an acquittal upon this evidence
would be the proper thing to do. Granted that he is an Indian, the community have
got to protect themselves against the lawless acts, against the taking up of guns and
going into insurrection on any occasion or at anybody's request. My learned friend
says we have got to educate them. Well, I submit that the best education that we
can give is that when we find them going wrong on conclusive evidence we punish
them for that in the way that the law directs. I submit to you, gentlemen, there-

fore, that the evidence is of such a nature that it brings home to the prisoner guilt

—guilt as charged in the papers read to you.
Mr. Robertson.—Before you Honor addresses the jury—there is no appeal from

this—and although I am irregular I would ask my learned friend's indulgence white
I just point out one thing that I submit is not quite correct in his speech. He says
this is a case of direct levying of war against the Queen. Now, it is constructive
levying of war, and that is just the point in the case. Your Honors will see from
the passage I havejust given you, a line of difference clearly drawn between direct

levying of war and constructive levying of war.
Mr. Osier.—My learned friend mistakes my statement. I said if it was a case of

making out constructive treason, but there may be constructive levying of war and
direct levying of war. There may be constructive treason, and the direct act of

treason.

Mr. Robertson.—The distinction is between direct levying of war and construc-

tive levying of war, and your Honors will see that if you read the page I referred to.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—It is under the title of high treason.

Mr. Robertson.—True, but it is dealing with the levying of war. This war
levied against the Queen is of two kinds, direct and constructive. Levying of war is

spoken of as direct when war is levied directly against the Queen or her forces with
intent to do some injury to her person, to imprison her or the like.
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Mr. Justice .Richardson.—Isn't that what this charge says ?

Mr. Robertson.—But the evidence does not support anything of the kind ; the

constructive levying of war is where there is a levying of war for some public gene-

ral purpose or something of that kind. That is the difference, and it is distinctly

laid down it is not direct treason and constructive treason, but it is war levied directly

against the Queen. In that case, it is true, as my learned friend says, that all persons

assembled and marching with the rebels are guilty of treason, whether aware of the

purpose of the assembly or not, but in the case of constructive levying of war. not

constructive levying of treason, none of those aiding and assisting in doing Shose

acts of violence which form the subject of treason are traitors. The distinction is

between constructive and direct levying.

Mr. Osier.—I argue that we bring it right under that—it is levying of war. I
distinguish between constructive treason, but in constructive levying of war, if I
bring home acting and aiding with him, the intent may not be made out.

Mr. Robertson.—That is exactly what I say is the law. There must be actual

aiding and assisting in those acts of violence which form the constructive treason.

I want the jury to understand it must be shown that the prisoner actually aided and
assisted in the acts of violence that constituted the constructive levying of war. And
there is one other thing I want you to note—my learned friend wpoke of the evi-

dence as conclusive. Now, the evidence is purely circumstantial of the intent.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—No, I understood him to put it in this way : he asked

the jury if the evidence would not bring it around conclusively to the prisoner ?

Mr. Robertson.—That is, that it is conclusively established by direct evidence,

Mr. Osier.—I think in anticipating your Honor's charge in this way, my learned

friend is a little irregular. He should object ^to the court's charge and not to the

counsel's argument.
Mr. Robertson.—But there is no appeal from the charge.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—Wouldn't it be proper for you as I go on to call my
Attention to it ? ;

Mr. Robertson.—It is purely a matter of grace. It is a rule as to all circum-

stantial evidence that it must be perfectly inconsistent.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—Gentlemen of the jury : The charge against this prisoner

is as you have heard, a very serious one, and of very serious nature. He is charged
with having been a participant in some of the acts which are pretty notorious in the

rebellion which has recently been broken up.

The material points really necessary to be established in order to sapport a con-

viction on this charge against this prisoner are— 1st. Was war levied ? That is, was
there rebellion ? If you are satisfied on that point, that it was so, then comes the

question whether or not this individual, the prisoner, was mixed up in it ?

True, he is an Indian, and, perhaps, very properly you should, in his instance,

give the matter very deep consideration, but whether you should extend to him more
than you would extend to any other illiterate person is entirely another matter, and
a matter in which I should say he is to be measured by the same law that anybody
else would be measured by . At any rate, my direction to you would be to give him
a fair and reasonable consideration, realizing the condition in which you see himx

and in which we know the Indians are to-day.

Now, in reference to this charge against the prisoner, I should tell you that if

you are not convinced by the evidence you have heard there was rebellion or insur-

rection at all, if you are not satisfied on that point, then he is entitled to an acquittal

at once ; but if you are satisfied on that point, then comes the question, what have
you got before you ? What has been brought before you to justify you in saying that

this man has broken the law ?

Well, we have Mr. Astley, the first witness. He tells you he saw this man
armed, that he saw this man on the day of what is notorious as the day of the Duck
Lake fight, that he saw him on that occasion, and we have further from Mr. Astley

that during the interval between the Duck Lake fight, which was, I think, the 26tb_

March, and the 12th May, we have the assertion of Mr. Astley that he saw binx
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frequently about that place, and where the prisoners were confined, that he was under

arms, and that he was holding conversation in a language that Mr. Astley did not

understand at various times with the leader of that insurrection or rebellion, and that

immediately following their interviews certain instructions were given by himself to

the Indians which belonged to his band then collected under arms. We havefurther

that on the day of the Batoche engagement, the taking of Batoche, Astley's assertion

that this man was in charge of the Indians whom he controlled, more or less armed,

that he himself was armed, and that although he did not see the prisoner fire upon

Ser Majesty's troops, his men were moving up and down from the pit or whatever

position they had, and they were firing upon the troops. Well, that firing of itself

is clearly an act of war.

The question for you to consider is, do you believe what Mr. Astley said? That

is one thing, but not only have you to consider whether you believe what Mr. Astley

nimself said, but you have got further to consider whether or not Astley is corrobo-

m*ated, and in what way he is corroborated ?

You have the statement of two other witnesses. First, you have Mr. Lash, who
says he was Indian agent there, that he was also a prisoner, and corroborates Astley

except as to what happened at Batoche on the morning of the 12th May, after Astley

was sent off by Eiel to the general ; and you have him corroborated also by Mr.

Harold D. Boss, also a prisoner,

Now, you have to determine upon what Mr. Astley and Mr. Eoss and Mr. Lash

iiave stated, whether this man is guilty or not.

If you believe the statements they have made, then I think there can be no

different course open to you than to determine that he was a participant in the unlaw-

fn\ acts which are alleged to have transpired.

If, on the other hand, reasonable doubts have entered your mind, and you can-

not bring yourselves to bring this home to him, then I say on that score he is entitled

to the benefit of any reasonable doubt and should be acquitted.

Now, I think I have put it fairly before you, and shall ask you to consider him

carefully, and if you can draw no other conclusion for it than that he was a par tici-

pant in these acts, then that you should find him guilty.

On the other hand, failing that tonclusiveness, then he ought to be set free.

You may retire gentlemen, and give this matter your consideration. (The jury

liere retired and found prisoner " guilty," whereupon the prisoner was remanded for

sentence.)
Friday, 14th August.

Clerk opens court at|5.45, p. m.
Mr. Eobertson.—I move the sentence of the court upon One Arrow.

Mr. Justice Eichardson.—One Arrow, have you anything to say why sentence

should not be pronounced upon you for the offence of which you stand convicted and

were convicted yesterday ?

One Arrow through Interpreter Hourie.—I would like to speak for myself,

The court has charged against me yesterday that I had taken up arms and that I had

painted my face with war paint. He says he could hardly do so when he lost one of

his grandchildren lately. He says he has thrown away that painting long ago. I never

kept any councilor, held any council. lam just a person alone and keep in one place.

I have been charged here that I had a gun in my hand and was seen shooting at the

white men. I never did that. I never did that, to take my gun to shoot at a white

man. There is an old man here that can prove and say that what I am saying is

true, f thought that I was doing no harm to anybody, but, of course, they threw

the blame on me. All that was said against me was thrown upon me falsely, I did

not take up my gun with the intention, with any evil intention to shoot at any man,

not at all in the least. I was there on the brink of the hill the whole day, and I had

my gun there, but, of course, not with the intention to use the gun against any man,

and when I saw the white men coming down, the soldiers coming down, then I ran

down the hill too, and ran off. I am an old man now. I would not do that, or do

any such a thing as that against a white man. I was taken to the place, Batoche'sr
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to join Eiel by Gabriel. 1 did not take myself to the place. They took me there. I
could not say how many there were of them that took me there, but there was quite
a number of them. I was away one side alone and they came for me. There was
quite a large number of them went down to the place.

Mr. Justice Eichardson.—I have no objection to hear it, but you are rather drift-
ing away, Mr. Eobertson.

Mr. Eobertson.—I wish that your Honor should give him an opportunity to
explain.

Prisoner One Arrow.—I could not say that he asked me to do so and so, but he
asked me to come along. He could not say for what reason he wanted me to go with
Lime.

Mr. Eobertson.—That was in answer to a question that I asked the interpreter
to put to him, to say what Gabriel told him in order to induce him to go.

One Arrow. —1, of course, always listen to what I am told. I was told that I was
•wanted down at Carlton, so I went there and when I got there I was taken prisoner,
so now I wish that I should be let go. Gabriel took me prisoner. He asked the
whole of us to go down to the place. I now beg your Honors and all you learned
people here to—I know I have done nothing wrong, I can't see where I have done
anything wrong against anybody so I beg of you to let me go, to let me go free, and
that is all

Mr. Justice Eichardson.—One Arrow, the difference between your case and
the case of those others we have heard here, is that a jury, after hearing
everything that had to be said, both against you and for you, by a gentleman who
was sent here by the Indian Department, have found you guilty. You were a par
ticipant, you were with an armed mob who were in arms and against the Government
and you a treaty Indian too as well as a headman or chief of a band. With your
trials you have nothing to complain of, for the Government was so interested in one
of the chiefs that he placed a lawyer here to look after you and see that nothing
should be unfairly done against you. Old as you are, and gray-haired as you are,
you knew you were doing wrong, you knew you had no right to leave your reserve
where you had promised to live, and, much as I dislike to punish an Indian, or to
punish anybody, much as I dislike to pass sentence on anyone, I shall be as wanting
in my duty to the public and to the Crown as you were if I did not place such a
punishment upon you as would make you feel it, as also make the other Indians of
the country know what would become of them if they followed your bad example.
If my memory does not fail me, I recollect giving you personally some words ofgood
advice three or four years ago at Prince Albert, and if you had followed them yon
would not be here.

The sentence of the court upon you, One Arrow, for the offence of which you
stand convicted, is that you be imprisoned in the penitentiary of Manitoba for ihe
period of three years.

QUEEN vs. "WHITE CAP,

Canada
Korth-West Territories. }

The information and complaint of Frederick Kelloch Gibson, of the town of
Begina, in the North-West Territories of Canada, deputy sheriff, taken the four-
teenth September, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-
five, before the undersigned one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in and
for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who sailh:

That Wah-pah-iss-co, otherwise called White Cap, not regarding the duty of his
allegiance but wholly withdrawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which
every true and faithful subject of our Lady the Queen does and of right ought to bear
towards our said Lady the Queen, on the tenth of April, in the year of our
lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days as well
before as after that date, together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said
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Frederick Kelloeh Gibson unknown, did within the Dominion of Canada, compass,

imagine invent, devise and intend to levy war against lour said Lady the Queen

within Canada, in order by force and constraint to compel her to change her mea-

sures and counsels, and the said felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device

and intention then feloniously and wickedly did express, utter and declare by divers

overt acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say :

—

...
In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious compassing, imagi-

nation, invention, devise and intention aforesaid, he, the said Wah-pah-iss-co, other-

wise called White Cap, afterwards, to wit, on the tenth day of April, in the year

aforesaid, and on divers other days and times as well before as after that date, at or

near the locality called Batoche in the North-^est Territories of Canada, did con-

spire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together with divers other evil de-

posed persons to the said Frederick Keiloch Gibson unknown, to raise, make and

levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this realm.

And further, to fulfil and bring into effect his felonious compassing, imagination,

device and intention he, the said Wah-pah-iss-co, otherwise called White Cap, after-

wards, to wit, on the twenty-fourth day of April in the year aforesaid, and on divers

other days and times as well as before and after that day, at or near the locality known

as Fish Creek in the North-West Territories ofCanada, did conspire, consult, confeder-

ate, assemble and meet together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said

Frederick Keiloch Gibson unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion

against our said Lady the Queen within this realm.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious compassing,

imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Wah-pah-iss-co,

otherwise called White Cap, afterwards, to wit, on the twelfth day of May in the year

aforesaid and on divers other days and times as well before as after that day, at

and near the locality called Batoche, in the North-West Territories of Canada, did

conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together with divers other evil

disposed persons to the said Frederick Keiloch Gibson unknown, to make, raise and

levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this realm.

In contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil example of all

others in like case offending against the form of the statute in such case made and

provided, and against the peace of our said Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

FEED. K. GIBSON.
Sworn before me the day and year above

"J

mentioned, at the town of Regina, in the >

North-West Territories of Canada. )

Hugh .Richardson,

Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the said North- West Territories.

And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary

magistrate and a justice of the peace with the^intervention of a jury of six, or before

a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention of a jury.

Which do you elect ?

Charge read to the jury by the Clerk, who continues as follows: Upon these

charges the prisoner at the bar hath been arraigned, and upon his arraignment hath

pleaded not guilty. Your duty, therefore, is to enquire whether he be guilty or not

guilty, and hearken to the evidence.

Mr. Scott.—May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury : The charge you

have heard read against the prisoner is for the offence known as treason-felony. It

is punishable upon conviction by such term of imprisonment as the court may think

proper to inflict. The prisoner is the chief of a band of Sioux Indians who occupy a

reserve a short distance south of Saskatoon, on the south branch of the Saykatchewan

River. At the time of the breaking out of the rebellion in the north, that is about

the 18th March last, as we shall show you, the prisoner was living on his reserve

apparently peaceable. Shortly after the breaking out of the rebellion, he left his

reservation and went north and joined the rebels who were assembled in the neigh-
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borhood of Batoche, under the leadership of Louis Kiel. The rebels had what ia
called a council, that is, their affairs were managed with Louis Riel aa leader of the
rebels. Their affairs and internal management were managed by a council consist-
ing of twelve members. Upon the prisoner's arrival in therebel camp, he was made*
a member of that council, and sat with the council upon a number of occasions after
that. We will give you a short history of the rebellion, the evidence showing that
it commenced on the 18th March ; that on the 26th March there was a battle at Duck
Lake in that neighborhood, at which several volunteers and policemen were killed
that afterwards at Fish Creek, on the 24th April, there was another battle with the
troops, the Government troops, under General Middleton, and that on or about the>
I2th May, a third battle was fought between the same sides, and the troops were
victorious, and Louis Kiel and his followers were defeated, and the rebellion came to
an end in that part of the country upon that day. The prisoner remained as a mem-
ber of the council with the rebels until about the 12th May and was arrested shortly
after that. That is his connection with the rebellion ; he moved with his band up
from his reservation shortly after the breaking out of the rebellion, and was made amember of the rebel council when he got up there, and acted and conspired with the
rebels to keep up the rebellion until about the 12th May. That is his history as far
as the rebellion is concerned. Now, the substance of the charge against him is that
he designed and intended to levy war against Her Majesty, that is, against the Gov-
ernment, the lawful Government of the country, and that in order to bring into effect
his design and intention, he committed certain overt acts which are set out* Tha
first one is on the 10th April at Batoche. That is given because we find he was at
Batoche at the time acting as a member of the rebel council ; the second is on the
24th April at Fish Creek, which is the date of the battle of Pish Creek, and although
perhaps not present at the battle, although we may not be able to show that he was
armed on any occasion or that he was fighting on any occasion, we are merely called
upon to show that he was conspiring with the rebels to keep up that rebellion or to
start it. That is the second overt act—the time of the battle of Fish Creek, and the
third one is of the 12th May at Batoche. Those are the three charges against him
for conspiring on those three occasions to levy war.

John W. Astley sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott

:

Q. You live at Prince Albert ? A. Yes.
Q. Are you a surveyor ? A. Yes.
Q. You joined the Prince Albert volunteer company about the 18th ? A. 19th

March last.

Q. And went to Carlton ? A. Went to Carlton.
Q. With that company ? A. With that company.
Q. What happened to you about the 20th March ? A. From that time till I was

taken prisoner on the 26th I was scouting backwards and forwards through the half!
breed and Indian settlement.

o*.^ Sv
Y(
l
U Weie s

,

on
i °^ by whom ? A

'
B? MaJor Oozier, and I was taken prisoner

26th March at Duck Lake by the half-breeds and some Indians under the leadership
of Louis Kiel who were m open rebellion against the Queen and Government.

i. ,^' ^T
hat was the state of the ootmtry generally there ? A. Through the French,

half-breed settlement they were all up in arms.
Q. How many were there in arms ? A. About 400 or 500, I should say*
Q. You were taken prisoner by them and held how long ? A. On the 26th

March, from 26th March till 12th May.
Q. When you were released by ? A. The troops under General Middleton.
Q. Were there any engagements between the rebels and the police during that

time ? A. The 26th March, the same day that I was taken prisoner, there was a
ngnt a short distance from the house I was in.

Q. That you were imprisoned in? A. That I was imprisoned in. After the
*ght was over Kiel himself came up stairs and said that there had been a fi^ht, and
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he bad called on his men to fire, and shortly afterwards a wounded volunteer waa

brought up into the room, named Charles Newett, and then William Tomkins and a

man named Lash went to the battle-field afterwards.
*

Q Any other fights that you know or heard of ? A, At Batoche of course there

TOis fighting there, Saturday, Sunday, Monday, Tuesday, four days.

Q Between whom ? A. The troops and the French half-breeds, and the Indiana

at Fish Cr^-
were do

.

ng on the 12th ? A ! carried a note out in the morning

to General Middleton from Kiel, and going down the river in the direction where I

was sent to find the general, I passed rifle pits where the prisoner was in. 1 saw

bim on my way out that morning the first time.

Q You passed through the lines from Kiel's camp ? A. To the general s camp,

to the general's lines, and then when I came back again I came back almost at once

Q What for? A. To bring a note back from the general to Kiel—and I again*

SaW
Q%

P
wa°nUo know what you did that day? A. I came back. That was the

first time I came back, and talked to Kiel some time, and then I took another'note

out about two o'clock in the afternoon-went through the lines again and back again,

and then after that again I went out a third time.

Q Then how many times did you pass through the lines? A. Three times out

and twice back. I came back with the troops t&e last time.

O Then what was the state of the country all that time, from the time that you

were arrested or for some time previous to that, up till the 12th May ? A. In open

rebellion the whole time,

Q. Did you see the prisoner ? A. Yes.
.

Q. When did you first see him after you were made a prisoner ? A. About a

week after I came to Batoche. That would be somewhere about the 10th April.

Q. Where did you see him that day ? A. He and his band I saw arriving in at

Batoche's all on horseback, and all armed.

Q. You saw him and his band coming in on horseback all armed ( A. les.

Q. About how many were there ? A. I would say there were about twenty.

O. That is all you saw ? A. That is all I saw at that time.

q. Did you see him at any time there after that ? A. I saw him on a good

many occasions from that till the day of the last battle backwards and forwards-

among the half breeds and among his own Indians, and just previous to the hmh

Creek fight, about two days before that I saw him addressing his band. 1 saw him

addressing his band out in front of the window where we were prisoners. That was,

about two days betore the Fish Creek fight, and then I saw the band going away.

Q. Did you speak Sioux ? A. No, I could only see that he was talking to them.

Tbey use a good many signs in talking the Sioux.

Q. Then you say you saw him on the lZth ? A. When I went out the first time.

on horseback, and Kiel was passing me through the lines, he called the pn soner there,

and he went up from his pit and he spoke to him something about me, 1 supposed,

spoke to him so as to pass me through.

Q. Kiel was passing you through the lines ? A. Yes.

Q. And when you were pasting ? A. He called him up, and he came up from

one of the rifle pits.

Q. He was in a rifle pit when he was called / A. les.

Q. Had he anything in his hand ? A. He was armed, he had a rifle or shot-gun,

but he had arms.

Q. And was coming out of a rifle pit ? A. Yes.

Q. And Kiel said something to him, you don't know what? A. JNo, it was*

something about me I supposed, that is what Kiel told me he had told him.

Q When did you see him again ? A. When I was coming back a short time

afterwards I passed the same row of pits. Some Indians of his own band had fired at

me, the farthest pit from where he was, and I was passing and he came out ot the pit
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and hollered something, and then there was no more firing. That was just the same
pit, and he had a rifle or something in his hand at that time.

Q. You saw him in the same pit that he was in when you were going through T
A. Yes.

Q. Did you see him again ? A. I did not see him again that day. I had to take

a different road the last twice.

(Aforin, the interpreter sworn in this case, says he has been interpreting this ta

the prisoner as the evidence proceeded.)

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Did you ever have any conversation with the prisoner ? A. No, I can't talk

Sioux.

Q. He does not speak English, I suppose ? A. No.

By Mr. RoberUon :

Q. You say that on that occasion, the 12th, when you saw the prisoner in the

rifle pits, Kiel went and stopped the firing to enable you to get through ? A. I said

that Eiel went and spoke to him, most likely to give some word.

Q. Does Eiel speak Sioux ? A. I don't know. He can speak a word or two I
foelievo, but he talks Cree and English, I know. All he would have to do in passing

would be pointing to me when I had a flag in my hand.

Q. There was firing going on at the time ? A. Yes, firing was going on at that

time.

Q. And a pretty brisk fire ? A. No, more like skirmishing.

Q. What is a brisk skirmishing fire ? A. Well, there were a good many shots

going—not the same as in the afternoon.

Q. It was a pretty dangerous thing to run the gauntlet to that fire ? A. No, I
can't say so.

Q. You did not think it was ? A. I did not think much about that.

Q. You don't think so now ? A. No, there must be a certain amount of risk,

but anyone is willing to run a risk for a certain object.

Q, But you did not consider it a dangerous thing ? A. No, that did not enter

into my head at all.

Q. You were perfectly cool and collected then? A. I was not excited. I may-
have been a little at that time in the morning. I was not even vexed or anything-*

Q. And you were not excited? A. N>t that I am aware of.

Q. How many trips had you made through the lines before this ? A. That was
iihe first trip I made, about 9 o'clock in the morning.

Q. What was your object in making that trip ? A, To take up a letter from
Eiel to General Middleton.

Q, Why did you want to take the letter ? Why did you volunteer to take the

letter ? A. I wanted to do, as far as my ideas were concerned, ail 1 coald for the

prisoners, and see if it was not possible to do something towards catching Eiel.

Q. The prisoners you felt were in danger ? A. We always considered it a
trifle that way.

Q. A trifle ? A. Well, some of course considered themselves in more danger
than others did. Some days in case of excitement, of course, there was more danger
than there might be at other times.

Q. And that was a day of excitement ? i A. Yes ; three days previous to that a
little more than it was just at that time.

Q. And the prisoners thought they were a trifle in danger ? A. Yes ; some
thought more and some less ; they didn't all think the same.

Q. You thought they were only a trifle in danger, did you ? A. No, some days
T thought our chances were rather slim.

Q. That day ? A. That day I thought if things worked the way I wished they
would be all right.
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Q. Suppose they did not work the way you wished? A. They would be all

"wrong.

Q. Didn't you, as a fact, think that all the prisoners were in a dangerous—in

danger of being killed that day ? A. I did, if things went one way.
Q. That was the reason that you wished ? A. To do all that was possible.

Q. But you were not in the least excited about it? A; No, not that I am aware.
I was perfectly cool at that time.

Q. How many Indians did you see when passing through these lines ? A.I
did not see all of White Cap's band, and I saw One Arrow's and some more Crees.
There may have been, perhaps, about, that first time I saw, about 40 or 50.

Q. And a lot of haif-breeds ? A. I did not see many half-breeds that time.

Q. How was the prisoner dressed ? A. He used to be
Q. How was he dressed on that occasion ? A. I could not notice him on that day.

I noticed his hair more. I know him by sight well enough to swear to him.
Q. You cannot tell how he was dressed on that day ? A. No.
Q. Can you tell us anything that he wore in particular ? No; I know him more

hy his hair than anything else, by his features, more by his hair than any other
thing I can judge by.

Q. You cannot tell how he was dressed ? A. I did not take particular notice

of how he was dressed, they were all dressed so much alike.

Q. Indians do all dress very much alike ? A. A great many of them, yes.

Q. Well, what is this dress they all wear, that they all wore on that occasion ?

A. Ordinary breeches, whatever you like to call them, breech-clout. Some of them
on that day were wearing very slim costume, but some of them had a kind of blanket
coat that time in the early spring, but I would not like to swear what he wore.

Q. Don't give us generalities. On that occasion what was this dress that most
of them wore? A. Just ordinary blanket leggings, and blanket coat.

Q. What did they have on their heads ? A. Some, nothing at all.

Q. And others had what ? A. Others had a kind of a fur coat, and some went
©ven as far as a plug hat.

Q. Then they did not all dress the same ? A. No; the general class, as I said,

wore blanket leggings, and blanket coat. Of course, there were exceptions.

Q. But the head dresses were different ? A. Just a few ; many of them were
•without a hat of any description.

Q. What head dress did the prisoner have? A. He used to wear—at that time
I did not notice what he had on that morning.

Q. You don't know what he had on that morning ; now, how many Indians
were there at Batocbe altogether ? A. I saw about 150.

Q. That was in the camp ? A. Around Batoche.
Q. And there were a number of old men among them ? A. Yes; a good many.
Q. Now the prisoner says that you are completely mistaken about his being

there ; he says that he was not in the rifle pits that day, that he was back at the
ohurch ? A. Well, that is where we differ, perhaps.

Q. Now you are prepared to ? A. I am prepared to swear that I saw him
in that rifle pit.

Q. And you are prepared to swear that, notwithstanding the risk you were run-

ning? A. Certainly.

Q. You were so cool that although there were a lot of other old men out of about
150 Indians that you had been in the habit of seeing, in the excitement of that

moment, when you were not thinking about anyone in particular, but you were
going in the hope of saving the threatened lives of the prisoners, your fellow-

prisoners, with a fire going on all around you, a rifle fire, although you tell us you
did notice even what head dress the old man had on, yet you are prepared to swear
you recognised his face so distinctly that you can distinguish it from those other old

men that you saw among the Indians those different times? I did not see 150 that
day by a long sight. I know his face as well as I know my own.

Q. You think you do ? A. I do
;
yes.
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Q. You are one of those confident men that is always sure ? A. No
;
not at all.

(^, You are not A. .No ; I am certain about that.

Q. You are sure you were cot excited ? A. I was not excited.

Q. You are sure of that ? A. I am certain of that.

Q. And you are as sure of that as you are that you saw White Cap ? A. Yes j

eertamly. , . ,,

Q Now where was it you saw him on any other occasion, the second time mat

day? A. When I was coming back, after taking the cote to the general, I came

back as near as I could tell to the same place, so as they would know me, and 1 saw

him again at that same place. wu-*
Q. That is you saw the same man you had seen before ? A. Yes ; 1 saw Wnite

Cap.
Q. Did you notice his head dress then ? A. Not at all.

Q. Was he bareheaded then ? A. I did not notice—I only noticed when coming

out, 1 was afraid of some of them firing at me in passing rather too close to them,

and I heard him holler something, and saw what he meant.

Q. How far were you when you heard him holler? A. About 40 yards.

Q. And there was firing going on? A. Yery few shots at that time, lnere

had been one shot fired at me, because they did not know what I was doing, 1

8UPP
Q
S

. But there were not many shots ? A. The general ceased firing, when I

went out and met him the first time.

Q. The Indians had ceased firing ? A. There was an odd shot.

Q. You were 40 yards away and heard White Cap ? A. I heard him holler

something, but I thought from the way it was done it was to leave me alone.

Q. Are you prepared to swear to that, that you recognized his voice ? A. Well,

I recognized •

, . , , T
Q? Did you recognize his voice ? A. I did not recognize any man s voice, but I

say it came from the position where he was.

Q. Were there any other Indians close to him? A. Not that I saw. There

may have been in the pits.
s .

-

. ,

Q. He was alone then at that time ? A. Standing on the side of the pit by

himself. 1 thought he was doing me a good turn.

Q. Did you see his mouth move ? A. No, I heard

Q. You did not see his mouth move ? A. Not from where I was,

Q. You heard someone shout? A. I heard someone shout.

Q. And you saw him standing there, and now you are prepared to swear it was

Whita Cap that shouted ? A. I thought so at the time, for I thought he was doing

me a good turn. .

Q You thought you recognized him on the previous occasion also—are you pre-

pared to swear to them both ? A. The first time I went out I did not hear him say

anything. . . T ,.,

Q. You said you recognized him the first time you went out? A. 1 did re-

cognize him.
, „ . XT ,

. n j.

Q. You say also you heard him shout on that occasion ? A. Not on the hrst

occasion.

Q. On the second occasion ? A. Yes.

Q. You heard him shout? A. Yes.

Q. Are you prepared to swear you did ? A.* I will swear as near as I feel certain

it waahim who hollered, doing me a good turn*

Q You feel certain now ? A. Yes.

Q . You felt just as certain it was him that was shouting as you lelt it was Wnite

Cap himself ? A. I was certain it was White Cap, but there might have been some-

body else hollering* At the same time I gave him credit for doing so.

Q. Then that was the second occasion on which you saw him ? A. That was

the second occasion that day.
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Q. When did you see him again ? A. I did not see him again that day at alL
The next twice I went out I had to go a different road.

Q. Where did you see him, before that, or after it
;
you say you saw him coming

into Batoche ? A. Yes, somewhere about the 10th of April.

Q. That was into the little hamlet or village at Batoche ? A. Yes.
Q. Were you present ? Yes, up stairs in the front room, in a room over the store.
Q. Did you see him at Fish Creek? A. No.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. How long have you known the prisoner? A. Off and on since I have been.
in that part of the country, three or four years.

Q. Then you have known him three or four years? A. Yes.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. What has hia character been during that time? A. Always heard White Gap
rather well spoken of.

Q. And hin band ? A. His band always get about the same thing, heard about the
same thing. He kept his band good with him. .

Q. Did you ever hear anything against him before ? A. I never heard anything
against him.

By Mr. Scott

:

Q. Nothing against him ? A. Except this concern of the rebellion.

William Tomkins sworn

—

Examined by Mr. Scott

:

Q. You are interpreter for the Indian Department living at Carlton ? A. Yea,
Q. What happened to you about the 18th March ? A. I was taken prisoner.
Q. By whom ? A. By Eiel and hin followers.

Q. Where were you taken prisoner ? At Batoche.
Q. Where were you taken to ? What places were you confined in? And what

times ? A. Confined in the church at Batoche, and afterwards taken over to Walters
& Baker's store, and from that back to the church again, and from there to Garnot's!
restaurant.

Q. You say Eiel and his followers, of whom did his followers consist ? A.
Indiaqs and half breeds.

Q. To what extent? A. 400 or 500 I should think.
Q. What state were they in ? A. In a state of rebellion.

Q. Were they armed ? A. Yes.
Q. Where were you on the 26th March ? A. At Duck Lake.
Q. As a prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. What happened on that day ? A. A battle took place.
Q. Between whom ? A. Between Kiel and the rebels, and the police and volunteers^
Q. How io you know there was a battle? A. Well there was a woundod man

brought up to where they were, and Eiel told us himself.

Q. When did he tell you? On the same day ? A. Yes.
Q. What did he tell you about it ? A. He told us that they had a graad victory.
Q. Did he say what was done ? A. He said that they had killed so many

people, or there were so many killed.

Q. How long were you kept a prisoner? A. Two months, all but a day.
Q. What day were you released ? A, Twelfth of May.
Q. By whom ? A. By General Middleton and his forces.
Q. Did you see the prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. When did you first see him after you were imprisoned ? A. I seen him about

the 10th April, to the best of my knowledge.
Q. Where? A* At Batoche.
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Q. What was he doing on that day? A. Well, he came in there with the rest

of his band that used to be generally taking part in butchering cattle. I usel to see)

more killing cattle than anything else.

Q. You saw him coming in on the 10th April with his band ? A. Yes.

Q. Were they armed or otherwise ? A. They were armed.

Q. Where did they camp, do you know ? Did they remain there any length of

time ? A. Yes, they remained there.

Q. Up to what time? A. I did not see him after the 12th May. I don't know-

where he went. He remained there till the 12th May, to the best of my knowledges

Q. How many times do you think you saw him between the 10th April, when,

he first came in, and the 12th May ? A. I could not say to the exact number of

times. I saw him quite frequently.

Q. You did not see him doing anything except butchering cattle ? Yes.

Q. Did you see his men doing anything? A. Yee, they were helping him.

Q. Did you see them doing anything else. A. They were carrying arms.^

Q. That is all you saw ? A. Yes. (Interpreter says he ftas interpreted this to

the prisoner.)

By Mr. Robertson:

Q. The cattle you saw him killing were the cattle in the camp? A. Yes.

Q. Is it a remarkable thing for an Indian to carry his gun ? A. No.

Q. An Indian carries his gun wherever he goes, doesn't he, at ail times? A.
Yes, excepting they are going after some grub or rations.

Q. Whenever he goes out from the place where he ordinarily lives he almost

always takes his gun ? A. Most generally.

Q. White Cap had nothing more with him than he would usually have in time

of peace? A. No.
Q. The object of this rising as you understood it, I believe was to obtain the

rights of the half-beeeds to their lands ? A. Yes, to make a new Government.

Q. It was to force the Dominion Government wasn't it, to give tbem what they

claimed as their lands ? A. Well, that is what they say.

Q. All you know about it is from what you heard them say isn't it ? A. Yes. {

By Mr. Scott

:

Q. You say they had another object in rising besides getting their rights to the*

lands, what was their intention ? A. Their intention was to kill everyone that wa»

dn the country.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. How do you know that ? A.

Mr. Scott—He heard them say it.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. Kill everyone in the country ? A. Yes, try to take the country.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. And what were they going to do with it ? A. Sell it to the United Statea

was what Kiel told me.

Philip Gabnot sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott:

Q. You were living at Batoche in Maich last, were you not? A. Yes.

Q. What happened about the 18th March there ? Shortly after the beginning,

of March, was there anything happened in that neighborhood ? A. From the IS'Jcl

March, the beginning of the uprising.

Q. What kind of an uprising ? A. A rebellion.

Q. About the 18th March a rebellion broke out there ? A- Yes.
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Q. Who broke out into rebellion at that time ? A. Half-breeds around Batoche
and the vicinity.

Q. To about what number ? A. On the 18th there was about 40.
Q. And did the number increase or decrease after that ? A. It increased almost

"daily.

Q. To what extent ? A. It must have come to about 400 I think.
Q. Are there any others besides half-breeds there ? A. Half breeds and Indians.
Q. Were there any Indians at the first, at the beginning, or did they join them

afterwards? A. There were some Indians at the beginning.
Q. And the number of Indians increased as well afterwards ? A. The number

of Indians increased as well.

Q. Who was the leader of the rebellion ? A* Mr. Eiel was supposed to be.
Q. What did they do during the time they were in rebellion ? A. They were

fighting. J

Q. What was the first fight? Where did it take place? A. At Duck Lake.
Q. Were you present ? A. I was not. I was at Batoche.
Q. How do you know there was a fight there ? A. I got into Duck Lake after

the fight was over, and I saw the battlefield.

Q. Did you hear anyone saying anything about it? A. Yes, I heard people
talking about it.

r r

Q. Who? A. I could not mention anybody in particular, bat almost every-
body was talking of the fight. I heard the firing from Batoche.

Q. You were in the rebellion as well ? A. Yes, I was.
Q. What position did you hold ? A. I was secretary for the council.
Q. To what council ? A. Kiel's council
Q. Secretary to the rebel council ? A. Yes.
Q. When was that first constituted ? A. I was not present when it was —
Q. When did you first know of its existence ? A. From the 21st of March.
Q. Was that the date of your appointment as secretary ? A. That was the d

fh&t I was brought in there.

Q. To act as secretary ? A. To act as secretary.

Q. And did you continue to act ? A.I continued to act till the end of the 12th
idI Hay.

Q. How many members were there of that council ? A. I think fourteen. I
would not be positive, though. There was a lot of members absent most of the time.

Q. Did you see the prisoner there during that time between the 18th of March
and the 12th of May ? A. Yes; he was Dot there at the beginning.

Q. When did you first gee him there ? A. I could not tell you the date ; it
saust have been three weeks anyhow after the beginning of the rebellion.

Q. Then you think it was about tLat time that you first saw him ? A. It was
jabout that time.

Q. Do you know how he came in there—how he happened to be there ? A.
There was some men sent for him.

Q. By whom ? A. By Eiel, I think, I think they were sent byf
3
Eiel.

Q. How many men ? A. Two men.
Q. Is that all ? A. Yes.

Q. Those two men were sent for him by Eiel, and did he come in a short tim
after, or did the men come back first, which ? A. They came in together ; one mai_
came in about a day ahead of him. He was camped about ten miles from the place
thei3, 1 think, that is what that man reported.

Q. He reported that White Cap and his band were camped about ten miles
•sm? A. Yes.

Q. And then he came in next day with the other messenger ? A. Yes.
Q. Him and his band ? A. Yes.
Q. Of what number does this band consist ? A. About eighty men.
Q. In what state were they as to arms ? A. They were mostly all armed.
Q. You eaw them, I suppose ? A. I saw them coming in.
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Q. Was there anything done in the council as to White Cap? Did he appear

efore the council at any time ? A. The day that he came in, or the next day, I

rould not be sure, he was appointed as a councillor.

Q. As a member of the council ? A. Yes.

Q. Was he present at the time of his appointment ? A. He was present.

Q. The deliberations of the council at that time, at the time of his appointment,

n what language were they conducted ? A. Mostly always conducted in French

Q. The pri&oner, I understand, does not speak Cree ? A. I don't believe he

inderstands neither French nor Cree.

Q. You say he was appointed a member of the council ; was he made aware ot

hat ? A. There was an interpreter that made him aware of that fact; he was told

o tell him. \

Q. There was an interpreter there who]was told to tell the prisoner that he waB

ippointed? A. Yes. it
:

>j
.

Q. That he was appointed a member of the council ? A. That he was appointed

i member of the council.

Q. And then immediately after the interpreter was told that he spoke to the

prisoner ? A. He spoke to him right away*

Q. That is all you know about it ? A. Yes.

Q. Well, was the prisoner in the council after that, the day of his appointment T

A. He was there occasionally.

Q. How often ? A. I could not say that; that is pretty hard to say; I wasn fe

there all the time myself, but I have geen him there many times.

Q. Did he ever take any part in the deliberations? A. Only once or twice, 1

think, that I heard him talk to the interpreter, that I remember.

Q. What tribe did this interpreter belong to ? What was his name ? A. l»a-

Q. What Indian nation did he belong to ? A. I think he is a French half-breed,

but I am not sure. . .-
Q. Did you ever see the prisoner with arms? A. No, I never saw him with arms.

Q. Did you ever see him doirg anything else during the time he was there? A*

*

Q. Did you ever see him outside of the council at all ? A. Well, I saw him down-

stairs, where I met him all the time I was in the council room.

Q. That is the only place ? A. That is the only place where I saw him. • (Inter-

preted to prisoner by the interpreter.)

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. You saw the prisoner about the camp, didn't you—about the village of

Batoche? A. I might have met him, but 1 don't remember seeing him. 1 might

have seen him, but I don't remember.

Q The cause of this rising, 1 understand, Mr. Garnot, was that the halt-breeds

of Prince Albert and that neighborhood were seekiDg to get the Government to give

them titles to the land upon which they squatted up there, the land which they had

teen occupying—is that true? And the Government had refused or rather had

neglected to give them those titles ? A. Well, I have heard that.

Q. Don't you know it yourself? A. Don't know anything about the rebellion*

until I was brought into it on the 21st March.

Q. You were brought in on the 21st March? A. I was brought in on the 21st

"NTfl.voh

O*. Well, don't you know that the prime object of the movement after the 21st

March was to make the Dominion Government attend to the rights of the half-breeds

there and give them their lands ? A. I have heard so.

Q Well, that is what you understood, as being the secretary of their council J

A. Yes, that is what I understood. Of course, I have heard so. I never saw any
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document that could prove to me that it wag for that purpo3e that the rebellion was
commenced.

Q. You were secretary, they made jou secretary, of their council, anl that was
what you understood as seoretary, wasn't it ? A. Yes, that is what I understood as
secretary.

Q, That was the object of it, to get their lands ? A. I think so.

Q. Well, you understood it so from them ? A. I understood it so, yes ; but you
must understand I am under oath, and I can't swear to a thing to be sure of unloss I am.

Q. Now, was there any serious expectation that they would be able to di ive the
Dominion Government out of the country? A. No, I don't think so.

Q. Isn't it the fact that they were simply rising in the hope that by rising
they would obtain the attention of the Dominion Government by petition ? A. I
have heard so.

Q. Well, that is what you understood, wasn't it ? A. Yes, that is what I heard.
Q. And did they want anything more ? Were they aiming at anything more

than that, that they would rise and they would force the Dominion Government to
attend to them, and then force the Dominion Government to give them their titles
to their lands ? A. Yes.

Q. That was the whole object ? A. Yes, because they were expecting every day
that delegates would come.

Q. They were expecting every day that some one would come from the Govern-
ment and treat with them ? A. Yes, I have heard that almost every day.

Q. Now, you were taken there by force, I believe ? A. Yes.
Q. And against your will ? A. Yes.

Q. And made secretary of that council in spite of yourself ? A. Well, of course
:! had my choice to run the risk of what might have been done to me if I had refused
to do so. I was alone in the town. I was the only one that had not joined them
then.

Q. And you were afraid, as matter of fact, that if you had not done as they told
you it might have been the worse for you ? A. I thought so, yes.

Q. And that is the reason you did act ? A. That is the reason I did act.

Q. Now, it is a fact, is it not, that Mr. Kiel and his council, those who were
heartily with him, got a great many people, both Indians and half-breeds, about him
by frightening them and threatening them ? A. Well, I have heard a great many
saying so.

Q. Do you know what means he took to get this White Cap and his band to
come in and join him ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know was there a council meeting a3 to what was to be done ? Was
there any council, any discussion at the council, as to what was to be dono to get him
and his band to come in ? A. I was in the council when the men were sent for him.
There were two men sent out to ask White Cap to come and join them.

Q. Now, hadn't White Cap before that, hadn't they tried before that to get White
Cap to join them ? A. They did try, but it was before I was there.

Q. This was almost immediately after you came in, then, that the messengers
were sent ? A. Yes, the 22nd or 23rd March. It was before the Duck Lake fight
that they went.

Q. Now, what was the message ? Do you know what message was sent to him ?
A. That is all I heard, unless there was other messages. I heard Kiel say to the
messenger to ask White Cap to come and join them.

Q. Didn't he send a threat that if he did not come—- ? A. No, I never heard it.

Q. Are you now under sentence for a part in this ? A. Yes.
Q. You have been sentenced for seven years, I believe ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know that the cattle of White Cap's band were taken possession of

by the half-breeds ? A. No, I never heard it, that he had cattle.

Q. The fact is, then, that you know very little about White Cap except that you
were there when they made him a member of the council and told him so? A. Yes,
that is about all I know ; all I said is all I know about it.
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Was he asked before he was made a member of the council if he would joinf

&. It would be about the same as what I answered before—I could not say because 1

lon't understand Sioux.

Case for the Crown here closed.

DEFENCE.

Gerald Willoughby sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Robertson

:

Q. Mr. Willoughby, you live at Saskatoon I believe? A. Yes.

Q. And have lived there for some time ? A. Yes.

Q. And you have traded in the neighborhood of Prince Albert also, have you I

A. Not as far north as Prince Albert.

Q. What is your occupation ? A; Trader and storekeeper.

Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. I do.

Q. How long have you known him ? A. Nearly three years. -

Q. Have you known him well or only slightly during that time? A. I have

known him very well.
, , .

Q. Of what nature has your intercourse with him been t A. .Business*

Q. Trading? A- Trading.

Q. With him and his band ? A. With him and his band.

Q What can you say as to his character for truthfulness, for honesty, for friend-

liness'to the white people; what can you say as to those points? A. As far as I

have known White Cap, I have never known him—I can say that I have never known

him to tell me a lie, that is as far as honesty is concerned, and as to his friendliness

towards the whites he has always evinced it and in our neighborhood there he is treated

as a friend by all the whites, «•«- f ,i„ i™™™
Q In your neighborhood where he is known ? A. He is perfectly known.

through all our settlement, and he is taken as a friend in the whites' houses.

Q Is he an ordinary Indian or is there anything ? A. No, I don t consider

him an ordinary Indian.
, . n T -j i • „ „_

Q. What do you consider from that point of view ? A. I consider him a very

much superior Indian.

Q. Is he kind or is he cruel ? A. He is very kind.

Q. And has always been as far as you know ? A. As far as I know.

Q Is there anything remarkable about his manner of Me as an Indian ? A. He
lives very much more in a civilized way than any other Indian I have ever known,,

and tries to instil that into his people.

O And tries to teach his people to do the same ? A. In a farming way.

Q. Does he work at his farm ? A. He does, he grows grain as far as he can and

has land under cultivation every year.

And does he try to teach his people, his tribe, the same ? A, He does.

Q Do you know has he ever shown you in any way that he has a sense of the

position he holds in this country, he is an American Indian ? A. Yes, he is an,

American Indian. He has told me that he is.

What has been his view of his position in this country ? A. He has told me

that he considers his position here of course as that ofadependant on the Government

being an American Indian. One instance that leads me to know more about that

than anything else is that a year ago last spring he came to me and wanted me to

8° U
\y. Scott.—I object to that statement. •

.

Mr. Eobertson.— Strictly, perhaps it is not regular. I only wished to show that

he recognized his position here and was grateful to the Government for it.

Court.—You have got that.
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By Mr. Robertson :
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Witness.—I only koow this that from what his brother said

Q. Well, his brother did come to you as a messenger from him at ail events?

.. Yes.

Q. And as a consequence of what the brother told you, what did you do? A^

fell, we got our arms together. The white people that were there in ther

jttlement at the time got their arms together and got one place ready to meet them.

hen they came up.

Q. Heady to meet whom ? A. The half breeds, and we sent out and met that

all-breeds when they came up, and the spokesman, Mr. Oopeland, told them he

oderstood White Cap did not wish to go to the front.

Mr. Scott.—I object to that as evidence, what Mr. Oopeland told the half-breeds.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Was |White Cap] present? A, Yes, White Cap and the half-breeds were

>gether.

Q. Were you there ? A. I was there
;
yes.

By Mr. Robertson:

Q. Had nothing occurred between you and White Cap before this

ersonally ? A. The only thing that occurred to me was, that White Cap had

jld me that he did not want to go to the front, and wanted me to get the white

fcople to help him get back to his reserve.

Q. He had done that before? A. Oh, yes.

Q. And it was in consequence of that that the white people went with you ? A.

Vent with me ; 1 was coming to that before, but I was stopped.

Q. And he told the halt-breeds that he did not want to go ? A. And that he

ranted to know why they were taking him ; and White Cap came up to the front

nth the half-breeds when we were speaking to them ; and they had his cattle,

»f course, and his whole outfit with him. They were driving his cattle.

Q. The half-breeds were ? A. Yes, some half-breeds on horseback were driving

he cattle up. The Sioux were not on horseback. They had jumpers. White Cap

s the only Sioux, that I remember, on horseback, and the breeds were on horseback

Iriving up the cattle and loose horses ; and when we told this half-breed that we

mderstood that White Cap did not want to go up, he said White Cap could speak for

limself, and I turned around then to White Cap and I asked him if he was going to

he front, and he said he did not know
;
just shrugged his shoulders and said he did

lot know, and he apparently did not know what to do. Of course, the half-breeds

vere keeping me away from White Cap as much as they could. They did not want

ne to get near him if they could help it, and any time I would go to speak to him

nyself, they would shove in between and keep me away from him, so that I could

lot get much chance to speak to him until afterwards, and there was great excite-

ment there, and they all passed on, shoved on. and there was nothing more said of

my consequence then. I met him afterwards, of course, and had another con-

versation. After they had moved on out to the other side of the town on their way
aorth, I followed him over to a house that he stopped at to get a cup of tea, and had

% long talk with him then personally.

Q. On the subject of his going ? A. Yes.

Q. Now, can you tell me what took place there on that subject? A. I told him

9xactly his case—if he went what his position would be—if he went up there he

would call himself a rebel. I told him if he went back quietly to his reserve that

there would be no danger, that he was perfectly safe in doing it, and he did not seem

to think so ; he seemed as though—
Q. Why did you say that he would be perfectly safe ? A. I knew at the time

that he was afraid ; he was afraid to go back ; afraid of the half-breeds. Some of

his own parties were against him, and those and the half breeds that were with them

were more than those with himself.

Q. The half-breeds were more numerous ? A. Yes, and they were helpless then.
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Q. You say you know White Cap well ? A. Yes.

Q. And you had this conversation with him at this time ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you then believe, and do you believe now, that he really was or that he]

was not afraid of the half-breeds ? A. He told me so at the time, and 1 believed him..

Q. Do you believe him? A. Yes, I believed him then, and I still believe him.
Q . Do you believe that he would have gone and joined Kiel if he had not been

afraid? A. No, I believe he would not.

Q. Do you recollect anything being said about his fighting? A. Up at
ZBatoche?

Q. At that interview or any of those interviews you had with him ? A.. He-
told me then that he would never fight, that even if he went to Batoche he would
not fight.

Q. "Well, what was said that led to that ? A. I told him at the time that if he
went there and lought against the Government, that he would be thrown out of his

reserve, and I told him he could not go back to the American side, and I just asked
him what would become ot him, and he seemed to get rather angry at the idea that I
thought he would go there and fight, and told me different times repeatedly that he
•would not fight even if he went there.

Q. Do you think that he really was indignant at your suggesting the idea he
would fight ? A. 1 could only say from what appeared to be, he appeared to be
very indignant.

Q. He appeared so to you at the time ? A. Yes.

Q. And you did not think he was shamming ? A. Oh, no; I did not.

By Mr. Scott:

Q. The first talk, Mr. Willoughby, you had with the prisoner was the time you
went down to Norbert Welch's for ammunition, was it ? A. Yes.

Q. Had the outbreak commenced at that time ? A. Oh, yes.

Q. What day was it ? A. I can't say, probably about the 25th of March.
Q. 1 understood you to say that he was not then decided as to whether he was

going or not? A. Be told me he was not going.

Q. At that time ? A. Yes.

Q. Then the next conversation you had with him was when he was on his way
up, was it ? A. Of any consequence—yes.

Q. In which anything was said about his intentions as to joining the rebels ? A.
Yes—no ; he spoke somewhat of joining the rebels, the day he came up as far as
Saskatoon.

Q. That was when he was some three or four miles out ? A. Probably six or
«ight miles.

Q. How far is his reserve below Saskatoon ? A, About sixteen miles.

By the Court :

Q. Is that closer or further off from Batoche ? A. Further off.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Then he was on his way up when you had the second conversation with
him ? A. On his way north; yes.

Q. Did you hear that he was going north at that time ? Did you go out to see
him ? A. No, I was going to another person's house.

Q Had you heard before you saw him that he was on his way north? A* No.
Q. Did you suppose at the time you saw him or just before you saw him, that

lie was on his reserve ? A. Yes ; I supposed at the time that I met the whole outfit—I supposed he was quietly on his reserve.

Q. Until you met them, you supposed he was on his reserve ? A. Yes.
Q. What was said on that occasion ? Did you ask him where he was going ?

A. No, I did not ask him. I knew—I formed my own conclusions. I did not
-ask him.

4g
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Q. Had you any conversation with him at all? A. Yes: I had some conver-
sation with him.

Q. What was it ? A. I said to him that he had better not go further than Sas-
katoon. I told him to turn around at Saskatoon and go back home again, and I had
not any chance—I dared not say much to him then.

Q. Why ? A. On account of the half-breeds.

Q. How many half breeds were there there ? A. There were about eighteen.
Q, 5;<i'you know any of them ? A. Oh, yes; I knew a good number of them.
Q. Where were these half-breeds from? A. Some of them were from Bound

Plain, where Norbert Welch has his store.

Q. In the neighborhood of White Cap's reserve? A. Yes: Some few miles
from 5 c

Q. Some of the half-breeds were from there ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know whether there were any from the north ? A. Yes.
Q How many ? A. I could not say how many there were from the north.

'

Q How many were there from the RouDd Plain ? A. That I knew there were
about hix or eight, I believe.

Q. Is Norbert Welch a half-breed ? A. Yes.
Q. Was he one of them ? A. He was one of them, though he did not go throuj?? ».

He stopped at Saskatoon. & &

Q. And what did he do after that ? A. After he stopped at Saskatoon he weEt
:o Qu'Appelle.

Q. Was he a rebel do you know ? A. I don't know.
Q. But you saw him that day? A. Oh, yes.
Q. With the others ? A. Yes.
Q. What were they doin^r when you saw them when you were there, were their

marching or camping? A. Well, they camped just after I saw them first, after I
jighted them first.

'

Q. What time was that ? A. They camned for dinner.
Q. Then was it the next day afterward s* that they camped up near Saskatoon

when the citizen s committee went out to see them ? A. Yes, the following day,
Q. How many half-breeds were there there at that time ? A. The same number
H. You say Norbert Welch stopped at Saskatoon; well, didn't you ascertain-

©mething about his feelings about the matter—about the rebellion, whether he wa^
i rebel or not ? A. Well, I don't like to say anything about Norbert Welch.

Q. But I want you to say—I want to know whether these eighteen half-breed,-
,hat were with the Indians going up were rebels or not ? A. They were, as we cor

-

odered, rebels excepting Norbert Welch, and we did not know anything about him .

we were afraid of him. &

Q. Didn't he say anything himself ? A. He said, he said something about hin -
ml, bat we did not believe him*

Q. At all events he helped them there ? A. He helped them there.
y. Were those other men from Eound Plain rebels? A. They were rebels. One

>i them was killed.
J

Q. They went up to Batoche ? A. Yes.
Q. How many Indians were there? A. Probably twenty—not more.
Q. Not more than twenty? A. No. .

Q. Not more than twenty men in White Ctep's band ? A. Not more.
Q. I understood you to say that White Cap sent for you and then you saw him,md he complained that he was being taken up to Batoche by the rebels ? A. Ye,ie told me that he was being taken.
Q. And he wanted, I understood, I don't know whether you said it this time, but

^understood from other sources that he wanted the citizens to help him to escape ?

>y hi^' brother
aSk y°U to a8k the Citizens that ? A

"
That was the message he sent

iilf-teeedsf

h

A
W
Yes

ed ^ CitlZeDS °f Saskatoon to helP him to escape from the.
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Q. Waw that it ? A. That was the idea.

Q. Well then, what did the citizens do ? A. They told us : better to tell White

Cap that if the Indians would strike the first blow against the half-breeds that the

white people would help them.

Q. That if the Indians would strike the first blow against the half-beeeds, the

TYhite men would help them ? A. Yes.

Q. This messsge was sent up before they reached Saskatoon, was it ? A. Yes.

Q. And th-> answer was sent back beiore they reached Saskatoon ? A. Yes, I

guess he got the answer bdore he reached Saskatoon.

Q. Then he got notice from the whites that they were prepared to assist him if

he would help himsell ? A. Yes, that was the substance of it.

Q. When did the band reach Saskatoon ? A. About nine o'clock in the morning,

I think.

Q. Was it then that the citizens' committee went outjto meet them that you.

went out with them ? A. Yes.

Q Was there anything said during that meeting there about White Cap going

back ? A. That wa^ what the conversation was.

Q. They asked him not to go, to go back to his reserve ? A. Yes.

Q. Well bow many citizens were there there at that time ; how far was this from

the settlement ? A. Eight at the store, in front of the store.

Q. How many citizens were around there at that time ? A. Probably eight or

nine.

Q. Were they armed? A. Yes.

Q. Well how many citizens were there there altogether, in the town ? A. There

were about 18 or 20.

Q. Where were the others ? A. I don't know. They were away.

Q. Were there 9 fighting men in the town that day ? A. I think so.

Q. At all events they all gathered there? A. That were in town.

Q. Prepared to defend themselves and to assist this man? A. Yes.

Q. That was what they were there for ? A. That was what they were there for.

Q. Well, did White Cap know it that day? A. I can't say whether he knew it

or not,

Q. Well, what was the conversation that took place with White Cap that day?

A. Well, the conversation was not with White Cap, it was with the breeds. They
would not let us go near White Cap.

Q. Bat I undeibtood you to say they tried to keep you away, but you had some
conversation with him ? A.I just asked him simply not to go, and he did not say

anything at that time. He did afterwards.

Q. Then, in reality, there was no statement made by White Cap at the time that

they passed through Saskatoon ? A. There was at the time, but not at that conver-

sation.

Q. When was it then ? A. Probably half an hour or so afterwards.

Q. Between you and White Cap ? A. Yes.

Q. But I mean at the time the citizens were there ? A. No, there was nothing

passed between the citizens and White Cap himself.

Q. I)id the half-breeds interfere with the citizens in any way; did they threaten

to attack them or anything of that kind when they were going through? A. No.

Q. You say there were 18 half-breeds and 9 citizens? A. Yes.

Q. Were the citizens a^ little frightened as to what would occur? A. Yes,

certainly.

Q. It was at the conversation after they had passed through, you followed them
up I understand some distance beyond Saskatoon ? A. No, just to the other side of

the town. Of course, the town is only a couple of hundred yards wide, and I followed

him ; the house where he stopped was only 200 yards away.

Q. And you bad a conversation alone with him then ? A. Yes.

Q. And you understood from him then that he was afraid to break away ? A*
Yes, that is just what he told me exactly.
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Q. You think he knew that the citizens were prepared to assist him ? A. I can't
say whether he did or not.

Q. Did he know the object or cause of the rebellion ? A. No, he did not seem
to know. He did not know anything about it apparently.

Q. I suppose he knew there was a rebellion ? A. Yes.
Q. He knew that was the rebellion he was going to join ? A. Yes, that is, that

there was rebellion—I don't know about joining.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q You don't know that he understood he was going to join ? A. He told me
lie was not going to join.

By Mr. Seott :

Q. He said he was not going to join, you understood ? A. He told me he would
have nolhing to do with the rebellion.

Q. You say that White Cap thoroughly understood his position in the country

;

what is his po"ition
;
you say he was dependent on the Government being an Amer-

ican Indian—did you ever have any conversation with him as to his previous history ?

A. Yes.
Mr. Eobertson.

—
"What has his previous history to do here ?

Mr. Scott.—It is a cross-examination.
The Court.—The previous history may be shown.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Do you know anything personally about his previous history ?
Mr. Eobertson.—I submit that is objectionable.

By Mr. Scott:

Q. I ask what the prisoner himself told him about his previous history?
A. He was always very reticent about it. He told^me once that he had fought on
the American side.

Q. Where ? A. He did not say where*
Q. Against whom did he say ? A. No, nor whom.
Q. Well you have been asked as to his general reputation. What is his reputa-

tion ? A. As to his history previous to his coming here ?

Mr. Eobertson.—I object to the question.
Witness.—I don't know that at all.

By Mr. Scott:

Q. Did you never hear anything about him in the neighborhood ? A.
I know nothing of him only what I saw myself.

Q. Now, wasn't the feeling that he expressed that he was obtaining a sanctuary
in this country ? Wasn't that what he considered to be his position ? A. That the
Canadian Government was harboring him ?

Q. Yes ? A. Yes, that thev were giving him a home.
Q. Well, do you know whether or not there was any reason why he had to

remain in Canada ? Wasn't he fleeing from justice on the other side ? A. I know
nothing of my own personal knowledge.

Q. That is the expression I have always heard used, that he had a sanctuary
here ? Wasn't that the case ? A. That the Canadian Government was giving him
a home.

Q. Harboring him ? A. Harboring him.
This closed all evidence in the case.

ADDEESS OF PEISONEE'S COUNSEL.
Mr. Eobertson.—May it please your Honors and gentlemen of the jury : Since

the conviction of the Big Bear, I have felt that it is almost a hopeless task to attempt
to obtain from a jury in Eegina a fair consideration of the case of an Indian. It has
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seemed to me that it is only necessary to say in this town to a jury, there is an Indian,

and we will put him in the dock to convict him. But perhaps in feeling that, I did

injustice to i he jurymen of Kegina I hope I did. JNothing but such a conviction as

that of Big Bear could have brought me to think so, and I try to believe again this,

morning thai I was mistaken in the estimate I formed in consequence of tnat verdict.

I am going to appeal to you now as if you were perfectly fair-minded, as I hope that

you are. I am goirg to ask you, notwithstanding what I have seen in this court

already in these Indian'cases 1 am going to make one more appeal in the hope that

this time I have before me men who will regard the evidence against an Indian, and

scrutinize it with a desire to do him justice, and not to press unduly upon him, just

as fairly as if it were a white man they were dealing with ; and I am going to ask

you to acquit White Cap and I ask it with perfect confidence in the result, provided

only I can get you to consider the evidence fairly and without prejudice.

The charge against this man is that he conspired together with rebels rebelling

against the Queen. j_ j

Now, let us begin and let me ask you to ask yourselves what likelihood, what

probability there was of a man in his position conspiring against the Queen, or in

other words, against Her Majesty's Government in this country ? What were the pro-

babilities? What was his position ? He is an American Indian, to begin with. He
is here the guest of this country. He and his band have been given, as he said him-

self to Mr. Willoughby, and said it with gratitude, as Mr. Willoughby tells you. He
had been given heie a home, a home where as Mr. Willoughby says he was happy,

and, so far as an Indian can be prosperous under the laws as they are applicable to*

Indians in this country, he was prosperous, he was truthful, he was honest in his»

dealing with white men, he was the white man's friend, treated as such by ail that

knew him, and he was industrious, he worked hard on his farm, he taught his tribe

to do the same, he w^s doing everything he could to be a good citizen. My learned

friend has attempted to suggest to you that he has some bad character, and that he

has fled from justice on the other side of the line. Well, gentlemen, if be was there—

if he was, there surely must be something extraordinary in the air on this side of the

line to have converted this terribly wicked Indian floeing from justice in the States,

into the man such as Mr. Willoughby described to you—leaving out of consideration

for the moment, what is said against him in this rebellion.

Gentlemen, there is nothing against that man on the other side of the border,

there is nothing that any honest man need be ashamed of, at all events, we know

—

we all know how the American treats the Indian. We all know that the poor Indian

there is looked upon as the very man to be crushed under the heel of his more pow-

erful brother, called as he should be his oppressor, as he is, the white man. We know

that they are the victims of all kinds of chicanery and falsehood and of all kinds of

persecution and oppression, and we know that (sometimes the desperation to which

they are driven by the treatment to which they are subjected, they have, as a last

resort attempted to protect themselves and to assert the rights that had been solemnly

given to them by treaty with the Government, but of which they have been deprived

by its false minions, and possibly that old man has been engaged in some fight with

the troops in the States, and he knows the treatment any Indian gets from those

troops when he is captured. It is not a fair trial, it is not even such a

pretence of a fair trial as has been accorded to some of these mea
here, but it is a short shrift and a rope or a bullet. He knows that, and he has been

weary of the struggle, and in bis old age he comes over here, and here he finds com-

parative protection ; here he finds the home that he has been seeking for, and he

tries honestly to m&ke the best of it. That was his position when he was here. He
had no complaints against the Government. He was grateful to the Government

ior what it had done for them, and he is there on his re-ervation, trying to take

advantage of the opportunities the Government atforded him. What inducement

had he? What object had he to serve in rising against the Government ? Why
should he rise ? My learned friend will perhaps ask you to say he rose out of pure

cussedness, because he is an Indian. Mr. Willoughby tells you what kind of a man
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lie is, and I venture to say the old man is as kind-hearted and a great deal better,

honester, more truthful, more kind, and more friendly than many a white man that

you and I know. I pay his face shows there is not a cruel line in that man's face,

and I say that Mr. Willoughby's knowledge of him shows it, and his account of him.

shows it. Now, Mr. Willoughby is not here to give a man like that a good charac-

ter if he did not deserve it. Mr. Willoughby is just as much interested, and in fact

is more interested, because he is there in the midst of them, in seeing that the men
who were really guilty in this rebellion are punished, and he would be the first man
to go into the box and tell you anything that could be told against that man, if it

were to bo told, and there would be much more told in that box against him if it

could be toid. We have his character then. We have his position. We have the

probability. Was he likely, he an industrious, truthful, honest, friendly man,

working industriously on his reserve and teaching his tribe to do the same ? Mr.

Abtley tells us the same thing, that he had a good character, and his tribe and band

had a good character before, and was it likely that that man would have any induce-

ment to rise against the very Government to which he w<ts grateful for the home
that they had given him ? Then what did he do ? We know from Mr.

Willoughby that the old man and his band came up to Saskatoon. They were brought

there by eighteen armed half-breeds. They were about twenty in number. Now,
twenty Indians to eighteen half-breeds, and on the part of the Indians, a desire to

avoid all fighting, the half-breeds in possession of their cattle, remember, which they

drove off, their cattle, their means of subsistence, is it to be wondered at that the old

man and his band when these eighteen half-breeds came down and took possession of

his cattle and drove them off, and told them they were to come up and join Kiel ? Is

it wonderful that he yielded, that he went up? .Remember, you must not judge

of his conduct as you would judge of the conduct of a white man in the same circum-

stances.

Now, I have repeated that over and over again to juries here, and every time I

have repeated it, his Honor has taken care to tell the jury that the law is the same

for a white man as it is for an Indian, and the same for an Indian as it is for a white

man. I am not saying that it is not the law. The law is the same for all, but the

law is that the man must be proven guilty upon the facts of the offence defined by
law, and it is not that I am saying that the law is to be different for an Indian from

what it is for a white man. What I say is that you cannot judge of the conduct of

an Indian—you cannot draw the same inferences from the conduct of an Indian that

you can draw from the conduct of a white man, a white man who has been accustomed

to live under civilized forms of government, who understands the importance of

maintaining law and order, who knows what a serious thing it is to rise in arms

against the Government, when he is asked to go into a rebel camp, he knows the impor-

tance of the thing he is asked to do, and he recoils from it, and if he is a loyal man he

will resist with all his power any force that is brought to bear upon him to compel

him to go, but an'Jndian is not struck in the same way by a mere order that he is to come
up into Eiel's camp. That is a different thing altogether. It does not appear here that

that old man knew or understood what Kiel was after, and as matter oi fact he did not.

These messengers come down there, and they tell him that they are going to take

him up to Kiel, he must go with them to Eiel. Well, he says these eighteen armed men
then walked off with his cattle, and he feels, well I must either fight them or I must

go or I must stay here and starve. I will go. I had better go. So he goes, but he

does not like it. He does not want to go, and when they get him as far as Saskatoon,

he sends and he goes himself over and over again to try and see Mr. Willoughby, the

only man in the settlement that could talk Sioux, to try and get the whites to help him
to get away and go back to his reserve. Was he honest in that ? Are you going to

assume in the face of the character that he bears as Mr. Willoughby shows you—in

the face of the probabilities of the case, that he was acting all that ? Isn't it just the

thing you would expect from a man in his position ? Wasn't it natural and just the

thing you would expect him to do ? You would not expect that that man would want

to jom Eiel ? He went several times to try and get hold of Mr. Willoughby in order
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to communicate with the whites, iB order that they might help him to get away ; and
then we have Mr. Willoughby's account of the interviews he had with him, of how
the whites went out and tried to get near him, and tried to help him away. Mr.
"Willoughby tells us that the message tbey sent as to what they were going to give
them was that if the Indians would strike the first blow, they would help them, but
that message never reached them. They go out to meet them, and the half-breeds
tako precious good care to not allow him to get near them.

Now, gentlemen, if the half-breeds were not taking that man iu by force or by
fear, why were they so careful to keep Gerald Willoughby from getting near him ?
Doesn't that show you that they had him there under coercion, that they were ordering
him in against his will ? And tbey were determined that the fear they had instilled
into him, which enabled them to bring him so far, should not be countervailed by
anything that Mr. Willoughby might say to them, and they kept them asunder; but
Mr. Willoughby saw him afterwards, and Mr. Willoughby tells you that knowing the
man well— he tells you the conversation he had with him, and he tells you that he
believed then and he believes now that the man was in fear of those halt-breeds, and
that it was because he was in fear of those half-breeds that he was going up to their
camp. Do you believe it ? Then he went. They did taka him in, there is no doubt
about that. Mr. Astley told us that he saw them coming in—I forget whether it was Mr.
Astley who said they were all mounted—yes, he did. He said he saw them, about
twenty, all coming in to Batoche on horseback, and all armed. Mr. Willoughby tells
you that the only mounted man among them was White Cap himself. Now, 1 don't
say that Mr, Asiley deliberately told an untruth, but I say that Mr. Astley, while he
wishes to tell only the truth, is one of those impetuous men who speak carelessly, and
while I impute to him no intentional falsehood I do say that his evidence is most
unsafe evidence for a jury to convict upon, and there is one instance of it. You saw
those two men, Mr. Astley and Mr. Willoughby, in the box. Mr. Willoughby told
you the only mounted man was White Cap, and there were only about twenty, and
Mr. Astley told you that he saw the whole twenty mounted coming into the camp
on horseback and armed. Mr. Tomkins said there were about eighty of them came in.

I draw your attention to those circumstances, gentlemen—contradictions, because
they show that these two men, Astley and Tomkins, honest as they are, are
men that were passing through a very exciting time. They saw everything
through magnifying glasses. Although Mr. Astley tells you that on the morn-
ing of the 12th May, when he was in terror that the lives of the prisoners
were going to be sacrificed, when he was in the hope of saving their
lives, riding so gallantly as he did, running the gauntlet of that fire from both sides
of that field, although he tells you while he was going through all that that he was
perfectly cool. Gentlemen, I ask you to say that Mr. Astley was not perfectly cool,
and that Mr. Astley's recollection of all these events is colored and magnified, and
magnified to the detriment of all that were opposed to him by the excitement under
which he labored at that time, during that time a very natural excitement, and an
excitement that he need not be ashamed of, an excitement which he denied. And
why ? Because he thought that if he admitted that he was excited you might think
he might be doubtful about the identity of the prisoner. That is why he wou'd not
admit that he ^as excited. Do you believe he was not excited, gentlemen ? Do
you believe that he hasn't sti etched a point in saying that, and if he stretched a
point in saying that, he stretched it because he wanted it to tell against the prisoner,,
and he would stretch another point too to tell against the prisoner, and he would
say he was positive it was him, when in reality he is not so positive as he pretends
to be. That is the opinion 1 ask you to form of Mr. Astley 's testimony. It is lor
you to say whether or not it is correct you think, whether or not I have judged it
properly and accurately, and, gentlemen, I ask you to say would you for a moment
think of convicting one of your fellow-citizens upon any 'charge upon testimony so
uncertain as that ? Because, gentlemen, on the evidence of Mr. Astley rests the
whole of this case. If Mr. Astley was mistaken in saying that he saw that man in
the rifle pits on that day, then there is no case made out against the prisoner. 1 say
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-that. I know his Honor has ruled differently in the other cases, in some of the other

cases but I am going to say a few words on that hereafter.

Now iust ask yourselves as honest men, fair-minded men, trying there upon

your oaths the question of the guilt or innocence of this old man, wr h his previous

ffood character, with all the probabilities against his rising against the Government,

IBk yourselves would you for a moment think of convicting a fellow-citizen upon,

such evidence, a white man, and be men enough to say we will give the poor Indian.,

uneducated, but after all a good old man, we will give him the benefit of the doub^>

at all events, and we don't feel that we are quite satisfied that Mr Astley may not

have been mistaken as to who it was be saw in the rifle pits on tbat day ? I ask yea.

-to say that, but, gentlemen, if he were in the rifle pits, there is not a tittle of evidence,

that he fired a shot. The same fear that took him into that camp may have taken,

him out to the rifle pits at the bid of Eiel. He may have been impelled by the same*

fear that took him there. He seemed to Eiel to be acting with him, while in hi>

heart he was not helping him one bit, but was hanging back. It Kiel s people were

able to frighten him into coming in, they were also able to frighten him into going

out to the rifle pits. And supposing he was there, it is not shown that he did any -

thing ; tbat he fired a shot. He says, however, that Mr Astley is completely mir
taker He says he was not in these rifle pits at all. He admitsthat he was in the*

camp, but he says he did not go to the rifle pits, and the declaration he made to Mr

Willoughby that if they took him out there he would not fight-the declarationl than

lie made, remember, was of indignation and anger when it was suggested as to fight-

ing That declaration he stuck to, he says, and he says he was at the church all the,

time when the fighting was going on-the church which was away back from thi*

llDeS

5ow That" fc tnVwhole case against the prisoner, that Mr. Astley says he saw

him out there in the rifle pits that day, and Mr. Astley, and Mr. Tomkms, and Mr.

Garnot tells us that he was in the camp, which he admits. Mr. Garnot proves that

he was elected a member of Eiel's council. Well, gentlemen, you heard the aooonnr.

of that, and did you ever hear of anything more farcical*,,*- Wri „i,<_

The old man talking Sioux, speaking not a word of French or Cree is brought

there in fear. He is brought in, invited to come to this meeting, he is taken in there,

the proceedings are all conducted in French and Cree. He knows.nothing about

what they're doing, and then somebody tells him, but we have not the tittle of evi-

dence to prove that he was told that, but they say some one was told to tell him that

he was elected a councillor, and that some one spoke to him afterwards, lhat is the

whole extent of that. What does it amount to ? It does not appear that he was

even asked to join-not a bit of it-but he was brought in there very much as Mr

Garnot was, only even more unwillingly, and he was made a member of council

whether he liked it or not. That was Mr. Eiel's game. It was the way he played

the whole game. He got men about him by one means and another partly by impo-

sition, partly by intimidation. He got them there and made them his councillors

whether they liked it or not. They were afraid of their lives to protest, and then

they are brought here and convicted because they were his councillors. In this case,

the councillor knew absolutely nothing of what was going on
.

I attach and 1 ask

yon to attach, no weight to thatlcircumstance at all. The same fear that would bring

him in there was also enough to take him to that meeting and also enough to make

him hold his tongue when they had told him what they had done with him
.

1 nen

we have the fact that he was in the camp. He was seen there m the camp. Well,

gentlemen, his Honor has told juries before in these cases that the mere presence ot

She prisoner in the camp was sufficient to convict him, unless it was conclusively

proved to you that he was prevented from leaving it by the instant fear of death and

nothing short of that would excuse it. I have submitted to his Honor with all defer-

ence, of course, and I am bound, in the discharge of the duty cast upon me here not

as the hired advocate of the prisoner, for I am not, but because the Government has

sent me here to see that if I can, that he gets fair play. I am bound to dissent from

that ruling and to protest against it, and I do so. 1 say that that is not the law. A
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say that m a case of this kind, while it is competent to a jury to iDfer, if they think
the circumstances warrant it, to infer from the presence of an accused in a rebel camn
that he is there aiding and abetting, the question is not whether he was there, but
the question is whether he was aiding and abettiDg and encouraging them, and the?
jury is not bound to infer at all that because he was there, he was aiding them His
being there is not a crime, otherwise the man who was there, if such there were
doing his utmost to defeat the aims of the rebels, would be a guilty man and liable to*
conviction His being there is not a crime, but his aiding and abetting them is, his
assisting them, his encouraging them in their designs would be a crime. The jurymay where they think the circumstances warrant it, infer from his presence there
that he was aiding and abetting, and a jury at all events in the case of a white man^
as the cases show, would only be justified in inferring that from his mere presence if
unexplained. Where, however, he explains how he came there, and the jury are satis-
fied with that explanation and satisfied that although he was there he was not willingly
there, not that he was kept there by fear of death because that is not it, but that he
was unwillingly there, that he was not aiding and abetting and encouraging them, If
they are satisfied of that then they should acquit him although he was there. The
law about the fear of instant death is this that nothing but the fear of instant death
will excuse a traitorous act, but his being there is not a traitorous act. And I ask
you, whatever his Honor may tell you, and I appeal to you as six men
of sound common sense, whatever his Honor tells you is the law, to da
moral justice to that poor old man, and, if necessary, over-ride the law
as you have a right to do in these cases, because you are the judges
of the guilt or the innocence of that man, and you have a right to apply
your common sense to the whole case, and you have a right to say whether thatman shall or shall not be punished. In this case it is unnecessary to over-ride the
law. The evidence is not such as would justify you in condemning a dog to be
hanged, and I ask you to say, whatever His Honor may tell you, that that old man
should not be punished for anything he has done in this matter, and I ask you to*
acquit him. There is one circumstance that has occurred to me while I was speak-
ing, and one remark I should make about Mr. Alley's evidence as to the identity of
the prisoner, and that is that although he pretends to say that in the excitement—
because I say he was excited in spite of his oath—in his excitement when he was
passing between those lines, when he was trying to save, his great and one thought
was whftt he was to do to get to Gen. Middleton, and how he could arrange to save
the lives of his fellow prisoners. When that was his one thought, he asks you to say
in all that excitement, he recognized the prisoner,.but he cannot tell us whether he
had a head dress on or not, let alone tell up what kind of a head dres3 he had on, if
any. That is another important circumstance Gentlemen, you know as to that
how easy it is to be mistaken in the identity of a man. Mr. Astley admits there
were about 150 or 200 men Indians in the camp, and he says there were a lot of old
men among them. Now, gentlemen, you know I am very sure it must have hap-
pened to some of you, as it has to me several times, that you have met men in the
street in their ordinary garb, and in the ordinary concerns of life, and you have gone
up to them to shake hands with them thinking he was an old friend, and you have
found you were mistaken. I am very sure that some one of you, at least, has had
that experience. It is experience I have often heard spoken of, and an experience I
have often had myself, and I have known men so positive that they would hardly
believe the man they were speaking to was not the man ihey imagined him to be,
an old friend too. I have seen other men go up and address my own father over and
over again, mistaking him for another man—and they are both somewhat prominent
men and somewhat well known, they being both members of the House of Commons
and somewhat well known to the public of Ontario—I have seen my father, on two
occasions, mistaken for that other man. Gentlemen, it id a very easy thing to be
mistaken, and when a man, in all the excitement of that time, tells you he could
recognize that old man's free, and is prepared to swear he saw him there, although
he cannot tell whether he had anything on his head or not, or what he had on his.
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bead—I say it is most unsafe evidence, and I say it is too doubtful altogether to

warrant you in committing that man and depriving him of his liberty.

Gentlemen, I have done, I have done my duty. It remains for you to do yours.

I am very sure if I were defending a white man what the verdict would be. I hope

I am addressing men who will give the same justice to an Indian. I have said, over

and over again, since I have been in Eegina, that I never in my life in eleven years*

experience in practice—I never saw finer, more intelligent, more superior jurymen

than I have seen in this box, and it was not until the verdict in the Big Bear cane

that I yielded to what I had been told—that the prejudice against the Indians was bo*

strong that there was no hope of getting any of them acquitted. Gentlemen, I hope

and believe that the men I see before me now are men that will give them the same

fair consideration that they would give to their fellow-men, white men, and that is

all I ask. I don't ask for any special grace to them because they are Indians at all

—I ask merely that you will just say to yoursehes " now, if this were a white man
would we convict, would we feel safe in putting a white man, depriving him of Ms
liberty, upon the evidence that appears here?" In the face of the good character

he bears, in the face of the probabilities of the case, of his position which made all

his interests to be the same with the Government, if he possibly could have had the

evidence that has been given of the way in which he was brought in there against

his will, of the difficult position in which he was placed, and the undoubted fact that

there is this peculiarity about his case arising out of the fact that he is an Indian,

that he could not look at the matter as a white man would, and that, like the child

ren, as in a great measure these Indians are, he looked at the immediate consequen-

ts of what he was going to do, and he felt that the best he could do wps to yield, at

all events, to some extent, and go into their camp when they sent for him.

ADDKESS OF CKOWN COUNSEL.

Mr. Scott.—May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury : My learned

friend, in commencing his address to you a short time ago, insinuated in pretty

strong terms that there had been a miscarriage of justice in a case that was tried here

a few days ago* against another Indian called Big Bear. Now, I think that insinua-

tion was uncalled for, entirely uncalled for, and I can easily understand the purpose

for which it was made. It is not my duty to follow it further except to tell you

this, that in disposing of this case you are not to consider what my learned friend

thinks is right and just in the matter—you are to consider what you yourselves think

is right and just, that is, you are to give a true verdict according to the evidence that

you have heard in this case.

Now, gentlemen, I explained to you in the beginning what the offence was that

was charged against this prisoner, and have laid before you the evidence with which

the Crown suggests that it is proved. That evidence shows conclusively, I submit

to you, that he was in the rebel camp with the rebels at Batoche, that is proven

"beyond a doubt. The fact of his being in the rifle pits in the lines of fire at Batoche

is proved by the evidence of one witness whom my learned friend has tried to some

extent to discredit, but I submit he has not succeeded in doing so.

Now, gentlemen, those being'the facts that are proved, I submit that it would

be sufficient to convict the prisoner of the offence with which he is charged, unless it

has been shown to you conclusively that the reason of his being there was not such

as would entitle him to be punished for the offence. Has it been proved that the

excuse for being there was justifiable? We have the evidence of Mr. Wflioughby

upon that point. In the first place, I may say to you it is shown that the pmoner
knew just exactly what was going on at Batoche, that at the time that Willoughby

went down to Norbert Welch's, borne days before the prisoner left his reserve to go

northward, they had a discussion about the matter. It was known exactly in that

part of the country what was the position of affairs at Batoche, and how things were

going on there. The prisoner knew it as well, because Willoughby was talking

about it to him at the time. He knew just exactly the position oi affairs there, and
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we find afterwards that, in company with a number of half-breeds who were supposed
to be rebels, he left his reserve and started northward.

Now, gentlemen, we have the evidence of Willoughby that he sent in a message
to the citizens of Saskatoon stating that he was being carried off against his will,
and that he wanted the citizens there to assist him in escaping. Was the prisoner's
conduct, in passing through Saskatoon, beyond his bare statement to Willoughby*;
that he was afraid, and that he was going against his will—was his conduct in passing
through Saskatoon such as would lead you to believe that be was really anxious and
desirous of escaping from the half breeds ? You must remember that, according to
the evidence gi\?en here to-day, the members of his band outnumbered the half-breeds
1hat were with them. At the outside, Willoughby said not more than eighteen half-
breeds, and there may have been twenty Indians. I think Willoughby is not posi-
tive on that point. I think he said there wer6 about twenty. When they were
coming through Saskatoon, the citizens of Saskatoon, to the number of nine
or ten, were there, ready to aid and assist him in escaping if he wanted to. Did
be show any desire to escape on that occasion ? It appears the citizens
met him there ard were prepared to assist him, and he saw himself
that they were prepared to assist him, but he did not make any effort to escape there,
snd when, although Willoughby says there was an effort made by the half-breeds to
keep the whites away from the prisoner, it appears Willoughby had no difficulty in
seeing him a short time after they had left Saskatoon, away on the outskirts ot the
town. Then Willoughby explained to him the exact position of affairs, what was
going to be done, and what they were willing to do. All that "(tie prisoner said om
that occasion was that he was afraid. Now, gentlemen, it is my duty to call your
attention to the fact that that is the only evidence that we have had from beginning
to end in justification of the prisoner's preeence in the camp—his mere statement
that he was afraid of Eiel and was going up there against his will ; that is the only-
evidence as far as I can see.

Then, gentlemen, we have the evidence as to character ; that evidence is pretty
Btrong, that up to the time of this breakout, that he was a good Indian, since he came
to this country. My learned friend says he has done nothing wrong before he came
to the country, Be admits he may have been fighting, but he was fighting in a
justifiable cause as he says. It may be reasonably inferred that the cause was not
legally justifiable, otherwise he would not be here, because my learned friend says he
came here to escape from the tyranny of the American authorities. Then, that being
the case, he owed so much more to the Government here, and was under so muck
more of an obligation to them.

Now, gentlemen, the only other point is as to the evidence of Mr. Astley. Did
Mr. Astiey see the prisoner in the rifle pits ? Be tells you that he knows the pris-

oner for three years. Ask yourselves whether if you had known a man for three
years you would be liable to be mistaken, even under the circumstances of excite-
ment which Mr. Astley may have been in that day. Mr. Astley gave his evidence
Tery fairly. You remember what he said about the prisoner's character. He said
that he had always borne a good character, and as far as he had heard, he was a good
Irdian, but he says also, he cannot be mistaken as to his being there. My learned
frier d insinuates you should not believe Mr. Asiley's statement, because he did not
remember what he wore. .Now, with all due respect to my learned friend, I think
that is unreasonable, and, judging by myself, when I look at a man on the street and
recognize him, and don't remember wbat he wears, I don't look at his clothes. I
kck at his features, and if I met him on the street, I would remember him whether
he had a hat on or not, because if he hadn't a hat on on the street, we would think
it singular, but, in times of excitement of that kind, when everything is unusual, the
fact of his having a hat on of any kind or not having a hat on at all, or covering to
his head, would not be singular, and it seems to me it would not strike a person's
memory at the time.

Gentlemen, I don't know that I have anything more to say to you. I put the
ease as fairly before you as possible. We don't want you to convict this man unless
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e is guilty, unless he is guilty beyond a possible doubt, but I ask you to look at the

ridence fairly and consider it, and consider what you would have done under the

ircumstances, the same circumstances.

My learned friend says that you are not to judge of this man's actions by those

fa white man, that his being there is not to be considered as strong evidence, as

;rong in the case of an Indian as in the case of a white man ; but you must remem-

er that Willoughby stated conclusively that the prisoner knew that these men were

1 rebellion at the lime.

Mr. Robertson.—He says the contrary.

Mr. Scott.—I asked Mr. Willoughby in cross-examination, if at the time he was

own at Norbert Welch's and was speaking with White Cap—whether the state of

ffairs was known to White Cap, the state of affairs in the north, and he said he was.
r

ou must remember that Willoughby 8%id on another occasion when he was trying:

) persuade him not to go up there—he says himself he told him the consequences of

oing up there, what would be done to him, and the prisoner answered to that that

le Government were harboring him here, and giving him a reservation, and that he

id not intend to do anything against them.

JUDGE S CHARGE.

Court.—Gentlemen of the jury: The charge against this prisoner is one of a
imilar nature to the charges that have been tried in this court room against other

>risoners within the last few weeks, and, reducing it to the briefest possible compass',

t is, compassing and being with men who are in a state of rebellion. The positions

rou and I occupy are different. It is my duty to tell you what the law of the land

s, and it is your duty, bearing in mind what I tell you as the Jaw, to distribute the

>vidence and to consider that evidence and say upon that evidence whether a viola-

ion of that law has taken place in the case in point. What may have transpired, or

vhat may have occurred, what wrong I may have done in the opinion of any young
gentlemen has nothing whatever to do with this case. I have in each case that was
3ut before me, according to my oath, without fear, favor or affection for anyone, put

ihe law of the land, as I understand it, to you, and having thus put that law to you^

latisfying myself that you recollect what has been stated in the witness box here by
iie different witnesses, it is for you then, without fear, favor or affection to anyone^

10 matter whether he is black or white, Indian, half-breed or any other color or any
nationality at all, it is your duty there to say whether or not the evidence conclu-

sively establishes guilt or the reverse. If it conclusively to your minds establishes

rnilt, then a conviction should take place. If, on the ether hand, it runs short of

that, you should acquit.

Now, speaking generally of the law, rebellion is wrong, and not only is rebel-

lion wrong, but the presence of anyone in any character aiding and abetting or

encouraging rebellion or the prosecution of the unlawful design must involve a share

)f the common guilt. Now, I have always understood that to be the law of the land

ibr years. I don't claim to be an old man by any means, nor do I claim to be too

>ld any day to learn, to be instructed in law from my juniors, no matter how young
they may be.

Mr. Robertson (interrupting).—Perhaps your Honor would like to know I am
&5. I know it is young, but it is old enough with 11 years' practice at the bar toknow
something, and to do my duty. The crime of being a young man is one I am not

ashamed of.

Court (continuing).—What interruptions I may have, while I have to notice

them, because it stops my addressing you, it won't at all shake me in anything I have

to say to you ; but we know now we are apprised of the fact that, perhaps, I did not

know before.

Mr. Robertson (interrupting).—Which is very important to the case, of course^

Court (continuing).—Now, you have to determine upon the evidence which yon
have heard to-day, whether this man should be convicted or not. You have the

evidence of Mr. Astley. Do you believe him ? If his evidence is unshaken, thei^
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where was this prisoner and what was ho doing during this timo ? In addition to
that, you have the evidence of Tonikins, and what does he say about that ? Is his

evidence shaken ? Then you have additional evidence to that—corroborative evidence
of that—the evidence of the convict Garnot. What does he say ?

Well, convince yourselves first as to the position they leave the case in, and
iiaving got that, then how does the evidence of this Mr. Willoughby strike you?
"The object, I assume, in calling Mr. Willoughby, the object of his evidence would be

to convince you that this man was there by compulsion. Now, are you satisfied

that? Are you satisfied, in the first place, that he was there? And if you are

satisfied that he was there, are you satisfied that he was there by compulsion ? And
by sheer compulsion ?

If that fails, why then I can only tell you, if you are satisfied that he was in the

«amp and doing what they say he was, then, unless you are satisfied that he did what
lie did by compulsion, the verdict should be " guilty." If you are not satisfied that

lie was there, or if there, that he was there by compulsion, then your duty is to

acquit him.
With these remarks, I leave it to you, and you retire now to consider what is

right between man and man, doing unto him as you would be done by if similarly

situated.

The jury retired at 1 p.m., and returned within fifteen minutes with verdict of
" not guilty."

Court, to prisoner, the jury have acquitted you, and you are now a free man
-again.

QUEEN vs. SCOTT.
Canada, )

JNorfch-West Territories,
j

The 15th day of August, 1885, at the town of Eegina, in the North-West Tei

lories. Before Hugh Kichardson, Esquire, one of the stipendiary magistrates of the

^North-West Territories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the

!

[North-West Territories Act, 1880.

Thomas Scott, you stand charged before me as follows :

Canada,
^North-West Territories. J

The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of
j

Hamilton, in the Province of Ontario, io. the Dominion of Canada, chief of police,!

taken the day of August in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred
^nd eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates!

in and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith: —
1st. That Thomas Scott, not regarding the duty of his allegiance but wholly

"withdrawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which every true and faithful I

subject of our said Lady the Queen should and of right ought to bear towards our!

said Lady the Queen, on the twentieth day of March, in the year aforesaid, and on!

divers other days as well before as after that day, together wita divers other evil dis-

1

posed persons to the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, at and near the locality ji

called Batoehe, in the North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, feloniously and}

"wickedly did compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy war again at Her

:

said Majesty the Queen within Canada, in order by force and constraint to compel her;

to change her measures and counsels, and the said felonious compassing, imagination,;

invention, device and intention then feloniously and wickedly did express, utter and
declare by divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say :

—

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect felonious compassing, imagination,

device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Thomas Scott, afterwards, to wit, on the
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lid twentieth day of March, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and

mes as well before as after that date, feloniously and wickedly did conspire, consult,

mfederate, assemble and meet together with divers other evil disposed persons to

ie said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and

ibellion against our said Lady the Queen within this realm ;
and further, to fulfil,

erfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device

nd intention, he, the said Thomas Scott, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty second

ay of March in the year aforesaid, feloniously and wickedly did conspire, consult,.

onfederate and assemble and meet together with divers other evil disposed persons

> the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection

nd rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this realm.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing^

magination, invention, device and intention, he, the said Thomas Scott, afterwards*

> wit, on the twenty-third day of March, in the year aforesaid, at the locality called

be Kidge, in the said North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, feloniously and;

wickedly did express, utter and declare his said felonious compassing, imagination,

uvention, device and intention by there feloniously publishing a certain letter or

writing addressed to certain evil disposed persons to the said Alexander David

tewart unknown, who were then in open rebellion and insurrection against our said

jady the Queen, in thejNorth-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, in the words-

allowing, to wit:

—

" Kidie, 23rd March, 1885.

To the French Council

:

" At a meeting held at the Lindsay school to-night, which was largely attended

Jhe voice of every man was with you, and we have taken steps which, I think, will

lave a tendency to stop bloodshed and hasten a treaty. We will communicate with:

pou inside of forty-eight hours after you get this. Notify us of any steps, if any
g liable to take place.

" Yours respectfully,

"THOMAS SCOTT."

He, the said Thomas Scott, then well-knowing that the said evil disposed persons;

yere then in open rebellion and insurrection against our said Lady the Queen.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing, imagi-

lation, invention, device and intention, he, the said Thomas Scott, on the 23rd day
I March, in the year above mentioned, and on divers other days as well before aa

iter the said last mentioned day, at or near the locality called the Ridge, in the*

tforth-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, wickedly and feloniously did aid, help,,

ibet, comfort, aesi^t and maintain the said evil disposed persons to the said Alex-

inder David Stewart unknown, then being in open rebellion and insurrection against

mr said Lady the Queen within this realm, he, the said Thomas Scott, then well

mowing that the said evil disposed parsons were then in open rebellion and insur-

•ection against our said Lady the Qoeen, in contempt of our said Lady the Queen and
ler laws to the evil example of all other* in like case offending against the statute

n such case made and provided, and against the peace of our said Lady the Queen,,

ler Crown and dignity.

And the said Alexander David Stewart further saith : That the said Thoma®.

Scott not regarding the duty of his allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love,

>bedience, fidelity and allegiance which every true and faithful subject should and of
right ought to bear towards our said Lady the Queen, on the 20th day of March, in

the year last above mentioned and on divers other days as well before as after

that day, together with divers evil disposed persons to the said Alexander David

Stewart unknown, at and near the locality called Batoche, in the North West Ter-

ritories of Canada, aforesaid, feloniously and wickedly did compass, imagine, invent,

devise and intend to levy war against her said Majesty the Queen within Canada, m
order to put force and constraint upon both Houses of Parliament of Canada ;

and the

said felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device and intention then
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feloniously and wickedly did express, titter and declare by divers overt acts and
deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say

:

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing, imagina-
tion, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Thomas Scott, afterwards,
to wit, on the said 20th day of March, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days
and times as well before as after that day, feloniously and wickedly did conspire,
consult, confederate, assemble and meet together with divers other evil disposed
persons to the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to raise, maka and levy
insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this realm ; and
further to fulfil and bring to effect his felonious compassing, imagination, invention,
device and intention, he, the said Thomas Scott, afterwards, to wit, on the 22nd day
of March, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days ae well before as after
that day, at the locality calied the Ridge, in the North-West Territories of Canada
aforesaid, feloniously and wickedly did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and
meet together with divers other evil disposed persons to the said Alexander David
Stewart unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said
Jjady the Queen within this realm.

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing, imagin-
ation, invention, device and intention, he, the said Thomas Scott, afterwards, to wit, on
the twenty-third day of March, in the year aforesaid, and at the locality called the
Hidge, in the said North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, feloniously and wick-
edly did express, utter and declare his said felonious compassing, imagination, inven-
tion and intention by there feloniously publishing a certain letter or writing, addres-
sed to certain evil disposed persons to the said Alexander Stewart unknown, who
were then in open rebellion and insurrection against our said Lady the Queen in the
^North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, in the words following, to wit:

" Ridge, 23rd March, 1885.
" To the French Council.

" At a meeting held at the Lindsay school to-night, which was largely a ttended,
the voice of every man was with you, and we have taken steps which I think will
bave a tendency to stop bloodshed and hasten a treaty. We will communicate with
you inside of forty-eight hours after you get this. Notify us of any steps, if any is

liable to take place.

" Yours respectfully,
" THOMAS SCOTT."

He, the said Thomas Scott, then well knowing that the said evil disposed per-
sons were then in open rebellion and insurrection against our said Lady the Queen.

And, further, to fulfil, perfect andbring to effect his felonious compassing, imag-
ination, invention, device and intention, he, the said Thomas Scott, on the twenty-
tbird day of March, in the year above mentioned, and on divers other days as well
Ibefore as after the said last mentioned day, at or near the locality called the Ridge, in
the North- West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, wickedly and feloniously did aid,
help, abet, comfort, assist and maintain the said evil disposed persons to the said
Alexander David Stewart unknown, then being in open rebellion and insurrection
against our said Lady the Queen within this realm, he, the said Thomas Scott, then
'well knowing that the said evil disposed persons were then in open rebellion and
insurrection against our said Lady the Queen, in contempt of our said Lady the
Queen and her laws, to the evil example of all others in like case offending against
the statute in such case made and provided and against the peace of our said Lady
the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

Sworn before me the day and year first above
")

A. D. STEWART,
mentioned at the town of Regina, in the >

North-"W est Territories of Canada

.

)

Hugh Richardson,
Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North-West Territories of Canada,
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And take notice that you have the option of being tried by a stipendiary magis-

rate and a justice of the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or before a

tipendiary magistrate in a summary way and without a jury, pursuant to the Statutes

if Canada, 4i Victoria, chapter twenty-five, section seventy-six, sub-section five, as

unecded by the Statute of Canada, 48-49 Victoria, chapter fifty-one. Which do you

lect?

Tuesday, 10 a.m., 8th September, 1885.

Before Mr. Justice Eichardson and a justice of the peace.

The Queen vs. Thomas Scott.

Court.—Eeturn the precept, Mr. Sheriff. (Precept returned.)

Messrs. B. B. Osier, Q. C, and D. L. Scott, counsel for Crown.

Messrs. H. J. Clarke, Q. C., and J. Y. Maclise, counsel for prisoner.

Clerk of the court opens court, and charges the prisoner, reading the charge as

contained in the above indictment, and asks the prisoner whether he is guilty or not

guilty ?

Mr. Clarke,—Before pleading to this indictment, your Honors, I object to the

urisdiction of the court, and demur in the usual form. We have labored under more
>r less difficulty, in connection with my learned friend, Mr, Maclise, who is with mo
n this case. We have not been served with a copy of the charge against the pris-

>ner, and it is a leDgthy document. The names of the witnesses, as matter of course,

we have not got. There was no preliminary examination. We know nothing about

ihe charge against the prisoner in fact, or what the means are by which that charge

s to be sustained. The demurrer is as follows

:

The Queen vs. Thomas Soott.

The North-West Territories Act, 1880.

Canada, )

North*West Territories. J

And the said Thomas Scott, in his own proper person, cometh into court here

md after having heard the said information read, saith

:

That Hugh Eichardson, Esquire, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates of

fehe Horth-West Territories of Canada, exercising criminal jurisdiction in open court

with a justice of the peace and a jury of six, under the provisions of the North-West
Territories Act, 1880, ought not to take cognizance of the offences in the said infor-

mation charged and specified, because protesting that he is not guilty of the same,

nevertheless the said Thomas Scott saith that the offences with which he is charged

are punishable with imprisonment for life andhe should be committed for safe custody

and sent for trial to Upper Canada, or to the Province of Manitoba, or to any court

constituted in British Columbia taking cognizance of like offences committed therein,

and because in virtue of the laws in force in the place where the said offences are

charged to have been committed, the said Hugh Eichardson, in open court with a
justice of the peace and a jury of six has no jurisdiction to try the said offences

charged in the said information.

THOMAS SCOTT.

By W. V. Maclise, his attorney.

Mr. Osier.—On behalf of the Crown I reply to that, that the plea and matter

therein contained are not sufficient in law to preclude the court here from their

jurisdiction to hear and determine the offences charged, mentioned and specified in

the above charge, and put the following demurrer to the plea of prisoner as above

:

8th September, 1885.

The Queen vs. Thomas Scott.

And Britton Bath Osier, one of Her Majesty's counsel learned in the law, who,
for our said present Sovereign Lady the Queen in this behalf as to the said plea of
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•him, the said Thomas Scott, by him above pleaded as aforesaid for our said present
Sovereign Lady the Queen, saith

:

That the said plea and the matter therein contained are not sufficient in law to
preclude the court here from their jurisdiction to hear and determine the offences
charged, mentioned and specified in the said charge, and above charged upon him the
said Thomas Scott in and by the said charge.

Wherefore, for want of a oroper and sufficient answer in this behalf, he prayeth
judgment, and that the said Thomas Scott may answer in court here to our said
present Sovereign Lady the Queen, touching and concerning the premises aforesaid.

B. B. OSLEB, of counsel for the Grown.

Court.—Well, Mr. Clarke, there is a demurrer now to your plea of jurisdiction.
Mr. Osier.—Which my learned friend joins in I presume ?

Mr. Clarke.—Yes.
Mr. Osier.—Then you had better file a joinder.

Joinder now filed in the words following :

—

The Queen vs. Thomas Scott.
Canada, )

North-West Territories. }

The North- West Territories Act, 18d0.

And the said Thomas Scott saith that his said plea by him above pleaded, and
the matter therein contained in manner and form as the same are above pleaded and
set forth are sufficient in law to bar and preclude our said Lady the Queen from pro-
secuting the eaid information against him, the said Thomas Scott; and the said
Thomas Scott is ready to verify and prove the same as the said court shall direct and
award ; Wherefore inasmuch as the said Alexander David Stewart for our said Lady
the Queen hath not answered the said plea, nor hitherto in any manner denied the
same, the said Thomas Scott pravs judgment, and that by the court here he may be
dismissed and discharged from the said premises in the said information specified*

Dated this eighth day of September, A. D. 1885.

THOMAS SCOTT,

By W. V. Maclise, his attorney.

Court.—Mr. Clarke, do you wish to adduce any argument different from what I
iiave already heard ?

Mr, Clarke.—I am perfectly aware, your Honors, that this question of jurisdiction
of the court has been argued at very great length in a trial that took place here some-
time ago on a charge of high treason. I am also very well aware that the question
of that objection to the jurisdiction of the court is yet pending before the Court of
Appeal in the Province of Manitoba and that probably we will have a decision on the
matter by this afternoon or to morrow, and under those circumstances, I think, to
say the least of it, it is rather premature to continue these trials when the decision of
the Court of Appeal is within 24 hours of being received by this court. To say the
very least of it, it looks a little strange. If the object is to do justice under and by
virtue of British law, while a British court of justice is deciding whether this court
has jurisdiction or not, and that decision being within 24 hours of being received

—

I think probably it would have looked much better, whether legally or not—it would
have been better to have awaited the decision of that Court of Appeal.

Court.—But the case was fixed for yesterday.
Mr. Clarke.—I am aware it was fixed for yesterday, and yesterday we knew

nothing about when that Court of Appeal was to decide, and yesterday the court will
remember that it was rot the defence that requested the delay. However, that is a
spa atter that does not make any difference.

Now, the learned gentleman who made the objection to the jurisdiction of the
.court, or took the objection before, argued from one particular premises. I don't

64



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A.. 1886

intend lo touch that, because the argument has been made so complete on behalf of
the prisoner then on trial, that I have endeavored as much as possible to strike new
ground and to travel over as little of the old marked line which they took as it is
possible to do.

In the first place, I submit to your Honors that we have to go behind, very far
behind, the time that was mentioned first by those gentlemen who took exception to
the jurisdiction. We have to go to the very first history of this country, to strike at
the jurisdiction of this court. It may look rather strange that we have to travel so
far back, but the jurisdiction begins just exactly when the country comes under
the power and the authority of the Government that gives the jurisdiction. Too
jurisdiction in Canada has been divided for a great mar.y years. It is a jurisdiction
that was divided between the French laws and English laws up until the year 1791;,
and even to the present day the French laws obtain in a very large proportion ot thi^
Dominion of Canada. Now had that Province of Quebec which was first erected
after the conquest, had it continued up to the present day, the same as it did up to
1791, the time of the constitution, we would have had no difficulty whatever to know
what jurisdiction we were acting under, not the slightest. We would have known
particularly well that we were acting under a divided jurisdiction, that when we wanted
one thing, we had to go to France for it, and when we required the other, we had to*
go to London for it, and now we are placed in the position in this country that w^
can go to neither place for it. We have no jurisdiction at all, according to the po<-
session of any laws in the Dominion of Canada. In 1759, the whole of the Frencii
provinces or French possessions in La Nouvelle France or Canada were conquered
at the battle of the Plains of Abraham. That is a point that will not be denied. From
that time until 1763, after the conquest, our country was under a kind of martial
law. In 1763, by the Treaty of Paris, their Majesties of France and England came
to a treaty by which France surrendered, ceded to the crown of England, the whole
of her possessions in North America, and nothing was reserved. Now, 'the ground!
taken by the learned gentlemen who argued this question of jurisdiction before was-
this—this country was obtained by conquest—ergo, the law of the conquerors followed
their arms, and the common law of England became the cooimoa law of the Dom-
inion ofCanada and of the whole of these British possessions in North America^
That is true to a certain extent, but there was a portion of that country that was not
recognized by the conquered as having been conquered by the decision on the Plains
of Abraham in 1759. Had it been so, there would have been no necessity for tk:&
treaty, and the proof that there was not, that the whole country was not conquered^
was not taken possession of, was this that it was only in 1763 that His Majesty <i
France and His Majesty of Great Britain together, in Paris, determined what Wi-s*
ceded to the British Crown by that of Franco. Now, the particular point that I
draw your Lordships' attention to is this in this respect, that almost simultaneously
with that treaty and the decision of that Treaty of Paris in 1763, almost simultane-
ously with that Act, His Majesty of England, George the III, ksued his royal pro-
clamation whereby he declared that all parties colonists in this new country that had
been ceded, not the Province of Quebec, but in the whole country that had been
ceded, that all over that country all sojourners, all strangers, all colonists in thut
country should be protected by the laws of England. That was the proclamation.
Now, what did France claim at that time ? What country did France claim at that;
time ? Did she claim simply from the Gulf of St. Lawrence, on the coast of Labra-
dor, up the St. Lawrence Eiver and to Quebec and Three Kivers and Montreal and'
up the Ottawa? Nothing of the sort. She claimed over two-thirds of the whole
continent of North America. She claimed the right, and commissioners were
appointed in 1750 between the Governments of England and France to settle the ques-
tion of frontier between the two countries, and at that time France claimed the
whole continent from the coast of Labrador to Louisiana. She claimed the right
to erect a chain of fortresses across the whole continent ; in other words, she claimed?
the right to erect fortifications which would shut out thirteen colonies then recog-
nized as being the only portion of America that belonged to England up to that time.
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She claimed the right to the whole of this vast country, she claimed the right to the

Tvhole of the Hudson B-*y territory. She claimed the right up as far as human
imagination can go towards the nortu pole and from tnat down to Louisiana, taking

in the whole of t,ne Mississippi Biver and of the Missouri and Obio. Now what

position did this le*ve this Canada in at the time of the issuing of this proclamation?

It was a declaration by His Majesty of England that until a general assembly of the

colonists of tbe people should ba convened, all colonists and straagers and sojourners

in this land should be protected by British law. That was the proclamation, that

they should be protected by British law. Now, was ever that general assembly

called together? Never up to the present time, it was never called together up to

the present time, and until we have some proof that that proclamation was revoked

in respect to the country that we are now inhabiting and where this offence is said

to have taken place, i submit to your Honors that we have a right to except to- the

jurisdiction of this court, and to be placed in a position that we can defend ourselves

if necessary, before a court of appeal. Now in 1763 when the King of Great Britain

issued that proclamation erecting the Province of Quebec into a colony, it was very

different from the present Province of Quebec, it cohered the whole ofwhat wa3 then

supposed to be outside of the Hudson Bay Compan^s possessions in what composed

the former colonies ot France and a certain form of government was given to that

colony—in other words, there was not an assembly but there was a council, and that

oonncil was composed of certain persons named by the Grown. There was no such

thing as an election. There was no such thing as franchise. They were simply

governed by a secret class, a secret conclave who held their councils with closed

doors. That state of things obtained until at last it became so obnoxious, particularly

to British settlers or colonists, that it became a question whethor the country could

be retained to Great Britain or not unless some change was made. Up to this time,

fourteen years alter that proclamation had issued and when still there had been

nothing done to fulfil or carry out the promise that had been made, the thirteen

colonies became restive on the ot her side, and then it became apparent to Great

Britain that she mast do something, or probably it would be fatal to her interests and

to her power on the continent of America. Then a certain Act was proposed, and

that Act that was proposed was called the Quebec Act, and of all the Acts that blur

and blot the statutes of Great Britain, 1 doubt if there is another that deserves more

strong condemnation than what was called the Quebec Act. That Quebec Act was

carried through, it was not intended for the purpose of encouraging the people of the

oountry, but on the contrary it was a menace to the people of the country, and it was

to tell them in so many words that England did not require or did not expect or did

not want her people to emigrate to Canada, but on the contrary they wanted to pre-

vent emigration in every possible means. Now, this state of things may have looked

in England all right, but to the people of this continent at that time it looked to be

altogether wrong, they petitioned against it, their petitions were treated with

sovereign contempt and indifference. They held public meetings, passed resolutions

and forwarded these resolutions to the home Government. In a great many instances,

they did not even condescend to send an answer.

Court.—What was the year that the Quebec Act was passed ?

Mr. Clarke.-—The Quebec Act was passed in 1774. By that Quebec Act a council

was appointed of not more than twenty-throe, or less than seventeen members. That

was the only means that was taken to carry out the promise that had been made m
the proclamation, of a general assembly. Now, it is wonderful when we look at the

position of things here to day and the position of things at the time that I refer to,

to find how exactly, and as nearly as they possibly can, history repeats itself

between 1174 and 1885. The position the people of Quebec were in about that time

is almost about the position the people in the North-West Territories find themselves

in to-day. The Quebec Act was not satisfied with leaving it an open question, but

they absolutely made it a point that the Habeas Corpus Act should not have power en-

force in the colony of Quebec. The same thing obtains here to-day. Men may be

imprisoned, they may be arrested without warrant, they may be slung into prison
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and kept there for weeks and months. There is no writ of habeas corpus They
cannot find means of compelling the magistrates of the land to admit them to bail
although they may be arrested on the most trivial offences. The same thing
obtained at that time in the Province of Qaebec. The same thing obtained under
the rule of Governor Carleton in Qaebec. Prisons were crowded with prisoners
The dungeons were full of victims, whose shrieks could not be heard, aad whose
lamentations were not answered by any officer of justice in the country for they were
appointed and deposed at the will and pleasure of the council. The same thin*
obtained there as obtains here now. Prisoners are stuck into gaols by the dozen and
almost by the fifties and not told why they were arrested. No charge is preferred
against them, no preliminary examination before a magistrate, and any man the
most respectable man in the country, is liable to be tapped on the shoulder by a
bailiff or a constable and to be slung into gaol without being told why he is put there
or without any charge being preferred against him, and he may lie there for weeks
and for months and still he has no redress, and we are to be told at this day that
that is British justice, and that that is what Her Majesty of Great Britain intended
when she gave a constitution to the Dominion of Canada in 1867.

I don't know, vour lordships, if the intention of the people of England or of the
people of Canada be the same, what the object was of the Attorney-General of Eng-
land at the time when this Act was passed. At that time, when this question was
introduced in the British House of Commons, the then Solicitor-General Widderbun
in reference to that Bill, said, « Now, I confess that the situation of the British set-
tier is not the principal object of my attention. I do not wish to see Canada draw
trom this country any considerable number of her inhabitants. I think there ought
to be no temptation held out to the subjects of England to quit their native soil and
to increase the colonies at the expense of this country. With regard to the Englishwho have settled there, their number is very few. They are attached to the country
either m point of commercial interests or they are attached to it from situations they
hold under the Government. It is no object of this measure that these persons should
settle in Canada." r

x i^T'^A* ^as th™intention of ^e Government of Canada at the time they
established this North-West Council, the bastard off-shoot of the former Legislative
Council of the Province of Quebec, their object could not be better attained, that is,
particularly if they wanted to follow up the design by carrying out here in the
North-West Territory exactly the same line of procedure which was followed by the
British Government and by their officials ;n the Province ol Quebec previous to the
granting ot the constitutional Act in 1791, they could not have proceeded better,
lhey are succeeding admirably from day to day. They are doing everything in their
power to prove that in the North-West Territory of Canada they have simply to
consider themselves back 100 years, and that they are living under the same law that
obtained under the old council in Qaebec from 1794 up to the time of the granting
of the constitution. & &

Now, why is it necessary to revert to these things ? It is necessary, my lords
perhaps not for the people living in this country, because they know exactly what
position they occupy, but it is necessary probably to revert to them more or less so
that the people that are outside of this North-West Territory may know just in what
position their fellow subjects in the North-West Territory a*e living, and by what
species of law they are supposed to be governed or to be kept in order, or their rights
to be protected. It is probably necessary that the people of Canada should begin to
wake up to the fact that there is something more required than a mere trial before
this court in this North-West Territory, to secure the people the rights that they
should have had secured to them by virtue of that proclamation which was issued so
long ago, and which secured the promise of protection to the people of Gro«*t Britain
and all other colonists in this country under British law.

Now, what has that to do with the question of the jurisdiction of this court ? I
have no doubt that that question is forcing itself very forcibly upon the minds of
your lordships, and probably of those who are listening to me, I will tell you just
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what it has to do with it. It has this to do with it. The constitution which was

granted the Province of Quebec or which divided the Province of Quebec into two,

and which made Upper and Lower Canada—that constitution extended the limits of

the Province of Qaebec a very great way west. It extended the limits of the Province)

of Quebec west over what is now one of the most populous and flourishing portions

of the United States of America. It extended the limits of Quebec over a quarter of

a continent to the Ohio and to the Mississippi. It included Old Canada, all over the

present States of Ohio, Michigan, Indiana, Illinois and Wisconsin, and as the great

historian Bancroft, in speaking of this, says, left the people who were to colonize the

most fruitful territory in the woild without the writ of habeas corpus to protect

their rights, the rights of prisoners, and without having a share in any branch of

the Legislature. Now, if history can repeat itself more correctly or more accurately

than it is doing at the present time, I should like to know in what respect. From
that portion of the Dominion of Canada, what is now called the Dominion of Canada,

from that portion of the former Province of Qaebec and the Province of Ontario that

still retain to the Dominion of Canada or remained to it, it was determined that the

boundary line should be, between those two countries, the boundary line of the Hud-

son Bay territory. Now, that is a boundary line that I submit to your Lordships

has never yet been discovered—it is a boundary line that is yet to be found and dis-

covered in future—it is a boundary line that has been claimed by the Hudson Bay-

Company to extend to the head of Lake Superior, and to take in even down to

Prince Arthur's Landing to the height of land. The Hudson Bay Company have=

claimed that. The Hudson Bay Company had to admit on a great many occasions

that they were trying to secure that as a boundary, but they never succeeded in-

securing it. On the contrary, all the best authorities that we have, both the treaties

between France and England, and treaties between England and France and other

countries, from them we have the most undoubted facts that the Hudson Bay terri-

tory never extended to what is known as the fertile belt, to that portion of Canada

that is now known as the North West Territories—that in other words, Rupert's-

Land, that portion of the shores surrounding Hudson Bay and Davis' Straits that

were presented in a charter by Charles the II to his coasin Prince Rupert, and that

charter afterwards transferred by Charles the II to a Company of Adventurers of

England trading into the Hudson Bay or Hudson Bay Company. It never extended

into what is called the fertile belt, or in other words, that it was contemplated and

intended only to cover that portion of the pontin ent that was unfit for human habi-

tation and only fit as the home and the abode of wild animals, whose furs were being:

Bought by this Hudson Bay Company.
Your lordships will remember that a great deal of discussion took place on tni&

question of the territorial rights and jurisdiction of the Hudson Bay Company pre-

vious to what is called the Confederation of the Dominion of Canada. Now, amoi g
those discussions that were held, none is more full or complete in this respect thai*

the report of the delegates appointed to negotiate for the acquisition of Rupert's Land

and the North-West Territory, laid before the Parliament by command of His Excel-

lency the Governor General and, therefore, a public paper of which courts of justice

can take cognizance. It was published at Ottawa in 1869. The delegates on that

occasion were the late Sir Geo. Cartier, than whom perhaps there was not a greater

constitutional lawyer in the Dominion ofCanada in his day, thoroughly conversant

with the French constitutional history of the country and also with the constitutional

history of the country under the British Dominion; with him was associated the

Hon. William Macdougall, who went there along with him as a delegate by virtue of

an Order in Council passed the day before they started, tnat is to say on the Htht.

October, 1868. The Order in Council appointing the delegates was made m 186S

but the report was made in 1869.

Now, my lords, what do we find. When these delegates went to Lngland they

discovered that the Hudson Bay Company had been insidiously attempting by get-

ting an Act passed by the Imperial Parliament, had been insidiously trying to estab-

lish a right to this great count!y which they never possessed. It is on the statute

68



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 1885

book, and it forms a portion of this report. This Act was passed on the 31st day of

-July, 1868. It is called an Act for enabling Her Majesty to accept a surrender on
terms of the lands, privileges and rights of the trading Company of Adventurers of
England trading into the Hudson Bay, and for admitting the same into the Dominion
of Canada. It may be styled as the -Rupert's Land Act, 1868. Now, the discussion

between Sir Geo. Gartier and Mr. Macdougall and the members of the British Gov-
ernment, and the representatives of the Hudson Bay Company were most exhaustive.

They continued for a very great length of time, when unfortunately Mr. Macdougall
was taken down with small pox, and consequently the whole brunt of the battle

Tested on the shoulders of his colleague, Sir Geo. Cartier. Now, what was their posi-

tion there ? They say, and this is their report to the Parliament of Canada. " The
charier of Charles II (and at present we raise no objection to its validity) could

not and did not grant to the Hudson Bay Company any territory in America which
was n<^t then (1670) subject to the law of England. That is their first proposition.

2nd. The charter expressly excluded all the lands then possessed by the subjects of
any other Christian Prince or State. 3rd. By the treaty of 1632 the King of Eng-
land resigned to the King of France the sovereignty of Arcadia, New France and
Canada generally, and without limits. 4th. Nouvelle France was then understood to

include the whole region on Hudson Bay as the records and history of the time,

English and French, abundantly prove. At the Treaty of Eyswick in 1697, twenty-
seven years after the date of the charter, the rights of the French to places situate in

Hudson Bay were distinctly admitted, and although commissioners were appointed,

but never came to an agreement to examine and determine the pretensions which
either of the said kings had to places situate i a the Hudson Bay, to which I have
referred already, and with authority for extending the limits of France and lands to

be restored on either side, and the places taken by the English that is, from the

Hudson Bay Company by the French, previous to the war and re-taken by the Eng-
lish during the years of war, shall be left to the French by virtue of the foregoing 7th

article, in other words, the forts and factories of the Hudson Bay Company, established

in Hudson Bay, under the pretence of their charter and taken possession of by the
French in time of peace, on the ground that they were an invasion of French territory

were restored by the Treaty of Kyswick to the French, and not to the company."

So that that portion, even Hudson Bay, where this fort was established and
built at Fort Churchill was declared by Great Britain to belong to France and was
restored to France by this treaty and not restored to the Hudson Bay Company by
either parties.

By the Treaty of Utrecht in 1714 the bay and straits of the Hudson, together

with all lands, seas, rivers situate in the bay and straits subject thereto, were finally

eeded to Great Britain.

Now, as no definite boundary was ever established between the possessions of
the French in the interior and the English at Hudson Bay down to the Treaty of
Paris in 1763, when the whole of Canada was ceded to Great Britain the
extent of the actual possessions of the two nations is not known, and from the Treaty
of Utrecht to the Treaty of Paris affords the only true basis of ascertaining the
boundary.

Now, my lords, under these statements, under these proofs that are given, not

here and not in England, but before the House of Commons of the Dominion of Can-
ada, I claim that up to the present time it has not been determined what were the boun-
daries of the Dominion of Canada, and what the boundaries of the Hudson Bay Com-
pany up to the present time; in other words, that proclamation of His Majesty
feeorge III, issued in 1763, is in full force in this North-West Territory, in this

portion of Her Majesty's dominions, as much to-day as it was the day on which the
proclamation was issued, and under those circumstances, that the Dominion of Canada
had no right to make any such extraordinary provisions as are contained and made
for the trial and condemnation of people charged with offences in this North-West
Territory ; but, I may be asked what has this Province of Manitoba to do with your
demurrer ? What has it to do with your objection to the jurisdiction of this court,
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and why appeal to it? Well, my lords, there is something peculiar about that.
I noticed in the argument on the jurisdiction before that a reference was -made to
Manitoba having a court established by the Dominion of Canada which is known as
the Court of Queen's Bench. Now I beg leave to state that that Court of Queen's
Bench in Manitoba is simply the general quarterly court that was established under
the Hudson Bay charter continued under another form and under another name, and
that by virtue of the laws which obtain in what was callad the North-West Territory
or Eupert's Land, ifyou will, up to that time that right of habeas corpus existed, and the
whole body of the English criminal law was in force, full iorce and effect in that
portion of this territory up to the time of its being transferred to the Dominion of
Canada, and by virtue cf the old laws, the laws of the Governor in Council of Assiniboia
of 11th April, 18&2, we find what the laws are that were in force in the country at
Ihat time.

Court.—The title of that court was the Quarterly Court of Assiniboia, wasn't it?
Mr. Clarke.—The General Quarterly Court of Assiniboia. J^J
Now, we find in the Administration of Justice Act, passed by the Governor in

Council of Assiniboia an amendment to their Administration of Justice Act on the 7th
Jan., 1864, to remove all doubts as to the true construction of the 53rd clause or article

of the code of the 11th April, 1862. The proceedings of the general courtshall be regu-
lated by the laws of England, not only of the date of her present Majesty's accession,
so far as that may be applicable to the condition of the colony, but also by all such
laws of England of subsequent date as may be applicable to the same—in other words,
the proceedings of the general court shall be regulated by the existing laws of
England for the time being in force, and as the same are known to the court or
are applicable to the colony. Now that was the state of the laws and the laws that
governed the geneial quaiterly court as it was found by the Dominion of Canada,
but they changed the name of that quarterly court, General Quarterly Court, by
their Act of Parliament, and continued it to the present day under the name of the
Court of Queen's Bench.

Now, it will be remembered by your lordships that in the North-West Terii*
tories Act, or rather the Act establishing the North-West Territories Mounted Police,
certain powers are given and certain magistrates were appointed in the North-West
Territory, but care was taken by the Legislature of the Dominion to make a proviso
that any person charged in the North-West Teriitories with the commission of any
crime the penalty on conviction for which would be in the penitentiary, such person
had a right to be tried before a judge of the Court of Queen's Bench of the Province
of Manitoba.

Court.—That was in 1873 ?

Mr. Clarke.—In 1873. Now, my Lords, why was that done ? I apprehend it was
done because the legislatures of thai day remembering right well that the boundary
had never been determined of what was the old Province of Quebec, and what was in
reality that portion cf the continent that belonged by right to the Hudson Bay Com-
pany, that they had not yet taken it upon themselves to declare that the law of
England which was put in force by His Majesty's proclamation in 1763 could be set
aside, without replacing it at least, by as complete a cede as that which was given
to the people then, and for that reason they made this provision, that any person
who was to be tried or convicted for an offence of a grave nature, should have the
right to go before a judge of the Court of Queen's Bench in the Province of Manitoba,
and be tried before the judge of a superior court, of a court of record before a jury o
twelve, where a preliminary examination would be had, and where the witnesses
against him would be known, their names on the back of the indictment, and where
he would have all those facilities and all those protections that are given to and thrown
around every British subject when he stands belore the courts of his country charged
with any ofience; but at a later day it appears that the Dominion of Canada began
to think that this North-West Territory was simply a kind of preserve which wss to
furnish all kinds of returns and supplies to them through customs duties and every-
thing of that sort and which was to furnish the means to construct one of the most
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extensive railway systems in the world and which was to be used for these purposes

no matter what became of the people who inhabited it. They would simply give

them that kind of a court which might be established by any little municipality almost

throughout the Dominion of Canada, by any city or town that holds a charter and can

establish a police court. That was the Land Act of 1880, by virtue of which this

court is now sitting.

Court.- You pass from 18*73 till 1880.

Mr. Clarke.—I don't think in my argument it is necessary to refer particularly

to the amendments to the Act; fcut I was about to say that it must be perfectly

understood, and nobody understands that better than your lordships, that in mak-

ing the remarks I am, the remarks are not intended to apply to your lordships or

to this court in particular. On the contrary, I have simply this to say, that the peo-

ple of the North-West Territory as far as I know of the learned judge who presides

in this court, so far as the law gives him the power, will have their rights protected

by him in a legal and constitutional manner, as an honest and conscientious judge

would. That being understood, any remarks that I will make must not betaken at all

to apply to your lordships or to this court. It is the system that T object to, and not

to the presiding judge. Now, under the present circumstances what position do wo
find ourselves in ? We find that the Dominion of Canada which succeeded in wrest-

ing this country from the grasp, to a great extent, of the Hudson Bay Company by
showing to Great Britain and showing to the company that they actually had no

jurisdiction in the country, that that same government now wiil take advantage of

the arguments that were used against them on a former occasion and try and mako
it appear that they have jurisdiction because they obtained that jurisdiction from a
company which company never possessed any such jurisdiction themselves. That i&

the argument, that is just the argument that we meet at every step that we take, in

©very appeal against the jurisdiction of the North-West Territories, and then I sub-

mit to your lordships that if the proclamation of His Majesty of 1^763, if that

proclamation has not been revoked in reference to that portion of the continent of

America that belonged to France, and was ceded to Great Britain at that time by the

Treaty of Paris, that at the present time this court is illegally constituted, and that

instead of the prisoner at the bar being tried by any law that is supposed to be made
l>y the Dominion of Canada, that prisoner has a right to be tried under the laws of

€rreat Britain, and in the manner set forth by the British Statutes which were referred

to by learned gentlemen who contested the jurisdiction of the court before, that is,

those three Imperial Statutes that were made for the purpose of furnishing some
means by which, at least to a certain extent, the pledged promise of the British

Crown could be carried out in some manner. When that promise was made in 1763,

from that fact and from that moment, the people of this country bad a right to expect

to be protected by the laws of Great Britain ; up to the time, 18u3, nothing of that

sort had been done, It became necessary to provide seme means by which offences

of a very serious or capital nature should be tried, and before what court. Acting

under the conviction that this portion of the continent of America had been pro-

tected up to that time or supposed to be protected by that proclamation of His

Majesty, the British Parliament passed an Act by which they declared that certain

magistrates in the North-West Territory, that is, in Bupert's Land and the North-

West Territory, that they should have certain powers, that certain commissioners

should be appointed, and by another Act passed, if I remember aright, in 1821, and

another in 1839 or thereabouts, these three Acts together give power to send, or

rather it is incumbent to send parties who were to be tried for grave offences either

to the Province of Ontario, the Province of Quebec or to British Columbia, where

they could be tried before courts of record and with the assistance of a jury\ They
are the same Acts that were referred to before. It was under that provision that

the gentlemen who objected to the jurisdiction before, claimed the right to have their

prisoner sent to one of those provinces for trial. Now, if there was not a particular

object in view, if the Government of Great Britain did not feel that it was incumbent

upon them to supply some means, some jurisdiction by which these people could
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enjoy the privileges and the protection of the laws of England, these Acts would nob
liave been passed ; they were passed for that purpose, when the population of this
country was so sparse, and so very small and the community so very isolated that
such a long time after, nearly an age after, we have a police court or magistrates*
court alone established in the North-West Territory, the only protection to the peo-
ple of the country. I say that no matter what the decision of the court may be in
that respect, no matter what the decision of the Court of Appeal in Manitoba may be
in this respect, I have no hesitation in saying that a more glaring injustice was never
done in a British country, to a British people before in the whole history of the British
nation. I take that stand without fear of contradiction, and the example of India i»
no more to be compared to the example of Canada than the example of Hindostan is
to be compared to Kame-katka ; as the simple fact of the matter is this, in India the
power there for years, for a whole century and over, belonged to a company, belonged
to a chartered body, belonged to one of those institutions that a great lawyer declared
had no body to be kicked and no soul to be damned ; it belonged to a company which
'was irresponsible to all intents and purposes, a company that carried on their tres-
passes under the mask and pretence of law until it culminated in that terrible exhibi-
tion that was made on the trial of Warren Hastings before the British Parliament,
^nd which gave to the world such a peouliar tyranny as the world has never seen
equalled from that day to this, and as the world had never seen before, and when it
culminated afterwards in the terrible scenes that were seen about Lucknow when
the British men and women were butchered by those who had been tyrannised over
for 200 years bv those who claimed the right to tyrannize over them by law—when
that is brought forward as an argument, that in India men could be sentenced to
death and executed without even the intervention of a jury at all, is that a reason
why that in the latter part of the 19th century, here in a laud of civilization, in aland
•where the British flag is as prominent almost as it is when it waves above the dome
of St. Paul's, that we are to be told that it should be set aside, that British subjects
are to be tried without the intervention of a jury, and that they are to be cast into
prison without having our habeas corpus to bring them before the judge of a Superior
Court to determine whether they deserve to be cast into prison and kept there as
malefactors, or whether they should go abroad as free men, under the protection of
the British law and the British flag ? To say the least of it, it is a mighty poor argu-
ment, and one that will not hold water before any civilized court that can be con-
vened in this or any other country.

After drawing your lordships' attention to that particular point which was not
raised on the last question of the jurisdiction of the court, I don't intend to detain
the court or to further take the time of the court or the jury any longer than I pos-
sibly can help. What the decision will be to-morrow I, as a matter of course, cannot
know, nor can your lordships till to-morrow shall have come. I submit th*t under
the circumstances, having raised this point of the jurisdiction, and that question of
jurisdiction being so near being settled, that if it could be made in any way conve-
nient, it may be well for your lordships in taking a view of this point that has been
raised to await the decision of the Court of Appeal before proceeding any further in
these trials. If the decision should be adverse, it would leave us in a very awkward
position. If the decision maintains the jurisdiction of the court, then, as a matter of
course, we know that all that can be done is to take that decision to another and to
a, higher court which will decide finally for all time what thejurisdiction of the courts
of this country are to be. I submit to your lordships that the prisoner at the bar is
charged with a very serious offence. At the same time we have not the slightest pos-
sible fear that there is any proof whatever to connect the prisoner with any disloyal
-act in this or any other country. It is our bounden duty at the same time to throw
around him every protection that we can in point of law possibly give him in antioi-
£ation of any accident that might possibly occur ; but as it is a trial before a jury we
aye no doubt as to what the result will be. We have no doubt either that your lord-

ships will probably give a very cursory consideration to this argument as to your
jurisdiction or objection to the jurisdiction, and that you will be prepared to await tha
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decision in the former question that was raised in that respect before the co un at

Manitoba. We are prepared to go to trial, but if it would meet your lordships wishes

and approbation, we should certainly,—now that this question of jurisdiction shall

have had the opportunity of being decided in the Court of Appeal to-day or to-morrow

when the decision will be rendered, that we might know exactly what ground we

stand upon and whether it will become necessary to carry this question any further

or not—we should like the case to stand.

Court.—Let me understand you clearly, Mn Clarke, did I understand you to say

that this is France ?

Mr. Clarke.—No.
f , _ ,A .

Court.—Then when did it cease to be France and become clearly Britain or

Brilieh? . -J,
.

Mr. Clarke.—In IS 63, by virtue of the Treaty of Pans.

Court.—Then your contention is that from that date, at least you don't contend

that from that date France had anything to do with this country ?

Mr. Clarfce.—France has nothing to do with this portion of the country. Immed-

iately after the Treaty of Paris the proclamation of George III was issued, pro-

claiming that all residents and colonists in this country should be protected by British

law, and I hold that that proclamation is in full force in this country to-day, never

having been revoked.

Mr. Osier.—I only desire to say a word to your lordships. ...
Court.—Before you do answer the argument, Mr. Osier, as this question of juris-

diction is already before the Court of Appeal, and we are to have the decision so

Boon, would it not be

Mr. Osier.—No, your Honors, I think not. I just have a few words to say as to

that. I desire to say, as to the complaint that no charge has been delivered nor any

list of witnesses, that we are not prosecuting the prisoner for treason, and he is not

entitled to them. If he wanted a copy of the charge ho has a statute which entitles

him to demand a copy and get a copy. If my learned friends had asked us for a

copy they would have had a copy without fee or charge. The prisoner was charged

some weeks ago. The charge was read over to him. They knew what that charge

was. It is set out in all its counts, and they have had all the opportunity they

required to prepare for the trial. As far as the list of witnesses is concerned, it is

only this morning that the witnesses came in from Prince Albert, and we were not

in a position to give it to them, nor were they entitled to it. If, your Lordships, the

Crown had any doubt upon the jurisdiction of this court or felt any hesitation as to

what the judgment of the Court of Queen's Bench in Manitoba would be, the request

of the defence for an adjournment till that decision was arrived at would be reason-

able, but, inasmuch as that question of jurisdiction has already been decided by the

Connors case, inasmuch as the memorandum in appeal in that case was submitted to

the Privy Council, and their Lordships in the Privy Council said that there wai no

prima facie case made out for appeal, and inasmuch as this court itself has clearly

affirmed its decision following the Court of Queen's Bench in the Connors case, I

think it would be trifling with the administration of justice at the present time to

adjourn the trial and incur a large amount of expense to await the result of an appeal

which is looked upon by the parties taking it as a forlorn hope.

Now, the interesting historical lecture which my learned friend has delivered to

the court hardly calls for reply in the way of substantial argument, for, while my
learned friend has exhibited a great deal of learning and research, and has given us

a very interesting lecture upon the early history of the country, he has failed to

grapple with or in any way set aside the Imperial and Dominion legislation upon

which the basis of this court rests. He has failed to do away with the provision in

the Rupert's Land Act which gives power to the Dominion Government to establish

courts for the peace, order and good government of these territories—these terri-

tories, whether part of the Hudson Bay territory or originally part of the ceded

territory originally belonging to Franoe, no matter where the original title rested,

the Rupert's Land Act covers all; that gives the Dominion full power to legislate.
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My learned friend would seek to address to the court an argument that a proclamation
"by George III, of 1763, supervenes and does away with the effect of all subsequent
legislation. My learned friend forgets, too, the British North America Act, 1871,
vesting the government of these territories in the Dominion of Canada, the second
British North America Act giving them full power to legislate. There, then, are
the two Imperial Acts, Acts of the supreme power of the empire, vesting the govern-
ment of the territories in the Dominion Parliament of Canada; and then we have the
Dominion Act of 1880 under wbich your Honors are sitting. My learned friend has
not attempted to set aside this legislation. If that legislation does not exist, if my
learned friend's say-so is to be taken to set aside these Imperial and Dominion Acts,
if we are to take my learned friend's statement that this was originally no part of
the Hudson Bay territory, but part of New France, then my learned friend lands
iimself under the provisions of 22 and 23 Victoria. Under 1 and 2 George IV,.
courts of record, that is to say, magistrates are to be appointed to sit and held juris-
diction over these tc rritories. When by 22 and 23 Victoria a further provision is

made for the trial in British Columbia, the Act goes on to provide that when those
magistrates' courts are instituted in the territories, no longer shall criminals be trans-
mitted to Upper Canada or British Columbia, but that Act does not apply to the ter-
ritories of Hudson Bsy ; so that if ihese territories, where this crime was committed,
are not the Hudson Bay, then we have 1 and 2 George IV providing for a court
similar and identical wi'.h the court in which your Honors now preside, and the right
to transmit criminals by 22 and 23 Victoria is taken away where those courts are
established. Now, of course, that is a mere aigument in answer to the statement of
my learned friend, but I don't at all admit his premises. I don't at all admit that
that Act is applicable, because as matter of history, as matter of fact, the territories
In which these crimes were committed were territories recognized as being in the
possesion of the Hudson Eay by the Imperial Order in Council following the Rupert's
liand Act—the Order in Council to be found bound up in the Canadian Statutes 1872*

For this reason, aid because your Honors' court is on so simple and so strong a
foundation, I decline to follow my learned friend, in fact I dannot follow in answer to
an argument what can only be treated as an historical lecture.

1 only desire to say this further in answer to my learned friend's declamation as
to the great injustice the people of the North-West Territories are suffering under,
that the people themselves do not seem to appreciate it, and my learned friend forgets
altogether that in a newly-organized country, a country just, as it were, taken posses-
sion of by the English speaking race, that he cannot cany with him all the con-
vergences of county organization or all the methods of civilized methods of adminis-
tration of justice, which in the older countries and the older provinces the people, as
©fright, possess. Here, we have to administer justice in some way to meet the wants
of the ecuntiy, "What does my learned friend want ? Does he want to create a por-
tion of this country into a provincial government ? The people have not asked it.

The burden of the administration of justice is now met by the Dominion, the whole
.Dominion— the burden of expending all the money that is required. The moment
provincial organization takes place, which necessarily takes place as soon as ihe
population justifies such a change, that moment a burden, a large burden is on the
people themselves.

Court.— It is shifted from the whole Dominion.
Mr. Osier.— Shifted from the whole Dominion on to the people. The people

then organize- their own courts, select their own juries, and adapt their own system
commensurate with the wants and the means of the ccuntry ; but as long as we have
an ( rganizaticn, £0 to speak, going on, as long as there are sparse settlers here and
there, the only method of administration ofjustice is tie method which 1 submit has
l)een adopted, ard from that method the only complaint I have ever heaid is the one
from my lean <d fiici d this morning.

Mr. Clarke.—You must never have read the decisions in Parliament then.
Mr. Osier.— Tie method of administration of justice has been charged from time

'lo time, first going for serious matters for trial in Manitoba. Various changes have
U
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ken place which are changes approved of by a body of people, by their represente-

es in Parliament, who are used to receiving and giving the benefits of free insti-

itions.

I don't know what my learned friend's object is in making so declamatory a
ieech in arguing a matter of jurisdiction which should be a mere point in law, but

jrhaps I should not criticise- the taste of my learned friend in that behalf.

I can only sdy that we desire now to proceed with the trial, and ask your Honors*

dgment that there is jurisdiction to hear this case.

Mr. Clarke.—I would again refer your lordships to this fact, that this question
' jurisdiction is to be decided by a superior court this day, and that decision is to be*

•oelaimed to morrow. I think my learned friend is exhibiting this morning an

amense desire to push things. He has had two adjournments, and we did not object

» them. Our witnesses have been here, the greater number of them, for two or

iree weeks, -and the Crown had more facilities for getting witnesses here than we
id, and I don't think it is asking anything extraordinary or anything out of the

ay to ask your lordships to adjourn this case until to-morrow morning, particularly

hen it was adjourned yesterday to meet the convenience of the Crown, and atter it

as fixed before for the very requirement they wanted, they fixed the trial for the

h of the month, so that they might attend the Court of Appeal at Winnipeg and

ave the decision of that court.

Court,—I don't think you are correct there.

Mr. Osier.—No, not at all. Let my learned friend not misunderstand me. If

iy learned friend here gets up and says that as matter of fact he is not ready to pro-

sed with his defence, then let him apply on that ground. If my learned friend ia

aly asking for delay until he gets the judgment of the Court of Queen's Bench at

[anitoba, then I am entirely opposed to it.

Mr. Clarke.— I think that my first request should be sufficient, and I submit

lost respectfully it should be granted with reference to this decision of the court*

toes my learned friend want me to go down on my knees and say I am not ready"

nd beg the Crown to wait for a few hours ?

Court—No, you simply have to say to the court whether you are ready or not..

Mr. Clarke.—My application is made to the court. This is the first time I have

een present when the jury has been called here. In courts where I am in the habit

t addressing, the calling of the juiy takes a very long time— all that kind of thing,

nd it generally takes more than half a day, and I did rot anticipate we would have

ot through so rapidly as we have. Under the circumstances, I am at liberty tos^r,

rithcut at the same time making it a ground for a request or to ask any consider^

tion from the Crown—I ask it from the court—there is one of our witnesses a mini-

ter of the Gospel, a material witress who was told that he probably would not be

equired to-day, simply because we supposed the whole day would be taken up. That
entleman is not here, ar d we have every reason to know he will be here tc-morrow»

Jow, if it requires some other ground than the first which I asked of your lordships,

would certainly gay that is a sufficient ground.

Court.—You first raised the question of jurisdiction, and I am called upon to

ieteimine upon that plea; that is the first thing. Now, then, it is suggested that

he only reason of your asking for delay is that you are not ready in the interests of

four client. I understand you really to say that is so.

Mr. Clarke.—I take it you put that to me as a direct question, and 1 will state

he fact. I am infoimed by my learned friend, Mr. Macliee, who is in the case witb

ae, and who has in fact been looking up everything in connection with the case, that

le was told by one of the learned counsel that he would not be ready till Wednesday.

Mr. Osjer.—That is not so, as far as I am concerned.

Mr. Maclise.—I was told on Friday last by Mr. Scott that until the 9th the Crowa
yould not be ready to proceed. One of our witnesses who was here on that day ob>

hat account went down and won't be back till to-night.

Mr. Osier.—I don't desire to mix up two applications. Let us dispose of th©

nrisdiction question and then if my learned friend has any motion to make, they will

ind it met in a proper spirit*

T5
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Court.—As to the jurisdiction question first pressed upon me I do not differ from
the ground I have already taken. The country was admittedly, by Mr. Clar&e,

British soil in 1763, and being British soil, those Acts 21 and 22 Victoria and 1 and
8 George IV were passed, but the subsequent legislation I have already held, that is

the Act of 1871, the amended British North America Act, rendered obsolete. I have
lield in point of law both those Acts, and gave full jurisdiction to the Parliament of

Cfanada who have sent me here and given me the powers which I must not say they
iiad no right to give. I am not convinced of that, and until I am convinced, I think

-my only course is to hold that I have jurisdiction, but it is simply based upon the Act
of 1871.

1 sustain the demurrer to the prisoner's plea to the jurisdiction and give judg-

ement for the Crown.
Mr. Maclise.—Your Honor will note the proceedings.

Mr. Osier.—The shorthand writer takes down everything. Then I ask that the

^prisoner plead.

Clerk.—Prisoner, are you guilty or not guilty of the charges preferred against

^you to-day?
Prisoner pleads " not guilty."

Clerk.—Are you ready for your trial ?

Mr. Clarke.—We ask your lordships that this trial be fixed for to-morrow.

Mr. Osier.—I am not here to oppose any reasonable delay, but I would suggest

to my learned friend that the Crown case will last for some time, the jury are here,

and, of course, their client must remain in custody now, having surrendered, and I

-would suggest to them that the proper course would be to proceed with the trial as

iar as we can go. If my learned friends Want a delay, for a witness, then I am will-

ing to accede to it when the time comes. 1 think it would be a pity because there is

-one witness absent that so many witnesses here from a distance and a jury at a veryi

-considerable inconvenience kept here, as we have, of course, to keep the whole panel
j

&ere, whereas, after six are selected, there are only six men inconvenienced by the

delay—it would be a pity I say, and I would suggest to my learned friends that the

-Orown case had better go on, and that if at three or four, or at any other time, they

ifind that they are short of a witness, then I am prepared to meet them in any reason-
}

able spirit.

Mr. Clarke.—I can hardly see how that is going to aid the jury. I don't see
j

that it is any particular advantage to six gentlemen to be locked up all night, because
j

one witness happens to be absent—I don't think it would be prudent to begin this

trial unless we are prepared to go right through with it, and we have asked no delay

heretofore.
Court.—I understand you to say Mr. Clarke that you are not ready, that the

-prisoner is not leady for his trial.

Mr. Clarke.—Not until to-morrow morning.
Mr. Osier.—If my learned friend says that as counsel for prisoner, I cannot press

for the Crown.
Court.—I understand him to say so distinctly.

Mr. Osier.—I merely make thesuggestion to my learned friend as a matter of con-

venience, that we should go on as far as we can, instead of keeping a panel of twenty

or thirty gentlemen here. It would be a less inconvenience keeping six, but it is

the case of a man charged with a serious crime, and 1 am not going to press it on,

counsel saying he is not ready.

Mr. Scott.—I must contradict that statement of Mr. Maclise as to my having

told him the Crown would not be ready till Wednesday morning. I deny most

emphatically that I ever told him anything of the kind.

Court.—I don't propose to adjudicate between you two gentlemen as to the corect-

aiess of the statement ; but when counsel for the prisoner says positively that he is

not ready to go on to-day, and it is a serious charge, it is not unreasonable that it should

$>e adjourned till to-morrow. I should have been glad to have gone on, I should have

hoQn glad to see the counsel act upon the suggestion of the counsel for Crown.
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Cowever, the prisoner has rights and those rights must be reasonably respected. If,,

[r. Clarke, you saw your way clearly and positively that your witness would be here*

Mnorrow morning, wouldn't it even then be better to go on now ?

Mr. Clarke.—I sometimes place a little confidence in the word of ministers of

le gospel, and I think he will be here.

Court.—If you are confident of his being here, so confident that you can rely

pon him, why not go on ?

Mr. Clarke. I am not confident. I cannot be confident. I have stated the

sact position

.

Court.—But you will be ready under any circumstances, to-morrow morning. I
ill consider myself obliged to go on to-morrow morning.

Court here adjourned till 9 a.m. to-morrow, and the prisoner is remanded to

nstody.

Mr. Clarke asks that the prisoner be allowed to stand on his bail.

Mr. Oler.—I told my learned friend before he asked for the adjournment what
be consequences would be to his client. I think he is surrendered.

Mr. Clarke.—Does my learned friend state it as the position of the law and

ractice in the superior courts of Canada that a man on trial who has given bail is-

ot allowed to stand out from day to day until duly discharged ?

Mr. Osier. —Yes, I give it as the ordinary and usual practice of the court. The
loment a man surrenders to the sheriff, his bail have done their duty and their bail-

ond is discharged. If he is called in court here and application to postpone is made
efore he is surrendered, then of course the bail holds from day to day, because there

as been no surrender, but the moment the man comes back, the bail sureties are*

iscbarged.
Mr. Clarke.—Then I ask^that he be admitted to bail on a new recognizance until

D-morrow.
Court.—Let the bail be continued as before.

Mr. Osier.—The court has now adjourned and the application is too late.

Court.—The only difficulty is there is no court now, and it is a special court.

Mr. Clarke.—The court, it is true, is adjourned for trial of the case till to-morrow
aorning, and the jury have been ordered to come again at that time.

Court.—If you can show me that under parallel circumstances a superior Jcourfc;

adge of one of the provinces would admit to bail, I think I have power under the*

•©cent Act, by which my powers have been somewhat extended.

Mr Clarke.— Very considerably extended, I should say. I submit that matter*

o your lordship, and hold that your lordship can admit to bail without there being a,

jourt.

Subsequently arranged that the prisoner be simply under the surveillance of the>

theriff till to-morrow.
Wednesday, 9 a.m., 9th September, 1885*

Court opened. Jury called.

Clerk.—Thomas Seott, these good men that you shall now hear are those that
ire to pass between our Sovereign Lady and you, if therefore you will challenge
hem or any of them you must challenge them as they oome to the book to be sworn
ind before they are sworn, and you shall be heard.

The following jury was then sworn : 1st, Joseph Antoinette j 2nd, Eobert Kob-
son; 3rd, James Williamson; 4th, David H. Gillespie; 5th, J. P. Laidlaw ; 6th,

.

Sector Eoss.

Clerk. - Gentlemen of thejury : The prisoner at the bar stands charged as follows

:

Thomas Suott, not regarding, &c. (clerk reading the charge as contained in the
indictment given above). Upon this charge the prisoner at the bar has beea
arraigned, and upon his arraignment has pleaded not guilty, your duty therefore m
to hearken to the evidence, enquiring whether he be guilty or not guilty.

Mr. Osier.—May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury : The prisoner,

Thomas Scott, who resides in the neighborhood of Prince Albert near the Saskatche-
wan Elver and who has resided there some seven years, is charged in various counte

n
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with the crime of treason-felony, a crime akin to the crime of treason. Treason
may be proved by the same acts as treason-felony, and treason-ielony can be proved
by the same acts as treason, but the method of trial is somewhat different, and the
result is different. Treason is always, as you know, a capital offence, a conviction for
treason-felony is not followed by capital execution, but is followed by imprisonment
for a term which may be for life or for such lesser period as the court sentencing
may think fit. It is one of the most serious crimes known to the law, it is a crime
against society, and against the Government, and the provisions for punishment of
treason-felony are provisions for the safety of the community—to keep the com-
munity at peace, to prevent insurrection and civil war and to compel unruly spirits
to curb their desires for any change in the methods of government other than
constitutional and proper methods of producing chu-nge. The case against the
prisoner is one, as you know well, arising oat of the recent trouble and rebellion in
the northern part of these territories. There have been other trials of Indians and
French half-breeds, and the prisoner is English or of English descent, English, Irish
or Scotch descent, I don't know which, he is the only one of his nationality I believe
who is charged as being concerned with the rebellion, and it has been thought right
that there should be no distinction in nationalities in these state prosecutions, bat
that each nationality, no matter what may be the circumstances surrounding them, if

they are shown to have particioatedin any way in the rebellion should be treated the
same, and the prosecution should be fairly conducted against all, and no one national-
ity should be selected as a chief cause of the troubles, but wherever there is crime,
wherever there are rebellious acts calling for punishment, it is but right as you will
see that all the nationalities composing the community should be treated alike, and
where you find a man who has been brought up with better opportunities of knowing
the consequences of such crime, a man who ought to know better and who offends,
so to speak, against light and knowledge—if crime is brought home to them, a larger j

measure oi responsibility rests with them.
Now, gentlemen, in this case, if the theory of the Crown is borne out in the

evidence, matters look- very serious for the prisoner. We do not charge that he with
rifle in hand met the troops. We do not charge and do not propose to prove, that he
was concerned in actual armed opposition to the forces of the Government, but we
prove, if our evidence is as I am instructed, acts of inciting to rebellion, acts of aid-

ing, of comforting, of consulting them and endeavoring to bring about the results
which were sought to be obtained by the resort to arms on behalf of the Indians and
half-breeds. He draws the line—the evidence will show that as far as he was con-
cerned, he was not one of those who desired to fight. He was one of those however
who sought to bring constraint upon the Government, who aided and comforted those
taking arms, although perhaps it will be made to appear that when the resort to
arms took place, he did perhaps what he could to prevent immediate bloodshed. Just
as a man who starts a conflagration by his carelessness or his act and is frightened at
the result and seeks to put an end to it, so we say this man by his aid and by his
comfort and his assistance up to a certain point helped in rebellion and was one of
the causes leading to rebellion, the rebellion, while, when it came to be a matter ,of

personally joining the rebels in arms, he draws back.
Now, to understand just the seriousness oA his offence, you should understand

now strongly the law lays down the duty of every subject where treason is known, to
disclose it. Where a man knows of a treasonable act, and he does not forthwith dis-

close it to the authorities, he is guilty of a crime ; for a man to know of treason and
to promise a man who is an active traitor to remain neutral, that is a crime; for it is

held to be the duty of every man receiving protection from the state and from the
Government, to disclose treason against that state, and to aid when called upon by
the state to put it down. We all live in the community, and the first duty on every
one in a community is to protect the community, the state and the Government as a

whole. It is immaterial for the purposes of that law what party governs. Party
government is ^but a secondary consideration. It is immaterial what party is in.

78



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 1886

jower, who have immediately the reins of power ; it is not loyalty to the individuals

jvho hold the reins of power for the moment, but it is loyalty to the state, loyalty to

ihe Government of the country; not as composed of individuals, but as constituted by
luthority, and that ia the difference between political opposition to any particular

parties who may have the reins of power for the moment, and that opposition which

s called treason or treason-felony, or misprison of treason; and he takes in this free

iountry a great responsibility upon himself who allows in any way his political feel-

ings of animosity to any particular party or his particular political feelings as to the

Local Government there existing^to allow himself to associate and aid those who are

willing to take up arms and cause a civil war to bring about the purposes they have

n view. Now, bearing in mind the duties then cast upon each individual in a com-

munity, duties which have been well defined and laid down throughout the growth of

ihe British constitution, carefully considered in various state trials that have taken

place in the past few centuries, and which are laid down in the lines of law that have

existed for centuries, you will also remember that we are not here prosecuting for a
treason or a felony which has resulted in nothing material; for instance, many men
ire technically guilty of treason by doing acts, publishing letters, but they result in

lothing; but we are here enquiring into circumstances which have resulted in open

svar, which have resulted in the loss of some 200 lives. Over 200 men having tae

right to live, and living in health and strength this time last year, have been out off

and sent to early graves by the treasons existing in this country, this territory.

Millions of treasure have been spent in suppressing it, and when you consider the result

you. may well see the wisdom of the law which makes it a crime at the very inception
;

svhere the consequences are so terrible if the little stream of treason is allowed to

trickle down and expand until it becomes. a river. So the law lays down, and it is

absolutely necessary for the safety of the community that it should be laid down,

that wherever the smallest treason exists the firm hand of the law must stop it, and

if this trial results in nothing else than in a lesson to the community of the caution

and care that has to be taken wrhere treason exists at all, in aiding, in counselling, in

eommunicating with the enemy, the trial will not be in vain.

Now, gentlemen, on and after the 18th March of this year, an open rebellion

against the authorities, armed rebellion against the authorities existed. Prisoners

were taken, stores were raided and freighters stopped, and the section of the country

put in terror of the armed forces then assembled at Batoche, Duck Lake, Carlton,

and the neighborhood of the two rivers. That rebellion, as you all know, was managed
or led by Louis Eiei. We will bring home the knowledge of that state of things, the

knowledge of the insurrection to the prisoner ; he had that knowledge as will un-

doubtedly appear by the evidence—at all events at the time when the overt acts we
charge him with were committed. Now, with that knowledge, he had one duty to

perform as a subject— co tell t^e authorities what he knew, to aid when called on in

suppressing it.

Now, we charge him in overt acts, with counselling and compassing with others

to levy war. Now, a man who counsels to aid those who are in insurrection counsels

to levy war. He does not need to counsel a certain arming, to counsel a certain

snooting, to counsel certain movements, but it he counsels in any way to aid, he

eomes within the overt act charged. Now we will show to you that immediately

upon trouble being apparent and the body of mounted police being weak in numbers,

probably unable to compete with the numbers armed against them—the number of

police I believe being only something, at Port Carlton, less than 100, and the imme-
diately objective point at first being the capture of Port Carlton—in Prince Albert, a

company of volunteers was formed to aid the police. Loyal men left their families,

left their places of business and shouldered their muskets, and went forward to help

their country. Now we will prove that the prisoner there in all ways in his power
publicly at meetings of the inhabitants counselled and desired to get the volunteers

to lay down their arms, to go home, wanting to let the 300 or 400 rebels and the less

than 100 police fight it out—leave them alone, leave the armed men who are in

rebellion, and leave the police to fight it out ; break up, volunteers. Now, we wiL
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bring that home, conclusively, I think, to the prisoner; he desired, we say, to aid the

movement in so counselling. If he desired to do so, he comes within the overt

acts charged. It will be proved to you that on the occasion of one or two public

meetings, that this is what he proposed, the laying down, by all concerned, of the

inhabitants, of arms to aid to suppress the rebellion. He seems to have wanted to

go this far with armed insurrection, and let the rebels have a tussle with the police,

or let them capture the police without bloodshed, and then let us enter into a treaty,

let us make use of the advantage that we gain to enter into a treaty with the

Government to compel them to do what we think they ought to do. Well, now, that

is compassing. That is acting for the purpose of putting constraint, force and

constraint upon the Government, and that is treason-felony. Now, I shall not

go in detail over the various overt acts that you have heard perhaps two or three

times, if you were in court yesterday. They are alleged with technicality and

precision, and they are put in the evidence as it is given, and it is better that yon
should take the exact facts from the mouths of the witnesses rather than from the

mouth of counsel, and I therefore merely outline to you the class of evidence that we
propose to give, because sometimes it is difficult to distinguish when you come to

retire to consider a case—it is difficult to distinguish where counsel has stated the

evidence with great particularity, between what counsel has stated and what the wit-

ness states, and it is better that you should get your impressions of the exact details

from the mouths of the witnesses.

But our evidence against the prisoner does not rest entirely upon the recollection

of witnesses as to his transactions. A most serious item of evidence against him, is

a letter written by him to the French council, and if that letter is brought home to*

the prisoner, as 1 think it will be, if it is brought home that that letter was found in

the possession of the enemy, as it will be, for it was captured among their papers at

the council house in Batoche, then you have in writing, over the signature of the

prisoner, a letter which is sufficient to convict him, if at the time he wrote it he

knew the parties to whom it was addressed were in open insurrection against the

Government. Now that letter bears date the 23rd of March. After the various

stores had been raided, after the prisoners had been taken and were then in custody,

after it was known by the prisoner that this open insurrection was in existence, he

writes this letter :

—

m
Ridge, 23rd March, 1885.

To the French Council,

At a meeting held at Lindsay sohoolhouse to-night, which was largely attended,.

the voice of every man was with you, and we have taken steps which I think will

have a tendency to stop bloodshed and hasten a treaty. We will communicate with

jou inside of forty-eight hours after you get this, and notify us of any steps, if any

is liable to take place.

Now, that directly comes under the charges made, that is, aiding and comfort-

ing, that is, compassing and imagining, under either sets of counts. You see how ho

treats them as a power in existence outside the Government, with whom the Govern-

ment was to make a treaty, and he recognizes those men in arms in organization for

the purpose of bringing constraint upon the Government, and he recognizes them as

being in such a position as to have a treaty made with them, and he proposes to aid

them in bringing about that treaty, in bringing about the purpose for which

they had taken up arms. Instead of saying, as I believe the great majority

of people said, in the neighborhood of Prince Albert, now you have taken

up arms, we have done with you, he writes this letter, which is in itself

treason or treason-felony. We will further show to you that after these men
had assembled, in arms, and were in arms at Batoche, with loyal men as prisoners

;

we will show to you that Scott came over to the French council, as he calls

them in this letter, and took counsel with them and went up into their council

chamber, and was there for a considerable time discussing and talking with them.

I don't know that we will be able to show what passed, but if we show him there, in

connection with his other statements, and those letters, you have a right to say that
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at that time he was there for a treasonable purpose. It may be, and I dare say the
evidence will show that Scott's object, one of his objects, was to bring about thatwhich he desired, whatever it was, without bloodshed, All people who undertake
rebellion desire to avoid that, if by show of force they car, get what thev want with-
out it

;
actual fighting is what no man desires, if by any other means the object can

be attained and no doubt the defence will show that the prisoner, after a certain
point did all in his power to, desired to do all in his power to prevent bloodshed-
but that is not a defence, that may be a matter in mitigation, should he be found
guilty, on the question of sentence. It is not a defence for a man, after committing
a crime, to repent of it or to be sorry that he had gone so far. We may I think
take from the evidence that there never would nave been a breaking out or takingup of arms by one section of the community if they had not, up to a certain pointby the acts and words of the others, expected them to join them. If that expectationwas disappointed nevertheless, it leaves a most serious responsibility on those whoencouraged and who aided the men who eventually resorted to arms

Now, gentlemen, we have here nothing to do with the causes of the rebellionNo man can justify treason by saying that he is ill-governed. I don't understand
that Thomas^Scott

,

was one ofthose men who had any particular grievance. He is not
a French half-breed. There were said to be grievances existing. Thoy may ormay nothave existed. They may or may not have been serious. There may have existedBometimes those little irritations which it is very difficult to avoid in administeringgovernment in a new country, and they may have been fomented and exaggeratedby leaders for their own purposes, but the existence of grievances or of supposed
grievances is no justification whatever for treason. History shows that grievaWwhich existed will be cured by the Government; if not by their own ak by the
force of public opinion, sooner or later. It is for the loyal subject to wait and to
sutler rather than to rebel and become a traitor to his country. You have ffot tobear in mind that this country has but an existence but of yesterday, as far asgovernment by the Dominion of Canada is concerned, and in redeeming a wildernessand turning it into a civilized country, there must necessarily be complications theremust necessarily be difficulties, there must necessarily be delays. Where these exist
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William Tomkins sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott :

Q. What is your occupation, Mr. Tomkins ? A. Interpreter.
Q. In any public capacity ? A. In the Indian Department.
Q. Were you such on the 18th March last ? A. I was taken prisoner.
Q. You were interpreter at that time? A. Yes.
Q. You were taken prisoner ? A. Yea.
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Q. Where ? A. At Batoche.

Q. By whom ? A. By Louis Riel.

Q. Anyone else ? A. And a number of half-breeds, Gabriel Dumont amongst

Q. In what condition were they at the time they took you prisoner ? A* They

were in rebellion.

Q. How did you know they were in rebellion, what led you to think they wore

in rebellion ? A. They all had guns, principally.

Q. Where were you at the time they took you prisoner ? A. I was at Kerr's

mtore.

Q. Where was that ? A. About two miles from Batoche, I should judge.

Q. Was there anyone with you ? A. Yes ; Mr. Lash.

Q. Who was Mr. Lash ? A. Indian Agent.

Q. Indian Agent where ? A. At Carlton.

Q. Was he taken prisoner ? A. Yes.

Q. At the same time ? A. Yes.

Q. You say Eiel and a number of half-breeds—did you recognize any other half-

breeds besides Eiel ? A. I recognized them at the time.

Q. Whore did those half-breeds that you did recognize, live ? A. They lived

around Batoche.

Q. They lived in the neighborhood of Batoche ? A. Yes.

Q. What time was it on that day you were then taken prisoner ? A. To the

best of my knowledge, I think it was about four o'clock in the afternoon.

Q. What was done with you after you were taken prisoner ? A. I was taken

to the church.

Q. Where ? A. At Batoche.

Q. And what was done with you there ? A. They kept us there.

q! How did they keep you ? A. Under guard.

Q. With a guard over you ? A. Yes.

Q. They remained there for how long ? A. They kept us there till night, and

then they removed us.

Q. Where to ? A. Across to Mr. Baker's store, across the river.

Q. What is the name of that place ? Is there any name ? A, No ; it is Batoche.

Q. Were there any other prisoners there besides you and Mr. Lash ? A. Yes;

Mr. Walters and Mr\ Hennipin were taken prisoners, and their store had been gone

through.
Q. They had gone through their store ? A. Started at it.

Q. Lid you see them f A. Yes,

Q. What do you mean by going through the store? A. Taking stuff.

Q. Who ? A. These half-breeds.

Q. The same half-breeds that took you prisoner ? A. Some of them, yes.

Q. A portion of the same body ? A. Yes.

Q. Where were you taken to from Walters & Baker's ? A. Taken back to

the ohurch nest morning.

Q. And afterwards ? A. Taken down to Philip Garnot's.

Q. And how long did you remain at Garnot's; until what date? A. We
remained there until we went to Duck Lake.

Q. You went to Duck Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. That is, you were taken to Duck Lake ? A. Taken to Duck Lake.

Q. On what day ? A. On the 26th March.

Q. By the same guard and same party ? A. Half-breeds took us over.

Q. Now, this armed party that you speak of as having taken you prisoner and

afterwards taken you to Walters & Baker's store—did you see them doing anything ?

A. I saw them taking goods out of the store.

Q. Out of Walters & Saker's ? A. Yes.

Q. You saw them taking goods, and did you see them doing anything else? A»

Yes, they brought in some prisoners that morning, too.
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Q. How many ? A. Two.
Q. Then after you got to Back Lake you say these men were in rebellion, and

you told us they were armed, and they took you and several others prisoners, and
that you saw them raiding Walters & Baker's store—did you see them do anything
else afterwards ? A. Well, when we went to Dack Lake I seen them starting- out to
the front to fight.

6

Q. How many rebels were there in the neighborhood of Dack Lake at that time
— about the time you saw them starting out to fight ? A. I should judge there were
about 400.

6

Q. You say that some of them were armed—those that took you prisoner wore
armed? A. Yes.

Q. Were the others armed as well ? A. They were all armed then at the
lake.

Q. You say you saw them starting to the fight; was there a fight? A. Yes.
Q. How do you know there was ? A. I coald hear.
Q. You could hear what ? A. I could hear volleys.

Q. Have you any other means of knowing that there was a fight after it was
over ? A. Yes ; I was on the field; I went out after the battle.

Q. Bat did you know that afternoon ; did you find out that afternoon from any
other source that there had been a fight ? A. Yes, from Eiel.

Q. Eiel told you there had been a fight ? A. Yes.
Q. Did he say anything as to what the fight resulted in? A. He said it resulted

in favor of Kiel

.

Mr. Clarke.—Is this supposed to be evidence—what Eiel told this witness? Is
this evidence in the case of Scott—a thing that occurred on the 26'th March ? I object
most emphatically to it.

Mr, Osier.—We only show the common action, Probably in that case we will
not prove what Eiel said until we have connected him.

Court.—There are two ways to establish it. You may show the facts first and
the connection afterwards; lay the ground for the connection first, and then supple-
ment it by facte.

By Mr. Stott

:

Q. You say that you are interpreter for the Indian Department. Where do
you live

;
where is your home? A, Carlton was, but Prince Albert now.

Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know where he lives ? A. Yes.
Q. How far is that from Batoche or Dock Lake ? How far is it from Duck Lake?

A. About 30 miles or so.

Q. Which way ? A. North-west ; no, it is in a northern direction.
Q. Do you know Lindsay schoolhouse ? A. Yes.
Q. How far is that from the prisoner's residence ? A. It is quite close there.
Q. Do you know the St, Catharines schoolhouse ? A. Yes.
Q. How far is that from the prisoner's residence? A. I should judge it would

be about a mile and a half; no, it is about four miles, I suppose, or five.

Q. And the Lindsay schoolhouse is quite close, you say—how close? A. Aboat
three-quarters of a mile or half a mile, I should judge.

Q Then Lindsay schoolhouse is in the neighborhood of 30 miles from Dack
Lake, you say ? A. Yes.

Q. How far is Dack Lake from Batoche ? A. Six miles.
Q. Is it on the road from Batoche to these places ? A. Yes.
Q. Then tb|e Lindsay schoolhouse would be about 35 or 36 miles from Batoche.

you think ? A. Yes, about that.

Q. Is St. Catharines schoolhouse farther away or nearer ? A. It is nearer Prince
Albert.

Q, That would be about 40 miles ? A. Yes.
83
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John W. Astlbt, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Osier :

Q. You were, 1 believe, in the early days of the rebellion employed as scout T

A. Yes, at Prince Albert.

Q. For the authorities ? A. Yes.

Q. Were you taken prisoner ? A; Yes. I was taken prisoner the 26th March

at three o'clock in the morning.

Q. Are you sure about the 26th ? A. Yes, that is the date.

Q. Do you know the prisoner Scott ? A. Yes.

Q. Had you seen him at any time prior to that date ? A. Yes ; when they were

talking about raising volunteers at Carlton and Prince Albert, I was driving down the

street going to meet Capt. Moore, and the prisoner came up and Capt. Moore spoke

to him, and he told him not to go on raising volunteers and take them to Carlton,

but let the police and breeds have it settled between themselves, and that if he took

volunteers there it would cause a war of races between the settlers and the half-

breeds. That is all I remember passing at that time. That would be about the 17th

or 18th March.
Q. That was at the time ? A. When they were talking of raising volunteers

for Qarlton. , .

.

Q. What was the necessity for volunteers ? A. Major Crozier I believe sent a

message to Capt. Moore.

Q. For what particular object ? What was the state of things ? A. The halt-

breeds had risen in rebellion.

Q. And Capt. Moore was interested? A. He was asked by Major Crozier to

raise a certain amount of volunteers for Carlton.

Q. How did the prisoner come to speak to him ? A. We were going down to

the meeting, and he was driving past, and he jumped out of his sleigh and spoke to

Capt . Moore just those words.

Q. Asking him not to go on with the movement ? A. Not to go on with the

movement.

Cross-examined by Mr. Clarke :

Q. When did this conversation take place ? A. The date I would not be certain

about, but it seems to me it would be the 17th or 18th, when they were talking of

raising volunteers. It was the day before the prisoner was arrested at Batoche. It

would be the 18th when they were arrested, and this would be about the 17th. I think

there were two meetings in Prince Albert, and one was to just discuss the matter,

and that was one. Capt. Moore I believe had been out at the Kidge.

Q. Confine yourself to the facts as near as you possibly can ; we want nothing

of your belief, we want simple facts. Now Capt. Moore is not here, I suppose ? A.

He has gone to the old country.

Q. Was there anybody else present at this conversation ? A. No, Capt. Moore

and 1 were driving down in a cutter by ourselves.

Q. And he is in the old country ? A. Yes.

Captain George Holmes Young, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Osier :

Q. You were connected^ith the forces I believe in the field, suppressing the-

rebellion ? A. I was.
Q. What was your position ? A. Brigade major of the infantry brigade.

Q. As the result of the rebellion spoken of by Tomkins, were forces brought into

the field ? A. The Dominion sent forces into the field.

Q. Under the command of ? A. Major General Frederick Middleton.

Q. And as matter of formal proof, was there active hostility and conflict be-

tween the troops ? A. Active hostilities and conflicts between the troops and the

rebels at two points at which 1 was present.
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Q, Tou were present at ? A. Fish Creek and Batoche.

Q. And lives were lost on both sides ? A. Lives were lost on both sides.

Q. Did you have anything to do with the finding of the papers in any par-

ticular house at Batoche ? A. I found a large number of papers aDd books which

turned out to be rebel state papers in council house at Batoche.

Q. Were you at the capture of that house ? A. I was at the capture of that

bouse.

Q. Who was leading when that house was captured, immediately just there ? A.
kt that immediate point, I led. I led at that point

Q. And yourself and men took that house ? A. We took it, and I went up stairs.

Q. Then, what were tbe class of papers that were found there? A. Minutes of

30uncil, letters, reports of scouts, and documents of various kinds, some private papers

ind accounts, but generally papers in connection with their movement.

Q. Do you recognize the paper produced (Exhibit No. 1) as being among those

papers ? A. Yes, I recognize this paper.

Q. As being one found where? A. Found in the council chamber at Batoche.

Q. With any other papers ? A. With a large number of papers, letters from

rarious parties, and the reports of scouts, the names of their captains, the minutes of

;he council, orders of council, most of them labelled or rather docketed in the same
landwriting as this is docketed.

Q. You identify this, then, as one of the papers you took possession of in the

rebel council house ? A. I do.

Q. On what day was that? A. On the afternoon of Tuesday the 12th May.

Charles F. Tuck, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott

:

Q. What is your occupation ? A. I am clerk in the post office, inspector's office,

Winnipeg.

Q. How long have you been in that position ? A. Three years. Three years

his month.
Q. Then, you are conversant with the business that has been done in that office

luring that time ? A . Yes.

Q. You have some papers with you that were returned from the Ridge post office ?

k. The Kirkpatrick post office, yes.

Q. What are they ? A. There is a bond here of the postmaster there at that time
vhen the post office was established.

Q. When was that ? A. That was in April last. It was earlier than that—it

vas in January or February. It was established first.

Q. Which is bond ? A. One is a bond, ana the next a declaration, and the last

s an authority from Ottawa authorizing the person of that name to be postmaster at

kirkpatrick.

Q. It is a bond from Thomas Scott who was appointed postmaster there, and his

mreties? A. Yes.
Mr. Clarke.—Stop. Do the Crown pretend to prove the appointment of a post-

naster by a clerk from a post office in Winnipeg ?

Mr. Osier.—No, we are not proving that. We are simply producing the papers.

Mr. Clarke.—Then, I want to know what these papers are, or what gives them
rathenticity, by what means they are brought here, and I won't allow one iota of
>vidence to be given of anything that can be proved by the Royal Gazette being

)roved by a petty clerk from the post office in Winnipeg. I am astonished to find

inch an attempt. The witness is asked—this is the appointment of a postmaster ?

Court.—I beg your pardon, he says this is the bond purporting to be signed by
Fhomas Scott,

Mr. Clarke.—Of what ?

Court,—I don't know what it is.

Mr. Scott.—It purports to be signed by the postmaster at Kirkpatrick. (Bond
narked exhibit No. 2.)
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Q. And this (Exhibit No. 3) is a declaration purporting to be signed by Thomas
Scott, postmaster at Kirkpatrick ? A. Yes, and these (Exhibit No. 4) are the signa-
tures for the receipt of the mail at the post office.

Q. These were received at the Department ? A. At our office at Winnipeg.
Q. From where ? A. The last comes from Troy.
Q. They purport to be signed by ? A. By the postmaster at Kirkpatrick.
(Witness here points out what purports to be the signature of the postmaster at

Kirkpatrick in these papers.)

Q. Do you know what is required ot the postmasters as to signing these bills-—
required by the Department ?

Mr. Clarke—I object to any such question. That is not the mode of proving it.

Mr. Scott.—What is the ordinary custom in the Post Office Department as to
this sending—the signing of these way-bills ?

Mr. Clarke.—I object to that also.

Mr. Scott.—I submit, your Honor, that is a proper question.
Court.—What is the ordinary rule in the Department? That can be put.
Mr. Clarke.—I submit there are rules in the Public Departments, post offices as

well as others, and they are printed or written and properly signed by the head of the
Department, and such rules should be produced here to speak for themselves, and
without their production nw secondary evidence can be given of them—their contents.

Court.—Have you any authority to refer me to ?

Mr. Clarke.—I don't think it is necessary. , It is an elementary principle with
reference to examination on a written or printed document.

Court.—The question was, what was the ordinary custom of postmasters as to
signing these way-bills ?

Mr. Clarke.—I think the question is put in a different way. The ordinary cus-
tom in post offices must be given by the postmaster and over his signature.

Court.—Your objection, as I understood it, was that all the rules governing the
Department must be in writing, and these should be produced.

Mr. Scott.—I am not asking the question as to the custom in that particular
post office at Kirkpatrick, but I ask the custom of the Post Office Department.

Court.—I think the question may be put.

Mr. Clarke.—Then your Honor will note my objection to that question.

By Mr. Scott

:

Q. What was the custom ? A. They are supposed to sign these way-bills also
on receipt of the mails at the post cffice.

Q. And to do what with tnerr, or to do anything further with them ? A. Well,
simply to send them od to the next office on the route, and if their office is the last one
they come to our office.

Q. They eventually come to the Inspector's Office in Winnipeg? A. Yes.
Q. Were those particular bills produced now received in that way ? A. Eeceived

at our office.

Q. In that way ? A. Yes, in that way.
Q. Have they been there ? A. Yes, they have been in our office all the time

since.

Q. On file ? A. Yes.

Q. In the ordinary way ? A. In the ordinary way.

Cross-examined by Mr, Clarke :

Q. You are not the postmaster at Winnipeg ? A. No.
Q. There is a postmaster ? A. Yes ; there is.

Q. What is bis name ? A. William Hargrave.
Q. Do you pretend that where these lists come along to the post office they must

be signed by the man who is acting as postmaster? A. Yes.

Q. They must? A. Yes.

Q. You swear that that is the case ? A. That they must be signed ?
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Q. Yes ? A. Certainly, that is one of our rules.

Q. I am not asking you that, but do you swear that list is signed by postmasters

and by nobody for him ? A. No ; I don't,

John McNiven sworn:

—

Examined by Mr. Osier :

Q. Where do you live, Mr. McNiven ? A. In the North-West Territory.

Q. That is a pretty large home ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know Thomas Scott? A. Yes, I do.

Q. Where does he live, and be a little more particular than in your last answer ?

A. He lives in a place called the Kidge.

Q. In what neighborhood ? A. In the neighborhood of Prince Albert.

Q. Do you know of his occupying any office ? A. Yes, I always understood that

he held office as postmaster.

Q. At what post office? A. Kirkpatrick.

Mr. Clarke.—Now, before this goes any farther, I object to this as evidence at

all. There is a mode of proving who were appointed postmasters and who were not,

and to get from this man or any other man in the community that he always under-

stood such a man was appointed postmaster or appointed judge is not exactly the

way to do it, and I object to this being received as evidence.

Mr. Osier.—My learned friend very well knows that I can always prove de facto

the occupant of any office, and it is presumed that he is the officer.

Mr. Clarke.—It is not presumed.
Court.—A man who represents himself as such and acts as such is presumed to

be so appointed, until the contrary is proved.

Mr. Clarke.—I object and I ask that my objection be noted, that the appointment

of a postmaster should be proved by the official Gazette, that is the way we generally

do things in this country.

Court—Postmasters are not appointed through the official Gazette.

Mr. Clarke.—That is a question, my lord.

By Mr. Osier:

Q. What do you know of his acting as postmaster in that post office ? A. Well,

he delivered me mail and letters.

Q. Was that your post office ? A. Yes.

Q. And he would deliver your mail and letters from time to time, as you called

for them ? A. Yes, he was not generally delivering at every mail, sometimes there

would be somebody else in the office, he had another boy there.

Q. Who was in charge of the post office, who was the proprietor ? A. I always

understood Mr. Scott.

Q. And you treated him as such ? A. Yes.

Q. For how long has he been postmaster ? A. He has been postmaster since

some time last winter any way, I am certain of that.

Q. Who is postmaster now ? A. This young fellow that used to attend the office

in Mr. Scott's absence I believe is postmaster.

Q. Well, did you ever know any other Thomas Scott postmaster at Kirkpatrick?

A, No.
Q. Well, do you know this paper (paper marked Exhibit No. 6) ? A. Yes.

Q. Whose writing, handwriting, is that in ? A. Thomas Scott's.

Q. Do you mean Thomas Scott the prisoner ? A. Yes.

Q. How do you know that is in his hand-writing ? Are you the John McNiven
named in it? A. Yes.

Q. Did you ever have this in your possession ? A. Yes.

Q. How did you get it in your possession ? Who did you get it from ? A. From
Thomas Scott.

Q. It is a due bill to you ? A. Yes.
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Q. And he handed it to you ? A. Yes.
Q, Whose signature is that, whose signature did he give it to you for? A.

Thomas Scott.

Q. Did you see him write it? A. Well, it is so long ago

—

Q. But he gave it to you as his signature and his due bill ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know in whose handwriting this paper (Exhibit No. 7) that I now

produce to you is in ? A. Scott's handwriting, I should think.
Q. You have seen him write ? A. Yes.
Q. When was it known, Mr. McNiven, in your neighborhood, that armed rebel-

lion had broken out ? A. The first time I knew of it was the evening of the 20th
March, 1885. I believe it was the 20th—the evening of the volunteers going up.

Q. On that evening where did you go ? A.I went to a meeting that night.
Q. Where ? A. Lindsay's schoolhouse.

Q. Where is that with reference to, say, Prince Albert ? A. I should judge it
would be about fifteen or sixteen miles from Prince Albert.

Q. Was the prisoner at that meeting ? A. Yes.
Q. Who was in the chair there ? A. Thomas Scott.
Q. The prisoner ? A. Yes.

.
Q. Was it made known at the meeting, or what was said as to the rebellion, the

position of matters? A. There was nothing said in the meeting that I heard about
the rebel liou, anything more tnan—yes, there was, the secretary drew up what he
supposed the meeting was called for.

Q. Well, was there any discussion at that meeting? A. No, there was none.
Q. What did they meet for; was there any talking ? A. There was no talking^

only appointing a delegation up to Duck Lake or the south branch; there was
nothing done that I seen at the meeting more than that.

Q. What was the occasion of the meeting; what was the trouble? A. The only
thing that I understood at the time was what the secretary had said.

Q. Said in public? A. Yes, in the meeting.
Q. And what was that ? A. Well, it was something to the effect that seeing

that the French were under arms and that it left the settlement in a kind of a danger-
ous position, that they thought it was necessary to send a delegation up to Duck
Lake or to the French, to see what steps might be taken for the settlers as a rule to
protect themselves against the outbreak.

Q. Well, was the matter of the French being under arms in discussion there or
known to that meeting ? A. Oh, it was known to the meeting, for the secretary
stated it.

Q. Of which meeting Thomas Scott was chairman ? A. Yes.
Q. And there was very little discussion except on the safety of the settlement?

A. That was all, as a rule.

Q JSow, was the prisoner appointed to any position on that occasion
Mr. Clark.—Now I don't care for objecting, unless it is necessary, would it not

be more proper to ask what business was done at that meeting and let the witness
give his version of it ?

Court.—Yes, I suppose it would be, perhaps. I don't know that the question is
improperly put though.

Mr. Osier.—It is not a matter in dispute, and I don't desire to lengthen matters
by allowing the witness to go on and state what might be perhaps irrelevant.

Mr. Clark.—Might it not be better to ask what discussion took place ?

By Mr, Osier

:

Q. Was any delegation appointed for any purpose at that meeting ? A. Yes.

^
Q. Who was appointed ? • A. Thomas Scott, and a man by the name of Ross, I

don't know his first name, and a man by the name of Willie Paquin.
Q. Where were they to go ? A. Weil, the secretary said they were to go to the

French.
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Q. Now, bad you any talk with the prisoner on that occasion , as to the calling

of another meeting ; or as to what should be done when the deputation got back ?

A. Yes, I asked Mr. Scott. It was supposed at the meeting that the meeting was to

adjourn when the delegation was appointed, and I asked Mr. Scott how the people

were going to get the information when they came back, whether it was nectary

to have another meeting or was everybody to go and hunt his own information, and

Mr. Scott said it was a hard question to answer, because, he says, if we cannot keep

out of the way of the police, may be we won't get back for some ti me, it was some-

thing to that effect; it might not be exactly the same said, but it was to that

effect.

Cross-examined by Mr. Clarke ;

Q. You were present at this meeting, Mr. McNiven? A. Yes.

Q. Did you vote for the appointment of this delegation ? A. I did not.

Q. What did you do at that meeting? A. I did not do nothing but ask Mr.

Soott this question.
'

[
,v

.
*

, .

Q. Were you present at the meeting during the time that delegation was being

Appointed? A. Yes.
m

Q. Did you object to a delegation being appointed ? A. 1 aid not.

Q. Wasn't that the continuation of a series of meetings that had been about that

place ? I don't know. I was not at no other meeting.

Q. At all ? A. Not since the fore part of last summer.

Q. You say that Thomas Scott, the prisoner, was in the chair ? A. Yes.

Q. Immediately after taking the chair did he call upon anybody to speak ? A.

Be called upon his secretary.

Q. Now try and recollect, Mr. McNiven, were you called upon to speak C A.

'q Was that a meeting of rebels ready to go and assist the French to cut the

throats of all their fellow subjects? A. What is yoar question ?

Q. Was that a meeting such as you or any loyal man would be afraid to attend

or ashamed ? A. No ; I did not think so at the time.

Q. Was it not a meeting that was called purposely to try and prevent trouble T

A. Oh, I don't know about that.

Q. Well, what do you know, then ? A. I did not think so.

Q. You did not think so ? A. No.
Q. Why did you go there ? A. Well, a fellow finds out a different shade of things

probably when he goes from when he left home.

Q. Who was the Secretary ? A. William Miller.
.

Q, Is William Miller here ? A. I guess he is. 1 don't know whether he is or

not. I seen him around the town.

Q. Were there any minutes kept of that meeting ? A. You had better ask the

secretary about that.

Q. I ask you ? A. I don't know whether there was or not. .

Q. Then you were anxious to know what would be the result of this delegation 7

A. I was, certainly.
, / v _ , . A

Q. You wanted to find out, like the others, what the French were doing t A.

Of course I would like to have known at the time. .v .

Q. Well, did you find out what they were doing? A. I did, but not from that

° ^tao time after, wasn't it, that the discovery was made of what they had

had been doing? A. Yes, after we heard of the Dack Lake fight.

Q. You referred two or three times to Mr. Miller, the secretary. Will you tell

the court, and jury, you being there and seeing this secretary, that you cannot toll

whether that secretary wrote anything during that meeting? A. 1 cannot ten,

because I was in the far end of the building, and I could not see him, all his move-

ments. I understood that he was supposed to do it, anyway.
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By Mr. Osier:

Q. Why do yon say it did not look like a loyal meeting, or words to that effectyou made use of? What was done there at that meeting ? A. Well, neither it did'when 1 seen what the meeting was about. *

m
Q. Just give us what took place there ? A. Well, I gave my statement on that

point.

• *?'^JI
'
is th

.
ere anythiDS elso ? A

- No»
nothing else that happened in the meet- Ijng that I know of.

Q. Well, at the breaking up of the meeting, was there anything happened ? A.

Mr. Clarke.—Now, jour Honor, I must object to this. The Crown has a right
to re-examine on any point or matter elicited on the cross-examination, but this is-
beginning again an examination in chief.

Court.—I think it is a question arising directly out of your cross-examination*
By Mr. Osier :

Q. Was there anything happened at the close or towards the close of the-
meeting which helps you to found the opinion that the meeting was not a lovai
meeting ? A. There were three cheers for the delegation.

Q. And anything else ? A. And there were three cheers for Louis Eiel.

By Mr. Clarke :

Q. Did you cheer, Mr. McNiven ? A. No, I did not.
Mr. Maclise attempts to cross-examine

—

Mr. Osier.—Let us be regular.
Mr. Scott objects to either counsel cross-examining now.
Mr. Clarke.—This is a new question that is brought out, and it should have been

brought out, if brought out at all, on the examination in chief.
Court.—Suppose the witness had been discharged and called again, couldn't he

be recalled again ?

Mr. Clarke.—He could most undoubtedly, but he would become a new witness
and give us the same chance over again.

Court.—The only thing you have any right to ask a question on would be
xegardir-g these cheers.

By Mr. Clarke:

Q. How many people were there that did cheer ? A. Oh, I could not say how
many. J

Q. How many people were there there? A. I could not say that neither. I
did not count them.

Q. Were there a large number of people there? A. There was quite a large,number for the place. &

Joseph Knowles sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott

:

Q. Where do you live, Mr. Knowles ? A. At Prince Albert.
Q. What is your occupation ? A. I am in the banking business there.
Q. How long ? A. For three years, a little over three years.
Q. Do you know Thomas Scott, the prisoner? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know his signature ? A. Well, I dare say I could tell it.

Q. Did you ever see that paper before (paper marked Exhibit No. 8.) A. Yes,
I hav« fceen that paper before.

Q. Do you know whether that is Thomas Scott's signature ? A. I believe it looks
like it.

°

A xS* ?°I?U kDOW that PaPer (markea! Exhibit No. 6), what do you think as to-
that ? A. That looks like his signature.
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Q. Have you had any signatures of the prisoner in your banking establishment ?

Yes.

Q. Would you make any enquiries about his signature when it came in, or would

70U consider you knew it ? A. No, I would consider I knew it ?

Q. Suppose that note (Exhibit No. 8) were presented to you, how would you

bake it ? A. I would take it as his signature.

Q. And discount it if asked, I suppose? A. Yes.

Cross-examined by Mr. Maclme.

Q On exhibit No. 6, "Thomas Scott and Joseph Thomson," are'nt they the same ?

A They are similar* It looks to me as though they are the same person, although

I have known Thomas Scott to sign similar to that one that is there, whether it may

be in his handwriting, the whole thing, or Thomsons, I don't know. .

Q. Whose signature would you swear positively that was to exhibit JNo. l r A;

I would not swear it was Scott's signature.

By the Court t—
O Do I understand you to say, with regard to No. 6, that you cannot speak

as to the signature? A. I said that the whole of it—both Scott's signatures-

might be written by this man Thomson. As far as I can judge, the handwriting

looks something similar. ,

Q. In your banking business, you have stated that you would discount that note,

with a signature of that kind ? A. Yes.
%

Q. You would merely take your chances on it because it was made to lnomas

McKay, was it not ? A. Yes. *."''„ ^ x. •** * v™
Q It would be endorsed by Thomas McKay before you would take it I A. Yes.

Q. When there is any doubt in your mind about a signature being any man sy

on account of your comiDg across so many signatures and seeing it very seldom -it

there is any doubt in youi mind, you don't take the note unless there is a good

endorser on it, and if there is a good A-l endorser on it, you will take the note, ^on t

you? A. Yes.

By Mr. Scott ;—

Q Do I understand you to say you would not have taken this signature on

No 8 exhibit without a responsible endorser ? A. No; in this respect I would take

it with McKay's endorsement.

Q. I understood you to tell my learned friend, Mr. Maclise, that you would take

it as his signature because there was a good endorser to it, is that what you saidf

Suppose that note, exhibit No. 8, was made to a person you did not know, would

you have taken it on the strength of its being Scott's signature ? A. Yes, 1 would

take it as being his signature.

Q. Irrespective of the solvency of the endorser? A, Yes, exactly.

Q. Would you take that signature in the same way (No. 1 exhibit)
;
suppose

that signature, as there, was attached to a note, would you take that ? A. Yes, I

would take that as his signature.

William Ceaig, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Osier :

Q. Where do you live; in what neighborhood? A. St. Catharines, in the

neighborhood of Prince Albert. , , .

Q. Were you present at a meeting held at the Lindsay schoolhouse, at any date

in March last? A. I was not.

Q. Were you present at any meeting in March last ? A. Yes.

Q. Where was it held ? In St. Catharine's church.

Q. What day was it held ? A. It was held on the evening, Sunday, 22nd March.

Mr. Maclise.—There is no meeting referred to in the charge at St. Catharine

s

church.
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Mr. Osier.—We don't propose to say anything about that, but we are going togive our evidence meantime. 6 6

^a p™ rt—,SaPP08e he does may he not bring out a faot on the charge of treason,-and afterwards connect, and then it would be for you to say, if it was not connected-!

£
W ?/ attenticm ^ *i

80 that the jury could be instructed.
Mr. Maclise.—Aiid if it was not connected, it might have its effect on the jury.

,. Mr
\OsleiwYou will see, your Honor, that each overt act is charged on a givendate, and on divers other days and times.

8

Mr. Maclise.— Certainly, but not places.
Mr. Osier.—We think so.

^linrS; ?«°Q f ^e m
oo

ti

^gJa8
1

a meetT
'

ng of inhabitants held at the St. Catharine'schurch, on Sunday, 22nd March, A. Yes.
Q. Was the prisoner there ? A. He was there.
Q * ^,at ^as the ooca8ion of the meeting ? A. The meeting was held in conse-Clte

H
R^ Matheson, minister

g
f that church, who fidEen at CaXn,

thZfnH n?
*?»irQd «>™™ and hold that meeting, by Major Crozier, to ascertain

^LZll e inhabl
,
tan*8 at that crisis, and promote the interests of peace. I

words of the minut^.
m6etiDg

' ?^^ beea 8ecretar^' aQd those are the

a ™ u
W
T
h&t Wa8 the 8tate of thinff8 as to the rebellion known to that meeting rMf' X
S?

11^JPf1* for what was known to other people definitely, but I knewmyeeir, on the 20th da7 of March, two days previous to that meeting, that the Frenchwere said to be in arms, that they had looted a store or stores and taken certainprisoners; and I also knew, from having seen the volunteers under Capt. Martin andCapt Moore to start for Carlton on the 20th March, the Friday.

tmJK that 8tate of thinff8 SefleraI,y known? A. It was; I believe it wasknown to every man, woman and child in the place.
Q. And was that state of things the occasion of calling the meeting? A, Yes it was
Q. And the prisoner was there ? A. Yes. V
Q. Now, did the prisoner do anything at that meeting ? A. He spoke.
H. Had he any paper with him ? A. He had.

ri' wu he 8ay What that PaPer wa8 ? A
'
l cannot undertake to swear.

4M4^^n^^ffi" 8atd to b6 by hlm? A
-
The paper, from internal

Q. What did he say as to the contents ?

,wJ1**
°i

ar
.u
e—Not a8 to the contents—the contents of the paper must be pro-t^X^^^^ them8eiVe9

'
Th6 °r0Wn ^^-ryfacilit/for

Court.—The witness makes an assertion.

By Mr. Osier:

™„ ?' ^hf W
?
rd

L
8 fel

!
from the Pri80nor,s mouth on that occasion, so far as you

word^To°f theletJeJ
F ** 8peakinS or readinS ? «• I cannot give the exact

*^ 3f I
a8k y°U

.
What Wa8 the effeot of what he stated

>
what he said ? A. Well,

matters—
a8? refem °g as * understood the writing to do, to the statements and

Mr. Clarke.—This is talking of the contents of that paper.

™.„ £ ^"""^H*A CODtend for is that whenever a man reads a letter, I can

Court—Y
8 biS m°Uth alth0ugh l have not Sot the paper-!-

Mr. Osier.—Although he was reading or purporting to read from a paper, and itwas something that fell from his mouth, and was communicated not by the writing
but by his lips

; and if my learned friend contests that, that is the contention I pro-pose to support. F

Mr. Clarke.—I object now, as a proposition in law, to what was read from a
paper or from a letter by the prisoner or by anyone else being proved as being what
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>11 from his lips. It was not his speech, it was the contents of a letter as much as
?
I were to take np any paper and read its contents.

Court.—He is asked what that man stated ; he may give that.

Mr. Clarke.—He does not know whether he reads it or not. Ifhe were reading

tie contents of the letter he would be reading the thoughts of another and not his

wn.
Court.—He makes them his own words.

Mr. Clarke,—I submit he does not. It may have been a public document,

tnd it would not be his own words. I object to anything being stated verbally by

his witness that was read by anybody at that meeting from a paper or from a letter,

without the production of the paper or letter in question.

Court.-—I rule that Mr. Osier may ask what the man stated.

Mr. Osier. What did the man state with reference to that letter, or what did

le purport to state ? What did he say, in other words ? A Am I understood to be

lebarred from referring to anything that was in the letter ?

Q. No? A. Well, the meaning conveyed to my mind, as I remember it, was,

hat the council of the French half-breeds at St. Anthony were justifying the position

)f antagonism to the Government, and they referred to the necessity of fighting, and

is I understood the letter generally, it was to call on the English-speaking half-

>reeds to support their movement. I cannot, as I have said, give you the exact

irords of it.

Q. Did the prisoner say who the letter was from ? A. I don t recollect that he

laid so. _;.-,, . . _
Q. Did the prisoner say anything further? Did he propose anything? A. Yes.

Q. What was it? A. After putting the letter in his pocket, he suggested that

the meeting, that meeting then present, should call upon those who had taken up

arms for the Government, to lay down their arms. 1 understood—I believe that is

as nearly as possible the words as he said them. I understood him to mean volunteers.

Q. Did he say anything further? A. Yes, he represented that it was very

desirable that we should have a peaceable settlement of the thing, because the Indians

were on the move, and he gave that as a reason for asking the settlers or volunteers

to lay down their arms, because if they continued to arm against them, the Indians

would rise in greater numbers, and he represented further that the half-breeds had

great influence with the Indians, and if the settlers kept quiet, the half-breeds would

be able to keep the Indians from breaking oat.

Q. Then, what else ? Was anything said as to the mounted police ? A, Well,

the expression was used toieave the French half-breeds and mounted police to settle

the matter among themselves.

Q. That was to settle it among themselves ? A. Between themselves
;
yes.

Q. Then, apparently, his desire was to get the volunteers, as you understood it,

to lay down their arms ? A. Certainly.

Q. And let the half-breeds and the police fight it out ? A. Yes.

Q. How. did he leave the meeting? A. After he had spoken, and after many
others had spoken, I proceeded to speak myself ; and knowing, as I thought I did,

the feeling of those present at the meeting, and knowing, or believing, at any rate,

that they sympathized very strongly with the French half- breeds, as being acquainted

with them, and many of them near relations, I was not at all surprised at the sym-

pathy existing between them ; and knowing that, I believed it to be quite useless to

expect the meeting to declare against them so far as to fight against them, and I

formulated a resolution.

Q. You formulated a resolution? A. Yes, I did.

Q. What did the prisoner do with regard to that ? Did you speak in the interests

of any particular course of action ? A. I did.

Q. What was the course of action ? A. I spoke in this way : I warned those

present at the meeting that this was not a question between the French half-breeds

and the North-West Mounted Police merely, but between the rebels—I called them

rebels—and the Dominion of Canada; and I told them what I thought some of them
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there might not know, that the Dominion of Canada had a very strong armed force
that they could pour into the country in a very short time, if the Mounted Police
were not able to cope with the rebellion ; and even if it were so that the rebels got
the better of the Dominion first, the whole power of the British Empire was behind
it. After I had done so, others spoke, and one man got up and said : Well, gentlemen,
we want to fight ; and another did so, and it became general talk all over the church
then. At that point Mr. Scott left the meeting, and was not there when the resolu-
tion was carried.

Q. At a point where there was a general talk, that they did not want to bear
arms ? A. That is the point at which he left the meeting, so that he did not hear
the resolution carried at all.

Cross-examined by Mr. Macli&i

:

Q. You say that the Rev. Mr. Matheson had directions from Major Orozier to do
certain things at that meeting ? A. Yes, I said se.

Q. And get the English half-breeds to remain neutral was one of those direc-
tions ? A. I did not say so.

Q. But that is what they did though, at that meeting wasn't it ? A. Yes.
Q. Didn't they state that his directions were to do that ? A. He did not state

so to me.
Q. Didn't Col. Irvine speak to you afterwards in approval of the fact that the

French-English half-breeds had been kept neutral, saying it was the best that could
be done under the circumstances ? A. I went down and saw Col. Irvine as soon as
he arrived at Prince Albert, I took a copy of the minute of the meeting, and I sub-
mitted it to him along with the answer which by that time I had got from Louis Kiel
to these resolutions, and he approved of the oourse I had taken.

Q. You were a party to this matter of their remaining neutral, you were living
amongst them ? A. Yes.

Q. Don't you consider you had authority for doing that ? A. From whom ?

Q. Through Mr. Matheson ? A. For doing which, seeing Col. Irvine ?

Q. No, with them joining in a resolution of neutrality ? A.I don't understand
your question at all.

Q. Well, when you joined in the resolutions, when you saw that neutrality was the
best thing that could be done, didn't you know that that expression was out of order ?

Didn't you know that any intention of neutrality was out of order ? A. Certainly, I
did.

Q. Now weren't you fortified in your mind by the fact that Mr. Matheson had
stated that he was instructed to bring that about ? A. Certainly not . Mr. Matheson
never said so to me as far as I recollect.

Q. He might have sard so ? A. Well, I forgot if he did. Mr. Matheson told
me that he had been asked to come down by Major Crazier, and hold that and another
meeting which I know nothing about personally, to ascertain the minds of the
inhabitants and in the interests of peaoe. I recollect the words very well.

Q. Now you, by whatever principle actuated, joined with them in that expres-
sion? A. Idid.

*

Q. That neutral position? A. I did.

Q. Now your settlements along there are in the direct route from Batoche to
Prince Albert, are they not? A. In part they are so, and in part they are not.

Q. Don't all the trails join before they reach ? A. Well they all join, but going
direct towards Prince Albert you go through only part of our district.

Q. Taking the Ridge, don't all the trails from Carlton, Batoche and Duck Lake
join before they get to the Ridge ? A. I understand they do. I have not been ©ver
them lately.

Q. Isn't it a fact that the people were greatly alarmed, in case of an Indian
rising which they feared ? Didn't they expect their position would be very dan-
gerous? A. Yes.
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Q. They wished also to be notified if possible beforehand by their compatriots,

their relatives, the French people, if there was any da nger of an Indian uprising, did

they not? A. I am not aware of that fact?

Q. You did not hear that expressed ? A. No.
Q. Aren't you aware of the fact that he expected they expected in some way ta

be notified if there was an Indian outbreak ? A. I am not aware of the fact at all.

Q, If they desired ? A.I am not aware of the fact.

Q. Now, after this meeting of the 22nd March, you commuaicated with the

French council yourself, did you not ? A. Yes, at the request ofthe meeting, I was
the secretary.

Q. It was done in the interests of peace, was it not, as you thought ? A* Yes.

Q. It was done also as part of the instructions to Mr. Matheson, was it not ? A.
Well, the meeting instructed me as secretary and I carried out their instructions.

Q. Didn't Mr. Matheson state that he was directed by the authorities to do this ?

A. Well, I have just told you a little ago what he said to me, and you told me that

he would tell you his instructions himself, so I refer you to them.

Q. Have you got a copy of the letter you wrote to Kiel ? A. Yes.

Q. Here? A. Yes.

Q. Please produce it ? (Witness produces this, and it is marked as an exhibit
4< A," put in by defence, letter dated 22nd March, and here read.)

Q. It was on the 22nd March despatched to Kiel and the council? A. No; it

was sent on the 23rd.

Q. Did you get an answer to that ? A. I did*

Q. Will you produce it ? A. I have the original answer from Eiel, and I have
a copy.

Q. Have you compared the copy ? A. I have the original. (Witness here pro-

duces the original which is marked exhibit " £," put in by defence, dated St. Anthony,
23rd March, 1885—Letter here read.)

Q. When did you receive that ? A. I received it on Tuesday, 24th.

Q. Was it read to any meeting at all, after that ? A. No.

Q. Was it read to anybody else at your house, settlers ? A. Yes.

Q. I suppose you, as secretary of the meeting, made it pretty generally known
that you had received the answer ? A. Yes.

Q. Now, at that meeting you spoke of, Mr. Scott spoke first, didu't he ? A. He did.

Q. It was just merely a discussion—Mr. Matheson was there and eleven others

were there j from this speech was there any intention on his part to stir up the peo-

ple ? A. I can't say as to that. I could not speak for his intention at all.

Q. But the effect of his speech was merely that he thought it would be better

for the volunteers to lay down their arms ? A. Yes.

Q. You were afterwards captain of the volunteers there, were you not ? A*
I was.

Q. It was the same sort of volunteers then that went to Carlton ? A. Well, we
thought we were better.

Q. Were you volunteers in a legal sense at all ? A. I can't tell you what is a
legal sense in this country.

Q. Were you authorized to raise a corps of volunteers ? A. I was not.

Q. You had no authority whatever ? A. No.
Q. Did Captain Moore have any such authority, as far as you know? A. I

ean't tell.

Q. Did he, as far as you know? A. I can't tell, I don't know anything about it.

Q. You afterwards were captain of a corps of volunteers ? A. I was.

Q. No. 4, and that was No. 1 ? A. No. 3, I was.

Q No. 1 Captain Moore was captain of? A. Yes.

Q. You were organized without any legal authority ? You don't know whether
you bad any standing as legal volunteers or not ? A. No, I don't know. I did not
enrol myself until the 31st day of March, when the commissioner issued a proclama-
tion calling on all men then in town between the ages of sixteen and sixty to enroll
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I remained out of it with the knowledge and sanction ofCommissioner Irvine up till
then, because he said that I could perhaps do more good by keeping the half-breeds
in my district quiet, and it was better for me not to join.

Q. And by keeping them quiet you might keep them neutral and from goini?
over? A. Yes. & &

Q. You felt that living amongst those English half-breeds it was a great thing to-
keep ihem neutral

; that there was great danger to yourselves and your properties
in case you could not? A. Certainly, I did think so.

Q. Now, didn't the fact of volunteers going from Prince Albert to Fort Carlton
very materially endanger your position there amongst those? A. I thought it did
I was against the movement. I had no authority. It was only my own personal

a $' \6 far as y0u know
'
you were against this illegal organization of volunteers ^

A. No, that was a different thing. I thought they made a mistake going to Carlton
Q. What effect would that have upon the Indians and French -that state of

affairs ? A. I cannot say.

Q. Wasn't it anticipated to have the effect of bringing them all down from
Prince Albert ? A. I have no means of knowing that at all.

Q. When those volunteers left Prince Albert, isn't it a fact they took almost all
the arms away and left Prince Albert and the country almost defenceless ? A. They
took the greater part of them, I understand.

*

Q. Now, might not Mr. Scott's remark with regard to the volunteers have
referred to home protection ? A. I could not imagine that it did. He wished the
volunteers to lay down their arms, and how that could lead to home protection I
don't see at all.

r

Q. They had gone away to Fort Carlton ? A. Part of them had, but not the
whole of them.

Q. Almost all that had arms did ? A. But new men were being enrolled every
day , and quite a few were there when I went down.

Q. How were they armed ? A. Some had shot guns.
Q. Some had clubs ? A, No, we did not deeeend to clubs.
ty. Most of them had nothing but shotrguns, wasn't it the case ? A. The majority

of them had only shot-ffuns; yes.

Q. Yours was one of the companies that were out every other night, all niffht
^very man ? A. Yes.

6

Q. Will you undertake to say that everybody knew that on the 22nd March, that
the French half-breeds were in arms; you had heard about the pillaging of stores,
hud you not? A. Yes.

Q. Wasn't that all you heard? A. I also know, as I stated before, that the
volunteers had gone to Carlton in consequence of them rising.

Q. All that you really knew at the time was that those stores had been pillaged,
was it not ? A. And prisoners taken.

Q. You heard that ? A. Yes, I don't know yet that there was anything else—
to know of anything.

Q. You don't know that the whole country about you all that time knew as much
even as you did about the state of affairs in the French settlement ? A. I did not
say it was impossible that I could have seen and communicate with every individual
in the district, but everyone that I did see knew as well as I did.

Q^ Now, at that St. Catharine's meeting, Mr. Scott spoke first, did he not? A.
1 could not say that he did. No, the chairman spoke first.

Q But then he spoke before you did ? A. He did.
Q. And then he went out ? A. Yes, he went out after I had spoken.
Q. You would be sure about that? A. Yes ; I spoke to him when he was going

out. I said that he had better remain and see the result, and he said he would not
remain.

Q. Did Mr. Patterson say anything at that meeting ? I don't recollect that he
spoke publicly. He was present and he signed the minute as I read his name out.
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Q. Now, weren't Mr. Matheson's instructions as follows: Although the people
worked with the French in constitutional agitation, now that they had taken up armft

they, the French, couli not expect them to support them in arms, as to which they
would remain neutral. Weren't those the instructions Mr. Matheson commu-
nicated to the meeting ? A. I don't recollect.

Q. They might have been ? A. I am almost certain that he spoke to that effect

Q. He, speaking to the people, told them those instructions were in this wise

:

Although they worked with the French in constitutional agitation, now that they had
taken up arms they, the French, could not expect them to support them in arms, as

to which they would remain neutral. From all that you recollect, that mit
been just what he said ? A. As I have said, it was to that effect ; it is impossible to
remember the exact words.

ft**

Q He stated that those were authoritatively given as his instructions, did he
not ? A. No, I could not say that. As I remember it, he was speaking his own
opinion at the time.

Q. You, already, in your examination-in-chief, said that he was sent by Major
Orozier ? A. Yes, but whether he was sent to say that or not, I can't tell. I know
what he said to me outside the church.

Q. Didn't you understand he was speaking with authority? A. No; it migh +

or it might not be. I don't suppose it passed through my mind as to whether it wa^
or not. 1 took it as his own view^, and they coincided with mine.

Q. You stated that you knew the position of neutrality was blameable, but yet
was the best that could be done ? A. Yes.

Q. Now, you won't state that Mr. Matheson, who was authorized, who was
directed by th$ authorities to go there and take these steps—you won't state that be
said that he was authorized by the authorities to bring this matter of neutrality
about? A. No ; I can't say that.

Q. It might have been the case, however ? A. Yes, for all I know to th e

trary.

Q. Now, these resolutions that were passed there, according to what Mr.
Matheson said, were to be returned to Carlton, were they not, the originals ? A. No

:

Mr. Matheson did not give any instructions to that effect ; that was done by the
meeting.

Q. Who proposed it ? A. I proposed it myself; it is part of the resolution.

Q. Now, isn't it a fact that Mr. Scott advocated the protecting of that Prince
Albert country, and your country. A. At that meeting ?

Q. Yes ? A. I am not aware of that fact.

Q. He may have done so ? A, I don't recollect it.

Q. Didn't Mr. Matheson state that Andrew Patterson was with him to return at
once to Carlton, with a minute of what was done there ? A. Yes, that is quite right.

Q. To the authorities at Carlton ? A. Well, I understood it was to the authori-
ties ; there was nobody else to return to ; and in point of fact he did return with
them.

Q. Who were they directed to ? Who did you direct the parcel to? A. To
Major Crozier.

Q. As far as you know, he took them back to Major Crozier ? A. Yes.

Q. And you stated to us that when you told Col. Irvine afterwards who was the
highest constituted authority in that district, as far as you knew, and superseded
Major Crozier, you stated to him the course that had been taken, and he approved
of it? A. He approved of my individual action. I was only justifying myself.

Q. But you moved the motion ? A. He approved of it this far, that he thought
I had done the best that could be done under the circumstances.

By Mr. Osier :

Q. When the document you have read, a copy of which was sent to the French—do I understand you to eay that at the same time a copy was sent up to Major
Crozier ? A. Yes, by a separate messenger.
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Q So that of that document that you have read here, a copy was sent to Major

Orozier as well as to the rebels in arms ? A. Yes. I got an acknowledgment from

Major Crozier, a copy of which I have in my pocket.

By Mr. Maclise :

Q. Will you produce that ? (Witness produces copy, which is read by him and

marked exhibit " C," for the defence,)

Thomas McKay sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott :

Q, You live at Prince Albert ? A. Yes.

Q. Where were you on the night of the 20th March ? A. Prince Albert.

Q. On the night ? A. At Carlton.
. , o * m

Q. Where did you go, or did you go any other place that nignt? A. lo

Batoche.

Q. Where to at Batoche ? A. The council room, Kiel s council.

Q. Were you alone ? A. I went with Mr. Mitchell.

Q. For what purpose ? A.I went to see the rebels, who had broken out there,

to see it T could induce them to stop the movement and not go any further.

Q. Whom did you see in the room there ? Did you see Kiel ? A. I saw Kiel

and a number of bis council.

q. Anyone else ? A. Well, there was quite a number of French halt-breeds

there.

Q. Where was the council room ? A. I don't know whose house. It was near

about the church which was burnt down. Since then I don't know who owned the

house.

Q. Was it on the ground floor ? A. Yes.

Q. Did Mitchell remain there ? A. Mitchell was up and down stairs.

Q. Do you know of anyone else being in the house that night beside those you

saw there ? A. There were several people up stairs.

Q. Do you know any of those who were up stairs ? A. I saw some of them come

down, I recollect some of them that came down stairs.

Q. Do you know of anyone else being there whom you did not see? A. The

prisoner was there—I recognized his voice. I did not see him, but I recognized his

voice. He was up stairs and came down and passed through the room. I did not

see him. I heard him speak.

Q. And I suppose there can be no doubt about its being him ? A. 1 believe it

was him.

Q. Who were up stairs at the time you heard his voice there, up there any portion

of the time ? A. Mr. Mitchell was up there at the time.

Q. Anyone else ? A 1 don't know. There were quite a lot up and down stairs.

Q. Did Kiel remain in the council room all the time ? A. No, he was up and

down. He said there was a committee meeting going on up stairs, and he left the

ground floor and went up stairs.

Q. Did he go up there at the time the- prisoner was there ? A. Yes.

Q. He went up there saying it was a committee meeting ? A. Yes. He told

me several times that I was disturbing the committee meeting, I was speaking too

Q, What was the state of the half-breeds in that neighborhood at the time? A.

Most of them gathered around Batoche were armed and taking prisoners, and they

were scattered all along the road, and carting over goods from Walters & Baker's

store to some of the stores on the side of the river.

Q. That was the state of the country at that time ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Maclise

:

Q. Who directed you to go to Batoche? A. Nobody directed me.

Q. Who directed you to go there in the interests ? A. Mr. Kelly drove us

there.
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Q. At whose instance did you go ? A. When I left Prince Albert I told

bhe people there I would go over immediately from Carlton ; when I came to Carlton,

Mitchell was there, and he asked me to go over with him, and I suggested it to Major
Oozier, and he told me very well, to go over.

Q. You went over in the interests of bringing about peace ? A. I tried to point

Kit the wrong those people were doing, and the danger they were drifting in, and I
bold them so in the council room.

Q. You were in the council room in the same building as Mr. Scott ? A. Yes,

in the ground floor.

Q. You heard his voice you say ? A . Yes

.

Q. You don't know who he was talking to? A. No.
Q. It might have been to Mr. Mitchell? A. I thought at the time he was

talking to Mr. Mitchell. It was something about that it was a cold morning, and he
merely made the remark it was cold. I am not sure it was Mr. Mitchell, or that he
had got there that morning.

Q. Do you not know as matter of fact Mr. Scott cannot talk Cree ? A. I don't

know whether he can or not.

Q. What do you think about it ? A. I don't know anything: about it.

Q. You knew Mr. Scott's deceased wife did you not? A. Yes.
Q. And you know Mrs. Thompson is his mother-in-law? A. Yes.

Q. They are half-breeds are they not ? A. Yes.

Q, They were people of the Saskatchewan weren't they and not from Manitoba ?

A. Yes, they were from the Saskatchewan.
Q. They were original natives of the country, and claimed to have the rights of

half-breeds of Manitoba? A. They claimed the same as I myself; they were entitled

to half-breed scrip.

Q. Now would it be a surprise to you to learn that Mr. Scott was there upon
the same errand as you were, in a different manner ? As far as you know he may
have been ? A.I don't know at all what he was there for.

Q. When these volunteers went up to Carlton you were with them ? A. Yes.

Q You were one of the officers^of the company were you not ? A. No.
Q. You were a volunteer- ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember a meeting held on the 17th March, or 18th or 19th, and
Major Crozier there early in the morning brought down news of the volunteers ; do
you remember the meeting held in the flats there the afternoon of the 17th? A. I
heard of it, but I was not there.

Q. Do you know anybody who was at that meeting ? A. I heard several people
were there.

Q. It lasted most of the afternoon, did $ not ? A. I believe so, some time.

Q. Did you see Capt. Moore after that meeting ? A. Yes, I saw him before and
after.

Q. Did he tell you he had been at that meeting^? A. I don't know whether he
did or not. I understood he was there.

Q. Now you have taken an active part in having Mr. Scott arrested under this

charge have you not? A. No, I have not. I have taken no part in the matter at

all.

Q. Isn't it a fact at Fort Carlton you tried to get Andrew Peterson to lay an
information against him ? A. No, I did not. I never did anything of the kind. I

never tried to induce anybody to lay an information against Scott or anybody else.

Q . Didn't you, afterwards, in presence ofCol. Irvine at Prince Albert, ask Andrew
Peterson to lay an information against Thomas Scott? A. I never did.

Q. Didn't you tell Andrew Peterson you would have him arrested if he did not ?

A. No, I never did.

Q. You did not? A. No.
Q. You know that Mr. Scott is a very extensive farmer at the Kidge ? A. Yes.

Q. You know he is one of the most successful farmers in the country ? A. I
believe he is.
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Q. You know it was by the officers of the North West Mounted Police and

through their orders they were completely made waste during the rebellion? A. I

heard his cattle and hay. I don't know anything personal about it, it was merely

rumor.
Q. Had you anything to do with suggesting to bring him up ? A. No, 1 never

had anything to do with it at all.

Q. You swear positively you did not ask Andrew Peterson, nor try to get him

to swear an information against this man Thomas Scott ? A. I tell you that I did

not do it.

Q. You never had any conversation with Mr. Peterson about it? A. No, Mr.

Peterson told me when he came up with the resolutions. He handed them to me, and

and I took them over to Major Crozier, and he told me Scott was very active in try-

ing to pass a resolution suggesting that the volunteers should lay down their arms

and that sort of thing. J
Q. Well, you are well acquainted with the Kev. Mr. Matheson, are you not r

A Yes.
Q. He went up to Fort Carkon on Sunday the 22nd, he was there to hold service

was he not ? A. I saw him there on Sunday the 22nd.

Q. You went to him early in the morning did you not ? A. Yes.

Q. What took place between you ? A. I asked him to go down to St. Catharines.

Q. At whose instance did you do this ? A. I suggested it to Major Crozier and

he asked me to do it.

Q. What did you do? A. I asked Mr. Matheson to go down and catch the-

people while they were having service at the churches and ask them to declare them-

selves, find out what part they intended to take in the matter, and I told him that

Mr. Eiel told his people they had Mr. Scott there and some other delegates, and they

could count on the support of the English half-breeds, and I asked him to go down

and call a meeting and ask them to declare themselves. I said I don't suppose yom

can get them to declare in favor of the Government, but if you can teli they won't

support them in this rit-ing of arms, it will be so much gaired, it will weaken his*

hands

.

Q. It was in effect, to take neither side ? A. I simply asked him to find out what

they would do in the matter, and as 1 told him, I did not suppose he would get them

to declare themselves in favor of the Government, but if they said they would remaim

neutral, that would be so much gained.

Q. And you desired him to go up instead oi holding service, as he had come up
there with the intention of doing? A. les, I suggested it to Major Crozier, and

he thought it was a very good thing.

By Mr. Scott ;

Q. You were in command of the scouts ? A. Yes.

Q. You derived authority from the commissiouer of the police ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you give them any instructions in regard to Mr. Scott's place ? A. N<

Q. You have already told us that Scott was a large farmer there. Now, don'

you know as mutter of fact he is surrounded by a large settlement almost entirely

composed of English half-breeds ? A. Yes, the majority of the people there are En^

lish half-breeds.

Q. Do you know as a fact too that he has a great deal of influence over thos*

men too ? A. I don't know that he has.

Q. You have some influence over them ? A. I don't know that I have. They
often come to me and asked me for advice, but very often they don't follow it, so I

don't infer from that my advice has much influence with any ol them.

Q. Did the Government take any of his cattle by force ? A. No.

Q. You were asked about the 23rd March to sign a petition by William Miller,

were you not? A. No.
Q. Did you see Mr. William Miller at all on the 23rd ? A. No.

Q. Did he ask you to sign any paper ? A. No.
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Q. He did not? A. No, he did not.

Q. Did be ask you on the 24th to sign any paper ? A. No, not that I am aware of.

Q. Did he ask you about that time, before or after, within the space of a week
before, or a month before, or a month afterwards, to sign any paper ? A. No, not
;o sign any paper. He showed me a paper, a resolution that had been passed on the
foth— sometime about noon of the 25th.

Q. And what did he want of you ? A. He merely stated that they had a meeti-
ng last night, and the resolution then passed—something about the laying down of
irms. I don't know exactly what it was. I did not pay very much attention to it.

\.t the time I was driving with Mr. Miller to Carlton,

Q Did you make use of the expression then, to hell with the French ? A. No,
itold bim he could shove his resolution up his stern.

Q Did you say to hell with the French ? A. No, I did not.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Is the prisoner's wife alive ? A. No, she is dead.

Q. Has he any children ? A. They had a child. I think he is dead. I am not
>ositive.

Q. How long is his wife dead ? A. I think oyer a year ago. She was in very
»oor health, and I think the child is dead.

By Mr. Maclise :

Q. His mother-in-law lives with him, and always has ? A. I believe she lives
rith him. I have seen her there.

A. L. Lunen sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Osier :

Q. You have had experience in a bank, I believe ? A. Yes.
Q. For some years ? A. Yes.

Q. What was your employment in a bank ? A. Well, I have had different posts.

Q. Have you had occasion to examine handwriting and signatures ? A. Yes.

_
Q. Now, that signature to Exhibit No, 6 is said to be Thomas Scott's, and Ex-

ibit No. 7 is said to be Thomas Scott's, and the signature to No. 8 is said to be Thomas
cott's, and the signature on No. 5, the post office return, is claimed by the Crown to
3 Thomas Scott's, and two signatures on No. 4 said to be Thomas Scott's, signature
a 5 Thomas Scott's, and the signature on the paper attached to it, the declaration,
lid to be Thomas Scott's.. Have you examined that writing and compared with the
gnature and writing in Exhibit No. 1, and have you formed any opinion upon the
riting in Exhibit No. 1 ? A. I think the writing in all these papers is the same.

Q. Do you say the signature, Thomas Scott, is the same as the signature in the
ther papers, Thomas Scott ? A. Yes.

Q. By the same man ? A. Yes, I think so.

By Mr. Clarke :

Q. You have examined that paper, signed " Thomas Scott " and witnessed by
>mebody else, No. 6 ? A. Yes.

Q. Well, what do you say of that paper ? A. I think the handwriting is the
ime as the others.

Q. You think it is the same ? A. Yes.
Q. Now, you are brought here I presume, as an expert? A. I don't know.
Q. Will you look at that paper now, No, 6, and say on your oath is the whole of

lat writing not the same as the words, " witness, Joseph Thompson " ? A. They
:em very much alike. In fact they are very much alike in both cases.

By the Court :

Q. The whole writing of No. 6 is like that No. 1, did I understand you to say?
. Yes, there is very great similarity between the writing.
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,

By Mr. Clarke ;

Q. Will you compare the signatures on those three papers which we now put in

and file (exhibits " D " " E " and " F ") and others, with the signatures of Thomas Scott,

that you have been trying to identify, and say which of them are Thomas Scott's signa-

tures ? A. I would not take those " D " to be Mr. Scott's. I don't think those are

his. " E " and " F " might be his

Q. Now, looking at this other paper " G," point out the signatures that you find
|

there of his, Thomas Scott's, handwriting ? A. 4, 5 and 6 I would take to be the
|

same writing as this No. 1 paper, and the one in the bond and declaration. The

other might be and might not be. It all depends on what sort of pen you write
j

with.

Q. Whose do you think that (" H ") is ? A. This writing resembles No. 6. It

is similar to the other writings.

Q. That No. 6 is like Thomas Scott's signature, or which do I understand? A.

I don't know whether either of them are Thomas Scott's signature.

Q. What do you mean ? Do you mean that those two writings are the same T

A. These two, 6 and " H " are the same, and these two and all the others resemble
,

-each other very much.
Mr. Osier.—That is the case for the Crown, your Honors.

Mr. Clarke.—I would submit to your Honors, whether you think there is a case
j

xo go to the jury in this matter. My opinion is that there is not.

Court.—Why ?

Mr. Clarke.—I submit that there is no case made out by the Crown with which

to go to the jury in this matter, and for the purpose of expediting business and

preventing any more loss of time, I think it might be as well to have the opinion of-
j

the court on that matter, so that the jury may be directed accordingly.

Court—Well, what are the grounds ?

Mr. Clarke.—The grounds are that the prisoner stands charged with treason-

felony, and the only thing that has been produced against the prisoner is a letter
|

which was written, supposed to be written by him, and supposed to be sent by him
j

to the parties connected with an illegal outbreak, but at that time no proof of being
j

in actual rebellion. Every uprising is not a rebellion. Every mob is not a rr hel-

lion, Tbe stealing of the goods in a store by a number of armed men does not eon-
'

stitute rebellions

Court.—Not perse.
,

. ....

Mr. Clarke.—The iakicg of goods on a highway does not constitute rebellion.

Now we have no act of rebellion proved here that I can see, in which or with which

the prisoner is in the most remote degree identified. I submit that there is no proof

that that letter that is brought up, and on which the changes have been rung no-

less than three or four places in the indictment—that there is absolutely no proor*

that that is the prisoner's writing at all or how it came there. It is true we have-

proof that some of the Crown witnesses were in direct communication with people

who were charged with that rebellion. «

#

Court.—Well, you say that the letter is not proved as the prisoners, and that

there is no other evidence ?
, j

Mr. Clarke.—There was no evidence whatever to show that the prisoner had any

notice that there was such a thing as rebellion ; and there really was not until after

the attack upon the police at Duck Lake, and that with reference to any culpability-

or criminality, if you will, on the part of the prisoner in trying to make certain

parties a very large, a very influential part of the community, remain neutral, 1

submit'the authorities were those who gave the cue and those who sent their own.

officers and their own emissaries for that very purpose. ^u\ *

Under those circumstances I submit to your Honor that I do not believe there

is a case to go to the jury upon which any man should be put on trial and his liberty

imperilled.

Mr. Osier—I submit to your Honors that there is not only a case but
#

a very

strong case. On the question of the proof of the letter, I submit that there is ampte
6
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proof of original writings, that cannot bo questioned . There is evidence by an

expert of the comparison, but in* all such cases there is not only the evidence of the

expert where original writings are produced, but there is the right of the jury to

take the papers that are brought in as originals and proved to be originals, and com-
pare them with the writing charged to be the prisoner's. They have also to consider

the circumstances under which the letter is found, and the circumstances under which

the prisoner was placed, and say is it likely that he wap the writer of that letter,

with the evidence that there is of comparison here, and their own means of looking

at the various papers, and saying whether or not it is original. Upon the question

then of handwriting, that of course must go to the jury. If the jury after hearing

Mr. Lunen's evidence and after examining the undoubtful originals, original writings

of the prisoner with the paper alleged to be his, that it is not his, why then ofcourse

that eliminates that branch of the case, but it must be eliminated by the finding of

the jury, it must be passed upon by them as matter of fact. That letter alone then,

"brought home to the prisoner is enough for the jury to pass upon and it is not for the

court to rule— it must be for the jury to say whether that letter is not in the words

of the indictment aiding, consulting, or aiding, comforting, assisting and maintaining.

So that, standing on the writing alone, I submit there is an ample ca*e ; apart from
that, of course there is a very serioup case made by the prisoner—against the prisoner,

the particulars of which 1 ne«d not go into, as my learned friend has not, but as far

as the Crown is concerned, we can only take the responsibility of saying that it is a

case we think that ought to be passed on by the jury.

Court.— ! don't thirjk that I have the power of stopping a case. I have always

held that opinion that where a jury are empannelled I cannot stop a case and they

lave rights, thpy are a part and parcel of the court. I may simply give my opinion

upon the evidence, but I don't think I would stop it. I see.no reason to alter that

opinion and I have held it for the last six or seven years, and I shall ask you, Mr.

Clarke for your defence. My reason for holding as I do, is that I have not the power,

the right to order a discharge.

Mr. Clarke.—I submit to your lordship that you have. It is not a question of

law, as matter of law, there has not been any legal evidence adduced against the

prisoner.

Court.—There is this evidence—taking Mr. Craig's alone tha f the rebellion was
generally reported as having broken out.

Mn Clarke.—It was reported generally to him, he happened to have papers in

his pocket from the rebels which he read in the dock. Now, in what way are

addresses to the jury regulated in this court ? I may be getting into a b<»d fix with-

out knowing it.

Mr. Osier.—I will tell you how I understand them. The ordinary practice under

the statute which is in force here in our courts in Ontario, is for the prisoner's counsel'

first to call his evidence and then speak generally in the case, he can however open
his case before giving evider ce ; if he opens his case before giving evidence, then he is

confined in his second speech to summing up his own evidence ; and that statute is

in force here

.

Court.—The usual course that has been adopted has been to call the witnesses

first without any opening, and then take a general opening, with the Crown's right

to reply.

Mr. Osier.—The inconvenience that I have found in defence is that you cripple

your reply by your being confined to summing up your evidence, butiu the Kiel case

they opened find closed that way.
Court—Do you intend to call witnesses, Mr. Clarke ?

Mr. Clarke.—Oh, yes, I intend to call witnesses. Gentlemen of the jury, my
learned friend, Mr. Osier, counsel for the Crown, opened his case and stated what he
charged the pripouer with, and what he intended to prove against the prifoner. The
indictment wap rrad 1 o you, and you heard all about thai. Boiled down, it amounts
to this, that there was a great deal of dissatisfaction and excitement in that part of

the country, principally between the half-breed population, whether French or Eng-
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lish, they were dissatisfied. Now, in submitting to you the proposition with refer-

ence to the dissatisfaction, there were certain things that were alleged by the learned

counsel for the Crown that we cannot afford—we cannot, in the performance of our
duty, allow to pass unchallenged. To do so would be to admit that the people of this

country were, not only disloyal, the whole native population and a great deal of th©
population that is not native to tnis country, that they were disloyal in tho extreme,
that without having any grievances they resorted to rebellion. Now, that is the*

proposition that the learned counsel submitted to you, and when he said that h*
went on to show you examples of what should be done, of what constituted loyalty,

and what constituted disloyalty. He went on to say that it was the duty of the
people to wait and bear and submit until time should remedy all the evils that they
complain of, and he told you that history taught you so, Well, if it be the case, the
history that my learned friend has read and the history that I have read, contradict

each other in a most extraordinary manner. From the first moment of tho dawn of
history, the struggles of the people against their oppressors filled every page, and
the achievements of the suffering people rising in their might and crushing their

tyrants are the brightest pages with which history is gilded and handed down as
an example of what our forefathers have done, that we in time should do, should
tyranny ever dare to lift its ugly head in our midst. That is what history has
taught me; butthj learned counsel says that the subject must bear patiently and
continue to bear. When Nero sat on the highest building in Home while the whold
capital of the world was being ournt, it was necessaiy that his slaves should patiently

submit and allow their monarch to enjoy his little pastime, and not say a word ?

Wben the people of England oppressed by their tyrants and by their kings, and
the old barons of Bannymede drew from the king the great charter, the charter of
the people's rights, we are to be told that the barons should have bowed low and in

the most modest key say to the king, we submit to everything, and we will make
our serfs submit to us, or we will crush them under our heels. Did history ever tell

you so ? or does not all history contradict the assertion ? When your forefathers in

England, and Ireland and Scotland and Canada—when they were oppressed, did

they submit tamely like slaves?—and if they had submitted tamely like slaves, like

slaves they deserved to suffer that the chain should gall them still, and that round
their neck* should be the yoke of slavery and of serfdom to the end of all time. No,
gentlemen, it is no portion of the duty of a loyal man to submit to tyranny on the

part of the authorities, bat it is the grossest, the veriest tyranny, the veriest treason

to the rights of the people, that any Crown or any Government should dare to

oppress those who have put themselves in their power, and to refuse them redress.

This was exactly the position that these unfortunate half-breeds were in in the North-

West British Canada, and we are told they have no grievance, none whatever.

Let us see if they had any grievance. The Crown alleges they did not. We take

issue with the Crown, and we will show that they nad grievances. Then the question

will be, did they resort to the proper course to try and have those arrievances redressed ?

By the agreement entered into between Sir George E. Cartier and the Hon. William
Maodougall, representing Canada, in London on the 8th February, 1869, between

the delegates from Canada, for acquiring the North-West Territory, and the Hudson
Bay Company, these are the conditions : That Canada should undertake the duties

and the obligations of government, and legislate in respect of those territories

;

second, that the rights of any company, corporation or individual within the terri-

tories should be respected, and that provision should be made for that purpose by,

placing those rights under the protection of courts of competent jurisdiction; that

is the condition upon which Canada obtained this vast country, and the condition

made by those who were handing over, as it were, the rights of the peoplo of the:

country to their new masters ; that they were to establish courts of competent juris-

diction to guard and secure to the people their rights as their birthrights in this

country. Now, gentlemen of the jury, who makes that promise? It is solemnly

made by the representatives of Canada; it is solemnly entered into by two ministers

of the Crown ; by two of Her Majesty's advisers. It was a contract—a contract
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entered into solemnly on behalf of the government or the.Crown, and ft «*««£

^XiSSSf ThelhtBl^e^nt^defthrZnitl^S ,S2I^oK^&LSt^.^^«fcrenoe to the transfer of this country

that tLlnoLns should be properly and honorably dealt with by the government of

tHsoountry rthird that the claims of the Indian tribes to compensation forahe

ands reqmred for the purposes of settlement should be c^1<Je^^d
th
8

f^fti^
conformity with the equitable principles which have uniformly governed the Buttsh

Crow™n Its dealings with the aborigines. These were the two special conditions toS intended to refer, to show whether these people had grievance^or^ot.

Imonc the reasons why these things became necessary, more necessary than ever,

anTwhv they were sanctified, so to speak, by the Manitoba Act in reference to a

smilTSr ioYJthe North-W^t Territory, waa because although that contact had

bZ entered into by the Government, still the people of Red River settlement,

before the completion of the contract, discovered that they were going to be sold and

transferred like chattels or live stock, along with the land that themselves and their

forefethers'ba^ occupied for sixty years, and that no attention whatever was going

to beTairtoTheft Hghts, nor were they to be secured to them by any legal mean,;

tit tuey were towaft, in fact, until it Agreed with the convenience of.toe.govern-

ment of a new country to them strangers, when and where and upon what wad'tion

Sese rights were to be secured to them, they appealed to this ,clause of the arrange-

ment Where are these courts of competent jurisdiction ? The Hudson Bay oom

Tnv said -We will accept no such court of competent jurisdiction to settle our

Ss becaust we have not sufficient confidence-we have not sufficient confidence

iXcouXthaT you will establish; but the people of the f™*7™"g*%l
bo long as courts of competent jurisdiction are established to defend their rights and

secure them they were satisfied. But no such court was about being established

fte country'wafabTut being handed over, the ^™or and his ready-made couneU

of seven were sent up from Ottawa to govern the country that had not yet been

handed over to the British Crown by the holders of it under the British^Crown M,

McDougall and a ready-made government were sent up from Ottawa betore>tne

Queen's
8

proclamation bid even
8

issued, or before a time.had been fixed for^ts

issuing to take possession of the country. What was the result then ? W hy,

genUemen,the result was that this same Louis Riel-then a young man m the

fey-day of his youth, and just " new from college "-he came there, and he took the

lead amone his countrymen. He demanded that their rights should b^ secured,

and when fhat'demand^as refused, and when they talked of send ng an arme
L
force

to take possession of the country, the Hudson Bay Company's post was taken posses-

gfon of the Governor in Council of Assiuiboia who had been dormant or si..ping dur-

n°g aUthi: time were overthrown, and the result was the rebel government a, t was

called, was established for the purpose of securing the rights of the people.^
JNow,

gentlemen of the jury, let us look whether there was a rebel government there or

?

nojr

?

Who did they rebel against? What right had Canada to take P099.e991°V*°"L;on
much riVht as you or I would have to go down and take possession of a portion

5 D»totiT erriCy ? The Crown had not given her any authority to take possession

The Queen-:7roc7amation had not been isfued. But the people who were
f

gn,lty^of

a crime against the constitutional law of the nation were the Government f
Canada,

wno darefto put their feet on ground that did not belong to the™, and sent * Cover

nor in Council to govern over that which had never been ceded to them, lbere^cue

na breeds were rfght, and the French half-breeds and the Bnglish half-breeds went

hand-in hand together, and they said: Ton may sell the land, but you shall never

seU slaves afonfwith 'the land/and they would have been less.British subject had

they not done ft, and they would be unworthy of hodmg the position of free men in

a free nation had they allowed themselves to be sold with thia soil without raising

a voice in expostulation against it, and called upon the Queen to.pro ect them The£

did call upon the Queen and she gave them protection, and she told the

»

om'nl™ <*

Canada, you shall not send a solitary stranger into the North-West Territory, nor will

'
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~we allow a solitary stranger to go there until the vested rights of the people shall
first have been secured to them by Act of Parliament. Hence the Manitoba Act.
IThen it was that Queen Victoria, speaking from the Throne, told her servants in
Canada, you must nut dare infringe upon the rights of the weakest of my subjects
away in that far north land that is shut out from the world during six months of the
year,though to them as dear as those that surround home in the old world,and you must
not dare to infringe upon their rights ; and why do we appeal to our mother sitting
upon the Throne ? We always feel that we will receive that which the British con-
stitution declares to be the birthright of a British subject. And then the Manitoba
Act was passed, and by that Manitoba Act 1,400,000 acres were set apart for children
•of half-breeds, heads of families, and it was determined that the old settlers should
nave some claims. Men who came in with Selkirk, men who came in from 1815 to
1820 who travelled down from Churchill where they came in by way of Hudson Bay,
good old Scotchmen and women that walked down, and when their mothers—some
of those that are being arrested to-day and thrown into gaol, when they left the marks
of their devotion to their native land, left them marked on the crisping snow, where
their footmarks were imprinted upon that snow marching down there in the depth of
-winter until they struck the Bed River settlement—these are the titles that Scotch
lialfbreeds have to consideration at the hands of the British Crown. They came
Aere to preserve this country to the British Crown, and the British Crown will
allow no bastard off-shoot to ever trample on the rights of the people, such
people as they ; be sure of it. Yes, gentlemen, these men that came in, these
snen and women that came in from 1815 to 1820, such as the Gunns, and the Suther-
lands, and the Bremners, and dozens of others that I might mention, some of whom-
Jhave only passed away within a few short years, some of them who are living yet,
some of those who came into this country when it was a perfect wilderness, who came
into it before some of our forefathers were born— these men are still in this country
ssnd they see that their children to-day have not been fairly dealt with by those that
entered into a secret compact with tr»e Crown of England that they would deal fairly% those people. The Manitoba Act secured to the half-breeds, heads of families and
children, secured to them 1,400,000 acres that was to be divided among those children
"•without any loss of time.

How was it done ? Today, in the city of Winnipeg, at the end of fifteen years,
mfter that solemn pledge to honor and faith of a Government that was just coming
into existence to take its place among the nations of the earth, that honor that should
fce as unsullied, as unspotted as the virgin who goes to the altar, that honor was
pledged, and fifteen years of peace your Honors have been spent, and the pledge is
unredeemed and the half-breeds heads of families are fighting for the rights of their
children to day at Winnipeg, Ottawa and Prince Albert, and here in the capital of
this .North

•

We^t Territory. They have not received their rights yet. How is this ?
The faith of a Government was pledged that courts of competent jurisdiction should
he established, and that these rights would be secured to the people under those courts
©f competent jurisdiction. Where has the pledge been redeemed? No such court
ilias ever been established, no court of competent jurisdiction has ever been established
as a court of claims in which half breeds could obtain their rights and by which their
Tights could be protected, but we have proof that there has been something done, we
have it printed by and at the order of the Government of Canada. What has been
-done? We have the proof that the rights of the people, the halfbreeds, were being
secured to them, in fact that they were told that everything had been done in the
anost complete manner possible, and here is what they say in reference to that. This
4[pioducingit) is the report of the Department of the Interior for last year, 1884,.
printed by order of Parliament, ard laid upon the table during this last Session. This
report is printed and it is signed by the deputy of the Minister of the Interior, a
certain Mr. Burgess. Be says, at page 11:

"The Claims of the Old Settlers.—At the time the ofhYes of deputy head and
surveyor general were separated, and Mr. Lindsay Eussell was charged with the
duties appertaining to the latter position it was provided that he should investigate
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and settle the claims to laud by virtue of long occupation advanced by old settlers

alone the North Saskatchewan." _.;. .. -r>„„„.tm^+W, there is a court of competent jurisdiction. One official in the Department

of the Interior at Ottawa, at the end of fourteen years is named, during the tune he

has nothing else to do, to look after this arrangement, and when it was found that

Mr. Eusselfs health did not admit of his visiting the settlements, an Order m Council

was passed remitting this portion of his work to the Land Board. Accordingly early

to the year, Mr. Pie?ce went to Prince Albert (now mark this, gentlemen) Mr. Pierce

went to Prinze Albert and from there to Battleford and Edmonton and St. Albert

Indie made a personal, careful enquiry into all claims of this class at those places-

with tlTresult that all/with one or two e^pHons at Battleford and Edmonton, have

teen finally and satisfactorily disposed of, the only claims of od settlers remaining

unsettled are at Lac la Biche, Victoria and Battle Ever. Gentlemen of the jnry, that

TsTpubL document. That is taken on the floor of the House ofCommons ,n England

as an authentic document. It is official. It is pnblUhed by order of Parliament. It

is a report of an employe of the Government of Canada, of the Deputy Minister, and

he savs to the world in that printed report, printed by order of Parliament that the

old seders' cn/ms at Battleford and Princ'eVert and all these places have been

finally and satisfactorily settled during the last year. Gentlemen is it pessary to

onntradictthis? Is it necessary that I should contradict it ? Ithas been contradicted,

and contradicted in away that will never befoigottenby some hearts that are sorrow-

ing today until those hearts shall have ceased to beat. Before the ink was dry'in which

thf report was printed, lying, misleading scandalous report-before the inkwa* dry

the contradiction went back, hurled back to the floor of the House of Commons of

Canada and was sent to the whole world in the death cry of those whowere.being shot

down by the outraged people who were being lied into subjection by order of the

Parliament in printfd reports such as that is. The contradiction went to the world^that

a satisfactory settlement had been made, when the rifle ball tegan to claim what had'

heen refused to the settlers' humble petition and demand ; "V^r^Se^S'
of being the people who wrote and concocted those lies that suffered, * ^be young

men of this young country whose hearts had to become the breastwork of those who

were cheati/g thf people^ such statements as those and meet the consequences.

Gentlemen, are you to he told after this these people have no grievances? Why

Took at the' contradiction. This Government, that for fifteen years had turned^a deaf

ear to the cries and the petitions, to the meetings and to the«^<^KE$c£
what did they do ? When battle presented itself, then they fnrnedlydrithatw^

they pledged themselves to do fifteen years ago and never fulfilled. The
j
^PFO'ntea

a court of competent jurisdiction. They appointed three commissioners to.come^np to

the North-West Territory and amid the carnage and roar of battle to settle the claims

of the people . How great the falsehood was between that time and this
!

Up to

ten days ago that court of competent jurisdiction of three commissioners had settled

•

1.787 claims alter the battle began and amid the smoke, whereas the Minister tels

the world that they were all finally and satisfactorily settled one year ago Who is

to be believed ? That statement that went to the world with the se^J™J™™%
the certificate of being a public document and printed by order of Parliament, or

the fact that the commission have already settled nearly 2,000 claims, and they are

8tU1
Now.lentrJen, when we are told that these people had no grievances I admit

that it is but mv simple duty to prove to you that they had grievances, that they had

very strong grievances, that men who were in the prime of life fifteen years ago
,
the

father of young children, that their eons have grown up to be young men with their

families in turnaround them, and that the man who was m the prime of life^fteen

years ago is now old and grey, and his life nearly worn out, a,rd still the claim that he

lad tofhe piece of waste land in the North-West Territory he is still waiting for the

adjustment of ; and we are told by the representative of the Crown that these people-

lad no grievances

!
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Now, gentlemen of the jury, having those grievances, what were they justified
in doing? They were justified in using every constitutional means that the British
law gives to the subject to try and secure, to try and force recognition of their claims.
They had the right to do that. The British constitution gives them that right, the
Tight of expressing their grievances, the right of petition, and it is a right that is as
sacred to every British subject as is the right to enjoy his life and liberty, and the.
man, or party of men, who attempted to infringe upon their right is or are guilty of
a breach of the law, and tbat breach has been proclaimed to be such at a time when
there was not half the liberty in England that there is now. As long ago as the t me
of Charles, it was proclaimed that anybody who dared to interfere with the right of
meeting, with the righi of petition, they w-re guilty of a high crimeand misdemeanor,
and some members of Parliamentof E; gland because they attempted to do that thing
"were not only expelled from the House, but they were very near losing their heads on
the block, because they dared to interfere with the right of meeting and the right of
petition of the people of England. On the 20th October, 1680, in the reign of Charles II
the Commons of England resolved, without aoy dissenting voice, that it is and hath
ever been the undoubted right of the subjects of England to petition the king for the call-
ing and sitting of Parliaments for the redressing of grievances, and it resolved that to
traduce such petitioning as a violation of d\itf and to represent it to His Majesty as tu-
multuous and seditious is to betray the liberty ofthe subject, and contributes to the design
of subverting the ancient legal constitution of this kingdom, and of introducing arbi-
trary power. Now, when the learned counsel for the Crown tells you that they had
no right to hold meetings or to do that which led up to what unfortunately culmin-
ated in a revolution, he is going outside of the law, he is telling you that whioh
oannot be in any way sustained by law, or by usage, or by custom under the British
system. We have the right, we have more than that. In the Consolidated Statutes
of Canada, provision is made whereby the subjects of Her Majesty in any part of. the
Dominion have a right to call the public meetings to appoint their chairmen, to
appoint their secretary ; and to interfere with that meeting, when so organized, is a very
high misdemeanor and punishable severely at law by statute. What did these poor
people do ? It cannot be for a moment supposed that the half breeds of the Saskatche-
wan or those around Battloford are acquainted with all the customs and the usages of
civilized life, that they are in a position to say just exactly what words they should
use and to keep outside of the fangs of the law ; what words they should use so as to
have the greatest force with those that are acting or are supposed to be acting for
them down at Ottawa. They met, however, gentlemen, they have been meeting for
years past, their petitions have gone to Ottawa, their resolutions passed at their meet-
ings have been sent there, no return has been heard, it was worse than a refusal.
they were treated with that contempt that galls a man far worse than a direct and
positive refusal. You ask a benefit from your friend or from your neighbor, and if he
does not deign to give you an answer, but turns his back upon you, do you not feel it
ten times more grevious than if he said I won't, and was done with it? That is the
way they were treated. Petition after petition wont—the thing is notorious, they
have appeared in the press, their petitions have been spoken of in the House, on the
floor of the House; they had petition upon petition, they bad meetings, they passed
resolutions, they asked for their rights and why were they not accorded to them?
Why were they not accorded to them? Why did they not give them their 240 or
160 acre scrip, and let the vultures who follow around the commissioners eat it up as
fast as possible ? You know that these poor people no sooner get hold of that scrip
than there is a species of vulture who follows on the track of the commissioners, and
has it from them in a few short hours for $30 or $40, and in some cases for $25. You
know this. Why did they not give it to them at once and let them be done with it ?
Why did they keep these people in turmoil and in distress all these years ? Why
did they dare send surveyors to cut off a portion of their lands, so that they might
square their own townships ? Is it because these people are weak ? Is it because
they had no representatives in Parliament, that their rights should be trampled upon,
and that they should be treated worse than the Government dared treat the^Indians,
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because there was sufficient in them of their Scotch and French forefathers that they

did for years patiently but complainingly bear up against the injustice that was being

done them ? Patiently but complainingly they borefit all. They bore it from day to

day, and from week to week, and from month to month, until fifteen years had rolled

around, and still they were as far from a settlement as they ware fitteen years ago ;

and still we are to be told to-day they had no grievances. They had, they called

public meetings. The prisoner at the bar here, Scott, was one of the people who*

attended those meetings, and we are told that he was a white man and

that he could not have any grievance at all, he could not have any
claim, in other words, simply his wife was a half-breed, his mother-

in-law, who is living still, is a half-breed. They both had their half breed

cleims, and those half-breed claims by right belonged to him and to his children.

What right had they to keep those claims back ? Is it the might of right ? .Because

I am the Minister of the Interior or a member of a Government, and a servant of the*

people, is that the reason why I have a right to trample upon your rights, and to-

Bay that, well, when it pleases me you will get it ? You have got to patiently wait,,,

and it is, they say, your duty as a subject, to wait until it pleases me to give you that

right which the law tells you is yours. Is that the position you take ? I think not.

I hope the day will never come in Canada, or in any portion of Her Majesty 'fit-

Dominions, when the people will lie down like slaves and submit to be treated in that

manner.
Now, gentlemen of the jury, these people held their meetings. Unfortunately

their uttermgs were treated with contempt. They sent their petitions and no notice*

was taken of them. They had no representation in Parliament, because yon know
you people in the North- West Territory here are in a transition state, you are gov-

erned by a council, and you are likely to be governed some time yet by a council, and

those wno are fortunate enough to have the ear of the council may probably be very-

prosperous in your realm in a worldly way, but, at the same time, it is rather galling to>

a British subject to feel that the Parliament, that the court that makes and establishes*

laws for his government, for his direction, laws to which he has to submit—that he>

has nobody to represent him there, to sec whether he is satisfied with the laws thafe

are made or not. That is the positioa of the North-West Territory. You are told

your population is not sufficient. Well, Manitoba had not one-fourth, one-tenth the*

population that you have now when she had four representatives in Parliament.

British Columbia, with her 60,000 all told, including Indians, had a representation of*

no less than six members in the House ot Commons and threo in the Senate, but
still, you being the people of the North-Wei>t Territory, being only mere white men,.

mere British subjects, you have no rights whatever, and you have no right to be>

represented in the Parliament of Canada. If that state of things is to continue, why,

gentlemen, 1 cannot compliment you upon being the citizens of the North-West

Territory, and I must say that if 1 were in this country during the time that these*

meetings were going on it is more than likely I would have stood today alongside of
Scott or of any oth^r man, independent man, who stood up and demanded his rights

as a Britisher should demand them, at the hands of the Government that he has

elected for the purpose of performing their duty and securing rights to the people ..

Up to that time there was nothing that Scott or you or any of you, gentlemen, had to

be afraid of or ashamed of, but rather that you had to be proud of. You had a per-

fect right to demand, at public meetings, and by petition, all these things; bnt^

unfortunately, the French half-breeds and some of the English half-breeds, seeing

that they had no leader in the country, in an unfortunate hour had the tempter come*

to them in the shape of one or two men who had been primed for that purpose by
that man now cast lor death up at the police barracks—Louis Eiel. They remem-

bered that in 1870, when the Hudson Bay Company and Canada were. about to take

possession of their rights without giving them any security—that Louis Biel stepped

to the front. Now, that first rebellion of Louis Kiel, but for the murder of Thomas-

Scott, that cold-blooded, callous, brutal, unnecessary murder, but for that, there was
. not an act of Louis Eiel and his followers that was not seconded and endorsed by the
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Grown, for that secured to them the rights that they had set up and demanded
when the Government of Assiniboia was too weak or to contemptible to do it;

bat Scott was murdered and Louis Kiel and Lepine were charged with the mur-
der. They were charged with the murder, and Lepine was put on his trial,

and sentenced to death, and Eiel would have been the »same, but he was
too cowardly to await his trial. He left the country, and was declared an outlaw.

"Which of the two men was the better man ? The man who stood his ground ? Yes,

when the constable was sent to arrest him, the same man who notified Eiel to get

away notified Lepine, and he said no, I was assured by men of education who were
in this country, that in standing out as I did, elected by the people to an office, that

the whole thing was legal and constitutional, if I have committed a crime against

British law, I am man enough to stand my ground and be punished for that crime

by British law, and he did. He stood his ground. He was tried for his life and
sentenced to death, and the British Crown, sympathizing with what led up to that

unfortunate murder, not only ordered through their representative, Lord Dufferin,

that he should not be executed, but his sentence was commuted to imprisonment in

the common gaol for two years without hard labor, and he is a free man to-day.

Louis Biel was an outlaw. He was so declared. It was declared that he should lose

Ms civil rights in Canada during life, and he went to the United States, and there he
became a citizen, it appears. Who cares whether he did or not ? It is a matter of

the merest indifference to us. In an unfortunate moment those who had passed

through the former rebellion, some of their fathers, they spoke about Kiel. They
said, is it not strange that during fifteen years all the people in Manitoba and the

North-West have not been able to do as much with the Parliament of Canada, with

the Crown of England, as that man Biel did in six months? We will send for him,

and they sent for him. Who ? Was it Scott sent for him t Why, gentlemen, some
of the witnesses that were in the box to-day sent for him. They subscribed towafds

bis coming. They took part in the meetings. Now, I will show you that at those

meetings that took place that Scott appeared as the representative of his half-breed

wife and his half-breed mother-in-law, and he demanded the rights that belonged to

those members of his family. He had a grievance, and he had a right to be at those

meetings. Biel came, and Scott was named on the committee to invite Biel, to make
preparation for Biel coming to the country, and the moment Biel came to the country

gentlemen, we will show you that Scott instanter retired from that committee and
immediately retired, and he resigns from that committee. Others subscribed to

bring Biel into the country. He never subscribed a penny, but refused to do it.

Others, after he arrived in the country, subscribed towards his maintenance in the

country. Scott never subscribed one cent towards that object. Now, the object in

this prosecution is to try and identify Scott with this rebellion. That is what would
appear at first glance, it is nothing of the sort. That is not it at all. It is this, the

French half-breeds, a number of them have been arrested, and a number of them
have been convicted. A number of Indians have been arrested, and some of them
bave been convicted. Now, to please the Province of Quebec, we must convict a

white man, we must convict a white man or we are gone at the next elections.

Gentlemen, this is not a criminal prosecution. It is neither more nor less than a

political persecution, and I now say that with the intervention of six men, I care not

to what party in politics they belong—I scorn to appeal to political feelings or

principles in the matter, in a matter of this sort, but with six honest men before me,

I defy the Crown to find that man guilty of any act that is illegal and against the

British constitution. On the contrary, he stands there to-day before you as loyal a

man as sits in the box, and as loyal a man as sits on the bench, and as loyal a man
as sits at the counsels' table, the only misfortune is that he happened to have the

impudenco to go to public meetings to demand the rights of himself and his family,

and to give that demand in unmistakable language, such as an honest man need

never fear to utter. " Such is my right, I demand iti"

Louis Biel was sent for. Louis Biel came, unfortunately for Canada, unfortunately

lor this country. Louis Biel came back, But was he the same Louis Biel of 1869 and
110
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1870 ? No; with all the outward form of the same man, the man was not there.

The man of 1869 and 1870 was as intellectual a man probably as you could meet, of

his age, on the continent ofAmerica, a man of sound mind and sound judgment ; but

the life that he led during ^the five or six years was enough to drive any man crazy, and

he became crazy, a dangerous lunatic, a very dangerous lunatic, as dangerous in a com-

munity as a rabid dog. There is no doubt of that, but these unfortunate people, thesa

unfortunate French people, half-breeds, are not medical men. They are not experts

an insanity. In this court you have the spectacle of half a dozen or more medical

men-—some of them proclaiming that Kiel was a lunatic, others proclaiming that he

was perfectly sane. Now, under these circumstances, when some of the most learned

specialists in Canada could not decide whether the man was crazy or whether he was
perfectly sane, is it altogether right and charitable to say that the French half-breeds

should have had more judgment than the cleverest specialist that you can bring from

Canada here, that the Crown could bring, to prove that man's sanity or insanity ? They
were misled by the man. They are a very extraordinary people. It is perfectly

understood that the North American Indians, from whom they have all sprung, that

they are full of their superstitions, that every act that they perform, every act of life

there is some superstition attached to j that an Indian won't take his pipe and smoke
before he puts it to his lips, and almost imperceptibly to the looker-on he turns it to

the four points of the compass. That will not be perceived probably by one man in

a thousand, but it is so, and he takes no step from his tepee to go to visit his

neighbor without muttering some incantation. There is a peculiar superstitious

feeling implanted in the soul of the Indian that comes out unto generations after in

their offsprings. The half-breeds are completely imbued with those superstitions
;

and what was the result ? Louis Eiel made it appear to these people when he found

that the priests were opposed to anything like a resort to arms or to any illegal moans

of trying to secure their rights, when Kiel discovered that the priests would not

second him, but they would condemn him, then he went on a new tact. Then it was

that Louis Kiel discovered that the priests and the ministers of the gospel in this

country have a hold upon the hearts and upon the affections of the half-breeds th*tit

is very difficult to set aside or to neutralise. They discovered that the Scotch half-

breeds could be led, and led to a very great extent by their ministers in whom they

have reposed, for a great length of time, the most implicit confidence. They found

that with priests who had been the friends of the fathers and forefathers of the

French half-breeds, that it was very difficult to do away with that feeling or with

that impression. He found, gentlemen of the jury, that it was as difficult to do awajr

with the impress, the characteristics that the priests had impressed on the half-

breed character as it would be to do away with the footsteps of the priests, of the

ministers of the gospel on this great continent of America. He found that he might

just as well start at the Gulf of St. Lawrence and travel every step up from there

until he struck across the Kocky Mountains and found himself on the Pacific coast,

every footstep of which has been marked out in the first place by the footstep of the

priest or the missionary starting forward of civilisation and performing God's work,

irrespective of the feelings that might come to himself, or to the consequences to htm
as he passes through a wilderness seeking to bring souls to God, and to bring a vase

country to the reclamation and civilization that fits it for the habitation of man. He
found that it would require superhuman efforts to do that j and he had recourse to

those superhuman efforts. He made them believe in his visions. He told them that

he had communications with the Holy Ghost. He told them that he was a second

Messiah. He made them believe that, in their simplicity, and in their ignorance and

superstition. He made them believe that he had conversations with the saints.

He made them believe he could make it thunder and that he could make lightning

fall and strike any object that he pleased. He told them, fear not but follow me, and

you will find that even if I am shot, if they kill me, I will come to life and be among
you again as Christ was, and they never can get rid of me until they have granted

you your rights.
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Gentlemen of the jury, under such influence as these, Louis Eiel succeeded in

bringing about, in dragging with him, and by a finesse and a ruse that would do credit

to the brightest politician on either side of the House in Canada, he made them assem-

ble to celebrate the festival of their national saint—I believe they call him Joseph—

and he told them to bring their guns with them, so that they should fire a feu-de-joie,

they should fire a volley in honor of the saint, after the religious service. They

came there. Is it to be supposed, and do I suppose for a moment or do I want you

to suppose that there were not among those men who went there, those who knew

Ihe object that Riel had in view ? Certainly there were many who knew it, but how

many were there who did not know it, and who went there in perfect good faith ?

Why, gentlemen, those that saw the sight that I witnessed here a couple of weeks

ago, old men tottering on the brinfc of the grave, from seventy to eighty-two years of

age] half a dozen of them standing there trembling in front of this dock, they would

see at once that these men must have been misled or they never could have been

placed in the position. It is all very well to find healthy, robust, strong, young men

ready to rush into danger, but when you see the poor, tottering, old men stumbling

along, and at every little hillock it is simply an effort to climb over—nice warriors

weren't they, to go out and fight against the disciplined troops of Great Britain ?

"Why, you can see at once they were misled .in some way. They were misled, but such

men as these were not to be misled—such men as we will bring before you today

were not to be mibled—the English half-breeds who had sympathy with these men in

the demand of their right. They had both rights, they had rights both equally. The

English half-breeds had just the same rights to demand as the French half-breeds, and

more, because in a great many instances the French half-breed was re-demanding

rights already accorded to him in Manitoba, whereas the Scotch half-breeds who had

settled here and at Prince Albert and Battleford, they had never had any claims

settled before, and they were awaiting their settlement. Very well, these men had

gone on a certain length. They had taken part in these meetings. They had taken

part in these petitions. They had demanded their rights. They waited for five

years with petitions and demands and meetings, and they received no answers. They

had sent petitions to the Lieut. -Governor of the North-West Territory here at Eegina.

They had sent petitions to Ottawa. They had sent petitions to the Minister of the

Interior. Their priests and the ministers of the gospel had joined them in sending

these petitions. No answer, and still they bad to go on and obtain their rights, try

and obtain them. They were only too glad to have a man of Kiel's ability to assist

them, but just as soon as Eiel undertook to do that which no loyal subject can do,

then that very moment the English half-breeds and the Scotch half-breeds said to

them at once, we are not going to become party to any illegal act, we are with you,

our sympathies are entirely with you in everything constitutionally right, but we will

not follow you into rebellion or into any public disturbance.

Now this brings us down to where the present prosecution—-or no, it is not a pro-

secution, it is a persecution—begins. Scott being a man who had been in the service

of the Hudson Bay Company during fourteen years, who came out from the Orkney

Islands and went into the service of the Hudson Bay Company, remained there until

some years ago, when he left the service and became in turn a trader among the

Indians, and ultimately married a half-breed wife and settled down on his farm up at

JVince Albert, where he cultivates something like 300 acres, and where he is in a

position of very great trust for a large mercantile and trading firm, known as the

firm of Stobart & Eden. There this man was. There he took part in the meetings.

He took part in all the meetings that were held to try and secure the rights of the

half breeds. He sympathized with these half-breeds and went on with them until it

was discovered that they were doing, or about to do, something that was illegal.

Now, gentlemen, here begins—here is the head and front of his offending. A meet-

ing was held, it appears, and at that meeting resolutions were passed sympathizing

Wiih the French half-breeds, sympathizing with them in trying to secure their rights,

foul condemning the resorting to any illegal means of doing it. At that meeting,

three men were elected delegates to go down to where the French half-breeds were
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said to be assembled, and find out what was doing, and by that means to be in a
position to preserve the peace and to avoid the shedding of blood. There were threeof those men went down Is it not singular, thore were three delegates went toBatoche, and there is only one prisoner in the dock? Where are the other two ?Were they less guilty than he? Ab, no, gentlemen, not a bit loss guilty, not a bitmore guilty, but they had not dared to set up their impudent tongues against thegentlemen who represent one or other of the political parties up therefand whodared to say that the Government that they were in favor of was not doing- iusteverything that was right. He had dared to do that kind of thine. i8nf t

Jw
enough why a British subject should be put in a dock and confined ancf found suiltv
of treason, high treason ? Why, he ought to be hung-he ought to feel that he ought
to be hung? He dared to say that his rights had not been given to him according asthey had been pledged on the faith of a nation, and the faith of a nation that hasnever sullied its flag until it is likely to be sullied by the mean, contemptible illegalmanner m which Canada, the off-shoot of the Empire, is maltreating and ill-treaW
through her servants the poor half-breeds of the North-West Territory and the poor*Indian of the North West plains, and that certain parties may become gloated withwealth while the people of the country run the risk of having their throats cut bvstarving Indians, any time from January till December. y

Now gentlemen, as I say, there were three delegates. We have only one oris-oner Where are the other delegates ? You see if in this country there had been agrand jury, and you had formed a portion of that grand jury, you would naturally
say, why do you single out this one man ? But there is no grand jury. Whv Lord
bless your soul, why should there be ? A mere white man in this North-West hasno right to British protection or British law, they must just be prepared to submitto anything that is being done by the Government appointed over them, says thelearned counsel for the Crown, they must groan away until it pleases theh- masters
to relieve them from their present position; they must not utter a word. Wellwhat does he dp? He writes a letter; he goes down there to Batoche at therequest of thai meeting; he went there on the day—not the day that

ft^TJVv!? *£?* V^iotment, as I have shown you-he went thereat the dead of night He started m the morning, at the request of his fellow-
citizens. He started with his two comrades, both of whom will come before youto-day, and both of whom will declare that if he is a felon, they must be felons alsoThey will come before you to-day and they will declare what was done. They started
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to obtain your rights. That was a meeting that was convened, that was called at the
suggestion of the highest milita y authority in the country, and a meeting at which
resolutions were passed that you had read to-day by the secretary aDd in which he*
says we sympathise with you. How is it that that witness was standing in the box as
a witness and that this man was in the dock as a criminal ? That is an extraordinary
thing to me. The learned gentleman who is prosecuting for the Crown and who has.

had the experience of yearb in Crown prosecutions, and who enjoys a reputation of
having the first ability as a Crown prosecutor, second to none in Canada, labored^
labored so that you, gentlemen of the jury, mast have seen what a tax it was upon
him to try and make you believe that there was something in that letter that was
sufficient to ask you to damn that man for ever, and his family after him, by a verdict*

that he was a dishonest and a disloyal man. The Crown prosecutor felt himself that
he was called upon to perfom a duty that was unworthy the position he holds at the*

bar, and that was unworthy of being brought forward before a British court ior the
purpose of trying to attain certain political objects for the party in power, who are
entirely to blame for the unfortunate state of things that has taken place in thisv

country. Now, it is said that he wrote that letter
;
you must understand that ho wrote*

that letter. Now, gentlemen, we are not here to admit anything. A man put upon
his trial has nothing to admit. Thar- is a principle that the learned judge will tell you
you are bound to be governed by. That is the honest faith that the law of England
pledges to every man. Yon are not bound to admit anything that will criminate
yourself, and even where it might be to the advantage of the accused to admit
he is wrong, frequently in admitting, a skilful Crown prosecutor turns,
his admission against him, and for that reason he is perfectly justified, and
the law throws its mantle of protection around him not to admit any-
thing. We deny that letter. We deny it in toto. Let them prove it. Have?
they done so ? Not a bit 01 it. On the contrary, I will tell you what they have
done. They have brought men up here to-day, and in thirty-one years'*

practice at the bar of Quebec and the bar of Manitoba and the bars of several States*

in the Union, and lastly at the bar of the North- West Territory— 1 have had to com©
here to see some such evidence as I saw to-day, and what did I see ? I saw from.
one of the most prominent offices in Manitoba, from the head post office in the Pro-
vince of Manitoba—I saw a boy a third or fourth or fifth rate clerk, or par-
haps for aught I know the young man who carries the coal in a scuttle to fill the?

furnace with in winter, or who sweeps out the office after office hours—we have him*
brought up with a whole pile of papers, a sheaf of papers, and to prove what ? Gentle-
men, to prove* the signature of a man who has resided at Prince Albert for the last

six or seven years, a man whose handwriting amongst his neighbors and friends,

must be that well-known that there could be no doubt of it. How is it that
they have not been able with all the facilities that the Crown has for getting evi-
dence ? One or other of two thing*, either the Crown is so detested that the people
will not give evidence for the Ctown or the accused is so respected that there is not
a man in the country will come forward and assist the Crown in doing their evil. I
believe that from my heart. I believe that is the reason why they could not find
men vile enough in his neighborhood to come forward and say that is the signature
of Thomas Scott. Consequently they are put to this, and look at it. They have-
this boy come up from the post office, and he says that these are documents from the?

post office, these are the documents from the post office at Winnipeg, this is a bond
and this is a contract. Gentlemen, do we go to the cabin boys on board ship to ask
how her head is turned ? Do we go to the tipstatf at the door of the court to ask for
a legal decision ? Do we go to the passing stranger if we want a certificate from the
registry office ? Do we go to an apprentice if we want to have our measure taken ?
Do we go with our eyes closed if we want to see what is passing around us. No, we
are not so foolish as to do these things, but if I wanted to produce that document in
this court, if I wanted to produce in favor of the prisoner that document, why there
would be such a shout of sarcasm raised at my expense that the whole building would
ring with it and justly so. It would be tne lutite attempt of a man who knew
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nothing about evideDce and was trying to force down the throats of a jury, and try-

ing to humbug a court by pretending that that is a public document publicly proven.

But look at the document you ate brought to have faith and confidence in. Is that

treating a jury with common courtesy ? Look at it. What is torn oif that ? What is torn

off it ? That is a public document. ( Mr. Clark here refers to tears off the corners of th i

documents.) And you are asked to believe that every place where " Tom Scott " is

signed on that paper, must be the truth, that it must be his signature. Why, gentle-

men of the jury, you all know, you have the proof here that Tom Scott has not been

at his place for months, and still his name is being signed every day by the little boy
who is left there in charge, and a year hence another little boy from Winnipeg will

be brought up with half a dozen dirty torn scraps of paper and he will ask a jury on
their solemn oath to believe that that was sufficient proof of a man's signature who
stands charged with a crime that may send him to the penitentiary for life. I don't

think it is necessary to talk any more- with reference to that kind of evidence. Now,
gentlemen,you will be told that you have to take the law from the court. Yes, and I say

with all the submission that I have learned during the thirty years' practice you have

to take the law from the court, and I have to take the law from the court, and I say the

court is responsible for the law, and you are not ; but you are not to take the facts from
the coui t^nor your appreciation of the facts from the court, you are the sovereignjudges

of the facts as the court is sovereign judge as far as that court's decision goes until it is

appealed from and set aside by law. From your facts there is no appeal. You are respon-

sible to a higher tribunal than the highest court in the North-West Territory
;
you are

responsible to a higher tribunal than the tribunal that sits and is supposed to be pre-

sided over by Her Majesty the Queen herself. You are responsible, and responsible

only to a tribunal before which the thrones of kings and emperors are mere play-

things and are overwhelmed and forgotten, and the souls that go before Him to be

judged have to answer for everything that they have done when called in solemn oath

to decide according to His justice, calling on His sacred name to be their pledge that

they are going to decide honestly. That is all you are responsible to. You are not

responsible to any less power than that, and as British subjects responsible only to

God and with that ancient feeling of devotion that you owe to the flag under which
you were born and your forefathers before you, beware, beware gentlemen of thejury

of being misled, beware of assisting in driving one nail, or giving a tap to the small-

est nail that the Crown tries to drive into the civil coffin of that unfortunate man.
He is your fellow citizen, he is your brother. You will protect him. You will pro-

tect him by your oath, you will protect him, and you will protect him by calling upon
God to witness that you are doing that which honest men are not afraid or ashamed
to do. Gentlemen, I was told when I was coming here to defend some unfortunates

who were in jail, some of them properly so, some of them improperly so, I was toid

that everything was political here. I said to one ol the people who informed me of

that, there must be a mistake. No, there is no mistake, everything is run in the

North-West Territory on political principles. If you get a Tory jury in the box they
will give a verdict against everybody. I said, pardon me, sir, 1 think you are stating

a falsehood. Well, he said, if you get a Grit jury in the box they will do just the

same. You will excuse me, but I believe you are telling a lie, and I placed a very

strong adjective before the word "lie", stronger than I am in the habit of using, and
why ? I say it is one of the most irreparable insults that can be offered to reasonable

men, to suppose that they will go deliberately in the box and will call upon God to

witness that they are going to do what is fair accoidicg to the evidence, and that

they could for a moment be swayed by any outside feeling or any outside oppression.

Why, gentlemen, I spurn the statement with scorn, the scorn that it deserves. I
care not whether you are Grits or Tories outside of this house, but the moment you
go into this box as jurymen I feel that you will leave both the Grit and the Tory out-

side the door, and there you will feel that you are sitting in the presence of God,
under pledge to Him to act fairly, according to your oath, and that you have the eye*
of your fellow-men upon you, who will decide for themselves, each one, whether you
have acted as honest men or not. That is the feeling that I am satisfied will animate
the jury.
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Now, what is the next evidence you have of that letter ? What evidence have
you of this letter being Scott's ? You have a gentleman who comes here and who
declares that document to contain the signature of Thomas Scoit. You have a right
-to examine all these documents, gentlemen, every one of them there, yourself, until
-this trial is over, everything, every document is yours to examine and to scrutinize
:and to be satisfied upon. Well, this gentlemen looked all over these papers and he
compared this " Thomas Scott," " 6", an I. O. U., given to John McNevin or order
$30, at three months from date, for value received, signed, Thomas Scott, witness
Joseph Thompson. Well, Mr. McNevin said he did not see Thomas Scott sign that!
It was given to him by Thompson, but he thinks it is Scott's signature. Well,
gentlemen, it is not necessary for me to say anything, you can look at that. You
•will find it is written, the whole thing written by Mr. Thompson in Thompson's hand-
writing and it is as much Scott's signature as it is yours. Thompson is Scott's
ibrother-in-law, and he does not repudiate that he owed that debt, but that is not his
signature.

You have an expert brought up who tells you, he looks very critically over thesa
ipapers, and he tells you these are Scott's and they all resemble each other and in fact
they are all Scott's. Well, now, gentlemen, you don't require to be experts to look
at those signatures. He says all these signatures may be Scott's, but particularly
gentlemen, he said the last signature that was given to him he compared with No 1and said it was Scott's, but that signature was written by the gentleman sitting
alongside ofmeat the table (Mr. Maclise) and that shows the folly, the value you are
to attach to the evidence which says those signatures are Scott's.

Now, gentlemen, I am going to tell you another thing, and the Crown cannot
•contradict it. The Crown is obliged to bring the best testimony, the best proof the
best testimony that the case is susceptible of, that is the duty of the Crown and it is
the duty of any private person as well, he who affirms must prove. They affirm
that that man is a felon. They have to prove it to do that; They affirm
that these are Scott s signatures, they are bound to give you the best testimony
and whose is the best testimony ? Is it the boys who came up from the officeand takes these papers and eays that he believes these are his, this is witnessed by
-Charles McNabb and Martin Hoover ; the Crown has unlimited reserve. Why didn't
the Crown bring witnesses to prove that signature ? (to the bond). Now, gentlemen
I don t give you this as matter of proof, I give it to you as matter of law and I shall
call upon the learned judge to tell you that as matter of law, the Crown was bound to
bring the best testimony, and what is the best testimony ? The witness to that sig-
nature. But there is another thing that the law tells you, it says this, that the party
that does not bring the best testimony not only is at fault, but it is a strong presump-
tion that they dare not bring the other for fear it might mak,e against them and in
favor of the accused. That is the law. I say that in that position this Crown case
stands to-day. Now, with reference to these other documents which you have here
you have the evidence of this expert, you have a lot of these signatures on paper here!and you heard the expert's evidence pronouncing them to be all written by the same
"J^-rvfow P^i^^y that that la®t one written on the scrap of paper and marked

' 2at?at tLê e can be no doubt about- Now, I will prove to you by a gentle-
man, Mr Boss, who is beside me and it was written in my presence and m the pre-
sence of three or four others, it was done just to show you how valuable expert testi-mony is, and how dangerous it is for one moment to beget even a degree of suspicion
in the mind upon the pretended testimony of an expert, a man who first says "I "

is
written by the same man who wrote " D."

Now, gentlemen of the jury, so much with reference to that letter, but yOu will
be told by the learned gentleman that this letter was found among Kiel's papers.
Oapt. Young says he found that among Kiel's papers. Yery well, it is very possible,
but what proof have you that that man put it among Kiel's papers ?

Now, I am arguing, gentlemen, as if that letter made a difference. I want toa\,r.m ~~ 77 ° J?' ? —««,«*»«. ^u«u iouci mauo a umorence. 1 warn xoshow you gentlemen, that a man on his trial in a British court admits nothing even
though the admission may be favorable to him. It is for them to prove, not for himIt is for them to prove, not for him
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o admit, it is for him to deny everything, and let them prove it when they dare to

irrest him on a charge of. felony and that felony degrades him as a British subject—

et them prove that he has been false to his allegiance. Yery well, what evidence

lave they got? They find that piece of paper which they at once make up their

nindsmust be that of Thomas Scott, and they bring him up on that because he was

>ne of the white men who were sympathising with the half-breeds at Prince Albert

and who have been denounced as rebels—every one ofthem. Why, on the same prin-

siple every person who appeared in that box to-day are rebels, they all sympathised.

Dp to that time, they were not rebels, but my learned friend would say,why they sacked

the stores ?—I don't know that, we have no proof of it—hadn't they sacked stores and

taken up arms ? On the same principle some leading men in the Dominion of Canada to-

day should have been hanged in 1849. They sacked the Parliament Buildings, they

burned the finest library that Canada ever possessed, and documents that can never

be replaced, and they took the mace, the emblem of Her Majesty's authority from the

table in the House of Commons in Canada and carried it in derision around the streets,

and they cheered and sneered around it, and when Her Majesty's representative, the

Governor General of Canada, appeared in his carriage to assent to a Bill m Her

Majesty's name, these loyal men that now talk about the disloyalty of others, they were

the men that surrounded the carriage and treated him with rotten eggs and broke the

carriage window with stones, and the sterling old Scotchman when he was surrounded

by a troop of cavalry as brave as ever bestrode a horse, when they wanted to charge,

no, said he, not a bit of it, let them threw stones at me, never will a representative ot

Her Majesty in Canada, so long as I have that honor, send back a shower of leaden

bullets to leave widows and orphans because a few rotten eggs were hurled at me
personally, it is no insult to the Queen, and I won't accept it as one, and I wont

allow one of Her Majesty's subjects to be shot down, and he did not, and he was one

of the highest men in Her Majesty's Dominion. He was one of the most trusted, one

of the best governors we ever had in Canada. It was no treason, and why C

Because it was one of the political parties of Canada, those who called themselves, m
fact, the Conservatives of everything that is good and wise in our country, it was

they who surrounded Her Majesty's representative and treated him with rotten eggs ;

but there was not one of them put in the dock. Not one, and Lord Elgin was hooted

for weeks in the city of Montreal, the capital, the heart of civilization in Canada.

But they did more. These men that ordered this persecution today, they did more

than that They followed that up in 1849 by signing an annexation manifesto, lne

Minister of the Interior, Lord McPherson, was the first who signed the annexation

manifesto calling upon Her Majesty to allow her flag to be torn down and the flag ot

the United States erected over this country, and these are the men that call upon

you, gentlemen of the jury, to consign one of your fellowmen to the penitentiary tor

life becaupe he dared to ask for his rights from them. Sir John Eose, Sir V. Lu

McPherson, John J. C. Abbott, present Chief Justice of Quebec, Mr. -Morion, every

one of their names is signed to the annexation manifesto of 1849. These are the

men that are ordering the prosecution of an unfortunate wretch because he dared to

demand the rights of his wife aid family. Gentlemen, let us consider all these things,

when we are talking about how nice and how positive are the marks by which yon

are to know treason and treason felony; and if a man hears that an old woman i»

going to sack a beehive, unless he goes immediately and makes the authorities aware

of it, he is to be considered guilty of high treason, and if you hear the Indians or

squaws concocting something in the Sioux or Cree language that you imagine is some-

thing that is going to endanger the fate of the nation, and you don't run away and

immediately tell the Dearest constable and inform him of the two old squaws, and have

the two old squaws arrested, you are guilty of misprison, of treason.

Now, gentlemen, there is just about as much sense in thope two examples 1 nave

used as there is in a great deal that has been said to-day about treason and treason

felony and the misprision of treason. " It is not enough " said the learned counsel,.

" it is not enough to remain neutral. To remain neutral under the circumstances is

treason." Why didn't he arrest his own witnesses ? Why doesn't he arrest Major

m
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Crozier? Why has a warrant not been taken out to arrest Colonel Irvine ? These were
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gentlemen, if that iafceing disloyal, the sooner we have a large number of disloyal men in this country
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the better, and it would be well in this country if we could change off about 5,000

Government officials for such disloyal men as that.

Well gentlemen, about the evidence again, you are told by one witness that

there was I certain meeting, that at that meeting somebody P^^^Ldt'he
for the delegates. There was not anything very wrong in that Somebody, he

said afterwaids proposed three cheers for Biel. Well, now, we will see all about

that'. If that man told the truth, I think you will have half a dozor^ i-eBpeotable mea

here who will be telling a lie. I have asked them particularly, and will ask them

particularly, if such a thing took place, and I think their answer will be that they

Sever heard anything of the sort, and they were present at that meeting^and heard

nothing of the sort ; but suppose somebody in that crowd did cry ont^hree ehe«M

for ml was it Scott that cried it out? What did they use that for? What was the

object in bringing that out ? What was the object of bringing out that piece.off

evidence ? Was it to try, by such a mean and silly subterfuge, to cast a reflection

upon this man more than upon the individuals who were at that meeting? To say

the least of it, it is going as near as possible to doing that whi-h »
>

ridiculous to try

and do that which is a very great injustice. Now, suppose that cry had been made of

three cheers for Eiel, it might have been in derision. Why? Simply because that

man did not dare to say that was responded to, or that there were three cheers given

and although they were very anxious, no doubt, to make it appear it was so the

Crown did not dare ask the question. He said he heard somebody cry three.cheers

to Kiel, but he did not dare to ask did they give the cheers for Kiel? But 1 asked

pointedly were there many people there at the time, and the answer was yes, there

we a great many people. I opened the door as wide as I could, and why didn t

they ask did all these people cheer ? They did not, and the reason was, I believe

gentlemen, that such a cheer, I don't believe, was asked for ^P~*NyJ^
lentleman who heard it was crouching in the corner when he heard it, not man

fnough to take one side or the other, and he may ha7e said to himself three cheers

for Kiel, and that was his real feeling, but he was not man enough to give it expres-

sion, and he was the only one at the meeting who did. It looks very much like it.

I think, gentlemen, you will have three or four witnesses whose word you will not

doubt, who will swear they never heard anything of the kind and did not believe

any such thing could have occurred without them hearing it. Even suppose it had

been, those words would not be in the slightest degree treason. Words spoken.are

not treason, even treasonable words, unless they are taken hold of m a certain length

Of time. I need not dwell on that. It is a point of law, and that point rests witfc

the court, and the court will charge you with reference to it.

Now with reference to this terrible man Scott, I have another thing to draw

vour attention to. He was brought down from Prince Albert some time ago. lie

was in nil until the day he was brought before this court When he was arrested

he was not told what he was arrested for. From that until he was brought before

this court he had no intimation of what he was arrested for, not the slightest, but l

will tell you something that is more extraordinary than that. Before he came down

here he was arrested at Prince Albert and was thrown into prison—no, not into

prison. He was thrown into a pen. He was thrown into a place that it was a degra-

dation and disgrace to the officers who permitted him to be slung in there. Himseit

and several others were thrown into a place that was not fit for a respectable hog

to be penned in, where water was flowing under the floor, and the openings so

great that you could see the current, and where there was nothing between

tiem and the rains of heaven except a few old boards, and the boards so

Wide apart that they were wet, and he was left there for seven or eight days without

even a blanket to cover his shivering body, and this in a British country, this under

a British flag. We that speak with horror of the black hole-we that speak with

eontempt of the proceedings in the French prisons and the institutions that are

established where the cat is inflicted on a man's back, how much more
>

bumane

would it be to strip that man and let his back run with the blood from the bloody

welts of a whip, than put him into that place to die by degrees from disease con-
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is what took place—between Batoche and Prince Albert there is this place called the

Eidge. Now this place called the Eidge is in a very uncomfortable position, was about

that time, the Indians and the half-breeds if they had made an advance upon Prince

Albert in absence of the troops who had gone away or the volunteers who were going

away to Battleford, why the very heart of the country was taken ;
but worse than that,

so far as these poor people were concerned, when the troops were all gone from Prince

Albert, no assistance near, if the Indians and the French half-breeds formed a union,

they most undoubtedly must pass in their way this place called the Eidge, and all these

half-breeds settled around there would have been no doubt, as they expressed it, exter-

minated You will have proof that the poor women there were in such a terrible

state of dread and almost distracted, they were calling upon their husbands, upon their

sons upon their brothers for God's sake to remain to protect them and not to go away

to Battleford, not to go away to Prince Albert, and Scott committed the enormity at

that meeting of saying these things, He said this is a senseless move, if the French

half-breeds and the Indians unite, they will come on and all your troops are away and

you have not a gun, they are all gone and who is to protect Prince Albert, who is to

protect the Eidge, if they are all away to Battleford and Carlton ? Carlton is garri-

soned by the Mounted Police. They're strong enough no doubt to defend that, there

is no doubt they are strong enough to defend that, while, if all the men here go away

and take arms with them we are left defenceless and Prince Albert is left open to the

half-breeds and Indians, and everybody will be slaughtered.

Gentlemen of the jury, put yourselves in his place, do you think he was right, or

do you think he was wrong ? Do you think that they were not doing much better to

remain at Prince Albert and fortify Prince Albert and keep their strength at Prince

Albert, which they had to do in the end or to go away and leave Prince Albert ant

open prey to the Indians and the half-breeds ? I think he was right and I think that

these gentlemen who were present at that meeting will tell you he was right, and

they all advocated the same thing. Oh, but you see the Crown, anxious by any means

to get a grasp on this unfortunate man's throat, they seize on that point, he said the

volunteers must lay down their arms. Now, gentlemen, they were not volunteers,

they had no legal status, they were not recognized as volunteers, no man had a rights

to arm those men and take them away from their homes, and they remained there,

and they did their duty outside the walls of Prince Albert. I am told outside of the

woodpiles they were left night after night, and their masters remained inside com-

fortably. "Well, gentlemen that is neither here nor there, only it shows you the

immense amount of interest that was taken in these unfortunate people.

Now, the points are that the letter, I don't think, gentlemen, you have the

slightest proof of, proof that is sufficiently convincing to identify that letter in any

way with Scott. It is not a matter of sentiment ; the law tells you that where there

is any doubt you are bound to give the benefit of the doubt to the accused. It mnot

a matter of sentiment, it is not a matter of choice, it is one of the strongest provisions

of the British law, that the benefit of the doubt must be given to the accused ;and it

that is so in a private prosecution where two private individuals, either m a civil or

a criminal case, are proceeding against each other, how much more strongly should

it be so in the case of evidence given by the Crown with all its innumerable resources

wheie they could have proved everything if they desired, if they dared to have

P
Eemember, I said the Crown was bound to give the best evidence, and I repeat

it and I am going to draw your attention to another fact ; if they wanted to prove

that letter was written by Scott to Eiel why didn't they bring Eiel to prove it ? He
was the man to know it. That is the best evidence. And failing him, why didn fc

they bring Garnot whom they had under examination two or three times t Why
'didn't they bring Eiel's secretary whose handwriting I believe is on the back ot this

magisterial document-why didn't they bring him here to prove it ? They dare not doit,

and you are bound to take that view of it. The law says that where the Crown fails

to bring the best evidence, that you are to take it for granted that they fail to do so

because they fear it would tell in favor of the prisoner and against the prosecution*
J ioi
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Now, that is a proposition of law that there is no getting over. The Crown mustproduce the best evidence. It is not far from here to the barracks, and why didn'tthey bring Garnot to prove this? He was the secretary, they say. In fact they
convicted and sentenced him as secretary for Eiel. Why didn't they brim? him?
Crentlemen I beg of you not to lose sight of this part of our defence with reference tothe best evidence. It is not as 1 say a matter of sentiment, it is a matter of law, it isone of the strictest rules of law. The authorities on British law say that it is impera-
tive that the best evidence shall be adduced. Now, that is the best evidence if youwanted to-morrow to be satisfied, or to-day as you do, as you are bound to be satisfied
in your own mind, m your own conscience about that letter, will you not say for your-
selves the man who received this letter certainly ought to know most about it, and
aaext to him the man who endorsed this letter, he who was the secretary of the reci-
pient and who after him was the next best person ? Why have they not brought either
«oi them t Consequently, gentlemen, I have no hesitation in saying that the letter so
lar as the evidence is concerned-and I shall expect the learned judge to charge speciallyon that—is not worth the paper it is written on. There is no evidence to sustain it.

Gentlemen, there is one other individual we have got to deal with, there is a cer-
tain gentleman, a Mr. Astley, who came into the box. Well, that gentleman hassprung into a most unenviable position, an unenviable notoriety within a short time
t>ack. ±ie was a scout during the rebellion for the Government. Since the rebellion
lie has become a scout for the court. During the rebellion he was a prisoner. Sincethe rebellion he has been an informer. That is the only difference, but when he camein that box today and told you that he was silting in a sleigh with Capt. Moore, andXhat Capt. Moore has gone to England, and that in his presence this man said to Capt.
JMoore so-and-so

;
why, gentlemen, I stamp it and brand it as a falsehood. Had suchween the case, Capt. Moore, than whom a more loyal man never trod on the earth

that is covered by Her Majesty's Crown—he was not going to be guilty of that crime
-described by the learned counsel for the Crown—he was not going to be guilty of this
misprision of treason and not denounce the man and have him arrested for that illegal
utterance. If so, the sooner they march out their warrant for treason against Capt.
JW.oore on his return or send it across the ocean as a specimen of North- West justice,
<and have him brought back, and that on the utterance of Mr. Astley,

Now, with these few words, I feel inclined to leave Mr. Astley. You must
TeV
M
m

a i

thlS that when a man become8 so extremely useful about a court of justice

T kf' „
le^ has D0COQie lately, even the most credulous juryman would begin to^oubt all about it. We have several characters in history that serve to illustrate

that teehng. We had a Jennie O'Brien in Ireland. I am sorry to say there are a
#reat many Jennies in Canada also. They had a Titus Oates in England, a man who
sent more heads to the block and left more noble families in England mourning, pro-
bably, than any other man of any other age, and still at the end of all the blood thathad flown from the block and the stake and of the terrible sufferings on the rack,
l-itus Oates found himself but worthy of the death that he had caused others, that
every word of testimony that was given was a lie out of whole cloth from beginning
to end, and his name to-day stands pilloried in history with a character that is suffi-
cient to do honor to the reigning prince of hell and to sink the credibility of a whole
nation who could believe. Gentlemen, this man's testimony is uncorroborated in
every particular. There is not a circumstance to corroborate it. Not a solitary one
if* all this. Eelieve him, and you itust doubt the loyalty and the manhood of
Captain Moore, who was not a scout but who nearly lost his life in defence of hia
country. I tell you I have no hesitation in saying that to believe him is to cast doubt
on the loyalty of Captain Moore. It was his bounden duty, if such a thing were said
to him by this man, to have denounced him then and there, and he would have done
it. He was just the last man to allow anything of the sort to go. But, gentlemen,
y® 11 see it is so hard to try and get up a case of treason against Tom Scott. It is true
that Louis Riel, in his first rebellion, had a victim by the name of Tom Scott.

Are the Government of Canada ; are the authorities of the North-West jealous of
the reputation acquired by the famed, celebrated, notorious Louis Kiel, that they, as &

199 J
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c,osing scene in the last rebellion, must also^hav,
,
a victim of^ZfZT^l

row TOcalUy tLt this is about the closing trial of this series. I "P^***£*»
WeTockedun that unfortunate man Poundmaker, and Big Bear is to be tried, and we

tav n°o°doubt
P
hewill be punished, punished for-^ ? 'VeTXTC? Where a"

Where are the men that murdered the people up there near Port Put
'

WMro are

their lives, more sacred, their honor, was in the keeping of^ these poor ^forca

were seeking their rights.

Kev. Edward Matheson sworn :—

Examined by Mr. Maclise :

O You are acquainted with the prisoner Thomas Scott ? A. I am.

o! You are a native of Kildonan, Manitoba, are you not ? A. Y es

.

O With what church are you connected ? A. Church of England.

O How long have you been in the North-West Territories and where ? A.I

havet>en£ WoXkst Territories since 187?-eight years. P«t of tae U«a

iTnent as a school teacher out among the Indians north of Carlton, up to the fall of

island^theTl came down to Prince Albert, and I have been there all the time

Bince, with the exception of a visit occasionally.

By the Court :

Q. Since 1879 chiefly at Prince Albert ? A. Yes.

By Mr, Maclise

:

Q. About how far is St. Catharine's church from Lindsay school house ? A. About

^KE known Mr. Scott for how long? A Since the fall of^^
Q. What business was he in when you first knew him ? A. I always understood

he was a farmer. I could not be certain of that though.

Q. At the Eidge ? A. At the Eidge, yes.

Q. He has a vlry extensive farm there, has he not a very large-? A. Ye*.

Q. In what regard do the English and Scotch half-breeds there hold Mr. Scott ?

123
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By Mr. Maclise:
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1
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iad—
Maclise--Ton said as matter of fact they had no grievances, bnteven if they.

Court.—It is not a matter of evidence. I think it is far too remote.
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went, and on Saturday L went into Carlton and I slept over five mile* short of that

Friday night, aad with Major Crozier's consent 1 made arrangements to hold services

on SundaV inside the Fort, and early Sunday morning Thomas McKay, who gave

evidence here this morning, came to me and asked me if I would go down to Prince

Albert and hold three meetings, one in the Lindsay achool, one in the St. Catharines

church, and one out at St. Andrews, and he gave me to understand that Major Crozier

was the authority that was sending me down, and I said I would go ;
notwithstand-

ing that I preferred waiting attending to my own ministerial work there L said that

owing to the troubles I would come down and call those meetings, and I started as

quickly as I could in company with Mr. Andrew Peterson I arrived at Lindsay

school just as the neople were coming out of the service in the afternoon. That is

what I was aiming for, so that I might have them all, as many as possible collected

there, and hold a meeting or meetings there and explain to them my object in calling

it, and quite a little discussion took place. .

O. What did Mr. McKay tell you to come down and do 7

Mr Osier.—That is not evidence. What he did is doubtful evidence, bat what

Mr. McKay told him is no evidence. I am not going to object to what he did, but

what his instructions were from Mr. McKay is not evidence.

Witness.-! have a writing to show that I was authorized by Major Crozier to

.call these meetings. I have that in my pocket.

By Mri Maclise :

Q, Produce it ? A. Produced and read marked Exhibit " K."

<Q What did Mr. McKay say to you to get those people to do? A. He wanted

me to get resolutions passed declaring that they would not support the French m
arm

Q Was there any reference to how they would support it on constitutional

matters ? A That up to a certain time they had worked together constitutionally,

but from the time that they took up arms and went beyond constitutional means,

from that time their connection with them was severed.

Q. And they were to remain ? A. To remain neutral as they wished.

By Mr. Osier :

Q. Who was saying this ? A. Mr. Thomas McKay*

Mr. Osier.—Well, this is not evidence.

Court.—Go on.

Mr. Maclise.—It is evidence. . _ . , , Tmaa
O The people were not to declare themselves ? A. They were not asked. I was

not requested to ask them to declare themselves on one side or the other, simply that

the French need not expect any support from them in arms, that they were neutral.

Q And you were to have also some resolutions passed, or what did you do in

that regard ? A. I got resolutions passed, and sent tliem back to Carlton immediately.

O. By ? A. Mr. Andrew Peterson. , . 9
Q. Who came for that purpose ? A. Who came down with me for that purpose i

A. ThoseHe was to take them back, if I could not go.

O What is that paper, Mr. Matherson (paper referred to before) ( A. J

were resolutions that were passed at the meeting at St. Catharines that evening

Q. And you considered in passing this that you were

Mr. Osier.—Don't lead.

By Mr. Maclise:

Q TV hat relation do those bear to what you were instructed to get ? A. Those

were just exactly what I was instructed to get. Of course his was a httl e addition

to that, about sending one to Kiel.

Q Did Mr. McKay say anything about showing these to the French?

Mr Osier.—I must object. I want this examination to be conducted with some

regularity My learned friend must understand that I object to leading questions or

anything which is not evidence on the issues.
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Mr. Clarke.—I wish it to be perfectly understood that we want no privilege, we
will accept none. We want simply our rights according to law, and when the learned
gentleman sits there in all the dignity of his own importance and thinks he is going
to shut us up he makes a mistake.

Mr. Osier.—I don't seek to.

By Mr. Maclise :

Q. As to the instructions you acted under, in those instructions was there any-
thing with regard to these papers that were being gotten up being taken over and
read to the French ?

Court—1 don't think you can put that. You have got the instructions which
are admitted to be in writing. You have the letter saying what was done. Then
you have that paper " A" which are resolutions, and the witness tells you that was
the result, but he says the latter part of the memorandum at the bottom was beyond
the instructions.

Mr. Maclise.— It has already been given in evidence by the witnesses that these
were to be given back to Major Crozier, and that was not objected to.

Mr. Osier.—Because I give no favors.
Mr. Maclise.—Leading questions were put by the Crown.
Court .—Was it brought to my notice ?

Mr. Clarke.—I am not prepared to say so. At the same time your Lordship
remembers one of the objections I asked to be noted.

By Mr. Maclise :

Q. At any rate, you held a meeting at Lindsay; did you state to that meeting
what you were there for, and who sent you ? A. I did.

Q. It is just in accordance with what you have already stated ? A. Yes.
Q. And when you got there, the people had started for home and you called them

back ? A. I just met them as they were coming out of the house from service.
Q. Now, Mr. Scott spoke to the meeting which was held there, did he not?

A. He did.

Q. What did the prisoner say ? A. I can't give you his words, of course, but I
can give you as nearly as I remember what he said.

Q. What was the substance of what he said ? A. He said he thought it would be
advisable if the volunteers who had gone from Prince Albert to Carlton should return
home. Their absence from Prince Albert was endangering the settlement in two ways
first, there were so many armed men out of the settlement with arms, leaving the settle^
ment that much weaker, and then the knowledge of their being up at Carlton to goand fight against the French and Indians or whoever were there getting to those
people, they would naturally say, well, there are so many people away from Prince
Albert, tbey are up here to attack us, come let us go down another way, take Prince
Albert, take possession of the water-way. Now, under those circumstances, he said
he believed it a most advisable thing that they should come home and act as a home
guard for they should by all means protect Prince Albert. What is Carlton in point of
importance in comparison with Prince Albert ? Prince Albert is a large settlement
with many women and children, they may be sacrificed, they may be slaughtered if
the Indians are let loose upon us, inasmuch as an Indian outbreak is so greatly feared
if there will be an outbreak, we English half-breeds of this district will rise to a man
and assist the Government to put it down.

Q. This was at the Lindsay school-house ? A. This was at Lindsay.
Q. You heaid his remarks at St. Catharines the same evening ? A." Yes.
Q. Were they similar ? A. Just similar, I could not give you anything different
Q. These resolutions that have been shown you were not drawn up at the Lind-

say meeting ? The people there decided what, with regard to getting up resolutions ?A. We did not complete the resolution there for this reason—I had to hurry from
there down to St. Catharines church, in order to catch the people there before theywould get home, so we decided some people from there should come down with us,
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and we would draw up a resolution in the St. Catharines church because we had the
whole night to do it if we wanted, and this resolution would then be forwarded to*

Carlton.

Q. And that was the way Mr. Scott and some others came to go ? A. Down to

St. Catharines.

Q. They were dispatched at what time? A. I should say I gave them to the*

man between two and three the next morning—Monday morning. He did not start

off with them, however, immediately, he went with them about coming daylight.

Q. Now, had Mr. Thomas McKay not approached you, you would have held

your services at Carlton, and you would not have been here to-day ? A. That is just

the truth

.

Q, Did you consider that in doing what you did, you were guilty of treason or
treason-felony or anything of that sort ? A. No I considered that what I was doing
was the best in the interests of peace, or I should not have done it

Q. So that you consider that in trying to keep the people neutral you were only
doing what you had been told, requested by the authorities to do ? A. That is all,

that is what I did.

Q. You would not have done it had you not had the idea that you were ordered

by what, t do it ? A.I would not have done it, had I not been ordered, as I was^
by Major Crozier.

Cross examined by Mr, Osier :

Q. Did Scott speak more than once at the meeting, the first meeting that you were
at? A. I can't recollect.

Q. Who was in the chair at that first meeting? A. I was.

Q. Do you remember who spoke first ? A.I spoke first of course, explaining-

the object for which I called the meeting.

Q. Do you remember who spoke next ? A. I am not certain who spoke next. X
know Mr. Scott did speak.

Q. Do you remember who spoke at all? Give me the names ? A. I remember
Andrew Spence spoke.

Q. Do you remember what he said ? A. I forget what he said.

Q. Do you remember wbo spoke ? A. Mr. Scott.

Q. Anybody else ? A. I can't remember that anybody else said anything.

Q. Surely there were more spoke than that ? A. Of oourse, there would be
little remarks made here and there, but no regular

Q, Who made the set speeches of the evening? A. Mr, Spence, Mr. Scott, the
prisoner himself, and myself.

Q. Now, you can tell me what you said, can't you ? I have told you already.

Q. You can't teli what Mr. Spence said ? A. No, I can't remember what he
said.

Q, Or the purport of what he said ? A. I can't just remember the purport. It
just went on the same line of argument that I had taken.

Q. Well, you are able to recollect very distinctly a good deal of Mr. Scott's^

speech. A. I recollect that part that I have already given to you.

Q. You have talked that over, L presume, recently, as to what he had said T
You have had occasion to refresh your memory on what he said ? A. Yes.

Q. Now, it is pretty distinctly swjrn here that he did say that it would be bet-
ter for the settlers to remain neutral, and lay down their arms.

Objected to.

Court.—He may be asked in cross-examination was anything of the sort said as

that arms should be laid down, and the French half-breeds and the police should be
left to settle the matter between themselves.

Witness.—I have no i ecollection of that.

Mr. Osier.—Now, was there anything of that sort said by Mr. Scott at that
meeting ? A. Not to my recollection.
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Q. Have you a recollection ? Will you swear that was not said ? In other
words will you contradict Mr. Craig ? Q. To the best of my knowledge, I say he did
not assert that, and I am on my oath.

Q. Although you cannot remember a word of what Mr. Spence said in making
a speech on the same occasion ? A. Yes.

Q. That is sworn to very positively by Mr. Craig ? A. I am quite aware of
that.

Q. Will you undertake to contradict it on your oath ? A. I undertake to stand
by what I have asserted.

Q. Just answer my question ?

Mr. Clarke.—I ask your lordship for the ordinary protection to this gentleman
that is accorded to every witness in a court of justice. He is a man of education and
intelligence, and I submit to your lordships that it is scarcely fair even for the pur-
poses of a prosecution like this, to try and place words in that gentleman's mouth
that he has never uttered. Now, I ask this I submit to your lordship that it is
not a fair way of putting that question : "Will he undertake to contradict him ?"
If it was intended to contradict him, the law prescribes a means by which he shall
do so, and I submit he cannot do it by any other means.

Court.—Has not a counsel, in cross-examining, a power to take a far wider range
than on the examination in-chief ?

Mr. Clarke.—He has under certain circumstances, but he has no right to suggest
that which does not exist, not even though he represents the Crown.

Mr. Osier.—My learned friend has interfered with me twice in this cross-
examination, and he knows, or ought to know, that to interfere in a cross-examina-
tion at critical points is highly irregular, unless the counsel cross-examining is
clearly wrong. My learned friend's first interference was uncalled for, and I am
now asking what is asked every day, whether one witness will contradict another.
I am trying to see where the truth lies between the two witnesses, neither of whom
I am sure are desirous of giving anything else than the truth to the court, but
in fallible memory it requires cross-examination to elicit which is the believable
account of the proceeding. I don't desire to impute any, and shall not impute for a
moment any intentional wrong to the witness on the stand, nor do I desire my
learned friend should do so to the witness Craig.

Mr. Clarke.—I did not do so.

Mr. Osier.—I would be very much obliged if my learned friend would not inter-
fere, and I shall put my questions in as legal a manner as possible.

Court.—-Could you show me some authority that in cross-examination where a
witness has made a statement, he cannot be asked will you contradict so-and-so.

Mr. Clarke.—I am not prepared to give any such authority, but if your lordship
will just remember after all this is a question of fact. It is not a question of law and
the jury are the judges and not your honor.

Court.—But I have to say what is proper.
Mr. Clarke.—Your lordship i& there, not to make laws but dispense laws surely,

and I shall stand to my client if the whole Crown and Government are against me.
Mr. Osier.—We should be very sorry to hinder my learned friend in his proper

eourse of doing his duty by his client.

Court.-—Mr. Osier, you may ask the question.

By Mr. Osier :

Q. Now, will you undertake to contradict Mr. Craig's statement of what took
place there at the meeting, in other words, will you measure your oath against his
upon what took place there ? A. If what I have already said contradicts him, it must
be so, and I stand by it.

Q. That is argumentative—he has made an assertion of a fact, and you have made
an assertion of a fact—it is quite consistent that he may have said both things—will
you undertake to swear that he did not state what Mr. Craig swears that he did ? A.

128



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52) A. 1886

I understand you now. I did not understand your question before. 1 can't under-
take to say that he never did say that, but I can swear that in my hearing he did not.

Q. You can swear that it is not in your recollection ? A. In my hearing it was
not. It is not in my recollection that he repeated any such thing, excepting those
which I have given.

By the Court

:

Q. If he did make it, it was not in your hearing, was that your expression ? A.
If he made that assertion, it was not in my hearing. I never heard him make it.

By Mr. Osier :

Q. Did Scott on that occasion leave the meeting before the resolutions were pas-
sed ? A. I am not certain if he left before they were passed. I know he left before
they were completed and signed.

Q Why did he leave ? A. I don't know.
Q. Was it because the meeting was not in accord with his views? A. No, I don't

know what his reasons were.

Q. You have no idea ? A. No.
Q. But when these resolutions were signed, he was not there ? A. He was not

present when they were signed.

Q. How did you come to notice his absence ? I knew. he was out of the house.
Q. Did you see him go? A. Because the meeting was pretty well dispersed
Q. Did you see him go? A. I saw hira go.

Q. What happened in the meeting, did he go ? A. It was during the discussion
about the resolutions. I can't tell you the particular

Q. Did he move a counter resolution ? A. No.
Q. Are you sure of that, Mr. Matheson ? A. I don't remember of him moving a

counter resolution.

Q. Don't you remember that he moved a counter resolution, and he could not get
a seconder, and he got angry and left ; do you remember anything of that kind ? A.
I don't remember, he may have had a counter resolution.

Q, Will you swear he did not ? A. I will swear to the best of my knowledge.
Q. "Will you swear that he did not? A. I will, unless my memory has failed,

me.
Q. Your memory has failed you as to Spence's speech, that is all gone? A. I

told yon that Spence took up the same line of argument as I did.
Q. You told me also that you could not remember what he said? A. I could

not remember.
Q. You have repeated, so to speak, Scott's speech ? A. And I have repeated

mine, and I told yon Spence took up the gist of those arguments.
Q. Now do you say that Scott was in accord with the rest of the meeting ?

A. He was in accord with the rest of the meeting, for neutrality was what I was
asked to come down for.

Q. What more did he want ? A. What more he wanted was what he suggested,
the advisability of the volunteers returning home.

Q. And laying down their arms ? A/ No, not laying down their arms.
Q. When were you asked to state your recollection of what took place at that

meeting ? When was it ? When were you asked to state your recollection ? The
meeting we are speaking of is the meeting at which Mr. Craig was secretary, how
long did that meeting continue ? How long was it after you called order, before it
closed ? A. It must have been probably four hours.

Q. How long did you speak ? A.I don't know.
Q. Ten minutes ? A.I probably spoke more than that.
Q. Twenty minutes ? A. I dare say, taking it altogether, I spoke nearly an

hour.

Q. You ought to have preached sermons enough to know that half an hour was
all that folks can stand ? A. Yes, but it was not at one time.
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Q. Well you spoke altogether an hour ? How long did Scott speak ? A. It is

almost impossible for me to tell you.
>

Q You are telling me very circumstantially what he said, give me an idea of

how long he spoke, half an hour or an hoar ? A. He probably spoke over half an

Q. How long did Spance speak ? Did he speak more than half an hour ? A.

He spoke several times, I can't remember.

Q. How much altogether ? A. He may have spoken an hour.

Q. Well what was done the rest of the time, four hours altogether, surely some-

body else spoke in the iour hours, four hours for two speakers would be a terrible)

length of time even if my learned friend was one of the parties—now who else

spoke? A. I don't remember any others except Mr. Craig, of course.

Q. Well, Mr. Craig spoke how long ? Can you tell how many resolutions were

proposed and who proposed them ? A, Mr. Ccaig proposed the resolutions.

Q. Who else proposed another resolution ? A. Nobody.

Q. Why, you would never discuss four hours without an amendment wouldyou 7

A, We did it all the same, whatever length of time the discussion was.

Q. You have told us it was four hours, what time was it you got through with

the meeting ? What time of night ? A. It must have been nearly midnight.

Q. And where did you go from that ? A, I went home.

Q. We are speaking of the St. Catharines church meeting, you went home from.

that? A. Yes.
.

Q. When was the next meeting held ? A. The next meeting was held the next

day.
Q. At what time ? A. About 11 in the forenoon.

<d. Who was there, was Scott there ? A. No, he was not.
# #

Q. Now, in holding these meetings, at the instance, no doubt, of Major Crozier,

there was, i believe, some question whether the English half-breeds would not rise ?

That was the danger was it not ? The expected danger you were seeking to avert

was the rising of the English half-breeds ? A. I don't know that we had any fear

of English half-breeds rising against the Government.

Q. What was the uae then of holding the meetings? A. Well, as I understood,

the point was this, that the French were under the impression the English half-

breeds would absist them in arms, and if they were assured that they would not

assist them, it would be the means of them quietly dispersing and going to their

Q. That was the object of the meeting? A. That was the object of the meeting.

Q, And your instructions were for that purpose to get them to remain neutral ?

A. Yes.

Q. That was why the word " neutrality " was made use of? A. Yes.

Q. The object being to show that the French could not get any aid from the

English? A. Yes.
. .

_ , ,

Q, Do you say there was any danger of them giving them any aid ? A. 1 don t

think there was. I don't believe there was.

Q. And I suppose there were a good many of those your own people, your own

congregation? A, Yes.

Q. So that you would, to some extent, know the feeling of the country there ?

A. Yes.

By Mr, Maclise :

Q. You were present during all the time that Mr. Scott was there were you not ?

A Yes
Q Now, the learned counsel for the Crown has referred to the matter of this

matter being brought up to your recollection. Now, you visited Mr. Scott when he

was in prison did you not? A. I did.

Q Did you have any conversation with him then about preceding events so that

matters would be retained in your memory? Did you have any discussions with.

Jiim then ? A. Well, we never went into those.
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Q. Still your memory dwelt on those things did it not? A. Yes.
Q, More particularly what Mr. Scott said, on that account ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you not visit him seveial times in prison in Prince Albert? A. I visited

him very frequently.

Hilliard Mitchell, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Clarke :

Q. Where do you reside ? A. Duck Lake.
Q. In the North-West Territories ? A. Yes.
Q. How far is that from the place known as the Eidge ? A. Twenty-eight or

thirty miles.

Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. How loDg have you known him ? A. I have knownn him since the year the

treaty was made with the Indians, and that was in 1876, I think.
Q. Are you aware of the relations that he has borne; or has he borne' any close

relations with the half breeds of the country? A. I know that his wife was an
English half-breed.

Q. I believe she is now deceased? A. Yes.
Q. How has Thomas Scott been employed or engaged during the time you have

known him ? A. He was engaged by Stobart & Co., and then by Stobart Eden &
Co.

Q. By the same firm ? A. The same firm, yes.

Q. Do you know his place of residence before he was imprisoned recently ?
A. He has a farm on the Eidge.

Q. What kind of a place is it or was it, rather ? A. An ordinary homestead.
Q. Do you know of what extent ? A. I suppose a half section, I don't know.
Q. Can you state to the court and jury whether he farmed extensively ? A; He

farmed extensively. I always understood he was one of the most extensive farmers
in the district.

Q. You passed his place frequently I suppose ? A. I have been over his farm
frequently.

Q. Will you state to the court and jury if you had occasion, about the latter end
of March last, to go to Batoche ? A. I went to Batoche.

Q. State to the court and jury when you went to Batoche and why ? A. There
was a disturbance down there, and I went to see what the disturbance was on Thurs-
day, 19th March, I think, in the evening. I am not sure about the date. It <was a
Thursday.

Q. Was that the only time you went ? A. I went on Friday, and on the Satur-
day following.

Q. Did you meet anybody you knew, when at Batoche, on any of these three
occasions ? A. I saw French half-breeds there that I knew.

Q. Did you see the prisoner ? A. I saw the prisoner there on Saturday, on the
one occasion

.

Q, Will you state to the court and jury where you saw him, and who was pres-
ent ? A. I saw him in Eiel's council chamber.

Q. Do you recollect if anybody was with him, and if so, whom ? A. Two people
were with him. One was Mr. Eoss, and I don't remember who the other was.

Q. Had you any conversation with the prisoner when you were there ? A. Yes.
Q. Well, have the kindness to state to the court and jury what took place

between you, what conversation ? A. I asked the prisoner what he was doing
there

Mr. Osier.—That is not evidence. What a prisoner states is not evidence, what
he is doing there.

Mr. Clarke. His own account of what he is doing there, together with the per-
sonal knowledge of the party who was present, if that is nob evidence

Mr. Maclise. —They charge him with conspiring there at Batoche.
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Mr. Clarke.—It is not what whs done there, it is what was said, and I think the?

jury will want to know that.

Mr. Osier.—What was said, your Honor, by him, what Mr. Mitchell heard him.

say to the others who were coneei ned in the rebellion, I am not going to object to,

tout when a man is accused of crime, I have yet to learn that when he makes his

excuse or his statement, wheD he is asked what he is doing there—I have yet te

learn that that is evidence. I am quite free to admit, I shall not object, at all

events, to Mr. Mitchell's telling what he heard him say to others, but what he said in

answer to Mr. Mitchell's question as to what he was doing there, is not evidence.

Mr. Clarke.— My learned friend puts this in so skilful a manner that it must strike

your Lordship with what peculiar point and force. He says when he was there with

the others engaged in the rebellion—now we have not a word about rebellion from

this witness, and I submit to your Lordship it is a most unfair attempt to make it

appear there was rebellion until we have it from the witness. I ask my question to-

be taken down, and I ask for your Lordship's ruling, and I know exactly what will

be the result.

Court.—It is very clear the witness has not spoken of rebellion. Now, you may
ask him what he was saying, what was said by the prisoner and what was done by
the prisoner there.

Mr. Clarke. - If the prisoner and witness were present ai a place in Batoche on a

certain day, surrounded by others, I ask the witness, and I am legally entitled to ask,

Jhim, what the prisoner said. That is what I ask him What did the prisoner say ?

Court.—As far as you put your last question you are right, but don't ge
beyond it.

Witness.—The prisoner said he had been sent there by the English half breeds to

find out the cause of the disturbance and get them to stop and disperse, and that if

they did not stop they would get themselves into troublt, and they were endanger-

ing the lives of the settlers. That is all the prisoner said to me.

Q. Did you see any of the parties engaged in that disturbance when you were

there; did you tee any of the parties who were supposed to be leaders among the

French half-breeds? A. I saw* the whole council, the council that was assembled.

Q. Did you see Louis Biel ? A. I did,

Q. I understood you to say that you went there for the purpose of trying ta

find out if there was any disturbance, and what it was about ? A. I was there trying

to make peace.

Q. And you met the prisoner there ? A. Under similar circumstances.

Q. They have not arrested you for misprision of treason ? A. No, they have

not.

Q. Would you have the kindness, Mr. Mitchell, to state whether you went all

these three several times that you have mentioned of your own accord, or if at any
of those times you were requested to go by any person in authority? A. Major

Crozier asked me if I would go over on the first occasion and see what these fellows

were up to.

Q. The prisoner is charged with giving aid and comfort to those people. Youv

were there ; did he comfort them much in your presence ? A. All the prisoner said

to me is what I have already said.

Q. You say that you saw Eoss there with him ? A. Yes.

Q. Now, you know the prisoner for some years, you have stated ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know if he speaks the Cree language? A. I don't think he speaks

much Cree language.

Q. Do you know if he speaks French ? A.I know he does not speak French.

Q. Do you know the witness Astley who appeared here ? A. 1 do.

Q. Is it to your knowledge that that gentleman, Mr. Astley, is applying for

a Government situation ? A. I don't know anything about it. 1 am not aware of

the fact.

Q Did you see a gentleman there by the name of McKay ? A. Mr. McKay went
with me on the third occasion. That is on this particular occasion we are speak-

ing of.
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Q. That is the same occasion when you saw the prisoner there ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you hear the witness McKay make any statement with reference to-

where the English half-breeds were ? A. 1 don't know. I did not take any notice

of what Mr. McKay was saying. He was speaking in Oree the greater part of the

time, to the best of my recollection.

Q. Speaking in Cree to whom ? A. To the council. When he spoke to Kiel he
.spoke in English.

Q. Going there did you hear any conversation with Mr. McKay about where the
English half-breeds were ?

Mr. Osier. — It is not evidence, what Mr. McKay said.

Court. If the prisoner was there it would be.

By Mr. Osier:

Q. Mr. Mitchell, did you hear any of the conversation that Scott held with
parties whom he had gone to see ? A. He held no conversations with anyone but

myself during the time that I was in the council chamber.

Q. So, whatever his errand had been, you did not hear him delivering it ? A.
I don't recollect him speakin'g to anybody but myself.

Q. Then had he finished wnat he had gone to do at the time you met him
there? A. I did not ask him.

Q. So that what you stated to us is not what he was stating to the parties sur-

rounding him, but what he stated to you in answer to a question ? A. He stated that

to me.
Mr. Osier.—So you see, your Honor, it is not in evidence, and it ought to be

struck out.

Mr. Clarke:—I submit to your Honor it is evidence.

Court.—At a certain time I shall have to express an opinion upon thak

By Mr. Osier

:

Q. What time of day or night was it you saw him there ? A. It might have
been about mid-day.

Q. And you had gone at the instance, I believe, of Major Crozier ? A. Yes.

Albert Austin Porter sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Maclise :

Q. Where do you live ? A. Prince Albert.

Q. What is your occupation ? A. Telegraph operator.

Q, In the service of ? A. The Government of the Dominion.

Q. For how long? A. Since January 1883, the time the Dominion line came in

from the south.

Q. Do you remember the 22nd March last ? A. Yes.

Q. Where did you go on that occasion, who ordered you ? A. Capt. Moore sent

me an order to—Cant. Moore of the North-West mounted police sent me an order to

go up the Eidge—McParlan's creek, at least.

Q. How far from Prince Albert ? A. I suppose twenty or twenty-five miles from
Prince Albert.

Q. As an ? A. As an operator. I was to transmit messages that would be
sent from Carlton to the authorities in Prince Albert and vice versa.

Q. By scouts from Carlton and from there by telegram ? A. Despatch them
to Carlton.

Q. What sort of an office had you there? A. A bell tent and a wire running
to it.

Q. Do you remember the occurrence of the battle of Duck Lake? A. Yes, I
remember.

Q. What occurred after that, during the night ? A. We got orders to break camp
and remove to the Eidge, near Prince Albert, and tap the telegraph line at the Eidge,

or near the Eidge.
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Q. A t whose house ? A. I tapped the line into the house of Mr. William Miller*
It was about four o'clock in the morning I think when we got there.

Q. How far was that from Tom Scott's place ? A. I suppose it is three-fourths
©fa mile probably. That is my idea of the distance.

Q. He is the nearest neighbor, at any rate, to Scott ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know the prisoner Thomas Scott ? A. Yes.
Q. What took place between him and you on the 2*7tli, after Duck Lake fight?

A. He came into Ishe telegraph office and told me— on the 27th, after the Duck Lake
jfight,

Q. He gave you a telegram—

By Mr. Osier

:

Q. Where is the telegram ? A.I have not it with me. It is destroyed with
all the rest of the messages. It was sent to Capt. Moffatt at Prince Albert.

By Mr. Maclise

:

Q. What was the effect of that, and what was the result afterwaids? A. He
dictated to me and I wrote on a piece of paper.

Mr. Osier.—This is not evidence.

Mr. Maclise.— Suppose you were charged with being before and after a certain
lime, conspiring with rebels ?

Court.—The date is not material in a charge of this sort.

Mr. Maclise.—Suppose during that time you are proved to have made an offer to
supply troops, wouldn't that be evidence ? On the 27th, and for several days before
and after?

Court.—No, I think not. The answer that it was proposed to give was that he
dictated a message offering his services. From Miller's house to this man.

Mr. Claike.—The question I want to atk is this, if on the day in question the
accused went lo him as Government telegraph operator at the Ridge and through
him as telegraph operator telegraphed a message to the highest military authority,

offering to iaifee a troop of men in defence of the country, and against the rebels ?'

that is my question.

Court.—I think you may put the question, generally, if he did, so as to show
his character if he did, without reference to date.

Mr. Scott.—In the next place, it is a leading question which you should not ask.

Mr. Clarke.—I humbly ask your Honor to take my question, and then we will
lave a legal decision upon it.

Mr. Osier.—Surely it would be better for my learned friend to ask what was
done. In the way it is put now, it is open to the objection of putting woids in the
"witness' mouth.

Mr. Clarke.—I ask my question to be taken, and a ruling upon it.

By Mr. Maclise ;

Q. What took place ? A. Mr. Scott came there and aeked me to write at his
dictation, the following message. As far as I remember, he said previously that
he had heard of the Duck Lake fight, and he told me to write the following message
to Captain JMoffatt, that he could raise from 150 to 200 men armed and assembled by
twelve o'clock that day at the Ridge, for the purpose of fighting against the Indians
and rebels in defence of Queen and country, that is the gist ofthe message.

Q. What did you do with it ? A. I transmitted it to Prince Albert,

Q. Did you receive any acknowledgment? A. I received the ordinary
acknowledgment of telegraph operators, that it was received correctly.

Q. To whom was it addressed ? A. Captain Moffatt.

Q. What position did he hold then— Captain Moflat ? A Inspector in the North-
"West Mounted Police. He was then, I think, commandiDg officer. It was Captain
^Moffatt, commanding officer, Prince Albert.
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Q What answer did you get or what discussion was there over the wire with

regard to this proposition ? A. I don't know whether I am permitted to state that

or not. I am a sworn operator, under oath.

Mr. Osier.—That is not evidence. The answer to Scott, I have no objection to

going in, but not any discussion between the authorities among themselves as to

-what should be done with it, that would not do. ,

Mr. Clarke.—I don't think, with all the desire to do anything I can tor my
client, I don't think we would be justified in tapping the line or asking what the

authorities were discussing between themselves.

By Mr. Macllse :

Q. What answer was received ? A. There was no direct answer ;
there was an

acknowledgment that it was received correctly.

Q. Well, did you hear anything of Mr. Scott after that ? A. Yes. I saw him

•while I was there, nearly every hour or so.

Q. What took place between you ? A. There was nothing particularly took

place. There were discussions and talking. I don't remember exactly any particu-

lar thing taking place.

Q. Did he conspire with anybody in your presence, to bring about rebellion or

to aid or abet rebellion during that time? A. I never knew anything of the kind.

Q. Wasn't he in and out of the office most of the time? A. He was there

frequently. Yes.

Q. Did you see anything on his part that would bear out the charge that was

laid against him ?

Mr. Osier.—Surely you have gone far enough with these irregular questions.

Mr. Clarke.— You've charged him with a vague charge.

Mr. Osier.—The Crown must rest upon the overt acts they have proved, and you

must displace those overt acts.

Mr. Mac! ise.—Conversations of this kind have been given by the prosecution.

By Mr. Osier :

Q. How long have you known Mr. Scott? A. Ever since I came to Prince

jfidbert.

Q. How long is that ? A. Three years this winter.

Q. Been intimate with him ? A. No, I have never been intimate with him.

Q. The country was in a considerable state of alarm immediately after Duck

Jjake '( A. Yes, there was a certain amount of excitement.

Q. They were afraid of the Indians? A, Yes.

Q. And afraid that the settlement was going to be in trouble? A. That was the

general complaint.

Q. It was after it was known that the people had been killed at Duck Lake that

this offer of Mr. Scott's was made ? A. It was on the 27th—yes, that would be after

the Duck Lake fight which was on the 26th.

Q. The country was in a great state of alarm ? A. 5Tes, there was considerable

©xcitment.

Hugh Eoss sworn:

—

Examined by Mr. Maclise:

Q. Where do you live? A. Prince Albert during: last winter—near Prince Albert.

Q. Do you know the prisoner Mr. Scott ? A. Yes.

Q. What has been your acquaintance with him ? A. I know him since 1872.

Q Where was that ? A. Princesp Kiver.

Q. In the service of the ? A. Hudson Bay Company.

Q. You are both in the service of the company? A Yes.

Q. You left T think about -the same time as he did ? A. Yes.

Q. What occupation do you follow? A. Freighter generally and farming.

Q. Where is your farm ? A. Medicine Hat.
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Q. Do you know the settlement called the Eidge ? A. Yes.
Q. What position does it hold as to Batoche and Prince Albert in case an attack

had been made during the rebellion, an advance had been made from Batoche on.
Prince Albert ? A. It is right on the way.

Q. As to trails ? A. Yes.

Q. The trails irom Carlton and^Duck Lake and Batoche all ? A. Lead above
that, they all come into one there.

Q. If an attack had been made, what would have been the effect on the Kidge*
settlement ? A. They would stand a poor chance, I guess.

Q. What was the state of the mind of the people of that settlement at that time,
about that time on that account, on account of their position ? A. The families were
getting scared. They wanted to have a meeting of the people, and see what they
would do.

Q. This was in the winter, and when there are not so many trails open. There
are not so many trails open there in that country in winter as in summer ? A. No.

Q. What sort of farm has Mr. Scott there, and what has been his occupation for
some time? A. A farmer, and he has about 300 acres.

Q. Under cultivation ? A. Yes, about that, as near as I can judge, Mr. Scott has*
Q. Large or small quantity ? A. Large, I should say.

Q. Now, what kind of a settlement is that, what kind of people surround it ? A.
^English and Scotch half-breeds.

Q. Almost entirely, is it not the case ? A. Yes, with a few Canadian settlers.

Q. You went to live with Mr. Scott sometime lately? A. Yes.
Q. How long ago was it ? A. It was about 4th December, I believe.'
Q. Of last year? A. Yes.

Q. How long did you stay ? A. Until after the Batoche fight, a few days after
that I left there.

Q. Of course you have been away and back in the meantime I suppose ? A*
Yes, I have been away.

Q. Now you were living at his house then after 4th December? A. Yes.
Q. Was he away from you any part of the time, or were you with him a good

part of the time from that on to the end of the year ? A. The most of the time I
have been along with him, mostly all the time, until I started.

Q. There were parties came there to see him, did he hold private discussion with,
them? A. I never heard any. I have been always in with him there, when any per-
sons came in, I have been always in his company.

Q Now the half-breeds in that section of the country, in what regard do they
liold Mr. Scott ; what influence has he over them ? A, They look on him as a
leader of the people there.

Q. The half-breeds look up to him as their leader ? A. Yes.
Q. A leadership is brought about by himself is it ? A. I can't say.
Q. Isn't it a fact that it is on their application and on their seeking ? A. Cer-

tainly, it is on theirs.

Q. Now you say that he held no private conversations from the time you went
there ? A. No, none that I know.

Q. Well any conversations that you heard, in any expressions you heard Thomas
Scott make use of, from 5th December, until it was known that the rebellion had
broken out after the battle of Duck Lake the fight there, did you ever hear anything'
that you thought was in any sense treasonable, or what did you hear ? In what way
did he speak of public events ?

Mr. Osier.—What did he say ? If that is evidence, but it is not evidence, it is
no answer to any evidence in chief, that class of question has already been ruled on.

By Mr. Maclise

:

Q. Well did the prisoner ever make use of any expressions to you favorable to
the rebellion publicly or privately ?

Mr. Osier.—I object to the question, a moment's reflection will surely show it
is not admissible.
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Mr. Maclise.—It would, in ordinary cases, but not in this.

Q. From the time you went there on the 5th December, till the 2 1st March, until

the time you went up with him as a delegate—did he go to Batoohe during that time
to the French settlement ? Do you know of his going to Batoche ? A. No, I don't

know of him going there until he went along with me.
Q. Now, do you remember the 20th March ? A. Yes.

Q. What took place on that day ? A. There was a meeting held, on the night

of the 20th at Lindsay school

.

Q. How did it come to be held do you recollect? A. Because the people wanted
to know the particulars of the trouble that was up at Batoche. There were so many
reports, and contradictory reports had gone around that they could not believe, so a
meeting was called.

Q. And what took place there? The meeting was called to order and who was;

elected chairman and who secretary? A. Tom Scott, and William Miller. .

Q. Scott was chairman and Miller secretary? Was he ? A. Yes.

Q. Well, what did Mr. Scott say ; do you recollect? A. Well, Mr. Scott did
not say much, there was not much said at the meeting that night only to know tha
particulars from Batoche, and it was proposed by the meeting that there would be &.

delegate appointed to go to Batoche, and we were elected, Thomas Scott aad I and
William Paquin, and then there was a discussion about a room.

Q. Now it has been stated that Mr. Miller made a speech there, did you hear the

evidence of Mr. McNiven this morning? A. Yes.

Q. Did you hear the remarks that Mr. McNiven made to the effect that Mr_
Miller had stated there was a rebellion among the French? Do you remember
McNiven remarking to that effect ? A. I think he did say something about it

.

Q, You heard what Mr. Miller said, if he said anything, on that occasion ? A.I
4on't understand you.

Q. Mr. McNiven has stated in his evidence this morning, that during that meeting

Mr. William Miller stated as there was rebellion among the French, we should find

delegates to find what was the matter ; now, you heard Mr. McNiven's evidence I

A. Yes.

Court.—His statement was this, that as the French half-breeds were under arms
steps should be taken.

By Mr. Macltee

:

Q What did Mr. Miller say ? A. I could not say.

Q. Is that statement of Mr. McNiven true or untrue? A. I don't remember

such a thing. ^
Q. You were present at the whole meeting? A. I was present, but I don

t

remember hearing that.

Q. Mr. McNiven also stated there were cheers after the meeting was over ; after

or towards the close of the meeting there were cheers, three for the delegates and

three for Eiel ; what do you say about that ? A. Well, there was no cheers while the

meeting—after the meeting was dismissed there were cheers then from the crowd as

they went out through the doors. I could not say what it wan.

Q. You don't know what those cheers were for? A. No, I don't. There was

no cheers while the meeting lasted ; after the dismissal of the meeting there were

cheers.

Q. Did you hear Kiel's name mentioned at all? A. I did not. It was outside.

There was a large amount of people there.

Q. Do you think if it had been mentioned you would have heard it ? A. 1 should

think I ought to hear it, if it was mentioned there.

Q. The cheers that there were, were, in fact, just the ordinary cheers that people

burst out into, going away from a meeting ? A. Yes, as far as I know, I have not

heard any cheers for Eiel.

Q. Now, do you remember Mr. Scott's going away during February to

-Qu'Appelle? A. Yes.
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Q. When did he return—about what time—from Qu'Appelle? A. The latter

«nd of February—I could not say, I am sure.

Q. How long was it then before this meeting ? A.I think it was the latter end
eof February, if I am not mistaken, or the first of March.

Q. "When did he leave for the capital, now you are forgetting, when did you leave
yourself for the capital ? A. The latter end of January.

Q. And when did you return ? A. First March.
Q. Now, when did Scott leave ? A. It wab after that, Scott came back.
Q. How long after that? A. I guess eight or ten days. I think I was at his

place eight or ten days after.

Q. Do you remember the time he came back ? Until this meeting you were
stopping right at his house, were you not ? A. Yes.

Q. Ho you remember whether he made a visit to Pi ince Albert during that time
or not? What are the facts in regard to that ? A. From the time he came back ?

Q. Up to this meeting of the 20th, on Friday? A. He has only been once
down there, and I have been along with him. He went down with flour, floar that
he brought in

.

Q. What time was that ? A. That was the next day after he came in.

Q. That would be then about what time? You say you came back on the lrit

ilarch, and about eight or ten days after that, Scott came back? A. I should say
about the 12th March, as near as I can remember.

Q. Between that time, the 12th and the 20th, the time of the meetiDg, where
was Scott? A. Always at home.

Q. Did you hear the evidence of Mr. Astley this morning to the effect that the
flay before the stores weie looted on the 17th March, he saw Mr. Thomas Scott in

Prince Albert ? A. I have not.

Q. Did you hear what Mr. Astley said about Tbon.as Scott being down to Prince
Albeit jumping out of a sleigh or the 17th March, the day before the looting of the
stores, and going to Capt. Moore and having a conversation with him? A. Yes, I
have heard so.

Q. New, you have already stated that from the 12ih to the 20th Scott was not at

Prince Albert ? A. No, I have been there all the time, and I have never seen him
go^down until he was taken prisoner down in Prince Albert—about two days before

lie was taken prisoner, I was down there.

Q. Well, what would you say with regard to that evidence of Mr. Astley's

—

that it was true or untrue ? Would you contradict that evidence ?

Mr. Osier,—That is not the right way to get the evidence.

By Mr. Maclise

:

Q. Where was Thomas Scott on the 17th March ? A. Well, he must have been
Tiome, because he has never been in Prince Albert since that time till fitter. If he
has, it is unknown to me, and I have been there all the time. He must have gone
down there in the night, and then he could hardly get down there in the night and
he hack in the morning without my knowing it.

Q. Astley stated it was in the afternoon he saw him there ? A. I can't say any-
thing about that.

Q. You know that Mr. Scott was home in the afternoon, don't you?
Mx. Osier.—I desire the witness should not be led unnecessarily.

By Mr. Maclise :

Q. Now, what was said by Mr. Thomas Scott at thip meeting on the 20th March ?

Do you recollect what was the sense of what he said ? Do you recollect he called On
seme of item for a speech, did he not ? A. He did.

Q. Who was thai ? A. I think the first was McNiven.
Q. You have already told us th&t the work of that meeting was the sending of

delegates, and very little discussion. Well, whom did they send as delegates, and
what were they sent for ? A. Thomas Scott, myself and William Paquin.
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Q, You have already stated that Mr. Miller was secretary of that meeting. Did

he take any notes ? A. I don't think he has taken any notes. I think it was on &
scrap of paper— scraps of paper taken in a hurry.

Q. When did you start for Batoche ? A. On the morning of the 20th.

Q. What day of the week ? A. Saturday morning—the 21st I mean.

Q. What time in the morning? A. Ahout 1 o'clock.

Q. What took place after that during the day ? Where did you go, and what

look place there ? A. We went to Batoche.

Q. Did you see anybody on the road ? A. No, just met one sleigh. I don't

know who it was. I think that was all we met on the road. It was dark.

Q. When you got to Batoche, what took place there? A. We seen there was

trouble there.

Q. Where did you go to ? A. We went up to Biel's house.

Q. Is that where you went to first ? A. No.

Q. Where did you go to first ? A. I thick it is to Fisher's store, I am not sure.

Q. Then you went on to the council house, did you ? A. Yes.

Q. And what did you see there ? Where did you see Mr. Biel first there ? A;

About twenty yards, I suppose, from the house—he came out to meet us.

Q. What conversation took place between him and Mr. Scott, or between him.

and you as delegates ? A. Mr. Biel said that I hope you have come to make peace,

to save bloodshed, and Thomas Scott said that he just came here as a delegate with a

note, and that note was given to Biel, which he read, and he Wanted to bring back

in writing the truth of the trouble.

Q. But what did he say in answer to Biel's question about preventing bloodshed

A. He said if he could do that he would be very willing to do all that was in his

power.
Mr. Osier.—Who said that ? A. Tom Scott.

Mr. Maclise,—Mr. Scott asked him what the cause of the trouble was, didn't he?

A. Yes. •

Q. And what did Biel say ? A. He e aid it was on account of Lawrence Clarke

coming in there, coming through there from having been down east, I think, down

at Troy anyhow, and came through there, and the half-breeds wanted to know what

the Government was going to do towards their grievances, and he said that what

.they were going to get was powder and ball, that there was 500 police left Hoodo to

come and wipe them ant. . _

Q. When had they left Hoodo? A. That morning of the day that Lawrence

Clarke went through there. I cculd not say what time it was. It was a few days-

before that. That is the conversation that he told us anyhow.

Q. He said something about expecting somebody to come there, didn't he ?

Mr. Osier.— It is desirable to get what was said without suggesting.

Mr. Maclise.—What did Biel say after that ? Did he say anything about

McKay and Mitchell ? A. Yes, he kept us there. Their was three scouts, French

half breeds, came from Duck Lake, and said that Mr. Mitchell and Thomas

McKay were coming,, and the scouts brought him word that the half-breeds (English

and Scotch) were joined at Carlton,

Q. Did these scouts mention any conversation that took place between th m
and Thomas McKay ? A. The scouts had brought in word from Duck Lake.

Q. And who had the scouts come from ? A. From Tom McKay.

Q. What was it that they brought as coming from Tom McKay ? A*

They told him that the English half-breeds were in Carlton to join Crozier.

Q. Who told him ?

Mr. Osier.—You can't give what the scouts said, surely ?

Mr. Maclise.—Who told ? A. That is what the scouts said.

Q. What did Biel tell you ? A. Bier told us we would have to stay here, or

else we were placing a three-fold game on them, or else Tom McKay must be a liar*

bo we had to stay there until Tom McKay came in.
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Q. So that the result of your journeying there was this ? A. Till the scouts
same in, we were'detained.

Court.—The simple fact was that they were detained until McKay arrived by
reason of the scouts' story ? A . Yes.

Q. Did Eiel make any threat, and what was it ? A. He told me Tom McKay-
Q. Did he make any threat to you ?

Mr. Osier.—What did he say ?

Mr. Maclise.—What did he hay about Nolin ? A. He said they had sentenced
Nolin. He was very hot or very mad, as you call it, because we came there on the
same errand as Tom McKay, with a different view of it.

Q. What did he say about Nolin ? A. He said they had sentenced Nolin, and
what could they expect ?

Q. Sentenced Nolin to what ? A. To death, to be shot.

Q. Where was Thomas Scott duriog the time you were there all day ? Was he
with you, out among others ? Or how, or what ? A. He was with me all the time,
along with the other delegates.

Q. Does Thomas Scott understand Oree or French ? A. No.
Q. Did Thomas Scott after that say anything to Eiel, and what was it ; about

what he would do ? A. He said he would have nothing to do with him after he*
took up arms, but as far as he was in any legal manner, it would be all right, but
when he took up arms, he wanted to have nothing to do with him whatsoever.

Q. Did he speak about constitutional agitation ? A. Yes.
Q. And what did he say ? A. He said he was willing to do anything he possibly

could to get the rights of the people.

Q. In a legal constitutional manner ? A. In a constitutional manner, not any
otherwise.

Q. Now did he say anything about, in case there was an Indian uprising? Did
he mention anything about the Ridge people ? A. Yes.

Mr. Osier.—You are leading him all the time, it is awful.
Court.—Was there anything more passed?
Mr. Maclise.—Q. Was there anything more took place between them about

letting the people know ? A. Yes.
Q. Well, what was it? A. Thomas Scott wanted to know from Eiel if the

Indians would come down there to let them know aiound.
Q. For Eiel to let them know beforehand ? A. Before they would get down

there and go right through the people, as it was right on their way.
Q. When did you leave Batoche and where did you go to ? A.I went back to

the Eidge,

Q. When? A. Saturday evening.
Q. What time? A. About four o'clock.

Q. What time did you get home ? A. About eight.

Q. And you went to Scott's house ? A. Yes.
Q. When was the next meeting held at Lindsay after you got home on Saturday

night? A. Monday night.

Q. Were you at church next day at Lindsay ? A. No I wasn't at church.
Q. You say there was a meeting Monday night? A. Yes, Monday some-

ime.
Q. Who was chairman, and who was secretary at that meeting, do you recollect?

A. I think it was Thomas Miller secretary, I am not sure, I could not say.
Mr. Maclise.—There were some resolutions passed there, a series of resolutions,

I have made attempts to get them, they were sent to Major Croz ; er, and handed over
hy him I beiieve to the prosecution and I have served them with a notice to produce
those, concerning meeting 23rd March, signed by a very large number of people.

Mr. Osier.—We have a paper which may have come from Major Crozier,a copy,
that is all we have; we don't know its authenticity, and it is marked a copy " L "

—

it came from EieFs possession, from Batoche.
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By Mr. Maclise

:

Q. Well, does that show what was done on that day ? Look that over ; do you

recollect anything of that kind being passed on that day? A. Yes.

Q, That was to be sent to whom? A. To Major Crozier.

Q. Who went with it? A. William Miller, I believe.

Q. And who else ? A. Adams.
Q. Now, you were at that meeting where the speeches were made, was the-

speech that was made by Thomas Scott or anything he said to the effect—what did

Thomas Scott say ? A. He was speaking in a legal manner to get their rights in a

legal manner, but not to take up arms, that was the whole of the meeting.

Q. Did you seethe jail that Mr. Scott was kept in alter being taken down to

Prince Albert? A. I did.

Mr. Osier.-—Surely this has nothing to do with the issue here.

Mr. Maclise.—He was arrested and detained three months without charge.

Mr. Osier.—It he is improperly charged, there is a remedy.

By Mr. Maclise :

Q. Whose signature is that to exhibit " H" ? Who signed that ? A. I did.

Q. Where did you write that? A. Down in a law office in town.

Q. You positively swear that you wrote that ? A. Yes, I swear I wrote that.

Q. Do you. see that paper " 6 " with name below, who do you think signed that

name there ? Have you any idea of who signed it ? A. Thomas Scott.

Q. Would you think Thomas Scott signed that? A. He might, and he might

not. It is pretty hard—I could not swear.

Q. You remember the time of lhe battle of Duck Lake, do you not? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember when Thomas Scott was made prisoner after that?

A. Yes.

Q. You were left in charge of the place, I think, you stayed at the place T

A. Yes.

Q. What took place there at Scott's farm

Mr. Oaler.—What has that to do with this case? Surely that is not, and cannot

be evidence.

Q. You have known Mr. Scott, I think, for some thirteen years or so? A*

Since 1872.

Q. You are not any relative or connection of his ? A. No.

Q. And what was your position when you were up there, from December till

March—were you hired, or what were you doing, living there ? A. I was living

there, and I went down to Troy for freight.

Q. Were you just stopping there as a friend, or were you hired ? A. No, I was

just merely stopping there ; it was a good place for my horses.

Q. Just stopping there, doing what freight you could? A. I just went on one>

trip down to Troy.

Q. What then took you there? Were you working for your board or pajin^

for your board, and doing work or were you putting in the winter there, or what T

A. I was just putting in the winter there.

Q. Aod doing nothing ? A. I was freighting. I went down to Troy.

Q. Thai took you how long ? A. Along time, about two months. The snow:

was pretty deep.

Q. You were away all what month. You took two months; when did you

get back ? A. I got back

Q. About the 8th March, wam'tit? A. Yes.

Q. So you would be away all February, you got back the 1st of March or latter

end of February, so you would be away all January and February on that freighting

bee ? A. Part of January and February. It would be about that—two months.

Q. Was Scott with you freighting ? A. No.

Q. Well, you gave me an impression, I don't think you intended to do it, per-

haps, that you and Scott almost slept together from December till March, that is not.

ao ; is it? A. I did not say it,
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Q. You seamed to say you wore with him all the time, that he could not go any-
where without your following as a shadow ? A. Not at all.

Q. You were in fact, only about four weeks at Scott's altogether, from early
December to early January ? A. Oh, I have been more than that after I came back.

Q. But you were only about four weeks there ? A. About four weeks.
Q. And during that time you went into Prince Albert, didn't you during the

time you were there, commencing 4th December. Did you go into Prince Albert ?

A. Yes, I went in to see Prince Albert.

Q. Three or four times ? A. X could not say how many times.

Q. Surely you would want a little Moosejaw beer at Christmas? A. Not the
kind of beer they had there.

Q. Then in March, what were you doing, after you came back; can you tell me?
Where were you on the 1st March, or 2nd March ? A. I guess I would be in on
the way coming to Prince Albert, pretty close around there.

Q. Well, what did you do the first day after you got there ? After you got to
Prince Albert ? A. I came back to the Ridge.

Q. And what did you do when you were at the Eidge ? What did you occupy
yourself in doing ? A. In looking after the feeding of the horses.

Q. That is all you had to do ? A. All I had to do.

Q. And all you did ? A. All I did

.

Q. And what was Scott doing, watching his horses and stock ? A. He was not
there at the time, he was down at Troy.

Q. Did you get a letter from Kiel at the time that you were over there, did you
•or Scott or any of that delegation, get a letter ? A. There was a letter came there.

Q. A letter that you could recollect the terms of? A. I think so.

Q. A letter that was given to Scott ? A. Yes.

Q. Was it to the English half-breeds of the KedDeer Hills and St. Catharines and
St. Paul's, dear brothers in Jesus Christ, is that the way the letter commenced? A. I
think I could recognise it, it would be a good deal quicker if you read it to me. I can-
not identify it.

Q. Look at the terms and phrases, perhaps you might bring it to your mind.
Did you hear Scott read a leLter at the meeting after you came back ? A. Yes, the
letter that we brought.

Q. See whether that is the letter that he read to the meeting. Don't read it

aloud. Do you remember that as the letter read ? A. I can't say.

Q. You can't say that it is or is not ? A. I can't say that it is, or is not.

Q. Who brought the letter back from that meeting ? A. Tom Scott.

Q. Now, you stated there were two delegations at Kiel's that day, one Messrs.
Mitchell and McKay, the other Mr. Scott, yourself and another, and you said that
these two delegations wore different or on a different basis or words to that effect.

Will you tell me what the difference was, or what you mean by saying they were on
a different basis ?

Mr. Clarke.—I did not understand the witness to say that.

Mr. Osier.—I don't say those are the exact words, but he gave me the impres-
sion there was a difference.

Witness.—We both tried to make peace I suppose.

Q. Well, what was the difference between you ? A. I can't say, I am sure, what
the difference was.

Q. You did not mean to give any impression of that sort ? A. No.
Q. Then you take it back, what I think Mr. Maclise put in your mouth that Scott

did not go to Batoche from December 5th till 21st March. Of course you must take
that back for you were away two months ? A. Not that I know—not while I have
been there, or not what I heard of, and I asked him and he said not.

Q. Now, do you know who called the cheers when the crowd were going out of
the meeting, of the 20th March ? A. I could not say.

Q. How many cheers were there ? A. There were two or three I think.

Q. And you did not take any part in them ? A. Only the usual cheers given.
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Q. Three cheers for the Queen, I suppose, breaking up the meeting ? A. Three

cheers generally i'or the chairman.

Q. Were there three cheers for the Queen ? A. I could not say.

Q. They tell me there were three cheers for the delegation, and that you were

cheered, you would surely remember that ? A. I don't remember the meeting to have

dismissed

.

Thursday, 9 a. m., 10th September*

William Paquin sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Maclise :

Q. Do you know the prisoner Mr. Scott ? A. Yes.

Q. How long? A. From 1879.

Q. That was when you came to where ? A. The Eidge

.

Q, Where do you live ? A. At the Kidge

.

Q. Now, do you remember what part Mr. Scott took in any agitation that there*

was just before the rebellion broke out, and what was it ? A. I don't understand

rightly.

Q. Before the rebellion broke out, what did you hear Mr. Scott say ?

Mr. Osier.—That is not evidence, you have to answer definite facts thatwe prove.

Mr. Maclise.—I understood it was part of the Crown's case that the prisoner led

these people into rebellion.

Mr. Osier.—You must not prove other facts. What the prisoner said on other,

occasions does not meet what he is charged with saying or doing on the specific

occasions on which the Crown relies. We are nqt reviewing the man's whole con-

duct. We have given certain evidence of facts against him, those are the facts tv> be

met, and the only facts in trial.

Q. Do you remember Friday the 20th March, last past ? A. Yes.

Q. What do you remember that took place on that day? A. Well, a meeting

at the Lindsay school that day.

Q. Did Mr. Scott say anything ; what took place at the meeting, as near as you
can recollect, with regard to, particularly, Mr. Scott? A. Well, they met there

altogether, first to know what to do, then we heard that there was some trouble. So
we came together there and they took three delegates to send up there.

Q. Who were the delegates ? A. Scott, Boss, myself, and we went straight up
there.

Q. What did the meeting direct you to go up for ? A, To see what the state of

affairs was, to see if it was true.

Q. When did you start? A. We started on Saturday morniDg at 1 o'clock .

Q. And you went to ? A. Batoche's early in the morning*

Q. And what took place at Batoche's ? A. Well, there was nothing much there,

W© went into a house there and saw the people there, some were sleeping and some
were cooking their bread . Kiel was not there, and we went to another house and
met him there.

Q. Whom did you see there ? A. We saw Eiel.

Q. What took place from that until you left and went home ? A. Mr. Kiel

asked us what we were doing. I can't say it rightly because I can't speak English.

By the Court

:

Q. He asked you what you came for ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Maclise

:

Q. Tell us it as well as you can, take your time. Who spoke of you people ?

A. Scott.

Q. And what did he say ? A. He said we were sent there as delegates. So we
stopped there, three of us together, and he went down stairs, and I don't know where
he went to. And after he came in again, he came and said Tom McKay was to be

there that day, and Mr. Mitchell.
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Q. And he left you, did he or did he not say something more ? A. I don't
know.

Q. At any rate, did he say anything more about McKay afterwards? A. Yes.
Hu aaid that Tom McKay told Scott or some other friend that the English half-breeds
-were at Carlton.

Q. And what did Eiel say on that? A. Well, of course, he was rather vexed,
like, with us and said that we were going to trick him some way.

Q. What else did he say? A. He said something about discussing Nolin again.
Q. Do you remember what it was ? A.I remember, but I can't say it rightly.

Q. You can't say it in English ? A. I can't say it very well.

Q. Did Kiel speak in English ? A. Yes. I understand English pretty well,
but I can't talk it. He said that he was going to shoot him, and then what can you
expect?

Q. Well, did he say anything more just then ? Did he let you go ? A. No. •

Q. What then ? A. I think he went down stairs again, and then we stopped
there. He said for us to stop there till McKay and Mitchell came there.

Q. Did McKay come ? A. Yes.

Q. Well, do you remember any conversation that took place between Eiel and
Soott, alter that before you left ? A. Yes.

Q. What was it? What did Mr. Scott say? A. He said something about a
letter for Kiel to take down.

Q. Did Scott say anything about a rebellion ? A. No. There was Tom McKay
and Mitchell—when they came, they said they were to meet half-way some place to
go and meet each other, Kiel and them.

Q. But did Scott fay anything more to Kiel before he left, just before you left,

at any time shortly before you left ? A. He told him to send word to us what
would happen.

Q. To send word to you in what case ? A. About what bargain they would
jnake with them, peace or agreement, or anything of that.

Q. You wanted to get word also on another reason, what was that ? A. That is

all I remember.
Q. Wasn't there some other reason that you wanted to get word for ? Down at

;your place, you lived at the Kidge, didn't you ? A. Yes.

Q. What were you afraid of there ? A. I was afraid of the Indians, and that
"was why we were sent up.

Q. What did you want word for ? A. I said that already. I said that for them to
jsend on word if there was anything about the Indians. I said that already.

Q. That is, send you word down to where ? A. To the Kidge.

Q. What time did.you leave there to start for the Kidge, home ? A. Towards
evening, about three or four o'clock, on Saturday.

Q. Do you remember a meeting next day at Lindsay, that has been spoken of t

Ji, Yes.

Q. You also remember one after that at St. Catharines ? A. Yes.

Q. Was the prisoner there ? A. Yes.

Q. What did he say at St. Catharines ? He said it would be good if these
volunteers would come back and protect Prince Albert, and all these half-breeds to

join as one man and help them. That is what he said, something like that any way,
not the very words.

Q. Do you remember that he said there were three cheers for Kiel given ?

JL Yes.

Q. What part of the room were you in at that meeting ? A. About the middle
of the house.

Q. Did you hear what cheers took place ? A. There was no cheers in the
Jhoitei-.

Q. Well,what was there ; what sort of noise was there of any kind ? A. I suppose
youDg fellows were cheering outside, but not in the house at all. I was there about
the very last. I was there as far as to know what time of night they were going to
start,
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Q. Before you were at Batoche, what did Mr. Scott pay ? Before he was leaving

what did he pay to Mr. Eiel about his mission there, and what you were sent for, and
what you were going to do in the matter ? A. He was sent there, and that he
would have nothing to do with Eiel, by taking up arms. He said that again.

Court.—-That was at leaving ? A. Yes.

Mr. Osier.— Q. When you were at Bntoche, was anything to be done when you
left ? Did Scott promise, or did any of you promise to call another meeting ? A.
Yes, when we got back, that we would have to let you people know what was done.

Q. What did Scott promise to do at that other meeting? Was it not that he
would get the people to remain neutral ? A. Yes.

Q. And not help the troops against Kiel ? A. Against Kiel, but not to go up
there.

Q. They would not help Eiel, and he would call the people together and get

them to remain neutral, didn't he ? A. Not like that.

Q. Wasn't that the way it was ? How did they come to let you go ? A. We
did not promise them anything, any way.

Q. They let you go after McKay came ? A. Yes.

Q. But he was to call another meeting and get the people to remain neutral

—

that is what you said, isn't it ? A. Well, 1 said first, let the people know when we
would get back.

Q. And the people to remain neutral

Mr. Clarke.—If this is to be proceeded with, I will demand an interpreter.

We insist upon an examination in Cree (this being, as witness says, his language.)

Mr. Osier.—The witness is answering in English very well.

Mr. Maclise.—He does not understand the meaning of the word " neutral."

Mr. Osier.—It is not right for a counsel to interfere in this way, highly irregular

and improper

.

Q. Now you were there how long ? A. I got there in the morning and stopped

there till about 4 o'clock in the evening.

Q. You got there in the morning about breakfast time, was' it ? A. Yes, about

8 o'clock in the morning.

Q. Now, were you with Mr. Scott all that time ? A. Yes.

Q. And heard all that was said between Eiel and him ? A. Yes.

Q. Now, did you get a letter to take back ? A. \es.

Q. Was Mr. Scott to send back word what they would do after he called the

meeting ? How was Eiel to know ? A. I don't know about that.

Q. Well, how was he to know what was done? A. I don't know. I don't know
whether we were to send word back to him or not—not that I know.

Q. What was the use of the meeting ? A. It was, first, to know what to do, us

people there that had families.

Q. But you have told my learned friend already that Scott told Eiel to send

word what bargain they would make as to peace ? A. Yes.

Q. Scott asked Eiel to send him word ? A. Yes.

Q. Well, wasn't Scott to send Eiel back word what the English half-breeds would
do ? A. We did not know what was coming. We had first to go and see that.

Q. How were you to know it ? A. When we would get back we would know,
and we would see if there was anything further going on.

Q. How were you to hear ? How was the message to be sent ? A. I am not

talking about a message.

Q. Well then, it was the Indians that the settlers were afraid of ? A. Yes.

Q. Not the French half-breeds ? A. No, I was not afraid of them, anyway,
myself.

Q. They were not going to attack you ? A. ¥o.

Q. What you were afraid of in the settlement, was the Indians ? A. Yes, the

Indians, that is what the wives were afraid of.

Q. And what Scott and you went over there for was to see how you would be
protected against the Indians ? A. Yes.
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Q. It was Dot anything to do with the French rising ? A. No, not at all.

Q. But it was just to see how you would keep your families right in case the
Indians came down ? A. Yes.

Q. And you wanted the French to arrange to protect you against the Indians-—
isn't that it ? A. We had nothing to do with the French.

Q. You would not have anything to do with them, but what would you go there
for the purpose of getting protection from the Indians ? A. I did not say that.

Q. Well, what did you go there for ? To find out what the Indians were going*
to do ? A. Because, if they were going to come down, ot course we would get ready
for them.

Q. Why did you go to Riel ? Why didn't you go to the Indians and see what
they were going to do ? A. We would hear from there.

Q. Did you inquire about the Indians from Riel ? A. I think we did.

Q. What did Kiel tell you about the Indians ? A. I asked Gabriel Dumonfc
myself, and he said that the Indians were going to take up arms, and that is all I
asked him.

Q. Well, then, how on earth did you find out how you were going to be pro-
tected? You know you went there to *eo how you would get protected against the
Indians. Now kindly tell me what you did to get that protection, what inquiries yon
you made ? A* I did not go up there to get protection from the French, from the
Indians.

Q, What did you go up there for? A. To make sure what was up.

Q. Well, what did you find was up ? A. We thought there was some trouble]

there.

Q. Well, did you enquire into the extent of the trouble ? A. No.
Q. Well, what was the use of your delegation anyway? A. I saw what was

enough to satisfy me.

Q. To satisfy you of what? A. That there was some trouble.

Q. You knew that without going there, you know ? A. No, there
Mr. Clarke.—I don't think that is right, I submit to your lordship. The wit-

ness is on his oath, and he swears they went there to find out—
By Mr. Osier :

Q. You knew there was trouble there before, didn't you ? A, No.
Q. You heard of it ? A. I had heard, but I did not believe it.

Q. What had you heard ? A. We heard there was going to be trouble there •

Q. What kind of trouble ? A. Well, I don't know what kind of trouble it would
l)e, but trouble, anyway.

Q. What kind of trouble? You can tell me what you had heard'? You heard
they were up in arms ? A. We would hear it that way sometimes, and sometimes
not.

Q. You heard they were going to fight thejpolice, didn't you ? A: I did not hear
that

Father Andr£ sworn :
—

Examined by Mr. Maclise :

Q. ]>o you know the prisoner, Mr. Soott ? A. Yes, I know him.
Q. Since when ? A.I know him since 1875.

Q. What business is he in ? A. Well, the time I knew him he was a trader. He
was coming there sometimes every week, sometimes oftener than that, and I was
staying there, and he was trading for Stobart & Eden at that time.

Q. And you knew him, I suppose, to be a very disloyal man? A. As far as I
knew, I never heard nothing but good about him. I never heard but that he was a
man esteemed and liked. I heard Stobart, his employer, praising him very much.

Q. You know the Ridge ? A. I know it very well.

Q. You know where Mr. Soott lives there ? A. Yes, I passed there on my way
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going down from Prince Albert to visit my mission. His*house is along the road. I
stay very often there at his house.

Q. You knew his wife ? A. Yes, I knew her when she was alive.

Q. She was of what ? A. She was an English half-breed

.

Q. Neither Mr. Scott nor his wife belong to your church, do they ? A. No,
they don't belong to my church

.

Q. Now, what sort of settlement is there about Mr. Scott there? A. A settle-

ment of farmers, especially English half-breeds and some white men about.

Q. A few white men ? A . Yes.

Q. What relation does Mr. Scott bear to them, or did he bear to them, at the

time of the last rebellion, and what influence had he over the people about there ?

A. Well, I know Mr. Scott was a man who had a great deal of influence there among
the people, because along the way I am acquainted with almost all the half-breeds

there, and I heard them talking very highly, all the time, of Mr. Scott, and I know
that he was considered a leader in that part of the country there.

Q. He had their confidence ? A. Yes, as a man he has their confidence. They
are simple people there, and Mr. Scott is liked by them.

Q. Did you ever hear of his abusing that confidence ? A. No.

Q. Or know of his abusing that confidence in any way? A. No. As for that,

I heard them praising him very well all the time, a long time before the rebellion.

Q. Well, at the rebellion you know that it was feared that—in Prince Albert—
these English half breeds would rise, did you not ? A. Yes, all the time I was there.

That was our fear, that the English half-breeds—we were expecting they were going

to join Eiel at that time, and we said there must be some great influence to stop

them.
Mr. Osier.—That is not evidence.

By Mn Maclise

:

Q. Now, you had some conversation with Mr. Scott about the time of the rebel-

lion when it broke out? A. Not at the time of the rebellion. The time that Kiel

came to the country and the meetings were going on, I was to stay at the place of

Mr. Scott and we were to speak about general things that were going on.

Mr. Osier.—That class of evidence was ruled out yesterday.

By Mr, Maclise

:

Q. Well, do you remember the 20th March last? A. Yes, I remember it well.

Q. What occurred on that day ? A. On that day, the day the news came that

the rebellion broke out, or the half-breeds were in arms, I was sent by some settlers

to see what it was about. I started to go to St. Laurent and on the road I was
obliged to come back. We met ten English half-breeds and they told me it was better

for me not to go there, because you will be arrested if you go there, and I came back,

and saw the country was greatly disturbed and all the women over the country out of

the houses and coming rushing to enquire. They were afraid of the Indians. That
was the great fear, that the Indians would come down

.

Q. That was about the .Ridge, up and down ? A. Yes ; I went further than the

ridge, ten miles short of St. Laurent.

By the Court :

Q. Ten miles from St. Laurent ? A. Yes.

By Mr, Maclise :

Q. You remained on after that till the day of Mr. Scott's arrest? A. Yes.
^
I

saw him coming down there with his team, and I saw the police coming for him,

there.

Q. What sort of a place did they put him in ?

Mr. Osier*—You know that is wrong and you shouldn't ask it«
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Mr. Clarke.—We simply tender the evidence.
Mr. 0*lei\—You know that it is wrong.
Charles Nolin sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Maclise :

Q. Do you know the prisoner, Mr. Scott ? A. Yes.
Q. How long have you known him ? A. Since 1879.
Q. Where does he live now ? A. Prince Albert. At the place called the Ridse

ten or twelve miles this side of Prince Albert. „

Q, What position does the "Rid#e" hold as to Batoche and Prince Albert
especially in the winter when thesnow is heavy—I mean the trails from Carlton and
JDuck^Lake and Batoche leading*to Prince Albert, where is the Ridge with regard to

Mr. Osier.—-We will admit that it is in the centre. It is proved by three or four
witnesses

.

Witness.—The roads joined going to Prince Albert, It is a main road.

By Mr. Maclise •

Q. Going from Batoche to Prince Albert ? A. All the roads meet. Yes.
Q. In case any advance had been made by the rebels from Batoche on Prince

Albert what would have been the effect on this Ridge settlement ? If the rebels or
the Indians had gone to Prince Albert, how would the Ridge have stood, would they
have passed through the Ridge first? A. Yes, they would pass through the Ridge

Q. Well, then the people living there would be in great danger, would they notw
in case of an advance, the people living at the Ridge ? A. Yes.

Q. What sort of a settlement is that about the Ridge, north and south of St
Catharines and Halcro's, what people live there about Mr. Scott, principally? A*Almost all the farmers, and I think the most of them English half-breeds

Q. Now, what do you know about these English half-breeds who reside about
there, trying to bring Mr. Scott into taking a lead in public affairs, both at and before
the rebellion ? A. I don't know if the English half-breeds take Mr. Scott as leader

A

£

W m SOme meetiD8 Mr- Scott exercised great influence on the people
Q. Now, you were at Mr. Scott's house out and in before the rebellion took place

and up to the time of the rebellion were you not ? A. I stopped often at Mr. Sooti/e-
place, pretty near every time I passed there. I stopped there often.

Q. What was his opinion ? What did he say ?
Mr. Osier.—That is objected to, and has been ruled on half a dozen times.

By Mr. Maclise :

Q. You were arrested by Mr. Riel were you not ? A. Yes.
Q. What were the circumstances ? What were you trying to do, or what wereyou doing when he arrested you, and when was it ? What did Riel make you pri-

ISS-n ''
™d *h*\w?* <*? circumstances? A. On the reason I did not want to raise

rebellion, I refused to join him, and I worked against him too
Q. And where did he anest you ? A. He arrested me at the church, St. Laurent.
Q. How far is that from Batoche ? A. Six or seven miles

the church
161^6 WGre J°a g°ing When he arrested F°u ? A. I was to the service in

Q. Now, do you remember the 21st March last ? A. Yes.
Q. What day of i ne week was it ? A . Saturday.
Q. Did you see Mr. Scott on that day ? A. Yea/
Q. Where ? A. In the council room, Kiel's council room, at Batoche.
<^. And what took place so far as you recollect that day? A. Well. Mr Rielsent for me to join him, and he asked what influence had Mr. Scott, and Mr. Scott-says, I got a large meeting last night and I was appointed delegate at the meeting,
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you will find the news I got in the letter, and then Mr. Scott gave the letter to Kiel,

and I don't know what was iu the letter. I did not see the letter. I saw Mr. Kiel

read the letter, and after Mr. Eiel read the letter he asked Mr. Scott about the rebel-

lion and Mr. Scott replied to Eiel, I got nothing to do to speak any question with

you. I am delegate. If you have got something to say, send answer by letter, that

is my mission. Personally, he says, I disapprove the two actions.

Q. The whole action you mean? A. I disapprove first, to raipe arms, and to

raise Indians. I disapprove of that myself, and that is all I heard of the conversa-

tion between Mr. Eiel and Mr. Scott.

Q. Did you hear Eiel afterwards say anything about the English half-breeds at

Carlton to Mr. Scott? A. No.
Q. You did not hear Eiel say anything about that ? Where did you first see a

copy of this proclamation of Major Crozier ; who did you get it from ? A. The first

time I saw it, I think, I am not positively sure, I think it was the 24th March, at a

meeting at Lindsay's schoolhouse—the first time Mr. Scott gave me a copy of it.

Q. What did he say to you when he gave it to you ? A. I kept a private con-

versation with Mr. Scott. I was standing by Eiel with Mr. Moukraan. I could not

say exactly the mission of Mr. Monkman, but he got a mission and Eiel sent me with

Monkman, and he got twenty-two men with Mr. Monkman, and £ went to that meet-

ing at Lindsay's schoolhouse where the people and I met Scott at that meeting, and

spoke privately with him and some other leading men, and I told Mr. S^ott 1 am in

a bad position and I wanted to escape, I don't know where I can go. Mr. Scott says,

well you have got good way there to escape.

Q. Did you hear what Scott said at the meeting ? And what was it—on the

24th? How many people were there ? A. I did not count the people.

Q. About how many do you think? A. House large and full—I suppose

between 100 and 120 people there.

Q, Well, did Mr. Scott speak there and advise the people ? A. Yes.

Q. What did he say ? A. Mr. Scott spoke, and I can't say all he said, I cannot

give ail his speech in a few words. Mr. Scott says, I am sorry to sympathize with

the French. For two reasons, I can go with them, the reason to raise arms, and

raise Indians too, for those two reasons I stop, and Mr. Scott spoke all he could in

the meeting to stop the English half-breeds from joining Eiel, and besides that, he

got a petition. I don't know if he made the petition himself, but he brought the

petition himself in his pocket, and showed the petition to the meeting that night.

And all agreed with that petition, some two or three or four leading men all spoke

in favor of the petition, and no person spoke against the petition, and they all agreed

to sign the petition.

Q. Was this (exhibit " L ") what they signed ? A. I could not read the petition.

I heard the petition read at the meeting, but I did not read it myself.

Q. Was it a petition that had been gotten up at the meeting the day before? Do
you recollect? A. I never saw the petition before that, Mr. Scott took the petition

out of his pocket at that meeting.

(Petition here read by Mr. Maclise.)

Q. Do you remember those expressions ? fWitness asks that the whole petition

be read, which is now done.) A. Yes, that is the petition that I heard read.

Q. That is the one that Mr. Scott then read at tiat time ? A. It is a copy any

way.

By Mr. Osier:

Q. I understand the^n, Mr. Nolin, that on the 24th there was a meeting at the

Lindsay schoolhouse, and you were there ; were yoa at the Lindsay schoolhouse on

the 24th? A. Yes.

Q. And twenty men and Monkman from the French half-breed camp ? A. Yes.

Q. And Scott met them there ? A. Yes, Scott met them there.

Q. Were your twenty men under arms ? A. Yes.

Q. Was it a private meeting ? No, it was a public meeting.
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Q. Were the twenty men under armsjthere ? A. Yes, not in the house but out-
side.

Q. And matters were discussedjthere ? A. The matter was discussed, the petition
was discussed.

Q. And who was the|chairman.of that meeting ? A. I don't know his Christian
name, Mr. Miller.

Q. Did any of you from the French camp speak at that meeting? Did you
.speak ? A. Yes, I spoke a few words there, and Mr. Monkman spoke.

Q. And Mr. Monkman was one of the leaders, wasn't he, of Kiel's? A. Yes.
Q. He spoke there too ? A. Yes.
Q And what did Monkman want them to do ? A. I could not say exactly what

Mr. Monkman's mission was. As far as I understand, Eiel sent him to take the English
half-breeds by force.

Q. You think he sent Monkman to bring some of them in ? A. Yes.
Q. Well, was it counselled there, was it agreed there that the English half-breeds

would remain neutral ? At that meeting ? A. Oh, yes.

Q. And that they would try and get the volunteers to lay down their arms ? A.
No, 1 did not hear nothing about that.

Q. Do you know any other Thomas Scott about the Eidge ? Is this the only
Thomas Scott you know ? You know all the people around there don't you ? A. It
is possible theie might be, but that is the only one I know.

Q. And that is the only one you heard of in that neighborhood? That is the
only Thomas Scott you have heard of in that neighborhood ? A. Yes.

Q. And he was the only Thomas Scott who took any interest in the movement?
A. Yes.

Q. And he seemed to be acquainted with the French council there generally?
Mr. Clarke.—That is trying to manufacture evidence, and you are taking advan-

tage of a man who does not understand the language very well that he is speaking, for
that purpose.

Mr. Osier.—You know it is highly improper to interrupt a cross-examination
like that?

F * F

Mr. Clarke.—It is not a cross-examination. You are making out an examina-
tion-in-chief, and you are giving evidence.

Mr. Osier.—A barrister of a year's standing ought to know better than to inter-
fere. It is grossly irregular, and you ought to know better.

Q. Now, you were at that meeting ? what time was it held ?—that meeting at
Lindsay's schoolhouse ? A. Held in the evening, after dark.

Q. Now, did Mr, Scott know the members of the French council ? Was he
acquainted with the neighborhood of Batoche ? A. Well, I don't know if he knew
the French council at that time. I know that he knew the French council before
Eiel. Since that I can't say, because the French affairs were changed by Eiel.

Q. Then, what the English half-breeds were afraid of, I believe, were the
Indians ? Were they afraid of the Indians, or were they afraid of the French half-
breeds ? A. Well, tor my part, I don't think the English half-breeds are afraid of
the French half-breeds.

Q. But he was afraid of the Indians rising ? A. Yes.
Q. And what troubled them at that meeting was, how they would be protected

against the Indians ? A. The trouble at that meeting is in the petition, because he
asked the Government to settle as soon as possible with the French.

Q. To settle with the French, who were in arms, as soon as possible ?
Mr. Clarke.—He did not say that.

Mr. Osier.—Is the learned gentleman acting as a professional gentlemen

Mr. Clarke.-—When the counsel puts words in the mouth of the witness, it is*

time to interfere.

Mr. Osier.—I may say I have been practising at the bar for agreat many years,
and I never knew of such professional conduct before, as I have had from the learned.
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^nior on the other side, I have never known a man so careless of what is right in

-professional conduct as the learned counsel.
P

Mr Clarke.--I shall be obliged to ask that the witnesses be examined in their

^^^Osfe^ a cross-examination with such

^Q.^The idea was, as I understand it, Mr. Nolin to get the Government to make

a treaty with the French who were in arms ? A. I think my expression may be can

make a misunderstanding. All the question that was discussed at that meeting was

in the petition. _

Q. In the document ? A. In the document;

Q. Well, the idea was to get the Government to make a treaty with them, with

*ri

Ql
e

To make^a treaty with Mr. Eiel ? A. Ye,, as soon as possible, to

^^Q1

.

1

ThaTwas what they were trying to do at that meeting ? A. Yes.

Mr Maclise.-Youha^e just been referring to a treaty, which seems to be dis-

ced of in short order-was the discussion that took place therein sympathy or not

%ith the expressions in this document that you have already sworn to t

Court.—He said so in plain words, a» I understood it.

By Mr. Maclise

:

Q. Now, there is a clause in this :
« We, therefore beg of the government to do

mstice with (he settlers." Was that the sentiment of that meeting I A. Yes, all the

discussion at ihat meeting was just for that petition purpose

O » We therefore beg of the Government to do justice to the settlers. That

was the sentiment of the meeting ? A. Yes. I think my expression is not very

JZ^^^c^elc^^kvery^^Ymtfill the meeting agreed to sup-

*"*£ Y^ta^to S"o«M that your expressions are not twisted into some

thine else- now the question of those twentytwo men going the. e in arms has been

referred to' Xre were those arms during the meeting ? A. Outside the house.

Q. Where, outside the house? A, Just near tne house.

Q. In what, were they open and exposed-the arms; could anybody see them?

A. 1 don't know, I could not say that.

O. Were they standing up or not, outside ? A. Oh, yes.

Q Isn't it a fact that they were covered up ? A I did not see them covered

Q. Well, how were they standing; picked up together or what ? A. Well, I did

•not pay much attention to the arms. .

Q. You don't know where they were ? A. No, I was in the house all the time.

By Mr. Osier :

Q. Where did you put your gun? A* I got no gun.

By Mr. Maclise :

Q. Do you state you had no gun ? A. Certainly.
t

Q. And you know all about it don't you-about your not having any gun{ the

Wed counsel says that is all you know about it. Now, I ask yen ijttere anybody

else could know better about your having a gun or not than y< ™«K* *•/ *™

compelled to speak English, and I find now, advantage is taken of « he fact that I can t

speak English properly; Mr. Clarke says this.

Mr. Osler.—Don't understand me as saying that you had a gun. I was trying

to tell Mr. Maclise that the only question he could ask you was about your own gun

"*^^^J^S^th.^^^ this to be transited into his own

language.
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t? i^u °ml
er,~Tlie witness has answered intelligently questions put to him inEnglish. The jury are satisfied he has had a fair examination.

P

Andrew Whitford, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr, Maclise:

Q. Do you remember Sunday, the 22nd March last ? A Yes
Q. Were you at a meeting at St. Catharines that day? A. Yes, it was in theevening, not in the day. '

Q. Was Mr. Scott, the prisoner there? A. Yes, he was there.
Q. Do you know him ? A. Yes, I know him.

om c

<LH°7v.
l0Dg

,

haVe y?
U kn

?
WD hlm? A

* Quite a while ! have known him. Ican swear I have known him about ten years anyway.
Q. Where does he live ? A. At the Eidge.

ment
Q

*

Y°U kD°W **"* 8ettloment well? A
-
Yes

>
x am acquainted with the settle-

rC wu
thi

^
meetin& at St Catharines did Mr. Scott speak ? A. Yes

4^v k -. * u
he 8

?y »
as Dear as y°n can ^collect? A. He said it 'was a venr

A?£lJ ^ fort\l +
lu^er8 g°ing^P ^ defend Carlton when Prince Albert wasthe place they ought to defend.

«^w* u w«*

By Mr. Osier :

^^J™ ™m
?
mber al1 he 8aid, do you ? A. I don't remember all he said, but Iremember what I have just said.

'

^rv,^^
nd

u A(

i
Uremomberwhat Mr

' SPence 8aid on that too? A. I do not

me^SyL'that ^^ Said, be°aU8e
* haV6 n° learninS to remember-any suck

«f it & «°n
D 7™ remember what Mr* Matheson said ? A. Yes, I can remember somaot it to a certain extent, but not the whole of it

*11 hS'Sr J
T
0n remember ail tbat Mr. Scott said ? A. No, I don't. I don't remember

n v '

JU8t remember what I have said and no more.

Mr. Mktheso^Mid ^ * d0nt remember any more
>
but 1 ^member a little of what

W wLT°
U kn°W We 0fte

J

n hftve t0 consider very much whether a man who recollects

W^ZIV 8 imP°rtaDt and
o
n0tlling m«re, whether he is a good witness or not ? A.Would you say that again ?

TintfcIL
D° y0l

i
8
u
y y

*?
U

S
an>t remember anything more than just these words,

to^y™ **

1"*1*??*'^**1 *'' thatis ail? ^h0 el8e 8Pol*>? A. Well,tothe best of my knowledge Mr. Adams spoke too and also Mr. Craig*

n wu
me What Mr

*
0raiS 8aid ? A. No, I can't.

they saicL ^ Aaam8 8aM ? A
*
N°' * ^'^ X could not tel1 7°* exactly what

Q. Where do you live ? A. I live at Prince Albert.

*t tl,L t

at 18/°Ur occu Pation ? A
- Hired servant. I was working at that time*

A ^ u
Dg f0r a WOraan named Mrs

- Taylor, right in towu.

on th
Q
; bIhe

t[nR^^ssrw ? A - J am not working now
-

l was workinz

O S!!^?7^^ y°U kuew this? A
'
Of course I was present there.

W«ll thfT/
ld they find you out; and find that you kuew the very word.? A.

to see what I knew ^ Very W°rdS tU1 th*y brOUght me he«*

Q. They brought you 300 miles on spec
Mr Clarke --The same as you brought the post office sweep.
Witness-—I don't see no spec.

r

William Miller, sworn :—
Examined by Mr, Maclise :

Q* Do you know Thomas Scott ? A. Yes,
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lion,

Q. How long have you known him ? A. Since the fall of 1878.

Q. Where does he live? A. On the Edge.
^

O Where do you live; about the nearest neighbor to him/ A. les.

Q And what does Mr. Scott carry on there ? A. Farming, his general oceopa-

Mr. Osier.—We will not contest that he lives at the Kidge and is a farmer.

By Mr, Maclise :

A Do you remember the return of Mr. Scott home in March last? A. It was

some time about the middle of March. I could not exactly say the date.

Q. From where ? A. From Troy.

O Do vou remember the 20th March when the meeting was held ? A. Yes.

Q Now where was Mr. Scott between the 13th and 20th, as far as you know ag

his nearest neighbor? A. He was at home as far as I know.

O If he hid sone to Prince Albert during that time would you have known it

or would you not ? A. Well, I might, I could not say positively that he was at home

everyday, but to the best of my knowledge he was at home; because he generally

came up if there was any news from Prince Albert-generally came to my place.

Q. Hugh Boss was stopping at his place at the same time ? A. ^ es

Q. Do you know Hugh Eoss the witness who has been examined ' A. Yes.

O. Now do you remember the meeting on the 20th March ? A. Yes.

C. It has been spoken of here in evidence that William Miller wa* secretary of

that meeting ; is that yourself ? A. Myself.
a4.*u-*

O Now Mr. McNiven in his evidence has stated that you in your remarks at that

meeting stated that the French were under arms ? What have you to say m regard

to that? A. I did not make no such statement.
, 9

.

Q. Now do you remember the meeting held the Sunday after, at Lindsay? A.

No, I was not there.

Q. Were you at St. Catharines? A. No.

Q. Now you have seen this petition "L," have you ever seen that before? A.

Y*^^tfSta£. signed where, sent where? A. To Major Crozier.

at
Q^Who took it ? A. Mr. Charles Adams and myself, We were two delegates to

go up with it; but it did not reach there.

O Did you take any pains to send it on ? A. No ; before we reached there we

heard of the Duck Lake fight, and I said to Mr. Adams blood had been filled, and

there was no use trying to do anything more, and we turned back and b ought the

papers back ; and when I left home I destroyed all the papers with the ex -eptiori of

one or two private papers of my own—destroyed them in my own house- iid not,

know whether I would ever be back again or not.

Q Well, what was the object of this petition ? What was to follow it f Wn&t

was this for, to be signed by so many people ? A. Just what the potation stains.

Q. How did it come about ? Had it any connection witu Mr. Matheson f A.

At the meeting at Lindsay, on the '24th—that is the meeting where Mr. Kiel was—

Scott read out that petition. , ,

Q Did you hear Matheson's evidence yesterday, to the effect that he nad oeen

to Carlton and got instructions to act, to come down and get certain thttSV*on,6 ;

A. Yes, that is what I understood that petition was for, to fulfil the request that

Mr. Matheson had come down for.
'

Tu^uaQ/>„v
Q. And to be ? A. Forwarded and signed more fully than Mr. Matheson a

°nG
Q
ad
Now%hat was the object of the meeting of the 20th ? What was the -bject

oi sending delegates ? What was said at the meeting with regard to that
;
? A

.

It

was to find out whether the reports were true or not, and for the settlers to take into-

consideration their best means of protection. ^uj^nf
Q. Now, considering the position that settlement was m

;
what was the desire ol
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the people ? Why did they wish to know what was going on ? A: Because all theloads leading.from the west and south were joined in there at the Eidge, and if'therewas a body of men coming down-suppose they, left on separate roads, they wouldAe all together at the Eidge and before they came to the Kidge
<Q. Any particular body of men, or general men ? A. General men.

it refe^ to? A Wo^-H ^^^ f t0 the French aEd lDdiaD8
>
or what di<*

it refer to? A. We did not know, and that was the reason of the delegates being

•&e particulars
*""^ BDgIish °r Fl6^ halfbreeds

>
»Sd find out

-™JtJZ e?Pect^h^ould take place on the Eidge ? A. If they came down,
? wl '

,fT/ld DOt be Proteoted or be out of there, we would be massacred.

/aiw *l ITu? y0™ .^T
60

,*'
in

»
the event of an advance from Batoche or PrinceAlbert, the fighting would be done? A. I did not expect anything like that. Iconld not say where tbe fighting would be done.

it taiMf* took place before reaching Prince Albert, ten miles off, wouldn't

they <Sme along*
7 were g°inS *o massacre, they would massacre aa

By the Court :

Q. 1 understand you to say that all the trails leading to Prince Albert convergefcfere reaching the road,:and the Eidge is an exposed place that they were in?er3

By Mr. Maclise :

<J. Some ihing has been Paid about cheers at this meeting on the 20th, by Mr.McNiven, wUt have you to say with regard to that ? A. I hSard no cheers.

„ !£ liehasFtated that somebody called for three cheers for Kiel; he does not

SHTd^ot
m partlCUlar a8 CalliD^ for them

-
m y°u hear anybody? A.

^. Qi Wfe 7°; cI
f
*>*<>» <w ^r from, Thomas Scott during that meeting? A.

Sl^i^ 1 d°?*?» fc
S

I think he was somewhere about the centre of the*room, and I was up in the corner getting on my overcoat, and one or two more therewere puttir g on their overcoats to go home.

JiimSlk^gCne"
UDder8taDd Cree? A

'
Not iom7 knowledge. I never heard

Q. Now you went around with this original petition getting signatures ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you apply to Thomas McKay ? A. Yes
<£ What did he say? A. He said the Frerch had no G d rights. He
L 7,

W38 m
r??

CB
.

0,,8h row in tbe C0BDtry t0 g^ them ;heir rights.
jMj (.» ier.—That is not evidence.
Mr. liaclise—It contradicts McKay at any rate.
Q. You were present when Mr. McKay's evidence was given ? A. Yes.

flm^ W
' f
n
i!

r ™e} ls
£
March

>
wben iVJri Scott ^turned home, from that till say

2 vi! ^-!?g
Cf l

\
e 23r

.

d What 8teP8 aDd witb wbat™w had been taken by the peopfe

iSftv D
+ iri,;g,Dg abont peace? A. Well, at the meeting of the 24th I

Sf! <t
that thf ^aB tbe < bJ< ct >

*h*t tbey h*d done during ihat space, to getthem up thein resolutions and get them signed and get them lorwarded.

3D knowled e
* ^^^ 8tepB takeD

*
A *y °tber StepS takeD ? A> Not to "

^J^V*^' ^9^ tbe e^ning of the 21st to the evening of the 23rd, in what way^were the English half-breeds in sympathy with the French ?
Mr. Osier.—How can that affect the question of Scott, whose conduct alone is

Jin review r

By Mr. Maclise :

-w*v tot
T
rj!J

at W% did M
f"

Sc0tt^ to influenee them ? A. I never heard of any-way but legal constitutional agitation.
*
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O Well as far as vou saw of what Scott did, in what direction was that ?

Betw
Q
een^ne*even"Dg o/the 21st and the evening of the 23rd? A. It ™s ™nBt£-

tionll agitation, h! was in sympathy with the grievances, but was down on taking

np arms or anything that was retentional.
. „ w therefore beg of the Govern-

Q. There is an expression here (in petition) : We tnereiore oeg oi i

ment to do justice to the settlers." Was that the sentiment of Mr. Scott so far as

mJttZlZX^oU.
A
icI::^^tUt in any of the utterances you

heard from him ? A. No.

By Mr. Osier

:

Q, You were secretary of the meeting of the 23rd March, Mr. Miller? A. Yes.

Q. Held at the Lindsay school hoase ? A. Yes.

Q. Thomas F. Miller, chairman ? A. It was the i3ra.
learned

Q. You were secretary of the meeting, I understood you to say to my learned

friend, of the 20th March ? A. Yes.

O. Who was chairman there, Mr. Scott ? A. les.

O Are vou any connection of Mr. Scott's ? A. I am a brother-in-law.

O How
J

6oc^ aC the 18th did you know that they had taken prisoners and

had be'erHooting^stores ? When did thSt get to your ears ? The news spread very

finieklv of course ? A. I don't remember just exactly. „„„«„_qmcfiJy 01 cours
meeti„g of the 20th ? A. It was before the meeting

ofthe2oTh Mtrrkitwa8 tbat day was the first I heard all the news together

^%SSS'-^S beX:y-haTUd of theuprising you had heard

they had taken op arms and taken prisoners ? A. We did not hear they had taken

up arms. . „ , -p-

Q. You had heard they had taken prisoners ( A. res.

Q. And had been looting stores ? A. Yes. „
Q. So that that was known to the people at the meeting of the 20th ? A. Yes.

y. 'lhen you never did deliver this petition or resolution to Major Crozier f

A
'
M
Q. And that is not true that they ever got to his hands ? A. Nos that « not

tone. Before they could be forwarded there had been a battle-Duck Lake ngnti

had taken place.
, , » Va(,

O You were going to take that over there, weren t you I A. I es.

Q And you did not forward them ? A. We went within about two and a half

miles of Carlton when we heard the fight had taken place

Q Who took in the copy that is under your hand found in the rebel camp r a.

The delegates were James lsbister and Geo. Wm. Sanderson.

Q. Sent in to take them to the camp ? A. They were sent to take them to the

CalDP
6. On what day ? A. On 1be fame day that Mr. Adams and I started.

Q. Two of youstarted to give them to Major Crozier, and two of you started to

^q'"^^^^8

; but the other did not ? A. I don't know whether

th° TltTnffate,' this is the one-" L "-that you pent there 1 A. Yes.

J Then what you wan "dtetoveUmTnt toVwas to make a treaty, was it

Dot witTthe French, a^d inclode your rights as well ? A. Well, our sympathy

We
o!
H
AVd^ITZll^X™^ A. WebeggedoftheGovernmentto

d0it
b That is to Paj, vcu begged of the Government to make a treaty with the.

men who"ere in a,ms against the Government ; is that it? A. We begged of the.
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was2i2=Sa^^
"I*

b^aty M ™'" T^
Q. What you were afraid of was the Indians wasn't it ? A W« ™ p -^ rthe whole, for my part. '

sn * 1W A « We w^e afraid of

O ^n
/

id 7
?
Uiftr°7 y0ur PaPers ? A

-
B^ore I left homeQ. Before you left home to go to Major Crozier ? A pJa t i r* ,

to Prince Albert.
S J cozier r A. Before I left home to go

O 4nw 7°? ?m0 baGk
!
ro™ bearing of Duck Lake ? A Yes

«m?d£T' ^ Pap6r8 dId y°U dG8tr0y? A
'
A11 t^papersthatlhadhad

O w£Jm beeD f

°

retary of manF meetings ? A. No.

beb&2tto^^^R^ l **/"^w whether I would ever
to Prince Albert.

P
'^ Z C°Uld DOt take aD^ mor° than I took down

A.wVth^w£^^ an -traordinary proceeding?
the stove and d^Jd^hem

.

g D° C0D8e(
*aence '

and I J** put them all into

Q- You burnt the proceedings of the meetings ? A. Yes

at
; &£ZXZ£££&tr bUrQ tb6 Pr°0eedi^ °f

"

? A
- Two that I was

*one%Z Ŝ£TZtZ\Z Ae^r2°I
k
dT ^m^T *"* *"« had

to be of any use to any person * d'd DOt C0DSlder tner we» e going

theoVonel\norof!
bat
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Q. And you took the responsibility of a petition signed by 455 people to the

Government, you took the responsibility upon yourself of destroying that with the

other papers, without consulting anybody ? A. Yes.

By Mr, Maclise :

Q. Isn't it a fact now, with regard to this petition being sent, you say that on
the 20th March you had heard there was a disturbance? A. Yes.

Q. And the battle of Duck Lake was fought on the 26th wasn't it ? A. Yes.

Q. Now, the object and hope of these petitions between those dates was what t"

A. To avert bloodshed.

Q. To stop the rebellion in fact ? A. Yes,

Q. To stop anything like rebellion of any kind ? A. Yes.

Mr. Maclise.—-That is the defence.

Mr. Onler.—We have no evidence in reply.

All evidence closed.

ADDRESS OF COUNSEL FOE DEFENCE.

Mr. Clarke.—May it please the court, a very few words, and a very few

moments will suffice to sum up the evidence in this case. In opening the case for

the Crown, the learned counsel representing the Crown stated what the Ci«e was, its

nature, and the evidence that he would adduce. That evidence you heard. The
nature of the case you heard in hearing the indictment read. Now, you have heard

the evidence for the defence. I think when I spoke to you last, I had the honor of

saying that we would prove by evidence that there would be no mistaking that the

prisoner at the bar, instead of holding the position that he did in the dock, deserved

praise for being one of the most prominent in trying to maintain peace and good

order in the country at the time and before the time of the late disturbance.

Now, we have the evidence of the meetings—theso meetings that were said or

insinuated to have been so treasonable. We have the facts in relation to the resolu-

tions, and to the petitions that were got up, and we have the evidence of three or

lour men in each instance almost ior every witness brought forward by the Crown.
Now, we will begin as near as possible at the beginning in considering the evi-

dence. The first thing that you have to consider, gentlemen, is this—the prisoner

is charged—when the whole thing is boiled down, when the centre, when the heart,

when the core of the whole case is" torched— it means : a certain letter which is set

forth at length in the indictment in two or three different places, the changes being:

rung on it in every possible manner that it is possible under an absurd and obso-

lete law that has existed for 200 or 300 years, and was made at a time when people*

repulsed the more that they were bothered, and the easier they were hanged the

better. Now, all the changes have been rurg upon that, and I submit to you gen-

tlemen that that letter you must cast aside altogether. I submit that to you as a
proposition, and I shall expect—and I am satisfied—that the learned judge will

charge you on that subject. I submit that there is not a tittle of legal evidence to

bring home that letter and identify it in any manner with the prisoner at the bar ; that

is a letter or something written on a piece of paper in blueish pencil, and signed,

* Thomas Scott."

Now, gentlemen, the proposition that I submit is this, that the Crown is bound

in this case to bring forward nefore you the best evidence, the very best, no second

best, but the very best evidence. If it had been Big Bear or one of the Indians who>

had no facility whatever for getting hold of a witness, or who had no counsel to advise

what evidence was required, there might be some kind of overlooking laxity of this

sort, but the Crown had every possible facility that money, that influence, that

spies, informers and the cleverest taleEt at the bar could bring to bear upon this

thing, to bring that crime heme to that man, and to identify him with that letter.

They have failed to doit. What evidence have they taken? They brought an

expert to tell you that these writings, all these signatures, were his. Well now, that
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expert, to prove exactly how he is to be relied upon, the witness that went into the
box there and told you that last name signed « Thomas Scott" on that (showing it
to jury only) scrap of paper was written by the same hand as the other was wrong
for I wrote one of them myself. That shows the value of the testimony, but sup-
posing he had proved that was Scott's signature, it was not saying that the name
signed to that piece of paper, that letter, that that is Scott's signature, not by any
means. It is signed with a pencil, and, fortunately, in these cases it is a matter of
fact, and as a matter of fact, it is for you to determine what credibility you attach to
that expert testimony, and whether on the solemn obligation that you have taken
you are prepared to say that you have no shadow of doabt that that letter was writl
ten by Thomas Scott, the prisoner at the bar, and that Thomas Scott conveyed it to
LRiel, and that Thomas Scott had an illegal object in view in doing so. Now, ifyou are
prepared to do that, it will be for you, gentlemen, to take the responsibility. But it will
be asked why didn t they bring in other evidence to prove this man's signature?Why didn t they do that ? They bring a document brought by a boy from the
Winnipeg Post Office at considerable expense, to prove what?—that these papers
«ame from a certain post office, and that the postmaster was supposed to have signed
these papers. On two of the papers at least are the signatures appended of two
witnesses, and these witnesses reside at Prince Albert, within the call of this court
where they brought their other witnesses from. Why didn't they bring either of
these two witnesses? Gentlemen, that is the best testimony to prove that that
signature to that bond was the signature of the postmaster. But who was the post-
master ? Are you satisfied to take the assertion of a boy from the post office in
Winnipeg, when a postmaster is an official appointed by the Government, and his
nomination as postmaster appears in the Official Gazette ? That is the best evidence
-Of who the postmaster was. You have not any such evidence. GentlemeD, you are
the judges of the fact. I have a right simply to suggest. I have a right to point
out to you the deficiencies in the evidence, but I have no right to dictate to you whatway you are to decide. You are the judges of the fact; you are responsible for that,
and not me. r '

Now, with reference to the finding of this paper said to have been found in Kiel's
council chamber. Who brought it there? The Crown has taken the best possible
means, gentlemen, of finding and showing you how very particular jurors ought to
be m accepting a piece of evidence. By the last witness they showed you that that
which was ordered by a meeting to be sent to a particular individual was after that
meeting supposed that it had been handed to the party for whom it was intended
but it was destroyed before ever it reached that party. Had it not been destroyed!
iiad it been left at that man's house, it might have been carried off by anybody and
found in a particular place subsequently, and consequently it must have been Thomas
Scott who sent it there, or whoever was charged with doing it.

Gentlemen, you see how difficult it is, you see how necessary to have the evi-
dence, particularly when it is so easy to make that evidence perfect, and to have it
perfect before attaching any importance to it.

The next thing that is brought against the prisoner at the bar, and the evidence
by which that is sustained by the Crown, i< this: that the prisoner at the bar tried
to compel Her Majesty to change her measures. What an immense amount of
responsibility is thrown upon Her Majesty's shoulders and how extraordinary is the
weight that would attach to the importance to Her Majesty in England, who heard
nothing about all these things, when it comes to a question of the stupidity or worse
of officials who in Her Majesty's name are misbehaving themselves at Ottawa. It is
# crime punishable by imprisonment in the penitentiary of Canada to ask the Minis-
ters of the Interior humbly at the end of fifteen years to grant these poor people
their rights. That is compelling her to change. her measures. And the learned
counsel for the Crown, seeing that he has not the shadow of a case against the
prisoner at the bar, seeing that he has not the ghost of a case against the prisoner,
to bring home to him anything that is dishonorable and disloyal, he seizes upon a
word written by poor, uninstructed, ignorant people, where they use the word
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"treaty." Now, you will have the changes rung upon that. It shows i boy say

that they were trying to compel Her Majesty to change her measures to do what

they said, and that it was a treaty they wanted to make with Her Majesty.

Gentlemen, I don't consider it worth while attaching any importance to that

onlv that I warn you you are likely to have an immense amount of importance

attached to that particular word "treaty;" and probably out of the 455.who

sLned it there was not one solitary man understood what the word 'treaty

meant in a legal sense. But here everything is to he boiled down to a

legal sense when there is no crime that can be brought home in an.

opfn manner against one who is to be the victim of the Crown and the Crown

must try it by ringing the changes upon legal terms and legal words to bring home

^nt to him who Sever contemplated any crime. That is the point I draw your

attention to specially, gentlemen of the jury and I ask your serious.^.deration of

this thing. We have S witness who comes forward to prove that this man had the

audacity of the others to meet and to ask the Government to give rights to those peo-

ple, and by that means to avoid bloodshed. That gentleman, a gentleman of very

great intelligence and education, out of his pocket took the report of the meeting

and resolutions, which, on the hypothesis enunciated to you by the Crown, wouH
send him forth to the penitentiary, for everything that is charged against this man

as having been done, is proved by that man as a witness in the box that he did but

at whose instance did hedo it? At whose suggestion? At the suggestion of the

highest officer known to the people of that country at that time, Major Crozier. You

have the minister of the gospel, the Eev. Mr. Matheson. Gentlemen of the jury I

cannot avoid calling your attention to one fact. As that young man stood in that

box, his appearance, his simplicity, the perfect candour with which he gave_h s evi-

dence was enough to carry conviction to any ordinary man's conscience, and to his

judgment and fwas no little surprised to find the Crown in the usual stock manner

Of Ictors of that sort to throw doubt on that young man's testimony and mike it

appear that he was trying to conceal the truth. Gentlemen of the jury, I don t think

it was creditable to the Crown, but one thing I do think was creditable to the young

man, who stood in that box and stood that badgering and came out victorious, show-

Whimself a gentleman, and an honest man and a Christian through all that was said

and insinuated against his evidence, and his evidence stands before you unimpeached

and I challenge The Crown to impeach it in the slightest degree, because that young

man could not repeat word for word the speeches of half an hour or an hour ti*

were made by others at that meeting during the four hours, then there must neces-

sarily be suspicion attached to the fact that he remembered what the prisoner said

Why, he told you, as minister of the gospel, that he visited the prisoner when he was

in prison, at the time that his Master, from whom he takes.hie,
commission, tolls him

to visit the sick, and the prisoner he visited there and no doubt that retained i the

memory of the minister of God the reason why this man was locked up, «d brought

to his memory more prominently the things that had been uttered and said about this

man at that meeting that night, and that is the reason why he remembered it so wel., I

^^Gentleme'n of the jury, I had never had one moment's conversation with the

Eev. Mr. Matheson before he came into that box. I have not had two minutes con-

versation with him since. I simply spoke to himand shook hands with him as being

related to some of my friends at Kildonan, and I did not know what testimony he

was going to give, but I am perfectly satisfied that on his testimony alone any jury

that is ever sworn would acquit the prisoner at the bar.

Now, gentlemen, what have we next ? We have evidence for the Crown of one

gentleman who probably may have been sincere, at this distance of.time
j,

three.or

four months after, he may be mixing things up together. There had been a great

many meetings with reference to this matter of the people obtaining their "ghts.

Gentlemen, it may be a crime up there, but when the people around this very

town of Regina, when for two or three years they were afraid every day of being

ousted off their homesteads, they used to hold meetings, they used to ask for their
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rights, and some of them went so far as to say, let the man dare come and put me offmy homestead, I was the first man on it. They were right. Speculators had no
right to put them off their homesteads. They were there under British laws which
said they have the right to the homesteads under the circumstances.

They might have brought him up for high treason or low treason, for it is avery low kind of treason to ask anything from the Minister of the Interior There
were a great many meetings up there. A gentleman with a full beard (a bad char-
acieristic in a man) -he had been at other meetings where there was deep sympathy
between these mea of the same country, between the half-breeds speaking Englishand those speaking French-deep sympathy in trying to obtain redress from the
brovernment, and I have no doubt there were three cheers given for Kiel, but I doubt
whether there were three cheers given for Sir David L. Macpherson. They lookedupon Kiel as the man assisting them in getting their rights, I have not the slightest
don bt, and I have no hesitation in saying had I been tnere it might have been
treabon, but I would have given three cheers for any man who was going to assistme and friends to obtain rights I had by law, and which those who had the dispens-
ing of the Jaws had failed to carry out.

Well, gentlemen, taking that view, I can understand why it was that gentleman
said that at that particular meeting whero treason present, three cheers given for
delegates and three for Eiel.

6

Now, gentlemen, it is a very strange thing, and that is the only way that I can
explain it, not to dueetly charge that man with stating that which he knows to bean untrue charge, charging him with direct deliberate falsehood, which I did not
feel inclined to do. I rather think the man has mixed that meeting with seme otherand that he was simply mistaken, because all the other witnesses you have who
were present at that meeting tell you positively no such thing took place. One of
the witnesses tells you young fellows outside were cheering. Well, we are not
children, and we have often attended public meetings and public gatherings, and Iwould like to know if you ever left one yet where there was not some young boy or
enthusiast in the crowd, as he got outbide the door was not ready to throw up his
Jiat, hurrah for anything and everything and everybody ? A little school boy, during
the civil war, was running around the streets shouting hurrah for Jefferson. A.
soldier replied, hurrah for the devil. All right the boy said, hurrah for the devil±o bring that as a charge against a man without trying to make it appear that hewas a man who proposed the cheers, or who responded to them, is certainly going
into microscopic kind of evidence to bring to support a charge against a man on his
trial for a crime, punishment for which is imprisonment for life.

Now, with reference to the contents of that letter, what have we? It says, we
are tending a petition, and we hf pe to be able to prevent bloodshed. " The voice of
©very man was with you," so the document got up, sent at the request of Maior
Crozier. "All our sympathies are with you." That is the evidence given bv the
witness for the Crown, and he pulled the document out of his own pocket. Nowwhy is it treason that this uneducated man should say " the voice of everybody was
with you at the same time that that other educated man said " we all sympathize
with you

;
but one is a criminal and the other is a man brought up as an evidence

of loyalty to the Crown for the purpose of trying to make a victim of this man Scott,
Mid we have taken steps which 1 think will have a tendency to stop bloodshed and

hasten a treaty. Theie is this treaty again. Why the word " treaty ?" This man
is a trader, lwo-thirds of those people are traders, and they have been in the habit,
during the greater part of their time and lives, of dealing with Indians. Now, all
those who understand anything about the customs of this country, everything that is
dorie with an Indian is a treaty, and everything that took place, a bargain between
h*J -breeds is a treaty. They are all treaties. They don't understand the significa-
ti. n of the word otherwise. They are all treaties. It was like the learned counsel
tor the Crown trying to take advantage of those poor men who could not speak
Jlnglisb, and trying, by putting words in their mouth, to make them, if possible,commit themselves, so as to give evidence that would tell against the prisoner at the
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Gentlemen of the jury, my learned friend made an observation to-day that I

don't intend to answer on my own part. I have been, as he says, thirty years at

the bar, and he may comment on my conduct as much as he pleases. lam not

myself when I am standing at the bar. I am in the place of my client, the prisoner.

His case is mine. I place myself in his place. I take the whole responsibility that

can be thrown on his shoulders, and so long as God is kind enough to spare my life

and energy, I will use every effort and legal means at my power that it is possible

for me to do to nave myself, in other words, my other self, my client, from the con-

sequences of attacks like this ; but it is strange my learned friend did not, at the

same time, see that he was exerting an extraordinary influence. It is no part of the

duty of a Crown counsel, and I can speak with knowledge of it, for I have stood in

that position for years—it is no part of the duty of a Crown officer, or of a court of

British justice, to try and convict a man unless he is so guilty that there can be no

doubt as to his guilt, no more doubt than there is that you see the sun shining

through that pane of glass yonder, and why try by corkscrew methods and undue

means to screw out evidence to convict a man? It shows justice is being prostrated

in some way, and that vengeance is the object in view and not justice, to the man
charged betore the court. Gentlemen, this is a case where the interests of the Crown

and the interests of society are one. In ordinary cases of larceny and cases of that

sort, the prisoner is charged with an outrage, with a crime against society ; but in a

case of treason or misprision of treason or treason-felony it is a direct charge, in

which the Crown says: You have committed an outrage against me ; and that is just

why the British law, in its amendment, since the time of the passing of that infamous

Act called the Treason Act—that is just the reason, that as England became more

civilized, as England began to come out from the path of blood in which she had

been bathing for a hundred years, when a man was as much hung for stealing a

sheep as he was for murdering his father; when a man was as much hanged,

executed, drawn and fettered, for stealing a three-penny piece as he was for cutting

the throat of his grandmother ; when, in iact, out of a lot of crimes that were brought

before the courts of justice, no less that 240 of them were capital offences, for which

a man was hanged, drawn and fettered. When that bloody epoch began to pass,

when the people of England came to their senses and said, we have to throw a safe-

guard around our fellow subjects, we will not allow them to be convicted before Star

Chambers with men in privy council with closed doo«rs, they shall have a jury of

twelve men, and those men will stand between the Crown and the subject, our fellow

subject who is accused. That is the position you hold to day ; but, gentlemen, that

British justice has been circumscribed in this North -West Territory, and instead of

twelve British subjects, twelve of his peers, this man is to be tried by six ;
but,

gentlemen, take that view of the case, and in the name of British justice, in the

name of British law, in the name of the oath and Him by whose name you take that

oath, consider each of yourselves two British subjects and let the souls of twelve men
enter your six breasts, and do justice to that man, notwithstanding everything that

can be.done by the Crown to convict him whether guilty or not guilty. That is

what they are doing. _

Now, gentlemen, supposing that everything that is in that paper ; first, that that

paper was brought home to the prisoner at the bar, that every word is written by

the prisoner at the bar, that the prisoner at the bar had handed it to Louis Kiel, is

he any more guilty than Major Crozier ? Is he any more guilty than that witness

for the Crown, Mr. Craig? Is he any more guilty than Mr. Craig who passed those

resolutions ? Is he any more guilty than the Bev. Mr. Mathtfson, acting at the

suggestion of the authorities ? Is he any more guilty than any of those who tried to

prevent bloodshed ? Oh, but the learned counsel for the Crown has been ringing

the changes again—to force Her Majesty to make a treaty, to force Her Majesty

to make a treaty. Then, we have to understand that Her Majesty has left Europe,

and she has come to America, she has gone down to Carlton, she has taken a seat

upon a trooper's horse and she is represented there by Major CrOzrer.

Gentlemen, you see how absurd is this law of treason. It is absurdity on. the
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face of it, and I trust the day is not far distant in Canada when we will have some-
thing like a reasonable Act passed and will do away with this old nonsense of a
hundred years ago. Da you know the effect it has on the Indians ? Poor One Arrow
when he had the indictment read to him the other day, had it read to him in Cree,
and the Cree can as much find words with which or by which to translate the lot of
nonsensical terms that are used in treason, as nonsensical as you could find in low
Dutch at the present minute words to translate everything that I am saying, the
result is that Her Majesty's Crown is translated into Cree as Her Majesty's war bon-
net with feathers in it ; this is a fact. Her Majesty's war bonnet was knocked off her
head and she was Kicked and struck with a pistol by the poor old man, and when the
poor old man got out into the hall he said who was that drunken man who kicked
off Her Majesty's war bonnet ? You are the one, was the answer. Oh, I never seen
Her Majesty. There is a commentary exactly upon what these poor wretches know
about the laws of England, and the words in which they are brought before you in
these indictments. So I beg of you not be led astray by the simple wording, the
garbage that surrounds the one fact. The fact for you to determine, gentlemen, is
this, is there evidence before you to show that the prisoner at the bar was intentionally,
designedly and detorminedly a disloyal man, and that he went to the camp at
Batoche for the purpose of giving aid, and comfort to the enemy, or have you not the
positive assertion that while he was there, even when threatened with his life, he
said, I am now with you, we sympathize with you in the demand for your rights, but
we are against you, and I am personally against you entirely when you resort to arms
or to any illegal means. He was told by the lunatic who was acting the part of a
!Nero as far as he could, I have sentenced my cousin to death, what can you expect ?
and it was after that the prisoner at the bar told him he sympathized with them in
their right, but I am personally against you in any illegal act. But the Crown brought
you to the camp, and the Crown brought me to the camp and that is the way we got
in the camp. But how is it, if his going there was such a crime, how is it that Mr.
McKay is not arrested and imprisoned ? How is it Hilliard Mitchell is not arrested
and imprisoned ? He went there to find out what was going on ? How is it that
Boss is not a prisoner chai ged with treason ? Why was this man singled out specially ?
The law says, and my learned friend knows it, that in this matter one was as much
guilty as the other, that all parties communicating with rebels, knowing them to be
rebels, they were all equally guilty with others, but they tried to make it appear
before this man went, before that delegation went, that they all knew that there was
an open rebellion ; they failed to prove it in toto, their own witnesses tell you they heard
there was something wiong, they were sent there for the purpose of finding out, and
Major Crozier had heard that there was something wrong, and he sent Mr. McKay,
and Mr, Matheson was communicated with by Mr. McKay and Mr. Matheson com-
municated with that other gentleman who acted as secretary of the meeting, and they
got up meetings, to do what ? To try and keep the English half-breeds neutral. Now,
if it is a treasonable act to try and keep them neutral, all these gentlemen should
have been indicted and should have stood in that dock to-day—every one of; them.
But one gentleman says that Scott wanted them to lay down their arms. You have
that contradicted by every other witness. What Scott did say and what Scott says
still, and what I am authorized to say for Scott is this: Scott said, herein this
Eidge it is open to any attack. Prince Albert is the heart of the whole district.
This Carlton is a Hudson Bay post away a considerable distance, and why all the
troops should be taken away from a thickly settled town and a thickly settled coun-
try to save a Hudson Bay post and leave the whole of the rest open to the Indians
and F/ ench half breeds, is more than I can conceive, except that the French's bacon
and the ham and the barrel of sugar and everything of that sort that belonged to
the Hudson Bay Company and were in the Hudson Bay post was of more importance
to the authorities thaa the lives of the peaceable inhabitants that they were going to
leave unprotected. Scott, at that meeting, said I think this is wrong. Here we
have the .Ridge right on the road between the French and the Indians and Prince
Albert. If they come on Prince Albert, all the fighting men are gone, all

162



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 188CF

the arms are gone, it will be much better that they come back from that

Hudson Bay fort, that they make their place at. Prince Albert and defend the people,

and then there will be an easy access to them and we can assist them ; bat ho does

more than that. He sends a despatch to the authorities offering the services of^ 100

men, or 150 men, to fight against the half-breeds and Indians in support of the British

flag and to suppress that rebellion. There is a slight comment made upon that, but

let us draw your attention to this. That was after the fight at Duck Like, immedi-

ately after the fight, when the whole of the people of the country were in a state of

terror, when—I deeply grieve to say it—the French were for the moment victorious,

and when flushed with victory it was just as likely as not they would attack anybody

or everybody around. That was a time when a man who was wavering in his allegi-

ance would have rushed forward and joined the French because they were the trium-

phant party and done inestimable harm. Bit what have we ? We have proof that,

then, in the darkest hour of the whole rebellion, this man, who is charged with trea-

son, went to the nearest telegraph office and telegraphed to the highest authority

that he knew, through an official operator, offering the services of 100 men, or 150

men, in defence of the country . Gentlemen, I think it would be almost offering you

an insult to ask you if, under those circumstances, you can find in the slightest pos-

sible degree, anything approaching to criminality against the prisoner at the bar.

I simply warn you of this, that the prisoner at the bar being charged, that charge unless

proved against him by the Crown, must fall to the ground. The Crown is bound to

produce the best evidence in every case. If anything disloyal took place there in

that camp at Batoche, the best evidence that the Crown could have produced would-

have been Garnot and Louis Kiel. If the Crown wanted to prove that man's signal

ture, surely the man who has resided seven, eight, nine or ten years up at Prince

Albert, whose signatures have been scattered all over the country and as to which

men might have been brought to swear, ought to have been sufficiently well known

;

but they had to send for the sweep at the post office, Winnipeg, to try and show that

a certain postmaster's signature was like that. And that is called Crown evidence.

Gentlemen of the jury, I will now leave the case entirely in your hands, so far

as we are concerned. When our laboi-3 cease, then, indeed, your labors begin. When
the humble efforts that have been made by the counsel fjr the defence, when they

cease, and his duty is done, then your responsibility indeed begin*.

I ask you, gentlemen of the jury, to divest yourself of every other feeling, poli-

tical and national, of every feeling but that of straightforward honest manhood, and I

ask you, each and every one of you, in imagination to put yourself in the position that

this man is in to-day, and in that position look across to the jury box where you sit

now, and measure every man's heart by his eyes, looking at every man's soul by its

windows, and see how you would be trembling as to what might be the result and trying

to read from the face of the jury how every man felt in your case, and what was

going to be his verdict. Gentlemen, feel the same for the prisoner at the bar. I

ask for no sympathy ; a jury has no sympathy to give. They have simple justice to

give, and justice is all we demand. We ask for your verdict, the verdict of twelve

honest men placed in the hearts and in the breasts of six honest men. We ask the

verdict of a British jury, and we ask at your hands a verdict that will send U3 back

to our family, our character untarnished, our allegiance and our honor never again

to be mistaken and to be called traitorship, treason to our flag or to the country in

which we were born.

ADDRESS OF THE CEOWN COUNSEL.

%Mr. Osier.—May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury; It is no part

of the duty or the desire of the counsel in charge of the Crown here to press for a

verdict of guilty where the facts do not warrant it. We are simply to aid the court

and to aid the jury in getting at the truth and in fairly standing between the

prisoner and the public. You, after hearing the evidence, are the voice of the public

to.condemn or acquit. It is a matter of public concern and public interest, and yoa.
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are selected as representing the public to pass upon the evidence and to say whether
the conduct of the prisoner is criminal or not. I regret very much to say that the
course of the defence in this case has not been that course which one would desire
where one seeks to get at the truth. It is equally the duty of counsel for the
defence to aid in getting at the truth. That is what all skilled lawyers—all lawyer©
are simply skilled agents—to endeavor fairly to winnow the truth from the fiction
and see really where the facts of the case lie.

Now, I am going to ask you, notwithstanding the extraordinary conduct of the
learned counsel on the other side, 1 am going to ask you not to charge that extra-
ordinary conduct upon the prisoner at the bar, but give him the benefit of every
doubt and every circumstance in his favor, notwithstanding the fact that his counsel
here who has been identifying himself with him has been talking treason to you
yesterday and to-day, justifying rebellion and justifying all manner of illegal pro-
ceedings. Don't charge the prisoner with that ; only charge him with the evidence
that is against him, Don't charge him with the inconsistent positions that his
counsel has taken, nor charge the prisoner with the cowardly conduct of the learned
counsel in abusing the witnesses for the Crown who did not deserve it by anything
coming out from cross-examination. What more cowardly, what more likely to
transfer sympathy from the prisoner in the dock than his attack on young Mr.
Tuck, from Winnipeg post office, sent up here, a respectable man from Winnipeg a
son of Judge Tuck, of New Brunswick, in a situation in the post office, sent up here
to produce simply some papers on file in the office there ? How can a man justify-
that conduct, which cannot be more mean or cowardly

Mr. Clarke.—I won't allow those words " mean or cowardly " to be used to me^
I tell my learned friend he will have to answer for it in another place.

Mr. Osier—than to attack a man unable to answer for himself, who is in the
hands of the counsel, who cannot say one word in his own defence? That aitack:
was made and reiterated for the purpose of humiliating a man who certainly had not-
deserved the attack at all. And the same as to the witness Astley. What has Mr.
Astley said or done that he should have been attacked in the way that he has
been attacked? Let a man attack another where he deserves attack, or if it
is a question of doubt, let him attack him where matters can be answered,*
but

^
where the witness' mouth is dumb, it is a great infringement of the

privilege of a counsel to abuse, as these two witnesses have been abused.My learned friend or the learned counsel may have been carried away by the warmth
of his feeling, by error in judgment. He may have been carried away by the warmth
of his feeling, in abusing in so personal a manner the Government, the members of
the Government, and naming Sir David Macpherson to you in the way he has—I.
don't know what my learned friend's politics may be, but £ have never heard from
the strongest orator on the .Reform side any such abuse as I have heard from the
learned counsel, who, I think, is a strong supporter of the Conservative Government.

Mr. Clarke.—You are mistaken, and I wish you to understand it.
Mr. Osier.—Then so much the worse for the .Reform party.
Mr. Clarke.—And I am not a supporter of the .Reform party—I am a free man.
Mr. Osier.—Now, gentlemen, I want you to understand further as to these pro-

secutions, that the responsibility of prosecuting Thomas Scott, the responsibility of.
prosecuting each one rests on the Crown counsel who have been assigne 1 to conduct
the State trials, and as far as we are concerned, we have no political moiive to serve.
We have had only to judge, sitting to some extent as a grand jury- before we put any
man on his trial we have to judge whether the evidence justifies putting any man
upon his trial, and we have been untrammelled, I may say to you, by any instructions
whatever, as to whom to prosecute or whom to let go.

Now, with these preliminary remarks, which 1 regret to have to make, but I
think I would be remiss in my duty if I did not make them after the conduct of the
learned counsel on the other side—let us fairly and quietly consider the evidence of
guilt against the prisoner. Have we brought it home to him without reasonable
doubt ? If we ha\ e not, then the authorities are jut tier pleased that there is one more
loyal subject proved to exist.
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Now, no doubt a good deal depends upon the view you take as to *e •Tidenoe of

T>roof of the handwriting of Thomas Scott in the letter of the 23rd March. The de-

fence have made a strong point in denying the genuineness^ that letter. They seem

to feel that if that letterlsVought home to them that it ,s a very dangerous docu-

ment and that it puts them In peril, and so, as they have a right to do, they deny

the authenticity of that letter. Well, gentlemen the Crown have to prove it and

they have to prove it to your perfect satisfaction, and if they have not proved it, and

do.r-t prove it to your entire satisfaction, you must eliminate it from the consideration

of the evidenco in the case. . ...

Now a letter or document is ordinarily best proved by a man who saw it.written,

but inasmuch as it frequently happens that a paper is to be proved which nobody has

seen the prisoner or aper^ write, the law gives methods of Pro0J
wh,c\we have

. endeavo. ed to follow in this case-and I may here say that my learned fnend is speak-

ing apart from any authority in law, or he is misunderstand^ the authorities m
law when he argues to you about the best evidence. Thereare two classes of evidence,

primary and secondary, and the rule always is that you must give primary evidence

Ihere you can, and give secondary evidence where you cannot
;
on ^ere are no de-

grees in primary evidence, no degrees in secondary evidence, and that is the only

rale which justifies my learned friend's harangue upon the best evidence. Ho

tolked-with deferenci to him-a good deal of nonsense upon that The

Crown is not bound to produce Louis Kiel or Philip Garnot to prove

-what? To prove that that letter was received m the rebel camp. we

have proved it conclusively, as to its receipt by a man who found itj here

and whose evidence is not disputed. My learned friend oujht to know^that

Louis Kiel, a condemned criminal under sentence of death ,s an ^competent wit-

ness in any court, and could not be called or heard. As to his remark about calling

Phi ip Garaot, could Garnot tell us that it was Scott's handwriting? All he. could tM

us was what Capt. Toung told us, that the letter was received and found in the rebel

camp. Then, gentlemen, how do we proceed to prove that letter? It has to be

Proved by comparison of handwriting. Now, we prove as a matter of fact to you

and it is not diluted, that at Kirkpatrick post offi » the man was P"tm«tor. We

prove the various signatures of Thomas Scott, the postmaster there, on the official file

of he Post Office Department in Winnipeg, produced by the clerk|properly « charge

of that file. There, on file, are the official returns, the bond ^^it Scott Now
signed by the postmaster at that post office, whose name was Tnomas Scott. JNow,

when we prove that Thomas Scott de facto held that office and acted as Piaster
the law presumes that he was postmaster until the oontrary is shown. Itewwa

presumption that when his Honor sits on the bench, he is 4*\^™™°!* f£"
Stipendiary magistrate and he need not produce his commission before he'sentences

or acts in the administration of justice. Se is presumed to be of that office^until the

contrary is shown . So where a postmaster hold, offi 5o he is held by ^* ^ to *at

officer until it is contradicted by evidence. Now, then, gentlemen, we have that fact

then, and we have the signature, here produced. We have also prodded to you a

signature of the prisoner, three signatures of the prisoner and a due bill and a letter

produced by the witnesses here from Prince Albert, and there identified, positively

as the handwriting of the prisoner.

Now, gentlemen, these papers will be given to you, and you will have an op

portunity of comparing the handwriting yourselves. I. have formal^to pat:in a

Witness to show that the paper that I propose to prove is in the ha
f

writing of the

acknowledged originals, but the evidence that I rely on chiefly is the ev dence
,

ot

compZsol by intelligent jurymen, and whenever I have established ^mally by any

witness that these writings agree, then I can supplement th t by ask.

'f
™e

{«£
to take the writings with them when they retire and satisfy themselves

apon examination of the verified originals with the pape,that is proposed to

be proved that they are in the handwriting of the man charged. Now, that is what

I ask you to do, and I greatly rely upon your intelligence and upon your mspectioa

of th ose document*.
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nn« She law itself as then passed was only a consolidation so far as previous Acts

rroughonfit Having said that much, I further digress for another remark and

thlt if tMs that at some of the earlier stages of this trial-I regret to say -charges

we made or assertions were made, indicating, first, that I was simply a creature

Ind second y that you, gentlemen, were all creatures. Well, now true it is I maybe

Tcreature that is, I may hold a commission which may be put back a a moment;»

notice but wh e I do hold it, while I do hold such a commission, I think I feel that3 Ce shown myself a creature, I am not liable to that charge. On the second

™vt at aTater statin the case my action however has been endorsed. I selected

t
P
he i'ury gentlemen who were summoned to serve as a jury in this case and in all other

ca^Il select them from a respectability standpoint, respectability as men m the

Dominion of Canada, residents of the Dominion of Canada I look not a polity

ririt at religion not at any branches how one may feel, I simply say, is that a

re'n^tableZn? Does he bear a character so far as I know in the cinamumtyt

Tf he does he is fit to sit on a jury, and having a list of those whom I know and

whose characters I have been able to form an opinion upon, a ballot takes place with

rta r««nltXat von have a very important duty, and a very heavy duty to perform.

Wellth endowment of respectability at a* later stage in this case has bean I am

happy to say repeated, and there we now stand, and we now go intc
,

ou •duty.

Sow we have heard a charge preferred at the instance of the C own, and!

ask you for a moment to consider what is the Crown? What is t»«Q™? ' *6

£
Tow it is a cardinal principle laid down in the law books that the Queen is the peo-

Xand that the people's interests and the King's and Q .een s sovereign^interests are

Fnsenarable and that following that, while in every criminal charge, the name of
:

the

OueenTsus'ed we say that Tom Jones or so-and-so has violated the Queen a law, it

k the people's law which he has violated, and a jury are empannelled to say betweeu.

the Peopfo
P
at largelnd the prisoner charged, whether or not the charge preferred

ha9
Well,TnCS with this charge ; we have heard what has been adduced on

the part of the prosecution, that is on the part of the people at^.^Xe-I
but say that so

V
far as came under my notice with my very limitedJ^]"*8 £

don't claim to have seen much. 1 am a young man yet; I doe,t profess to >» oU

or to have much experience, but from what little experience I have had
. ^ wot

™,r mvfin^r down and say that any item of undue severity or uidue prosecution,

II endingTpersZtfon ii you willf can be laid at the door of tho.e who have been,

charged wth
P
the prosecution of this charge before this court Oa the other hand

the defence have had the widest limit of allowance in putting heir case in^any shape

they desired before you, and that they have done so I think there can be no d juoc.

It £ true that during the progress of the case, I was called upon, sitting here^

£

responsibility resting upon my shoulders, to rule upon points of evidence
Ju to

whether cerfain questions were'properly put, and it may have been aafort^ta.that

in almost every instance as to the questions asked, I was obliged t rule in toe ona

way That responsibility rests upon me. I know the remarks that were made, but

the v nass through my ears as having been made on the spur of the moment and I pay

n^Xtfon to fhemfsimply feeling
S
that I have done^"^^

of the law and the principles of the law are concerned, that I have put tnem tair'T,;

and whlre my attention has been drawn to something, I have said openly and

plainly that k was not a proper question, the question was not put m a proper way

f°r XrwhauScKeTThis charge is not brought upon a statute 200 years

old oflOOpars old, it is brought upon a statute of
^**f V™*^£ ?£$£££.

IDhis law upon which this charge is framed was introduced and passed by the rariia

10t7
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ment of Canada, and, mind you, at this time neither Manitoba nor the North-West

3SW n/ff w fJ-S* °/rl,
he ?om.

iDi
?
D ofCanada then,when it was passed. It became

%ZW nfS
6
S^k weSt

+
paries in 18*5

'
Jt wa8 "troduced and declared to bethe law of the JSorth-West Territories in 1875, so that instead of beiug a very ancient

it is really a modern law.
to y *m,iem,

Now, the law says, " whosoever after the passing of this Act, either within Canadaor without, compasses, imagines, invents, devises or intends to deprive or depose ourMost Gracious Sovereign Lady the Queen, Her heirs or successors from the style honor-
ed royal name of the Imperial Crown of the United Kingdom or of any other of HerMajesty s dominions or countries, or to levy war against Her Majesty, Her heirs or
successors, within any part of the United Kingdom or of Canada, in order to byforce or constrain, eompel her to change her measures or counsels, or in order toput any force or constraint upon her to intimidate or overawe both Houses of Parlia-ment or either House of Parliament of the United Kingdom or of Canada, or to moveor constrain ary foreigrer or stranger to invade the United Kingdom, Canada orary otner of Her Majesty's dominions under the obeisance of Her Majesty, Her heirsor successors, such compassiugs, imaginations, inventions, devices and intentions, orary of them, shall express, publish, or declare by public, open or ill-advised speaking;
or by any overt act or deed is guilty of treason and liable to be imprisoned in 1
.penitentiary for hie or less."

*
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r*,M. •«.! \HJDne8.A6*e "> detennire every criminal case upon the evidencewhich is actually brought before them in that case,3 wba
V'

s ,be evidence in this case? I should premise by saying toyeutbat

le£h CT*e ??m72°% patieLCe wilh readiBg c^r the whole of The evidence

llt the tX, fl

akCB aDd addrd
-,

l tbiDk » n^t have been impressed upon you?

Soulddoto f ° °f ]t
'
atd »Blf

es de»'ed, particularly desiied by you that I
ft?. + - ?v ' •

y PurP°6e referring to it in a general and cursory wav. Well

IuAVtote
e

nve
l

'uth
e

s

'

1/ e11, ""W 8^ y°D a tUrec,y view ef ti evidence I

«iedibilHv My
i\l *a

respons.bihty of detc.minirg up^n the evideLCe, upon the

Sere m?T h.^tTi^^V'J "^' the "tponsibiht/ rests upon you, yon are

2eh"w is Ld to ?S «hg ^U,
b "

'
?* dUly eS,£Eds 6iffiP,y t0 telllng y°" whatme Jaw is, and to renetb your minds and give jou such genual ideas as 1 can as-
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M.aXstT^ by the d^rentJ^^^ T/w S^SKSS

fs shown to have been preset than these two, and it may possibly be unlucky lhat

1h6^^KSeff cTup .as the letter. Now was that letter=dT

yfe^^^
Prisoner's signature or rot. The evidence consists of this—perhaps drifting a

tie

Eh-Xe wHtten instruments are produced on criminal trials ^^jal"£j

par ies-theL of he parties to that, 1 have seen them write, and from my own

feKs mpcotirg Ae sanfe may be submitted to the court and jury as evrdence of

tte*g£&r£&£Vi!:ZE& S cS^.hy the P-cution and *.

evidence if believed, I thirk can remit into two opinions on that point that this

£ oner was a postmaster, that his duty as B«ch postmaster he had tot to gn-e cer-

tain securities-ctrtain bords, and further, in the execution of ^g™",
Ippo ntment, he had to mahe'certain returns or put his name 9**%*^™*™
p£g through his office. Now documents purporting on their face t b

'

thoseare

produced by a gentleman who tells ns what ? Be tells us he is a
t

cl
?
r^°*^!^

Leg Jost office ycu must recollect, but in the post office inspector s office W nnip
egZ p

g
la
F
ee v, here postmasters' lends are deposited and being a clerk and prcducing, as

hesavs frcm the proper effice as the proper custodian, producing before tnecowre

offie Jldoeumertsforiginal dcecmert e%hich are deposited irr that inspector' or that

rn7l ir rffice Wei' that eviderce having been brought before you, and I tell yon

fct^rT/law
1

they
6

™c brought^, if he is to ^ tfeved he was a proper

tfficer for being entrusted with tbem and bringing Ibem here. If
:

thai « credi ea,

then you havelbat. You have further, you have the statement of MeNiven ard I

think another McHivtn is the one who produces a due hill, and it be is toneS d th/letfer was undoubtedly signed by this man. B>« P» bave ome

further evider ce of parties v,ho piove »-g»«t««V°^ ^n h^^he ivid«?2 of

8T linen 'X JE^^o^ a To^ri^ the sev^al

^andw
L
ritirg's/\firstW however, it ™«J°\^XT*eVZZ

contra eviderce has been called, lor you mB^/ecoliect

™

al '

f, EOt r ;,rht,
Bess who .as called by the defence, in the l« "'*^r-^n

^"e "UThrt
because to one of them he, that witness put Thomw &ott b Mine « ^

i» a matter for ccnsideial on. Tak ng it all in all, as I tell you, we amy otvu.vw.

upon ycu of saving Vb^t jcu believe.
g
Do you believe and are you reasonably con-

1*71
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Z«ff'tSi • ?01
? f
COnv

J
,n

?
ed be

7
0nd a11 reasonable doubt that that letter which is

Z„ f ^ Pr?r
ipa

'
f0

.

unda
,
tI0DS <>f the charge was written by this prisoner ? Wellthen follows the question, from the evidence that yon have heard, are yon convincedof these points? Was there open rebellion, was there rebellion in existenceT then

?ft
a
h

t

th
l
0Onsti^ t

anthorit.es ? Yon have heard of the date being fixed as the18th March
;
you have farther dates being fixed ofcommon report carrying down whatthat state of open and armed rebellion at Batoche and neighborhood whfreTs pril

^hich*
S

f^h
7

^ tW
^dTft

1

erWa
,

d^ aQdy0uhavesome ^idenc«. Bomeexpre
P

7ca9toUhat
y

'
,dentif̂ thi8 P™ ™ with some knowledge

xpressions,

of at

l, P<,r7w
1

,'
l,

foll0W 'ng t^t
'
w

<?
have the prisoner's presence at Batoche, and you have

ealTed TndC^ hp8 What^^ &% Bat0Cne between the^^\Z
You have before you further evidence to consider the results, and what occurredat those meetmgs and you have them not only explained in words from witrises' memory and recollection, but you have them as the product of one meetingleast -some of the witnesses speak of two or three. You have them condensed fn" adocument, m a paper which has been proved as asserted, and, asTt come from hisown witnesses, I assume it will be taken as an original and as a propel^document

.

Now, upon the face of those, and in the face of what you hazard tne oTestion.s Bimply put to you are you satisfied by this evidence affirmatively as a convict oncnated in your minds beyond all reasonable doubt that this prisoner was a nartv tothose documents, to that letter ? If so, from a legal standpoint I must tefl vou^hS
ycT U

eV
on
d
:he

e
n,

Uffitnt
H
t°M" & «>°™«<»»Vn the'law 'wh"h I have^ead to

wrnnlicCn tt ia K
haQd

'
7°U are DOt 8ati6fied

'
either 0< his handwriting or of his

rf?,^t $ • ? \hlB ?'V1Dg 88S18tance to these rebels, then you have just as ..lain aduty in his interests and in the interests of the community, to say he did not asTstdid not compass ,n the grievous and terrible acts of which we all^now perhaps to^

le,d4
d

^^^
hfvTLrprodtdTdft

Jury retire at 2 p m., and return at 2.30 with verdict of CtguUty?
court t^

he
£
ro™^ no^ing farther asaiQ8t p"80"".

g y
Court—Thomas Scott, the jury have acquitted you, and I tell vou one thinrr if-:SS::^r to teU you to go free^ <° *™ *" ffisss&J
Exhibits returned to both parties at request of counsel.
Court then adjourned.

QUEEN vs. BIG BEAR.
Canada : 1

North-West Territories, j

in JNort^CiTem^Wr* °?iChsrd Burt0Q Daane-

°

f the town of Eegina,

ma^^1. J-hatM.s.ta.hah.mus-qua.otherwise^called Big Bear, not regarding the duty
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tins realm
; f ]fil f t and bring to effect his felonious comparing, imagi-

provide^ and%fZ the peac! of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

Sworn before me, the day and year first above
j RTJKTON DBAHE.-

mentioned, at the town of Kegina, m the
£

K. J5U.K±ujn u

North-Webt Territories of Canada. J

Hugh Eichardson,

Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North-West Territories of Canada.

Which do you elect ?
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Friday, 11th September, 1885, before Hugh Richardson, Enquire, and Henry
Jbisher, Squire, stipendiary magistrate and justice of the peace respectively.

Messrs. D. L. Scott and W. C. Hamilton appear for the Crown.
Mr. F. B. Robertson for the prisoner.
Mr. Peter Hourie sworn as Cree interpreter.

1885
PliSODer WaS Charged as contained in ihQ above information on 3rd September,

Court.—Do yon recollect, prisoner, being charged by me with committing crime?
Prisoner.—Yes. &

Court.—Do you recollect the nature of the caarge, what the charge was ?
Prisoner.~I don't recollect it, nor did I understand what was the charge laid

against me. 5

Court.—Then you are charged to-day that you, not regarding the duty of your
allegiance which you owe to the Queen, with other evil-disposed parsons, compassed
to levy war against the Qneen in Canada, and on the 2nd April you did so at Frog
iake, on the 17th April you did so at Fort Pitt, and subsequently, on the 28th, at
Xjoon Greek

;
and take notice, that you have the option of being tried by a stipen-

diary Magistrate alone, or by a stipendiary magistrate with a justice of the peaceand a jury of six. Which do you elect ?
F

Prisoner.—A judge with a jury.
Court is now opened.

• +
Mr. Watson the clerk, reads the information to the prisoner, and it is thereupon

interpreted to the prisoner in Cree. F

To prisoner—Are you " guilty " or " not guilty " ?
Prisoner.--" Not guilty."
Clerk.—Are you ready for your trial ?
Mr. Robertson.—Quite ready.
Clerk.—These good men you shall now hear called are those that are to passbetween our Sovereign Lady the Queen and you; if, therefore, you challenge tEera.

or any of them you must challenge them when they come to the book to be sworn
before they are sworn, and they shall be heard.

'

-d u
JUT1 ™}}Qd *n* s™>rD

;
composed of Albert Smith, Henry Grove, William Hunt,Robert Martin, John Morrison, J. W. Smith.

'

Information is now read to the jury.-On this charge the prisoner has pleaded
not guilty,'' and it is your duty to hearken to the evidence.

Mr. Scott.—May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury: The chargewhich you have just heard read is what is known as a charge of treason-felony Insubstance it alleges that the prisoner, along with others, certain other persons,
designed and intended to levy war against Her Majesty, which means the lawfully
constituted government of the country, and that he expressed and uttered that
desire, showed it conclusively by certain overt acts which are set forth in the
charge. The difference between the crime of treason-felony and the higher crime oftreason is this: that m treason it is necessary to show that the prisoner chargedwith such a crime actually levied war; in treason-felony it is only necessary to show
that he designed and intended to levy war-lhat is, it is not necessary to show thathe levied war, but that he merely intended to do so. You will see by the evidence
given m this case that we go further than actually necessary. We show that he notonly designed to levy war, but that he actually did it, and that is the best evidence ofmtention-the fact that he actually did levy war. There is a difference, too, in thepunisnment For the charge of treason upon conviction there must necessarily
follow a sentence of death. Upon a charge of treason-felony the punishment is notso severe It may be imprisonment for life or may be imprisonment for any lesserterm that the court may think proper to inflict-that is, it may ba imprisonment foranything from a day up to imprisonment for life. Now, the four charges that are
set out the four overt acts that are set out in this charge are these : In the first

f**l' ,£1°? ^e ?™d A^.n at FroS La]£e he aspired with others to levy war:on the 17th April at Fort Pitt he conspired in the same manner; on the 21st at or
1*7A
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w „ t„i™ smd th«,28th Mav at Frenchman's Batte. Before describing the

rarticulaf Salts, it may be neTessary to say something abont the rebellion in the
paiticular oven acts, u y J

tion
'

of the circumstances connected with

ZM on°becau e th'e whSe matter from beginning toend ie now almost a matter

of history The circumstances are just as well known to you, in fact better known

to vou than you will hear from evidence to-day. It will be necessary to give formalS that aCtThe 18th March rebellion did break out in*^\a^/r

°V^kC until the 12th May following the whole country in the neighborhood of Back

LaL and Batocbe,on the South Saskatchewan, was in a blaze of rebellion. AMtongh
^aKe ana rtawouo,

connection existed between the rebellion

fhSL^e2eCr8 carried on oy t^prisLer and others in the neighborhood of Frog
that we allege was carriea on oy F

attention the fact that a rebellion

actalb exitedTa a ve^eorJ dto3 fron/that, and convey to your minds the con

clarion that tVre was a connection between the rebellion at Duck Lake and the

rebemon carded on by the prisoner and the party with whom he was connected

The nrisoner is the chief of a band of Cree Indians who occupy a reserve in the

•J"w^Tnf Fro^Lake He is one of three parties whose najes stand out

nSentlf in the^^listory of the late rebellion a
P
s being the leader of it, in the

SZent& of the country. It is possible we will show that this man was chief

of a band who was in rebellion ; it is possible that we may not be able to show that

he was?he leadlr of the movement in that part of the country It is possible in

werkTng of the outrage at Frog Lake, the massacre which took place on he 2nd day

of Aprif, which is on! of the Charges against the prisoner it is possible that the

deCce mav show, make it appear to you from the evidence, that he was not,

that he diT not go so far in committing those outrages as some members of his

h™d that he Dosaibly may not have intended that massacre should have been
band, that he posaiDiy may

intention then and afterwards

SEES «fi£X p£££ SiveTV the prisoners that may have
,

fidta.into

h°s hands. It is possible that this may be shown It is possible fur her that it

mav be shown that at least to a certain extent to his efforts on behalf of the pn-

Ss tt prisoners owe their lives; but, gentlemen, although that may be shown

U i not a question for you to consider. It is a question to be considered mmitga-

«™ nf tlVn nnnishment to he inflicted upon him if shown to be connected with that

rTelUon^%oum?stnnder:tand,that & he were acting with these parties at that

time in onen rebellion against the Government of the country and he continued to

acrafterwardswihthem in that rebellion, that is nothing, as far as this offence is

concerned whether he wanted to go the length that perhaps some of his band and

otheSed with him wanted to got even if he wanted to save the lives
,

of the

prisoners it Z none the less the fact that he was in open rebellion against the Gov-

Irnment of the country, and ought to be punished for that offence
,

Of course, the

«nnifihment awarded may be mitigated to some extent on that account.
P

Now geSmeMhe four overt acts I have alluded to are these : 1. At the

massacrl of Frog Lake, 2nd April. Ton have all heard the particulars of that,-the

toutel outrage wis committed on that occasion by the band who were in open rebel-

«on We will Ihow that they were in rebellion at that time, and they afterwards

Continued ^rebellm until some time in the latter end of May or in the month of

Ze last 2 The second offence was on the 17th April at the time of the capture

of Fort Pitt After committing the outrage at Frog Lake on the 2nd April they

anneared before Fort Pitt, and the police having withdrawn down the river that day,

Xr^terea the fort, and sacked the fort and the buildings m connection w^h it

3: Upon the 21st April, somewhere in the neighborhood of Frog Lake
,

to which

place* tney returned Fifte'r sacking at Fort Pitt, and a.^™JX%A nam^u
Prisoner and a half-breed who was then in camp with them, a halt breed namea

Montour and another half-breed named Nault. We will show, that on one occasion

of that letter, bat from the conversation that ensued at the time the letter was.

115
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-written, we will be able to give you a pietty srood idea of what the contents of that
letter were or were intended to be, and what the intention of the prisoner and tne
others who were present was in writing that letter* 4. On the 28th May, the last
overt act charged was committed. The prisoner and those who were with him met
the troops at the neighborhood of a place called Frenchman's Butte, and there
engaged with the volunteers of the Dominion, under the command of General Strange,
and were, in fact, in open war, on that occasion, against the Government.

Those are the four acts we charge against the prisoner, and I will now bring
forward evidence to establish them.

John Pritchard, sworn, testified as follows :—

Examined by Mr. Scott :

Q. Where do you live ? A. I used to live at Frog Lake.
Q. Up to what time ? A. Up the 15th April last.

Q. What was your occupation ? A. I was an Indian Department interpreter.
Q. Were you there on the 2nd April ? A. Yes, I was.
Q. Did you see the prisoner there ? A. Yes, I have seen him there.
Q. Any others with him ? A. Yes, he had all his band with him.
Q. Was that at the settlement—what is called Frog Lake settlement? A. Yes.
Q. Was the prisoner usually camped there with his band ? A. Yes.
Q. How far from the settlement? A. He usually camped about a mile from the

settlement.

Q. When did he come into the settlement with his band ? A. Well, he was
there the whole winter.

Q. I mean, when did he leave his camp about a mile distant and come into the
settlement with his band ? A. Well, the first time when he came in with his band was
on the 1st day of April, about 8 o'clock in the evening. He came in there and had a
talk with the Indian agent, and on the 1st day of April there in the evening he said
he—Big Bear—said he was not going to raise, he was going to be loyal. He wanted
to show the Government, he said, that he did not want to do anything at all.

Q. How did the question of his rising come up on that occasion ? A. I could
not say.

Q. Did you hear anything said on that day about a rising ? A. No; it was
Iheraselves came when they heard about that rebellion at Duck Lake.

Q. How do you know they heard about it ? A. Well, they told it themselves.
Q. Who did they tell it to, in your presence ? A. Yes, in my presence.
Q. Did the prisoner say anything about it ? A. No, his son did.
Q. You did not hear the prisoner say anything about it ? A. No.
Q. Except the fact that he was not going to rise ? A. Yes, except the fact that

lie was not going to rise.

Q. Did he—the prisoner—hear the son saying that ? A. Yes, and the prisoner
said fee was going to be loyal, he did not want to do anything.

Q. Well, after the talk was over, what did the prisoner and his band do ? A.
They went home.

Q. Did they come back again ? A. On the 2nd April they came back, early in
the morning.

Q. What occurred on 2nd April ? A. Early in the morning after they got into
evtry house ; they took us prisoners.

Q. Whom ? A. Every one of us that was up there.
Q. How many ? A. There were those that were murdered, and I was one.
Q. How many were murdered ? A. There were nine there altogether.
Q. Nine murdered on that day ? A. Yes, on that day.
Q. And the rest were taken prisoners ? A. Yes.
Q. Those murdered, I suppose, had been taken prisoners before the murder. A»

Yes, they were taken prisoners before.

Q. Were there any other persons about besides the prisoner and his band, and
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the settlers who were taken prisoners ? A. I have not seen any except the prisoner
and his band

.

r r

Q. Had you an opportunity of seeing whether there was any others there ? A.
No, I could not have any opportunity. The only opportunity I had, it was to go
with the Indian agent over to Mr. Simpson's house, to go and see Big Bear in the
house and ask him to—we did not like to go in the camp but stay in the house.

Q. Was that before or after the murder ? A. Before the murders.
Q. As far as you know, there was no others present besides the prisoners taken by

this man and his band ? A. No, I have not seen any besides that around at that time.
Q. Did you see any of the murders committed ? A. No, I have not seen one.

I have seen one that fell alongside of me.
Q. What caused him to fall ? A. It was the shot. He had a shot from behind

and he fell. That is all I seen.

Q. You did not see who committed it ? A. No, there were too many around
us—too many Indians.

Q. Where were you taken to after you were made prisoner ? A. We were
taken to the Indian camp—to the prisoner's camp.

Q. Were there any others in the camp besides the prisoners taken by this man
and his band ? A. At that time ? No, I don't know of any.

Q. You don't know of any that were taken ? A. No.
Q. Were there any others joined him afterwards ? A. Yes, there were some

Indians that joined afterwards.

Q. Who were they? A. Indians from Long Lake.
Q. Many of them ? A. The whole band that was at Long Lake.
Q. About how many ? A. Weil, there was not very many in the band—I sup-

pose about fifteen or sixteen families.

Q. How many would that make in the camp altogether ? A. There could not
be more than 300 altogether.

Q. How long were you kept there a prisoner at Frog Lake ? I mean how long
were you kept prisoner by the prisoner and his band ? A. Two months.

Q. Where were you during that time ? Where did you go to after leaving the
camp at Frog Lake ? A. I went down towards Pitt.

Q. Do you know what occurred there at Pitt ? A. Yes.
Q. What was it ? A. That was the time that thev took Pitt.
A. How did they take Pitt ? What did they do" in taking it ? A. They took

everything that was in it and sacked the fort.

Q. Were there any people living there ? A. Yes, there were some families.
Q. What was done with the families ? A. They were taken prisoners, too;
Q. Were there any others besides those who were taken prisoners and those

who got away ? A. Yes, the police got away, and it was Big Bear that tried to get
them away at that time.

Q. Were there any others there besides those who got away and those who were
taken prisoners ? A. No, only those that got away and those that were taken pris-
oners are all the people that were at Pitt. The police that got away were the only
ones at ifitt,

Q. Wasn't there a man named Cowan ? A. Yes.
Q. What became of him ? He was not taken prisoner ? A. No.
Q. He did not get away ? A. No.
Q. What became of him ? A. He was shot.

Q. Did you see the shooting ? A. No, I did not see him shot, but we heard the
shots. I heard the shots.

Q. Did you see Cowan after he was shot ? ^ A. Yes.
Q. You saw that he had been killed ? A. Yes, I saw that he had been killed.
Q. What was he ? A. A white man.
Q. What occupation did he follow ? A He was a policeman*
Q. You knew him as a policeman ? A, Yes.

Q. Where had he been stationed ? A. He was stationed at Pitt.

Ill
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Q. Then you say they took everything there was at Pitt ? A. Yes.

Q. What was there ? A.I could not say all the articles.

Q. Bat what buildings were there ? A. Hudson Bay buildings.

Q. Was it a store ? A. It was a store. Yes.

Q. Were there things in the store ? A, Yes, there were things in the store.

Q. And those the Indians took ? A. Yes.

Q. Was that before or after they were joined by the Long Lake Indians ? A.
!The Long Lake Indians were there already and had joined.

Q, They went down to Fort Pitt with the others ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see the prisoner at Fort Pitt ? A. Yes, I seen him.

Q. At Fort Pitt? A. Yes.

Q. He was there at the time these outrages took place ? A. Fes, he was there.

Q. Where were you about the 21st April ? A. A little below Pitt.

Q, Whereabouts? A. I don't know exactly whereabouts I was on the 21st.

Q. Do you remember, on any occasion when you was a prisoner, of the pris-

oner's being in his tepee ?

Mr. Eobertson .—The witness has not yet said he was a prisoner of the prisoner's

My learned friend naturally puts it that way, but he has not said that.

Court.—I understand it is put in this way—he was a prisoner of the prisoners'

of the Indians, of whom this prisoner was one.

Mr. Eobertson.—He was a prisoner among the Indians, and the question remains

whether he was keeping him or not. Of course, I know my learned friend does not

want to misrepresent at all.

Court.—It wati quite right to check it.

Mr. Scott.—Q. Do you remember any occasion while you were a prisoner of the

prisoner and his band being in the prisoner's tepee.

Mr. Eobertson objects.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Were you a prisoner of the prisoner and his band? Whose prisoner were

you ? A. I was Big Bear's prisoner.

Q. Do you remember at any time during the time you were that prisoner being

in the prisoner's tent or tepee? A. Yes.

Q. Where was this ? A. At Frog Lake. »

Q. Did anything occur while you were present? A, I don't remember anything.

Q. You know Wandering Spirit ? A. Yes.

Q. Were you in his tepee? A. 1 was.

Q. Do you remember anything that occurred there ? A. Yes.

Q. State what it was ? A. It was about that letter.

Q. What letter? A. The letter they got Andre Nault to write to send to Lac
la Biche.

Q. How did you happen to be there ? A. It was Wandering Spirit came for me.

Q. And he took you to his tent? A. Yes.

Q. When you got to his tent whom did you find there ? A. I did not find any-

hody but he went to Montour afterwards for Andre Nault,

Q. And tbey came into the tepee j anybody else? A. Nobody else except Big

Bear and Wandering Spirit.

Q. Those were the five in the tent, you and the prisoner and Montour and Nault

and the Wandering Spirit ? A. Yes.

Q. What occurred there ? A. They wrote a letter there.

Q. Did you hear anything said at the time or before the letter was written ? A.

No, not until the time the letter was written.

Q. Then teil us what was said and who spoke first ? After the prisoner came
and they were all tbere ? A. It was Montour asked how they would write the letter.

Q. Was that the first thing that was said after you went in ? A. Yes, to Big

Bear.
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By the Qourt :

Q. Montour asked Big Bear how they would write the letter ? A. Yes, the firs t
thing when I got in that i recollect now was that Big Bear said he had—he wanted
to send an Indian to White Fish Creek to invite the Bacana Indians. He was about
sending an Indian. He enticed the Indians to come in and join him, and then he
said to Montour, I want you to write, to do the same, to send a letter to your friends
at Lac La Biche, and then he says, for my part, I send word to Bacana if he did not
want to come to join me let him buy a swift horse and clear the country. The chief
that was at White Fish Creek was to do this.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. That he had ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Do I understand you to say that Big Bear had told him or was about to ? A.
He was about to. He was ready to send the Indian.

Q. And then he asked Montour to write to his friends at Lac la Biche ? A. Yes.
Q. Then what did Montour say ? A. He commenced to write the letter, and

then Montour asked the prisoner here how the letter was going to be, and then these
words that I heard were written and interpreted to Alexander Solomon.

Mr. Eobercson.—I suppose the writing should be produced.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Did you see what was put down in the writing ? A.I heard the words and
saw the man write it.

Q. And after it was written or before—as a matter of fact, you don't know what
was written ? A. I know a few words,

Q. How do you know them ? A. After it was read to Wandering Spirit, he
wanted to know the contents of the letter.

Mr. Scott.—I submit your Honor that I am entitled to show the conversation
that occurred, that even if the letter was read afterwards, what occurred beforehand
in conversation in the tepee during the time the prisoner was there is evidence in
this case.

Court.—If reduced into writing, without accounting foi the letter ?
Mr. Eobertson.—I ask that this evidence be interpreted to the prisoner.
Court.—I think it is quite open to you, Mr. Scott, to show the purpose for which

they came there, but going further than that, I think you will have to account for
the letter, when you show what was really done, and it was put into writing. I
think in that case you will have to take the ordinary rule.

Mr. Scott.—Your Honor, I submit I am entitled to show that.
Court.—It would be proving, I think, the contents of a letter. I may be wrong.

Perhaps you have got some authority ?

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Would you recognize the letter that was written there and read over, as yon
say, in your presence ? A. Well, Sir, I could not recognize the letter.

Q. Do you write ? A. Yes.

Q. Would you know whether that was the letter ? A. I could not say.
Mr. Scott.—Well, your Honor, I must press that point.
Court.—I must have some authority for it. I am not shutting you out. I don't

propose to shut you out from anything but the contents of the letter. I think it is
quite open to you to prove what this man said, what this prisoner said. It is quite
another thing whether that was written.

Mr. Scott.—As I understood from the witness, I think it is given here. I may
be anticipating the witness' evidence to some extent by saying this, that Montour
dictated the letter.
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Court. A man says something in another's presence, who is charged and who*

makes some remarks upon it, that will be evidence. We don't know whether that

went into the letter or not, but when you speak of the contents of the letter it i»

improper. You are speaking of a fact that occurred while the letter was written ?

Mr. Scott.—Yes.
Court.—You can't give the contents of a written document without accounting:

for it, as the contents.

Mr. Kobertson.—I understand the line to be drawn here then, your Honor, where

my learned friend comes to what was dictated, to what was put into the letter
?:

he must stop.

Court.—The facts, the conversation which took place are facts, from which

treasonable practices are to be deduced, if they can be deduced, and it is quite*

another thing whether they were put into writing or not. We want to get at the>

animus of the person charged.

Mr. Kobertson.— I quite agree with my learned friend that any conversation

which took place not actually put into the letter would be admissible.

Court.—It would be quite open to him to show that they met there, and the pur-

pose avowed by one of the parties was that a letter was written, but there he must
stop with regard to the letter, and say that so and so Raid so and so.

Mr. Robertson.—So long as it is not giving what was put into the letter.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. I think I can get all I want out of this witness' friends at Lac la Biche T
A. Yes.

Q. What was said after Big Bear asked Montour to do this ? A. He said they

"Would write.

Q. Who said ? A. Montour.

Q. Whom did he mean by " they," he said " we will write " ? A, Yes.

Q. I suppose that is what he said ? A. Yes,

Q. Whom did he mean by " we," do you know ? A. He meant himself at last.

Q. Montour said that he would write ? A. Yes, Wandering Spirit urging themr

to write the letter.

Q. Then, what next ? A. I know the contents of the letter.

Q. How do you know them ? A. I heard them pronounced first before it was
-written.

Q. By whom ? A.I heard them pronounced by Montour.

Q. For what purpose? A. For the purpose of putting it in the letter.

Q. Who did he pronounce it to ? A. He pronounced it to the prisoner here, if

he wculd write that.

Q. Did he ask the prisoner ? A. Yes, he asked the prisoner first.

Q. What did he ask him ? A. He asked him, he says shall I write and tell

him
Q. What did he ask him? A. To tell Alexander Solomon so-and-so; that was

the words that was said there.

By the Court :

Q. Shall I tell Alexander what? A. To preserve from the Indians, to rob him

and deliver up his guns and the ammunition he had, as the Indians would rob him
anyhow.

Q, Montour asked Big Bear this? A. Yes.

Q. And what did Big Bear say ? He told him, yes.

Q. Then did he ask him any other questions? A. He told him, shall we tell the-

news about this place, the news about this massacre that was done ; that is all I

remember.
Q. That is what Montour asked him at the time ? A, At the time I was in

Wandering Spirit's tent.

Q. He abked Big Bear if he should tell Solomon what had been done ? A. Yes»
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Q. Was that the way he put the question ? A. Yes, that was the way he put

the question.

Q. Are you sure that was the way ? A. —

.

Q. Just put it in his exact words, Montour's exact words ? A. He says, shall I

tell Solomon the news of what happened here ? 1 hat was the way he asked him.

Q. And what did Big Bear say ? A. He said, yes.

Q. Was that all Big Bear said ? A. Yes, that was all he said.

Q. That is not the statement that you gave to me, Mr. Piitchard—I am not

going to tell what you said. I have a perfect right to make that remark. I want to

refresh your memory as to it.

Mr. Bobertson.—I don't think you have the right to make that remark. If a

different statement was made, you have a right to ask him aLd prove it was made,

according to the rules of evidence. J ou have no right to make a statement to the

jury that he told you something different.

By Mr. Scott:

Q. Are those the only questions you heard Montour asking Big Bear? A. Yes,

that is the only questions I remember now.

Q. Did Montour at any time put a sentence to Big Bear as to what he was going

to put in the letter by way of a question ? A. That is all the sentences that I am
perfectly sure that was pronounced now.

Q. Were you at Frenchman's Butte during the time you were prisoner? A. Yes.

Q. About what time was that ? A. I don't exactly remember the date.

Q. Do you remember anything that occurred there ? A. Yes.

Q. What ? A. They had a skirmish there.

Q. Who had a skirmish? A. It was between the Indians and the troops.

Q. What troops? A. I could not say what troops, because I was not with the

troops.

Q. Did you hear the prisoner or those who were with him on that occasion say-

ing as to what troops they were ? A. No.

Q, You never heard any conversation about it ? A. No, I did not hear any-

conversation on it, what troops they were.

Q. You have heard them talking about it, you say? A. No.

*Q. Didn't you hear any conversation about the fight afterwards? A. I heard

some conversation about the fight, and heard the gun shots.

Q. Well, how did you know it was the troops ? Did you hear the Indians say-

so ? A. Well, I heard it in Cree—" the soldiers."

Q. Did you hear what soldiers they were ? A. No, I did not hear whether they

'were nothing but French and Indians. I did not hear what troops was there.

Q. Did you see Big Bear on that occasion ? A. No, I did not see him that day.

Court.—Mr. Eobertson, before you ask him any questions, I propose to ask this

interpreter to interpret what I have taken down. (This evidence is now read over to

the witness by the court, and the interpreter interprets it to the prisoner.)

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. Mr. Pritchard, you were in Mr. James K. Simpson's house at Frog Lake oil

the morning of the massacre ? A, Yes.

Q. What time in the morning ? A. It was about seven or eight o'clock.

Q. That is, the morning of the 2nd April ? A. Yes.

Q. Whom did you see ? A. I saw Big Bear there.

Q. Whom else ? A. Mrs. Simpson.

Q. Not Mr. Simpson ? A. No.

Q. What was Big Bear doing ? A. He was doing nothing ; he was sitting m a
chair in the house.

Q. .And Mrs. Simpson was there ? A. Yes.

Q. Was anyone else with you ? A. I was with the Indian agent.

<J. What is his name ? A. Thomas Quinn.
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Q. At seven o'clock in the morning when you saw Big Bear, was that in Mrv
Simpson's house ? A. Yes.

Q. Where did you go from that ? A. We got out and wanted to come home,
and we met with a band of Indians, myself and Quinn.

Q. And what happened when you met the band of Indians ? A. When I met
the band of Indians, the band of Indians surrounded me, and they wanted to take me
right away to the camp.

Q. Did they surround Qninn also ? A. Well, Quinn was behind me.
Q. And you did not see what they did with him ? A. No.
Q. That was the time when you were taken prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. And Big Bear, before that, you had left in Mr. Simpson's house ? A. Yes.
Q. Then he was not present when you were taken prisoner, Big Bear ? A. He

was not present. I was taken early in the morning, first of all.

Q. You had just left him in Mr. Simpson's house and you came away from there
and a band of Indians took you there, Big Bear was not there when you were taken
prisoner ? A No, he was not there.

Q. He was there in Mrs. Simpson's house some little distance away ? A. Yes*
Q. Who were the leading spirits in the band that took you prisoner ? A. Big

^Bear's son. .

°

Q. What is his name ? A. Imesis.

Q. Is Big Bear's son a good son to his father ? A. No, I don't think so, because
when the father said anything the son bucks against it.

Q. The direct contrary ? A. Yes.
Q. Did he do that through the whole of this trouble ? A. Yes.
Q. This Imesis was one of the leaders of this band of Indians ? A. Yes.
Q. And it was he who took you prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. Now, why did you say you were Big Bear's prisoner ? A. He being the

chief, and I was in his camp,
Q. And he is the chief recognized by the Government ? A. Yes.
Q. Can you tell me who else were the leaders of the band of Indians in this

trouble ? A. Wandering Spirit.

Q. Any other ? A. Little Poplar.
Q. These people then were the leaders of the band of Indians throughout the

whole of this business ? A. Yes, they were the leaders throughout all, yes.

^
Q. Was Big Bear one of the leaders of the band of Indians, did he lead them, did

lie incite them to wrong? A. No, I never saw Big Bear incite any Indian.
Q. You never heard him inciting any wrong? A. No.
Q. Did you hear him ssy anything to the contrary at any time ? A. I can't

recollect. It was only at that time that he wanted to take Port Pitt, and told them
not to try and kill anybody that time, he wanted to save the families that were in
the fort.

Q. Who wanted to take Pitt ? A. Wandering Spirit and Imesis, they wanted to
take the headmen that was leading the Indians.

Q. Imesis and Wandering Spirit wanted to go and take Fort Pitt ? A. Yes.
Q. Where was this ? A. At Prog Lake.
Q. Before they went ? A. Yes.
Q. What did Big Bear say about that to them or what did he try to do ? A. Big

Bear tried to save the families that were in the fort. He said if he could get the police
to leave the fort it would be good, that is what he said.

Q. He suggested that ? A. Yes.
Q. That he wanted to save them ? A. Yes.
Q. Now, did he try to prevent them from going to Port Pitt at all, did he try

to keep them quiet ? A. Well, that is all he said and I did not say if he wanted to
try and prevent them, but I heard those words.

Q. That he wanted to save the people in the fort, to arrange so that the police
acould get away ? A. Yes.
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Q. Did you hear the whole-of what took place at that interview or was it just

part of it on that occasion ? A. Just part of it. -

O. You were not all, you were not there all the time ? A. JNo.

q; Now, do you know who went first to Fort Pitt from Frog Lake when they

went down to take it ? A. No. jmu«««+9A Ttfn-i*

Q. Did Big Bear go am.ong the first, do you know that or did he not ? A. No
,
it

was the Indians that went off first and Big Bear started behind.

Q. He followed them ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you go with them ? A. Yes.

O. Went with them to Fort Pitt ? A. Yes. .

Q. How did it happen you went? A. Wandering Spmt wanted me to go as

interpreter.

§• W^yo"? ^fCtatT/ou.Vlan Wandering Spirit, and took you

toT^Cwss itiSSTS tt^y 'when they went* A. It was these

two men that I mention, it was these two men.
!„fl„„nl.a in this

Q. Big Bear was not commanding it at all ? A. No, he had no influence in this

**\ Well, you went there yonrselt before Big Bear did-Big Bear must have

C°™ af
wi:hcw was^hat 1 A. Well this, after the Indians started Wandering

Spirit came back and nade me go.
,

_ , « A y*
Q. Well, when you got there you saw the plundering of the fort t A. I es.

Q. Did Big Bear take any part in the plundering of the fort ? A. I did not see

Mm-
Q. Do you know whether he did or not ? A. I don't ^°^^he

^
e
f^

e

fo

d
r\
d °r

not became I did not see him, and I have not seen if he had anything at the fort.

Q. You never saw him with any of the goods? A. No.
Rftidom I

Q. Did you eee him about that time after the pillaging ? A. Yery seldom I

™U
Q

B

"WeShcw often did you see him after the pillaging of Fort Pitt ?
Immedi-

ately after, that day and the next day? A. Well, I don't remember seeing him often,

it is very seldom I would see Big Bear go around and leave his tent.

Q He very seldom left his tent at all ? A. Yes.

Q. Didn't ycu see him at all ? A. I did see him.

Q. Twice ? A. More than twice inside of two months. I can t say how many

times. I don't remember how many times I saw him.

Q. During the two months that followed the pillaging of Fort Pitt you saw vig

IBear pretty often ? A. Yes.

O Although he generally stayed in his tent I A. les.

q; Were ycu in his tent frequently during that time ? A, No, I never went in

** Tyou travelled over a great deal of ground during those two months? A,

"Yes.
*Q. How did Big Bear travel ? A. On foot.

Q. Were there any horses in the band ? A. Yes, there were horses.

Q How many ? A. I don't know the number.

Q. Were there 100 ? A. More than 100. _.

Q. And Big Bear never had a horse even ? A. No. I never saw Big Bear or>.

horeeback nor on a rig. He used to travel on foot.

Q. He did net even have wheels to carry him or ponies ( A. iso.

O. And it was a pretty rough country ? A. It was. _OOT,» f :+ ? a

Q. Through a great deal of sloughs, and snow and bad weather wasn t it ? A.

S
*

Q. That was the treatment he got from his own band ? A. Yes.
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Mr Scott.—I think my learned friend is not fairly stating the case when he

says that every bit of information possible for ns to obtain has not beenJoshed-
We have endeivored to obtain all the information possible ; we have sent to. any

witnesses forthe defence that he has required, and I don't see that we are in a better

Dosition to get information than he is. , ofP
Mr. Kobertson.-Of course Big Bear is an Indian, and your Honor knows what

great difficulty that puts in my way. I knew nothing whatever about this matter

until Mr. Pritchard told me about it the day before yesterday and I had not the first

idea that the letter was in existence, or that anything of the kind was there, and L

do not ask to go into the full contents of the letter. I merely ask your Honor to

say that the letter being shown to have been taken by Wandering bpirit, one of this

band of Indians who was out of my reach, it is pracncally lost.

Court.—I could not say that.

Mr Robertson.—It is lost in this way, that it is gone were we can t get it.

Court.—I don't know that. I think I must apply the same principles to you. 1

must stick to the same ruje I held before. If the parties present say we are going to

put so and so into a piece of paper, and so and so may be given, but as to the con-

tents of that paper they cannot be given.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. The letter came at all events, and Wandering Spirit got it ? A. Yes-

Q. In consequence of that letter was anything done in the way of a council t A.

3*o, they invited some Indians and some prisoners that were there to got the letter

read, so that everybody would hear the contents of the letter.

Q Well, did anyone propose any course of action? ;Did anyone pr >pose actmg

in consequence of that letter ? Did anyone propose that the band should go down to

join Poundmaker? A. I did not hear of anybody proposing to go down and join

Poundmaker.
Q. You did not hear anyone propose that ? A. No.

Q. Did any of the Indians express the wish to go to join Poundmaker f A. wen,

there was some that I heard wish to go to Poundmaker.

Q. Who ? A. There was one of the prisoner's counsellors.

Q. What is his name ? A. Fair Sky the Bird.

Q. He wanted to go ? A. Yes. _, _
Q. Did Big Bear say anything as to that? A. No, I did not hear Big Bear say

anything. _

Q. Not one way or the other ? A. Not one way or the other.

Q. Did Big Bear want to go ? A. I could not say if he wanted to go or not.

O. You did not hear him express himself one way or another ( A. JN o.

Q. Do you recollect the morning of the 28th May, the day of the hght at French-

man's Butte? A. Yes. . «'•—* _!.«_<>,

Q. Where were you on that morning and the evening before ? A, Just wner©>

the fight took place the evening before that.
^

Q. Did you hear Big Bear give any advice to the Indians? A. JNo.
_

Q, The evening of the 27th did you hear Big Bear giving any advice to the,

Indians as to whether they should stay there, or as to what they should do t A. JMo*

Court.—I don't propose to translate this.

Mr. Kobertson.—No, I don't think it is necessary to translate it*

By Mr. Scott:—

Q. You had been taken prisoner before you went over to Mrs. Simpson's house?

A. Yes.

Q. Where were you taken ? A. In my house.

Q. Was the prisoner there at or about the time you were taken r A. No-

Q. Had you seen him that morning before ? A. I seen him that morning

Q. Who was he with or where was he ? A.I seen him in Delaney s houset tat:

jnorning.6
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Q. Before you were taken prisoner ? A. We were taken prisoner, we were
taken in bed every one, and so we were taken altogether into Delaney's house, and
then the prisoner standing at the bar now, I seen him there.

Q. Where ? A. In Delaney's house with a big crowd of Indians.
Q. About the time you were taken prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. The time when you were taken to Delaney's house? A. Yes.
Q. Then you say you went over with Quinn to see Big Bear at Simpson's house

for the purpose of obtaining permission from him to remain in the house ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you speak to him wheD you got into Simpson's house ? A. Yes, I was

interpreter ior the agent and I spoke to him.
Q. You spoke for the agent ? A. Yes.
A. What did you say to Big Bear ? A.I merely asked him about the orders of

the Indian agent that was with me, we would not like to go to the camp but would
like to stop in the house, and he said, the prisoner here told us, we could stay in the
Indian agent's house.

Q. He knew at that time that you were prisoners ? A . Yes, he knew at that
lime.

Q. He had seen you around as prisoners before that ? A. Yes.
Q. When did you first discover that Big Bear had no influence in his own band ?

Did you know that belore the outbreak ? A. No.
Q. Then you always recognized him as being the head and front of his band up

to the time of the outbreak ? A. Yes, up to the time of the outbreak, and till after
the time of the outbreak.

Q. There was a feeling among some of the Indians that the prisoners should be
iilled, was there not? A. Yes.

Q. You know that that existed ? A. Yes.

Q. And that some of the band were very anxious to have them killed ? A. Yesi
Q. Imesis, Wandering Spirit and Little Poplar, I suppose they were anxious to

see you all killed ? A. \es.
Q. And urged it ? A. Yes.
Q. Big Bear, you stated, was opposed to the killing of the prisoners ? A. Yes.
Q, Have you any means of knowing by whose doing it was that the prisoners'

lives were saved ? A. I could not t&y exactly that this man and this Indian saved
the prisoners, but in a big crowd of Indians there is always some good white and
half-bretd and Indian. There is some of the Indians that protected us entirely I
might say. 1 don't know the names ot all the Indians, but it was the Wood Crees—
Jong Lake Indians.

Q. Where did the Wood Qrees join the camp? A. At Frog Lake.
Q. How long was that after the massacre on the 2nd of April that they joined ?

JL ta uey joined about the 6th or 'Zth April.

Q. Four or five days afterwards ? A. Yes.
Q. You say that Big Bear was recognized by the Government as the chief of the

liand ? A. Yes.

Q. And I understood you to say he was recognized by the band as well, as their
chief up till the 2nd April ? A. Yes. I recognized him as the head chief of the band.

Q. Then, who was the recognized head of the band by the Indians themselves
up to the time? A. That I don't know. The only thing that I could know, when
the Indiana would come to talk to the Indian agent, he was the man that talked first.

Q. He was the spokesman ? A. Yes, and then afterwards it was Wandering
Spirit.

Q. Do you know what the custom is as to who the spokesman for a band is
smcngst Indians ? Who speaks first amongst an Indian band ? A. The chief.

Q. Is it the head. chief ? A. Yes.

^, It is the head chief that speaks first ? A. Yes. The man that speaks first
"amongst a band of Indians—head man.

By the Court :

<Q. Ard then next comes a councillor, doesn't it ? A. Yes.
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By Mr. Scott:

Q. You say that yon heard Big Bear at Fort Pitt endeavoring to pervade the

Indians to let the police go ? A. Yes.

Q. That was at Fort Pitt ? A. Yes.

Q. After his arrival there? A. Yes.
,

Q. And hefore the taking of the fort ? A. Before the taking of the fort

O flew did voa happen to hear this? Was it a council? A, It was not a

conndl hut it was a whole hody of men standing together that were just going to

ruXintcTilTfort, and then he called out and told tnem to try and save the families

that were there, and the police that were there let them go.

Q To let the police and families go ? A. Yes. %

q. That was all he said ? A. That was all he said,

By Mr. Bobertson :

Q. You say it was the Wood Crees that saved you ? A. Yes.

O Was Big Bear in sympathy with them in saving you ? A. Well, I could not

flflv that because 1 don't know. I never seen Big Bear around.
7
Q When you 6ay that it was the Wood Crees then you only mean that that was

your general impression afcout it, and you seem to have more friends among the

IVfioci Ciees than &mong the Plain Crees? A. Yes.

Q. But^Bear might have been siding with the Wood Crees in protecting:

y°U?
Q. Conldhe have protected you against his own men if the Wood Crees had not

been there ? A. No.

% T^ou^I yo^e^ed Kg Bear as the chief of that band until after

^
q! How taJSer the rising ? A. It was at that time that

,
I recognized that he

was not chief, that he was no logger chief, at the time they took Fort P»«

Q Then it was brought horn! to you clearly that he was no longer chief? A.

I saw who was the leadefs of it. That is what makes me say now that he was not

6

Q. That was the first time it was brought plainly to you ? A. Yes.

Q And before that time you had just remained under the impression that had

been created by many years' custom before, that Big tear was chief? A. Yes.

O And when you told the jury that it was Big Bear that used to speak first to

the Indiw°agLt^the Wande^ Spirit afterwards, that referred to the time before

the rising? A. Yes.

Q. Not after ? A, Yes.

Xamfs Kay SiMPSON,Ssworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott :

Peter Hourie, interpreter, interpreting as the evidence is given.

Q Where were you living on the 2nd April ? A. I started from Pitt to go to

^^Q*
Where were you living at that time ? A. At Frog Lake hefore.

Q. When did you reach Frog Lake ? A. In the afternoon.

Q. What did you find there? A. All the houses all abandoned, all the
>

doors

broken and windows and everything, and I found the camp about a mile away from

thG h
Q?Til the houses do you say were plundered ? A. Yes, broken and plundered,

all plundered. „ .11
O. Any people about the settlement? A. Not a single soul.

.,

Q. What did you do when you found this state of affairs? A. I .™nt ™to «V

own place and examined the place, and found that eyerything was upside down there.
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Q. What id your occupation at Frog Lake ? A. I was clerk in charge of tho
post there, Frog Lake post, of the Hudson Bay Company.

Q. What does the post consist of? A. Goods.
Q. And store, I suppose ? A. Yes.
Q. With goods ? A. With goods, yes, and provisions.
Q. What had become of the goods when you got there ? A. The Indians had

the whole.

Q. They were gone ? A. They were all gone.
Q. And you found the contents of your own house- ? A, All gone
Q. What did you do then ? A. I looked around about the floor to see if therewas any bloodshed or blood, or anything, and I went out then.
Q. Did you see any signs of bloodshed anywhere ? A. No, not at that place. Iwent on the road all the way. I did not go out.

Q. Where did you go to ? A. I wert right to my place, and I saw an Indian
there afterwards After I had gone on to my place and looked around; as I came out,
there was an Indian came up, and I asked him, what is up ? What is all this, says I
across the creek ? He says, you may see what is up.

Q. What did you do after speakicg to the Indians? A. I got into my back-
board and drove right across where the camp was.

Q. Whom did you see there? A. All the Indians sitting in a circle.
Q. The prisoner ? A. The prisoner was there, yes.
Q. Do you speak Cree ? A. Yee.
Q. What did you do after you got there ; did you speak to the prisoner ? A. Yes*
Q. Who did you speak to first? A. The prisoner.
Q. What was said ? A. I asked him, hallo, I said, you are here: and he said

yes, when did you come back from hunting ? He was away hunting when I went-away from there and he said, yesterday morning he had come in, that they had sent
tor him. I said, did you mak j a good hunt ? He said, no, and that is all that I askednim just then, and then he said to me afterwards, if you wish to come into my tentand remain m my tent, you come in and remain in my tent.

Q. Did you go in ? A. No, I did not go just there. I went down to my own
tent nrst and then about an hour or so after, I went back to Big Bear's tent, and I
said uo him, I am sorry to see what you have done here. Well, he says, it is not my
n u

8,
ii

Said
'
n0W this affair wil1 aU be in y°ur name »

^t your young men. It
will be all on you, carried on your back. He says, it is not my doings, and the youngmen won t listen, and I am very sorry for what has been done.

Q. What became of you after that ? A.I was in the camp.
Q. What position had you in the camp? A. I was a prisoner there.
Q. ion were a prisoner in the camp ? A. Yes.
Q. And followed the camp after that ? A. Yes.
Q. Up to the time of your release ? A. Yes

.

Q. When was that ? A. That was on the other side of the Beaver River
Q. When ? A. About the latter end of June, I think.
Q. You were there three months ? A. Three months.
Q. Were you at Fort Pitt about the middle of April ? A. No.
Q. Were you taken down there? A. No.
Q. Where did you remain ? A. Frog Lake.
Q. Did a portion of the band remain there ? A. Not many.
Q. Were there any other of the prisoners remained there besides you? A-

CJameron. *

Q. Cameron and you then were detained at Frog Lake ? A. Yes.
Q. And the others went down to Pitt did they ? A. To Pitt.
Q. What proportion of the band went to Pitt about that time ? A. Nearly the

whole of them. *

Q. Do you remember about the 28th May being in the neighborhood of French-man s Butte, you know where that is ? A. Yes.
Q. What occurred there ? A. The soldiers came up there and had a fight*
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Q. How do you know, did you see it? A. The soldiers?

O Yes? A. No, I did not see them.

Q. How do you know they were soldiers ? A. Reported to be.

O Bvwhom? A. The Indians.

Q Was the prisoner there ? A. The prisoner was around there, yes.

£ WaslfreptrterwTa^lirs thTwere? A. They said, soldiers, that is ail,

*¥&P&*ZZ&*»t™i A
-

Weknewit ™ the G°vern-

^^How did you hear that? A. Well, there was a report that the Government

*m1diftrR were comina down from Edmonton before.
oV_,,4-^ Q WhereTi that reported? A. That was reported-we got that report about

'Fr0g
Q
L
How did you bear it ? A. It was among the Indians

Q. Was it among the Indians the prisoner was with I A. * e9- vniiar
Q. Well, were those the soldiers that you heard were at Frenchman s Butte e

A. Yes. o * v
O. There was a fight there yon say t A. Yes. ^^if
O How do von know? A. I heard the shots. I did not Pee them myself

Q: ttdyou SLSdians saying anything about the fights, as to what theF
3iad done, what had been done ? -do

Mr. Eobertson.—In presence of Big Bear ?

Court.—Not necessarily.

By Mr. Scott

:

.

O Tn the presence of eome of 1hose wilh whom he was associated. Diet

W^o.?.^
1^^*^ that were with the prisoner saying what had been do**

5 the fight It Frenchman's Butte? A. I heard an ™** ?*£*

^

T*™Jg^
ing with the soldiers, and they had killed nineteen or twenty, that was the report.

By Mr. Eobertson :

Q. How long have you known Big Bear ? A. Nearly forty years.

J. Wha?ts

n
be
r

en hta character during all that time ? A. Always been a good

Indian to the white man.

Q. A good friend of the white man ? A. Yes. ^m^a? a Yph
O And always respected by the white people as being a good friend ? A. Yes

o D?dL youTer hiar of his getting into any trouble of any kind with the whit*

man ? A. Never any tronble of his own troubles until this. •

Q. You were not present on the morning of the massacre at Frog uake ? A.

N°"
Q. You were away at Fort Pitt on yonr way home ? A. Yes.

Q. And it was not till after the massacre that you arrived there 7 A «b.

Q You have told ns that when yon drove across the camp you found Big Bear

there in the circle of the Indians that were sitting there. You spoke to him, and

yonsafd something to the effect that you were sorry for what had been
|

done
,,
and

IZ he wonTd lose his good name now or this would rest upon his shoulders ? A.

Yes, I said so.
,

Q. And he said it was not his doing ? A, Yes.

Q. That the young men would not listen to him? A. Yes.

O And he was very sorry -for what had been done ? A. Yes.

Q. DM he say anything else about his good name and the young men?-A..He

^idthev have beL always trying to take my name from me. I have always tried

to st^the young men, and theyTbave done it this time and taken my name away

irom me.
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Q. He complained that the young men had baen trying to take his name away
from him, and that they had succeeded at last ? A. Yes.

Q. Did he seem really sorry ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you believe that he was sorry ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you believe it now that he was sorry ? A. Yes.
Q. As matter of fact, can you say whether Big Bear was recognized as chief or

in command, and could control the Indians in his baud at that time ? A. Not just
at that moment. He was at one time recognized as chief.

Q. At one time, when ? A. In his younger days when I knew him first, but it
became so at last that his young men would not listen to him.

Q. How old is he, do you know ? A. He ought to be upwards of sixty.
Q. And do you know, as matter of fact, that the younger men in the tribe looked

upon him as a sort of old woman ? Yes, in his older days.
Q. When he got older ? A. Yes.
Q. And of later times ? A. Yes.
Q. Had he really any influence among his band ? A. Not these last years.
Q. Any influence suflicient to control them against their wishes? If they were

set upon anything could ho stop them? A. Oh, no.
Q. Who were the Indians that really led that band and influenced them ? A.

One of his own sons.

Q. vVTiat was his name ? A. Imesis, and Wandering Spirit, and Chuway.
Q. Little Poplar ? A. He was not there when the massacre was there. He

only came in when they went down to Pitt.

Q. And those were the men that were controlling the band then ? A. After.
JL 6S«

Q. Imean at the time of the massacre the men that were controlling it were
Imesis, Wandering Spirit and this other Indian ? A. Yes, Lucky Man, they call
him, J

Q. They were the ring-leaders ? A. Yes.
Q. Were they members of the council ? A. Lucky Man was a chief, another

chief.

Q. Wandering Spirit, what was he ? A. First councillor.
Q. They were all influential men, even in the ordinary councils ? A. Yes.
Q. And they had taken control, practically, of the band ? A. Yes.
Q. How did Imesis treat his father habitually ? A. He did not treat him verv

well

.

J

Q. He did not treat him well ? A. No.
Q. Didn't he treat him very badly ? A. No.
Q. Is it a fact, as Mr. Pritchard has told us already, that when Big Bear tried todo anything his son always bucked against him—as he expressed it ? A He went con-

trary always.

Q. And generally succeeded in carrying the Indians with him ? A Yes
Q. During all that time that you were with the Indians, while you were a

prisoner, how did Big Bear travel ? A. On foot.
Q. Were there any horses in the band ? A. Yes.
Q. And he could not get a horse ? A. I don't know that he could not, but he

always travelled on foot. '

Q. What was the ground you travelled over ? A. Bad ground—muskegs and
water and woods. ° &

•n
Q *J£d ?

und©rstand you to say that you were present at Fort Pitt when it was
pillaged ? A. No.

•« *.
Q

o
Y

*
U £ero

T
at Frenchman's Butte ? Did you see Big Bear at Frenchman's

Jbmtte ? A. Yes I saw him there.

Q. Where was he ? A. In the camp when I saw him.
Q. When the fighting was going on ? A. No, I was not there when the fighting

was going on. 6 6
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Q. Do you know where Big Bear was when the fighting was going on ? A. I

could not say ™*£?™£& went that morning, or what became of him that

mornlg ? T Isa°w Mm in the evening after the fight, but I did not see him m the

m°r
Q^Where was he then, when yon saw him in the evening ? A. Away travelling.

How far away that night ? A. Fifteen or sixteen miles

q! Awly from where the figh^S had been ? A
'

YeS
>
wheD *

MW him '

§". Ibou two o'clock in the afternoon he had got fifteen or sixteen miles away

morning. Between six and seven in the morning.

O Now tell me, had all the Indians run away like that ? A. JNo.

O Had many of them ran away ? A. Oh, yes, all the families had ran away.

O But where were the fighting men ? A. The fighting men were fighting there.

O All out at the front ; they did not run away ? A. They did not run away

.

§-. Do you recollect the arrival of a letter from Herbert Delorme ? A. Yes.

O. Who was then in Poundmaker's camp ? A. Yes.

O Addressed to John Pritchard, the last witness C A. Xes.

O AndyouandMr. Maclean, after the arrival of that letter, went out among

the Indians, and particularly the Wood Crees, to persuade them not to go and join

Poundmaker ^haUs^J^^^J^ his interpreter and assisted him.

A
'

o
eS

*

Did Bk Bear assist you or resist you ? Did he assist you in that attempt to

preveit them ifom going around ? A. 1 spoke to Big Bear, and he said he did

DOt
Q.

9

Wellfdld he say that in the presence of any of the Indians ? A. Well, there

•was no Indians around about there only himself.

& ^owa^tplXlte^hlwhite prisoners? A That I could not eav.

Q'
Is Mr Pritcfiard correct in saying it was the Wood Crees, and not the Plain

rwT that the Wood Crees really saved the whites from the Plain Crees? A Well,

Jst when I got Into the camp xhere was more of the Plain Crees than the Wood

0re
*Q Just at that time ? A. Yes ; of course, if they wished to kill us at that time,

they

4
OU
TL7h

e

ad
k
justkilEne or ten already ? A. Yes, but they could have killed

the r

Q ^^afterwa^fl It was the Wood Crees that saved us.
.

O Was Big Bear in sympathy with them that saved you, or was he in sympathy

with
Q
plaTn Crefs who wantect to kill you ? A. If he had said to kill us, to his o wn

^%tyou
W?^^

Q If he had said to do it, do you think they would have done it ? A. Yes.

Q. Could he alone have prevented them from doing it ? A. Oh, no.

q! You are satisfied of that? A. Yes.

By Mr. Scott:

q. You say that the prisoner had at one time considerable influence over his

band
Q. But That it became after a time that the young men would not listen to him?

*" Y
q!' When did you first observe symptoms of that feeling in the band? A. A.

Jew days before the treaty.
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Q Some years ago ? A. Yes.

, ^ (^ You 8&y that since tnat the youn& men would not listen to him ? A. No
(affirmatively).

Q. How did that come to your notice? What circumstances brought that toyour notice ? A. Because I was into the camp often trading with them, summer and
winter, the same as if I was living with them altogether, and I found out that if hehad anything to say, the others would not hear it*

i j- ®" ^
he

i

n,
.i

^

0W does {t come that in the face of that
>
that if n© had counselled the

Indians to kill the prisoners, they would have done so ? He must have had some
influence which turned the balance one side or the other, and would have made the
crowd turn with it ? A. If you get into a camp of Indians, and they speak to you,
sihl you said do this bad, they will do it, and say, do this good, and they would
not do it perhaps. J

Q. That is what you think ? A. Yes.
Q. That the member of a band or chief may have an influence for bad, but that

affluence might not extend to influence them to do good acts ? A. Yes.
Q. You say that Big Bear always travelled on foot? A. Yes.
Q. Wero there any of the others travelling on foot? A. Yes
Q. Who, for instance? A. The Indians.
Q. Quite a number of them ? A. Quite a number of them.
Q. Any of the head men ? A. Yes.
Q. Besides Big Bear? A. Yes.
Q. Who? A. Wandering Spirit.

Q. He was travelling on foot ? A. Yes.

$* £°/°u
kD0W for What reason these men were travelling on foot? A. No.w rL t i

6 Prisone' a°y hors08 of his own ? A. He had horses, but everyonehad taken his horses and made use of them.
Q. Others were making use of them? A. Yes.

Ho Idotft
d°n,t kn°W whether ifc was with his Permission or against his will ? A.

Q You say that after the arrival of that letter from Robert Delorme you and

Po
r

undmake
n
r J™A Yes"

^^^ endeavoriDS to Persua<^ the Indians not to go to

it ? *A Y
r

e

Mr
'
Maclean went around and y°u interpreted for him, is that the way of

Q. What arguments were used to prevent the Indians from going to Poundmakerwhat was the argument which in your mind prevailed upon them not to go? A.'They wanted Big Bear and all the Indians to go down to Batttleford to Pound-maker s and once they got all there they were going to take Battleford.
Q, And you tried to persuade them from going ? A. Yes.
Q. I want to know what argument you used to persuade them from ffoinfr ? toendeavor to persuade them ?

8 6

Mr. Robertson .-I should think this is hardly evidence against the prisoner, what
effort was used to prevent him irom going.

F '

Conrt.—He may ask him what he said. I suppose it comes to the same thing.You opened it in your crose-examination.

used
M

ener°an

rtS°n'"~M7 learned friend^ in th° wMeSt Way what arSuments h*

Court.—The proper way is to ask what he said to Big Bear, and he can go to theIndians too. I wish to point out a distinction there, it is quite true the evidence is

^?^le^re8p
!
C^f °V°rJ

aCtS committed by any one of a body of men in arms,but it is a different thing when you come to this point where the witness has shownthat Big Bear was not acting in concert with them, but that he was wishing not to

wnJ ?.'+ ?y 1

,

ear
Sf

d fnend t0 sa^ what argament he used with otherIndians to try and make them go is not admissible. Much the same argument came

ILZ* ^VT case, the question was raised by the Attorney-General as to whatpassed in a place where the prisoner was not at all, but it was to get out the facts
192
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which led to a conspiracy as charged ai)d overt acts afterwards, and the court there
held the facts may be taken, whether the conspiracy proved first identical facts may
he taken, and if those things fit in together they are given.

Mr. Eohertson.—That is just the distinction I was drawing.
Court.—You brought it out first as eiideavoring to get the Wood Indians not to

go to a certain place, and it is quite open to Mr. Scott to ask what passed between
these

.

Mr. Eobertson.—The point of my examination on that was merely to show that
Big Bear was opposed to going. I have no objection to the asking what passed
between him and Big Bear, but it cannot affect Big Bear, what he said to other
Indians.

Court.—Yes, if it afterwards went to Big Bear or any action taken on it to which
Big Bear was a party afterwards.

Mr. Scott.—The question was asked in the first place by Mr. Eobertson.
Court -—The question may be asked as to what the witness said to these.

Mr. Scott.—I should not have asked what argument. I put it that way in order
to shorten the case as much as possible.

By Mr. Scott:

Q. I understand you to say that Mr. Maclean endeavored to induce the
Indians to refrain from joining Pound maker ? What was said by you to induce them
not to go ? A. I told them it was better not to go.

Q. Anything further ? A. And I told them the Indians were starving, we hear
Poundmaker and them are starving, they have nothing to eat and we had something
to eat, and I told him that was the best thing for us, not to go at all, or take us down
to Poundmaker's.

Q. Did you say anything to; Big Bear personally about going ? A. I did not say
anything personally

.

Q. You say you bad a conversation[with Big Bear when nobody else but you and
Maclean were present ? A. Yes, I told him it was best for us not to go down to Pound-
maker's as we hear Poundmaker had no provisions and he could not furnish the
whole band of us with provisions.

Q. And then was it before or after that that the prisoner said he did not want
to go ? A. He then said he did not want to go.

Q. Was it after you were told about the shortness of provisions that he said

that? A. Yes.

Stanley Simpson, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Seott

:

Q. Where were you living in April last ? A. At Fort Pitt.

Q. What occupation ? A. I am a clerk in the Hudson Bay Company's service
at Fort Pitt.

Q fc
Do you remember what occurred about the 17th April there ? A. Yes, the

fort was taken by the Indians on the 17 th.

Q. Was there anything happened previous to the fort being taken ? A. Yes,
the Indians came down there on the 15th.

Q. What did they do in the meantime, before the taking of the fort? A. Well,
they took Mr. Maclean prisoner.

Q. When was that ? A. That was, I think, on the 16th.

Q. How did you know he was taken prisoner? A. I saw him. I saw the
Indians take him, and we wrote a letter down to the fort.

Q. Where was he taken ? A. He was taken up from the hill to Big Bear's camp.
Q. Who is Mr. Maclean? A. Officer in charge of the Hudson Bay Company's

post at Fort Pitt.

Q. Did you see who took him ? A. No, I did not see who took him, I did not
recognize the Indians from where I was.

193
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Q. It was some distance'from where you were ? A. Yes, I suppose it is about
250 yard 8.

Q, Did anything happen beyond that ? A. Yea, there were some scouts out.

Q. From what day ? A. Well, they were out for two days. I think it was the

15th, the same day that Maclean was takui prisoner, that the scouts came back
again, and the Indians tired on them and killed Cowan.

Q. Did you see that ? A. Yes.

Q. How far was it from the fort that he was killed? A. About between 400
and 500 yards.

Q. Bow did you see him ? A. I had a telescope.

Q. You saw that be was fired upon by the Indians ? A. Yes.

Q. And killed? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see him afterwards ? A. Yes.

Q. You saw his body afterwards ? A. No, I did not see his body. I was not

right up close to his body, but I saw his dead body lying there.

Q. That was on the l'>th ? A. Yes.

Q. Before or after Maclean was taken prisoner? A. The same day, afterwards.

Mr. Maclean was in the camp while the shooting was going on.

Q. You say he sent a letter into the fort? A. Yes, to Mrs. Maclean.

Q. What happened after that ? A. Then we went up to Big Bear's camp. The
policemen went away in scows, and we went up to the Indians.

Q. The police that were in the fort left the fort in a scow ? A. Yes.

Q. And you went up to the Indians ? A. Yes.

Q, Did anything happen at the fort after you left? A. Well, the fort was
taken ; it wa* pillaged.

Q, By whom ? A. By the Indians that came down.

Q. Did you see the prisoner after you went up ? A. Yes, I met him on the hill;

I saw him at the camp.
Q. After you went up to*lhe camp with the others, you saw the prisoner there ?

A. Yes.

Q. Who was he with ? A. He was just walking about the camp.

Q. He was in the camp with the rest of the Indians ? A. Yes.

Q. You say the fort was pillaged, how do you know that? A. Because I saw

the fort afterwards, and there were no goods in it, and I was down there the next

day and saw how things were ; there were no goods left in the fort, and everything

was broken and destroyed.

Q What was done with you after you went up to the camp? A. I was taken

over to the Lone Man's tent. He was the man who took me prisoner.

Q. What others went out of the fort to the Indian camp with you? A. Mr.
Maclean and hi* family and Mr. Mann, the foreman instructor, and his family, and

the Kev. Mr. Whinney and his wife, and our interpreter was taken prisoner at the

same time with Mr. Maclean, and there were several half-breeds in the house at the

time, in the fort.

Q. Were the others taken prisoners? A. Yes, they were all taken prisoners.

Q. They were all taken prisoners at the same time ? A. Yes.

Q. Tnen you were detained as a prisoner for how long ? A. A little over two
months.

Q. Then you were a prisoner with the Indians atjthe time you say that the fort

had been pillaged ? A. Yes, next day, the day after I was taken prisoner, I went

down to the fort, and I saw hrw things were there.

Q. Did you go alone ? A. No, Mr. Halpin went down with me.

Q. Were the Indians with you ? A. Yes, there were Indians.

Q. So you were a prisoner at that time as well ? A. Yes.

Q. Where did they go to after leaving Fort Pitt ? A. Went to Long Lake where
their camp was, where they had left the women and children.

Q They went back there ? A. Yes.
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Q. Did you see the prisoner afterwards at any time, this prisoner there? A.

Yes, I saw him at Frog Lake, after he got back there.

Q. After, leaving Frog Lake, where did you go ? A. -We came down towards

Fort Pitt again.

Q. From the time you were taken prisoner, for several weeks afterwards, what

were the Indians doing ? A. They were feasting and killing cattle.

Q. Whose cattle? A. Well, they had some of the Hudson Buy Company's

cattle there, and I can't say, I did not know those cattle.

Q. What do you mean by feasting, what kind of feasting ? A. They were hav-

ing dances.

Q. What kind of dances ? A. They have a tent erected.

Q. What do you call that dance ? A. 1 think they call it the grass dance. I

am not sure about it.

Q. What do they do ? A. They have music and grub. They generally kill a dog

or so and have something to eat.

Q. Did you see the prisoner at any of these dances ? A. No, I did not see him

—not at any of those dances. I saw him at the council.

Q. Where? A. At Frog Lake.

Q. Did you hear him saying anything in council ? A. I have hoard him speak,

but 1 don't remember just exactly what he said. These dances were at Frog Lake.

Q. But you did not hear him speak at any dances ? A. Yes, I heard him speak

at a thirst dance at Frenchman's Butte, somewhere near Frenchman's Butte.

Q. Who was he speaking to? A. He was speaking io several of his Indians.

Q. You mean the Indians of his band ? A. Well, there were some of his band

present, and some of the Wood Crees besides.

Q. What did you hear him say? A. He cut up a piece of tobacco, and he said

he wanted his men to cut the head of the white people off the same as he cut this

piece of tobacco off. He wanted the head. I suppose it is the officer who was com-

manding the police at that time.

Q. Do you know what the literal translation of that is ? A. Yes. I think it is,

master who is over the soldiers.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q, Do you understand Cree? A. I don't understand it clearly. I understand a

good deal more than I can speak.

By Mr. Scott:

Q. Then you understand Cree ? A. I understand a good deal of it.

Q. Then you heard him say this that you have been telling us ? A. Yes.

Q. And you understood it? A. I understood it.

Q. What did he say about the master who was over the soldiers ? A. He said

that he wanted them to cut off his head, after they were to capture him, cut his head

"

Q. And he also said he wanted to cut off the head of all others? A. Of white

people that were in the country that were on land that they had not paid him for,

he used principally, the head of the officer in charge, but he did not say haw they

were to kill them. He did not say they were to cut off the heads of the white people,

but they were to kill them

.

Q. And he wanted the head of the master of the soldiers ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you hear anything from any other members of the band as to their design

there ? A. Yes, you mean as to what they

Q. What did you hear as to their intentions? A. They intended to take the

country for the Americans, they said, who would pay them well for having taken it.

Q. Who said that ? A. The Indians in Big Bear's band.

Q. Can you name any particular Indians ? A. The Lone Man is one, I could npt

name them all.

Q. Is Lone Man the one who took you prisoner ? A. Yes.
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Q. Who was he saying it to ? A. He told me himself.

Q. Did you see a fight in the neighborhood of Frenchman's Butte ? A. I can't
say that I saw it.

•

Q. Where were you ? Did you know of that fight going on ? A. Yes.
Q. How did you know ? A. I beard the guns and cannon, and I heard the volleys

that were fired, and I came very nearly getting struck myself when I was coming
back to where Maclean and the rest of the prisoners were, with a shell

.

Q. Did you see this prisoner at the time of that fight? A. Yes.
Q. Where was he? A. Well, I saw him following up. He was at the camp

when I got there, at the clump of pines.

Q. How far from where the fight was going on? A. About two miles or so.

Q. What time was this in the day ? A. Early in the day.

Q. When did the fight commence ? A. Somewhere between six and seven in
the morning.

Q. And when what time was it over ? A. I think they fought for three hours.

Q. You saw him in the camp about two and a half miles from where the fighting
was going on ? A. Yes.

Q. You saw he came in there ? A. He came into camp.
Q. Was it before or after the commencement of the fight that he came in? A.

It was after the commencement of the fight. They had been fighting for some time.
Q. The fighting had been going on for some time when Big Bear came in ? A.

Yes.

Q. Did you see him come in ? A. He was out somewhere—I don't know where
he had been . I saw him on horseback. I don't know where he came from, he rode
in.

Q. Did you hear him say anything that day ? A. Yes, I heard him say that his
men nad already killed eighteen or twenty soldiers.

Q. What caused that remark ? A. He had a man with him who told him, who
seemed to come from the fight.

Q. There was a man came in from that direction ? A. Yes.
Q. And told him something ? A. Yes, he told him I suppose. I don't know

what he told him.

Q. But you saw him speaking to Big Bear? A. Yes.

Q. And then Big Bear afterwards said—give it in his own words as near as you
can or the interpretation of his words ? A. He said, they have killed twenty soldiers
already, my men—he did not say his men, but we have killed twenty soldiers already,
and then he made use of an expression which meant very good. (Mr. Hourie, court
interpreter, says it means well done.)

Q. How long did the prisoner remain with the band while you were a prisoner ?

A. I don't know exactly how long it was, but he said, until shortly alter the fight at
Loon Lake.

Q. About when was that? A. It was about a week or ten days or a little more,
after the first one.

Q. Until after the fight at Frenchman's Butte? A. Yes.
Q. About ten days after? A. Something like that, I could not be certain.

Q. Then what became of him or you ? How did he become separated from
where you were ? A. The Wood Crees went in one direction, and he went in the
other.

Q. Where did you go with him ? A. T went with the Wood Crees.

Q. Did you know the object of the separation or the reat-on of it ? A. The Wood
Crees had been talking about separating for some time, and I heard the Indians say
that they would only camp, only allow Big Bear to camp with them one more night,
and then that he must go.

Q. Only allow Big Bear ? A. Well, himself and band.
Q. By whom were you taken prisoner ? Lone Man took you prisoner ; was

he one of Big Bear's band ? A, Yes.
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O How did you happen to go with the Wood Crees when you were taken pris-

oner by Big Bear's Band ? A. We were told that the Plain Crees would kill us.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. You were free to go with whichever you liked ? A. No, they did not want

to let me go.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Who did not? A. Lone Man.

O Why ? He wanted to take me across the line with him.

a Then, how is it that you went with the Wood Crees ? A. He wishtd to make

me work too much, and I wanted to get to the same place where Mr. Maclean was,

and I ran away from him.
#

Q And got ? A. To Mr. Maclean's camp with the Wood Crees.

Q. How were you treated when you were a prisoner? A.I was not treated

"very well.

Q What was your treatment ? A. Well, at first as far as provisions went, we

had lots to eat, I was made to work, to cut roads and dig rifle pits, make breast-

works, and different work, any work they chose to put me to.

Q. Was that the way you were treated first ? A. Well, at first I was treated

pretty well. They gave me a horse to go on for the first day. I was told that the

horse was to be mine all through, all the time that I was with them, and I took the

horse. I thought it would not be very hard to stay with it, and he promised to let

us go in a couple of weeks and next morning when I came to get the horse—the

Lone Man, it was his horse, told me there was no horse for me, that I had to get to

work and load his carts with bacon and flour.
"'LvmI

Q. After that you were a " hewer of wood and drawer of water t A. A Kina

°f
^Where did they dig the rifle pits ? A. At the first fight at Frenchman's

Butte, near there.

Q. Did they put you to work at rifle pits there ? A. Yes.

Q Do you know who the soldiers were that they were opposing ? A. I know

now but I did not know just then -the day after the fight, I knew who they were.

Q. How did you know ? A. Some of the Indians found a memorandum book

belonging to one of the soldiers, and I read it through. ^

;

Q But did you hear any of the Indians saying anything about the soldiers ( A.

They said they were Indians commanding them. They said there were only a tew

soldiers, and the rest were Indians.

Q. Was anything said as to what soldiers ? A. They saw the red coats, and

they imagined they were policemen

.

Q. Then they thought they were fighting against the police ? A. Yes and then

they saw others with other uniforms on, and they did not know whether they were

half-breeds or white men

.

By Mr. Robertson ;

Q. You suffered a great deal during those two or three months ? A. I did not

^^Y^wfnot badly treated then? A, I had to work pretty hard, a good

deaf more than I had been accustomed to. >^i„
Q. Were you or were you not badly treated? A. l think that I was badly

treated.^^ ^^ ? ^ ^^^ £ ^^ hMy treated . towards the

last, before the Indians separated.

O. And it was Lone Man that had you as a prisoner 1 A. Yes.

Q It was he made you do the work? A. Yes; I had to work for-several^olher

Indians afterwards, but Lone Man it was who set me to work digging holes and feed-

ing his horses.
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Q. It was Lone Man that treated you so badly ? A. Yes.
Q. And you have been very ill in consequence of the treatment you have re-

ceived ? A. Yes, I think that I would not have been ill unless I had had such treat-
ment.

Q. And you have felt your sufferings very keenly? A. I did while I was ill,
certainly.

Q. Where were you when the fighting began at Frenchman's Butte? A. I was
Tight at the place where the Indians had made the holes. When the fighting corn-
men red I was some distance from there. I took the wrong road and 1 went into the
valley to get some clothes of mine.

Q. What valley? The same valley that the troops came up afterwards? A. Yes.
Q. What time in the morning was that ? A. It was just when the women and

children were starting off from the holes that they had dug, to go into bush.
Q. The women and children were running off when you started ? A. Yes.
Q. How^ early was this in the day ? A.I suppose it was early in the morning.
Q. Six o'clock ? A. I guess it was about six o'clock, between five and six.
Q. Was that before the fighting began there ? A. Yes.
Q. How long did you remain down there ? A. I just went down there, and I

was called back again . There was a scout or something had been sent, so ihe In-
dians said, and they called me back,

Q. Almost immediately ? A. I had got very near down to the end of the camp.
I got right down to the end of the camp.

Q. How long did you remain in the valley ? Did you come back ? Did you just go
down and come right back, or spend any time there ? A. I was down about 10 minutes.

Q. And you came back up the hill again ? A, I came up the hill.

Q. Where these Indians bad dug their rifle pits ? A. Yes.
Q. How long did you remain there ? A. I did not remain there any time at all.

Q. Ycu went right back ? A. Yes.
Q. Where did you go next ? A. I got on the wrong trail and followed it up for

a long way, I suppose two or three miles, two and a half miles anyway, and I
caught up to some Indians, aid was running, and lacked them if Maclean and family
were on this trail, and they said no, and I ran back again to where I found the forks
of the road.

Q. How far was that from the camp? A. About two and a half miles irom.
where I found Maclean after I got -

—

Q. How far was this from the Indian camp ? A. 1 came right back to the camp.
Q. How far was 'his fork in the road from the Indian camp ? A. Just at the camp.
Q. And how far was the camp back from where tne rifle pits were ? A. The

rifle pits were on the edge of the hill—they were almost together.
Q. The camp was almost together with the rifle pits ? A. The rifle pits just on

the brow of the hill, and the camp—the holes that they had dug for the women and
children to hide in—were in the valley.

Q. How many hundred } ards were they apart ? A. Some of them were 300 or
400 yards apart, and others right close, a few yards from the holes.

Q. The tents? A. No; the tents were in the valley. They had no terts in
these holes.

Q, Well, how far was the camp from the rifle pits ? A. I suppose, about 200
yards

;
that is, the closest part of the camp.

Q. Well, you came back there, then, to the camp at the junction of the ronds,
and then started off on the other road ? A. To make holes for women and children
in the camp.

Q. Is that the camp ? A. They deserted the tent, and they had come in these
holes to sleep at night, and that is what I have been speaking of as the camp ; and
then, when you mentioned the other camp, where the tents were—I have spoken of
two camps,

Q. Where were the tents ? A. Down in the valley.
Q. Close by, also ? A. Yes ; about 200 yards.
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Q. Then the junction of the road was just here where the tents were, was it?

A. Just where the holes were.

Farther ud then? A. Farther up. .„ . ^

q! So that you came back to tbe junction of the road quite close to the r.fle p,fc ?

A
-
1
Q

9,

A
I>

ua"Ln°;ou
t

Attack on the other road to follow up Mr Maclean ? A Yes.

Q. How fai? uM Jon travel before you fonnd Mr. Maclean? A. Two or three

miles, o a v

% %Sr^r5?»
W
ZtSU: onlhe road and took out some thorn,

out of my feet, my moccasins were full of holes, and I sat there for a while and I

Znced uVthe holes. When I went down there, there were some men-the prisoner 9

Bon
P
w^?here-and they were cooking some meat, and the fight was going on then.

1 HTloS'dSdSi remaTrthere then ? A. I suppose about a quarter of an

i0Dr
Q What time in the morning was it then? A. I could not say. I went up

these tw^es or more and bargain. ^ ^ ^
lad eoneto Jet your traps, .n going back along tbe road until you overtook the

todials and font/your mistake and then came back to the pits ? A. I guess I was

an hour. _ _ , , ,«

Q. About an hour ? A. Yes, or an hour and a halt.

O Then you left the rifle pits and came up the other road / A. les.

Q. Which you say was only two and a-half miles ? A. Yes, or three.

Q, Wasn't it four? A. I would not say.

Q. Wasn't it five ? A. I would not bay.

O. You would not say it was not five? A. No. _

Q And when you got there-you said the prisoner was at the camp^when you

got there? A. I saw him there at the camp. I don't say I saw him just as I got

there hut I saw him there in the camp. .

Q You did say that? You said the prisoner was at the camp when you got

there? A. He was. I don't remember now what I said. oat
Q And you won't say that that was not five miles back from the camp ? A. I

oan'tsav how far it was: it took me some time to get there.

Q How much time did it take you? A. I could not say. I suppose, half a*

hour or fo; it took me more than half an hour.

Q. Didn't it take you two hours ? A. No ; I can go faster than that.

Q. I don't ask you to measure it by the distance yon>ave given 11^ but give m
from your recollection how long it look you to get there in order that we may judgo

the distance ? A. I can't tell you how long.

Q Will you swear it did not take you two hours to get there. A. ino.

Hr. Kobertson here asks witness as to his knowledge of Oree.
TT1^ aTira

Wi.neiB.~I don't say I speak Cree thoroughly I have been wi h ^Indiana

three or four years now. I can undeistand what they say, especially about killing

pe ople Third such a lot of it spoken while 1 was at Pitt that 1 would under-

^Q* Where were you standing when you heard this conversation ? A. As close

^^wtdsTWas present? A. I can't say. There were other Indians with Big

Bear, but I can't say there were any other people who heard.

Q. They were standing close by ? A. Yes. .

Q. Can you tell us something else that any of them said ? A. 1 can t give

^"qTyou can't remember anything else that was said at that time? A. No,.

I

would not say.
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a i

Q
;^f8 the™ something else said that you don't remember ? There was a ffood

eelves
8nt

°' going 0n ? A
'
The? were Jast talking amongst them-

Q. And there were several talking at the same time ? A. They were not talk-
ing at the same time that the prisoner was talking.

Q. Bat they were all talking amongst themselves at that time? A. Not whilehe was speaking—they were listening to him.
Q. But there were several speeches made, several things were said bv the dif-

ferent Indians ? A. I can't say that ; I don't remember.

w JL^o 011
?
™mtmber anything said by any of the other Indians that was

bloodthirsty ? A. Oh, yes.

Q. At that time ? A. No, not at that time.
Q. Did you hear the prisoner at a council meeting, or at any other place where

there were a number of Indians assembled, complain and say there was a time when
1 was a big chief, and you used to do what I told you, but now I say one thing; and
J0U

??
a£other ? A - l have heard the chief say words to that effect.

Q. When was that ? A, 1 can't remember where it was: I have heard him sav
it so many times. J

Q. You did hear him frequently make that complaint? A. Yes.
Q What was he referring to ? A. I suppose to anything that he told them to

' *!
i

1

cou
J .

d not 8aF anF particular thing that he referred to. I have heard him
eay that he did not want the prisoners killed, and things of that sort.

Q. It was when the other Indians wanted to kill them ? A. Yes

*i ?u
That he was saying that? A. Yes, I heard him make that' remark when

the other Indians wanted to kill us.
Q. fle was trying to control them and prevent it ? A. He was trying to.

William Tompkins, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott :

Q. You are an interpreter in the Indian Department ? A Yes
Q. Stationed at Fort Carlton ? A. Yes.
Q. In March last ? A. Yes.
Q. I understand you were taken prisoner on that day, the 18th March ? A. Yes
Q. By a number of armed rebels, half-breeds and others?^ A. Yes.
Q. Under Louis Kiel ? A. Yes.
Q. They were in open rebellion ? A. Yes.
Q. How many were there ? A. I should judge there were about 400.
Q. Four hundred in open rebellion under that leader ? A. Yes.
Q. A fight took place at Duck Lake. ? A. Yes.
Q. Between the mounted police and the ? A. Eebels.

™- ?'o
AD

A

d
^?

U and others were taken Prisoners, as I understand, on the 18th
.niarcn c A. Yes.

Q. And were held till the 12th May by these rebels? A. Yes.

tm- ?' W}^ W
?« ,

th
,t

state of the C0UQtry during the interval between the 18thMarch and the 12th May, in that neighborhood ? A. It was all in insurrection.
M. Ihey were in a state of general insurrection up there ? A. Yes.
Q. And you were held as a prisoner up till the 12th May? A. Yes.
Q. They met the Government troops, I underntand, on several occasions ? A. Yes.
Q. And men were killed on both sides ? A. Yes.
Q. And houses and stores were plundered and burnt ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Robertson ;

Q. This was in the neighborhood ofBatoche that you speak of? A. Yes.
Q. That is a long way from Frog Lake ? A. Yes.
Q. And from Fort Pitt ? A. Yes.
Q. How far ? A.I don't know the number of miles.
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Q. How many days' journey ? A.I should say about six days.

Q. About six days' journey from Frog Lake or Fort Pitt t A. Yes.

Stanley Simpson, recalled :

—

By Mr, Robertson :

Q. Just tell us in Cree what it was that Big Bear said on that occasion in the

camp, at the battle of Frenchman's Butte ? A. I can't say it.

6. You can't say ? Can you say any part of it in Cree ? A. Yes, I can say a

word here and there through it, but I can't make any sense of it. I can t pronounce

Q°
r

And
r

that was about all you could hear, all you could make out of the sen-

tence ? A.I can understand a good deal more than what I can say.

Q. But you cannot understand perfectly ? A. No ;
I said so.

Q And after all it was to some extent a guess of yours, that that was the mean-

ing of what be said? A. No; I could understand that he said this.

Q You are prepared to stick to that, although you cannot tell us, you cannot

repeat' even the sense of it in Cree ? A. No, I can't repeat it m Cree

.

Mr. Scott.—I would ask my learned friend, in order to test the knowledge of the

witness in the Cree language, to put a question to him in Cree
;
give it to Mr.Ho™

to ffive him in Cree, and see if he can answer it. That is all he says he known about it.

Witness.-You don't want to put a very hard question to me, or perhaps I wlU

not be able to answer it. Big Bear spoke very slowly ; he always does. (A questioa

is here asked by Mr. Hourie.) I am asked by Mr. Hourie if he had given me some

tobacco, or something of that sort-I cannot understand it, I don t understand,

enough of it.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Do you know the Cree for " killing " ? A. Y"es.

Q. What is it ? A. If I said I killed him, I would say " Nipa,how.

Mr. Hourie.—That is right, just the word " kill."

By Mr. Scott :

Q. What is it for cutting a man's head off ? A. I can say « man's head" all right

enough, and he had his knife, and he cut the tobacco off, and he says, the samo as I

do with my knife.

Mr. Kobertson.—Give us the words.

By the Court :

Q. They use a great many signs as words ? A. I would not be here and say I

understood it, if I didn't.

By Mr Scott :

Q. How long have you been in the trading ? A. Yery nearly four years.

O. With Cree Indians ? A. Yes.

O Entirely ? A. With a few of the Stoneys, while I was at Battleford.

a What do they speak? A . A sort of dialect of the Sioux

.

O Then the business was almost entirely carried on with the Cree r A. xesL

T can trade with a Cree Indian all right enough. I understand the trading P*"6£

It I eariteU all the names of everything we have in the store for sale, and trade

with them all r-ght enough, furs or anything of that sort in Indian.

Q. You car?y on conversation with them in what language ? A. Well, l try

*° ^Q And whaTis the result ? A. Generally arrive at a satisfactory

.-at allL The words that were read to the witness were: "If toe captain ot th«

Sfivli
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soldiers does not give us tobacco, we will cut the tops off the trees," and all you got
hold of was " captain " and " tobacco."

WitnesB.—I did not mention the word " captain," I said the " master " of the
soldiers. The verb is what I did not understand.

Mr. Kobertson— I wish to submit that the evidence of that conversation should
be struck out. The proper evidence of such a conversation would be a proof of the»

words used by the prisoner, and then an expert properly qualified to translate them.
That is the legal evidence of a conversation of that kind.

Court.—I may have something to say to the jury about that.

Eaptiste Fontaine, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott :

Q. Where were you in May last ? A. Poundmaker's camp.
Q. Where was that ? A. Cut Knife Hill.

Q. How did you get into his camp ? A. Got captured by the half-breeds. A
ihalf-breed caught me.

Q. Some half-breeds captured you ? A. Yes.
<Q. What were you doing at the time you were captured ? A. Scouting.

Q. For what ? A. For the Government.
Q. Where were your headquarters at the time ? A. Battleford.

Q. You were scouting from Battleford for the Government at the time you were
captured by the half-breeds ? A. Yes.

Q. What did they do with you ? A. They came over to the camp

.

<^. What camp ? Poundmaker's camp ? A. Yes.
Q. How long were you kept there ? A. Twenty-two days, I think.

Q. What did you find when you got to the camp ? What were the Indians
idoing ? A. Nothing.

Q. When did you say you were taken there, what day ? A. 7th May, I think.

Q. Do you know anything about a fight that occurred in that neighborhod aoout
Poundmaker's camp, at Cut Knife

By the Court :

Q. Was there a fight ? A. 1 think so.

By Mr. Scott :

<J. You don't know ? Well, were these men that captured you, armed ? A.
SSome of them.

Q. What were you doing when they captured you ? A. I jumped off my horse.
Q. Had they been chasing you ? A. Yes.

Q Did they do anything when they were chasing you? A. They were shoot-
ing at us.

Q. And these men took you to Poundmaker's camp ? A. Yes.
Q. Was Poundmaker a prisoner of theirs ? A. I don't know.
Q. Had they taken him prisoner ? A.I don't know.
Q. D d you pee Poundmaker there ? A. No, I never saw him before.
Q. Bv.t you saw him when you went to camp ? A. No.
Q. Didn't you see him during the time you were in camp? A. No, because I

«Lid not know him. I might have seen him.
Q. When did you firtt see him to know him ? A. The first time I seen him

was in here.

Q, Do you know whose camp you were taken to ? Did he tell you where they
were taking you to? A. They told me they were taking me over to the camp,
Poundmaker's camp.

Q. Did you see any others armed there besides, at the time they had taken yoa
prisoner ? A. 1 saw Indians armed.

Case for the Crown here closed.
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Mr. Eobertson.—Does your HoDor think there is a case ?

Court.—I cannot stop a case, Mr. Eobertson.

Mr. Eobertson.—Your Honor has the power of a judge at nisi pnus.

Court.—I can only tell the jury what I think of it.
-

Mr. Eobertson.— Unless the constitution of the court is a little different from

the Court of Assize. .

Court,—That is strictly the power of a Court of Assize.

Mr. Eobertson.—Then I will call.

Mrs. Catharine Simpson, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Eobertson :

Peter Hourie, interpreter, also sworn.

Q. Do you know Big Bear, the prisoner ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see him on the 2nd April last? A. Yes.

Q. "Where did you see him ? A. In my house.

Q. At Frog Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. Was your husband, Mr. James K. Simpson, there at the time ? A. JNo.

Q. He was away at Fort Pitt was he? A. Yes.
o

'

Q. What time in the morning was it that you saw Big Bear? A. I couMjiot tell

exactly the time, but I think it must have been pretty nearly the middle of the day.

Q. What was Big Bear doing there ?

Mr. Scott objects to what the prisoner said.

Mr. Eobertson asks that it be allowed. ** A .A \* a* +w* ?
Court.—What did he do there—the question should be what did he do there f

Q. Well, what did he do there ? A. He did nothing there only what he told me.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Mr. Eobertson.- It is really part of his conduct in connection with what was

occurring there; it is something that he came and said to her.

Court.— But that would not be evidence. _'..

Mr Eobertson.—I think it would be in that view. For instance, >et me

put an hypothesis. Supposing he came to her and warned her he was afraid nis-

young men were going to n ake trouble, and that be wanted to make herself safe,

that would be conduct.
m , , ., . w .

Court- Would.'nt that be almost parallel to the hoise case where it is not

allowed to ehow that the prisoner told the bi other of the owner s that he would not

steal the horse and afterwards he is charged with the theft ?

Mr Boberteon.—He comes and actually warns her she will be protected.

Q. Tell me what he did; what did he do then? A. He said pack up your

things, I think there is going to be trouble.

Q. For what purpose did he tell her that ? _

Mr. Scott.—There must be a stop to this somewhere; I dont want to lefc

this go too far.

By Mr. Robertson:

Q Was he friendly or not to you ; did he appear friendly to you or not
;
did he

appear to wish you well or not ? A. He appeared to be friendly.

Mr. Eobertson.—I propose to ask if he said anything about the young men, tne

Indians, when giving her this warning. ,

Mr. Scott.—That is not only objectionable because it is not evidence, but because

it is a leading question.

Court.—It would not be evidence at any rate.

Mr. Eobertson.—I submit it would be just in that way.

Court.—I will take a note of it. ,.
Mr. Eobertson.—He went there to give her a warning, and what he said in tna*

is really part of his conduct at the time, and that is the ground upon which 1 as*

203



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 1886

Court.—I feel that I give you, Mr. Robertson, every reasonable latitude, but
there are places where the lines must be drawn. What is it you want to ask her ?

Mr. Robertson.— I want to ask her if, at the time that he was giving her this
warning, he said anything about the young men or his band.

Mr. Scott.—I object to anything further than the warning being given.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. Well, what did he do after that, or what did you do ? What took place after
he gave you that warning ? A. He said gather up your things, I can't be every-
where to look over my young men. 1 think that there is going to be trouble.

Q. How long did he remain there ? A. Not long.

Q. How long, half an hour ? A. I don't think it could have been over an hour.
Q. What was he doing while he was there ? A. He had something to eat.

Q. Did you give it to him ? A. Yes.

Q. While Big Bear was there, having something to eat, did anything happen
outside ? A. Yes.

Q. What happened? A. They were massacring outside, killing.

Q. What was the first you heard of that? A. A person came and told me.
Q. Did you hear anything before a person came and told you ? No.
Q. Who was it came and told you ? A. Ka-wich-i-taw-ma-we, a Cree Indian,

who was killed at the fight afterwards.

Q. What did he tell you? A. This man came and told me not to be afraid, there
is something that is going to happen that is very bad. So don't you be afraid.

Although I am counted as little or nothing, whatever I say
Q. But what did he tell you about the murdering ? A. He did not tell me any-

thing else only what I am saying just now.
Q How did you first know that anything had been done outside? Did you

hear shots and that, and what took place then ? Before the Indian came, or while
Big Bear was there ? A. While Big Bear was eating, I was packing up my little

things. I heard a shot outside, and I ran out to the door and I saw the man fall, so
then I went into my house again.

Q. And what did Big Bear do ? A. Big Bear got up and went out, and I heard
him say, don't do so, stopping it.

Q. Big Bear jumped up and ran out and cried out, stopping ? A. Stopping them
from what they were doing.

Q. Can you tell me what it was he said in stopping them ? A. Don't do so, that
is, leave it alone.

Q. You heard him crying that out? A. Yes.

By Mr. Scott :

Did you know of any trouble before Big Bear came into the house that morn-
ing ? A. No, I was sleeping. I was taken by surprise.

Q. Do you remember about what time in the morning Big Bear came in, were
you out of bed when he came ? A.I was out of bed.

Q. Had you gone to sleep again ? A. I had just got out of bed when he came in,

I slept long that morning, and I had just got out of bed when he came in.

Q. When you rau out of the house when you heard the shot, did Big Bear run
out at the same time ? A. Yes.

Q. You suppose he heard the shot as well? A. He heard it.

Q. Where were the other people of the settlement when you got out there ? A.
They were standing outside, close to their house; close by their house, their own
house, close by Simpson's house.

Q. Did you see Pritchard there ? A. Yes.
Q. Where was he standing ? A. At my hoase.

Q. And how far was that from Quinn's house or Delaney's or where Pritchard
said he was staying? A. I think the distance would be about as far as from here to

the new house of Mr. Reed out here (about 100 yards from court house) or a little bit

further.
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Q. What distance? A. My house from Quinn's house.

O Do you remember Pritchard coming to your house to see fig Bear A. Yes.

Q What did Pritchard say when he got in ? What he came for ? A. Pritchard

and Tom Quinn came into my house, our house, and spoke to Big Bear and said come

here we want to speak to you, so Big Bear just sat down about a yard from me, from

Wh6
Q AmiwhlTdid John Pritchard say? A. Pritchard did not say anything but

Tom Quinn said this: Big Bear, could I remain at my own house, and Pritchard the

same, and this woman also ? Oh, I suppose you could, Big Bear said.

Q Was that all ? A. When they went out, I just quickly got hold of my things

and I wanted to go after them. They were already a piece from me, ami when they

were getting on to their house, I heard a shot and saw the man drop
;
this was lorn

Quinn. I was going to follow them to go to Quinn's house, but Qmnn and Pritchard

were quite a bit ahead of me already, and I heard the shot, and when I looked I saw

the man drop, Tom Qumn. , . v
Q. Did Big Bear tell you what you were to do yourself, to be in satety r A. xes,

Big Bear told me, don't be afraid.

Q. What was he going. to do with you or what did he want you to do f A. xes,

he told me to go to the camp, so I went to the camp.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. When did he tell you that? Was it after or before Quinn was shot ? A* It

was before Quinn was shot that he told me this.

Q. Did he give you aDy reason or why ?
---

—

Mr. Scott.—What did he say ? - if it is evidence. _

Mr Eobertson.—Well, I will leave that in your Honors hands. I think my
learned friend might very well exercise his discretion and let the question be asked.

The witness is very nervous, and it is very hard to get evidence from her.

Witness (to Mr. Hourie) that is all, what I have said.

W. J. Maclean sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Eobertson ;

Q. Mr. Maclean, you were Hudson Bay factor in charge of Fort Pitt in the

spring of this year ? A. Yes. _ ' i

.

,.

Q. Do you know the prisoner, Big Bear ? A, Yes, I know him.

Q. How long have you known the prisoner ? A. Since the 29th of last October.

0. Have you known him by reputation ? A. Tes.

Q. How long before that time ? A. Probably seven or eight years before.

Q. What has his character been ? A. Generally good.

Q. Have you ever known anything against him? A. No.

Q Was he a good Indian or a bad Indian? A. Well, some say that the dead

Indians are the good ones, but in his life I considered him a good Indian.

Q. This is a live Indian and you consider him a good one ? A. Yes.

Q. Are you of that opinion to-day ? A. Yes.

t Q. You are still? A. Yes; I am still. .

Q You were taken prisoner at Fort Pitt by the Indians? A. By the Indians.

Q. The band to which Big Bear belongs ? A. The band to which Big Bear

O You were there a prisoner for how long ? A. Sixty-two days*

Q. During all that time you saw Big Bear's conduct ? A. Yes, I may say almost

daily
6

1

And afte^' that, you still remain of the opinion that Big Bear is a good Indian,

though a live one ? A. Yes, I do as far as the Hudson Bay Company- .

Q. Can you tell me whether Big Bear took any part himself in the pillaging of

Fort Pitt? A. None to my knowledge or that I could see.

Q. Before the pillaging, you were taken prisoner, it has been shown ? A. les*,
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Q, And you were there in the Indian camp when the pillaging was going on ?
A. Yes.

Q. Did you see Big Bear on that day, the day of the pillaging ? A. Yes.
Q. How often ? A. Once or twice lam sure of.

Q. What was he doing? A. Nothing.
Q. Where was he ? A, I saw him at the fort, and I saw him in the camp.
Q. But he was taking no part in the pillaging ? A. No.
Q. Did he have any of the goods that were taken from the fort ? A. Yes. I

believe he had —not taken by himself, however. I think he had some tea. I am
sure that he had some tea given him.

Q. Do you know where he got it ? A. Given him by Little Poplar.
Q. That is the extent of it ? A. That is the extent of it.

Q. Who were the leading spirits and the people who controlled that band during
the time you were with them ? A. Wei), I think it was Wandering Spirit, most
assuredly, with the prisoner's eldest son, Imesis, and Little Poplar, and Loison
MongraiD—he was a strong leading man.

Q. He was a leading man ? A. Yes.

Q. Was Big Bear a leading man ? A. No, I don't think he was.
Q. How did these others, particularly his son, Imesis, treat Big Bear during

that time? A. With utter contempt.
Q. Do you recollect a letter coming to Johnny Pritchard from Norbert Delorme,

who was then in Poundmaker's camp ? A. Yes.
Q. Where was that ? Where were you when that letter arrived ? A. I was

then at Frog Lake in the Indian camp with the Indians.

Q. And you were sent for to read the letter, I believe ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you do anything in consequence of having read that letter ? A. 1 did a

good deal.

Q. What did you do ? A. In my own estimation I think I did a good deal. I
tiied to prevent the Indians from not being influenced by the contents of that letter,
and prevent them from uniting themselves with Poundmaker at alL

Q. Did Big Bear, in that attempt, side with you or against you ? A. He sided
with me always.

Q. In everything that you did in trying to fceep the Indians from joining Pound-
maker ? A. Yes, he never went against me.

Q. But sided with you ? A. Sided with me.
Q. Were you present at Frenchman's Butte when the fight occurred ? A. No.
Q. Where were you? A. I was probably about, to the best of my recoJlection,

three or four miles to the north of it.

Q. Can you tell me where Big Bear was at the time of the fighting ? A. 1 can't
tell you where he was for every hour during the fight, but I can tell you that most
of the time he was in the camp with us.

Q. You are certain of that ? A. I am certain of that.

Q. But there may have been part of the time when you did not see, of course,
you could not say ? A.I could not say.

Q. You say you were three or four miles away? A. I think it must be about
between three and four miles back from where the fighting was. I know it was a
good long walk before sunrise.

Q. While the fighting was going on, you eaw him several times there. A. I did.
Q. Now, do you believe, from what yoa saw of him there, that he took any part

in that fight ? A.I don't think he did take any part in the fight
Q. As matter of fact, was he running away?
Mr. Scott.—That is leading.

A. I think he was pretty well frightened . He appeared to be.

Q. Did you see Mr. Stanley Simpson when he came in ? A. Yes, I did. I think
I may have seen him almost immediately.

Q. Where was Big Bear when he came in, do you know ? A. I think ho was in,

the camp.
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Q, When Stanley Simpson came in ? A. Yes

Q. That is in the camp with you? A. Yes.

Q. Does Stanley Simpson understand Cree at

aaerstand a great deal, I think. To my knowledg

Ts it anything more than that he understands a few words ? A. Well, 1 don t

supple he Void understand any conversation being earned on. He could under-

stand short sentences.

By the Court

:

Q. Would he understand such a sentence as you heard here ? A. I don t think:

He W
Q
Ul

l'mean such as he described himself, not the one that;was put to him in

writing,\at the one that he said was put ? A. It is very possible he might have

understood.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. Do you recollect all that he said he heard Big Bear say at that time ? A.

N°'
O
d
°Wbat he said was that he heard Big Bear say that he wanted them to cut off

the head of the commander of the police, as he cut a piece of the tobacco.and.ta

wanted them to scalp all the whites and everyone that had taken their land T A. I

ITnot ready in a position to speak whether he could, or whether he could not.

By Mr. Scott :

O He was in the habit of trading with Indians and atten ding store generally,

and carrying on general business with them ? A Yes, dealing w,th Indians is his

chief occupation during the time, and he was at office work.
tnowa,m„

Q And you would not allow him to transact with Indians unless he knew^somo-

thing of Cree? A. No, there was no necessity for his doing so for he could have an

interpreter ^^ &9 & good Indian f ^
Hudson Bay Company was concerned? A. Yes, because we were dealing with

WtQ
Q. He was friendly with the Hudson Bay ? A. Yes, with all around, I under-

8t
°°Q. Wasn't he the cause of a little trouble with the Indian Department occasion-

al^ ? A.I don't know, I am sure. , , ,

Q. Wasn't he in the habit of grumbling about the way he was treated by the

Government ? A. Nothing more than anybody else.

By the Court

:

Q. Was he or was he not, to your knowledge ? A. A characteristic of Indians

is grumbling.
o t<)^ Indian Department? Was

he cotpWning about the^way he wfs trefted by the Indian Department, by the Gov-

6rl,T Didfc Uke the"wty he was treated ? A. I did hear him, on one occasion,

C°mP
Q
a
Then, althongh he was on good terms with the Hudson Bay people, who live

in thai neighborhood: he was not on good terms with the Indian Department? A.

I don't know that he was.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. Do you know that he was not ? A. No, I don't know that he was not.

By Mr. Scott :

Q You say that the band took you prisoner at Fort Pitt, you were taken pris-

oner by the band ? A. By, I may say, twomen.
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Q Where were you taken prisoner ? A. Well, some 300 or 400 yards north of
the fort or west of the fort.

Q. How did you happen to be out there ? A. I went out there to hold a parley-

with the Indians.

Q. With whom? A. With the whole of them, probably between 300 and 400
Indians.

Q. Were you sent for ? A. Yes.
T. By whom ? A. I was told

Mr. Robertson.—I submit the witness should not state what he was told or who
gent for him, even on cross-examination.

By the Court

:

Q. What was the message you received ? A.I was told that the chiefs wanted
to see me at a certain hour on the following day, evening, 14th April. They sent me
this message, or they told it to me verbatim, face to face, that the chiefs, to-morrow
morning, would like to see me, that they had something to tell me.

Q. The chiefs? A. Yes.

Q. Did they mention any names? A. They did not. There was no one chief
to my knowledge recognized there.

Q. You went out the following day ? A. I went out the following day.
Q. And had a parley with the chiefs ? A. Yes.

^
Q. What chiefs ? A. The prisoner in the dock, that one was listening, although

I did not speak to him nor did he speak to me, and the Long Lake chief was there,
and the Frog Lake chief was there, and this chief.

Q. What do you call this chief ? A. Big Bear.
Q. He was not a chief ? A. He was a sort of chief, I believe

.

Q. I understood this man was the Frog Lake chief ? A. No, he had no reserve
yet.

Q. What was that he was grumbling about ? A. I don't know exactly. I think
it was the reverse of that. I think the Government was grumbling that he did not
go on his reserve.

Q. What occurred when you went out? A. I had a talk with the Indians for
some considerable time, with a view of being successful in getting them to desist from
whateyei intentions they might have when they came there, and go back peacefully
on their reserves. I was prepared to give them some very liberal presents if I could
only succeed in doing so, and I had been very successful with the Indians durir g my
twenty-three years' experience amongst them. However, I failed. These two lead-
ing spirits I mentioned, Wandering Spirit and Louison Mongrain, jumped in front of
me, and Wandering Spirit caught me. Now, he says, you have spoken enough, we
don't want to hear any more, we are in a hurry, you must remain with us here, we
don't want to hurt you, nor do we want to hurt your family. That is what he said

—

Wandering Spirit. If we wanted to hurt you we might have done so before.

Q. Then what did they want, did they tell you ? A. So far as I could judge,
they wanted the police to leave the fort, and they told me if I wished them to live to
tell them to go, and get them to go.

Q. Did Big Bear say anything to this, this time ? A. No, he was perfectly mute
as well as the other chiefs.

Q. They were leaning to the side of mercy at that time ? What did they want
the police to leave the fort for ? A. I can't tell you, unless we may draw the infer-
ence that they wanted to get possession of what was in the fort.

Q Had you any conversation with Big Bear at any time about the police leaving
the fort? A. Never.

<^. The police, as matter of fact, did leave the fort? A. They left the fort.

Q. How was that arrangement concluded ? Was it by reason of an arrangement
between the Indians and the police? A. Well, I suppose it was. I think it was.
The prisoner in the dock advised them strongly to leave.

Q. Advised them ? A. Yes.
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Q. How ? A. That they had better go.

Q. How did he advise them, he was not near them ? A. By letters.

Q. Who wrote those letters, he did not write them himself I suppose ? A. To
the best of my knowledge Mr. Halpin did.

Q. But how do you know he was advising them in those letters ? A. I can't

say, it was at his dictation.

Q. Well, did you know as matter of fact that those letters were written by Mr.
Halpin? A. Yeb.

Q. Did you see them written ? A. No.
Q. How do you know ? A. Well, I am a pretty good critic as to handwriting

generally. I can identify handwriting very well.

Q. Do you know what became of those letters ? A Yes, I think I do. Some
of them I don't know what became of them, but some of them I know that wore into

atoms in my pocket.

Q. Which particular letters were destroyed ? A. I can't tell you, they were all

pretty much to tbe same
Q What letters came into your possession ? A. Two or three little notes.

Q. Written by Halpin? A. Yes.

Q. Were you there at the time they were dictated by Big Bear ? A. No, it was
impossible for me to be 500 or 600 yards away from the fort and in the fort at the

same time, the letters were written in the Indian camp, and I was in the fort.

Q. It was before you went out that these letters were all written ? A. Yes

.

Q, The message that was brought to you, that caused you to go to parley with

the Indians, was that letter ? A. No, it was not, it was an interview I had with some
of the headmen on the evening of the 14th. 1 spoke to them and they wanted me
to meet them the following morning, indicating when the sun would be at a certain

point in the sky, which I might say was about 10 or 11 o'clock, and, at that hour I

went out.

Q. On the 15th ? A. On the 15th.

Q. And never came back to the fort ? A. On the 16th I saw the fort in the

afternoon

.

Q. You were in it ? A. 1 was inside of it, what remained of it.

Q. I understood you were taken prisoner on the 15th and were a prisoner 62

days ? A* I was, and I was a prisoner even then when I saw the fort

.

Q. Were you in the fort ? A. 1 was.

Q. On the 16th ? A. I was inside the fort on the 16th. I walked 500 or 600

yards to get into the fort.

Q. Who went with you? A. Various Indians, a great number, many of them
I did not know by name. I would know their faces probably.

Q. Into the fort? A. Into the fort.

Q. The whole of them went in there ? A.. In and out as they felt inclined.

Q. Where were the police at this time ? A. I couldn't say, but I believe they

must have been down some considerable distance down the river.

Q. I understood the fort was taken, and they left on the 17th ? A. I understood

so myself from some of the witnesses that spoke in the box where I am myselfjust

now, but such, however, is not the case, the fort was taken and vacated on the even-

ing of the 15th.

Q. Now, when were these letters written by Halpin for Big Bear ? Before you
went to his camp ? A. Before I went to his camp.

Q. And they were received at the fort before you left on the 15th ? A. Yes,

they were received on the 14th.

Q. Written and received on the 14th ? You saw those letters in the fort ? A.
Yes.

Q. How many letters altogether ? A. Four or five.

Q. Who did they purport to be from ? A. They purported to be from Big Bear.

Q. Who were they addressed to ? A. To myself, I am not sure, there m^ht
jbave been one addressed to Inspector Dickens who was commanding the North-West

2w
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Mounted Police then, and I am certain there was one addressed to one Sergeant

Martin who was a friend of the prisoner in the dock, and he expressed his wishes to

befriend him in that letter, Big Bear did

.

Q. By asking him to leave? A. Yes; no doubt considering it was the only

method of safety.

Q. How many letters did you receive ? A. Probably three or four j I could not

tell you.
,

Q. How many did you keep when you went into Big Bear s camp ? A. 1 very

likely kept them ; all that were addressed to myself, but they were of very little

importance to me at the time after I was in the camp.

Q What did he say to you in those letters ? What letters did you carry away

with you? A. It is possible I may have had others, but they were never returned

to me. The impression is that I carried away all addressed tome.

Q. I now propose asking what those letters stated ? A. If I did not hand them

to anybody else—it is perfectly impossible—if you or any other gentleman were in

the same position I was in then, you could not have remembered what these notes

contained
;
you might have remembered the purport. It was just to this effect : tell-

ing me to keep my wife and children together and to tell the police to leave the

fort, to try and get away, which was a very great trial indeed.

Q. Did he say in any of those letters what you were to do with your wife and

children ? A. No, he did not ; he told me he did not want to hurt us—the letter said

—at least whether it was in words or not, I know it was so said in the letter that

they did not wish to hurt me provided they could get hold of me alive.

Q. You say you saw some of the Hudson Bay stuff in his possession afterwards,

some tea ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see anything else ? A. Not to my knowledge. I might have seen

some Hudson Bay goods with him, but they were not taken by himself*

Q. How do you know? A. Because I gave one or two blankets myself.

Q. But of the goods that you supposed were pillaged ? A. That enables me to

know he did not take them when I gave them.

Q. As to the pillaged goods—did you see any thei e ? A. No. I am perfectly

sure he had none, because I was very frequently in his camp—in the Indian camp.

There was no one in the Indian camp so wretchedly poor looking as his.

Q. You read that letter from Norbert Delorme about joining Poundmaker? A.

Yes, I did.

Q. And you endeavored to dissuade the band from joining Poundmaker ? A. I did,

Q. What was your object in doing it? A. My object was that in the event of

bis joining Poundmaker it would add very materially to the strength of Pound-

maker's camp, and in the event of being attacked by the troops which 1 was hopeful

of being done every day, it would certainly have enabled Poundmaker to have

resisted a much greater force with the additional forces of Big Bear than he could

have done with his own

.

Q. Now what means did you take to endeavor to prevent them from joining

Poundmaker ? A. Weil, one must use a good deal of stratagem with the Indians, and

it would not do to tell the Indians what my own object was. I had to use argument
with them which I could carry home to them and show reason and endeavor to make
them believe I was talking more especially for their good than for any other object

of my own, because any other way they would not listen to me.

Q. As matter of fact you had considerable influence with the Indians there ? A.

I had influence with them.
Q. What stratagem did you use? In substance, the argument you used to pre-

vent, then the line you took ? A. I told them that although the letter was written

by Norbert Delorme, although the letters represented a great deal of provisions in

the camp, so many head of cattle, if they moved he would send them seventy cars to

meet them at the Saskatchewan Eiver, and he had set aside some eighty head of cattle

to give them a good reception when they got down there. I said that is all very well

on paper, but we don't know about the truth of it, you have lots of provision here and
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you had better take care of them, the horses are poor, you cannot carry provisions,

you have not sufficient transport for yourselves aad womea and children, yoa must

either leave the women and children and take the provisions or leave the provisions

and take the women and children. Now you are safe here for the present, you had

better remain, meantime with a view that perhaps armed force may come and release

us, meantime the grass will be growing and your horses will be getting fatter, and

by-and-bye they will be stronger and you will know more what is going on, and the

best thing to do is to send over and let them remain down there until after you have

known news from Duck Lake, and certainly at that time there might have been some-

thing at Duck Lake, but very little else than Duck Lake.

Q. Were there other arguments used ? A. No, I could not say, I could not touch,

upon anything whatsoever from which the Indians would infer that I was averse to

any of their movements.
Q. Then you were advocating a policy of delay ? A. Exactly.

Q. Was that argument used to Big Bear ? A. Yes* I told him that I was using

that argument with the men that we considered influential men in this camp, for him-

self he had no influence at that time. I had arrived at that conclusion conclusively

that he had none, at the same time the Indians, leading spirits in the camp, appeared

to be willing and ready to bring everything home to bear upon Big Bear.

Q. I understood you to say that he had assisted you ? A.I don't know that ho

did, and I don't know that he did not.

Q. Assisted you in that argument that you were using? A. He may.

Q. I understood you to say so distinctly ? A. I think he did, in this much per-

haps, that he did not object to it.

Q. Was there any attempt or any threats made ? Did you consider at any time

that the lives of the prisoners were in danger ? A. I did.

Q. To whom do you owe the fact, do you think, that the prisoners escaped with

their lives?
' A. I don't think I can attribute our escape to any individual there.

There were a few I think who were very anxious to see us released and get away safe

;

they were Wood Orees.
'

Q. They were anxious to see you get away ? A. Yes, latterly, although I don t

know originally beyond the very first few days I was with them. I thought at that

time they would have released me and allowed me to go down Beaver Eiver ;
however,

they subsequently changed their minds.

Q. There was a separation between the Wood Crees and Big Bear's band after a

time ? A . There was

.

Q. What caused the separation ? A. Probably, I might have been the chief insti-

gator in the matter myself. I wished to make a split in the camp, so that they would

not be so unanimously—in any of their schemes, and I worked very successfully.

Q. Now what was the intention of the Wood Orees when they separated ? What
did they intend to do ? A. When the Plain Indians left us, the intention was to flee

as far as we could do, and they also.

Q. What were they to do ? A. They were going north into an impenetrable

country, a country probably that had never been trodden by the foot of white man
before.

Q. They were trying to get away ? A. Yes.

Q. And wanted not to fight any more? A. They did not wish to fight any

more.
Q. And what did the Crees intend to do when they left ? A. I could not say it

the prisoner in the dock was candid enough to tell me his object.

Q. What did 'he say his object was ? A. The first objective point was Turtle

Lake, then south to the South Saskatchewan, and, after crossing fifteen or twenty

miles up above Carlton, endeavor to see if there was still anybody at Duck Lake. I

don't know what his intentions were after.

Q. You think that Big Bear was frightened at the battle of Frenchman's Butte?

A. Well, I don't know that he was frightened.
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Q. Well, weren't all the Indians pretty badly frightened? A; They did not
appear to be so much frightened the day of that Frenchman's Butte fight, until the
following day ; then they did seem really frightened, but not very much—not so*
much as afterwards. I think that grew upon them as the time advanced. They
were gradually daily getting frightened.

'Examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q. Is it an easy thing to do business in trading with Indians without understand-
ing very much of their language ? A. Yes.

Q. A few words is quite sufficient ? A. I know that by my own experience. J.
anight do a little trading with the Indians, but not carry on a conversation.

Henry R. Halpin, sworn :

—

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. What was your occupation in the early part of this year ? A. Clerk in the
.Hudson Bay Company's service at Coal Lake.

Q. Under whose orders were you ? A. Mr. Maclean's, of Fort Pitt.
Q. That was a branch of Fort Pitt ? A. Yes.
Q. How far from Frog Lake ? A. Between thirty.five and forty miles.

-, . S'
HoT lonS have y°u known the prisoner, Big Bear? A. From some time

last November, I think.

Q. The prisoner personally ? A. Yes.

^
Q. Have you known him by reputation before that ? A. Yes, since I have been

in this country—the last six or seven years.

Q, What has been his character ? A. As far as ever I have heard, I have always
heard he has been a good 1 ndian. J

Q. What has your experience of him been? A. My experience of him is that
he is a good Indian.

Q. Is he a friend of the white man ? A. Yes, he has always been, as far as T
have known or heard of him. '

Q. Do you know what Big Bear was doing during the latter part of last winter,
"Where ne was r A. Yes, I know where he was.

Q. Where was he ? A. Out between Frog Lake and Coal Lake, on the road out
Jiunting and trapping around the country.

io^QV^?
to

,

wha* time ?
.

A
-

,

The last tim* I saw him camped on that road was the
19th of March. I was going back from Frog Lake to my post at Coal Lake, and Imet Big Bear camped there on the road.

'

Q. Did you give him any information there ? A. Yes, I had a conversation with*
-big Bear then, at the time I was passing.

Mr. Scott.—I object to any statement made by Mr. Halpin.
Mr. Robertson.—I wish to show that certain intelligence was given by Halpin to>

g ^ea£^ 1 W'8h \° show as a fact
>
and as a matter of conduct, how he received it.

Q. Did you give him any information? A. Yes.
Q. What was that information ?

Mr. Scott.—I don't think that is evidence.
Court.— I think the question may be asked.
Mr. Robertson -And then how did the prisoner look ? It is a matter of conduct.Mr. Scott.—Also, whether his jaw fell.

Mr. Robertson.-Yes, and to bring it out if it did fall. It goes to show the stateof the prisoners mind at the time he received that information, and where it is a
question of intent, it is perfectly proper evidence.

. Q. What did you tell him ? A. I told him I had seen in the Battleford Herald,and at Frog Lake, that there was trouble in Batoche, and that Kiel had stopped themails there. I told him I thought there was likely to be trouble.
Q. Upon receiving that information, what did hi to conduct indicate ?
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Court.—No; I will tell you what I will do, though it is not strictly proper: I
will let in his reply.

Mr. Scott.—Of course, I don't object to that.

By Mr. Bobertson

:

Q. What was his reply to that ? A. His reply was : I think it is very strange.
The reply was in Cree. He was surprised to hear it.

Court.—That is parallel with the horse case. You can have your own opinion
somewhere else, Mr. Robertson, but not here.

Mr. Robertson.—The cases are not parallel. I want to ask the witness, also,
whether this man was surprised by the intelligence from his appearance and demeanor
at the time.

Court.—You have got his actual expression.
Mr. Robertson.—Judging from the manner and appearance of the witness at the*

time he conveyed it to him.
Court.—You have got the prisoner's answer/that he expressed surprise.
Mr. Robertson.—And your Honor rules out the question as to what hia appearance

and demeanor indicated upon the receipt of that ?

Court.—Yes.

By Mr. Bobertson :

WW Q. Well, you parted then ? A. Not right away. I stopped and had dinner with,
Mm,

Q. And what next ? A. I invited him to come up to my house at Coal Lake,
oome out and see me there, and he came.

Q. Did he come at that time ? A. He came the day after the day I left there*
Se did not come next day, and then the day after that he came.

Q. Which direction did he go in ? A. He stopped right at his camp.
Q. On the 19th you say it was you met him once ? A. I passed him ; he was at

his camp, and £ was going the other way.
Q. Were you at Frog Lake alter that ? if so, how soon ? A. I was at Frog Lake

after the trouble broke out, and I was taken prisoner.

Q. You met Big Bear when you were going back ? A. Yes.
Q. On the 19th ? A. Yes,

Q. You did go back to Coal Lake ? A. Yes, to my own house.

Q. Did you see Big Bear's people after you had parted with him, and before you
saw Big Bear again ? A. No ; I saw nobody belonging to Big Bear until after he
had come to my house, where I had invited him to come, at Coal Lake. I had gone
in from Coal Lake into Frog Lake, and I was on my road back when I met Big Bear.

Q. Had you met Big Bear before that ? A, Yes, I had, going into Frog Lake,
met him, and slept in his tent all night, but had no conversation about anything of
this.

By the Court

:

Q* That was before you had heard of it ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Bobertson :

Q. He did, in response to your invitation, come out to your place to see you
afterwards? Yes, on 21st.

Q. How long did he remain there ? A. He came to my house before dinner on.

the 21st and went away on the evening of the 2ind.
Q. What occasioned his going away ? A. He wanted to go home and hunt ; he

mentioned to me that evening, and at three o'clock, before a heavy wind, he said he
thought he would start home this evening and go around in the bush, and he might
get a chance, it was blowing so hard, to kill a moose in the bush.

Q. He was still hunting ? A. Yes.
Q. He went off again hunting ? A. Yes.

Q. And when did you see him next ? A. I saw Big Bear next, on the ?th Aprili
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Q. "Where ? A. At Frog Lake.

Q. Do you speak Cree ? A. Yes.

Q. Fluently? A. Yes, pretty well.

Q. And understand it ? A. Yes.

Q. Whereabouts at Frog Lake was Big Bear when you saw him on the 7th April ?

A. In the tent; in Lone Man's tent. I sent lor him, I sent for Big Bear to come
and see me and he came.

Q Were you in the Lone Man's tent ? A. Yes, I was taken prisoner by the

Iione Man, at Coal Lake.

Q. Now, what took place there in the presence of the Lone Man, in his tent ?

A. Big Bear came in and shook hands with me, and said he was glad to see me and
told me not to be afraid

Mr. Scott objects-

Mr. Bobertson.—In the Scott case yesterday, this was admitted—what took

place between the prisoner and others, and my learned friend has given evidence of
the doings at Frog Lake, and we have had evidence of the part Lone Man was taking

in the insurrection. It is not to be confined to a day, if so, why not to a minute ?

The day has nothing to do with it. It is duriDg the prevalence of these troubles.

Court.—What was done on the 7th would hardly be an answer to what was done
on the 2nd.

Mr. Robertson.—No, but I am at liberty to show, generally, what took place

between the prisoner and these other prisoners who are proved to have been in in-

surrection, for the purpose of showing generally, what relation he bore to them, and
whether or not he was siding with them or against them throughout the whole of

the troubles. I don't think any authority can be cited against that. I have not the

authority here, but I am very sure that it cc mes within the principle. Mr. Osier so

laid it down yesterday, otherwise the Crown might pick out a very little circumstance

that told against the prisoner and his mouth would be shut to show the whole of his

conduct, and show the character of it.

Mr. Scott.—I understand it in this way, that in giving evidence against a pris-

oner the prosecution is entitled to give evidence of any statements made by him in

the nature of admissions as to what his intentions were. It is not proper for the

defence to show, in rebuttal of that, that he made a different statement on other

occasions.

Court.—That is what I ruled in the Scott case.

Mr. Scott.— The rule is extended in cases of this kind, to give evidence of ad-

missions made by others with whom he was associated.

Mr. Robertson.—My learned friend has not stated it correctly. The evidence is

not given as evidence of admissions, but as evidence of conduct, and where a prisoner

is charged with treason felony, it is true, as my learned friend says, that the conduct

of other persons alleged to be concerned with him in some conspiracy may be given

in order that he may be afterwards connected with them. It does net follow at all

that that is to be given and the prisoner's mouth is to be closed as to the part he took.

The whole statements made by these other persons are only statements which form
part of the conduct of all concerned, and the conduct of the prisoner must depend
largely upon the influence he exercised upon those other persons, and that influence

could only be exercised by the use of his voice. What he said to these other persons

who were concerned in the rising for the purpose of affecting their conduct in the

rising, is evidence, not as an admission, but because it is part of his conduct in the

business. Where there is conspiracy there must be intention, and the intention and
the nature of it is the only thing, or the principal thing, we have to judge by, to see

whether or not the prisoner was working with, or against those persons. Ifthey are

working together by consultation the part he takes in that consultation, or in any
other way, in talking with them about what was to be done, is evidence as part of his

conduct in the whole matter.

Court.—Your argument would be very good if your date was the 2nd April.

Unfortunately, it is the 7th. A man may talk and act treason on the 2nd and on.
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the 7th he may talk the very opposite way and he may turn around and talk and act

as a traitor on the 14th and on the 15th act in a very opposite way.
,

Mr Eobertson .—Then at 2 o'clock in the afternoon he may talk like a traitor ana

at halfpast 2 he may not. It is matter for the jury to consider, but it is evidence.

Court.—No. I don't think it is evidence.

Mr. Eobertson.-Of course, I bow to your Honor's ruling, Does your Honor

mean to say then that I am not at liberty to show that the prisoner endeavored tp

prevent the Indians from doing these things, by word of mouth, by speaking to them (

Court.—Doing what things ? Committing the murder of the 2nd t

Mr. Eobertson.—Committing any of these things with which he is charged, and

does your Honor mean to rule that I am not to be allowed to show that he tried, 7tn

April, to prevent the Indians doing things?
.

Court—Perhaps it would be as well that I should waive the rule and allow it to

be asked. I think if you want to put it after my holding it is not evidence, you may

Mr. Eobertson.—If you give me permission I will do it.

Court.—Put your question.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. You said you met Big Bear on the 7th April, at Frog Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. You saw him in Lone Man's tent and Lone Man was present ? A. Yes, Lione

Man was there. ,, _ AA _... . t > n 9

O What did he sav in presence of Lone Man as to what trouble was going on t

A Well he came into'the tent and shook hands with me and said he was glad to see

me, and'told me not to be afraid, if I wanted to go over and stop in his tent I might

go over or I can go and stop in another tent if I liked, if I did not feel comfortable

where I was, and he said this thing that has happened here was not my idea
;

it was

not my fault that it occurred; and we had some more talk there about how things

were going on there, and nothing really relating to this business here to-day,

Q Did be say anything about his young men? A. No, I don't recollect his

saving anything about his men then. '

Q. Were you present at any council of the Indians at which Big Bear was pre-

sent ? A. Yes. . „ ., .,

Q. During these troubles ? A. Yes, I was present at the most of the councils.

Mr. Scott.—Are you going on with that right straight through ?

Mr! Eobertson.—If His Honor allows me.

Court.—Go on.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q At those councils, what part did Big Bear take ?

Mr. Scott —The jury can only take what part he took by what he said or what

lie did, and even that is not evidence.

A. I don't suppose anybody could think he took any part at all, as he never

said anything.

Q. He took no part at all in the councils ? A. JNo.

Q Who were the men that took any leading part in the councils ? A. Wander-

ing Spirit, Big Bear's son, Imesis, and Louison Mongrain and another old chief, and

Hig Bear sometimes said a word or two ; he very seldom spoke. ^
Q Do you recollect the arrivsl of a letter from Norbert Delorme ? A. Yes, 1 do.

Q. Were you present at any council at which that was discussed ? A. Yes, I

•was present when the letter was read.
#

Q Were you present at any council when the proposition to go down to found-

maker was discussed? A. There was no council as to his going down, but just a

general idea through the camp that the people wanted to go.

Q Did you hear any conversation or anything said by Big Bear to any number

of Indians, perhaps not a council, but any number of them on the subject of going

down? A. I heard him demur against going there one day, he did not want to go.
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Q. Well, when you say he did not want to go, what did he say? A. He
wanted to go another direction altogether, he did not want to go towards Battleford,
he wanted to pitch out in another direction, out to Turtle or Moose Lake.

Q. Did he use any argument to induce them to agree with him ? A. No, I
never heard arguments used, I Know he tried to get them not to go.

Q. You know he tried to get them not to go ? A. Yes.
Q. Were you at Fort Pitt 17th April ? A. No, I was not. I was there the 14th

and 15th.

Q. Were you at Frog Lake before you went there ? A Yes, I was there for a
few days before I went there, from the 5th to the 13th.

Q. When the Indians left Frog Lake to go to Fort Pitt ? A. Yes, I was there.
Q. Who led the way to Fort Pitt ? A. 1 don't know who led the way. I know

a lot of the Indians went down to Fort Pitt that morning.
Q. And when did you go down ? A. I was about the last to start out of the camp*
Q Who went with you ? A. Well, I was driving a cart for the Lone Man.
Q. Where was Big Bear ? A. I saw Big Bear, he was away at the back of the)

caravan, and that is where I saw him

.

Q. He went down to Fort Pitt practically ? A. Yes.
Q. Among the last to go ? A. 1 don't know, but 1 was about as far back as I

<50uld get, and he was there.

Q. He was late in the day anyway ? A. Yes.
Q. How did it happen that you went down ? A. I was told I had better go down.
Q. Who sent for you. A. Big Bear.

Q. For what purpose ? A. Well, if there was any letters or anything to be
written to the people in the fort, I, understanding the Cree language and that sort of
thing, would be able to understand what they said and write letters for them.

Q. What did he want to write letters for ? A. I don't know that it was him
wanted to write letters, it was the whole crowd of them.

Q. What did he want you with him for ? A. I don't know. I did not ask him.
Q. Why was he going down, and why were you going with him ? A. He thought

if I went down there and wrote letters, and that sort of thing, I might be able to get
the people to come out of the fort peaceably and prevent any bloodshed that might
have been committed there.

Q. That is what you were going down for ? A. Yes. I don't know what he
was going for.

Q. Were you there at Fort Pitt when the pillaging took plaoe ? A. I was not
4rt Fort Pitt, I was on top of the hill.

Q. You saw it ? A. Yes.
Q. While the pillaging was going on ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you see Big Bear while the pillaging was going on ? A. Yes, I saw him

during the whole time when the pillaging was going on.
Q. Where was he ? A. Up on top the hill along with me.
Q. Did he take any part in the pillaging then ? A. No, he did not take any

part in the pillaging then.

Q. Were you at Frenchman's Butte on 28th May ? A. No, I was not. I was
there in the morning.

Q. On the morning of the 28th? A. Yes.
Q. Early ? A. About sunrise.

Q. Were you in this camp that has been spoken of above the rifle pits? A. Yes.
Q. Did you see Big Bear that morning? A. 7es, early that morning.
Q .

What was he doing ? A. Telling the people to get out as quick as ever they
could, to get away. J

Q. What did he do himself? A. I don't know. He seemed anxious to get
away too.

Q. This was early in the morning ? A. Yes.
Q. You did go away? A. Yes, I got away.
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Q. When did you see Big Bear next ? The next time I saw him was at Prince

.Albert, in the cells.

Mr. Scott.—Do you want to know what he said there ?

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. How did these leading chiefs in his band treat Big Bear while during the

time you were a prisoner there ? A. They treated him with contempt altogether.

Q. Had he any control over them ? A.I don't think he had.

Mr. Scott.—I must object to this piece of evidence. It is altogether irregular,

this sort of examination. I don't think I ever went to that length on a cross exami-

nation.

Court.—This unfortunate man is an Indian and I have allowed an unreasonable

stretch now, simply because he is an Indian, and I shall have to tell the jury why I

have done so.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. You seem to think that Big Bear had not very much influence in his own
camp ? A.I don't think he had.

Q. When did you discover that, after you were taken prisoner or before? A.
After I was taken prisoner.

Q. Before that ? A. I always thought and looked upon him as a chief.

Q. You think also he was desirous that no blood should be spilled? A. Yes.

Q. What effect do you think his intentions in that respect had upon the safety

of the prisoners ? A. I don't know that it had much, but I know that his intention

towards us was good.

Q. You think it was through his influence that ? A. No, I think I would

have been killed if I had not been in the Hudson Bay Company's service-

Q. Then you think the reason the lives of the prisoners were saved was the factof

their nearly all being in the Hudson Bay Company's service ? A. Yes, being under

the protection of the Hudson Bay Company at the time they were taken prisoners.

Q. You think, I suppose, if the police had been taken prisoners they would have

heen killed ? A. No, I don't think they would. I think if they had come out of the

fort with Mr. Maclean, they would have been all alive to-day.

Q. By whose influence would that have been ? A. The influence the Hudson
3Jay Company has had on all Indians.

Q. If that is the case, how is it that the influence of the Hudson Bay office there

was not sufficient to keep Big Bear and Foundmaker on their reserves ? A. I don't

know.
Q. They had influence enough to prevent these men from killing any whites in?

that neighborhood, not only their own officers, but any whites in that neighborhood;

but they had not influence sufficient to keep them from committing other depreda-

idons, is that what you mean ? A. After all the Government people in the country

were killed, Mr. Maclean used his best influence to save the rest of the people thafe

were there. There were no Government men to use their influence at the time.

Q. Then the object of the outbreak in the first place was to kill the Govern-
ment men? A. I don't know anything about that.

Q. What do you think about it? A. It looks like that, because there wa«
nobody else killed but those men.

Q. At Frenchman's Butte, Big Bear, you think, wanted the men to get away t.

A. Yes, that morning.
Q. Was he frightened ? A. He seemed to be.

Q. And you think that was the reason he wanted to get away ? A. Yes.

By Mr. BoberUon :

Q. Do you know Stanley Simpson, the witness here ? A. Yes.

Q. Have you had any conversation on the subject ot Big Baar's trial with him ¥
.A. Yes, I had a little.
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Q. What did he say to you ? A. He seemed

Q. What did he say ? A. I told him that I had been called on the defence, and

lie thought it was strange, very strange, any white man should get on the defence of

an Indian. His idea was that Indians should have been hung.

William B. Cameron, sworn :

Examined by Mr, Robertson :

Q. Mr. Cameron, were you present at any time at Frog Lake at a council of the

Indians at which Big Bear was present ? A. Yes, I was at several councils at which
lie was present.

Q. Tell us on what occasions ? A. I was present at Frog Lake, in the first place,

at the time of tLe massacre.

Q. Well, were you present at any council that was held soon after that ? A.

Yes, I was.

Q. Was Big Bear there ? A. Yes.

Q. What was he trying to do or doing ? A. Well, the first council that I was

at after the massacre at Frog Lake was one in which Wandering Spirit did all the

spotking ; he was examining the prisoners, and it was a day or two after the murders

had been committed, and he was getting the opinions of the prisoners on the situa-

tion of things, and he asked us who we would rather side with, with the tribe that he

belonged to or with the white people

.

Q. Well, what did Big Bear do ? A. He did nothing at that council.

sQ. Bid he say anything at all ? A. No.
Q. Well did you hear him say anything to Wandering Spirit on the subject of

what had taken place at any time ? A. Not about that council. I heard him say

cne afternoon when all his band were dancing at what they call a grass dance, and I

heard Big Eear speaking, and it is customary in case of their having a dance of that

kind for different warriois and headmen to proclaim what they have done, their big

deeds, and I never cared to hear what any of these other fellows said, because I knew
they were red-handed murderers a great many of them ; but when I heard Big Bear

speaking I went out of the tent, and I went up and laid down on the grass at a short

distance from where they were dancing, Wandering Spirit and twomoie of Big Bear's

councillors and some of the other men who were sitting in a half-circle inside of the

tent, and I was lying opposite on the grass, and Big Bear standing in the (entre, and

a lot of young men were there too, and he was making a speech ; and 1 don't say

that I understand the Cree, but still I have a general idea, a pretty good idea of the

dee language— I can't say that I thoroughly understand it—and I understood him
lo say, the words as near as I can tell that he used, are these. He said : Long ago I

nsed to be recognized by all you Indians as a chief, and he says there was not a bigger

chief among you than 1 was, and all these southern Indians knew it, the Plains and

Pitgans, and the Sioux and the Blackfeet, and all the rest of those southern Indians

inew it, and he says when I said a thing at that time there was some attention paid

to it, and it was acted upon, but he said, now I say one thing and you do another

;

and he said in front of Wandering Spirit, and I was sitting right opposite him, watch-

ing him, because the speech interested me on account of knowing the circumstances,

and he sat with his head down ; and I saw Big Bear also on the day of the Frog Lake

massacre, and I saw him the evening previous in Quinn's houpe at the time Mr. Prit-

chard spoke of, and I did not hear him saying anything there. His son also was there

—

Mr. Imesis. Next morning there was an Indian woke me, and I cam edown stairs. I was

sleeping in the company's house next the company's store. I was in the employ of the

.company there, and I went down stairs and Imesis opened the door of the house and

came in, followed by twenty of the Big Bear band, and he came up to me and said

:

Have ycu got any ammunition ? and I said : Yes, there is a little there in the store.

Well, he says, I want you to give it to us. This was Jmesis, and I said : It was
against my ciders to give you ammunition in this way. Well, he says, you may as

well give it to us, because we will take it any way if you don't choose to give it to

jas j and I went into the store and opened the store, and these men followed me
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inside, and Big Bear entered a few minutes afterwards ;
and they were aekmg for

things after they got what little ammunition there was there ; and Big Bear came

in and crowded his way through the young men there, and he says : Now, I don t

want you to touch anything here of your own accord ;
if you want anythirg ask for

it, he says, don't you touch anything without asking for it ; and I afterwards saw

liim at the church. I was present at the Eoman Catholic Church, and I saw him

there, and the next time I saw him was just ahout five minutes before the shooting

commenced. I was passing the house with an Indian going to the store. I was

coming fiom Pritchard's place, and Big Bear was standing inside of the door talking

to Mrs. Simpson, and I walked in the store, and was not in the store five minutes

when the first shot was fired, and I waited for a few seconds, and it was followed by

another, and then there were several shots fired in succession, and I went out of the

store and saw Big Bear running up the street, and he called out: Stop, stop, two or

three times, running up towards where Quinn was lying. I saw Quinn lying on the

side of the hill, and I did not hear anything of him then till afteiwards. I don t

recollect anything with regard to the council at which Mr. Maclean was present when

Wandering Spirit was speaking against the white prisoners in the camp, and agitating,

as he often did, as to the killing of the white prisoners ;
and Big Bear got up and

seemed really as if he pitied all the prisoners ; and he got up and spoke, and he says

:

I pity all these white people that we saved ; he says : I don't wish harm should come

to one of them ; and he said : Instead of trying to do harm to them you should be

giving them back some of the things you have plundered from them. And another

thing which goes to show the influence that Big Bear held in the camp is that, at one

time, I heard Mr. Halpin complain that some of the Indians had complained—Haipin

complained to Big Bear.

Mr. Scott.—I object to this.

By the Court:

Q. What did Big Bear do ? A. Halpin complained some things had been stolen.

from him by some of the Indians, and Big Bear said he had a blanket stolen out of

his tent; and he says, When they would steal from me, the man they call their chief

»

he says, I can't be responsible for what they do to other people.

Q. He complained that his blanket had been stolen ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. Were you at Frenchman's Butte ? A. Yes, I was there.

Q. Did you see Big Bear that day ? A. Yes.
* Q. Where was he? A. I was not there the day of the fight. I was there the

evening before ? I saw him the evening before.

Q. What was he doing the evening before ? A. We were camped at a snorfe

distance from the main crowd of Indians, and he came in through the camp—just
passed through, ard I think he spoke to some of the Irdians, but he was not close

to where I was. I saw him there.

Q. That was the night before the fight ? A. Yes.

Q. Then did you see him at Fort Pitt ? No, I was not at Fort Pitt.

Q. Do you know anything about this letter that came to Pritchard ? A. I heard

the letter read by Mr. Maclean.

Q. Do you know whether Big Bear wanted to go down to Poundmaker or not t

Was he for it or against it ? A. I could not say, I am sure.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. It was when you heard Big Bear speaking at this council meeting that you

went over and laid down on the grass ? A. Yes.

Q. You did not hear the tenor of the conversation that had taken place before

you got up ? A. No.

Q. You don't know what they were proposing to do, or what they were saying

ihey had done ? A. No.'
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Q. You merely heard him say that—that he wa8 objecting to the council not
taking his advice upon some particular question, was that it ? A. No.

Q. Give us the exact words in Cree ? A. I don't profess to be a Cree scholar
but I will do it as near as I can. He says: " I was a chief long ago, ail you Satjl
katchewan Indians there was none of you that were above me. I was a bigger chief
than any of you. All those tribes—the Piegans and Blackfeet and Sarcees, and the
bioux- all those Indians know I was a chiet above you all. At that time whenever
I had anything to say to yoa, why you did it right away, but just now anything that
I say to you what is right, why you do the thing quite the contrary," and he pointed
at Wandering Spirit and a number of them, the headmen.

Q. You left immediately after he concluded that ? A. Yes, I followed him
off.

Q. And did not wait to hear what the others were saying, or what the conver-
sation was about ? A. No, I did not. I had no desire to listen to them. I had
heard enough of bloodshed and murder already.

Q On the morning of the Frog Lake massacre you say you were in the store
when Imesis and another Indian came in ? A. No, I was in the house when Imesis
came in.

Q. And he asked you for some powder and shot ? A. Yes.
Q. And you went over to the store and got it ? A. Yes.
Q. Because he had threatened ? A. He threatened me there.
Q. That if you did not get it, he would go and take it ? A. Yes.
Q. And you went over and got it ? A. Yes.
Q. Why did you go over to get it ? A. Because I would rather open the store

to give it to them than have them break it open

.

Q. You thought they were going to take it ? A. Certainly, I knew they were
going to take it.

J

Q. When you opened the store, they all crowded in ? A. Yes.
Q. Did they commence taking things before Big Bear came in ? A. Yes, a few

of them did reach over the counter and help themselves.
Q. And took things without asking for them ? A. Yes.
Q. And the prisoner came in and ordered them not to take anything without

asking for it? A. Yes.
Q. And stated that if they wanted anything they saw, they vvere to ask for it ?

A. A good many of them had accounts.
Q' What did he say ? if you see anything you want, ask for it, but don't take it?

A.^He said, if yoa want anything, ask him for it, and he said, don't take it of
your own accord.

Q. Did the Indians take anything after that ? A. They did.
Q. When he was there ? A. No, I don't think they did. He was not there—

*

not two minutes altogether.

Q. You say he on several occasions spoke in favor of the prisoners ? A. Yes.
Q. That is, he was averse to killing them, as you understood ? A. Yes.
Mr. Eobertson.— [ have a couple of other witnesses much to the same effect,

frat I think, perhaps, your Honors and the jury are tired of them.
Court.—I am not tired.

Mr. Eobertson.—I think it is clearly established—I think it is hardly necessary.
Court.—Are you done ?

Mr. Eobertson.—Yes, I think that is the defence.

7 Stanley Simpson recalled :

—

By Mr. Scott: :

Q. Did you hear what Mr. Halpin said a few moments ago as to a statement
made by you? A. Yes.

Q. Is that true? A. No.
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By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. What was it you did say to Mr. Halpin ? A. I told him that there were a
great maDy Indians I would like to see hung, and that there were a great many that
I would not like to see hung.

Q. And you told him Big Bear was one of those you would like to see hung ?
A. No; if you ask Mr. Cameron, or any of them, I said to-day I would not like to
see the old man hung at all.

Q. You said that to-day ? A. Yes, and I said it before.

Q. What did you say on the occasion Mr. Halpin speaks of? A; That is all that
I said.

Q. You remonstrated with him for being a witness for the defence ? A No I
did not remonstrate with him. I said—I asked him if he was a witness for the
defence, and he said yes, and 1 said, it is a strange thing, after the trouble that y©ur
had, that you would be on the defence. That is what I said to him.

ADDRESS OF COUNSEL FOE DEFENCE.

Mr. Robertson .—May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury : After t>W
flomewhat long, and I am afraid somewhat fatiguing session that you have had a ses-
sion which I regret very much has been so long, and which I am sure you will,)
believe me when I do assure you I have not made longer than I felt bound to do m
discharge of the duty cast upon me not as the hired advocate of this man, for he has
nothing with which to hire an advocate, but because the Crown, the Government in
the interest of simple public justice, has brought me here to try to see that he is not
unjustly condemned. In the discharge of that duty and only in that, I have con-
tributed my share towards keeping you here. I am sure though that none of you
will regret any of the time that has been taken up in the taking evidence that has
heen presented to you by the defence. I am very sure that the men I see in that
Dox before me are there conscientiously desiring upon the solemn oath that they
have taken to do no more than simple justice and to mete out to this poor old man
tottering now almost on the brink of the grave, fair British justice, and the same"
clemency, and the same merciful consideration of his conduct that you would mete
out to any white man. Gentlemen, I feel tfiat I need hardly say a word as to the
difference between a white man and an Indian to you, except in so far as this that
the conduct of an Indian cannot be judged or estimated in exactly the same manner
as the conduct of a white man, and Indian ideas are not the same as ours, our ideas*The white man is a man accustomed to live under civilized forms of government"He knows what a large community it is, governed by fixed laws and administered by
courts and judges above suspicion, dealing even justice to all that come before them
h.» knows what it is to maintain law and order ; he knows that the maintenance ofjaw and order is one great safeguard that he and all his fellow-subjects had against
wrong, against harm to himself, to his own life, his own liberty, his own freedom
his own chances of office. An Indian looks very differently at society, while a whiteman looks at society at large, a large community as one community, while he knows
that he can move from one place to another in that community, that in the whole of
his country, however large, he may find a home. The Indian looks to his own littleband; apart from them he can do nothing

j apart from them he cannot live • he mustremain with his band
; he cannot get away from them ; he is not free if he'sees mis-

chief being done, he m not free to aay, I will move away from here, I will go among
other people who won't do these things j he cannot do that, and what else has my
learned friend, Mr. Scott, to rest upon here in making a case against Big Bear excent
that he was with his band ? The Crown has not only failed to show affirmatively
that the prisoner actually committed one of the overt acts charged in this indictment
1 think it has been conclusively proved to you as to each one of those charges thatthe prisoner did not commit them, those overt acts. A few words let me say firston the general evidence, as to the prisoner's character and his position in his tribe

'

you have one unbroken stream of testimony that that old man }ias been a good Indiai
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ever since he has been heard of by any of these witnesses, and old Mr. Simpson, a man
whom I am very sure you can rely upon with the utmost confidence, tells you that

lie has known him for forty years, that after knowing him for forty years, after being

a prisoner in his camp through all these troubles, and seeing all that he did, he con-

siders him to-day a good Indian. What weight do you attach to that ? You have the

evidence of Mr. Maclean, who, after knowing that man by reputation for many years

and knowing him for six or eight months, personally dealing with him, and also

after being through all these weary months ot suffering and hardship with his family,

his wife, his daughters, his little children, during those weary sixty-two days, being

with that man's band all that time, seeing his conduct throughout, he says to-day, I

consider that man a good Indian. Gentlemen, I ask you to say, and I think that

you will think that the judgment of Mr. Simpson and Mr. Maclean and these other

witnesses, because all the others tell us the same thing, their judgment, the judg-

ment of them who were witnesses of the man's conduct from the first to the last is a

better judgment and a judgment safer even for you to follow than your own judg-

ment could be upon the isolated facts picked out and proved. I think you will

attach great weight to that evidence.

Now, my learned friend, Mr. Scott, in his opening address, I think improperly,

no doubt as he believed in the discharge of his duty—I will ask your Honor to direct

the jury, and I think, your Honor, I am right in saying that my learned friend should

not have referred the jury to facts or circumstances, or anything outside of the evi-

dence that was put in the box before them. He told you that you knew all these

things, and that it was not necessary to go into them, and he spoke as if you
were at liberty and would be justified in allowing the impressions you have

received, from public reports and rumors, to influence your judgment. Now, that is

not the truth ; it is incorrect. Allow me here to say that I, in the discharge of the

duty that I have had to perform here, have received the greatest kindness, assist-

ance and consideration from my learned friend. I have no fault to find with him,

far from that, I have received the greatest courtesy ; we are only both working

together to try and help you to decide, mercifully and truthfully and rightly

according to your oaths. I acknowledge that frankly and freely, but it is my duty

—my learned friend taking a certain course, which he believes in his judgment to be

correct—it is my duty, if I don't think it right, to point it out. I did it in no spirit

of unfriendliness, but simply in the discharge of the duty that I owe to this prisoner,

and I say, with the utmost confidence, that my learned friend was wrong in convey-

ing, whether he intended to convey it or not, any idea that you were justified in

acting upon any such impressions derived from anything but the evidence in the

box. You must know, as I know, the outrageous reports we heard about this old

man Big Bear, all the sins of his tribe, and a great many sins they never committed,

were laid upon his shoulders, in the public print. We know that many of those

things are now publicly

Court.—Pardon me for interrupting you, did Mr. Scott mention Big Bear ?

Mr. Robertson.—He did. He did not mention the papers, but he said it was
well known . He particularly referred to the massacre at Prog Lake, that it was

well known.
Court.—Go on.

Mr. Robertson.—I would have, if your Honor had not interrupted.

Court.—You referred to me.
Mr. Robertson.—I was saying, gentlemen, you should set aside altogether all

these impressions. You know that what are now publicly known to be falsehoods,

were published about this man and his band then, and any other impression that you

may have, may be equally false. After all, they are only general impressions, but

what you are to go upon, is the simple evidence given in that box before you. You
have nothing to do with anything outside of that, and if you had had your mind

prejudiced by any of these former impressions, you would not have been fit, in the

eye of the law, to sit on the jury. I did not suppose you were men to be influenced

in that way, but I ask you now to cast aside all the impressions, and think only of
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the evidence given. I have drawn your attention to the general character of the

evidence, the general evidence of character, evidence of men who saw the conduct of

this old man through the whole of that troublesome time, and I ask you now just to.

direct your attention for a few minutes to the four different overt acts that are charged.

Now, upon these facts, or upon some of them, my learned friend must ask for a

conviction. He cannot ask for a conviction upon anything but one or more of tha

overt acts charged in this indictment. The first of those charges is that, at Frog Lake,

on the 2nd April, he conspired to levy war, &o. Now, let us take that ; and what is

the evidence as to that? That was the day of the massacre, 2nd April. I think I

may say the evidence as to that is clear, and without any circumstance contradicting it,

that the Indians came in on the 1st April. There is one circumstance before that, on

the 19th March, Mr. Halpin met Big Bear out on the road and informed him that

there was trouble at Batoche, that Eiel had stopped the mails. How did that affect

Big Bear ? He was surprised, he expressed surprise. 1 wanted to prove by Mr.

Halpin that he was surprised and that he showed surprise. My learned friends would

not allow me to do it. Well, he expressed surprise anyway, and there has not been a

tittle of evidence here to show that he had any intention whatever, any communica-

tion whatever with Eiel from beginning to end of the whole trouble ; but Mr. Halpin

told him, and that is where he got the information that this trouble had arisen. Now,

that is an important fact : that is why they knew it. What does he do ? Does he go

off? Does he rise too ? No, he goes off again to his hunting ; and not until a fortnight

or more afterwards, is anything done even by his band. Then, on the 1st April, they

come in, and he goes to the Indian agent—this son of his, Imesis, being with him

—

and Imesis tells the Indian agent that they know of this trouble ; and Big Bear at

once says that he assures the Government, he wishes to assure the Government, and

to show the Government that he is going to be loyal. Now, was that sincere ? A
good Indian for forty years, the friend of the white man for forty years, always kind

and good to the white people, good to them all, and during all that weary time, when

many of his band want to kill them, was he sincere when he said, I am going co be

loyalj and I mean to show the Government lam loyal? Then, the next morning,

what does he do ? Early in the morning, the Indians, no doubt, have been getting

excited. I think Mr. Cameron said that it was on the morning of the massacre that

the Indians were coming and threatening to take goods from the Hudson Bay Co.'*

store. He tells us the Indians were going to pillage the Hudson Bay store. Big

Bear hears of it, and comes in, pushes his way through, and tells them to take nothing

of their own accord ; if 'they want anything, to ask for it, but not to take anything.

What does he do next? They don't take anything, and he goes away. He then goes

over to Mrs. Simpson's house—what for? To warn her that he is alarmed, that he

cannot be every place to watch his young men. He is afraid; he thinks there is

going to be trouble, and he wants to get her to a place of safety if he can. Was that

the act of a man that was ringleader in the rebellion?

Then, Mrs. Simpson says he was friendly. She gave him something to eat while

he was there, and while there a shot was fired, which they heard. What does he do

then ? He rushes out of door, running up the street, screaming : Stop, stop
!

Was
that the act of a man that was going into rebellion ? My learned friends will try and

aay—and the only chance they have of convicting this man is to show—that, though

he did not want to kill anybody, he wanted to fight against the Government. Why,

gentlemen, if he wanted to fight against the Government, how could he do it without

killing somebody ? Isn't it preposterous ? How was he to fight against the Govern-

ment if he was not to kill somebody ? If he wanted to fight effectively, why shouldn't

he kill all the white people he came across ? He did not want to fight against the

Government. He did not want to rebel at all. He wanted to control his Indiana;

but Imesis, Little Poplar, Wandering Spirit, and Louison Mongrain, these were

the men that controlled those young men, and that old man was no more than

a feather in the blast before their influence. He was powerless, utterly powerless.

The massacre took place in spite of him. It is all done almost in the flash

ot an eye, but he tried to stop it. That is the first charge ; that is the.
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evidence upon the first charge, the massacre at Frog Lake, conspiring at Frog Lake.

Wheie is the evidence of conspiring ? Where is there a tittle of evidence that he was-

dibioyal at that time ? My learned friend has tried to make something out ofthe fact

that he had been grumbling. Poor man, an Indian must not dare to grumble. Ifan

Itdian daies to grumble at the palty rations that are meted out to him, while he is

suffering from hunger and cold, in his old age, it is to be assumed that he was willing

to rebel against the Government? Gentlemen, would you listen for half a second to

such a suggestion as against a white man ? Then the next charge is that at Fort Pitt,

lie did this. Now, what is the evidence about Fort Pitt ? The Indians start off from

Frog Lake to go to Fort Pitt ; who leads them ? Not Big Bear, it is the old story,

these same men, Wandering Spirit, Imeeis, and the others, they are the men that led

the Indians off to pillage the fort, Fort Pitt. Poor old Big Bear hangs back, and does

not know what to do, and at last his anxiety is, I will go at all events and try to save

the lives of the people that are in the fort. He was powerless, and he knew it, he was
powerless to prevent those Indians from going out to pillage that fort, but he might

help perhaps, not by his influence with the Indians but by friendly dealing with the

whites—he might perhaps induce them to go off quietly, so that there would not be a
fight, and so have saved their lives. My learned friend will say of course the con-

struction to be put on that is, oh, he wanted them to go away, so that he would get the

fort more easily. Very well, it might have been one or the other, but do you think

so? If he wanted to levy war against the Queen, if he wanted to fight the troops,

if he wanted to kill the police, why didn't he take the chance when he had 300 or 400

Indians around a little band of twenty-five or thirty ? Is that the conduct of the man
that wants to tight the police and kill the police? No, gentlemen, it is the conduct

of the man that knows he cannot prevent the pillaging of that fort, but hopes he majr

manage to get and save the lives of those white people ; he follows the Indians down
to Fort Pitt with that object. What took place there ? Who is in command still ? The
same lot that sends for Mr. Maclean, the same lot, the chiefs want him, he comes out

and meets the chiefs ; who are the chiefs that do the talking ? Who are the chiefs that

threaten him ? Not Big Bear, it is the other chiefs that shut up his mouth, that do

the whole thing, that shut up his mouth when he is trying to reason with the Indians

and get them back to their reserves—not Big Bear. It is Wandering Spirit and the

other one I lorget which of them—those are the men that rap him on the shoulder,

look here you have said enough, stop, we don't want to hear anything more than this.

Old Big Bear takes no part in that, but B ;g Bear does take part in trying to arrange

to tave the police and particularly to save his friend Sergeant Martin, fie sends a

messenger to him and he sends a message, at least a thing that purports to come from

Big Bear, we don't know whether it really came from Big Bear or not—it does not

maiter very much—a message did come signed "Big Bear," trying to persuade them
to get away so as to save their lives. The pillaging took place. Does Big Bear pill-

age ? No, no pillaging by Big Bear, no goods even afterwards found in his possession,

except as Mr. Maclean tells us one of them did give him some tea that they had taken

from the fort. Well, gentlemen, it may be that a poor unsophisticated Indian, an old

man hungry and cold, probably ought to have refused to take a cup of tea because it

had been stolen from the Hudson Bay Company, but I don't think my learned friend

will seriously contend or ask you to say that he was guilty of a desire to levy war
against the Queen because he accepted a cup of tea that another man had stolen.

That is the third of the overt acts charged.

Then, the fourth is that at Frenchman's Butte. Now, what are the facts as to

that ? At Frenchman's Butte not one soul saw Big Bear on the battlefield or any

place near the pits when the fight was going on, but where was he ? He was three

four or five miles according to the different witnesses, and the different statements,

back from where that fight was going on, and it was not in a general retreat that he

was back there. You recollec ii that one of the witnesses I asked particularly, and he

told us distinctly that the fig! ting men were at the front and fighting when he saw

Big Bear away back three or four miles from the front. Mr. Maclean tells us that he

was back there with him, wHh himself, he was running away and Big Bear was run-
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ning away. Big Bear did not want to fight, and he did not fight, he was not event

with the men that were fighting. Stanley Simpson himself tells us, that when ho

went back, when he ran back he found Big Bear in the camp with Mr. Maclean. Now*
I want to say a word about Mr. Stanley Simoson's evidence. He told us nrso that

when he got back into that camp he found Big Bear there, Big Bear was there when
he got into the camp; he said he tried afterwards 10 prejudice you against the poor old

man by telling you that he saw him ride into the camp after he came there, first he
said he found him there, when he got there, and that was the truth. Mr. Maclean

corroborates that. Mr. Maclean saw Stanley Simpson come in and Mr. Maclean told

him that Big Bear was there in the camp when Stanley Simpson arrived, but Stanley

Simpson, gentlemen, has suffered a great deal, and I am sorry for it. as sorry as any-

one can be, no one pities more than I do, the poor peoole that suffered as they did

Buffer through all that trouble. The suffering that Mr. Stanley Simpson has endured

has prejudiced him so much against these Indians that he is prepared to go as lar as

he can to convict any Indian, and particularly the poor old Bi^ Bear, because he is

looked upon as sort of chief of the band, that is one evidence of it, he told us the truth

first, and then he afterwards tries to pervert it and make it appear that poor old

Big Bear was out at the front, but was coming back. Then, I won't j*o so far as to say

that Stanley Simpson is telling an untruth about it. I don't think that, but I do think

that his prejudice is that way, and perhaps insensibly, but none tne less cogently, it

influences the view he takes, and as you know it can influence very easily, and it

very often does, his memory of things, and when he is not quite certain exactly which

way the thing was, he is sure to put it the wrong way, that is, the way which will

tell against the prisoner.

Then, the only evidence at all against the prisoner is that of Stanley Simpson; he

states what he thinks he heard him say on that occasion in that camp. iNow, Big

Bear on that morning and the night before that told them all to run away, nis con-

duct throughout that shows a desire to avoid the shedding of blood, and it showed it

all before that time, it showed it all after that lime. Remember that ; but Mr. Simp-

son says Big Bear had run away, he was three or four miles back. Some one tells

him there were eighteen or twenty of the troops killed, and he pretends to tell us

Big Bear made a bloodthirsty speech, it was not a short speech, gentlemen, it was
not a speech that would be said so slowly, it was a speech that was said in the excite-

ment and quickly, and Mr. Stanley Simpson asks you to believe atter what he has

shown us of what he knows of Cree in that box—he asks you to believe that he is

able to swear that that old man used that language. Gentlemen, are you going to

convict that old man in the face of all his previous record, in the face of his whole

record throughout this trouble, are you going to convict him of any attempt to levy

war against the Queen upon a piece of guess-work like that, influenced by a strong

animus, an animus shown by what he said to Mr. Hal pin, when he says that it is a

strange thing that any white man should be called a* a witness for the defence of an

Indian. Gentlemen, strange for a white man to come and tell the truth !

Mr. Scott.—I must object to my learned friend making use ot that statement. It

was never given by the witness in the box. What he did tay was that it was a strange

thing that he should be on the defence.

(Stenographer here refers to his notes, when Mr. Scott's version is corroborated.)

Mr. Bobertson continues.—Gentlemen, that gives you the key. bianley Simpson

has been through it. His feeling is so strong, he tells you so himselt, because ot what

he has gone through, that he wants to see that man couvicted, and he would have

had Mr. Halpin hold back from telling you the truth. That is the animus of Stanley

Simpson, and " it is a strange thing anybody who has suffered what we have

suffered should be willing to say a word to give the man the benefit of the truth."

Gentlemen, I ask you to disregard altogether the statement of Mr. Stanley Simpson

as to that bloodthirsty speech he attributes to Big Bear, and I ask you to do so,

because it is wholly inconsistent with the whole of the prisoner's conduct throughout

the whole of this business. It is wholly inconsistent with the character he has always

borne, and it is impossible, it would be most unjust and dangerous to convict any man
225
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contrary to those presumptions, upon so uncertain a piece of evidence as that of the

man who says that he heard this speech made in a language of which he knows no

more than appeared to you in that box.

Mr. Cameron understands the Cree, and he proved to you—he does not pretend

to know much, but he could tell you the Cree words that he heard the prisoner speak

when he heard him speak, and those, with the innumerable other little circumstances

over which I am not going now, but which I am sure are fresh in your minds, all

ehow that the old man was helpless in his own band, that what little influence he

had he used to save the lives of the whites and keep these people quiet, that he

avoided, himself, every act of wrong-doing, that he tried to prevent others from com-

mitting those acts, and I think you will say in your verdict, that throughout they

show that he was a loyal and an innocent man.

ADDRESS OF THE CROWN COUNSEL.

Mr. Scott.—May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury—In. my opening

remarks in this case I gave you a short summary of the evidence that would be laid

before you in proof of the charges upon which this prisoner is being tried. I stated

that the principal part of that case would be showing the fact that war was actu ally-

levied by the prisoner or by those with whom he was associated at that time in order

to afford you the proof that it was his intention or it was the intention of those with

whom he was associated to levy war. Notwithstanding my learned friend's protest

to the contrary, 1 submit the charges you have heard read have been fully and

sufficiently proved.

In the first place, as I stated, there were four charges. The first of those was

connected with the massacre and the outbreak at Frog Lake. I also stated to you

that it would be probably shown to you in the evidence—I had a good idea of what

evidence would be given for the defence—that it would be probably shown to you

during the course of the evidence that the prisoner may have been instrumental in

saving the lives of the prisoners that fell into the hands of those with whom he was

associated—if not in his own hands, into the hands of those he was in concert with.

JSTow, gentlemen, you have heard an account of what occurred on the 2nd April, or

rather you have beard that on the 1st April the prisoner came in with his son Imesis,

and spoke to the Indian Department agent at that part of the country, and said that

he heard there was trouble but that he was going to remain loyal. Imesis was with

him at that time. Imesis apparently assented to the statement made by Big Bear

at that time, yet we find that on the 2nd April, the very next day, that, although,

perhaps, Big Bear did not assist in killing, and perhaps wanted to prevent it, his

son Imesis was one of the worst in the crowd from that time till the end of the

rebellion. If Imesis on the 1st April had any intention of committing those depre-

dations, Big Bear, the prisoner, would have known it, and it would have been his

duty at that time if he had been loyal, a loyal citizen, as my learned friend tries to

make him out to be, he would have given warning the night before to these men, in

order that they might be prepared for some defence. My learned friend tries to

show, also, that on the l«th March—I think it was on the 18th March, the date Mr.

Halpin stated—on the 19th March the prisoner heard from Mr. Halpin that there

was^trouble at Duck Lake. Now, it is very peculiar that we have not heard in

evidence any evidence of trouble occurring at Duck Lake until the 18th March, the

day before, and we have heard it was five or six days' travel from the part of the

country in which they were in.

Court.—He spoke of the seizure of the mails, and that there was going to be

trouble.
.

Mr. Scott.—Perhaps I am going a little too far. I understood the inception ot

the rebellion was the 18th March. It makes no material difference. I believe the

prisoner did not know until Halpin told him on the 18th March that there was

trouble at Duck Lake. It U quite evident from his action on the night of the 1st

April they must have heard some intelligence in the meantime from that part of the,
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country—that there had been trouble They were all advised at that time what the
trouble was, and what the intention in creating that trouble was. My learned friend
says there is no evidence of that. Well, I will tell you what evidence there is of it
—that after he heard from Halpin, the 18th March, that there was trouble there, he
paid no further attention to it ; he went on hunting, and he afterwards came back to
his camp at Frog Lake and remained there for some days, and then we find on the
1st April that they came in a body to the Indian agent and speak to him about the
trouble. If they had not heard anything meantime, how is it that Big Bear, as soon
as he returned to the camp, did not come in and tell the Indian agent what Halpin
had told him ? He must have heard from some other source meantime that there
was trouble at Duck Lake.

Now, on the 2nd April, we find him coming in with his band again to Frog Lake
settlement, and we find these outrages committed. The first thing we hear is the
taking possession, or the threat of one of the Indians to take possession, of the Hud-
son Bay store, unless he, the clerk, Cameron, went in there and got the goods. Cam-
eron says himself he believed they would have broken into the store if he had not
opened it. They went into the store taking things. Now, the contention through-
out of the defence in this case is that the prisoner was wholly without influence in his
own camp, and that his influence was for good throughout, and to show you that that
influence was not such as my learned friend represents it, but that he had a great
deal of influence in his own camp at that time and afterwards, I will call your atten-
tion to this one first—this one fact, that when he came into the store the other
Indians of his band commenced taking goods out without asking permission of
Cameron or without asking him for them ; the prisoner came in and ordered them
not to take goods, but if they wanted anything, if they saw anything they wanted,
or wanted anything they saw—I forget which—ask for it, and he would give it to
them

j
that shows the intention on their part that in any event they intended to

take what they wanted

.

Mr. Eobertson.—I don't think Cameron said he would give it to them. He said
to ask for it.

Court.—Before they took it ?

Mr. Scott.—Not to take anything of their own accord. It turned out during the
time the prisoner was there they did not take anything, but they asked for it, and as
soon as his back was turned they commenced taking the goods again. Does that
show that he was totally without influence in his own band ? That during the time
he was in there and when he was before them, and they saw he was looking at them,
they obeyed his instructions to the letter ? My learned "friend says it is a very
unusual thing for the Crown to reply at all. It may be in some cases, where the
case is put fairly before the jury by the counsel for the defence, that it is not a proper
thing for the Crown to reply; but I submit, and I am addressing the jury entirely on
that account, that the counsel for the defence has not put the case fairly before the
jury, that he has strained those points of the evidence which bore in favor of the
prisoner and omitted a great number of points in the evidence which bore against
the prisoner. These, I will call attention to shortly, and I will not detain you. My
learned friend says that the influence, of the prisoner throughout was entirely for
good. I admit that his influence throughout apparently was to save the lives of the
prisoners in his hands. My learned friend says if he did not intend to kill, how could
he be expected to levy war, without killing? Well, I have yet to learn that everyone
who goes in for the purpose of levying war starts with the intention of killing all the
helpless men, women and children that may fall into their hands. I have yet to learn
that war cannot be carried on even by the Indians without that course being pursued.
There is another reason why he wanted to save the lives of the prisoners. Mr. Halpin,
I think it is, shows conclusively that, and Mr. Maclean, by his evidence shows it too.
These men who were prisoners in his camp, with the exception of certain half-breeds,
were all in connection with the Hudson Bay Company. That is what Mr. Halpin
says, that if they had not been connected with the Hudson Bay Company they might
not have escaped. He also says that if the poliee had gone into the camp as prison-
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ers of the Indians, through the influence of the Hudson Bay Company they might

possibly be preserved as well. Well, gentlemen, I think you all know what an influ-

ence the Hudson Bay Company has and ought to have over the Indians in this;

country. For centuries past they have been the protectors of the Indians for

the purpose of cultivating their trade and making a profit out of the trade with

the Indians. They have cultivated their respect and esteem, and it has always*

been the object and intention to cultivate it to the greatest possible extent, and

they have succeeded in doing that. Mr. Maclean shows you by the way he gave hisv

evidence to-day he does not want to hurt a hair in the head of any person, but he*

shows also that friendliness on the part of the prisoner and his band was a friendli-

ness to the Hudson Bay Company alone, and was not extended to the Government*

He was forced to admit on cro*s-examination that he was not on good terms with

the Government, although he was on good terms with the Hudson Bay Company,

and that Mr. Maclean had considerable influence over him, but he was forced \o

admit at the same time that the prisoner thought he had a grievance against the*

^Government, that he was continually grumbling, and we have heard from some other-

witness—I forget who it was now—that the grievance consisted of the fact that he>

had not a reservation, whether there was any ground for that, we don't know, wet

liave no means of ascertaining at the present time, but it shows he had a grievance,

And it shows the motive for taking the course he did in connection with the rebellion*

Mr. Kobertson.—My learned friend says now that Mr. Maclean said that the*

prisoner was continually grumbling against the Government, but Mr. Maclean said

that on one occasion he heard him make a complaint.

Mr. Scott —Perhaps T misstate it. I understood him to say the Indians were*

always grumbling, and he heard this man grumbling against the Government, but he*

did not know exactly what for, and we hear another witness stating that it was*

because he had not been placed upon a reservation.

Now, gentlemen of the jury, I think that throughout this whole case, although

there is very strong evidence that the prisoner intended to save and tried to save,

to use all his influence to save the lives of the prisoners, there is no evidence given

for the defence or throughout the whole case here to show that he resisted the efforts

or the conduct of the Indians with whom he was associated in levying war or in

pillaging Fort Pitt. It is not necessary to show that he took part in the pillaging-

himself, or that he actually got any of the goods that were plundered from there, a©

long as we can show that he was associated with those who did that, and after the*

act was done he continued to associate with them, and during that time that they

committed fresh acts which come within the nature of the charges that are contained

against the prisoner in the indictment—then he must be taken to be responsible for

those acts to that extent.

Now, did he, at any time, counsel or advise the continuance of the outrages that

he is charged with? My learned friend has tried to throw some doubt upon the*

evidence of young Simpson, because he thinks he has a bias against the prisoner, •

Is that good reason, because he has a bias against the prisoner and the Indians

generally ? Who kept him in confinement fOr such a long time, who at one time was.

in deadly peril of his life, and the hardships he suffered while a prisoner have*

brought him nearly to death's door since ? Is there any reason why he shoul 1 not

have a bias ? But is that any reason why he should not come into the box and tell

truthfully all he knew about the circumstances during the time he was imprisoned

with them ? I think my learned friend endeavored to convey to you the impression

that that was the only evidence of any intention on the part of Big Bear to act

against the Government in any way ; but my learned friend has lorgotten the*

evidence of a certain man named Pritchard. Pritchard's evidence is not attacked in

any way. My learned friend has not said anything about it. 5Tou will remember

what Pritchard said as to what Big Bear said he had done with regard to a certain

other Indian chief of his acquaintance, that he had written up to him or was about

to write to him to tell him to come at once to join his band, and if he>

didn't, better got a fast horse and leave the country, and then asked
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Montour to write a letter to some friend of his at Lao la Biche, and Montour

asked Big Bear, shall I say a certain thing, shall I write to him and

tell him to come, the Indians would rob him anyway. My learned friend has

also tried to impress upon you the fact that he could not be charged with any-

thing in connection with the fight at Frenchman's Butte, because he was not fighting

himself. I have yet to learn that an Indian of his age goes into a fight. My impres-

sion from all I have heard of the Indian character generally, is that it is the young

braves who fight and the old men who counsel and remain in the camp, and it could

not be expected this old man would go out and join in the fray ; his place would be in

the council advising the young men as to what steps they should take, and haying

been with them at that time in the camp shows conclusively that he was counselling

;

and it is a strange thing too, that during all the councils that have been held from

the time the prisoners were first taken till they were released we find Big Bear m
that council. " He was not treated like an old woman, some of his advice and opinions

may have been resisted by some of the other Indians, but he was there always giving

his opinion as far as we have heard, he was always giving his advice.

Mr. Robertson.—That was not what the witnesses said, it is really too bad to state

such things so broadly as that.

Court.—You should not interrupt.

Mr. Scott.—He was always in the council as far as we know ;
it is possible that

I may have overstretched the thing a little, but I remember Mr. Cameron stating

that the council that he saw he was taking part in it, and Stanley Simpson said in

the council he heard that he was taking part in it, and Maclean said that at a meet-

ing of the chiefs he was one of the four chiefs that came out to meet him at Fort

Pitt, and although he does not remember the prisoner saying anything at that meet-

ing, 'yet he appeared there as one of the headmen of the combined party.

Mr. Robertson.—Did he say he came out to meet him?

Mr. Scott.—If I understand what I did say, I said that when Mr. Maclean camo

out to meet the chiefs, he was one of the party.

Mr. Robertson.—He found him there, that was in the Indian camp.

Mr*. Scott.—Now, gentlemen, I have just one more thing to call your attention

to and that is that at the time of the separation of the Wood Creo from tne prisoner

and his band, Mr. Maclean tells us that it was the intention of the prisoner and his

band to work their way down from that place to Duck Lake. That shows what his

intention was at that time. It may not be that there was any evidence of his going

down to Duck Lake, but there is evidence that my learned friend has put in that

a request came up from Poundmaker's camp, a letter written by a man named Nor-

bert Delorme, and the band was asked to go down to join them. My learned friend

lays great stress upon the fact that the prisoner was instrumental or sided with them

in their efforts not to get the band to remain with him, but the solution of that is

very simple. We have seen from the evidence, and it has been shown to us that

Maclean had a very strong influence over this man, he succeeded in convincing this

man by some argument, and the prisoner and Maclean together succeeded in convinc-

ing the rest of the band, that was the only reason, as appears from the evidence why
they did not go down there, and for anything we have heard in the evidence, that is

the reason why the prisoner did not want to go down.

I have endeavored to put the evidence before you as plainly as possible. I have

endeavored to show that it was not the intention to give any evidence beyond show-

ing the fact that the prisoner was connected with the blind who commi otei certain

outrages, who in fact levied war against the Government. No matter wnit else they

did, I think there is evidence to show that the band did that, and there is no evidence

to show or not sufficient evidence to show, I submit, that the prisoner had any such

intention ; he was drawn into it, my learned friend says. I submit the eTidencashows

conclusively that he was acting with them throughout, although he did not intend,

and always fought against going to.
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JUDGE'S CHARGE.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—Gentlemen of the jury : This prisoner is charged with
participating in rebellious acts against the constitution and government of the coun-
try.

^
He is charged under an Act which was passed in the year 1869, as regards the

Dominion of Canada, as it was then constituted, and that law was introduced with
the constitution under which we at present live into the North-West Territories in
the year 1875, and that law says as follows :—Section 5 of chap. 69, 31 Yic. Who-
soever, after the passing of this Act within Canada or without, compasses, imagines,
invents, devises or intends to deprive or depose our Most Gracious Lady the Queen,
her heirs or successors, from the style, honor or royal name of the Imperial Crown
of the United Kingdom, or of any other of Her Majesty's dominions or countries, or
to levy war against Her Majesty, her heirs or successors, within any part of the Uni-
ted Kingdom or of Canada, in order by force or constraint, to compel her or them to
change her or their measures or counsels, or in order to put any force or constraint
upon, or in order to intimidate or overawe both Houses or either House of Parliament
of the United Kingdom or of Canada, or to move or stir any foreigner or stranger
with force to invade the United Kingdom or Canada or any other of Her Majesty's
dominions or countries under the obeisance of Her Majesty, her heirs or successors,
and such compassings, imaginations, inventions, devices or intentions, or any of them,
shall express, utter or declare by publishing, printing or writing, or by open and
advised speaking, or by any overt act or deed, is guilty of felony and shall be liable
to imprisonment in the penitentiary for life.

1 must draw your attention, or at least I must remind you, that where the word
"sovereign " is used in that statute, the real meaning of it is the " people." It is a
cardinal doctrine that the king means the people and their interests and his are
inseparable, and where we have in an Act of Parliament the Queen's name, it means
merely that where an offence is created that offence is against the people. Now the
prosecution is in the interests of the public at large brought or instituted by Her
Majesty's representatives as protectors of the public against those men for violating
that law. It is true, as we have seen but too plainly, that the prisoner is not a white
man—what we term a white man—he is an Indian, but although he is an Indian, I
cannot give any other view—put it in any other way to you than to say that
between white people and Indians, there is no distinction whatever. The law is
there and it is binding upon the Indian, or at least the law is there and the Indian is
entitled to as much protection from Her Majesty, and receives as much protection
from Her Majesty as the white man ; and the converse is also true that from him is due
the same amount of respect and allegiance as is due and as we enforce from the white
man. True it is, and it cannot be gainsaid that the Indian, as a rule, has not the
amount of enlightened education and has not, perhaps, so much civilization as white
men, taken as a rule ; but I have yet to learn and have yet to see the Indian in the
year 1885 who does not know the difference between right and wrong. Innocence or
ignorance is not shown at any rate in this case, and therefore it is that I put it to
you. I tell you that as regards the man himself, he is there to stand the consequences
of whatever acts he may have done or rather charged against him in this paper we
have before us. Well, the charge against this prisoner is that he compassed, assisted,
lent his aid and lent his influence to rebellious acts and assisted in rebellious acts
against the Government. It is my duty to tell you what the law is, and expressing
an opinion as to what portions of the evidence you should not consider, as not being
law, to leave the question of credibility to you as your share of the responsibility
between the public and this prisoner on trial. I have told you what the law of
the land is already. I have yet to tell you whether or not the evidence,
if believed, amounts to a rebellious act and comes within that or covers the
charge. Now, the charge against this prisoner is that he compassed, with other
nl-disposed persons, at four different places. 1st, at Frog Lake; 2nd, at Fort
Pitt

j
3rd, again at Frog Lake; 4th, at Frenchman's Butte. As the evidence

is so fresh, it cannot, I think, have escaped your attention. You must bo con
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versant with the statements of the witnesses. You must recollect them, I think. I

need only say this. I think that if we are to believe the evidence of Mr. Halpin and

the evidence of Mr. Pritchard, also the evidence of Mr. Tompkins, not only was there

rebellion in existence on the 1st April last, but this man knew it. Now, it ho knew

it- and I should here say that in this court we do not know, and we are not bound

to enqnire whether he is a chief, whether he is an influential chief or whether he is

not. We are not here to enquire into his status as rrgards Indian tribes, but wo

are here to determine whether he, as an individual, took p*rt in any of the rebellious

acts which are charged against him. ,'',.,
L . AL j. r

Now as I said to you, if the evidence is to be believed of the parties that 1

named to' you, a state of rebellion existed prior to the 2nd April, and the prisoner

knew it. Now, if he knew it, what was his duty ? What was his first duty, and m
what way could he relieve himself of that duty ? His first duty was the same as

Tours and mine would be, not to be found in the rebel camp, but to be touad where

law and order prevailed. That was his first duty, and if that was his first and mam
duty, what excuse could there be, what excuse is there why he was not ?

Well the only excuse which the law recognizes is this—taking the words them-

selves of the authorities " the fear of present death is the only excuse. Suffering, or

any other mischief not endangering his person, or the apprehension ot pergonal

injury less than would deprive of life, is not a justification of a traitorous act.'

Now then, was he there? Was he with them, and was he with them under any

constraint short of what I have told you? If so, and if as a conviction created in

your minds beyond all reasonable doubt, he did so, then I tell you from as legal a

standpoint as the law lays down, his guilt is established ;
but, on the other hand, it

there was only an impression of probability, if it ran ehort of an absolute conviction

to your minds, why, then, he ought to be set free. Now, the evidence tor the prose-

cution consists, first, of Mr. Pritchard's, who describes what passed, as you recollect

very vividly, I have no doubt, what passed on the 1st April, the evening of Uie 1st

April ; or rather I think I must take you back. The first piece of evidence in point

of time that we have is that of the witness for the defence, Mr. Haipin, who tells us

he lives at Coal Lake, which is a point some number of miles back m the country

distant from Frog Lake. Now, Mr. Halpin, if you will recollect, tells us that on the

19th March he told this Big Bear, whom he met some distance north from
.
* rog Lake,

away from his camp hunting, of the state of affairs, that Her Majesty * mails had

been seized at Luck Lake. Then why did he leave his hunting home ? That may

strike you as unexplained, but it is for you to determine. We have this man, with

his band calling upon the Government officials back at Frog Lake on the evening of

the 1st, and we there have him telling a gentleman, if Pritchard is to be believed,

that trouble has broken out, but that he and his bard are going to be loyal to the

Government. Well, then, you have those unfortunate occurrences which are desci ibed

by those witnesses as occurring on the following morning, and you also have the tact

spoken of by him and by other witnesses, that this man knew, at any rate, what was

going on and what had been done, and then you have the further fact brought

oat by this witness, if he is to be relied upon, mind you of his directing Mon-

tour about the message that he was to send to Lao la Biche coupled with

what be said he had done himself with regard to the chief Peccan, and the

White Fish Lake Indians; Well, the next piece of evidence which I should draw

your attention to is that of Mr. Simpson, and he tells us of what occurred at the dit-

ferent places, and particularly at Frenchman's Butte—the expression which he.made

use of after the fight. Well, supposing Mr. Simpson was mistaken ,
supposing that he

is not to be believed, is his presence there explained to you ? The same thing will

occur to your minds, and I dare say you will ask yourselves how was it he was at

Fort Pitt ? We know he was at Frog Lake when the thing broke out. How was he

at Fort Pitt? And if he was at Fort Pitt, and the protection part of the Government

had to leave, why wasn't this prisoner with them ? That may stride you. It has

struck me. Then, after they had left, where was this man ? The ^ame thing will

occur to you, when they got back to Frog Lake, where was he ? Was he with the
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rebels or was he not ? If he was with the rebels, why, it seems to strike me as a
^question, and I simply submit it to you as a class of questions which should enter
your minds, and which you should, if possible, seek the solution of, and obtain a solu-

tion from the evidence which we have had to-day. Well, then, when we come on
further, where was he after this fight that was spoken of ? "Was he with the peace
party, the so-called prisoners who described what they had to go through—was he with
them, with the Wood Indians or why was he with the other party; and what was
the occasion of the split ? Those are questions which, I think, I may fairly suggest
in order to arrive at a conclusion that you should ask yourselves, and if a sufficiently

reasonable explanation ha> been afforded as to why he was there.
Now, the first thing that you have to consider from your standpoint is, was

rebellion extant on the 1st April ? I/ut it in that way. 2. Did he know of it ? 3«
If he knew of it, did he by any act—was he a party to any of the overt acts which,
are named in this charge ? It you can answer ihese questions in the affirmative, if
you can draw yourselves to no other reasonable conclusion, if you are satisfied by the
evidence you have heard, affirmatively, as a conviction created in your minds beyond
all reasonable doubt, that he was, that "yes" should be the answer to each of the
questions I have submitted to you, then I say that your verdict should be one of
guilt. If, on the other hand, you cannot do that, or from the evidence as presented,
you feol that it is so unreliable as to create a reasonable doubt in your mind as to its

veracity, why, you ought then to give him the benefit of that doubt, and acquit him.
In the conduct of the case, you may, perhaps, have been struck with the ques-

tions Laving been submitted to me, as to whether the classes of evidence were proper
to be received, and you may have heard me say that the evidence, which was
intended to be offered, was not strictly pioper, and you have heard me say after that,
that while holding that opinion and feeling that in strict law, I ought to keepit away
from you and not allow you to hear it, yet, I thought and felt that in a case of this
eort with the class of man who stands there, the widest possible limit should be given
to anything that he had to say, or that any witnesses who might be called for the
defence or for him might have to utter and that there might be no doubt on that
joint, therefore, they have had the benefit of bringing everything before you. Still,

the fact remains, and the evidence stands before you as 1 have told you, and from this
evidence, when you come to consider it, you will have to come to a conclusion of
guilt or innocence. If knowledge of the rebellion is brought home to him, and par-
ticipation after that, without excu»e, that I have told you of, then he has come within
the pale of the law, otherwise he has not.

Now, you will retire, gentlemen, and consider it, and let me return into court for
your determination upon it.

Mr. Eobertson.—There is one thing that I would ask your Honor to tell the jury,
and that is, that although the prisoner was there, if they are satisfied upon the evi*
dence that he was not willingly participating in what was being done, he is not guilty.

Court—I have told him that.

Mr. Eobertson.—I understood your Honor to say if he was there when the fight
was going on nothing short of the fear of death would free him.

I ourt.—I did not say that. Tnc onus of freeing himself from responsibility lies
upon him.

Mr. Eobertson.-—But if the evidence satisfied them that, although he was there,
ho was noi acting with them, but the contrary, his being there was not enough upon
which to convict him.

Court.—I think I have put it fairly to the jury.
Mr. Eobertson.—Will your Honor tell the jury now that if they are satisfied

upon the evidence that, although he was there, he was not aiding and abetting them,
then he ough: to be acquitted?

Court.—Oh, I think the jury may be brought back, yes.
Jury return to court.
Couit.—Gentlemen of the jury : I brought you back because of some question as

to my having put the remarks I made in a proper light to you with regard to this
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prisoner as to his presence in what may be termed the rebel camp. Now, I read

to you what the law was, but I am asked to go further and to suggest to you to con-

sider whether upon the evidence there is not sufficient to excuse him ;
whether a

sufficient explanation has been given for his presence in the place where he is

described to have been; that you should consider whether he was there compulsorily

—I think I have got that right *now to suit Mr. Eobertson—or whether he was tnere

against his will, and acting solely in the interests of peace.

Mr. Eobertson.—If they think, though he was there, he was not actually aiding

and abetting them, if they are satisfied on that, then they ought to acquit him.

Court.—And that if he was there against his will and giving no assistance what-

ever, then he would be entitled to an acquittal. I cannot, however, drop my remarks

Without declaring to them the law on that subject, and it is this: If a number of mem

band themselves together for an unlawful purpose, and in pursuit of their object

commit murder, it is right that the court should pointedly refuse to accept the propo-

siton that a full share of responsibility for their acts does not extend to the surgeon

who accompanied them to dress their wounds, to the clergyman who attends to offer

spiritual consolation, or to the reporter who volunteers to record their achievements;

the presence of anyone in any character aiding and abetting or encouraging the

prosecution of those unlawful designs must involve a share of the common put.

Mr. Eobertson. -Aiding, abetting and encouraging, your Honor. I wish the jury

to understand distinctly.
4 .

Court—Now, gentlemen, you will retire again. I have given you the addition.

I thought I had placed it plainly before when you went out. You have it now though,

and you can retire again.

The jury then return in fifteen minutes with a verdict of '{ guilty, with a recom-

mendation to mercy. '

. . ,, .

Court-Gentlemen, you are discharged, and I might tell you gentlemen, that

your recommendation shall have all the weight that it can reasonably have. I shall

not pass any sentence to-night.

QUEEN vs. BIG BEAE'S BAND, NAN-E-SUE ET AL.

Canada, |
North-West Territories, j

The information and complaint of Eichard Burton Deane, of E9gina, in the North-

West Territories of the Dominion of Canada, superintendent in the North- Wert

Mounted Police, taken the third day of September, in the year of oar Lord quo

thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, before the undersigned one of Her Mijeaty «

stipendiary magistrates in and for the said North-West Territories, who sauli :-

ThatNan-e-sue, Mis-cha-chaq-e-mish, Kah-sah-ko-wa-tit, Koos-top-e quob Nah-

pace-is, Kah-ke-we-pah-tow, Oos-ka-ta-task, Ah-tim-yoo, Ah-tom-iss-com-co-ah-wah-

see not regarding the duty of their allegiance bat wholly withdrawing the love obedi-

ence, fidelity and allegiance which every true and faithful subject of our Lady the

Queen does and of right ought to bear towards our said Lady the Qieen, on the second

day of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-nve,

and on divers other days, as well before as after that date, together with divers evil

disposed persons to the said Eichard Burton Deane unknown, did, within the dom-

inion of Canada, compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy war against our

said Lady the Queen, within Canada, in order, by force and constraint, to compel her

to change her measures and counsels; and the said felonious compassing, imagination,

invention, device and intention then feloniously and wickedly did express, utter and.

declare by divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say:

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing, imagin-

ation, invention, device and intention, aforesaid, they, the said persons above charged

and each of them, altei wards, on the second day of April, in the year aforesaid, and
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€n divers other days and times, as well before as after that day, at and near the
locality called Frog Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, con-
sult, ccnfederate, assemble and meet together with divers other evil disposed persons
to the said Bicbard Burton Deane unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection
.ard rebellion against cur said Lady the Queen, within this realm.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing,
m, agi nation, iuvertion, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said persons above
charged, and each of ihem afterwards, to wit, on the seventeenth day of April, in the
-year aforesaid, ard on divers other days and time^, as well before as after that day,
at or near the locality known as Fort Pitt, in the said North-West Territories of
Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble ard meet together, with divers
-ether evil disposed persons to the said Bichard Burton Deane unknown, to raise, make
aEd levy insurrection and rebellion against cur said Lady the Queen, within this realm.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing,
Imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said persons above
charged, and each of them, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-eighth day of May, in the
year aforesaid and on divers other days and times as well before as 8ft er that day, at
or rear the locality known as Frenchman's Butte, in the said North West Territories
icf Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assem Die and meet together, with divers
other evil disposed persons to the said Bicbard Burton Deane unknown, to raise,

make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within this
-realm.

In contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil example of all

others in like case offending against the form of the statrte in such case made and
provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

E. BUETON DEANE.
iSworn before me, the day and year first above ")

mentioned, at the town of Eegina, in the [•

Iforth-West Territories of Canada. )

Hugh Eichardson,

Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the said North-West Territories of Canada.

And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary
~mFgistrate and a justice of the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or before
js stipendiary magistrate in a summary way, without the intervention of a jury.

Which do you elect ?

The Queen vs. Nane-sue
y
and eight others

}
mentioned in the above charge.

Wednesday, 16th September, 1885-

Before His Honor Judge Eichardson and Henry Lejeune, J.P.
Mr. Peter Hourie is sworn as interpreter—Cree.
Prisoners were all charged on 3rd September, and all pleaded "not guilty."

Juiy called and sworn.
Charge read to the jury.

Messrs. D. L. Scott and W. C. Hamilton appear for the Crown.
Mr. F. B. Eobertson for the prisoners.

Cleik of Couit.—Upon these charges the prisoners at the bar have been
^arraigned, and upon their arraignment have pleaded "not guilty." Your duty (to

-gentlemen of the jury), thereloie, is to enquire whether they be guilty or not guilty,

And hearken to the evidence.

^
Mr. Scott -~May it please your Honor and gentlemen of the jury,—The charge

-which you have heard read is what is known as the charge of treason-felony. It is,

ia substance, a charge that the prisoners designed and intended to levy war against
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Her Majesty, which means that they designed and intended to levy war against the

lawfully constituted Government of the country. It goes on to say, that in order to

carry out that design and intention, they, on three separate occasions, conspired with

others to make and Jevy rebellion. The first occasion mentioned in the charge is on

the 2nd of April, at Frog Lake. That is the date of what is known as the Frog Lake

massacre. The second is on the lTth April at Fort Pitt, the date of the taking and

Backing of that place ; and the third is on the 28th May, which is the date of the

battle of what is known as Frenchman's Butte. These prisoners belong to a band

who were living somewhere in the neighborhood of Frog Lake and known as Big

Bear's band. On the 2nd of April that band and a number of other Indians in that

section of the country broke out into rebellion. I shall first show you that the

country in the northern part of the territories in the neighborhood of Batoche and

Duck Lake had been for gome time previous to that date in a state of open rebellion.

The rebellion, however, at Frog Lake broke out on the 2nd April. The band to which

these men belonged was in rebellion until some time in the latter part of the month

of May. The first overt act on that 'occasion was the seizure of the Hudson Bay
store and other buildings in the settlement at Frog Lake, and the killing of a number

of the settlers in that district. The second was on the 11th April, the date of the

taking of Fort Pitt. After the massacre and the sacking of the settlement at Frog

Lake, the band to which those prisoners belonged moved down to Fort Pitt, and on

the nth April that place fell into their hands, and it was sacked and looted, andja

number of settlers and others who were in Fort Pitt at the time were made prisoners.

They afterwards travelled over that part of the country for some time, and on the

Hth May they met the troops under General Strange, and a fight ensued on that

occasion.
.

Those are the three acts which we charge against these prisoners. We charge

that they were present on those occasions that I have mentioned, and on other occa-

sions about that time and in that neighborhood ; that although, perhaps, we cnnnot

prove any particular acts or outrages on the part of any of these prisoners, we can

show that they were present with that band on the 2nd April, from 2nd April till

after the 11th May, that is, the battle of Frenchman's Butte ; and although they may
not have committed those outrages themselves they were combining with others who
did commit them. It is possible we maybe able to show that these men were fighting

on one or two occasions, at all events. We will show that they were prepai ed to

fight if necessary, that they were joined with others who were fighting, and if not

fighting themselves they were aiding and abetting those who were fighting.

"William Bleasdell Cameron, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott :

Q. You were in the employment of the Hudson Bay Company ? A. Yes.

q! About the 2nd April last ? A. Yes.

Q. Where ? A. At Frog Lake.

Q. Did you see any of the prisoners there on that day ? Do you know any of

them ? A. Yes, I know them all

.

Q. Do you remember having seen any of the prisoners at Frog Lake on that day r

A. Yes.
Q. Which of them? A. I saw the second prisoner charged there, and I saw

the third one and I saw the sixth, and I saw the seventh, and I saw the eighth, and

I am not certain about the other. I am pretty sure that he was there—the last one,

the ninth.

Q. Do you know their names ? A. Yes.

Q. Just give us the names of those you know ? A. The first prisoner you have

charged I don't know him by that name ; Natoos is what we always call him. Kah-

jjah-kowah-tah, No. 3 ; Kah-ke-we-pah-tow, No. 6 ; and No. 1, and No. 8

Q Those you remember seeing at Frog Lake on the 2nd April ? A. Yes.
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Q. What happened on. that day at Frog Lake ? A. Well, I was sleeping the
night before, or the morning of the 2nd April, and I was waked by an Indian—he
was a Wood One, who belonged to Frog Lake ; he is not here—and I got np. He
told me Big Bear's men had taken the Governmont horses ; and I went down stairs,

and. Big Boar's son came into the house and a lot of the^e Indians with him, and they
asked me if I had any ammunition in the store, and I told them that I had, when Big
Bear's son told me to give it to them, that if I did not, they would take it ; so I gave
it to them, what there was—there was very little there.

Q. Who did you give it to? Was that in the store that you gave it to them ?
A. Yes.

Q. Were there any others there besides Big Boar and his son ? A. Big Bear was
not there himself; there was his son. Oos-ka-task was in the store.

Q. How many were in ? A. There must have been twenty in the store.

Q. Were you in the store when they asked for the ammunition ? A. No ; there
was a house right adjoining this.

Q. They asked you ibr ammunition, and then you went over to the store?
A. Yes.

Q. Did these men come in? A. Yes.
Q. When ? A. They called mo into the store.

Q. Did they do anything when they were in there besides taking the ammuni-
tion you gave them ? A. Yes, some of them reached over and helped themselves to
things off the shelvo*.

Q. Without asking your leave ? A. Yes.
Q. What next occurred ? A. I had a friendly Indian with me, and he ordered

them to go out of the store.

Q. What occurred after that? When did you leave the store ? A. I left the
store and went out, and then they took me ovor to Mr. Quinn, the Indian agont's
house.

Q. Who took you over? A. Wandering Spirit was the man that ordered me over.

Q. -Lid anything occur there? A. They made demands there for beef of Mr.
Quinn, and it was given to thorn, and they talked very badly towards the white people
there ; and after that we went out, and they came into the house, and I charged these
things as they got them, merely as a show, as I had been accustomed to doing ; and
they asked me what I was charging them with, laughing about charging the things
to them.

Q. Was that when you were in the store the first time ? A. After I came out

;

I charged them in the house.

Q. Did you go back to the store again ? A. Yes, I went back several times.

Q. What for? A. Different Indians came, to me and wanted to get things, and I
could not refuse them. I dare not refuse them.

Q. Why couldn't you refuse them ? A. Because they would have, just as likely
as not, blown my brains out.

Q. You were afraid to refuse them ? A. Yes.
Q. What happened after you gave those things out of the store ? A. Thon the

white people all went to the church, and I was ordered to go to the church with
the rest.

Q. By whom ? A. Wandering Spirit.

Q. The white people all went to the church, and you wore ordered by Wander-
ing Spirit to go? A. Yes, and some of these Indians were standing around. They
all had their guns there.

Q. They were all armed ? A. Yes, they were standing around the church door,
and the priest held or celebrated mass, and after that we went away again.

Q. You went away ? A. All the white people.

Q. Where did you go ? A. I went back to the store with Big Bear's son.

Q. What did you do when you got back ? A. He borrowed a flag from me,
Big Bear's younger son, and I gave it to him.
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Q. I want to know what occurred at Frog Lake, and what you saw, and under

-what circumstances you saw it. I don't want to know all the goods they got out of

the store. When you were in the store something happened. What happened ? A.

Well, that was afterwards. I was in the store with one of Big Bear's band, and I

heard a shot fired.

Q. One shot ? A. Well, I heard one, and then there was a slight pause, and

then after that there was several shots fired in succession.

Q. What did you do ? A. Iran out of the store and locked the door, and I

looked up the street, and I saw the Indians running around, riding on horseback,

©hooting and yelling. «».*..
Q. Did you see anything else? A. Well, I saw one of them chasing Louis

Ooulet, and I saw two bodies lying down. •
_

Q. Whose bodies were they? A. I could not tell from where I was whose they

were, but I knew they were Quinn's and Charlie Gouin's.

Q. How did you know? A. Because I had seen them standing there just as I

went into the store.
.

Q. What were they doing ? A. I thought they were coming towards the store

the time I just looked around when I went in.

Q. Then, when you heard shots fired and went out, you saw two bodies lying

where these men had been standing when you went in ? A. Yes, just about that.

Q And then, afterwards, you saw Louis Goulet doing what? A. He ran past

me on the road. There was an Indian running alongside of him with his gun pointed

at him, and another Indian behind him, between him and this other Indian. After

that there was an Indian ran up to me and told me that Quinn had been shot, and he

says : If you speak twice you are a dead man.

Q. Well, what did you do? A. There was a friendly Indian with me, caught

me by the hand, and he said, come this way, and I started towards where the bodies

were lying, and he says, go this way, ard he turned around and went in an opposite

direction, and then up at right angles again in the direction of the camp.

Q. Of whose camp? A. Of the camp of Big Bear's Indians, and while I was

going along, I saw Mrs. Simpson. The shooting wa%going on all this time.
^ Q. Were those the only two men that you saw killed ? A. Yes ; I never looked

.after that.

Q. And then you went to Big Bear's camp? A. Yes.

Q. What became of you after you got there ? A. I was taken by the Wood Crees,

Q. In what way were you taken ? A. I was taken into the chief's tent, and he

told me that he would see there was nothing happened to me.

Q. Why did you remain with them ? A. Because they were protecting me*

q! How long did you remain with the Indians? A. I was a prisoner—
Q. You were made a prisoner ? A. Yes.

Q. How long were you detained as a prisoner ? A. I was detained just exactly

two months.
Q. Where did you leave, how did you get away ? A. I left while the fight was

going or at Frenchman's Butte.

Q. While the tight was going on at Frenchman's Butte—were you released? A»
2ib, there was a small party of us escaped.

Q. Were you at Fort Pitt on the 1* th April ? A. No, I wasn't there*

Q. Now, can you tell what any of these men were doing, what state these men
were in, the men that you recognized, there are five that you recognized, can yon tell

what they were doing at Frog Lake ? A. Well, they were in this crowd that were

shootiDg, and they were with the band that ordered us around.

Q. Lid you see any one of them doing anything in particular ? A. Well, not at

that time.

Q. Did you at any time afterwards ? A. I saw Oos-ka-task.

Q. What did you see him doing ? A. I saw him take a horse from a half-breed*

A prisoner in the camp.
Mr. Kobertson,-«That does not come under any of the acts charged*
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Mr. Scott.—I suppose not.

Q. Is that the only thing you saw him doing ? A. Yes.
Q. Do know how long these five men that you speak of remained with the band

during the time ? A. They remained up to the time I left.

Q. When did you last^see these men ? A. I saw them at Frenchman's Batte
before the fight.

Q. Do you remember whom you saw there, which of them you saw at French-
man's Batte ? A. I saw them all—ail the prisoners.

Q. That is, all those five ? A. I saw every one of the prisoners

.

Q. The whole nine ? A. Yes.

Q. When, the day before the fight ? A. Yes, inside of two or three days before
the fight.

Q. Inside of two or three days before the fight you saw all the prisoners ? A.
Yes.

Q. What were they doing at that time? A. Well, they were making a thirst
dance, a lodge.

Q. Do you remember having seen any of them on the day of the fight ? A. No,
I did not see any of these Indians then. I was not within a mile of where they were
lighting.

Q. But before the fight did you see them, on the day of the fight, before it com-
menced? A. No.

Q. You don't remember having seen any of them that day ? A. Not any of these.
We were not camped with the main body of the Indians. I only saw a few of them
just at the time.

Q. There are four you don't recognize as having seen at Frog Lake, that is, No.
1 charged, No. 4, No. 5, No. 9. Do you remember having seen them afterwards at
any place—at the time of the thirst dance ? A. Yes, they were all there at the time
of the thirst dance

.

Q. Did you see them more than once ? A. Yes, I saw them often.

Q. Between what times ? A. Well, I saw them the 26th May; I saw all of them
then. .

Q* Where was that ? A, At the thirst dance

.

Q. Had you seen them before that time ? A. Yes.
Q. More than once ? A. Yes, I saw them often before that, all of them.
Q. Then, is it a matter of fact from what you saw of them you concluded they

were with the band all the time ? A. Well, there was one of them that was away,
he went out as a messenger.

Q. Which one? A. The second one.

Q. How do you know he went as a messenger ? A. Well, I saw him getting
ready to start.

Q. Where ? A. From Frog Lake.
Q* When ? A. It would be about the 1st May, the latter end of April or

beginning of May.
Q. Did you hear him saying where he was going to ? A. Yes.
Mr . Eobertson.—Has this anything to do with the charges ?

A. He was going to Turtle Lake to bring the Indians from there.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. Did this prisoner tell you that? A. No j I was told by a number of Indians.

By Mr. Scott:

Q. By whom were you told ? A. Well there are not any of the persons here,
but I was told by Louis Patenaude who was in the camp, he is a Wood Oree.

Q. Was he in the camp ? A. Yes.

Q. In what position was he in the camp ?

Mr. Robertson.—I submit whatever his position was, or what he was doing, what
he told this witness about what another man was doing, cannot be evidenoe.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 1886

Court.—Not by itself, but if it is one of a series of facts wbich led up to some-

thing, it is evidence.

Mr. Robertson.—What took place at meetings where a conspiracy was going obi

is no doubt evidence, under the ruling in Frost's case, bat what some person told this

witness about what somebody else was doing is not.

Court.—If he was one of the conspirators it is evidence directly under the Frost

case.

Mr. Robertson.—I think so, your Honor. If I recollect the Frost case correctly,

it was allowed to be shown what took place at a meeting held by conspirators, it

having been first shown
Court.—A meeting at which those who were charged were not present at all.

Mr. Robertson.—Certainly, but it was what took place at the meeting where the*

conspiracy was going on, that being of course an overt act itself.

Court.— But that was not an overt act, Mr. Robertson, charged.

Mr. Robertson.—I am not sure whether it was an overt act charged or not, but

the distinction I draw is that the acts of the different conspirators may be given in

evidence on the understanding that they are going to be connected in some way
sooner or later with the prisoners.

Court.—Exactly so.

Mr. Robertson.—But what one conspirator alleged—what one conspirator tells &
witness as to what another conspirator alleged but not proven yet, would not be

evidence.
Court. Oh, no, of course not. If I gathered what Mr. Scott first understood

from this witness, was that it was a direct assertion made by this prisoner, and them

it turns out that some other one of the conspirators who is not here to-day said so-

and-so in the witness' presence, and if that was followed up, it would be evidence, you

get this way what that other one said.

Mr. Robertson.—I don't think it would be, your Honor.

Court.—If it culminated in an act.

Mr. Robertson.—Your Honor sees that they're just proviDg the act by hearsay*

evidence.
Court.—We must not drift into that, if it simply stands where it is without any-

thing further, I say at once, strike it out.

Mr. Robertson.—And I don't think it makes any difference. My learned friend

asks what position this other man occupied. I do not think that makes any differ*

ence, whatever position he occupied, whatever he said to this man about another man
is not evidence.

Court.—If he was one of a band doing an act or making an assertion culminating

in an act, and the prisoner was a party to it, it would be evidence.

Mr. Robertson.—If in conjunction with a co-conspirator, and this man heard it,

it would be evidence, but where the evidence is merely that somebody told me, I not

being a conspirator, that this other prisoner was gone off on a certain message, it is

not evidence. I don't think it is admissible at all.

Court.—It is not the ordinary way of proving it, I quite admit. The witness

may be asked the question at present, and we will see what it is followed by, and I

will say whether it should be allowed or not.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. The man who told you this was a Wood Cree ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see the second one charged ? Did you have a talk with him about it?

A. No, I did not speak to him personally.

Q. At all events you saw him going away ? A. I did not see him.

Q. What did you see ? A. Well, I saw that he was not in the camp; I saw hiim

making preparations to go away.

Q. And you did not see him going away ? A. No.

Q. Well, did you see him about the camp afterwards? A. No; not for several

days.J
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Q. Then you saw him again ? A. Yes.

Q And how long did he remain in the camp after he came back? A. Well, ho
remained up until the time—he remained till 1 left there ; he was there when I left

there.

Q. At all events he was there at the time of the thirst dance ? A. Yes.

Court.—Now, Mr. Kobertson, we have it in this way as I take it: this No. 2
was absent for sometime from the camp for several days, but was there when the

•witness escaped.

Mr. Kobertson.—That is all it amounts to.

By Mr. Scott:

Q. How were you kept as a prisoner ? A. I was just told that if I was found
trying to escape, I would be killed,

Q. And you concladed it was advisable not to try ? A. Well, it was on account

ofthe other prisoners that I stayed.

Q. Why ? A. They said that if one prisoner was to escape they would kill all

the others, and that is the reason.

Cross-examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q The home of these men was with Big Bear's band, wasn't it? A. Yes, they're

part j f Big Bear's band.

Q That is where they always lived ? A. Yes, ever since I have known them.
<^. And you saw them with their own people on these different occasions? A.

"Well, there is one of them there I don't think belongs to Big Bear's band j he comes
from Long Creek, about 35 miles from there.

Q He is one of the Wood Crees is he ? A. I could not say whether he is a
Wood Cree or not ; there are some few Plain Crees living amongst them.

By the Court :

Q. Which number is that ? A. No. 4*

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. You have not identified that man before ? A. I did not identify him as being

at Frog Lake.
Q. I speak of the five you have spoken of as members of Big Bear's band.

A. Yes.
Q. Their home was with the band? A. Yes.

Q. And you did not see any one of them do any particular act of wrong ; all

that you say is that you saw them there when others were doing wrong ? A. It

just depends on the time you speak of.

Q. Well, on these occasions at Frog Lake and at Frenchman's Butte that you
have spoken of? A. I thought it was rather wrong to come and threaten to break

open the store.

Q. But did you see any of these men attempting to break open the store him
self ? A. Well, they were at the back. They spoke the same as Big Bear's son, who
said we will break open the store if you don't give us ammunition.

Q. And they were in the crowd ? A. Yes.

Q. But that is all, none of them made any threat ? A; No, they did not threaten

me.
Q. None of these five himself committed any act of violence ? A. I could not

say that I saw
Q. A thirst dance is not a war dance ? A; No.
Q. It is a dance that they have every year or several times every year, don't

they ? A. Yes, when they can manage it.

Q. When they can get the wherewithal ? A. Yes.

Court.—None of this evidence has been interpreted, as yet, to the prisoners.

Mr. Eobertson.—As to these Indians, I am just in this position, that I can find

nothing against them except that they are members of the band. Perhaps it would bo
249
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just as well to interpret the evidence to the prisoners. (Evidence interpreted accord-

ingly.)

Mr. Robertson asks that the prisoners be told to listen, and say if there is any-

thing wrong in the evidence of the witness, or if they want any further questions put

to the witnesses to let him know so that he might do it.. (This is accordingly done.)

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q, Did you see any of the nine on the occasion of Frog Lake massacre, at the store,

or what happened immediately afterwards, or afterwards at Frenchman's Butte ? Did

you see any of them commit any act of violence yourself? A. I did not see anything

myself. That second man came and ordered me to fix his buckboard on the 26th, so

I have good reason to remember that he was there. I saw none of the prisoners com-

mit any act of violence on the 2nd April or 28th May. I saw No. 8 close to his

tent. He was carrying a gun and yelling out the war-whoop.

Q, No. 8 says the time the trouble was going on—the Frog Lake massacre he

refers to I suppose—he was over at the tents ? A. I met him just while the shooting

was still going on. I met him close to the tents, and he had his gun in his hand, and

he was calling out the war-whoop and running—he was walking along fast with his

gun in his hand towards where the shooting was going on. No. 6 1 saw just stand-

ing outside the door. Some of the rest of them being inside.

Q. Where did you see No. 6 fire, in all these places ? A. I say he was with the

crowd.
Q. Do you recollect Oos-ka-task particularly that morning in the store ? A. Yea.

Q, He says he went there and he had some money and he bought some tea from

you ? A.I remember him getting that, but then, they all got stuff, and they asked

for it on their accounts, but it was just a mere

Q. Never mind your opinion—they asked for them on their accounts who habi-

tually had accounts with you ? A. Yes.

Q. And what these men got they asked for on their own accounts, and that it

should be charged to them ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Seott :

Q. Did any of them pay for anything they got that day ? A.I might have got

one or two shillings from them, in cash from some of them. I don't remember now
for certain.

Q. Oos-ka-task says he paid T5 cents with which he bought tea and sugar ? A, I

think he did do that.

Q. Do you remember at what time he was in the store ? A. Yes.

Q. Was it the first time you went over to serve out the ammunition or after-

wards? A. Yes, he was there the first time.

Q. How many were there the first time ? A. I should think there were about

twenty.
Q. Who got the ammunition, how many of them ? A. They took it and divided

it amongst themselves.

Q. Did they say anything about the ammunition, about giving it to them in the

store when you were in the store ; i think you said that some one came to you and

told you to give the ammunition, and if you did not give it—they made some threat,

wasn't that what you said ? A. Yes.

Q. That was before you went into the store ? A. Yes.

Q. Were there many there when he told you this ? A. About twenty.

Q. Was Oos-ka-task one of them ? A. Yes, he was with thorn.

q! Was he there when that threat was made ? A. Some of them were standing

outside the door, and the house was full, and it would be hard to

Q. You can't tell whether he heard it or not ? A. No.

Q. At all events you went over and gave how much ammunition ? A. There

would be about three pounds of powder.
241
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Q. How much had you in the store ? A. Perhaps three or four pounds of ball,

that was all I had. I had sent it away before this by the police.

Q. You gave them all the powder and ball that there was in the store ? A. Yes.

Q. And they divided that up ? A. Well, they took it away in a lump.

Q. Were you paid for that ? A. No.

Q. Did you charge it up ? A. Yes.

Q. Who did youCharge it to? A. I charged it to the Indian Department.

By the Court

:

Q. Is that what you mean by charging ? A. No, I charged some of it to the

personal accounts.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. The Indians regularly keep accounts with the Hudson Bay Company, don't

they; and settle up after the end of the year, after the trapping is over, isn't that the

general custom ? A. Well, they regularly keep accounts it they can.

Q. I mean, if they can, and they settle up when their trapping is over, they

settle up with pelts and things they bring in, isu't that the general way? A. Yes,

they don't always settle up, but they promise to.

Q. But that is the usual practice, a good many of them do settle up, don't they?

A. Yes.

Q. And the company don't generally give credit to those that they don't find

pay ? A. No, not those that are not in the habit of paying.

By the Court :

Q. And I think you have told us that the company had accounts with all these

A. Yes.

Q. Open accounts ? A Yes.

Q. Of the nature 'hat Mr. Robertson speaks of? A. Yes. Oos-ka-task came back

from Battleford just a few days before this thing: happened at Frog Lake; he was
down at Battleford a few days before this, Frog Lake, 2ud April.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. He was there on that day, though ? A. Yes.

John Pritchard, sworn—

Examined by Mr. tScott :

Q. You were interpreter for the Indian Department at Frog Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. Were you there on the 2nd April last ? A. Yes.

Q. What happened on that day? A. Well, that was the day that the massacre

took place at Frog Lake.
Q. Did you see any people killed there ? A. There was one.

Q. You saw one? A. Yes, I saw one, it was Charles G-ouin, but I did not see

the man who shot him, be shot him from behind.

Q. Did you soe any others who had been killed ; any other bodies there ? A.
No, not that day.

Q. About what time was it that Charles Gouin was killed ? A. Second day of

April

.

Q. What time of day? A. It must have been about 7 or 8 o'clock I suppose,

in the morning.
Q. Had there been anything done before that? A. Yes.

Q. What was done? A, I went to the Indian agent ; the Indians asked some
beef.

Q. What Indians ? A. Band of Indians that was there.

Q. Big Bear's band? A. Big Bear's band.

Q. They came to ask for some beef? A. They asked for some beef.
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Q. And you referred them—you went to the Indian Agent ? A. I saw the

interpreter and I went to the Indian agent and interpreted that the Indians wanted

beef, and so they got beef, and then after that they took us to the church. , ^

Q. How did they take you to the church? A. They drove us like a band of

sheep with their guns from behind.

Q. Whom else besides you ? A. All the white people that were there in the
J

settlement.

Q. They drove you to the church ? A. Yes.

Q. They were driven to the church by the Indians who were armed ? A. Yes.

Q. After they got to the church what did they do ? A. They staid there wait-

ing till the mass was over.

Q. Then after the mass was over ? A. After the mass was over we got out of

the church.

Q. And then what was done ? A. A while after, that was the time that I heard

the shots going.

Q. Well, where were you when you heard the shots going ? A. Getting near

my house.

Q. You heard some shots fired ? A. Yes, I heard one shot first, and then several

shots afterwards.

Q. Were there any Indians close to you at the time ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you hear them saying anything about it ? A. Yes.

Q. And then afterwards you saw Gouin killed ? A. Yes.

Q; And shot ? A. Yes.

Q. Who was standing around there besides you ? A. Well, I did not take notice

of who was standing around me at that time, only when I looked around I seen

Indians around.

Q. Any besides the Indians ? A. Well, it was only Indians I seen.

Q. There was only Indians around at the time Gouin was shot ? A. Yes, and

they took me to my house, and there was a band of Indians in my house all armed.

Q. They took you prisoner? A. Yes, I asked them to see my family, and they

took me in, and there was a band of Indians there.

Q. The Indians took possession of your house ? A. Yes.

Q. After that what was done with you ? A. They took us to the camp.

Q. As prisoners ? A. Yes.

Q. How long did you remain prisoner ? A. Two months.

Qi Did you remain or were you released ? A. I escaped.

Q. When ? A. After the battle of Frenchman's Butte.

Q. About how many prisoners had they in the camp during that two months ?

A. I don't know exactly the number.
Q. There were others there besides you ? A. There was a good few.

Q. A good few prisoners ? A. Yes.

Q. Were you at the battle of Frenchman's Butte? Did you see any fighting

there? A. No.

Q. Did you hear of the fighting ? A. I heard the shots, and I heard the can-

non too.

Q. Did you hear any of the Indians say as to whom they were fighting against ?

A. Yes.

Q. Whom ? A. They were fighting the soldiers.

Q. What soldiers? A. Government soldiers.

Q. That was at Frenchman's Butte ? A. That was at Frenchman's Butte.

Q. Were you taken to Fort Pitt at any time ? A. Yes.

Q. When ? A. It was on the 15th April. >

Q. Od the 15th you were taken as a prisoner to Fort Pitt, 15th April ? A. Yes.

Q. By the same Indians ? A. Yes, by the same Indians.

Q. What was done at Fort Pitt? A. They killed one man there again.

Q. Who was that man ? A. Cowan.
Q. Did you see that man killed ? No, I did not see him killed.
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Q. Did you see his body ? A. Yes, afterwards—two days afterwards.

Q. What else did they do there besides killing this Cowan ? A. Well, they
] ransacked the fort.

Q. Plundered the fort, I suppose ? A. And plundered the fort.

Q. Where did they go after doing that? A. They went back again toliog
IJjake.

Q. And how long did they remain at Frog Lake? A. Up till the 1st of May.
Q. And then they moved where ? A. Downwards towards Pitt.

Q. And which direction from that ? A. From Frenchman's Butte right norths
Q. But you left them at Frenchman's Butte? A. Yes.

Q. They moved down from Frog Lake to Fort Pitt and Frenchman's Butte?
A. Yes.

Q. On the day of the battle you left them? A. Yes.

Q. And you don't know what became of them after except what you have heard^

J. suppose? A. No.
Q. Do you know the prisoners ? A. I do.

Q. All of them? A. Yes.

Q. What band do they belong to ? A. Well, the first one belongs to Onion Lake
3>and. His name is Nan-e-sue. The fourth one belongs to Long Lake.

Q. Do you remember the others ? A. The others belong to Big Bear.

Q. With those two exceptions they all belong to Big Bear's band ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remembor having seen any of them on the morning of the massacre,
tm the 2nd April ? A. Yes.

Q- Whom ? A. I seen the second one and the third one, and the sixth and tha
seventh.

Q. The others—do you know whether or not they were there on that day ? A„
^No, they were not there.

Q. They were not there that you saw ? A. The first one, I am sure he was not
Ihere.

Q. Can you swear positively that the others were not there on that day ? A.
"Xes, the first one and the fourth one.

Q. Where were they? A. Well, the first one was at Onion Lake; on the 2nd
April he was at Onion Lake, and the fourth one was at Long Lake.

Q. How do you know ? A. The way I know it was us that were attending to*>

Ihe Indians, and we knew who were there that day, and I knew who came afterwards^

By the Court :

Q. They came in afterwards ? A. Yes, they came about the 5th April.

By Mr Scott :

Q. When did you see the fifth one, Nah-pace-is ? A. I seen him a while after

iin the camp.
Q. Then he was not there on the 2nd April. ? A. No.
Q. During the time you were prisoner did you see all the prisoners here ? A«.

"Yes.

Q. More than once ? A. Several times. I saw them often.

Q. From what you saw are you in a position to state how long they were there,,

when they came in, and how long they remained ? A. Well, they remained in the

camp of course till they were captured, because when I left the camp they were all

there yet.

Q. Those *hat were there on the 2nd April remained with the others till youi

©scaped ? A. Yes, until I escaped.

Q. Nan-e-sue came in a few days after the 2nd April? A. Yes.

Q. The fourth ? A. He was there at Frog Lake 2nd April.

Q. Nah-pace is, when did he come in ? A. He canr>e in a while after.

Q. What do you mean by a while after? A. About ten days alter.
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Q. Before they went to Fort Pitt ? A. I don't recollect whether it was before?

lie was at Fort Pitt or after.

Q. The 8th, when did he come in ? A. He was there

.

Q. At Frog Lake ? A. He was there at Frog Lake, on 2nd of April.

Q. And No. 9 ? A. He was at Frog Lake on the 2nd of April.

Qi Nan-e-sue and the fourth came a few days afterwards ? A. Yes,

Q. Nah-pace-is came in ten days afterwards ? A. I have seen him in the camp.

Q. But you don't know whether he came in the camp before going to Fort Pitt

-on the 15th of April ? A. That, I am not positive sure of.

Q. Then all the others, besides those three, were at Frog Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. And I understood you to say remained in the camp until the rest—with th©

rest, until the time you escaped ? Eemained with the rest as far as you saw ?

A. Yes.
Q." And you saw them frequently during that time in the camp ? A. Yes, for

two months. \

Q. Now, did you see the plundering of Fort Pitt ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see the Indians plundering the fort ? A. I saw the Indians in the>

Q. And plundering ? A. And plundering, yes.

Q. Do you remember whether you saw any of these prisoners there ? A. Yesv

I have seen them on top of the hill before they went down to plunder the fort. I

saw all of these prisoners up the hill, before they went down to the fort.

By the Court

:

Q. You saw the whole of the prisoners, did you say ? A. Except Nah-pace-is

No. 5. I am not positive sure of him.

Q. You saw them all there j did you see any of them plundering ? A. No.

Q. Did you see any Indians plundering ? A. No. The only thing that I saw,

that I am positively sure of, is that a horse belonging to the Indian Department,

Nah-pace-is had in his possession all the time, the two months.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. Did that horse come from Fort Pitt ? A. From Onion Lake.

By Mr. Scott

:

Q. What did they do with the houses and stores and their contents, at Frog

Ijake ? A. Well, I saw a blaze on the house, from a distance, that the houses wera

Q. Do you know whether anything was done to them before they were burnt f

What became of the goods in the stores for instance, do you know ? A. No, I don t

know what become of the goods, because the houses were burnt after I was in tha

Q. Did you see in the Indian camp any goods that you recognized as being taken*

from Fro£ Lake, or from Fort Pitt ? A. Yes.

Q. You saw in the camp some of those goods ? A. Some of those.

Q. Taken from where? A. Taken from Frog Lake, bit the goods were not

there that I saw in possession of the Indians.

Q. But you did not see any of these particular prisoners ? A. No.

Q. Did you recognize any of the goods that were taken ? Did you see them,

bringing in any goods from Fort Pitt store ? A. Yes. The second one there had.

some raisins, and I think it was out of Fort Pitt. That was all I saw.

Q. That is all you saw ? A. Yea, that is all that I saw.

Q. Do you know what the object of this rising was ; or did you ascertain tram,

the Indians themselves what the object of the rising was ? A. No.

Q. You never heard anything about it ? A. Never heard anything about it.

Q. Do you know what they intended to do when they came down towards Fort

Pitt, after the second time, and Frenchman's Butte ? A. Well, they intended to

fight.6
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Q. How do you know ? A. Because I heard some of them—~—
Q. You heard some of them say so ? A. Yes.
Q. That they were going to fight ? A. Yes, I heard Wandering Spirit saying,

nearly every day, that they were determined to fight.

Q. Did he say that to you alone or did he say it publicly ? A. Publicly.
Q. That they were determined to fight whom ? A. Any white he would meet,

he said.

Q. Did he say what the others were going to do ? A. No.
Q. Did you see any of these men at Frenchman's Butte the day of the fight?

A. I seen them the day before.

By the Court :

Q. Saw whom ? A. I saw these prisoners over here the day before the fight.

Q. What were they doing ? A. Well, they were getting ready. They were
makiDg holes called rifle pits, and then the day of the fight I did not see them.

Q. You had some other business to attend to? A. Yes, we got out early in the
morning.

Q. What other preparations were they making for fighting that day ? A. That
was all that I seen. They were making rifle pits.

Q. Doing anything else? A. No.
Q. Had they any arms ? A. Yes ; every one had arms.
Q. Were they usually armed ? A. Well, for three weeks they carried always

their guns.

Q. Well, were they in the habit of all carrying guns before that? A. Yes, the
Indian hi s a habit of carrying a gun

.

Q. You said for three weeks they were armed ? A. Yes, constantly, every day
alter to.at.

Q. Well, were they in the habit of being constantly armed before? A. Well,
as soon as an Indian wants to go off a piece he has a gun to start with.

Q. You say that you saw them preparing for fighting by digging rifle pits ? A.
*3Tes.

Q, Did you see these prisoners at that work ? A. I have seen them that day.
Q. And you don't remember that you saw them making any other preparations ?

A. No.
Q. Did you see any of them in the rifle pits ? A. No.
Q, The day before the fight occurred was there any excitement in the camp?

Jo., jl 6S.

Q. What was the cause of it ? A. They had seen the troops.

Q. And was it then they commenced making rifle pits ? A. Yes.
Q. And that was the preparation they were making for the battle ? A. Yes.
The court here asks the witness to tell the prisoner in Cree what he has said}

3Ir. Hourie to check, if necessary. This is accordingly done.

By the Court :

Q. Wandering Spirit stated to the Indians his intention to fight the whites ? A.
He always said he wanted to fight.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Did you hear him say anything as to the intention of the other Indians ? A.
I have heard him often, nearly every third day anyhow, say that he was determined
to fight.

Q. Did you hear him say as to what the other Indians were ffoing to do ? A.
.No, the only way I used to hear is, pity me, help me to fight. That is what he
always used to say to the Indians.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. He was begging them to help him ? A. Yes.

246



m Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 1885

By Mr. Scott

:

<J. Did any of them answer him? A. No, I never heard any Indian answer

Tiim.

By Mr. BoberUon :

Q Where were you the day before the fight at Frenchman's Butte ? A. I was

there, just at the place where the rifle pits were put, built.

•were there? A. I did not know of anybody getting out of the camp.

Q And therefore you suppose that all were there that were ,n the camp?

"*"
Q*But people might have gone out of the camp without your knowing it,

^DwTou Wl ulh^wm^'lndians were there altogether in numbers? A.

"VS yTs": ^ry^ne of tho.e 300 there? A. A man could not- the

whole of the 300 at a time except he goes to count them and see who were there,

butlconldnotdothat.

8" K^J^^^'pSA^r oath that you saw every one

^yTc^ , thatdav?
Q. Tou could not swear that you saw all of them d.gging nfle pits that day?

JL. Ho ; but they were there.

O They were in the camp you mean ? A. No. they were

Q Yon are sure they were nine of the 300 that were ,n the camp ? A. Yes.

Q. That is what you mean by their being there ? A- Yea.
,

Q. What is this war-whoop that we have heard spoken ot? A. I don t under-

^^We'TouTnow that the Indians have a way of shouting son^eUmes ? A. ?*
Q, And they do shout if they are going to have a fight? A. Xes.

Q. Or if there is going to be trouble ? A. Yes. _
Q Do they also shout whenever there to any excitement of any k.nd ? A Yes

Q. Do they always shout when they are excited? A. Yes, when they are

"^'AnTwonld 'there be anything strange in an Indian shouting in this way

^nV^h^nblewL'S on although he might not intend to take part in

it or encourage it ? Do you understand roe ? A. Yes.

Q. Well, would there be anything strange m that / A. JNo.

Q. So that this touting could not mean, as a roaiter of course at all even ts, rt

would not mean that he wanted to encourage the murdering that wan going on ? A.

Wfill that is the wav the Indian gives himself courage—he nnouts.QwM «™ that Leing done, if he saw a murder being

coxni^uS for instance, he would shout whether ^.^^^Z BZ^^^
it wouldn't he ? A. He would Rhout another way if he intended to stop the mur

derlg He would not shout that way. He would shout to try and stop «.

Q. He would shout in either cape? A. YeR.

Q. And you don't know any particular war whoop t A- JNo.

Q How long have you known the Indians ? A. I have known them for years.

Q. A great many years ? A. A great many years, yes.

O And vou are familiar with their customn? A. Yes.

q! Inother tbing-isnt it a fact that whenever there ,s element of any kind

VT for any reason, the Indian is sure to pick up hi, gun when he run" „t ? A. Yes.

Q And it dJes not mean that he is going to shoot, neceesardy? A. No.
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By Mr. Seott :

Q. The war-whoop is a continued cry—is it not ? A. Yes.
Q, Under what circumstances do they use it ? A. Well, as I say, it is to

encourage himself—encourage himself if he is excited.
Q. To do what? A. Well, if he is on the fight.

Q. Jf a man is going to play, he does not give the war-whoop, does he ? A. No.
Q. Well, it i« to encourage them to do what ? A. Well, if he is on the fight.
Mr. .Kobertaon.—The witness has said he knows no particular war-whoop
Court —Yes, he said tnat ; he has not spoken of any whoop that he heard at all.
<^. Are Indians in the habit ol bhouting ? A. Yes.
A. Under what circumstances ? A. When they are dancing they shout; they

shout any time. When they're dancing they shout.

* -?o
1>

i

d
??

U
T
hef aDy of the lDdians crying out or shouting on that day, the 2nd

April? A. No, I don't remember of it.
a Ji

Q. Did you hear any of them crying out or shouting at any time after the 2nd
April, when you were with them ? A. Yes, when they were dancing.

Q. Was there anything peculiar in it ? A. No, not that I know of.

,
^' } i' ^

0W were they 8nouting> or were they shouting in the way that von
always heard them shouting before—you say they always shout ? A. Yes, iusfc one
snout. ' J

Q. How did they make it; did they use the hand at all ? A. No, they used the
throat. J

Q. I mean, did they put their hands up to their mouth when they are shouting?

Q. Did you ever see an Indian shouting that way ? A. No.
Q. With hi» hand at his mouth ? A. No.

Mrs. Catharine Simpson, sworn

—

Examined by Mr, Scott

:

(Examined through the interpreter.)

Q. Where do you live? A. Fort Pitt jast now.
Q. Where were you living on the 2nd April ? A. At Frog Lake.
Q. Your husband is the clerk in charge of the Hudson Bay store at Froo- Lake ?

A. Yes. o

Q. Do you remember what happened on the 2nd April ? A. Yes.
Q. What happened ? A. There was murder committed there.
Q. Did you see any of the murders committed ? A. Yes.
Q. How many ? A. I saw one.

Q. Who was that ? A. Indian agent Quinn.
Q. Any others? A. I eaw another person fall there, a priest
Q. Was there any trouble that day with the Indians? A. Yes, there was

trouble, they pillaged. '

Q. What Indians ? A. From Big Bear's band.
Q. What did they pillage ? A. Everything.
Q. Where, at Frog Lake ? A. Yes.

§' ^a
.
d

,

id tbey do with thesettiers at Frog Lake? A. They killed them.
Q. All of them? A. Not all.

*

T Q/ .

How many dld they km ? A. 1 could not say for certain what number, bufc
1 think it must be nine.

Q. What became of the rest? A. I only know of two—two women.
Q. I am speaking of all the settlers, male and female, what became of the other

settlers who were not killed, yourself among the number? A. The remainder that
were not killed were taken to the Oee camps.

Q. By whom? A. It was through the Indians that we were all taken to the
oamp.

Q. How long were you kept ? A. Two months.
248
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Q. Were you kept as prisoners during that time? A. Yes, we were taken as

Pri8T8

And how did you leave at the end of the two months t A. Those Indians

that

Q
ewr^rsz^^i^^* y « - ** **Mf^^^L^R^™™™ ahont that time,

A * ^mrtdS^do when they went down there? A.. We remained in the camp.

O At Frog Lake? A. At Frog Lake.
'

§; DoJKow these prisoner?? A. Yes, I know the whole of them

Q. Do you remember seeing any of them at frog Lake, on the 2nd of April £

A. I saw them all there.

J S£I»A"J?2^LtiuKV A. Idon'UhinkNo.5 wasther*.

Q. Any of the others? A. I could not, say if the whole of them were there.

Q. How about the first one, Nan-e sue ? A. No, he was not there

•O No 5 Nah-pace-is ? A. I could not say positively for any others.

t Point out Aose that you are sure you saw at Frog Lake o« the fdApnlf
Mr Kobertson.-She cannot say positively, and the Crown should not press her.

Mr:Scott!-Iaskedherin theVst place if she saw any of these prisoner* at

Frog Lake, and she said she did. •„„.«a .t»«»TitlmS
Q. Can you say definitely whether you saw any of these>

pr,'8?.uers at Frog L^ke

on the 2nd April, tie day of the massacre? A. 1 saw DogTail, No. 8j Oos-ka-taek,

Q And any others ? A. Those three that I mentioned, I am positive they were

theretbut for the others I could not say positively that I saw them there.

Q. I suppose you know all these prisoners ? A. Yes, 1 know them all.

Q Then
P
the others that you have not named may have been present without

your remembering ? A. They might have been, but I might not have taken notice

°£tb
Q
m
bid you see all the prisoners in camp afterwards while you were a prisoner?

A. Yes, I seen them there.

Q. Did you see all of them ? A. The whole ofthem.

O How often? A. Every day while we were with them.

Q. ?henvou know that they were in the camp nearly all the time, or all the

time while you were a prisoner? A. Ye=, they were there all the time

Q. Do you remember seeing any of tnem about that time, or what w.re they

doing when they were in camp ? A. They used to dance ;
they were dancing

^ What kind of a dance was it ? A. I don't know what sor
,
of a dance ~.

O. Were they armed during the time they were in camp? A. Always armed.

Q. What were they doing on the day of the fight, or about the time of the fight f

A. Thev had a dance in the evening. «„:„- hni
Q^Did you see the fight ? A.I saw firing. I saw and heard people firing, but

I did not see anyone killed.

J SdTouTe^firitga^nfh^; Butte? A. That day, at Frenchman

Butte, we were ontside of the camp when we hefd 'h°^ "? A Ye8 we knew.
Q. DiO you know there was going to be a fi*ht that day ? A.

J
68

' ^
e ™*

'

O How did you know ? A. The soldiers were approaching the Indian camp.

Q D,d you see tbem or did you hear about it? A. They got word that tta

soldiers weVcommg, and they wfe preparing-to tight that day .hat they didfigh^

Q. What preparations were they making for fighting ? A. Ihey were nigging

rifle pits and holes and putting up earth.
not say

O Did you nee an r of these men working at the rifle pits ? A. 1 could_»<* say

that any of them were there, because I did not go near to see them working at those.

We were sitting np a piece one side
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Q. These men that you saw at Frog Lake, Ka-ke-we-pahtow, what was hedoW ?JU 1 naw him outside at the company's store there.
Q. Doing anything ? A. No, I could not say that he was doing anything

b tea
°°8ka*ta6k ? A * Oos-ka-task, I think, came to buy tea-came to the storeto

Q .
A timyoo ? A. I saw him inside of the store,

ionse^to'honse
U *** *** °' ^^ d°iDg aDythiDS else ? A

« * saw them running from

Q. Were They carrying anything ? A. I could not say that they had anything
i^. Did you see them among the crowd that were killing the whites ?

ity J/r. Robertson :

Q. This is really going very far it seems to me. It should be, " where did vonme them and what were they doing ?" A.I could not say.
Q. When you say that you saw them running from house to house, do you meanyou saw the Indians, generally, lunning from house to house, or do you mean any ofJhese in particular ? A. The people, Indians in general.
Mr. Scott—Q. Did you see these people runningfrom bouse to house: what did

-y0U ^
6e ^ g '

J0U eee theee three men rur Ding from house to house ?

**. ^ EoDertFOI)-~Tour Honor, really, this counsel has gone very far in leading
Ibis witness. &

Mr. Scott.—I submit I have a perfect right to ask this question. I ask now did
2yon see any of these three men running from house to house ?

Mr. Eobertson.—I object to the question as being a leading question

n. *
C°?rIr~5hJ 8 WOuld

,

be ri£ht en(mgh -
You fir8t asked a question which brought

Inat out, that she saw others, other Indians running from house to house—now yon

lS? ^^ legitimate,F> if Bhe identifies any of these prisoners as among

Mr. Scott.—It arises out of the cross-examination by Mr. Eobertson.
Mr. Eobertson.—Not at all, she is your own witness. I asked her if. when she

spoke of Indians running from house to house, she referred to Indians in genera* or«ny of these m particular, and that is as strong as my learned friend could put it
Jiimself, and she replied to me that it was people in general.

Court—I should say that ethers running from bouse to house referred to Indians
generally, including the prisoners. That is what would strike me, and then she ismked what does she mean by that, and she says she does not mean the prisoners

Hr. Eobertson.—That is it.

Jt
Conrt.—And then, Mr. Scott, I think, has a perfect right to say, does she mean

ihat / ±ie may ask ber which is correct. Her statement which would include the
prisoners or the qualified or reduced one which she gives to Mr. Eobertson I think
Ae may ask her, in rebuttal, which of her stories is correct. The stories are incon-
sistent.

Mr. Eobertson.—I maintain this, my learned friend had attempted to prove, by
ibis witness, that she saw these prisoners or some of them running about from house
-to house. He had asked one question referring particularly to these prisoners, and
+hen asked another merely usirg the pronoun " they," and in reply to bis question

:

Did you see them doing anytbirg else?" she said hhe saw them running about from
CUS6 tO hOUFG. and to p-Jmlflin that, T octcrl har. trl,An l, A r,„ZA .«l^4- j:j -l r A _-hcuse to house, and to explain that, I asked her, when she said that, did she refer toHe Indians generally, or any of the men in particular, and she replied, I refer only

-to lie Indians generally, not to these men in particular. There is nothing inconsis-
tent about it. My learned friend has no right to lead her after that, and to say that
ihese particular ones were some of them.

Court—She may be asked which she means.
Mr. Eobertson.—I have already asked her the question, what she meant, and!

-ilte lias explained it.

Mr. Scott.—I want the jury to understand whether or not these prisoners were
TTanning about among the rest.
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Mr. Eobertson.—You should have brought that out in your examination in chief.

Mr. Scott.—I did bring it out.

Mr. Eobertson.—Then you have it if you brought it out.

By the Court :

Q. Were these prisoners, or any of them there; and if so, which ? A. Yes

;Nos. 1, 4 and 5.

By Mr. Eobertson :

Q. They were there running about, were they ? A. No ; they were not there at

the fight.

By the Court :

Q <Were any of these prisoners among the Indians that were running about that

day from house to house, among those that you speak of as running about I A. JNos.

% 8, 9 and 2.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. Where did you see No. 2 running from? A. I saw him running from the

•white people's house to my house. ,

Q?Where did you see No. 7 running from ? A. I saw him there, but he was

1101

Q?
D
Where°did you see No. 8 running about? A. He came running from the

white man's house and went into the store, ran into the stores.

Q. When was that? what time of day was that? Was that while Mr. Cameron

•was there in the store ? A. While Mr. Cameron was there.

Q. In the morning ? A. It was not very early in the morning.

Q, But it was in the morning ? A. Yes, it was in the forenoon.

Q. Was it before or after the killing ? A. Before.

Q. No. 9, where did you see him ? A. I did not see him running from any

Dlace, but he was standing outside at the house, there.
t

6 When was it you saw No. 2 coming towards your house from the white man s

house? Was it before or after the killing? A. .1 was so confused I could not say

•whether it was before or after the killing.
,, «. „

Q. Did No. 2 steal anything, to your knowledge? A. No; I could not say-

that. I did not see him. _ •
,

Q. Did No. 8 steal anything, to your knowledge ? A. I could not say that he

look anything.

John Perry, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott

:

Witness.—On the 2nd April I was at Moose Creek, 20 miles beyond Frog Lake*

Q. When did you come into Frog Lake after the 2nd April. A: On (rood

IFriday, I think it was, the 3rd April.

Q What were you doing out at Moose Creek? A. Making timber logs

.

Q What did you come into Frog Lake for on that day ? A. Well, I came in to

go in the church, 1 thought, and at the same time to get some work done - some

spikes to draw our logs with-by the blacksmith who was there.

Q What did you find when you got there ? A. The first thing I found after I

sot there was one Indian—when I came in the camp I saw one Indian, and I jumped

off mv horse and went to shake hands with him, and he got black and pale m the

face : and Louis Goulet ran right for me, and said to me :
What do you come here

for ? I am sorry to see your face here ; all the white people are dead. And they

0r
Q7what did you do after Goulet spoke to you ? A. 1 went to John Pritchard's

1

Q. Why did you go to Pritchard's tent? A. Because Goulet told me to go there,

»nd hide myself.
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Q. Where was this tent? A. That was in Big Bear's camp.
Q. What did you find when you got there? A. I found a tent, pretty near the

family. Two women were there. Mrs. Delaney bowed to me, but I did not answer.
I tried to hide myself. Johnny Pritchard's wife told me to go away.

Q. What reason had you for hiding yourself? A. Louis Groulet told me the)

Indians swore to kill all the white men

.

Q. Did you see anything there that led you to suppose that his statement was
true? A. I saw two white women crying.

Q. Did you see any Indians ? A. There were a few Indians around the other
tent.

Q. What did Mrs. Pritchard do ? A. She told me to go away from her tent, sha
did not want to see me in her tent.

Q. Where did you go to then ? A. Louis Goulet—I went to an Indian JVilliam
Claudio.

Q. You went to his tent ? A.I went to his tent.

Q. And what did they do with } ou afterwards ? A. He told me, I will be taking
your horse, and when I go to Fort Pitt and kill the police at Fort Pitt I will give you.
your Canadian horses from there.

Q. That is what Claudio told you ? A. Groulet told me.
Q. Did you hear him say that yourself?

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. Do you understand Cree ? A. No, just a jew words.

By Mr. Scott:

Q. Well, how long did you stay in the camp with the Indians? A. I guess 24th
June we ^ot into Fort Pitt. I stayed all the time with Mr. Maclean.

Q. Why did you stay there ? A.I did not see any way for me to get away.
Q. Well, did they keep you there? A. They used to keep me there.

Q. Were you a prisoner ? A.I think I was.
Q. Weil, then, you remained with the Indians until sometime in Jane ? A. 24th

June, I think, I came to Fort Pitt.

Q. Were you at Fort Pitt about the 15th or 17th April? A. I was not there.

Q. You^got into Big Bear's camp on the 3rd April? A. There was a lot of
Indians there already then, the Big Bear and Bash Indians were altogether at that
time.

Q. There were other Indians there besides Big Bear's band ? A. Yes.
Q. flow long did you remain there at Frog Lake, how many days? A. I could

not toll.

Q. When did you first go down to Fort Pitt ? A. I did not g>o to Fort Pitt only
after they came and took the police themselves, and got back to Frog Lake again.

Q. Then you were not down to Fort Pitt when they took the police ? A. No.
Q. And took the fort there—you were not down at that tima ? A. No.
Q. But then you went down afterwards, were you at Frenchman's Batte ? A.

Yes.
Q. At the time of the fight ? A. Not at the time of the fight, but three miles

away.
Q. Were you there at Frenchman's Batte the day before the fight ? A. The day

before the fight as near I caa remeaiber, we were at one coalee three miles farther

than the regular Frenchman's Batte.

Q. Were there many Indians there the day before tha fight, in the coalee where
you were ? Where was the main body of Indians on that day ? A. As near as I can
tell they were right there in that coalee.

Q. The larger portion I suppose were there? A. The biggest part of the camp.
I did not notice that there was any missed. I thought they were all there together.

Q. At least you saw a large number, and you thought they were all ? A. Yes,
I saw a large tent.
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Q. What were they doing on the day before the fight ? A. Well, in the morn*

5ng they moved from this bottom of the coulee up the coulee a little, and ihey began

to dig pits.

Q. What for? A. Some holes in the ground, so they told me, to hide a womaR
»nd child, and a man went farther to dig some more.

Q. For what purpose ? A.I understand

Q. Where were they dug ? A. I did not go myself.

Q. W ho told you what they were for ? A. The man that I was stopping with*

Q. Who was that? A. William (Claudio) Gladhue. He told me in French,

Q. What did he tell you they were for ? A. He said, I want you to come an<I

rrnake a pit.

Q. For what ? A. He did not tell me what for. He said, come and help ub
3nake a pit, and his wife said she would like to go herself, and his wife and another

•woman went on horseback, aad I stopped there.

Q. Bid you see them digging pits? A. No.
Q. INow do you know any of these men, the prisoners ? A. I know two. No^

4 I d>n't know bis name, and No. 7:

Q. Where did you first wee these men after you came into the camp? Or did

you see them with the Iudiaiio at ail ? A. I saw Mo 4 at Frog Lake, the time the.

Xudians hud tents.

Q. When was that ? I could not tell you what days it was.

Q. Was it after the 3rd of April ? A. After the 3rd of April.

Q. Is that the first time you saw him ? A. I seen him probably eight or ten

jlays after 1 came into the camp.

Q. At Frog Lake? A. At Frog Lake, of course. I remember seeing him.
^

«

Q. This man No. T, where did you first see him, on or after the 3rd of April T'

Ji., I am not sure.

Q. Did you see any of the others with the band who had you prisoner ? A. I
anight, but 1 don't know them. They are not dressed tha same as they were at that

iime.
Q. No. 4, did you see him doing anything at any time. A. I seen him watch*

XDg the dance lodge. 1 saw him as a watchman at tbe door of this dance lodge.

Q. What was the dance, do you kuow ? A. I don't know. He had a hammer
or sometimes he had a stick in hio hand, to keep any young one from bothering any
©ne that was dancing.

Q. Was that the only thing that you recollect seeing him do ? A. Yes.

Q. No. 7, what did you see him doing, or did you see him doing anything ? A»
H did not see him doing anything, only walking around in the camp.

Q. How many times did you see him? A. I could not tell how many times.

Sometimes I might have seen him two or three times on Saturday, and sometimes

aone or two days without seeing him at all.

Q. Did you see any of them about the time of the Frenchman's Butte %bt t

JL. No 4, I saw coming through the camp with the Indian I wa^ stopping with. I
jseen him pass a couple of times. He went towards John Pmchard's tent and c&tme

l)ack again, and went towards the rifle pit then they were digging. We were mak-
ing rifle pits too at the same place we were camped

.

Q. What pits did you see him going towards ? A. He was going on the far*

jther side of the camp where those other ^en were digging rifle pits.

Q. How do you know they were rifle pits ? A . Because William Gladhue toM
;me. He came and asked me to go there.

Mr. jUobert&on.—Tnat is not evidence.

By Mr* Scott :

Q. Was that on the day of the fight? A. That was the day before?

Q. Was he carrying anything ? A. Not that I know of

.

Q. Had he any arms? A. I did not see no arms on him that day.

ij. Can you say that he had no arms that day? A. No, I can't say it.
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. Q. You mean you did not notice them ? A.I did not notice

.

Q. jNo. 4, did you see him armed that day ? A.I don't remember.
Q. Well, about these rifle pits, the only information you have about them is that

Gladhue told you there were rifle pits there ? A. They made us make some holes

right where we were camped. They called that a rifle pit too.

Q. Was it at the bottom of the coulee or on the side ? A. On the side of the
coul6e

.

Q. They were digging gome holes there? A. They made me dig some too.

Q. Did you hear any of them say what they were for, besides William Grladhue ?

A. Well, William Grladhue and his wife and some other one there said that they were
going to make those holes to hide themselves — the women and young ones.

Q. Do you know whether any other pits were made besides those that were for

the women and children to hide in ? A. The biggest part of the women, and children,

young ones, all had pits to hide themselves.

Q. Do you know of any others that were dug besides those that were to hide the
women and children? A. I did not see it myself, I only saw all the men taking axes
and picks to go and make some.

Q. You saw menj that is Indians ? A. Indians, and some women, with pick and
axe and pick and shovel.

Q. Which way did they go ; were they going up the side of the coulee ? A. Up
the side of the coulee.

Q. You did not see what they did ? A. I did not see what they did.

Q. Did the fight take place there at that coulee ? A. Well, the first time I
heard—the first shooting I heard—I was about a mile and a half or two miles from
,there.

Q. But you don't know whether the fight took place there or not, in that coulee,

around that coulee ? A. I don't know anything, only what I heard from the half-

breeds and Indians in the Indian camp, when they came in the camp.
Q Were the Indians you heard this from in the same band with these prisoners ?

A. They belonged to the same band 1 thought

.

Q. In the same camp ? A. We were camped pretty near always together.

Q. And you say you heard from some of those Indians something about the
fight? A. Yes.

Q. What did you hear ?

Mr. Eobertson. —That is not evidence.
Court.—They're Indians of the same band.
Mr. Eobertson.—The mere fact of their being Indians of the same band does not

make evidence against these prisoners. Let him show they were conspirators, and
then statements made by co-conspirators.

Witness.—Some were talking to Mr. Maclean and us all, they were talking before
everyone, we were camping.

Q. What do you mean by everyone ; were there other Indians ? A. All the
Indians that were there, and the prisoners.

Q. What did you hear them say ? A. " Police, police," that is the first thing I
heard, the Indians said that in Cree, " they're coming," I understand that in Oree
too, and they began to fight. All the Indians turned right back from there and went
towards the camp, I did not see them go right to the fight, I saw them leave the pit.

By Mr, Robertson

:

Q. When you say all the Indians went, you mean the great majority of them
went ? A. The biggest part of the Indians that I used to see in the camp.

Q. But you could not say that every single Indian that was there went ? A.
No, because I did not see the whole of them.

Q. As matter of fact, don't you know that a great many of them did not go at
all but went back ? A. They might. (This is interpreted to the prisoners.)

Witness, in answer to the court.—One whose name I don't know came to the
camp, and told Mr. Maclean and Mr. Maclean told me right off.

Q* Did you understand him ? A. I understood him, " police, police," and " kilL"
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Henry Halpin, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott :

Q. Where were you on the 2nd April ? A. I was at Coal Lake.
Q. How far is that from Frosj Lake? A. Between thirty and forty mites.

Q. What were you doing there? In charge of the post of the Hudson Bay
Company there.

Q. When did you come into Frog Lake after the 2nd April? A. I got in on tha
Sunday following, whatever day of the month it was.

Q. How did you happen to come in on that day ? I was taken prisoner by tha
Indians.

Q. Do you know what Indians ? A. Indians under Big Bear.
Q. Of Big Bear's band ? A. Of Big Bear's band, yes.

Q. At Coal Lake ? A. Yes, [ was taken prisoner at Coal Lake.
Q. And were brought into Frog Lake? A. Yes.

Q. And you got there on the 5th, and how long did you remain there; were yon:
detained as a prisoner? A, Yes. I was sixty-two days a prisoner.

Q. Of the same band? A. Yes.
Q. Did you go down to Fort Pitt about the 17th or 15th ? A. Yes.

Q. How? A. The Indians took me down.
Q. What had occurred there ? A. Well, there was a sort of a little skirmish there

with the police, and Fort Pitt was taken and looted.

Q. And what became of the people who were in the fort? A. Some of them,
were taken prisoners by the Indians, and the rest of them—the police went away.

Q. And others who were in the fort? A. Were taken prisoners.

Q. Were they detained? A. Yes.

Q, How long ? A.I don't know how long; they were detained up to the time*

I left.

Q. Did you see the looting of Fort Pitt ? A.I was on top of the hill when it

was going on

.

Q. You saw the Indians sacking the place? A. I did not see them; I knew
they were doing it.

Q. How do you know that ? A. Because they went down to Fort Pitt with that
intention when they did leave.

Q. How do you know that? A. I saw a good many of the Indians with the
stuff in their possession, after they had done it.

Q. Well, did you hear any of them say anything about it ? A. I heard lots of
them talking about it.

Q. To you or among themselves? A. Among themselves, and to me too.

Q. What were they saying, as to their intention, when speaking among them-
selves? A. Well, that they were going to try and get what goods they could get,
and try and be well off for a while.

Q. Did they say where they were going to get the goods? A. They started
down to Fort Pitt for the goods when they left.

Q. Was there anyone killed at Fort Pitt that you saw ? A. Yes, policeman Cowan*
Q. Did you see him killed ? A. Yes, I saw him fall off his horse when he was shot.

Q. By whom was he shot ? A. Shot by a man who was killed at Fort Pitt.

Q. And was that man alone when he was shooting, or were there others? A*
No; there was a whole crowd of them shooting.

Q. Where did the shooting occur ? A. Eight on top of the hill, at Fort Pitt.

Q. Many Indians there ? A. Two hundred or three hundred.
Q. The main body were there, near the place where Cowan was killed ? A. Yos«
Q. They sacked Fort Pitt, and where did they go after sacking it ? A. Took us

back to Fiog Lake.

Q. And how long did you remain there ? A. At Frog Lake, till about the 5th May,
Q. And where did you go then ? A. Down to Fort Pitt again.

Q. With the main body ? A. Yes, with the whole camp.
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Q. And from Fort Pitt where ? A. Travelled all about the country, anywhere

at all that they wanted to take us,

Q. Were you in the neighborhood of Frenchman's Butte the 28th of May? A.

I got away that morning.

Q. You mean you escaped ? A. I escaped.

Q. Any trouble there on that day or the day before ? A. There was some shoot-

ing going on. I could hear the firing going on.

Q* Did you know what it was about ? A . I had a very good idea of what it

was about.

Q. Did you hear from the Indians what it was about ? A. I heard from all

ih® Indians talking about it.

Q, You heard them talking about it to whom ? A. Amongst themselves.

Q. That ia where you gained your information ? A. Yes.

Q. About what the trouble was about ; what was the information you gained ?

A. Well, that the soldiers had come ; the policemen had come, and they were going

to fight them, and try and get the prisoners out of their hands.

Q. And did you hear the Indians say anything as to what they intended to do ?

A. Yes, 1 heaid they were goiDg to fight.

Q. Do you know whether or not they did fight ? A. They did fight.

Q. Did you eee them ? A. I did not see them fighting.

Q How do you know they fought ? A. I could hear them. For the most part

<of the time I was only 500 or 600 yards from where they were fighting.

Q. That was on the 28th May ? A. Yes.

Q. What were they doing on the 27th ? A. Well, the 27th, we were employed

digging pits.

Q. What kind of pits ? A. Pits to keep out of the road of shell or bullets or

anything that wanted to come into the camp.

Q. Where were they? A. Just over the hill at Ked Deer Creek. There was a

creek and a hill, and then we were back of rising ground, and behind that rising

ground

.

Q. You were not in the coulee of the Red Deer? A. Yes, I was right in the

tcoulee of the Eed Deer. That is what I am alluding to.

Q. Were theso pits on top of the hill or were they not, or whereabouts? A,
rSome of them on top of the hill. The pits where we were, for the prisoners and

women were back over the side ol the hill.

Q. How do you know there were rifle pits on top of the hill? A. Because I

saw them

.

Q. Do you know by whom they were made ? A. No, I could not pick out the

special per»ou.

Q. Do you know whether they were made by— ? A. Made by Indians.

Q. Huw do you know ? A. Because I heard some of the headmen—Wander-
ing Spirit among others—come and tell his young men to come and do it.

Q. Come and do what ? A. Dig pits.

Q. Did he say what kind of pits ? A. No, he did not.

Q. Then you saw these pits up there afterwards ? A, Yes.

Q. This was the day before the fight? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know whether they were making any preparations besides digging

the pit; were they doing anything else? A. There was a sort of skirmish that day

in the afternoon about 3 o'clock. We could hear cannons fired at them three times

at a few Indians outside.

Q. Where were you at this time ? A. In digging pits in the camp.

Q. Do you know any of these men ? A. 1 know their faces, all with the excep-

tion of one.

Q. Which one is it you don't know ? A. No. 5.

Q. Did you see them while you were a prisoner in that camp ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see No. 5 at any time ? A. No, I don't recollect seeing that man
stall.
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Q . You don't remember his face ? A . No

.

Q. Where did you see the others? A. In the camp.
Q. When ? A. During the time I was prisoner.

Q. More than once? A. Yes, I saw them frequently.

Q. Have you any means of telling when you first s*iw them in the camp after
your arrival, and when you last saw them ? A.I don't remember when I saw them
first; take them all one after another, I could not tell exactly what day I saw
them on, but I saw them frequently during all the time in the camp.

Q. Then they formed part of the camp I suppose ? A. Yes.
Q. You saw them frequently? A. Yes.
Q. Have you any recollection of anything done by any one of them ? A. No, I

have nothing special against any one of them

.

Q. Do you remember having seen any of them on the 27th or the 28th of May?
A. Yes, I think there was the first and second there ; I think I saw them the day
before I left.

By Mr. Robertson:

Q. That was the day before the fight? A. Yes.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. What were they doing ? A. Just walking through the place where we
weremakiog rifle pits.

Q. What did they do when they were walking through there, or did they do
anything ? A. The only thing I saw them do there was eating.

Q. Were they armed? A. I did not pay particular attention to whether
they were or not ; I could not swear at the time I saw them whether they were armed
or not. •

Q. Do you remember having seen any of them at Fort Pitt on the 16th or 17th?
A. Yes, I do.

Q. Which? A. The 7th I remember seeing him, and the first one and the
sixth too.

Q. You saw those there that day ? A. Yes.
Q. What were they doing ? A. Walking^about on top of the hill.

Q. Did you see them at the fort ? A. No", I did not ; I was not at the fort that
day myself.

Q. Was it before or after the fort was taken that the Indians got possession of
it, of the fort, you saw them walking about on top of the hill ? A. Before, and
after, too.

Q. Would you swear whether or not they were down at the fort ? A.I would
not swear they were, and I would not swear they were not.

Q. But you saw them in that neighborhood on that day ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you see them armed at any time, any of these men ? A. No, I can't

pick out any one personally, and gay that I can remember at any time seeing them
armed ; they were nearly all armed then ; I suppose they were armed.

Q. What was the condition of the camp as to arms ? A. The condition of the
camp—everybody that had arms kept them by them.

Q. They were an armed party ? A. ¥es, they were.
Q. Do you know anything about the Indian customs ? A. Yes, a little.

Q. Do you know what a war-whoop is ? A No, 1 don't.

Q. You don't know anything about it? A. No.
Q. Are the Indians in the habit of shouting ? A. Yes, they generally—I heard

lots of shouting.

Q. Under what circumstances ? A. Almost any circumstances.

Q. Then the fact of an Indian shouting is not to be taken very strongly against
him ? A. No, I don't think so.
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By Mr. Robertson

:

Q . How long have you been acquainted with the Indians and their customs ? A.

About fourteen years.
\

(Interpreted to the prisoners.)

William Tompkins sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott

:

Q. You live at Carlton, I understand ? A. Yes.

Q And you are interpreter for the Indian Department ? A. Yes.

Q. You were taken prisoner near Duck Lake on the 18th March last, were you

not ? A. Yes, at Batoche

.

Q. By whom ? A. Kiel and his followers.

Q. What did his following consist of, what number ? A. Four to five hundred.

Q*. In what state were they? A. Kebellion.

Q. They were in rebellion ? A. Yes.

Q. Armed ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know what their object was? A. As far as I can understand they

•wanted to have a new government.

Q. Was there any righting ? A. Yes.

Q. With whom? A. With the police at one time.

Q. Where ? A. At Duck Lake and Fish Creek, with the troops under General

Hid'^leton and at Batoche aloo.

Q. On what date was Batoche ? A. 12th May.

Q. Were ) ou a prisoner up to that time ? A. Yes.

Q. On the 18th March ? A. Yes.

Q. Held by these men ? A. Yes. .

Q. Any people killed ? A. Yes, quite a number killed.

Q. Where ? A. There were nine that I took off the field at Duck Lake.

Q. There were nine killed at the Duck Lake fight, when was that ? A. 26th

March, n ne volunteer*—I don't know how many police were killed.

Q. Were there any other prisoners besides yourself ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Robertson:

Q. How far are Duck Lake and Batoche from Frog Lake ? A. Four hundred

miles. I should think.
m ,

Q. How far from Fort Pitt ? A. I could not say how far it is. I don t know the

distance from Pitt to Frog Lake.

By the Court :

Q. You have probably not been up there at all have you ? A* No.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. What distance is it commonly reputed to be from Duck Lake and Batoche to

Fort Pitt. A. Well, there is different opinions on that. I have heard it said it is

400 miles, it is 200 or 2.">0, 1 don't know exactly.

Q. It is a long distance at all events? A. Yes, quite a distance.

(Interpreted to prisoners).

Case for the Crown here closed.

Mr. Robertson for the defence says he has no witnesses.

ADDRESS OF THE CROWN COUNSEL.

Mr. Scott.—May it please your Honors, and gentlemen of the jury. You have now

heard all the evidence that we have been able to gather to throw light upon charges

laid against the prisoners. You have observed that all the evidence we could gather

is from the prisoners who were in Big Bear's camp from the 2nd day of April up to
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about the 28th May, some of them after that date . Now, as I said in my opening
address I doubted whether we could from any of the evidence that we have collected
in this case, bring home to any one of these prisoners any glaring outrage in connec-
tion with the rebellion, and as it turns oat, the evidence has not disclosed anything of
that kind. It has disclosed this much, however, that these men were present in the
camp of Big Bear and other bands who were associated with him, and that those
bands were in open rebellion against the Government. That rebellion commenced the
2nd April at Frog Lake, at which the settlement there was taken possession of
by Indians—perhaps by these. It is not shown conclusively that these Indians took
any part in that outrage, but it is shown that it was taken by Indians with whom
they were living and acting.

Afterwards at Fort Pitt on the 17th April, that place was attacked and looted, and
a policeman was killed tnere by this same Indian band, and then on the 28th May at
Frenchman's Butte, a battle ensued between the mounted police and the soldiers, the
forces of the Government on one side, and these same Indian bands on the other.
Now, it is possible that at the massacre at Frog Lake, that if these men had severed
their connection with the other Indians who were guilty of that massacre on that
ocoasion, there would have been no charge against them, but they must have known
at that time—an Indian must know as well as anyone that it is against the law to
kill any person, that if he continues to associate with people whose avowed object is

the killing of unoffending citizens, and travels around the country committing out-
rages of a like nature, it is scarcely proper that they should escape punishment. An
Indian has got to be taught as well as any other person that he must not associate
with characters of that kind, and that if he does associate with them, and becomes to
a certain extent a party to those transactions, that he must be punished for them
accordingly. Those who have committed any of the outrages, those who have
assisted, and who have been secured by the government will be punished in their
proper course for the crimes they have committed ; but having been part of which,
it is not safe, I submit to your Honors and gentlemen, that these men should be
allowed to go entirely free, because if these men are to escape punishment, then the
country will not be safe at any time. These men being led to believe that although
they may join a larger body of men who are committing outrages of that kind and
taking part in them, that unless they take a leading part and commit some outrages
themselves, they will escape and be allowed to go free again, then we will have these
outrages in all parts of the country, and there will be no salety for the settlers.

There is no question bat what the offence these men committed, although per-

haps, a light offence as compared with the outrages some of the others committed, is

an offence against the law, and a punishment should be meted out. Perhaps I am
anticipating in saying this, I assume, and I think ycta. will assume that the evidence
shows conclusively that although some of these prisoners—it is not necessary for me>

to distinguish whom, were at Frog Lake—it is shown conclusively th at a short time
after the massacre those who were not there on that occasion continued with the band
and remained with them at least up to the time of the Battle of Frenchman's Butte,
that is shown conclusively by the evidence. It is shown also that that band was in
open rebellion against the Government, that they were travelling around the country
committing depredations of all kinds and were in a state of open war, and these men
were with them, and that is the offence with which they are charged ; that they were
conspiring with others to levy war against the Government. I think his Honor will

tell you that that conspiracy is sufficiently proved if it is shown that these men were
acting in conjunction with those who were actually levying war against %h&
government.

Mr. Robertson.—I have nothing to say, your Honor.

JUDGE'S CHARGE.

Court.—Gentlemen, these nine unfortunates before you are in your hands to say
whether they should be left free or subjected to such punishment as the court may
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flee fit to award them. The offence which is charged against them is one of a similar

nature to some that have already been tried in thin court room, and probably the word-
ing of it is so well rooted upon the minds of everyone of the community and everyone*

who has heard it, that it would be quite unnecessary for me and a waste of time^

with no good result, to detail to you fully what lorms the offence. This much it is*

my duty to tell you, that they are charged under what is called the Treason-Felony-

Act, with having been assembled and assisting in rebellion against the Government*
In our form of proceeding, there are two methods by which these prisoners could be>

tried; one would be a summary trial before myself, the other, as we see it to-dayr
according to the election of the prisoners, who elect how they shall be tried. They
have said they prefer being tried by a jury, and that is the purpose for which yot&

are empannelled.
.Now, all I think I shall tell you will be this, that it is not absolutely neces-

sary, in order to constitute this crime, that a man should be seen carrying a rifle or m
bayonet or a sword . That is not necessary at all. If a number of men band them-
selves together. The law I am now reading to you is so dpropos and meets the>

case in a few words, meets every case of the sort in a few words, and I cannot, I think^

do better than give you the words of the highest court of the land in a series of very
similar cases

:

" If a number of men band themselves together for an unlawful purpose (nowr

the unlawful purpose which is charged here is rebellion,) and in pursuit of their

object, commit murder, it is right that the court should pointedly refuse to accept
the proposition that a full share of responsibility for their acts does not extend to*

the surgeon who accompanies them to dress their wounds, the clergyman who attends

to offer spiritual consolation, or to the reporter who volunteers to witness and record*

their achievements, the presence of anyone in any character aiding and abetting or
encouraging the prosecution of the unlawful design, must involve a share in the*

common guilt.''

Now, there are two points that I wish to draw your attention to. You have;

heard the evidence here. Taking it as an axiom that no man should be brought in

guilty unless the conclusion is brought irresistibly home to the minds oi the jury,,

that the evidence has established guilt against him, the first question which I want
you to ask yourselves, and I want you to answer yourselves, is, was there a state o£
rebellion ? That is one thing. If there was a state of rebellion against the Govern-
ment, were these men aware of it ? If they were aware and cognizant oi it, then did:

they by their presence in any capacity, did they aid and abet? Now, those are the

questions. If you find that they did, if you cannot draw any other conclusion, irres-

istibly, as I say, come to that conclusion, then the verdict should be " guilty." If, on>

the other hand, you fall short of an absolute conclusion upon this evidence that they
are implicated, then you ought to say " not guilty." Now, it may be that instead of
finding them all involved, they are not all involved. If that should be the case, you
will recollect it should be your duty to' say which of them are so involved. If none
are, then it will be a general verdict of acquittal. If some are and others not. if you:

think the evidence brings home guilt to some and not to others, why name those

some. They are numbered as they stand from left to right, and you can, in return-

ing and giving me the result of your deliberations, either give the number or the;

name.
You will now retire and consider, and all that I ask you is to recollect and bear

in mind that they are entitled to the same consideration, notwithstanding they are

Indians, they are entitled to the same consideration at your hands as if they were>

white.

Jury retire at 3.30 p.m., and return in one hour with a verdict of " guilty," five

of the jury adding " mercy."
Court adjourned to pass sentence on 25th instant.
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QUEEN vs. POUNDMAKER.

Canada,
^North-West Territories j

The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of Ham-
ilton, in the Province of Ontario and Dominion of Canada, chief of police, taken the

iifteer> fh day of August, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
eighty -live, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in

and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith :
—

That Pe-to cah-han-a-wa-win, otherwise called Poundmaker, not regarding the

duty of his allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love, obedience, fidelity and
allegiance which every true and faithful subject of our Lady the Queen does and of

right ought to bear towards our said Lady the Queen, on the second day of May, in

the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other

<days, as well before as after that date, together with divers other evil disposed per-

sons to the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, did, within the Dominion of

Canada, compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy war against our said

Lady the Queen within Canada, in order, by force and constraint, to compel her to

change her measures and counsels, and the said felonious compassing and imagina-

tion, invention, device and intention then feloniously did express, utter and declare,

by divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say, in order to fulfil,

perfect and bring into effect his felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device

and intention aforesaid, he, the said Pe-to-cah-han-a-wa-win, otherwise called Pound-

maker, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-seventh day of March, in the year aforesaid,

and on divers other days and time3, as well before as after that day, at and near the

locality called Battleford, in the North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire,

consult, confederate, assemble and meet together, with divers other evil disposed

persons to the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to raise, make and levy

insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this realm.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious compassing,

imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Pe-to-cah-han-a-wa-

win, otherwise called Poundmaker, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-ninth day of

April, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as

after that day, at or near the locality known as Cut Knife Hill, in the said North-

Weet Territories of Canada, together with certain other evil disposed persons to the

said Alexander David Stewart unknown, feloniously and wickedly did express, utter

and declare his said felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device and inten-

tion by the feloniously publishing a certain letter or writing addressed to one Louis

Kiel, who was then with certain other evil disposed persons to the said Alexander

David Stewart unknown, in open rebellion and insurrection against our said Lady
the Queen, in the said North-West Territories of Canada, in the words following, to

wit:

—

11 Cut Knife Hill, 29th April, 1885.
Uc rji ^R< Louis Eiel :

" I want to hear news of the progress of God's work. If any event has occurred

>since your messengers came away, let me know of it. Tell me the date when the

.Americans will reach the Canadian Pacific Railway. Tell me all the news that you

Ihave heard from all places where your work is in progress. Big Bear has finished

his work ; he has taken Fort Pitt. If you want me to come to you let me know at

once, he said, and I sent for him at once. I will be four days on the road.
^
Those

who have gone to see him will sleep twice on the road. They took twenty prisoners,

including the massacre at Fort Pitt. They killed eleven men, including the agent,

two priests and six white men. We are camped on the creek just below Cut Knife

Hill, waiting for Big Bear. The Blackfeet have killed sixty police at the Elbow. A
half-breed who interpreted for the police, having survived the fight, though wounded,

brought this news. Here we have killed six white men. We have not taken the
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barracks yet, but that is the only entire building in Battleford. All the cattle and
horses in the vicinity we have taken. We have lost one man, Nez Perce killed, he
being alone, and one wounded. Some soldiers have come from Swift Current, but
I do not know their number. We have here guns and rifles of all sorts, but ammuni-
tion for them is short. If it be possible, we want you to send us ammunition of
various kinds . We are weak only for the want of that. You sent word that you
would come to Battleford when you had finished your work at Duck Lake. We
wait still for you, as we are unable to take the fort without help. We are impatient
to reach you. It would give us—encourage us much to see you, and make us work
more heartily. Up to the present everything has gone well with us, but we are
constantly expecting the soldiers to visit us here. We trust that God will be as kind
to us in the future as he has in the past. We, the undersigned, send greeting to you
all.

" POUNDMAKER.
« CO-PIN-OU-WAY-WIN.
" MUS-SIN-ASS.
" MET-TAY-WAY-IS.
" PEK-YAY-CHEEW.

" When this reaches you, send us news immediately, as we are anxious to hear
the news. If you send us news, send as many men as possible."

He, the said Pe-to-cah-han-a-wa-win, otheiwise called Poundmaker, then well
knowing that the said Louis Kiel and the said other evil-disposed persons were then,
in open rebellion and insurrection against our said Lady the Queen.

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing, imagi-
nation, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Pe-to-cah-han-a-wa-win,
otherwise called Ponndmaker, afterwards, to wit, on the second day of May, in the
year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as after that dayy
at or near the locality known as Cut Knife Hill, in the said North-West Territories
of Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together, with divers
other evil-disposed persons to the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to raise,

make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within,
this realm, and further to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious compassing
imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Pe-to-cah-han-a-
wa-win, otherwise called Poundmaker, afterwards, to wit, on the fourteenth day of
May, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on
divers^ other days, as well before as after that day, at or near the place called Eagle
Hills, in the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid,with force and arms, wickedly
and feloniously did assemble, meet, conspire and consult with certain other evil*
disposed persons to the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to seize and take
possession by force certain goods and merchandise belonging to Her said Majesty the
Queen, which were then being carried and transported from the locality known as
Swift Current to the locality known as Battleford, in the said North-West Territories
aforesaid, for Her said Majesty, and for the use and benefit of Her said Majesty, in
contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil example of all others
in the like case offending against the form of the statute in such case made and
provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.
Sworn before me the day and year first above ^)

mentioned, at the town of Eegina, in the [• A. D, STEWART.
North-West Territories of Canada. J

Hugh Richardson,

A Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the said North-West Territories.

And take notice, that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary
magistrate and a justice of the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or before
a stipendiary magistrate, in a summary way, without the intervention of a jury.
Which do you elect?
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a

Monday, 17th August, 10 a.m.

Before Mr. Justice Richardson and Dr. Dodd, J.P.

The Queen against Poundmaker.

Messrs. B. B. Osier, Q.C., T. 0. Casgrain and D. L. Scott appear as counsel for

4116

mTf'. Beverley Bobertson counsel for prisoner, with Mr. J. H. Benosh.

Mr. Peter Hourie sworn as Cree interpreter. ,,„..... ,

Indictment read to the prisoner, and interpreted while it is being read.

Clerk to pritoner.-Are you " guilty " or " not guilty" ? Prisoner says he is " not

guilty." ftft ' . . , o

Clerk.—Are you ready for your trial ?

Mr. Bobertson.—Quite ready.

Clerk to prisoner.—These good men that you shall now hear called are those

that are to pass between our Sovereign Lady the Queen and you. If, therefore you

winChallenge them, or any of them, you must challenge them as they come to the

bock to be sworn, and before they are sworn, and you shall be heard.

Aiurvof six is now called and sworn. •

Clerk reads indictment to the jury. On this charge he prisoner at the bar has

h en arraigned, and upon the arraignment has pleaded " not guilty Your duty,

therefore; !s to enquire whether "guilty" or "not guilty," and hearken to the

eV,de
Mr

e
"Scott.-Gentlemen of the jury, the charge against the prisoner which yoa

have just heard read is for an offence of a very serious nature, but you will gather

from the evidence that will be produced in this case on the part of the Crown that it

is ^t the most serious offence that could be charged against h,m, and fully supported

fcy the sarn^ evidence. It has been thought advisable however, that the charge for

the more^erious offence of treason should be preferred only against the one who was

TnTnwn to be and who has been proved to be the instigator and leader of the late

xXZn in the north, and that those who were merely followers of that leader

should be charged only with the lesser offence of treason- felony, wh.ch is the charge

now^eferred fgainst the prisoner. In speaking of the rebellion in the north, I am

Bp^ffof a mftter of common notoriety, and one in which the events and circum-

stances connected with it are doubtless well known to you all
;
but I may here tell

to^ that it iBVOur duty to put aside from your minds altogether any knowledge or

reformat on a^rthe faJ of the rebellion having existed in the north or of the events

and circumstances connected with it or of the prisoner's complicity in it, and in dis-

poLr"f tMs case to consider only such ev.dence as may be produced before you

ZTJ, reUUng to that rebellion and to the circumstances connected with it We
wili h.wever prove that there was a rebellion in the north; that about the 18th

March rsrin\heTeighborhood of Batoche and Buck Lake and the South Saskatche-

vLn a large body of half-breeds and Indians, under the leadership of Louis RieL

£oke* nto
g
open rebellion against the Government, and with the avowed in ention^of

overthrowing the Government's power in that part o) the country and sett ng up a

Gwer Zel in oppolhion to it "that about the 25th Ma.ch last, these rebels met a

forrof mounted poiice and volunteers at Duck Lake, under the leadership ana

command of MajorCrozier ; that an engagement ensued, and
J^ » ^^Sarif

volunteers and policemen were killed and wounded during that fight that afterwards

«nspveral occasions these same rebels met forces of the Government under General

l^^S^ghtlStom, and that a large number of lives were lost and a good

many People wonted; and that these rebels were in open and active
>

rebeUiOD-

3st tSe Government from the Ifcth March till the 13th May when they were

Sted by tie forces nnder General M.ddleton, and Biel himself, the leader, was

taken prisoner and the prisoners taken by him were released I forgot to mention

in the Ct Zee that theW open act of rebellion on the part of those rebels was

S^eand^under certain houses and stores of the settlers in that part of the
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country who were not in sympathy with them and make other settlers prisoners and
all that happened on the 18th March. That was the first open act on the part of the
rebels in that vicinity.

That is a history of the rebellion in that part of the country, so far as it relates
to the case against the prisoner. The prisoner is a Cree Indian, the chief of a band
of Crees, who are liviDg under the Government's protection and occupy a reserve
situated about forty or fifty miles west of Battleford. They were residing peaceably
on their reserve until about the end of March last, when the prisoner, with his band
left the reserve and marched towards Battleford. On their way to Battleford they
were joined by a number of other bands under different chiefs, who were settled upon
reserves in the same neighborhood. These other chiefs became subservient to the
prisoner, and he was recognize! as the leader and chief of the whole body of these
Indians. They went to Battleford, reaching there on the 29th and 28th of March.
On their approach, the residents of the town (settlers) became alarmed and with-
drew into the police barracks there for protection, and the Indians then sacked and
plundered the business portion of the town of Battleford and the Government buildings
in the vicinity. For a reason, which appears in the letter which you have just heard
read, or possibly for that reason, they did not attack the fort, but they retired from
the vicinity of Battleford and went to a place called Cut Knife Hill, which, I under-
stand, is about forty or fifty miles west of Battleford. There they remained until
some time after the 2nd of May. Sometime during the month of April, some mes-
sengers from the rebel camp at Duck Lake and Batoche arrived at the prisoner's
camp at Cut Knife. They brought with them a letter from Louis Kiel and
his so called council, which was handed to Poundmaker, and read to him, inter-
preted to him in his own language. This letter is written in French, but I
have a translation, which I will now read to you. (Mr. Scott here reads the letter
referred to, and set out in full in paper annexed to this.) That is a translation of the
letter that was handed to Poundmaker and read to him. Sometime after the receipt
of that letter, the prisoner, w ; th a number of others who were then in the camp with
him, presumably his head men, dictated a letter, presumably in reply to the letter I
have just read—-the letter which was read to you in the charge. However, I will
read it again, as it follows in the natural sequence. (Mr. Scott here re-reads letter
referred to in the indictment.) After this letter was dictated by the prisoner and the
others, it was handed to one of the rebel messengers frosa Batoche, who was then in
the camp, for delivery to Louis Eiel. On the 2nd ofMay, Col. Otter, in command of a
force of Government troops, moved out from Battleford, apparently with the inten-
tion ofreducing the prisoner and his band and the other bands to subjection. They
came up to the prisoner and his band to the camp at Cut Knife Hill, and a fight ensued
there. The troops were opposed by the Indians. The prisoner himself was seen on the
battle-field apparently directing the movements of the Indians against the troops, and
was driving about from one place to another in a bnck-board, I understand. Col.
Otter withdrew his troops and returned to Battleford, leaving the prisoner and his
band in possession of Cut Knife. They remained there for some days after that fight,
but finally the whole band, under this prisoner's command, moved towards Duck
Lake, that is, they passed apparently south of Battleford and went along in an east-
erly direction, which is the direction, leading to Duck Lake. About the 14th May,
while on their way to Duck Lake, they attacked a number of transport teams which
were conveying Government stores from Swift Current to Battleford for the use of
the troops there. They seised and plundered these waggons and the stores that they
contained, and made prisoners of the teamsfcers; and then, as I understand, moved
on towards Duck Lake. However, shortly after the attack on these teams—tran-
sport teams—and after the rebels had been defeated by General Middleton at Batoche,
the prisoner, with his men, came in and surrendered to General Middleton at
Battleford.

Now, you will understand that under this charge, as laid, it is not necessary to
prove that the prisoner actually levied war against the Qaeen—against the Govern-
ment. It is only necessary to prove that he conspired with that intention, and that
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he designed and intended to levy war. We are going farther than that-we *ja

sroimr to show that on these three occasions I have mentioned he actually levied war,

that is, first, at the sacking of Battleford, 27th March ;
second, m opposing the Gov^

ernment troops at Cat Knife Bull, 2nd May ; and third, in the attack and seizare ot

the transport teams, and the taking of the prisoners there. That » no necessary a*

I said before, but the letter that I have just read to you, which he dictated to Loa«

Biel, is evidence of his intention and design to levy war; but the acts which I have>

just mentioned to you are the very best evidence of such an intention, because wnat

better evidence could you have of his intention to levy war than the fact that war

was actually levied by him ? >

I will now proceed to call the evidence for the prosecution.

BOBBBT JEPFBR80N, SWOrn I
—

Examined by Mr. Scott :

Q Where do you live, Mr. Jefferson ? A. I live in Battleford, or near Battleford.

Q. Whereabouts near Battleford, at what place ? A. Eagle Hills.

Q. What is your occupation ? A. I was for six years a schoolmaster on Eagles

TPTills t*oflGrve ?

Q, What was your occupation in March last? A. I was farm instructor mt

.Poundmaker's reserve.
. 9 m ~-

Q. You were farm instructor on the prisoner's reserve m Starch last t £L x.o»*

Q. Then you were living on his reserve ? A. I was living there.

Q. You know the prisoner, of course ? A. I know him.

Q. Did you see him on his reserve in March last ? A. I did.

Q. Up to what time was he there ? A. Up to the morning they went away.

Q. When was that. A. It would be about the 26th, I think. I would mot fee*

sure whether it was the 25th or 27th.

Q. He went away ; was anyone with him ? A. I did not see them going away,,

but he aaid he was going. He said he was not going to ask anybody to go, bat hp

would not tell them to stop if they were going with him.

Q. He went away himself, that is what he said ? A. Yes.

(This is now translated in Oree to the prisoner.)

Q. Where did you next see him after he went away ?—A. I think it would h&

on the last day of March.

Q. Where ?—A. At the creek, at Cat Knife Creek, that is about a mile from tk©

bouse* '

.,

Q. Is that near Cat Knife Hill?—A. It is aboat 2 or 3 miles from it.

Q. At the Creek near Cat Knife Hill about the last of March ?—A. Yes, about;

the last day of March I think it would be then, I would not be sure, it might bava

been the 1st day of April.

Q. Who where with him at that time ?—A. His brother Yellow Mud.

Q. There was more than one or two men with him?—A* I beg your pardon,

there was not, it was in the tent I saw him next.

Q. Did you see any other Indians there ?—A. In the tent ?

Q. No, camped around him?—A. Oh, yes, there was all the band camped around

there. _.
Q. All his own band were with him, women and children as well ?—A. Women

and children as well.

Q, Then all his band had moved off their reserve ?—A. It was still on their

reserve, but away from where they were before.

By the Court :

Q. Away from the settlement ? A. Away from the ho JS93. Yes.

By Mr Scott :

Q. Away from where they usually lived, all the ban! were there ? A. I tMafc

so. 1 coald not say. I did not go out of the tent.
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Mr. Kobertson.—I must ask my learned friend not to put words into the witness?
month, he can ask who was there and how many were there, but he is not to tellMm he wishes to say they all were there. Mr. fcicott has pressed it two or three
times.

Mr. Scott.—I suspected there were others there than Poundmaker.
Q. Were there any others there besides the prisoner and his band ?^A. Not

"when I saw him next.

Q. Well do you know of any others being camped in that same place at any
-time?—A. Yes, the others came afterwards about a day or two. I am not very
mjstb about the time.

(This is now translated into Cree to the prisoner.)
Q. Who were the others?—A. Stonys, Crees and Stonys, and other bands of

Cree Indians.

Q. Do you know what other bands?—A. Yes, there was Little Pine's band

.

Q How many, about how many ? A. One hundred I suppose ; there would be
~more than 100, I could not say.

Q. What other bands ?—A. Strike-him-on the-back's band, I suppose, about 300,
Q. Any others ?—A. Ked Pheasant's band, I suppose about 100, perhaps a littl*

wer.
Q. Did you leave Poundmaker's reserve the prisoner's reserve, when he left A»

Q. How long did you remain after he left ? A. On the reserve ?
Q. Yes? A. Until it would be about the 10th May or so; I could not say

exactly to a day or two, it would be about the 10th or 11th May.
Q. That you remained in the settlement ? A. No, on the reserve, it was some

distance off the settlement.

Q. When did you leave the settlement? A. I left it on the 29th March.
Q. And where did you go to from the settlement ? A. I went to the camp.
Q. You hadn't the prisoner with his band at the camp ? A. The prisoner wasn't

ihere yet
Q. The prisoner wasn't there ? A. No.
Q. I understood you to say you saw him ? A. I saw him there, but he came

:&£fcetrwards.

Q. When did he come ?. A. Just as it was getting dark.
Q. On the tame day ? A. On the same day.
Q. Prom anything he said—or did he say anything as to what he had been doing

in the mean time ? A. No, it was principally personally that he spoke—I don't
remember—my mind was too occupied to

Q. You did not know what they had been doing from the time they left you in
1he settlement until you joined them at Cut Knife Creek

j you did not know ? A*
l^o, I didn't know.

Q. How long did they remain at Cot Knife? A. Until this time that I speak of,
'Afi 10th May. r *

Q. Then, did they all leave together ? A. Yes, all together.
Q. And you left with them ? A. Yes.
Q. While you were thereat Cut Knife, in the month of April, did anything

occur unusual ? A. Oh, yes, everything was unusual, there was so many things
^occurred that

Q. Were there any visitors ? A. Yes.
Q. Who and what ? A. A half-breed and an Indian came up from Kiel
Q. How did you know they came from Kiel ? A. I saw them. I didn't see them

tome from Kiel, but everybody said they came from Kiel.
Q. Did you hear the prisoner say anything about that? A. I must have hoard,

urn say something about it. I don't recollect anything particular about it.

Q. Did they bring anything with them ? A. They brought a letter*
Q. Did you see the letter ? A. I did.

Q. Where did you see it ? A. In Poundmaker's tent.
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Q. Was he there when you were looking at it? A. Yes.

Q. He was there ? A. Yes.

Q. You saw it in his possession ? A. Yes.

(Letter put in, marked Exhibit No. 1.)

Mr. Kobertson.—This is putting words in the witness mouth.

Mr. Justice Kichardson.—Perhaps you will teach me how to do it.

Mr, Kobertson.—I thought I objected in the proper way.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Is that the letter ? A. That is the letter.

O. Did you hear that read ? A. I did.

Q By whom ? A . By a man called Delorme ; he is the man that brought it.

Q. Bead to whom ?. A. To a tent full of Indians, the big tent it was.

Q. Was the prisoner there ? A. He was.
,

fl

.

Q. You say it was read by a man named Delorme, do you know his first name 1

A
* *Q' Was there anyone with him when he was reading the letter? (This is trans-

lated to the prisoner in Cree.) A. Except a tent full of Indians.

Q. Any of those that came with him? A. I think the other man was with him.

Q. What is the other man's name? A. Jay-kee-kum, Chic-i-cum, 1 believe ho

was there.^ ^^ my other name he had ? A . I did not at the time. I know*

Mm now, they call him « Boss Bull," I think.

Q. He is an Indian ? A. Yes, I think so.

(Translated into Cree to the prisoner, what has been said by the witness about

the^er
^)

e ]eUer was read
.

n what langnage ? A. I believe it was read in French,

I am pretty nearly sure about it. I would not swear to it at all.

Q. Was it read in any other language ? A. Well, then he translated it into-

Cree, Delorme did.

Q. In the prisoner's presence? A. Yes.

Q Is that (Exhibit No. 2) the letter ? A. Yes.
m

Q How did you happen to write that second letter ? A. I was in the tent, and

a man they called Pee-yay-cheew, an Indian from Red Pheasant's came to the tent

and said 1 was wanted, and I got up and went with him and went into the ten
,
in

the middle, and these men were sitting there, sitting in the tent, and it was said they

wanted me to write a letter to Kiel.

Q. Who said that ? A. I could not say who it was.

Q. Was that after you got into the tent ? A. Yes.
#

Q. What was done with the letter after you wrote it at their dictation t A. 1

conld^not^say.^^ ^^ ^ ? ^ ^^ J
,^ ft ^ gome of them> but T don,t

know^whom it was.^^ ^^ ^ ^ ? ^ ^^ .

g^^^ j knQw of
.

fc

(This is translated in Cree to the prisoner.) ... ,„

Q. What do you know about it since ? A. They read it to some halt-breeds—

the half-breeds read it themselves.

Q. Where ? A. In another tent.

Q. How did it get to that other tent ? A. I could not say.

Q. Were you in the other tent when you heard it ? A. 1 was. _ #

Q. Who were the half-breeds that read it ? A. It was a man called Jobm, 1

believe, that read it,

Q. Do you know his first name ? A. I don't.

Q. What nationality was he ?-A. I think he was a half-breed, I would not be

sure. I never saw the man before.

Q. You heard them reading it in this tent ? A. I did.

Q„ ^"as the prisoner there ? A. He was there.
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Q. Was there any conversation between them that you heard ?

only one messenger,
and I put

:
bend only one messenger ; and when the man read this, he said it was

mot good, so he altered it. I did not see—at least, I believe he altered it. It was
understood to have been altered.

Q. Will you look at the letter and see if there is an alteration in it, and bywhom it was made, if you know ? A. It is on the last page—*' if you sond us news,
send only one messenger."

Q. Now, look at the bottom of the page, whose writing is that ? A. I could not
say.

Q. You don't know ? A. No.
Q. Does that letter show the alteration you speak of ? A. It does.
Q. You say that Poundmaker was present in the tent, at the time this letter was

being read ? A. Yes.

Q. Did he hear the conversation about the alteration you speak of ? A. He did :

at least I presume he did, I could not say.

Q. Did he say anything about it ? A. I don't remember.
Q. At all events he was present ? A. He was present.
Q Was that the last you saw of that letter ? A. Well', I did not see it then. I

only heard the conversation.

Q. Did you see it afterwards ? A. I did not.

Q. Who wrote the name " Poundmaker" signed at the bottom of that letter 7
A. I did.

Q. By what authority ? A. By the authority of the men that told me to write
the letter.

Q. Had you any authority from the prisoner ? A.. Well, I consider I had. I
would not have written it if I had not had authority, that is very certain.

Q. Do you know whether or not he knew that his name was signed to it? A.
'On, he knew.

Q. He knew how? A. Well, when they were finished, you see one said one
thing and another another, and it was very difficult to do anything at all, and I
began to get puzzled, and I did not kaow who was the man that was running the
business at all, and Co-pin-ow-way-win was sitting here, and I believe he dictated
the latter part of the letter, and when it was done I said whose name am I going
to put here? Co-pinow-way-win said this man, pointing to Poundmaker, as if it
was very silly to ask such a thing, and I looked at Poundmaker and said is that so?
Yes, he said, and the other fellow said, put all our names down, so I put them all
down. r

Q. You say the letter was dictated by those who were present in the tent : did
the prisoner dictate any portion of it ? A. Well, I believe he did.

Q. You believe he did, do you rememoer that he did? A. Well. I would not
be very positive about it, I think he did.

Mr. Robertson*—I have allowed several of these questions to go. I submit they
are not proper,

Mr. Justice Richardson.—Why ?

Mr. Robertson.—In the first place what the witness believes is of no conse-
quence as matter of evidence, he must state facts that he knows. My learned friend
puts the question to him in this shape—don't you know that he did ? or do you
remember that he did ?

Mr. Justice Richardson.—Asking him to remember with a view to the positive,
I suppose, is what Mr. Soott meant?

Mr. Scott.-—Do you remember whether he did is what I should have asked ?
Mr. Justice Richardson.—Isn't that a proper question ?
Mr. Robertson.—I object to the question as being a leading question.
Mr. Justice Richardson.—The question is do you remember his doing so ?
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Mr Eobertson.—He had already asked the witness about that, and the witnes®

replied he believed he did, and my learned friend suggested to him that he should

make it stronger* ,. .. _^
Mr. Justice Kichardson.—I don't think it was a suggestion. (This evidence now

translated to the prisoner in Cree.)

By Mr. Scott :

Q I think you said Mr. Jefferson that the Indians left the encampment at Cut

Xnife Creek early in May, sometime in May, I don't know whether you mentioned!

the date or not, did you ? A. I did.

Q. About what date ? A. I believe it was a Saturday, I am not sure.

<Q. You are not sure about the date ? A. No.
.

Q. At all events you said it was early in May ? A. Yes, it might be the 10t&

or 11th or 12th, or something like that; 1 could not say exactly, there was no date

sit all, it is only by calculation that I can come at it.

Q. Did anything unusual happen before ycu left? A. Yes, there was a battle*

o'.When? A. About the beginning of May.

Q. Do you remember the exact date ? A. Well, of my own knowledge I don t

remember it, but people way it was the 2nd May.
>

Q. Were you present at the battle ? A. I was present, you might say, and yet

•yon might not say so. * ,
.;.•

Q.Will you explain what you mean by that? A. Well, I heard that I wjb
present. I heard that I was there and yet I did not see anything.

_

Q What do you mean by hearing that you were there ? A. Well, what i
mean is when 1 got at night, at the end of the day, when the half-breeds came back:

I came back with them.

Q. From where ? A. The place of the creek, about 3 miles or so up the creeks.

Q. Did you see any fighting ? A. I did not.

Q. Did you hear any noise, any firearms or guns ? A. Oh, yes.

Q. Could you judge how far it was from you ? A. Oh, yes.

Q Did you see the priaoner at that tight? A, I saw him in the morning, m©fe

at the fight.

Q. Had you any convernation with him then? A. Yes.

Q. What did he say ? A. Well, he says, they have come to fight us, that is what

is the matter. I asked him, what was the matter, and he says they have come to>

jBajht us, that is what is the matter.

Q. Did he say who they were ? A. No, that is about as near as 1 could getwim
lie said, I think.

m

'
.-•

Q. What was he doing at the time you spoke to him? A. He was hauling"

down a flag off a pole, I believe—a piece of white flag with a bird on it and some abtu'B.

Q. Do you know whether there was any meaning in that in doing that ?—A-
Well, it was a sort of protection against bullets.

Q. What was? A. The flag.

Q. The hauling of it down or the putting of it up? A. No, I suppose it was

put up there as a sort of protection, I could not say, mind.

Q. I don't understand you, do you know whether or not it was intended as ait

emblem; that it was put up therewith any intention? A. No, I could not say,

I heard that he had made a flag, and I saw it on the pole.

Q. How long was that flag up there ? A. That I couldn't say.

Q. Did he say anything as to his intention in pulling it down ? A. No, he didu

not say anything about it, he did not say anything more than I have already told you,.

Q. That is all he said to you ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know where he went after he left you that morning ? A.I don't^

Q. Where did you go ? A.I went to the half-breed camp.

Q. Where was that ? A. It was a little behind the Indians' camp.

Q. In what direction from where thejroops were coming? A. Well, that is-

what I mean by a little behind, a little further on.
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Q. On the other side of the camp from where the attack was expected ? A.On the left hand side behind, it was not directly behind it.

Q. Is that all you know about the fight ? A. That is all I know about it.
Q. When did you come back to the prisoner's camp ? A.I think it would be

about sundown, very near it.

Q. Had you any conversation with him afterwards ? A. Oh. ves.
Q. About the fight ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you remember what he said ? A. He says, how many times did you

shoot ? I said I did not shoot at all, and he did not say anything and that was the
end of it.

Q. That was all the conversation you had ? A. That was all the conversation.
Q. Did you see any killed or wounded ? A. Yes.
Q. On which side? A. On the Indian side.

Q. Did you see any others on the other side ? A. No.
Q. How many did you see ? A.I saw one.
Q. After leaving the camp at Cut Knife early in May where did the Indians go

to, the prisoner and the Indians, did they all go together ? A. All went together.
Q. Did they keep together ? A. All kept together.
Q. Until when ? A. Until about just after the battle at Batoche.
Q. Where were they then ? A. A place they call the End of the Hills.
Q. In what direotion from JBattleford was that ? A. A little east of south

perhaps south-east. '

Q. How far would it be from Batoche ? A. I don't know. It would be about
-100 miles perhaps, I never was at Batoche.

Q. How far was it from Cut Knife ? A. About 60 miles, perhaps it might be
4 O.

^ .,
Q^In 7hoat (

J
irec

1

tion from Cat Knife
;

I am speaking of the camp and Cat
Knife Creek ? A. About east.

r

Q. They kept together until after the battle at Batoche I think you said ? A
Yes.

Q. Why did they separate then ? A. To come into Battleford.
Q. What was their intention in moving eastward do you know, or did you ever

hear the prisoner say anything about that? A. No, I never heard the prisoner
say anything. *

Q. Why did they, after proceeding, after having proceeded 60 or 70 miles east-
ward, why did they turn into Battleford, do you know ? A There were some half-
breeds came up from Duck Lake and some Indians I believe too, who wanted them
to surrender. They said that Kiel had been scattered

Q. How do you know this, did you hear them say so ? A. I could not sav who I
heard say so. J

Q. Did you hear the prisoner say anything about it ? A. No, I don't remember
hearing him saying anything about it.

Q. At all events they came into Battleford ? A. Yes,
Q. What did they do there ? A. They gave up their 'arms.
Q. And surrendered ? A. And surrendered.
Q. Did anything happen before they turned into Battleford, were anv furtherany other acts of violence committed that you know of ? A. Well there were some

teamsters taken. Yes, there were some teamsters taken.

By the Court

:

Q. Are you speaking of your own knowledge, witness ? A. Oh, yes, I saw the
teamsters I did not see them taken, but they were there and they can't have been
there without they were taken.

*

By Mr. Scott ;

Q. Then you did not see the attack on the teamsters and the teams ? A. No*
270
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O The time the prisoner left the settlement on his own reserve, did I ttBdw-

stand you to say that others left about the same time; were there others, any others

left about the same time ? A. The whole camp left.

Q. On the same day ? A. Oh, yes, they all went together.
_

Q. What do you mean by the whole camp ? A. I am speaking of the original

settlement, the houses that he lived in.

By the Court

:

Q. Did they all leave the same day, witness ? A. No they did not.

By Mr. Scott :

Q The houses they lived in, did they all leave the same day the prisoner left f

A. They were not living in the houses principally, there were only two men thafc k

know of who were living in houses.

Q. Well, call it a settlement, did they all leave that settlement on the same

^
Q. Who left or were there any left besides the prisoner ? A. Well, except—to

go into Battleford do you mean ?
.

f

Q Of course, you don't know where they went to, but did they all leave at th»

same time ? A. They all left at the same time I think. I did not see them leave.

you
Q
n0^re yon left there alone ? A x was left there pretty nearly alone, them

were two men left. I know of two men that were left.

Q. Were there only three men in the whole settlement, three persons m the

whole settlement after Poundmaker left ? A. No.

Q. Wei), who else were there ? A. All the women.

O All the women and children were left ? A. Were left.

Q. The men did not all go, they' all left but two ? A. They all left but two.

Q, Then all the men left with nim with the exception of two and the women

and children remained ? A. Yes. w_
Q. Do you know if there is anything unusual in that course ;

do you know

anything about the Indian customs in a matter of that kind ? A. Well, it is not

verv unusual. No, under the circumstances, it was not very unusual.

Q Under what circumstances? A. Well, they had been talking, I had heard

the prisoner telling somebody that Oo-pin-ow-way-wm has gone to Battleford to ask

Mr Kae for some tobacco, and he would see by that what his mind was how the land

lav ; he was to ask him for some tobacco, and if he got some tobacco, he was to ask

for tea and then he would see what sort of a-I don't know how he expressed it>

except by, how the land lay, how Mr. Kae's mind might be as far as giving went.

Q Well, then, is it usual only for the men to start on an expedition after tea and

tobacco, is that what you mean, under those particular circumstances ? A. Yon are

rather puzzling, you. I don't exactly understand you.

Q I ask you is it usual or unusual for men of a band to start away without the

women and children, and you say it is not unusual under the circumstances ? A.

Oh. it is not unusual at all. ,

Q When the males start away together what do they start away for as a general

thing ? A. Oh, they might start away to make a dance, they dance for provision*

you know and interview the agent. . nmoo,

Q Then you don't know whether there was any reason for the men going away

without the women and children do you know ? A. No I don't know.

Gross examined by Mr. Robertson :
—

Q. Are you sure, Mr. Jefferson, that they went without any of the women and

children ? A. No, I am not sure. ™:„i,W
Q. Would you be surprised to hear that there were something in the neighbor-

hood of twentywomen with the men who went to Battleford ? A4 No.

Q. Would you be surprised to hear that there were fifty ? A. Yes, 1 tninfc L

would.
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Q. That would surprise you you think if you heard there were 50 with them?
A. Well, from the number of Indians, unless they took pretty nearly all the women
they could not very well take fifty you know.

Q. About how many women are there on that reserve or were there at that
lime ? A. Forty or so.

Q. About forty altogether ? A. Yes, I think so, about forty.

Q Do you know at what time of the day Poundmaker himself left the reserve ?
JL J do not. *

.

Q. Did you see any of the Indians going away from the reserve ? A. Well,
-where the house in which I lived was, you could not see them going away because
~they would pass out of sight before they got off the reserve.

Q. You could not see them going away ? A. No.
<i. Well did you see them moving in the direction of the borders of the reserve

ineucha manner that they seemed to be going away ? A. Oh, I could not tell
whether they were going away or not from the direction they were going in.

Q. From anything you saw, you could not tell whether they were going away
or not, then you did not see them go away in a body ? A. No, I did not see them
j*o away in a body.

Q. You say you saw Poundmaker in the morning and he then told you that ho
was going to Battleford ? A. Yes.

Q. To ask for tea and tobacco ? A. I don't remember what he said about what
he was going to do, but I remember particularly his saying that he was not asking
anyone to go with him, but if they liked to go he would not stop them.

Q, Well, was that in answer to a question from you ? A. I don't remember. I
3B0uld not say.

Q. You couldn't remember that ? A. No.
Q. It may have been in answer to a question from you whether any others were

going with him ? A. Oh, it wafl not in answer to a question whether any others
were going with him or not—I mean the conversation. I could not say whether the
conversation was started by me asking him the question which brought out this, or
whether he really proffered it, I could not say ; but as for asking whether he had
asked the men to go with him or not, I did not ask him anything of the sort. It was
part of his former communication which he made. It was part of that communica-
tion which he made.

Q* Well, did he come to tell you that, did he come to you ? A. I think he did.
Q. Well, did he go off then when he said that ; did he go off as if he were then

going ? A. Well, I could not say that. That is a difficult question to answer.
Q. Well, was the impression left upon your mind that he was going off then at

once ? A. That be was going off that day, that he was going off very soon. I could
not say that he was going right off immediately and not going to stop at all. It did
not strike me to think about, whether he was going off right away.

Q. When was it you noticed that so many of the Indians had gone ? A. I saw
Poundmaker's wife I think, or else Simos' wife. I am not sure which of them it was
who said that they had nearly all gone.

Q. Well, when was that ; was it late in the afternoon or was it the next day ?
A. I could not say. You must remember that circumstances have occurred since
"which knocked things out of most people's head at any rate.

Q. I would like you to recollect if it was in the afternoon of the following day
that you noticed that they had gone ? A. I could not say that.

Q. Did you go about to the houses and tepees to see how many were left ? A. I
could not say that I went with that purpose exactly

.

Q. You did not go for that purpose at all ? A. No. At least I could not say
that I did—I don't believe I did.

Q. Then how did you happen to notice that they all had gone ? A. Well, if you
were on a reserve you know, you could not help, you would see how I would notice.
They are always around and there is always somebody coming around to the house
«ven if you don't go out at all

.
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Q. Still now it is not at all impossible that more than two roen might have been
on that reserve without your knowing it ? A. Oh, it is not impossible, but I thinlr
I would have heard about it at any rate.

Q. If there had been others there ? A. If there had been others there.
Q. Why do you think you would have heard about it ? A. Because while the

Indians were in that state, they did not care about hiding anything.
Q. Was it necessarily hiding it, not telling you, you'did not make any enquiries

did you ? A. Well, but I had some friends in the camp who told me pretty nearly
©verything. J

Q. That is what you think it is probably you would have heard if some of them
had remained, if some of the Indians had remained ? A. I think so, yes ; there is no
doubt on my mind at all if that is what you mean, that there were only two Indiana
there, although I could not swear to it.

Q. I want to get at your reason for it
;
you did not go to look for them ? A. No.

Q. And you saw two ? A. I saw two.
Q. There might have been others there? A. There might have been others

there, yes.

Q. And a good many of the women might have been away without your know-
ing it? A. Yes.

Q. Now you saw nothing that day that indicated anything to aAarm you?
A. No.

Q. There was nothing unusual in a number of them going to ask for what they
wanted ? A. Well, there was something unusual, but not unprecedented.

Q. It was a thing they had done before many times, wasn't it ? A. It was a
thing they had done before, certainly—several times;

Q. And it did not necessarily imply any hostile intention ? A. No.
Q. You next saw Poundmaker, you said, at Cut Kuife Greek, at Cut Knife Hill?

A. Yes.

Q. You had yourself gone there first? A. I had myself gone there, yes.
Q. Why did you go there ? A. Well, a train of circumstances took me there.
Q. It was accidental, your going there, was it ? A. Yes.
Q. I mean you had no particular object in going to that particular place ? A..

Oh, 1 beg you pardon
Q. Then let us know what? A. Well, I thought it probable that if I once saw

him 1 would be pretty safe.

Q. You thought it probable if you once saw Poundmaker, you would be pretty
safe—had you any reason to feel unsafe. A. Oh, yes, I had some reason.

Q. You began at that time to feel unsafe ? A. Yes.
Q. When was it that you began to feel unsafe ? A. When a man they called Bap-

tiste—he came from Battleford, he came back from Battleford. I met him on the
road, and I asked him what was the .'news. Well, h© did not want to tell me he a
sort of hung back, and I began to think something was the matter.

Q. Now, how long was that after they had gone away ? A. This would be the
day before they came back, the day before Poundmaker came back ; they came scat-
tered, you know, one or two at a time, three or four at a time, I believe, I saw very
few of them come back myself.

Q. What I want to get at is when it was you met Baptiste and you began to be
alarmed

; how long was that after they had gone away ? A. I believe it was on
a Monday.

Q. What day of the week was it they had gone away ? A. I am not sure whether
it was a Friday or a Saturday.

Q. You think it was either Friday or Saturday ? A. I think it was either
.Friday or Saturday.

Q. Then it was on the Monday when you met Baptiste and he told you and he
seemed to hang back about giving you news, that you began to think there might be
trouble ? A. Yes, I began to think something was the matter.
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O Then you thought you would like to see Poundmaker? A. No, I thought I

wouldlike to let at what it was first. I wanted to know what was the matter.
^

O Tell u^what else it was that made you feel uneasy and was your reason for

iroing to Poundmaker at Cut Knife Creek? A. Well, this fellow, he says, come

lion! the road with me and I will tell you as we go. along. I was going in one direc-

tion tnd he was coining towards me, and I turned back with him, and he began to

talk about various things. I have forgotten exactly, and he says what are you going

to do ; what do you intend to do ? Well, I said I did not know-mmd I could not

give the exact words of the conversation, but 1 can give the effect—in effect what

he said and what 1 said, he says what are you going to do ; are you going to stop

here or are you going to run away ? And he says I may tell you that your being hem

last trammer is very much in your favor, and the Indians, he says, are ashamed U>

touch a man that had no defence in the camp, and I said I would stop
;
that was the

beginning of the reason I had. , ,

Q, But hadn't he told you before this anything about what had taken place at

Battleford ? A. He did not tell me anything before this. No, and then he began to

tell me what was the matter, he said that nothing had happened yet, when he came

away, but he had heaid that the Stonys had killed Payne.

4 That was on another reserve at the Eagle Hills ? A. At Eagle Hills

.

Q Well what else ? A. Woll 1 went down to the house of course, and then

Q. Didn't ha tell you anything else? A. Not that I remember.

Q. Didn't he tell you anything about what was going on at Battleford / A. t

don't think he did, I am not sure, though I would not swear that he did not, I mean,

and yet I would not swear that he did either.
i

Q. Is that the same man as Grey Eyes-is that his Indian name? A. No

another man, it is a man I did not know at all, he had only drawn rations twice, I

believe, on the reserve.
. v

Q. Well, that it was that made you anxious, was it/ A, Yes,

Q. And made you think that you would like to go and see Poundmaker ? A
Well, it was a little after this thing had deepened considerably when I thought L

would like to see Poundmaker. nnmA
Q. Well, tell us what it was ? A, Jadfis-one of the two men that stayed-came

to the house, and he says, better come along with me, come to my ho
^

e
;
a^ )

8ays I would be no better there than here
;
yes, he says, I will engage tc» keep.you.M

Poundmaker come, anyhow ; and I went with him and I stayed there al1.thatjiight

stayed at the man's house, and the next morning a man they call Cut-hp, George
>

s

father-in-law, came into the houne and told George he had better send me out, because

he did not want to have bloodshed in the house,

Q. Who is George? A. One of the men that stayed on the reserve; hesadl

had better go outside because he did not want bloodshed in the house he ^d that

this Cup-lip and a man they called Mus-sin ass had slept at h« ^^*^hM"*
they told him that I was not going to live, which means really that they were goin|

to kill me, but it is literally that I could not live ; and George got his gun down ana

commenced to load it and the father-in-law was looking on all the time and Creorge

sat down beside me and I was sitting down there close to the wm
^
0W:/^J f̂l

b'.^
father-in-law, went out and George hitched up his waggon an

I
said that po^bly

Poundmaker might have arrived by this time, and he hitched up his waggon^and we

went over and Poundmaker had not arrived, and ][went into'^^^^^
when Poundmaker arrived, he said that I might have been killed before

,

he came he

thought, but since he had come he would not let me be*killed, he said I might be

1186

VDidhe make use of that expression? A. Yes, something to that effej*.

Q, What were the Cree words; can you give us the exact words ? A. JNo, 1

don't think I could give you the exact words.
t mWKAr^

Q. The way you have put it, it would imply that he was
i
"different whether you

were killed or not; did you understand him to mean thai? A Well, o.Idoot

think he was indifferent-far from it, if he had been indifferent he would not have

cared anything about me.J 6
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Q. You understood from what he said that he was* glad you were not killed?
A. Well, J understood that as far as he was concerned he would do his best, but if I
had been killed before that, then he would not have had anything to do with it, and
it would not have been his fault, but knowing as he did that I was there and helpless
he would protect me, that is what I understood.

Q. That was the understanding you put upon it? A. That is what my mind seized
upon immediately as the interpretation of what he said.

Q. Well, can you tell us what it was he said ? A. He says, I have often kissed
your son.

Q. Your child ? A. Yes, that is aH that I recollect.

Q. He referred to the fact that he had often kissed your son ? A. Yes.
Q. And you took that to indicate what? A. Well, I took it to indicate that he

would do his best anyhow.
Q. To protect you ? A. Yes.

Q. Now do you think that what you have said just now is a fair understanding
of what he said to you, that if you had been killed he would not have cared much
about it, he would not have been responsible, didn't that reference to your child mean
something different from that? A. Well, I have thought a good deal about that,
wondered what it could mean, but it was something pretty like that, I remember.

Q. He did refer to the fact that he had kissed your child at all events ? A. He
did refer to that fact.

Q And that he would do his best to protect you? A. Well, he said positively.
jl es.

Q. Now that was when you met him at Out Knife Creek,* was it on his return
from Battleford ? A. That was when I saw him first.

Q. Did he tell you then anything about what had taken place at Battleford ?
A. I aon't exactly remember. I was in such a state that I might be excused I think
from remembering small things. It is only the principal things I can fix on*

Q. Well, wouldn't that be an important thing what he told you about what had
taken place at Battleford ? A. No*

Q. Didn't you know at that time that stores had been plundered ? A. Yes, some
men came before him.

Q. And told you ? A. No, they did not tell me it, they made such a row you
know, and Pound maker's wife was in the tent, and I did not need to ask anything to
be told . They knew then that the stores had been gone through.

Q. Well, did you not ask anything about that; try to remember ? A. No, I don't
remember.

Q. You can't remember that ? A. No.
Q. You can't remember his telling you anything about it ? A. Well, probably he

did, I guess he must have done so, but I don't remember the words he used or the
circumstance at all. It could not possibly have paised without his saying something,
but I don't remember what he said.

Q. Tell mo, were the Indians in warpaint? A » Well, I don't know anything
about war paint. They paint when they are not at war. Poundmaker is painted now,
and he is not at war.

Q. Was he painted in his usual way ; was there anything unusual about the
paint the Indians wore on that occasion that you noticed ? A. Do you mean before
they started or after ?

Q. Yes, or after when they were coming back ? A. No, there was not.
Q. You mentioned that Co pin-ow-way-win had told someone that you could not

live? A. Yes.

Q. Poundmaker says he sent to Co-pin-ow-way-win and Cut-lip to protect you ?
A. Yes, he told me that afterwards, too; but Co-pin-ow-way- ^in did not do it.

Q. Well, it was rather a warning that you got through them than anything else ?
A. Bather ai\ unpleasant one.

Q. George's father-in-law you said brought the warning to you which he had
received from Co-pin-ow-way-win and Cut-lip ? A. He did not speak to me. he spoke

275
52—1PJ



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 188&

to his son-in-law as' if all he Thought about was to spare his daughter the agony of

seeing anybody killed close to him.

Q. That was the way you understood it ? A, Yes.

Q. Well, aid Poundmaker tell you, when you met him at Cut Knife Creek, any-

thing about what he was going to do in the future ? A. I could Dot remember anything,

that he did ; anything special, anything that was worthy of remembering, 1 could

Q. Well, can you remember anything however unworthy, Mr. Jefferson ? A.

Well, you see it would have to be something especial for me to remember it, if it was

not especial I could not possibly remember it.

Q. Then what you mean is that you don't remember anything he said to you r

A. I don't remember anything, it is very indistinct all that time.

Q. How long was it after you met Poundmaker at Cut Knife Creek that Delorme

and Chic i-cum came from Eiel ? A. I could not say exactly, it could not have been

more than a fortnight, I think. I think it was less, I don't remember the date.

Q. Well, it couid not have been later then than about the 15th April, it could

not have been later than that, in fact it would be the 13th April? A. Yes.

Q. They came and brought this letter ? A. Yes.

Q. Up to that time did you see anything in Poundmaker's conduct to indicate

any intention of rising or of doing any more wrong? A. 1 could not remember

anything.

Q. Then when they came they brought a letter which has been produced here

and which you say you saw in Poundmaker's tent ; was that the first time you saw it ?

A. No, it was read by thig man, you know, before Poundmauer got it.

Q. You saw it before you saw it in Poundmaker's tent, did you. A. Yes.

q! Where did you see it ? A. Well the man was reading it I suppose about ten

yards off. ,«,*. o a v
Q The man that was reading it was about ten yards off trom you I A. les.

Q*. Where was that ? A. They make a big tent you know on any special

occasion and this tent was in the middle of the circle in which the tents are set, and

it was in this tent that he was reading the letter.

Q. In a large tent, in the centre ; do you know who had put up that tent ? A, No.

Q. How many Indians were there in the tent when the letter was being read ?

A. It was pretty full, but I have not any idea.

Q. About how many ? A. Well, there was more than fifty I am sure.

Q. Was Poundmaker there ? A. Yes.

Q. And that was the first you saw of the letter ? A. That was the first I saw of

the letter. _
Q. Now you said Muchichee (Delorme) it was that read the letter? A. Yes.

Q. Did he say anything, in addition to what the letter contained,to the Indians ?

A. Oh, yes, the letter is nothing compared to what he said. The letter is only an

introduction.

Q. Tell what Muchichee said to the Indians in the tent ? A. I could not give

you anything like the whole of his talk you know.

Q. No, but the most important of it ? A. Well, that Kiel was a sort of God*

He could do many little things. He couid prophesy and he was going to get help from

such and such people.

Q. Where, what people ? A. I could not remember what people he said, trom the

Americans. The Americans were one.

Q. He was going to get help from'the Americans ? A. Yes.

Q. And what eke do you recollect his saying, something about the railway—the

Canadian Pacific Railway ? A. Yes.
%

Q. What did he say about that ? A. He said the Americans were going to hold

the railway and no soldiers could come in. And they would have broken the railway,

but they were going to use it. . .

Q. Well, did he ask the Indians to join Eiel ? A. I could not say whether he did

or not. I believe he must have taken it as an understood thing. I could not say

that he did, nor I could not say that he did not.
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Q. Do you recollect his telling the Indians that if they did not join Riel and
accept the half-breed terms that the Americans would take everything from them
and there would not be an Indian that would have that much land (crack of the
fingers) ? A. lam not very sure. I don't think it was in the tent at the time that
I heard him say that.

Q. But you did hear him say it ? A I heard him say something to that effect
;
yes.

Q. Threatening them that if they did not join Kiel the Americans would take
everything from them and they would lose all their land, that is substantially cor-
rect is it? A. That is substantially correct

;
yes.

Q. Well, can you tell us was Pouridmaker there when you heard them telling
this ? A. Oh, yes, at least I was living in Poundmaker's tent, you know. I was in
Poundmaker's tent, and he was not telling it to me, that is very certain. He must
have been telling it either to Poundmaker or to some people who had come to visit
Poundmaker.

Q Now you had been living in Poundmaker's tent for some time before this ?
A.. Since the beginning. I went into his tent at the beginning.

Q. After the letter was read in the big tent, it was brought to Poundmaker's
tent was it, am I right in that ? A. It must have been brought there, because Pound-
maker had it in bis hand there.

Q. Now tell me this before we go any further, in the big tent when Muchichee
was addressing the Indians, did you hear him tell them to kill every man with a
red coat ? A. I would not swear that I did

.

Q. Yoa don't remember something of that kind occurring, and Poundmaker tell-

ing them not to do it, that he did not believe what Muchichee had said? A. No,I don't
remember anything of that kind. I heard—it must have been indirectly. I am sure
it was not directly that he had said the soldiers had to be all killed.

Q. That Muchichee had said this ? A, Yes.

Q. But you were not present when that was said ? A. No, I did not hear them
say so, or I think I didn't.

Q. But your memory of what took place at that time is very indistinct, that is

you remember only small portions of it ? A. Yes, things that stood out, that were
oonspicuous I remember, or anything that haw anythi ng to do with myself I remember.

Q. The letter you say was in Pouod maker's hand ? A. Yes.

Q. Did he say anything to you about it ? A. 1 believe be did, for I asked him.
to let me read it and he did, he gave it to me.

Q. Do you read French ? A. Oh, I read it, ye*.

Q. You can get the meaning, I suppose ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you have any conversation with him about what was in the letter ? A.

I did, I believe ; in fact I am sure I did ; that is only a figure of speech.

Q. Who else was present at that time ? A. When he had the letter ?

Q. Yes ? A. I could not say.

Q. There were several others, were there not ? A. I could not say whether
there was or not.

Q. Had these messengers brought tobacco and tea, or anything of that kind to
the Indians with the letter ? A. I could not say.

Q. What did Poundmaker say to you about the contents of this letter? A. I
don't remember him saying very much, or saying anything at all particularly. I read
the letter and I thought I remembered that this man, instead of saying 35 or 40
minutes, had said 5 or 10 minutes with respect to the duration of the fight, and I just

remarked that to Poundmaker.
Q. What reply did he make, do you remember ? A. No, I do not remember.
Q. Did he say anything that indicated that he was going to do as that letter told

him, and go and join Eiel ? A. No, I don't remember him saying anything about it.

Q. Was there a soldier's tent put up in the camp ? A. Y'es.

Q. Can you explain to the jury what a soldier's tent is, and what it means in an
Indian camp ? A. Well, I think so; there might be something; I might make a
mis take.
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Q. Tell us as well as you understaDd ? A. Well, when there is anything difficult

to do, they make a soldier's tent, and these soldiers have to provide certain things;

they are the executive, you might say.

Q. Now, who are the soldiers ? A. The men that make the soldiers' tent.

Q. Well, are they the young men or the old men? A. Ob, they are generally

young men.
Q. Young braves ? A. Yes.

Q. And do they take command of the camp when that is done—do you know, of

course,' I don't want you to say what you don't know ? A. Well, I am .not very sure

whether they do or not ; they are supposed to do so, I believe.

Q. And what be comes of the authority of the ordinary chief when that happens T

A. Well, I never eaw it happen but once.

Q. Well, it did happen this time, at all events ? A. I could not say whether it

did or not.

Q, Don't you know that there was a soldier's tent put there. A. I know there

was a soldier's tent put there, and that is about all I know about it ;
they danced in

there pretty nearly every night.

Q. The young braves ? A. Yes.

Q. Did Poundmaker take any part in that ? A. Not that I know of.

Q. Now, what Indians were in the camp at Cut Knife, when Muchichee,

Deloime and Chicicum came ? A. All the Indians that were there at any time.

Q. They had all come in ? A. Yes.

Q. Then, there were how many Stonys ? A. Well, I could not say how many

there was, but I think there could not have been more than fifty men.

Q. Fitty Stonys ? A. Yes, that is counting men and boys. I do not know for

positive. .

Q. You said Little Pine's band was about 100 ? A. Yes, that is altogether, men,

women and children.

Q. How many were there of Strike-him-on-the-Baek's band of men? A. About

seventy-five I should think.

Q. These were Crees? A* Crees. y A ,

Q. About how many were there in Poundmaker's band ? A. Thirty-five or forty.

Q. Now who was at that camp at Cut Knife Hill first ; was it Poundmaker s

banc or the Stonys ? A. It was on Poundmaker's reserve. Poundmaker's Indiana

camped there the first.

Q. And the S*onys came into his camp ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know who brought them in ? A. No.

Q. Don't you know that they were brought in by messengers from Eiel ? A.

Not that they nad been brought there. I heard they had been roused by messengers

of Eiel.

Q. And they did come in there ? A. They came m there.

Q. And then when Muchichee and Chic-i-cum came, they all, the different tribes,

were together ? A. They were all together.

Q. Now what did you see him communicate ; who was looked upon as the

comma? der of that camp, after Muchichee and Chic-i-cum came ? A. Well, I don't

know v* hat give me the imprej^sion. I supposed it was only the result of my general

observation I could not name any particular thing.

Q. You could not name anything that gave you an impression as to who com-

manded ? A. I could not give you the name that gave me the impression, there must

have been something, because the impression was in my mind.

Q. But you cannot tell us anything that gave you the impression to who did

command ? A. Well my being alive give me the impression that Poundmaker

was certainly the chief. *!"», a. i.- *»
Q. Your being alive gave you the impression that Poundmaker was the chiet r

A Yes.
Q.' That was the only thing was it? A. That is the only thing that I can

recollect. That is the only thing that I can bring to mind.
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Q. Did you see Poundmaker giving any orders? A. I believe I did, there is a

man they called Fine Day or Fair Weather, he was a very brave man and he got order*

lihink to keep around Battleford, not to attack it, just to keep watch around it,

^mt
in

X>1d1ou
a

L
8

ar Poundmaker tell him that? A. I think I did, it is my belief.

Q You think you did, it is your belief? A. Yes.
0++0„v

Q. But you aro not certain ; and the orders were, not to attack it, not to attack

Battlefoid? A. I think so. TT™fi*
Q. Now thai was at the time when they were all camped out at Cut Unite

Creek Hill? A. Yes.

Q. Some distance from Battleford ? A. Yes.
T«^i«« fl

Q. Now wasn't what you heard this, that Poundmaker tried to keep the Indians

from going in the other direction towards Duck Lake and Batoche? A. Oh thi»

was after, you know.

Q. Oh, it was after that that occurred ? A. Yes.

Q. We have not come to that yet then ? A. No.

Q Now let us come to the occasion on which that letter was writ en didn t you

think that you were doing a pretty serious thing in writing such a letter as tnis

(Exhibit No. 2) ? A. Oh, yes, 1 knew that.

Q You felt that you were in danger if you did not write it ? A. Well, I did not

consider 1 had any choice in the matter.

Q. You say that Poundmaker, Co-pin-ow-way-win, Mue-sin-ass Met-tay-way-sia

and Peeyaycheew were all there when this was dictated ? A. Yes,

Q. Now who is Mus-sin-ass? A. Well, I don't know him, except that he is an

Indian from that district.

Q. He was not on your reserve ? A. No, he was not on my reserve.

Q. Was Copinow-wa-win on your reserve ? A. Yes.

Q. Mettayway sis ? A. He is not on my reserve.

Q. Arid the other one was he on your reserve ? A. No.

Q. None of these were Poundmaker's men except Oopmowaywin t A. JNO.

O Now wasn't Muchicbee (Delorme) there also? A. No.

Q.fvhl this was dictated? A. No. I don't think he was. Chici-cum was

>r

g. Is Chic-i-cum an Indian or a half-breed ? A. An Indian.

Q. This is not your writing at the bottom (in blue pencil) of the letter, No. 2 t

A. No, that is the alteration I have referred to already.

^S&t^K^dld these last three come from. A^c^w
came from Bed Pheasant's reserve. Mettaywaysis came from Strike-him-on-lhe-back s

reserve, and Mussinass from the same place. .m-i* tfcni-

Q Now yon say you conld not tell which of them was running it, I think that

was ihe expression you used ? A. No it was very difficult

Q. And so much so that when you had finished writing it, you asked whoso

name you were to put to it? A. Yes. -,
it _.

Q. And one of them-do you know which it was told you ? A. Oh, yes, it was

this Cut-lip, Oopinowaywin. . ^5*. 4 vM
Q. It was he that told yon to put Poundmaker's name to it? A. *«»•

Q. Now you have told as that your memory is not very ?'•« »*»***"•
*°™«

J

happening at that time, and you swore at first when^peaking about.that hat you

hafpoundmaker's authority, you considered you had Poundmaker s authority to put

Poundmaker's name there, but you went on to say afterwards when O^™8?™
told you to put Poundmaker's name to it, you asked Poundmaker if you should do so

"d
Q
e

;N
i

oVmigbt
A
you

r

not he mistaken ahout that? A ^ I don't think there is

any mistake. I am certain I would not put his name there without he did tell me.
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Mind that is not the reason I have for thinking he told me. I remember, I could
not really say whether I put it in the same words but I certainly made the enquiry.

Q. And you think he said so, said distinctly to do it, to put his name there?
A. I certainly understood so.

Q. The war party was very strong in the camp at that time wasn't it ? A. Oh
yes, it was. '

Q. Nearly all the young braves were in it ? A. Yes.
Q. Now were all the old men in it too ? A. Well, no, they were not all- in it

there were different degrees of beings in it; you know, too, some people were what
you might call bloodthirsty, indiscriminately, others simply considered they were
doing a duty, and others thought which was the best way to get out of it without
exciting attention at the time.

Q. Whose attention ? A. The attention of the Indians—their fellow Indians.
Q. There were a number of the older Indians who wanted to get out of it, but

they were afraid of the younger men, is that what you mean? A. Well, I know
several. I don't know how many. I know several myself that would have been
pretty glad to get out of it I think.

Q. They did not wane to have trouble ? A. No.
Q. But they were afraid of the younger men ? A. Yes.
Q. They had good reason to be had they ? A. Yes.
Q. And anyone who had opposed the doings of the young men at that time

Would have had good reason to be afraid ? A. Yes, I think they would.
Q. Even Poundmaker would have had good reason to be afraid of resisting what

the young men were doing ? A. Well, I don't know whether he would or not.
Poundmaker is a great speaker you know. Poundmaker oan induce a man to do
pretty nearly anything almost.

. ,.Q* .

Yes
>
when {t tallies with tn©ir own inclination ? A. Yes, and it was theirown

inclination.

Q. And if he had opposed them instead of leading them ? A. Well, probably he
might not have been able to do anything.

a 3\i
Th

,° ***? was that the y°unS men had control of the camp hadn't they ?

* t h ^ey ha
i

d and yet thQy hadn,t
- They had control of the blood and murder

sort of business, but the management of the Riel business was in the hands of the
older men, you know. The young men did not care who was killed or who they
were for. It was just " kill anybody and take what vou can catch." I mean there
was a system in the way in which the older men did it, but the young men had no
system at all. * &

Q. What system what indications of system ? A. They took things coolly.
Q. They were comparatively cool ? A. Yes.
Q. But what did you see them do? A. I could not recall anything at themoment which I saw them do.

Q. You can't recall anything at the moment you saw them do ? Aa No.

*w ??
W Poundmaker saya you are mistaken in saying he said yes put his name

to that. Now may it not have been one of the others that said yes ? A. Oh no. No,
it could not have been. Poundmaker and Oopinowwaywin were on one side, that is
almost behind me, and you might say on the same line with myself, the others wore
seated, so that to look at Poundmaker and get his assent I bad to turn my head (to
the side) like that and I don't think I was mistaken.

Q. Oopinowwaywin was sitting next you ? A. Yes.

a S"^hWt Oopinowwaywin have said yes whenVou asked that question?
A. JNo, 1 was not looking at him, Oopinowwaywin.

Q. But you heard the voice ? A. I don't believe that I am mistaken. That ismy impression.

Q You don't believe you are mistaken ? A. No.
Q. But you might be mistaken ? A. I may be mistaken.
Q. You may have been mistaken ? A. Oh, yes.
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Q, It may have been Oopinowwaywin that said yes. Now after Mnchichee and

Chicicum came, how much time elapsed before the fight at Cat Knife ? A. About

two weeks I should think. I would not be positive.

Q. Now were Muchichee and Chicicum trying to induce the Indians to go to

Batoche or Duck Lake during that time ? A. Tes, I have every reason to believe

they were, in fact I am sure of it.

Q. You know they were ? A. I know they were.

Q. Now, don't you know also that Poundmaker was trying to keep them from

going there and was trying to get them to go to Devil's Lake ? A. No, he wasn't.

Q. What was he doing ? A. It was after this still that he wanted to go to>

Devil's Lake.
Q. Well, do you say he was not—all you mean by that is that yoi did not see it

at that time ? A. What I mean is that I don't believe that he wished them to go

there instead of going to Devil's Lake.

Q. What did you see him do or hear him say that bore upon it, upon the

going to Batoche ? A. Well, Poundmaker had such unlimited coufidence in Riei, if

there was nothing else, that at the beginning hecertaiuly never expected R\e\ would

be beaten, and even that would induce me to think he did not want to go to Devil's

Lake. Why should he go to Devil's Lake ?

Q, That is your own inference ; that is your own opinion and the jury form the

opinion and the jury form the opinions in these things, and what I want from you is

the facts upon which you base your opinions
;
you may have opinions of your own of

course, but did you see anything in Poundmaker's conduct or did you hear him say

anything that showed a willingness on his part to go to Dack Lake or Batoche ?

A. I could not remember anything.

Q. Then when you say you don't believe he wanted to go the other way, it is

merely an opinion which you ? A. Based upon things which I must have for-

gotten.

Q. Well you may have forgotten them or not ? A. That is only my opinion ; yes.

Q. A man often forms an idea, without having much to base it upon ? A. Yes,

but I am not of that genus.

Q. But ihe impression on your mind is that he did not want to go to Devil s

Lake before that ; but you saw no indication that he wanted to go the other way ?

A. No. ^ o ft
_

Q. Then the fight at Cut Knife was after this letter had been sent off ? A. Yes;

two or three days after.

(Adjourned here for lunch till 2 p.m. when court resumed.)

Q. After you had signed these names in the letter, Mr. Jefferson, you gave it to

some one you said, to whom did you give it ? A. I could not say to whom i gave it.

Q. The next time you saw it it was in another tent ? A; Yes.

Q. When the half-breeds were revising it ? A. Yes.

Q. Who were those half-breeds that were revising it ? A. I only know one of

them.
Q. Who was that ? A. Jobin.

Q. When did Jobin come to the camp ? A. When |the other half-breeds came

across, I think. I did not see him come across.

Q. When the other half-breeds came across from where ? A. From the other

Bide of the river. _:

Q. Then Jobin came across when the Battleford half-breeds came ? A. I think:

so. 1 did not see him come.

Q. That is what you understood ? A. That is what I understood.

Q. He had been there before that letter was written ? A. Yes.

Q. For some little time ? A. Yes, for some little time.

^. Then he was there and Muchichee and Delorme were there, what other half-

breeds were there; before that letter was written ; can you give any names ? a.

In the camp do you mean ?

Q. Yes ? A. Yes, most of these half-breed3 that used to stop around Battleford

were there,
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Q. Do you know anything about how they were brought there ? A. Yes.

Q. How ? A. WeJl, I know how two got there, but as far as personal know-
ledge goes I don't know.

Q, How many other half-breeds were there with Jobin in the tent when they
were revising the letter? A. Oh, I could not say, I did not count them, but there
must have been a dozen at least of them.

Q. And they were discussing it, were they ? A. Yes. Well, I don't think there
was very much discussion. Jobin had the letter in his hand, and ho read it over,
and ho said it was very good except this part about only one messenger coming.

Q. And he found fault with that? A. He found fault with that.

Q. And someone after that must have put that little postscript at the end which
you did not write ? A. Yes.

Q. That is the postscript " If you send us news send as many men as possible ?
"

A. Yes.

Q. That was written in a postscript? A. Yes.

Q. And then you did not see the letter after that ? A. No, I did not see it after
that

Q. Do you know, have you any means of knowledge of what became of it ? A
Well, they said it was taken to Duck Lake.

Q. Did Jobin leave the camp that day ? A. They said he did. I did not see
him leave.

Q. Did you see him there afterwards j was he there afterwards ? A. I very
seldom saw anybody except in the tent. I had not any means of seeing them.

Q. You understood he did leave that day ? A. I understood he did.

Q. And that he took that letter? A. Yes.
Q. Now, you told us that on the morning of the fight at Cut Knife you saw

Poundmaker and you aeked him what was the matter? A. Yes.
Q. Had the firing begun then ? A. Yes.
Q. And where was Poundmaker? A. Standing beside the cart which stood

fceside his tent.

Q. He was close to his tent ? A. Yes.

Q. And he was pulling down a flag ? A. Yes.

Q. How long had the firing been going on at that time ? A. I could not say, I
had just wakened up.

Q. Well, you were living with Poundmaker, were you not, in his tent? A. No,
at that time I was living in another tent beside him.

Q. And you were wakened up by the firing ? A. No, I was wakened up by some
one d ming into the tent and telling us to get up.

Q. And telling you that there was firing? A. Yes, that there was firing.

Q. And when you came out, you found Poundmaker pulling down a flng, now
what flag was this ? A. Well, it looked as if it wag made out of white calico.

Q. Do you know what it was meant for, who put it there? A. I did not see
anyone put it there, but I understood Poundmaker put it there.

Q. You did not nee anyone, you don't know whether he put it there or not?
A. No, 1 don't know whether ho put it there or not, but I have not any doubt.

Q. You have not any doubt because ? A. I did not see him put it there; I
don't know that he put it there.

<J. But you saw him pulling it down ? A. I saw him pulling it down.
Q. What did he do after that conversation with him when he said they had come

to fight us, that was what was the matter? A. He wrapped the flag around his
shoulders, and got on horseback and went off.

Q. Did he take his gun ? A. I don't know.
Q. Try to recollect? A. I don't know I have been trying to recollect now for

iive or six weeks every event connected with this case, with this business.

<J. Well, have you directed your attention to that before as to whether he took
his gun that time ? A. No, I could not say.

Q. Was this flag a white flag ? A. Yes.
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Q. He got on his pony and rode off? A. Yes.

Q. Where did he ride ? A. I could not say.

Q. You coald not say that? A. No.
f

Q. Did you see him bearing arms that day at all ( A. JNo.

Q. Did he seem excited ? A. Well, he was pretty pale, but I don't think he was

very«^ alarmed ft frightened ? A . That was what I was thinking

Q. Do you know whether he had expected any attack before that ? A. Yes he

18 a prophetamongst other things, and he prophesied he expected an attack before

^V^^^-^ffir A. It was very shortly after the making of the

CamP
Q. Now, where was he when he prophesied this ? A. Well, he was in the tent

Q. In his own tent ? A. In his own tent.

Q Were there many people there, many Indians there? A. Not at this time,.

the

r;s:;%iz^z::xs A
d^asn. ~y. *« ««

*^^^%1^1t» attack? A. He says, where is your gun and I

said it "behind here. Veil, he says, load it up. He ^j* if *™ »^^&
comes here, you will have to fire it off, and I said all right. That is all he said parti

CUlai

<f Did he say from whomhe expected the attack ? A No, youJmow _it waei in

a propkesy and a prophesy is generally indefinite, it is Only something that might

^^Z'^ZT^ when Poundmaker told you this, thai;he e.pected *n

attack ? A. [ don't think there was anyone particular present, no men at any rate.

Q. There were no men present ? A. I don't think it.

Q, Was it in the morning or evening ? A. I could not say that either.

Q. Can you say what day of the week it was ? A. No.

Q. You don't know that ? A. No.
^;

.

Q. Were you and Poundmaker alone there ? A. Practically.

O What do Vou mean by that ? A. Well, I mean that his wife was there and

my wife was tnere and perhaps both his wives might have been there. 1 am not

8Ure,

Q
Ut

N°ow,TnTght you not be mistaken about that ? A. No, there is no mistake

ab°U
Q* He says that the only conversation he had with you about a gun was after

the fight ? A. No, there is no mistake about it.

Q. There is no mistake about that ? A. No.

Q. But he did not say wnat he expected the attack from ? A. No

Q. Tell us his words as nearly as you can when he told you that ? A. Of the

atta°0
?

Did he use the word « attack " at all to begin with, or the Indian word for it.

A. Well™ «™o£d Tome danger, he said thei/was something impending, and it

must have been an attack or else he would not have spoken about the
<g£.

Q. That is a matter of reasoning, f ask you to give me his words, Mr. Jefferson.

He spoke of some impending danger ? A. Yes.
WAT^ q

Q. I ask you to give me his words ? A. I could not give you the wo d*

Q. The utmost is then after all that he said that he was uneasy and that he waa

afraid there was danger from some direction ? A. Yes.



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A- 1886

£3 f

S^^^^
giVe m

° my gan back
-
He b™Sht »-d I ^8t 1-d it

Q. That was Yellow Mud Blanket or his brother ? A. Yellow Mud Blanket
Q. J hat is Poundmaker's brother ? A. It is.

Q. Tell us the rest, he asked you where is your gun, and you had sot it back inthis way and you said it was there ? A. Yes.

?.' ^P
dw t°

ld/°£ ?
,

A
*
He 8aF8 load ft UP> y°u wil1 ha™ to fire it off.

<qj. It what ? A. If this attack I suppose.

at the bf^nin
3^^ SP6ak °f "*^^ 7°U 8aj ? A

'
N(

*
he 8p°ke °f the attack

Q. You said he did not, you said it was some impending danger he told you ofyou cannot tell exactly what words he used and it was matter of your own inference

trouble Tame ? A°YeB ^ ^ t0^ ** ^ that 7°U W°Uld haV6 t0 fir° U °ff if

Q. That was the substance of it ? A. That was the substance of it.

Q. .Now he knew that you were a loyal man didn't he ? A.I think he did.

*™J?9 a
yo

uV?ppo8e h
?
was inviting you to load up your gun to fire at thetroops ? A. That is as I understood it.

Q. Then you did not think he thought you a loyal man ? A. I beg your pardon
His object in saving me, I always understood, you know, was purely personal, notgeneral, it was not from any love of the white people that he saved my life, it wasonly from personal motives. *

*?nn ?' ^Yes
6^ ^ alth°Ugh he

>
knew ^ou to be a loyal-* man to ioad your

Q And you inferred from that that he expected you to fire upon the whites?A. l think he did
;
yes.

Q. I just want to get that out, so that the jury can understand the way in whichyou look at things, Mr. Jefferson.

Q. Now when did you see Poundmaker again on that day after he rode away onhis pony ? A. Well I saw him in the evening.
Q V^here was he? A, He was standing over some dead bodies and he wastalking to people around there I understand, he was telling them not to grieve,something of that sort, that such things must occur and something that way.
<qj. (xive us his words if you can ? A. I could not give you his words.
H. You cannot give me any of his words ? A. No.
Q. That is another piece of your own interpretation, I suppose ; that is another

tV°
U
I
^P1

*
08810118 ? A. Well, no, it is not, there is not much impression about it.

1 heard the man speak and that was the subject, that was what he said, abbreviated
certainly. 7

Q. He told them not to grieve, and encouraged them ? A. Yes
^. You say that, do you? A. Yes.
Q. Now you kaow other people heard what he said, do you swear that ? A. Oh

yes.

* m S"
Tbat he t0ld them not t0 grieve and eilcouraged them ? A. I swear that he

loia them not to grieve, that such things must occur, they could not expect I suppose
to nght and not have anyone killed.

**

Q. Did you hear him say anything before that ? A. No.
Q. Do you know that he prevented Indians from pursuing the troops ? A. No.
Q. You do not know that either ? A. I don't know that?

JWow
T
m

1

uch do y°a know about what happened on that day ? A. Well, I knowvery little I know that I saw half-breeds running away except three or four oftnem, an! I know that I saw Mussinass come along, and I had better tell you that I
told my wife to go to the half-breed camp, and I thought she must have gone, that iswhy I went over there. I thought the half-breeds had a little more sense than to
atop there and fight, so I told her.

Q, The half-oreed camp was just outside the Indian camp was it? A. Yes, and
Jiussinass came and asked what we were standing there for, and he said go down
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there, pointing to a little sort of ravine, right close to the camp; and three fellows on

foot, I think it was two or three, went along, and two men on horseback and myself

on foot, and he came up behind. Mussinass (Musatemwas) and soon after that I

believe he was shot, at least I heard afterward? that he was shot. I did not see him

shot, but they said he had been shot.

Well during the whole time were you in the front of the battle at all / A. .No,

I did not see any battle. I did not see any soldiers and I did not see any Orees hre,

or half-breeds either. ,.„«„;«„»
Q. And you did not see Poundmaker between the morning and the evening (

A% N
Q* You were in the half breed camp nearly all day A. The half-breed camp

was beyond me, they went about I suppose three miles further than I did, two or

three miles. r ,, ,, T j-a

Q. They went further than you did ? A. Yes, they went further than I did.

Q, What are we to understand by that, didn't you tell us the half-breed camp

was just outside the Indian camp ? A. I mean the half-breeds went away from the

camp,
Q, They ran away ? A, Yes.

Q, And you went over in the direction of the half-breed camp? A. lea, I

f° °Q
e

You went beyond the half-breed camp then ? A. No, they went beyond the

old camp, the men left their tents standing as they ran off, and in the direction m
which they had gone I followed.

O. And you went beyond the old camp ? -A. Oh, yes

Q. So that you were a long way from the fight ? A. So that I was I suppose

two and a half miles, perhaps—
Q. And you were that nearly all day ? A, Yes, most of the day.

Q. Now after the fight messengers came again from Kiel ? A. Yes.

Q. Who were they ? A. The men who had gone down came back again, the

half-breeds who had gone down came back again.

Q Who were they ? A. Jobin and the man they called V ernet, 1 believe. 1

have learned these two other names since. I did not see go away, see them go away,

so that this is another of my suppositions.
.

Q Well, did you see them coming in? A. No, I did not see them coming in.

q' Did you see them after they came in ? A. I saw them after they- came in.

Q. Do you know who they are or who they were? A. I saw them after they

Q. Who were they? A. Keeteewayhow, he has a half-breed name, I believe.

Q. Did you see Aroand ? A. I did.

Q. Did you see Wawpass Trottier? A. Yes.

Q Did you see Jobin? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see Alexander Cayieu ? A. Not that I know of

Q. That is, Keeteewayhow? A. I saw him.

Q. Did you see Tripoos Carriere ? A. I don't know, I probably have seen him,

but I don't know him.

Q. Did you see Chicicum ? A* Yes, Chicicum had not gone away.

Q. He was there still ? A. Yes. . .

Q Well, now these were all half breeds, were they? A. Yes, except Chicicum.

q. Charles Trottier did you see him ? A. That is the man they called Tripoos

Trottier, that is the man I mean.
,

Q. Do you remember among them a big stout man, with a beard slightly grey

and a hooked nose ? A. Arcand is a man with a beard and a hooked nose.

Q. A stout man ? A. Yes, he is a good size.

Q. That was one of these at all events and you remember all these different naif-

breeds being there, and they had come from Eiel as you understood? A. Yes, I

understood so.
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Q. That was how long after the fight of Cut Knife ? A. I believe it was the day
after. It might have been two days after.

Q. Was there a powwow held after they came to the council ? A. Well, they
read the letter in the open air.

Q. There was another letter ? A. Yes.
Q, Eead iD the open air ? A. Yes.
Q. Who read it ? A. Jobin.

Q. Was anything said as to Jobin being president ? A. No.
Q. You don't recollect that ? A. No, I don't recollect that.

^
Q, Do you remember Jobin sending for a fat ox or a cow ? A. I heard that, but

I did not know anything about it. I only hoard that as part of the news.
Q. You were not there yourself ? A. No.
Q. But you heard this ither letter read in the open air to the Indians ? A. Yes.
Q. Can you tell us what it was ? A. I can give you a pretty good idea I think.
Q Do you know what has become of it ? A. No, I don't.
Q. What did it contain ? A. It said that they had had another fight with the

troops, that the troops had attacked them on both sides of the river, and they had
sent out 150 of their breeds to meet them, that they had behaved themselves not
only like brave men but like heroes, that they could not say that it was a victory
but that the general had been obliged to retire after it, that they could not say how
many men were killed, but there were four waggon-loadsful. He said they hadn't
to continue this indiscriminate warfare. They had to do it more systematically.
They hadn't to kill prisoners. They hadn't to kill wounded men. They had to hurt
no one that was not going to hurt them, -and I think they wanted 200 men—I think
it was 200—to go down and help to take General Middleton prisoner.

Q. This was the letter from Kiel ? A. This was the letter from Kiel.
Q. Was it signed by Kiel ? A. I did not see it.

Q. You understood it that way ? A. Yes.
Q, D> you remember another thing, was it in the letter or did one of the mes-

sengers say it that the Sioux some of them had watched wounded soldiers or killed
soldiers being put into the waggon, and they had counted 30 or 40 being put into one
waggon ? A. I think that was one of the^by word of mouth—that was not in the
letter.

Q. And did they say anything more to this effect that the Americans had come
over and had destroyed the railway from Beginato Maple Creek or something to that
effect ? A. I don't think it. I don't remember anything of the sort.

Q. Well, that was read in the open air to the Indians generally ? A Yes
Q. By Jobin ? A. Yes.

Q. D.ld he read it in Cree ? A. He did.

Q. What was done next ? A. Oh, in the letter he wanted them all to go down
to him. He wanted all the Indians to come down to him and these 200 had to come
on ahead, something like that.

Q. Well, what was the next thing done after that letter was read ? A. The?
shifted the camp I believe.

Q. I mean immediately ? A. The next thing of any event was their starting

Q. Well, what was done or said by anybody about that about the letter ? A.
Oh, they had some talk about it when he finished reading the letter. I suppose it
must have boon transmitted to him from the half-breeds down below as part as a
recital of the battle or something of that sort. He told what the letter failed to tell,
I suppose.

Q. Who did ? A. This Trottier.

Q. Did you hear any conversation between either of them or any of those
messengers and Poundraaker about that letter ? A. Yes. .

Q. What did you hear ? A. I heard Poundmaker ask Trottier when the Amer-
icans were coming. Oh, he says what would be the good of the Americans coming ?U the Americans came, were to come here, they would want to have the country for
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themselves. He says, we want to try and take it ourselves and then we will sell it

to the highest bidder. Poundmaker said something to the effect that if that had been

known that they would not have started the row. It was because they had expected

the Americans coming. . • o a

Q. Did he say all that : because they expected the Americans coming t A.

Because they expected the Americans to come that they had started. He said he

expected to have the whole summer to clean out the barracks.

Q. That he expected—now come, what were the words he used ( A. wo
expected.

Q. " We " ? A. Yes.

Q. Are you eure he said " we " ? A. Yes, I feel pretty sure.

Q. Did you hear them try to persuade him to go to Batoche ? A. Well, except

that I don't remember hearing anything.

Q, You did not hear anything else ? A. No.

Q. Were you still living in Poundmaker'n tent ? A. No.
Q* Where were you living ? A. Close beside him.

Q. And you saw him every day ? A. No, I very seldom saw him, that is, I very

seldom spoke to him at any rate.
, , lL ,

Q. What wasthis occasion on which this conversation took place that you speak:

of ? A. It was after they had finished reading the letter.

Q. Immediately afterwards ? A. Yes.

Q. In the open" air ? A. Yes.

Q. And at a large meeting ? A . Pretty large

.

Q Did he say it out loud so that everyone.could hear ? A. I think so.

q! It was not a private conversation then ? A. No, it was not a private con-

versation. , ,i .

Q. It was said in the meeting to all the Indians that were there, so that every-

one could hear it ? A. So that everyone could hear it.
;

Q Did he find fault with this man for misleading the Indians in telling them

the Americans were coming ? A. Well, that was the tone in which he spoke, that

it was a very wrong thing for them to do.

Q. Did you hear Poundmaker at any time saying anything about the wishing to

go to Devil's Lake? A. Yes.

Q When was that? A. It would be about a week after this.

Q. Well, who was present ? A. 1 could not say who was present.

Q. Was Jobin present ? A. I could not say.

Q. Were any of the half-breeds ? A.I would not be sure. I am not sure. It

was a well known thing, so that someone must have beon present.

Q. It was a well known thing that he had wanted to go away to Devil s Liake f

Q^
It was in the other direction from Brioche altogether, wasn't it ? A. Yes.

Q And would have taken the Indians away out of the trouble altogether and

kept them away from Kiel ? A. It would have kept them away from .Kiel; yes.

Q. But the Indians decided to go ? A. Yes.

Q. And Poundmaker resigned ? A. Poundmaker started off, and they brought

im
Q^Poundmaker resigned his chieftainship didn't he? A. I could not say.

O And didn't the half-breeds take command of the camp before they startedT

A. Well, I could not say. I have no personal knowledge of whether they did or not,

but that was my impression.

O That was your understanding of the state ol attairs ( A. xes.

Q. And Jobin was president ? A. Well, that was the story in the camp
;
Yes.

Q Now are you aware that Poundmaker and Mud Blanket and some others

actually tried to get away themselves to Devil's Lake ? A. Yes, 1 know it

Q Tried to get off by themselves when they could not control the Indians and

they were stopped and prevented from going? A. Well, I don't think it was because

thev couldn't control the Indians then.
J
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Q You don't think ? A. No.
Q. The fact is that they tried to go ? A. They tried to go

;
yes.

Q. And they were turned back ? A. They were turned back.
Q. By whom ? A. By the Stony Indians, I believe.
Q. They warned them back and would not let them go out of the camp ? A No
Q. Then the camp moved off towards Eagle Hills? A. Yes.
Q. And the next thing was the capture of the teamsters ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know who was in command of the body that captured the teamsters ?

A. No.
Q. Where was Poundmaker ? A. I could not say,
Q- Did y°u, during the whole of this time, see Poundmaker giving any orders;?

Q. Bid he take any active part at all ? A. No I don't think he did.
Q. When the teamsters were brought in where were they taken ? A. Well I

could not say. I did not see them brought in.

Q. Where did you see them the first time you saw them after they were brought
in ? A. Well, it was in a little kind of a valley ; they were down in a hollow.

Q. In whose camp ? A. Oh, there was no camp at all that time, it was while we-
were on the road. You might say it was a surprise, all the carts went into a biff
valley, and I suppose the men went off to take these freighters, and there was nacamp at all—they stopped there for dinner.

Q. Was there no camp made at all during* the time the teamsters were with von ?
A. Oh, yes. J

Q. Well, during that time, in what camp were the teamsters kept ; were they not
kept m the half-breeds' camp ? A. They were kept in the half-breeds' camp.

Q. Not in the Indian camp? A. .No.

Q. Do you know how Poundmaker treated them ? A. Except that I heard he
treated them very well, I don't know anything.

Q. Were you present at the council that was held before the surrender ? A. I
was present when they wrote a letter. I wrote a letter for them to surrender.

Q. To General Middleton ? A. Yes.
Q. Upon whose advice was it that that was done. A. I could not say.
Q. You could not say? A. No.
Q. Don't you know it was done on Poundmaker's advice ? A. I don't know that
Q. You don't know that ? A. No.
Q. Don't you know that Poundmaker had constantly before that tried to have

those teamsters given up? A. No, I don't.

Reexamined by Mr. Scott :

Q. When was it that the prisoner wanted to get away and was stopped by the
Stonys ? A. It was about ten miles from Cut Knife.

Q. Was that after they had left the camp at Cut Knife Creek ? A. Yes.
Q. On their way eastward ? A. To Eiel, to Duck Lake.
Q. It was after that that he wanted to ? A. Yes.
Q. Did he attempt to get away, did you see ? A. Yes, they turned off.

Q. Who was with him when he turned off? A. I could not say, his brother was
with him, and I heard, I did not see them when they were brought back you know
it is only I heard

Q. Were there any other members of his band going with him ? A. Well, I
heard

Q. Do you know of any ? A. I don't know of any.
Q. Did you hear him say what his object was in going to Devil's Lake ? A.

Well, he did not exactly say what his object was.
Q. Dd he say why he wanted to go there? A. I could not give you his exact

words, but I can give you something like it.

Q. Tell me in English what he said, of course if you gave me his exact words I
would not understand you ? A. Well, he said Eiel was in a fix, Eel must be in a fix, ,

and if they went down there they would probably get into a fix, too.
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By Mr. Robertson :

Q. He said that to the Indians, did he ? A. I could not say who he was addressing

Col. Herchmer, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Casgrain :

Q. What is your Christian name ? A. William Macauley.

Q. You are one of the superintendents of the mounted police force? A. Yes#]

I am superintendent of the police

.

Q. I believe you left Eegina about the end of March last ? A. Yes.

Q. For Battleford ? A. Yes.

Q. Were you in charge of a force? A. I was in charge of a party of police of

forty-six men and afterwards put on on Col. Otter's staff as adviser.

Q. What was the colonel doing ? A. He was commander of a column of militia

and police

.

Q. What was this column doing; what was it got up for ? A. It was sent to

the relief of Battleford, which was supposed to be in danger from the Indians.

Q. What was the state of the country at that time? A. The country was in

insurrection and rebellion

.

Q. After leaving Eegina where did you go ? A.I went to Swift Current, and
then to Medicine Hat and back again to Swift Current and started from there to

Battleford.

Q. Well, did anything happen on your way to Battleford or after you got to

Battleford? A. On the road to Battleford, two days before wo got there, wo
exchanged some shots with some Indians.

Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. I know him since 1880.

Q. Was he there on that occasion ? A. No, not that I know of.

Q. Had you occasion to meet him after that ? A. On the 2nd May I saw him,

on the field at Cut Knife Hill.

Q. What was going on at Cut Knife Hill? A. Col. Otter went out with a
strong party for a reconnoissance and under the impression, by my advice, that the)

Indians would not fight, that we would have a chance of talking with Poundmaker;

as I firmly was impressed with that idea. On ascending the bill at Out Knife, after

crossing the creek, a party of twenty or thirty mounted men fired on to us.

Q. Were they half-breeds or Indians ? A. Some were half-breeds, some were

Stony Indians, they were painted, and I recognized tbem, of course at that distance

about 800 yards when they were apart, and we then commenced to return it.

Q. Did you see the prisoner at all that day ? A. I saw the prisoner on two
occasions that day.

Q. How long did the fight last ? A. Seven hours.

Q. And during the fight, you saw him on two occasions ? A. On two occasions

distinctly, I pointed him out to Major Short of the artillery, and he laid a gun on

him twice.

Q. What was he doing ? A. He was driving in a buckboard on the first occasion

I saw him

.

Q. Was he doing anything else? A. Well, he looked to me as if he was general

in the whole party, because after the different positions he would take the fire would

come from fresh ravines, new ravines,

Q. Was he going around at all ? A. I saw him driving from this one place

hack to this high hill which surrounded the whole camp, and I distinguished Father

Cochin at the same time on this high hill.

Q. Did anything come from this hill when the prisoner went to it? A. Well,

that was far from this one bluff to the right, and I told you I saw him in the

buckboard, and the fire came from that several times.

Q. Did you see him after this ? A. I saw him again on the top of the high hill.

Q. What was he doing then ? A.I should judge it was too far off to tell what

he was doing. I should judge he was generalling the whole party.
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Q. What is Poundmaker on his reserve ? A. He is the chief of the Crees, at

Battleford.

Q. Do you know who the leader of the insurrection was, the general leader ?

A* I understood Louis Kiel. I don't know at all. I was not in that part of the column.

Gross-examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q. You have told us everything that led you to suppose that Poundmaker was
acting in command ? Yes.

Q. You saw him there ? A. I saw him there.

Q. And firing took place ? A. Yes.

Q. And firing was taking place in all directions, wasn't it where he was and
where he was not ? A. Yes.

Q. How far was he from you when you saw him the first time ? A. We laid

the gun about 1,500 yards, and hit a man alongside of him. I think it is a pretty
good distance.

Q. How far was he the second time ? A. About 2,000.

Q. You say you could recognize him at that distance ? A.I have glasses, we
carry glasses.

Q. And it was through that you recognized him ? A. Not the first time. The
first time I recognized *him with my naked eye, I know him very well. I
travelled one summer for a long time with him. 1 know him very well.

Q . How was he dressed ? A. He was dressed I think in his shirt sleeves, I could

not swear to that.

Q. He was dark ? A. Perhaps I was not in a state to see exactly that day.
was a little excited that day mysell. I was fighting.

Q. The impression on your mind was that it was Poundmaker you saw ? A. I
know it was Poundmaker. I am certain of it.

Q. At 1,500 yardb ? A. At 1,500 yards.

Q. Driving in a buckboard ? A. Driving in a buckboard.

Q. And the second time it was through the glasses you saw him ? A. Through
the glasses on top of the high hill, he is a prominent looking man and a man you
can tell along with the othor Indians at once.

Q. How far fioin the place where the fight was going on ? A. I was in front

and it was right immediately in front of me.

Q. But 3,000 yards away ? A. 2,000, about that, I did not measure it. I would
have taken aim at that distance if I was laying the gun.

Q. You were close to the Indians ? A. As close as he would let me.

Q. And you baw Father Cochin beside him then ? A. No, I did not see him beside

him. I recognized Father Cochin on the hill. I recognized him so far that I told

Major Short and I told Col. Otter. I said there was a priest up there. I knew he was
a priest by the petticoats.

Q. How far was he from Poundmaker? A. I don't know, he was on the same
hill on which I afterwards saw Poundmaker ; it was on the same hill which surrounds
the whole camp. It covers the whole camp. It is to the left from where we were
fighting, a very high hill, and my right and their left was their camp, and on this

hill were gathered as 1 understood from seeing there was a number of women there

when the fight commenced, and it was on this hill I saw Father Cochin and also

Poundmaker.
Q. Where the women were ? A. I took them for women, the same as I took

the father for a priest.

Q. How far from that hill was he the first time you saw him ? A. It must have
been when I saw him on the bluff, it must have been three-quarters of a mile from
that hill, it was away to the right, to the right flank.

Q. Was he near to the tent or far from them ? A. A long way from the tents

then, the tents were close to the high hill,

Q. Was it early or late in the fight ? dA. We had been fighting about two hours,

I think, as far as I could judge. I did not look at my watch*
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Q. Do you know an Indian called Mustinatawass. ? A. No, I dare say I kno'W

him, but I would not recognize him by that name.

Q. Poundmaker says, Col. Herchmer, that there was an Indian driving in a
buckboard, that it was not him at all, an Indian who was wounded he said in the

iight ? A. Well, I saw him in a buckboard.

Q. You are so positive as that at 1,500 yards without a glass and in the excite-

ment of action ? A. Well I am not an excitable man.

Q. What was the country like between you and Poundmaker when you saw
him at 1,500 yards? A. There are two little islands of timber through there to the>

right, and this was an open space between the two islands of timber, and perfectly

clear, with a dip of the ground between us and there, and it was on slightly higher

ground than that on which we were standing.

Q. And you say that a gun was laid for Poundmaker and it hit the man beside

him ? A. It hit the man alongside of him. I judged that by a horse coming back
riderless.

Q. That was how you knew that ? A. We knew we got our guns at the right

range, and we saw a party—there were several, I think four or five, close there in.

the party, and we saw them separate and run clean out, run away.

Q. And what did Poundmaker do, the man in the buckboard? A. Turned 1

around and wheeled away and went back and we tried another shot at him and were
jiot successful at all. He got too far out of the range.

Q. Was there much firing going on at that time where you were ? A. A little.

Q, Was the firing hot? A. Well I thought so—hot enough for me, anyhow.
£Harold E. Boss, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr.^Scott :

Q. Where do you live? A. Prince Albert.

Q. What is your occupation ? A. Deputy sheriff.

Q« Where were you about the 26th of March last? A. I was at Carlton.

Q. What were you doing there ? A. I was there as a volunteer, doing general

volunteer duty under Major Crozier.

Q. Did anything happen to you about the 24th ? A. On the 24th March I was
taken prisoner with Mr. Astley, by a party of half-breeds under command of Gabriel

Dumont.
Q. Where? A. Near Duck Lake.
Q. Who was in command of the party who took you prisoner? A. Gabriel

Dumont.
Q. In what condition were they as to arms ? A. They were all armed—all of

them

.

Q. Where did they take you to after they took you prisoner ? A. To Duck Lake,

Q. Whom did you find there; what did you find there ? A. I found about 30Q
half-breeds and Indians under arms, under the generalship of Kiel.

Q. Did you see the man who was in charge of the party that took you prisoner,

Gabriel Dumont, did you see him there ? A. I did.

Q. Did he form a portion of that party ? A. He did.

Q. You were then confined at Duck Lake for a time ? A. I was there for I
think a week, or about a week.

Q. Did anything happen while you were there ; did anything happen on the

25th March? A. On the 25th March, no, on the 26th March the battle of Duck
Lake took place, in the afternoon.

Q. What do you know about that battle ? A. Well, I know that I saw a large

body of men going out, I should say about 300 armed half-breeds and Indians.

Q. The same party that was at Duck Lake ? A. The same party that was at

Duck Lake. I saw them going out armed and I heard shots, and during the battle

Albert Monkman came to see me, and was running around rather excited.

Q. Was Albert Monkman one of the party? A. He was one of the party; I

asked him what was the matter, and he said there was a little fight going on up the

road.
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Q. Did you see anything of the armed men again ? A. They all came back. I
saw them coming back.

Q. The same day ? A. The same day.

Q. Did you hear anything said by any one of them as to what happened? A..

Tes. I heard from different parties there that there had been a fight there, that

they had killed so many of the volunteers and mounted police.

Q. Who did you hear saying that ? A.I heard Mr. Kiel for one.

Q. You heard him saying there had been a fighi? A. Yes.

Q. And that there were a number of people killed ? A. Yes.
Q. Did he say anything else about it? A. Well, he stood there talking for

some time. I rather think it was about the time they brought Newitt, a volunteer

that was wounded on the field. They brought him in and said he would be safer with?

ms. They brought him upstairs and he stood at the head of the stairs, and was*

talking to us for some time, and that was the time, and he said that he was going to*

establish a new government and a new code of laws ; and he said that if he could not:

get the English half-breeds to come to his assistance, he did not expect to fight

against the white people he said of Prince Albert, that he would have to enlist the*

Indians on his side. I could not swear to the exact words he said, but something,

Jike that.

Q. How do you know he was the leader of that party
;
you say he was the

general ? A . I was there for seven weeks, and I had a'very good idea when I would.

see him sending

Q. From what you saw? A. From what I saw during the time I was prisoner,,.

Q. He was in command to your knowledge ? A. To the best of my knowledge*.

Q. 1 suppose the others obeyed his orders? A. Apparently they did.

Q. You remained about a week at Duck Lake and where wer% you taken to
then ? A. I was taken to Carlton.

Q. How long did you remain at Carlton ? A. I think three days and then I was
taken from there back to Batoche, and then I remained there till J 2th May, when*

I was released by the troops under command of Gen. Middleton.

Q. Were you kept as a prisoner ? A. I was.

Q. Were there any other prisoners besides you ? A . There were seven of us ;;

eight, but one was released to carry word back to Prince Albert that the volunteers*

might come after their dead

.

Q. You saw the party that took you prisoner and the party that they joined at
Duck Lake were all armed, how long did they remain armed—the half-breeds that

you saw there ? A. They remained armed all the time I was with him, about,

seven weeks.

Q. Up till the 12th May ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know from anything that was said there what troops they were*

fighting with ? A. They were fighting against the mounted police and volunteers and
Gen. Middleton. They heard of Gen. Middleton and they spoke several times of Gen.
Middleton. There was one man Venable I think his name was. Be was my infor-

mant as to the troops and who they were commanded by.

Q, What troops ? A. Gen. Middleton's troops.

Q. What troops were Gen. Middleton's troops? A. Canadian volunteers. They
were the troops that came and took us out of the cellar.

Q. Of Gen. Middleton and he had some troops composed of Canadian volunteers^

A, Yes.
Mr. Eobertson says he has no^questions.

Charles Eoss sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Casgrain : ,

Q. You belong to the mounted police force ? A, Yes.

Q. Where were you on the 2nd May last ? A. I was at Cut Knife with the troops*

Q. What was going on there ? A. Well, a kind of a battle I think.
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Q. Between whom ? A. Between the Indians and troops and police and soldiers.

Q. Were you there with Col. Herchmer at any time during the day ? A; Yes.

Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see the prisoner that day ? A. The prisoner was pointed out to me,

but I could not recognize him that day.

Q, By whom was he pointed out to you ? A. Col. Herchmer.

Q. What did he say ? A. He said that was Poundmaker in the buckboard on the

MIL 1 noticed somebody in the buckboard and Indians driving backwards and for-

wards to the camp.
m
\ _

Q. The colonel said that was Poundmaker in the buckboard t A. Yes.

By the Court

:

<j. You could not recognize him ? A. No.

By Mr. Oasgrain :

Q. Do you recognize the prisoner as being the man that you saw that day ? A. I

did not take the glasses. I saw the buckboard and the man in it.

Q. What was done after that ? A. Well, they kept fighting there all day, and

the prisoner stayed on the hill till Major Short fired the cannon and then got off again.

Q. How many were killed in that fight on your side ? A. I believe seven killed

and fifteen wounded. - - _ A± . „ ,

Q. How did this fight begin ? A. Well, we started from Battleford one evening

and we arrived there just alter daylight in the morning, and I went upon the hill

*nd went right close to the camp ; there was no Indians then, only one. 1 saw one

Indian riding around, and as soon as he saw me, he began riding around m a circle,

and I went down and informed Col. Herchmer the camp was there
;
.and he told me

to go back up again and see if they could get any position for the guns near the

camp; and I went back again, and when 1 got there again there were twenty or

thirty Indians around, and still the Indian was riding and others came up with me,

. and at that time there were thirty Indians ; and our orders were not to fire unlesa

fired upon, and when we were up on the hill, there were two shots fired by the

Indians . I don't know whether they fired first or not but they fired two shots, and I

asked the men if we would commence shooting, and they said
:

Yes
;
as the Indians

have started, we had the privilege to shoot." So they commenced firing, and fired

from that on continually.

Cross examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q. Col. Herchmer told us that he did not look at the prisoner through glasses the

first time he saw him ? A. I don't know whether he was^ nS^^^^
Q. You knew the prisoner before ? A. Yes, I had seen him during the.winter

.

Q. And you were not able to recognize him ? A.I did rot pay much attention

^.Yo^were not able to recognize him when he was pointed out to you ?_

A.

.No, I did not recognize him at all? there was only two men that I recognized there.

I could not recognize but two men there, that was all.

Q. At the distance at which he was, can anybody, do you think
,
recognize with

the naked eye, with certainty distinguish, for instance, Poundmaker, from any other

tall, handsome Indian ? A. Well, I could not say that. ...
Q* Do you think anyone could know with certainty at that distance at which

you were tiien? A. I don't know; there is men there seems to say they could

recognize him. I heard several say they could recognize him through the day.

Q. They thought they did ? A. Yes.
#

Q. But you could not do it ? A.I did not recognize him
;
no.

Q. You heard a couple of shots fired at the Indians, you do not know whether

ftt^.^iL^S orders to fire on them ? A. Yes ; they started to fire first

though themselves.
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Q. No flag of truce was sent out and no attempt made to communicate with the
Indians ? A. No flag of truce flying anywhere.

Q . No attempt made to communicate with the Indians before firing ? A. They
Btarted firing.

Q. You heard a couple of shots, but you did not know that they were fired at
you ? A.I could not swear they were fired at us

.

Q. You went up quite close to the camp ? A. I was up within about 200 yards
©fit.

Q. And there were no outposts ? A. There was one, one man, that is all

.

Q . You saw one Indian there ? A. I saw one Indian mounted, and as soon as
he saw me, he commenced riding around in a circle and they commenced coming out
of the tents ; but after these two shots were fired, there were 200 or 300 Indians
came out of the tents on both sides trying to surround us ; they were all armed,
everyone of them.

Q. You did not wait to be surrounded ? A. They were firing then, and we did
not want to be surrounded if we could help it.

Joseph Alexander sworn

:

Examined by Mr* Scott :

Q. Where do you live? A. Battleford.

Q. What do you do, what is your occupation ? A. I am employed by th®
police there,

Q . Do you know this man in the dock ? A. Yes

.

Q. How long have you known him ? A. About seven years.
Q. Do you know where he was living? A. Yes.
Q. Where ? A. Up to Cut Knife.

Q. Was it at Cut Knife or near Cut Knife? A. It is called Cut Knife ; it is

close on his reserve.

Q. Do you remember the 2nd May last? A. Yes.

Q. What were you doing on that day ; did you go out with Col. Otter and Col.
Herchmer and the troops from Battleford out to Cut Knife? A. Yes.

Q. What did you go out for ? A.I went with the soldiers to fight with them,
to help them fighting.

Q. Did you see this man, the prisoner, there that day ? A. Yes, I saw him.
Q. Where did you see him ? A.I saw him at Cut Knife Hill going up the hill,

to the right as you go up the hill, riding in a buckboard.
Q. What was he doing ; did you see him doing anything that day? A. I did

not see him fire any gun at all.

Q. Did you see him doing anything else ? A, I only saw him riding in a buck-
board, and of course the colonel saw him too, that was before the fight was over.

Q. Was it during the fight you saw him riding ? A.I saw him all the time,
through all the fight, till such time as the fight was over.

Q. Were there any other Indians near him? A. Blue Eyes and Light Foot
•was along with him there. I saw them, it was up the hill, to the right of the hill

•where I saw them

.

Q. Were there any shots came from the direction, fired from the direction in
which you saw the prisoner ? A. Shots came from that direction, but I could not
eay who tired the shots. I could not say whether it was Poundmaker.

Cross-examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q. How far were you from Poundmaker ? A. Not more than 200 yards, I guess.

Q. Where were you ? A.I was in the direction where I saw him to the right.

I was at that direction where I saw him.
Q. Were you inside the Indian line ? A.I could not say whether I was inside

of their line or not.

Q. How far were you from Col. Herchmer ? A. He did not come to the direc-

tion where I was, but he remained where the cannon was

.
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g-HowKryou'Lm-Coir-Herchmer? A. I was standing a.ongside of

Col. Herohmer when I saw him riding in the backboard, standing about two or thre*

**S
m
An°d^t

e
was
m
n
e

oi more than 200 yards from Poundmaker ? A About that

I told colonel and the colonel knew him when 1 pointed him out to him, as the

prisoner when I crossed the creek I saw Peter Balkan tyne Peter BaUantyne looked

at him with a spy-glass and knew it was Poundmsker riding in the buckboard. I

Sid not Took wXfhe spy-glass myself, only Mr. Ballantyne that looked through

***
Q
7
Where was Poundmaker then ? A. He was riding up a hill, going home-

^Q.Th^e tt woXn were ? A. Going home to the camp where the womeu

WM
Q. Was the fight still going on then ? A. That was just about the latter end,

fhmv. -was firin? a chance Bhot every now and then still

.

Q WaTthereany fighting after that at all? A. No, that was just the last of

the fig"4-

d Li ht Poot with him then ? A. I did not say that, I saw

tbemwKmatthrtime. Sutlsawthem two I know another time together

Q But you did say before, Poundmaker was on the bucttoard and Blue Eyes

and Light Foot with him ? A. I did not say that they were all three together. The

Question that was asked was where did I see Poundmaker ?^And * was o»lytheu

tLt I should give the answer that it was only two, but instead of that I mentioned

i Didn't you say before that Blue Eyes and Light Foot were with Poundmaker

-whenvou saw him in the bickboard? A. When he first went towards the creek

Wmsi"e right of the hill as the road went up. I saw Poundmaker and Light

Foot and Blue Eyes. That was the three.

Petee Ballanttne sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Casgrain

:

Q. Where do you live? A. Battleford.

© Do vou remember the 28th March last? A. Yes.

q! ^anything happen that day? A. I think we heard the Indians were

coming down in a body from their reserve to Battleford.

Q. What Indians? A. Poundmaker's Indians and others.

Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. Yes.

O. His Indians, his band? A. His hand and others.

Q. Well, did they come down ? A. Yes, they came down on Monday.

Q Do you remember the date ? A. About the 30th March, I think.

J" %iZZr^&r He^nfe down there with a body of men and I

~\f^ dTthSSL. do there ? A. When I met them they asked me.where

•was the agent and I told them he was across the river and they a*ked me what is

X reason and I told them we were afraid of the half-breeds from Duck Lak« and

Sen the^ 'asked me then to give them the news, and I told them what happened at

^^fh^nefthereatthat time? A. Yes, I was Standing right infant

of him and I told him what happened and 1 told htm I could not tell h™ exaetty

how many were killed on each side. I said there were killed on both sides, I said

we had different rumors, we did not know the exact number.
lV!__

QWeHid the Indians do anything after that; did the pnsoner do anything

after that ? A No ; I asked them to come down to the Indian office as they wanted

to^ee the agett, and he asked me then if I could not send word to the Indian agent
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and I told him I would write him to see if he would come over and I wrote a note to
Mr. Kae; at the same time, when I saw how they acted, I told Mr. Rae I would not
advise him to come across,

Q. What made you tell him that; what were they doing? A. They started
helping themselves with Mr. jRae's hay, every one 'of them was armed, those that
hadn't guns had tomahawks.

Q. What was the prisoner doing? A. I could not say anything about that.
Q. What was be doing with his band ? A. He was there, he did not say much

himself except that he wanted to speak to the agent, he did rot say much himself.
Q. Who was leading the band ? A. Kamisgeejakoo was the man.
Q. He was with Poundmaker ? A. And his brother, Yellow Mud Blanket.
Q. Did they do anything else than help themselves to hay ? A, No, I did not

Bee them take anything, but they were examining the buildings very closely—not
Poundmaker himself, but the other young men,

Q. When did they leave Battleford ? A. On Tuesday morning.
Q. Well, between the time they came to Battleford and the time they left what

did they do there ? A. Well, the time that I was with them, I was with them all
day and they had not done anything except ask—they gave me a list of what they
wanted and I went across and found out that they had raided the buildings.

Q. When you came back, you found—— ? A. We were fired upon, we could
not get across.

Q. Who fired upon you ? A. Half-breeds, it wasn't Indians.
Q. Do I understand you to say you went across the river and when you tried to

get back you could not get back ? A. Next morning, on Tuesday.
Q. What had they done then ? A. The buildings were all raided.
Q. Did you see the Indians when you came back to Battleford ? A. No.
Q. They had gone ? A. They had gone.
Q. Well, from the time they got to Battleford till they left, did they do anything

to the village of Battleford, what is called Battleford? A. On the south side of
Battleford, that is where they raided all the buildings, where the government build-
ings are.

Q. That is called Battleford isn't it ? A. Yes.
t& Did you see the buildings afterwards? A. Yes.
Q, What did you see there ? A. Some of the boards were knocked through and

the windows and mostly all the panes were gone. Some of the buildings were burnt.
Q. What was in the buildings, was there anything in the buildings ? A. Dry-

goods and groceries.

Q. When you saw them after you came back ? A. Well, there was very little
left. There was tea and sugar laying around on the road, print and cotton and
oalicop, and all sorts of dry goods, heaps of it lying in different places on the road;
right near my house was about a waggon load of dry goods lying there.

Q. Did you go to Cut Knife ? A. Yes.
Q. Who with ? A. Col. Herchmer and Otter.
Q. On what day was that, 2nd May? A. Some time about that.
Q. The day of the fight ? A. The day of the fight. I don't remember the day now.
Q Did you see anybody on the field there that you recognized ? A. Not at the

time of the fighting. It was after the fighting that I said I thought it was Pound-
maker, and others that came up on the ridge after we had crossed.

Q. Were you there during all the fight ? A. Yes.
Q. You saw the prisoner after the fight you say ? A. Yes. After I came across

the river, I took my glasses and looked. jAll the Indians came up to where the gun
had been standing.

Q. What was he doing ? A, They were walking around there. Catching hold of
a few cartridges that were left there, and little caps, and I noticed one of them
matching hold of a little blue coat.

Q. That was after Col. Otter had retreated ? A. Yes, after his retreat.
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Cross-examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q. Did he mention anything in particular ? A- Wo.

Q. Did he mention tea and tohaeeo 1 A. Something torn

Q. He did not tell you the particulars of what he wanted ? A. No, he did no..

mention the articles
e gt ^ to ^ desolated?

A, Y^s, he e
y
xpV?Ld that, not to J, hut to William McKay. I was standing do**

by when he said it.

§• ]&£££.i£ iS^iTi; he said he was very sorry, that he,«.

always abused o!
PmXng

g
disturbance. He said: I think they do me a great deal

°f h
T*They do him wrong, is that what he meant ? A. Tes, that is the words h*

"^b Did he, in your hearing, say anything about having sent a messenger ahead!

x Ti *i.A „««™+ ? A Nn he did not mention that to me.

b

"C?3"S'teassstftrts-rart£
Sd » A 1?°! k. k.p°id* b. k.pt mm ; h,» dew. i» o.« pl.o. »d «.d™y

wv •_ ?u A«« m\+i> v»ia rifl« in his hands.

T&^*~£^rT&sw soft's sl?i

.onidtri^^ -*• *• «* °- - "*

^XeTt^^
"" q *

But' Poundmakcr himself was really-seemed really-anxious to see Mr. Raa T

A. Well, he said he wanted to see him, he was anxious to se«.him. Yes.

A 5.lf th. w«'"h.yC «ii.g «d uki"S *y »• flP'°8 "»">»*«

r£tSrtd=^|rrwas
-that morning too when I met him

;
yes.
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Q. But do you say that you had told Poundmaker before that ? A. No, I did
!saot eay that.

Q. As far as you know that was the first that Poundmaker heard of it ? AOh, no, he heard of it before, as far as I know.
Q. How do you know he did ? A. Because I told him myself.
<J. Now, Mr. Ballantyne, let us be quite distinct about this, you told us a few

^minutes ago that you told Poundmaker at Battleford when you met him about this
trouble? A. Yes.

Q. And you said you could not say that you had told him before ? A. No I
slon*l remember

.

By the Court :

Q. You had better correct yourself if you have made a mistake at once ? A.
I might have made a mistake because I was in the reserve to see them when they
asked me about the news of Duck Lake, it was in Jefferson's house.

Q. That was, the Indians generally ? A. No, Poundmaker himself.
Q. You saw Poundmaker himself? A. I saw Poundmaker himself and his

brother and a big crowd of them there.

Q. What did you tell them then ; that would be about the 27th ? A. Yes.
Q. What did you tell them then ? A. That there was trouble down at Duck

liake, that it had nothing to do with them, to keep quiet on their reserve and it
would be all right.

Q. Did Poundmaker show any signs of astonishment at that? A. No.
Q. Did he become excited over it ? A. No.
Q. Did the young braves become excited over it at that time ? A. Well, there

were very few of them there, there was none of the young men around there at that
lime, there were only five or six of them— his brother and others.

Q. Now did Poundmaker tell you, when he came into Battleford when you met
him en the occasion you have told us of, that he was anxious to know the truth about
Afce whole matter ? A. Yes.

Q. And that was partly what he had come for ? A. Yes.
Q. It was that as well as the provisions ? A. Yes.
Q. But all the time he seemed quite friendly ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Casgrain :

Q. What did Mr. Bae answer to that message that Poundmaker sent to him?
A. Mr. Bae wrote me to say that he had made up his mind to stay at the barracks,
and if the chiefs wanted to see him, he would meet them half way, a few of their
•councillors.

Q. Did you tell Poundmaker this ? A. Yes, and they said " no " they did not
go acioss, and then among other things he told me that if the Indians went away, to
give them so much provisions providing they went awav quietly, if not, there was a
certain quantity to be given them at that time, a couple" of sacks of flour to use white
lhay were there.

Q. Mr. Bae said he would come half way? A. Yes.
Q. Did you communicate this to Poundmaker ? A. Yes, I told him.
Q. And what did he say ? A. He said he would not go across.

By Mr, Robertson :

Q. When was that, what day ? A. The same day, Monday.
Q. But I understood you when you went across the river with that message,

you did not go lack? A. I said I sent a letter to Mr. Bae and I staid with th©
i radians all day on Monday, it was half past six when I left them.

Q. Then who brought back the letter from Bae to you ? A.I don't remember*
Mi. Mackay handed me the letter, I don't know who ho got it from.
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William McKay sworn :—

Examined by Mr. Scott :

Q. Where do you live ? A. Battleford. .- _

'

Q. What is your occupation ? A. I am agent for the Hudson Bay Company.

Q. You know the prisoner ? A. Yes.
. .

Q. Do you remember seeing him at Battleford about the 27th or 28th March last ?

A. 1 saw him on the 30th March last.
#

.

Q. Where was he at that time ? A. At the Indian office, in Battleford

.

Q. Who were with him ? A. Some other Indians.

Q. Many ? A. I would say there were over 100 Indians.

O. There were over 100 Indians with him ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know whether they were all of his band ? A. There was some of

liia band, and Sweet Grass' band, another chief. : .

Q Any others ? A. The Little Pine, those were the three bands.

Q What were they doing there ? A. When I met the prisoner he was sitting

on the side of the Indian office with these other Indians, and I shook hands with nun

and a few others, and he spoke and he said that he was surprised to see that the

Dolice at the barracks were fortifying themselves in the way of building bastions,

and that they were preparing to fire on him, and he said he was very sorry to hear

that he was accused of coming down to create trouble in Battleford.

Q. In what condition were the prisoner and the other Indians as to arms t

By the Court

:

Q. Please let Mr. Mackay tell the rest of what took place, is that all ? A. I am

just simply answering this gentleman's questions.

By Mr* Scott :

Q In what condition were the prisoner and the other Indians there, as to arms
J

A Well mlt of the other Indians appeared to be armed, the prisoner himself I did

^ Q kd^L^g therein which yoa could ascertain who was the

leader oithlt band

'

f /ndians, the party you saw ? A. Well, he being the speaker, I

consider^hat he was*$g^ tQ lead to think that he a8 the leader, or hear

anyttog ? A? Well, anything that he said the others seemed to approve of what

he would say ; this led me to believe that he was the recognized leader.

QBW they do anything when they were in that part of the country ? A I

aaw not himself but the other Indians bringing some hay from the Indian agents.

stable and feeding their horses with it.

Q. Did you see them do anything else ? A. JNo.

Q. This was on the 30th, was Peter Ballantyne, the last witness, was he there at

the same time ? A. Peter Ballantyne was there.

O. When you went over ? A. When I went over. ,

q! Where were all the people of the Battleford neighborhood at that time ? A.

Thev were in the barracks.
'

_ .. 9 »

Q Were you and Mr. Ballantyne staying in the barracks at the same time ? A.

Y%. Ton went out there from the barracks ? A. We had gone into the barracks

^
rHowTong'didth^n'dians remain in that neighborhood, th..Indians^that you

saw with Poundmaker ? A. Well, I could see them gather ^™d *-^ "f°
before sundown from the barracks ; after that, of course, 1 did not sec anythmg of

<hM 0" W^tbZaTything done about that time, any damage done to any buildings

orpropertythere'aboutthf time ot their visit? A All that I saw that was done

was in taking this hay by the Indians, up to the time I crossed.
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. Su ^0W g dld ihey remain in Battleford, how long did they remain in that
neighborhood ? A. Well, they were around there up to the time Col. Otter arrived,

Q. Was there any damage done during the time they were in that neighborhood?
A. xed, there were buildings burnt.

Q. What buildings ? A. Some government buildings and private buildings.
Q. Where are the government buildings ? A. On the south side of the Battle River.
Q. Where is the business portion of the town of Battleford ? A. Well there iswhat we call the " old " and the " new " town.
Q. The old town is on the south side ? A. Yes.
Q. And the new town is on the north side ? A. Yes.
Q. Not very far from the barracks ? A. Not very far from the barracks.
Q. You say there was some damage done to the old town ? A. Yes, the stores

were plundered and private residences and houses and Hudson Bay store.

* i?-
#

i

Was the Hudson Bav 8tore Pandered ? A. Yes. Haffy and Clingstone's
establishment was plundered, and all the other private residences.

Q. What did the contents of the Hudson Bay store consist of? A. Dry goods
.groceries and provisions.

&

Q. Were they all taken away ? A. There was but little stuff left, there was
some stuff left.

Q. The bulk of the stock was taken away ? A. Yes.
Q. Any buildings burnt there ? A. There were two buildings belonging to the

Hudson Bay Company that were burnt.
Q. Any others; wasn't there a large dwelling house burnt? A. Yes, Judge*

.Rouleau's house.
o

> &

Q. Were there any buildiDgs plundered in the new town of Battleford ? A. Not
that I am aware of.

Q. Do you mean to say that the people of the new town of Battleford all with-
drew into the fort and left it there and that nothing was touched in the town that
you ever t>aw ? A. I did not go around over into the new town after I went into
the barracks. I staid in the barracks, and any time I left the barracks

Q. After the Indians left did you go into the new town, after Col. Otter came
for instance ? A. Oh, yes.

Q. Was there any damage done there when you went into the new town ; did
you see any damage done there ? A. Well, I saw a panel on one of the store doers
smashed in.

Q. Was there any stock taken out of the stores ? A. That I could not say, I
am not aware of that.

Cross-examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q. Poundmaker had gone away the next morning, the morning of the 30th
had he not; when was it this plundering took place? A. On the 30th was the
day that I saw him at the Indian office.

Q. 30th March? A. Yes.
Q. Then on the morning of the 31st he had gone away ? A. I don't know. I

was in the barracks at the time.

Q. Did Poundmaker tell you when you met him outside of Battleford—did he
say way he had come ? A. Yes.

Q. What did he say? A. He told me he had come down to see the agent and ask
for some tea and tobacco and moccasins and some other things that they were in
want of.

Q. D d he express regret that the inhabitants had become frightened? A. He
said that he was surprised.

Q. Did he say why he tvas surprised ? A . Well, he was surprised because he
saw the inhabitants had left the town and houses.

Q. Do you recollect that he mentioned to you that he had sent a messenger ahead
to tell him that he was only coming for some tea and tobacco ? A. That I don't
remember, he might have said that, but I don't remember it.
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Q. Don't you remember that ? A. No.

Q. Try and think, do you remember a conversation with me the other day ? A*
Yes.

Q. In which you told me what occurred, don't you recollect now his telling yom
that he had sent a messenger ahead to Mr. Eae through Joseph McKay on some

-way, that Joseph McKay had written to him? A. No, I don't remember any suck

thing-
Q. As matter of fact had a message come from Joseph McKay to Mr. Eae before*

that to your knowledge from Poundmaker ? A. To my knowledge there was a

messenger sent up by Mr. McKay, I did not see any ; there was a rumor that I heardi

that a messenger from Mr. Joseph McKay's reserve had come into Battleford by &.

man that was sent out, there was a messenger sent out when we heard the Indians*

were coming into town

.

Q. And he brought back a message didn't he ? A. He returned, but I did no&

see what message.

Q. Didn't you hear the news that he had brought back from Joseph McKay?
A. Yes, I heard it from Mr. Ballantyne ; he told me that the messenger had returned

and stated that the Indians were on their way down.

Q. And what about their intentions that they meant no harm and that they

were only coming to a«k for some tea and tobacco ? A. Oh, I was the party that in the

jfirst place informed Mr. Eae that the Indians were coming down, and what they

were coming down for, but at that time I don't remember Ballantyne telling mej,

^because I knew already what I had heard before, about their coming down to see tlaec

agent for some tea and tobacco.

Q. You had heard before, before they came that they were only coming to se®

*£he agent to get some tea and tobacco ? A. Yes.

Q. And you had heard that through a messenger who had been sent oat to Joseph

31cKay to make enquiries ? A. Well, 1 did not see the messenger oa the return.

Q. You heard the report that came back, didn't you? A. Well, I heard all sort®

«f reports.

Q. Didn't you hear the report that came back by the messenger who was sent.

-to Joseph McKay to inquire what the intentions of the Indians were ? A. I heard as.

I ?ay, that the messenger returned, and that Mr. Ballantyne told me that the Indians--

were on their way down, and that is all I heard.

Q. And didn't you hear also that they were quite friendly and that they were
4>nly coming to see the agent and get some tea and tobacco? A. No, not at that time.

Q. When did you hear that then ? A. I heard that when the messenger was
sent up first, that the Indians were coming down in a body to see the agent, but wiiat

they wanted I did not know until Poundmaker told me himself that he came down
to .get tea and tobacco and moccasins from the agent.

Q. A message did come then that the Indians were coming down to *ee the.

agent, was that message from Joseph McKay ? A. No, I did not see Joseph McKay
at all.

Q. Was the message from him ? A. I saw no message.

Q. Was the message that you heard informing you that the Indians were
coming down to see the agent, did that message como from Juocph McKay ? A. No*

Q. It did not ? A. No.

Q. From whom did it come ? A. I don't exactly understand. I did not see

any message. I never saw Mr. Joseph McKay and his message.

Q. Did the news about the Indians coming down to see the agent come from

Mr. Joseph McKay ; 1 don't mean that you saw Joseph McKay, but was he the*

author of the information that was brought,? A. Of the Indians coming down, the

first news that we heard ?

Q. Yes ? A. No, that is what I say . I say that the first intimation, news that

I got of the Indians coming down was from an Indian. On the strength of this

information that I gave to Mr. Eae, a messenger was sent to Mr. Joseph McKay'*
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reserve to find out if it was so ; and then a messenger was sent up, and the messen-
ger returned and confirmed what we had heard.

Q. What message did he bring ? A. That, I say, I don't know. I did not sea
" the message.

Q. And you did not hear then that the Indians were coming quite friendly and
only to get some tea and tobacco ? A. I heard that they were coming down at the
time, that those Indians told me that they were coming down to see the agent.

Q. Well, what about the rest? A. Well, that is all I heard at that time.
Q. Did Poundmaker tell you, when you met him outside of Battleford, that he

did not mean to—that no harm was intended and that he had send a message ? A.He told me that he did not mean any harm when he came down.
&

Q. Did he tell you that he had sent a message to tell the agent that he was
coming ? A.I think he said something about a message when we were quite near
the town, just before he came in

.

Q. In Poundmaker's own demeanor at that time, did you see anything to cause
any uneasiness ? A. Well, not in himself. •

Q. He seemed to mean well and did not show any signs of meaning any harm t
A. No, not himself. ° J

Q. Yellow Mud Blanket was with him ? A. Yes*
Q. Did he show any signs of hostility or meaning any row ? A. He did not-

none of them spoke much. They sat quiet all the time they were staying there
Poundmaker was sitting all the time that I was there.

Q. What did you see now besides the taking of that hay to alarm you ? A.They complained to be hungry, and Poundmaker appeared to be anxious to see the
Indian agent, and they had repeated it so often that they were hungry and wanted
something, some tobacco. They had no tobacco nor tea, and I then told them that
I would give them something to eat and some tea and tobacco in the meantime, till
such time as the agent came across. No doubt if he heard that they were in town
he would come across; so that if in the meantime he would send one of his youngmen and the other chiefs each send a man down with me to the store, I would give
them some tea and tobacco.

&

Q. And you did give them some, I believe? A. Yes, I then went down and
gave them some.

* 0/ T^en after that you went across to Mr. Eae? A. When I was in the store,
alter I had given them what I intended giving them, some of the other Indians, notPoundmaker himself but the other Indians, commenced asking some articles from
me, so I told them that I had given them ail that I intended to give them and to
get out. So with that they went out and I locked the store.

Q. Was Poundmaker there then? A. Poundmaker had come in there he
asked me for a piece of tobacco and Mr. Ballantyne was therein the store at the
time, and I told him to give him a piece.

Q. And he got it and went away ? A. And went away.

Alexander David Stewart sworn

:

Examined by Mr. Casgrain :

Q. Looking at that letter (Exhibit No. 1) do you know that handwriting? A.Yes, I know the writing. 6

Q. Whose is it? A, Louis Kiel's.

Q. Who is it signed by ? A. Signed by Louis Kiel.

John Shera, junior, sworn ;

—

Examined by Mr. Casgrain :

Q. Did you have occasion to go from Swift Current to Battleford last spring?

Q. In what capacity ? A. Going with supplies to Battleford.
<^, What supplies ? A. Government supplies.
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Q. Who for ? A, The Government, they were for the troops at BattleiorcL

q! What time was this ? A. This was in May last.

Q. About what date ? A. Well, it was the second trip we were going.

Q. Can you tell me about the date, it was in May ? A. In May, yes about th®

13th or 14th.

Q. You were going from Swift Current to Battleford ? A. Yes.

Q. How many teams ? A. There was twenty-nine teams, I think, altogether.

Q, Did anything happen on the way? A. Yes, we were caught by the Indiana

about nine miles from Battleford.

Q. What Indians? A. Poundmaker's.

Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. Yes

.

Q. Was he there? A. I don't know whether he was with the Indians or not

when we were caught. I did not see him.

Q. Where were you taken to ? A. We were taken to the camp.
Q. Did you see him there? A. Yes.

Q. What was done with the provisions ? A. Well, they took all the provisions,

to the camp and eat some of them, eat all they could and took the rest along with
them.

Q. They detained you there? A. Yes, they kept us.

Q. How long? A. They just kept us about two hours in that camp and they

started to move on towards Duck Lake.

Q. They were going towards Duck Lake ? A. Yes.

By Mr, Robertson

:

Q. You say the Indians were Poundmaker's Indians and all the reason you haver

for saying that is that when you were taken in you saw Poundmaker in the camp t

A. Well, we were told it was him, his braves—some on them. I don't say they werei

all his. I don't know whether they were or not.

Q. And you only know from what you were told about any of them? A. Yes*

Q. Did you see a half-breed in command of the party that took you ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Casgrain:

Q. Was the half-breed in command of the whole camp ? A. Well, we always seen

a half-breed speaking there and he seemed to be running the thing.

Q. Speaking with whom ? A. The Indians.

Q. Was he speaking to the prisoner? A. No, I don't think I ever seen him.

speaking to the prisoner. *

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. You say you thought he seemed to be running the camp? A. Well, some?

half-breeds every morning would get up and make a speech before the camp would
start.

Q. What was his appearence? A. He had whiskers, a short man with grey
whiskers.

Q. And a hooked nose ? A, I am not sure, he did not speak English.

William Tompkins sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott :

Q. Where do you live ? A. Carlton.

Q. Up to what date ? A. Up till 18Lh March.

Q. Wlhat happened on that day ? A. We left for One Arrow's reserve, Mr. Lash
and I.

Q. Did anything happen to you? A. We were taken prisoners.

Q. By whom ? A. By Kiel.

Q, Louis Kiel, anyone else ? A. Gabriel Dnmont stopped us first, and thea
Eiel came up and said he would detain us for a few hours.
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Q. Were there any others present besides those two ? A. Yes, quite a number.
Q. Where were you taken to ? A. Taken to the church.

Q. What was the condition of these men that took you, as to being ar med, were
Ihey armed ? A. They were all armed principally,

Q. What was done to you when you were taken to the church ? A. We were
ikept there, and then we were removed from that over to Walter's store,

Q. Where ? A. Across the river.

<J. Were there any others there besides that party who took you prisoner ? A.
JJo ; I don't think there were, we were the first there, there were none at the church
'when I arrived there.

Q. Well, did you see a larger number there afterwards ? A. Yes.
<Q, How many ? A. I should judge about 300, taking them altogether 300 or

*1O0.

Q. Had they a leader those 300 men ? A. Yes.

Q. Were they armed ?" A. Yes.

Q. They were all armed ? A. Yes.

Q. Who was the leader ? A. Louis Kiel.

Q. You say you were taken over to Walter's store about when ? A. That night,

Q. The night of the 18th? A. Yes.

Q. How locg were you kept prisoner by Louis Eiel and these men ? A. Two
zmoBths all but a day.

Q. You were taken prisoner on the 13th ? A. Yes ; all but a day I think.

Q. What day were you released ? A. 12th May.
Q. Do you know what the object of this movement was ; do you know what

those men intended to do who took you prisoner ? A. Eiel wanted to start a new
^government apparently, by his talk.

Q. Did he say &o ? A. Yes.

Q. You heard him say that ? A. Yes.
Q. Did anything happen on the 25th March ? A. On the 26th, the battle of

ZDuck Lake took place,

Q. Where were you at that time ? At At Duck Lake*
Q. Near the battle ? A. About two or three miles I should judge.

Q. How do you know that a battle took place on that day ? A. I could see the
firing.

Q. You heard firing— did you hear anything about it afterwards? A. Yes.

Q. From whom? A. Eiel.

Q. How long afterwards ? A. I ^should judge about two hours or an hour and a
Ihalf.

Q. What did he say about it ? ^A. He was thanking God for such a prosperous
*wMory.

Q. A victory over whom ? A. Over the volunteers and police.

Q. At Duck Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know of any fights afterwards ? A. Yes.
Q. That Eiel and his party were engaged in ? A. Yes.
Q. With whom ? A. With General Middleton.

Q. Anyone else, he was not alone ? A. His troops.

Q. Do you know an Indian named Ohi-ci-cum ? A. Yes.

Q. What is his other name ? A. Boss Bull they call him.
Q. What band does he belong to ? A. Beardy's.

Q. That band I understand occupies a reserve in the immediate vicinity ofDuck
Xake? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see him among those in that party ? A. Yes^ I was talking to him.
Q. When ? A. I don't just remember the date, but, mind, I was talking to him

through the window when I was a prisoner.

Q. Where? A. At Batoche.

Q. When were you taken to Batoche; you were taken first to the church and
then you were taken over to Walter & Baker's store, and were you taken to Batoche
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from Walter & Baker's store ? A. We were moved to the church on the nex
morning after we were taken across the river to Walter's store.

Q. And on the 2*7th you were moved back to Batoche into the church, were you T
A. Yes.

Q. How long did you remain in the church ? A. I remained there till the night
these half-breeds came up, and they said if we would give them all of us our word of
honor that we would not try to escape, he would send us to the Garnot restaurant.

Q. You went to Garnot's on the 27th ? A. Yes.

Q. Was it after you went to Garnot's you were speaking to Chic-i cum ? A. Noh
it was when we came back from Carlton to the best of my knowledge.

Q. Where were you put when you came from Carlton ? A. Put into Baptiste
Boyer's house.

Q. How long did you remain at Baptiste Boyer's house ? A. We remained there
and in the cellar until 12th May.

Q. Was it after you went into Garnot's house, after you were taken to Garnot's
house that you went to Carlton ? A. Yes, we were removed from Garnot's house to
Duck Lake and from Duck Lake to Carlton.

Q. And then you came back from Duck Lake, after and after coming back from
Carlton to Duck Lake you left Duck Lake and came to Batoche? A. We left Carlton,
and came to Batoche.

Q. Where were you put when taken back from Carlton? A. Baptiste Boyer'a
house

.

Q. What day was that ? A I don't remember.
Q. How long after the Duck Lake fight ? A. 3rd April, I think.

Q. It was after that time you had the conversation with Chic-i-cum ? A. Yes.
Q. What did he say ? A. He said he had been away and just got back and that

he was going away again.

Q. Anything else ? A. No, nothing else that I mind of.

Q. Did he say where he was going to ? A. He did not tell me exactly where he
was going to, but I found out from another party where he was going.

Q. Was he in arms then ? A. Yes.

Q. Did he form one of the party that had risen there that were under the
jeadership of Kiel? A. Yes,

William Lightfoot, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr, Casgrain :

(Through interpreter in Cree, Peter Hourie, sworn.)
Q. What band of Indians did you belong to in the spring? A. Red Pheasant's

l)and.

Q. Did you have occasion to go to Poundmaker's reserve at any time ? A..

When we were sent for, we went.

Q. Did you go to Battleford ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see the prisoner there ? A. Yes.

Q. What was the prisoner doing there ? A. I saw him in a store there at
Battleford.

Q. What was he doing in the store ? A. He was looking over the store, the
things in the store, one thing and another.

Q. What was he looking over them for ? A. I thought he was looking for

something.

Q, Was the master of the store there ? A. No.
Q. Was there anybody else in the store but Poundmaker ? A. No, he was not

alone.

Q. Who was with him ? A. I could not tell particularly which persons were
along with him, because there were a large number of them.

Q'. What kind of people were they ? A, Crees.
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Q. Is that all Poundmaker did there. Look over the things? A. That is all

I seen him do there at that house.

Q. Did you see him do anything at any other house ? A. No.

Q. Did he go into any other house ? A. I did not see him.

Q. Did he go into a barn or any kind of a construction ? A, I did not see him
any other "way to go in any other place.

Q. Did you see Poundmaker alter this at any time with goods belonging to

people in Battleford or near goods, or with any goods in his possession ? A. On top

of the hill at Battleford, I saw a bundle of goods lying alongside of where he was
sitting. I could not say where they came from.

Q. How long was it after you had seen Poundmaker in the store that you saw
the goods near where Poundmaker was sitting? A. It was the same night that he
was overhauling the things at the store, that same evening, towards night, I saw
this bundle of goods with him.

Q. Did you see Poundmaker do anything with those goods, these bundle ofgoods

afterwards? A. No.
Q. Did the other Indians who were with Poundmaker do anything in the store

there ? A. I saw people walking back and forth there, but I never saw any at the

time take any. I saw them inside of the ttore and outside of the store.

Q. Did you see the Indians with any goods ? A. When I saw them afterwards

I saw them with goods, clothing that they had on themselves.

Q. Where did it come from ? A. I could not tell where that came from, but I

only could say that I saw them having those clothes with them, on them.

Q. Had you seen these clothes in the store before ? A. I could not recognize

them to say that I seen them in the store, but I know they were new clothes.

By Mr. Robertson:

Q. What time of the day was it you saw Poundmaker looking through the

goods, among the goods ? A. In the night.

Q. You told us that you saw the goods with, beside, Poundmaker in the evening

of the day on which you had seen Poundmaker in the store ? A. I did not say it

was on the day, but it was already night.

Q. It was in the evening then, is that what you mean ? A. At night.

Q. Was the sun down ? A. At night, it was dark. 1 saw him when I went into

the store.

Q. What were you doing in the store at night? A f

. When I was going by, I

saw a light in the store, so I went in to see what was going on.

Q. How long after that was it that you saw the goods near where Poundmaker
was sitting ? A. It was soon after.

Q. Was there anyone else there with Poundmaker ? A. No, there was nobody
with him at the time, just then he was sitting alone.

Q. Where was Yellow Mud Blanket ? A. I could not say where he could have

been.

Q. Where was Grey Byes ? A. I could not tell positively where I had seen

them, because there were so many ofthem.
Q. Where was Grey Byes when you saw the goods on the ground where Pound-

maker was sitting ? A. I could not say.

Q. Do you know Wawpass and Mettaywaysis ? A. I know Mettaywaysis is a

Cree.
Q. Do you remember Wawpass and Pettaywaysis coming to .Red Pheasant's

reserve one night with tea and tobacco, or with tobacco, from Biel ? A. Is it a half

breed you mean ? It must have been Wawpass Trottier. I don't know exactly which
man it is, I think there is two of the one name, but I don't know which of the two
but there was a half-breed of that name that I thought Wawpass was his name

.

Q. Were there two half-breed messengers from Kiel with tobacco that came to

Red Pheasant's band, to his reserve ? A. There were two.
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Q. Were you their guide and did you take them over to the Sbonys' reserve ?

A. They knew where the reserve was, it was but frotn our party being rather doubtful
he was sent after them to go and listen whit he would say to these Assiniboines.

Q. Do you know Mr. McRae? A. Yes.

Q. Did you toll Mr. McRae, at Battleford, that these two man had asked R)i
Pheasant for a guide to take them over to the Stony-*, that Rad Plieasaat had refused
to give them a guide and that then he with four others, against Red Pheasant's wish,
took them over ? A. I told him there were four of us went to these people, that is

what I said to him

.

Q. Did you tell Mr. McRae on that occasion that Red Pheasant refused to send a
guide and he went in spite of t !iat? A. What I said to him was this : I said that I
would go to them for one, so I asked the people then that three of them should cooae
with me to hear so that we might all be able to know, and three people's more word
would be stronger than one as it were, that it would be more reliable than one pdrson.

Q. That is what you told Mr. McRae ? A. The chief's brother was going to
send that one ; the chief himself was going to send that one. I was told that I would
go and I asked that three others would go with him.

Q. Were you fighting at Out Knife ? A. No.
Q. Were you near Poundmaker at Cut Knife ? A. No, I was not near him at

all.

Q. Did you see Poundmaker at Cut Knife at all ? A. I saw him I don't know
how many days afcerwards.

Q. Did you see him at the fight? A. No, I did not see him at all.

Q. Where were you on the day of the fight ? A. I was away, far away on one
side.

Q, Which side, near the women and children or the other side ? A. I was up
the river side.

Mr. Osier states that this completes the case of Crown.

DEFENCE.
Joseph Mackat sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q. Mr. McKay, you were the farm instructor on Strike-him-on-the-back's reserve,
I believe ; were you in the month of March last ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you recollect seeing the prisoner, Poundmaker, at any time towards the
end of March ? A. I did.

Q. Where did you see him ? A. In my house.

Q. In your house, on Strike-him-on-the-back's reserve ? A. Yes.
Q. How far from Battleford ? A. Well, it is about twenty miles, I suppose.

Q Do you know what day of the month or what day of the week ? A.I think
it was on Sunday in the latter end of the month.

Q. That would be the 29th ? A. Yes, why I think so, I was just about writing
to try and finish my books and go back with the returns.

Q. It would be about the end of the month ? A. Yes, about the end of the month.
Q. But the evidence is that Poundmaker was at Battleford on the 29th ? A.

Well, this was on Sunday, I think.

Q. Will you tell me what took place between you and Poundmaker at that time T
Mr. Osier.—How is this evidence ?

Mr. Eobertson.—You have gone into a long course of conduct on Poundmaker's
part

Mr. Osier.—What he says is not evidence.
Mr. Eobertson.—Well, you have given a great deal of evidence.
Mr. Osier.—It is for us to give evidence.
Mr. Robertson.—My learned friends have given a great deal of evidence about

things said and done by others.
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Mr. Justice Eichardson j—Isn't that proper, in a case of this sort? What was
*aid and done ?

Mr. Eobertson.—Yes, it is, and it is just because it is a peculiar case, that I

•wish to give what Poundmaker says as part of the res gestae,

Mr. Justice Eichardson.—Have you any authority for it?

Mr. Eobertson.—If a prisoner is charged with stealing a horse, and he wants to

«all evidence to show that he told a person ten minutes before that he was not going
-to steal the horse

Mr. Osier.—It is very likely what would take place, so as to have something to

fall back upon.
Mr. Eobertson.—I want to show the conduct of this band of Indians on their

way from their reserve to Battleford.

Mr. Osier.—I don't object to that. I only object to your giving evidence of his
statement.

Mr. Justice Eichardson.—He may say what he saw Poundmaker do, that is per-

fectly legitimate. I can understand that, on the same principle as put before about
the horse stealing, but not what the man said.

Mr. Eobertson.—I want to show what he said as to the object of his journey.

Mr. Justice Eichardson.—His actions may be given in evidence, but not what
he said

.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. You saw Poundmaker at all events ? A. Yes, I saw him.

Q. Did he come to your house ? A. I sent for him.

Q. He and a number of Indians with him had come to your reserve that morn-
ing ? A. Yes. I did not see a number of Indians with him, at all. I heard there

was a number of Indians with him, but I did not see a number with him.
Q.What was his conduct on that occasion ? A. I asked him what was he going

By Mr. Osier :

Q. Don't give that evidence. What did he do ? A. He done nothing. I saw
nothing wrong with him when he came into my house.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. Had he a gun ? A. No, I did not see him with a gun.

Q. How long did he remain in your neighborhood ? A. Oh, just a very little

while ; he just had a cup of tea and something to eat, and I talked to him just a little

while and he went off.

Q. You say there were not many Indians with him ? A. I did not see many
Indians with him.

Q. When did you next see him ? A. I saw him four or five days after, in Brem-
ner's settlement.

Q. Where is Bremner's settlement? A. Between twenty and twenty-two miles
from Battleford.

Q. Well, where is it from your reservation ? A. It is north from my reservation,

about six miles from my reserve north.

Q. Is that the half-breed settlement ? A. Yes, that is the half-breed settlement.

Q. You were then staying with the Bremner's ? A. Yes, I was hiding in a tent

when I heard he was coming.

Q. What was his conduct and bearing then ? A. I did not know. I did not go out.

I told Mrs. Mackay to stand outside the tent door and tell the Indians (they threatened
my life), to kill me whenever they saw me. I was told that by other Indians, and
that is why I hid in my tent.

Q. Well, did you see Poundmaker ? A. Yes, I saw him in the house, I went in

to see him. I asked to see him.
Q. Now when was that ? A. That was about four or five days I think after, after

I went to Bremner's settlement. I can't remember rightly the day of the month.
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By the Court

:

Q, Four or five days after the 30th ? A. After tho time they pillaged everything,

this was after they pillaged my store that I went to Bremner's, after I was robbed of

everything.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. How long after the interview when he was on his way to Battleford ? A. It

might be perhaps, since the last time I saw him, perhaps six or seven days.

Q. Well, you did see him then, and what was his demeanor then ? How did he
"behave himself then ? A. He behaved himself very well at the time I saw him
there again. I went in to ask them what was the reason the Indians wanted to kill

me, and 1 told him I thought I never injured anybody, Indian or white people, and
I asked him what is the reason he wants to kill me, and he said the old people have
nothing against you, but the young men he says we cannot control.

Mr. Osier.—I don't like to object but you have no right to give this evidence,

Mr. Kobertson.

By Mr. Eobertson :

Q. How long have you known the Indians ? A. Oh, I have known them, I have

seen them quite a while ago. I suppose about twenty years since I saw them first,

but it is a long time between that, that I did not tsee them again till I came up

there at Battleford.

Q. That was Poundmaker ? A. Yes.

Q. But the Indians generally, how long have you been acquainted with the

Indians, the bands, councilmen of the Indians ? A. A long time. I was born in the

country and was all my life time amongst them.

Q. And you know their habits and customs do you ? A.I know them pretty-

well, I think.

Q. "Was there anything unusual, anything extraordinary in the Indians taking

their guns with them when they were going to Battieford ? A. It has been always

the habit of the Indians wherever they go, to carry their guns wherever they go.

Q. And would that indicate any evil intent necessarily, their having guns with

them ? A. Well those that knows the nature of the Indian would never pay any*

attention to it.

Q. You never think anything of it? A. No.

Q. What is a soldier's tent in an Indian camp ? A. A soldier's tent means—it is

the young men, the braves gather and they form a sort of a rule, and it is the youn«<

men, and it is the young men that rules the soldier's tents. It is the braves and nob

the chiefs that rules it, it is generally the young men, braves, the chief rules the camp

outside euoh as pitching if they want to go off anywhere, bat it is the braves that

have the rules of the council

.

Q. What is the effect now when a soldier's tent is pitched in a camp; what

effect has that upon the authority of the chief? A. Well, if any Indians would want

to go away, if the soldiers would not let him go, they wouM go a ad kill his dogs or

cut up his tent, he could not ^o off unless the soldiers let hi m go.

Q. Supposing the chief ordered that he was to go? A. Well, if it was against

the soldiers, they could not go.

Q. Then it amounts to this that the soldiers, the you g braves, took the com-

plete control of the camp ? A. When they have a soldier's tent up.

Q. Poundmaker has been an influential man in his tribe ? A. Lately, but at the

time I knew him he was just an ordinary Indian, ordinary man »h other Indians.

Q. It is only lately that he had much influence at all? A. Yes.

Q. From what you know of Poundmaker and his Indians and the Indians on

your own reserve, what do you say as to the control Poundmaker oould exercise

over those Indians ?

Mr. Osier.—I object to that question, it is a matter of opinion, he must tell us

facts and we will judge ot that, he must tell us what he knows, not his opinion.
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Mr. Robertson.—Then I suppose my learned friend is not going to ask the jury
to draw an inference that be was a thief, from the evidence he has given ?

Court.—If it is a legitimate question—if yon can convince me it is a legitimate
question, you can have bis answer, if not he must not answer.

Mr. Osier.—My objection is that the witness must state facts from which the
opinion is formed.

Court—That is as I recollect the rule, it may be altered j if there is any modern
rule that will admit such a question, let us have it.

Mr. Robertson.—The question is a good one, I submit to Your Honor, as a
question to an expert witness who has said all his life he has been acquainted with,

the habits atd customs of the Indians, the habits and customs of Indians are rarely a
matter of expert knowledge, so far as we are concerned, and it is proper to ask the
witness, having shown that he has a special knowledge, for an opinion which,
depends on that knowledge, special knowledge.

Court.—In the first place, is there any custom which would hold in law, I
mean, in this country ?

Mr. Robertson —It is not a custom as matter of law that I am seeking to prove
at all, it is for the purpose of affecting the probabilities of the case.

Court.—You may ask what the man's general character was, just as if be were
charged with stealing a horse, and ask the jury then to draw an inference from
what was said, "whether he would likely have committed the crime.

By Mr. Robertson:

Q. What instances bave you seen, or have you seen any instances of the cases in
which conflicts have amen between the chiefs and their men—I mean conflicts of
wishes, me wishing to do ore thing and another another ? A. Well, I krow one
instance when I was in the Hudson Bay service at Touchwood Hills when I was
going out hunting.

Mr. Osier.—That is not evidence.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. Do you know of any instance? A; Not with him, because I hadn't a chance,
it is long since they had a soldier's tent up you see.

Gross-examined by Mr*. Osier

:

Q. Do you know anything personally as to soldier's tents? A. Yes, when I
was in the company's service

Q. You know something personally ? A. Well, I know personally what they
navo lone to rne personally by their soldier's tents, that is what I know.

Q. That is all you do know ? A. That is all I do know.
Q. You don't know the habits of tribes? A. No, for each
Q. Each various tribe or band has a variation in its habits, they vary? A.

Soldiers' tents are very much all alike.

Q. Poundmaker of late years has become a very influential man in his tribe?
A. So I heard. I did not know it personally myself, not since long ago.

Q. He is an orator I believe of considerable power ? A. So I heard.
Q. And influence ? A. Yes.

Q, Has he a large following, a large number of followers ? A. I don't know the
number of men he has, it was just only a few days I was on the reservation ; it was
in March I went out there.

Q. When was it you took an idea in your head that somebody was chasing you,
what day ? A. I think it was Tuesday or Wednesday morning, just the following
week.

Q. Thnt would be about the 1st of April ? A. Yes, either the last day of March
or the 1st April, sometime like that.

Q. Whose band was it you were in fear of? A. My own Indians, it was my own
Indians thtit robbed me.
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Q. Those Indians? A. No, Strike-him-on-the-Back and Sweet Grass.

Q. And you left ? A. Oh, yes, I left.

John Craig, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q. You were instructor on Little Pine's reserve, I believe, in March last ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see Poundmaker at any time towards the end of March ? A. I did,

on Friday the 27 ih

Q. Where was he ? A. In my house.

Q. On the reserve ? A. Yes.

Q. Was he accompanied by any Indians ? A. Two or three.

Q. What was his behavior then ? A. It was good.

Q. Did he show any signs of excitement ? A. He did.

Q. What about? A. Of fear,

Q. Fear of what?

Mr. Osier

:

—
Q. You must not say what he said, what he did. A. He did nothing.

By Mr. Robertson

:

Q. What did he do, did he go away ? A. Yes.

Q. Where did you see him next ? A. 8 miles from Battleford.

Q. How did you happen to be there ? A. I went into his camp at night.

Q. On your way to Battleford ? A. Yes.

Q. Where did you spend that night ? A. With them.

Q. Was Little Pine there ? A. He was,

Q. And where was Poundmaker ? A. He was there too.

Q. Where did Poundmaker sleep ? A. He slept close beside me, about five yards.,

Q. What day of the month was that do you know ? A. Sunday night the 29th.

Q. What was the demeanor of Poundmaker then, how did he treat you ? A. He
treated me very kindly.

Q. Did you feel at all alarmed? A. To a certain extent.

Q- At what ? A. At the excitement they were in.

Q. Who? A. The Indians in general.

Q. Did Poundmaker do anything that caused you to feel any alarm t A. ne

did not. , , A
Q* Was any attempt made to stop you from going away m tne morning i a.

Not in the morning, but that evening.

Q. Who stopped you ? A. Some of the young men.

Q. That was the invitation you got to stay all night? A. Yes.

Q. And you thought that they meant it rather peremptorily ? A. Yes, a kind

of that way.
Q. They did not use any violence ? A. Oh no, not at all.

Q. And then it was that you spent the night with Poundmaker and Little Pine c

A Yes.
Q.'Well, when you went away in the morning, was any attempt made then to

stop you ? A, Well, they hollered to me to come back, but that was alter Poundmaker

and another councillor previous to that had told me I could go now, to hurry up.

Q. And they sent you off? A. Yes, telling me at the same time everything

-was good, there was nothing wrong.

Q. Were there any women with the Indians ? A. There were.

Q. A considerable number? A. About twenty I judged.

Q. Were any of the men painted in war paint, or were there any signs ot any

Jiostility? A. The young men were. „

Q. Had they the war paint ? A. Oh, yes, but that is a common thing for them

io wear. ~
Q. They were painted as they were commonly painted ? A. Yes.
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Q. Eat r asked about war paint, did you recognize any difference ? A. No.
j T« *

yc
£,
know to what extent the influence of Poundmaker with his tribe ex-

tended r A. That night you mean ?

8* CT
Gd

! j
A

*
He had no command of other Indians no more than the other chiefs

^. tte had no command over the Indians that night any more than the other
chiefs r A. .No.

Cross-examined by Mr. Osier:

Q. Who was it kept you safe in the camp ? A. I don't know.
Q. Who was it got you the permit in the morning to go? A. I cannot sav itwas one by the name of Chicoutis.

7i

Q. Who told you you could go, and go now? A. Chicoutis.
Q. A chief ? A. A councillor.

8' w? Poundmaker 8ay anything to you about it ? A. No, he did not
Q. What took you down there ? A. I was going to Battleford at the end of themonth.

Q. For what purpose ? A. With my returns.
Q. And you went into this camp? A. It was on the road, I could not pass it

Without going in

.

r

Q. And home of the young men asked you to stay that night? A. Yes.
Q. And Poundmaker took you in ? A. Well, he was sitting right down therewhen 1 came in, and I took the side of him.
Q. You told us, as 1 thought, that Poundmaker said it was all right, that therewas nothing wrong ? A. I Baid nothing of the sort. I said this other Indian, this

other councillor said to me in the morning, told them everything is good, we meanno bad. That was the words that was said.

Q. That is what the councillor told you ? A. Yes, but he is no councillor to
this man, he is councillor to the chi^f Little Pine.

Q. Who told you that you could go, and go now ? A. Chicoutis.
Q

.
Well, who was it detained you there, and who was it let you go ? A. I don'tknow his name. They took and engaged my horse, unhitched it. I did not see theman that unhitched my horse. They took him from the buggy.

Q. That was a mere act of hostility ? A. Yes, in a kind of a way.
Q. Who was it told you to go and go quickly, in the morning ? A. The same

party I mentioned to you now.
Q. Just speeding the parting guest, is that all ? A. They told me to hurry up.
Grist Eyes, sworn

:

,

Examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q. Were you at Battleford the night the stores were robbed there? A. Yes.
Q. Where was Poundmaker that night? A. He was on the top of the hill

where the brick building was.
Q. Where were you ? A. I was there too.
Q. Wrhhim? A. Yes.

Q. When did you go there, what time of the evening? A. After we had had
* n w Ballantyne, there was a white man there, that was writing do wn.

Q. What time of the day was that ? A. it was towards evening. I could not
tell exactly what time. I have no watch or anything to go by.

Q. And where did the white man go? A. Peter Ballantyne and the white man
went down the hill.

'

^ ^- Went down what hill, and in what direction? A. The road that goes down
the trail, that goes down to the Battle Kiver.

Q. Across to the barracks ? A. I could not say where they went, whether
they went across or not, but it was just after Poundmaker and Little Piae had told
what their errand was, what they were coming for, and then they went away.

Q. Then, where did Poundmaker gu after they went away? A. He remained
there at the brick^building and they were hooking something to eat.
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Q. How long did you remain with Poundmaker ? A. Till night.

Q. And how long into the night? A. It was a good ways into the night, pretty

late, I left him sitting there and I thought I would go to sleep and I went to a tent

that was there close by, and I could not sleep and there was another tent where they

-were cooking, and I went over there and had something to eat with them.

Q. Did you see Poundmaker after that ? A. I came back then to where I had

left him, and he was there still where I had left him.

Q How long had you been away ? A. I must have made a mistake there, we

had made up our bed to sleep close by the brick building, you asked me how long

after I left Poundmaker till I came back again, and I was not away longer then I

nad something to eat, the mistake was in the day that we had something to eat,

after we had had a talk with Ballantyne and explained all that, we were waiting

then, and I left him there and went to have something to eat at this tent, and their

».I came right back to where he was then.

Q. How long were you away that last time when you were getting something

to eat at the tent ? A. It was not long.
m

Q. How long? A. It must have been half an hour. I was sitting there with my
brother and Capin-ow-way-win when I came back and Ifmust have been about hall an

liour gone. I had something to eat and lit my pipe and had a smoke, and after that,

I went out and went back again.

Q. Did you see any goods, any bundle of goods near where Poundmaker watt

sitting when you came back ? A. No.

Q. When you came back, what happened next; what did you do next? A,

We sat there in one place, we did not go anywhere.

Q. How long did you stay there ? A* A long time.

Q. Till when ? A. It was very near daylight at last.

Q. You sat there all the time? A. I left him there again, and I heard him

calling out to the people, stopping them from what they were doing.

Q. What were they doing that he was stopping? A. I heard them making a

noise, breaking open something and he called out to them to keep quiet, but of

course they would not listen to him.

Q. Did Poundmaker have any goods at any time that night? A I saw nothing.

Q. Could he have had any without your seeing them ? A. I did not perceive

-that he had anything at all, just no more than his clothes.

Q. Could he have had anything extra without your seeing them? A. I saw

Tiothing with him at all, all the time that I was there

Q. Could there have been any goods there without your knowing it ? A. I saw-

nothing at all with him that I could think that he had anything, any goods along

with him. .-

Q. What did Poundmaker do, or did he do anything besides calling out to tnenx

to stop ? A. I heard him calling out to the people stopping them, and with that there

was three or four men along with him that went down the hill then to go and stop

them and speak to them down the hill.

Q. How long did you two remain at Battleford ? A. Just about daylight we left

to go home to our reserves.

Q. Daylight next morning ? A. Yes. a
*

Q. Where did you two go to on the reserve ? A. We went into Strike-nim-on-

the-back's reserve at Sandy Hills. That is where we stopped,

Q. How far did you go on your own reserve ? Did you go up to Cut Knife Hill f

A* We got to our tents on the side of Cut Knife Creek.

Q. How long did you two remain there ? A. I think next day we rose camp

just close by there, on the same side of the creek yet.
m

Q. How long did you remain there ? A.I could not tell how many nights I

might have remained there, but when we rose camp and came from there, we just

camped quite close by there again, on the same side of the creek.
m

Q. Generally how long did you remain at Cut Kuife ? A. (Prisoner says he i*

not able to tell, because they were there forty nights.)
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Q. Do you remember messengers coming from Hiel ? A. I knew when they
came. I was lying already when they came.

Q. Lying down asleep ? A. I got wounded and I was lying when they came.
Q. Where were you wounded ? A. Inside of our reserve I got wounded.
Q. Before you were wounded, do you not remember any of Kiel's messengers

coming ? A. No, I did not see anyone. I heard that they come at Eagle Hills.
Q. Do you know Wawpass Trottier ? A. No.
Q, Do you know Jobin ? A. No, I don't know any of these half-breeds at all,

only a chance one that I know.
<J. Do you know the schoolmaster at the French settlement ? A. No.
(It is suggested that the witness knows the man, but he does not know the name.)
Q. Don't you know the schoolmaster at the French settlement ? A. No, I don't

know.
Q. Do you know of anybody trying to get the Indians to go up to Batoche ? A.

No, I don't know anything at all about it. I was lying all the time, how could T
know ; it was far, and between that the chief would come and see me.

Q. Had Poundmaker enough influence in his camp to prevent the India as from
going away to join Kiel ? A. He could not stop them from going away, because he
tried to take us away, one day, from the rest of the party, and he could not manage
them.

Q. Did Poundmaker try to take you any place, and where ? A. He tried three
times, and they would come and take our horses and lead them back into the camp.

Q. Did Poundmaker try three times to go ? A. Yes ; and his brother and, at
last, Lightfoot was to come with us two again, and the Assiniboines just closed in
and brought us back again.

Q. Who was in command of the camp at Cut Knife ? A. The soldiers' lodge
and Assiniboines.

Q. Who built the soldiers' lodge ? A. The Assiniboines were the men that put
Tip the soldiers' lodge, and, in fact, they had been keeping up their dances the whole
winter.

Q. When was the soldiers' lodge put up in the camp at Cut Knife ? A. It was
just soon after we had encamped there.

Q. Weie the Assiniboines the same as the Stonys? A. The same.
Q. Was it when the Stonys came in that they put up the soldiers' tent ? A.

Yes, it was after they came into the camp, but not just right away immediately ; but
I conld not say how many days it was from the time they had come in, and that the
lodge was put up—I could not say what number of days.

<^. What power has the chief among the Crees and Stonys when a soldiers*
lodge has been put up in the camp ? A. The chief has no control over anyone when
that soldiers' tent is up.

Q. Who has the control ? A. The soldiers, the dancers of the lodge.
<£• Was Poundmaker one of the soldiers ? A. No.
Q. Who were the soldiers? A. The Assiniboines were.
Q. And Crees? A. There were some Crees, they took them in, that is the

reason why they joined them.
Q. Were there any half-breeds there? A. No.
Q. No half breeds among the soldiers? A. None at all,

Q. Were there half-breeds in the camp ? A. There was none into our camp,
but they had a camp of their own a piece one side.

Q. What half-breeds were those? A. I don't know any names, I don't know
their names, but it is the half-breeds from that place.

Q. From what place ? A. From Bremner's, across the river.

Q. Do you know who brought in ;the teamsters ? A. I could not say, because I
was not able to move at that time.

Cross-examined by Mr. Osier :

Q. What band do you belong to ? A. Poundmaker's.
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A. He is

Q. Is Poundmaker your chief ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you obey your orders ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you feef bound to obey them every time ? A. Yes.

Q. ADd all good Indians do ? A. Yes.

Q. Is Poundmaker a good chief, of great influence with his men t

eood to his men and we always hear him giving them good advice.

Q. How many men has he got ? A. I could not tell what number, there is quite

Q. How many Stonys or Assiniboines came into the camp, to your camp?

A. 1 suppose there must have been about sixty or more.

Q. Were there more Stonys than followers of Poundmaker? A. We are far

lesser in number. Poundmaker has far less.

Q. Had Poundmaker less than sixty men? A. Yes, a long ways, 1 mean as

many of us as belong to Poundmaker.

Q. When you came back from Battleford that night, had you any goods with

you ? A. I had none myBelf, but I seeD people with goods.

Q. ¥ousaw people with goods? the band had goods with them? A. 1 saw

them with goods.
,

,

_ ,, ^ ^
Q. What was done with the goods? A. I could not say, I suppose they wore

them
Q. Took them into the camp ? A, They took them home with them- living in

different parts. , m , _ . , . ., . -

Q Did Poundmaker go out when he heard them breaking into the store ( A.

He stopped them first by talking to them, and said young men you are frightening

me now, keep quiet he told them.

Q. Wei en't they just distui bing him frcm sleeping ? A, No, there was no on©

sleeping while this was going on.

Q What time of the night was it ? A. It was longways in night.

Q Why weien't they asleep ? A. We were kept awake by others.

Q And wasn't that what was disturbing Poundmaker, didn't he want to keep

ouiet ? A. He was preventing them, but of course they would not listen to him,

Q. Didn't you do some fighting at Cut Knife Hill ? A. I went away and was

8 eeP
Q
Dg
Weren't you a man who was fighting ? A, I am taken by surprise. I can't

anBW
Q
r

"

Didn't you fight ? A. I did not fight. I had to run away right at once.

Q Joe Alexander says he fired at you three times, isn't that true ? A. No.
m

Q Who was it shot you through the leg ? A. I could not say who hit me in

the leg, but Josie said it was him that shot me in my leg, it was wben a ball glanced

that hit me in the leg. .',,** t. ia-

Q. We.e you holding a gun when he hit you in the leg ? A. I was holding a

eun, but I laid it down in the bush.

Court here (6 p. m,) adjourned till 10 a.m. tomorrow, when case resumed.

Weslet N . Fish sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q. Mr. Fish, you are one of the teamsters who were taken prisoners by the Indians ?

A Yes,
Q.' Wben was that? A. On the 14th May, I think.

Q. Who was in command of the Indians, who took you prisoner? The breeds*

Q. The half breeds? A. Yes.
.

O. Was Poundmaker there when you were taken prisoner ( A. JNO.

Q. Where were you taken on that occasion ? A. We were taken to the halt-

1)16

Q
C8

Where was the half-breed camp as respects the Indian camp ? A. Well, they

were to one side of the Indian camp.
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Q. Separate from it ? A. Yes.
Q. How long did you remain there? A. We left on the 7th day.
Q. You were there six days then and you left on the 7th after you were taken in ?

A. Yes.

Q. When you left, how did it happen that you got away? A. Well, there were
.some scouts came from Kiel's camp, and they heard that Eiel was taken, and they
had a council and concluded to let us go.

Q. You say you were set at liberty? A. Yes.
Q. Now did you see Poundmaker while you were in the camp. A. I did, every

day, sometimes two or three times a day.
Q. Were you closely confined in the Indian camp? A. No.
Q. Were you allowed to ramble about ? A. Yes.
Q. And all over through the one camp or the other? A. Yes, we used to go

any place, almost.
w

Q. Were you present at any of the councils that were held? A. Yes.
Q. Anyone then would appear to be at liberty there ? A. Yes.
Q. And nearly everyone did go ? A. Yes, any person that wanted to go

.

Q. Whenever there was a council, nearly everyone went? A. Yes.
Q. Whatever their feelings might have been ? A. Yes.
Q .

Now tell me what was the first you saw of Poundmaker when you were taken
in? A. Well, we were taken down hill into a kind of a ravine, and Poundmaker
came up and shook hands with us all around and said that he knew there was a God
and he thanked Him for saving our lives, he did not thank our braves, he had no
control o?er them.

Mr. Osier.—That is not evidence.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. Did he speak in Oree ? A. Yes.

By the Court :

«Q. Do you speak Cree yourself? A. No, the half-breeds interpreted it.

By Mr. Robertson:

Q. That was when you were taken into the half-breed camp and he came to see
you ? A. Yes.

Q. What was his conduct towards you from that time forward ? A. Very good,
he used to come to us every night and talk to us, and the breeds would interpret it.

By Mr. Osier : Never mind what he said.

By Mr. Robertson:

Q. He used to come by you every night and talk to you, and the breeds would
interpret what he said to you ? A. Yes, and he shook hands with us all around.

Q. And you say you saw him every day ? A. Yes, two or three times a day.
Q. Will you tell me, while you were in the camp, who appeared to be in command

of the camp, the Indian camp ? A. The half-breeds.
Q. Any half-breed in particular ? A. Yes, there were two half-breeds, it seemed

to me that seemed to be in command.
Q. Can you describe them or do you know their names ? A. No, I don't know

their names. One of them went with a message to Kiel, and he was sentenced here
the other day with the twenty-four.

Q. That was one of them ? A. Yes, a short, stout man.
Q. And who was the other man? A. Short, stout, with grey whiskers and

moustache. He treated us very well, but he seemed to be in command all the same.
Q. Now, what did you see in his conduct, in the appearance of his—of the camp

generally and the behavior of the people in the camp ? A. Well, he gave orders* U
anything was to bs done he would give orders that it waa to be done, and attended to
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us, and told us what we were to do and everything. It is almost certain, I can say

he was in command of the camp.
Q. Now, do you speak of the Indian camp as well as the half-breed camp ? A»

Yes.
Q. Was there any routine, any regular daily operations that he went through?

A. No, I don't think there was. It just depended on what the next day brought what

they would do.

Q. But tell us now what you saw him doing; you have told us in general terms

that he seemed to give orders when anything was to be done, just tell us one or two

occasions on which you saw him taking a part in that way ? A. Well, every time

we would stop he would give the order to stop, and ^every time we would start, he

would give the order to start.

Q. Anything else ; who sent out scouting parties ? A. Well, he was there at

the time, and I think he was giving orders in one way and another about them going.

Q. Now, did you ever see Poundmaker during all that time taking any part like

that ? A. No, never.

Q. He did not? A. No.

Q. Did he seem to take any part in the councils ? A. Well, he sat at the coun-

cils and spoke. Of course, 1 could not say what he said. He spoke lefs than any of

the ether Indians. I won't say any of the other, but any of the others that did speak

at all, for some of course, did not have anything to say.

Q. Do you know what his attitude was at those councils ? A. He was very quiet,

sitting down.
Q. Was the advice he gave at those councils interpreted to you ?

Mr. Osier.—That is not evidence.

Mr. Robertson.—I want to give my learned friend the opportunity to keep thi a

out.
Court.—How could I receive it unless he understood the language ?

Mr. Osier.—There are certain definite rules of evidence which 1 am bound to

keep you to and you have no right to say that I am conducting the case unfairly

when I object to it.

Mr. Robertson.—I wish the jury to hear that I am prevented from showing the

part that Poundmaker did take.

Court.—You are prevented simply because the law says you shall not.

Mr. Robertson.—Your Honor rules that way of course.

Court.—I rule upon fixed law.

Mr. Robertson.-1 am not finding fault with that, but I don't think it is so clear

of course I bow to your Honor's ruling—but I don't think it is so clear where it is

the conduct of the man throughout that is in question, that what he said when he was

taking part in the very things that they accuse him of taking part in—that what he

said is to be shut out, when that is the only index you can have of what his intentions

were. I don't think it is nearly so clear as what my learned friend says.

Court.—Even then, you have not got the language that was given.

Mr. Robertson.—-I asked the witness if it was interpreted to him.

Court.—How does he know whether it was interpreted to him truly or not?

Mr. Robertson.—I did not ask him whether it was interpreted truly or not.

Court.—You have gone as far as you can.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. Did you see Poundmaker when the news arrived of the capture of Riel ? A.

I did not see him just at the moment. I was down in one of the tepees at the time

and an Indian told me of it and seemed to be very glad of the idea that he was cap-

tured.

Q. Did you see Poundmaker soon after that? A. Yes.

Q. What was his conduct? A. He seemed to be glad of the idea that the war

was over. He told me so, motioned to me.

317



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 1886

Q* Do you recollect any occurrence, in the camp when you were there, about a
pocket knife? A. Yes.

Q. Tell the jury what that was, and what part Poundmaker took in it? A.
Well, when we were taken to the camp the young braves started to search us, they
wanted to see what we had, I suppose, and jast as Poundmaker came up one of them
was taking a pocket knife from one of the boys, and Poundmaker saw him do it, and
he did not say anything at the time, but as soon as the Indian got away with the
pocket knife he took his own pocket knife out of his pocket and gave it to the boy in

exchange for the one the Indian had taken.

Cross-examined by Mr. Osier:

Q. Then I understand from what you saw, all parties were obeying the half-
breeds who were in command? A. Yes.

Q. Was Poundmaker obeying their orders with the rest? A. Yes.
Q. Doing what they directed to be done ? A. Yes.
Q. And then, when the councils were held he was one of the council ? A. Well

he was there, everybody was there that wanted to go.

Q. Well, how did you distinguish the council then, did all take counsel together ?

A. They came and got together and sat down when there was a council, and if there
was not a council, they were standing up walking around.

Q. Then the councillors were sitting down
;
you did not take part in the council^

for instance ? A. Yes, I did. I sat down with the rest of them. I was in the centre
of the council.

Q. Then, it was a consultation as to what was to be done, as to moving off or
anything of that kind, you don't mean to say you took any part in advising what
should be done? A. No, I didn't.

Q. You were merely there as a spectator ? A. Yes, I was.
Q. Now, Poundmaker, as I understood you to say, used to speak, although not

frequently? A. Yes, he spoke.

Q. Aud were there Indians of his band in the party that captured the teams?
A. I could not say whether they belonged to his band or not.

Q. You don't know how that was? A. No.
Q. About how many men were there altogether in the camp, half-breeds and

Indians ? A. I should say there were about 300.

Q. Were there any Indian chiefs in command, or were they all under the half-

breeds ? A. They were all under the breeds.

Q. What was done with the goods? A. I don't know. Well, of course the goods
that were taken from us were taken by the Indians and breeds.

Q. Use any of them in the camp afterwards ? A. Yes, I think they were used
in the camp.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. In what particular did you see Poundmaker obeying the breeds ? A. Just
the same as all the rest of them ; he would do whatever he was told.

Q. Did you ever see them tell him to do anything, and see him do it?

A. Nothing particular. No.
Q. Did you ever see him take any active part in anything that was going on ?

A. No.

Solomon Desjardins, sworn :—

Examined by Mr. Robertson

:

Q. Where do you live ? A. In Prince Albert now.
Q. Where did you live in the beginning of March last? A. I was in Little

Pine's reserve.

Q. What was your occupation there? A. I was working there, doing anything.
Q. In whose employment ? A. Indian Department.
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Q. You were employed in the Indian Department on Little Pine's reserve T

A. Yes.
Q. Do yod know Poundmaker ? A. Yes.

Q. What was the first you saw of him in connection with the trouble or about

the time of the trouble ? A. I seen him at Cut Knife Creek.

Q. That was the first, was it? A. Yes
Q. Were you there, at Cut Knife Creek ? A. Yes.

Q, How did you come to be there? A. I had been prisoner at Little Pine's

reserve, so we all came down to the Cut Knife Creek.

Q. The Indians on your own reserve took you prisoner ? A. Yes.

Q. And brought you down there ? A. Yes.

Q . To Cat Knife Ci eek ? A.' Yes

.

Q. What did you find when you got to Cut Knife Creek, when you were brought

down that time ? They were all there,

Q. Who ? A. Poundmaker's camp, and the Stonys, and Sweet Grass, all three

there together.

Q. All there together when you arrived ? A. Yes.

Q. Had a soldiers' tent been pitched before you arrived ? A. No, it was after.

Q. Who pitched that soldiers' tent ? A. I am not sure. I thought it was the

Stonys.

Q, Now, tell us what you saw at the fight at Cut Knife? A. I saw nothing at

all, I think.

Q. Well, you saw something of it ? What was the first you knew of the fight 2

A. I was in my bed when the first shell came into the camp.

Q. Well, did you get up ? A.I got up and put on my boots, and ran to within

about three miles of the creek, with the rest of the half-breeds.

Q. Now did you see anything of Poundmaker ? A. No.
Q. You saw nothing of him that day ? A. No.

Q. Do you know anything about the letter being sent from Poundmaker, or

from the camp, Poundmaker, Copinowaywin and three others to Eiel ? A. No.
Q. You don't know anything about that? A. No.
Q. Did you know that a message had been sent ? A. That was after, in the

camp, but I was not sure

.

Q. Do you know Wawpass Trottier? A. No.
Q. By sight? A. No.
Q. Do you know Chicicum ? A. I know Charles Trottier, who was in that camp.
Q. Was he one of the messengers from Eiel? A. Yes, he said he was.

Q. And Chicicum, do you know him ? A. Yes.

Q. You saw those men there, did you ? A. Yes.

Q. And Jobin? A. Yes.

Q. When did you first see them in the camp ? A.I would not say.

Q. About when ? How long before the fight ? A. Charles and Pierre Vandale,

Joseph Arcand, Tropas Trottier and one Sioux, and Cayien, who was wounded after

the fight.

Q. But I want to know about these other men before the fight? A. Yes,

Trottier, Chicicum and Jobin.

Q. And Norbert Delorme was he there also before the fight ? A. YeSi

Q. Now did you hear Delorme trying to persuade Poundmaker to go to Batoche?

A. Yes.
Mr. Eobertson here submits that it is proper to ask what answer Poundmaker

made to that.

Court,—I think you may put that.

Q. What answer did Poundmaker make to it ? A. Poundmaker said he would
send to Fort Pitt, to Big Bear's camp and he would wait for him awhile before he
would go down to Eiel.

Q. That is what he said? A. Yes.
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Q. Did he say that he would go ? A. Well, that is what he said, that he would
wait for Big Bear for awhile.

Q. Did he say that he would go ? A. No.
Q. Well, did he say that he would not go, what did he say as to going away T

A. Be eaid that time that he would wait for Big Bear awhile before he would go
down, arid then after that he said then he would not go—after the fight.

Q. Did you hear any others trying to persuade to induce him to go ? A. Yes,
all of them, all of the half-breeds from Duck Lake were after him to take him down.

Q. And what did he say to them ? A. He said he would want to go back to
Devil's Lake.

Q. What did he say about going to Batoche ? A. He said he did not like to go
down after the fight at Duck Lake.

Q. He wanted to go to Devil's Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. Where is Devil's Lake ? A. I don't know.
Q. Don't you know in what direction it is in ? A. No.
Q. How long did you remain in the camp? A. I remained there all that time

till the surrender.

Q. Who was in command of the camp? A. Well after Norbert Delorme came
to the camp, 1 guess he was the boss in the camp.

Q. Now he came before Cut Knife, before the fight? A. Yes.

Q. Was Poundmaker able to control the Indians in that camp ? A. No, I don't
think it.

Q. Did he ever take any active part in what was being done ? A. I can't say.

Q You did not see any at all events ? A. No.
Q. Well, were you constantly about the camp ? Were you kept confined in any

particular place, or were you free to walk about the camp ? A.I walkod about in

aay time.

Q. And did you walk about a good deal ? A. Yes.

Q. And if Poundmaker had been taking an active part, would you have seen it ?
A. I don't know, he was not often out of his tent.

Cross-examined by Mr. Osier :

Q. Then as soon as the first shot was fired you went off to a place of safety ? A.
Yes.

By Mr. Bobertson:

Q. I want to ask you another question. Do you know an Indian by the name of
Mustatamus? A. Yes.

Q. Does he resemble Poundmaker at all? A. No, not much, he is a very big
man.

Q. He resembles him in that ? A. Yes.

Q. He is a fine looking Indian, straight ? A. Fes, a good looking Indian

.

Q. Was he in the camp at the time of the fight at Cut Knife, do you know ? A.
Yes.

Q. Do you know whether he was taking any active part in the affairs of the
camp ? A. I seen him before sunset that same day, the day of the fight, and he was
on his back, he had a bullet or something.

Q. He was wounded ? A. Yes.

Cross examined by Mr. Osier :

Q Several of those who wanted to fight went to the rear with you, didn't they ?

A. So I thought.

Q. All those who did not want to fight went off to a place of safety ? As soon
as the fight happened some of the half-breeds went, didn't they ? A. Yes.

Q. Prisoner went? A. Yes, the prisoner was pretty nearly in that direction.

Q. Everybody was free to go, there was nobody hindering ? A. Yes ; they we
&LL around us.
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Q. But nobody hindered you from getting away ? A. I had to go with the half-

breeds.

Q. Then it was just those who were not going to fight who went to the rear ?
A. Yes.

Q. And those who were going to fight remained ? A. That is the way I thoughts

Q. Well, did Pound maker go with you or did he stay in the camp ? A. I could

not say. I did not see him.

Q. You did not see him with those who retreated ? A. No.

Q. When was it you beatd Poundraaker say he would go to Big Bear or send to

Big Bear and would wait for him awhile before he went to Batoche ? A. I could
not say the time.

Q. Was it before the Cut Knife fight, before the soldiers came ? A. Yes, before

the soldiers came.
Q. And how long before ? A. Well, I am not sure, but I guess it is about five

or six days before.

Q. Well, was it Poundmaker himself they wanted to go to Batoche, or his band.'

A. I understood it was all the band.

Q. Well, was it because Poundmaker refused to go that the band did not go ?
A. I don't know.

Q. Bat when they wanted the band to go they went to Poundmaker ? A.I
could not say.

Q. Well, it was Poundmaker they spoke to ? A. No, they had a big meeting,

and they spoke to each other there.

Q. And who answered ? A. All the councillors and headmen got up and
spoke about it.

Q. Poundmaker among the rest ? A. Yes.

Q. And the conclusion come to was that they would wait for Big Bear ? A. Yes*]

Q. Before they went down ? A. To Duck Lake.

Father Louis Cochin sworn :

—

Examined by Mr, Robertson

;

(French interpreter sworn, Napoleon Blache.)

Q. What is your occupation ? A. I am missionary to the Indians at Battlefordj,

or the vicinity of Battleford.

Q. Where were you residing in the early part of March last ? At the settle-

ment of the half-breeds near Battleford, about 25 miles from Battleford.

Q. Is it the settlement known aa Bremner's settlement ? A. Yes.

(4, Did you see anything of Poundmaker there at any time towards the end of

the month of March last ? A. I seen Poundmaker; when Poundmaker came to me
with the Indians it was not Poundmaker said it, but the Indians said they come to

get you. or they come to bring you. Poundmaker himself said they come to bring

you, to take you, they are coming.
Q. Not that these people have come now, are come now to take you, but they

are coming ? A. They are coming.
Q. To whom did he refer ? A. When Poundmaker said they come to take you,

he had a gang of Indians behind him, and he meant at the time that it was the
Indians that came to take him, to fetch him. Poundmaker came with the Indians,

about 200 Indians, and he sent two men of the band to advise the half-breeds that he
was very sorry that the Indians were excited and he was not, and when he arrived,

he told Mr. Bremner and half-breeds before me, they come to take you.

Q. Was that the first time you saw him, when there were 200 Indians with him?
A. I saw him one time before, and he promised—he gave the Stonys to understand
he would not trouble us at all, and we could remain to work in our place.

Q. You saw him once before ? A. Yes.

Q. What was the first occasion that I asked you about, I want you to tell us
about the first occasion, not about the 200 ? A. This is the first occasion thatl saw
Poundmaker.
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Q. How many Indians were there with him on that first occasion ? A. Twenty
Indians the first time.

Q. Noxr what did he come for on that occasion ? A. Poundmaker and the other

20 Indians went there to assure themselves, and what they were doing at the time, at

that time at Bremner's settlement, and the half-breeds there met them and under-

stood that they were quite indifferent to the fight, they did not want to fight, they

warned to have peace and cultivate their lands, and Poundmaker made that under-

stood to their Indians and they went away again.

Q. But what did Poundmaker come there for ? A. Poundmaker went over there

with them to prevent them from doing any harm to the half-breeds at the time ; he

went there on account—to see himself what was going to be done and explain to tie

Indians. I suppose that those Indians were Assiniboines and were quite excited at

the time; and Poundmaker went over therewith them to see and to assure them
that they were quiet at the time, and did not want to cause any row or anything like

that.

Q. Well, the'next time you saw him, was he there when there were 200 Indiana?

A. Yes.

Q. Who was in command of those Indians ? A. Delorme.

Q. What part did Poundmaker take ? A. Poundmaker, on arriving, simply said

to Bremner's, they come to fetch you, and afterwards I returned to the tent and did

not hear any more of the conversation, of the doings.

Q. Well, did you go over to the camp—the Indian camp after that ? A. Next
morning we went to the Indian camp; we started to go over to the Indian camps
because Delorme told us that if we did not go there would be probably bloodshed

over it, and Poundmaker promised him and to the half breeds that he would protect

them all the time.

Q, Then you did go over ? A. And then we followed the Indians in the camp.

Q. When was that—what time of the month ? A. It was on the 15th or 16th.

of April.

Q. And how long did you remain in the camp? A. I stopped from that time
—15th and lb'th of April till 18th in that camp, lfth or 18th

.

Q. Were you a prisoner there during that time ? A. I was taken as a prisoner

like the others . I was not taken by force. I could go about in the camp anywhere
I liked to go, but I could not go out.

Q. Where were you taken in the first place when you were taken over—to

which camp ? A. I was in Bremner's camp.
Q. The bait- breed camp or the Indian camp ? A. Half-breed camp.

Q. But after you had been there a time, you were allowed to wander about any
place in either camp ? A. I was let free to go out every now and then, but was
sometimes threatened by the Indians to not go too far or be too free about it.

Q. Which Indians ? A. The Stonys. I don't know all their names, but they

were Stony Indians.

Q. It was Stonys that threatened you ? A, Yes.

Q. Do you talk and understand Cree ? A. I understand Cree well.

Q. And Stony? A. No.
Q. Who was in command of the Indian camp while you were there? A. I can

say there were two commandants of the Indian camp. I heard Poundmaker com-
manding his own people, but I never heard him commanding anything wrong; it

was always of good aDd he was obeyed by the good men.

Q. Who was the other commander ? A. The other commander was Delo rme,

and the soldiers' camp.
Q. He commanded the soldiers' and the Stonys' camp ? A. Yes;

Q. Had Poundmaker control of that Indian camp ? Were you able to control

it ? A. I could not. I tried now and then to have control of the camp, but I did

not succeed.

Q. What attempts did you make to get control of it ? A. He told his men many
times in fact that they were frightening him on account of them pillaging, and in

fact murdering and so on the people, slaughtering the people, or something like that*
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Q. They were frightening him ? A. Frightening him by their past conduct,
pillaging and murder and so on.

Q. Well, his trying to get control of the camp, on what occasions did he try to
get control of it ? A. Every time there was excitement he was trying to have
control of the camp.

Q. Trying to do what? A. Each time they were threatening the prisoners or
at other times when they were trying to go to Battleford, he was trying to take
control of the camp then

.

Q. Trying what to do? What did he want them to do ? A. He was threaten-
ing the half-breed, and then for punishment, killing the beasts, cattle that they
brought over, they stole or made their property, appropriated them.

Q. You said when there was excitement, and when the Indians were threaten-
ing the prisoners, and when the Indians were wanting to go to Battleford, Pound-
maker would try to get control of the camp—now what did he try to get them to do ?
A. He was trying to calm them, and saying, pay attention or be careful ia your con-
duct, and when he saw them at a certain place, he was sending them to another
place or moving about. I saw that—the half-breed camp.

Q . Moving about ? A. Yes.

Q. For what purpose ? A. Coming to make a noise in the half-breed camp, and
he would send them away ; they were making a noise or row in the half-breed campi

Q. Did the Indians, on any particular occasion that you remember, threaten to
murder any ofthe half-breeds who had been taken from the settlement ? A. 1 heard
the Indians saying to the half-breeds of Bremner's settlement that if you go on
giving suspicion against you there will be damage done. It appears some of the
half-breeds, half-breeds, I suppose, that were brought up from there, wanted to desert,

so the Indians told them if you want to keep deserting that way, at last something
bad will happen between us, meaning they would fight them or kill them, and ia
those circumstances I have seen Poundmaker many times sending them aside, send-
ing them away—Indians, sending them to one side, protecting the prisoners.

Q. Was your own life in danger at any time ? A. From the beginning until the 2nd
May I thought my life was in danger, and during that time I was threatened now
and then, and once there was twenty Stony Indians that were surrounding and try-

ing to strike me, but Poundmaker came to them and they scattered away, sent them
off.

Q. What did Poundmaker say to them ? A. I can't say, but I h eard some words,
I understood a few words and heard Poundmaker saying to them that—his meaning
was that they had nothing to do there, in fact, and he, Poundmaker, threatened
them*

Q. Well, was your life in danger at any time ? A. Not after the fight.

Q. What else, if anything, did Poundmaker do to protect you from the Indians?
A. He has held meetings and speeches, saying to leave the fathers alone, in fact, to
leave them quiet. And he had so much indignation at Frog Lake massacre.

Q. Did you ever have a guard standing over you to protect you? A. Yes.
Poundmaker went there to my tent several times to see that nothing had happened
to me and others in the camp; used to go around my tent several ti mes, many times,

to see that nothing had happened to me.
Q. Was there a guard standing over you at any time? A. After the fight.

Q. What was the guard there for? A. Those were half-breeds that were sent
by Kiel, that I speak of now.

Q. Now, tell us all that you know, and all that you saw in the fight at Cut Knife
Hill? A. I heard an Indian in the morning about 5 o'clock. He was shouting to
the men, and I.got up at the time and went out, and as I went out I saw a few Indians
that were running on the creek side towards the creek, and I was trying myself to

go and see what was going on at the time, and after walking about 100 yards I heard
a few shots, and after those few shots I heard, they fired until 12 o'clock. They
never stopped till 12 o'clock, and then I proceeded to a small hill, and on arriving

there, I saw the soldiers going up too. There were a few Indians advancing towards,
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the soldiers at the time, running around by their left, and the fire was too strong;
and I left.

Q. Did you see Poundmaker that day ? A. I saw on that day only what I saidl

a few minutes ago. That is all I saw, as I returned immediately to the half breed!
camp, as they were getting ready to go away.

Q. Did you see Poundmaker that day ? A. No.
Q. Not at all ? A.I saw him after the fight.

Q. Where was he? A. He was with all his camp. They were changing:
camp at the time.

Q. How long was that after the fight ? A. About three or four hoars after tho
fight,

Q. Was that the first you saw of Poundmaker that day ? A.I thiDk I sawr
him coming out of his tent before he went away from the half-breed camp . I ami
not sure it was bim.

I

Q. Did you see any buckboards? A. I seen a good many buckboards on the*
half-breeds' side and Indians, but I did not see any buckboards with the half-breeds?
going towards—I don't remember seeing any going away with the other half-breeds^

Q. Did you see any buckboards on the field when the fight was going on ? A. No*.

Gross-examined by Mr. Casgrain

:

Witness.—On one occasion the Indians wanted to go to Battleford to pillage it;

and Poundmaker prevented them from going. On other occasions when the Indians^
threatened the half-breeds Poundmaker prevented them from carrying their threats*
into execution. On other occasions when the Indians came to make a row in the*
half-breed camp Poundmaker came over and sent them away. On another occasions
when the priest's life was in danger it was due to Poundmaker's influence over the-
Assiniboine Indians that his life was saved. Therefore Poundmaker's influence in the;
Indian camp was considerable. Poundmaker was a speaker of considerable weight;
amongst the Indians

;
he was listened to for certain things and sometimes he was not

listened to. When the Cut Knife fight began those who did not want to join in the
fight left the Indian camp and went into a hill about two or three miles from where*
the fight was going on. There was a good deal of confusion in the beginning, but
some of the Indians came and tried to make those wno did not want to fight gc»
towards the Indian families and not towards the half-breed camp. Poundmaker did'

not follow them when they left the field. I don't know whether Poundmaker went;
towards the other—the Indian families*. I and the half-breeds were prisoners in the)
Indian camp.

Q. The Indians were in a state of war ? A. A great part of them, if not the>
greater part, were in a state of war. I did not see any buckboard on the field that:
day, but there might h^ve been buckboards without my seeing them. Some time*
after the fight I went to Poundmaker and spoke to him about going to Colonel Otter-
with an offer to surrender, and Poundmaker then told me to go with an offer to sur-
render. The reason that I went to Poundmaker was because Poundmaker was chief*
of the camp. I thought he was the chief.

By Mr. Robertson :

Q. You have said that Poundmaker had a good deal of influence over the Stonygi
sometimes and sometimes not ? A. Sometimes not.

Q. How was that influence he postered exercised by him, for good or forbad ?
A. For good.

Q. Always ? A. He had influence when the others were afraid there might be*
danger that he would not be listened to.

Defence closed. No evidence in reply.

ADDRESS OF COUNSEL FOE DEFENCE.
Mr. Robertson,—May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury: I propose

p) say to you very few words indeed upon this case. You have heard all the evidence,
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and you can judge of it just as well without any words from me as you can if I were

-to talk to you for hours. You have heard, of course, the evidence of the witnesses for

the Crown, and you have no doubt remarked this, that every one of those witnesses is

a man prejudiced by bis official position or by tho circumstances through which he

has passed, against the Indian. You have noticed Mr. Jefferson—you have noticed

thai he goes into that box saying himself that ho has no clear recollection of what
did take place, and you notice also that wh He he is admitting that be is giving

only recollections very imperfect of what took place, every time he has

anything to say it is colored against the prisoner. You must have

been struck by that when he was telling you of what took place between

"him and Poundmaker, when he himself went to find Poundmaker because he thought

Jie was in danger. Ho met Poundmaker, and he tried to convey to your minds, at

first, the impression that Poundmaker had practically said to him, you might have

been killed before I got back, and I would have been rather glad if you had because

I would not hove been to blame for it, but now that you are here I can make use of

you and you can leave. That is the sort of impression he tried to convey to you at

first, and when he came to be prossed a little, and was made to give the words, we
find it was totally different. We find old Poundmaker rejoicing that he was alive,

and referring to the fact that he had many times kissed his little child, and that he

was glad that he was there and uninjured. There was one sample of the way in

-which Mr. Jefferson always tried to color the evidence that he was giving. Then we
have him again about the letter. At last, when pressed on cross-examination, he is

obliged to admit that Poundmaker may never have authorized him to put his name
to that letter. He has to admit that at last. In the first place he states, in the

broadest terms, that Poundmaker authorized him to put his name to that letter, and

he lays great stress on the fact that he goes to Pound maker's tent for the purpose of

writing it. Now, what were the circumstances as he detailed them ? He was in

another tent. A messenger comes to him, not from Poundmaker. One of Red
Pheasant's men comes to him and tells him that he is wanted. He goes on then, not

Poundmaker says, but he says it is said by some one that he is wanted to write a

letter. Then a letter is dictated by whom ? He can't say by whom. He does not

say that Poundmaker dictated it, but he thinks all that were present had a hand in

it. Well, that is all very well. Perhaps they had a hand in it, but what hand?

My explanation to you, gentlemen, of that is this, of what took place there, they

-were in Pound maker's tent, because they had to go there and get him. It was the

only way they could get him into it at all. The half-breeds were there. The half-

breeds had come determined to bring him into sympathy with Kiel, or, at all events,

into some seeming connection with him all the other half-breeds of Battleford how-

ever unwilling, and all the Indians. They found there most ready confederates in.

the Stonys. They rise. They get them to join them, and then they bring them

over to Pound maker's camp,, and they take the control of Pound maker's men out of

his own hands, ot his camp out of his hands. They come there, the Stonys come,

and the Stonys pitch the soldiers' tent. It is not Pound maker's men that pitch the

soldiers' tenr, but the Stonys come into his camp and pitch the soldiers' tent, and

declare themselves masters of it. And, gentlemen, does not the evidence of those

men who were his prisoners in that camp during that time satisfy you that that was

the true position, that Poundmaker's influence, such as it was, was always exercised

in the interests of peace and humanity—always, but there was a stronger influence

here, an influence that he could not countervail, the influence of those half-breeds

with the Stonys at their back, and perhaps younger men amongst the Crees, who
were only too" glad to show that they were braves, and to go in for any figuting that

might bo going on ? That, I take it, was the true position of the matter. Then, what

was Poundmakef's position ? He was there in his own camp. He could not get away

from it. Three times he tried, and each time he was brought back. He could not

get away from it. He was there. The state of things was such that Mr. Jefferson

tells you himself, even Jefferson, who was not anxious to help Poundmaker, tells yon

that Poundmaker, whom he had been trying to make out so influential, might have
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Ibeen in fear of his life at the very lime that that letter was written. Jefferson was
in tear of his life. Jefferson would never have written that letter—if he had dared
to refuse, what would have been the result, and if he did not dare to refuse, are
you to think much of this, that Poundmaker sat there while that letter 'was
being concocted when they came to his tent for the purpose of doing it? Now, how
did it happen that they came there ? The half-breeds who were in control of that
camp wanted to communicate with Eiel. They wanted to give him confidence, and
tLey wanted to rope these Indians in. The half-breeds arranged how it was to be
done. They said : "We want to make this appear that it comes from all the Indians.,
"We will keep away, but we will send our own Indian, Chicicum, who was one of the
leadeis; we will send him. He will go and organize matters. We will instruct him
beforehand what is to be said ; and accordingly Chicicum goes. He gets up this
meeting. Ee takes, not Poundmaker's Indians, but the Stonys, because you will
remember that Jefferson tells us who those Indians were that were present there.
The only man that was Poundmaker's man was Copinowwaywin— all the others
were Stonys— and he comes from the other reserves that they had stirred up. They
had got together to Poundmaker's tent, and they pretended to hold a council at which
Poundmaker is present. Then they dictate the letter. They make Jefferson write
it. Then, to be quite sure that it is according to the instructions the half-breeds have
given them, they take it over to the half-breeds' tent, and the letter is carefully
revised, and an alteration is made. That is how that letter was concocted. It was
not the work of Poundmaker. It was the work of the half-breeds who had control
of that camp, acting through the Stonys and the other Indians over whom they had
acquired influence and through whom they were controlling Poundmaker. That, I
say, is the explanation of that letter, and if you thins that there is reasonable ground
for believing that Poundmaker did not williDgly write that letter or dictate it—if you
think there is reasonable doubt that he did not willingly authorize his name to be
placed to it— if you think even that he did perhaps say yes when he was asked if his
name might be put to it; if you think that in saying that he was influenced by fearr
that if he did not it would be worse for him, then he is entitled to your verdict of
acquittal ; because I am going to submit to you that there is no evidence upon which
jou can safely convict that man of the charge laid against him upon any of the other
particulars, 1 think, as nearly as anything can be. As to the going to Battleford,
what is the evidence as against Poundmaker ? In looking at that, you must remem-
ber that an Indian chief, however influential, is not like the commander of an organ-
ized or disciplined force. He is nothing of that sort. The influence he has is just
such an influence as his personal character and perhaps a knack of speaking may
give him, and that only gives him i^uch influence as enables him to lead men where
their own inclinations jump. Ee cannot, with all his influence, so control the young
men, braves of his tribe, as to prevent them, if they are bent upon mischief, from
-committing it. He has no court of justice; he has no means of punishment ; he has
nothing whatever to enforce his authority except such persuasive powers as he may
nave. That is all he has to depend upon. Now he goes to Battleford. We find him
meeting Joseph McKay on Strike-him-on-the-back's reserve ; we find him meeting
Craig; we find him meeting Mr. Wm. McKay and Mr. Peter Ballantyne at Battle-
ford, and none of those men—and they all know the Indians well—none of those men,
in fact they all say that they saw nothing in the demeanor or conduct of Poundmaker
himself, during that time, to indicate that he intended any harm whatever. Joseph
HcKay, who has known the Indians from his childhood, says there was nothing
whatever unusual in their having their guns. An Indian travels with his
gun as you or I travel with our coats. There was nothing unusual what-
ever in that, and there is nothing to show that Poundmaker organized a
T>ody to go with him. The contrary is the case. He hadn't asked an Indian
to go with him, the only evidence there is on the subject shows; but he
went to ask for tea and tobacco which they all desired and needed. He went
.also, anxious about what was taking place and to try and find out the truth about
these troubles at Duck Lake. He went there, and his Indians a great many of them
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.followed very naturally and asked for something that he was going for, and what did

they- fad wh^n they got there ? They found the village deserted, they found ,a all

Sons houses containing goods and all manner of th ngs to arouse the cupidity of

an Indian. Gentlemen, if a trap had been deliberately laid to d™w ^ese IndiaDsmto

gome act of wrong-doing, could a better trap haye been laid ^.. th«" J*™?
was to be expected when a lot of young Indians came and entered the village and

found it dese?ted ? What else was to be expected than that some at least,.among
;

them

would try to help themselves to some of the good things about them. It is the very

thing to be expected, and I venture to say if this people had not deserted their homes,

if tfiey had remained there, there would have been no plundering and no violence

that night, but temptation was there and the young men yielded to it, but it does not

follow at all that Poundmaker came there with any idea that anything of that kind

was to be committed, nor does it follow at all that he approved of what was done In

7Z the evidence is, on the contrary, that he tried to prevent it. Jou ^emW the

evidence of one of the witnesses was that Poundmaker when he beard this going on

went out and cried out to stop, not to do that, and that he afterwards got two of his

older men to go out for the very purpose of preventing more harm being

done. You have got evidence of Mr. William Lightfoot that he saw Poundmaker

examining some of the things in the store, and he says that he afterwards saw a

fandle of things near where lundmaker was. Well, gentlemen how much reliance

would yon place upon Mr. William Lightloot ? If it is truthful, he contradicts Col.

Hercbmer, at all events he contradicts one of the Crown witnesses, Joe Alexander.

Joe Alexander said he saw Poundmaker on the field at Cut Knife
;
and that-he was

near bim, and with him, that was the expression he wed and this same William

lightfoot says he was not there and never was near Poundmaker during that day.

Then, William Lightfoot is the young man who guided K.el's messengers from Bed

Pheasant's reservation over to the Stonys to help them rouse the Stonys William

lightfoot is in that box to save himself. Gentlemen, that is what he is there

for, and you know that an Indian of that class always tries to save himself by flying

to bring charges against other Indians. You know that we and I submit to yon

with great confidence that that man's evidence is not worth a tittle when he says that

Poundmaker took goods that night. Poundmaker was too sensible of the trouble and

£as too anxious to prevent it, to do anything of that kind, he did not ,*owmh.s

conduct, so far as we have been able to get at it, and as you know 1 have been pre-

Rented by my learned iriends who have the right todo it, I have been prevented from

Xwin/you what his conversation was with these men when he met them, which

Wo have helped you also to decide upon what his motives were. The only factwe

hZ'isThat aVthe/e men who met hin/and did talk with him felt that ,he.intended

no halm ; we have got that fact, at all events, and it is not likely J^t pOTrimatar

in those circumstances and feeling friendly towards the whites as his coDdu^>hm

he did throughout, would have done so foolish a thing, because he is not a fool, as to

ioin in plundering a few goods on that night.
. 41,„m t„jj.__J

Another important fact in his favor is that the very next morning thoseJndiana

disappeared. Now, to whose influence was that due ? There must have been some

oZhereto induce those Indians to go away f-om Battleford^ f
go backto

their reserve. Who was it ? I think we may fairly assume that it was Poundmafcer.

That would be consent with all the rest o/his conduct so far as we have.been able

to get at it ; he does go back, and they camp at Cut Kmfe. There is another thing I

waft to say to you about that at Battleford-even supposing there had been any

intention to loot or to take goods at Battleford, that is not treason-felony unless it la

S the nature of levying wa? against the Queen, and that all depends upon the motive

withwMchtVe wing^asdonl, the robbing. Now the ^X'sSnd^
for the purpose of getting the goods, ust because they wanted the stuff.and tfiey-

wanted to help themselves, that is not treason-felony, that is robbery or larceny or

-whatever it may be, but it is not treason-felpny, and the P**«e *»* "*^? here
are the people that actually did it. There is no charge of that kind brought here

"e have nothing to do with any charge of that kind here; the charge here is that
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he levied war on that occasion against Her Majesty, and I think you must be satis-
fied, or you mubt say that the evidence for tho Crown does not establish any such
intention on that occasion. Then he comes back to Cut Knife, and they camp there,
and then, as 1 was saying, the Stonys come in and the half-breeds in command of
them, and they take complete control of his camp—from that time forward be is
helpless. We have the evidence of Father Cochin, and of the young teamster who
•was there, and everyone in that camp who saw what was going on, that the real
control of that camp was in the hands of the half-breeds, and that Poundmaker's
influence was practically nil as against them

; that what little influence he had, he
exercised for good. And, gentlemen, I think you will believe that we have to thank
Poundmaker for this happy fact, that of all those prisoners that were taken in that
camp, not one of them was killed. Father Cochin has told you of particular instances
in which the Stonys—it was always the Stonys—in which the Stonys wanted to
murder or injure the white prisoners. It was always Poundmaker that stepped in
and threatened them and dispersed them ; he had influence enough for that. My
learned friends, I can see, make a point of that. They are going to say he had
influence enough for that, and if he had influenoe enough for that, he might have
controlled them altogether—it does not follow at all. Poundmaker in that no doubt
had the support of the half-breeds, and no doubt the half-breed leaders who were lead-
ing I tie Indians, were just as unwilling as Poundmaker was that the white prisoners
should be injured. That was where Poundmaker was strong, in that direction, bat
where the half-breed leaders were the other way, and where the half-breed leaders
•were in conflict with the wishes of Poundmaker and had the inclination of the.
Stonys with them, there Poundmaker was perfectly helpless. That is the view that
I ask you to take of the whole situation. I ask you to remember that this poor man
is an Indian, that although he is defended here, ho is very imperfectly defended,
that it is impossible for me, without the facilities that I should have if I had a white
prisoner to defend, a man who could explain to me and tell me all about everything,
and whose confidence I could gain—if I had a white man like that to defend, and if I
had the means of communicating and getting information from those distant regions
in which all this trouble occurred, it would be a very different thing; but you can
see, you have seen yourselves, by the witnesses in that box, how diflicult my task has
been. You have seon how completely at sea I have been as to many of the occur-
rences that were in question, and you will see from that how impossible it is that
Poundmaker or any other Indian should have such a defence as a white prisoner, who
is able to explain himself, would have. I ask you to remember that, and I ask you, for
that reason, to scrutinize all the more carefully the evidence that is brought against
him by the Crown. Now, we can't go on through the whole of it. I have just pointed
out a few little things like that as indices that might help to guide you in consider-
ing tho case, the evidence, I have perfect confidence that you will give a fair con-
sideration, that you will not allow it to press unduly on your minds upon the
prisoner, and I ask you to give him the benefit of every reasonable doubt, and to give
©very doubt weight, for the very reason that he is so helpless.

ADDRESS OF THE CROWN COUNSEL.

Mr. Osier.—May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury,—The case before
you is one of very cjasiderable impofitaaoe ; one, perhaps, second only to the trial of
the chief leader of the recent insurrection, Louis Kiel. In that case the chief leader
was on his trial for high treason, the crime of treason. Here the chief of probably
the best known of all Indian tribes through Canada is on trial for the lesser offence
©1 treason-felony, but upon evidence which would probably have justified the Crown
in charging him with the higher crime of treason ; and, if it were not for circum-
etancea favorable to the prisoner, such as his not allowing those in his power or in
the power of the camp to be killed, but for those circumstances which surrounded his
action* personally it would have been tho duty of the Crown, in all probability, to
put him on trial for his life. But he is charged with that lesser offence because the

328



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 52 ) A. 188#

circumstances surrounding him were thought to be su'm that, even if he were cou~

Ticted of the higher crimp, it might be a sentence which the Crown woul i commute.

Now, gentlemen, let me Pay, in the first place, that the Crown has no desire to

find this man guilty unless the evidence clearly so points. The Government of the

country and the people of this country would be delighted to know that, a* the result

of this enquiry, Poundmaker, a well known chief, had remained loyal to his (Jueen,

loyal to the country, and stood there and did all he could to protect the settlers and.

the country when in danger; and no one would be better pleased than those in charge*

of the Government and the prosecution to know that, although accused, although

suspected, the analyzed evidence showed that he had remained loyal and true; ami

if that is the result of the evidence you have heard, gentlemen, we ask you to give it-

its full weight and send him out of that dock a free man. But is it so? Does he

come out with his intelligence, with his position, with his influence for good or eviir

Does he come out with that clean record that we would all delight to Pee him haveT

Or is the evidence so strong against him that, no matter how intelligent he is, no

matter how good he is in many of his instincts, still during all that time there was

treason in his mind, in his heart, and there was fraud in his action, and he, an Indian*

without cause of complaint against the Government, and without any grievance to*

redress, threw in his weight with those who pretended to have a grievance, and.

aided them in the calamity that they have brought upon the country? Nov, it nc

for you to say which position he took. And it is not necessary fjr the Crown tor

make out that he was always a leader, or that he was responsible for the action or.

his young men. He is chargeable, as many men are, with the company that iier

kept : he is chargeable with the aid he gave, be it small or great. The question of

degree of guilt, once you say he is guilty, is a question for the length of sentence,

not for your verdict. If he is guilty, and there are many extenuating circumstances,

if he did not lead, if he was, so to speak, guilty by reason of the circumstances gar-

rounding him more than from his own individual action, then that is a matter tor tte

court and the executive. 4»-i—a^asi
Now, gentlemen, he stands charged on various counts and overt acts technically

pleaded and set forth, and if on anyone of the^e overt acts you find the evidence

conclusive against him he is guilty of the charge as laid -guilty of conspiring

to levy war, to levy insurrection against the constituted authorities.
_

Now, the most cogent evidence of intent go rerning all his actions, his fature?

actions we say, is the letter produced here by the Crown written in English by'the?

witness Jefferson, and with his name attached to it and addressed to Louis Kiel,

Now, ask yourselves, was he a party to that letter ? Tn other wDrds, ask y^elves

do you believe Jeffarson ? Have ym reason to doubt the honesty of Jefferson «

evidence? Consider how he comported himself in the box. Did he give his evidence

with animus, without care, or did he give it with care, stating fairly that which was

for as well as that which was against the prisoner ? How did he strike yo.i as a

witness? Have you any reason to disbelieve his story? You are bound to give

weight to the evidence before you, and there are methods of impeaching that evi-

dence; first, by cross-examination; second, by putting some witnesses in the box U>

eay that the man is not a credible witness, not to be believed on oath. Has, then this

witness been in any way impeached? If not, you are bound to give due weight tar

'
C

Now! k'it possible, is it likely that he would put the name of Poundmaker to

that letter with the other chiefs ; or put it first, unless Poundmaker had authorized itr

He says he could not and would not have put his name to it without his authority.

Dj you believe him when he says so ? He says they were sitting around, these various

chiefs, Poundmaker, Copinowwaywin, Missinass, Mettawaysis and Peewa7
.

h°w
J*?**

five were there sitting around, dictating some of them one part some another of this

letter. As a result thi production was satisfactory to the who'e of them, and the writer

was authoriz3d to put the name to it, and that letter falls into the possession of the

Crown. That letter is delivered to the half-breedlmessengers. It is discussed again and

* correction is made in it as to the number of messengers that are to be sent. Then if
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yon give weight to that letter, ard gay that Poundmaker is chargeable with it, con-
eider its terms and gay whether they are consistent in any way with the theory now
set up for the defence. Let me read it to you—bear in mind it is on the 29th April
It is just three or four days before the battle of Cut Knife Hill, which takes place on
2nd May

;
just at that time, this man, the prigoner, is found in the council with these

mother chiefs
. Just prior to Cut Knife Hill, this letter is digcusged with the half-breeds,

and its terms changed. Was he a loyal man acting there under the fear of his life
or was he acting in concert ? Was he acting in aid of the rebellion then existing ?
Here is the letter :

" If any event occurred since your mesgengers went away,"
referring to the fact that they recognized these men as Kiel's messengers, " tell me
the date when the Americans will reach the Canadian Pacific Eailway." See how
ihey knew all the plans, how they realized that they expected aid from the Americans
as one of the great factors in the success of the rebellion, and remember that sentence
in connection with the evidence, when the second letter came, and when the
messengers told him the Americans were not going torhelp. Eemember that gentence
in this letter in connection with the fact that Poundmaker gaid when he heard the
second time on the occasion of the second letter— a copy of which we have not got— but on the occasion of the gecond letter Poundmaker gays: " If I had not believed
that iLo Americans were coming to help, I would not have gone into the row.1*

* 4 We, 57
as my learned friend, Mr. Eobertgon, properly gays, we would not have gone

info the row. That is an important thing to bear in mind in remembering that
trim in the letter. Evidently the first communication between Louis Eiel
and Poundmaker hid been on the basis that it he would rise and help him,
here are the prospects: The Americans are coming to take the Canadian
Pacific Eailway. I have arranged for that. We are here doing our work^
3% Bear is there doing his work. You do your work. Our united they

(TAe three lines of the copy following this cannot be deciphered.)

go on " tell me all the news you have heard from all places where your work is
in progress. Big Bear has finished his woik, he has taken Fort Pitt." You see bow
the men who wrote this letter were in active communication with Big Bear, they
recognized him as in the joint movement. " If you want me to come to you, Jet me
inow at once," he said, referring to Big Bear. " I sent for him at once, they will be
four days en ihe road. Those who have gone to see him will sleep twice on the
Toad. They tcok twenty prisoners, including the master at Fort Pitt. They killed
eleven men, ii eluding the agent, two priests, six white men. We are camped on the
creek just lelow Cut Knife Hill, waiting for Big Bear. The Blackfeet have killed,
sixty police at the Elbow, a half-breed who fought for ihe police having survived the
fight, though wounded, brought this news. Here we have killed six white men ; we
nave not uken ihe barracks yet, but that is the only entire building in Battleford."
Bear this in mind when you consider the responsibility for the Battleford raid. "All
ihe cattle and horses in the vicinity we have taken. We have lost one man, aNez
Perce killed, he being alone, and one wounded. Seme soldiers have come from Swift
Current, but I don't know their number. We have here guns and rifles of all sorts^
•irat ammuniticn for them is short ; if it be possible we want you to send us ammuni-
tion of various kinds ; we are weak only for want of them . You sent word that you
would come to Battleford when jou had finished your work at Duck Lake, we wait
astill for you. We are unable to take the fort without help; we are impatient to
reach you. It would give us encouragement to see you and make us work more
lieartiiy. Up to the pi esent, everything has gone well with us, but we are con-
stantly expecting the soldiers to visit us. We trust that God will be as kind to us in
the future as he has been in the past. We, the undersigned, send greeting to yotj,

all." Then come five signatures of the five chief men, Poundmaker's coming at the
head. And then there is a postscript: *• When this reaches you send us news immedi-
ately as we are anxious to hear the news." And there is the further alteration, and
it may be that the evidence does not bring home, if that is important, that alteration
io the pii&oncr, "if you send us news, send as many men as possible," that is the
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alteration made you will remember when the terms of that letter were discussed,

•when the half-breeds were present. As the letter was originally written, tuere was one

messenger to be sent ; as it was altered, it was "send as many men as possible.
_

Now, gentlemen, as I have said to yon, the great governing question here is, is

Poundmaker responsible for that letter ? If you find him responsible for that letter,

then your task is a very easy one, for you need consider very little of the other evi-

dence. Now you heard just how Jefferson put it in examination and cross-examina-

tion. Can you come to any other conclusion ?
^

Now, gentlemen, beyond that letter, there is evidence, as I submit, to convict*

Upon that letter the case is, in my view, almost unanswerable. Beyond it, however,

you have the evidence of the Battlefoid raid
;
you have the evidence that when th©

state of terror existing in the country had driven the settlers into the refuge of the

fort—when the state of things existing there had compelled men to flee, leaving

their houses and their goods abandoned, when that state of things exists, this man
comes down to Battleford with his armed men, 100 strong. What was be there for F

They help themselves to hay. Poundmaker himself is seen in the store turning over

the goods What was he there for if he was a loyal subject ? Why did he refuse ta

meet the Indian agent half way when the Indian agent asked him to meet him?

"Wfcs that the act of a loyal subject wanting to help the Government in ironMe ?

Or was it the act of an Indian who, willing to let his braves do what they will,

at the same time his extra intelligence told him you must keep yourself right by-

saving something and doing something which will show that your heait is not in/

the v» ork. Now isn't his position just this ? As events changed, as he thought the

rebellion was stiong, so he was strong; as he thought the rebellion was weak, so he*

was weak, always knowing his prominent position, always knowing it was very easy

to give a direction which could never be heard. It was very easy to set works and

do acts whieh would save him in case the Government ultimately succeeded and

asked him to give an account of his chiefship. Isn't that the position of a man who

goes to Battleford and who refuses to meet the Indian agent, and who starts up and

Sets goods and is up there at that hour in the morning, and is seen afterwards with-,

goods alongside of him ? I admit with my learned friend, Mr. Kobertson, that that mr

itself is not treason-felony, as an isolated act, but it is treason-felony if it is a part ofr

the common object, if it is a part ol the war and insurrection which they had entered

into. As an isolated act, it was mere looting or stealing, punishable as such, but it-

it is referable to the insurrection, to the rising in arms, to the conspiracy to levy-

war against the Government, then it is an overt act of treason-felony for which you

may find the prisoner responsible. -

Well, then, gentlemen, we come to the evidence of the battle at Cut Knife Hill.

Do vou believe that the prisoner was there aiding and abetting, no matter whether her

was in command or not ? Do you believe, in oiher words, Col Herchmer, when he

says that he saw him there engaged apparently in directing the movements t 1*>

you believe Josie Alexander, who saw him there with Grey Eyes
;
and be says atecy

with Lightfoot ? Do you believe that he was recognized in the fight ? Grey lives

was by him, according to one witness, and Grey Eyes is the Indian here w bo was

fighting actively, had his gun and was shot, and is here yet with hi* wound apparent y
unhealed. That was the man, Grey Eyes, who was seen in his company Well,

gentlemen, upon that occasion, upon the occasion of that fight, there seems to have

been a camp for non-combatant people who did not want to fight. The half-breed^

Father Cochin, and others, retreated when the battle happened, but m that retreat

Poundmaker did not appear. They were divided into two camps—the camp ot those

who desired to go out of the reach of the bullets, who desired not to take any part in

the contest, and those left. Where was Poundmaker on that occasion ? What was

he doing ? Was he taking an opportunity as a loyal subject to go out and Mir-rcnder

himsell with a flag of truce, and say, now, at all events is my cbat.ee to escape and

make myself right with the Government? Or was he hauling down the white flag

and actively engaged in directing the movements of the troops ? Which conclusion

do you come to on the evidence ? If he wns there fighting, he is response, respon-
*
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sible for the lives that were taken and the wounds that were given upon that oroa-
«ion. The evidence as to what took place on that occasion seems to me to be all oneway, and there is the positive and uncontradicted identification of the prisoner on
that occasion. r

jk A 5°
w

'
my Iearned frieTld 8ayfi that wif^ reference to the raid upon the teams,

that that was a matter for which he in not responsible. Well, now, I will admit that
prior to that occasion Poundmaker endeavored to get away, but why was that ? Hemw by that time that it was a losing cause. When he wanted to get away, andthey would not let him, what was it that he said. He Paid that he was afraid that
iftiei was in a bad w.y—he was in a bad fix, and it was only because he, with his
superior intelligence, was satisfied that Kiel was in a bad way, that he wanted to leavethe camp. Now, that does not help him if he was then trying to turn back for the
tirst time. You see after that, gentlemen, he takes part in the council as to what is
to be done. He acts, no doubt, when the teamsters are brought in, with that humanitywhich we would expect from his superior intelligence, and he is entitled to and he
does get the benefit of that. If he had not shown that superior humanity he wouldmo doubt, in all probability, be on trial for his life. If that was part of the move-
ments in the general insurrection, he is liable for that as well as for the other acts
tout the Crown does not need to press that, to bring home to him anything whichyou tliink he ought to be dissolved from. If he is found guilty of any one of these
acts, it is just as sufficient, and just as strong, as if he was found guilty on a dozen

Now, gentlemen, I shall follow the example of my learned friend, and I shall
give your intelligence credit for following the evidence and being able to give full
weight to it without my recounting it to you. What you have to give your verdict
«>n is not what I say to you, but what the witnesses have said to you. It is only my
<duty, on the part of the Crown, to point out some of the matters upon which the
<,rown relies, and adopt those matters to the written charge preferred here. On the
general defence that he was helpless in the hands of his young men, it seems to me
that Father Cochin s evidence shows that he still had a great deal of influence left •

Jie it was who was able to control where control was wanted; he it was who dis-
persed b*nds of Indians when quarrelling with the half-breeds: he it was who jroeswhere 20 surrounded Father Coohin and his life was in danger, he goes there and
uses his influence and quiets them; wherever his influence is wanted and wherever
lit is exercised it is felt. STow, do you believe that he was helpless in the hand* ofthe young braves, or if he had chosen to say break that tent up, he had not all the
influence necessary to do it. If he hadn't that influence, if he was no longer chief,
iihere still was a duty upon him as a loyal Indian. No man can excuse his treason
to the Grown unless his treasonable act is produced bv fear of death ; fear only of
personal death absolves a man from a treasonable offence, and while perhaps it may-
toe unfair to measure the weight of evidence against an Indian in the same way that
t.ne Grown have all along measured it against white subjects, and perhaps it would be
lairer tor you to say if that man was not in control of the camp, hid he under the
circumstances a duty to perform to the Crown ? As a treaty Indian, as a man of
intelligence, as a man who had been in personal communication with many of the
tugh officers of Government, should he not have heard of the trouble likely to rise?
Should he not have met the Indian agent and told him there is a soldiers' tent I
cannot control ? Should he not have done something to show that while he was in
that camp he was not of it; that while he was surrounded by disloyal men, dangerous
men, he was remaining true to his allegiance ? That is what I would expect if ho
iiad remained an honest chief. Is not his conduct all through well-indicated by the
writing that we have produced on the part of the Crown ?

.

Now, gentlemen, weigh well this evidence, and if there is a reasonable doubt,
give it to the prisoner. The Crown here have endeavored to give him a fair trial;
counsel has been assigned to him to work up the evidence, to present the case fairly
to you from his point of view ; every witness that he has desirod to speak in his
Behalf has been summoned at the expense of the Crown, and you must not understand
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me in any remarks I make to be seeking in any way to influence you beyond whafc:

you ought honestly to be influenced by, namely, the evidence that you have heard .iq>

the box.

JUDGE'S CHAKGE.

Mr. Justice Bichardson.—Gentlemen of the jury. In what remarks I may 2aav©>

to make to you I shall be as brief as possible. What we have heard since yesterday*

has been I think, so fresh, and must be so fresh in your minds that you must recol-

lect it. However, if during the few minutes that will elapse I am told that yon d©*

not, I will take steps, such steps as I think proper to refresh your memory.

The charge against this prisoner is upon an Act of Parliament, passed m th©>

year 1867, just after what was known as the Fenian raids, and the clause of the Act
upon which this charge is framed reads this way :

" Whosoever, after the passing of

this Act within Canada or without, compasses, imagines, invents, devises or intemteto?

deprive or depose our Most Gracious Lady the Queen, her heirs or successors, front'.

the style, honor and royal name of the Imperial Crown of the United Kingdom or

of any other of Her Majesty's - dominions or countries, or to levy war again&t Her
Majesty, her heirs or successors within any part ot the United Kingdom ow of

Canada, in order by force or constraint to compel her to change her mea&BreaaiMl

counsels, or in order to put any force or constraint upon her, or in order to intimi^-

dat'e or overawe both Houses of Parliament, or either Houses of Parliament o$ tiie

United Kingdom or of Canada, or stir any foreigner or stranger to invades the

United Kingdom or Canada or any other of Her Majesty's dominions (reading the>

-clause of the statute in full) and such compassings, imaginations, invesU£©ns^

devices and intentions, or any of them, shall express, utter or declare by puHasking^

in writing, printing or wiiting or speaking, or by any overt act or deed, id gaikj oB
ielony."

Under that law, you are empannelled as a jury to say whether upon tbe ©ftaarge

-which has been brought against this prisoner he is culpable or not. Now^tocnt
this bhort, there are a gieat many words in the charge. We may divide it intofomr

-parts. 1st. The Crown who brings him before us for trial say this raao hasvio—

-

Ilated that law. Now, the law says you must, when you make a charge, jow> musfc

suj how he has violated the law. Now, they say this, that he violated the law^tiraV

by pillaging, by assisting and being a party to the pillaging at Battleford^ '2nd*.

They f>ay that that letter which you have read, heard read, of the 2iKh April, mkL
which lies before me, that thnt is what is called an overt act. 3rd. They say his,

presence at the battle of Cut Knife, and what he did at the battle of Cut Kni»©, is

another one. And 4th, they t-ay that his presence, and what he did in the captu>rii»g

the Government supplies, the part he took in that or in the disposition of the>n, is

another one.

Now, suppose you were satisfied, that you came to the conclusion after coj a?d—

ering this, as I will tell you in a few minutes, you must conbider it— suppose t^u
come to the conclusion that he is not answerable on all tho-e, but on one of i^seni^.

say lor instance, he is answerable in connection with the letter, or be
is not answerable in connection with the letter, or Cut Knife, or the cap-

turing, but he is mixed up in connection with the piilagii g at Battleford, thafc

alone brings him under this law which 1 have read to you, aud brings him amenably

to it, under the words of this charge. Nnv, my duty might end there. I mighty

tell you that I have read to you the "luvv, that I have read to yon the charge, and X
might tell you at once to apply the evidence which you have heard, and which we
iave heard m curt since v^terday morning, to the law, and say upon that whether"

he is guilty or not gnilty. Going further, however, that if a reasonable doubt, not a^

simple doubt, which I nught raise,—did he do this ? and did he do that ? but a reason-

able doubt is shown to exist; if you find that jou could not conclusively, that upoi*

^either the whole or upon one or more of these charges or overt acts, the evidence im

not clear that a reasonable doubt exists, then my duty would be to tell you that jqw
should not convict,
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Then in regard to the man himself, he is an Indian—it is true and unquestion-
able, it does not seem to be disputed at all—he is a treaty Indian. The law, as we
have it here, makes no distinction between Indians and white men. They are all
amenable to the law—they are all assumed by law to know what the law is, so that
while I should tell you and advise you carefully to consider very carefully and
elosely scrutinize what has passed, what you have heard from the witnesses in their
statements

; while I should ask you to scrutinize carefully, bear in mind also that
there is no distinction between the red man and the white man. There is the law which
applies to everyone who is within the bounds of Canada, and anyone within her
boundaries who breaks it, whether he is a treaty Indian or Chinese, or no matter what
lie is, he is amenable to that law, and if he breaks it, and a jury says he has broken
it upon formal and legal evidence which may be brought before them, then all that
they have to do is to say that he is guilty ; the law of the land doss the rest.

Now, as I told you, there are four overt acts charged; This charge is composed
of four overt acts. In the first place he is charged with being a party to the pillag-
ing at Battleford. Well, the witnesses who speak of the pillaging at Battleford are
Ballantyne and McKay—or rather first I should tell you there is the evidence as to
the insurrection in the country and which existed prior to the pillaging at Battleford
taking place on the 30th April. To this, Harold Ross, Charles Ross and Wm. Tomkins
testify, and Mr. Ballantyne. Now, Ballantyne and McKay, with Lightfoot, described
what was done, and have told us what they knew about the pillaging at Battleford*
Ballantyne has told us of the proposition made by himself that this man, the pri-
soner, should go across to the Indian agent, that a council meeting was held and the
agent was on the other side of the river. The excitement was great, and the agent
was on the other side of the river, and he was wanted to go across to him. What
is the answer to that by the prisoner ? Is it the case of a man who wants material
from the agent ? If I want articles from a merchant's shop, do I say that the mer-
chant must bring them to me, or do I go into his shop and ask him if he has got
such and such things ? If I wants something to eat, do I tell the public to bring me
something to eat, or do I go where I get food, where I can ask for food ? Which is
the more natural way ? That is one way to look at it.

Mr. Robertson.—Pardon me a moment your Honor, you will recollect the agent
swore his store was on the side of the river on which the Indians were.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—I do, and I draw attention to that, and the agent was
on the other side of the river. The agent had control of that, and I am asking them
to consider whose duty it would be—would it be the duty of the agent to come over
to this one or of him to go to the agent ?

Mr. Robertson,—The store at which the goods were to be got was where the,
Indians were.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—The stores belonging to private people and the Govern-
ment were on the south side of the river, the witness told you, and the agent was oa
the other side.

Mr. Robertson.—Exactly.
Mr. Justice Richardson.—I am trying, Mr. Robertson, to avoid using my own

personal knowledge of Battleford if I possibly can, and in this I know that he was
right and that I understand it. Dropping that for the moment, there is the evidence
of Lightfoot. And you recollect what he says. You also recollect the evidence of the
other witnesses called for the defence, what Grey Eyes says in connection with that
same subject.

Now, then, we come to the second, in point of dates. We are told that this letter,
"which bears date the 8tb April, and is post dated St. Antoine—we are told by a wit-
mess, Jefferson, that that came into the camp. Well, you have heard that read and
instead ofreading it myself, I shall charge you, or at least I shall place in your con-
trol these two letters for yourselves to read when you retire.

The next in point of date is 29th April, this letter which the counsel for the
Crown read to you a few minutes ago. The evidence connecting this man with that
is solely and wholly Mr* Jefferson's,
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Now, the next occurrence in point of time is the battle of Cat Knife. You must
recollect that this letter is dated 29th April and the Cut Knife battle or fight occurred

on the 2nd May. Now, we have been speaking of that fight, Colonel Herchmer as

the first witness, and then we have Alexander as the next witness, and then we mast
not forget Grey Byes, and we have also the evidence which we have heard to-day,

particularly Father Cochin's and we have Solomon Desjardins.

Now, the witnesses who were examined yesterday, ifyou will recollect, described

what they saw. Colonel Herchmer said he saw this man ; Josie Alexander saw him

;

the witnesses this morning who say that he was there—Father Cochin, he said he
saw him get out of his camp in the morning and he was not with the nonfighters of

that camp.
Leaving that branch of it, we then come to the fourth portion of the charge, the

fourth overt act which is charged against him, and that is, that the Crown say that

you, Poundmaker, were amenable to the law for what you did, for your connection

with the seizure of the freighters in charge of the Government stores. Now, on that

portion of it you have the evidence of the freighters themselves, of the two freighters

themselves, who tell you who captured them and who tell—if they are to be relied

upon—that he was in that camp, and describe to you his actions.

Now, gentlemen, I will tell you what the law is—I have told you what the law-

is. I have told you what the charge is against this man. I have told you what the
four overt acts are that are charged against this man and I have led you as briefly as L
can possibly, to the different classes of evidence. You know the witnesses who spoke,
first of the one, then of the second and then of the third and fourth of these overt acts.

Upon you the duty is, and it is by no means a light duty, to determine what
reliance you will give that evidence, place upon it. Do you believe —to begin with,

Jefferson ; do you think he is an honest man ? Mind you, he has not oeen contra-

dicted. He has not been contradicted by any witness in the facts that he has sworn
to, nor has any witness been brought before us, nor have wo heard that he is unreli-

able, that he is not to be believed as a witness. You must bear that in mind. Da
you believe him ? If you do believe him then he says he would not, to use the strong-

est expression, have put his name to that letter if he hadn't been authorized by him.
Then, with regard to the pillaging at Battleford, you should ask yourselves

what was this man doing ? A loyal man professing loyalty and leading a band of
Indians? True, Indians generally carry guns with them. I daresay no one could
gainsay that as a fact, that they generally carry guns with them, but if the evidence

is to be relied on here, here is a band of Indians, armed men, and here is a man, who*
above all others, is bound by every instinct that he possesses to be loyal to the Crown.
He is getting his living, he is getting his bread at the hands of the Crown, and what
is the evidence against this man? Well, as to what he actually did there you have
to rely for that evidence upon what is stated by Lightfoot, Ballantyne and McKay.

Well, passing from that to Cut Knife, what reliance can be placed upon ColoneL

Herchmer ; did he tell the truth ? If he told the truth that man was at Cut Knife.

If Colonel Herchmer did not tell the truth, what about Josie Alexander ? Did he tell

a lie ? Josie said he pointed him out to Colonel Herchmer. I think there is some
diversity of opinion as to the distance, but the fact remains, he pointed him out to*

Colonel Herchmer and the colonel put on his glasses and identified him there.

Mr. Kobertson.—On that occasion Colonel Herchmer said he saw him with thee

naked eye.

Mr. Justice JRichardson.—First he saw him with the naked eye, and then after-*

wards with his glasses, he proved to his own satisfaction that he was there.

Mr. Kobertson.—That was in another place.

Mr. Justice Kichardson.—It was going up the hill, because the gun was turned

upon him. Well then, with regard to the 4th, there does not appear to be any question

as to what he did, as to what this prisoner did, or where he was after the taking of

these stores, these Government stores j he was in the Indian camp, and his own
witness, Father Cochin, says, if he is to be believed—and I think we must place the

greatest amount of reliance upon the priest—that this very man whom you arer
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asked to absolve from liability for these acts that have been spoken of, Father Cochin
t>ays it was this very man who arranged for the final surrender of these parties.

"Well, now, 1here are instances where a man may be mixed up in a serious criminal
offeree, such as treason, and may not be answerable for it ; but there is only one
instance in the law, and it is this: the loss, the danger, the apprehension of losing,

iaving property wasted or destroyed won't do ; suffering other mischief or endan-
gering the person would not do, that is not sufficient ; nothing less than apprehension
of such personal iDjury as will deprive of life is the only justification for a traitor-

ous act.

Now, the evidence is for you to consider. It does not seem to me that that class

of evidence has been offered in any way, and the question which it would seem
proper to me to put to you to consider would be this : Does this evidence which you
nave heard since yesterday morning, scanned and scrutinized as best you can—acd I
ask you to give it the best consideration—does that bring home so conclusively to
your minds, one and all, that this prisoner was mixed up in the acts or any one of
them charged against him ; if they do, then you should not hesitate to perform
what I think is your duty, find a verdict of " guilty." If. on the other hand, you do
not believe, or such a doubt is placed upon it that you cannot bring yourselves con-
clusively to the absolute conclusion that he was mixed up in it, then you will find a
verdict of " not guilty .

"

•

Jury retire, and return after short time.

Mr. Watson, clerk of the court.— Gentlemen, are you sgreed upon your verdict ?
J3ow say you, is the prisoner " guilty " or " not guilty ?

"

Jury answer " guilty."

Clerk.—Gentlemen, hearken to your verdict as the court records it. You find

the prisoner "guilty," so say you all.

Mr. Osier.—I move the sentence of the court upon the prisoner for the felony of
which he has been found " guilty."

Mr. Justice Eichaidson.— Poundmaker, have you anything to say why sentence
jhould not be passed upon you ? I am ready to hear anything you have to say now.

Poundmaker (interpreted).— I only want to speak once. Everything that is bad
thathas been laid against me this summer, there is nothing of it true. Thissummer what
I lave worked at is the Queen, the ccuntiy that belongs to the Queen that has been
surveyed ; that I have been working at this summer. This summer, when my rela-
tions, my brother countiymen and white people, when they met each other, and
until such time as they fled, then -when I eaw all this going on, I took all their arms
fr< m them and went and gave along with these. I did everything to stop bloodshed.
]i I had not dore so, there would have been plenty of blocd spilled this summer, but
nr w as I have done that much geed, whatever sentence you may pass on me, why of
nurse, pass it Do with me whatever the sentence may be. I said I was only going
to say a little. So I have said all that 1 had to say, only I am glad that I stopped
wheie there would ha^e been a great deal of blocd spilled, and now that I have done
so, I am glad for that, and I will have to suffer for their sakes, that I have saved the
lives of so many. So I shake hands, gentlemen, with the whole of you

.

Mr. Justice Eichardson.—Poundmaker, you have been convicted of a very serious
offence, and during the conduct of your case you have been defended by able counsel,
who did everything in your interest that could, I think, be done. The evidence was
so strong against you that I cannot see how the jury could have brought in any other
verdict than they did. The evidence was so strong against you that had the higher
charge of treason been laid a verdict pronouncing guilt upon you would have been
sustained, and in that event you would have to leave this court room to day as Louis
Jftel left it, and he left it under sentence of death. To-day, fortunately, I am not
called upon to pronounce sentence of death upon you, and the question which is to
be detei mined now is what that sentence should be. If your heart had been loyal,
had been true and good to the Queen, you would have gone across to the agent when
Eallantyne told you you ought to, and asked you to go, you would have shown the
authorities there who were doing the wrong and assisted in punishing them, and with
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your influence, wielded as it ought to have been, there possibly might have been, or
probably would have been no Cut Knife fight. Before that letter was written of
April you knew of the soldiers arriving at Battleford, and another opporiuuity was
afforded you of doing what was right, but we find you going on in a villainous career
until after -Riel had been broken up. That you were kind to the white men who fell
into your hands is quite clear. That you were kind to the priests and took care of
them seems also unquestioned, and probably the priests and these young white men,
the teamsters, owe their lives to your personal influence.

To this I may add my personal knowledge of you for a number of years, and I
do not forget the record 1 have of you, which was not a bad one. Instead of impos-
ing a very heavy sentence upon you, that is, placing you where you would end your
days in the penitentiary, we have considered what your actions have proved towards
those men—the teamsters and the priests—and we have alyo considered your action
in bringing about the surrender; but with all that it is impossible to pass over your
wrong act, and punishment must be inflicted not only for the purpose of making you
feel for the wrong you have done and the injury you have been a party to commit-
ting, but to prevent others from repeating the thing. The measure of that punish-
ment I have to fix, and with what I do no power can increase it, but the Queen may,
if she chooses, at any time hereafter reduce it.

The sentence which the court pronounces upon you, Poimdmaker, for the offence
of which you have been convicted, is that you be imprisoned in the penitentiary at
Manitoba for three years.

Prisoner.—-I would rather prefer to be hung at once than to be in that place.

QUEEN vs. ALEXTS IABOMBARDE AND PHILIP GARNOT.

Tried before His Honor Justice Richardson.

Eegina, 12th August, 1885.

Mr. G. W. Burbidge, Q.C., for Crown. Clarke & Maclise for prisoners.

The Clerk read the indictment as follows :

—

Canada :

|
North-West Territories. |

The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of
Hamilton, in the Province of Ontario, in the Dominion of Canada, chief of police,
taken the 5th day of August, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred
and eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates
in and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith :

That Philip Garnot and Alexander Labombarde, not regarding the duty of their
allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which
every true and faithful subject of our Lady the Queen does, and of right ought to,
bear towards our said Lady the Queen, on the twenty-sixth day of March, in the
year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other
day 8, as well before as after that day, together with divers other evil-disposed per-
sons to the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, feloniously and wickedly did,
within ihe Dominion of Canada, compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy
war against our said Lady the Queen, within Canada, in order, by force and con-
straint, to compel her to change her measures and counsels ; and the said felonious
compassing, imagination, invention, device and intention, then feloniously and
wickedly did express, utter and declare, by divers overt acts and deeds, hereinafter
mentioned, that is to say : In order to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect their felonious
compassing, imagination,, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said
persons above charged, and each of them, afterwards, to wit : on the twenty-sixth
day of A3 arch, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well
before as after that day, and at or near the locality called Batoche, in the North-West
Territories of Canada aforesaid, feloniously and wickedly did conspire, consult, con-
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federate, assemble and meet together, with divers other evil-disposed persons to the

*aid Alexander David Stewart unknown, to raise, levy and make insurrection and

rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within the realm, in contempt of our said

Lady the Qaeen and her laws, to the evil example of all others in like case offending

against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the

peace of our said Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.
*

A. D. STEWART.
Sworn before me the day and year'

first above mentioned, at the town
of Regina, in the North-West Ter-

ritories of Canada.

Hugh Richardson,

A Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North- West Territories of Canada.

And take notice, that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary

magistrate and a justice of the peace, with the intervention oi a jury of six, or before

a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way, without the intervention of a jury.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—Philip Garnot, which do you elect?

Philip Garnot,—Without the intervention of a jury.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—Alexis Labombarde, which do you elect ?

Alexis Labombarde.—Without a jury.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—Philip Garnot, having heard the charge read^and hav-

ing elected to be tried in a summary manner, which do you say, " guilty," or * not

guilty."

Philip Garnot.—I plead " guilty."

Mr. Justice Richardson.—Alexis Labombarde, having heard the charge read

and having elected to be tried by me in a summary way, what say you, are you
*' guilty" or " not guilty " of the charge preferred.

Alexis Labombarde.—Guilty.
Mr. Burbidge.—May it please your Honor, it is not the intention of the Crown

to move for sentence at present, but to aak to have the prisoners remanded to give

the counsel for the defence an opportunity to place anything they see fit before the

court with a view to the mitigation of the senteuce. I need not repeat here what

was said yesterday, in respect of the reasons which induced the counsel for the Crown

to accept the plea of guilty of the lesser offence ; the reasons in this case, are the same

as those stated yesterday.

Mr. Clarke. Will your Honor direct that the witnesses be detained long enough

to enable us to prepare the necessary affidavits, which cannot be done without their

presence, I do not require them for any length of time.

Mr. Burbidge.—i will ask the Crown witnesses to remain if my learned friend

will give me the names of those he requires, and the time they are detained will be

allowed in their witness fees.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—1 will order the prisoners to be remanded to custody

ior sentence at a future date*

THE QUEEN vs. ABRAHAM MONTOUR AND ANDRE NAULT
Canada : 1

North-West Territories, j

The information and complaint of Frederick Kelloch Gibson, of the town of

Regina, in the North-West Territories of Canada, deputy sheriff, taken the fourteenth

day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-

five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in and for

the North-West Territories, who saith:

—

1. That Abraham Montour and Andre Nault, not regarding the duty of their

allegiance, but wholly withdrawing tbe love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which

every true and faithful subject of our Lady ihe Queen does and of right ought to bear
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towards our said Lady the Queen, on the second day of April, in the year of oar
Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days and
times, as well before as after that date, together with divers other evil disposed per-
sons to the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, did, within the Dominion of
Canada, compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy war against our said
Lady the Queen, within Canada, in order by force and constraint to compel Ber
Majesty to change her measures and counsels, and the said felonious compas-
sing, imagination, invention, device and intention, then feloniously and wickedly did
express, utter, and declare by divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that
is to say :

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing, imagi-
nation, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said Abraham Montour
and Andre Nault, and each of them, afterwards, to wit, on the second day of April,
and times as well before as after that day, at and near the locality called Frog Lake,
in the North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble
and meet together, with divers other evil disposed persons to the said Frederick
Kelloch Gibson unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion against
our said Lady the Queen, within this realm.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing,
imagination, invention, device and intention, aforesaid, they, the said Abraham Mon-
tour and Andre Nault, afterwards, to wit, on the seventeenth day of April, in the
year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as after that day,
at or near the locality known as Fort Pitt, in the said North-West Territories of
Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together, with other
evil disposed persons to the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, to raise, make
and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within this

realm.

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing,
imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said Abraham Mon-
tour and Andre Nault, and each of them, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-first day
of April, in the year aforesaid, and on clivers other days and times, as well before as
after that day, at or near the locality known as Frog Lake, in the said North West
Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and me^t together,
with divers other evil disposed persons to the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson
unknown, to make, raise and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady
the Queen, within this realm.

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compas-
sing, imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said
Abraham Montour and Andre Nault, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-eighth day of
April, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other davs and times, as well before as
after that day, at or near the locality known as Frenchman's Butte, in the said
North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and
meet together, with divers other evil disposed persons to the said Frederick Kelloch
Gibson unknown, to make, raise and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said
Lady the Queen, within this realm, in contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her
laws, to the evil example of all others in like case offending against the form of
the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of our said Lady
the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

FEED. K. GIBSON.
Sworn before me the day and year first above ")

mentioned, at the Town of Regina, in the >

North-West Territories of Canada. j
Hugh Richardson,

Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North- West Territories of Canada.

And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary
magistrate and a justice of the peace with the intervention of a jury of six, or before
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a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention of a jury,

"Which do you elect ?

After various adjournments on account of the absence of material witnesses, the

case comes on for trial on the 5th October, 1885, when the court after hearing coun-

sel and affidavits read by them it is pretty fairly shown that the witness is unavoid-

ably absent, and there is ground for further postponement (such postponement hav-

ing been asked by counsel for prisoners) ; but connected with the postponing I will

not keep the Crown witnesses if the prisoners are transferred to Battleford. I think

it but right that it should be transferred, and the order is that the trial be put off in

consequence of the unavoidable absence and impossibility to procure a material wit-

ness.

The order to the sheriff will be that the prisoners be produced for trial on this

charge at Battleford on a day to be fixed.

(Gopy of telegram to W, V. Maclise, Prince Albert, iV. W. T. )

Minister directs that nolle prosequi be entered in cases of Nault and Montour.

GEO. W. BUBBIDGE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

THE QUEEN vs. WILLIAM HENKY JACKSON.
Eegina, 24th July, 1885.

Before their Honors Justices Eichardson and LeJeune. Mr. Osier, Q.C., and
Mr. Burbidge, Q C, for the Crown. Mr. McArthur, Q C, for the prisoner.

His Honor Mr. Justice Eichardson.—What is your name? William Henry
Jackson, is that your name ?

Prisoner.—I decline to answer any questions.

Mr. McArthur, Q.C.—I appear for the prisoner.

His Honor Justice Eichardson .—You are charged upon the information and

complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of Hamilton, in the county of

Wentworth, in the Dominion of Canada, taken the twenty fourth day of July, in th&

year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, before the undersigned,

one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in and for the said North-West Terri-

tories, who saith :

That William Henry Jackson, not regarding the duty of his allegiance to our

Lady the Queen, on the 26th day of March, in the year of our Lord 1885, at Batoche,

in the North-West Territories, together with divers other persons unknown, feloni-

ously and wickedly did compass, imagine and intend to deprive and depose our said

Lady the Queen from the style, honor and royal name of the Imperial Crown of this

realm, and the said felonious compassing and invention then feloniously and wickedly

did express and declare by feloniously and wickedly on the said twenty-sixth day of

March, and on divers other days and times as well before as after, conspiring, con-

federating and assembling and meeting together with divers other evil disposed

persons unknown, to raise, levy and make insurrection and rebellion against our said

Lady the Queen, at Batoche aforesaid, within the realm, against the form of th©

statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of our said Lady the

Queen, her Crown and dignity.

Will he answer?
Prisoner.—As far as responsibility of mine about what you call rebellion, I hav©

always declared myself perfectly responsible, that is to say, as Eiel's secretary, and

I wish to share his fate whatever that may be.

Mr. McArthur.—I propose to answer, " not guilty," on the ground of insanity.
.

His Honor Mr. Justice Eichardson.—Do you accept that plea.

Mr. Osier.—There are certain formalities to be gone on with. The jury has to>

be called;

His Honor Mr. Justice Eichardson.—Mr. Clerk, please call the jury.
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The following jurors were empannelled and sworn :—Thomas McNichol, John

S. Donahue, D. A. McDonald, George S. Wallis, Charles H. Black, William fl.

Hamilton.
Mr. Osier.—PIease your Honor, the prisoner stands charged with the crime ot

treason-felony, which is a statutory crime of the nature of treason, a crime in which

the formalities of trial are less and the penalty is less. The prisoner is charged with

having participated in the recent rebellion, with having acted in the capacity of

private secretary to Louis Eiel, the leader of the rebellion. He is charged here now
formally for this crime, but it is understood that the counsel for the prisoner, Mr.

McArthur, will be able to give you satisfactory evidence of the insanity of the

prisoner, and that he is not really responsible and was not responsible for the acts

committed by him.
g

The Crown do not propose to contest that contention on the part of the prisoner s

counsel. The evidence, in fact, comes from the medical men who have examined the

prisoner on the part of the Crown, and evidence that has come to the knowledge of

counsel for the Crown during the course of preparation for other trials is conclusive

*hat at the time he committed the acts he was not responsible for them. We pro-

pose to give some formal evidence, and the doctors will be called by the defence to

satisfy as to the insanity of the prisoner, and if you are so satisfied, your verdict

should be " not guilty," on the ground of insanity. That will subject the prisoner to

confinement until he is released by the Lieutenant Governor, which release will pro-

bably take place upon a cure being effected.

Thomas E. Jackson sworn :

—

Examined by Mr, Osier :

Q. You are a brother of the prisoner? A. I am.

Q. And you, I believe, know of the rebellion or trouble recently over, the rebellion

in the North-West near Batoche ? A. Yes.

Q. Were you present ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know who the chief person or leader was in that rebellion ? A. 1 do.

Q. Who was that? A. Louis Kiel.
m

'

Q. Do you know what position your brother occupied in regard to Louis Kiel t

A. He was a prisoner at the time I knew of him.

Q. Prior to that ? A. No position in regard to Eiel.

Q. Did you know of his being his private secretary ? A. No, I am quite certain

he was not.

Q. Do you know his writing ? A. Yes.

Q. Is that his writing ? A. Yes, that is his writing.

(Document referred to filed.)

Q. Did you know of his being with Eiel immediately prior to the rebellion break-

ing out ? A. He was prisoner with Eiel from shortly after the 14th of February.
3

Q. You spoke to the prisoner—you went to see him ? A. 1 did not got to see

him until after the Duck Lake fight.

Q. You did not know what position he was in of your own knowledge / A. JNot

till after the Duck Lake fight.
.

Q. When you saw him after the Duck Lake fight, was he with Kiel C A. ile

was among them.
m . 9 ~ v

Q. It is this document you recognizo as being in the prisoner s writing r A. res.

Mr. Osier.—I will read the document.
" Dear Eelatives,—We thank you for your friendly feelings and sympathies

displayed in your communications of 23rd instant.

"Be courageous. Since you are willing to help us, we accept your friendly offers

and will not leave you exposed to danger. May God bless you in all your good inten-

tions. May He direct all your actions.

" Justice commands to take up arms, to the end that we may attain our common

salvation. Notify the Wood Indians that they be not surprised. Let them, while
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remaining calm and courageous, be ready to seize ail the ammunition, goods and pro-
perty pertaimrg to the Hudson Bay Company at Mod Lake and FtshingLake. Neither
kill nor molest nor llktreat any persons unnecessarily, but take away arms.

" LOUIS « DAVID ' KIEL, Exovede,

"Per William Joseph Jackson, Private Secretary."

Q. His name is not Joseph ? A. No.
Q. Where does that come in ? A. That is daced after his insanity commenced,

from the time be was christened in the Boman Catholic Church he has been insane
Q. Do you remember the date of that ? A. About the 19th March.
Prisoner.—1 was perfectly sane when I wrote that letter.
Q. You knew there was a fight ? A. Yes.
Q. And that Mr. Eiel was their leader ? A. Yes.
Q. About what time was that your brother was there ? At the time of the con-

test V A . About the 26th March, I believe.

Q. Was jour brother there at that time ? A. Not at the fight.
Q. Was he away irom home? A. Yes, but I do not know exactly where he

was. J

Q. You were afterwards a prisoner ? A. Yes.

By Mr. McArthur :

Q. When did your brother leave home ? A. On the 14th February.
Q. What was bis state of mind at that time? A. Perfectly sound .

Q. At the time ycu next taw him, when was that? A. Sometime after theDuck lake fight, about three days after.

Q. What was his state of mind at that time ? A. Unsound.
Q. In what respect ? A. He hardly knew me when I first saw him, he was alwavs

praying, and fiom his general actions and appearance.

qa*i
QV^

batw 8 °n Se 26th of Alarch
>
tbe Du^k JLake fight ? A. Yes. and about the

dOtb of March 1 saw him.

Q. Doycii know the date of this communication (referred to before as having
been read by Mr. Osier) ? A. No. B

Q. Was it received by your people ? A. No, that is a copy of one gent by Louis
.Kiel to his relatives. J

*• ?" W el
ji

theMromthetimeofthe Duck Lake fight, when did you next seehim ? A. About one week later. About the 5th of April, I suppose
Q. Where was that ? A. At Batoche,
Q. What was his state of mind at that time ? A. The same condition, still

unsound. '

Q. When did you next see him ? A, I remained with him till 12th of May.
(4. When you were dischaiged by the troops ? A. Yes
Q. Were you with him at that time ? A. Yes, he was confined in the same room.
(4. Inen you were both present together? A. Yes.

t,- % ^fy™ 6een .him sh>ce his capture by the tioor-s? A. Yes, I was withnim the first week occasionally.

*
Q

* y^?£* tLe State ol his miDd ? Ai Sti11 ineaEe
>
h° became worse after his

capture by Middleton.
Prisoner.—I never considered myself a prisoner of Kiel's.
Close of case for Crown.

DEFENCE. l

Dr. Jukes, sworn:—

Examined by Mr. McArthur

:

^'tandV
11,6 *1 pbyeician of bow [many{years' standing? A. About thirty-five
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Q. What is your position now ? A. I am surgeon of the North-West Mounted

Police force.
.

Q. Stationed? A. At Begraa.

Q. Bo you know the prisoner ? A. Yes.

Q. Is he under your supervision ? A. Yes.

8- &l.^£&d htaJSth. state of his mind -to his sanity? A.

~dmind
brought to Kegina? A When he wa, first

brought fown he showed oecasional symptoms. ^Tl^JnatTH au^

53?S het latrifg
a
unaer

m
a
6

mild form of insanity, which is curable under

^Q.XTade a report? A. ?es, to that effect, to the commissioner of the orce»

By Mr. Oder: „
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Dr. Cotton, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. McArthur :

Q. "You are a physician? Yes.
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Q. Of how many years' standing? A. Four years.
Q. What is your position now ? A. Medical man in Regina.
Q. Are you connected with the force ? A. No.
Q- Do you know the prisoner? A. I have known him since the 19th July
Q. How did yon come to see him upon that occasion ? A. I was called to seehim by Capt Dean, through the Deputy Minister, to examine him as to his insanityI examined him by myself first, and found him in a state of melancholia, a mild formof insanity. I called on Dr. Jukes, and he and I went to see Jackson, and beappeared apparently about the same I had an interview with Monkman the pris-

S?£
H« sfat

u
ed someJacts in regard to the insanity of the prisoner prior to the24th of March, and then I had an interview with Kiel, and he stated something

similar. »

By Mr. Osier ;

Q. In enquiring into the case these reports came to your knowledge ? A Icould not get any information as to his family prior to this or of his former life .

By Mr. AleArthur :

Q. Then what is your opinion as to the state of his mind ? A. Of course I am,
of opinion that ho is insane and not of sound mind.

Q. Does your opiaion concur with that of Dr. Jukes ? A. Yes.
Q. As to whether be is responsible for his actions or not ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Osier:

Q. You say he is not responsible ? A. No, not at the present time, not at thetimes I have seen him. '

Mr. Osier.— I am satisfied that the jury should return a verdict of " not ffuiltv
"

on the ground of insanity upon this evidence. We cannot contest it. We have otherovidence in our possession confirming it. The jury shall be required to find speciallywhether such person or persons were insane ai the time the offence was committed
in accordance with section 99 of the Act respecting procedure in criminal cases- "Inan cases where it is given in evidence upon the trial of any person charged with anv
offence, whether the same be treason-felony or misdemeanor, that such person wasinsane at the time of the commission of such offence, and such person is acquitted
the jury shall be required to find specially whether such person was insane at thetime of the commission of such offence, and to declare whether he is acquitted bvthem on account of such inanity; and if they find that such person was insane atthe time of committing such offence the court before whom sucn trial was had shallorder such person to be kept in strict custody, in such place and in such manner as
to the court Heems fit, until the pleasure of the Lieutenant-Governor be known "

Mr. Justice Richardson.—You have heard what it is proposed what shall be donewith this man I shall now read to you section 99 of the Criminal Procedure Actalready referred to by Mr Osier. (Reads the section.) Well, now, the prisoner ischarged with a fe iony . Evidence has been given as you have heard, showing that
at the time of the commission of the offence, he was insane. Are you satisfied thatsuch was the case ? The question now for you is, are you satisfied that such was theoasef If K>(and the Crown agrees to that) you will simply acquit him on theground of Ihh insanity. Are you satisfied he was insane at the time he cammitted
the offence charged ? Are you all agreed ?

Jury find a verdict of " not guilty on the ground of insanity."
Mr. Jus ice Richardson.— Mr. Sheriff, this man Jackson, you are to keep in striotcustody at Regina until the pleasure of the Lieutenant Governor is made known
Court rose at 4 p.m

.

THE QUEEN vs. MOLSE OUELLETTE.
Tried before his Honor Mr. Justice Richardson, at Regina, 5th August, 1885
His Honor.—Read the indictment.
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The Clerk reads the indictment as follows :

—

The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of Ham-
ilton, in the Province of Ontario, in the Dominion of Canada, chief of police, taken

the fifth day of August, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred an i

eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates io.

and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith

:

That Molse Ouellette not regarding the duty of his allegiance, but wholly with-

drawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which every true and faithful

subject of our Lady the Queen does and of right ought to bear towards our said Lady
the Queen, on the twenty-sixth day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand

eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days, as well before as after that

day, together with divers other evil disposed persons to the said Alexander David
Stewart unknown, feloniously and wickedly, did, within the Dominion of Canada,

compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy war against our said Lady tne

Queen, and within Canada, in order by force and constraint to compel her to change
her measures and counsels, and the said felonious compassing, imagination, invention,

device and intention, then feloniously and wickedly did express, utter and declare

fay divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say : In order to

fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious compassing, imagination, invention,

device and intention aforesaid, he, the said person above charged, afterwards, to wit

:

on the 6th day of March, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times,

as well before as after that day, at and near the locality called Batoohe, in the North-

west Territories of Canada, aforesaid, feloniously and wickedly did conspire, consult,

confederate, assemble and meet together, with divers other evil disposed persons to

the [said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrec-

tion and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within this realm, in contempt

of our said Lady the Queen and her Jaws, to the evil example of all others in the like

case offending against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, aa&
against the peace of our said Lady the Queen, her Crowa and dignity.

A. D. STEWART.
Sworn before me the day and year first above- ~\

mentioned, at the town of JRegina, in the >

North-West Territories of Canada. )

Hugh Richardson,

A Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North- West Territories of Canada.

And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary

magistrate and a justice of the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or beford

a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention of a jury-

Which do you elect ?

Prisoner.—Before a magistrate without a jury.

His Honor.—Now, having heard the charge preferred against you read, say you,

are you " guilty " or " not guilty" ?

Prisoner.—-Guilty.
Mr. Burbidge.—I ask that the prisoner be remanded for sentence.

Mr. Clarke.—The prisoner has thrown himself oa the mercy of the court more
in consideration of the fact of his fellow prisoners having done the same- There

are a great many circumstances in this case that will prove considerable mitigation

in his favor. I believe it is a fact he crossed the battle field at great risk to carry a
letter from the general to the rebel chief, and that he returned when he had an

opportunity to escape, and there are several other circumstances that will be brought

to your notice, to induce you to deal mercifully with the prisoner, if your Honor will

allow time for the affidavits to be prepared.

His Honor.—The order will be that he be remanled to be brought up for

sentence when called upon.
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THE QUEEN vs. LOUIS GOULET.
Canada :

")

North-West Territories. J

The information and complaint of George Holmes Young, of the city of Winni-
peg, in the Province of Manitoba, in the Dominion of Canada, gentleman, taken the
seventh day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in

and for the said North-West Territories, who saith :

That Louis Goulet, hot regarding the duty of his allegiance, but wholly with-

drawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance, which every true subject of our
Lady the Queen should and of right ought to bear towards our said Lady the Queen,
on the second day of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
eighty-five, and on divers other days, as well before as after that date, together with
divers other evil disposed persons to the said George Holmes Young unknown, did,

within the Dominion of Canada, compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy
war against our said Lady the Queen, within Canada, in order, by force and constraint,

%o compel Her Majesty to change her measures and counsels, and the said felonious

compassing, imagination, inventior, device and intention, then feloniously and wick-
edly did express, utter and declare by divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter men-
tioned, that is to say

:

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious compassing, imagi-
nation, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Louis Goulet, afterwards,

to wit, on the second day of April, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days
and times, as well before as af er that day, at and near the locality called Frog Lake,
in the North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble
and meet together, withdiveis other evil disposed persons to the said George Hoi cues

Young unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said

Lady the Queen, within this realm, in contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her

laws, to the evil example of all others in like case offending against the fo-m of the
statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen,
lier Crown and dignity.

GEOEGE H. YOUNG.
Sworn before me the day and year first above

*)
written, at the town of Begina, in the [

said North-West Territories. j

Hugh Richardson,

Stipendiary Magistrate in and for said North- West Territories of Canada.

And take notice that jou have the option of being tried before a stipendiary
magistrate and a justice oi the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or
before a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention of a
jury. Which do you elect ?

Prisoner elects trial by a judge.
Pleads " not guilty " on 8th September, on being charged in open court.
Mr. Osier.—In this case, your Honor, we have considered the evidence very

carefully that the Crown has against tho prisoner. There is ample to put him on
his trial, but the Crown, desiring not to prosecute harshly, are willing to discharge
the prisoner now on his own recognizance to appear when called for. That means
this, that if no serious offence turns up hereafter, putting a different complexion
upon the crime with which he is charged, and if he behaves himself in future, he will

not be disturbed, and in effect will go free. If, on the contrary, the further evidence
of a serious nature transpires, making it absolutely the duty of the Crown to pro-

secute, then we would have to notify him to appear to take a trial, bat in effect, the
CJrown having diligently enquired in the neighborhood, in all probability if things
xests as they are, the man will not be called upon to respond.

Mr. Johnstone.—I suppose, your Honor, he should have some reasonable notice*
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Court.—Certainly j I don't think I usually try people without seeing that they

have notice.

Mr. Osier.—If things are as they now appear, it will he the last he will hear of

it, and we will take his recognizance now in $400.

Becognizance now taken, and prisoner released.

THE QUEEN vs. CHAELES BEEMNER ET AL.
Canada : )

North-West Territories. J
'

_
.

The information and complaint of George Holmes Young, of the city of Winni-

peg, in the Province of Manitoba, in thj Dominion of Canada, gentleman, taken the

seventh day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and

eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in

and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith

:

That Charles Bremner, James Bremner, William Frank, Henry Sayer and

Baptiste Sayer, not regarding the duties of their allegiance, but wholly withdrawing

the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which every true and faithful subject of

our Lady the Queen should, and of right ought to, bear towards our said Lady the

Queen, on the second day of May, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hun-

dred and eighty-five, and on divers other days, as well before as after tbat date,

together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said George Holmes Young

unknown, did, within the Dominion of Canada, compass, imagine, invent, devise and

intend to levy war against our said Lady the Queen, within the Dominion of Canada,

in order, by force and constraint, to compel Her Majesty to change her measures and

counsels, and the said felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device and inten-

tion, then feloniously and wickedly did express, utter and declare, by divers overt

acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say :

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing,

imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said Charles

Bremner, James Bremner, William Frank, Henry Sayer and Baptiste Sayer, and

each of them, afterwards, to wit, on tbe second day of May, in the year aforesaid,

and en divers other days and times, as well before as after that day, at or near the

locality known as Cut Knife Hill, in the said North-West Territories of Canada, did

conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together, with divers other evil-

disposed persons to the said George Holmes Young unknown, to raise, make and

levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within this realm.

And further, to bring to effect their felonious compassing, imagination, invention,

device and intention aforesaid, they, the said Charles Bremner, James Bremner,

William Frank, Henry Sayer and Baptiste Sayer, and each of them, afterwards, to

wit, on the fourteenth day of May, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight

hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days, as well before as after that day,

at or near the locality called Eagle Hills, in the North-West Territories of Canada,

aforesaid, with force and arms, wickedly and fel6niously did assemble, meet, conspire

and consult with certain other evil-disposed persons to the said George Holmes

Young unknown, to seize and take possession, by torce, of certain goods and mer-

chandise belonging to Her Majesty the Queen, which were then being carried and

transported from the locality known as Swift Current to the locality known as

Batdeford, in the said North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid, for Her said

Majesty, and for the use and benefit of Her said Majesty. ,

In contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil example of all

others iD like case offending against the form of the statute in such case made and

provided, and against the peace of our said Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity..

Sworn before me the day and year first "j
GEO. H. YOUiSu.

above mentioned, at the town of !

Eegina, in the said North-West
{

Territories of Canada. J

Hugh Eichardson,

Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the said North-West Territories of Canada.
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And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary
magistrate and a justice of the peace with the intervention of a jury of six, or before
a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way, without the intervention of a jury.
Which do you elect ?

Prisoners all elect, on 8th September, when called upon in open court, trial by a
judge alone.

Prisoners all plead " not guilty."

Mr. Osier.—Your Honor, in these cases, the prisoners are charged with having
been concerned in the late rebellion. They were in the Indian camp of Poundmaker
and the Crown has evidence against them, showing that to some extent, at all events,
they joined in resisting the forces of the Government. In one case, military clothing,
and in another case, a police rifle was found in the possession of the prisoners, but,
perhaps we have considered the prisoners were in a very difficult position. They
were brought into the camp, probably without their consent, by a large body of armed
Indians, and having got into that camp they may have been led into the acts com-
plained of without knowing the serious position they were placing themselves in by
so doing. We have considered that originally the desire probably of all the prisoners
was to stay in their settlement. We have considered, also, that they had their fam-
ilies and their property to protect, against, perhaps, some uncontrollable violence of
the Indians surrounding them. They were in a very difficult position.

The Crown, considering all these things, and not being able to bring home acts
of personal violence against any of them, and learning that they were all men of good
character before the trouble came out, we have considered that perhaps the ends of
justice would be attained by allowing them to be discharged on their own recogni-
zance to appear when called upon for trial, and I might say on behalf of the Crown,
that unless the evidence implicating the prisoners with acts of personal violence
appears, that as far as that offence of theirs against their alleigance is concerned, the
Crown do not propose to call upon them to answer. It will only be in the event of
evidence turning up to show that they were personally implicated in acts of violence
during the rebellion that the Crown will call upon them to respond.

Prisoners' own recognizances taken and the prisoners are released.

THE QUEEN vs. MAGNUS BUKSTON.
Canada : >

North-West Territories, j

The information and complaint of Frederick Kelloch Gibson, of the town of
Begin a, in the North-West Territories of Canada, deputy sheriff, taken the fourteenth
day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-
five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in and for
the said North- West Territories, who saith :

That Magnus Burston, not regarding the duty of his allegiance, but wholly
withdrawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which every true and faith-
ful subject of our said Lady the Queen should and of right ought to bear towards our
said Lady the Queen, on the twenty-sixth day of March, in the year of our Lord one
thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days, as well bafore as
afcer that date, together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said Frederick
Kelloch Gibson unknown, did within the Dominion of Canada, compass, imagine,
invent, devise, and intead to levy war against our said Lady the Queen, within
Canada, in order by force and constraint to compel Her Majesty to change her
measures and counsels, and the said felonious compassing, imagination, invention,
device and intention, then feloniously and wickedly did express, utter and declare by
divers overt acts and deeis hereinafter mentioned, that is to say :

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing, imagina-
tion, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Magnus Burston, after-
wards, to wit, on the twenty-sixth day of March, in the year aforesaid, and on divers
-other days and times, as well before as after that date, at and near the locality called
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Puck Lake, in the North West Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult, con-

federate, assemble and meet together, with divers other evil disposed persons to the

said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and

rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this realm.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing,

imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Magnus Burston,

afterwards, to wit, on the third day of April, in the year aforesaid, and on divers

other days and times as well before as after that day, at and near the locality known

as Duck Lake, in the said North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult,

confederate, assemble and meet together, with divers other evil disposed persons to

the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection

and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this realm.

In contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil example of

all others in like case offending against the form of the statute in such case made

and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

FEED. K. GIBSON.
Sworn before me the day and year firsts

above written, at the town of Eegina, >

in the said North-West Territories. )

Hugh Eichardson,

Stipendiary Magistrate in and for said North-West Territories.

And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary

magistrate and a justice ot the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or before

a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention of a jury.

Which do you elect ?

After various adjournments, on application of both the Crown and the prisoner,

this case came on for trial before His Honor Judge Eichardson, Saturday, 10th

October, 1885, without a jury, prisoner having elected trial before judge alone.

Mr. D. L. Scott appearing for the Crown. Mr. T. C.Johnstone for the prisoner.

John W. Astley, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Scott :

Q. You live at Prince Albert, Mr. Astley ? A. Prince Albert; yes.

Q. You are a civil engineer, I understand ? A. Civil engineer.

Q. You joined the Prince Albert volunteers ? A. I went up to Carlton with them.

Q. About what time ? A. About the 19th March—19th or 20th March.

Q. And when on active service as a volunteer, you were taken prisoner? A.

When 1 was out scouting in the French half breed settlement.

Q. On what day ? A. On the morning of the 26th March.

Q. By whom ? A. By French half-breeds and Indians, under the leadership of

Louis David Eiel.

Q. What were they doing at this time ? A. They were in open rebellion.

Q. Whereabouts? A. Duck Lake—Duck Lake and Batoche.

Q. Have you any means of knowing what object they had in going into rebel-

lion ? A. Well, just that they had taken possession of Duck Lake stores that same

morning, and, of course, as Eiel said, they were fighting, themselves and the police,

against the Government.
Q. Were they armed ? A. They were all armed

;
yes.

Q. How many half-breeds and Indians were there? A. I should say between

400 and 500—somewhere about that.

Q. What was done after you were taken prisoner ; where were you taken ? A.

I was taken near Duck Lake, and kept up in the telegraph office first, and then

up stairs over the store.

Q. How long were you kept there? A. I was kept there till the 31st March.

Q. Where were you then taken ? A. Then I was taken to Carlton.
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Q. How long were you there ? A. I was there till the 3rd April, when I was
removed from that to Batoche.

Q. And remained at Batoche how long ? A. I was there till the 12th ofMay.
Q. Were you present all that time ? A. All that time; yes.
Q. Were these men in open rebellion at that time ? A. I was sent out with some

messages to Gen. Middleton. The place was taken by Gen. Middleton and the troops
under him.

Q. What troops ? A. The volunteers and troops under Gen. Middleton.
Q. And Batoche was taken? A. On the 12th of May.
Q. And you were released ? A, Were released.

Q. Were there any others besides you ? A. Seven other prisoners in the cellar,
besides myself.

Q. Kept there from about the 26th March ? A. Until the 12th May.
Q. And the rebellion continued till the 12th May? A. Until about that time; yes.
Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. Yes. I have seen the prisoner at Duck Lake.
Q. Did you know him or see him before you were arrested ? A. Yes.
Q. Before you were taken prisoner? A. Yes, I have seen him around there,

and I saw him the evening before I was arrested. I was arrested at two o'clock in
the morning.

Q. Where did you see him the evening before ? A. At Duok Lake post, that is
Mitchell's store.

Q. You were there the night before ? A. Yes, I passed there the evening before.
Q. He was then at Mitchell's store? A. He was then at Mitchell's store.
Q. What was he doing there ? A. I don't know what he was doing myself.
Q. Did you see him doing anything ? A. Not at that time. I just saw him and

another fellow around the store, that is all.

Q. When did you see him next? A. I saw him after I was a prisoner on the
26th March there. I saw him off and on, the 26th till the 31st, I saw him there at
Duck Lake.

Q. What was he doing those times? A. He appeared to be going backwards
and forwards in the store with the half-breeds whenever they wanted any stuff out
of the store, but I thought he was just the same as all the rest of the half-breeds.

Q. What ground had you for thinking so? A. Well, he was associating with
them all the time. He was with them all the time.

Q. Did you see him on the day of the Duck Leke fight—there was a fight ? A.
There was a fight that same day I was taken prisoner.

Q. Between whom? A The French half breeds and the Indians under Eiel,
and the police under Major Crozier.

Q. Did you see him on the day of the fight ? A. No, I did not notice him on
the day of the fight. I saw him that same morning, but I did not see him going with
the breeds.

Q. When you saw him was h9 around Mitchell's store? A. Yes, that is where
he was, between that and the house.

Q. Did I understand you to say he was handing out goods? A. I could not
see him. I would see him going over to the store with them.

Q. What did he do when he got over to the store? A. Of course we could nob
see the store. We could not see into the store from where our building was.

Q. Did you see him afterwards at Batoche? A. I saw him afterwards at
Batoche, just a few times over there. He was stationed on the north side of the river.

Q. How do you know? A. Well, I did not see him around with the rest of the
men on our side like we did most of them. I just saw him a few times over there.

Q. What time was this ? A. That was between the 3rd April and the 12th
May.

Mr. Johnstone.—There is no charge subsequent to the 3rd April.
Mr. Scott.—Yes, we have the charge that covers the ground previous to the 3rd

April, and subsequent to the 3rd April.
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By Mr. Scott

:

Q. What was he doing there when you saw him at Batoche? A. I just saw

him around with some of the other French hali breeds.

Q. In what condition was he? A. Well, he was just walking around there.

That was ail he was doing at that time.

Q. At any time you saw him ? A. At any time I saw him at Batoche.

Q. What condition were the other men in? A. Sometimes they would be

armed and sometimes they would not be armed.

Q. Was he in the same condition? A. He was not whenever there was any

excitement—not that I saw.

Q. Did you ever see him armed ? A. Not at Batoche.

(^. Or at any place ? A, I saw him with a rifle or shot gun at Duck Lake. I don't

know whether it was a rifle or shot-gun

.

Q. You saw him at Duck Lake? A. Yes, one day I was there—I don't remem-

ber what day it was—some of those days when I was there I saw him with a gun.

Q. Anything else besides the gun that you saw ? A. No, that was all that I saw

at that time.
u

Q It may have been a gun or a rifle ? A. I could not tell which.

Q. Was he a prisoner there? A. No more a prisoner than anyone else, as far

as I could see.
,

Q, You say he appeared, as far as you saw, he appeared to be one oi them ( A*

Yes, one of themselves, as I thought at the time.

Cross examined by Mr. Johns'one:

Q. Do you know if the prisoner was not charged with that store? A. Well,

that was what 1 was just telling you, as to what Mr. Mitchell told me.

Q. Did Mitchell tell you he was in charge of his store ? A. Mitchell told me a

fellow named Blackburn and Magnus Bur&ton w*re in charge of his store.

Q. How far is Mitchell's store from where the fight took place ? A. I. would say-

about a mile and a half.

Q. Now when you saw him you say you saw him with a gun. Can you give us

any description of it ? How far away was he from you when you saw him ? A. He
was quite close. We used to go down stairs from where we were prisoners—up stairs.

We were allowed to go now and again during day time.

Q. And did you examine his gun ? A. No.

Q. Did you pay particular attention to it? A. No, I just happened to notice

that he was armed.

Q. You would not say whether it was with a rifle or shot gun ( A. No.

Q. Why can't you way ? A. Because I could not notice it. I was not close

enough to him to notice it.

Q. Now when you say you saw him at Duck Lake, you mean not at the place

where the fight took place ? A. No, but where the stores and buildings were.

Q Did you see him there daring the time of the fight ? Was he around where

you were during the time of the fight ? A. No, I did not notice him there during

the time of the tight.

Q. And you have never seen him at any of the fights ? A. No.

Q. And at Duck Lake was the only occasion on which you have ever seen him

armed? A. That is all.

Q Do you know that the prisoner has been a sickly man ? Were you welL

acquainted with him ? A. No ; I have heard Mr. Mitchell say that he was not a very

healthy man. A . -

Q. Do you know what instructions he had when he was placed in charge et

Mitchell's store ? A. No, I don't know.

By Mr. Scott:

Q. Where did Mr. Mitchell tell you this? A. He told me up at Carlton first,

and then he mentioned it again down here.
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Q. Did he say anything else at the same time about the prisoner ?
Mr. Johnstone.—I object to this.

Mr. Scott.—I want to hear the whole conversation.
Mr. Johnstone. — I did not put the question what Mr. Mitchell had told him. I

asked him if he knew that the prisoner was in charge.
Mr. Scott.—And then you asked him what Mitchell said.
Court.—The whole conversation may be asked.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. At the time you heard this from Mr. Mitchell, what else did you
hear Mr, Mitchell say about the prisoner? A. Well, what he spoke to me first was
at Carlton, when I told him I had seen Magnus Burston there and an Indian named
Blackburn, and he said he had left those in charge of his place, and down here he
mentioned it again, that he had left them in charge.

Q. Was that all ? I speak of the first conversation ? A. That was all he told
me at the first time, that he had left them in charge. He said those men he had left
in charge.

William Tomkins, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. JScott

:

Q. You are an interpreter tor the Indian Department? A. Yes.
Q. Where were you on the 18th of March last? A. I was at Batoche, taken

prisoner.

Q. By whom ? A. By Riel and his followers.

Q. Who were his followers ? A. Half-breeds and Indians.
Q. What were they doing at this time ; why did they take you prisoner ? A.

They thought we might go home to Carlton.

Q. What were they doing ? A. They were in a rebellious state.

Q. They were in a state of rebellion at that time, and they took you prisoner ?
A. Yes.

Q. How many followers had Riel ? A. Four hundred or 600, I should think.
Q. What was the object of the rebellion, do you know ? A. As far as I could

find out, they wanted to start a new government.
Q. Who did you hear that from ? A. It came pretty near from Riel.
Q Who did you hear speaking about it? A. Half-breeds.
Q. Where were you taken to on the 18th March ? A. Taken to the church at

Batoche.

Q. And from there ? A. Taken across the river to Walters' store.
Q. Where was that—at Duck Lake? A. No; across the river; across the

South Branch; at Walters' store.

Q. And that was on what day; what day were you at Walters'? A. The
19th, I think.

Q. And where were you taken then ? A. Taken back to the church.
Q. And from there ? A. Taken to Garnot's, and from there to Duck Lake.
Q. And when did you reach Duck Lake? A. 26th March.
Q. Where were you taken to after that—to Carlton ? A. Yes.
Q. And from there back to Batoche ? A. Yes.
Q. Now, how long were you a prisoner ? A. Two months, nearly.
Q. What day were you released ? A.I was released on 12th May.
Q. Did anything happen on the 26th March when you were at Duck Lake? A.

Yes, there was a fight took place.

Q. Between whom? A. Between Riel's followers and the police and volun-
teers.

Q. How do you know that? A. Riel told me so.
Q. Kiel told you that there had been a fight? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. How long have you known him ? A. Four or five years.
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Q. Did you see him during the time you were a prisoner ? A. Yes.

Q. Where first ? A. I seen him at Duck Lake on the 26th.

Q. What was he doing at that day, do you remember; what was he doing^

when you saw him? A. Well, I seen him once ; he was standing at the store door,

Mitchell's.

Q. Afterwards? A. I seen him across the river at Batoche.

Q. Did you only see him once on the 26th ? A.I could not say. I am sure I
seen him once.

Q. Then the only thing you saw him doing was standing at Mitchell's store

door? A. Yes.

Q. Any others there? A. Yes, there was quite a number there.

Q. What state were they in ? A. In a state of rebellion

.

Q. What condition were they in; were they armed, those men? A. Yes,.

they were all armed.
Q. Was the prisoner armed ? A. Yes.

Q. The prisoner was armed at that time? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see him doing anything ? A. No,
Q. All that you saw him doing on that day was standing with the others at

Mitchell's store door ? A. Yes.

Q. Was the store open, could you see? A. I could not see, he was star ding at

the corner. I just noticed him amongst the others. I know he was not at the

fight.

Q. What was he doing when you saw him at Batoche ? A. He came over after

a tent I thought.

Q. What led you to think that ? A. Well, he put it on horse back and took it

back across the river.

Q. You saw him taking a tent across the river ; where did he procure it, do you
know? A. He came out of the council room, I think, I am not sure.

Q. Out of the place where the council held its meetings ? A. Yes.

Q. What council ? A. Kiel's council.

Q. Bringing a tent and taking it across the river ? A. Yes.

Q. Was that the only time you saw him ? A. 1 seen him when we were coming*

from Carlton.

Q. Where was he then ? A. At Duck Lake loading on a fanning mill on a sleigh

and sending it home, that was the time that the telegraph office was on fire, the time*

we passed by.

Q. Who did the telegraph office belong to ? A . It belonged to the Dominion
Land Office or Government Office.

Q. How far was that from Mitchell's store ? A. I suppose about fifty yards.

Q. Was Mitchell's store standing ? A. There was the telegraph office, and then

his lesidence and then the store.

Q. Were his residence and the store standing at that time, at the time you pas-

sed through from Carlton ? A. Yes.

Q. They were there? A. Yes.

Q. What became of them afterwards, do you know ? A. They were burnt.

Q. And when you came through the telegraph office was burning. A. Yes.

Q. Who had possession of that particular locality at that time ? A. Well, I could

not say.

Q. How did you happen to be coming through there, you were a prisoner at that

time? A. A prisoner.

Q. Was anyone in charge of you ? A. Yes.

Q. Who, how many of them were guarding you ? A. About eighty, I should

think.

Q. About eighty guarding you when you came through ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see any other half-breeds about Duck Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. How many ? A. I should think there was about ten or twenty, I could not

gay for certain

.
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Q. Were there any others about besides the half-breeds ? A. No.
Q. There were no others ? A. No, none that I saw.

Q. These ten or twenty men that yoa saw around the settlement there, were
they armed or otherwise ? A. They were armed.

Q. And you say you cannot tell who had control of the Duck Lake settlement at

that time, whether it was the rebels or the Government troops ? A. Oh, it was the
rebels

.

Q. The rebels had control of that part of the country? A. Certainly.

Q. At the time these buildings were burning ? A. Yes, certainly.

Q. And when the telegraph office was burning, you saw this man ? A. Yes, he
was there

.

Q. Sending a fanning mill away ? A. Yes.

Q. Had you any conversation with him ? A. No.
Q. Did yoa see him doing anything else ? A. No, I did not.

Q. Was he armed or otherwise at that time? A. Well, h9 was working. I don't

know whether he had a gun with him or not then.

By Mr. Johnstone

:

Q. You said in your examination-inchief that you knew the prisoner was not at

Puck Lake fight j how did you know that ? A. I seen him standing there when
the fight was going on.

Q. Standing where ? A. At Duck Lake.

Q. And the fight took place how far away from that? A. A mile and a-half.

Q. Had you any conversation with'him at that time ? A. I had, down stairs, once.

Q. Was he armed at that time ? A. I could not say ; he was in the room, I could

not say whether he had a gun there then or not

.

Q. You did see that ne was armed previous to that ? A. Yes, I seen him with a

gun once.

Q. When ? A. At Duck Lake.

Q. That day ? A. Yes.

Q. Was it a shot gun or a rifle? A I should think it was a shot gun.

Q. And did you pay particular attention ? A. No, I did not.

Q. Did you ask the prisoner why he was taking part or if he was taking part ?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Did you ask him why he was armed ? A. No, I did not. He told me he was
compelled to join the rebels. I mind him telling me that.

Q. And did he give that as an excuse or an answer to your question ? A. Well,

I thought it in that way.
Q. Well, did it appear to you that he was compelled from occurrences and cir-

cumstances ? A. Well, I could not say.

Q. Did you see the prisoner take part at any time in the rebellion ? A. No.

Q. Did you see him try to prevent it; prevent the rebellion, or prevent any
fighting or any loss of life? A. Well, no, only what he told me he done, bat that

is only taking his word.

Patrice Fagnant, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr, Scott :

(Through sworn interpreter, Joseph Morin, French.)

Q. Where does he live ? A. At Duck Lake.
Q. How long has he been living there ? A. Five years.

Q. In what employment is he there ? A. He is working as a laborer, for every
person around the place.

Q. Who was he working for at the time the rebellion broke out ? A. He says

he was not there when the trouble first started, he was at Sandy Lake.
Q. How far from Duck Lake ? A. He says he was with Mitchell making a trip.

Q. When did he get back to Dack Lake? A. Two days after the trouble started.
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Q, Did he get back before the Duck Like fight ? A. Yes.
Q. How many days before ? A. He says he cannot tell how many days before.'

He does not recollect how many days before.

Q. When did Mitchell leave Duck Lake ; I mean after they got back from this

trip ? A. He says when they came back with Mitchell, two days after that, the
trouble started, he says; the trouble started two days before they got back.

Q. How long did Mitchell stay at Duck Lake after they got back ? A. He says
he seen them that day when they came—that evening.

Q. Seen whom ? A. Seen Mitchell.

Q. 1 thought he was out with Mitchell ? A. Yes, but they came back and when
they came back, he saw him that day in the evening, and Mitchell started to come
and see the half-breeds where they were together.

Q. He started to see the half-breeds ? A. Yes.

Q. When did he last see Mitchell before the Duck Lake fight ? A. That is the
last. he seen of him.

Q. When he started to see the half-breeds ? A. Yes.

By the Court :

Q. And that was the e7ening after they returned from Sandy Lake ? A* Yes,

By Mr. Scott :

Q What does he call the breaking out of the rebellion ; he says he got there two
days after the breaking out, what does that mean ? A. He says he means when they

began to have meetings, to be together; that is what he meant.

Q. Did he remain at Duck Lake until after the Batoche fight ? A. He says ha
was not there

Q. I mean at Duck Lake ? A. He says he was not at Duck Lake either. He
says he was across the river.

Q. The witness was across the river? A. Yes.

Q. Was be at Duck Lake on the day of the Duck Lake fight? A. He says he

was at Duck Lake, bat he did not go to where they were fighting.

Q. But he was there that day ? A. Yes.

Q Did he see the prisoner on the day of the fight ? A. He did not see him.

Q. He did not see him on that day ? A. No.
Q. When did he first see him after the fight ? A. He says he did not see him tilt

a long time after.

Q. How many days after ? A. He says he does not recollect how many days

after.

Q. Does he know Hiiliard Mitchell's store at Duck Lake ? A. Yes.

Q Does he know what became of it ? A. It was burnt.

Q. Did he see it burning ? A. He seen it from his own home where he was.

Q. Saw what ? A. He seen the building burning.

Q. How far was his house away? A. He supposes about 100 yards.

Q. Did he see the prisoner that day ? A. He seen him that day.

Q. Where was he ? A. He seen him there at the house.

Q. When it was burning ? A. No ; another house.

Q. What other house ? A. He seen him in Mitchell's house.

Q. Was that house burnt? A. He says it was burnt too.

Q. What was the prisoner doing when he saw him that day ? A. He says he
don't know very well what the prisoner was doing; he says he did not stop long

enough to see what he was doing.

Q. Did he see him doing anything at all ? A. He says he seen the house, it was
already burning, and he says the prisoner was helping it to, he was starting the fire

at the same building.

Q. The prisoner was ? A. Yes.

Q. How was he starting it ? A. He says he took some papers to light it*
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Q. He saw him starting the fire with some paper, is that what he says ? A*
Yes.

Q. Ask him who had control of that part of the country at that time, whether it

was the rebels or the Government ? A. It was the "half-breeds.

Q. Were they rebels ? A, Rebel half-breeds.

Q. Were there any others around these buildings at the time ? A. No one else.

By Mr. Johnstone

:

Q. Ask him if he was a prisoner ? A. No.
Q, What was he doing; what was he engaged at during the time of the

rebellion ? A. He says he was not hired to anybody then.

Q. Was he remaining with the other half-breeds ? A. He says be was not with
nobody there ; he was not taking any part at the time he was there, when he was at

Duck Lake.

Q. Ask him why he did not leave ? A. He says he was left there ; he says he
did not have nothing to move with ; he had no animals so he had to stop there.

Q. Does he know where Burst* n lives ? A. Yes, he knows where he lives.

Q. How far is that from Duck Lake ? A. About a mile and a-half or two miles

from Duck Lake.
Q. In opposite direction from the place where the fight took place? A. Yes,

at the river side.

Q. Ask him if he knows that Burston was living at home during the time of the

rebellion ? A. Yes; he knows that the prisoner was at his home at the first fight.

Q. Now, the day on which the fire took place, wasn't the witness in Mitchell's

house with the prisoner? A. No.
Q. Ask him if he is sure ? A. Yes ; he was not living with him.

Q. Ask him if he, the witness, was in Mr. Mitchell's house on that day ? A. No.
Q. Ask him if he remained in his own house during the whole of that day-—the

witness? A. He says he did not stay there all day. He went up to where his

uncle was living, but he was not long there.

Q. Was he in Mitchell's yard on that day ? Did he go to Mitchell's yard and
take away a hand-rake ? A. No.

Q. Now, did he see the prisoner at Mitchell's store that day ? A. Not that day.

Q. Then the only place he saw him was at the house? A. Yes.

Q. Now, did this witness, when the buildings were on fire, did he take the

windows off the store or the house—the witness ? A. He says the prisoner told him
to take the windows off the house, and he says he took three, and he did not have

time to take the whole of them ; he could save only three.

Q. Then he was at Mitchell's house? A. Yes.

Q. Now, was the house on fire at this time? A. It was burning; he only had

time to take three or four off.

Q. Now, did he see the commencement of the fire? A. He says he seen the

smoke.
Q. How long previous to the time he was there to take the windows off, was it

he saw the smoke ? A. He says not very long alter that he seen the smoke, and he

went up there and saw the house burning.

Q. Where was the smoke coming from when he saw it ? A. He says from

below, from down stairs.

Q. What part of the down stairs; was it coming out of the doors and windows ?

A. Be says he seen the smoke coming from doors and windows.

Q. Ask him was that the first he knew of the fire ? A. It was, he says, not

long since the fire was in the house that he was there.

Q. Was that the first he knew of the fire, when he saw the smoke ? A. Yes.

Q. Now, where was he standing when he saw the smoke? A. Ashe was
coming along near to the house.

Q. Where was the prisoner at this time, when he was coming along and he saw
the smoke ? A. He says he was coming from his house to where this fire was.
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Q. Toe prisoner was coming from his house ? A. From his own house.

Q. T where the fire was ? A. Yes.

Q. T-ien when he says his own house, what house does he mean ? A. He says

it was no bis own house. He was living with his mother-in-law then at the time.

Court.—That is when he was coming along aud saw the fire, he says this man
—witness—was coming along too ?

Mr. Johnstone.—No.
Q. Abk him if it was the prisoner that was coming from his mother-in-law's,

when he saw him, and the house on fire ? A. No, the prisoner was there before he
came to the house.;

By the Court

:

Q. Whose mother-in-law does he speau ut ; ms own mother-in-law or Burston's?

A. His mother-in-law.

Mr. Scott.—What the witness said was that the prisoner was coming from his

motberin-law's house, when he, the witness, first saw Burston.

Mr. Johnstone. —He says the first he knew of the fire, he saw the smoke.
Q. How far was his house from the burning one ? A. He says that is what he

told you in the first place. It was his home, as far as from this court house to the

first church (100 yards).

Q. When he came along and saw the smoke, was that the first time he saw the

prisoner on that day ? A. That was the first time he saw him.

Q. Were there any other persons around the house at the time? A. Nobody
else but the prisoner

.

Q. How far was the prisoner from the house when he saw him ? A. He says

he was right close to the house

.

Q, Ask him where it was he saw the prisoner with the paper ? A. He says

right in the house.

Q. Then it must have been after the fire that he had seen the smoke? A. He
says the first fire that was put on the house, it slacked, and the prisoner started it

again

.

Q. The first fire was slacked? A. Yes.

Q. How does he know that? A. He seen the place where it was fired.

Q. Then was that the fire that gave rise to the smoke that he first saw ? A.
No, the first smoke he seen, he says it was off another building that was burning
there.

Q. Which building was on fire, ask him? A. He seen a little office on fire first.

Q. A little telegraph office on fire first? A. Yes, a little office. He says that

office was burning while he was at his own place.

Q. Ask him if he saw Burston then? A. No.

Q. Ask him if it was in Mitchell's store or in Mitchell's house that he saw the

prisoner with the paper ? A. It was in Mitchell's house he says.

Q. Now, was it prior to this time that he saw the smoke in Mitchell's house that

he first spoke of ? A. He says that is the house. He is certain \ hat n the house.

It was smoking a little while and he says it went down again. lie is certain he says

that is the house smoking first.

Q. Whereabouts in the house was it that he was putting the paper? A. He
started it on a partition of the house.

Q. Inside? A. Yes, inside.

Q. In what room in the house was he when he saw this ? A. He was standing

right at the door.

Q. Which door? A. He says he was standing at one of the doors of that par-

tition of the room that was on fire.

Q. Inside the house ? A. Yes.

Q, Ask him if the first fire was out when he came in the house? A. Yes, it was.

Q. Ask him if he put it out ? A. No. It was a little fire yet, but we could

«ee it was just going out.
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Q. Ask him if he added any paper to it ? If he put any paper on the little fire ?

A. No.
Q. Ask him if he tried to prevent the prisoner from getting fire to the building?

A. He says he did not stop him from putting the fire.

Q. Ask him if he attempted to stop him, if he tried to stop him ? A. No.
Q. Were they the only two persons in the house ? A. He did not see anyone else.

Q. Or did not see anyone around in the neighborhood ? A, He could not say
whether anybody was around or not. He did not see anybody.

Q. Where were all the half-breeds at this time? A. He says they all had left

and come towards the river.

Q. Now, ask him to tell us how much paper the prisoner had ? A. He says he
could not tell how many, but a good deal, he says.

Q. What description of paper was it—what kind of paper? A. He says news-
papers.

Q. Were they English or French newspapers ? A. He says his own papers,

but he could not tell if they were French or English.

Q. Can't he read and write ? A. He says he can read a little French, but he
did not go up and 6ee the papers.

Q. Now, ask him where the prisoner went after that ? A. He says he does not
Jjnow which way he went.

Q. Ask him what he did with the windows he took off the house? A. He gave
thtm to Mitchell.

Q. Ask him if the prisoner told him he wanted to take these windows—take
them i ff, so as to save them for Mr. Mitchell ? A. Yes, he thinks that is why the
prisoner told him to take the windows—to save them. He understood it was for

MiUbelJ.
Q. Did the prisoner tell him that he wanted to take these windows off to save

them for Mr. Mitchell? A. Yes.

Q. Now, he s&ys -that he saw the piisoner, from his own house, standing at

Mitchell's house ; now, did the prisoner go in the house before he came up, or did he
go in with him ? A. He says he seen him standing outside over the houte, and he
went up there and saw the prisoner going in the house.

Q. And he went in at the same time ? A. He says after the prisoner was in

the house, he went right in shortly after, looking at him.
Q. Ask him if that was the only time in which he was in Mitchell's house on

that day? A. Yes.

Q. Ask him if that was the time that they carried off the band-rake—the witness
and the prisoner?

yir. Scott.—He says he did not carry off a band-rake.

By Mr, Johnstone :

Q. Ask him if he saw a hand-rake that day ? A. No.
Q. Be did not see one at all ? A. He seen it outside of the house.

Q. -Ask him if he took it tway when he took the windows ? A. No, he went
and left i I at a mill.

Q. He took the rake away ? A* Yes, he took the rake away, and went and left

it at the mill—the witness did.

Q. Did he take it away that day, when the buildings were on fire ? A. He says

that is the time.

Q. Ask him if the prisoner was coming in the gate at the time he was taking
the rake away ? A. He did not see him coming.

Q. Well, where was he peisonally when he, the witness, took the rake away?
A. He Bays he thought it was the window you asked him about. He says he never
took the littlo hand-rake j he left it there. He says he meant the windows he took
to the mill.

Q. Ask him |if he saw any person take the rake away? A. He did not see

anyone,
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Q, Now, where was the prisoner when he, the witness, took the windows away ?

A* He says the prisoner told him to go and take the windows away, and he says he

went and took the windows, and he left the prisoner in the house, and he did not

see him.
Q. Ask him if he, the witness, took the windows down to the mill ? A. Yes, h©

took them Himself.

Q. Did he carry them all at once, or make more journeys than one? A. He*

says he took them all down in one trip.

Q. Whose mill did he take them to ? Whose mill is this ? A. He says a man
named Beauprey's there.

By Mr. Scott :

Do I understand from this witness that when he started towards the

building—towards Mitchell's house—that Burston was inside or outside ? I under-

stand him to say that he saw Burtson before he went into the building. Ask him
how long Burston was in the building before he got there? A. He was standing

outside, he says ; outside of the house.

Q. But after the witness saw Burston there the witness started to go towards*

the building, and I want to know how long Barston was inside the house before th©

witness got to the house? A. He says he don't know if the prisoner had went in

the house before he got there—he could not say—the first time. He says he saw/

him outside.

Q. Was the prisoner in the house when he got there, or outside of it ? A. Out-

side.

Q. When the witness got there ? A. He was standing outside when he got to

the house.

Q. Did thty go into the house together ? A. He says he went shortly after th©

prisoner went in.

Q. The prisoner went in first ? A. Yes.

Q. And he went in shortly afterwards ? A. Yes.

Q. Was the prisoner lighting the fire when the witness got inside ? A. No.

Q. How long was it alter that that he commenced to light this fire ? A. H@
8£ys shortly after.

Court.—That is the second fire.

Mr. Scott.— I am speaking of the fire at the house. Yes, the second fire. Th©
first one was dying out, I understand.

Q. I want the prisoner's exact words, what he told the witness as to taking th©

windows out of the house ? A. He says the prisoner told him to try to save th©

windows for Mr. Mitchell.

Q. He says he saved three -windows ; how many windows were in the house ?

A. He sa) s he meant a pair and a half.

Q. Ask him how many windows there were in the house ? A. There were a

good deal, but he could not say how many windows.

Q. How long was it after the fire started that the prisoner told him this ? A.

When the house began to burn, the prisoner told him this, take that away.

By the Court :

Q. Ask him when they came together, he came up to the house and Burston was

outside, what passed between them, if anything, before Burston went into the house ?

Describe the conversation, if anything ? A. Be says theie had letn a fire in th©

house before they were in the house, because, he says, he could see it was on fire.

Q. He has spoken of what was done and what he saw—one thing he says was

that Burston was standing there when he came up, and after he came up Burston

went in—now before Burston went in had he any talu? A. He says he don't recollect

what the prisoner told him. The prisoner was talking to him, but he does not recol-

lect what the prisoner told him.
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Q. I don't ask him to give me the exact words, but he can give me the substance
of what he said ? A. He says he don't recollect. He remembers that the prisoner
epoke to him before they went into the house, but he don't recollect what he told him.

By Mr. Swtt :

Q I just want to ask one more question. I understood him to say that the
telegraph office was burning on the same day ? A. Yes, it was on the same day,
early in the morning.

By Mr. Johnstons

:

Q. Where did Mr. Bnrston get the paper ; did you see him get the paper ? A.
He took the papers inside the house.

Q. Where did he get them inside the house ? A. He says all over on the floor.

William Tomkins, recalled :

By Mr. Scott :

Q. I think you said the telegraph office was burning1when you came through,
from Carlton to Duck Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. What day was that, do you remember ? A. The 3rd of April I think it was,

By Mr. Johnstone :

Q. Did you see any other buildings burning besides the telegraph office ? A.
Not at the time.

Q. At no time? A. No.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. What time was it you came through there ? A. The morning I should think.

By Mr. Johnstone :

Q, Did you see any person around Mitchell's house ; did you notice if there was
any person around Mitchell's house where he dwelt ? A. Yes.

Q. Who was there? A. No, I could not say that I did. I did not see anyone
around the bouse. •

Mr. Scott.—That is the case for the Crown.
Mr. Johnstone.—I ask your Honor to discharge the prisoner without going into

the defence. The only evidenoe asrainst him is the evidence of the last witness and
I submit that unless his evidence is corroborated your honor could not conWet ; and
the evidence of Mr. Tomkins merely shows that although he had a gun oa the day
of the rebellion he was not at the fight at all. Re was taking charge of these build-
ings

;
and afterwards, the evidence of this man Pagnant shows that he took the

windows off the building to save them for Mr. Mitchell, so that the only evidence
given goes to show that the prisoner was there in the performance of the duty of
looking after Mr. Mitchell's property.

Mr. Scott.—Lighting fires.

Mr. Johnstone.—That man's evidence is to be taken for nothing, I say, because
it is not corroborated, and he is an accomplice.

Court.— I think I shall call upon you, Mr. Johnstone, for your defence. Of
course it is not necessary, even that the man should have arms. You will recollect
those Feniau eases, where a man was with the party, a newspaper reporter and a
doctor. I think the prisoner will have to exculpate himself.

DEFENCE).
Peter Tourond, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Johnstone :

(Through interpreter, in Cree )
Q. Do j ou know Burston ? A. Yts.
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Q. Do you remember the time that the buildings were burned last spring, at

Duck Lake ? A. Yes.

Q What buildings did you see burning ? A. He says he seen the telegraph

office burning first, and after that, shortly, he saw the other buildings on fire.

Q. Ask him if he saw Mitchell's house burning ? A. Yes.

Q. Did he see the fire when it commenced ; the first appearance of it ? A.' He
says he did not see it from inside of the house, but only he could tell it was a fire, as

he seen the smoke going through the roofs. He says he went in the house that day
before the house was on fire.

Q. Did he see the prisoner on that day ? A. He seen him that day on the road.

Q. What was he doing ? A. He says he was repairing a sleigh.

Q. How long was he working at the sleigh ? A. He says he seen him there about

-a quarter of an hour working at this sleigh.

Q. Before, during or after the fire ? A. He seen him working at the sleigh

before the fire. He says when he first seen the fire come out of the house, the smoke,

Mr. Burston was on the road then and the house was burning and he stood there

with him a quarter of an hour, and he seen him when he got through fixing the sleigh

<on the road

.

By the Court :

Q. Where were they when they saw the fire? A. They were near the

house, on the road.

By Mr. Johnstone :

Q. Where the prisoner was working at the sleigh ? A. Yes.

Q. And was it then and there that you observed this fire ? A. Yes, he says,

from where they were standing ; they were both there together, and they saw the

smoke coming ouc of the roofs.

Q. How far was this from the house; give us an idea of the distance? A.
About an acre (200 yards)

.

Q. Were they in front of the house or in rear of the house ? A. In front of the

house, on the road.

Q. Did he see any persons there at the time? A. He says there were a good
many people around there ; he says there were about 60 at that time.

Q. Were these people around the house ? A. Ee says they were all over

—

some outside of the house and some inside and some on the road.

Q. Now, how long after the witness was in the house was it that he notice i the

fire ? A. He says he stood there a long time, and he says they could see the flames

coming down.
Q. He states that he was in Mitchell's house. Now, where was Burston at this

time ? A. He was on the road.

Q. Was he fixing the sleigh on the road at this time? A. Fixing the sleigh

on the road

.

Q. Now, did he go from Mitchell's house to where Burston was, direct? A. He
says after he was talking to the prisoner he went around the house and came back to

the prisoner, and talked with the prisoner again. He says when he went there he is

certain he did not see any fire there, but he says shortly after the house was burning,

but there were so many people around

Q. How long did it take him to go round the house and come back to where
Burston was? A. About five minutes; inside of five minutes.

Q. Was the prisoner working at these sleighs all this time ? A. Yes; he says
when he seen the fires started he was with him at the sleigh, and he says when he
got through fixing the sleigh he says you could see the flames going through the

house already

.

Q. What did the prisoner say when he saw the house on fire ? Did he say any-
thing ?

Mr. Scott.—That is not evidence ?
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Witness.—He did not tell him anything.

Q. Now, does he know who set fire to the building? A. No; there were too
many ; he could not tell.

Q. Was it the prisoner, had the prisoner anything to do with it? A. He
says he does not think it. If it was said the prisoner done it he would tell it was
not, because it was not the prisoner that done it.

Q. Would the prisoner, while he was behind the house walking round it—could
the prisoner have gone to the house without his seeing him ? A. He was not long
enough, and it was not far enough. If the prisoner had went there he would have
seen him.

Q. How far does Burston live from Duck Lake—from these buildings? A.
About two miles.

Q. Now, ask him if he knows the prisoner was in charge of these buildings.

Mr. Scott.—That is no way to put the question. I object to the question being
put in that way.

Court.—It has nothing to do with it. The prisoner may have been in charge
and have violated his trust.

Mr. Johnstone.—If it is objected to I won't ask it.

Q. Do you know where the prisoner was during the time of the rebellion ? A,
He was at Duck Lake.

Q. Was he living at Mitchell's or living at home? A. He was there at
Mitchell's.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Where does the witness live ? A . At Fish Creek.
Q. How far from Duck Lake ? A About fifteen miles.

Q. Then he knows which house is Mitchell's dwelling-house, does he; he knew
that before? A. Yes.

Q. What was he doing at Duck Lake on that day, where had he come fr m ?
A. They were coming from Carlton.

Q. How long did he stay at Duck Lake ? A. He says he did not stay.

Q. Ask him if be saw any prisoners there, did he tee William Tomkins there
that day ? A. Yes, be saw Billy Tomkins.

Q. Did he leave Duck Lake before or after Billy Tomkins ? A. He seen him on
ihe road there.

Q. Did he remain at Duck Lake when Billy Tomkins left? A. He went back
to Carlton again

.

Q. Who did? A. Himself, the witness.

Q. At whose place was Burston, the prisoner, working, at this sleigh ? A. Near
the road.

Q. At whose place was it? Was it at anybody's place? A. The road right
close to Mitchell's house.

Q. 3 hen he was working at this sleigh when this fire started ? A. Yes.
Court.—If there has been no change in the houses within the last few years,

the house stands within fifty yards of this road.

By Mr. Scott*

Q. Was that near the store that he was working at the sleigh? A. He says it

is about 100 yards from the store—from Mitchell's store.

Q. Then it was nearer the store than it was to the house ? A. He says it was
nearer to the house.

Q. Which building was set on fire, was started to burn first? A. The tele-

graph office.

Q. Which was the second building to burn? A. He could not tell, afterwards

they were all on fire when he saw the other houses.

Q. How many other houses were burnt ? A. About four houses.
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Q. How long was it alter the telegraph office started to burn that the others

started to burn ? A. Four or five minutes after.

Q. Then do I understand you to say that the prisoner was working when these

fires commenced ? A. He says he seen him on the road all the time. He says while

he was there he could not have went without seeing the prisoner go to the fire.

Q. Then he, the prisoner, did not go near the fire at all ? A. The prisoner got

near to the bouse after the fire, because he seen him working at the sleigh all the

time till the flames came out of the roof.

Q. Was there anything in the house at the time the witness went to the fires ?

A. Nothing in the house, hardly,

Q. Was there anything in the store? A. Nothing.

By Mr. Johnstone

:

Q. Do you know what became of these things in the store and the house? A.
He says Kiel's men had taken everything.

Q. Had the prisoner anything to do with the taking of them ? A. He does not

know, he could not say.

By Mr. Seott :

Q. Ask him how he knows that Kiel's men took everything ? A. He seen EieFs

men there.

Q. But did he see them taking everything out of the store? A. He says n©

seen Kiel's men taking something there in the store.

By the Court :

Q. I want to see if I understand as to the distances ? A. Burston was working

in the road, at the gate.

Jerome Ledeatj, sworn

:

Examined by Mr. Johnstone :

(Through Interpreter, in French.)

Q. Ask him where he lives ? A. I live at Beauprey's farm, a mile and a-half

from Duck Lake.
Q. Ask him if he remembers the day on which Duck Lake was burnt ? A. Yes.

Q. Last spring ? A. Yes.

Q. Did be see Burston on that day ? A. Yes.

Q. What was he doing ? A. He was working at the sleigh.

Q. What sleigh ? A. His own bob sleigh.

Q. Did he see these buildings on fire ? A; He seen one. the telegraph office.

Q. How far is the telegraph office from Mitchell's house ? A. About thirty feet.

Q. Hew far away was Burston off with the sleigh ? A. He says he was about

100 feet from where he first saw Burston.

Q. How long was he there with Burston ? A. He says he was there about a

couple of miiiutes, and he left him.

Q. Was he at Duck Lake all that day during the burnings ? A. No, he says

when he left Burston there, he only stopped a couple of minutes with him, and he

says he ^ent right on.

Q. Did he see any smoke coming out of Mitchell's house ? A. No, he only saw

the little office there.

Q. Then he did not see Mitchell's house burning at all ? A. No, he did not

see it.

Q. Was that all he saw of the prisoner on that day ? A. That is all.

Q. Did he see any men around there at the time of the fire ? A. A good many-

people.

Q. Were there any of them at Mitchell's house at the time the telegraph office;

was being burnt ? A. They were all over there.

Q. Did he see Fagnant ? A. He did not see him.
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Q. Did he see him at Mitchell's house ? A. No.
Q. Did he see him at all that day ? A. He says he did not see him, only the

third day after.

Q. He did not see him that day ? A. No.
Q. Does he know that these buildings were set on fire ? A. He says he heard

afterwards the houses were all burnt.

Q. Did he know how the telegraph office got on fire ? A. He says he don't
know how they started. When he looked he saw the flames going through the roof.

Q. Did he go up near the building at all to see what was the cause of it ?
A. No.

Q. He did not go near the building to see what was the cause of it ? A. No.
Q. Did he enquire as to it ? A. No, he did not.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. How long was he there after the fire commenced ? A. He says he came that
morning looking for a bob sleigh for Beauprey, and he says he was around there
when he did not see the bob sleigh, and he went up to the well and he stood there,
and all of a sudden he saw the fire.

Q. How long did he remain there after the fire started ? A. He left imme-
diately—shortly after.

Q. Was the building burnt down before he left ? A. No, he only saw the flame
going through the roof, that was all.

Peter Levallee, sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Johnstone :

(Through interpreter, in French.)
Q. You live at Duck Lake ? A. Yes. Not exactly at Duck Lake, but two

miles on this side of Duck Lake.
Q. Is that near where Burston lives? A. He lives in the same house.
Q. Does he remember the fight at Duck Lake? A. Yes.
Q. Does he know where the prisoner was on that day? A. Yes.
Q. Where? A. He was in the store—Mitchell's store.

Q. What was he doing there? A. Ha was working there.
Q. What was he doing? A. He says he could not tell exactly what he was

there for; he was always working there anyway. He don't know exactly what
situation he had.

Q. Was he working for Mitchell, does he know ? A. For Mitchell—yes.
Q. Employed by Mitchell? A. Employed by Mitchell.
Q. Was he, the witness, there when the rebels came in from the fight? A. Yes,

the prisoner was at the store.

Q. Was he, the witness, there when the rebels came back from the fight? A.
He says he seen Birston in the store. He came, he says, with the rebels there.

Q. Did the rebels iaterfere with the building or the contents ? A. He says he
does not know about that.

Q. Was he at Duck Lake when the buildings were burnt down ? A. No, he
was not.

Q. Where was the prisoner during the time of the rebellion; does he know?
A. He was in his own house—his own (Barston's) bouse.

Q. Had he anything to do with the fight at Duck Lake on the 26th March ? A.
No.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. What relation is he to the prisoner ? A. He is his uncle.
Q. How does he kuow the prisoner was at his own house during all this time;

was he, the witness, there too ? A. He was living with him.
Q. I uuderstood him to say that he came over with the rebels from Dick Lake ?

A. Yes, he said that he was coming with the rebels to the store.
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Q. The witness was ? A. Yes.

Q. How long did he remain with the rebels ? A. He says he was quite awhile

with them.
Q. At Batoche? A. Yes.

Q. Well, he does not know whether the prisoner was at home when he was at

Batoche ? A. He left him there, and he don't know, ot course.

Q. When did he go back there; was it after the 12th May, after the day
Batoche was taken ? A. He wasn't there that day.

Q. How long before that had he left Batoche? A. He does not recollect.

Q. How many times did he see the prisoner between the time of the Duck Lake
fight and the day that Batoche was taken ? A. He says he seen him often. He was
stopping with bim in the same tent.

Q. Where ? A. At the river.

Q. Then he was not at his own house ; he says he was at his own house all the

time ? A. He says, in the first place, they were stopping together in the same house,

and then he says he moved, with the prisoner, at the river. That is what he means..

He says he was along with him all the time.

Q. Well, what was the prisoner living in the tent at the river for ? A. He says

he had to go there. He was taken there by Eiel ; forced to go up there, at the river..

Q. When was he forced there ? A. He says he was forced right along.

Q. I want to know when force was first used ? A. He does not know ; he does

not recollect what day.

Q. Did he see any force used ? A. He says Eiel used to send word to the people.

Q 1 want to know if he heard Eiel sending this word ? A. No.

Q. Then he does not know that any force was used except what he had heard ?

A. No, only what he has heard.

Ignaoe Poitras sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Johnstone :

(Interpreted in Cree.)

Q. Were you at Duck Lake about the 26th March ? A. Yes, he was there.

Q. Whereabouts was he on the day of the fight ? A. At the houses there in

Duck Lake.
Q. Did he see Burston that day ? A. Yes, he seen Burston there.

Q. What was he doing ? A. He says he don't know what he was doing. He
says he was going out of the house and coming in the house, and backwards and

forwards.

Q. Had Burston anything to do with the fight? A. Well, he said he did not

see him fighting that day. He says he did not see bim doing anything. He says

he was there with him all the time at the houses. He seen him there all day. He
was not at the fight that day, sure.

Q. Did he see the buildings burning? A. No, he did not.

Q. Did he see Burston have a gun that day? A. No.

By Mr. Scott:

Q. He did not see the fire, I think he said ? A. He did not see the fire.

John Tomkins sworn :

—

Examined by Mr. Johnstone

:

Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. I do.

By the Court ;

Q. You are Indian agent or Indian instructor ? A. Indian instructor.

By Mr. Johnstone ;

Q. How long have you known him ? A. I have known him, I guess, five year*

~four or five.
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Q. Do you remember the commencement of the troubles in the North-West or
the Saskatchewan ? A t Yes*

Q. Did you see Burstou about this time ? A. I did.

Q. Where ? A. At his own house.

Q. Now, tell us where his house is as near as you can ; how far from Dack
Lake ? A. Well, I should say it is about two miles, or iu that neighborhood.

Q. Does he live near you or do you live near him ? A. He lives within half a
mile of where I did live at that time.

Q. Now, you say you saw him at his own house ; was this before or after the
Duck Lake fight? A. Before the Duck Lake fight.

Q. How long ? A. Well, I guess it must have been about seven days or six
days, in that neighborhood.

Q. Had you heard anything of the trouble at this time? A. No.
Q. When did you hear ? A. 1 heard it from him that morning.
Q. What did he say about it ? A. Well, I was going to Batoche—in fact I was

going across the river and on to another reserve, and I had to go through Batoche
to get there, and the road leading from my place to Batoche went by his house, and
I went to his house and stopped and called in to see him, and he asked me where I
was going, and I told him I was going to Batoche, and he says, you had better not
go. I says why ? Why, he says, didn't you hear the news ? No, I said. Well, he
says, the half breeds have ris' out, and they have taken Batoche and all the stores
and have taken some other places. He mentioned, I think Saskatoon. I think that
was the one, and he says if you go down there, they will very likely take you. So,
of course, I did not go down. Tnis, if I remember aright, was the day after they
rose. This, I think, was on the 19 th, in the morning, if I remember aright. I would
not be sure, but I know it was the day after they rose. My son was a prisoner at the
time, and L did not know it till my nephew told me.

Q. Was that the last you saw of Burston until after the rebellion ? A. Well, I
think it was, I don't kaow exactly whether I saw him after that or not.

Q. Could you give us the exact words that he used that day ? A. Well, that is

about the exact words that he used, so far as my memory serves me.
Q. Did he say the word "half breeds "; did he use the word" half-breeds?" A.

I think so. He also told me to keep my boys at homa, for fear if they would go out
on the roads or around they might be arrested, they might be taken.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Did he say anything as to how he had got this news ; how he had heard it

about the uprising ? A. He spoke something about somebody being there, a day or
two before that, to his place. I can't remember the exact words though.

Q. A day or two before the rising ? A No
Q. The rising only took place on the day before? A. He said, if I remember

aright, that there was some messengers going all around the country, notifying the
people to join the headquarter party at Batoche.

Q. And it was from one of the messengers that he had heard the news, did you
understand that ? A. I cannot say who he got the news from

.

Q. He did not tell who he got the news from ? A. No.
Q. But he appeared to be pretty well posted as to what had been done ? A. Yes,

I took it for granted that he knew all that was going on.

Q. Did you lose any stuff? A. I did.

Q. What kind of stuff; I suppose your place was sacked ? A.I lost everything
that was in my place.

Q. The place was sacked ? A. Sacked

.

Q. And burnt ? A. No, not burnt ; but there was nothing left in it, only some
few bushels of potatoes in the cellar, and some wheat in the granary.

Q, Did you find any of your stuff anywhere about ? A. 1 did

.

Q. Among your neighbors ? A. Yes.
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Q. Did you find any in the prisoner's house, or about his premises ? A. Yes,

there was some there. There was some property that I saw there belonging to

myself.

Q. What was it ? A. He had some boards belonging to me, and he had a set of

ox harness belonging to the Indian Department, and he had a stove belonging to the

Indian Department.
Q. Where had those been lakon from; where were they at the time of the

rebellion ? A. They were taken from the Government farm where I lived, bat he

told me that he took those things for safety. The stove—another man had got it

—

and when the row was over, he brought it back to my house, and Magnus told me
he sent over when he heard it, and took it to his place, that was before I got up from
Prince Albert.

Q. Did he say anything to you about your boards? A. Yes, he told me he had

them there.

Q. Were there anything there that he did not say anything about? A. He
did not say anything about the harness.

Q. He did not say anything about having the harness there ? A. No.
Q. How did you happen to discover that it was there? A. Well, the first day I

went there, I saw the harness on his oxen, and I know them from our stamp
;
but I

did not mention anything about it, because I was not prepared that day to take the

harness, and I had confidence when I would come back from Prince Albert the

second time, that he would still have tbem, and I would get them, and, meantime,

the police took them from him.

By Mr. Johnstone:

Q. Do you know that your son instructed him to take care of any of your stuff?

A. I sent word to him, by my son, to take the Government cow and keep her at his

place if he could.

Q. Which son was this that you sent word to? A. M.y second son, but I don't

think that he ever got that word. I think the cow was given to another man, or

the other man went and took her—his son-in law, just the same.

Q. Had you any conversation with the prisoner as to the stuff on the farm at

the time that he told you you had better go away ? A. No, I don't remember that

I had. No, I had no conversation with regard to the stuff then, because I thought

it would never come to anything at all

.

Q. You say the prisoner told you that he had this stuff for you? A. He did

tell me.
Q. Did you believe him that he intended to keep it for you? A. Well, I

believed him in this way—that if the half-breeds won the coantry he was so far

ahead, and that if they did not when I came back he would give it to me.
Q. And if you never came back you would never want it, and if you did come

back you could get it? A. Yes, that is just the way I looked at it.

Joseph Arcand, sworn :

—

(Through interpreter, in French.)

Examined by Mr. Johnstone :

Q. He lives near Duck Lake? A. Yes.
Q. Does he know Burston ? A. Yes.

Q. Where was he at the time of the Duck Lake fight ? A. At Duck Lake.

Q. Do you know why Burston was at Duck Lake ? A. He was there at the

houses at Duck Lake.
Q. Were you present when the houses were destroyed by fire? A. No, he

says he was not there ; ho was not near to it.

Q. Had Burston anything to do with, or wa3 he favorable to, the rebellion ? A,
He says he knowed he was against the rebellion all along

.
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Q. How does he know that? A. Because he was talking with him and had a
conversation with him.

Q. Does he know why he was at Duck Lake, why he countenanced, or why he*
was there, apparently ? A. He was in charge of the fort, the Duck Lake store.

Q. Does he know if Burston had a gun ? A. He never seen him with a gun.

Moise Parenteau, sworn :

—

(Through interpreter, in French.)

Examined by Mr. Johnstone :

Q. Does he know Burston ? A. Yes.

Q. Does he remember the Duck Lake fight? A. Yes.
Q. Did he see the prisoner at that time ? A. Yes.
Q. Was he armed? A. No
Q. Was he at the fight ? A. No.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. Was he with him all day ? A. No, he was not there with him all day.
Mr. Johnstone.—That is the defence, your Honor, but there is a question I want

to raise about the information. It is immaterial when the objection is taken. I sub-
mit the information is insufficient, as it does not give the words of the statute; it

does not use the word " feloniously," and the want of the word " feloniously " in an
information for larceny is held to be fatal. The same rule should govern in informa-
tions for treason. It uses the word subsequently, but it does not give the words when
giving the offence. It says :

" within Canada compass, imagine," instead of " feloni-

ously compass, imagine," as it should be. It says afterwards: "the said felonious
compassing." it may be a clerical error in leaving it out.

Judgment reserved, and prisoner remanded till Monday next, 12th inst., 10 a.m.,
when judgment was given, discharging prisoner.

JAS. T. PARKES, Official Stenographer.

QUEEN vs. PARENTEAU AND TWENTY-FIVE OTHERS.

j

Canada :

North-West Territories,

The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of Ham-
ilton, in the Province of* Ontario, in the Dominion of Canada, chief of police, taken
the fourth day of August, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in
and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith :

That Pierre Parenteau, Pierre Gariepie, Pierre Henry, Emmanuel Champagne,
Maxime Lepine, Albert JMonkman, Joseph Delorme, Phillippe Gariepie, Joseph
Arcand, Francois Tourond. Daniel Parenteau, Andr6 Nolin, Alexandre Cayen, alias

Kee-tco way-how, Elzear Swain, Frederick Fiddler, Patrice Tourond, Jim Shoit,
Alexander Fisher, Baptiete Vandal, Ignace Poitras, the elder, Ignace Poitras, the
younger, Pierre Vandal, Joseph Pilon, Baptiste Rocheleau, Moise Parenteau,
Maxime Dubois, not regarding the duty of their allegiance, but wholly withdrawing
the love, obcdierce, fidelity and allegiance which every true and faithful subject of
our Lady the Queen does and of right ought to bear towards our said Lady the
Queen, on the twenty-sixth day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight
hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days, as well before as after that day,
together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said Alexander David Stewart
unknown, feloniously and wickedly did compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend
to levy war against our said Lady the Queen, within Canada, in order, by force and
constraint, to compel her to change her measures and counsels, and the said felonious,

compassing, imagination, invention, device and intention, then feloniously and wick-
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edly did express, utter and declare by divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter men-
tioned, that i8 to say :

—

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect their felonious compassing, imagina-
tion, invention, device and intention aforesaid, to wit, on tbe twenty-sixth day of
March, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as
after that day, at and near the locality called Batocbe, in the North-West Territories
of Canada, aforesaid, feloniously and wickedly did conspire, consult, confederate
assemble and meet together, with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said Alex-
ander David Stewart unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion
agairst our said Lady the Queen, within this realm, in contempt of our said Lady
the Queen and her laws, to the evil example of all others in like case offending
against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace
of our said Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

, a
A. D. STEWAET.

bworn before me tbe day and year first above ~)

mentioned, at the town of Eegina, in the [•

North-West Territories of Canada. J

Hugh Eichardson,

A Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North- West Territories of Canada,
And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary

magistrate and a justice of the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or before
a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention of a iurv.
Which do you elect ?

J J

And the said persons above charged, and each of them, thereupon elected to be
tried before the stipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention
of a jury, in pursuance of subsection 5 of section 76 of the Act 43 Victoria chapter
25: " The North-West Territories Act, 1880," as amended by 48-49 Victoria,' chapter
51, section 5.

„ _ . _. ,
Tuesday, 4th August, 1885.

Mr. Justice Eichardson presiding.
Court opened and it was announced that Mr. Dixie Watson is appointed clerk of

the court, and Mr. Maclean and the other reporters who were at the la*t trial, official
reporters to the court. Mr. F. E. Marceau to act as French interpreter, Mr. Peter
Hourie as Cree interpreter. These two gentlemen are now sworn as interpreters.

Mr. Justice Eichardson reads the information and notice appended thereto, to
the prisoners, and such information and notice are interpreted in French and Cree
during the reading of the same to tbe prisoners.

All the prisoners are now asked whether they will have a trial by a jury of six,
or a summary trial before a stipendiary magistrate alone, and all answer summary
trial.

Upon all the prisoners being asked whether they are "guilty " or •« not guilty,"
they all plead " guilty " to the charge contained in the information read to them.

Clerk.—Hearken to your plea as the court records it; you say you are guilty of
the felony with which you stand charged.

Mr. Eobinson.—-The Crown do not propose to move the court for sentence to be
passed upon these prisoners at this moment. They thought it better that your Honor
should have an opportunity of being informed as to the circumstances of each case,
each particular case, and the relative guilt or innocence of each person, so that we
will be able to classify and apportion the sentences accordingly.

I may say the question whether or not the Crown are "justified themselves in
accepting the pleas which the prisoners have recorded in these cases, has occasioned
us a great deal of anxious consideration and doubt. From the evidence in our pos-
session we believe that the offence of treason would have been brought home to all
these persons, and with regard to those who are members of what was called the
council, and who took a more or less active part beyond that of the mere rank and
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file in this rebellion, we have great difficulty in coming to the conclusion that we
were risjht in not prosecuting for a higher offence, but in accepting this plea.

i think in pleading guilty, as they have done, that they acknowledge their guilt,

•and they express penitence for the offence of which they have been guilty, and they
have done whatever lay in their power, and taken every possible course to recom-
mend themselves to the clemency of the Crown, if it should hereafter be thought
proper to carry it to the executive in mitigation of their sentence ; and I may add
that in coming to this conclusion we have been very much assisted indeed by the

exertions of Father Andre acting, as we understand, under the directions of the
Archbishop, in giving us every possible information about each of these prisoners,

which he has derived from his long residence among them, and acquaintance with
them, and is interested very earnestly indeed in them—we are indebted to him very
much for that information. It has been of great use to us in enabling us to come to

the conclusion at which we have arrived.

I can only add that it is a subject of very deep regret that these prisoners instead

of listening to the good advice they received from him were led away by evil counsels

as I trust they now see. There are four of these prisoners, with regard to whom the

Crown propose to take no proceedings, Elzear Swain, Frederick Fidler, Andre Nolin
and Daoiel Parenteau. With regard to these prisoners, there are so many extenuat-

ing circumstances in their cases, although they were undoubtedly implicated in this

rebellion, it is so questionable whether they acted entirely of their own freewill, that

counsel for the Crown thought it right not to ask for sentence upon them at all, but

to discharge them upon their own recognizance, to appear should they be called upon
hereafter at any time.

With your Honor's permission, my learned friend, Mr. Casgrain, will repeat in

substance, in French, what I have said to these prisoners, because we wish them to

understand, thoroughly, the course which has been taken, and my learned friend, Mr.

Maclise, will also say a few words. The prisoners understand French.

(Mr. Casgrain accordingly speaks to the same effect in French.)

Mr. Maclise.—In rising to speak on behalf of these prisoners before you, I beg to

ask your houor to remember the fact, that in your long residence in that country,

and in your presidency over the parts of that country, I think not one of these pris-

oners here has ever appeared before you upon any criminal charge.

I had almost forgotten to say that with me, in the defence of these prisoners,

appears Mr. Carey, of Winnipeg, and Mr. Benson, of Begina, and Mr. Pendergast, of

Winnipeg. These gentlemen, with myself, have, after a great deal of consideration,

foregone any chance of showing to the court in what circumstances these prisoners

were placed at the tince that these occurrences took place with which they are charged.

We have done this because of the very great risk that a hostile course of pleading
u not guilty " or not consenting to plead " guilty " to this charge would entail upon
us.

Now, in speaking to these people about their circumstances, I am compelled to

refer to the prisoner who has already been charged, whose case was so intimately

connected with the others. I do so, because I cannot speak of the circumstances

connected with their cases without referring to it.

Now, it is well known, your Honor, to all who have any knowledge of that country

that these people are an honest—were up till last fall, an honest, law-abiding, church-

going people. In the evidence which was given before your Honor a few days ago
Mr. Justice Bichardson.—Interrupting you one moment, is this with a view of

regulating the sentences on their behalf, that you are now addressing me ?

Mr. Maclise.— With the consent of the prosecution, yes, my Lord.

Mr. Justice Bichardson.—It is assuming that I was about to pass sentence.

Mr. Maclise.—Yes. The allegiance of these people before 1870 was an alle-

giance to a law among themselves principally. They were buffalo hunter s on the

plains. They made their own laws, and it would be necessary to consider that when
we come to the circumstances which follow, and that I ask your Honors to remem-
ber. Now, with regard to the grievances which they had and w hich have been

S70



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52) A. 1886

urged in extenuation of their offences, I have practically nothing to say. I am nothere to make any sort of political capital for anybody, any person whomsoeverThe fact, however; of a sort of non-committal course, or a course not answering fromsome cause or other, the petitions of these people, having been adopted gavethe
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certain matter, certain serious matters occurred by which these people were brought

in arms. That is also a matter which I regret was not brought in evidence. The

feast of St. Joseph is a very important feast with the French half-breeds.

St. Joseph is the patron saint of the French half-breeds. The baptism

was set for that day for a person named Jackson. The French half-breeds

always make that festival, which occurred last year, I think, the 19th March, always

make that a very important festival. The rank and file of the people were requested

simply to bring "their guns and fire a volley. That was the first of it. On the 11th

March Mr. Kiel went to the upper settlement, or southern settlement, south of

Batoche. Gabriel Dumont went to the north of Batoche. All the people were told

to gather at Batoche, to go from there to the church of St. Laurent, and there attend

the baptism. They were to take their guns with them and fire a volley. They

were however, to remain at Batoche until all had gathered together. They met at

Batoche. The rumor was there circulated that 500 police were just coming down

upon them. They so believed their leaders, they had so believed their leader that

in the way that matter came, the way that matter was understood by them, and the

way he explained it to them; and that was simply and solely the way these people

came together armed. Captains were appointed at once to send out to bring all the

rest of the people that hadn't come to the little church at St. Laurent at all. The

rebellion was started in that way. Gabriel Dumont called out from among the

people " Are you willing that so-and-so should be a councillor ? " He calls out the

names of the first men there, Pierre Parenteau, and in his absence, Emmanuel Cham-

pagne, and the first thing was the trial ofNolin and another two of their own friends.

Both Biel and JJumont were urging killing without trial. When these men refused

to act in order to save their own friends, they committed what was called an act of

high treason. What crime was there in the hearts of those people at that time

gathered together in that way ? What crime of intention, your Honors ? They

were told further that not only were there these police coming, but there were 100

police coming from Prince Albert who were to tear down the church and prevent the

aP
We'have pleaded " guilty," your Honors, to these charges. We say nothing

against that whatever. We say that these men have been advised, have considered

rather that it was their best course to plead guilty to this charge, and throw themselves

on the mercy of the Crown, but at the same time I could not see my way clear, and

the other counsel could not see their way clear, not to present before the court all

that we were allowed in any way to do. Now, some other untoward circumstances

occurred. A proclamation was issued. The first man, notable among the half-breeds,

went to Prince Albert and was arrested, and when the news of tins reached St.

Laurent a good many who would have left and fled to Carlton or Prince Albert were

deterred. The news when it arrived there was, that these men wore being tortured

with all kinds of torture. The prisoner who has already been tried did not iail to use

that circumstance to his utmost benefit. He, right to the last, right within a few days

before the taking of Batoche, referred to the treatment Nolin had received and told

them that he was either dead or the next thing to it, and that they would all be

treated in the same manner, that unmentionable atrocities would bo perpetrated upon

them, and there never was, your Honors, such a surprised lot of people in the world

as when their wounded were taken to Saskatoon to the Government hospital there.

They thought those wounded, as well as themselves, would not receive any fair treat-

ment whatever. Now, as to the circumstances that occurred during the rebellion,

when Mr. Kiel sent for Father Fourmond, and spoke to Father Fourmond with regard

to his sending for him, Father Fourmond said 1 have nothing to do with ycur rebel-

lion Mr. Eiel turned about and addressed all the people and stated that the

matter was not a rebellion at all. He had made those people believe—he did his best,

rather, to make them believe they had taken a course which they had been driven

Now with regard to the circumstances of each case, we thoroughly understand

that having thrown ourselves on the mercy of the Crown, that we have the privilege,
&
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In fact it is our duty, as counsel for the defence, to d > what we can to place before

your Honors what your Honors will accept in the matter of evidence, and as the

counsel for the Crown has not pressed for sentence in these cases, we will, as soon

as possible, take what steps we consider best. We propose to get evidence

from the Crown witnesses and from what other credible witnesses there are here, as

to what circumstances oach person was in and how he came to take part in this

matter. We hope your Honors will give as much weight as possible, as much weight

as you consider the evidence entitled to, and you will give each of these men as light

a sentence as possible and as compatible with public justice.

Mr. Carey.—Might I ask your Honors the time when these sentences will be
given ?

Mr. Justice Richardson.—Suppose the Crown moved for sentence to-day, I could

not proceed—I should not feel justified in proceeding without making some little

enquiry.
Mr. Carey.—I am most anxious that the court should take time, because I think

we have everything to gain by it. As I understand, your Honors will allow us to

put in evidence in mitigation. 1 understood that from Mr. Macliee

Mr. Justice Eicbardson.—I have said nothing, nor have I indicated anything

which would lead Mr. Maclise to suppose anything of that kind.

Mr. Carey.—Wo took your Honor's silence to be favorable.

Mr. Osier.—I might say that we do not desire to move for sentence until all the

-cases of the same class are disposed of. There are others not disposed of, and we
thmk that probably towards the end of next week, Friday or Saturday of next week,

the 14th or loth, we will be ready. There are cases where the people have not made
the offers that your clients have. We have to give ten days' notice of trial to those

parties for treason, and we don't desire to dispose ofone without disposing of all.

Mr. Carey.—We understood this was a delivery.

Mr. Osier.—So it is as to these men.
Mr. Carey.—We understood there were no more prisoners.

Mr. Osier.—Thore are two others that have not done as these have done. There
are seven half-breeds who are not in this plea.

Mr. Carey,—Of course we understand we will be allowed to put in any evidence

in mitigation. The course is not unusual.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—I shall be very glad to consider anything I can legiti-

mately. If it is legitimate, I will follow it, if the authorities go the other way, I will

not.

Mr. Osier.—We concede it is the ordinary practice to bring such facts before the

court m mitigation of sentence as are thought proper.

Mr. Carey.—I promised to see to the fate of these men to the last, and although

my learned friends, Mr. MacUse and Mr. Benson, have been attending to these men's

interests for some time, and done a great deal of service, we having been sent here

specially to aid and assist them, we don't feel justified in leaving them until we see

"what their fate is.

Mr. Justice Eichardson.—If this has to be delayed I will see that you have notice

so as to be here.

Mr. Osier.—We shall say Friday week, unless you know to the contrary.

Mr. Justice Eichardson.—Bid I understand, Mr. Osier, that the four you men-
tioned could be discharged at once ?

Mr. Eobinson.—Yes.
The lour prisoners mentioned heretofore as being discharged on their own

recognizances, here enter into recognizances of $41)0 each, to appear when called upon
for sentence.

Friday, 14th August, 1885.

Clerk opens the court at 4.45 p . m.
Mr. Eobinson.—1 move for the judgment of the court upon the following prison-

ers convicted of felony and treason- felony :—Joseph Arcand, Emmanuel Champagne,
Alexander Cayen, Joseph Delorme, Maxime Dubois, Alexander Fisher, Philippe.
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Gariepie, Pierre Gariepie, Pierre Henry, Maxime Lepine, Albert Monkman. Moise
Ouellette, Philip G-arnot, Alexis Labombarde, Ignace Poitras, sen., Ignace Poitras,
jun., Pierre Parenteau, Moise Parenteau, Joseph Pilon, Baptiste Bocheleau, Jinx
Short, Francois Tourond, Patrice Tourond, Baptiste Yandal, Pierre Vandal.

(Joseph Delorrae says he does not understand English or Cree. All the others
understand Cree.)

Mr. Peter Hourie is sworn as interpreter in Cree.
Mr. Justice Bichardson.— ( Here repeats the names of the prisoners as above.)

You twenty-five mon stand convicted of a very serious offence—(interpreted to the
prisoners in Cree)—the offence of having taken up arms against the Government of
the country, which is termed treason-felony. You have all been convicted upon your
own confession of guilt, freely made when you had the opportunity ofdemanding a trial
by jury, when the facts upon which you were charged would have been brought out
before the court.

Since your trials and convictions, enquiries have beon made. Now, what have
you or any of you to say why J should not pass sentence upon you ?

One prisoner says it is hard, when we were mhled.
Mr. Clarke (for the prisoners.)—If your Lordships will permit me to say some-

thing, not why sentence should not be passed, but why the sentence that is about to be
passed should be made as merciful as possible,,. 1 have a few words to say on behalf
of these prisoners—these unfortunate men.

That the soil of Canada has been bathed in the blood of some of her best sons,
there is no doubt; tbat citizens of Canada can be found, from one end of the country
to the other, who does not deeply regret it cannot bo doubted ; but the blood has
been spilled, the new-made graves are still there, the grass has not begun to grow"
over them, the hearts that were lacerated are still bleeding, and at such a time as
this it is hard indeed if the poor, miserable, unprotected creatures do not find even
one friend to say a word for them. Be assured, my Lords, that in speaking for
them, I speak not as one who sympathizes with the rebellion, under any circum-
stances, except when freemen stand up to defend their rights against thoso"who dam
oppress them (hear, hear) ; but in this, my Lords, think, I beg of you, what position
these unfortunate men held. They are the creatures of circumstances, ignorant and
unsophisticated as the very prairies over which they have roamed since their earliest
days, some of them so long that they are tottering on the brink of the grave, a grave
that must ere long close over them ; still we find them here to-day to be sentenced
for a crime little less than that of death.

Now, lot us consider in a few words what led these men to the position they
hold to day. Unfortunately, the history of what led them here has its inception, not
on the Saskatchewan, but on the banks of the Bed Biver, and we might go probably
a little further, and say that some of the causes that brought them here were-
not to be found on the banks of the Red Biver or of the Saskatchewan,
but that you had to go and find them on the banks of the Ottawa Biver,
and from thence they were transported here. I don't intend, it is far from my
intention, to make anything that can be called a political address, I scorn to
do it at such a time, and under such circumstances as these ; but in stating that there
were faults committed, that there was negligence on the part of tho^e who had the
public interests in their control, there could be no doubt, and I am not saying too
much. Fiiteen years have passed, fifteen long years, and men who were in the prime
of life in "70, are now grey and old, and stale claims tbat were recognized by Her
Majesty's advisers at that period, they are still—were at least up to tne time of this
unfortunate rebellion—unsettled. Under those circumstances, it was not difficult to
find a man who had come forward in '70, to come forward again. The natural leaders
of these men neglected them. Those who should have taught them what their duties
were, these men were not found there. They were left entirely to the control of the
poor priests who had been spending their lives in their midst, sacrificing themselves
for the benefit and the advantage of the human race, in this North-Webt country.
They alone were their directors, and when they required any assistance elsewhere*

374



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 1886*

they had no representatives in Parliament, nobody to speak for them, nobody to
advance their interests, nobody to lay their claims before the Throne that they
might be heard—their voices heard—when asking those rights that were secured to
them by an Act of Parliament, and when, during the last Session of the Parliament
of Canada, when the blue-book of the Interior Department is produced, when we find
it advanced and stated, as a solemn fact to go out to the world, that a Mr. Pearce had
been appointed, that he had gone carefully through every country where this rebel-
lion has raged since, and that he had enquired into every particular case and every
claim of the old settlors, with the result that all these claims have been finally and
satisfactorily settled, I think it is time to understand that however the Government
and the Parliament may have been deceived, that these people could not be deceived.
It turned out afterwards, before the ink was scarcely dry with which that report was
printed, a contradiction went back, I grieve heartily to say it, in the life-blood of
those who were dying at the point of the rifle, of the men who considered themselves
outraged, and were led on to that opinion by a crafty, cunning, conscienceless scoun-
drel whom we all hope—I don't think there is one in Canada probably, who, if thejr
were to speak the truth—whom we all hope to see punished for the crime that he
has committed, and to suffer the extreme penalty of the law. This man then finds
his opportunity, he was supposed to be the natural leader of these people, and they
had no other; they had no representative in Parliament, they had no Local Legis-
lature of their own, they had to appeal to him whom they supposed could be of assis-

tance to them, and, unfortunately for themselves, they went to Montana to invite him
to come from Montana, and they brought Louis Eiel here. Louis Kiel very nearly
succeeded in bringing them to the gallows; but had there been no complaints, had
there been no grievances, there would have been no place for Louis Kiel in this
country. Had there been no grievances on the part of these half-breeds, had they*
not had claims that were entitled to be recognized, Louis Eiel would have been left

in Montana, or to remain in prison, where he had b«en thrown for creating a disturbance
among half-breeds, inducing them, by false oaths ; trying to make them, by false

oaths, stuff a ballot box. He would have been left there to this day. Unfortunately,
on account of those very grievances, Louis Eiel was brought by these people,,

inconsiderately perhaps, but they believed they could confide in that man
;

they had no idea he was going to lead them on to rebellion. What they required was
peaceful agitation by which to secure the attention of Parliament and the authorities,,

and by that means to secure the granting of their rights. This peaceful agitation
went on for some time. Public meetings were called, and at these public meetings
these grievances were ventilated. Well, will anybody tell me it is a crime against
the law to carry on a peaceful agitation? Will anybody tell me that when they
wrote that letter to Montana, that there was anything illegal in it? Will anybody
pretend that when even they got together, and by their oath bound themselves ta
stick to one another so as to obtain by peaceful means the recognition and granting of
rights, that they were guilty of any crime against the law ? 1 hurl the insinuation

back in the face of those who make it, and I tell them that it is the birthright of
every British subject to agitate in public meetings, to petition to the Crown and to*

obtain the rights that he i« entitled to if he possibly can, by those constitutional

means. 1 have no hesitation in raying that up to that time these people were acting
in a legal and a constitutional manner, and if they fell away from those constitutional

means that they had been employing, we will see who was to blame for it.

Now, your lordships will understand perfectly that in dealing with men like

these, we are not dealing with people who have received an education. We are not
dealing with cultivated intellect. We are dealing with wild men of the territories,

so to speak, those who know what they are informed by their leaders who were in the
habit from early days, when their forefathers came to this country, to follow a leader
on the territories, to follow a leader in the buffalo hunt, to follow a leader wherever
they went. They went in parties, and each party had a leader, and they looked up
to that leader as their hope and as their director. In the latter years they followed
leaders that were appointed to them by the various churches and missions. They had
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the Episcopal leader and the Catholic leader ; they had the Presbyterian leader and the
Methodist leader, and they looked up to those leaders and they followed theoi with the
utmost simplicity, and in the utmost confidence that they could not do wrong so long
as these men taught them that they were doing right ; bat there came an evil spirit
nmong them, and when Louis Eioi discovered that he could not win the ministers
over to his side, that he could cot win over to his objects the ministers oi the gospel
and the priests of the country, he then established a new religion of his own.

My Lords, we have placed before you in as comprehensive a manner as possible,
and as fully as we are enabled to do under the circumstances, we have placed before
you the hiatory of that new religion by which the minds and the soals of these unfor-
tunate men are grasped. We have placed before you depositions of such people as
€haries Nolin, the deposition of Father Andre

1

and Father Cochin, and wo have also
the depositions or various others, showing exactly what this man pretended. He
announced himself a prophet, as being a second Moses sent to redeem his people from
the worse than Egyptian bondage. He prayed for them in the open air, extending
Ms hands and his arms in the form of a cross, and sometimes looking towards heaven
and shouting for assistance from the All Wise ; and, at other times, he prostrated
Limself at his full length on his face on the ground and prayed with all the
appearance of the utmost devotion. He told them of the visions that he had
in the night. He told them of the visions he had from angels. He told them
of conversations he had with the Holy Ghost, and he made them believe in fact,
that he had a divine mission and that that divine mission was not only to save
the half-breads of North America, but that that mission was greater still, that when
i he whole world should be in a chaos of revolution and almost annihilation, that he was
the man appointed by the Almighty, hundreds of years ago, as had been foretold, ho said
from reading a book, pretending to be the prophesies of a great Irish saint—Saint
.Bridget, of whom there are a great many living nowa days I believe, that she had
ioretold 200 years ago that he, Louis Ki. 1, being descended from St. Louis, that he
was the man who was to save the world before the dissolution.

Now, it is hard to believe that men of sense, men who have arrived at years of
discretion, that they could believe such nonsense, such twaddle. It is almost incred-
ible that hero, that these wise men from the North-We^t Territories could be made
to believe the sophistry and the trickery of such a juggler as Louis Kiel ; bat just let
-us look at where some men that were wiser than they have been led. Look across
the line. Look into the United States. Go to the city of Utah; go where the mis-
sionaries of Joe Smith are sent from, to all over Europe, and see whole brigades,
whole congregations of Christian men and women that they bring at their beck and
nod on pretented revelations of saints and saint worship that they perform, and the
atrocities that are performed there in the name of religion and in tne name of God,
and then say is it any wonder that these poor creatures could be misled as they have
foeen ? Go to England, to the middle of one ot' the grandest times of her advance-
ment in science or in literature. Go tnere and find a whole crowd, thousands in
3mmber, following at the beck and nod of such an extraordinary creature as Jehovah
&outhscate, and wonder then how it is that tb jse wise men of the territories could be
misled by such a man as Louis Kiel, one who uad been adapted perfectly to become
their leader.

No, my Lords, I think it is no wonder they were misled.
Is being misled a reason why they should not suffer for their crime ? My Lords,

I don't pretend it is, but I do pretend that so soon as you have the proof before you
that you are satisfied that these men were led through their conscience, that they
were led through their intellect, weak as it is, by the superior cunning of a man who
had, no doubt, been nursing this idea for years, then you have the best possible rea-
son for believing that they did not commit these crimes with any intention such as
animates, as a general thing, those who are led into revolution and who will kill their
lellow man for a selfish purpose.

My Lords, you have the evidence before you of that unfortunate widow, Mrs.
xourond, with her seven sons. If anything more extraordinary can possibly be con-
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ceived, I should like to hear of it, for I have never read of anything more extraor-

dinary. Seven as fine young men as could bo found in British North America,
either white or half-breed, peaceable, honest, sober, hardworking—this man Kiel was
determined, if possible, to get hold of them. He tried every means in his power*

Ho felt they would not come to him or with him under any circumstances, and then

the trickster had recourse to the conscience of their mother, and to her superstition.

He goes there day after day. He prays with her, he prays for her. He enacts

-apparently all the conduct of a saint in the agony of prayer and of devotion, and then,

he comes to her day after day, and at last tells her. announces the fact that he had a
grand vision ol their being visited by the Holy Ghost and the Virgin Mary, and
what did ho say? Seven most brilliant stars of extraordinary brilliancy, he said.

Said he, you are the proud mother of these seven stars, and thoy shine with a lustre

^nd brilliancy to all future time. With their assistance, with the divine mission that

I have to accomplish, they will assist us in* carrying out this great reform ; and the

poor mother, led by her "conncience, led by her superstition, begged and prayed of

her sons to go forth and fight under the banner of heaven, as she supposed for the

rigfct. And to day where is that mother ? Where are those sons ? The weeping
widow, almost without cheer, now sits somewhere, probably under the shade of a

tree, if she can find one on the banks of the Saskatchewan, within sight of the graves

of two of her mauly young sons, with the grave of a third still almost unfilled, who-

<tied at the shock of the death of his two brothers who wore killed in the rifle pits at

Batoche, a fourth who is a cripple for life, and the other two, ray Lords, stand before

jou here awaiting your sentence, and in the name of everything that is human, in

the name of every principle of right, if it is possible for you, I ask you, my Lords,

to be merciful to that unfortunate mother, bo merciful to the unfortunate sons and
send them home to her as a consolation in hor failing years.

Now, it was by such means as this that these unfortunate men were led on to-

do what they did. You have the proof, my Lords, before you, as well as wo could

place it, not having a trial. You have tho proof that when these men, even those

who were called the most bloodthirsty, the most dangerous, had they been

fighting on the other side they would have been considered the bravest. It makes
all the difference on what side you are fighting. If you are fighting on the side

of law and order, you are a hero. Jf you are fighting on the side of those opposed to

law and order, you are a ruffian and brigand.

Well, you have proof that even in times of the greatest excitement, at the time

when it might bo supposed that everything around them was colored in blood, you

have the proof that the prisoners who were in their charge, the prisoners who were

kept there by then?, were treated with French courtesy as a general thing. They
had the best that they themselves had to eat, and there were only one or two amongst

the whole of those half-wild men who offered any indignity to those prisoners whUft

they were in their chai»ge. This, my Lords, should teii on their behalf, and I have

no doubt that it will.

Now, with reference to the degrees of culpability ; some of these men have cer-

tainly* been more guilty than the others. Some of these men are more intelligent

than the others. Some of them are so little removed from the Indians that in reality

the Crown was as much bound to send them defenders as they were to send defenders

to the Indians. I think, my Lords, that when you consider this, and consider that

such an object of misery and passion as that creature yonder with the one eye, with

his hair and face indicating one degree above an ordinary bjrn idiot, that something

like mercy, if not compassion, will be bestowed upon such creatures as that

(Labombarde). Look at some of them tottering on the brink of the grave, some of

them weak from their former exposure, weak from the weight of years, trembling

there before you, not understanding a word that is said, left at the mercy of the court,

not knowing even what they are charged with, the interpreter not being able to

translate into their language the words of the law. They are here, and thoy stand

in that woeful position
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Mr. Justice Kichardson.—Did I understand you to say that these men did not
understand what they were charged with ?

Mr. Clarke.—My Lord, 1 state that they have no comprehensive understanding
of the last words that your Lordship addressed to tbem. It is a well known fact
that in the Cree language you cannot interpret such a word as treason-felony. Far
be it from me to insinuate for one moment that anything like injustice would bo
done to these men here. I have too much confidence in the integrity of the jadgesv
and the justice of a British court to even insinuate a thing of the sort. All that Ida
want, and all that I stand here for, is to beg for mercy for these prisoners. They
admit their crime. They can do no more, and at the same time that they admit
their crime some of them have admitted a crime which they could not have been
punished for, that they could not havo been found guilty of.

You are aware that this proclamation was issued. It was issued by those in
authority. The proclamation bears no date. It does not say if they come forward
and present themselves voluntarily and surrender at Carlton or at Prince Albert that
they will be protected. It does not say if they come forward before any particular
day or after any particular day. The proclamation bears no date. It is in full fores-
to-day, as full as the first day it was issued, whatever day that was, and with a confi-
dence that has been inspired in their hearts by that kind of ample, fair and manly
justice that has been done to tbem heretofore in the North-West Territories, they did
come forward and by the advice of their priests they surrendered themselves, and at
the same time two dozen or more of these men stand here to-day. But there is pro-
bably one dozen of them almost entirely innocent, whereas at least 40 or 50 of thev
worst men that took part in the whole rebellion are now at liberty around the banks.
of the river at Batoche and elsewhere, and have not been arrested at all. I took the
liberty of explaining why it was that this group of men were arrested. One of ^ie-
Oown witnesses handed a list of the leaders and the worst men in the rebellion to
General Middleton. General Middleton was to cause the arrest of those men and have
them brought as prisoners to Regina or whatever point ordered by the Government,
but from the fact that he had so much to do, that his time was so occupied, that his
mind was so pre-cccupied, he lost that list of those who were to have been arrested
and brought these, and the result was that when the steamer arrived it had to leave
almost immediately, and he came to the conclusion along with this same Crown
witness—and your Lordships have that evidence before you—that they would take a
certain number of these people who had surrendered and bring them here, as the
Crown might require evidence before they would be able to convict the leaders of the*
rebellion who were to be put on trial. This accounts for a number of these men
being here today who should not have been here, and some of whom I expect, I
trust, to hear your Lordships discbarge without any sentence within a few minutes.
For the others, those that have taken a part, I ask your Lordships to consider on
their behalf and in their favor the good acts that they have performed. Let not the*
wrhole of their lives be blasted because they were guilty of one act which they should
not have been guilty of. Let them have a fair chance. For that which they did in
the interest oi mercy and of manhood, let them have all the advantage that they
ought to have as a recompense for doing that. Let that young Tourond— who, when
Louis JRiel ordered the prisoners to be taken and handed over to the Indians that
they might be massacred before their eyes—let that manly young fellow, whoso three
brothers lie dead and who has one crippled lor life, who came foiward before Louis
JRiel and said : Before you kill one of these prisoners you must kill me—surely, my
Lords, such an act as that you will not let be forgotten when it comes to the time to
sentence that man for whatever he may have been guilty of against the law.

And the others ; those who plead so hard for the Indians, those whose conduct
may appear in a very dark light, that man Monkman, for instance, why should he
not obtain all the consideration that can possibly be bestowed on his case, in his*

favor, when you consider how much he did do as well as how much be did not do.
When you consider that but for him the English half-breeds would probably have
Joined into this rebellion or revolution, and that a great deal more bloodshed would
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have been the consequence, and a great deal more expense and disaster to the coun-
try. It must be remembered that when he was sent there—you have the evidence

—

that while speaking to the English half-breeds he said, " I am sent to induce you to

join in with Kiel; now I advise you not to do anything of the sort; go home and
have nothing to do with Louis Riel or with this revolution." You have proof before*

you of many other acts of kindness and many other manly acts performed by this*

man Monkman, and let it not be forgotten, my Lords, on his behalf, that the name of
*' Monkman " should be remembered with a good deal of gratitude if not with respect
in this North-West Territory. At the darkest days of the revolution of 1870, when
a man, who is now a Senator of the Dominion, when his lite was trembling in the*

balance, it was the father of this boy who risked his life, and risked it a dozen times
over, so that he might save the life of John Christian Schultz after he had been
sentenced to death by this same Louis Eiel, and what the father did for the countryr
I ask your Lordships not to forget when you are considering the sentence of the son.

My Lords, there is another thing that I beg to draw yoar attention to. Through
all this revolution, through all the bloodshed and all the turmoil that took place, let

'it be remembered that up to the present moment, not the approach to an insult was
offered to a woman. I don't know if in any other country on the face of the eartk.

such a thing could be said, that a. revolution where Indians and whites and half breeds
were mixed up together, there was not an insult offered to any one woman during
the whole course of it. That speaks with a thousand tongues in favor of these

men, and it shows that while they were desperate, while they fought like lions and
tigers, that still the man was in them, the hearts of men, and women were sacred
from touch or from injury. Let that not be forgotten in their favor.

My Lords, while I speak to you I am aware that it may appear to your Lord-
ships, who are so thoroughly conversant with everything connected with this rebel-

lion, that I am simply repeating that which you know and have heard before, yet
there are others outside of this court that have not heard. These people have been
made to believe—they have been led to believe by Louis Eiel and others like him—
that when they came before a court of justice there was no justice for them and
nobody to speak for them, that they would meet with nothing but the mo»?t deter-

mined punishment, that death was their portion. Now, let them understand, and
through them let all the half-breeds of this country understand, that when a half-

breed comes before a British court he will find a British advocate to stand up and to

defend his rights, to defend his interests, to defend his life with as much energy, with
as much vigor and with as much determination as he would that of any white man
who is admittedly under the shadow of Her Majesty's protection.

This is one reason why my learned friends here who are in the case with me
asked that something should be said on behalf of these men when they came to be

sentenced.

My Lords, I am satisfied that in giving them a light sentence, the majesty of

the law will be thoroughly vindicated. If sentencing the youngest of them for life

would bring back any one of those who lost their lives during the late rebellion to
life, I would be the last to say rot to send them for life ; but will sending them to a
penitentiary for a long term of years—will that bring back one life that has been
lost ? Will it soothe or comfort or console one heart that has been broken by this

unfortunate rebellion? Will it dry the tears of a mother who has lost her son?
Will it recompense the heart of the widow who has lost her husband ? Will it bring-.

back any of those things that have been lost, to punish these men ? Is it not in the
very heart and fouI and substance of the law that justice, and not vengeance, is the

platfoim upon which, or the foundation upon which, the law is constructed? Let
this principle not be departed from. It may be said some of these men are very
Bafe because they did not go to the gallows ; they only go to the penitentiary. The
penitentiary, my Lords, what is it ? A living tomb, a half-way house, a compromise
between life and death, a compromise such as no brave man would accept if ho had
the choice between life and death. It is a place where a man is immured from the>

outer world. It is a place where doors are locked, and no hearts feel and no hearta
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throb except that of misery ; misery, treble the misery, without* locked doors. The
seasons may come around in their annual course, the sun may shine brightly, and
birds may sing, but to him all is gloom-—one day so like another, that when death
xomes it ODly seems like another night.

My Lords, consider this, and consider that these unfortunate men have not even
that which may comfort others when they are sent to a penitentiary. They cannot
either read or write. They have not the means of amusement. There, mind must
brood on mind, until soul eats soul and the man becomes either* a maniac or a
corpse.

I ask you, my Lords, I ask you in the interests of humanity ; I ask you in the
interests of these unfortunate people, and of their unfortunate families—over 150
children are represented here, their fathers being before you awaiting their sentence

;

their bread-winners are now in your hands, and you are to determine what becomes
of them-—I ask you to send as many of them home as you can in mercy, so that they
may be able to make a living for their little ones, that they may not become a charge
upon the country or waifs on the prairies, and that their lives hereafter may become
a curse to the people and lo the Government of this country.

My Lords, I will not detain you any longer. We have read—and I thank you,
and thank you most sincerely, you gentlemen representing the Crown, for the atten-
tion with which we were listened to in producing this immense volume of evidence,
and which we went over carefully to-day and yesterday, on behalf of these prisoners;
but I would say to ray learned friends representing the Crown, two gentlemen who
reflect credit and honor on the profession where they come from—I ask them to put
in a soit word on the side of mercy for these prisoners, and that if they can in any
way influence your Lordships in your verdict, I ask them to do it on the side of mercy
rather than on the side of revenge, which is not the intention nor the object of this
law, the inflicting of punishment.

Mr. Kobinson.—-I would only ask to be permitted to say that as my learned
friend has said, we have gone very carefully over, both with your lordship and him,
the case of each prisoner, and we have stated as fully and fairly as we can, everything
that tells in their favor as well as against them, and your Honors are perfectly welt
aware, revenge, as it is expressed, is the last thing on earth that the Crown conceived,
cksired or thought of.

Mr. Justice Richardson.—(Interpreted in Cree to the prisoners.) If you
twcnty.five men had not been defended on you*- trial you certainly have had the best
advocate, as good an advocate in your favor towards merciful consideration in your
case, as I think could be produced.

You have been convicted, as I said before, of the second oust serious offence that
belongs to the criminal calendar. And from what has come under the notice of my
brother MacLeod, who has kindly come down to assist me in the arduous duty that
I had to perform, what has come under our notice, I say, it seems but too plain that
the representatives of the Crown might have charged you with the higher offence of
treason. If they had done so there u.-ould have been no alternative but a trial by
jury, and if you had been convicted, there would have been no alternative for us
sitting here bat to say to everyone they should bo hanged.

You have been charged with the lesser effenco of taking up arms and fighting
Her Majesty's troops, and while my brother MacLeod and myself are relieved from
passing the great sentence of death upon you, we have still a very arduous task before
us, and a terrible one at that. We have listened patiently to what your counsel has
addressed to us. We have read and examine.! the papers he has produced to us. We
bave considered them as carefully as we could consider them, and throughout the
whole of our considerations, not one word of pressure has been brought upon us by
the representatives of the Crown, to dictate or to regulate or to press for extra pun-
ishment upon you.

The counsel who has addressed us just now in your behalf has alluded to the
position you stand in with regard to those dependent upon you. He has mentioned
to us the losses that have occurred in life, the lives that have been takea there and.
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the numbers of widows and orphans there are, and it is very proper that he should

have done so, quite proper that he should have done so, but while doing so and while

considering that, as would be our duty, while considering that, we have another duty

to perform. Are there no other widows and orphan children in Canada whose pre-

sent position is due to your wrongful act ? While looking at one side which would

be your interest and the interest of your friends, we have to look surely to the other

side.

The law defines what is a crime and defines also the limit of punishment for

violating that law, for committing that crime ; and the object of punishing for com-

mitting a crime is not only to make you and those about you feel for what you have*

done, and feel keenly, but to deter others from following your evil example.

Now, ih your cases the law fixes the punishment at life or less than life, impri-

sonment tor life or less than life. What the penitentiary may be, what its rules may
be, and what horrors it might induce, we have nothing to do with. The law of the

land fixes that, as it tells the punishment for certain offenders.

Your cases have received the best consideration, the most serious considerations:

we could give them, and using the best discretion which we could give to them and

which could be given to them, we have arrived at certain conclusions. And we have

been led to classify you, and while classifying, we have in no instance gone to the

extreme limit of the law, and while exercising the discretion which the law imposes-

upon thexourt, it is but right that I should say that it lies still with the Crown, it

lies still with the Queen's representative to vary that, to lighten that sentence. In

the classification we have made, the greatest difficulty which has beset us has been how
to dispose of an old man, one of you, Pierre Parenteau, whose age is given as 72,

aod giving to his case every consideration that we could, every reasonable consider-

ation, we cannot conclude, old as he may be, to relieve him from the foremost list.

Any interference with that must rest, of course, with Her Majesty's representative,

with the Crown.
Tbe sentence of the court upon Philip Gariepie, Alexander Cayen, Pierre Henri,

Maxime Lepine, Pierre Parenteau, James Short, Baptiste Yandal, Pierre Yandal,

Albert Monkman, Philip Garnot, and Maxime Dubois, the sentence upon you, and

each of you, is that you be confined in the penitentiary of Manitoba for a period of

seven years.

Alexander Fisher
;
Pierre Gariepio, Moise Ouellette, the sentence of the court upon

you is that you be confined in the penitentiary of Manitoba for the period of three

years each.

Joseph Arcand, Moise Parenteau, Ignace Poitras the elder, Ignace Poitras the

younger, the sentence of the court upon each of you is that you be imprisoned in the

common gaol, at Eegina, for the period of one year each, with hard labor. %* i

Emmanuel Champagne, Joseph Pi Ion, Baptiste Bocheleau, Francois Tourond,

Patrice Tourond, Alexis Labombarde, Joseph Delorme, upon each of you no sen-

tence will be passed. You wili be discharged to-day upon your own recognizance to

appear for sentence when called upon, if the Crown should see fit to require you.

Octave Begnier also discharged on his own recognizance.

THE QUEEN vs. JOSEPH ABOAND, ET AL.

North-West Territories, ")

To wit

:

J

I, Alexis Andre, of Prince Albert, Priest, Superior of the Catholic Mission of

Carlton, being duly sworn, depose aod say :

—

1. I havo lived twenty-five years among the half-breeds in Dakota and Manitoba,

and fifteen years among them at that part of the Saskatchewan where the late rebel-

lion broke out. I personally know almost every one of the half-breeds, and am
thoroughly well aware of the various ways and means by which Louis Biel secured

the adhesion of these people.

381



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 1886

2. I most solemnly declare from my own personal knowledge that with the excep-
tion of Gabriel Dumont, Napoleon Neault and Damase Carriere, now deceased, not one
of the other half-breeds had the least idea or suspicion that there was any probability
or. danger of rebellion, until they were so completely involved in the toils of Kiel,
and he had led them on until they were so compromised, that there was no escape*
for them. On the one side were most glowing promises of peace and plenty for
them if they would follow him as their leader

; on the other hand they were made
to religiously believe that they had no mercy to expect at the hands of the soldiers,
police, or from the Government of Canada ; if taken prisoners or wounded, they were
told nothing but death with unpitying torture awaited them at the hands of the
soldiers and police, and their wives, daughters and sisters would be dishonored before
their eyes, their children hacked to pieces, and all their earthly property utterly
destroyed, and their whole nation exterminated by the brutal soldiery. But if any-
thing were wanting to complete the terror of those poor, deluded people, it was sup-
plied when pointing out the fate of Charles Nolin, who had been sentenced to death
by Kiel for desertion, and ordered to be shot on view as a deserter, was imprisoned
hy the police. The treatment of Charles Nolin by the authorities gave great force
to 'Kiel's threats, and above all to a great extent gave an appearance of truth to the
assertion of Kiel when he so often warned his unfortunate dupes, that there was no
meicy to be expected for them if they were taken prisoneis or surrendered to the
police or Government.

It will be remembered that a proclamation was issued by Major Crozier at my
suggestion, knowing that a great many of the half-breeds were kept by force, and had
been brought by force into camp. The proclamation of which a copy is herewith
produced offered protection to all those who were forced to take part in the rebellion,
on their surrendering themselves to the commanding officer at Carlton or Princo
Albert. Now, on this proclamation, Charles Nolin, when he made his escape, at once
went to Prince Albert with the proclamation in his pocket, confident in his loyalty,
and in the promise given in Her Maj-sty's name, applied to the officer in command
for protection. He was rewarded for his loyalty and confidence by being ironed and
oast into prison, where he was kept for two months, without any charge or accusa-
tion being made against him, and without any explanation being given'to him, and
was at length liberated without any explanation or excuse.

This most illegal and ill judged proceeding gave fearful weight to Kiel's asser-
tions " See " cried he, " what you have to expect if you desert as Nolin did. See
the mercy that will be shown to you, and think of your wives and families. Nolin is
a deserter, he will be shot if 1 can catch him, and the police have him chained in
prison, from which he will be brought out only to be hanged like a dog, &c. Now
you know that death is the certain portion of any. traitor or deserter from our sacred
oauee, or of those who attempt to escape from our camp when the lives of their friends
and families depend on all being true to our holy cause." The poor people were also
terrorized into submission by their cunning leader pointing ouc to them anyone
deserting now in the hour of danger, in the face of the enemy, would live a life of
shame, abandoned by all honest and brave men, would go down to the grave dis-
honored with the name of coward, and would leave behind them a memory branded
with disgrace, which would be carried on his brow by every one of his descendants
to future generations.

Pierre Parenteau I have known since I met him in the Bed Kiver Settlement,
now Manitoba, since 1862. He is a man of 72 years of age, and has eleven children,
and since I first knew him has been a man of peace, one who was remarkable for the
good influence he exerted over the people of his race and kindred, who, when on the
plains in days now passed, a leader of his people he prevented many a bloody deed
between the Indian tribes and half-breeds, and always was on the side of peace and
order. This good old man was misled by the wily Kiel telling him that the younger
men of his race required the soothing and pacifying influence of the old friend and
counsellor of their forefathers ; that it was his duty to become a leader or counsellor
among the people in their peaceful efforts to secure their rights. That it was by such
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assistance as his that he depended upon avoiding all approach to violence, and to
succeed in keeping union and peace among the hall-breed people. This poor old man
was borne on by the appeal to his heart and conscientiously did what he thought was
right. He was not in conscience or in fact guilty of any disloyal thought or action,
and stands before God and man to day, although in a felon's cell, an honest man. To
keep such an aged and respectable man as this any longer in prison must be to
strike at the heart of justice and render law a thing of scorn. His house has been
burned down and all his horses and some of his cattle are lost or stolen.

Emmanuel Champagne I have known since 1861. He was then a resident of
Dakota, and was doing a considerable business at Pembina during the horrors of the
Sioux massacre in 1862, and has a wife and seven children. Champagne saved the
lives of many white men and women at the risk of his own life and "property, and
is gratefully remembered by many of the white people of Dakota to this day.
After living in Eed River Settlement and Manitoba, respected for many years, he
came to the Saskatchewan about six years ago, and lived at Batoche, where he had a
very fine place and a large business. I believe he was worth at least twenty five
thousand dollars—today he is a ruined man. When Eiel proposed to the old
man to join the movement of the half-breed rights he promptly refused to do
so. Persuasion of all kinds failed to induce "him to go in with Eiel. When
Eiel and his followers came to Batoche, Champagne was again solicited to
join the movement, and, on positively refut-ing to do so, threats were used
instead of sweet words. Unless you consent to become a member of the council
your whole property will be pillaged, your life will not be safe, you will be
at the mercy of those who wish to abuse you, and by threats and force the
old man was kept there, but he acted as he always had done, defended those who
were in danger. To him Tom McKay owes his liberty, if not his life, and to McKay's
being at liberty the Government of Canada owes the fact, to a great extent, of the
speedy suppression of the rebellion. I have no hesitation in declaring that Cham-
pagne, instead of being in prison as a malefactor, ought to be distinguished by the
Government as one who was loyal and true to his Queen and country in a time of
trying danger. One thing is certain—a very short time longer in prison, and death
will deliver him, as he is sick, old and failing fast. He is between sixty and seventy
years old.

Maxime Lepine I know well. He was a leading man in Manitoba before he
came to the Saskatchewan. He was in favor of constitutional agitation to secure the
rights of the hall-breeds, but was positively opposed to violence of any kind, and it

was only by compulsion ho was kept among the Eiel people. He opposed himself to
Eiel in every way he could, and prevented a great deal of violence and mischief by
his determination. He was always very moderate and peaceful in his conduct. He
has a wife and six children, and is about fiity years of age.

Pierre Gariepie is an old man of fifty-five years of age, and has a wife and seven
children, and has been all his life nearly on the plains as a hunter* He has a large
family, and is ignorant of the ways of political tricksters and civilized agitators. He
is juBt one or two degrees above the Indian, but was a leader among the plain
hunters. Eiel made him believe there would be no trouble or violence, and when
the wounded at Duck Lake were about to be brutally massacred by the Indians it

was this old roan in particular who saved them.
Albert Monkman I have known for two years past. He is a man who has been

very much, and I think unfairly, abused and misrepresented. I always found him
kind and good, and he always took the part of the weak and defenceless against Eiel,
to his own very great danger and risk. The opinion I got of him from my brother
priests is mo^t favorable. He prevented the burning at Duck Lake and St, Laurent of
the Catholic churches, although not a Catholic himself, and was imprisoned by Eiel
because he opposed him in every way he could and wanted to escape from the rebel
camp. I sincerely believe that Monkman was a good, true and loyal man, who was
placed in most difficult circumstances, and acted amid danger and difficulty as few
men would dare to do for the best interests of the country, even at the imminent risk
of his life.
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Philip Gariepie, forty-eight years of ago, I have known for twenty-five years
He has been married for twenty years, and has a large family of six children. All
the settlers know this man and respect him. He is one of the most respectable andf
peaceable men in the whole country, kind-hearted and gentie as a woman. I am
informed that he is accused with having abased a wounded man -Newitt. From)
my personal and intimate knowledge of this man's character and disposition, I dof
not hesitate to pronounce this accusation to be false and unfounded. It is repugnant
to every feeling of the heart of a man like Gariepie. It is the act of a savage and
brutal and wolfish nature and disposition. He is quite the contrary—kind, amiable
and. charitable, while his accuser, who is, if I am rightly informed, one JLeveque, is

totally unworthy of belief. He came to the Saskatchewan poor and miserable, and
was treated kindly by Gariepie, whom he now tries to ruin.

Joseph Arcaijd is a poor, harmless kind of individual, about fifty years of age>
with a wife and six children living. He was plunged in misfortune at the time of
the rebellion. He lost two children by death during that time, and was almost in
despair. He took no part in any fight, and was sent away to protect the prisoners
in Poundmaker's camp, where his conduct was kind and considerate. The poor man
is still keenly suffering from the sad loss of his children, and is an objoct of pity
more than vengeance.

Alexis Labombarde is a poor, old, almost blind man. He has a wife but no
children, eighty-two years of age. I have known him for twenty-five years past. I
was sent by the Government as a commissioner to the Sioux in 1862, during the
massacre, and this old man was my interpreter at the time. I found him honest, trusty
and reliable. He has been acting as an interpreter the greater part of his life, and he
is now accused of acting in that capacity between Kiel and the Sioux. He did so with-
out any evil intent, ana without any idea that he was doing wrong. I know myself
that he told the Sioux to be moderate and not to kill ; this I know from the Sioux
themselves who told me. $ow, to punish this old man for acting as an interpreter
would be jubt about as just as to punish a telephone for carrying sound. I do not
think the Government of Canada will advance their own glory or the interests of the*

Dominion by going to the cradle to find criminals, or on the verge of the grave to
find victims.

Philip Garnot I have known for about four or five years. He is a very nervous
and timid creature, with very little courage or decision of character. Ri6l ordered

]

him to take up arms ; he refused to do so, and continued keeping his little boarding :

house and attending to his business. Day after day for four days Kiel ordered him to
come and take part in the movement, at last fiiel ordered him to be dragged to the
camp, where overpowered by terror for his life and fear of loss of his property, he con-
sented for fear of death to act as secretary, but refused to fight, or to resort to the
use of arms. It must he remembered that having a gun in one's hand in Kiel's camp
was no proof of disloyalty or of being a fighting rebel. Many had to carry a gun to
protect themselves or their property from the savages who were not at all particular
whose property they took when the desire possessed them. I have reason to know
that Garnot was invariably kind and considerate to the prisoners and to all those

|whom he could assist in his peculiar position.

Alexander Fisher I have known for twenty-five years, part in Manitoba and
in the Saskatchewan. He is an innocent, flighty kind of fellow, who is always ready
and anxious to create a laugh. He was tHe owner of the ferry and it was all he had
to support his family. He was compelled to remain to try and save his ferry and wire
cable as it was his all. Ho was always opposed to the Hiel movement, and it was only
abject fear of death that caused him to remain in the camp in addition to the fact that
his three little daughters were in the convent school, and he feared if he escaped
they would suffer lor him. T am told that a great deal of importance is attached to a !

paper signed by him as Governor of the Saskatchewan, or of some other silly joke of
J

that kind. Surely no one can be mistaken in seeing that. the poor creature was joking.
He is of so volatile a disposition that he will do any kind of silly folly to make people
laugh. Again he is I believe accused of signing a declaration of neutrality. Well, it-
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may be a crime to do so and it may make a man disloyal, and guilty of high treason
to do so. The poor half-breeds are not very deeply versed in the noble science of
law, and they may be perhaps pardoned for doing that which their priests were obliged
to do under a superior force, to save their lives and to be able to assist the tardy
authorities whose neglect had left them at the mercy of a lunatic or a tyrant. Fisher
never took up arms. He has lost all his property, he is guilty of being obliged to do
the best he could to save his life arid that is all his guilt. In all other respects he is
perfectly innocent. He has three children whose mother is dead.

Pie; re Henri is known to me for twenty years. The last two or three years in
Saskatchewan. He is a very quiet, silent man. Eiel used him as a counsellor because
he never has anything to say and is a profoundly ignorant man. I solemnly declare
that I know of no act of his that was bad. He did no harm of any kind to anyone,
and was more a cat's-paw than anything else. He has a very large and helpless family
of a wife and seven children. One of his sons being a confirmed invalid, Gor* knows
what will become of them if he is kept in prison, they will become a charge on the
public. He has lost all his property.

Mcise Ouellette I know for twenty-five years. He is not a man of much intelli-
gence. He has a very large family of eleven children and his wife and is their only
support. He assisted Lepine and Koss ; and Ouellette, from the begmning, opposed Eiel
in every way possible, and they did all they could to prevent rebellion and any resort
to arms. This may be seen in Riel's prayers, when he prays to God to change Ouellette
and others. Ouellette was the man who carried General Middleton's letter to Biel
for which he was promised considerations. He is about forty -five years of age.

Ignace Poitras, senior and junior. I have known the old man for fifteen years,
since he came and settled on the Saskatchewan. He is one of the most simple, honest
and peaceable men in the whole settlement, never mixing in any agitation or trouble;
I am very intimately acquainted with him. I have often been his guest, and always
found a welcome at his hospitable house. His industry and economy made him a
comfortable and well off man. He was, fortunately for the prisoners in Kiel's camp,
one of their guards, and I was told by several of them that he was kind and good to
them always. He is about sixty years of age and has a wife and ten children, and
has lost everything. The young man was with his father and is a harmless youth.
The old man is old and feeble, and has suffered very greatly in health and property.
The best interests of justice would, I think, be satisfied by sending him home to his
poor family.

Baptiste Yandal is the near neighbor of Poitras, and I can say the same about
him that I do of Poitras. He resisted for a long time before he could be forced to
join Eiel, and did so only from fear and compulsion. He has a lasge family of a wife
and eight children, and is a very poor man, and is an old man of about fifty years of
age. Eiel wantedgto name him a captain but he refused positively to act, and hence
was appointed one of the guards over the prisoners, and they all agree that he was
most kind to them, and gave them any little comfort in his power, such as tobacco, &c.

Baptiste Eocheleau, who is generally known as Old Man Eocheleau, is nearly
seventy years old. He was always a hard working, peaceable man. Has a family
of a wife and four children and was entirely opposed to Eiel's proceedings. He
refused to fight or do anything wrong, and was like the last two named placed over
the prisoners and compeJled, through fear, to remain in camp. He speaks the Eng-
lish a little and proved useful and a friend to the prisoners. He is a humane and
good old man.

Joseph Helorme I knew in Manitoba and during the three years that he has been
in the Saskatchewan. He was always a very respectable, hard working man, very
honest and well thought of. He, for a long time, refused to have anything to do with
Eiel, and induced his neighbors to refuse to do the same. It was only by force and
threats that he was compelled to take part with the rebel party. He has been very
severely wounded, is a cripple for life, and his home and family utterly ruined. If
he offended he has been very heavily punished, and the hand of justice might, in
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mercy, deal lightly with him. He has a wife and four children and has lost every-

Maxime Dubois I have known since he was a boy. He has a family of seven

children. He was in my service for some time, and proved honest, faithful and

reliable, and has been greatly trusted by his employers, and always proved very

worthy of being trusted. This poor man was induced to surrender himself by

the advice of Father Yegreville, and is now a prisoner for the reason above. He is

•about thirty-six years of age, and his wife is a cripple.

Pierre Vandal I have known for fifteen years. He has seven children, young,

.and unable to provide for themselves. He is thirty-six years of age. The poor

man was sick and unable to do anything; being useless, Kiel sent him off to Battte-

ford along with the others to protect the prisoners in Poundmaker's camp. He
neither had arms nor did anything for which he should suffer the punishment he has

suffered since he foolishly surrendered himself to the authorities.

Alexander Cadieux, or Kitwayo, is a pure Indian but has lived with the half-

breeds. I have known him for seventeen years, he is a hunter and has a great deal

of influence with the Indian tribes. He has a very large family of ten children and

their mother. Two of the children are cripples, and he is an old man nearly sixty

years of age. He spent the winter hunting away two hundred miles at Turtle Lake,

and onlv arrived about the end of April when he was seized by Kiel and forced into

his service. He was not present at any battle and rendered very signal service m
saving the lives of the teamsters when the Indians were about to massacre them,

after taking them prisoners. He has lost everything.

James Short was always a good, honest man. He was a buffalo hunter, ignorant

and easily led away ; Kiel made him believe anything he wished. Although an

ignorant man, he is a noble fellow, and incapable of a mean or unmanly action. He
was present above Lopine's Crossing when flat boats were sunk in the river with a

large quantity of arms and so forth belonging to the Government, and Captain

Gagnon, Superintendent of the North-West Mounted Police, at Prince Albert, told

me that Short saved a large quantity of rifles and other property for the Government

by diving down in twelve feet of water. I beg leave earnestly to recommend this

man to the clemency and mercy of the court, as he has a large and helpless family

of a wife and ten children depending on him for support, and refused to run away

or escape when told to do so, but went to work to make a living for his family and

was made prisoner while freighting.

Joseph Pilon is a farmer, and has a family of ten children, and is about ntty

years of age. He lived half a mile from Batoche, he was always an industrious and

hard working man. When the trouble broke out this man was ordered by Kiel to

come into camp or he would force him to come, as he had protested against Kiel a

movements, and had refused to attend any of his meetings, and never contributed

one cent towards Kiel's support last winter. Pilon, when he was threatened by

Kiel, came to the priests, and cried when telling what was wanted of him. Kiel by

force and threats against his life compelled him to serve his purpose. Poor man, he

deserves pity rather than punishment.

Francois and Patrice Tourond are brothers. I have known them for a long

time. They are unmarried. They are among the most respectable families of the

North-West. They were seven sons and a widowed mother. These young men

were the admiration of all the neighborhood ; they were so quiet and hard working

;

their farm was the nicest kept in the settlement. They were opposed to Kiel in all

his movements. The crafty Kiel tried every means to induce the boys to join him,

but without success. They were well off, had a fine farm, plenty of cattle and

horses, and were worth a good deal of money. Kiel weDt day after day to the poor

widow, and with his devilish cunning played on her superstition and credulity. He
told her of his holy visions, how he saw himself surrounded by seven glorious star*

of extraordinary brightness crowning him with glory. These bright stars, he cried,

are your seven glorious sons, who are to achieve the glory of the half-breed nation,

and the poor woman, in her simple faith of his divine mission, prayed of her fine
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young sons to go forth and battle under the banner of heaven. Alas, with what
terrible results ! That once happy home is now desolate, the wealth produced by
industry and sobriety is swept away like snow before the wind ; the proud young
eons, their mother's pride and strength, where are they ? Three of them, shot on the
field of battle, lie in hurried graves on the banks of the Saskatchewan, another died
of a broken heart at the sudden shock of the terrible death of his brothers, another
wounded and crippled for life, and two, the two above named, prisoners awaiting
sentence at the hands of outraged majesty of the law of their country. Oh, spirit of
mercy, enter the heart of their judge in pity and compassion, for the poor heart-
broken widow now almost childless

; deal mercifully with these poor deluded young
men, and in mercy send them home to console the desolate heart of their mother.
It must be remembered to tbe credit of Patrice that when Kiel ordered the prisoners
to be given up to the savages to be brutally murdered he cried out: "Kiel, these
prisoners you shall not kill till you kill me first." These two young men are the
only support of their mother and two young sisters. They have lost all their
property.

In conclusion I would most earnestly pray for mercy for these poor people,
ignorant, innocent, confiding ; they were misled by one who thoroughly knew their
weak minds and their heart. They were called on in the name of God and of the
holf saints, by one who declared himself ordained by God to do a great and good
work. They were blinded by pretended visions and messages from the Holy Ghost

;

poor people, in their trusting confidence they were led on to desolation, misery and
death. Over the grave of the silent dead, rise up the shrieks of despair of the fran-
tic living, to a righteous God for consolation and succour and to the majesty of the
offended laws of their country for mercy.

That gallant soldier, Captain H. S. Moore, said to Bishop Grandin : "Although
I am one of the greatest sufferers by this terrible rebellion, and will limp through
life on one leg, yet I say from my soul, hang Eiel and Dumont, but forgive all the
others. They are innocent of intentional crime, and were misled by that soulless
rascal Eiel. I forgive them from my heart." This is the spirit in which I lnmbly
beg of the court to consider the sentence of my poor half-breed people; show them
that their priests, who always tried to lead them to act as loyal and good subjects,
should have some little influence to temper the sword of justice and direct the hand
of mercy.

A, AJSTDEE, O.M.I.
Sworn before me at Eegina, in the

")
said Territories, this thirteenth v
day of August, A.D. 1885. )

Dixie Watson, Clerk of the Court.

PEOCLAMATION.
All persons forced to take part in the rebellion against our Sovereign Lady

Queen Victoria, or those retained by the rebels against their will, will receive pro-
tection in presenting themselves to the Commanding Officers at Carlton or Prince
Albert. God save the Queen.

L. N. F. CEOZIEE, Commandant, AT. W.M.P.
This is the proclamation referred to in the affidavit of Alexis Andre, sworn before

me this 13th day of August, A.D. 1885.

Dixie Watson, Clerk of the Court.

THE QUEEN" vs. JOSEPH PILON, FEANCIS TOUEOND, PATRICE
TCUEOND, ET AL.

Canada :

North-West Territories,

To wit:

I, George Albert Kerr, of Batoshe, in North-West Territories, merchant, make
oath and say

:

52—25J
38Y
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1. That Joseph Pilon, above named, came to my store, near Batoche, and had a
conversation with me in which he expressed his disapprobation of the rebellion. This
was on the morning after the rebellion had broken out, and he stayed away* fromj
Batoche as much as possible.

2. He had two sons, one of whom is a married man, and both of them are full
grown men

;
said married son has a wife and family and has been forced to take pari

in the rebellion.

3. He was kept at Batoche by terror and only stayed because he wished to gei
off his son who had been taken there as aforesaid, and was almost overcome by conl
sternation, and the said Joseph Pilon went home as often as he could, and stayed thertf
till brought again.

4. That up to the time of the battle of Fish Creek, Francis Tourond, above
named, was at home and did not go to Batoche at all after the battle in which, I
believe, be took no part. I, with my brother John Kerr, were hid for days in the
Touronds' granary by said Francis Tourond, where he and his mother led us. Hel
took us to the house of the Mclntoshs' who lived near there.

5; From my own personal knowledge of the character of the Touronds, above*
named, I can conscientiously say that they would never have been connected in any
way with the rebellion had they not been coerced or misled into it through religious
deception, which I was personally in a position to know, and I do know and feel
called upon to state in fairness, was actually the case with them in the late rebellion
of 1885.

a •*,„ GE0
- A « KBBR

bworn before me at Regina, in said ")

Territories, this 11th day of >

August, A. D. 1885. )
Pixie Watson, Clerk of the Court.

THE QUEEN vs. JOSEPH ARCAND, ALEXANDRE CADIEUX, EMMANUEL
CHAMPAGNE, MAXIME DUBOIS, ALEXANDER P. FJSHER, PHILIP
GAR1EPIE, PIERRE GARIEPIE, PIERRE HENRI, MAXIME LEPINE
MOISE OUELLETTE, PIERRE PARENTEAU, MOISE PARENTEAU
IGNACE POITRAS THE ELDER, IGNACE POITRAS THE YOUNGER
JOSEPH PILON, BAPTISTE ROCHELEAU, JAMES SHORT, FRANCIS
TOUROND, PATRICE TOUROND, BAPTISTE YANDAL, PIERRE VAN-
DAL, AND OTHERS

.

Canada :
~\

North-West Territories, >

To wit:
)

I, George Ness, of Batoche, in the North-West Territories, Esquire, make oath*
and say

:

u
'

1

.

I have for some time past been personally acquainted with each and every of
the above named, Joseph Arcand and others named thereafter, and I have been one
of Her Majesty's justices of the peace in and for the North-West Territories for some
time past.

2. The said persons above named had each and every of them always been
honest and peaceable inhabitants, and law-abiding and loyal subjects of Her Majest\r
the Queen up to the time of the late rebellion in the said Territories.

GEORGE NESS.
Sworn before me at Regina, in the said

")
North-West Territories, this 7th [
day of August, A,D. 1885. j

Dixie Watson, Clerk of the Court.
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THE QUEEN vs. JOSEPH AECAND, ALBERT MONKMAN AND OTHEES.

Canada :

North-West Territor

To wit:

ies, £

1,'Baptiste Aroand, of Stobart, in the North-West Territories, farmer, make oath

1. That one of the children of Joseph \rcand, above named, died just before the

rebellion of 1885, in the said Territories, and another child was then at the point of

death and has since died. nn __ .

2 The last named child being very ill about the 20th day of March last,

past, I went to Louis Eiel, who had taken said Joseph Arcand from Stobart to

Batoche, and told him that Joseph Arcand was not right in his head on account of

the death of his child, and that the other child was very ill, and I urged said
L
Eiel to

let him go home, and afterwards with myself Joseph Arcand begged said Eiel to

allow him to go to his home, but said Eiel on both occasions refused to let him go.

3. When the Council were chosen said Joseph Arcand being there present was

chosen, but persistently refused to allow his name to be used, as far as lay m his

power, and his name was omitted from the Council, and he at the same time was pro-

posed for captain by the said Eiel, but objected to being such, and he did not become

^
4

.*

Afterwards he succeeded in getting home, and remained home a few days, when

he was sent for by Eiel, and two men, both armed, again took him to Batoche on the

25th of March last past, and he returned home the same day.

5. The morning of the battle of Duck Lake he went to Duck Lake to get some

cotton for a shroud for his dead child, and was returning home when the battle of Duck

Lake was in progress.
, . , , ,

,

6. He was not at the battle of Fish Creek, but was on the west side of the river,

near Alexander Fisher's house, where he remained for a week with his family until

a man came from Battleford with complaints that the Indians were threatening the

priest there and the half breeds and they wanted help, and he went with others by order

of Eiel to Battleford, from which place he did not return until after Batoche was

taken by General Middieton.
.

7. Said Joseph Arcand has a wife and six children now living.

8 When I first saw Albert Monkman at Batoche he advised my brothers ana

myself strongly to go home and have nothing to do with the rebellion
;
he was not

armed himself, and I beard him say to Eiel at the time of the trial of Nohn and

Boyer, the following: "Curse you, you are after another Scott affair, and you shall

not Ho it if I can help it." _^ T . . .

9. Said Monkman never incited nor advised the Indians near Duck Lake to tafce

part in the rebellion, but, on the contrary, spoke against their doing so.

10 When ^aid Monkman was at Fort Carlton thereafter I saw him there and

he told me privately that he intended to arrange matters there so that the prisoners

then could all escape, but very soon afterwards he was removed from there, as I was

informed, by Eiel' a orders.

his

BAPTISTE + AECAND.
mark.

Sworn before me at Eegina, in said Territories,"

this 1th day of August, A.D. 1885, having

been first explained by me to the deponent,
^

who seemed perfectly to understand the

sirae, and made his mark thereto in my
presence. J

Chas. Nolin, Justice of the Peace in and for said Territories.
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On the twelfth of May I talked to Louis Eiot for a Jong time about the rebellionand lb results to himself I said to him, "You know you escaped from the 00^quences of your fi.st rebellion through politics." He replied that he had, but, said he
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The two Touronds and Ignace Poitras, the younger, I know little about, and

never saw either of them take any active part in the rebellion. The above persons

named were made prisoners more with a view to the corroboration, if necessary, oi

evidence for the certain conviction of Eiel by General Middleton, to my personal

knowledge. I had given to the general a list of the leaders to be detained, which n©

lost, and some of the principal men are still at large. ^ ^ ASTLEY.

Sworn before me at Eegina, in said ~\

Territories, this 11th day of V

August, AJ). 1885. )

Henry Dodd, Justice of the Peace for the North- West Territories.

THE QUEEN vs EMMANUEL CHAMPAGNE, ALEXANDER P. FISHES,

PHILIP GlRNOT, PHILIP GARIEPIE, MAXIMB LEPINE, ALBERT
MONKMAN, MOISE OUELLETTE, AND OTHERS.

Canada : 1

North-West Territories. >

To wit : J

I, Thomas Eastwood Jackson, of Prince Albert, in the North-West Territories,

druffgist, make oath and say

:

. ,,«,,„„. ^ A „.i
1. That I was made a prisoner and detained as such, on the eighth day of April,

or thereabouts, last past, and was not released from such ^imprisonment nntalth*

twelfth day of May last past, and I have a personal knowledge of the matter herein-

after mentioned and referred to. «„, ,„
2 That Emmanuel Champagne, above named, I frequently saw at Uatocba

during that time, but he took no part in the doings of the ^ncil while I was
i

such

prisoner, as far as I could see, and that he was not at the battle of Fish Creek, nor at,

any time, as far as I know, did he fight in battle.

3. That Alexander P. Fisher, above named, was not armed at any time, so tar

as I know, and that he had only taken any part for fear of violence to his children by

the.Indians, and on condition that he should not be called on to take up arms, and,

should be left to run his ferry as usual

.

, .

4 That Philip Garnot informed me, when first I saw him alone, that he had been*

compelled at the risk of bis life to take part in the rebellion, and then began to act

as secretary and had no interest in their object.

5. That Philip Gariepie, above named, took no active part in the rebellion, as far

as I could see ; and that after Charles Newitt was brought wounded from the batt *

of Duck Lake both at said Duck Lake and on the road to Prince Albert the said

Charles Newitt. stated in my presence that it was an Indian who structRafter
said battle and not Philip Gariepie; and from my personal knowledge of thecharacter

of the said Philip Gariepie, and his treatment of all the other prisoners, I verily

believe he did not strike said Newitt.
. n„„„„;i „„-„

6. That Maxime Lepine and Moise Ouellette opposed Kiel in the Council very

frequently to my personal knowledge, and were for peace and they on y had the

concede so of all in the Council; that the only ones in the Conned that Eel

coulddepend on we, o Gabriel Dumont, Damas Carnere and »»P°'»» *»l

e\f°
4

Eiel distrusted and watched everyone else. ThatEiel was chary of everyone el=e,

and they (our, Biel, Dumont, Carriere and Nault, controlled and managed everythirg.

7 That Albert Monkman was absent at ihe north when Eiel was preparing for the

rebellion. Eiel frequently showed dislike lor him and distrust of h.m, setu„g
I

two men

Napoleon Nault and an old man named Swain, to watch Monkman I hoard E el sa f

Si he had sent him (Monkman) to bring up the Engl-h halfbreeds b -force but th^

Monkman had not done so, but bad proved to be unfanhful to his (BieU) cause At

the time of the Fish Creek fight Kiel ordered him to proceed up the river to attack

MiddlXn on the west side, bntEiel's spies discovered p. oofs that Monkman had laid
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a.

tried

plan to escape on horseback, when across the river, and thereafter Monkman was
-ied m the Council and then after made a prisoner of Kiel's and chained to the floor
oi an upper room in Baptiste Boyer's house, in Batoche, in the room next the room
X was afterwards confined in, and he was kept until the ninth day of May when hewas transferred to the cellar with myself and others, where we were kept until released
by the troops on the twelfth day of May last past, with the others and myself

8. I am satisfied from what I saw, and I verily believe that Kiel made*Monk-man a member of the Council, and gave him the command at Carlton with the doable
purpose of implicating him in the rebellion, as he was an English haif-bre°>d and
inducing the other E aglish half breeds to join the rebels.

9. That Eiel had me detained a prisoner in spite of the Council that I should be
released, and of this I was informed by Eiel himself as well as English speaking
members of the Council.

r &

« „ w i r> • , .
™0S- E - JACKSON.Sworn before me at Kegma, in the)

said Territories, this iOth day C

of August, A.D. 1885. j

Dixie Watson, Clerk of the Court

THE QUEEN vs. JOSEPH AECAND ET AL.

Canada : ")

North-West Territories. C

To wit

:

)

NnrthW^t T°
IiD

;

°f th
l

Par
\
8h

,

0f Sfc
'
Laurent

>
Di8trict of Saskatchewan, in theHorth-West Territories, being duly sworn, doth depose and say •

connected wthT^f^,of
n
beiDg th

?
roughly acquainted with most of the persons

JhA^SS 7 *

late rebellion having been detained by force and threats within

tli;l"tZX^6 26th day of March la8t
>
when i—ded - *** my

^J'-luTW L°Ui8 E
i
eV be leader and P^moter of the rebellion. He is a man

r^hl^ a 7? WOnderfu influence over the uneducated, credulous and ignoranthalf-breed population so much so, that he did successfully lead them astray, against

th^T T68
T d ^ Vice °f th6ir Prie8t8 '

who bave ajW* been looked upTo by

to the grave"
'
pr0teCt0rS aiid Suide8 >

in a11 their concerns from the cradle

m«»t nJH
a8

t

my8elfV f
?u

Ce aDd lhreats detaiDed in the rebel cam
P> an* I know themeans used to compel other 8 to come th*re and to remain against their will and

£ ££ '
W
^k +

1S a *ue8tl0n of «fe and death, when from hour to hour one's life is

Z^tLtl lT l°{

^JVO,itJsvevy hard to do so; spies and sentries were

L llr y P
?
1Dt

'
at the d ^ 0r8 of the h0U8e8 where raspected persons were lodged,

Si 2
y
.fi ^

l 6SCape WM
'
by 0rder of Biel

»
t0 be treatod a9 a ^ime, puni.hfble

fcy ordeTof Eiel

™7 VQV6°R atteniP^g to escape was to be at once shot down,

™»J*u
EeLreT+

t

u
d

.

t0
,^

e m
?
st ™»«™lnieaps to secure an overpowering influences

mZ\ Z °H
th

,

e
t

bal
^
breed I»0P1«. ^r instance, to excite a feeling of fwe in theirmind,, aDd no doubt with a view to making them believe that he was acting under

hZZol \ Tt'?
ai'ly

i

D
n
h° be^™iag of w.nter he ordered all persons whohad occasion to butcher or kill cattle, to save the blood for him, and from the first

S.H V
aaua7 h°&* exclusively on blood instead of flesh meat, the blood beingTt^'lk

'
Th18 conduct made a deep impression on his superstitious dupes,

;
nA!f? combmed with his continual praying and his daily relation of the visions

hiW nLVTe
n
m
? nu

ght
.'

a
^
d the Vi8its of 8aiQt8 and the rePeated conversations

SLi f n i>
7 Gh?&t

,>
the p00r half' breeds were convinced in their souls that

iCiel was God s envoy and that it would be a mortal sin to refuse to obey and followhim as the chief appointed by God to lead them; They had no guiity knowledge
39w5
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that they were breaking the law. They believed that they could not do wrong when
God himself and the Holy Ghost and the Virgin Mary had'sent a chosen servant and

representative to lead and guide them ; no feeling or connection less powerful could

have induced them to spurn the advice and prayers of the good priests who had

been the guides of themselves and their forefathers for generations.

Kiel had a book which he read or pretended to read from to convince the peo-

ple of the holy character of his mission. He called it the " Prophesies of St. Bridget,"

a great Irish saint, who he said had foretold hundreds of years ago all the things

that were to occur during the years 1885 and 1886. He said that she foretold that

the wickedness of the world would have become so great that, from the head of Rome
down, the powers of the world would bo destroyed, even the Government of Canada,

the world's rulers would be destroyed and swallowed up in a general whirlpool of

destruction. St. Bridget had foretold that God had appointed a second saviour to

redeem mankind amid the final destruction and restore peace, morality and pros-

perity to the nations ; that man must be a descendant >f St. Louis; then he went on

to prove that he was descended from St Louis and that the Holy Ghost and the Vir-

gin Mary had visited him and told him that he was the chosen man who was
appointed so many hundred years ago, and whose coming was predicted by St.

Bridget, the great Irish saint, to redeem mankind, and that his dear brother

half-breeds were the first he would redeem.

From the time of Kiel's arrival in the country he had been unceasingly going

among the half-breed people telling them of the injustice done them by the Govern-

ment, and showing them that only by meetings and petitions and agitating, could

they ever hope to recover their rights. He declared himself their leader, and that

if they would only follow hirn, he would secure for them all their rights and privi-

leges from the Government at Ottawa without bloodshed.

Kiel, to get all the people together, had recourse to a ruS3. He told them that they

must all assemble at Batoche on the lbth day of March, for the purpose of go ;ng alt

together to St. Laurent on the i9th to celebrate the festival of St. Joseph, who is the

patron saint of the half-breed people, as St. George is of the English, St. Patrick of

the Irish, and St. Andrew of the Scotch, and to make the occasion the more interest-

ing it was announced by Kiel that, his friend and Secretary Jackson, who had become a

convert, would bo publicly baptised on St. Joseph's day. When the people assembled

from all parts as they were ordered to do at Batoshe on the 18th day of March, Kiel

and his iriends at once circulated a report that the mounted police were coming

down on the people, and they would all be killed if they did not stand together and

follow his inspired instructions. Kiel further announced that Goi had kindly caused

them to be assembled together and had put supplies within their reach, meaning and

pointing out the various stores m the vicinity, and arms in their hands, through him

Kiel, he having told them all to bring their guns with them to the celebration, so

that they might pay more honor to their patron saint by firing a "fea-de-joie " after

mass in hi- honor, &c. 1 give this outline of his proceedings to show how thoroughly

he had matured his plans to get the people together, and to make them more blindly

place themselves in his power by getting them to break the law. Kiel next sent out

armed parties to bring in all those who had not already come, and they were ordered

to bring them by force if they did not come voluntarily. When Kiel had once got

the people to commit themselves by pillaging the stores, &c, he next told them that

500 mounted police under Major Orqjsier were on the way to slaughter them all, and

that they must stand together and act under his instructions, and obey him without

question, for God had commissioned him to lead and direct them, promising them that

there would be no bloodshed, which they firmly believed, or I am certain they would

not have consented to remain and meet the police force.

Once Kiel had got the unfortunate half-breeds into hit power he made them believe

that their only chance for life was to stay with him, as there would be no mercy

fhown them by the Government or by the mounted police, and that his intention was

to so conduct matters that without any bloodshed he would secure them the full

recognition of their rights ; by such promises as these and by resorting to every

oJ3



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52) A. 188&

possible trick of language and action, by pretending to be specially commissioned by
God and the Virgin Mary and St. John the Baptist to lead the half-breed people
through all their difficulties to a glorious success without shedding any blood, and
without any danger; by kneeling down and with his arms spread out like the arms
of a cross, his eyes cast up to heaven and his voice raised aloud to God in prayer, and
sometimes by throwing himself on the ground shouting to God for directions, and to
protect the half-breeds ; it was in this way that he kept the poor, ignorant people
subject to his power and influence. I heard him harangue the poor people often and
say to them, "you know that all power and authority is given to the Holy Father
the Pope of Rome, you well know that the Holy Ghost descended from heaven and
dwells in the heart of the Holy Father, you know that where that Holy Spirit is
there must be all power and authority. Well, the Holy Ghost left Rome in the
interest of the poor half-breeds of America and took up his residence in the heart of
the greatest living saint of the world, the Holy Bishop Bourget, of Montreal. Now,
dear half-breeds, here is a letter, he cried, holding a paper up towards heaven, from
that great saint, Bishop Bourget, written to me, who am to be the saviour of my
people, acting under the influence of the Holy Ghost, and that holy saint tells me in
this letter that I have a mission to fulfil, that grand mission is to liberate the whole
world, but first I have to liberate the half-breed people whom I love so much, whe
are my own flesh and blood, who are my brothers, and who live in my heart."

By such means as these he fascinated a large number of his poor credulous fol-
lowers, and by terrorizing over and making prisoners of those who, like myself, could
not be deceived by his pretended divine mission, Riel kept under his authority-
numbers of good, honest and loyal men who longingly wished for the means of being:
freed from their disagreeable and false and dangerous position, but who were power-
less in his hands, or, under his influence, believing that he was commissioned by
God. Among those who, to my personal knowledge, were detained and kept in sub-
jection, either through fascination and superstition, or through being kept in hourly
fear of personal danger to themselves and to their wives and children or friends,
were : Joseph Arcand, Alexander Cadieux, Emmanuel Champagne, Joseph Delorme,
Maxime Dubois, Phillip Gariepie, Pierre Gariepie, Pierre Henri, Alexis Labombard,,
Maxime Lepine, Albert Monkman, Mc'ue Ouellette, Mcise Parenteau, Pierre Paren-
teau, Daniel Parenteau, Ignace Poitras, sen., Ignace Poitras, jun., Baptiste Rocheleau,
Francs Tourond, Patrice Tourond, Baptise Vandal, Pierre Vandal, and many others.

To show how unreliable are the reports or minutes of the Council which were
kept of meetings and proceedings, I may state that Riel, to plunge his followers,,
whether they were willing ones or not, as deeply as possible into danger, so as to>
keep them in his power, passed a motion of Council that every proceeding before
the Council should be considered to be passed unanimously, and that all the names
were to be entered as being present at every meeting, whether the persons were present
or not, so that by this novel means he succeeded in implicating men who were
innocent, being forced into compliance by him, and made them, as far as he could,
responsible for his acts ; for I declare that the whole Council was Riel. The so-called
members of his Council were mere cat's-paws in his hands. He ordered and passed
and did whatever he pleased, and threatened death to all who dared to oppose
him. Here I may explain the presence of names to a very important
document now in the hands of the Government. Riel ordered Maximo Lepine
and myself to go to Major Crozier to demand his surrender, handed me the letter
which was to be given to the Major. Lepine and myself were obliged to go,
we dare not refuse, but what was our astonishment to discover, on examining the
letter, to find our own names signed to it along with others. We saw at once it was
a plan of Riel's to compromise us beyond hope of justification. We determined not
to deliver the letter. 1 gave it to Lepine, who Isupposo returned it to Riel, for it
was found among the other papers, no doubt placed there for the intended purpose
of compromising all those whose names were signed to it. I am fully t-atiefied that
the minute book of Riel's so called council was, from the beginning, cooked regularly
to compromise the people, so as to compel them to sink or swim with Riel, and I do
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cot hesitate to say that they were left where they would fall into the hands of the*

Government for the same purpose.

On that same night, when Maxime Lepine and myself were sent to demand the

surrender of the mounted police, Eiel, in a most violent speech, incited the people to

take Fort Carlton. "Now," cried he, "is your time, let us go and revenge the death

of Goulet " (meaning Goulet who lost his life by being drowned in the Eed River,

at Winnipeg in trying to escape from the Canadian volunteers, who were chasing

him, soon after the arrival of the force at Fort Garry, in 1870). The whole people

were very much incited under his harangue. Maxime .'Lepine and Moiso Ouellette

interfered between Eiel and the excitod people, and, at the imminent danger of their

own lives, prevented him from carrying out his object, a midnight attack on the

fort, which might have resulted in a fearful massacre of innocent and unoffending

people. To show how the half-breeds were led on by Eiel, I declare that up to the>

last moment many English half-breeds were staunch supporters and followers of Eiel.,.

and it was only their superior education and want of belief in Eiel's Divine mission

that prevented them from being to-day as much in the power of the law as the French

half-breeds are. Many English half-breeds and whites also encouraged the poor

French half-breeds up to the culminating point and then cautiously left them to their

fate, and to the infamous and blasphemous leadership of Louis Eiel, who has plunged

them into distraction, despair, starvation and death.

I declare and depose that this deposition has been written at my dictation;

that it has been read over to me in English and French, but it contains the truth an<fc

I have signed.
CHAS. NOLIN.

Sworn to and acknowledged before me, at Eegina,
^

in the North-West Territories, this ?th day V

of August, A.D. 1885. )

Hy. LeJeune, Justice of the Peace in and for the North- West Territories

»ies, C

Canada :

North-West Territories,

To wit

:

I, Vital Fourmond, of St. Laurent, Director of Catholic Missions, being duly

sworn, doth depose and say

:

1. That I am perfectly aware of the uprising ot the half-breeds and of the-

causes which led thereto, and I am compelled to declare that the poor half-breeds

were coaxed and forced into that disastrous rising through orders and insane instiga-

tion of Louis Eiel.

2. From what I personally witnessed and heard from, before, during and alter

the establishment of Eiel's go-called Provisional Government, whether at St. Laurent

or at Batocho, the evidence of this my deposition is so certain and manifest that it

does not admit of any doubt.
.

3. Louis " David " Eiel, in his strange and alarming folly, fascinated our poor

half breeds as the snake is saidto fascinate its victim, abusing, for his own ends, the

great confidence that all the half-breeds rep:;sed in him, a confidence founded upon his-

influence over their minds through his great and impassioned language, and above all

on the appearance of his profound religious feeling and devotion, which he displayed

in the most glaring and hypocritical manner, which was rendered so convincing to

their minds by his public proclamation of his mission as an inspired prophet, which

he forced upon their imagination in the most insidious and diabolical manner; he

proclaimed himself a new Moses, who had come to deliver his people from bondage

and to place them in a new land of promise, where they would enjoy the greatest

liberty and happiness and soon become masters of the world, as he would soon

march them on Winnipeg by way of Portage la Prairie, and thence to sub-

iugate Canada, and afterwards the whole of the States of the old world,

until he, their inspired leader, would be crowned king of the world, and sit ia
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the^ chair of St. Peter at Eome as the Pope, in proclaiming which he did the
inviolable authority of the Tyrants of Europe, is and ought to be deprived of
all his temporal powers and privileges. The Spirit of God has left the Pope of
Eome, and has taien up its abode in the holy person of that great saint Archbishop
Bourget of Montreal, from whose soul the Spirit of G-od has passed into the soul
of your leader Louis Eiel, thus, said Eiel, I have received my divine mission
conveyed to me in this letter from that saint and bishop, hear the words, " You have
a grand mission to fulfil, you must accomplish it at all points." Now, cried he to his
poor superstitious listeners, this is a proof of my commission from heaven, and I have
been confirmed in it through the Holy Ghost, who has come to me and has taken jp
His abode in my soul and through me is now beginning on the great work of modern
times, that is, to carry out a grand and most necessary reform of the whole world. To
finish the complete influence over the poor half-breeds he afterwards strongly insisted
on his sacred mission, insisted on the gravity and legitimate nature of their claims
against the Ottawa Government, the indifference of the Government to their humble
petitions and demands and the consequent misery and distress into which they were
plunged, and out of which he alone, as God's agent, oould lift them up and make
them happy, notwithstanding the power of the Government of Canada, and of their
other heartless tyrant, the Hudson's Bay Company, and notwithstanding the power
and evil influence of the priests, who were traitors to their sacred calling and were
using their influence on the side of tyranny and the oppression of the poor half-breed
people.

4. The Sunday before the outbreak, Eiel, after mass, came to my house and
spoke to me as follows :—-" You have turned the pulpit of truth into one of falsehood,
politics and discord, in daring to refuse the Holy Sacrament to all those who would
take up arms in defence of their sacred rights." Another time, at the store of Walter
& Baker, at Batoche, in a public meeting of the people, seeing that he was losing
ground in consequence of the influence of the religious feeling of the poor people, he
jumped up, his eyes flaming like the eyes of a veritable maniac, which gave him such
a striking appearance that it forcibly impressed the people, he cried: "How can
these poor people, whom you try to deceive and mislead as to the truth of my divine
mission, for one moment believe you when they have the proof before them that you
are a trailer to them, and you are unworthy of their confidence ? How dare you say
that it is a crime to take up arms against the tyrant in defence of their rights ?" I
replied to him :

" Yes; I said it often before, and I repeat it here to your face, and in
the face of these poor misguided people whom you are leading to destruction, despair
and death, it is a crime to take up arms against the constituted authorities ; it is a
crime to raise the standard of rebellion. God proclaims it the duty of all Christian
people 'to render to Caesar the things that are Caesar's, and to God tho things are
Cod's.' " He, Eiel, replied :

" Yes, render to ^rod glory, honor and adoration, but to
the tyrants of the world render that which is duo to them ; sling back their
authority, which they have usurped, in their teeth ; tumble them down from
power, that is what God orders." " Listen", cried he, " to this priest who dares to
tell you that it is a crime you are committing, utder my direction, in fulfilment of
my sacred mission, who dares to call rebellion your taking up arms in a sacred cause,
a cause ordained and directed by God, the cause of your native land which lies bleeding
and prostrated at the feet of tyrants, the sacred cause of tho rights, the liberties, the
lives of your wives and children for all time to come."

5. To impress the people and keep them within his power, this man, Eiel, resorted
to all kinds of trickery. Often have I seen him praying aloud, prostrating himself
in prayer and ordering all the others to do so. Thus he made a deep impression on
his poor ignorant dupes and so convinced them of his divine mission that it was
impossible to convince them that he was a trickster and would lead them to destruc-
tion. Eiel so played on their ignorance that he made them believe in his power to
work mhacles; they firmly believed this. 1 have heard them say that Eiel could
make it thunder and could cure disease without medicines. Eiel himself, declared
that he was once the victim of an incurable disease of the heart, but that on the 24th
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of May he had cured the disease by his divine power. He also declared that should

he be killed it did not matter, he would be with them again alive and that would

prove to them his divine mission. He cried, " it is the Holy Ghost that speaks, who
shall dare disbelieve me ?

"

6. When Eiel had completely fascinated these poor people, and held them body

and soul at his will, he next, to complete his object and plunge them into rebellion

beyond recall, he anpounced that 500 mounted police were on the way to slaughter

them: men, women and children, to the last one. "Oh, my friends, look at those

devils murdering your whole nation, see your wives and daughters ravished before

your streaming eyes, see your wives and children tortured, dishonored, disembowelled^

cut in pieces by those savage soldiers, who are paid and kept by tyrants to kill,

slaughter and dishonor the half- breed nation." " To arms, to arms, or will you
crouch and submit ? God tells you to follow me. The Holy Ghost is with you in

my person ; courage, we will conquer." Oh, my poor people, I could not restrain

them ; they were under the infatuation of this arch actor and trickster till he got

them committed by the effusion of blood ; then they were in his power, and he used

that power without any feeling of mercy. I heard him say and proclaim, " Death,

death, death, to anyone who tries to desert," and many of the poor people had guns

pointed at their hearts, by Kiel's orders, because he suspected them of wishing to

get away, and to complete his terrorism over the poor people he declared it to be his

determination to put me thus, deponent, in the front of the battle.

I knew Phillip Garnot, 1 saw him among the people in the rebel camp, but I am
certain he did not take any part with Kiel until the 21st or thereabouts. I spoke to

him and expostulated with him on being among the misguided people. " What can

I do ?" said he, " I am forced to be here, my life would be taken did T refuse to

appear to act at least, and now I must do all I can to save the lives of the poor

people who are shut up in Battleford, that is what consoles me in this d readful affair
j,

I may prevent the attack or give timely warning to save the lives of the Canadians."

And I sincerely believe that Garnot was acting under compulsion and in fear of hi»

own life; also, I know that he was always good and kind to the prisoners while they

were in his power or within his reach or succor, and he was always kind and con-

siderate and polite to myself, unlike Dumont, Eiel and others, who were threatening,,

brutal and insulting towards me.

1. I also declare that during the trouble I had conversations with several of the-

pereons who were in the rebel camp with Eiel, and 1 found a large number of them

there against their will, and only remained there because of the fear of being shot

down did they try to escape or desert, as sentence of death had been proclaimed

against all persons who would try and get away. I wish to particularly mention

Maxime Lepine, Moise Ouellette, Pierre Parenteau, Emmanuel Champagne, and as

I before mentioned, Philip Garnot, all of whom 1 firmly believe were kept in the

rebel camp through terror of their own lives and for fear of their families being

punished, should they attempt to escape.

8. Alexander Fisher, I can positively say,would have escaped while at St. Laurent,

but for the tact that he had his two little daughters in the convent school there, but

feared the vengeance of Eiel should he escape. I saw Fisher from day to day.

He never had arms or did he take any interest, or part in Eiel's acts or proceedings

except when forced to do so, and I knew that 'in simple derision he once signed a

paper as Lieutenant-Governor of the North-West Territories, and told me the next

time he met me, and I laughed with him at the joke, for it was nothing else. Eiel

always compelled lukewarm persons to commit themselves if possible in writing,

Fisher knew this, and in derision and to mark his contempt for which he was com-

pelled to sign, wrote himself Lieutenant-Governor of the North-West.

9. In conclusion, as an humble and old servant of God, and as one who has been

seventeen years among the half breeds of this country, who knows thoir simplicity,

how easily they are led away by designing and conscionless people, such as this man

Kiel, who being one of themselves, who was looked upon as their born and natural

leader, one who knows well that the poor ignorant hali-breeds were encouraged on
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•ies, I

from step to step in the late uprising till their false white pretended friends and
their English fellow half-breeds left them pa the very verge of rebellion and blood-
shed, in the name of God, I, His most humble servant, in the agony of my aged and
suffering boart, cry aloud to the judge before whom these poor deluded, deceived
half-breeds have to appear for sentence, mercy ! Oh, earthly judge, in the name of
tbe great Judge in Heaven, from whose sacred lips the proclamation of mercy as He
expired on tbe cross of salvation was given to the world—in His name, mercy.

V. FOURMOND.
Sworn and acknowledged before me at Regina,

")

in the North-West Territories, this 7th day >

of August, AD. 1885. )
Ohas. Nolin, Justice of the Peace in and for the North- West Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. MAXIME LEPINE.
Canada ,

North-West Territories,

To wit
I, Charles Nolin, of St. Laurent Parish, in the North-West Territories, contrac-

tor, make oath and say

:

1. When the rebellion began said Lepine was off on a freighting trip from Troy
to Prince Albert, and on tbe 19th of March last past, by threatening and opposing
JJouis Riel, at the imminent risk of his, tbe said Lepine's own life, saved mine, and
afterwards, on the 21st day of March and other days, prevented, in the same manner,
the massacre of other persons whom the said Riel had made prisoners and wished to
take the lives of.

2. On the night that said Lepine and myself were sent to demand the surrender
of Fort Carlton by Major Crozier, said Riel in a speech incited the people saying,
*' Now is the time, let us go and take Carlton ; let us go and avenge the death of
Goulet (meaning the Goulet who lost his life in the year 1870, after thearrival of the
troops at Fort Garry), and tbe said Maxime Lepine and Moise Ouellette (now await-
ing sentence for treason-felony) were the men who, at the imminent risk of their
own lives, interposed between the said Riel and the excited people, and prevented a
midnight attack on Fort Carlton, which might have resulted in a fearful massacre.

3. I heard said Lepine often say that the rebellion would not have begun had he
been at home.

4. On the Sunday before the battle of Duck Lake, Riel ordered Lepine to go
with a party to take Lieutenant-Governor Dewdney prisoner (it having been
reported that the Governor was on his way north with Colonel Irvine), and Lepine
positively refused to go, or to be a party to such an outrage, whereupon Dumont
eaid, " I will go and take him prisoner, and if necessary will wash my hands in his
blood."

5. Two hours before the fight at Duck Lake I had a very serious conversation
with said Lepine, in the course of which I said to him that from the appearance of
things I feared that there would be bloodshed before many hours, and that I was
determined to escape as I would not under any circumstances be present at any
act of blood. Lepine replied :

" I also from my soul condemn the very thought of
any blood being spilled, Riel has most solemnly pledged himself to me that no blood
•will be spilled. 1 have confidence in his promises in that respect, and I believe it to
be my duty, even at personal risk and danger, to remain here and prevent bloodshed
should Riel prove false in his pledges to me." And I thus depose, and am fully con-
vinced that Lepine was actuated by the humane motive of preventing bloodshed by
remaining in the rebel camp.

6. When I escaped he solemnly declared that ho would not fight nor countenance
any fighting, nor would he ever take up arms. CHAS. NOLLN.
S worn before me at Regina, in the said

)
Territories, this 7th day of August, V

A.D. 1885. )
Hy. LeJeune, a Justice of the Peace in andfor the North-West Territories.
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THE QUEEN vs. ALEXANDER P. WISHER.

Canada :

North-West Territories

To wit.

:

ies, V

I, Charles Nolin, of St. Laurent Parish, in the North-West Territories, con-

tractor, make oath and say

:

1. That Alexander P. Fipher, above mentioned, was sent for by Louis Riel on or

about the twenty-first day of March last past, who directed four or five armed men to

go and bring him, the said Fisher, to the Council, and the said four or five men
whose names are not known to me brought said Fisher by force, to the place where
said council held its meetings at that time, from, as I believe, his own house.

2. The said Fisher was then a widower, and his three children were at the

Sisters' school at said St. Laurent, and the said Fisher had a valuable cable and/erry
boat at Batoche.

3. On the twenty-fifth day of March, Albert Monkman, Baptiste Boyer, William

Boyer, George, Fisher, the younger, and said Alexander P. Fisher and myself, made
a secret compiot at the house of said Baptiste Boyer, that each and every of us would
escape, and thereafter could not escape for want of a horse, and for other reasons

which prevented his escape.

4. The paid Alexander P. Fisher was, to ray certain and personal knowledge,

always opposed to the rebellion, and that every act done by him up to that time

{25th March, ^.SSS), in the rebellion, was done when forced by Riel to do the same,

and that his refusal would have endangered his life.

CHAS. NOLIN*

Sworn before me at Regina, in said")

Territories, this 7th day of [•

August, A.D. 1885. )

Hy. LeJeune, a Justice of the Peace in and for the said Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. JOSEPH ARDAND, ALEXANDER CADIEUX AND OTHERS.

Canada :

North-West Territories

To wit

:

•1

I, Robert Jefferson, of Battleford, in the North-West Territories, farm instructor,

make oath and eay :

1. That Arcand and Cadieux, above mentioned, were at Battleford during the

latter part of the rebellion for the purpose of standing between the Indians on one

side and the hall-breeds and teamsters and oiher white people on the other, and they

did nothing else during their stay in the camp.
2. I saw Alexander Cadieux, above mentioned, alias "Kitty-way-hoe," standing

at the door of the tent of the scout Fontaine a prisoner about the sixth day of May
last past, and keeping the Indians away from the said tent.

3. That tne said Arcand and Cadieux, while in said camp, did nothing criminal

or disloyal, oa the contrary their actions were all on the side of humanity and order.

ROBERT JEFFERSON.

Sworn before me at Regina, in said ")

Territories, this 11th day of >•

August, A.D. 1885. )

Hy. LeJeune, a Justice of the Peace in and for the North- West Territories.
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THE QUEEN vs. ALBERT MONKMAN.

ies, >

Canada :

Uorth-Wost Territor

To wit

:

I, Charles Nolin, of St. Laurent Parish, in the North-West Territories, contractor,
make oath and say

:

1. On the nineteenth day of March last past, Louis Eiel caused my arrest and
trial before himself and assrciates, and the said Albert Monkman spoke in English
to said Eiel very strongly against the course he had taken in causing my arrest, and
against any further steps or any trial taking place, and afterwards, when Eiel and
Gabriel Dumont urged the people to condemn me to death, said Monkman, both at
that time, and after such trial, opposed Kiel with all his might.

2. The said Monkman, when afterwards sent with me and a guard of twenty
men to ask the English half-breeds to join the rebels, did not advise them to go, but,
on the contrary, advised them to remain at home, as he was anxious to hinder and
prevent any attack upon Fort Carlton and thereby prevent bloodshed.

3. The said Monkman was most anxious to escape at that time, but wished to re-
lease the prisoners first, which he stated he was able to do or expected to be able
to do.

4. On the twenty-sixth day of March last past, before the Battle of Duck Lake,
he, the said Monkman, tried to allow the prisoners then at Duck Lake to escape, and
nearly succeeded in doing so.

CHAS. NOLIN.
Sworn before me at Eegina, in said

")

Territories, this 7fch day of >

August, A.D. 1885. )

Hy. LeJeune, a Justice of the Peace for the said Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. EMMANUEL CHAMPAGNE.

Canada :

North-West Territories

To wit: 1
I, Charles Nolin, of St. Laurent Parish, in the North-West Territories, contractor,

make oath and say

:

1. That Emmanuel Champagne above named returned to his homo at Batoche, in
said Territories, on or about the twenty-first day of March last past, and that during
his absence he had been made a councillor in Kiel's provisional government.

2. He directed his name to be erased from the list of said councillors at once on
hearing of same, which was not, however, done and said to me that he was against
having anything to do with the rebellion, and that his age should have prevented his
being forced to take part in tame.

3. He was not a participant in the battle at Duck Lake, nor in the robberies,
which, up to that time, had taken place, nor had he up to that time taken any part
in the illegal measures of said council

.

4. He resided only about one-half of a mile from the place where said council
then held its sittings, and was at home except when sent for and compelled to go to
said sittings by Eiel's agents.

CHAS. NOLIN.
Sworn before me at Eegina, this

")

7th day of August, A. D.
f- .

1885. J

Hy. LeJeune, a Justice of the Peace in and for said Territories .
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THE QUEEN vs. ALBEET MONKMAN AND OTHEES.

Canada :

North-West Territories,

To wic

:

I, Vital Fourmond, of St. Laurent, in the North-West Territories, priest, make
oath and say

:

1. That said Albert Monkman during the rebellion tried to escape from Batoche
and to desert from the camp of Eiol, but was discovered in the act of doing so and was
thereafter made a prisoner by the rebels, and was thereafter until the end of the

rebellion a prisoner of Eiel's.

V. FOUEMOND.
Sworn before me at Eegina, in the ")

North-West Territories, this V

7th day of August, A.D. 1885. J

Ohas. Nolin, a Justice of the Pzace in and for said Territories.

ies. >

THE QUEEN vs. FEANCIS TOUEOND AND PATEiQE TOUEOND.
Canada :

North-West Territories.

To wit

:

I, Eoger Goulet, of Batoche, in the North-West Territories, farmer, make oath

and say :

1. Fiona the twentieth day of March last past to the thirteenth day of April

last past, Francis Tourond, above mentioned, was not at Batoche in said Territories,

but was at his mother's house, near Fish Creek, and never went to said Batoche until

the time of the battle of Fish Creek.

2. About the twenty-third day of March last past, Louis Eiel came to the church

whore the people were assembled and told them :
" You will go to Garnot's and get

the prisoners and give them over to the Indians to kill them to-night; i lso the two
prisoners at Solomon Venn's, but you will see that the Indians do not torture them."

Tnen Patrice Tourond stepped iorward and said :
" If you kill those men you must

kill me first." Eiel then said in a kind of huff: " Tout Tourond " meaning your name
is all round and you will remain all round.

3. I have known both of said Touronds over seven years and they have always

been sober, honest men and were of the best men in the North-West.
EOGEE GOULET,

Sworn before me at Eegina, in said ")

Territories, this 7th day of >

August, A.D. 1885. )

Chas. Nolin, J. P., a Justice of the Peace in and for the said Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. ALBEET MONKMAN AND OTHEES.

ies, V

Canada :

North-West Territories

To wit

:

I, Charles Newitt, of Prince Albert, in the North-West Territories, merchant's
clerk, make oath and say

:

1. I was wounded and left on the field of the battle of Duck Lake, and shortly

after the said Albert Monkman came to me and said he was sorry that the battle had
taken place and that I had been wounded, and he offered to do all that he could for

my comfort, and afterwards came to me every day. I was in the rebel camp from
the twenty-sixth to the thirtieth day of March last past, he offering me the same
assistance.

52—26
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-He said after the battle, that he would go to the Council and try to set the otherprisoners as well as myself off, and a while afterwards he returned to^ayW thathe had got the consent of the Council to my being let off and thnnX j?a h«£
ceeded in getting their c^nttol^iM^^^^^^^
whom the other members of the Council would not let off because

P
thcT4re officers

there!

G°VerDmellt

;

he aPPeared to be °ne <* the best of the whole lot while I was

3. After I was taken up stairs at Duck Lake he came to us and told us (theprisoners) to keep away from the windows for fear that the Indian)* would shoot us!

Sworn before me at *egina,this
")

CBAELBS NBWITT.
12th day of August A. D. >

1885. j
Owen Hughes, a Justice of the Peace in and for the North-West Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. PHILIP GARIEPIE AND OTEERS.
Canada : ")

North-West Territories, [
To wit

:

)

make
I,

oaJ^^n
r

d
S
s^;^

°f Bat°Che
'

lD the N°rthWe8t Territories of 0a°ad*> firmer,

^^^l^t^r 17
-

9^ ^ figV fc 5uck Lake I arrived upon the ground,

was then s"tig
P V"^ & DUmber °f °therS near to where Charles Newitt

2 Newitt appeared to have been wounded, and exhibited signs of having been

lU

ut a

U

s
P
°to

l^6hQ&d «* ha
f
d

'

aDd a
,

c™™sati™ was goifg on a^thoBeKfl f }%
l

,

h
.

e cau
u
se

- J
heArd ^ ^ated by several of these people, who were half-

tbned ^ antdfan ^ *"^^WiU^ be°n 8trUck in th° man»cr^^
His

ELEAZER x SWAIN.
Sworn before me at Regina, in said TerriO

Mark "

tories, this 6th day of August, A.D.
|

1885, after having been first read and V
then explained to the deponent, who

|made his mark thereto in my presence. J

Hugh Richardson, Stipendiary Magistrate for the North- West Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. EMMANUEL CHAMPAGNE.
Canada : ")

North-West Territories, £

To wit: J

™AT^°ma8 Mc^ay,O
r
PHnC0 Albert

>
in the North-West Territories, Esquire,

5™t^™ 1^ a^ lr W6U aC(
luainled with Emmanuel Champagne, who hasalways borne a good character up to the time of the rebellion, and who interposed tosave my hie, as i have already deposed in the caae of the Queen vs. LouisS

THOMAS MoK AT,
Sworn before me at Regie a, in )

the said Territories, this 7lh f
day of August, A . JD. 1885 . )

Hy. LeJeune, a Justice of the Peace in and for the said Territories.
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ies. >

THE OUEBN vs. EMMANUEL CHAMPAGNE, ALEXANDER P. FISHER,

PHILIP GARIEPIE, PIERRE GARTEPIE, PIERRE HENRI, MAXIME
LEPINE PIERRE PARENTBAU, MOISE PARENTEAU, JOSEPH PILON,

BAPTIST HI ROCHELEAU, FRANCIS TOUROND, PATRICE TOUROND,
BAPTISTE VANDAL, PIERRE VANDAL AND JOSEPH ARCAND.

Canada :

North-West Territories

To wit:

1, Hillyard Mitchell, of Duck Lake, in the North-West Territories, Esquire, make

i

a

.

D
I have for some time been personally acquainted with each and every of the

above named, Emmanuel Champagne and others, and have for several years been one

of Her Majesty's justices of the peace in and for the said Territories

.

2. From my personal knowledge of the above named, Emmanuel Champagne and

others, I have no hesitation in stating that they had always been honest and peaceable

inhabitants and law-abiding and loyal subjects of Her Majesty the Queen to the time

of the late rebellion.

HILLYARD MITCHELL.

Sworn before me at Regina, in the *)

North-West Territories, this 7th >

day of August,- A.D. 1885. )

Chas. Nolin, a Justice of the Peace in and for the said Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. EMMANUEL CHAMPAGNE, JOSEPH ARCAND PIERRE

HENRI, IGNACE POITRAS (THE ELDER) . I^OB POITEAS (TBH

YOUNGER), PIERRE PARENTEiU, MOISE PARENTEAU, JOSEPH

PILON, BAPTISTE VANDAL, MOISE OUELLETTE, MAXIME LEPINE^

ALBERT MONKMAN, MAXIME DUBOIS, ALEX. P. FISHER, PATRICE

TOUROND AND FRANCIS TOUKOND, ET AL.

Canada.
}

North-West Territories. >

To wit

:

)

We, Harold Edward Ross, Peter Tomkins, William Tomkins and Thomas East-

wood Jackson, all of Prince Albert District, in the said Territories, severally make

oath and say : ,

1. That during the time of our imprisonment in the rebel camp at Jiatoche ana

vicinity we received considerate treatment and kindness from the above named

defendants, Joseph Arcand and others, some of them supplying us with food,

others of them protecting us as much as in their power lay from attacks of the

Indians, cautioning us to keep away from the windows and doors for fear of being

shot at by Indians and others, and generally exhibited a spirit of kindness and

friendly feeling towards us. They also, many of them, stood between us and threat-

ened death at the hands of Louis Riel, to the best of our information. We, therefore,

feel it a duty, as Christian men, to recommend them in turn to the mercy <» the

court. We especially recommend Baptiste Yandal, Ignace Poitras, Joseph Filon,

Baptiste Rocheleau, Albert Monkman, Alexander P. Fisher, Emmanuel Champagne

and Patrice Tourond to the mercy of the court for their marked humanity and kind-

ness to us while in prison. And this declaration on our part is not a new-born

feeling. Whilst we were prisoners we mutually determined, should we escape with

our lives, that, should these men, in turn, be arrested and imprisoned, and put upon

their trial, that we, in gratitude for their kindness, would not fail to come forward
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HAROLD E. ROSS,
PETER TOMKINS,
WILLIAM TOMKINS

Sworn Wore me and acknowledged by the 1

TH0S
'
E

'
JACKS0N -

deponents, Harold Edward Ross, Peter
Tomkins William Tomkins and Thos.
Eastwood Jackson, at Regioa, in said \

ITSST'
this 7th day of AugU8t

>

«

Dixie Watson, Clerk of the Court.

THE QUEEN vs. MAXIME DUBOIS.
Canada : *)

North-West Territories, r
To wit: j

and Iky™8* *"*
otBm°h°> in the North-West Territories, contractor, make oath

mmmtmmm
Sworn before me at Regina, in the ^

GEORGE NESS.
said Territories, this 7th day of I
August, A.D. 1885.

)

Dixie Watson, Clerk of the Court.

THE QUEEN vs. JOSEPH PILON.
Canada : ")

North-West Territories, [
To wit

:

j

«aA?sa?&~*£^J&^X* Tr"°r> fe™*> »*• oath
above named, tried KoMZU connl^H ^Jf^7 ^ f-

ve that JosePt Pilon,
and in other divers ways and tC\Z ;? ™?i

w,th/h«.rebeUtan of 1885 by hiding
children, would havSeeded in so dnil » H &r h'8 Tfe and famiIr °f e,e™
said Pilon resided for several years Zftt W°UM ^^ in pri90D ^V- The
the best opportunity toHSl&'iZ&fi&F reSldeD°e *"^ »d ' had

life andlS
1^ wUL "^ ""^ part in 8aid ;ebellion

>
and^ - P-il of his

Sworn before me at Regina, in }
GBORGB NESS.

said Territories, this 7th day I
of August, A.D. 1885. j

Dixie Watson, Clerk of the Court.
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ies, I

ies, I

THE QUEEN vs. MOISE PARENTEAU AND BAPTISTE VANDAL.
Canada

North-West Territories,

To wit

I, George Ness, of Batoohe, in the North-West Territories, farmer, make oath and
say:

1. That Moise Parenteau, above Darned, and Baptiste VaDdal, above named, were
very kind to the prisoners, on or about the twenty-first day of March last past, and,

I believe, took a very miDor part iD the rebellion and Dot of their own free will.

GEORGE NESS,
Sworo before me at Regina, in ")

said Territories, the 7th day V

of August, A.D. 1885. J

Dixie Watson, Clerk of the Court.

THE QUEEN vs. ALEXANDER R FISHER AND PHILIP GARNOT.
Canada

North-West Territories

To wit

I, Louis Marion, of Duck Lake, iu the North-West Territories, freighter, make
oath aDd say

:

1. That AlexaDder P. Fisher, above mentioned, was a prisoDer at large, and Dot
under arms from eighteenth to twentieth March last past, staying at home, except
when sent for by Louis Riel and brought by force to Batoche, in said Territories,

across the river from his home.
2. That Philip Garnot, above mentioned, had no connection with the rebellion

until the twentieth day of March last past, or thereabout, when he was brought by
force from his boarding house to the church, both at Batoche and in said Territories,

and be began to act as secretary, taking no personal or individual part in the doings
of the Council, but merely acting as a scribe to the Council.

LOUIS MARION.
Sworn before me at Regina, in said ~\

Territories, this 7th day of
[

August, A.D. 1^85. )

Charles Nolin, a Justice of the Peace in and for the said Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. ALEXANDER P. FISHER.
Canada : i

North-West Territories,
f

To wit

:

)

I, George Ness, of Batoche, in the North-West Territories, farmer, make oath
and say

:

1. That the said Alexander P. Fisher, on or about the 27th day of March last

past, informed me that he was against the rebellion, and had tried to escape, but
failed to do so, and that be would not be there at all had it not been for his children.

2. To the best of my knowledge, information and belief, he did not, of his own
free will during the whole rebellion, commit any rebellious or treasonable act, but at
the risk of his life and in the presence of and under superior force.

GEORGE NESS.
Sworn before me at Regina, in the said

Territories, this 1th day of August,
A.D. 1885.

Dixie Watson, Clerk of the Court.
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}

THE^QUEEN vs ALEXANDER P. FISHER AND OTHERS.
Canada :

North-West Territories.

To wit :

make\SnndIa
lterd,0fPriaCe Albert, in th0 ^orth"W0st Territories, merchant,

™ \ T^v A
}
ex*n<*er p

- ^'ster, above named, was, during the time I was a pris-

*Z*lv
ielY-T thG

,
18th

<?
the 21st da? of March last P*^ a prisoner at large of

belt™ tw W-Tl me that he °nl^ Wi8hed t0 Prolect hia ProPGrt7 the™, and I

stored inf hfcW t0 ^^ ^ °f ^^ fr°m^W Pr0Pe^
2. During that time he never carried arms of any kind.

Sworn before mo at Regina, in )
H

'
WALTERS -

said Territories, this 7th ydayof August, A.D. 1885. J
J. Ansdell Macrae, Justice of the Peace in and for North- West Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. ALEXANDER P. FISHER.
Canada : ~)

North-West Territories. [
To wit: J

I, Hillyard Mitchell, of Duck Lake, in the North-West Territories, merchant,make oath and say

:

'

1

.

I have well known Fisher during the last nine years, and he is a faithful.
Honest man, and I have never heard him utter a sentiment of disloyalty.

2. On or about 20th day of March last past he informed me he was a prisoner
at large of Louis Kiel's at Batoche, taking no part in the rebellion, and said he would
eave but wanted to stay to care for his family and property, and to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief he was a bitter enemy of the said Kiel from thetime the said Kiel came to the country on and until the breaking out of the rebellionand never was by his own free will a rebel, and only allowed himself to be used in
the movement from a natural weakness for absurdity and being laughed at, and notfrom any evil or criminal intention. & &

« . - A „ .
HILLYARD MITCHELL,

bworn before me at Regina, in the
")

said Territories, this 7th day of y
August, 1885.

)

Hy. LeJeune, a Justice of the Peace in and for the said Territories.

THB
™9r¥?5N vs

'
IGNACE POITRAS, THE ELDER, BAPTISTB VANDAL,

f^AL^c? 1^^' PIERKK GARIEPIE, ALEXANDER P. FISHbR™5™E
T
LEPItfE, M°ISE OUELLETTE, PIERRE PARENTEAU ANDEMMANUEL CHAMPAGNE.

Canada : ")

North-West Territories, y
To wit

:

J
I, Thomas McKay, of Prince Albert, in the North-West Territories, Esquire,

•make oath and say :—
1. I have been for some time personally acquainted with each and every of the

above named, Ignace Poitras, the elder, and others, and have, during a long time
past, been a magistrate in and for the said Territories.

2. From my personal knowledge of the above named parties I have no hesitation
in saying that they have always enjoyed the reputation of being honest and peace*
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^}

able inhabitants, and I had ever recognized them as law-abiding and loyal citizens of
Her Majesty the Queen at the time of the late rebellion.

THOMAS MoKAY.
Sworn before me at Kegina, in

")

the said Territories, this 1th V

day oi August, A.D., 1885. )
Hillyard Mitchell, a Justice cf the Peace in and for the said Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. JOSEPH AKCAND, ALEXANDER CADIEUX, AND
OTHEES.

Canada :

North-West Territories,

To wit
I, Louis Cochin, of Battleford, in the North-West Territories, priest, being duly

sworn, depose and say :

1. I was a prisoner in the camp of Poundmaker from about the twelfth of April
till about the sixteenth of May, or to the time of Kiel's surrender, the news of which
reached us four days later.

2. I saw Joseph Arcand, who is well known to me, for the first* time among
those in the camp on the third of May ; it was Sunday, about seven o'clock in the
evening. The said Arcand had, I underatood, just arrived with others from JBatoche,
whence they had been sent by Kiel to protect the prisoners from the savages.

3. Joseph Arcand was one of the most ardent of the half-breeds in protecting the
prisoners from being killed, maltreated or robbed by the savages ; he was always on
the watch to guard the prisoners from daDger, and I was indebted to him for his
devoted protection of myself from danger and annoyance. I passed nearly half the
time with him and he never used one solitary expression of disloyalty towards the
Government, nor did he ever commit any hostile act ; he occupied himself altogether
in attending to the safety of the prisoners, white and half-breed, in the camp.

4. It was Joseph Arcand who was specially active and successful in saving the
life of one of the white prisoners, a teamster, who is I believe at present in Eegina.
Arcand also protected a scout named Fontaine from threatened death at the hands of
the Assiniboines, that same scout Fontaine who so ungratefully accused his protectors
on his return to Battleford. This fellow Fontaine, to my personal knowledge, is

totally unworthy of any belief, he is well known as a gaol bird, and in fact was
liberated from gaol to become a scout. Joseph Arcand had left Poundmaker's camp
three days before we heard of the battle at Batoche,

5. Pierre Vandal came to Poundmaker's camp at the same time with Arcand.
This young fellow seemed to be a follower of the others simply through curiosity as
a companion of some of the other half-breeds, and when he mounted guard with the
others it was for the sole and only purpose of protecting the prisoners from the
savages, who were only prevented from falling upon the prisoners by the most
devoted and active efforts of the half-breed guards. I often passed hours with this

young man Vandal and conversed with him and spoke to him in condemnation of
Eiel, and in favor of the Government, to which he assented and often condemned
the rebellion. During all the time he was in the camp he positively did nothing but
protect, to tne very best of his power, the prisoners, white and half-breeds, from
the savages, to which he devoted his whole attention ; his conduct was invariably
praiseworthy and kind . I am bound in conscience and gratitude to accord to him my
best thanks and strong recommendation.

Alexander Cadieux, alias " Kitty-way-hoe," came to the camp with the others
above mentioned. He is a pure savage, but has lived among the half-breeds, and is

very ignorant. He has a great deal of influence with the savages, and through that
influence he was enabled to save the lives of the teamster prisoners who were on the
point of being killed by the Indians, who were very furious and determined. As
one whose life was saved by the combined exertions and devotion of these poor men,
when life was every moment in danger, I cannot sufficiently express my thanks to

God and my gratitude to these poor men, and pray at the hands of the judge who is
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to pass the sentence of the law upon them, a mercifnl view of any fault they mayhave ignorantly committed, in view of the fact that they risked their own lfve™ to

ofle s

e

ava^s
Maj68ty '

8 SubJect9-me*> ™»« «* children-from the fur;

Sworn to and acknowledged before me, ^

L
*
C0CHIN '

at Regina, in the North-West Ter- I

ritories aforesaid, this 13th day of '

August, A.D. 1885.
j

Dixie Watson, Clerk of the Court.

TH\QA^nE^ y5
A\f^

B^^M0NK^AN
'
MAXIME LEPINE AND BAPHSTEVANDAL AND ALEXANDER P. FISHER AND PHILIP GARNOT

Canada : ")

North-West Territories, [
To wit: )

farmer,™^
manh

Th
-

6 Dight
?L

th
t
*™tr&mt d&y of Maroh last P"t. when I was arrested andmade a prisoner Albert Monkman came to me evincing a friendly feeling asked memy name and where I lived; he then asked me what I intended to say to LoTs Biel

mfod lu^t"f
brought beforehim. I answered that I was determined to g ve my

Ta , iu'y
t0 &a> to/ondenin him and his actions strongly and to tell him that taeman who was accused of being the murderer of Scott in former days was not onewho should attempt to plunge the halt-breeds into revolution, whiTwTld lead todisaster and death. Honkman ? aid, « for God's sake, if you value your own life donHdo that, temporize with him rather than irritate him, which may lead to the loss o

LaTn't the
S

k,
nr^at V** ta T^ Sroat W-, beLse of the feeingagaust the Carrot Eiver settlers generally, and against you in particular." He

hT<TJL
m
J

D
«°H

8pe
t
*? faim or appearfriendly in the p.esonce of Kiel, for, saidhe I am already suspected by Riel, but be assured that I will do everything in

wllhC To£°k,-r
U
f\ Nw ^r the

J
r
tt
eMe 0f the P™ ^8

-
Peter Tomklns,

rli XlT a ' /°h
>

n Fi A/tley
,

aDd Newitt was UEd6r consideration Monk!

SLvfflt
^/Bd Plead6d fol'Aheir relea8e before Riel and the council at

«t,nlit
! >n consequence of Monkman's advocacy strongly expressed, and theSh expressed advice of Maxime Lepine and Baptiste Va/dal, who sided

tT« i! PP°- tedu
M

u
Dkm

t
n °\ bebalfof the Prisoners, it was carried thath

r J'
1BZ?" would be liberated, but Dumont opposed it, whereupon Biol

blneve ^ ZU t0 Saddl6
,
a h0rS6 aDd «° to Carlto°, « f firmly

believe, for the purpose of getting him away, and the consequent

Lenin* fl

PrHT
W
H 7™ ,T „

relJTd
-

In C0D9e<luence of the conduct of Monkman,

mTrtthltl^
dal'°° ^half of the prisoners, I feel it a duty to strongly recoup

S?t« twu v
6 m08tfavorable consideration and mercy of the court. Yfurther

5?™JJv„ • K
aD de°Iai

;

ed t0 me
'
and he aPPeared to be sincere, that he would

1 h«
y5n ?

f \l
S P°Wl

r t0 ?*TOnt Riel from bringing the Indians into the rising,

S»f'f tbej were brought into it, bloodshed would follow. I believe that he

fjt 1!^ lT'd
".
n
u
that respect

'
bot r k«ew that he appeared to be suspectedand watched by Riel and he was kept as much as possible out of the way by being

Z™Z,?t t °f.
from

.
°™ Plaoe to another, and never appeared to have much?K ^ of

,

mak
?
DS bimse f beard in the Council. While I was a prisoner, PhilipWnot evinced a friendly feeling towards the other prisoners and myself, bringingus tobacco and books both at Duck Lake and Batochi. At Batoche we were inhl2 a

?
be 8ta^d by

.
h

,

IS^MBt rf mel in our bebalf, and we were all well fed andattended to by bim wh.Ie there. THOMAS SANDERSON,bworn before me at Regina, in said
")

Territories, this 7th day of V
August, A.D. 1885. J

Dixie Watson, Clerk of the Court.
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RETURN
(SUPPLEMENTARY, PARTIAL)

To an Addbess of the House of Commons, dated 5th March, 1886 ;—For
copies of all documents forming the record in the cases of Her Majesty
against the different parties tried in connection with the late Rebel*
lion, including the Jury Lists, the names of the Jurors, the lists of the
Jurors empannelled, the motions and affidavits filed, the evidence,

the incidents of the trial, the charges of the Judge, the names of the
Judges who tried the different cases, the names of the Counsel for the
prosecution and for the defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts, and the
sentences, and in short of every document whatever relating to the
said trials.

By Command,

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State,

16th March, 1886.

Department op Justice, Ottawa, 16th March, 1886.

As a supplementary partial return to an Address of the Honorable the House of
Commons, dated the 5th inst., for copies of all documents forming the record in the
cases of Her Majesty against the different parties tried in connection with the late
rebellion, including the jury lists, the names of the jurors, the lists of all jurors
empannelled, the motions and affidavits filed, the evidence, the incidents of the trial,

the charges of the judge, the names of the judges who tried the different cases, the
names of the counsel for the prosecution and defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts
and the sentences, and in short, of every document whatever relating to said trials,

the undersigned has the honor to transmit herewith transcripts of the records and
proceedings in the eleven cases mentioned in the schedule hereto annexed.

A. POWER, for D.M.J.

SCHEDULE.
Further Return (in part) of all cases of Her Majesty against the different parties

tried in connection with the late Rebellion.

Name. Place.

1. Manachoos (Bad Arrow) and Kittimakegin (Miserable Man)... Battleford.
2. Papub make-sick (Round the Sky) do
3. Pa-pa-mah-cha-kwayo (Wandering Spirit) do
4. Apis-chaskoos (Little Bear) do
5. Louison Mongrain , „... do
52a—
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Name. Place.

6. Wah-wah-Nitch (Man without Blood) Battleford.

7. Ikta do

8. Nabpaee (Iron Body) do

9. Charles Ducharine alias Charlebois, and Wa-waa-seh-oween

(Dressy Man) ~ do

QUEEN vs. MANACHOOS (Bad Arrow), KITTIMAKEGIN (Miserable Man.)

Copy of Record and Proceedings.

Canada: )

North-West Territories. J

The information and complaint of John Alfred Martin, of Battleford, in the

North-West Territories of Canada, Sergeant in the North-West Mounted Police,

taken the second day of October in the year of Oar Lord one thousand eight hun-

dred and eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's Stipendiary

Magistrates in and for the »aid North-West Territories of Canada, who saith :

That Manachoos, otherwise called Bad Arrow and Kittimakegin, otherwise

called Miserable Man, on the second day of April, in the year of Our Lord one thou-

sand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as Frog Lake, in the North-

West Territories oi Canada, aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and of their malice

aforethought, kill and murder one Charles Gouin against the form of the statute

in such case made and provided, and against the peace of Our Lady the Queen her

Crown and dignity.
J. A. MARTIN.

Signed before me the day, month and year^

first above mentioned at Battleford, in

the North-West Territories of Canada.
Chas. B Rouleau,

Stipendiary Magistrate for N.W.T.

Canada; ^|

North-West Territories, I

Saskatchewan District,
j

Battleford Division. J

Tiio second day of October in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred

and eighty-five in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the North-West
Territories of Canada

;

Before Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West Terri-

tories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the Parlia-

ment of Canada passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign and the amend-

ments thereto, entitled : "An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acts relat-

ing to the North-West Territories

;

Manachoos (Bad Arrow) and Kittimakegin (Miserable Man), two Cree Indians,

of Frog Lake, in the North-West Territories aforesaid, who are now prisoners in close

custody at Battleford aforesaid, stand charged this day before the said stipendiary

magistrate sitting in public open court, assembled for the trial of the said Manachoos

(Bad Arrow) and Kittimakegin (Miserable Man)

.

For that they the said Manachoos (Bad Arrow) and Kittimakegin (Miserable

Man), on the second day of April, ona thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at

the locality known as Frog Lake in the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid,

did feloniously and wilfully and of their malice aforethought, kill and murder one

Charles Gouin, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided and

against the peace of Our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity

;

Being duly arraigned the prisoners to this indictment plead—Not guilty.

William McKay, Esq., after having been duly sworn, acted as interpreter.

William Sharpe, Esq., Barrister, represents the Crown.
2
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The prisoners being asked whether they wished to be tried by the stipendiary
Magistrate alone, or the stipendiary magistrate and a justice of the peace, with tha
intervention of a jury, make their option to be tried by the stipendiary magistrate

With the consent of the prisoners their trial is fixed for the third day at
October, 18*5.

Battleford, 2nd October, 1885.

OHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for AT. W.T.

Battleford, 3rd October, 1885.

Present:—Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West
Territories ; William Sharpe, Esq., Barrister, Crown prosecutor, and William Mackay
Esq., interpreter.

'

The case of the Queen vs. Manachoos (Bad Arrow) and Kittimakegin (Miserable
Man), accused of murder, being called, was proceeded with.

Evidence of Prosecution

Toussaint, alias Calling Bull, a Cree Indian, being duly sworn, doth depose and
say :—I was living at Frog Lake for about five years. I worked for Delaney, the
Indian farm instructor. I was at Frog Lake at the time of the massacre. It was
the third of the month, and three days after Sunday, in the spring of this year, early
in the morning of that day I was in Pritcbard's house. When I came out of the
house I saw Indians all round, amongst them the two prisoners. Charles Gouin was
coming from the direction where the sun rises towards me. When Charles Gouin
saw Quinn fall after being shot, he turned back to retrace his steps, and the prisoner
Manachoos (Bad Arrow) fired and shot Gouin, and he fell near the door of Pritohard's
house. Charles Gouin iell first on his face, he turned round and supported himselfon
his elbow, then Kittimakegin (Miserable Man) came forward and shot him in the
chest. He fell and choked a little while, and then ceased to move and died.

Cross-examined by one of the prisoners :—I repeat that I saw Manachoos (Bad
Arrow) fire first at Gouin, and Kittimakegin (Miserable Man) came up and fired
also at bim, then Gouin fell dead. It was the two prisoners who killed Gouin.

The other prisoner states that he does not intend to ask questions, as the witness
has told the truth.

Naokesiekooketaise (Four Sky Thunder) having solemnly affirmed to tell the
truth, saith as follows :

—

I was at Frog Lake at the time of the massacre. Manachoos told me that day
that he shot Gouin, and that the letter fell down. I met Miserable Man before. I
was living in the same tenti Miserable Man, the prisoner, told me that Bad Arrow,
the ol^er prisoner, fired at Gouin first, and that he had fired at him also. Gouin was
lying on his side when Miserable Man shot him. Bad Arrow told me the same thing
also. Miserable Man told me he was urged to do so by one of Big Bear's sons and
Bad Arrow by Wandering Spirit. Miserable Man told me that Gouin was only
wounded when he fired at bim. He told me he had shot him in the right side of
the chest.

The prisoners decline to cross-examine.

Kamanitowas (Idol) being duly sworn, saith as follows :

—

I was present at the Frog Lake massacre. When I heard the first
m hots fired I

was with two other Indians near a root-house, close by Delaney's house. I then
went in the direction of the shooting. When I came to Delaney's house I saw a.

white man lying at the door of Pritcbard's house. I walked toward him and I heard
him gasping. When I was very close I saw Miserable Man, one of the prisoners, fire

at him. The white man was lying on his back. I did not see the flesh wound, but
whatever was in the gun went into the body. I knew the white man's name. It
was Charles Gouin (here the witness gives Gouin's Cree name). After the time
Miserable man had fired I went to Gouin and I heard him and saw him gasping for

breath. Then I went to John Pritchard's house, When I came out Gouin was dead.
52a—1J 3
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The prisoners both state that the witness told the truth and decline to cros©-

examine him.
This closes the case on behalf of the Crown.
The prisoners declare they have no witnesses to examine.

The prisoners are declared guilty of murder by the stipendiary magistrate.

Sentence—Death.

The two prisoners, Manachoos (Bad Arrow) and Kittimakegin (Miserable Man}y
io be hanged by the neck till death follows, on the 27th day of November, 1885.

CHA& B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for N.W.T.

Uattleford, 3rd October, 1885.

I hereby certify that the above is a correct copy of all the proceedings and
evidence had and taken in said case.

CHAS. B. EOULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for N.W.T.

.Battleford, 5th October, 1385.

QUEEN vs. PAPUH-MAKE SICK (Round the Sky)*

Copy of Record and Proceedings,

Canada : 1

North-West Territories. J

The information and complaint of John Alfred Martin, of Battleford, in the?

North-West Territories of Canada, Sergeant in the North-West Mounted Police, taken.

this thirtieth day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred":

and eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magibtrate©

in and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith

:

That Papuh-Make-Sick, otherwise called Round the Sky, on the second day of
April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five at the-

locality known as Frog Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, did

feloniously and wilfully, and of his malice aforethought, kill and murder one Fran 901©
Xavier Fafard, against the form of the statute in such cases made and provided, and
ae^inst the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

J. A. MARTiN.
Sworn before me the day, month and year ~\

above mentioned, at Battleford, in the >-

North West Territories of Canada. j
Charles B, Rouleau,

Stipendiary Magistrate for the North- We$t Territories.

Canada,
North-West Territories,

Saskatchewan District,

Battleford Division.

The first day of October in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundre**

and eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the ^orth-Wes^
Territories of Canada.

Before Charles B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West
Territories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the*

Parliament of Canada passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign, and the
amendments thereto, entitled :

" An Act to amend and consolidate the several Act®
relating to the North-West Territories ;"

Papuh-Make-Sick (Round-the-Sky), a Cree Indian, who is Dpw a prisoner in

close custody at Battleford aforesaid, stands charged this day before me the said sti-

pendiary magistrate, sitting in public open court, assembled for tho trial of the Bant

J?apuh-Make-Srck (Round-the-Sky);
4
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For that he the said Papuh-Make-Sick (Kound-the-Sky) on the second day of
April, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as Frog
Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada, as aforesaid, did feloniously and
wilfully, and of his malice aforethought, kill and murder one Francois Xavier Fafard,

against the form of the statute in such case made and provided and against the peace
of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

Being duly arraigned the prisoner to this indictment pleads " not guilty."

William Mackay, Esq., after being duly sworn, acted as interpreter.

William Sharpe, Esq
.
, barrister, represents the Crown.

The prisoner being asked whether he wishes to be tried by the stipendiary

magistrate alone or by the stipendiary magistrate and a justice of the peace, with
the intervention of a jury, makes option to be tried by the stipendiary magistrate

alone.

Evidence for the Protecution.

Kosipekanew (The Thunder) having solemnly affirmed to tell the truth sayeth

as follows :

—

I was present at the Frog Lake massacre three days before Easter Sunday,

1885. I saw the priest (Fafard) lying on the ground after being shot. The
first time I saw him I was about thirty feet from him, and I went on in the same
direction as some Indians who were following some white men. Afterwards I came
back to where the priest was lying, and I saw the prisoner fire at the priest. The
priest was lying on the ground on his face, and the prisoner fired at him on the

crown of the head. The prisoner was almost over him. He held the muzzle of the

gun quite close to his head. There were a number of Indians around. The Indiana

were saying that the priest was shamming—that he was not dead. I heard a num-
ber of shots fired before I saw Father Fafard lying on the ground. I saw Father

Fafard move after he was lying on the ground. I heard him groan (here the witness

imitates the sound he made) alter the prisoner fired at him. I am positive of it. I
was at the time about twenty feet from Father Fafard.

Cross-examined :—I was about twenty feet from the prisoner and the priest when
I heard him groan

.

Osasaweow (a Cree Indian) being duly sworn
>
doth depose and say :

—

I was present at the Frog Lake massacre . Wandering Spirit was the first man
that fired at the priest, Father Fafard. The priest fell, and I went to look at him.

He was lying on his face. I then bent over him and walked round him to see where

the wound was. The wound was across the middle of the neck. The ball went
through, and the blood was running. I saw also the blood running from his mouth
and nose. I went away and came back and I saw Father Fafard lying on the ground.

There were several Indians around him when I heard them eay " He is still breathing
"

When I heard them say that, there was none very near him. Then Manachoos, an
Indian, told the prisoner to fire at the priest. Then the prisoner came and fired one

shot on the crown of the head of the priest. I never saw the priest move or make
any noise. I am first cousin to the prisoner. I was around a good deal with the

prisoner that day.

The prisorer declines to cross-examine.

Sawayon (a Cree Indian) being duly sworn, doth depose and say :

—

I was present at the Frog Lake massacre. I heard some shots fired that day.

1 went from the camp in the direction of the firing. I saw one priest lying on the

ground. That was the priest that came there recently. I then saw the other priest

lying on the ground, and I went quite near him, and I saw blood running on the ground

and I stepped back. He was breathing, because his back was moving up and down
as a person breathing. He was lying on his face with his hands folded under his

head. I saw the wound near the back of the neck and I saw the blood running. I

thought the bullet had passed through the side of the neck. When the Indians came

where Father Fafard was lying, Manachoos said " He is still breathing, shoot him. "

The prisoner then stepped forward and shot the priest on the top of tbe head. The
priest moved after the shot.
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Cross-examined :—I went away as soon as the prisoner fired at the priest. I
don't suppose that the prisoner took any notice of me. I heard only Manachoos sav
"shoot him."

This closes the evidence for the prosecution.

Evidence on behalf of Defence.

Osasaweow being re-called on behalf of the defence, says as follows :

—

(The prisoner then declines to examine him, as he states he had told the truth
in his examination for the prosecution.)

The prisoner declares he has no witnesses to examine.
This closes the case.

Prisoner declared guilty by the stipendiary magistrate.
Sentence—Death.
The prisoner to be hanged by the neck till death follows, on the 27th day ot

November, 18S0,
*

gpAS. B. EOULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for JV.W.T.
Battlepord, 1st October, 2£85.

I hereby certify that the above is a correct copy of all the proceedings and
evidence had an<J taken in said ease.

CHAS. B. BOCJLEAU, Stipend^ MagktrMeforN.W.T..

Battlepord, 5th October, 1885.

QUEEN vs. PA-PA-MAH-CHA-KWAYO (Wandering Spirit). ,

Copy of Record and Proceedings, "'.

)

Canada : )

North-West Territories. J

The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, ofthe city of Ham-
ilton in the Province of Ontario and Dominion of Canada, chief of police, taken the

22nd day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in

and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith :
t

That Pa-pa-mah-cha-kwayo, otherwise called Wandering Spirit, on the second

day of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at

the locality known as Frog Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid,

did feloniously and wilfully, and of his malice aforethought, kill and murder one
Thomas Quinn, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, andl

against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity

A, P, STEWABT..
Sworn before me the day, month and year "\

above mentioned, at Battleford, in the [*

North-West Territories of Canada. )

CHASLE8 B. BotJLEAU,

Stipendiary Magistrate for the North- West Territories*

Canada: }

North-West Territories, I

Saskatchewan District,
j

Battleford Division. J

Tbe twenty-second day of Septemher, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight

hundred and eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the

North-West Territories of Canada

;

Before Charles B. Eouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West

Territories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under tbe provisions of the Act of Par-

6
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liament of Canada, passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign, and the

amendment thereto, entitled : " An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acts

relating to the North-West Territory ;"

Pa-pa-mah-cha-kwayo (Wandering Spirit) a Cree Indian, of Frog Lake, in the

North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, who is now a prisoner in close custody

at Battleford aforesaid, stands charged this day before the said stipeadiary magistrate

Bitting in public open court, assembled for the trial of the said Pa-pa-mah-cha-kwayo

(Wandering Spirit)
; \

'

For that he, the said Pa pa mah-cha-kwayo (Wandering Spirit), on tbe second

day of April, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as

Frog Lake, in the North West Territories of Canada aforesaid, did feloniously and

Wilfully, and of his malice aforethought, kill and murder one Thomas Quino, against

the form of the statute in such case made and provided and again at the peace of oux

Xady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

Alter being duly arrainged the prisoner to this indictment pleads " guilty.

William Mackay, Esq., after having been duly sworn, acted as interpreter.

Sentence—Death.
Prisoner to be hanged by the neck till death follows, on Friday, the 27th

day of November, one thousand eight hundred and eighty- fivo.

CHAS. B. EOULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the JV. W. T.

Battleford, N. W. T., 22nd September, 1885.

A true and certified copy.

CHAS. B. EOULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the J\. W. 1.

QUEEN vs. APIS-CHASKOOS (Little Bear).

Copy of Record and Proceedings.

Canada: )

North-West Territories*

)

The information and complaint of John Alfred Martin, of Battleford, North West

Territories, and Dominion of Canada, Sergeant in the North-West Mounted Police,

taken tbe 9th day of October, in the year of Our Lord one thousand. eight hundred

and eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty'^ stipendiary magistrates

in and for the North-West Territories aforesaid, who saith :

Tl at Apischaskoos, otherwise called Little ^ear, on the second diy of April,

one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known ae Frog Lake, m
the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and of

his own malice aforethought, kill and murder one George Dill, against the form of

the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady tho

Qneen, her Orown and dignity.
} ^ MARTIN.

Sworn before me tbe day, month and year

first above mentioned, at Battleford, in

the North-West Territories of Canada.
Chas. B. Rouleau,

Stipendiary Magistrate for the North- West Territories of Canada,

}

Canada :

North-Wt st Territories,

Saskatchewan District,

Battleford Division.

The ninth day of October, in the vear of our Lord one thousand eight hundred

and eighty-five, in tbe Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the North- West

Territories of Canada : _T . ._ . ^
Before Charles B. Rouleau, Esq , stipendiary magistrate for tbe North--We«t Ter-

ritories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the tarlia-
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ment of Canada passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign and the amend-
ments thereto, entitled : "An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acts relating
to the North West Territories ;" J 5

<u i-p̂ °ham

°

08
.'
otherwise called kittle Bear, a Oree Indian, of Frog Lake, in the

North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, who is now a prisoner in close custody
at tfattletord aforesaid, stands charged this day before the said stipendiary magistrate
mtoig in public open court assembled, for the trial of the said Apiechaskoos (Little

For that he, the said Apischaskoos (Little Bear) on the second day of April, one
thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as Frog Lake, in the
JSorttr-West lemtories aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and of his malice afore-
thought kill and murder one Gaorge Dill against the form of the statute in such casemade and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and
dignity.

Being duly arraigned the priponer to this indictment pleads " not guilty."
William Mackay, Esq., being duly sworn, acted as interpreter.
William P. Sharpe, Esq., barrister, represents the Crown.
The prisoner, being asked whether he wishes to be tried by the stipendiary

magistrate alone or by the stipendiary magistrate and a justice of the peace, with the
intervention of a jury, makes option to be tried by the stipendiary magistrate alone.

1 he following evidence was adduced on behalf of the Crown:--
Oaisawehow, a Cree Indian, being duly sworn, doth depose and say :—
1 know the prisoner. 1 saw him during the massacre at Fro'' Lake. He wason horseback that day riding amongst the houses. I sa* him coming from the

direction where the white men were fired at. The prisoner was armed. I saw Dill
there that day I saw him al*o after he was dead. He was killed by a bullet.

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.
Kopisikinew (Thunder), a Uree indiaD, having solemnly affirmed to tell the

truth, saya as lullows :

—

1 know the prisoner, and I saw him at Frog Lake the day of the massacre. The
massacre took place about three days before Eapter last. I saw him mounted and
iollowing the trader Dill, and I saw the prisoner firing two shots at Dill while h*was counted. There are four Indians whom I knew. These four Indians were
tiring. Dili leli while the firing was going on. It was the result of the shooting
that caused Dili s death. I don't think he was sick before that.

Cross-examined :—It was when the last shot was fired that Dill fell.
Kamamtowas a Cree Indian, being duly sworn, doth depose and say :—

*t * I *
0W

,
Prlsoner - When we were in the prison together the prisoner told me

that he fired two *hots at the trader (Dill) but that he missed him. The prisoner did
not tell me where it was. The prisoner must have referred then to the Frog Lake
massacre. &

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.
This concluded the case for the Crown.
The prisoner declares he has no evidence to adduce, as the witnesses for theUrown stated what was true.
Prisoner declared guilty by the stipendiary magistrate.
Sentence—Death.

A.rr !!i

h
£

pribTr t0 be
u
aDged hy the neck tiU death follow8

>
on the twenty-seventh,day of November, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five.

Battleforb, 9th O^toberfm^^ *&»*»y Magistrate for the K W.T.

andt£K tt^cte.^
076

^ " trU6 °°Py °f aU th6 F™"^ and ^dence **

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W.T.
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QUEEN vs. LOUISON MONGEAIN.

Copy of Record and Proceedings.

Canada : )

North-West Territories, j

The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city o€

Hamilton, in the Province of Ontario, and Dominion of Canada, chief of police^

taken the twenty-third day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand

eight hundred and eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipen-

diary magistrates in and for the said North-West Territories who saith :—

That Louison Mongrain and Wawa-se-he-wein, otherwise called Dressy Man,©*L

the fifteenth day of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred an<|

eighty-five, at the locality known as Fort Pitt, in the North-West Territories o£

Canada aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and of their malice aforethought, kii«

and murder one David Lattimer Cowan, against the form of the statute m such case

made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and

^nitY '

A. D. STEWART.
iSworn before me the day, month and year ~\

above mentioned at Battleford, in the ?

^orth-West Territories of Canada. )
Chas. B. Rouleau,

Stipendiary Magistrate for the said North- West Territories.

Canada :

North-West Territories,

Saskatchewan District,

Battleford Division.

The twenty-third day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand

eight hundred and eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in

the North-West Territories of Canada

:

Before Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West

Territories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of thet

Parliament of Canada, passed in the forty-third yeir of Her Majesty's reign and the

amendments thereto, intituled : " An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acts

relating to the North-West Territories :"

Louison Mongrain and Wa-wa se-he-wein (Dressy Man) two Cree Indians of

Frog Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid, who are now prisoner*

in close custody at Battleford aforesaid, stand charged this day before the said

Stipendiary Magistrate, sitting in open court, assembled for the trial of the saitl

Louison and Wa-wa-se-he-wein (Dressy Man).
For that they the said Louison Mongrain and Wa-wa se-he-wein (Dressy Man)

on the 15th day of April, one thousand eight hundred and eighty five, at the locality

known as Fort Pitt, in the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid, did felon-

iously and wilfully, and of their malice aforethought, kill and murder one Davcd

Lattimer Cowan, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided and*

against the peace of our Lady the Qaeen, her Crown and dignity. ^
After being duly arraigned the prisoners to this indictment plead " not guilty.

William Mackay Esq., after being duly sworn, acted as interpreter. The pris-

oners elected to be tried by the stipendiary magistrate and a justice of the peiiLce

with the intervention of a jury.

The trial of said prisoners was fixed for the 25th of September, 1885.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W. T*
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The case of the Queen vs. Nabpace alias Iron Body being called, is proceeded
"with and the following evidence is adduced*

Evidence on the part of the Grown.

Osisawehow, a Cree Indian, being duly sworn, doth depose and say :

—

•him do anything there at that time. The white people were near by walking towards
the camp, followed by the prisoner and other Indians. The white people were not
going to the camp of their own accord. The Indians whom 1 knew that were follow*
ing the white people were Askik-Puskookyoo Mamekwesno, and the prisoner. They
were armed. The white people were not armed. The white people were gathered
together by Big Bear's Indians to the point where I saw them marching them off.

The leason the white people were not armed is because their guns were taken from
them by Big Bear's Indians that morning. George Dill was amongst the white peo-
ple whom 1 saw marching off. I was standing then between John Pritcbard's bouse
and a storehouse. Afterwards I followed in the direction of the white people. I
heard shots in that direction, and the first I saw lyiDg on the ground were Delaney
and Gowanlock. A little further on I saw the two priests lying. They wore killed!
b£ that time. I saw three white people running. They were followed by some
Indians. The white people were Williscraft, Gilchrist and George Dill, It was too
far off for me to see who the Indians were that were following. I think there must
have been three if not more. I saw Nabpace again in the tent. The whole time of
the massacre did not last more than the time to smoke a pipe.

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.
Kopisikenew (Thunder), having affirmed solemnly to tell the truth, says aa

follows :

—

I know the prisoner. I was present at the Frog Lake massacre. I saw the
prisoner there. I know a trader that was there (Dill), but I did not know him by
liis English name. I saw him together with other white men followed by Indians
The prisoner was one of the Indians. When I came in full view of the white people,
while the firing by the Indians was going on, I saw two men running. It was the
trader (Dill) and a young man (Gilchrist). There was a dog along with them.
"When I first saw the Indians running after them I could not recognize tbem, but
when I got to the top of the ridge I saw but one white man, that was the trader
(Dill). Be turned round towards the Indians while they were firing at him. He
appeared to have lost all hope. The Indians that were firing at him were Apischas-
Ioob, Nabpace, the prisoner, Mamekwesew and Pafkookuyoo. I saw Nabpace, the
prisoner, firing at Dill. During this firing I saw Dill fell. He was lying there dead.

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.
This closes the case for the Crown.

Evidence for the Defence.

Apisckaskoos (Little Bear), being duly sworn, doth depose and say:

—

I was present when the trader Dill was killed. I saw the white man turn round
And the prisoner fired at him and knocked him down.

Crown declines to cross-examine.
ILamanibowas, being duly sworn, doth depose and say :

—

I did not hear that ycu killed the trader Dill. A brother of mine asked the
prisoner how it was that he had not killed anybody. The prisoner answered that he
liad killed only ore dog.

Crown declines to cross-examine.
This closes the evidence for the defence.
The prisoner declared guilty of murder by the stipendiary magistrate.
Sentence-—Death,

10
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Kapesinmokoe (a Cree Indian) being duly sworn doth depose and say :

—

1 was present at Fort Pitt when Constable Cowan was killed. When I was
coining down the brow of the hill at Fort Pitt, I saw the policeman that was killed^

I saw him fall. Then I saw the prisoner, Louison Mongrain, arriving where Cowan
-was lying. I was quite close to Louison, the prisoner. The prisoner held his gun
towards the policeman who raised his hands saying " don't brother, don't," and fired

two shots at him in the front part of the head. I was awakened by the shots of the

gun before. Louison Mongrain, the prisoner, is the only Indian I saw firing atCowan
when the latter was lying down. Lb l >*4

Cross-examined :—Prisoner had on a helmet, a pair of trousers and a shirt," he
had no blanket on. He had a twelve-shooter rifle. I was the next man to prisoner

when he fired at Cowan.
Alfred Smith, of Fort Pitt, laborer, being duly sworn, deposeth and saith :—
I was a prisoner in Big Bear's camp during the month of April. I saw the

l>ody of Cowan the day after his death.

The prisoner declares that he has no questions to ask.

This closes the evidence of the Crown.

Evidence on behalf of the Priwier.

Mesinachapato, a Cree Indian, having declared solemnly to tell the truth, says

as follows :
—

I was standing about fifty feet from where Cowan was lying. I saw Mongrain

there but I did not see him fire the shots. $fa
Cross-examined :—I never heard the prisoner say that he had shot Cowan. ±L

saw Mongrain there but I did not see him fire the shots.

Prisoner declares that he does not want to call any more witnesses.

The jury returned a verdict of guilty.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W.T.

P.C.PAMBKUN, J. P.

Battleford, 25th September, 1885.

Sentence, death.

Prisoner to be hanged by the neck until death follows, on the 22nd day of

November, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N.W.T.

Battleford, 25th September, 1885.

A true and certified copy. mr .
__ __ _

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N.W.T..

QUEEN vs. WAH-WAH-NITCH (Man Without Blood).

Copy of Record and Proceedings,

Canada; >

North-West Territories. )
•

; m

The information and complaint of Jchn Alfred Martin of ^tUrforf, in fte

North West Territories and Dominion of Canada, sergeant in the North-We.t Counted

Ink, 1. tb. j«r of o.r Lord oo. thooaod .,gU huodrod at ml ft* . «^£
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murder one Bernard Treraont, against the form of the statute in such case made and
provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

J. A. MARTIN.
Sworn before me the day, month and year")

first above mentioned at Battleford, in C

the North-West Territories of Canada. )

Charles B. Rouleau,

Stipendiary Magistrate for the said North-West Territories.

Canada :

Horth-West Territories,

Saskatchewan District,

-Battleford Division.

The fifth day of October in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred
and eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the NorthrWest
Territories of Canada

;

Before Charles B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West
Territories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the
Parliament of Canada, passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty' reign, and the
amendments thereto, entitled :

" An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acts
relating to the North-West Territories j"

Wah-wah-nitch (Man Without Blood) an Assiniboine Indian, of Battleford, in the
^North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, who is now a prisoner in close custody
at Battleford, aforesaid, stands charged this day before the said stipendiary magis-
trate sitting- in public open court, assembled for the trial of the said Wah-wah-nitch
(Man Without Blood).

For that he the said Wah-wah nitch (Man Without Blood) on the thirty-first
day of March, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as
Dewan and Tremont's farm, in the North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, did
feloniously and wilfully, and of his malice aforethought, kill and murder one Bernard
Tremont against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against
the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

Being duly arraigned the prisoner to this indictment pleads " guilty."
John Edward Kelly being duly sworn, acted as interpreter.
Sentence—Death.
Prisoner to be hanged by the neck till death follows on Friday the twenty

seventh day of November, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for NW.T.
,Battleford, N.W.T., 5th October, 1885.

I hereby certify that the above is a correct copy of all the proceedings and
evidence had and taken in said case.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for NW.T.
Battleford, N.W.T., 5th October, 1885.

QUEEN vs. fKTA.

Copy of Record and Proceedings.
Canada: 1

North-West Territories. )

Tho information and complaint of John Alfred Martin, of Battleford, in the
North-West Territories, and Dominion of Canada, sergeant in the North-West
Mounted Police, taken the 5th day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousand
eight hundred and eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipen-
diary magistrates in and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith

:

12
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That Ikta, on the thirtieth day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand

«1ght hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as the Stoney Roserve, in the

North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and of bis

malice aforethought, kill and murderone James Payne, against the form of the statute

In such case made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queem, her

Cow* and dignity.
J. A. MARTIN.

Sworn before me the day, month and year
^

first above mentioned at Battleford, in >

the North-West Territories of Canada, J

Chas. B. Rouleau,

A Stipendiary Magistrate for the said North- West Territories

Canada :

^North-West Territories,

Saskatchewan District,

Battleford Division.

The fi'th day of October, in the year of Oar Lord one thousand eight huiadspeil

and eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the North-Wea*
^Territories of Canada :

Before Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-Wes*
^Territories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act ©ff the
Parliament of Canada, passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign, and the
.amendments thereto, entitled : "An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acta
relating to the North-West Territories ;

"

Itka, an Assiniboine Indian, of Battleford, in the North-West Territories of
Canada aforesaid, who is now a prisoner in close custody at Battleford aforesaid^

stands charged this day before the said stipendiary magistrate, sittiDg in publi© opem
court, assembled for the trial of the said ltka

;

For that he, the said Itka, on the thirtieth day of March, one thousand eigpfc

hundred and eighty-five, at the locality kno*m as the Stoney Reserve, in the Noirtib-

West Territories of Canada aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and of his maSice

aforethought, kill and murder one James Payne, against the form of the statute i»

finch case made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queeo, h«r
JDrown and dignity.

Being duly arraigned, the prisoner to this indictment pleads "guilty."

John Edward Kelly, being duly sworn, acted as interpreter.

Sentence—Death

.

Prisoner to be hanged by the neck till death follows, on Friday the twenty-

seventh day ot November, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate tor the N.W.T,
Battleford, KW.T, 5th October, 1885.

I do hereby certify that the above is a correct copy of all the proceedings and

evidence had and taken in said case.

Cm AS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the KW.T.
JBattlefobd, 5th October, 1885.

QUEEN vs. NABPACE (Ibon Bodt).

Copy of Record and Proceedings.

Canada :
")

^North-West Territories. J

The information and complaint of John Alfred Martin, of Battleford, in the

3!forth-West Territories of Canada, sergeant in the North-West Mounted Police, takes*

13
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this eighth day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in
and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith :

That Nabpace, otherwise called Iron Body, on the 2nd day of April, in the year
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as
^Prog Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid, did feloniously and
wilfully, and of his malice aforethought, kill and murder one George Dill, against the
form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of our
Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

J. A. MARTIN.
Sworn before me the day, month and

>

year first above-mentioned, at Battle-

ford, in the North-West Territories of
Canada.

Chas. B. Rouleau,

A Stipendiary Magistrate for the North- West Territories of Canada.

Canada :

North-West Territories,

Saskatchewan District,

Battleford Division.

The eighth day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred
-and eighty- five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the North-West
Territories of Canada

:

Before Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West
Territories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the
Parliament of Canada, passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign, and the
amendments thereto, entitled :

" An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acts
.relating to the North-West Territories :

"

Nabpace, otherwise called Iron Body, a Cree Indian, of Frog Lake, in the North-
West Territories of Canada aforesaid, who is now a prisoner in close custody at
Battleford aforesaid, stands charged this day before the said stipendiary magistrate
sitting in public open court, assembled for the trial of the said Nabpace alias Iron
3ody;

For that he, the said Nabpace alias Iron Body, on the 2nd day of April, one
thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as Frog Lake in the
North-West Territories aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and of his malice
aforethought, kill and murder one George Dill, against the form of the statute in
such case made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her
Crown and dignity.

Being duly arraigned, the prisoner to this indictment pleads " not guilty."
William Mackay, Esq., being duly sworn, acted as interpreter.
William P. Sharpe, Esq., barrister, represented the Crown.
The prisoner being asked whether he wishes to be tried by the stipendiary

magistrate alone, or by the stipendiary magistrate and the justice of^the peace with
the intervention of a jury, makes option to be tried by the stipendiary magistrate
alone.

Trial fixed for 9th October, 1885.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU,
Stipendiary Magistrate for the North- West Territories.

Battleford, 8th October, 1885.

Battleford, 9th October, 1885.

Present : Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West Ter-
ritories.

William P. Sharpe, Esq., barrister, Crown prosecutor, and William Mackay,
Esq., interpreter.

14
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Battleford, 25th September, 1885.

Present: Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate, for the North- West

Territories, and Pierre Chrysologue Pambrun, Esq., J.P., with the intervention of

the following jurors who were duly sworn, to wit

:

J"** George W. Gairdner, 1 ; Alexander McKenzie, 2; J. F. D. Parker, 3 ; Jules Gagn&

4; H. Millie, 5 ;
Jonathan Kose, 6.

William Sharpe. Esq., represents the Crown.

On behalf of the Crown Mr. Sharpe enters a nolle prosequi in favor of the pri-

soner " Dressy Man."

Evidence of the Prosecution.

Clarence Lousby, a constable of the North-West Mounted Police, being duly

sworn doth depose and say :

—

On the fifteenth of April last (1885) I was at Fort Pitt. I started from Fort Pitt or

the fourteenth to go to Frog Lake with Constable Cowan aod Henry Quinn, to find out

where Big Bear was. The next day we came back about half a mile from the fort.*

Big Bear and his band were camped on the top of the hill. Cowan and I kept

together and were going towards the fort. When we crossed the bridge the Indians

commenced firing at us. We did not fire at them before. By that firing Constable

Cowan and I got wounded. 1 did not see Cowan when he fell off his horse.

Prisoner declines to cross examine.

John Altred Martin, a sergeant in the North-West Mounted Police, being-

duly sworn, doth depose and say:—
.

.

'

I was at Fort Pitt, in the North-West Territories, on the 15th day of April last

(1885). Big Bear and his band arrived there on the 14th of the same month and

demanded a surrender of the lort. Before Cowan was shot there were no shots fired

between the police and the Indians. About an hour before Cowan was shot, Mr.

McLean, of the Hudson Bay Co., was negotiating with the Indians. The Indians had

promised not to kill anyone if the police would surrender the fort. I saw Constable

Cowan falling from his horse. There was considerable firing, both at Lousby and

Cowan, at the time, by the Indians. Cowan was about 500 yards from the fort when

he fell. About half an hour after Cowan fell I saw one Indian, about the size of the

prisoner, with a wnite blanket on, fire a shot at Cowan, quite close to him, about a

couple of yards. Before that shot was fired, two of the Indians felt whether Cowan

was breathing or not.

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.

Kasowakayo, a Cree Indian, having solemnly aflirmed to tell the truth, says as

follows :

—

T .

I got into Big Bear's camp some time m May. I saw the prisoner, liouison

Mongrain, and heard him sav, " I wonder who killed Cowan ? I was the first who

camo to him when he was lying on his back; and Cowan put his hands up, saying,

< Don't, brother,' and I fired two shots at him." The prisoner did not state where

the shots entered Cowan's body. There was a woman present when that conversa-

tion took place between me and the prisoner. I do not know her name.

Cross-examined.—The night Big Bear son's wife died is the night 1 had that

conversation with the prisoner MoDgrain.

Toussaint, alias Calling Bull (a Cree Indian) being duly sworn, doth depose

and sav *

I know the prisoner. I heard the prisoner talking about the death of Cowan at

Fort Pitt. It was just a short time after he was killed. Prisoner Mongrain said

" that the policeman was killed. I went up to him and he raised his hands, and when

I went to fire at him he said < don't brother' and I fired two shots at his head.

Prisoner did not tell me that, but I was near by and I heard him tell the other Indians.

Cross-examined.—That the conversation took place at the prisoner s fireplace.

I am unable to tell how many Indians were present. I do not think there were

many women present.
15
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The prisoner to be hanged by the neck till death follows on the 2?th day of

jNovember, 1885.

CHAS. B. KOULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N.W.T.

Battleford, 9th October, 1885.

I hereby certify that the above is a true copy of all the proceedings and evi-

dence had and taken in this case.

CHAS. B. KOULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N.W.T.

^UEEN vs CHARLES DUCHARMES, ALIAS CHARLEBOIS, AND WAWA-
ASEHOWEEN (Dressy Man).

Copy of Record and Proceedings.

Canada : )

ISTorth-West Territories, j

The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of
Hamilton, in the Province of Ontario and Dominion of Canada, chief of police,

taken the twenty-third day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand
eight hundred and eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipen-

diary magistrates in and for the North West Territories of Canada, wlio saith :

That Charles Ducharmes, otherwise called Charlebois, Wahsahgamap, otherwise
called Bright Eyes, and Wawaasehoween, otherwise called Dressy Man, on the thir-

tieth day of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-

five, at the locality known as Frog Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada
aforesaid, did feloniously, wilfully, and of their malice aforethought, kill and murder
one Puskayak, otherwise called "She Wins," against the form of the statute in such
cases made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown*
and dignity.

A. D. STEWART.
Sworn before me the day, month and year "\

above mentioned, at Battleford, in the >

North-West Territories. j

Chas. B. Rouleatj, Stipendiary Magistrate for N.W.T.

Canada :

North West Territories,

Saskatchewan District,

Battleford Division.

The twenty-third day of September in the year of our Lord one thousand eight

hundred and eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the
North-West Territories of Canada.

Before Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West Terri-

tories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the Parlia-

ment of Canada, passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign, and the
amendments thereto, entitled :

" An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acts
relating to the North-West Territories :

"

Charles Ducharmes, otherwise called Charlebois, Wahsagamap (Bright Eyes)
and Wawasehoween (Dressy Man), three Cree Indians, of Frog Lake, in the North-
West Territories of Canada aforesaid, who are now prisoners in close custody at

Battleford aforesaid, stand charged this day before the said stipendiary magistrate,

sitting in public open court, assembled for the trial of the said Charles Ducharmes
alias Charlebois, Wahsagamap (Bright Eyes) and Wawasehoween (Dressy Man)

;

For that they, the said Charles Ducharmes alias Charlebois Wahsagamap
(Bright Eyes) and Wahwasehoween (Dressy Man), on the thirtieth ,day of April,

one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as Frog Lake,
16
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in the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and
of their malice aforethought, kill and murder one Puskeyak (She Wins) against the
form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady
the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

After being duly arraigned the prisoners to this indictment plead " not guilty."
William Mackay, Esq., after being duly sworn, acted as interpreter.
The prisoners eleoted to be tried by the stipendiary magistrate and a justice of

the peace with the intervention of a jury.
The trial of the said prisoners was fixed for the 25th September, 1885.

CHAS. B. BOULSAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W.T.
Battleford, 23rd September, 1885.

Battleford, 25th September, 1885.

Present: Chas. B. Eouleau, Esq, stipendiary magistrate for the North-West
Territories, and Pierre Chrysologue Pambrun, Esq., J.P., with the intervention of
the following jurors who are duly sworn, to wit : Harry Phipps, 1 ; Charles Anther-
son, 2 ; Hugh Canamow, 3 ; John Connor, 4 ; George H. Clouston, 5 ; Hartley Gis-
borne, 6.

William Sharpe, Esq., represents the Crown.

Evidence of Prosecution,

Francois Dufresne, of Fort Pitt, in the North-West Territories, yeoman, being
duly sworn, says as follows •

—

On the 16th of April, or about that time, I was a prisoner in Big Bear's camp, at
Frog Lake. I saw the murdered woman Paskayak two days before she was killed.
When I saw her she was walking to the camp with a stick in her hand. The day
the woman was killed some Indian said :

" Here is the cannibal going." I went
where the old woman was and I saw her sitting in a tent. 1 told the Indians she
was sick. "No ;

" they said :
" She is a cannibal and we are going to kill her." I

told them they had better tie her and she would get better in a few days. I heard
the Indians say that anybody that would kill the woman it would be all right. An
Indian came and told me she was to be killed and I went out and saw the Indians
carrying the woman in a skin. Amongst the Indians carrying the old woman I saw
Charles JDucharmes with a stick in his hand, Dressy Man had an axe, and Bright
Eyes had a gun. The Indians carried that woman about a mile from the camp and
placed her on the ground and she knelt on the hide, and one of the prisoners Charles
Ducharmes was standing beside the woman and said :

" My friends you asked every-
body to kill that woman and nobody would do it. After I strike her, don't say I
struck the old woman and laugh at me." All the Indians said u yes." Then prisoner
Ducharmes struck the woman with his stick a hard blow on the side of the head and
the woman fell on her side. As soon as the woman fell on her side Bright Eyes fired
a shot at her head. I saw the blood run from her head and the powder burn her
hair. He put the gun very close to her head. There was another Indian that fired
at the woman but he is not a prisoner. Then Dressy Man, the other prisoner, gave
the woman a blow with a sharp side of the axe which made a big gash in her neck.
The blood flowed from that, wound.

Cross-examined.— When Ducharmes struck the blow I did not see the woman
trying to get up. It was Bright Eyes that I saw firing the first shot at the woman.
There were two shots fired at the woman.

Paskwyak, a Cree Indian, being duly sworn, doth depose and say

:

I saw the Cree woman killed before the leaves came out. I saw prisoner Duchar-
mes there with a stick in his hand, and struck the woman on the head, and the
woman fell over. There were no Indians between the prisoner Ducharmes and
the woman, After prisoner Ducharmes struck the woman I saw Bright Eyes firing

a shot at her. He hit the woman, but don't know what part of the body. I

52a—
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saw Dressy Man the prisoner, but I am not certain if he had any weapon. I saw
that woman only twice previous to the murder. I heard the old woman say it

would he better to take her away from the camp and kill her, because if they did

not that she would destroy the women and children.

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.

This closes the evidence for the prosecution.

The prisoners state that they nave no evidence to adduce, as the witnesses for

the prosecution stated what was true.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate, N.W.T.
P. C. PAMJ3RUN, J. P.

Battlepord, 25th September, 1885.

The jury returned a verdict of Bright Eyes guilty of murder.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Maoist? ate, N. W.T.
P. C. PAMBBUN, J.P.

Battleford, 25th September, 1885.

Sentence, death, against the two prisoners, Charles Ducharmes and Dressy Man.
Charles Duch irmes and Dressy Man to be hanged by the neck till death follows,

on the twenty-seventh day of November next, eighteen hundred and eighty-five.

And Bright Eyes sentenced to twenty years in the Manitoba Penitentiary.

Battlepord, 25th September, 1885.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate far the N.W.T.

A true and certified copy.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the JV. W.T.

RETURN
(SUPPLEMENTARY, FINAL)

(52Z>)

To an Address of the House o* Commons, dated 5th March, 1886 :—For

copies of all documents forming the record in the cases of Her Majesty

against the different parties tried in connection with the late Rebellion,

including the Jury Lists, the names of the Jurors, the lists of the

Jurors empannelled, the motions and affidavits filed, the evidence, the

incidents of the trial, the charges of the Judge, the names of the

Judges who tried the different cases, the names of the counsel for the

prosecution and for the defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts, and

the sentences, and, in short, of every document whatever relating to

the said trials.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

March, 1886.
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Ottawa, 18th March, 1886.
As a Supplementary Final Beturn to an Address of the Honorable th« House of

Commons, dated the 5th instant, for copies of all documents forming the record in
the cases of Her Majesty against the different parties tried in connection with the
late rebellion, including the jury lists, the names of the jurors, the lists of all jurors
empannelled, the motione and affidavits filed, the evidence, the incidents of the trial
the charges of the judge, the names of the judges who tried the different cases, the
names of the counsel for the prosecution and defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts
and the sentences, and, in short, of every document whatever relating to the said
trials, the undersigned Las the honor to transmit herewith transcripts of the records
and proceedings in the four cases mentioned in the schedule hereto annexed.

A. POWEE, for D. M. J.

SCHEDULE.

Supplementary Final Eeturn of all cases of Her Majesty against the different
parties tried in connection with the late rebellion.

Name - Place.

1. Mus sin-ass, Battleford.
2. Co-pinou-way-win

, d
3. Peeyay-cheew . d
4. Wah-Piah ......".7.1 do

Aylmer, Que., 17th March, 1886.

Sir,-—Enclosed I have the honor to forward a true and certified copy of all
documents in my possession of persons tried before me at Battleford for treason-
felony, and also the account of Joseph Woods for copying the same.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your most obedient servant,

CHAS. B. EOULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W.T.
The Hon. the Minister of Justice, Ottawa.

Canada :
)

North-West Territories. \

The information aDd complaint of John Alfred Martin, of Battleford, in the
.North-West Territories of Canada, sergeant in the North-West Mounted Police,
taken the fifth day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred
and eighty- five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates,
in aDd for the North-West Territories of Canada, who saith :—

That Co-pin-ou- way-win, Mussinasa and Pee-yay-cheew, not regarding the duty
of their allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love and obedience, fidelity and
allegiance which every true and faithful subject of our Lady the Queen does and of
right ought to bear towards our said Lady the Queen, on the second day of May, in
the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty -five, and on divers other
days as well before as aftor that date, together with divers other evil disposed per-
sons to the said John Alfred Martin unknown, did, within the Dominion of Canada,
compass, imagine, invent, devise acd intend to levy war against our said Lady the
Queen within Canada, in order by force and constraint to compel her to change her
measures and counsels, and the said felonious compassing and imagination, invention,
device and intention, then feloniously did express and utter and declare by divers
overt acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say :

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their ielonious compassing, imagin-
ation, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said Co-pin-ou-way win,
Mus-sin-ass and Pee-yay-cheew, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-seventh day of March,
in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as after that

19
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day, at and near the locality called Battleford, in the North-West Territories of

Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together with divers

other evil-disposed persons to the said John Alfred Martin unknown, to raise, make and

levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within this realm.

And farther, to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing,

imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said Co-pin-ou-way-

win, Mus-sin-ass and Pee-yay-cheew, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-ninth day of

April, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times as well before as after

that day, at or near the locality known as " Cut-Knife Hill," in the said North West

Territories of Canada, together with certain other evil-disposed persons to the said

John Alfred Martin unknown, feloniously and wickedly did express, utter and

disclose their said felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device and intention

by feloniously publishing a certain letter or writing addressed to one Louis Kiel, who
was then with certain other evil -disposed persons to the said John Alfred Martin

unknown, in open rebellion and insurrection against our said Lady the Queen, in the

said North-West Territories of Canada, in the words following, to wit:—

" Cut Knife Hill, 29th April, 1885.

" To Mr. Louis Kiel,—I want to hear news of the progress of God's work. If

any event has occurred since your messengers came away, let me know of it. Tell

me the date when the Americans will reach the Canadian Pacific Railway ;
tell me

all the news that you have heard from all places where your work is in progress.

Big Bear has finished his work; he has taken Fort Pitt. < If jou want me to come

to you, let me know at once,' he said ; and I sent for him at once. I will be four

days on the road. Those who have gone
-

to see him will sleep twice on the road.

They took twenty prisoners, including the master of Fort Pitt. They killed eleven

men, including the agent, two priests and six white men. We are camped on the

creek just below Cut Knife Hill, waiting for Big Bear. The Blackfeet have killed sixty

police at the Elbow. A half-breed, who interpreted for the police, having survived

the fight, though wounded, brought this news. Here we have killed six white men.

We have not taken the barracks yet, but that is the only entire building in Battle-

ford. All the cattle and horses in the vicinity we have taken. We have lost one man,

a Nez Perce killed, he being alone, and one wounded. Some soldiers have come from

Swift Current, but I do not know their number. We have here guns and rifles of all

sorts, but ammunition for them is short. If it be possible we want you to send us

ammunition of various kinds. We are weak only for the want of that. You sent

word that you would come to Battleford when you had finished your work at Duck

Lake. We wait still for you, as we are unable to take that fort without help. If you

send us news send only one messenger. We are impatient to reach"you. It would

give us—encourage us much to eee you, and make us work more heartily. Up to

the present everything has gone well with us, but we are constantly expecting the

soldiers to visit us here. We trust that God will be as kind to us in the future as he

has in the past. We, the undersigned, send greeting to you all.

"POUNDMAKER,
" CO P1N-OU-WAY-WIN,
"MUS-SIN-ASS,
" MEETAY-WAY-IS,
« PEE-YAY-CHEEW.

" When this reaches you send us news immediately, as we are anxious to hear the

news. If you send us news, send as many men as possible."

The said Co-pin-ou-way-win, Mussin-ass and Pee-yay-cheew then well knowing

that the said Louis Kiel and the said other evil-disposed persons were then in open

rebellion and insurrection against our said Lady the Queen, in contempt of our said

Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil example of all others in like case offondmg
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agaiDst the form of the statute in such ease made and provided, and against the peace

of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

J. A. MABTIN*
Sworn before me the day and

^
year first above-mentioned, at I

Battleford, in the said North-
f

West Territories of Canada. J

Chas. B. Bodleau,

A Stipendiary Magistrate for the said North- West Territories.

A true aDd certified copy.

CHAS. B. BOULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W.T*

ties, >

ict. J

Canada :

North-West Territor

Saskatchewan District.

The fifth day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred

and eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the North-West

Territories of Canada: „ .lTir
'

Before Chas. B. Bouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West

Territories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the

Parliament of Canada, passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign, and the

amendments thereto, entitled: " An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acts

relating to the North-West Territories."

Co-pin-ou-way-win, Mus-sin-ass and Pee-yay cheew, three Oree Indians, of Battle-

ford, in the North-West Territories aforesaid, who are now prisoners in close custody

at Battleford aforesaid, stand charged this day before the said stipendiary magistrate,

sitting in public open court, assembled for the trial of the said Co-pin-ou-way-win,

Mus-sin-ass and Pee-yay-cheew.
For that they the said Co-pin-ou-way-win, Mus-sin-ass and Pee-yay-cheew are

accused, at several dates, of treason-felony against the form of the statute in such case

made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and

dignity.

Being duly arrainged, the prisoners plead: Co-pin-ou-way-wm and Mus-sin-ass

not guilty, Pee-yay-cheew guilty.

William McKay, Esq., being duly sworn, acted as interpreter.

William P. Sharpe, Esq., barrister, represents the Crown*

The trial of the two prisoners, Co-pin-ou-way-win and Mus-sin-ass, after having

made option to be tried by the stipendiary magistrate alone, is fixed by consent to the

8th day of October 1885.

The sentence of Pee-yay-cheew is deferred till after the trial of the two other

prisoners.

Battleford, 5th October, 1885.

CHAS. B. KOULEATJ, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N.W.T.

A true and certified copy.

CHAS. B. BOULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N.W.T.

Battleford, 8th October, 1885.

Present: Chas. B. Kouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West

TfiT*T*itOFl©8

William P. Sharpe, Esq, barrister who represented the Crown, and William

McKay, Esq., who acts as interpreter.

The cate of the Queen vs. Co pin-ou-way-win and Mus-sin-ass, accused of treason-

felony, being called, the following evidence was taken.

2
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Evidence on Behalf of the Prosecution.

Pierre Chrysologue Pambrun, of Battleford, farmer, being duly sworn doth
depose and gay :

—

About the end of March last, there was an outbreak of the Indians in thevicinit*
of Battleford. I saw Co-pin-ou-way-win amongst the Indians, when I overtook their
camp. The Indians told me they were coming down to make a demand on the Indian
Agent Eae. There were a large number of Indians ; they were armod. I went to speak
to the Indian Agent Eae and when I came back towards about six o'clock, p.m , all the
Indians were south of Battle Eiver. When I came back to the barracks from my
place next day, in the evening all the houses and stores on the south of Battle Eiver
had been plundered by the Indians.

The prisoners decline to cross examine.

Assiskiwnatauko (The Old Woman Earth), having solemly affirmed to tell the
truth, says as follows :

—

I know the prisoners by sight. I was here at the time the stores were raided
by the Indians. I cannot say that I saw the prisoners there.

The prisoners decline to cross-examine.

K yam ka-pit (One-who- sets-still), having solemnly affirmed to tell the truth says
as follows :

—

J

I was here when the Indians raided the stores. I know Mus-sin-ass, one
of the prisoners. I did not see him that day. I saw him start with the Indians of
Sweet Grass' Eeserve. I saw him coming towards Battleford. I don't remember
to have seen Mus-sin-ass amongst the Indians.

The prisoners decline to cross-examine.

Eobert Jefferson, of Eagle Hill, being duly sworn, doth depose and say :—
.

I was farm instructor on Poundmaker's Eeserve at the time of the outbreak. The
Indians left the reserve towards the end of March last. As soon as the Indians came
back from Battleford, about the first of April last, I considered myself as a prisoner. At
one time, about the 12th of April last, the prisoner Co-pin-ou-way-win came to superin-
tend the digging of a grave. I saw the two prisoners, but I cannot say I saw them
armed at any time. The young men were armed all the time, the old men were
armed only occasionally. The prisoners were in the camp three or four days before
the battle of Out Knife and after the battle. I am sure the prisoners were in the
camp all the time, with the exception ofCo pin-ou-way-win who went away for a short
time. Co-pin-ou-way-win went to fetch in his brother, who was a day's march from
camp. He brought him along with him, saying that he was a very good counsel.

I saw the letter produced in court. It is my hand-writing. One Indian came and
told me I was wanted, I followed him into a tent in the middle of the camp. There
were six or eight men in the tent, to wit : Poundmaker (the chief) Co-pin-ou way-win,
Mitcheways, Pee-yaycheew, Jakecum, Mus-sin-ass, The-man-who-shot-the-eagie,Pitche-
was and myself. I believe Poundmaker said to sit down, they wanted me to write a
Jotter. They got the back of a cart, paper and pencil and they began to dictate.
They would dictate in turn. Co-pin-ou-way-win dictated the principal part of it.
Mus-sin-ass took part in it also. That letter is the joint dictation of the
names which are at the foot of the letter. I told them that this
letter should be signed by somebody. Co-pin-ou-way win said; let Pound-
maker sign it. I asked Poundmaker and he said : " Yes." Then the whole of them
said

:
" Put down all our names," and they all agreed to their names being put down.

There is no doubt whatever that I was authorized by the two prisoners to sign their
own names to the letter. Jobin. one of the half-breeds, made the alteration about the
messenger. I gave the letter to Poundmaker and a messenger left with it to take
it to its address.

Cross-examined:— I am not certain that I came into the teat last. I never said
that Co-pin-ou-way-win was first to speak. I am certain that you prisoners told me to put
down your names. Co-pin-ou way win had sent for his brother long bef >re he went for
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him himself. He went for his brother the day before " Cut Knife " battle. Co-pin-ou-

waywin sent Mistatimwas for his brother. Mistatimwas' principal mission was to

bring his father down and tell Co-pin ou way-win's brother en passant.

Re-examined by permission of court :—The object of the rebellion amongst the

Indians was to make a complete change in the government of the country.

Re cross-examined :—I heard the Crees say that Riel told them that the Americans

were to take possession of the country.

Thomas Maguire, of Battleford, gunuer in " A " Battery, being duly sworn,

doth depose and say :
—

I knew Louis Riel when he was a prisoner after the battle at Batoche. As tar

as I know I believe he was the leader of the rebellion.

Prisoners decline to cross-examine.

This concludes the evidence on behalf of the Crown.

Evidence on behalf of the Defence.

Mitohewayes (Conjurer) a Cree Indian, having duly affirmed, doth depose and

I was present in the tent when Jefferson was there, but never heard Co-pin-ou-way-

win nor Mus-sin-ass tell him to put their names at the foot of the letter. The party

who wanted the letter to be written was Jakecum. I say that Jakecum was the prin-

cipal man who dictated the letter. I did not hear Co-pin ou-way-win send a messenger

for his brother. I never heard him advise anybody to do any harm. The prisoner

Co-pin ou-way-win was the last man to come into the tent. I never saw you at any time

take up arms against the white man. You were always trying to keep the Indians

peaceable. Ever since I knew Mus-sin-ass I never knew he did any wrong to the white

men. I never heard you urge the young men against the white men. .During all

that trouble I always heard you trying to prevent all trouble.

I never he ard Mus-sin-ass authorize anybody to put his signature at the toot ot Ine

letter. I never heard you dictating this letter.

Cross-examined : I was in the tent when the letter was written. It was Pound-

maker's tent. I was sent to come by some one, I don't remember the name. I went

in and sat near the door of the tent. I did not look around to see who was there*

There was another man besides the prisoners there, that was « The man who shot the

the eagle," but I don't think he remained long there ; I noticed also Jakecum. We

went there in the tent for the purpose of hearing news that Jakecum was to read, so

stated Poundmaker. Mus-sin-ass was a councillor before the outbreak, but 1 ctont

know about Co pin-ou-way-win

Jakecum wanted to send a letter to his friends to tell them about his plans. All lean

remember about the letter is that they gave some news that they had received which

I don't remember. I did not hear anything about the composition of tne letter

amongst themselves, except by Poundmaker and Jakecum. Jefferson was there, 1

was a councillor before the outbreak. I was here the day the Indians came to

Battleford. I saw Mus-sin-ass, but I don't remember to have seen Co-pio-ou-way-win.

The prisoners were in the camp. There was no sufficient light in the tent for me to

see them all in the tent.

Ki hi wa ka pim-wat (One that shoots the eagle) having affirmed solemnly to tell

the truth, says as follows

:

, . . ~~+* +i*«

To Mu, sin-ass :- I did not hear you say that you wanted to give your name to the

letter I never heard you dictating any part ot the letter.

Cross^amined :-When I went to visit Poundmaker in his tent, Mus-sin-ass came

after me, and Jackecnm after Mus-sin-ass. Jackecnm said to Poundmaker-thatihe.won-

dered if Jefferson wouid write a letter to send to his friends, and he stated also that

he would l.ke some other Indians there, and some were called in «•»*•*»»»

wanted to let them know what had taken place out west here. The I left the tent

Jaekecum came from Duck Lake. He mu-t hare brought news of the Duck Uke fight.

I was amongst the Indians that came to Battleford. I saw the two prisoner* with us.
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Rev. Louis Cochin, O.M.I., being duly sworn, deposeth and saith as follows :—
It is not within my recollection that Co-pin-ou-way-win took any active part in the

rebellion. I know personally that he has tried to do good, that he has protected me
and the other prisoners against the Assiniboines and other Indians.

Not cross-examined.
This closes the evidence of the defence.
Declared guilty.

Sentence: Two years in the Manitoba penitentiary.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate 1or the N.W.T.
A true and certified copy.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N.W.T.
Battleeord, 8th October, 1885.

To Mr. Louis Riel ;

CUT KNIFE HlLL
'

29th APril
>
1885 '

I want to bear news of the progress of God's work. If any event has occurred
since your messengers came away let me know of it. Tell me the date when the
Americans will reach the Canadian Pacific Railway. Tell me all the news that youhave heard from all p aces where your work is in progress. Big Bear has finished
his work. He has taken Fort Pitt. « If you want me to come to you let me know
at once, he said, and I sent for him at once. I will be four days on the road. Thosewho have gone to see him will sleep twice on the road. They took twenty prisoners,
including the master of Fort Pitt. They killed eleven men including the agent, two
priests and six white men Wo are camped on the creek just below Cut Knife Hill,
waiting for Big Bear. The Blackfeet have killed sixty police at the Elbow, A half'
breed who interpreted tor the police, having survived the fight, though wounded,
brought this news Here we have killed six white men. Wo have not taken the
barracks yet, but that is the only entire building in Battleford. All the cattle and
horses in the vicinity we have taken. We have lost one man, a Nez Perce killed, he
being alone, and one wounded. Some soldiers have come from Swift Current, butdon t know their number. We have guns and rifles of all sorts, but ammunition fortnem is short If it be possible, we want you to send us ammunition of various kinds,We are weak only for the want of that. You sent word that you would come to
.Battleford when you had finished your work at Duck Lake. We wait still for vou
as we are unable to take the fort without help. If you send us news send only one
messenger. We are impatient to reach you. It would give us—encourage us much
to see you, and make us work more heartily. Up to the present evervthing has
g^ne well with us but we are constantly expecting the soldiers to visit us here.We trust that God will be as kind to us in the future as he has in the past. We, the
undersigned, send greeting to you all.

POUNI) MAKER,
CO-PIN-OU-WAY-WIN,
MUS-SIN-ASS,
MEE-TAY-WAY-IS,

w , ,,. PEE-YAY-CHEEW.
When this reaches you send us news immediately, as w3 are anxious to hear thenews.
If you send us news send as many men as possible.A true and certified copy.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the JV.W.T.

QUEEN vs. WAHPIAH.
Canada : |

North-West Territories. [

West
T
Terlu^ of battleford, in the North-West Territor.es of Canada, constable in the North-West Mounted Police, taken the
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twenty-first day of October, in the year of oar Lord one thousand eight hundred and
eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in

and for the North-West Territories, who saith :

That Wahpiah, otherwise called White Man, not regarding the duty of his

allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which
every true and faithful subject of our Lady the Queen does and of right ought to

bear towards our said Lady the Queen, on the second day ot April, in the year of our

Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days, as well

before as after that date, together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said

Joseph Quigley unknown, did, within the dominion of Canada, compass, imagine,

invent, devise and intend to levy war against our said Lady the Queen, within Canada,

in order by force and constraint to compel her to change her measures and counsels,

and the said felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device and intention then

feloniously did express, utter and declare by divers overt acts aDd deeds hereinafter

mentioned, that is to say :

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious compassing, imagi-

nation, invention; device and intention aforesaid, he the said Wahpiah, otherwise

called White Man, afterwards, to wit, on the seventeenth day of April, in the year

of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days,

as well before as after that date, at or near the locality known as Fort Pitt, in the

said North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble

and meet together with other evil disposed persons to the said Joseph Quigley un-

known, to raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the

Queen within this realm.
And further to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious compassing,

imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he the said Wahpiah, other-

wise called White Man, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-eighth day of May, in the

year aforesaid, and on divers others days as well before as after that date, at or near

the locality known as Frenchman's Butte, in the said North-West Territories of

Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together with divers

other evil-disposed persons to the said Joseph Quigley unknown, to raise, make and

levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within this realm,

in contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil example of all

others in like case offending against the form of the statute in such case made and

provided, and against the peace of our said Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

JOSEPH QUISLE?.
Sworn before me the day, month

^
and year first above mentioned, [

at Battleford, in the North-
j

West Territories of Canada. J

CHAS. B. EOULBAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N.W.T.

A true and certified copy.

CHAS. B. EOULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W. T.

The Queen vs. Wahpiah (White Man).

Accusation -Treason-felony.

William P. Sharp, Crown prosecutor.

William MoKat, Esq., interpreter.

The prisoner pleads not guilty and elects, to be tried summarily by the

stipendiary magistrate without the intervention of a jury.

Evidence for the Prosecution.

James K. Simpson, of Fort Pitt, in North-West Territories aforesaid, clerk, being

duly sworn, doth depose and say :

I know the prisoner. On the 2nd of April last (1885) I was made a prisoner at

Frog Lake by Big Bear's Indians. I saw the prisoner when Big Boar's band came
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back from Pitt, about two weeks after the massacre. The prisoner carried a gun and
he remained with Big Bear's band all the time to my knowledge The fight at
Frenchmen's Butte took place about the 23th of May last (1885). I saw the prisoner
up to that time, and after at Loon Lake. He was with the Indians then at that
latter place during the fight. The prisoner was one of the leaders in the council
tent of the Indians; that is the place where the Indians decide all iheir actions. The
evening before the fight at Frenchmen's Butte, Big Bear's Indians were looking after
the prisoners, and as they thought I had escaped, they enquired where I was/and
other Indians answered: " I was sitting with them." I remarked the prisoner was
amongst the party. The Indians were then aware that the loyal troops were near.
The prisoner was taking a part in seeing that the white prisoners should not
escape. There were some Indians who remained behind fighting at Frenchmen's
Butte, and the prisoner was not with us, who were about four miles from the battle-
field. The Indians told me that they wanted to upset the present Government and
get the Americans to come into the country.

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.

William B Cameron, formerly of Frog Lake/ now of Battleford, in the North-
West Territories, clerk, being duly sworn, doth depose and say :

I know the prisoner, I was made prisoner by Big Bear's bund on the 2nd of April
last (1885), and I remained as such till the 28th May last (1885), about the time of the
fight at Frenchman's Butte. I first saw prisoner two or three weeks after the Frog
Lake massacre. I think I saw him all the time around with Big Bear's Indians, more
particularly with Wandering Spirit, who had the most influence amongst the Indians.
When Indians were dancing the prisoner used to sit alongside of Wandering Spirit.
The latter used his influence for bad. I saw the prisoner leading the white prison-
ers in company with Wandering Spirit to the centre of the camp, where they had
their dancing tent. I saw a sword in the possession of prisoner. He had also an
officer's black coat no. I escaped on the evening of the day the first shots were fired
at Frenchman's Butte. Prisoner was amongst Big Bear's band, who were fighting.
The prisoner was one of those who was looking for Henry Quinn when he was
recaptured.

Cross-examined : —The reason 1 state that the prisoner was one of those who
were looking after Henry Quinn is that he was going around the camp and in
amongst the tents like a man looking for something.

Sakaman, a half-breed, being duly sworn, doth depose and say :

—

-Desnoyers is my real name. I was at Fort Pitt during the time of the siege last
spring (18^5), I cannot state what month. The ice was running in the river at the
time. The first time 1 saw the prisoner he was at Yermillion Eiver, the leaves were
about coming out. It was a little below Frog Lake. I saw him next at the latter
place. The prisoner had a gun and a sword-bayonet. He had a police coat with
stripes on the arms. At the time they were searching for Henry Quinn the prisoner
was amongst the Indians. I saw him going around and in the dancing tent of Big
Bear's Indians. He used to speak at the council. I never beard in there anything
good in favor of the prisoners. All I heard was to guard them and other times to
kill them. The prisoner belongs to Thunder Child's reserve, near Battleford.

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.

Eobert Hudson, of Battleford, baker, being duly sworn, doth depose and say :

—

1 was at Pitt about the 17th of April last (1885). Pitt had been beseiged by the
Indians on the 15th of same month. I was made a prisoner by the Indians on that
day. I saw him on the 16th April last, with Mr. Dickens' sword on. I remember
speaking to Mr. Quinn about him. The prisoner always carried a gun. I remained
a prisoner amongst Indians for two months and over. I saw him till the time we
got to Loon Lake. I did not see him after Big Bear's party left us at Loon Lake.

Cross-examined :—I am not certain to have seen prisoner the day I was taken
prisoner, but I am certain of the day after.
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John Pritchard, of Fort Pitt, interpreter of the Indian Department, being duly
sworn, doth depose and say :

—

I was a prisoner in Big Bear's camp from the 2nd April, 1885, till June of the
same year. I paw the prisoner amongst Big Bear's Indians shortly after the capture
of Fort Pitt. When Henry Quinn was in my tent, the prisoner came in and stated
he wanted to kill him. Every time the tent was erected for council or dance, I saw
the prisoner there. He seemed to take a prominent part in it. He was a man to talk
a lot. Prisoner always saying not to release the white prisoners. It was at Frog
Lake where I first saw the prisoner.

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.
This closes the case on behalf of the Crown.
The prisoner states that he has no evidence to adduce.
The prisoner declared gailty by the stipendiary magistrate*
Sentence : Six years penitentiary.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N.W.T.
A true and certified copy.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the JST.W.T.

Battlepord, 21st October, 1885.

MESSAGE.
(52c.)

Lansdowne.

The Governor General transmits to the House of Commons copies of

certain letters of a confidential character, respecting the Rebellion in the

North-West Territories during the year 1885.

Government House,

Ottawa, 29th March, 1886.

Dear Sir,—The French half-breeds on the Saskatchewan River, and a section

of the English half-breeds living between the two rivers, have been holding meet-

ings at St. Laurent, at which meetings all the members were sworn to secrecy.

Notwithstanding this, enough has transpired to show that grave trouble will arise in

the country unless repressive measures are adopted by the Government.
A number of resolutions were passed of a violent nature. Amongst others,

resolution No. 3 :
" That they, the half-breeds, do not recognize the right of the

Government to the North-West Territories," and appointed delegates to proceed to

Montana, U.S., and invite Louis Riel to come over and be their leader in any further

action they may determine on.

The delegates so appointed, named : Gabriel Dumont, Moise Ouellette, Michel

Dumas and James Isbester, left yesterday for Montana to carry out the object of

their mission. The French half-breed race living on the Saskatchewan numbers

about YOO male adults, and are gathering force every year by immigration from

Manitoba and the southern parts of the Territories.

These men are not farmers, merely cultivating small patches of land little larger

than kitchen gardens. They live by hunting and freighting. Their occupation as

hunters was ei.ded by the disappearance of the buffalo and there is not sufficient
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overland freighting going on in the country to afford labor to a third of their num-
ber, hence they are getting poorer year by year.

This in reality is the real source from which this agitation arises, although pre-

tended grievances against the Government are pushed to the front.

These men avow that the Indians are in sympathy with them.
The French half-breeds are closely related to the plain Indians and there is a

danger of the half-breeds persuading the Indians to join them should an uprising
take place.

The Indians have no arms or ammunition it is true, but both arms and ammunition
in considerable quantities belonging to the defunct Saskatchewan military organiza-

tions are scattered throughout the country without protection and could be seized at

any moment.
These scattered arms and ammunitions should be collected and placed under

police surveillance at Prince Albert, and the force increased to the extent of thirty

men with an officer in command. A strong detachment should also be stationed

at St. Laurent. I have an intimate knowledge of the character of these half-breeds,

and, as you are aware, some influence over them. Many of the men I have spoken
to are averse to any agitation leading to a breach of the law, but, that a number of

Kiel's abettors in the Red River troubles are resident in their midst and are pro-

moters of this movement, and candidly state that thsy believe that if Riel is allowed
to visit their settlements serious disturbances will arise therefrom.

In ray opinion, and it is also the opinion of the Rev. Father Andre, who is the
superintendent of the Roman Catholic missions on the Saskatchewan, that these

delegates should be shadowed and if Riel accepts the invitation and attempts to cross

the boundary line he should be made prisoner.

The Rev. Father also agrees with me that if Riel is not allowed to enter the
country, the influence we can bring to bear on the body of the people will counteract
the influence of that section of them who are leaders in this movement.

Any letters Riel might write would be of little avail. This matter I thought of

such importance that I wired Lieutenant-Governor Dewdney, who arrived at Battle-

ford on the 13th instant, as follows:—" Are you coming east? If not, like speak you
over wire; important." Next morning I spoke to Governor Dewdney over the wire,

telling him it was important I should meet him, if possible, giving him a mere
outline of what had taken place. He could not then state what his movements
would be, but said he would wire me in a day or two of his decision, since when I

have not heard from him on this subject.

It is therefore well, I think, that you should put the Government in possession

of these facts with as little delay as possible, impressing on the Premier the necessity

of prompt investigation. * * * *

He-Manitoba Rights.

18th June, 1884.

Dear Sir,—I think there has not been since the commencoment of the agitation

a better time to strike than the present. Everything seems ripe for it. I am certain

seven-eighths of the people of Winnipeg are in our favor, and I am certain four or
five hundred good men will accomplish our object without any difficulty whatever.
The fact of the matter is this, we have nothing to resist us, the military here is nothing
more than a pack of boys, and we have easy access to the store-rooms. We had a small
meeting to night, and the parties present were unanimous in favor ofmaking a strike

at once. Now I think that ifwe delay we will not only be losing ground and the thing
will never be accomplished. I would like to know the possible number of men who
can be got from the country to assist in the scheme. 1 hope you will come to some
definite conclusion at your council meeting.

Believe me I am in perfect sympathy with you, and I am ready at any time to

take part in the more active part of the business and see if we can't get the people
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their rights. Kindly let me hear from you in the matter at your earliest convenience

and oblige.
Yours fraternally,

MACK HOWE, J. G.

George Purvis, Esq., Brandon, Secretary Farmers' Union.

{Private and Confidential.)

I think you have made a small mistake in your appointment of Mr. Baily to the

Dosition he holds. I will not attempt here to give reasons, but consider it yourself.

I would suggest some good farmer who has been some time in the country and

an actual farmer now.

M. H.

Carlton, 7th January, 1885.

{Confidential )

Sir—I have the honor to forward herewith a confidential report from Mr.

Howe from Prince Albert. It relates to the matter upon which I telegraphed you

mcvo'her from here a few days ago. I had personal interviews with tho&e mentioned

in Inspector Howe's report, and they feel confident that Kiel is sincere in saying he

wishes to leave the country, and will do so as soon as he has the means. I quite

T^ree with Pere Andre, with whom I had a talk relating to this matter at Prince

Albert a few days ago, that if this man Kiel was out of the country the normal quiet

would be restored. For, granting that his power to make serious trouble may be but

problematical, yet his very presence here causes a feeling of uneasiness among the

half breeds and Indians, which, as you know, is taken advantage of by others who

are neither half-breeds nor Indians, to further their own schemes and ends. Kiel,

certainly, has great influence with the half-breeds, and that being admitted, means

influence with the Indians as well. They regard him as a man who has suffered for

them and their cause, and that he is here to work in their interest. He knows full

well how to play upon their superstitious natures, and though to white men some of

his savings and doings and proposed reforms seem absurd, even ridiculous to the

stople minded natives the very absurdity of his expressions and ideas make him

appear to them so much the greater man and benefactor to their people.
PP

Of late he has appeared in the role of a religious reformer, and I am informed by

one who certainly knows, that he has influenced even in that direction people

proverbial for their regard for the teachings of their church and clergy, proving his

influence, which he might use with embarrassing results.

The man says he has personal claims, the amount mentioned would cover those

Claim
The matter of the claims of the half-breeds for scrip, and as to the manner of

dividing and sub-dividing the land upon which they have already settled, impera-

tivelyS the immediate attention of the Government, and that decisions at

once be sriven for or against the wishes of those interested.

In the interest of this country I strongly urge a settlement of those important

matt
i

r

n'eed not enter into particulars as to the claims for scrip nor as to the changing

of shape of the lots settled upon from ten chains front and two miles long to the

regular
P
block lotl You have heard and understand what is wanted, no doubt, quite

Well
*Someof the half-breeds report that the Indians are quite in accord with them,

even the Sioux, and will act at any time and manner they wish. I do not, however,

blueve that there is universally with the Indians such an understanding tho^h

ther Tare undoubtedly bands and" individuals arcoDg other bands who look to Kiel

and the half-breedsL their champions, and who, I think, have promised to join or

act with them as they bid, and the greater the chances may be of the half-breeds and

mlont^nrindtans accomplishing whatever object they have in view so many more
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Indians proportionately would join them, and if any movement or agitation is the
least successful it would be very apt to attract the whole Indian population either as
strong sympathisers or active participants.

I have, &cM
„ • L. N. CKOZIKR.
Hon. Edgar Dewdnby, Governor N.W.T., Regina,

(Confidential.')

Prince Albert, 24th December, 1^84.

Sir,—I have the honor to report that Mr. McDowell, member for the North-West
Council, returned yesterday from St. Laurent, to which place he- went accompanied
by Pere Andre, at the request of Louis Kiel, who wished to hold a conversation with
him as member for the district.

Kiel stated that he was thinking shortly of returning to Montana if the Govern-
ment would only give him the means to do so; he further stated that he wished
representation made to the Government that if a certain sum was paid to him in
cash (Mr. McDowell seems to think he would accept $5,000), he would at once leave
the country. He says that he has such influence with the half-breeds that any rights
they think they have or claims upon the Government would be at once dropped by
them if he advised them to do so.

He says he is very poor and has actually nothing to live upon, and if he cannot
procure means to leave the country, as well as something to settle upon his wife and
family, he will starve, which might make him desperate.

As soon as the Government gives him what he asks for, he will, he says, give up
all connection with the other half-breeds, in fact throw them all over and pledge
himself not to return to this country.

His influence among the half-breeds is very great he says, and that they will
obey him most implicitly in whatever policy he may assume politically or otherwise.
He says he should like to see Sir John but cannot procure the means to go to Ottawa.

I have, &c,

,. ^ ™ ™ JOSEPH HOWE, Injector.
Commanding Oflicer North-West Police, Battleford.

Prince Albert, 7th July, 1884.

Your Honor, —Your telegram affords me an opportunity to write you about an
event or which you are sure to receive several different accounts, which will be
colored according to the views and interests of the persons writing to you. I assure
you I have no other design in writing to you than to keep you informed about the
true state of things. Kiel and delegates have arrived from across the line. The
news may surprise and alarm you about the tranquility of the country, but you can
set your mind quiet about that and have no fear of any disturbance in the country.
You know 1 am known to be a friend ofMr. Kiel, and I look to the event of his arrival
among us as a danger for the peace of our community, but now I do not entertain
the least suspicion about Kiel causing any trouble. He acts quietly and speaks
wisely. From all the reports I heard about him, he blamed strongly Charles Nolin
for having refused to present your Honor with an address.

I enclose here the report of the delegates sent to Mr. Kiel, and, too, the answer
of Mr. Kiel for his reasons accepting the request of the people of the Saskatchewan
to come and see them in order to help them to obtain their rights from Government.
You will see that answer is suitable, and smells not of treason. Those documents, of
which I send you true copy, were handed to Louis Schmidt, as secretary of the com-
mittee appointed to organize, last spring, a deputation to Mr. Kiel. L. Schmidt has
been kind enough to provide me with a copy of these documents, which are to be
made known at the meeting to be held next Tuesday at the South Branch, among
English half-breeds. Mr. Riel is to come there. I think it is important that you
should know those documents, which will show you Riel means no mischief.
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You will receive alarming reports about the danger in which the country is in

consequence of Eiel's arrival. l)o not believe a word. Those persons will be very-

glad that you should coramit some rash act. They will send and advise you to have

Eiel arrested. For God's aake, never commit such an act before you have good

motives to justify such an act- A good many persons will urge you to send here

200 or 300 policemen. They will be glad to see Government go to expenses, because

that will be so much money put in their pockets. Nothing so far requires to send

one man more to keep the peace of the country. The half-breeds, English as well

French, understand too well the foolishness and the consequences of rising in a

rebellion against the Government, and Eiel seems really to act by good motives and

to have no bad design. A man will not bring his wife and children along with him
if he intended to raise a rebellion, and Mr. Eiel has brought his wife and two little

children with him, and that is the best proof that he has no bad intentions.

I write to you in earnest and tell you my sanguine conviction there is no danger

of any trouble if you let quiet Mr. Eiel, but if you or any official interferes with him
or try to have him arrested there is almost a certainty of trouble, and half-breeds and

Indians will join together; so, as long as Mr. Eiel conducts himself quietly why
trouble him and rouse the anger of the people? Excuse, Governor, my writing. I

write in a great hurry, but I hope you will be able to make out what I mean. I will

rather be long and tedious than miss to tell you something that is important for you
to know. If you want to know something particularly I will be ready always to

oblige your Hocor and to fend you full details.

With my best wishes, I remain, Sir, your humble servant.

FATHER ANDEE.
To Governor Dewdney, Eegina.

Prince Albert, 23rd July, 1884.

Dear Mr. Eiel,—I sent the reports off in good shape by mail last night. We
telegraphed to the Free Press to have your speech wired (about 1,000 words; I made
a copy for the Mail, and returned the original in case they should wire us to day.

I met Mr. Beatty, Mr. Isbester introduced me as he was starting for Carrot

Eiver, and sent with him two letters, one to a prominent Conservative, the other to

a Liberal that tbey might act in unison. Without rousing any personal prejudice I

described the great benefits which you had conferred upon ns, so I think they will

not look a gift horse in the mouth but suspend their judgment for tbe present and

set to work. I invited them to make out their requirements and choose a delegate to

executive committee, sending document and name to me. Mr. Beatty will set all going

smoothly and then set out for his new home in Stony Oreek disirict, where he will
' consolidate a strong North-West party. Beatty is the man who objected to my con-

doning Qeacon's interference, you will remember, a good, solid man.

To-day I shall finish up work in town, and to-morrow start for the Lower Flat,

&c. I will try and get out to your place towards end of week. Please be working up

the petition into shape and we will get in neat form before the committee is called to

endorse or alter it as they see fit. I have secured the Dominion Eegister and the

Consolidated Act of Manitoba, will bring them out with me. There is a big work for

us while the petititon is waiting an answer, but I think we will be ready for a stiff

campaign when the answer does come.

A number of trimmers are awaiting to see if the current in your favor will last,

by the time they are satisfied it will be too late for them to bother us much if dis-

posed to do so. T. J. Agnew proposed to Maclise that the Conservatives shouli take

counsel together and adopt your platform under their party name. If they do so

they will be snared by their own subtilty. Men who are willing to betray their coun-

try for party ends are going to learn that it is a speedy form of political suicide.

Just imagine that they understand our policy. What a mess they would soon make
ofit?

Macliee is going to put his ideas into shape and hand them in to me.
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I settled matters, commercial and political, with J. F. Bell, shook hands with him
and cordially asked him to show his brain power in our work. He was somewhat
astounded, I think, by my change offror.it, bat I hope will shortly gather himself
together and wire in. J. O. Uavis-is thinking the mercantile aspect out, also other

merchants.
I set Joe Knowles to work on the solution of the statistical problem, and I think

he will do good work for us.

I have seen Barker and other mechanics in regard to the effect of the Govern-
ment policy on trade.

There is no necessity for awaiting statistics, of course, before drawing up the
petition. That is a very simple matter, and could be done without any returns at

all, in fact, for he who runs may read the numbers under which we labor. In the
same time I have circulated the fullest invitation for every man to hand in his list.

The town may possibly not elect its delegates in time for our drawing up the peti-

tion, bu$ they have been invited to do so, and I will try and bring a good man with
me in their behalf. I shall be just as well pleased if they reserve their strength for

the statistical work, and we will not be ready for that till Knowles and I have come
to a focus. He has a good head for that kind of business.

A clear, concise, logical petition will strengthen our hands more than a month
of speechifying. Any bungling work will earn for us the contempt of the business
men.

I have got on a friendly footing with Owen E. Hughes, and will cautiously try

to induce him to give us his ideas He is a shrewd business man.
I may write up a reassuring explanation of our work in a manner to disarm

prejudice, and put in the Times for the benefit of our home audience.

I am in good health except a slight cold, and enjoy good rest, and hope that you
also are in good shape. We will not get much respite until after tho petition, but

we can rest calm and peaceful as to the result, while the enemies of our God are
tossing on their beds devising evil things against themselves.

Clarke, Sproal & Co. have gone up to Battleford. They will inevitably prepare
the good men to receive our doctrines, for they will associate with the oppressors of

the people. The idea of sending an apostle in a quiet way up tho river is suggesting
itself to the minds of many, and I let it work. Providence knows the right man for

the right work, and there is no use dictating to Him.
Maclise wrote privately to Blake asking him not to stop at L. Clarke's, and

Blake wrote back that his health would not permit him to visit the North-West this

summer. Your visit may cause him to change his plans, but I can keep posted
through Maclise, who has kept up a correspondence with him since 1882.

Fisher is my lieutenant among the young men of the place, and keeps me posted
as to the enemy's movements in that quarter. I think Deacon, who is a Methodist,
has seen Mr. Parker, but Mr. Parker is too sound on principle to be lost to us. Mr.
McWilliams, the Presbyterian minister, who has hitherto been a Liberal, stated last

night at supper table that " he has yet to learn what our grievances are." It is the mis-
fortune of clergymen that they see only one side of a man's character, and Mr. Sproal
is a prominent pillar of the Presbyterian church

j
yet Mr. McWilliams is too good a

man, I think, to be blinded for any length of time. I will leave him to form his

opinion from events, and our petition may enlighten him as to our grievances.

It is Mr. Elliott s opinion that Mr. Jackson is too clever and lacks tact. My
past line of action justifies that opinion, and it is perhaps as well that they are so
well satisfied with a false key.

l>r. Porter's wife is a niece of Donald A. Smith, who is a close friend of Swan-
ston's. and invests his money for him. These circumstances have 'heir significance,

but I believe their good hearts will carry them through. " The smoking flax he will

not quench."
Clarke, the druggist, is apparently trying to serve God and Mammon. Let us

pray that the best may prevail. The influence of an unprincipled friend is a ter-

rible snare to a young man, especially one of keen intellect.
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The Free Frets has just wired for Kiel's speech in full. I am going up with Ab.

Porter after dinner. I have a great affection for Ab ; I believe him to be a good

honest soul.

I have got the prices paid to Hudson Bay Company contrasted with prices paid

ordiDarily for supplies, a valuable document ; also the answer of the Secretary of

State (Chapleau) to Norquay, anent Manitoba demands.

xf any of our friends think I am not getting through business fast enough,

please reassure them. You know me and my work, and an element of discontent is

dangerous to the same.
I think I see our way clear to raising all the funds we want.

I think I have stated everything at present. I miss you very much, but it is as

well that I learn to keep a close direct hold on the Father's hand.

Your friend,

WILL. JACKSON.

I can't find my seal, all right, yet the enemy will only use it to their own

destruction if they do intercept it.

REPORT OF THE DELEGATES.

To the gentlemen of the committee entrusted with the seven Resolutions adopted by

the people of the Saskatchewan, William Cromartie, President, Louis Schmidt,

Secretary.

Gentlemen,—-As your delegates for that purpose, we have travelled the long

journey of about seven hundred miles to seek an interview with Mr. Kiel.

We had to go in the Territory of Montana as far as St. Peter's mission, situated

in the county of Louis and Clerk, beyond Sun River, at the foot of the great Rockies.

We found him humbly and respectably employed as a teacher in the Industrial

College of the Jesuit Fathers of that place. After having acquainted him with the

object of our mission we handed him our credentials and the six resolutions on which

we had to consult with him, also the document whereby our public invites him to the

North-West. We asked him to come with us if he could and to aid us. This interview

took place on the 4tb of June. Mr. Riel read our papers of trust, and begged to be

allowed twenty-four hours to think the matter over before giving an answer. We
were received by Mr. and Mrs. Riel in a very friendly manner, their courtesy was

sincere, simple and true. Generally when one enters the house of a very poor man

the feeling of the visitors is more or ^less painful, but entering Mr. Riel's house our

impression was different. The humble condition of his home reminded us ol the

opportunities he had for several years to become rich, and even to make an except-

ional fortune, and how at all risks he stood firm by the confidence of his people. We
know how much he wrought for Manitoba and how much he struggled for the whole

North-West, and seeing how little he worked for himself, we came back after a long

trip of some fourteen hundred miles with twice as much confidence in him as we had

on leaving to go and seek him in a foreign land.
., 4. v^-

After taking intoconsideration the object of our visit, Mr. Riel told us that his

advice from the other side of the line would be of no use to the North-West, he said

that it had always been his principle to assist, as far as it laid in his power those

who happened to be in need ofhelp within his reach. The people of the British

North-West were particularly dear to him as he had suffered a great deal for their

cause and welfare j that he had yet interest identical in several ways with theirs, and

when invited as he was by a special delegation to go and strengthen their peaceable

efforts in support of their rights, he could not refuse his help, little as it was, said he.

He concluded to accompany us with his family, he retired from his employment

on the 9th June, and we had the pleasure to start with him on the 10th Our trip

would have been pleasant in every way had it not been that Mrs. Riel had great

trouble with her baby fallen siok on account of exposure. We sincerely hope that

now the journey being over the child will soon recover.
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Mr. Eiel comes to help us without pretensions, He hopes that before long the
North-West will be quite united and that the Government will see its way to do what
is right towards every class of our people.

Further information with regard to our delegation will be given to your committee
at such time and place as you may see fit, and we have the honor to enclose herewith
the written answer given to the delegates by Mr. Kiel, who besides now personally
explained his views on each of the resolutions and on the line of action which we
have to follow. His conversation inspires us with the greatest confidence, as his
intentions are to help us, but if we understand him well he will help us without any
wish on his part to embarrass the Government.

We have the honor to be, gentlemen, your delegates and humble servants,

GABEIEL DUMONT,
J. ISBESTER,
MOISE OUBLLETE,
M. DUMAS.

St. Petes's Mission, 5th June, 1884.

To Messrs. James Isbister, Gabriel Dumont, Mo'ise Ouelette and Michel Dumas.

Gentlemen,—You have travelled more than 400 miles from the Saskatchewan
?prr„f„„

;

r nr0oc +k international line, to make me a visit. The communities in the
midst of which you live have sent you as their delegate to ask my advice on various

difficulties which have rendered the British North-West as yet unhappy under the

Ottawa Government. Moreover, you write me to go and stay amongst you, your
hope being that I for one could help to better in some respects your condition.

Cordial and pressing is your invitation. You want me and my family to accompany
you. I am at liberty to excuse myself and say no. Yet, you are waiting for me, so

that I have only to get ready, and your letters of delegation give me the assurance

that a family welcome awaits me in the midst of those who have sent you. Gentle-

men, your personal visit does me honor and causes great pleasure, but on account of

its representative character, your coming to me has the proportions of a remarkable

fact ; I record it as one of the gratifications of my life. It is a good event, which
my family will remember, and I pray to God that your delegation may become a

log amongst the blessings of this my fortieth year.

To be frank is the shortest. I doubt whether my advice given to you on this

soil concerning affairs on Canadian territory could cross the borders and retain any
influence. But here is another view. The Canadian Government owe me two
hundred and forty acres of land according to the thirty-first clause of the Manitoba
treaty. They owe me also, five lots, valuable on account of hay, timber and river

frontage. Those lots were mine according to the different paragraphs of the same
thirty-first clause of the above-mentioned Manitoba treaty. It is the Canadian Gov-

ernment which have deprived me, directly or indirectly, of those properties. Besides

if they only pay attention to it a minute, they will easily find out that they owe me
something else.

Those my claims against them are such as to hold good, notwithstanding the

fact that I have become an American citizen . Considering then your interest and
mine, I accept your very kind invitation. I will go and spend some time amongst

you. By petitioning the Government with you, perhaps we will all have the good
fortune of obtaining something. But my intention is to come baok early this fall.

Montana has a pretty numerous native half-breed element. If we count with

them the white men interested in the half-breed welfare, by being themselves heads

of half-breed families or related to them in any other way, I believe it safe to assert

that the half-breed element of Montana is a pretty strong one. I am just getting

acquainted with that element. I am one of those who would like to unite and direct

its vote so as to make it profitable to themselves and useful to their friends. More-
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over, I have made acquaintances and friends, amongst whom I like to live. I start
with you but to come back here sometime in September.

I have the honor, gentlemen delegated to me, to be your humble servant,

LOUIS EIEL.

Prince Albert, 21st July, 1884.

Honorable Sir,—Since my last letter to your Honor nothing has happened to
disturb my belief that Kiel, in coming to this country, has not any bad design in
view. He has acted and spoken in a quiet and sensible way every time he has had
opportunity of appearing before the public, and no one can point out any act or word
of his which is liable to create any disturbance in the country. All his endeavors,
so far as I know, are to make the people understand that in answering to their call
he has in view no other object than to help them by legitimate and peaceful means.
Kiel, he says himself, Gf 1869 and 1884 are quite two different men. We have now
in the country a regular Government which exists by authority of Her Majesty the
Queen ; in 1869 he made a stand against Canada, which wanted to take posbession of
the country without any previous agreement to secure the rights of the people of
Manitoba and the North-West, but to-day the North-West is an integral part of Can-
ada, and having the experience of almost nine years spent in the States, he is able to
assure his countrymen, the half-breeds, they are better off on this side of the line,

and does not wish them to become Americans. He has passed through a hard school
in which he has learned a good many useful lessons, and the one he sets to heart is

to remain quiet and to work for his fellow countrymen by open and fair ways.
Everywhere Kiel goes he is creating the most favorable impressions in his
favor, and with the exception of ten or twelve prejudiced persons he
seems to be very popular, not only amongst the French, but also
among the English population. Five or six persons here at Prince Albert
who think themselves superior to other men, and think they have the right by birth
(and you may be sure the Eoyal Prince is one of them) to lead the people, have been
greatly offended because a great number of citizens at Prince Albert sent to Kiel a
petition asking him to come down and address them at a public meeting, every mis-
fortune, murder, bloodshed, were sure to be the result if Eiel was mad enough to
come down ; that was the prospect put before us during all last week, by those
prophets de malheur, but they were greatly disappointed in their expectations. Eiel
came down last Saturday, and he received a really hearty and enmusiastic welcome
from the people of Prince Albert The meeting went out quietly, only one man
tried to raise a row, and he was put out quickly. There was a mass meeting, such
as Prince Albert has never seen; people came from the country to meet Mr. Eiel,

from everywhere, and they went back struck with the quiet and gentle way he spoke
to them. I enclose here a summary of his speech. The enthusiastic welcome which
Eiel received at Prince Albert, I account on one hand by that feeling of mere
curiosity of the people to see and to hear a man whose name has been before the
public for so long a time, and who held so large a place in the history of the country,
and on the other hand, by the wish to defeat the intrigues of a certain clique of men
here at Prince Albert, who have tried so much to stop Eiel from coming to Prince
Albert. To-day those men have failed, and have seen their expectation to see a riot

fall down, and they are greatly disappointed and will try to represent things under a
black cloud, not according to real facts, but according to their imagination; they will

try to distort the simplest things, and will represent Eiel as bound to disturb the peace
of the country ; but, Governor, as an honest man, I tell you the country is quiet, and as
far as I can see,Eiel has no other purpose than to help the people in their difficulties. He
strongly advocates peace and union among all the several sections ofthe country. I have
not heard a hard word fall from his mouth. What are his purposes ? They are a
good many and require a long time if he wanted to see them carried out. 1st. He
wants the half-breeds to have a free grant to the land they occupy ; he wants to
agitate to have the three districts of Saskatchewan, Alberta, Assiniboia, ereoted into
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Provinces, or at least to have each district represented in Parliament
;
he wants the

land laws amended to snit more the rapid settlement of the country. These a* far

as I rememher, are the leading points to which he addressed the people of Prince

Alhert last Saturday. I went to hear him and I may say that he speaks well and

eloquently, he speaks fluently English and his expressions are just and correct. He

crated a great sensation and was immensely applauded all through his long addre^

and his opponents are obliged to credit him with much talents and a clever way to

bring the people over to him. I could not help admiring him to see how situated

as he was, he overcomes all the difficulties which surround him and draws the sym-

pathies of the assembly towards him. What will be the end of all this? The end

wiil be that we will have for a time plenty talk, plenty meetings, plenty petitions,

and after a time the excitement will get over and we will become calm as usual and

Kiel who is our wonder today, will become a common mortal for us, and we will be

as much advanced as we are to-day, and these great reforms^"°™J^*£$
and the big men will go down . That, sir, is my impression of the P™sent state of

things. We wanted something to occupy us for a while talking about him, and put

an efd to the talk about the crops and the poor prospect before us to have^goodcme

Now, as far as my opinion is worth anything, I advise strongly not Government

to interfere with Kiel as long as he keeps quiet. I cannot hide from you that.his

Muence for good or evil is gVeat amon| the half-breeds French as well as English

;

he has great many admirers even among the white population, and the Indians in the

North-West will remain quiet as long as the half-breeds will not set a bad example

to them They all look on Kiel as their leader, and the Government ought to aot

wisely not to create an outbreak by any rash aot of theirs. I am convinced there is

not any danger of disturbance. The arrival of Kiel has acted as a calm on all the

agitatea minds, and all his words are to advocate peace and good feelings among all

tie people in the country. I write you what I think right. I have no purpose in

view
PZ to see our people quiet and 'satisfied, and keep you informed how things are

going on among us. I have seen Kiel three or four times and so far have nothing

lut food to say of him. To seo him and to converse with him leaves no doubt in any-

bodVs mind he is gentle and modest in expressing his views, and he is far from being

bitter against the Government. In his public utterances I did not hear Kiel speak

cZtemEsly of anybody in disapproving things, he is always respectful towards

persons
P
in authority, and ne shows really himself a perfect gentleman, whatever to

the contrary some notorious persons may say.

My letter is already long enough, but it is not very soon, Governor, I will afflict

you with the penance of reading another.

With all my best wishes for you, I remain your obedient and respectM,

A. ANDKtf.
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RETURN
(52/)

To an Address of the Senate, dated 1th April, 1886:—For copies of the

Commission or Commissions, and instructions issued to the Commis-

sioners appointed to enquire into and report upon the losses sustained

in the North-West Territories during the recent rebellion.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,

Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State,

13th April, X886.

COPIES OF ALL LETTEES OF INSTRUCTIONS ISSUED TO THE COM.
M1SSIONERS APPOINTED TO ENQUIRE INTO AND REPORT UPON
THE LOSSES SUSTAINED IN THE NORTH-WEST TERRITORIES
DURING THE RECENT REBELLION.

Department op the Interior, Ottawa, 26th February, 1886.

Sir,—I am directed by the Minister of the Interior to inform you that you have

been appoint ed, along with Mr. Henry Muma, of Drumbo, Ontario, and Mr. Thomas

McKay, of Prince Albert, District of Saskatchewan, to proceed to the North-West

Territories for the purpose of considering any claims which may be presented to the

Government for losses in connection with the recent Indian and half-breed insurrec-

tion.

You are yourself to be the chairman of the commission, and Captain George K.

Young, of Winnipeg, Manitoba, will be the secretary.

The class of claims which it will be your duty to investigate may be briefly

stated as claims for loss of property, or for imprisonment, or for forced emigration

from the territory.
.

All the claims presented, whether they would seem to be included in the terms

of the third paragraph of this letter or not, you should receive, with such evidence,

to be taken under oath, as the claimants may desire to bring forward, but in forming

your conclusions you will consider only such testimony as is applicable under the

terms of the said third paragraph.

The claimant, as well as his witnesses, should be duly sworn, and his evidence

taken either by yourself or by one or other of yoar colleagues, or by the secretary.

In cases where the claimant, for any valid reason, such as removal in the prosecu-

tion of his calling from the locality in which the loss is alleged to have occurred, is

unable to appear personally before the commission to give his evidence, as provided

in the next preceding clause, such evidence bearing upon the claim should be taken

as the commission may be able procure, and the same should be submitted to the

Minister of the Interior, with the opinion of the commission as to the manner in

which the claim should be dealt with.

Each claim submitted to you should be reported upon separately, with the con-

clusions of yourself and colleagues endorsed thereon, and every case should be

numbered and docketed with the name of the claimant.

52/—
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In the execution of your duty you should be guided by equitable principles
rather than by technical rule, exercising: discretionary power of judging, as a jury-
man would, from considerations and circumntances not always appearing on the
surface, as to the value of the evidence and the good faith of the claim. You should
rather hear and judge than put yourself in the position of resisting a claim.

The principles to be applied to all cases may be briefly stated as follows :—
1st. Require all reasonable proof of every essential fact upon which a claim is

founded

.

2nd. Allow for all proved losses which are the direct and immediate consequence
of the insurrection, and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the claimant.

3rd. Take a claimant's own sworn evidence as to the value of property lost,

where of necessity such value was within his exclusive knowledge, but not otherwise.
4th. Have regard to all facts of a public and general nature, which may tend to

throw light upon the good faith of each claimant.
5th. Claims for consequential damages, while they may be heard and the evi-

dence noted, do not come within the scope of your duties, and in making your re-
port you should disallow them.

It should be explained to all concerned that the object of your enquiry is to
ascertain and pass upon claims for actual loss, but not for damages in the purely
legal sense of that term.

There may be, of course, claims of an exceptional character, such as could not
properly be ranked as coming under any of the definitions expressed in this com-
munication. These should be submitted, through the Minister of the Interior, for the
consideration of the Government, with a report of the views of yourself and your
colleagues thereon.

It is desirable in the public interest that you should proceed to the North-West,
on the business indicated in this letter, immediately.

Mr. Muma will accompany you to the North West, and Mr. McKay, who is at

E
resent at Prince Albert, will be asked to join you at such place as you may notify
im of by telegraph.

Upon your departure for Winnipeg, Captain Young will be advised by telegraph
to meet you there.

A cheque for $ on account of expenses is herewith enclosed, and a sum of
$ has been placed to your credit in the Bank of Montreal, at Winnipeg. You
will, of course, have to produce duplicate vouchers, duly signed and witnessed, for all

expenditure made in connection with this enquiry, and all such vouchers must be
approved of by yourself as chairman.

Your remuneration will be at the rate of $15 dollars per diem, with an allowance
of $5 per diem for living expenses.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

A. M. BURGESS, Deputy of the Minister of the Interior .

JT. Alphonse Ouimet, Esq.,

Chairman of the Rebellion Losses Commission, Montreal.

(Telegram,)

Ottawa, 14th September, 1885.

Mackay joins you on same terms and for same purposes as Ouimet and Herch-
mer and will be found very useful.

He should be specially consulted about claims from Prince Albert and South
Branch before making your report.

JOHN R. HALL.
Henry Muma, Esq. care of Commissioner of Dominion Lands, Winnipeg.
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(Confidential.)
Ottawa, 10th July, lt>85.

Dear Sir,—With reference to my confidential letter of this day's date, asking

you to proceed to the North-West Territories upon the special mission theroin men-

tioned, the Minister directs me to request that you and your colleagues will report to

him, confidentially, from time to time, after your visitation to the several districts:

—

1. Whether there are likely to be any cases of real destitution therein during

the coming winter.

2. Whether the destitution is likely to be confined to a few of the population of

the district, or whether it is likely to be general.

3. Whether, in your judgment, it would be necessary that relief should be afforded

by the Government to people in destitute circumstances in the district. If so, what

form should the relief take, for what time should it be afforded, and how many peo-

ple, in each case, would it be necessary to assist ?

I have the honor to be, dear Sir, your obedient servant,

A. M. BUKGESS.
Henry Muma, Esq., Drumbo, Ont.

P. S.—It may be desirable for you to communicate with me, especially on the

subject of this letter, by telegraph, in which case please use Slater's telegraphic code,

of which a copy is enclosed. The cypher will be sender add 300, receiver subtract.

A. M. B.

(Confidential)
Department of the Interior, Ottawa, 10th July, 1885.

Dear Sir,—As already informed verbally, you have been selected by the

Minister of the Interior, along with Mr. Lawrence Herchmer, of Birtle, in the Pro-

vince of Manitoba, and Mr. J. Alphonee Ouimet, of Montreal, in the Province of

Quebec, to proceed to the North-West Territories for the purpose of privately investi-

gating and ascertaining, for the information of the Government, the amount of damage
suffered by persons in the Territories by reason of the recent half-breed and Indian

insurrection.

The class of claims which it will be your duty to investigate may be briefly

stated as direct claims for loss of property, or for imprisonment, or for forced emigra-

tion from the country.

Claims for consequential damages will not be considered ; and as these could only

arise in connection with the last of the three classes of claims hereinbefore men-
tioned, that is to say claims for forced emigration from the locality within which the

claimant resides, it is to be understood that the word " forced " shall not be consid-

ered to imply emigration from mere alarm, but from serious danger to life and pro-

perty ; that is to say, the object of your enquiry is to ascertain as far as possible what
claims are likely to bo made upon the Government for actual loss, but not for damage
in the purely legal sense of that term. It is desirable that you should ascertain in

each caRe the antecedents and attitude of the person claiming to have suffered, par-

ticularly whether he has been loyal in his action and utterances, or otherwise, or

whether he has openly or secretly encouraged the agitation which led to the out-

break. Mr. Ouimet and yourself may act separately or together as you may find

most convenient, but 1 suggest that it would be most advisable that Mr. Ouimet and

yourself, on account of his knowledge ot the French language, should be invariably

together, and perhaps to Mr. Herchmer might be allotted a section of country in

which the French language is not much used.

Mr. Ouimet will join you at Owen Sound to-morrow and will hand you this letter

of instructions with a cheque for $200 on account of your expenses. The sum of $1,000

has been placed to your credit in the Bank of Montreal, Winnipeg, and the same can

be drawn against from time to time, as necessity may require. If you should need a
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further credit, please to write, or telegraph, as the case may be, mentioning the
amount.

On your arrival at Winnipeg please telegraph to Mr. Herchmer telling him by
which train you will leave that city for the west, and asking him to meet you at the
most convenient station on the railway. Immediately, of course, on his joining you,
you will make him such advances on account of expenses as you may think fitting.

Duplicate vouchers, duly signed and witnessed, Will be required on account of all

expenditure in connection with your commission, whether it has been incurred on
your own account or on account of your colleagues.

It is, of course, understood that your enquiry is to be strictly private, and for the
information of the Government, and it will be desirable that you should report to me
from time to time, as your investigation progresses.

This letter of instruction, although addressed to you, is intended for the informa-
tion and guidance of your colleagues as well.

I have the honor to be, Dear Sir, your obedient servant,

A. M. BTJKGESS, Deputy Minister of the Interior.

Henry Muma, Esq., Drumbo, Ont.

COMMISSION

Appointing Joseph Alphonse Ouimet, Thomas McKay and Henry Muma, Esquires,

Commissioners under 3L Victoria, Chapter 38, to examine into and hear evidence
concerning any claim for compensation for loss or damage arising out of the

late Half-breed and Indian Insurrection in the North-West Territories.

CANADA.
(LANSDOWNE.)
Vicioria, by the Grace of God, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland,

Queen, Defender of the Faith, &c.
y
&c, &c.

To Joseph Alphonse Ouimet, of the City of Montreal, in our Province of Quebec,
Esquire, Barrister-at Law ; Thomas McKay, of Prince Albert, in our District of

Saskatchewan, Esquire ; and Henry Muma, of Drumbo, in the County of Oxford,
in our Province of Ontario, Eequire, and to all to-whom these presents shall

come, or whom the same may in any wise concern

—

Greeting :

Whereas it is in and by an Act of the Parliament of Canada, passed in the thirty-

first year of our reign, chaptered thirty eight, and intituled :
" An Act respecting

Enquiries concerning public matters," amongst other things, in effect, enacted that

whenever the Governor in Council deems it expedient to cause enquiry to be made
into and concerning any matter connected with the good government of Canada, or

the conduct of any part of the public business thereof, and such enquiry is not regu-

lated by any special law, the Governor may, by the commission in the case, confer

upon the commissioners or persons by whom such enquiry is to be conducted, the
power of summoning before them any party or witnesses, and of requiring thorn to

give evidence on oath orally or in writing (or on solemn affirmation if they be parties

entitled to affirm in civil matters), and to produce such documents and things as such

commissioners deem requisite to the full investigation ofthe matters into which' they
are appointed to examine.

And whereas we deem it expedient for you, the said Joseph Alphonse Ouimet,

Thomas McKay and Henry Muma, to examine into and hear evidence concerning

any claim for compensation for loss or damage arising out of the late outbreak in our

North-West Territories of Canada, and that you be empowered to summon witnesses

and to examine them under oath.

Now know ye that under and by virtue of the powers vested in usvby the said

Act, passed in the^thirty-first year of our reign, chaptered thirty-eight, and intituled :

4
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dAn Act respecting Enquiries concerning public matters,'* and by and with the advice
if our Privy Council for Canada, we, reposing special trust and confidence in your
loyalty, fidelity and ability, have nominated, constituted and appointed, and do
hereby nominate, constitute and appoint you, the said Joseph Alphonse Ouimet,
Thomas McKay and Henry Muma, to be our commissioners to examine into and hear
Evidence concerning any claim for compensation for loss or damage arising out of
^he late Half-breed and Indian insurrection in our North-West Territories of Canada.

And we do hereby authorize and empowe * you as such commissioners to sum-
mon before you any party or witness and to require them to give evidence on oath,
Orally or in writing Cor on solemn affirmation if they be parties entitled to affirm in
civil matters), and to produce such documents and things as you, our said commis-
sioners, shall deem requisite to the full investigation of the matters into which you
are hereby appointed to examine

.

And we do hereby constitute and appoint you, the said Joseph Alphonse Ouimet
to be the chairman of this our commission.

To have, hold, exercise and enjoy the said office, place and trust, unto you the
said Joseph Alphonse Ouimet, Thomas McKay and Henry Muma, together with the
rights, powers, privileges and emoluments unto the said office, place and trust of
right and by law appertaining during pleasure.

And we do hereby require you to report to our Minister of the Interior of Canada
the names of the several persons who you may ascertain and determine to have claims
for compensation for loss or damage as aforesaid, together with the evidence taken
before you, and any opinions you may see fit to express thereupon.

In testimony whereof, we have caused these our Letters to be made Patent, and
the Great Seal of Canada to be hereunto afiixed. Witness, our Eight
Trusty and Entirely-Beloved Cousin, the most Honorable Sir Henry
Charles Keith Petty-Fitzmaurice, Marquis of Lansdowne, in the County
of Somerset, Earl of Wycombe, of Chipping Wycombe, in the County of
Bucks, Yiscount Cain and Cainstone, in the County of Wilts, and Lord
Wycombe, Baron of Chipping Wycombe, in the County of Bucks, in the
Peerage ofGreat Britain

; Earl of Kerry and Earl of Shelburne, Viscount
Clanmaurice and Fitzmaurice, Baron of Kerry, Lixnaw, and Dunkerron,
in the Peerage of Ireland; Knight Grand Cross of our most Distin-
guished Order of Saint Michael and Saint George; Governor General of
Canada, and Yice-Admiral of the same.

At our Government House, in our City of Ottawa, this twenty-fifth
day of February, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight
hundred and eighty-six, and in the forty-ninth year of our
reign.

By Command.
G. Powell,

Under Secretary of State*

B2/-2
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REPORTS
(62)

Of the Chief Engineer and G-eneral Manager Grovernment Railways, the
Dominion Government Agent in British Columbia, and the Engineer
who personally inspected the Esquimalt and Nanaimo Railway.

Ottawa, 9th December, 1885.

Sir,—Mr. Dunsmuir, president of the Esquimalt and Nanaimo Railway, under
letter dated 27th October, ultimo, being addressed to the Hon. Joseph Trutch, sub-
mits plans and profiles of the altered alignments of their railway for the approval of
the Governor in Council, the facts of the case are as follows, viz. :

A contract was entered into with the Esquimalt and Nanaimo Railway Company
for the construction of that road, one of the conditions being that the maximum
grade should not exceed 80 feet per mile, and the minimum degree of curves 7° 10'.

The stipulations as to the character of the work was that it should be equal to the
section of the Canadian Pacific Railway in British Columbia. Under this contract
the company located their line, in compliance with the above conditions, and sub-
mitted the plans and profiles for the approval of the Governor in Council, and they
were duly approved and returned to the president, and construction proceeded.
Subsequently the alignment was changed by the company without any reference or
authority from the Government, by the introduction of many 8°, 9° and 10° curves,
Mr. Dunsmuir alleging that he was tinder the impression that he had power to make
such changes under the clause of the contract, which required the character of the
road to be equal to that of the Canadian Pacific Railway in British Columbia, but he
appeared to have overlooked the fact that a limit was given in the contract to both
the severity of grades and curves. Mr. Trutch, the Dominion Government Agent in
British Columbia, who is well acquainted with Mr. Dunsmuir, states that he is

satisfied that Mr. Dunsmuir, in making these changes in location, was sincere in his
belief that he was acting within the terms imposed by the contract, and that no
fraud was intended, and Mr. Brophy, who under my instructions inspected ihe line,

reports that though the curves are sharper, that by reason of the timber in struc-
tures being very largely reduced, the road is more permanent than upon the original
location, and that it must have cost the contractor about as much as if he had con-
structed it upon that location.

The railway is to be owned and operated by the company ; they are, therefore,
specially interested in having a good, safe and economical road to operate, and as
they are building a substantial road, I suggest that inasmuch as the works of con-
struction upon the change of location, and indeed upon the entire line, are nearly
completed, that if the conditions of the contract as to the limit of the severity of the
grades and curves can be modified, that the plans and profiles with the 8°, 9° and 10°

curves be approved.
The road, as built, is, I am satisfied, from a personal inspection, equal to the

Canadian Pacific Railway in eastern British Columbia through the mountains.
I am, Sir, your obedient servant,

COLLINGWOOD SCHREIBEE, Chief Engineer and General Manager.

Office of the Esquimalt and Nanaimo Railway Company;
Victoria, B.C., 27th October, 1885.

Sir,—I have the honor to inform you with reference to the further plans and
profiles of this railway forwarded to you on the 9th instant, and referred to in your

1
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letter to me of thi* late, being plans and profiles showing the altered alignment of

the railway now under construction, that it is my intention and desire to have these

plans and profiles transmitted to the Hon. the Minister of Railways, with a view to

the concurrence and approval of the Government of the altered alignment shown

thereon.
I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

R DUNSMUIR, President*

Hon. J. W. Trutch, Dominion Government Agent, Victoria.

Victoria, B.C., 28th October, 188k

Dear Sir,—T send by express today to your address plan and profile of the

Esquimalt and Nanaimo Railway, showing the altered alignment on which this work

is being constructed, which plan and profile, bearing the signature of the company's

chief engineer, Mr. Hunter, have been handed to me by Mr. Dunsmuir, president of

the company, for transmission to the Minister of Railways for his consideration, with

a view to the Governor in Council's approval of this altered alignment being obtained.

A copy of Mr. Dunsmuir's letter submitting this plan and profile is enclosed

herewith.

I also send enclosed a copy of Mr. Brophy's report of the inspection recently

made by him of this line of railway, and of the works thereon already completed or

under construction.

Mr. Brophy has made a thorough examination of this work throughout, and

states fully the reasons which he understands induced the company's engineers to

make the several alterations of alignment which he refers to in detail, and he points

out clearly and—as I consider—justly the comparative advantages and disadvantages

to the railway itself of these alterations.

I understand from this report that Mr. Brophy's conclusion is that although the

curvature has been increased materially by the alterations of alignment—and in some

instances without sufficient reason—the railway now under construction on this

altered alignment will, on the whole, be a more substantial and practically a better

road than if built on the original location and design—the increase of curvature being

more than compensated for as regards the practical value of the road, by tha substi-

tution of solid embankments on the altered—for long stretches of trestling on the

original location much of which if built, he thinks, could not be replaced by solid

banks on account of the steepness of the side hills on which it was designed to be

erected

.

I understand, also, from Mr. Brophy that, as far as he can approximately esti-

mate, the first cost of the railway on this altered alignment will be little, if any, less

than it would have been if constructed according to the approved location and design,

though indeed it will be a cheaper railway to the company, as the expense of its

maintenance will be lessened proportionately to the reduced amount of timber struc-

tures in it.

Mr. Brophy further reports that the bridges and trestles completed are very

substantial structures, and that the whole of the work executed is unexceptionable,

and fully satisfies the requirements of the specification being of the character at least

equal to that of the Canadian Pacific Railway in British Columbia.

The only portions of this road which I have gone over are the first section of

ten miles from Esquimalt, and that about seventeen miles in length between Che-

xnainus Hiver and Nanaimo River, which sections you inspected recently when I

accompanied you and had the opportunity of conferring with you fully on the various

questions involved in the alteration of alignment made by the company's engineers.

It would consequently be superfluous for me to write you my opinions on these

points in detail.
• 1 desire, however, to remark on the subject generally, that it is of course clear

that the company have acted wrongly in altering the alignment of their railway

without obtaining, or even asking, the approval of the Government, and they are.

certainly blameable for having so done.

2
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It is much to be regretted that they have acted so unwarrantably. I am con-
vinced, however, that their action in this respect was not actuated by disingenuous
motives, but resulted entirely from misunderstanding of the conditions of their agree-
ment with the Government.

Upon my mooting this matter to Mr. Dunsmuir—on receipt of your letter of31st
July, which conveyed the first intimation to me that the railway was being con-
structed on other than the approved location—I found thst both he and his engineer
were under the erroneous impression that clause 11 of the Agreement between his
company and the Minister of Railways—which provides that the character of the
railway and its equipment shall be in all respects equal to the general character of
the Canadian Pacific Eailway in British Columbia—applied to the alignment of the
railway as well as to the works to be constructed ; and that they omitted, under this
mistaken apprehension, to appreciate that the company was definitely bound as to
curvature and grade by the limitation of the 2nd clause of the specification in accord-
ance with which the railway was contracted to be built, and that they further stated
that they understood that the plans and profiles submitted by them and approved of
by the Governor in Council, were to be regarded rather as a formality required to
be fulfilled in order that the terms of the agreement should be exactly complied
with than as laying down an exact location to be strictly conformed to ; and that
they would be held to have satisfied the real spirit and intent of the agreement if

the alignment of the railway and its construction and equipment were found to bo
in all respects equal to the general character of the Canadian Pacific Eailway in
British Columbia and the equipment thereof.

I cannot but believe that the company was led into the fault which has been
committed solely by these erroneous views, and I think the correctness of this con-
clusion is manifest from the following considerations:—The company has placed
itself under great risk compared with any possible advamage to be gained from the
course it has taken—it must have been evident to the company, had any dishonest
motive induced this course, that the altered location of the railway must inevitably
be apparent whenever the work was inspected by Government, the road is to be
the company's own property, and to be operated by them and therefore the chief
sufferer would be the company itself if the character of the road were practically

degraded—and finally as a matter of fact the character of the railway works is

superior to the requirements of the company's agreement with Government.
I am persuaded that if Mr. Dunsmuir, or either of his associates in the director-

ate, had had any previous connection with the construction of railways under
Government subsidy and control, or had they had the benefit of the advice of a chief
engineer of any experience in this respect, the mistake and fault committed by the

company would have been avoided.
Upon review of all these circumstances, my conclusions are that

—

1st. The company did not act with fraudulent intention in the fault they have
committed.

2nd. The railroad now beirg constructed on the altered alignment quite fulfils ex-

cept as to curvature, the terms of the company's agreement with Government; and

—

3rd. If constructed on the approved location it would practically not be a betier

road.
4th. But an expenditure of $200/00 or $300,000 would be entailed on the com-

pany by such reconstruction, from which no benefit would be deiived by the public

or the company.
I do not hesitate, therefore, to express the opinion that it would not be advisable

for the Government, as it certainly would not be in the interests of the public, that

the company should bo required to reconstruct their road on the original approved
location, and that conseqoently the location indicated on the plan and pro61e now
submitted for consideration and on which the road is being constructed, and in lact is

nearly completed, with such modifications as the Minister may think fit to direct,

may be concurred in. Yours faithfully,

JOSEPH W. TEUTCH.
Collingwood Schbeiber Esq., Engineer-i" -Chief, C.P. E., Ottawa.
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Victoria, B. C, 2Cth October, 1885.

Sir,—In accordance with your instructions, I have made an inspection of the
alignments, gradients, grading, timber work, &c, on the Esquimalt and Nanaimo
Eailway, and beg to band you the following report on the above work as compiled
from notes taken on the ground, and from a- close examination of the plans and pro-

files furnished by the company.
The chainage and mileage referred to in the report are taken from the original

plane and profiles, the mileage commencing at Nanaimo and running southward to

Esquimalt.

Alignment and Gradients.

From Station 47 near Nanaimo to A\ miles south some slight alterations have
been made in the line and gradients generally with the object of reducing the work,
and although there is no exceptional curvature the alignment could be improved in

places at a comparatively small cost.

4\ to 5f miles.—Here the original line was located in low swampy ground and
in close proximity to Southfield Shaft the property of the Vancouver Coal Company,
with a level crossing on their railway from the mine to Nanaimo.

A change was made here, and the line carried to higher ground on the left; The
grades were also raised to suit change of line, by which an overhead crossing of coal

company's railway was secured. By this change the curvature has been increased

Bomewhat, the maximum curve used being an 8 degrees, of which there are two
on this portion, but the advantages gained in the stability of the road-bed and cross-

ing of railway will, I think, justify tbe change.

5J to 8J miles.—Line altered slightly in places, and curvature decreased. Line
and grades generally improved.

8J to 11 miles.—The only change in line on this portion is at the 9th mile, where
two 8 degrees curves have been put in, with the object of reducing heavy rock
cutting. The grades have been slightly altered in places, but are as favorable as

original grades.

11 to 13 miles.—Line changed and carried to the right on higher ground to avoid
bad swamp, and necessitating an increase in curvature between 11th and 12th miles

to avoid heavy cutting in bard pan, but there is no exceptional curvature, the maxi-
mum being 6 degrees.

The grades have also been changed to suit alteration in line, the maximum
gradient being 1*24 per 100, falling south for 2,100 feet.

13 to 25 miles.—A few alterations have been made in the line, in some cases

decreasing and in others increasing the curvature, but there are no exceptional

features, and the general alignment is good and practically the same as original line.

The grades have also been changed generally, with the object of reducing the work,
but in seme cases, through low, swampy ground, increasing embankments. Tha
maximum grade is 1'40 per 100. rising south for 2,500 feet.

25 to 29 miles.—The only change on this portion occurs at Station 1507 where a
4 degrees curve has been substituted for a 2 degrees, in order to keep tee of
embankment out of creek. The grade has been raised from 1 to 2 feet through low
ground from 25 to 26\ miles, and generally to the 29th mile, increasing embank-
ments aEd lessening cuttings. Maximum grade 1*25 per 100, rising south for 1,600 feet.

29 to 30 miles.—An alteration has been made here and the line carried to the

right along steep side hill, in order to avoid a bad muskeg. This change involves

some heavy side hill work and makes a better and more permanent road-bed, but
necessitates a considerable increase in curvature. The maximum curve is a 7
degrees. The grades have also been adjusted to change in line, the maximum being
1-00 per 100, rising south for 1,100 feet.

30 to 33 miles.—No alteration has been made in the line but the grades have
been raised generally, increasing embankments through low ground and decreasing

cuttings. Maximum grade 1*50 per 100, falling south for 1,000 feet.
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33 to 37 miles.—A considerable deviation from original line has been made here,

for the purpose of securing a better crossing of the Cowichan Eiver, a rapid stream
subject to sudden floods. The present line crosses the Cowichan about 40 chains

west, or above the original line and on higher ground, and is in all respects an
improvement. The alignments and gradients on this deviation are as favorable as
on original line.

37 to 39 miles.—The line is practically on the same ground as the original, but
has been thrown more into cutting in order to keep embankments clear of Kokasalah
Eiver, which is here a rapid stream and subject to sudden floods. The curvature has
been increased somewhat, the maximum curve being an 8 degrees, and there are two
on this portion. The alignment generally is fair for the character of the ground,
which is a steep and broken side hill.

The grades are about the same as original.

39 to 46 miles.—A considerable deviation from original line has been made here
lessening the length of the line by about fths of a mile, and lowering summit near
45th mile by 60 feet. The maximum curve used is an 8 degree, and there are six on
this deviation, but the total curvature is less than on the original line. The grades
generally have been improved on this portion, the maximum grades being now 1*50

per 100 feet for 12,500 feet, and 1-45 per 100 for 1,650 feet, as compared with 1-50 per

100 for 13,500 feet, and 1-48 per 100 for 4,500 feet on original line.

46 to 48 miles.—There has been no alteration of any consequence on this portion,

except about Station 1230 around the east arm of Shawnigan Lake, where an 8
degree curve has been substituted for a 7 degree, throwing line more into cutting and
doing away with very heavy trestle work.

48 to 49 miles.—Here the line has been altered and curvature increased consid-

erably, the maximum curve here is a 9 degrees of which there are three on this

mile. The location is fairly good for the character of the ground which is a steep

side hill intersected by deep ravines and with jutting rock bluffs necessitating very
heavy cuttings and embankments.

49 to 52 miles.—Alterations have been made throughout these three miles gen-

erally by using sharper curvature and reducing cuttings, embankments and trestle

work. The maximum curve here is 8 degrees, and there are eight on these

three miles. By these changes from the 48th to 52nd mile a very large amount of

trestle wcrk would be dispensed with and embankment and cutting substituted. The
curvature from the 48th to the fi 2nd mile is excessive, but cannot well be avoided

owing to the configuration of the ground, and though some improvements might be
made at one or two points as the work progresses, any extensive reduction in curva-

ture from the present line will very largely increase the work.
52 to 58 miles.—A number of slight alterations have been made improving the

alignment in places, but on the whole slightly increasing the curvature. The align-

ment generally is good and there is only one 8-degrees curve on this portion. By
these alterations all trestle work has been dispensed with except about 600 feet. From
the 47th to 54J mile at summit between Shawnigan Lake and Gold Stream, the

grades are approximately the same as originals, the maximum being 1*50 per 100

feet for 26,800 feet, as compared with 1-50 per 100 for 27,800 feet on original line.

58 to 63 miles.—This part of the line is on a very steep mountain side, inter-

sected by immense ravines and jutting rock bluffs and is the most difficult and

expensive portion of the whole line. On the plans and profiles of original location

the maximum curve shown is 7° 10' but with this limit of curvature the work would
be excessively heavy, with long stretches of trestle work on steep side hill, which
could not be replaced by embankment, but would have to be renewed periodically.

The location throughout nearly the whole of these five miles has been changed, the

line carried higher on the mountain side, and the grades raised, varying from 5 to 30

feet. The curvature has also been very much increased, there being on the present

line nine 8 degrees, four 9 degrees, and eight 10 degrees curves. By these changes

the permanency of the road-bed will be greatly increased by substituting cuttings and
rock embankments for the immense stretches of trestle work shown on original profile.
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The following are the points where exceptional curvature has been utilized

:

Station 671 to 681, two 9 degree curves, through heavy rock cutting and deep
ravine. Lighter curvature here would necessitate heavy trestle work through
ravine, and largely increase rock cutting. Station 633 to 652, one 9 degree and
Ifcwo 10 degree curves. One of the*3 10 degree curves runs through tunnel at
Station 642. The grade here is about 2 3 feet higher than original, and any altera-
tion from the present line will necessitate an enormous amount of additional work.
On the original plan and profiles, the maximum curve shown here is a 7 degree,
'hut from the similarity of the profile of original and present location, I am under the
impression that there must have been some error in Jaying down the curves on the
plan, and do not think the profiles shown could be had here with 7 degree
curves. Prom Station 588 to 622 there are three 8 degree and three 10 degree
curves. This is an exceptionally difficult piece of location, and the work, even with
this curvature, is very heavy. On the present line, a straight crossing of Arbutus
Canon is secured, where it is proposed to put in one 150 feet span Howe truss, with
trestle approaches. The grading here is about completed, and any changes from
present line will involve an enormous amount of additional work. The present grade,
as 35 feet higher than original at this point. From Station 550 to 580 there
are three 8 degree and one 10 degree curves at the crossing of the Big
"Ravine. Here it is proposed to fill in the ravine, with a rock embankment,
to within 120 feet of grade, and on this embankment erect trestle work. This
embankment on the present line would be about eighty feet high in centre of ravine;
A good crossing can be had here with a lighter curve, but the work would be increased
Tery much, as about 100 feet below the present line there is a perpendicular fall

of seventy feet in the bottom of the ravine, and this would have to be filled up
unless a long span truss bridge were utilized, and this would have to be on a sharp
curve, as it is impossible to get a straight crossing without enormously increasing
the work. The grade is thirty-two feet higher than on original line. From Station
413 to 542 there are three 8 degree, one 9 degree, and one 10 degree curves. The
curvature here could be light end, but at the cost of heavy acditional work, as the
grading is about completed. On the present line all trestle work is dispensed with,
•except 300 feet at Station 533, and 800 feet at the crossing of Double Head
Canon, the balance of the road-bed being in cutting and on solid rock embank-
ments. The grade at Station 520 is about seventeen feet higher than the
original grade. From Station 440 to 473, the only exceptional curvature is at the
crossing of Waugh's Creek where a 10 degiee curve is used. This stream is in a
deep gorge and when crossed by the lire the bed of the stream is about ninety feet
"below grade. On the present line the shortest and best possible crossing is obtained
and the public road which crossed the stream immediately below the railway line is

mot interfered with. A lighter curve at this point would necessitate an extensive
and difficult diversion of this road, and would also very greatly increase trestle work.
The present grade is about peven feet higher than original grade at 'this point*
On the original plan and profile a 7 degree curve was shown here, but this must
liave been an error, as no such profile as there shown could be obtained here with a
V degree curve. The grades from the 56th to the 63rd mile, are not as favorable
as on original line, the maximum being now 1 #50 per 100 feet for 23,600 feet as com-
pared with 1-50 per 100 feet for 20,000 feet.

63 to 67 miles.—Two or three slight alterations have been made in the line and
grades, but nothing of sufficient importance to call for special notice, and the
general alignment is good.

67 to 68 miles.—Considerable changes have been made on this portion and the
curvature increased. From Station 195 to 213 an alteration was made in order to
leave sufficient space between the stream and line to form an embankment and dis-

pense with a very large amount of trestle work. One 8 degree and one 9° 30'

curves were put in here, but the latter is now being changed to an 8 degree.
*From Station 160 to 180 two 8 degree curves have been substituted for a 5 degree
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and a 7 degree curve, with the object of reducing trestle work,but the saving effected
is so slight that I do not consider the change was advisable.

68 to 69 miles.—No alterations have been made in the line, and the road-bed is
built on original line. From the 63rd to 67th mile some slight alterations have been
made in the grades, and from the 67th to 69th mile the grade has been lowered three
feet to reduce trestle and embankment, but the ratios of gradients are about the same
as original, and there is nothing exceeding 1*50 per 100.

G9 to about 71 miles.—At Esquimalt. From Station 33 to 100 on this portion %
deviation has been made from the original line, and the curvature considerably
increased. The alignment is fair for the locality, but does not compare favorably
with original line. The company's engineer states that this alteration was a
necessity in order to enable them to prosecute the rest of the work, as the land
owners along this part of the line refused right of way unless this deviation was
made and the line carried along the water front to Dead Man's River, as now built:
and that arbitration was impossible owing to retention in Ottawa of the company's
land plans. Apart from this, the only advantage gained by this change is a small
reduction in the amount of trestle work. There is nothing exceptional in the
grades, as they have merely been adjusted to suit change in line.

Grading, Timber Work, &c.

At Nanaimo a good frame building for combined passenger and freight station
has been erected and grading completed for siding about 1,400 feet long.

From Station 47 to 8J miles south the grading is completed and all structures
built except four small culverts and about 1,500 feet of trestle. Here the Nanaime
River is crossed by one 125 feet span Howe truss deck bridge with 200 feet of trestle
approaches. The truss span rests on solid rock on north side and on trestle pier on
south side of river, is a good substantial structure, and is now about completed.

From 8| to 25J miles at Chemainus River grading is completed, the structures
are all in except one or two culverts, the track is laid and ballasting is now in pro-
gress. Some of the embankments on this portion are narrow in places, but are now
being made up by train. At 25J miles the Chemainus River is crossed and the
structure consisting of one 150 feet span Howe truss through bridge, with 200 feeb of
pile trestle approach on south side of river, is now under construction. The truss
span rests on masonry abutments built on solid rock foundation on north side, and
stone filled crib-work abutment with pile foundation on south side of river. An
extension stream diversion is being made here in order to straighten channel of river
above the bridge and prevent scouring on the south side.

From 25£ to 34^ miles, at Cowichan River, the grading is completed and struc-
tures all in except 700 feet of pile trestle. The Cowichan River bridge, which is
now under construction, will consist of one 100 feet span and one 150 feet span Howe
truss through bridge with stone filled crib-work pier and abutments built on pile
foundations. There is also 300 feet of pile trestle approach on north side and 150
feet on south side of river.

From 34f to about 36 miles.—Near Kokasala River the grading is finished,

and structures in except 520 feet of pile trestles. The Kokasala bridge will consist
of one 150 feet span Howe truss with pile approaches.

From 36 to 37J miles.—The grading is done but there are two or three small
structures to be built.

37£ to 38J miles.—The gradingfis now in progress but very little has been done
up to the 20th September.

38\ to 39\ miles.—Grading is finished but structures are not. About 300 feet
of trestle to be built.

39J to 43 miles.—Clearing has been done on this portion but no other work
except about 800 feet of grading near 43rd mile.

43 to 45J miles.—About 80 per cent, of the grading is completed and the bal-

ance is now in progress, but the structures have not been built.

7
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From 45£ to 55 miles.—Very little work has been done except clearing, bnt

grading is now in progress.

From 55 to 58| miles.—With the exception of some narrow embankments, and

cuttings that require sloping, the grading is about finished. Several culverts and a

large number of rock drains have been put in and there now remains only about 600

feet of trestle to complete the structures.

Near the 59th mile—A line tunnel in rock is now in progress and is about half

completed. The dimensions of this tunnel when finished will be 160 feet long, 21

feet high, 17 feet wide at grade and 19 feet wide at springing of arch.

From 59 to 61 miles.—The grading is about finished, with the exception of two

or three rock cuttings, and part of retaining walls and embankment from Station 620

to 630, but a large amount of trestle and bridge work has yet to be built, especially

at Arbutus Canon and Big Eavine. At Arbutus Canon the excavation for foundation

of trestles is nearly completed and the work of filling up the Big Eavine with rock

embankment has been let by contract and is now in progress.

From 61 to 63 miles.—With the exception of one or two cuttings and embank-

ments which are narrow in places and rock cut at Station 520 which is nearly through,

the grading on these two miles is completed. There is however a very large amount

of trestle work and bridge work yet to be done at Double Head Canon, Goldstream

and Waugh's Creek. The excavation for foundations of trestles at the two latter are

now under progress.
.

From the 58th to 62nd mile.—Yery large amount of good solid retaining walls

have been built to support embankments in places where otherwise it would have

been almost impossible to make the embankments owing to the steep character of

the side hills.

From 6^ to 67 miles.—With the exception of part of slopes of cutting at station

220, the grading is completed and the structures are built.

From 67 to about 71 miles at Esquimau.—With the exception of embankment

and cutting to be widened about Station 200 for the purpose of decreasing curvature,

the grading and structures are completed and track laid, but ballasting has not yet

been done. "

The work generally has been performei in a substantial and workmanlike man-

ner, and the trestles and bridge work especially, will compare favorably with similar

work on the Canadian Pacific Eailway.

The quantity of timber work saved by changes in line and dispensing with

trestle work, from the 49th to 63rd mile, aggregates 4,500,000 feet B. M.

In conclusion, I would state that the notes from which the above report was

compiled were taken on the ground previous to the 20th September, since which

time a large amount of grading, timber work, fencing, track-laying, ballasting, &o.,

has been done.

Trusting the above report will be satisfactory.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

J. B. BEOPHY.

Hon. J. W. Trutch, CM.Gr., Dominion Government Agent, Victoria*
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COPIES
(62a)

Of Telegraphic Communications respecting the Esquimalt and Nanaimo
Railway.

{Telegram from Victoria, B.C.)

Hon. J. H. PopE) Minister of Kailways
4th^^

Ottawa.
.

'

passetregi^tur^oTa^ ***** CWVe8
>
E^nimalt »* *-™o fia.lway,

SMITHB.

„
fc

Govebnmeni House, Victoria, 15th March, 1886.

March, With reTerenct toTtel™™ZLl?F of a° °rder ta C°UDcil
-
dated I5*

on the 25th February, statiljtZTmf£n\ >'^ Aloxander Campbell,
Parliament authorizeI a™n??«v£ 1-

W
.
lU
.
b
?

introd«<*d into the Dominion
way as it exists provMedZt «, r

ahSnmeD* of the Nanaimo and Esquimait Bail
to you as foltows •-«P™wT? G°^rnment concur. I have this day telegraphed

I have, &c,

Hon. Secrecy of State, Ottawa.
CLEMBNT F

- COBNWALL, I^.-Oovemor.

Thl CommitteeVgree with th«^w!l ^Tt**^ exists be «oncnrred in.

fore, that HisC'the lleutemmrT^
e^*r

?
8ed b^ Mr-

Trut^. «nd advise, there-

ttefollowtagtel^^K^^T^ r
t

eTC
^
Ul
fe

re«°este<lto forward
of State for Canada?- Py thlS MlnUte to tho Honorable the Seeretary

I(Jl^^^^^K^^ tala^^^^^ «ent to alignment

Certified.

JNO. ROBSON, CterA Executive Council.

62a -2
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RETURN
(64)

To an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886 ;—For a

Statement, in detail, of the several Assets forming the sum $72,791,83*7

stated by the Minister of Finance to be available in reduction of the

Gross Debt of the Dominion.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

1st April, lfc86.

Statement, in detail, of the several Assets forming the sum of Seventy-two million

seven hundred and ninety-one thousand eight hundred and thirty-seven dollars

($72,791,837), available in reduction of the Gross Debt of the Dominion.

Investments.

Sinking Fund, Canada Reduced 4 per cent. Loan
do Intercolonial Railway, 4 per cent. Loan

Rupert's Land Guaranteed 4 per cent. Loan....

British Columbia 6 per cent. Loan
Guaranteed 4 per cent. Loans, 1875 and 1878....

Dominion of Canada 4 per cent, Loan, 1874

do 4 do 1875

do 4 do 1876

do 4 do 1878-79.

do- 3} do 1884

do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

Consolidated Fund Investment Account.
Receiver-General's 5 per cent. Inscribed Stock
Quebec Harbor Debentures
Three Rivers do
Montreal Harbor Commission
Improvement of the St. Lawrence ,

Graving Dock, Quebec •

Northern Railway Bond Account
Canadian Pacific Railway Co. 5 per cent. Loan Account

do do 4 do Advance Account
St. John Bridge and Railway Extension Co -

Union Bank of Lower Canada, Special Account
Liverpool Bank, N.S

Province Accounts.

Province of Canada Debt Account
do Ontario do
do Quebec do
do Nova Scotia do Suspense
do New Brunswick Debt Account, Suspense.

do Prince Edward Island Land Account
do Ontario Emigration Aecount
do Quebec Current Account - «

North Shore Railway Bond Account.

$ cts.

8,249,899 59
3,158,953 34
338,719 97
353,395 51

1,510,126 67
1,397,704 05
307,249 34
626,605 39
788,238 11

132,956 68

1,028,548 99
10,138 88

2,125,000 00
75,734 50
76,000 00

2,339,504 10

724,000 00
73,000 00

21,650,700 00
7,380,912 00
425,500 00

100,000 00
30,000 00

82,779 82

3,891,771 11

2,122,485 06
42,084 97

463 39
747,976 71

6,572 20

625,000 00

cts.

16,863,848 65

35,909,038 47

130,000 00

7,509,133 26
1,351,595 00>
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Statement, in detail, of the several Assets, &c, available in redaction of the Gross
Debt of the Dominion

—

Concluded.

Miscellaneous.

Bank of Upper Canada Advance Account. ...„

do Trustee do ..".".[,

do Current do ..„,

Bank of Prince Edward Island Liquidation Account
,

Exchange Bank Account do
,

Queen's Printer Advance Account .".".....!!.."™«
Rails Loan Account HI!....""!""!
Intercolonial Railway Stores Account ^..IV. -IIIIirV« ^723,784 "2V
Prince Edward Island Railway Stores Account. 89,516 42
Eastern Extension Railway do 6,243 90

Stationery Office Stock Account .7~7"!TIZ7
Printing Contractor ."!........'. *.!'.".!

!!!!!
Manitoba School Lands Account. !V^V.V»V.V.'.V.V. !

Banking Accounts.

Cash Account
Specie Reserve Account ......"..!!*II"."! V."/.*.*", .'.'..'..'."J

Bank of Montreal, London !!!!..'.*.'."*!!,

Baring Brothers <fc Co !!""!!!!!!!.
'"".

Sir John Rose, Bart ...-..."«."""!!""!

Mennonite Loan *..-T.'.....Vr.V.]!!i!!..'*.!!!!

Icelandic Immigration .'..*.*.*.'. ...".'."'"!!.*. ".'.'.'.'.,

Savings Bank, Nova Scotia, Special Account "......*.."!"..".!"!!

Sinking Fund Special Account , .,.,.,

Widows' Pensions, U.C ..!!«!!!
Militia Paymaster ."...."""H...".^^™.'!"^
Services ......."!"""""!!!.*""!

Silver Coinage Account ..«*»".«..""«*!!

Silver 20c. pieces ...!!!" """Ill "!"!"!

Intercolonial Railway Open Account .„„., $357,563 15
do Windsor Branch Open Account. 1,845 43

Prince Edward Island Railway do ... 10,590 51
Canadian Pacific do do ... 241 67

Savings Bank, Ottawa
,

Cash Suspense Account .• „ ."!."7.".'.!'..!

Bank of Montreal Provincial Note Suspense Account!!...".".*.'.'.*! .........
Nova Scotia Savings Bank Cash do
Baring Brothers & Co. Dividend Account '......".".'.'.!!!!!!

Customs Suspense Account

Difference arising from clerical errors in statement of 1st March,
1886, corrected in this revised statement

$ cts.

103,316 53
150,000 00
29,027 35
60,692 90
189,477 68
35,175 09
242,661 19

819,544 59
32,180 76

2,018 11

23,107 75

4,567,229 01

3,885,410 64
172,236 96
34,495 26
38,749 20
52,943 89
47,700 00
26,793 14
1,179 95

3,802 38
605 49
101 35

88,891 53
2,140 90

370,240 76
260 91

9,247 38

40,625 53
194 67

• 404 38
36 67

$ cts.

1,687,201 95

9,343,290 00

72,794,107 33

2,269 99

72,791,837 34

Revised Statement.

Gross Debt, 1st March, 1886 „ $281,318,484 06
Less— Good Assets 72,794,107 33

$208,524,376 73

E. & O. E.

Ottawa, 31st March, 1886.

JOHN A. TOREANCE,
Dominion Bookkeeper.
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RETURN
(660

To an Order of the House of Commons, dated 28th April, 1886 ;—For
copies of the Award or Eeport of the Dominion Arbitrators, with the
evidence and papers connected therewith, in the matter of claims in
connection with Section 16 of the Intercolonial Railway, on the part

of the estate of the late John Bannon, Esq. ; the late William Muir-
head, Esq., William Wilkinson, Esq., and the other claims investigated

at the same time as those named above, and connected with the said

Eeport or Award.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

31st May, 1*86.

Me SECTION 16, INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY CLAIMS.

Ottawa, 3rd March, 1886.

Sir,—The claims of the executor of the late John Bannon, the executor of the
late Hon. Wm. Mairhead, Wm. Wise, David Lawson & Sons, late Philip Wall, Thos.
F. Gillespie, Daniel Meagher, Wm. Gray and Judge Wilkinson, in connection with
Section lti of the Intercolonial Kailway, having been referred to the official arbitrators
for investigation and report, we have to inform you that at the end of October last,
two of the Board, Messrs. Cowan and Compton, heard the statement of the claimants
at Chatham, N.B.

The evidence taken and all the documents were laid before all the members of
the board while in session here, during the latter end of February, and after duly
considering the claims, I was directed to lay before you the annexed reports embody-
ing their views.

I have, &c,

JAMES COWAN, Chairman.

Hon. the Minister of Railways and Canals, Ottawa.

ESTATE OF LATE JOHN BANNON.

Thi3 is a claim of the executors of the estate of the late John Bannon, of
Chatham, N.B., against the Intercolonial Railway, for goods supplied by the said
late John Bannon to Mr. J. C. Gough, who was one of the contractors lor Section
16 of that work.

The first witness who appeared before the arbitrators was the Rev.. T. J.
Bannon, Parish Priest of Chatham. He, being duly sworn, deposed, that he is the
son of the late John Bannon, and one of the executors of the estate. He found

66/—

1
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among the papers of his father after his death the following paper :—Filed as his

Exhibit A.
" Eeceived from John Bannon this day :

80 brlsofflourat $8 $640 00

96J bushels oats at 65c/. .. 53 08

2 brls. pork at $22 44 00

489 lbs. butter at i5c 122 25

$859 33

214 lbs. beef at 8c. 17 12

$876 45

For which I promise to pay three months after date with interest.

"J. C. GOUGH,
" Per J. Carpenter, Witness.

" Chatham, 22nd Nov., 1873."

Witness says he also found among his father's papers the following telegram,

which he filed as his Exhibit B:

—

" 21st March.
" By telegram from Fredericton to John Bannon.

" Deliver the flour, pork and oats to Carpenter, and I will carry out his arrange-

ments with you for whatever he may buy

.

J
"J. C. GOUGH."

Witness says he knew Gough as contractor of Section 16 of the Intercolonial

Eailway, and that after the goods had been delivered, they had gone to Gough, and

were used on Section 16. He spoke to his father when alive about the account, and

the impropriety of giving credit, as he did not want his father to extend his business

any further, owing to his being an old man, and having accounts worrying him.

His father expressed perfect confidence in the account being paid, as the goods went

to feed men and horses working on the section, and that the Government would pay.

The goods were never paid for. His father died the 26th February, 1884.

The next witness was Wm. Wise, of Chatham, merchant. He says that the

body of claimant's exhibit A is in his own hand-writing. The way he came to draw

up the account was this : Mr. John Bannon, being an old friend of his, came to him
to have the matter properly fixed. Joseph Carpenter signed the document in his

presence as Gough's agent. The prices charged were fair cash prices at the time.

To his own knowledge the goods were delivered to Carpenter's teams going to the

Intercolonial Eailway line. This was the only transaction Mr. Bannon had with

Gough in 1873.

The third and last witness was Thomas Gaynor, of Chatham. He says he

knew Carpenter, J. C. Gough's agent, to buy and forward goods for the men and

horses employed on contract 16 of the Intercolonial Eailway. He (witness) was

employed in 1872 and 1873 by Mr. Gough, as his teamster, to haul goods to the line.

He hauled two loads of flour from Mr. Bannon's and took it to the railway line.

He knows that John Leahy, John Connors and Harry Goddard hauled goods from

Bannon to the quarry, where men w ere at work at the time getting out stone for the

culvert on Section 16.

This is the case, as made out by the claimants. It appears to be clear enough

as regards the purchase and the delivery of the goods, and of their being used by
Gough's men and horses working.on the section. The main point upon which the

claim is pressed is the fact, as claimant alleges, of the Government getting the bene-

fit of the supplies. They, moreover, state that the whole cost of Section 16, after

being finished by the Government, was less by many thousands of dollars than the

sum tendered by King & Gough. No proof of this, however, was adduced.

2
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Among the papers forwarded to the arbitrators for their information is a letter

addressed to Sir Charles Tupper by the Hon. Peter Mitchell. It isolated from " Hot
Springs, Arkansas, 27th April, 1884." In this letter Mr. Mitchell writes:

" You will recollect that in putting through, or nearly so, the last of the Sup-
plementary Estimates, when Mr. Blake asked if that closed the duties of the arbitra-

tors, the commission, an exception was made of these claims on section 16 by
yourself, on my calling attention to it."

In order to put the Department in possession of what really did take place
during the debate on the item for the payment of the claims reported upon by Judge
Clark and the other members of the commission, we have referred to the 'official

reports of the House of Commons Debates, and on pages 1629 and 1630 we find the
following as the language passing between members and the then Minister of Kail-

ways, Sir Charles Tupper :

—

"Mr. Davies.—Will this close up all claims in regard to the Intercolonial?
" Sir Charles Tupper.—This is the report of the commission

.

" Mr. Davies.—Are there any other outstanding claims ?

" Sir Charles Tupper.—No ; none that have not been considered by the commission.
" Mr. Davies.—Then this pays everything.
" Sir Charles Tupper.—This report deals with all claims against the Intercolonial

Kailway.
" Sir Richard Cartwright.—Do you propose to re-open them.
" Sir Charles Tupper.—Certainly, I do not propose to re-open them.
" Mr. Mitchell.—There are two or three trifling claims that I have brought before

the Minister's notice and which 1 received from my constituents. I hope those

claims will not be shut out from consideration.
" Sir Charles Tupper.—Nothing can be foreclosed ; this is a matter for Parlia-

ment entirely.
11 Mr. Davies.—I understand, then, that it is quite possible that Parliament may

be called on to devote further sums in liquidation of other claims than those now
before us.

"Sir Charles Tupper.—When the hon. member for Northumberland refers to

small matters, respecting which he has sent any communication to me, they will

have to be examined, and it is impossible to say we will close the door to all such

claims."

It is quite evident there was no privity of contract between the Government
and the late Mr. Bannon, neither has it been shown that any person, on behalf of

the Government, ever made a promise at any time, to settle this account. In the

letter from the Hon. Mr. Mitchell to Sir Charles Tupper before referred to, it is made
to appear that claims of a similar character, and created under similar circumstances,

were adjudicated upon and paid. The arbitrators, however, have not been put in a

position to report whether the assertion of the Hon. Mr. Mitchell is correct or not,

no proof having been furnished at the investigation.

We submit all the facts bearing upon the claim as presented by the claimants

themselves, in order that the Department may be in a position to say whether in law

or in equity, or according to any precedent, this as well as the other claims should

be paid. Mr. Bannon asks no interest, some of the others do; should the claim be

entertained, interest in no instance ought to be allowed.

The remark made upon this claim will, with some exception, apply to the

rest. Thereupon, we avoid making a repetition in dealing with the others.

On behalf of the Board.
JAMES COWAN, Chairman.

CLAIM OF THE LATE HON. WM. MUIKHEAD.

This is a claim made by the executors of the estate of the late Hon. Wm.
Muirhead against the Intercolonial Railway for the value of goods supplied to King

& Gough, and to J C. Gough, while contractors for Section 16 of that work.

3
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The amount claimed is $4,275.90, made up as follows :

—

1874.
Aug. 1. To amount of account rendered against King

k Gough and J. C. Gough, per account ren-

dered $2,691 44
1884.

May 1. Nine and three quarter years' interest « 1,584 46

$4,275 90

A detailed statement of the goods furnished was submitted to the arbitrators and
filed.

Mr. John Sadler, of Chatham, N.B., appeared before the two arbitrators, and
being sworn, testified that the late Wm. Muirhead had dealings with King & Gough
from the 1st April, 1872, up to January, 1873, and after that time and up to the 1st

February, 1874, with J. C. Gough, who alone during the latter period carried on the
work. Mr. Sadler was Mr. Muirhead's bookkeeper and chief manager, and he
swears that the claim put in, accompanied by details, is a true statement of all the
transactions that took place between the parties. To his own personal knowledge all

the goods mentioned were sold and delivered, and used in the construction of the
section (16) in question.

Mr. Sadler says the aocount was opened with King & Gough on the strength of
the railway contract. Gough personally had nothing, and that if Gough had not the
contract at the time, Mr. Muirhead would not have advanced the goods nor the
money, the latter having been given to pay Gough's men.

The late Mr. Muirhead was given a three months' note by Gough on the 10th of
February, 1874, for the amount due. This note Mr. Muirhead endorsed and had
discounted at the branch of the Montreal Bank, in Chatham, or rather at Newcastle,
N.B. Gough failed to take up the note and Mr. Muirhead had to retire it.

There is not the slightest doubt in the minds of the arbitrators that the account
between the late Mr. Muirhead and King & Gough, and between him and J. C. Gough,
is correct, but no proof could be furnished that there was any privity of contract
between the Government and Mr. Muirhead, neither has it been shown that any
debts incurred by the said contractors under similar circumstances were recognized
and paid by the Government.

Mr. Muirhead's claim has been before the Intercolonial Railway Commission,
and was disallowed on the ground of there being no privity of contract between that
deceased gentleman and the Government.

On behalf of the Board.

JAMBS COWAN, Chairman.

CLAIM OF WM. WISE.

This is a claim of Wm. Wise, of Chatham, N.B , merchant, for balance due him
by J. C. Gough, contractor for Section 16. The amount of the claim is $2,055.46 for
goods supplied and moneys advanced to laborers on said section, while the contract
was in Gough's hand?.

Mr. Wise appeared before the arbitrators at Chatham, and made a sworn state-

ment. He says be gave the supplies to enable Gough to carry on the work. He
began his transaction with Gough in October, 1872. He supplied him with pro-
visions and paid orders given to men working on the section. The orders could not
be produced owing to the fact that a fire had destroyed his store a couple of weeks
prior to the investigation . The orders were in a box among other papers. The
goods were delivered to Mr. Carpenter, Gough's foreman, at his place of business.
The prices charged are fair and reasonable. Details of the accounts are recorded in
his books, except of goods delivered previous to 19th April, 1873, were produced

4
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before the arbitrators. Those excepted were contained in books destroyed by the
fire.

It appears that Mr. Wise made several applications to the Government from
18*74 up to the time of the investigation, for payment of his account.

As in the other cases, no privity of contract between Wise and the Government
was shown, neither was it shown that any debts similarly contracted by King and
Gough, or J. C. Gough, or any other contractor, were paid by the Government,

On behalf of the Board.

JAMBS GOWAN, Chairman.

CLAIM OF LAWSON AND SONS.

This is a claim of David Lawson and his two sous, who had a subcontract from
King & Gough, on Section 16. This sub-contract was for taking out earth, and
they were paid for it.

They now claim $385, with interest, for work done independent of their sub-
contract.

David Lawson, sen., appeared before the arbitrators, at Chatham, and made oath
that he and his two sons and his horses were employed in hauling rocks for the big
arched culvert in Section 16 ; and that, io addition thereto, he boarded and lodged
men who were working on the section. He could not give the account in detail,

because the books were lost. At the time, Mr. Munro, the " walking boss " of the
section, gave them the details and the amount due. This was sent to Ottawa. He
says they claimed the amount from Mr. Schreiber before the section was completed.
Mr. S. was then at Bathurst. He told them he was not authorized to pay the amount
then, but it might be paid, sooner or later—that it would be paid, because their
account was correct in the books. Mr. Schreiber had Gough's books with him.
Lawson says he tried since to get paid from Gough, but could get nothing from him.
Then, he says, he sent the account to Ottawa, through Mr. Adams. Then he saw
Mr. Schreiber at Bathurst; the Government had not then commenced to work on
the section.

David Lawson, jun ., next ap peared before the arbitrators, and, being sworn,
corroborated the evidence of his father.

On behalf of the Board.

JAMBS COWAN, Chairman.

CLAIM OF THE LATE PHILIP WALL.
This is a claim of the estate of the late Philip Wall against the Intercolonial

Eailway for a balance of $200 due by J. C. Gough, contractor for Section 16. The
amount is thus set out

:

Intercolonial Eailway in account with estate of Philip Wall

:

To amount due for supplies and labor $400 00
By cash 200 00

Balance due estate $200 00

Edward Wall, son of the deceased Philip Wall, appeared before the arbitrators

at Chatham, and deposed that his father sold and supplied to J. C. Gough for Section

16, forty barrels of flour at $8 per barrel, being the cash price at the time, amount-
ing to $352. The flour was all delivered on the section . He says that his father

had a man and horse working on the section for about two months, which makes up
the balance.

Thomas Gaynor deposed that he knew the late Philip Wall and J. C. Gough

;

that Wall had the horse working on the Section ; that during the winter of 1872-73,

he hauled a load of flour from Philip Wall's to the section ; and other teamsters also

5
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hauled supplies from the same place to Gough's section. Graynor says he was then

employed by Gough.

CLAIM OP T. F. GILLESPIE.

This is a claim for material furnished to King & Gough for Section 16. Mr.
G-illespie is a founder, and the material and goods supplied were castings, iron

work, etc*

The account of Gillespie against King & Gough, was originally $341.51, but

Gillespie was paid $140, leaving a balance due him of $200.51, which he asks the

Government to pay.

Mr. Gillespie appeared before the arbitrators at Chatham, and gave the details

of his account, which, no doubt, are correct enough. He says he never made any
claim against the Government prior to April, 1884. He gave the goods on the

strength of King & Gough having a Government contract, otherwise he would not

have credited them a cent. He says that he heard that the Government had taken

the contract from Gough, finished the section and made money.

On behalf of the Board.

JAMES COWAN, Chairman.

CLAIM OP DANIEL MEAGHEE.

This a claim of Daniel Meagher, who resides at Bartibogue, N.B., against J. Q.

Gough, for goods supplied for Section 16.

Mr. Meagher appeared before the arbitrators, at Chatham, and filed an account,

of which the following is a copy

:

Intercolonial Eailway in account with Daniel Meagher

—

Dr.

February 12, 1873—800 lbs. hay, at $16 per ton $ 7 20

do 14, 1873—800 lbs. hay, at $16 per ton s 7 ^0

do 14, 1873—1 brl. potatoes, $1,20; Jbrl. turnips,

60 cents 1 80

do 18, 1873—1 load of hay 9 00

September 3, 1873—1 beef cow 34 00

do 3, 1873—1 pair of bellows 10 00

do 3,1873—1 anvil 16 00

$85 20

Cr.

1875—1 brl. flour, $8.50; qtl. codfish, $2 $10 50

Cash, $5 ; cash, $9; cash, 64 cents 14 64

25 14

Balance due $60 06

Meagher says that the bellows and anvil were loaned, but never returned. The
prices charged for the other goods were agreed upon, and the prices for the bellows

and anvil are reasonable. He produced before the arbitrators a memorandum show-

ing the delivery of the goods.

On behalf of the Board,

JAMES COWAN, Chairman.
6
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CLAIM OF WILLIAM GRAY,

This is a claim of William Gray for three tons of hay, supplied in March, 1873,
while Gough had the contract for the construction of Section 16. The hay is charged
at $18 a ton, making the three tons the value of $54.

Gray did not put in an appearance before the arbitrators, consequently we have
no further proof than the sworn affidavit attached hereto.

On behalf of the Board,

JAMBS COWAN, Chairman.

Section 16—Intercolonial Railway in account with William Gray
March, 1873—To three tons of hay, $18 $54

I, William Gray, of Napan, in the County of Northumberland, make oath
and say :

1st. That I supplied the said section of the Intercolonial Railway with three
tons of hay during the year 1873, and that the amount of $54 is still due and
owing for the same.
Sworn

, in the County )

of Northumberland.
j

WILLIAM GRAY.

CLAIM OF JUDGE WILKINSON.

This is a claim of William Wilkinson, of Chatham, now one of the county judges
in New Brunswick, against Section 16 of the Intercolonial Railway, and set out as
follows :

—

Section 16, Intercolonial Railway, County of Gloucester, Province of New
Brunswick, known as King & Gough's section, to William Wilkinson, Dr.

:

1. 1872—Cash advanced for works, $5, $19 $ 24 00
2. 1873—Cash advanced to pay men's wages 70 00
3. May 1—297 barrels flour at $8.75, supplies for line. 2,598 75
4. Aug. 2—Cash advanced to pay men's wages 250 00
5. Sept. 30 do do do 350 00
6. Dec. 20—Cash advanced to pay for supplies for work 275 00
7. Jan. 5, 1884 do do 150 00
8. do do do 20 00
9. April 12, 1884 do do 375 00

10. March, 1884 do do 600 00
11. July 3, 1884 do do 396 00
12. Sept. 20, 1874 do do 294 25
13. Sept. 28, 1876—Cash advanced at different times to

pay men and for supplies to line through Mari-
time Bank for statement to date........ 3,629 45

Cr. $9,032 45
May 1, 1873-^By cash 400 00

$8,632 45 «

Sept. 28, 1876—Add interest on above to date 877 27
Add interest on $8,632.45 from 28th September, 1876, to

28th October, 1885—9 years, 1 month 4,704 68
Add paid law expenses, twice sued by Maritime Bank,

L. J. Almon, $30 and $27.55, and for Bd. & M.
Atty., $5 62 65

$14,277 05
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It appears, that although the contract for Section 16 was taken and carried on

by King & Gough, Frederick Burpee, of Portland, and merchant, of St. John, N.B.,

as well as Arthur W. Marsters, merchant, of the same city, were in some manner
associated with them. King having become insolvent, had to make an assignment

under the Insolvent Act of 1869, The partnership was dissolved, and Mr. Wilkinson

became security and gave a bond for the payment of certain moneys due one J. E.

O'Brien, and to Muir, Bwing & Co., Mr. Wilkinson having taken security to the

extent of $6,000 upon the plant of King & Gough. In addition to this, Mr. Wilkin-

son went on advancing the sums of money as mentioned in his statement, thinking,

no doubt, that he might save himself, or be paid at or before the completion of the

work under contract. Mr, Wilkinson seems to have placed implicit faith in Gough.

In order to show this, Mr. Wilkinson put in evidence two telegrams he had received

from Gough. These telegrams we quote to show how Mr. Wilkinson became induced

to make some of his latest advances.

By telegram from Fredericton, iV.JS., to Wm. Wilkinson.

" 25th February, 1874.

" Macpherson is short six hundred dollars to make January pay on account of

much work of that month not being in a position to be estimated, but it will all come
in this month's measurement, and there will be four thousand dollars estimated at

least. I want you to kindly arrange for the six hundred to-day, payable in twenty
days as before. I could get along without, but Schreiber is going over all the sec-

tions, and will be on my work next Tuesday, and am afraid of him reporting any dis-

satisfaction to my injury with commissioners, as he would be bound to do if he found

portion of men unpaid, You need have no hesitation in doing what I ask this time,

and I will not ask it again.

"J. C. GOUGH."
Mr. Wilkinson, in due course, arranged for this $600.

In order to show his faith in being paid by the Government, Mr. Wilkinson next

produced the following telegram :

By telegram from Fredericton, N.B.,to W. Wilkinson.

" 13th March, 1874.

" DeVeber will wait till I get February estimates* Eichibucto matter can hurt

no one. Don't despair. I am conducting negotiations with Brydges, which will put

matters in an easy position. Under any circumstances you can surely console your-

self with what is a widely known fact, that the Government has, without exception,

paid every dollar of debt due by contractors, when shown that they were incurred

for goods and material actually put into the works. All your liability is so included,

Schreiber told me in St. John that the new Government had done the same within

three weeks, in case of Section 13, McDonald, contractor, and why should I be

excluded from so general a policy and practice ?

«J. O. GOUGH."

As Mr. Wilkinson attached much value to these telegrams, and of importance to

file, we have quoted them. They establish no privity of contract between himself

and the Government. The despatch of 13th March can in no manner bind the latter.

It contains the unsubstantiated assertions of J. C. Gough only.

One of the pleas of Mr. Wilkinson is that the Government, having taken the

contract out of Gough's hands, deprived him (Wilkinson) of all chance of getting

his money through the contractors. Another is, " that advances wore made by him
on the full faith and understanding the payment of his advances was to come through

the railway works, and by and through the advances made for said works, and on no

other account would he have made advances."
8
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In our opinion Mr. Wilkinson stands in a different position from that of the
other claimants. They were carrying on legitimate trade or business. They were
not lawyers with legal minds, nor knowing by what legal means they might protect
themselves. Mr. Wilkinson, on the other hand, entered upon a business outside his
prolession

;
and it is strange, indeed, that a gentleman with his legal acumen should

have been caught by such chaff as was thrown to him. It was his business, moreover
to have found out the financial standing of Gough before assuming any risk

There are some items in his account that should not be entertained viz. item JB
being moneys paid to O'Brien and Muir, Bwing & Co., and the items of interest and
tor law expenses. Striking these out, we would advise only the recognition of the
other items, amounting in all to some few thousand dollars, if the claims are favor-
ably entertained by the Department.

On behalf of' the Board.

JAMBS COWAN, Chairman.

66/—
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RETURN
(68A)

To an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886 ;—For

a Return of the earnings and working expenses of the Intercolonial

Railway for each month from 1st July, 1885, to 1st February, 1886,

specifying the different sources of earnings, and the amounts (if any)

in each month, credited from mechanical stores account to earnings.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secrettry of State, Sea etary of State.

2<Jth May, 1886.

GOVERNMENT RAILWAYS IN OPERATION.

Office of the Chief Engineer, Ottawa, 19th May, 1886.

SlB d you herewith a stalemeu; to fill an order of the House for a return

of the earnings and working expens* i intercolonial Rai 1way ior each month

from 1 1 July, 1855, to 1st February, 1886, specifying the different sources of earn-

ings, and the amount, if any, in each month credited trom ihe mechanical stores

account to earnings.

1 have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

COLLINGWOOD SCHREIBER,

Chief Engineer and General Manager.

A. P. Bradley, Esq., Secretary Department Railways and Canals.

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

Statement of Working Expenses and Earnings, 7 months, ended 31st January, 1886.

Date.

Expenses. Earnings.

Total.
Passenger
Traffic.

$ cts.

83,891 43

» 1,063 19

78,748 10

6>,HP6 19

57,9-29 9-f

50,225 64

41,417 17

Freight Traffic Mail Sundries. Total.

1885.

July 31

$ cts

26*, 575 ?4

273,341 06
2-8897 24

300,898 33

197,^07 56
184,360 09

167,976 84

$ cts

119,472 67
118,279 46

124,951 78

127,787 90
136 514 9H

125,4,9 47

101,?65 22

$ ets

12,219 82

10,:«46 30

13, 91 58

12,7.55 91

12,5*7 42
13,022 44

11,237 70

85,701 17

$ cts.

215 583 92

AugustSl ...

September 30

209 6m7 95
217,^91 46

October 31 .. .....

November 30

December 31

1886.

January 31

203^10 00
206,992 33
188,b87 65

153,920 09

1,636,356 46 456,160 70 853,711 43 1,395,573 30
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REPORT
(61b)

Of the Chief Engineer of Government Railways, submitting the reports of
Messrs. Donken and Hyndman on Cape Breton Surveys, 1886.

Canadian Government Railways.
Office of the Chief Engineer and General Manager,

Ottawa, 18th May, 1886.

Sir,—I have the honor to submit herewith the reports of Messrs. Donken andHyndman upon the surveys and explorations made during the past summer to ascer-
tain the best route for a line of railway connecting the Straits of Canso with Louis-
burg or Sydney.

Instrumental surveys were made over two routes,

—

1st. From Hawkesbury to Louisburg via St. Peter's.
2nd. From Hawkesbury to Sydney via the Grand Narrows
Numerous explorations of modifications of these routes were made whenever it

appeared probable that a favorable line could be obtained, all of which are treated of
in detail by Mr. Hyndman in his report, from which it appears that the surveyed
lines are, on the whole, the beet routes to Louisburg or Sydney.

The leading facts, as now ascertained, in connection with these routes are as
follows:

—

Port Hawkesbury to Louisburg.

The initial point of this surrey is Point Tupper, on the east side of the Straits of
Canso and immediately opposite to tbe present terminus of the Eastern Extension
Railway, this point having been adopted as being the easiest of access to steamers
during the winter. The total distance by the surveyed line to Louisburg is eighty-
three miles, the St. Peter's Canal being crossed at the twenty-ninth mile, in close
proximity to the present road bridge. The general character of the country traversed
is rough and broken, and it was found necessary to use grades of 78 feet per mile to
avoid very heavy work. The highest elevation above sea level is 308 feet, which is
attained passing over the summit between the basin of Loch Lomond and the Mira
Kiver.

The work on about one-fourth of the total distance may be classed as heavy, and
the remainder medium to light. The bridging on this route is not of an expensive
character, the largest structure being that over the Inhabitants River, consisting of
one span of 180 feet, and 450 feet of pile trestle. The indications of rock are by no
means formidable, and it is estimated that the construction and equipment of this
road, including sufficient wharf accommodation at each terminus, to serve the present
traffic, would not exceed $20,000 per mile. Attached is Mr. Donken's report des-
cribing, in detail, tbe country traversed, accompanied by tables of gradients and a
list of the principal structures required. Also attached is a copy of a letter addressed
to Mr. Donken by the Rev. Br. Sutherland, upon the mineral resources of the country >
which cannot fail to be of interest.

bib—1
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Port Hawkesbury to Sydney.

This survey starts from Point Tupper, and for a distance of four miles, f ;lfows

the surveyed line to Louisburg, then branches northwards, runs north of the Great

Eras d'Or Lakes, crosses the Grand Narrows at the 5 1st mile and reaches Sydney
Harbor at the 92nd mile. Mr. JDonken, however, explains a portion of the surveyed
line having been ran with a view of pa«sing over the high ground between Elver
Inhabitants and River Deny's, afterwardb found impracticable, a deflection to the

Big Brook Valley was made, this deflection, he says, can be avoided by adopting a
direct line, which presents no difficulty and a saving be effected of about five miles.

The line, generally, passes through a good agricultural country, with indications of

Tarioas minerals. West of the Grand Narrows the country is very rough, necessitat-

ing heavy work and considerable curvature ; from the Grand Narrows to Sydney the

alignment is good and the work not heavy. The highest summit level attained is

208 feet above tide level, between the Inhabitants and Deny's Rivers. The maximum
grade is 78 feet per mile. The structures are somewhat numerous, there being eight

spans of 100 feet required, beside* a Wge number of small bridges and culverts.

The crossing of the Grand Narrows forms a serious obstacle on this route, the

vridth of the waterway being 1,800 feet, with a depth of 75 feet of water for a dis-

tance of 1,200 feet. From the information obtained by the engiueers in the field, it

is believed that no difficulty wuuld be encountered in working a steam ferry across

the Narrows at all seasons of the year. A bridge at this point would be a most
costly work, whilst a ferry would probably serve the purpose of the traffic ot the

road if it can be worked without interruption the year round. If a ferry be con-

sidered sufficient the cost per mile of this line would be about the same as that to

IiOuiRburg, viz., $20,000.

Mr. Donken states that a practicable line, probably some four miles shorter,

might be found by starting from a point on the Straits of Uanso about one mile from
Port Hawkesbury, passing behind Port Hastings to Horton Lake, and thence by
Glendale joining the surveyed line at the 25th mile; the country he reports to bo

more difficult and the work heavier. Attached is Mr. Donken's detailed report with
statements of grades and structures, also Mr. Hyndinan's report on his exploratory

surveys between ihe Siraits of Canso and Sydney and North Sydney, by various

routes, accompanied by a table of distances as well as his special report on the Grand
Narrows with table of tide gauge readings and a letter addressed to Mr. Hyndman
hy Mr. McDougall, M. P., upon the subject of ice ia the Narrows.

Port Hawkesbury to Sydney ,
via St, Peter's and the south side of East Bay.

In order to test the practicability of reaching Sydney without crossing the Grand
[Narrows, Mr. Hyndman made an examination of a route, leaving the surveyed line

to Louisburg at St. Peter's and following the south side of E^st Bay to its head, not

far from which it joins the surveyed line from the Grand Narrows to Sydney. The
natural features met with on this route are by no means favorable, the hillsides

being steep and rocky and generally unfit for agriculture. The distance from Point

Tupper to Sydney is estimated at from eighty-three and a-half to eighty-five m les,

and this route does not compare favorably with either of the surveyed lines.

Attached is Mr, Hyndman's report.

Branch to Arichat.

This proposed branch would leave the surveyed line between Hawkesbury and
Louis burg at about the fifteenth mile, thence running by an easy line to Burnt
Point, on the Lennox Passage, crossing the channel and passing over Burnt and
Benoit Islands. The passage is here three-quarters of a mile wide, the deepest

water being between Burnt Poiot and Burnt Island, a distance of about 800 feet.

From Burnt to Benoit Inland the channel is not so deep, whilst from Benoit Island to

the south shore the bottom ia uncovered at low water. The greatest depth of water
2
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to be encountered is 30 feet for a distance of 300 feet. From Point Benoit to Port
.Koyal the country will require somewhat heavy grades and heavy work, thence over
an easy country until Arichat is reached, where some heavy cuttings are required

Ihe harbor of Anchat is large and commodious, and is claimed to be an open
port at al! seasons. The chief structure required will be the swing bridge at Barnt
Islands; only small bridges being required at a few other points.

The total length of the branch is about twelve miles, and with the exception of
the crossing of the Lennox Passage, presents no difficulty of construction.

Attached is Mr. Hyndman's full report.
I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

a t> t,
COLLINGWOOD SOHREIBER, QUef En.gi.neer Government Railways.

A. P. Bradley, Esq., Secretary Department Railways and Canals.

CAPE BRETON RAILWAY.-REPORT OF SURVEY FROM PORT HAWKES-BUEY TO LOUISBURG.—HIRAM IX)NKEN.

Ottawa, 17th April, 1886.
Sir,—The survey for a line of railway from the Strait of Canso through the

Island of Cape Breton to Louisburg or Sydney, as directed in your letter of instruc-
tions to me dated loth August, 1885, being now completed, I beg leave to submit
the following report.

The point selected for starting the survey is near the lighthouse on Point
Tupper, on the east side of the Strait of Canso, about half a mile south of the village
of Port Hawkesbury, and immediately opposite the present terminus of the Eastern
Extension Railway; it was considered that a wharf could be built at this point which
would be more easy of access for steamers crossing the strait during the winter
months than any other place in the immediate vicinity.

Afcer leaving Point Tupper the line runs along the south side of Ship Harbor
for one and a-half miles, then begins the ascent of the high ground lying between the
Strait of Canso and the Little River, the summit of which is reached at 3f miles
at un elevation above sea level at high tide of 112 feet. No grades over this portion
exceed 53 feet per mile, the alignment is gooi. The work cmnot be called light
and a small quantity of solid rock ^ay be met with, the structures unimportant

The line descends to the crossing of the Little River near the 5th mile with a
grade of 53 feet per mile ; the work over this portion will be rather heavy clay cat-
tings. An abrupt change in direction occurs at the Little River, and a long 5 degree
curve will be necessary. From the crossing the line ascends the high ground between
Little River and River Inhabitants, the summit of which is reached by varying
grades, noae exceeding 53 feet per mile at SJ miles, where an elevation of 113 feet
over high water is reached. The work from iue crossing to the summit is light.

The grade descends from the summit to the crossing of River Inhabitants at the
*7J miles, at the rate of 80 feet per mile ; the work over this part is light, the material
earth. The width of the River Inhabitants at the point selected for crossing (near
McCarthy's Ferry) is about Y00 feet from shore to shore—the channel proper, about
180 feet in width at top, greatest depth of water in centre of channel 40 feet, and the
depth at the edges of the channel 15 feet, shoaling gradually to edge of river. The
bottom of the channel was found to be hard, in the shallower parts of the river 5 to
10 feet soft mud, overlying compact sand or gravel. This will be the most expensive
bridge on the line surveyed between Port Hawkosbury and Louisburg. One span of
180 feet and 450 feet trestle approaches is proposed.

For one mile east of River Inhabitants the country is flat, light earthwork over
this portion, grades easy and alignment good.

The line ascends the high land on each side River Inhabitants, with varying
grades, none exceeding 66 feet per mile until the summit isreachodnear White Lake
at the 12th mile.

3
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The grade elevation at this summit is 210 feet over high -water. No sharp curves

over this portion and the work is light.

From 12th to 13J miles the grades are easy, the alignment good and the

work light; the line then descends until it crosses the St. Peter's road at 16} miles.

No grades over this last portion exceed 32 feet per mile ; the alignment is good, and

the work not heavy, though a small quantity of solid rock will likely be met with
;

structures unimportant.

From 16} to 19th mile the grades are undulating, none exceeding 55 feet per mile;

alignment not good, 5 and 6-degree curves being necessary.

The work is heavy, the, material chiefly earth and boulders; structures unim-

portant.

Between 19th and 23rd mile the grades are undulating, none exceeding 56 feet per

mile ; the work is not heavy, though the material in cuttings will be largely rock

(solid and broken) . No sharp curves are necessary.

At 12} mile, Indian Brook, a swift running stream in a deep gorge, is crossed

;

it is proposed to direct this stream through a tunnel, the west bank of the stream

being rock suitable for that purpose. St. Peter's road is crossed at this point near

McLean's carding mill.

From the 23rd to the 26}th miles the line runs between the St. Peter's post

road and the Eiver Tiliard. The grade descends at the rate of 50 feet per mile from

the 23rd to 24§ miles, thence level to and beyond the crossing of the Eiver Tiliard

at 26} miles. The work is heavy over this portion, the material in cuttings largely

rock
;
good stone suitable for masonry will be found in cutting west of crossing of

Eiver Tiliard. The depth at low water in this river is about 3 feet, the bottom com-

posed of boulders and gravel ; the foundations will be inexpensive, one span of 100

feet will be ample.
From the crossing of the river Tiliard to St. Peter's Canal (29 miles) the grades

are undulating, none exceeding 57 feet per mile. The alignment is good. Though

the work over this portion is not light, no rock is likely to be met with m the cuttings*

At the 28th mile the line crosses the St. Peter's post road, and from that point to

the canal runs along in the rear of the village of St. Peter's.

St. Peter's is an important point and in the centre of a fair agricultural districts

The canal will be crossed north of the present post road bridge ; a swing span of

130 feet will be required. The foundations for the abutments and pier will not be

expensive. Good quarries in the vicinity.

For one and a fourth miles east of St. Peter's Canal the line runs near the shore of

the Bras d'Or Lake. The grade is level, the cuttings not heavy and the material clayey

loam. The line then ascends to the 3^f mile at the rate of 49 feet per mile; thence

bv easy undulating grades to the 36tb mile, where the summit of the high level

between the Bras d'Or Lake, and the Atlantic Ocean is reached at an elevation of

140 feet over high water. The work over this portion is not heavy, there are no

indications of rock in the cuttings. Some 6-degree curves will be necessary to avoid

heavy woik. At the 32nd mile the road to the village of L'Ardoise is crossed at a

distance of one and a half miles to the rear of that important fishing station.

From the 36th mile the grade descends for one mile at the rate of 69 feet per

mile along inlet of Loch Caileau ; thence for three-quarter mile along shore of Loch

Caileau, then descending again at varying rates, none exceeding 66 feet per mile,

until an elevation of 25 feet above high water is reached at 38} miles. The work

over this portion is generally light, a small quantity of solid rock may be met with

along the outlet of Loch Caileau. Five-degree and sometimes 6-degree curves will

have to be used to avoid heavy side cuttings.

From 38} miles the line works into the valley of the Grand Eiver (outlet of Loch

Lomond), then along the west bank to the 43rd mile, where the river is crossed.

Light undulating grades are used over this portion, no curve sharper than 5 degrees

will be necessary. Work not heavy, and the material earth and gravel. The Grand

Eiver will require one span of 125 feet ; the elevation of grade over water level is
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only 8 feet ; the bottom of the river is large stones and gravel. Good building stone

in the vicinity.

After crossing the Grand River the line runs along the east bank until the south

end of Loch Lomond is reached at 46£ miles.

Over this portion the work will class as heavy ; nothing to indicate solid rook

in any of the cuttings. Good ballast pits exist near Loch Lomond, easily reached

from the present line. The grades level, or ascending at various inclinations, none

exceeding 50 feet per mile. The curvature will be considerable; 5 degree and 6-

degree corves will be required.

From 46| miles the line leaves the valley of the Grand River and begins to

ascend the high ground between the basin of Loch Lomond and Mira River, the

summit of which is reached by short grades varying from 55 to 78 feet per mile

at the 60th mile, where an elevation of 308 feet over high water is reached. The
work over this part will not be heavy, the alignment good, the material generally

Band or gravel and boulders, and no important structures.

From the 50th mile the line maintains its elevation until the 54th mile is

reached
;
grades easy, alignment good and work light.

At the 54th mile the line descends into the valley of the Middle River of Fram-

boise, crossing the west branch at 55th mile and the east branch at 56th mile. The
grade descends for the first half of this distance at 53 feet per mile ;

the remainder

level. Yery heavy clay cuttings are met with over this portion ;
alignment good.

The structures over the two branches will not be expensive. A line a little further

south than the one run will probably give, altogether, better results between the 54th

and 60th miles ; it would certainly avoid the very heavy cutting just west of the east

branch of the Framboise River*

From the 56th to the 60th mile, the grades are undulating, none exceeding 53

feet per mile, the work not heavy and the material earth aud boulders. Some 5-

degree curves will be necessary, structures unimportant.

From the 60th mile, the grade descends at the rate of 52 feet per mile for If

miles, at the 64th mile a small branch of the Mira River is crossed. Over this por-

tion the work is not heavy, good ballast is found in different places, some 6-degree

curves will be necessary, no important structures.

At the 64th mile, the line begins to ascend the ridge lying between the Mira

River and the Atlantic Ocean . A grade of 80 feet per mile is used for three-fourths

of a mile, thence level on ascending until an elevation of 124 feet over high water is

reached at the 66th mile. The work over this part is not heavy, the material clay

and gravel.

Prom the 66th mile, the grade descends to Munroe or Round Lake at 68J- miles,

no grade over this part steeper than 57 feet per mile, the alignment good, and the

work not heavy, though some solid rook will be met with on the 67th mile.

From 68£ miles the line approaches the shore of the Atlantic Ocean, touching

Long and Level Lakes and crossing Irish Brook close to where it empties into Gabarouse

Harbor. A station at this point will afford accommodation both by lahd and water

to the village of Gabarouse. The grades over this portion are very light, the alignment

good, the work not heavy, and the material clay and gravel. No structures of any

importance except at Irish Brook, which will require a span of 60 feet. Good build-

ing stone all over this portion.

The line over this part follows along the sea shore ; the grades light and tde

alignment good. The work will be heavy, both earth and rook, particularly at Eagle

Head, near the 76th mile, where a side cutting of rock 600 feet long and 75 feet deep

in centre occurs. No important structures.

From the 76th mile the line leaves the shore, ascending for one mile at the rate

of 71 feet, thence by easy undulating grades to the 79th mile, where an elevation of

130 feet over high water is attained. The work over this part is light, material

earth and boulders, and the alignment good.
#

From the 79th mile the line descends to the head of Louisburg Harbor witu

varying grades, none exceeding 53 feet 'per mile, thence along harbor with easy

5
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grades to terminus at Slattery's Cove. The alignment over this portion is good, the
work light, and the material earth and gravel. The total distance from Strait of
Canso by the line run is 83 miles. This will be reduced by proposed location shown
on plan to 81

-J
miles. The route adopted for this survey does not pass through any

great extent of agricultural country. Kiver Inhabitants, St. Peter's, Loch Lomond and
Gabarouse districts being the best, and timber of any kind fit for structures or for
sleepers was not seen throughout the whole route in any quantity.

As it was part of my instructions to note existence of minerals or indications
thereof in the vicinity of the survey, I beg leave to substitute the letter attached
hereto from Rev. D. Sutherland, believing that the information from so competent
an authority will be much more thorough and complete than anything I am able to
say of my own knowledge.

Attached hereto is a list of the larger structures proposed ; and a tabulated state-
ment of grades, from which it appears that 33^ per cent, of the line is level j 12J per
cent, between level and 30 feet per mile ; 40 per cent, between 30 and 53 feet per
mile ; and 14J per cent, over 53 feet and less than 80 feet per mile.

I have the honor to remain, yours respectfully,

HIEAM DONKBN.
COLLINGWOOD SCHREIBER, Esq.,

Chief Engineer and General Manager Government Railways, Ottawa.

CAPE BRETON RAILWAY—PORT HAWKESBTJRY TO LOUISBURG.

Grades Ascending East.
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CAPE BRETON RAILWAY.—PORT HAWKESBURY TO LOUISBURG.

Station.

80
258
399
1131
1400
1528
2250
2567
2900
2950
3874
3*770

4137
411 -U

4297

Structures.

Description.

1 span 40 feet.

1 do 50 do Little River.
I do 180 do and 450 feet pile trestle approaches, River Inhabitants.
Steam tunnel, 10 feet diameter, 150 feet in length.
1 span 100 feet, River TilJard.

1 swing span 130 feet, St. Peter's Canal.
1 span 125 feet, Grand River.
1 do 50 do
120 feet pile trestling, West Branch Middle River Framboise.
1 span 100 feet, East Branch Middle River Framboise,

do Forks Mira Rwer.
Irish Brook.
Kennington River.
Landing Cove Brook.

do
do
do
do
do

40

60
60
50

30

do
do
do
do

6
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CAPE BRETON RAILWAY—PORT HAWKESBURY TO LOUISBURG.

Grades Asoendtng West.
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Gabarouse, C. B., 2nd November, 1885.

Dear Sir,—In reforenceto my knowledge of minerals on or in the vicinity of

your line ol railway survey from Strait of Canso to Louisburg, I beg to say, to my
certain knowledge from personal observation, there is iron in Loch Lomond and also*

manganese in paying quantities. There is copper between Loch Lomond and Fram-
boise. There is lead and silver in Salmon River, and abundance of brown jet in the

bottom gravel of the river, as also small seams of the same mineral. There is abun-

dance of limestone in Salmon River and also in Gabarouse. Also, there is manganese

oxide in Mira Head and in Gabarouse. There is porcelain stone or kaoline in Gabarouse

in abundance, and also a good seam of pottery or brick clay. There is iron ore

hematite at the Barrasois Gabarouse, and also at Gabarouse Cape. The seam vein, I

will try to find. Mr. Fletcher could not, in the time at his command, find the vein.

At Canoe Lake there is a superior article of copper, very pure, oxide sulphuret and

carbonate, with silver. At Augers McDonald's, on the French road, also, there is

copper. At Eagle's Head there is copper and bismuth and silver, and some signs of

gold in combination. At Kennington Cove, pretty much the same. At Simon

Point there is soap stone and shale of that description with ferric oxide. Between

Louisburg and Gabarouse, by the track road, there is mispickel in abundance, more

than the world requires, but the chances are of something better in that locality-

associated with it. I have also discovered a sample of very superior magnetite in

the vicinity although not in the line, and also very superior hematite, as tested by

Hoffmann. There are bands of ore containing rock elsewhere, such as between Fioche

and Gabarouse Lake, but 1 do not mention these. This section of country is, as

Fletcher remarks, generally pre-Silurian and ingeneous, and valuable mineral deposi ts

may be discovered in it at any time. I torgot to say that Mira and Salmon River

contain abundance of building stone in the shape of freestone and limestone. A
great country for grindstones. In conclusion, I may say positively, it is one bed of

valuable ore from St. Peter's to Louisburg ; and by microscopical observation, I

assert, it is rare to find here a sample of rock that does not show mineral of a valu-

able kind, and the soil seems to consist of carbonates and oxides and quartz or spar

spirals or capillaries.

I have the honor to be yours very truly.

D. SUTHERLAND.
Mb. Donken, C. E., &c.

CAPE BRETON RAILWAY—REPORT OF SURVEY FROM PORT HAWKB3-
BURY TO SYDNEY—HIRAM DONKBN.

JIR. HYNDMAN'S REPORT OF EXPLORATORY SURVEY PROM PORT HAWKESBURY TO SYDNEY,

AND REPORT ON GRAND NARROWS ATTACHED HERETO.

Ottawa, 27th April, 1886.

Sir,—I beg leave to submit the following report of the survey between Port

Hawkesbury and the town of Sydney. This survey lorms a junction *ith the sur-

7
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vey from Port Hawkesbury to Louisburg, at Station 214*36, a little over 4 miles
from Point Tupper, and the description of that portion will be found in report sub-
mitted oi the survey between those points.

From 4 to 4J miles the line continues the ascent of the high ground
between the Straits of Canso and the River Inhabitants, with a grade of 67
feet per mile, until an elevation of 146 feet above sea level at high tides is reached;
the grades from this point are undulating to end of 8th mile, none exceeding 48
feet per mile. The work on this portion is not heavy, the material in the cuttings
chiefly clay, with boulders.

A sharp turn to the north occurs in the line between the 4th and 5th mile
and a 6 degree curve will have to be used to avoid a spur of the ridge, the remain-
der of the alignment, to the 8th mile, is good.

At 7J miles the inlet to ftlcTntyre's Lake is crossed, and a pile trestle, 60 f et
in length, is proposed. At the Sth mile, the main post road to Sydney is crossed.
Tae line descends, from the 8th to the 9th miles, at the rate of 61 feet per mile, then
descending at various rates, none exceeding 53 feet per mile, to the valley of River
Inhabitants at the 12th mile, where an elevation of 32 feet over tide level is reachA rapid stream, called the North-West Arm, is crossed between the 10th and llth
miles, an 80 ieet span will be required. The work over this part is not heavy, the
material chiefly clay, and the alignment good. Prom the 9th to the 12th mil
line something shorter, more uniform grades, and perhaps lighter work than the one
surveyed, can be had, but as it would run, for the most part, through a country su
jected to overflow, it was thought better to keep higher ground, at the expense of a
few chains in distance.

The line keeps the valley of the Eiver Inhabitants to 13J miles, where the river
is crossed.

Undulating grades, none exceeding 53 feet per mile, are used over this portion-
the work is light, the material chiefly clay or clayey loam, and the alignment good'
The depth of water at ordinary level in the Eiver Inhabitants at the crossing is about
3 feet

;
freshet level, 4 leet higher ; the bottom, sand or clay, overlying gravel. A

span of 100 teet will be required. Cakes of ice, 1 foot thick and 10 to 15 feet square
were found upon the low ground adjacent to the river.

Prom 13j to 17J miles the line ascends the high ground between River Inhabitants
and Deny's Eiver, by the valley of McMaster's Brook. Grades of various inclinations
are used over this part, none exceeding 80 feet per mile, until an elevation of 280 feet
over high water tide level is reached at summit. This is the highest level reached on
this survey. The work over a part of this distance may be classed as heavy, the
material, except, perhaps, a part of one cutting, will be clay and gravel. The general
direction of the line, from l4j to 17J miles, is not good ; curves of 5 and 6-degrees are
necessary to keep within the Jim its of the narrow valley.

Structures, though not very large, will occur frequently over this portion ; one
trestle 150 feet in length and 30 feet in height ; one of 90 feet in length and 25 feet
high, and one span of 40 feet.

From the summit at 11J miles to the valley of the Deny's River at the 23rd mile
the line follows the valley of the " Big Brook." The grade descends at varying rates,
none exceeding 66 feet per mile, until an elevation of 24 feet over high water is
reached*

The work throughout this distance is not heavy ; some cuttings of gypsum will
be met with

;
no indications of a more expensive rock even observed, and the align-

ment is good.
&

A considerable quantity of timber, large and small, such as spruce, birch and
hemlock in lound over this part.

The line runs along west side of Deny's Eiver to 2oJ miles, when the river is
crossed.

Over this part the work is light and tho grades easy; no sharp curves are used,
but the general direction is not good, the cause for which will be fully explained at
end of this report.

8
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The ordinary depth of water in Deny's River is 3 feet ; frethet level, about 4 feet

higher ; the bottom large stones and gravel, and the banks firm. A span of 109 feet

will be ample.
The line keeps the east side of the valley of Deny 'a River until the 28th mile is

reached. The work over this portion is light, grades easy and alignment good.

A trestle, 90 feet in length and 15 feet in height, will be required, crossing

Cameron's Mill Pond near the 26th mile.

The line leaves the valley and begins the ascent of the high ground between
Deny'b River and Whycocomagh Bay. The grade ascends at various rates, none
exceeding 53 feet per mile, until an elevation of 142 feet over tide level is reached at

30J miles.

The work over this portion is not heavy, material chiefly clay and the structures

unimportant. At 29J miles the line turns abruptly to the north, then sweeping around
the northern end of a high ridge it resumes ios easterly direction again at the 31st

mile.

Two other lines were run between the 29J mile and the 3 1st, with a view of

improving the direction, both of which failed.

From 2S*f to 31J miles the grade descends at the rate of 66 feet per mile, then,

various undulating grades, none of which exceed 61 feet per mile, descending to the

36th mile, when an elevation of 44 feet above tide level is reached.

The woi k over this portion consists of rather heavy clay cuitings, the alignment
is good and no important structures required.

Large quantities of timber suitable for pilingjand ties can be obtained in this

section.

The line ascends from the 3Uh mile for half a mile at the rate of 60 feet per
mile, then by level or very easy grades along the watershed between Deny's Basin,

and Whycocomagh Bay to the 38th mile, then descending at the rate of 61 feet per
mile to the 39th mile, thence by undulating grades, none exceeding 53 feet per mile/

to the 40th mile, where an arm of the basin of Deny's River is crossed at an elevatioit

of 11 feet above level of water.

The work over this portion is not heavy, the material clay or sandy loam, no>

indications of rock were observed and the alignment is good. At the 37th mile the

line is half a mile from the shore of Whycocomagh Bay.
The arm of the basin at Deny's River, called the " Little Narrows," is 450 feet

wide at the point selected for crossing, the greatest depth of water is 25 feet, shoal-

ing gradually to the edges, no current. The bottom was found to have 3 to 5 feet

mud overlying compact sand or gravel ; a structure, having two spans of 100 feet

each, is proposed for this crossing. Good freestone, suitable for the masonry of this

structure, can be obtained near this place. The grades between the 40th and 45th
miles are short and undulating, none exceeding 74 feet per mile. The work over this

portion is heavy, large cuttings ofgypsum occurring frequently, and 6-degree curves

will be necessary in the alignment. A trestle, 200 feet in length and 35 feet high,

will be required between the 42nd and 43rd miles.

From the 45th mile the line crosses McKinnon's Interval at a grade elevation of
€ feet above lake level, then ascends to the 46th mile at the rate or 66 feet per mile.

From that to the 49th mile the grades are level or ascending at easy inclinations,

until an elevation of 86 feet over lake level is attained, then descending by varying-

rates, none exceeding 53 feet per mile, to an elevation of 8 feet over lake level, at 51
miles. The work over this portion is heavy, the material in the cuttings chiefly

clay, overlying gypsum, though one large cutting, of conglomerate rock, occurs near

the 50th mile.

The curvature over this portion will be considerable, 6 degree curves being fre-

quently required.

One trestle of 300 feet in length and 47 feet high occurs between the 47th and
48th miles.

The line all the way between the 40th and 51st miles keeps very close to tho

main road from Strait oi Canso to Grand Narrows.
9
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At the 51st mile the line crosses the Grand Narrows, or Straits of Barra ; the
width at the point selected for crossing was found to be 1,800 feet, the greatest depth
of water 75 feet and current about 4 miles per hour. The Grand Narrows connects
the Great and Little Bras d'Or Lakes.

Because of the great amount of shipping passing through this point, a low level

bridge would be objectionable, besides its great cost ; and the cost of a high level

•bridge would, by reason of it» increased length, be very much greater. No fixed ice
of any thickness ever makes at this point, and the drift ice is not in such quan-
tities as would impede navigation. From this it would appear that no difficulty

exists to operating regularly a steam ferry of sufficient size to carry an ordinary train
of cars.

The line from the 51J to the 53rd miles keeps along the south shore of Little
Bras d'Or Lake. The grades ascend at various rates, none exceeding 66 feet per
mile, until the summit between Little Bras d'Or and the Benacadie Valley is reached
at the 55th mile, where an elevation of 180 feet over lake level is attained. The
work over this portion, with the exception of one cutting, is not heavy, the material
chiefly clay. Curves as sharp as 6 degrees will be necessary in the alignment ; no
important structures.

The line descends to the crossing of Benacadie Pond, at 57J miles, at the rate

73 feet per mile. Benacadie Pond is an arm of the East Bay ot Bras d'Or Lake, in

which the Benacadie Biver empties.

The work from 55th to 57j miles is not heavy ; the material generally clay
The direction of the line between Grand Narrows and Benacadie Point is nearly

at right angles to the general direction, and the total length of the line is thereby
considerably increased. Benacadie Pond, at the point selected for crossing, is about
1,100 feet wide; the greatest depth of water is 3 feet. The bottom consists of 2 to

10 feet of mud and sand, overlying compact sand or gravel. A span of 100 feet is

proposed j the remainder of the crossing will be embankment. Grade elevation is 6
feet over water level.

The grade ascends from Benacadie Pond to the 60th mile at various rates, none
exceeding 53 ieet per mile, where an elevation of 88 feet over lake level is reached.
The work over this portion is not heavy and the material chiefly clay, no structures

ofany importance occurs in this distance.

From the 59th to the 60th mile, is almost one continuous curve varying from
3 degrees to 5 degrees, sweeping around Benacadie Pond, a change in direction of
160 degrees occurs in this mile. From the 60th to the 80th miles the line runs near
the shore of the East Bay, generally not for from present main road.

Fiom the 60th to the 66th mile the grades are easy and undulating, the work
over this part is not heavy, the material will be clay and small boulders, and
the aJignment good. Near the 06th mile Indian Brook is crossed, a rapid stream
subject to sudden freshets. A span of 100 feet will be required besides considerable

protection to the banks of the brook from ice shoves.

The grade ascends from an elevation of 11 feet at Indian Brook to an elevation

of 50 feet at the 67th mile, thence level to the 68th mile. One large cutting of solid

rock occurs in this distance, the remainder of the work is not heavy, the alignment
good and no important structures. Good ballast will be found at different points
along this distance.

From 68th to 72nd mile the grades are undulating throughout, none exceeding 53
feet per mile, the work not heavy and the material chiefly clay and small stones. It

will be necessary to use considerable curvature over this portion. Between the 70th
and 71st miles Mcintosh's Brook is crossed, the valley of this stream is 500 feet wide,
a trestle 450 feet in length and 35 feet high will be required.

From the 72nd mile the grade descends for three-fourths of a mile at the rate of
66 feet per mile, then ascending by various rates, none exceeding 53 feet per mile to

the 77th mile, where an elevation of 114 feet over lake level is reached. The work
over this portion is light, the material clay and gravel, the alignment is good and no
important structures required.

10
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From the *rtth to the 18th mile the grade descends at the rate of 83 feet per
mile, then level or descending by easy inclinations to the 80th mile, where an eleva-

tion of 22 feet above lake level is reached.
The work over this portion is generally light, the material clay and boulders, and

the alignment good. Between the 78th and 79th miles jilli^' Brook is crossed, the
valley of this stream is 700 feet wide, a trestle 650 feet in length and 47 feet high
will be required . At the FOth mile the head of Bast Bay is reached and from that
point to Sydney the line keeps close to the main post road between St. Peter's and
Sydney.

The grade ascends by various inclinations, none exceeding 43 feet per mile, until

an elevation of 83 feet above high water is reached at 82J miles. The work over
this portion is light, some small cuttings of gypsum occur, the material chiefly clay
and the alignment good, no important structures.

The grade descends at various rates, none exceeding 53 feet per mile, to the cros-

bing of the Svdney Biver near the 85th mile, the work over this part is very light

and the alignment good. The width of the river at the point of crossing is 90 ieet,

the depth 4 feet, the bottom is composed of large stones and gravel, and the banks
firm. A span of 100 feet is proposed, the grade line is 25 feet above ordinary water
level.

The grades from the 85th to the fOth mile are undulating, none exceeding 53
feet per mile, the work very light, the alignment good, and no structures of any
importance.

The line crosses to south side of main post road near the 91st mile, thence in

the lear but close to the town of Sydney, it reaches its terminus at Battery Point,

Sydney Harbor, at 92J miles from Port Hawkesbury. The work from 90th to 92nd
miles is light, the grades easy and the alignment good.

A stream called Fresh Water Brook is crossed near the 91st mile, this will require

a span cf 100 feet. Between the 91st and 92rd miles the Narrow Gauge Railway
from Svdney to Louisburg is crossed on a level.

During the exploratory survey it was thought possible to build a line over the
^higL ground between Biver Inhabitants and Deny's Biver, by a more direct route than
the one adopted ; an instrumental survey showed, however, this to be impracticable

within the limits of an 80 feet giade. As it was a matter of great importance that

the fcurvey should be finished without loss of time, it was thought best not to throw
away too much of the line already run, and a sharp deflection was made from the

28tb mile down the valley of Ber-y's Biver to Big Brook.
No difficulty exists in getting a direct line from -the Little Crossing to Big Brook,

keeping all the way in the valley of the Deny's Biver and saving a distance of five

miles over the line surveyed. The work over this part (Little Crossing to Big Brook)
will not, however, have more work per mile than the line surveyed, and there will

be no structures of any consequence upon it.

A line can also be found from a point on the Sti ait of Canso, about one mile
north of the village of Port Hawkesbury, passing to the rear of the village of Port
Hastings, touching Lake Horton, thence along the Victoria Road, keeping north of

Kingsville, through Glendale, down valley i.f McLennan's Brook and joining the pre-

sent line between the 25th and 26th miles. This line would probably show a saving

in the total distance of about four miles.

A part of this line was examined (by me, under instructions from Chief Engineer)

from River Inhabitants to Strait of Can so. The summit near Lake Horton was found

to be 325 feet above sea level.

This line, by no means so light as the one surveyed, was considered practicable

within the limits of 80 feet grades and 6-degree curves. The portion through Glen-

dale and by valley of McLennan's Brook was examined by Mr. Hyndman and
reported as a heavy and difficult country. With the exception of the first 10 miles

from Strait of Canso, and from the 28th to 33rd mile the line passes through or
near a good agricultural country all the way. Indications of iron, copper, graphite

and coal were noted in the immediate vicinity of the line. The total length of a*

11
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located line from Port Hawkesbury to Sydney, by the valleys of McMaster's and Big

Brooks, along basin of Deny's River as proposed, and thence to Sydney by route of

present survey, will be 85J miles.

Attached hereto will be found Mr. Hyndman's report of exploratory surveys

from Port ffawkesbury to Sydney ; also a list of the larger structures proposed and

a tabulated statement of grades on the instrumental survey from Port Hawkesbury
to Sydney.

It appears from the table of grades that 324 per cent, of the line is level, 32f
per cent, between 30 and 53 feet per mile, and 18 per cent, over 53 and under 80

feet per mile.

I have the honor to remain yours respectfully,

HIEAM DONKEN.
Collingwood Schrbiber, Esq.,

Chief Engineer and General Manager Government Kailways, Ottawa.

CAPE BRETON RAILWAY—POET HAWKESBURY TO SYDNEY.
GRADES ASCENDING EAST.
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CAPE BRETON RAILWAY—PORT HAWKESBURY TO SYDNEY

List of larger structures required.

Station. Description.

4531 1 span, 40 feet, Little River.

4484 60 feet pile trestling, Mclntyre's Lake.
4334 1 span, 80 feet, North West Arm.
4167 1 do 100 do River Inhabitants.

4090 90 feet trestling, McMasters Brook.
4081 90 do do do
4025 1 span, 40 feet do do
3678 1 do 58 do Big Brook.
3o51 1 do 50 do do
3536 1 do 100 do Deny's River.
3526 90 feet trestling, Campbell's Mill Pond.
2760 2 spans, 10<) f et each, Little Narrows.
2638 200 feet trestling.

2^68 300 do
2180 steam ferry, Grand Narrows.
1850 1 span, 100 feet, Benacadie Pond.
1398 1 do 100 do Indian Brook.

11^7 400 feet trestling, Mcintosh's Brook.
725 650 do Gillis' Brook.
405 1 span, 100 feet, Sydney River.

78 1 do 100 do Fresh Water Brook.
12
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CENTRAL EOUTB EXPLORATION—STRAITS OF CAHSO TO GRAND
NARROWS.

Christmas Island, Cape Breton, 15th September, 188 .

Sib I beg to forward, herewith, a tracing of a portion of the country on the

above route, and to report the result of my examination of the same.

2. In accordance with your instructions, I started near Duff's Mills, in the

Port Hawkesbury and St. Peter's road, and followed the line located for the Short

Line Railway Company as far as the North-West Arm, a distance of about three

miles. As this line skirted the north side of Mclntyre's Lake and crossed and

recrossed Black Brook, keeping in low, swampy and boggy ground nearly all the

way, I considered it useless paying any further attention to it. Further information

gained regarding the course of this line confirmed my opinion as to its unsuitability.
~

3. From McCormick's Hill (to the east of Mclntyre's Lake) I obtained an excel-

lent view of the other side of the Black Brook valley, which consists of high but

gently-rising ground, opening to the North West Arm and the valley of the Inhabi-

tants River. Instead, therefore, of being compelled to keep in wet ground, a high

and dry line can be obtained at whatever level may be necessary and in the exaot

direction required.

4. I passed over the road leading from Port Hastings down the valley of the

North-West Arm, crossed the Inhabitants River, and followed the latter up to its

eastern or left bank, passing the Princeville and Kingsville settlements, and

returned across Lamy's Interval and Queensville by the Victoria road. The coun-

try between Queensville and Port Hastings is rough and hilly, and, as far as I have

seen, it would not be possible for a favorable line to be found in that direction, as has

been suggested. The ascent from Port Hastings is very abrupt, and beyond Queens-

ville across Lamy's Interval the ground is low and swampy and subject to flood. If

taken along the shore to the mouth of Horton's Brook, following its course to

Horton's Lake, the direction would be circuitous. Beyond the lake the country is cut up

by numerous streams. In 1876 a survey was made by the Provincial Government vid

Horton's Brook and Lake to River inhabitants. The lake is stated to be 280 feet

above tide water and four miles from Port Hastings. Beyond the lake the country

is said to present no difficulties.

5. From the hill above Kingsville to the east end of the Inhabitants River I saw

a wide and deep triangular valley, at the extreme north-easterly end of which that

stream takes its rise, flowing westerly round by Glendale, and thence southerly to

the sea. At the southern angle of this valley a narrow valley with a small stream,

called McArthur's Brook, leads out to the River Inhabitants at Princeville. The

easterly slope of this triangle appeared unbroken, and therefore favorable for an

ascent up to the summit between the valley of the River Inhabitants and Deny's.

If this summit proves practicable, then a much shorter route than following the

river by Glendale and McLennan's Brook might be obtained.

6. Leaving Hawkesbury again, I followed the same route down the North-West

Arm and found that the narrowest part of the Inhabitants River valley lies between

the " long stretch road " bridge and the Princeville post office. The crossing of this

stream and the North-West Arm presents no special difficulties. The former is 70

to 80 feet broad, and the latter about half that width. If necessary, the ascent

to the summit can be commenced immediately after crossing the Inhabitants River.

1 have estimated the rise to be about 300 feet in 7 miles. This will give a gradient

of 43 feet to the mile or about 1 in 120. I examined the narrow valley debouching

at Princeville, and found it promising.
m

7. I continued up the Inhabitants River valley round by Glendale, following the

Yictoria road into River Deny's valley. This route, which was adopted by the Short

Line Railway Company, is very rough, being much broken up by ravines and deep

eulleys, besides being longer by about two or thiee miles.

8. From the high hill above the Deny's River, " Cross Roads," I obtained a most

extensive view of the country to the south and east. I saw that though it was by
13
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no means level, there were no high ranges of hills or narrow valleys such as I had
passed over, to be encountered almost to Grand Narrows. The country is intersected
by small brooks, and ridges and eminences of moderate height, thus promising easy
gradients.

9. Before proceeding further east, I went down the Deny's River valley and
turned into the valley of the Big Brook. This is a long, and not very wide, valley
running in a north-easterly direction, and situated to the south of the triangular
valley already mentioned. If it is possible to get into the Big Brook valley from the
Li habitants River, a sufficiently favorable route might be obtained along it, although
its sides are intersected by ravines and torrents, but, as will be seen from the tracing,
there appears no direct or easy way of approach to it from the west, though the
report of the provincial survey states that a line was taken up McMaster's Brook,
with a maximum gradient of 80 feet to the mile, over a summit 28-t feet above tide
water.

10. Ascending the northerly slope of the Big Brook valley to the top of the
ridge, I again saw to the north-west the triangular valley. I proceeded to explore the
upper portion easterly and found two streams, the northerly being the larger, and
the head waters of the River Inhabitants. The southerly one is a small brook, but
lying in a wider but shallower depression. This depression opens out into the
Deny's River valley, thus forming a kind of a small pass. I did not follow the larger
stream, but was informed that it came down the side of a hill, which, therefore, would
not be so suitable. As already stated in paragraph 6, the height of this pass I esti-

mate at about 300 feet above the Inhabitants valley. This will be the highest point
between the Straits of Oanso and the Grand Narrows.

11. The descent on the Deny's River side will be much steeper, owia^ to the
shorter distance, but the difference of level will be somewhat les3. It would be desir-
able to cross the Deny's River below the junction of McLennan's Brook, the latter
lying in a deep ravine, which otherwise would have to be crossed, as well as one or
two other small streams, if the gradients should prove too steep. From the summit
to Mclennan's Brook the hillside is favorable, haviug an even slope.

12. As stated in paragraph 8 the country eastwards presents no unfavorable
features, and, for the present, I consider it important to push on to the Grand Nar-
rows. The general direction of the line is indicated on the tracing. Instead of pas-
sing through the Portage or the Little Crossing, as it is called, tiie line can be kept
further to the south and a possible crossing of the inlet from the Great Bras d'Or
obtained at a narrow place, close to Pipers or Campbell's Cove, which will shorten it

considerably. Thence it can be taken along the south side of a wooded ridge, to
McKinnon's Interval. Before reaching the interval a little rough ground and some
gypsum deposits will be encountered.

13. McKinnon's Interval is a bay or flat ground, semi-circular in shape, at the
head of a sheltered inlet of the Great Bras d'Or, called Mo Kannon's Harbor. There
is a small settlement with a school, store and post office. To the north lie steep and
lofty hills which tread away to the north-east. The widest pare of the interval
(from west to east) is under two miles.

14. From the interval to the Grand Narrows lie two or three high ridges and
intervening valleys, in a transverse direction to the course which the railway line
must take. These ridges terminate at their south-westerly extremity in a series of
capes on the shore of the Great Bras d'Or where they flatten out considerably with a
moderate slope to the water. Opposite the valley there are long sweeps or bays. I
examined the country over these ridges, with a view to a possible route, back" from
the Great Bras d'Or, into the Grand Narrows. A narrow valley leads out from the
north-east corner of McKinnon's Interval, but the ascent is steep. An opening might
be found beyond its head into a gorge leading east into the Little Bras d'Or,
but this gorge is also steep, narrow and tortuous. Thence to the easterly end of the
Grand Narrows it would be necessary to cross some shallow bays, where large
gypsum deposits would be encountered. The adoption of a route through any other
of the^e valleys would give a like result.

14
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15. in my opinion, the shore route by the Great Bras d'Or will be preferable,

this will necessitate long sweeps both northerly and southerly all the way to the
Grand Narrows, but the gradients will be moderate. On leaving McKinnon's
Interval some gypsum deposits will have to be passed through for a short distance,

together with some rough ground, and, generally, the cuttings and embankments
will be of considerable length, depth and height.

16. The route I have indicated is, generally speaking, very direct from the
Straits of Canso to the Grand Narrows. The only departures from a direct course
are at the straits at starting, and the descent at the River Deny's, and the approach
to the Grand Narrows. In the first instance a spur of the mountainous ranges lying

to the north of Glendale leads to the south between the straits and the North-West
Arm, terminating in the valley in which lies Molntyre's Lake. As this valley opens
ea?t and west, and in the required direction from the head of Port Hawkesbury Har-
bor right into the Inhabitants River valley, a more favorable ronre cannot be
obtained. Again the triangular valley at the head of the Inhabitants Rver affords a
more dire6t line, and easier work than by going round by Glendale, which, on the
the whole, is a greater advantage than the slight detour at the River Dony's eroding
is a disadvantage. Lastly, the tortuous approach to the Grand Narrows will not
prove to be much in excess of a straight line and does not extend over a great length.

Owing to the conformation of the ground no other approach can be obtained. Tak-
ing two bearings over the whole distance, viz., from the straits of the River Deny's
and theuce to Grand Narrows, the deflections are not very much.

17. The line indicated will be well within the limits prescribed for gradient sand
alignment, except perhaps in the descent to the River Deny's which will probably

reach the limit of gradient, viz., 80 feet at the mile. The earth works in a hilly and
almost mountainous country such as this is, cannot be otherwise than heav}-, and
much of the cutting may be rock, and a great deal loose rock, boulders and gravel,

whilst a portion will be soil. It may be possible to balance the cuttings and hanks,

and go obviate spoil and borrow pits. Much of the work will be side cutting, and
the possibility of snow filling will be confined to a few places of no great length,

18. The bridging may be considered very light over a length of ne rly 50 miles,

and in such a rough country. With the exception of the Rivers Inhabitants and
Deny's which are themselves not very large, and not torrential, the streams crossed

are insignificant brooks, and they are not very numerous. Materials for the con-

struction of the necessary bridges, either in masonry or timber, is good and abundant.

19. In conclusion, I may say that the more closely and carefully the country is

examined and surveyed the better the line that will be secured more especially east-

ward from the River Deny's. One or two alternative routes, as indicated by doited

lines, might be surveyed.

20. Further reports will be sent to you regarding the crossing of the Grand
Narrows and the remainder of the line to Sydney, at as early a date as possible.

I am, Sir, yours faithfully,

P. K. HYNDMAN,
Gape Breton " Central Houte " Exploration,

H. F. Donkbn, Esq , Engineer in Charge
Cape Breton Railway Surveys, Port Mulgrave, N.S.

CENTRAL ROUTE EXPLORATION.—GRAJSTD NARROWS TO SYDNEY AND
NORTH SYDNEY.

Grand Mira, Cape Breton, 22od October, 1885.

Sir,—I beg to forward herewith a tracing of a portion of the map of Oape
Breton, extending from the Grand Narrows to Sydney Harbor, aid from Baddeek

to Louisburg, with the topography of the country explored by me sketched in,. and

to report the result ofmy examination of the same.
15
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General Explanations,

2. This exploration was completed on the 2nd inst., but owing to the urgency
required for the exploration of the last 18 or miles of the southern route into
Louisburg, the report could not be prepared earlier.

3. As this portion of the " central route " included branches to Sydney and
North Sydney, and developed several physical difficulties, its thorough examination
took about three weeks actually spent in the field.

4. My instructions, uirecting me to explore for a line to Sydney, with a branch
from some suitable point to be selected by me, to North Sydney, I proceeded to work
out the most direct route to Sydney, in the first instance, with as short a branch to
North Sydney as possible.

5. In carrying out the exploration for such a line, I found the country so very
unfavorable that I was forced to take up the consideration of two other routes,

which, though somewhat circuitous for one or other of the two termini, present, per-
haps, fewer engineering difficulties. These three routes I have indicated on the map
by black, red and blue lines respectively, on which I have marked off the mileage
from the Grand Narrows as a common zero.

6. The map showed that the shortest line to Sydney, from the Grand Narrows,
lay across the peninsula to the head of East Bay, and thence down to the Sydney
Biver, into the town of Sydney, and the shortest branch to North Sydney, to start

at a point about five or six miles west of Sydney, and, taking a northerly direction,,

to pass around the head of the North-West Arm, thence easterly along ics northern
shore into North Sydney.

*l. The stream system of the peninsula, at least for the greater part of such
a route, gave however, little promise (espeo ally in view of the very high country
lying between the shores of the Little Bras d'Or Lake and East Bay) of obtaining an
easy line, and this was fully proved by subsequent examination. As will be seen

from the tracing, the direction of the watercourses is north-east and south-west,

almost exactly transverse to the desired route, and, from the contracted area and
great height of the country, they would be necessarily short and rapid.

Interior Route over the Bills—Main Line to Sydney. ( Black line.)

8. Following up the route indicated by the black line, or the " interior " route

the valley of one of the branches (the main or left branch) of the Benacadie JRiver

lies almost exactly in the required direction. A low ridge lies between it and the

Little Bras d'Or Lake slope at an elevation of from 150 to 200 feet, at a distance of
about three miles from the Grand Narrows, by way of Cooper's Pond or Neilban

Cove, at the first mile out*

9. The high range of hills along the south shore of the Little Bras d'Or Lake,
called the Boiedale Hills, presents a steep and thickly wooded face throughout its

^hole length. At from 6 to 8 miles east of the Grand Narrows, the hills begin to

trend off to the south-west, stretching right across the peninsula, without a break, to

Bast Bay, above the mouth of the Benacadie Biver. Along the northern shore of

East Bay the southern slope maintains the same character, and they extend east-

ward as far as Indian Brook, which rises within three miles of the Little Bras d'Or
Lake, and divides them nearly into two portions.

10. The country on top, which lies from 600 to 800 feet above the sea, consists of

a rough and undulating surface, densely wooded, rocky, and having extensive bogs

or swamps called " barrens." Over this country there are neither roads nor settle-

ments, except one road, partially formed, lying north of the Eskasoni Indian reserve^

The area of this stretch of country is about 20 square miles, and it is impossible that

it will ever prove fit for settlement, I passed over the road above mentioned, and
struggled through from the Indian Biook, at Hugh iVTcFee's, north-westerly, to Shen-

acadie, meeting neither clearing nor inhabitant.

11. The only practicable way of ascent to this region is by way of the left branch

of the Benacadie, passing by Bryden's Mill and John McNeil's house, the last habita-
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tion for about eight mile*. From the low ridge west of the BeDacadie a descent of
from 50 to 75 feet must be made to cross that stream below the junction of the two
branches. Thence must begin a steady ascent up the valley for 6 or 7 miles on the
maximum gradient, attaining, ultimately, an elevation of about 700 feet above the sea.
The valley is wide and its southern side, along which the line would be taken, has an
easy and favorable slope unbroken by cross ravines.

12. In view of the loss of the height occasioned by crossing the Benacadie,
I considered the possibility of following the low spur which runs out from near
Murdock McNeil's was lower than I expected, being only about 350 feet in a distance
of 7 miles. The spur here joins the steep wooded slope of Boi-dale Hills, which
would have to be followed easterly for about one and a half miles, when the line
would turn up a deep gully and eventually reach the top at a distance of at least

2J miles more, if the gully extended so far back, which it cannot do. I
therefore reluctantly abandoned that direction and felt back on the line past Bryden's
Mill.

13. Before exploring the top of the hills I passed over into East Bay end pro-
ceeded along its northern shore to the head, and beyond to Forks Lake, which lies
below the southern slope on the Coxheath Hills. .Returning west, 1 found the head
of the main feeder of Fork's Lake (near Gillis' BrooJj), and the valley of McAdam's
Brook obligatory points, and the next problem was to draw a direct line to McAdam's
Lake from Bryden's Mill. I proceeded to explore Indian Brook from its head, near
Loon Lake, as far as Hugh McFee's.

14. Indian Brook, though not a large stream, is a formidable obstacle, for it lies,
throughout its whole length, in a gorge or narrow valley, at a depth of from 100 to
600 feet. At Hugh McFee's it is more than 400 feet from the stream to the crest of
the easterly ridge. The least length of viaduct would be one half a mile, and the least
height 300 feet. Though there is the Dugald Brook to follow as an entrance on the
western side, there is an unbroken slope giving no exit on the eastern side. No other
course was open than to head it round, and reach the McAdam's Lake by a circuitous
route, north and east of Loon Lake. It is remarkable that the valley of the Indian
Brook is continuous with that of McLeod Brook, which flows in an opposite direction..
The valley could not be avoided, and it must be crossed north of Loon Lake, where it
is about 100 feet deep.

15. From Loon Lake to McAdam's Lake, a distance of 3 miles in a straight line,
the country presents a succession of small shallow valleys and rocky ridges, though
the first mile is more level. A branch of Mcintosh's Brook, the outlet of Loon
Lake, is crossed, and then the watershed between Mcintosh's and Gillis' Brooks.
From this point the valleys run east as far as the latter stream.

16. Crossing the last ridge, near the head of McAdam's Lake, the valley of the
brook of the same name must be followed for about 3 miles more to Gillis'
Brook, into which it falls. The side hill over this length is favorable, though there
is a great deal of rock. This valley is continuous westerly with the southern
branch of the Mcintosh Brook, the streams flowing in opposite directions.

17. To completely established the hopelessness of a more direct line to McAdam's
Lake, I found the country between that point and the Indian Brook intersected by
one or two deep valleys and high rocky ridges, which I have endeavored to exhibit
on the tracing

18. Gillis' Brook, the next stream of any size after Mcintosh Brook falling into
East Bay, is the outlet to Gillis' Lake, which lake is fed by streams from both east
and west. After receiving McAdam's Brook, Gillis' Brook cuts through, by a deep
gorge, the westerly portion of the Coxheath Hills, which here run close along the
shore of East Bay. The line must cross the brook just above the junction of McAdam's
Brook. The crossing, though not easy, will not be a formidable one.

19. The Coxheath Hills, though shown on the map as extending along the
northern shores of East Bay, may be said only to commence from Gillis' Brook and
Lake, above which they rise to a much greater elevation than along East Bay. The
connection is by a low ridge, which forms the left bank of Gillis' Brook, and affords an
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exit from the broken up country to the westf on to the south slope of the Coxheatb
Hills, by means of a short cutting of 20 or 30 feet in depth, into the head of the
main feeder oi Fork's Lake.

20. The line here will be able to descend at a less rat© than the maximum
gradient, the level of Fork's Lake being about 2 «0 feet below; the slope of the hill is

gentle and is all cleared and cultivated, but it is a little broken by cross valleys,
which are, however, generally inconsiderable. If found easier, the line could be
taken closer to the lake than shown on the tracing.

21. The outlet to Fork's Lake soon joins the Sydney Eiver, which comes more
immediately from the south, but which rises in and traverses the centre of the East
Bay Hills, away to the south-east. Crossing the valley of the Sydney Eiver the
ground is low and marshy, and broken up with knolls. Below the junction of the
outlet to the lake, the Sydney Eiver is really an inlet of the sea (the tide coming up
to that point) having vary crooked shores, and being in some places very wide,
though with only a depth of 2 feet at the head, increasing gradually, according to
the chart, to about 18 feet at Sydney (orGibbin's) bridge, at the head of the South
Arm. By crossing below the junction the line would be more direct, and though
the approaches might be heavier, one bridge would suffice.

22. For the five or six miles farther inco Sydney, the line will traverse a country
which is broken up by rocky knolls and small ravines, and through which it will
require some care in selection. The best line will probably be found well back from
the river until near Sydney. Before entering the town, the Wentworth Brook, where
there is a wide pond, must be crossed.

23. The length of the u interior " line, from the Grand Narrows to Sydney,
appears to be, as nearly as can be scaled, 35 miles. An instrumental survey will
most probably increase the distance, as the line, at present, can only be approxi-
mately indicated. This route involves (1) a long and heavy gradient at each ead,
attaining an elevation ofabout TOO feet above the sea; (2) traversing nearly half its

length through partly a totally uninhabited and uninhabitable, and partly a very
poorly settled country, while the other halt is throusrh second rate farming lands

; (3)
and, except at Grand Narrows and the head of East Bay, an interval of nearly 25
miles, it will be almost inaccessible to the people on the east side of it.

Interior Route—Branch to North Sydney.

24. Anticipating a difficulty in reaching North Sydney, from the line to Sydney
at a point near the Fork's Lake, past the eastern end of the Coxheath Hills, it

appeared advisable to keep to the north of them, through French Vale. This would
be the most direct route and avoid crossing the numerous streams which fall into the
North West Arm, though there would be a greater length of line to build.

25. The country east of Loon Lake may be compared to a pitchfork, having for
its southern branch, the Coxheath Hills and for its northern, the remainder of the
Boisdale Hills, Free ch Vale lying between. Before descending into French Vale
there lies a short but elevated ridge, culminating in a circular hill, which is probably
the highest point in the whole peninsula. From it a most extensive view of the

, country can be obtained and far out to sea.
26. Below this lies French Vale, flanked on each side by high and rugged hills,

and traversed by several considerable streams, with parallel courses. It was evident
that the line must be taken along the slope of the Boisdale Hills, which trend off to
the north-east, and with this in view I passed over that part of the country. Leav-
ing the main line at a point a little east of Loon Lake, an entrance is made into the
head of a small narrow valley, which opens into French Vale about two miles above
the chapel. The sides of this valle} are precipitous and unfavorable, but no other
route is possible. Thence a sharp turn must be made round the end of the hill, keep-
ing along the slope as the gradient will allow, crossing some ravines, aad the sources
of Leitche's and Limestone Creeks, and continuing on to North Sydney.
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27. Besides the maximum gradient descending tbe line as far as Boach's Lake,
will pass over very rough and rocky ground, and will be at some distance from the
best part of French Yale, which lies along Ball's Brook. Its sole advantage will be
its directness to North Sydney, which can be reached in about 35 miles from the
Grand Narrows. The description of the alternative branch, round the east end of
the Coxheatb Hills, will be given further on (paragraph 47).

Little Bras d'Or Lake Route.— Line to North Sydney {Red Line).

28. As noted in paragraph 5 of this report, I considered it necessary to ascertain
if a less difficult line could be obtained than the "interior" route, which has just
been described. Until my arrival at North Sydney I had supposed that the Boisdale
Hills extended much farther eastwards, which would render it out of the question to
reach North Sydney and Sydney by doubling round them. I found this not to be
tbe case, their eastern extremity being at the month of George River at a point a
short distance east of Long Island. I proceeded th« re from North Sydney, continuing
on as far as the mouth of McLeod Brook. The result of the examination was satis-
factory, but to make the report clearer I will begin ab the Grand JNarrows and follow
along the shore, part of which, as far as Boibdalo, I had gone over before and the
remainder I passed over since.

29. At Cooper's Pond, 1 mile from the Grand Narrows, the line will pass over a
low beach, along which the post road passes, J of a mile in length. It will then
continue on, close to the shore, Christmas Island, passing seawards of the chapel.
Thence for 5 m ; les more it will continue at a greater distance from the water till it
reaches a brook which enters at the western end of what is known as Shenacadie
Harbor. The line for these 8 miles will be very level, passing along a very slight
side slope and requiring very little work (except in from off Cooper's Fond, where
a considerable embankment will be necessary), and with only one or two small
streams to cross. There is a fair and roomy harbor at Shenacadie.

3u. Thence for 1 mile at Shenacadie Harbor tbe work will be somewhat rough
as the ground is hummocky, and it will be necessary to ascend slightly and maintain
a higher level above the post road for a mile or two, to what is marked McLean's
Beach on the map, bat which is known locally as Curry's Beach, descending a little
on the way. Thence keeping a little back from the shore, continuing nearly on a
level and with some slight curvature, the line will pass Beaver's Cove and reach the
chapel at Boisdale, at about 17 miles from the Grand Narrows. Over this section of
9 miles the work will be, if anything, slightly heavier than in the first 8 miles, with
an ascent and descent east of Shenacadie of possibly 75 feet above the water. There
will be a few brooks, large and small, to cross ; three, besides the one at the western
end of Shenacadie Harbor, being of considerable size, viz , one at the eastern end of
the harbor, one at Beaver's Cove, and one at Boindale. Noue of those are, however,
as large as the Benacadie, Indian Brook or Giliis' Brook, nor will the bridges and
approaches require to be nearly as heavy as for them.

31. At Boisdale, it will be a point to determine whether it would be better to
pa*s to the rear of the Glebe House and chapel, which would suit the ground farther
east better than keeping shorewards. Below the chapel there is a pond which it is
said will make an excellent harbor, but it is very small, and an entrance would have
to be made to it. The hillside here is some distance back from the shore, the space
being taken up by long low ridges, with small valleys or depressions between them
and the wooded slope, and which open out east and west to the main stream. All this
is open ground and under cultivation.

32. From about Campbell Brook to the end of the range which lies between the
shore and McLeod Brook, the hills approach near the shore, but, except at Neil Beach,
where a rock spur runs out, there is no difficulty in getting ground enough for the
line; even past the spur it is moderately easy. Over these 5 miles the work may be
said to be slight, though there may be a little side cutting on rock in a few placet?,
whilst the gradients will be slight and the bridges small and few in number.
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33. At the mouth of McLeod Brook will occur the first work of any importance.
This brook is about the same size as Indian Brook, but it ceases to be rapid at some
distance above, where the road crosses by a new bridge of considerable length sup-
ported on piles. This was found probably cheaper than embanked approaches. Below
the bridge is a salt pond or " Barasois," called Long Island Barasois, which is bounded
on the north side by a long tongue of land and separated from the lake by a low
beach and a shallow bar at the south-easterly angle. Advantage might be taken of
these to cross, if found suitable or cheaper, but a better alignment would be obtained
by a crossing near the road bridge.

34. From the Barasois to the mouth of the George Eiver, a distance of about 7
miles, the hillside is steep, and the work will be heavy. For the first 4 miles the
slope, though steep, is less broken up than farther on, where there occur low rocky
ridges, and knolls. A slight gradient will be necessary in order to save work and
distance, and a sharper descent will be necessary to the George Eiver. The brooks
to be crossed are few and small.

35. The George Eiver though farther up a very small stream, at the crossing is

an 2? m of the sea, with high banks and deep water. The entrance is narrow, but the
banks widen out above, while the water deepens from 18 feet at the entrance to 24 a
little way above, and decreasing beyond to the head of the inlet, about a mile higher
up. The bridge here will probably be the largest on the line, except, perhaps, the
crossing of the Sydney Eiver, near Gibbons' Bridge. Owing to the depth of water, a
pier should be avoided, if possible. The span will be not much less than 200 feet,

and the height 60 or 10 feet.

36. The distance from the George Eiver into North Sydney is about 4J miles,
by tbo most direct line, which would cross the sawmill, or Pottle's Lake, a large sheet
of water which lies at an elevation of 60 feet above the sea. Between George Eiver
and the lake, a distance of two miles or so, two ridges and the valley of the Almon
Creek, the outlet to Scotch Lake, must be crossed. The sides of this valley are wide
and sloping, but as the distance is short, and the difference of elevation from 75 to
100 feet, maximum grades and heavy banks and cuttings will be necessary. The
last ridge flattens out to considerable breadth on top, having lost a great deal of
height since leaving the Boisdale Hills, of which it is a spur, near Scotch Lake. At
Pottle's Lake it is about 20 or 30 feet above the water in the lake. As there is an
inland at the proposed crossing of Pottle's Lake, the embankment will be reduced.
Having first thought of bringing the line round the east end of the lake, I did not
examine this point, but I have no doubt that it is feasible, and it will shorten the line
by about half a mile. A descent of about 50 feet in 1J miles will be required into
North Sydney.

Little Bras d'Or Lake Route.—Line between North Sydney and Sydney.

37. The supposed difficulty alluded to in paragraph 24, of passing round the
eastern end of the Coxheath Hills I found did not exist. I explored for a line from
North Sydney to the Sydney Eiver. From the town of North Sydney to the head of
the North-Webt Arm, a distance of about four miles, the easiest route would lie along
the shore. But for nearly three miles, to what is called Upper North Sydney, above
Allen Point, the main road lies close along the shore, and there is a continuous row
of houses, and some fine properties, which would be injured were the line to be taken
above the road. To build it below the road or seawards would entail much expense.
Even along the shore there are places where considerable work would be required.
All things considered, it appeared advisable to take the line out by the rear, which
would avoid cutting through much valuable property and utilize three-fourths of a
mile of the line from the Grand Narrows, while the increased distance, as compared
with the shore line, would only be a quarter of a mile. A net saving of half a mile
of railway would be gained. Between the town and the head of the arm the
gradient would be heavier, the total rise being about 100 feet above the sea.

38. From Leitch's Creek to Ball's Creek, a distance of one mile, the ground near
the sea is nearly flat . At the mouth of each a portion of the sea will require to be
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crossed, about one-eighth of a mile at the former with a depth of 9 feet, and a quarter
of a mile at the latter having a depth of about 12 feet ; the saving in distance would
be about three-fourths of a mile over a line entirely on the land, whilst the alignment
would be better.

39. From Ball's Creek to Sydney Eiver there are two possible routes. The
westerly one, passing along the foot of the Coxheath Hills, will be common to all
three routes for about 4 miles, and will be described further on Beyond the 9th.
mile from North Sydney the line would diverge to the east and cross the Sydney
Eiver, here about 250 to 300 feet wide and 13 feet deep, and joining the line alroady
described in paragraph 22 about 2 miles further on, at a distance of 3 miles from
Sydney, making the total distance from North Sydney about 13J miles, or about 13
miles of additional line.

40. Following the easterly line from Ball's Creek, the shore will require to be
followed for about 1 mile, crossing the mouth of Grant mire Creek; those beginning
to ascend round the hill above the mouth of Watson Creek, the valley of which would
be followed up for another 1J miles, crossing it meanwhile. The height attained
would be under 100 feet. For the next 2 miles the country is a level " barren,"
except for a small depression half way, the head of Crawley Creek. A sharp descent
for about £ of a mile, with some heavy cutting, would bring the line to the Sydney
Eiver, where a large bridge would be necessary, probably with a span of 200 feet,
and approaches. The depth of water, as stated in paragraph 21, is about 18 feet.
Thence another f of a mile would join the line with the other route, on a slight
ascent, a distance of about If miles from Sydney, being 1 mile legs than by the
westerly line, though the approach to the bridge from the left bank is less favorable.

East Bay Route—Main Line to Sydney {Blue Line),

41. Failing to obtain a satisfactory line by the " interior route " to Sydney, a
second examination of the north hhore of Bast Bay, while on my way to Louisburg,
caused me to consider that a more feasible line could be obtained along it. I had
not been favorable to it before as it necessitated a roundabout way to reach East
J3ay by the mouth of the Baoacadie. There were many large streams to cross, and
-the side hill generally was rough and broken. In order that no feasible route to
reach Sydney direct should be overlooked, I have shown approximately by a blue
line where such a line may be found.

42. For about 3 miles from the Grand Narrows the route will be almost identical
with the " interior route," though a lower point in the summit may be obtained before
descending into the Benacadie, thence to the western end of the Eskasoni Eeserve.
I have not been over the ground, but understand it is easy enough round the foot of
the hill, though it may prove longer than shown. It remains to be seen whether
Benacadie Pond can be crossed where shown, or if it will be neceswary to continue
on to the lower end, where a draw-bridge would be required, and by which the line
will probably be lengthened.

43. From the western end of the Indian reserve to McAdam's Point, a length of
about 10 miles, tbe line will be along a slight side slope (which is under cultivation)
except for two miles, one mile, Crane Cove, eaat.of the mouth of Indian Brook, and
the other mile at McDonald Point, east of the MVJntosh Brook, where tbe hillsides
are rocky and precipitous, with scarcely room for the poft road. There are four
brooks to cross, besides minor streams, Indian and Mcintosh'* brooks being large,
and requiring spans of about 100 feet each, with approaches. The line will be nearly
level

.

44. In the next five miles, to the head of East Bay, the line will require to
ascend gradually to an elevation of 100 feet above the water, keeping along the
lower slopes and ridges, away from the shore. The ground is here and there broken
up by cross ravines and small streams, and at the 24th mile, Gillis' Brook will bo
crossed. The crossing will be very wide, and the bridge necessarily high, as the
banks are far apart, and to cross at a lower elevation will necessitate longer ap-
proaches and less favorable ground

.

21



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. <JY.) A. 1886*

45. Front the head of East Bay to one mile east of the crossing of the Sydney
Hiver; where the line joins that of the " interior route," a distance of about six:

miles, the country is favorable, being undulatiDg, and opposite Fork's Lake almost
level. The Sydney Eiver will require a large bridge of 100 feet span, with ap-
proaches. The line, for the remaining distance into Sydney, of six miles, has been
described in paragraph 22.

46. The total length of this line, from the Grand Narrows, will be 36 miles.
Though one mile longer than the " interior route," the line will be much easier to
construct, and, except into the Benacadie, will be nearly level throughout. The
bridging will be heavier. The farms passed through are fewer and poorer than on
the little Bras d'Or Lake.

East Bay Route—Branch to North Sydney.

4V. This line was alluded to in paragraph 27, and except for the mile will be,

throughout, common to the East Bay and " interior " routes. In the first mile, the
outlet to Fork's L.ike, a sma 1 stream, must be crossed. The valley traversed has
been described in paragraph 21. Thence along the foot of the Coxheath Hills, the
line will ascend along an easy slope for about two and a-half miles, taking advantage
of a depression to enter the valley of the first brook, four miles from the junction with
the main line. For one and a-half miles further the country is level, being partly a
" barren," the brook being small, and flowing in narrow gorges. The next one and
a half miles will be a sharp descent of at out 100 feet, to the North-West Arm, at the
mouth of Ball's Brook, along the narrow valley of the Grant-mire Brook, which will

toe crossed on the way.
48. The remainder of the line into North Sydney, about five and a-half miles in

length, has been described in paragraphs 37 and 38. The total length of this branch
will be llf milen, which, added to the 36 miles of the main line, will make a total of

47f, or about two miles more than the total mileage by the " interior route."

Sydney Harbor,

49. This designation applies to the main entrance from the gulf, before branch-
ing off into the North-West and South Arms. Some distance below this junction, on
each side of the harbor, are situated the north-west and south-east bars, inside which
is the harbor proper. Sydney Harbor, I am told is ranked as one of th9 three finest

harbors in the world, the other two being Bio de Janeiro and Sydney, N.S.W. Its

width below the bars is nearly 2 miles, and its depth, along a broad belt in the centre

of the channel, is from 6 to 8 fathoms (36 to 48 leet). The width between the bars

is about 1J miles. 1 have been credibly informed, that not only the shores of the

harbor, but the coast for some disiance north and south is shelving, and not danger-

ous to shipping. That where vessels have run ashore there has been no risk or loss

of life, and that ships in foggy weather have been known to enter the harbor in safety

by simply " heaving the leid."

50. The North-West Arm extends westerly in nearly the same line as the main
entrance, for a distance of about 4 miles from Pt. Edward, and 4J from the north-

west bar, with a nearly uniform width of 1 mile, increasing to lj miles at Point
Edward, and having a depth for nearly its whole breadth of from 6 to 8 iathoms.

The South Arm lies in nearly a southerly direction as far as the town of Sydney, a

distance of about 3 miles above Point Edward, and 4 miles from the south-east bar,

its width being from 1 to 1J miles, and its depth from 7 to 9 fathoms, shelving off

near its shores to 6, 4 and 3. Above Sydney it turns south-westerly for about 2
miles, and contracts rapidly in width to its head at Sydney bridge. At Shingle
Point, opposite the town, it is only half a mile wide.

51. The town of Sydney has just celebrated its centenary. It was the chief town
of the island of Cape Breton before union with Nova Scotia. It is now the shire or

county town of the county of Cape Breton. It has been recently incorporated, and
is said to have a population of about 2,000. It is well situated on a high peninsula,.
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sloping gently to the South Arm, with wide streets and substantial buildings, but it is

not a busy place, and it has a decayed appearance. This is due, it is said, to the
closing down of some of the coal mines to the east, but should they be reopened, it

is probable that the town will be more prosperous. As a summer resort, it can have
few equals, the scenery being exceptionally fine.

52. The town of North Sydney was originally above Allan Point where it is

now called Upper North Sydney. The former manager of the Sydney mines (which
belong to the General Mining Association), Mr. Smith, intended to take the railway
from the mines to Allan Point, as being more sheltered than nearer the bar. His
successor, the late Mr. Brown, determined on the present loading ground, where the
association's pier has since been built, and a new town has sprung up in the neigh-
boihood, in the last twenty-five or thirty years, to which the name of North Sydney
has been transferred. The town consists of one principal street about one mile in

length, close to the water, with some small streets and lanes in the rear, though for

another mile up and down along the main road, houses continue at intervals. North
Sydney is a bustliDg place, doing a considerable business as a market town and ship-

ping port. Its population is about equal to that oi Sydney, and it also has just been
incorporated.

53. Between the two places, seven miles apart by water and double that distance
by land, there is, apparently, considerable rivalry, but each place has its own advan-
tages. The harbor at North Sydney is said to remain open for three weeks longer
than at Sydney, and to be free from ice three weeks earlier. Toe ice at North
Sydney is drift ice from the Grulf, and the North-West Arm does not freeze over
solidly much below Allan Point, whilst the South Arm is nearly all frozen over the
whole winter. The harbor at North Sydney is said to close about the middle of
January, and to open about the middle of May, a period of four months. The South
Arm affords complete shelter for shipping, and is more frequented by men of war,
both British and foreign, probably owing to its former position, and the residents of
the consuls. North Sydney, being nearer the entrar ce, is moro visited by mercantile
shipping, and though not so sheltered as the South Arm, is sufficiently safe. In the
late severe gales on the 23rd September last, which was, however, not from the worst
direction, viz. : the north-east, bat from the south west, I noted that the vessels at

anchor and at the wharves rode out the fierce hurricane without straining. The
-Department of Public Works contemplates extending the pier at the north-west bar
which will be a further protection. A small ferry steamboat plies three times a day
between North Sydney and Sydney.

54. The point I have selected for the terminus and landing pier at North Sydney is

what is known as the " ballast ground." For many years vessels have here discharged
their ballast, till an immense quantity has accumulated over a considerable area.

This area has been marked off, and, I am informed, belongs to the Department of
Marine and Fisheries. Allan Point was suggested as a suitable terminus, but it is too

jar away from the town and harbor, and remains closed with ice while the ballast

ground area is open as long as the rest of the harbor. The depth, close by the outer

edge of the ballast heap, is thirty feet. Not only will the ballast ground serve for a
landing pier, but it will afford room for a station and siding. As the main street iu

the middle of the town passes close by the inner edge of the ballast ground, this will

"be the most convenient place for the townspeople and the line. Grossing the towu at

its narrowest part will cause scarcely any interference with buildings or property. I

am indebted to several of the principal men of business in North Sydney for informa-

tion and for opportunities for seeing for myself the main features of the harbor, and
to Mr. Geo. H. Dobson, secretary to the Board of Harbor Commissioners, for allow-

ing me to make tracings of the harbor plans.
55. Owing to Sydney being approachable only at one end, it appeared to me

that the exact position for the terminus might be left for future^ selection, as this

will not affect the position of the line coming into the town. Opposite the entrarce

to the town, the centre of the channel will have to be reached before very deep
"water (7 fathoms) is found ; close to the shore it is only 3. There is not room to
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ourvo out into a pier running out directly from the shore, though one might be nm
out at a slight angle. The Sydney and Louisburg (narrow gauge) .Railway crosses
the end of the town, about one-quarter of a mile beyond Wentworth Creek, and runs
out on a long and elevated pier to deep water. It might be advisable to continue
the line for another mile across the Louisburg Eailway, round by the rear of the
town to the farther end, and run out where there appears to be deep water (7 fathoms)
close to the shore, as indicated by the red dotted line.

56. Sydney Harbor is much frequented by vessels of all kinds, calling for" orders .

" It is easy of approach and entrance, and is spacious. Outside the bars
there is free anchorage ground, and at both Sydney and North Sydney there is direct
telegraph communication with all parts of the world. Its geographical position is
convenient as a port-of-call for vessels passing up and down the Gulf of St. Lawrence.
Being in the middle of the great coal fields of Cape Breton, it is their natural ship-
ping port, and one of the greatest coaling stations on the continent. The sole draw-
back is its being closed with ice for one-third of the year.

Comparison of the Routes,

57. I have described the different routes in much detail, with the object of pos-
sibly enabling a decision to be arrived at, as to the best route, without undertaking
an instrumental survey of each, the total mileage of which would amount to about
130 miles. In paragraph 5 I have explained the necessity for considering more than
one route. I will now proceed to state their different merits.

58. If it is desired to reach Sydney with as direct a line as possible, the
"interior route" will prove the shortest in distance. Its heavy gradients, and the
character of the country through which it passes, almost precludes it from further
consideration, especially in view of a much better line being obtained, with scarcely
any gradients, and not more than a mile or so longer, along the north shore of East
Bay.

59. This latter route, though perhaps most convenient for Sydney, will be very
circuitous for North Sydney, the distance to the latter place from the Grand Narrows
being about 41J miles. By the " interior route " and Ooxheath Branch, North Sydney
would be reached in 40J miles, and by the French Yale Branch in 35 miles, a saving in
distance of 5J miles, but an increase of 5J miles of line ; the whole length of 13J miles
being of a heavier character, and having a steep gradient, which latter condition,
however, is not an entirely additional disadvantage, as the traffic would otherwise
have to pass over the gradient on the main line.

60. The Bast Bay route, besides being very direct to Sydney, might also prove
the most direct to Louisburg, by the central route (vid Grand Narrows), provided
the country lying between the head of East Bay and Louisburg will afford a direct
and practicable line. It will also be convenient for the people along the south shore
of East Bay and settlements on the Grand Mira and Salmon .River. These are, how-
ever, not of great extent, nor are the farms of the first order.

61. Oo the other band, the little Bras d'OrLake route, throughout its whole
length, except a few miles opposite Long Island, passes through the finest farms
probably in the country. It lies only from three to four miles across the water from
the island of Boularderie, which is said to possess some of the finest farms in the
whole island of Cape Breton. Directly opposite, seven miles distant, is Baddeok, the
county town of Victoria, and the outlet for tho finest agricultural district in Cape
Breton—Margaree, with stations at Shenacadie, Boisdale and George Eiver, where
there are landing places, except for a week or two in the spring, and early part of
winter; these will be easy communication by water, and on the ice with BouUrderie
and Baddeck. The few farmers on the north side of East B ly and in the interior
will not have more than five to ten miles to reach Boisdale, the most of the way-
being down hill, while those on the southern shore of East Bay will reach the rail-
way at Sydney by the St. Peter's post road.

62. As before stated, the alignment and gradients on this latter route are most
favorable and the work generally light. It is the shortest distance to North Sydney,
viz., 33J miles, the additional distance to Svdney being 12J miles, making a total of
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46 miles, or 10 miles longer than by the Bast Bay route, while by it the distance to

North Sydney is 41J miles, or 8J miles longer than by the lake route. It would

appear that the distances are nearly equal taken as a whole, the point resting

chiefly on the comparative importance of the northerly or southerly districts.

63. Without desiring to suggest impossibilities I would wish to state that per-

haps three-quarters of a mile of line, and a large bridge at the George River, might

be saved by a tunnel through a narrow part of the ridge opposite Long Island, at

McDonald Brook. This tunnel would be certainly under one-half a mile in length.

Also, a much heavier work, but saving a greater mileage, viz., 5 miles between.

North Sydney and Sydney, by following the shore to Allan Point, thence crossing

the North-West Arm to Dixon Point, and crossing the South Arm into Sydney.

Though of great length and depth, the necessary embankments would save fivo

bridges, and the embankments at Bail's and Leitch's Creeks, while the bridge*

required to be built would not have to be in the deepest water, or to allow a passage

for vessels. The North-West Arm is a mile wide, and from 40 to 50 feet deep, the

South Arm being one half a mile wide, and 30 feet deep in the centre. The distance

to Sydney by the lake route would be reduced to 40J miles, or only 4J miles

longer than by the East Bay route.

64. In conclusion, a continuous line of railway is more satisfactorily and econo

nomically worked than a main line and a number of branches, especially if they are

short. Even by the East Bay route, with branches to North Sydney to Louisburg, it

would be found necessary to run into Sydney before proceeding to either place, so

that running expenses would not be saved, and a greater length of railway would

require to be built for the sole object of express train accommodation. I append a

comparative statement of distances.

I am, Sir, yours faithfully,

P. K. HYJSDMAN, M.I.G.E., Central Route Exploration.

H. F. Donken, Esq.,

Engineer-in-Charge, Cape Breton (Govt.) Railway Surveys, Mira River.

CENTRAL ROUTE EXPLORATION.
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF MILEAGES.

•

Mileage.

Route.

To Sydney.

To North Sydney.

Total
oi Railway.

Remarks.

Length of
Branch.

Total.

Interior.

36 Heavy maximum gradientauj

Branch :—
Vt& French Vale .... 17

llf

11|

I2f
7

35
40}

41*

33}

52

46|

}""m

Barren country.
Heavy gradient.

FaaCoxheath

East Bay.

36

"••M "

47
46
40}

Easy gradient.

Branch :

—

FiaCoxheath

Little Bras d'Or
Lake.

Main line

Extension :—
Westerly line ....

Heavy work. Country
second rate.

First-class farms.

31
Easy gradients. Work gen-

erally light, except at

Crossing the arms. - George River.

•*

R. .K. HYND MAN, M. L G. m.
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GRAND NARROWS EXPLORATION.

Grand Narrows, O.B., 3rd October, 1885.

Sir,— I beg to enclose herewith a tracing of a plan and chart of the Straits of
JBarra, or Grand Narrows, which connect the waters of the Great and Little Bras
d'Or Lakes, and to report the result of my survey and examination of the same.

2. My instructions were to select suitable sites for crossing the strait by a high
or a low level bridge, or by a steam ferry.

3. Por a low le?el bridge, it is at once apparent that the crossing indicated by
the red dotted line, viz., between the two gravelly points (Kelly Point and Uniacke
Point) is the only suitable site. It is easy of approach from both directions; the
gravelly points will afford good foundation for an embankment ; it gives the least
distance from shore to shore ; and lastly, which is most important, the depth of
water is less there than anywhere else in the strait.

4. For a high bridge, if it is to be a combination of bridge and viaduct, the
shortest distance between the required heights would be important. The most west-
erly line of soundings will answer that requirement, but the great depth of water, as
shown by the soundings, would be prohibitive. The same may be said of the central
line of soundings, which attain almost the same depth, and both more than double
the depth between the points, where the distance between the high level points doesv
not much exceed that on the central or westerly lines. The necessary foundations
for the piers of the viaduct approaches to the bridge would be much less costly in
the gravel than in the water. Should the approaches be embanked, the line between
the points will be as suitable for a high level as for a low level bridge.

5. Por a steam ferry it is probable that the best route would be between the two
wharves which would be easily accessible. On the north side, a short reverse line
would be necessary. On the south side the line could start away easterly at once.
.Ifaar the present wharves will be found sufficiently deep water.

6. The bottom between the joints is, as will be seen, remarkbly level, east and
west, as well as north and south and it slopes somewhat steeply up to the shore. It
is very hard, and consists probably of rock and large boulders.

1. I have had a tide gauge fixed in the inner angle of the south wharf, and daily
observations have been recoided from this for nearly a fortnight. I append a copy
of the records which indicate a fluctuation of from 1*40 feet to 2*00 feet on the gauge
(except on the day after the great gale of the 23rd ultimo) or a mean of 110 feet.A bench mark at the corner of Mr. £. A. McNeil's store is 3-92 feet above the zero
of the gauge. A greater fluctuation will take place from wind especially if it pre-
vails for a day or longer. The greatest rise above the usual level, due to the sever-
est gale, has been under 3 feet. The current between the points is said to be about
three or Jour knots.

8. Except during a very severe winter, it is said the ice is never fast, but floats
•with the tide. The thickness ot the ice is generally about 3 feet. It begins to
form about the middle of January, and disappears below the surface about the first

week oi May. The period ol the greatest quantity of ice is in February, where it

attains fcmetimes 6 feet in thickness. It is iormed in the coves, the result of the
ordinary drift ice being piled up. It afterwards cracks and moves out with the
Wind and is carried backwards and forwards in laiger or smaller blocks, several
Jmndrcd feet in length and breadth.

9. The shipping passing through the Narrows consists principally of fishing
schooners* which come from the east to fish in the great Bras d'Or Lake, and coasting
vessels, all of which pass on through the canal at St. Peter's. On some days as many
*s sixty or seventy have passed backwards and forwards. The season of navigation
is from the midole of May to the end of December, There is a line of steamboats
running each way every second day, between Sydney and Port Mulgrave
through the canal, besides occasional steamboats belonging to the same company-
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which ply between ports in the two Bras d'Or Lakes. The steamship " St. Pierre,"

of the Anglo-French and American Company, makes fortnightly trips through the

lakes between Halifax and Miquelon.

I am, Sir, yours faithfully,

P. K. HY.NDMAN, Central Route Exploration.

H. F. Donken, Esq.,
Engineer in Charge Cape Breton (Government) Railway Surveys, St. Peter s, G.iV

CAPE BRETON (GOVERNMENT) RAILWAY SURVEYS.

CENTRAL ROUTE—GRAND NARROWS.
Tidb Gauge Readings.

Gauge fixed at South Wharf—Inner Angle—Zero of Gauge 3-92 below B.M. at Store*

Date.

Sept., 1885.

Monday, 21st.

Tuesday, 22nd...

Hour.

4.30
6.30

7.00
8.00
9.30
10.30
11.45

Wednesday, 23rd

Thursday, 24th.

.

12.30
2-00
3.45
4.35
6.20
8.30

1'20
4-10
5-00
6-15

7.00
10.30
11.45

1.30
3.40
8.30

Friday, 25th 7*00
9-45
11-35

Saturday, 26th...

Monday, 28th....

Tuesday, 29th ...

Wednesday, 30th

1.40
5.00
7.00

6.00
7.00
8.00
11*40

2.00
3.00
6.30

7.00
10.00

4.00
8.00
9.00
10.00

"Too
10.10

4.00

T55

o
a
o .

'.J3 a?

Q

1-85
1-80

160
1-65
1-70
1-75
1'80

182
1-75

160
1 50
1-40

150
1-70

2-C0
1-80
1-70
1-65
2'10

2 20
2-30
2-40
2*10
1-90
1-70
1-80
2-00
1-95
1-75
1-60
1-60
1-55
1-60

T75
1-80

T75
1-40
1-60
1-55
1-80
1-65
1-60
1-55

T90
1-70
1-60
1-80

East
do
West....
do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

East
do
do
do
do
West....
do ...

East......

do
do
West....
do ...

do ...

do ...

East.....

do
West....
do ...

do ...

East....

do
do

West....
do ...

do ...

do ...

East
do ....

do
do
OhaDge.
West....
East
do
do

West....
East
West....

South-west.
do
do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

South
do
do

Intensity.

Pleasant breeze.

do
Strong breeze....

do
do
do
do
do
do

South.,
West..
do ..

do .

North-east

.

do ..

do ..

do ..

do
do ..

do ..

do ..

South
do

North-west
do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

East

Strong breeze..

do
do

High wind
do
do

Remarks.

Cloudy.
Heavy sea running,

do

High wind.
Strong.. ...

do
do

Squally.

East,
do.,
do.,
do ..

do.,
do.,
do..

Strong....
do «...

do
do
do
do

Moderate.
do .,

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

Rain.

Rough sea.

With rain.

Squally, with rain.

Calm
Fresh breeze,

do
do
do
do
do
do Rain.
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CAPE BRETON (GOVERNMENT) RAILWAY SVRYEYS-Goncluded.

Date.

Oct , 1885.

Thursday, 1st ..

Hour.

Friday, 2nd.

^Saturday, 3rd....

I AM.

7.30

P.M.

1.10
5.00
6.00

"
7 : 6'6

10.40

8.00

1 00
2.15
8 00

8.00
11.10

1.30
7.05

bog,

go

2-00
1-80

1 90
1-95

190
1-80

1 65
1*50
1-45
1-60
1-70
1-50
1-40
1-55

East..,

West-
do .

do .

East..,

do ....

do ...

do ....

do ....

West-
East...

do ....

do ....

West..

U
£

South ,

East..
do ....

East.
do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do ..

do.,
do ..

do.,
do..

Intensity.

Pleasant breeze.

Calm

Remarks.

Misty.

Thick fog.

CAPE BRETON RAILWAY—

P. K. HYNDMAN,
Central Route Exploration.

CENTRAL ROUTE—ICE AT THE . GRAND
NARROWS.

Ottawa, 4th May, 1886.

- r
Sla>T"With reference to the above subject I have the honor to forward, for your

information, copy of a letter, of to-day's date, from Mr. H. F. McDoagall, M.P. for
the County of Cape Breton, as requested by him, and to explain the discrepancies,
apparent and actual, between the statements made therein and those given by me in
paragraph 8 of my report, dated 3rd October last, to Mr. H. F. Donken, Engineer-in-
charge, Cape Breton Railway surveys.

2. For facility of reference I herewith transcribe that paragraph in full.

- .
1* Ice-—8. Excepting during a very severe winter, it is said, the ice is never fast

but floats with the tide. The thickness of the ice is generally about 3 feet. It
begins to form about the middle of January and disappears below the surface about
the first week in May. The period of the greatest quantity of ice is in February,
when it attains sometimes 6 feet in thickness. It is formed in the coves, the result
of the drift ice being piled up. It afterwards cracks and moves out with the wind,
and is carried backwards and forwards in larger or smaller blocks, several hundred
feet in length and breadth."

3. Last summer baing my first and only visit to Cape Breton I had, necessarily,
to obtain the required information from residents. My principal informant was Mr.
Edward A. McNeil, the merchant at the south side of the Grand Narrows, who had
lived there for the last eight years I put my questions to him in detail, which he
answered, and where a simple reply was insufficient I requested him to describe the
point more fully. After writing down the substance of his information I read it out
to him, asking him if it was correct, to which he replied in the affirmative.

4. In an interview previous to my leaving Cape Breton with Mr. McDougali,
Mr. Donken being also present, the question of the ice at the Grand Narrows was
referred to, and Mr. McDougall stated that from his knowledge the ice never attained
the thickness given in my report, and requested that this should be made clear to the
Department. Mr. Donken, I understand, on arrival with his survey at the Grand

28



19 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 67.) A. 188&

Narrows, enquired again of Mr. McNeil, and also of the ferrymen and mail drivers*

and has given the result of the information obtained in his report.

5. Mr. McNeil has said that I must have misunderstood him. I am quite certain

ihat I did not, and that what I wrote in paragraph 8 was exactly what he told me.
[ remember the occasion very distinctly, and referring to my original draft I find

that I wrote, sometime previously, the first half of the paragraph as far as " quantity
ot ice is," leaving blank spaces for thickness and times, and that I wrote the word
14 inches " for the thickness. Owing to Mr. McNeil's information I drew my pen
through " inches " and wrote " three feet," and filled in the other spaces with the
times. I then added, from his description, the remainder of the paragraph, the last

sentence of which, I may say, explains how the ice attains the thiokness of 6* feet. I
bo understood it, and not as would appear from Mr. MoDougall's letter, that 6 feet

was the thickness of the originally formed ice.

6. Mr. McDougall says that this original ice is never thicker than 1 foot. This
s the only actual discrepancy between his knowledge and the information obtained

>y me. Further on, Mr. McDougall admits a possibility of there being a thickness
rf 6 feet from the piling up of the ice on the shore, which is exactly what I have
Bated.

7. Mr. Donken has told me that he was informed that outside the Narrows the
ce might form to a thickness of 3 feet, but there was no permanent ice in the Nar-
rows and for some distance east and west, the current keeping it moving. Mr,
McDougall says with reference to the piled up ice, that it is not formed in the imme-
diate neighborhood of the crossing. In obtaining the information from Mr. McNeil,
I distinctly questioned him as to the ice in the Narrows, and if the thickness of 3
feet and the moving out of the piled-up ice had reference to the lake waters on each
side, the information would have been irrelevant.

8. I remember being informed, I think by Mr. McNeil and other parties, that
once an Indian had succeeded in getting across the Narrows between the points on
the ice, but that usually there was only floating ice. It is most likely that when the
piled-up ice floats out, it is in a very rotten condition. From Mr. Donken's informa-
tion, ice does form to a thickness of 3 feet in the lakes, and some of it may possibly

break off and float backwards and forwards through the Narrows.
9. In obtaining my information from Mr. McNeil, I contend his constant resi-

dence there for eight years, his experience as a mariner, and his intelligence, were a
Sufficient guarantee for correct information. Mr. McDougalPs letter is a most valu-

ble addition to the facts relating to this very important subject. I hope that any
oubt or misapprehension may now be fully cleared up, as I understand it would be
when the final reports of the surveys were sent in.

10. In conclusion, I would observe that the information required on physical
points, in cases where it is contemplated to erect great engineering structures,

should embrace the most unfavorable circumstances, if even of only occasional occur-
rence, as well as those which take place ordinarily, and this principle I had in view
in putting my questions,

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
P. K. HYNDMAN,

Lately on Exploratory Duty, Gape Breton Railway Surveys,

To the Chief Engineer Canadian Government Railways, Ottawa.

Copy of a letterfrom H. F. McDougall, Esq., M.P.

" House op Commons, Ottawa, 4th May, 1886.

" Dear Sir,—You will remember that when discussing the subject of the Grand
Narrows crossing with you before leaving Cape Breton last fall, I learned from you
that acting on information received from Mr. McNeil, you reported to the Depart-
ment of Railways that the ice in the Grand Narrows attained a thickness of some &
feet at certain periods in the winter. I subsequently called Mr. McNeil's attention to
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this, and he told me that you could not have possibly understood him, as no permanent
ice forming at or near the Grand Narrows scarcely ever exceeds one foot in thickness,
and at the crossing points in the Narrows there is seldom any ice at all ; none, how'
ever, to impede regular crossing with an open boat during any period iu the winter.
The only reference which Mr McNeil or any other person could have made to ice
forming a thickness of 6 feet is, that in some parts of the lake when the ice is broken
the force of strong winds would cause such ice to bo piled up in a crumbled form on
the shore to a height or thickness of 6 feet, but does not apply to the immediate
points at which the crossing is made. I can only refer you for corroboration of these
facts to the ferrymen of forty yearV experience on both sides of the Narrows. I might
further add that the mails from Port Hastings for North Sydney have been crossed
over the Grand Narrows in an open row boat during the last two winters every night
(excepting Sunday), and although the winter of 1885 was an exceptionally severe
winter the service had been accomplished without a single interruption by ice since
first established. The same may be said with regard to the mail service performed
across the ferry for a period of some fifteen or twenty years in day time, previous
to the establishing the present night service in connection with the mail to and from
North Sydney. And I trust you will be pleased to represent this matter to the
Department in conjunction with your former report, if you have not done so already.

" I beg to remain, Sir, your obedient servant,

"EL P. McDOUGALL.
"P. K. Hyndman, Esq., Civil Engineer, &c."

Ottawa, 4th May, 1886.

True copy.

P. K. Hyndman.

CAPE BRETON RAILWAY—ROUTE TO SYDNEY, VIA ST. PETER'S AND
THE SOUTH SIDE OP EAST BAY.

Ottawa, 1st March, 1886

.

Sir,—Tn accordance with instructions received from Mr. H. F. Donken, Engineer
in Charge of Cape Breton Railway Surveys, I examined the south side of East Bay,
between the 7th and 11th December last, with a view to its practicability for a line
of railway to reach Sydney from the Straits of Canso, without requiring to cross the
Grand Narrows. I have now the honor to submit herewith a report of that exami-
nation, together with a tracing exhibiting the topography oi that part of the country.

2. As, in previous reports, I have described the ground from west to east, I will
do so in this report, though I pass over it in the opposite direction. Starting from
a point on the line recently surveyed from the Straits of Canso to Louisburg, about
If miles east of St. Peter's Canal, the line will follow the easterly side of St. Peter's
Inlet, and tha south side of East Bay to the head of the Bay, a short distance east of
which it will join in with the line also recently surveyed for the " central route I
from Sydney to the Grand Narrows, along the north side of East Bay. Throughout
its whole length it is very near the St. Peter's and Sydney post road.

3. The route may be conveniently divided into two sections : the westerly,
between St. Peter's and Red Islands Settlement ; and the easterly, from Red Islands
to the head of East Bay. The westerly section crossing the ends of the high spurs
forming the western extremity of the East Bay hills, necessitates a very tortuous and
undulating line, while the easterly section, lying at the foot of the northern slope of
the same range, will allow of a much straighter and more level line.

4. Prom St. Peter's (starting point) to Red Islands is about 16 miles, and thence
to the junction with the " centraL route " near the head of East Bay, 28J miles more;
altogether, 44J miles. By the Louisburg Hue, the distance from the Straits of Canso
to St. Peter's Canal is 28f miles, and to the starting point, 29f miles. From the
junction at the head of Ea3t Baj, the distance to the terminus at Sydney (Battery
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Point) is 11 miles, the total (approximate) distance from Point Tup per, Straits of
Canso, to Battery Point, Sydney, being thus 85J miles, which may be shortened to

83J miles.

Westerly Section.

5. From the starting point to Soldier's Cove, a distance of eight miles, the line
would not require to rise and fall very much. At Lynch Creek, the west side of
Campbell Hill is very precipitous for a short distance, involving very heavy rock
work. The rest of the hill will be side-hill work; two pmall creeks are crossed,
whh sharp curves, and a ridge of moderate height, till Salmon Creek, a small inlet, is
reached at the chapel. Into this inlot flow several small streams frorn different
directions, forming a wide vale with gentle slopes. The line thence will follow on a
steep gradient the easterly stream, up a narrow valley, to its head on the southerly
bourdary of the Indian reserve. Thence, descending along a side hill across the
southeasterly corner of the Indian reserve, it emerges through a depression into
Soldier's Cove. From thiV point an alternative line, as shown by the dotted red line
on the map, will be shorter by half a mile than following the hill sides, bat will
involve a high embankment of considerable length. The hillsides are here of
moderate slopes.

6. Between Soldier's Cove and Hay Cove the country is very rough and broken.
The Post Road passes over the hills, and down into a low ground formed by Mc^Tab
<}reek and the River Tom, two streams of considerable size. The line must keep by
the shore for three miles to McNab Creek Inlet, the hillside being favorable but
rather steep. Thence either the inlet, which is nearly a quarter of a mile in breadth,
must be crossed, or a great sweep of two miles must be made to hea t it round, adding
a little more than one mile to the length of the line, and requiring heavy work and
sharp curves, crossing McNab Creek and the River Tom, and keeping along a side
hill into the head of Hay Cove. Here the ground is more level, with room for a farm
or two

; thence, on to Red Islands settlement, about two miles, there are a few low
spurs running down to the water, which will not involve very neavy work.

Easterly Section,

7. The distance from Red Islands to Irish Cove is about 5 miles. As shown by
a dotted line, a small saving in distance—say a furlong—may be made by crossing
an inlet at the school house. Thence to the chapel the ground is undulating.
Between this and Irish Cove the post road rises and falls very much, passing over, at
a considerable height, a succession of rocky spurs. Here the line must be kept close
along the shore, leaving it suddenly when approaching Irish Cove, where the high
ground recedes. The slopes here are moderate, and are all cleared, with a small
settlement.

8. For the next 5 miles, to Middle Cape, the ground is more favorable, though ail
the way a more or less steep and rocky hill-side obtains. There are a few c^oss
ravines, and at Cape Rhumore the line will follow the shore by the old road. . The
present road winds up a steep valley, and descends another. From Middle Cape to
Big Pond, another 5 miles, there is much more flattish ground, though some gradients
will be required, especially approaching Big Pond, Here, Breac Brook, a large
stream, will be crossed. Its banks are rough and broken, and heavy work will be
required.

9. From Big Pond to East Bay chapel, a distance of 10J miles, the line nust
pass along a steep rocky face for the greater part of the way. Round Porphyry
Point, a great deal of blasting and possibly a short tunnel will be necessary, the turn
being very sharp. At Ben Eoinn, for two miles, the slope is almost precipitous,
though not broken by ravines. Beyond this, to the chapel, 4J mile-*, the ground is
very much broken, with flat spaces, low rocky spurs, and outlying ridges, requiring
much work, and heavy short gradients. The only stream of. any sizd is at Grillis'

Mill. From the chapel to the junction with the recently surveyed line from
31
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Sydney to the Grand Narrows, a distance of about 3 miles, the ground is favorable,
but a slight descent must be made into the low depression east of the head of the bay!

10. The character of the country into the town of Sydney, 10 miles distant, has
been described in a former report of 22nd October last, in paragraphs 22 and 45.
Moreover, an instrumental survey of it having been made, the plans will give all*
necessary information.

11. On the whole, the route in itself cannot be considered a favorable one, owing
to its natural features, which have been described in detail. In the report of 22nd
October last, the East Bay route (on the north side of the bay) was described as
somewhat unfavorable, involving considerable work. Its subsequent instrumental
survey, it is understood, has fully borne this out. But the south side of the bay,
having similar features, is much less favorable for railway construction than the
opposite side. The hill-sides are steep and rocky, and in many places precipitous,
while on the north side the slopes are easy, and the ground, to a great extent, culti-
vated, showing less rock. As may be supposed, the farms on the south side are few
and miserable.

12. The sole recommendation of this route would appear to be, to reach the
town of Sydney, and Sydney Harbor, by avoiding the crossing of the Grand
Narrows.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
P. K. HYNDMAN,

M. I. C. JS.y on Exploratory Duty, Cape Breton Railway Surveys.

P.S.—I have omitted to mention that a suggestion was made to me by Rev-
Father McDougall, of Bed Islands, to cross St. Peter's Inlet at the Narrows, near
Sandy's Point, and thus avoid Campbell Hill. I was not able to go over the ground,
but the proposal is worthy of consideration should this route be adopted. By join-
ing the Louisburg line at St. Peter's village, a saving in distance of £ of a mile
would be gained. By a junction further west near the mouth of the River Tillard,
there would be a saving of 1J miles. Shortest distance to Sydney, 82 miles.

m „ P. K. HYNDMAN.
The Chief Engineer, Canadian Government Railways, Ottawa.

CAPE BRETON RAILWAY.—PROPOSED BRANCH TO ARICHAT.—FROM
THE LOUISBURG LINE.

Ottawa, 18th May, 1886.

Sir,—I have the honor to submit, herewith, a tracing and report of an explora-
tion made by me during the 16th to the 18th December last, for a branch line of
railway to Arichat, the county town of Richmond, and which is situated on the
southern shore oi Isle Madame.

2. This island is separated from Cape Breton by a strait, called Lennox Passage,
which is about 15 miles in length, varying in width from J to 1 mile, and having a
depth of from 20 to 60 feet. It is the highway of steamers passing from the Straits
of Canso through the Bras d'Or Lakes, and is used by numerous fishing vessels.
The rise and fall of the tide is from 5 to 6 feet, and the current runs about 3 knots an
hour. The passage is generally frozen over during the winter, the ice forming
about one foot thick. In the spring, witji a west wind, drift ice from the Gull and the
Straits of Canso will fill up the passage.

3. There is a ferry at Grand Digne, where the passage is only f of a mile wide..
There was formerly a steam ferry, which was burnt, and the only means of crossing
at present is in an old scow. The steamers touch at Lennox Ferry, on Isle Madame,
opposite Grand Digne. From this point there is an excellent road to Arichat, distant
7 miles across tne Island. During fine weather passengers are taken in an open boat,
from St. Peter's to D'Escousse 7 miles. It is 7 miles farther by road to Arichat.

4. At Burnt Islands, about 3 miles west of Grand DigDe Ferry, there are two
islands, viz., Burnt Island and Benoit Island, lying across the middle of the passage,.
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which is here £ of a mile wide. The deepest water is between Burnt Island and Burnt
Point, on the Cape Breton coast, the width across being about 800 feet. Between
Burnt and Benoit Islands the channel is not so deep, and between the latter island and
the south shore, it is uncovered at low water. This place has, therefore, been pro-
posed for many years as a suitable site for a bridge to connect Isle Madame with
Cape Breton. I took soundings on the 16th December, between Burnt Point and
Burnt Island, and between Burnt and Benoit Islands. The depth at full tide, for
about 300 feet in the centre of the northern channel is 30 feet, lessening gradually
towards each shore. Between the Islands, a width of about 600 feet, the greatest
depth was found to be 18 feet in one spot. Elsewhere in mid-channel, the depth is
from 9 to 12 feet. From Benoit Island to the south shore, the width is only 200 or
300 feet

5. The crossing at Burnt Island being an obligatory point, the country to the
north was examined as far as the recently surveyed line between the Straits of Oanso
and Louisburg. Had it been feasible, a north-westerly direction, towards White Lake,
would have been of advantage, as making the distance to Port Hawkesbury shorter'
or in a direction at right angles to the Louisburg line, as giving the shortest length
of branch line. The country did not admit of this, as it presents a series of parallel
ridges and valleys lying across the desired route. The line must be taken from Burnt
Point, close along the west and north sides of Seal Cove, to the settlement of Barasois,
St. Louis. Thence the outlet of Shola Lake can be followed, and the west side of the
lake northerly, to a point on the Louisburg line, at Mcpherson's and near to where
the road to Grand Digne Perry branches off from the St. Peter's Pots Eoad, being
about 16J miles from the Straits of Canso. The distance from the proposed junction
to Burnt Point is about 3$ miles. The work and gradients over this portion will
probably be light.

6. Before passing over the proposed route from the bridge site to Arichat, a
short description of Isle Madame will be given. The island is from twelve to six
miles across from east to west, and six miles from Lennox Passage to Arichat Har-
bor, with a small peninsula to the south-east, and the small island of Petitdegrat
beyond.

^
Janvrin Island lies to the north-west. The country is in general barren

there being very little farming. No part attains a greater elevation above the sea'
than 250 feet, but it is far from being level. The centre of the island is occupied by
Grand Lake, a large sheet of water about 2J miles in length from east to west. Shaw
Lake is to the east of Grand Lake, and is one mile in length. From the passage to
Arichat^the, surface consists of a succession of long continuous ridges and depres-
sions, lying east and west across the entire island. Immediately above the town of
Arichat, the ridge is 100 feet high. The western side of the island is much indented,
and affords some excellent land locked harbors which are frequented by fishing
vessels. Port Royal and West Arichat are two villages situated on these harbors,
and through them is the only means of approach for a railway to Arichat itself.
From Port Royal, southerly, the ridges have terminated before reaching the water,
but northerly, to the bridge site, there are three which extend farther to the west-
ward. D'Escousse, in the north-east, is another village. The population of the
island is about 6,000, and is chiefly engaged in fishing.

Y. Starting from Benoit Point opposite Burnt Islands the first ridge must be
crossed in a side long direction, both ascending and descending at a height of 40 or
o0 feet above the water. The depression leading into Martinique Cove is next
crossed and advantage taken of a dip in the second ridge, through which the road
from Martinique to Port Royal passes, to reach the next valley. This is wider than
the last, and the line must be taken more westerly along its southerly slope, in order
to double round the end of the third ridge, from which a descent must be made to
Port Royal. This portion of the route is about 3f miles, and will be heaviest in
gradients, and, except near Arichat, in work.

^ -a \ At
-iFu

rt Ro^l
y
the head of Le Blanc Harbor (across which there is a road

bridge) will be crossed, and a direct course, over nearly level ground, taken to West
Arichat, a distance of 1£ miles. Here a small inlet must be crossed, and the line

676—3 33
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will charge its direction from southerly to easterly, approaching the western end of
Arichat Harbor. Up to the outlet of the chain of small ponds, one mile heyond
West Arichat, the ground is slightly undulating, and the work will be very light.

9. Thence to Arichat, the line must be kept a short distance back from the
water's edge, taking advantage Of some depressions and hollows amongst the numer-
ous rock knolls here met with for a distance of one mile. The line will then pass,

by a deep cutting, in front of the Glebe House and under the cross street leading to

the chapel and convent, and in the rear of some dwelling houses beyond, when it

will reach Main street a little east of the hotel. Crossing the street at an acute
angle, the line will follow the slope between the street and the water's edge until

it reaches the post office, where it is proposed to terminate it on a landing pier. In
this approach, the line will pass to the rear of all the wharves and the main street,

and very little private property is interfered with.

10. The harbor of Arichat is completely land locked, with two entrances, and
is deep and capacious. The upper end of it, east of Kavanagh Point, is one mile

long, from one-half to one-fourth of a mile wide, and from 40 to 60 feet deep. From
its easterly end to Crid Pass, a narrower entrance, it is more than 2J miles in length,

and from 40 to 80 feet deep. The principal entrance, between Jerseyman Island

and Harache Point, is three quarters of a mile wide, with a depth of from 40 to 90
feet over two-thirds of its width. H.M.S. " Northampton," one of the largest war-
ships afloat, has steamed i ight around Jerseyman Island. The harbor is principally

frequented by fishing vessels, but steamers call there occasionally, and sometimes
mcnofwtr. One steamer, the " Rimouski," plies regularly once or twice a week
between Arichat and the neighboring ports in Chedabucio Bay and the Straits of
Cacso. Another steamer, which plies between Halifax and Prince Edward Island,

calls at Arichat. There are 125 vessels owned in Arichat, according to the register.

These trade at home and abroad. The hai»bor is generally free from ice during the

winter, except where a little forms at the eastern end and along the shore. Opposite

Crid Pass the water is always open, and it is intended to build a public wharf at this

point. In the spring, according to the wind, the harbor may be closed with Gulf
ice for a few days.

11. The terminus at the post office is in the direct line for vessels entering the

harbor. It is in a central position for the town, which consists of a narrow strip

extending nearly the whole length of the harbor. The Dominion Government, in

the Public Works Department, has latterly acquired some property as a site for a

new post office and custom house, with the accompanying water frontage. A sharp

curve will be required to run out on the pier into deep water, a distance of 200 or

300 feet from the shore. Sufficient siding accommodation can be obtained in exten-

sion of the lino along the shore, and between it and the head of the landing pier.

The approach to the pier and the sidings, being partly outside the present shore line,

some filling in will be required.

12. Stations will be required at Arichat, and between West Arichat and Port

Royal ; also at the south end of Burnt Ielaods Crossing, for the accommodation of

D'Escousse and the northern part of the island, A station will also be necessary at

the north side, for the steamboat traffic. By making a central one on Burnt Island,

to which a roadway approach could be made from the south, three stations, besides

.

the junction, would probably be found sufficient.

13. The principal structure on the whole line will be the swing bridge at Burnt
Islands, the style of which will require special consideration. Between Burnt and
Benoit Islands a small bridge, but not too open, may be preferable to closing up the

channel entirely. North of the passage, the Moulin River and two smaller streams,

which discharge into Seal Cove, will require small bridges. Sou th of the passage,

besides two or three smdl streams between it and Port Royal, a bridge will be

required across the head of Le Blanc Harbor, at the mouth of the " Buisseau." At
West Arichat there is a small inlet to be embanked across and bridgod, and the last

stream to be crossed is the outlet of the chain of small ponds.
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14. The total length of line from the proposed junction at Shoal Lake will be,
approximately, 12 miles. Except between Lennox Passage and Port Royal the
gradients will be very easy, and over this portion, though perhaps a little steep, they
will be short, and alternately up and down. The work, generally, will be light
apart from the crossing at Burnt Islands. There will be considerable rock cutting
approaching and through Arichat, for a length of 1J miles.

15. The claims for this branch are mainly, two. Firstly—It will give railway
communication to Arichat, which is the county town of Richmond, and is also the
centre of the fishing industry of nearly the whole southern coast of Cape Breton.
Secondly—It will ensure access for the people of Isle Madame, at all times, with the
oiter world, by the building of a bridge across Lennox Passage.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
P. K. HYNDMAN,

~ .
- n . „ 0n Exploratory Duty, 'ape Breton Ttailway Surveys.

Chief Engineer Government Railways.
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MESSAGE.

Lansdowne.

The G-overnor G-eneral transmits to the House of Commons, for its

information, copies of certain Despatches from the Eight Honorable the

Secretary of State for the Colonies, and of other papers, with reference to

the Aspy Bay affair.

Government House,

Ottawa, 20th April, 1886.

Copy of a Telegraphic Message received by His Excellency the Governor .General frotii

the Secretary of State for the Colonies, 3Ut May, 1881.

31st May.

Aspy Bay claims of United States Government settled in conjunction with
Fortune Bay claims. Despatch by mail explaining.

Downing Street, 2nd June, 1881.

My Lord,—I had the honor to inform you in my telegram of the 31st ultimo
thut the Aspy Bay question has been settled in conjunction with the Fortune Bay
claims.

The depositions of the American fisherman, with regard to the occurrences at

Aspy Bay, are contained on pages 138 to 141 of the message from the President of
the United States (46th Congress, 2nd Session, Ex. Doc, No. 84), a copy of which is,

no doubt in the possession of your Lordship's Government.
Her Majesty's Government had been for some time in communication with the

United States Government on the subject of the Fortune Bay claims, and in order to

avoid an expensive enquiry with a view to the assessment of compensation to

the American fishermen, and the consequent protraction of an irritating contro-

versy, it was at length agreed the question should be settled at once by the payment
of a sum of £15,000. In this amount has been further included the settlement of

the Aspy Bay claims and all other claims up to the 4th of March last, it being
understood that this payment is made without prejudice to any question of the
rights of either Government under the Treaty of Washington.

I have, &c,

KIMBEBLEY.
Governor General, the Eight Hon. the Marquis of Lome, K.T., G.O.M.O.

Gloucester, 8th September, 1879.

Depositions of James L. Anderson, James D. Norwood, Peter Thibodeau, James
Challoner and Charles Dagle, taken in relation to the trouble between the Can-
ad tan and American fishermen at Aspy Bay, Cape Breton :

I, James L. Anderson, of Gloucester, Mass, and master of the schooner " Cadet,"

of Gloucester, do, on oath, depose and say that I left Gloucebter on the 7th June,

187i*, bound for Aspy Bay, Cape Breton, to take squid. My vessel was fitted and fur-

nished with ft setae fry the taking of s^uid, w I centered that under the prpYifHQBH
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of the Treaty of Washington I had the right to take fish of any kind within three
miles ofthe shores of the Dominion, and also to rise seines or other apparatus for the
purpose. I arrived at Aspy Bay on the 20th June, the American schooner " Bay
State," Capt. G-oodwin, arrived the same day. He was fitted with a seine for the
purpose of taking squid. The inhabitants of Aspy Bay came off to my vessel, and
seeing the seine on deck, asked me what I intended to do with it ; I told them that
it was for the purpose of taking squid ; they then left my vessel and went on shore.
The next morning I went on shore and was met by a fisherman named Gwin, who
informed me that the fishermen of the place had consulted together and hud made
up their minds that no seine should be set in the bay, and if it was attempted they
would cut it up and destroy it, and that they would serve me the same.

He gme as a reason for this that they believed the using of the seine would
drive away the squid and deprive them of bait for their own fisheries, and ruin their
business of jigging squid. I explained to them that squid had been seined in
Chebucto for several years with no more preceptible decrease of the sauid than when
they were caught by jigs ; that the same amount of squid would be taken from the
water by the jigs, as there are some two hundred men who fish at that place. I
found that it was useless to argue, as every time I went on shore the threats were
repeated, and that they would be carried out.

I then attempted to compromise by offering to pay them for all the squid I
might take, in the seine, at the same rate as if they caught them with jigs, and divide
the money among them equally. They said that" if my seine was used in the bay
that it would establish a precedent for seining there, and other vessels would not
then be prevented, after one had been allowed to seine, Finding I could not use my
seine, and knowing that if it was cut up I should not have it to use in other places,
and be deprived of the means of getting my cargo, I felt obliged to give it up. When
the squid came into the bay there was a large fleet of bankers, and if I could have
used my seine, I could have supplied every vessel with bait and have also loaded my
own vessel with squid to sell to the vessels on the banks. For ten successive days the
bay was swarming with squid, but not one would take the hook, and the people
could not take any.

All of the vessels lying there were obliged to leave without obtaining any bait, and
I left also for Ohotticamp. Failing to find squid there, I returned to Aspy Bay on the
21st July, and I found squid in the bay that at that time would take the hook. 1 com-
menced buying of the fishermen, having over sixty boats with 180 men employed. I
paid for this lot of squid 3561 in cash, getting about two-thirds of the cargo. This
cargo I carried to St. Pierre and sold the squid for 6J francs per hundred to the
Jersey fishermen. In a week's time I came back to Aspy Bay and I found squid
plenty in the bay but they would not take the hook. " I could have taken all the squid
I wanted if I could have used my seine. I remained three days and finding that I
could not obtain any squid as they would not bite, I left the bay and 1 then started
for Newfoundland, and in the dense fog the current sent the vessel on the Little
Miquelon, where she was lost. My loss on being deprived of the use ofmy seine on
my first trip would be 35,000. As for this season I could have loaded my vessel in
three days on the first trip and would have had them in St. Pierre at least throe
weeks ahead ofany other baiter, and as the squid failed at St. Pierre this season I could
have got 61.50 per hundred for them. The cargo I carried there three weeks later
I got 31.25 per hundred for. I should have been at no expense in buying the squid
as my crew could have set the seine and handled the fish. On my second visit I paid
the people $561 for a partial cargo, and the third trip I could have saved my cargo,
but was not allowed to, and the squid not biting, I could not purchase from the people.

My third trip, by being so deprived, I suffered a loss of at least $2,000. The
delay, the uncertainty and the consequent waste of time, and the continued expense
of my vessel and crew obliging me to cruise from port to port in search offish, when
I could have realized full cargoes every time I was there with certain sales, will not
be computed in this amount, but simply the cost of the squid to me at Aspy Bay if

I could have seined, and the value of tbe squid at St. Pierre,
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In this whole matter no fishery officer or officer of the law forbade my seining

;

the threats and all the demonstrations came from the local fishermen, acting inde-
pendent of all law and combined together to act as a mob, violence enforced by
numbers being their only authority. I told them time and again that under the
Treaty of Washington I had a right to seine, as the Government had paid five and
a half millions of dollars for this right; they replied, that they cared nothing for
treaties or rights; they were going to take care of themselves; the money the
Government had got done them no good, when they got cash for squid it did them
some good.

The squid on those shores are about a third grown and are not mature enough
for spawning ; they are about six inches long and they grow about two inches in a
summer, they are the young squid, and every season they come on these coasts,
always the young fish ; by the use of the seine it makes the catch a certainty, while
the hooking process cannot be depended upon.

On this trip my vessel was under a fishing license, with a permit to touch and
trade. I had a few boots and shoes and some cottons, in case I had occasion to trade.
On arriving at Aspy Bay I reported to the Customs officer at North-West Harbor,
and entered my vessel ; the most of my goods I carried to St. Pierre.

OAPT. JAMBS L. ANDEBSON, Essex s.s.

Gloucester, 12th September, 18T9.

Personally appeared the above-named James L. Anderson, who made oath that
the above statement by him subscribed is true before me.

ADDISON CENTBE, Justice of the Peace.

Gloucester, 10th September, 1879.

I, James D. Norwood, master of the American schooner " Messina," of Glouces-
ter, do on oath depose and say that I left Gloucester for St. Ann's, or Aspy Bay,
Cape Breton, for a cargo of squid to sell for bait. I had been in these ports in pre-
vious years, and knew that the inhabitants would oppose the use of a seine in that
bay ; and consequently I went prepared to buy my squid.

I stopped at St. Ann's about a fortnight
;
got no squid, as they would not bite

;

then went to Aspy Bay and found that the squid would not take the hook, and that
the people had opposed the use of any seine by Capt. Anderson, or any other person.
I could have hired a seine and loaded my vessel if I had been allowed what I con-
sidered my rights under the Treaty of Washington, but finding the people in such a
determined and threatening attitude I knew it would be useless to try to get my
cargo there, and left for Newfoundland. I arrived at Torbay, where I bought
300,0(P squid of the local fishermen, paying $900 in cash for them.

The same hostility to Americans taking their own bait with seines exists at
Newfoundland as at Cape Breton, The fishermen can make twice the amount of
money, taking squid for the American bankers and baiters than they can in their
usual avocation of cod fishing, and they will not be deprived of this lucrative trade
if they can help it. It is cash to them, and the women and boys join with the local

fishermen in the light work of taking squid with jigs. The whole community shares
in the squid fishery and in the money they receive for them. In my judgment fully

$100,000 is paid annually on these snores for bait alone, and this could all be saved
if the Americans could use 'their seines to take bait, and the bait, if not purchased by
the American fleet, would be useless and valueless to the people.

I have been informed that there is a local law against seining squid at Newfound-
land. The present mode of taking squid by jigs is a slow process, costing the
Americans a great loss of time when if the seine could be used it would save two-
thirds the time it now takes to get bait. Each banker now has to spend at least

thirty days out of each trip in going around from place to place for bait, as when
the squid will not take the hook, none can be obtained, and the seine makes the catch
a certainty.

JAMES D. NOBWOOD, Master of Schooner " Messina:
9

3
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Gloucester, 10th September, 1879.

Personally appeared the above named James D. Norwood, who made oath that
the above statement by him subscribed is true before me.

ADDISON CENTER, Justice of the Peace.

Gloucester, September 10th, 18*79.

I, Peter Thibodeau, master of the American echooner, " Lizzie J. Jones " of
Gloucester, do, on oath, depose and say that I left Gloucester on the said vessel on the
3rd June, 1879, for Aspy Bay, Cape Breton, on a trip for squid. I was not fitted
with a seine but was prepared to buy for this season ; that the previous year I was at
Aspy Bay with Capt. Dagle and knew that the fishermen there would not, under
any circumstances, permit a seine to be used there.

I was at Aspy Bay when Capt. Anderson, of the schooner " Cadet," tried to use
his seine, and Capt. Anderson asked me to assist him in using his seine for seining
the squid, but the local fishermen, to a man, united in threatening destruction to the
seine or anyone who attempted to use it in that bay.

I am perfectly sure that the seine would have been destroyed as the people
warned me from having anything to do with it and were constantly on the watch to
see if Anderson attempted to use it, and were prepared to attack him on the first
demonstration on his part. I did not get but 3,000 squid at Aspy Bay. My vessel
would take, as a cargo, 500,000.

All of the vessels could have been loaded with squid could the seine have been
used ; the bay was swarming with them.

I told the people that Americans had the right to take these squid with seines,
and they said they cared nothing for that ; they should and would protect themselves

;

if they allowed seining it would ruin their business of jigging squid, and then they
thought the seining would drive away the squid from the bay.

At this place the local fishermen had no money except what they get from the
Americans for squid and they say if this trade is taken from them they will have no
money to pay their taxes, &c.

They usually receive from the local traders goods and groceries for the fish they
take during the season, while the Americans pay ca«h for the squid and bait they buy.

I was obliged to leave Aspy Bay as I could not obtain any squid, as they would
not bite. I then went to Newfoundland and to Conception and Trinity Bays, where
I bought my squid from the local fishermen.

The feeling is the same at Newfoundland as at Aspy Bay against seining. No
American will be allowed to use the seine to take squid in any of the bays or coves of
Newfoundland urider penalty of destruction of the seine. I have beard the people
sav this over and over again, and know that it is irnpossible to obtain what we con-
sider our rights in this respect under the Treaty of Washington.

PETER THIBODEAU, [L.S.] Master of Schr. « Lizzie J. Jones."

- Gloucester 10th September, 1819.

Persotally appeared the above-named Peter Thibodeau, before me and made oath
that the above statement by him subscribed is true.

ADDISON CENTER, Justice of the Peace.

White Point, Br. Vic , 17th August, 1879.

James Challoner, of White Point. Aspy Bay, being duly sworn, do depose
and say

:

That about 20th July, 1879, Cbptain Anderson of the schooner " Cadet," of
Gloucester, came to see me, and said that his vessel the previous season had done
very well with squid which they had purchased here and sold at St. Pierre Miquelon,
and that there were ten vessels this year engaged in the same business, and eight of
them did come to this bay for the purpose of getting squid and carrying them to the
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banks for sale to the bankers, and remained here until about the 16th of July.

Captain Anderson and Captain Goodwin, of the Bay State, had a seine for the pur-

pose of seining squid in the bay, and did not attempt to use it, because the fishermen

would not allow them to do so. They threatened to cut the seine if they placed it in

the water. There never has been but one seine cast in this bay, and had Captain

Anderson thrown his seine he would have swept the whole school of squid in the

cove, and the fishermen would have been deprived of all their bait for the season.

Last season the Americans purchased their pquid, giving 20 cents per hundred, and

this, when the squid are plenty, is a source of profit and a .large part of the business

of the inhabitants. Captain Anderson could have ourchased all he wished, but if the

fishermen bad allowed him to seine, thev would have lost the money paid for the

squid by the cod-fishermen from the banks. N^ opposition was made to Captain

Anderson's catching squid by hook and line.
§

American and French bankers come here every summer for bait, and if Captain

Anderson had taken all the squid by his seine the bankers would have been forced

to purchase of him instead of the native fishermen, of whom there are about one

hundred and fifty. I am not aware of any colonial law against securing squid. The

only reason the inhabitants threatened Captain Anders-n was that he would ruin

their squid catch. The only fishery ofiicer lives at Fragnish, down the coast. Some

Newfoundlanders living near here attempted a little while ago to use seines for

taking capelin, but the natives would not permit them to do so.
#

I have been a resi-

dent here for thirty years and engaged in the business of purchasing fish.

J, A. CHALLONER.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this )

17th day of August, 1879. j

J. H. Sears, Ensign U. S. Navy, U. S.S. Etarsarge.

Charles Dagle, captain of the schooner "Joseph Story," being duly sworn,

doth depose and say, that he was at Aspy Bay, Cape Breton, in the latter part of

June, 1879, for the purpose of purchasing squid to carry to St. Pierre for bait for the

French bankers; that while he was there Captain Anderson, of the schooner

" Cadet," of Gloucester, Massachusetts, who came for the purpose of catching squid

at that place, and squid not being obtained in sufficient numbers by jigging, attempted

to use a squid seine for the purpose of catching the squid, which schooled in great

numbers, but would not bite at the jig. The inhabitants of Aspy Bay threatened

that if he set his seine they would cut it and there would be trouble, as selling squid

was their only way of making money during the summer season, and if a seine was

used in the cove all the squid would be taken or driven away, and they would lose all

their summer's employment, as squid was the only bait they could obtain for catch-

ing cod. They were willing that Captain Anderson should jig his squid or purchase

of them. Captain Anderson left the bay without a trip of squid, while if he had used

his seine he would probably have filled his vessel.

That I have just come back from Torbay, Nfld, near St. John's, with ninety-four

thousand squid, which were all purchased of the inhabitants there; that there is a

law in force in Newfoundland against seining squid which forces us to purchase of

the natives, as we have no time to take them by the slow process of jigging.

CHAS. DAGLE.
Sworn to before me at St. Pierre, Miquelon, )

this 19th August, 1879. j

W. F. McLaughlin, Vice Commissioner, Agent U.S.A.

Certified Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved

by Bis Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 1st March, 1882.

The Committee of the Council have had under consideration the despatch, No.

187, dated 30th June, 1881, from Her Majesty's Secretary of State for the Colonies,

5
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on which it is represented that in an Agreement made between the British and
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nt *° settle certain olaims made against Great Britain for inter-

ference by the inhabitants of Newfoundland with United States fishermen at Fortune

£ la TS CODSldGred advisable to include, amongst the definite claims, losses allegedto nave been sustained by American fishing vessels at Aspy Bay, N.S., and that partoi the compensation, amounting to the sum of £150, was applied to that purpose,which amount the Canadian Government is requested to refund.
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8terofMarineandFisheries
>
to whom the despatch has been

reierrea states that he is of opinion, considering all the circumstances described in
his report dated 28th February, 1882, hereto annexed, Parliament cannot properly

des atch
VOte "^ SUm °f money for the PurPose specified in Lord Kimberly's

T7- i,

T
^eCommii

teeconcur in the rePort of the acting Minister of Marine and
fisheries and submit the same for Tour Excellency's approval, and they recommendmat a copyof this minute, when approved, and of the report hereto annexed, be for-
warded to Her Majesty's Seoretary of State for the Colonies.

JOHN J. McGEE, Clerk Privy Council

Marine and Fisheries, Canada, Ottawa, 28th February, 1882.

deferring to a despatch of the Earl of Kimberly, dated 30th June, 1881, rep.
resenting that in an agreement made between the British and American Govern-
ments to settle certain claims made against Great Britain for interference by the in-
habitants of Newfoundland with United States fishermen at Fortune Bay, it was
considered advisable to include (amongst the definite claims) losses alleged to have
been sustained by American fishing vessels at Aspy Bay, Nova Scotia, and that part

i3 £
comPensatio11 amounting to the sum of £150, was applied to that purpose,

which amount the Canadian Government is'requested to refund ; the undersigned has
the honor to report as follows :—

!• ^De Government of Canada having been invited to assist in negotiating the
fishery articles of the Treatv of Washington, which were afterwards ratified by the
Dominion Parliament and the Provincial Legislature of Prince Edward Island, since
included in the Dominion, it is presumable that in carrying out these articles all
differences affecting matters of detail would necessorily be referred, before settlement,
to the Canadian authorities who are sincerely desirous to maintain their reciprocal
obligations, and to protect, if necessary, United States citizens in the full enjoyment
of the rightsand privileges accorded to them by that treaty. They would be also
ready and willing to make just compensation for any injury or loss to American fish-
ermen, which, upon enquiry, they should be found to have sustained through inter-
ference with their legitimate fishing operations by inhabitants of Canada. It
is, however, considered essential that any such instances where claims to indemnity
arise, should be carefully investigated, as otherwise precedents might occur which
would involve the Government, sooner or later, in frequent disputes of a trivial
character.

2. The present correspondence between the British and American Governments,
and the accompanying documents, show that complaints were made by the American
Government of interference with American fishermen when exercising, or about to
exercise, the rights claimed to them by the treaty.

These complaints are oftwo classes :

—

(a) Whore it is alleged in the complaint that violence was used, and the nets
and seines of the American fishermen were destroyed, and they themselves driven
from the fishing grounds, viz., at Fortune Bay and Job's Cove, in Newfoundland, and
damans were alleged to the amount of $105,000.

(b.) Where the complaint did not charge violence, but simply that resident
fishermen (having no legal or judicial authority) forbid them to fish in certain
localities and by certain means, as in the case of the schooner " Mist," Captain
Cozzens, masttr, who complains of threats at Broad Cove, Newfoundland, and claims

6
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$800 damages. Also of the schooner " Cadet," James L. Anderson, master, who
makes a similar complaint against certain fishermen at Aspy Bay, in Cape Breton
within the Dominion of Canada.

'

In the voluminous correspondence which passed between the British and
American Governments, and in the action of the United States House of Representa-
tives, the latter class of complaints (which includes the occurrence at Aspy Bay) is
evidently dropped, and forms no part of the grounds upon which a formal claim for
damages exceeding $100,000 is urged.

„™. „
er lhe date 1th March

>
1881

>
in referring to one of these cases, that of the

"Mist, Mr. Evarts specifically states that he " does not entertain the claim, and had
so informed the claimant."

3. The first mention made in the correspondence connected with these negotiations
of any claim arising out of alleged interference at Aspy Bay, in Nova Scotia, occursm a reported conversation between Sir Edward Thornton and Mr. Blaine, on the 5th
May, 1881, after the lump sum had been settled, when Sir Edward Thornton volun-
tarily " concluded that although Aspy Bay was not on the coast of Newfoundland,
these claims were among those for which a demand had been made -by Mr Evarts
of the sum of $105,3t'5.02." '

The Aspy Bay depositions having been made in September, 1879, about a month
after the claims forming the demand for $105,305.02, were made up by Mr. Evarts
and presented to Mr. Welsh, it seems impossible that any sum could have been
reckoned on account of the occurrence at that place.

ftinQ^9?Q
igln

r?il

Claim8 f0r
.
the Fortune **? affair

(class «) in WW, amounted to

11 ™l n* - ik £**? 7^ tw
.

e
?
fcy_two 8Peoific olaim8

>
ranging from $2,496.09 to

98,50o.05 each, the total of which amounted to that sum of $103,762.73. Other two
claims for cases at Job's Cove, in 1879, were afterwards admitted without specifying
their amount, but the ultimate demand on the British Government was for $120 000
being the original demand, with interest, and the^e two special claims added.

'

The telegram of Mr. Evarts to Mr. Lowell, dated 3rd March, 1881, makes this
conclusive, as follows:— ' '

* * * « A11 the previoug communications either way related to Fortune Bay
olaims. Claims of number hundred nine (Job's Cove claims) were introduced
specifically by secretary as additional to Fortune Bay, and I accepted tbe sum
ottered for both, 1 cannot consent to any modification of the completed settlement
of specific claims. I have at no time treated except of definite pecuniary interests
of claimants in my charge. The agreed sum measured these claims and goes to
these claimants. I have been willing to give every assurance to cover all claims
brought to the knowledge of either Government, and authorize you to inform secre-
tary that as a matter of fact no others were entertained by this Government." * *

4. On the 27th October, 1880, long after the occurrence at Aspy Bay, Earl
Granville in a despatch to Mr. Lowell says :—

c *u" 5er ^&
J
e9ty'8 Government have no hesitation in admitting that the conduct

of the Newfoundland fishermen in violently interfering with United States fishermen
and destroying or damaging some of their nets, is indefensible and much to be
regretted and further informs him that "Her Majesty's Government" are quite
willing that they (the American fishermen) should be indemnified for any injuries
and losses which, upon a joint enquiry, may be found to be sustained by them, and
in respect of which they are reasonably entitled to be compensated."

For the purpose of a full enquiry it is presumed that the Newfoundland
Government was duly notified of the claims preferred, and assurances were
given by Her Majesty s Government that every opportunity would be afforded for a
defence, particularly in view of the probable necessity of requiring the Colonial
Government to refund whatever damages might be awarded.

The undersigned cannot suppose that Her Majesty's Government would have
been less considerate to the Dominion of Canada had the Aspy Bay occurrences been
entertainedor considered by either of the negotiating parties as forming a portion
of tee ugun* cm *mwt ofwUA compensation, was teed,

D F7
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5. It is shown by the correspondence that an offer of a lump sum of £15,000 or
$75,000 was made by the British Government as a settlement in full. Exception was
taken by the United States Government to the words " in full," because of the possi-

bility, as remarked by Mr. Bvarts to Sir Edward Thornton, on Jie 28th February,
1880, that "something might be occurring on the coasts of Nov foundland of which
we must necessarily be ignorant."

The proposition wao then made to refer the claims to Sir E Iward Thornton and
Mr. Blaine for assessment of damages, and on the 2nd April, 1881, Earl Granville, in
his despatch to Sir Edward Thornton, informs him that the colonial authorities prefer
this mode of settlement to the payment of a lamp sum " in viow of the desirability
of obtaining the co-operation and concurrence of the Governmert of Newfoundland,"
and authorizes him to settle either by a lump sum or by assessment of individual
claims, and adds " under present circumstances they would prefer an arrangement
by assessment."

The original mode of settlement preferred by Her Majestj 's Government being
by a lump sum, it is presumable that this change was made it the instance of the
Government of Newfoundland.

On the 3rd May, 1881, concurrent instructions were given by the Earl of Kim-
berly to communicate with the Government of Newfoundland to send a competent
person to assist Sir Edward Thornton in the settlement, and by Lord Granville to
Sir Edward Thornton to arrange that time be afforded to Her Majesty's Government
to communicate with the authorities of Newfoundland.

Her Majesty's Government having more than two months previously, on the
24th February, 1881, offered £15,000 in settlement of the American fishery claims,
which sum was eventually accepted, it would, after the careful consideration shown
towards the Newfoundland authorities, be unjust to Her Majesty's Government to
suppose that they held or admitted that the Dominion of Canada had any pecuniary
interest in the settlement either by lump sum or assessment.

6. On the 4th of April, 1881, Mr. Blaine offers to accept £16,000 and give a
receipt in full. On the 25th he offers to take £15,500, as he is convinced there are
no other claims than those presented. On the 27th Her Majesty's Government
refused to exceed £ (5,000, the original offer of February, 1881. On the 5th of May
Mr. Blaine informed Sir Edward Thornton that he had caused searching enquiries
to be made as to whether there existed any other claims besides those which had
been already brought before the two Governments, and that he had satisfied himself
" that there were none," and " as his Government therefore '.

T
d not wish to place

any obstacles in the way of the settlement of the claims in que. aon, it would be pre-
pared to accept the sum of £15,000 originally offered by Her Majesty's Government
in full of the Fortune Bay claims and of all claims arising out of wrongs done to
United States fishermen on the coasts of Newfoundland and its dependencies up to
the 4th of March last."

This closes the negotiations, and the final settlement is effected.

7. The earliest intimation of the existence of a claim of this nature made to the
Dominion Government was by the despatch of the Earl of Kimberly to His Excel-
lency the Governor General on the 2nd June, 1881, stating that it had been settled
in conjunction with the Fortune Bay claims. A later despatch of the 30th of the
same month refers to the case as of a comparatively unimportant character, which
was settled without consulting the Government of Canada, because such a reference
would have delayed the general settlement agreed upon. If, however, the matter
had been considered in the nature of a serious claim when referred to in Sir Edward
Thornton's despatch to Earl Granville, dated 7th June, 1880, there was ample time to
communicate the fact to Canada; also between the date 5th May, 1881, when Sir
Edward Thornton voluntarily suggested to Mr. Blaine the inclusion of such a claim
in the pending settlement, there was sufficient time for the Government of Canada to

be consulted. It was two days later that the Newfoundland Government was notified

to send a representative to Washington, Ike wkple gutter was olQsed OR the 30th

I
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Had the Canadian Government at any time since the occurrence been informed
of this complaint, the particulars would have been investigated, and if the complaint
was well founded„.p 'ompt reparation would have been offered.

8, Apart from hese substantial reasons, there is another serious objection to the
recognition of this payment as a claim against the Dominion Government, to

which it is desirabk in this connection to advert. The documents referred to this

Department with th? despatch of the Earl of Kimberly, embrace copies of reports by
the Committee on F )reign Affairs of the House of Representatives, on which the
proposed Bill, of 18£0, to re-impose Customs duties on fish imported into the United
States from Newfoundland and Canada was based.

These reports and the preamble to the Bill set forth :

—

" Whereas, the .^shermen ofthe United States have been driven by violence from
the fishing grounds ;n which such freedom of fishing has been granted by said treaty,

and laws in limitation of their rights have been passed by the Local Legislatures of
said Dominion, and Her Britannic Majesty's Government have refused all redress

therefore, and have supported the claim of the said Dominion to enforce said legis-

lation," &c, &c.

The Committee on Foreign Affairs also reported a joint resolution in terms fol-

lowing :
" Whereas, American fishermen are deprived of the privileges of fishing

conceded to the United States by the treaty with Great Britain, dated the 8th May,
1871, by hostile legislation, and the unlawful violence of the inhabitants of the
British Provinces; and, whereas, said hostile legislation is sustained and said unlaw-
ful violence is not rebuked or restrained by the Government of Great Britain," &c, &c.

The state of affairs to which these documents relate existed solely in Newfound-
land, and although it was proposed by the Bill to collect duties also on fish imported
from Canada to form a fund for the satisfaction of claims against that colony, no such
interferences and no such legislation had taken. place in the Dominion of Canada.

In 1879, agents were commissioned by the American Government to enquire
' into " the conduct of the inshore fisheries by American fishermen, and the treat-

ment which they had' received at the hands of the local authorities and population."

These commissioners are reported, in the despatch of Sir Eiward Tnornton to

Earl Granville, dated 7th June, 1830, to have found but this single occurrence at Aspy
Bay of which to complain. Tiie acceptance of any responsibility whatever for the
dissatisfaction thus forcibly expressed, coupled as it is with phrases and proposals

affecting Canada which the adoption of this payment, however snail the sum, might
seem to admit, oug. , t therefore to be carefully avoided.

The present oi ^ortunity should also be taken to disclaim the unfriendly aets and
illiberal spirit imputed to Canada by these unqualified statements. It is sufficient

corroboration of this disclaimer to observe that while the only appreciable interrup-

tions of the pursuits of American fishermen were confined to " the waters of

Newfoundland and its dependencies" on the occasions described in these negotiations

United States citizens have, with this single exception at Aspy Bay, which b^th M!r.

Evarts and Mr. Blaine appear to have treated as an incident of no practical moment
during nearly ten years past, exercised their treaty rights in the inshores of Caaada
without any restriction and free from molestation.

9. The undersigned is of opinion that, considering all of the circumstances above
described, Parliament cannot properly be asked to vote any sum of money for the
purpose specified in Lord Kimberly's despatch.

The whole respectfully submitted

.

A. W". McLELAN, Acting Minister of Marine and Fisheries,

(Earl Kimberly to the Marquis of Lome,)

Downing Street, 30th June, 1881.

My Lord, In my despatch, No. 156, of the 2nd instant, I explained to you that
the agreement with the United States Government, under which the Fortune Bay
claims and all other claims preferred up to the 4th of March last have been settled

75—2 9
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by the payment of a sum of £15,000, included the settlement of the Aspv Bav
claims. rj J

2. The occurrence at Aspy Bay, Cape Breton, in June, 1879, where James
Anderson, of the schooner "Cadet," of Gloucester, Mass,, alleged that he was pre-
vented by the inhabitants from taking squid with his seine and thereby suffered loss
and certain other masters of American schooners alleged that in consequene of this
prohibition they suffered similar loss, was of a comparatively unimportant character
and did not in fact present itself for consideration until a late stage of the negotia-
tions, when, in coming to an agreement that the fixed sum to be paid should cover all
outstanding claims, it was observed that there was this claim against the Dominion
Government in addition to the claims against the Government of Newfoundland.

3. Her Majesty's Government felt it their duty, having an opportunity of
settling this matter, of which advantage could cot have been taken if the decision
had been delayed in order to give time for consultation with the Dominion Govern-
ment, to act at once in the interests of your Government in the manner which they
could not doubt that your Ministers would approve, more especially as it was clear
that this course would commit Canada to the payment of a very inconsiderable sum
far less than the cost of an enquiry would have been if the affairs had not been
summarily disposed of.

4. I have requested the Secretary of State for Foreign Affairs to ascertain from
Sir E. Thornton what proportion of the sum of £15,000 represents the amount of
the claims in respect of the Aspy Bay transaction, and Sir E. Thornton has replied
that £150 should be amply sufficient to cover it.

5. I trust that your advisers will be of opinion that, in this matter, Her Majesty's
Government have acted for the best in the interest of the Dominion, and I shall be
obliged by your requesting them to make the necessary provision for the repayment
to Her Majesty's exchequer of the amount thus paid on account of Canada.

I have, &c,

KIMBEKLY.
Governor General the Right Honorable the Marquis of Lome, K.T., G.C.M.G;

{Earl Kimberly to the Governor General.")

Downing Street, 18th July, 1881.

My Lord,—With reference to my despatch, No. 187, of the 30th of June, I have
the honor to transmit to you for your information and for that of your Government,
a copy of a despatch received through the Foreign Office from Sir E. Thornton res-
pecting the amount which will probably be awarded on account of the Aspy Bay
claim out of the sum paid to the United States Government in consideration of the
occurrences at Fortune Bay and elsewhere.

I have, &c,

KIMBERLY.
Governor General the Eight Hon. the Marquis of Lome, K.T., G.C.M.G.

{Sir E. Thornton to Earl Granville.')

Washington, 22nd June, 1881.

Mr Lord,—With reference to your Lordship's telegram, No. 32, of the 20th inst.,

I have the honor to state that the claim made by certain United States fishermen for
having been prevented from fishing for bait in Aspy Bay has always appeared to me
a very small affair, and has, I know, been so considered by both Mr. Evarts and Mr.
Blaine. But such little claims, if neglected, are apt to be magnified in course of
time, and as it could not be considered as one having arisen in a dependency of New-
foundland I thought it would be desirable to mention it separately.

10
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I am, however, of opinion that £150 would fully satisfy the Aspy Bay claims
mentioned above, and I am convinced that the United States Government will not
assign more than that sum to their satisfaction.

I have, &c,

The Earl Granville, KG, &c, &c, &c.
E

*
TH0KNT0N'

Certified Copt of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council approved
by Bis Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 22nd July, 1882.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had under consideration a despatch
dated 30th June, 1881, setting forth a claim on the Dominion Government for pay-
ment of £150 sterling, as a part of the sum paid by the Imperial Government to the
Government of the United States in settlement of certain claims for alleged interrup-
tions of their fishing rights under the Washington Treaty by inhabitants of Newfound-
land, including the affair at Aspy Bay.

The Minister of Marine and Fisheries to whom the said despatch was referred
reported under date 28th February, 1882, that he saw no sufficient reason why such
payment should be made, but since that time there has been placed hefore him com-
munications of a confidential nature which lead him (notwithstanding the circum-
stances set forth and the reasons given in his report of the 28th February last) to
advise the payment, and he the Minister, therefore, recommends that a payment of
£150 sterling be made to Sir John Kose, Bart., G.C.M.G., to settle the Aspy Bay
claim with the Imperial Government.

The Committee concur in the foregoing recommendation of the Minister of
Marine and Fisheries, and submit the same for Your Excellency's approval,
at the same time the Committee must repeat their regret that this claim
was entertained without the knowledge or consent of the Canadian Government, and
they desire that it should not be understood that they admit the justice of the claim.
They also advise that this minute be communicated to Her Majesty's Principal Sec-
retary of State for the Colonies.

JOHN J. MoGEE, Clerk Privy Council '

Department of Marine and Fisheries, Ottawa, 20th July, 1882.

The undersigned has the honor to report to Council, that on a despatch from
Earl Kimberly to Lord Lome, of date 30th June, 1881, a claim was made upon the
Dominion Government, for payment of £150 sterling, as a part of the sum paid by
the Imperial Government to the Government of the United States, in settlement of
certain claims made by fishermen of the latter nation, for alleged interruptions of
their fishery rights under the Washington treaty, by inhabitants of Newfoundland, in-
cluding the affair at Aspy Bay. That on the 28th February last he had the honor to
report to the Council that he saw no sufficient reasons why such payment should be
made, but since that time he has had submitted to him communications of a confiden-
tial nature, which leads him (notwithstanding the circumstances set forth and the
reasons given in his former report) to advise the payment and he therefore recom-
mends that a payment of £150 sterling, be made to Sir John Eose, Bart., G.C.M.G., to
settle the claim made by the Imperial Government.

The whole respectfully submitted.

A. W. McLELAN, Minister of Marine and Fisheries.

(Earl of Kimberly to the Marquis of Lome.)

Downing Street, 11th April, 1882.

My Lord,—I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your Lordship's
despatch, JNo. 52, of the 11th ultimo, enclosing a copy of a report of a Committee of
your Privy Council, with a memorandum by the acting Minister of Marine and

11
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Fisheries, stating that in his opinion that Parliament cannot properly be asked to

vote a sum of money in repayment of the amount of £150 advanced by the Imperial

Government in settlement of what are known as the Aspy Bay claims.

2. Her Majesty's Government have received with regret this expression of

opinion on the part of the Government of Canada.

The repayment of the amount at which the Aspy Bay claims were assessed by
Her Majesty's Minister at Washington was requested in my despatch of the 30th of

June last, not on the ground that the responsibility of Canada for the alleged

occurrences at Aspy Bay had been established or admitted by Her Majesty's

Government, but on the ground that an enquiry could not be refused if pressed for,

and that it did not appear worth while when the opportunity presented itself of

settling these claims at once for a trifling sum in connection with the settlement of

the Fortune Bay claims, to incur the cost and trouble of a formal investigation.

There can be no difficulty in placing on record that in reimbursing Her Majesty's

Government the sum in question, Canada in no way admits the validity of thase

claims or its responsibility for the transaction, and Her Majesty's Government will

be much disappointed if their action in this matter is now repudiated by the Domin-

ion Government,
3 . With regard to the contention in Mr. McLelan's memorandum that Canada

should have been consulted before any decision was arrived at, you will assure your

Ministers that the action of Her Majesty's Government did not proceed from the

slightest desire to pass them over. They fully recognized that it would, on every

ground, have been proper and desirable to obtain the previous concurrence of the Do-

minion Government, had the circumstances permitted. But it was felt that such

consultation would involve considerable delay and correspondence which might have

prejudiced the whole negotiation, and in so very small a matter as the Aspy Bay
claims, Her Majesty's Government had confidence that the Government of the

Dominion would not decline to acquiesce in a settlement made in their interest by
the diplomatic representative of Her Majesty, acting as he believed for the best at

the moment.
I have, &c,

KIMBEELY,

Governor General, the Right Hon. the Marquis of Lome, K.T., G.C.M.G.

(The Earl of Kimberly to the Marquis of Lome.)

Downing Street, 22nd August, 1882.

My Lord,—I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch, No.

214, of the 29th July, enclosing an approved report of a Committee of the Privy

Council of Canada, relating to the payment of the sum of £150 to Her Majesty's

Government, on account of the Aspy Bay affair.

I have, &c.,

KIMBERLEY.

Governor General, the Rt. Hon. the Marquis of Lome, K.T., G.C.M.G.

Certified Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved

by His Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 28th October', 1882.

On a memorandum, dated 26th October, 1882, from the Minister of Marine and

Fisheries, recommending the payment of a sum of £150 sterling, in connection with

the claim made upon the Imperial Government in the Aspy Bay affair, and that the

amount be charged against the appropriation for " Unforeseen Expenses, 1881-82 ;"

The Committee submit the above recommendation for Your Excellency's

approval.

JOHN J. McGEE, Clerk Privy Council.

12
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Department op Marine and Fisheries, Ottawa, 2 Jth July, 1882

The undersigned has the honor to report to Council that, on a despatch from
Earl Kimberly to Lord Lome, of date June, 1881, a claim was made upon the

Dominion Government for payment of £150 sterling, as a part of the sum paid by
the Imperial Government to the Government of the United States, in settlement of

certain claims made by fishermen of the latter nation for alleged interruptions of

their fishery rights, under the Washington Treaty, by inhabitants of Newfoundland,
including u the affair at Aspy Bay." That on the 28th of February, he had the

honor to report to council that he saw no sufficient reasons why such payment should

be made; but, since that time, he has had submitted to him communications of a

confidential nature, which lead him (notwithstanding the circumstances set forth

and the reasons given in his former report) to advise the payment—and he there-

fore recommends that a payment of £150 sterling be made to Sir John Rose, Bart.,

G.C.M.G., to settle the claim made by the Imperial Government.
The whole respectfully submitted.

A. W. MoLELAN, Minister of Marine and Fisheries,
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RETURN
(76)

To an Address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1886;—For
copies of all despatches from or correspondence with the Imperial
G-overnment, respecting the complaint of the Legislature or Govern-
ment of Prince Edward Island, that the Terms of Union between that

Island and the Dominion have not been carried out, or with respect to

the mission of Delegates to the Imperial Government from Prince
Edward Island on the subject of such complaint.

Department of the Secretary of State,

Ottawa, 16th April, 1886.

By Command.

J, A. CHAPLEAU,
Secretary of State.

Earl Granville to the Marquis of Lansdcwne.

Downing Street, 30th March, 1886.

My Lord,- I duly received your Lordship's despatch of the 19 th November
last, enclosing an approved report of a Committee of the Privy Council for Canada
forwarding, with other papers, a joint address to the Queen from the Legislative
Council and House of Assembly of Prince Edward Island. This address prays that
Her Majesty will require that justice be done by the Government of Canada to Her
Majesty's loyal subjects of that province by the immediate " establishment and
maintenance of efficient steam service for the conveyance of mails and passengers
between this island and the mainland of the Dominion, both winter and summer so
as to place the island in continuous communication with the Intercolonial Kailway
and the railway system of the Dominion ;

" and further, that Her Majesty would be
pleased to require that the Government of Canada should compensate the island for
the loss which it is alleged has resulted to its inhabitants by reason of the non-
fulfilment of the terms of Confederation in the particulars complained of in the
address.

I also received your despatch of 30th January, with a further report of a Com-
mittee of the Privy Council on the subject of the delegation appointed to support the
prayer of the address.

Since the receipt of these papers I have had the pleasure of receiving Mr.
Sullivan, the Premier and Attorney-General, and Mr. Ferguson, the Provincial Secret
tary of Prince Edward Island, who had been appointed as delegates to Her Majesty's
Government, and on the SJ4th of last month they attended hero by appointment and
favored me with a general statement of the circumstances under which the Legisla-
ture of Prince Edward Island had addressed the Queen. I explained to them that
the Queen had no power, either by statute or otherwise under the constitution of
Canada, to give any direction in this matter, and that therefore i should not be able
to advise Her Majesty (who had been pleased to receive the address very graciously)
to take any action upon it, but that it would give me much satisfaction if, by the
exerci«e of any friendly offices which I could tender, I should bo able to contribute
to the settlement of a question in which the Provincial Government were so much
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interested. I added that I had confidence in the kindly spirit in which the matter at

issue would be dealt with on both sides, and this led me to hope that some acceptable

arrangement might be come to.

I then gave the delegates a copy of the report of the Privy Council of Canada
dated the 7th of November last, which they had not previously received, and I

informed th^m that after receiving and considering the observations which they

might desire to make upon that report, I should be happy to see them again, and, if

it should be n^-reeafcle to both parties, to invite Sir Charles Tupper to be present, on
behalf of the Dominion Government, at the interview.

On the 4th instant I received from the delegates the statement, of which a copy
is enclosed, and I communicated a copy of it to Sir C. Tapper, who favored me with

his comments thereon in a memorandum, of which a copy is also enclosed. After

perusing these papers I invited the delegates and Sir Charles Tupper to meet me
at this office on the 12th inst. The delegates urged at length the claims and con-

tentions of the province, and laid before me the plans of a submarine line of commu-
nication which they understood to be feasible. Sir Charles Tupper then justified

and explained the action of the Dominion Government, adding personally, and not

speaking under instructions, that if it could be shown that the scheme of a "metallic

subway " is really feasible at a moderate cost, the Dominion Government would, no

doubt, be ready to give their serious consideration to such a scheme.

As I stated in the earlier part of this despatch, although Her Majesty's Govern-

ment is unable to take the question out of the hands of the Dominion Government,
and although I have not seen more than a primd facie opinion as to feasibility at a

moderate cost of the proposal for its solution, I hope that it will be found to admit

of a satisfactory settlement. On the one hand, the expectations of the Province in

regard to the establishment of a constant and efficient communication with the main
land have not been fulfilled, but, on the other hand, the Dominion Government has

shown that it has made considerable efforts to improve the communication in the

face of serious physical difficulties, especially during the winter season. There seems

to be reason for doubting whether any really satisfactory communication by steam-

ship can be regularly maintained all the year round, which makes it all the more
important that the proposed '* metallic subway " should receive a full and, if feasible,

favorable consideration on the part of the Government of the Dominion.
The establishment of constant and speedy communication by rail would be a

great advantage both to the province and to the Dominion; and I should suppose

that the development of the traffic on the island railroads, and of the capabilities of

the province generally, would produce a large direct and indirect return on the

expenditure.

It would reflect great credit on the Dominion Government if, after connecting

British Columbia with the Eastern Provinces by the Cauadian Pacific Railway, it

should now be able to complete its system of railway communication by an extension

to Prince Edward Island.

I have, &c,
GRANVILLE.

London, 1st March, 1886.

My Lord,—The undersigned having, at the interview with which your Lordship
honored them on Wednesday last, been favored by your Lordship with a copy of a

report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council of Canada upon the joint

address of the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of Prince Edward Island

to Her Majesty the Queen on' the subject of the non-fulfilment by the Dominion Gov-
ernment of the terms of union with respect to communication between the island and
the mainland of Canada, desire to offer the following comments thereon :

—

Your Lordship, whose successful administration of colonial affairs is well remem-
bered in the Dominion in a despatch to Sir John Young, Governor General of

Canada, dated 4th September, i869, when commeuding the action of the Dominion
2
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Strange as it may seem, the new vessel has never been employed to absist the

" Northern Light," although the latter was unavailable for service last winter from

the 2'th January till the 28th April, a period of ninety-one days.

It is true that a branch railway has been built to Cape Traverse, but it was not

completed until January, 1885, nearly three years after the appropriation for its

construction and nearly twelve years after the island entered the union. A pier has

also been constructed at that point, but until some natural obstructions are removed,

it is available only for vessels of light draught, and a steamer cannot lie at it. A
branch railroad is also in course of construction to Cape Tormentine, in New Bruns-

wick, but it is even at this date, only about one half finished, and being in the hands of

a private company there is no certainty when it will be completed, notwithstanding

that the Dominion Government have voted a subsidy to the undertaking. An ap-

propriation was also made some years ago, for the construction of a pier at Cape Tor-

mentine, but up to the present time so far as is known to the undersigned, the site

even has not been finally determined, and no attempt has ever been made to run a

steamer, at any season, between Capes Traverse and Tormentine.

The Committee of Council assume that the Island Government were fully con-

versant with the whole action and plans of the Dominion Government towards

improving the winter communication, yet the undersigned have reason to believe that

the Dominion Government themselves were not fully advised of what was being done

in the matter. Although a Committee of Parliament in 1883, recommended the

erection of boathouses at both capes, for the accommodation of the men engaged in

the service, and for the shelter of the boats, they were not finished until the winter

of this year. Sir Alexander Campbell, speaking in the Senate in 1884, said :
—

11 1 am surprised to hear from my hon. Iriond opposite that the boathouses have

not been built. I called the attention of the Minister of Marine (Mr. McLelan) to the

matter last session, and he told me that the boathouses would be provided. I shall

again call his attention to that question, and to the various suggestions that have

been made."
.

,

B
' ... . .

Again, in the Parliamentary Session of 1885, Sir Alexander Campbell, speaking

on the same subject, said:

—

" My hon. friend from Prince Edward Island, who introduced this subject to the

notice of the House, has, I think, just ground for complaint—ground for complaint,

I am sorry to think, perhaps against myself, although really, as he has almost

admitted, I am not responsible for the non execution of the measures which from

time to time 1 have been authorized by the Government to promise in this House.

I remember quite distinctly the undertaking which I gave that the boathouses should

be constructed, one on each side of the ferry. I made that promise with the

authority of the then Minister of Marine and Fisheries, and as is my constant prac-

tice, the very day the promise was made I wrote to the Minister of Marine and

Fisheries that, pursuant to what he had told me I made the promise, and that I

hoped he would keep it in mind. I afterwards called attention to it, and there were

reasons which wore more or less sound—1 can hardly say sound—which made the

delay more or le*s excusable. It was thought for a time that the orders had been

given, and that the boathouses were in course of construction."

The Dominion Government have totally neglected ever since Confederation to

make any provision whatever for the transport of passengers, when compelled to

resort to the capes' route. While the contract with the ice couriers stipulated for

the carriage of mails, no arrangements were made for passengeis, who were forced to

effect the crossing as best they could, although the terms of union require like

provision to be made for passengers as for mails. The undersigned would remark,

that the benefits conferred by the branch railway to Cape Traverse are very question-

able, when it is understood that after landing passengeis at that point the Govern-

ment made no arrangements for carrying them across the straits.

Nearly thirteen years have elapsed since the island became a member of the

Confederation, and all that has been accomplished in the fulfilment of the guarantee

to provide continuous communication has been the purchase for the Georgetown-
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Pictou route of a steamer, which, during the last five, years, has been laid up an

average of seventy days each winter, and the completion on the capes' route of a

branch railroad, twelve miles in length, only a small part of the distance intervening

between the island railway and the Intercolonial Railway. Even the promises made

by a Minister of the Crown (Sir Alexander Campbell) have received only tardy fulfil-

ment, and his assurance that a steamer should be employed to assist the " Northern

Light " has never been carried out.

Referring to the report of the Committee of Parliament in the Session of 1883

to investigate the question of steam communication with the island, the Committee

of Council say that after long and careful consideration of the subject, and examina-

tion of persons, papers and records, the Parliamentary Committee reported on the

18th April, 1883, in the following words :—
" It is the unanimous opinion of the members of committee, confirmed by the

testimony of witnesses of large practical experience, that no steamt-hips can be built

capable of keeping up continuous communication in midwinter.*'

The undersigned have examined the report of the said Parliamentary Committee

and have failed to discover therein that they come to this conclusion.

The Island Legislature, in their memorial to Her Majesty, having instanced the

anxiety of the Dominion to fulfil its obligations to British Columbia by the construc-

tion, at an enormous cost, of the Canadian Pacific Railway, as contrasted with the

apathy and neglect exhibited in carrying out its pledged faith with Prince Edward

Island in the matter of continuous communication, the Committee of Council pro-

ceeded to institute a comparison between the amounts contributed to the general

revenue by British Columbia and Prince Edward Island, stating them at $942,095.10

and $ 1 93,478. 6b' respectively.

Before proceeding to remark upon this point, the undersigned desire to submit

that the question of comparaiive contributions, on either side, is one altogether apart

from the issue in this case, which is simply one of performing the terms of a most

solemn compact.
There is a not unimportant factor, which should entor into a consideration of

the amounts contributed by the two Provinces, to which reference has been made.

The Halifax Commission, sitting under the provisions of the Treaty of Washington,

awarded Great Britain the sum of $5,500,000, to be paid by the United States, for the

privilege of using, for twelve years, the fisheries in waters of Eastern Canada and

upon the coast of Newfoundland. This amount was duly paid by the United States

to the Imperial Government, who thereupon handed over to Newfoundland the sam

of $1,000,000 as the share of that island. Prince Edward Island, like Newfoundland,

ratified the treaty while a separate Province, and did not, at the time of Confedera-

tion, cede to Canada its right to compensation, and as the whole consensus ofevidence

before the Commission tended to prove that the fisheries on the coast of Prince

Edward Island were the most valuable of any to which the United States fishermen

were admitted, the island claimed the sum of $1,250,000 as its share under the award.

This demand, although frequently presented, the Dominion Government have steadily

ignored and have retained in the Federal Treasury, the amount which the island still

claims as justly its right. The undersigned submit, that in any consideration of the

.contribution to the general revenue, Prince Edward Island has a right to receive

credit for the interest at four per cent, upon the sum claimed, and which would

amount annually to $50,000.

The undersigned cannot refrain from expressing their surprise that the Commit-

tee of Council, aware, as they must have been, of the unequal circumstances of the

two Provinces, should have adopted so unfair a comparison as that they propose now

to review, and which is based upon partial and misleading returns. The position of

the two Provinces present no. points of similarity. The figures quoted are for the

year ended 30th June, 1884. At that time British Columbia possessed no direct

means of communication with the settled portions of the Dominion at any season of

the year, and accordingly was compelled to purchase almost all its supplies directly

from other countries. These imports all paid duty at the ports of entry in British

5
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Columbia, and the amounts collected are credited to that Province. With Prince
Edward Inland, however, the circumstances are vastly different. OwiDg to the prox-
imity to the older Provinces a very large proportion (at least three-fourths) of the
dutiable goods which its people use is purchased from wholesale houses in Quebec,
Ontario, Nova Scotia and New Brunswick. As will be readily understood, the duties
upon these goods are collected at the ports of entry, and go to swell the apparent
contributions of the other Provinces to the Dominion Exchequer. The Customs
receipts (8171,443.89, quoted by the Committee of Council at $170,863,40) represent
only the duties upon the goods which the island imports directly from countries out-
side of Canada, so that it is manifestly unfair, under such circumstances, to institute
a comparison between British Columbia and Prince Edward Island. It is much
to be regretted that the Dominion Government should labor under the grave mis-
apprehension that the Customs duties collected in the ports of a Province can at all

indicate its contributions to the general revenue. By a parity of reasoning the metro-
politan county of Middlesex, in Great Britain, might claim that it contributes the
greater proportion of the Customs revenues of the United Kingdom, while outlying
or inland agricultural counties, such as Suffolk or Bucks, might be held as not yield-
ing adequately to the Imperial Exchequer.

The difficulty of arriving at an absolutely correct calculation of the amount of
dutiable goods which the people of Prince Edward Island consume cannot fail to be
appreciated, yet the undersigned submit that there are several methods by which it

may fairly be estimated. It must be premised that the people of the island are very
large consumers of dutiable goods for the reason that they being chiefly engaged in
agriculture and fishing, their manufactures are very small compared with the rest of
Canada, valuing, according to the last census returns, only $31.3.:* per head to $72.63
per head of the other Provinces.

In proof of the assertion that the people of the island are principally engaged in,

agriculture and fishing, the undersigned would again advert to the census returns of
1881, which show that (the North-West Territories not being included).

One-half the area of Prince Edward Island is cultivated.
Only one-twenty-fifth of the other Provinces is cultivated.
Prince Edward Island has a population of 51 to the square mile.
The other Provinces only 4*72.

Prince Edward Island owns 55 animals of live stock for every 100 acres of
improved land.

The other Provinces only 38.

In field products Prince Edward Island raises to the acre of improved land 108f
bushels.

The other Provinces only 61J bushels.

From the fisheries Prince Edward Island produces $17.08 per head value.
The other Provinces $3.55.

The people of the island are generally in comfortable circumstances, in proof of
which may be adduced the amount of deposits per head in the savings banks, which
averages $16.59 for the island against $7.66 for the rest of the Dominion.

These figures clearly prove that the people of Prince Edward Island, from the
fact of their not being extensive manufacturers, are under the necessity of using
imported goods to a large extent, while the fertility of their soil, the value of their
fisheries and their general independence demonstrate their ability to purchase. This
being understood the undersigned submit the following calculations, designed to show
that the imports of dutiable goods into the island are very much larger than sug-
gested by the Committee of Council, and consequently the contributions to the
revenue proportionately greater.

Method 1.

The average revenue of the Dominion from Customs and Excise for the three
years ended 30th June, 1884, was $27,603,479. The population of Prince Edward
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Island to that of the whole Dominion is in the proportion of 1 to 397 Upon this

ratio, the island's share of the Customs and Excise revenue would amount to $695,301.

Method 2.

In 18? 2, the year before its admission into the

"Union, Prince Edward Island imported

directly from countries beyond Canada,

goods valued at $1,372,581

The duty on which amounted to $184,22?

And from Canada goods the growth and
manufacture of other countries, valued

approximately at 429,354

The duty on which amounted to, 89,168

$1,801,935 $273,395

It will surely not be argued that in thirteen years with a large increase in popu-

lation the island's imports from countries outride the Dominion have decreased from

$1,801,935 to $822,966, or over 45 per cent., yet this would appear to be the conten-

tion of the Committee of Council.

In 1861, the imports of the island amounted to $1,021,669 ;
in 1872, they had

increased to $2,439,064, or at the rate of 138-9 per cent. At the same rate its imports

from countries beyond the Dominion should have increased from $1,801,935 in 1872

to $4 304,824 in 1^84, which at the present average tariff (free and dutiable combined)

of 18-64 per cent., would give a Customs revenue of $802,419.

Method 3.

It is a well established principle that the imports and exports of a country bear

a reasonable relation to each other. The imports of the island for the ten years pre-

ceding Confederation aggregated in value £3,543,147 sterling, the exports in the

same period, £2,559.691 sterling, showing that the imports exceeded the exports by

about £100,000 Stirling or $500,000 annually The imports of the Dominion for the

last seventeen years aggregated in value $1,7:
: 2,9^5,486 ;» the exports in the same

period, $1,390,946,803, showing that the imports exceeded the exports by about

$20,000,000 annually, or in the same proportion, according to population, as the

imports of Prince Edward Island exceed the exports in the yeais already qnoted.

The exports of the island have steadily increased during the last twenty-five

years. In 1861 it exported to all countries goods valued at $79cf,810, which had

increased in 1872 to $1,497,058, or at the rate of 88f per cent.

In 1872 the island exported to countries beyond the Dominion goods valued at

$722,333, which had increased in 1884 to $1,310,039, or at the rate of 81J- per cent.

Apply this rate of increase to the island's imports from countries beyond the

Dominion in 1872, and we have as a result for 1884, imports valued at $3,267,509.

But the figures, contained in the Dominion Trade and Navigation Eeturns, do

not represent the total exports of the island to countries beyond the Dominion, inas-

much as a considerable proportion, being shipped through Nova S sbtia and New
Brunswick territory, is credited to the exports of those provinces. The annual

export of horses from the island to the United States is not less than 1,500, valued

at $150,000. The Dominion returns for 18fc3-84 credit the island with only 256,

valued at $27,486 . This is but one instance of many. A considerable part of the

large trade which the island does in eggs with the United States, is credited to New
Brunswick, while fish and potatoes, which are largely exported to Newfoundland, St.

Pierre, and the West Indies are much of them credited to Nova Scotia, being shipped

by the way of Halifax. In view of these facts, it would be within the mark to

estimate, as indeed the Committee of Council »dmit, that the island's foreign export

trade has doubled since 1872. Apply the same rate of increase to its imports from
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countries beyond the Dominion, as they etood in 187-2, aad we have a3 a result for
1884, imports valued at $3,603,,i7l, yielding, under an 18 per ce >t. tariff, an annual
revenue of $671/; 68.

The exports of Prince Edward Island, since Confederation, have increased in a
much larger ratio than have those of the Dominion, as the following figures will
show :

—

The total exports of the Dominion for 1871-72 were $82.639,683 ; for 1883-84,
-exclusive of the island, $90,096,437, or an increase of only 9^ per cent., as against
100 per cent., by which the if land's exports have increased in the same time.

To recapitulate the results of the various methods:
Method 1 $695,301

do 2 B02,4lU
do 3 671,668

Average annual contribution by the island from Cus-
toms and Excise $723,129

To which add interest on the sum claimed as island's

share of fishery award (less amount expended for

fishing bounties, $8,569) 41,430

$764,559

This sum of $764,559, the undersigned submit, should be accepted as closely
approximating the annual contributions of Prince Edward Island to the Dominion
Exchequer, and is much more likely to be within than in excess of the amount.

In proof of the assertion that a vast proportion of the dutiable goods which not
only Prince Edward Island consumes, but Nova Scotia and New Brunswick as well,
is imported from wholesale houses principally in the Province of Quebec, the under-
signed present the following table, showing the amount per head apparently
contributed to the Customs and Excise revenues, in the following Provinces, in 1881
and 1884, respectively:

—

1881. 1884.

Quebec „ $ 7-29 $ 7*54
Ontario..... 4*78 5-14
New Brunswick 4-84 4-93
Nova Scotia, , ; 4*00 4*77
British Columbia... 13-09 19*10
Prince Edward Island 2.76 1.7S

It is absurd to suppose that the foregoing figures represent the actual con-
sumption, per head, of dutiable goods by the people of the various Provinces ; rather
do they prove that Quebec is the great imparting and distributing Province for the
whole of Eastern Canada. The extraordinary poicentage for British Columbia is

due, as the undersigned have already pointed out, to the peculiar circumstances of
that Province in being compelled to import, almost exclusively, from countries
beyond the Dominion, as well as to the inflation of trade, consequent upon the
construction of the Canadian Pacific Railway and other large public works, no less
than twelve millions of dollars having been expended thereon in 1885. Now that
the Canadian Pacific Railway has been completed, it cannot be expected that the
collections in British Columbia will be so large in the future as they have been in
i he past. As has been the case with Prince Edward Island, so it will be in that
Province. While the Canadian Pacific Eailway will pour into British Columbia
British and West Indian goods, Quebec will continue to be the groat importing and
distributing Province, and in proportion as the Customs returns of British Columbia
decrease, those of Quebec will increase.

The Committee of Council then proceed to make a comparison as between British
Oolumbia, Manitoba, the North-West Territories and the island, their figures being
as follows :

—
8
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Total revenue contributed by British Columbia, Manitoba and the North-West

Territories, 8 i,833,6*8.86, as against Prince Edward Island, $193,478.66.

The undersigned have only to remark that the same observations which they

have applied to British Columbia hold good in the case of Manitoba and the North-

West Territories. No direct communication existed between these portions of the

Dominion and the rest of Canada when these returns were compiled, and consequently

large imports of dutiable goods were made from the United States, with which country

direct communication did exist. The immense inflation of trade, consequent upon

the construction, at so rapid a rate, of the Canadian Pacific Railway, upon which not

less than or.e hundred millions of dollars have been expended since 1881, accounts

chiefly for the large returns from Manitoba and the North-West Territories, as well

as from British Columbia.

The undersigned feel that no further arguments are necessary to prove that

Prince Edward Island pays directly and indirectly into the Dominion Exchequer,

Customs and Excise duties, at least four times as great as that stated by the Committee

of Council, while if the annual interest upon the amount claimed by the island as its

share of the fishery award be included, its contributions will be still further in excess

of the sum estimated. _ . ,

As evidence of the desire of the Dominion Government to pr omote the interest

of Prince Edward Island, the Committee of Council submit a table of the expenditure

upon the island in the year 1884, amounting in the aggregate of $b89 954,91

Upon the first item, that of interest charged the island on the public debt which

the Dominion assumed, the undersigned observe that it is calculated at 5 per cent.

As the whole amount of the island bonds, which the Dominion assumed at the time

of union, has been paid off, with the exception possibly of $1,000, the undersigned

consider that it is unreasonable to charge the island 5 per cent, on her proportion

of the public debt, while the Dominion is able to borrow at 4 per cent, and while the

latter is the average rate paid upon the aggregate debt of Canada, /he difference

between the two rates would cause a decrease in the amount charged ot *W,Uel 51.

In like manner interest is charged at 5 per cent, upon the capital expenditure on

the Island Railway. Calculating the interest at 4 per cent, would reduce the sum

7
The undersigned observe, also, that the expense of operating the railway, in

excess of the receipts, is charged at $91,924.01. They desire to remark that this

amount includes the sum of $lo,000 of extraordinary expenditure, which should not

he debited to the island, and they consider that it should be deducted.

The undersigned also observe that the subsidies to the steamers employed in the

summer and winter service, and to the men engaged in the capes crossing, :uaount-

inff to $32,876, are charged in full to the island This they consider unfair. Many

of the inhabitants of the other Provinces derive equal advantages from this service

with the people of the island, and the means of communication provided are used to

a much larger extent by the residents of the mainland than by those of the island.

The undersigned, therefore, consider it only just that a portion of the expenditure

thus incurred should be charged to Canada, and submit that not more than one-half

of the sum expended in such connection should be debited to the island, in which

case an abatement would result of $16,438.
m

The subsidy to Fishwick's steamboat of $3,000 for communication between

Halifax, Cape Breton and the island, the undersigned submit, has no right to be

charged in full to the island; they object to more than one-third ot the amouut being

so debited, and then a further reduction would be affected of $2,000.

These sums, which the undersigned consider should not in justice be charged to

the island, amount in the aggregate to $79,308.71, thus reducing the expenditure for

1884, as stated by the Committee of Council, to $610,646.20.

To recapitulate, the undersigned submit the following comparative statement ot

what the island annually contributes to the general revenue, and what it receives in

return :

—

9
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Average annual contribution by the island for
Customs and Excise $723,129

To which add interest on the sum claimed by
the island as its share of the fishery award,
less the sum paid for fishing bounties 41,430

Sum claimed by Committee of Council to be
expended on the island $689,954

Less amounts which undersigned contend
should be deducted 79,308

$764,559

610,646

Excess of annual contributions of Prince
Edward Island over Dominion expenditure $'53,913

In proof of the efforts of the Dominion Government to provide improved means
of communication, the Committee of Council adduce various items of expenditure
since Confederation aggregating $951,698. Among these items appears the sum of
$150,000, appropriated for the construction of a pier at Cape Tormentine, which has
not been expended, the site, so far as the undersigned are aware, not having yet been
determined. Another item is that of $118,400, subsidy for the construction of a
branch railway to Cape Tormentine. This road is only about half completed, and the
subsidy paid up to November last, when the report of the Committee of Council was
adopted, did not exceed $20,000. Neither do the undersigned consider that the
whole of this subsidy should be charged against the island. The work is situate in
the Province of New Brunswick, and must be presumed to be ofgreat benefit thereto,
otherwise a private company would not undertake to build it without any previous
assurance of sssistance from the Federal Government. Besides, the subsidy has only
been granted in accordance with a policy pursued by the Dominion Government of
giving aid to certain lines of railway on the mainland. The sum of $12,400, to pay
the Island Government for a pier at Cape Traverse, is also included in the expendi-
ture, though at the time the Committee of Council made their report, that amount
had not been paid. Another item is for cable service, which doubtless means the
subsidy of £400 sterling annually, paid to the Anglo-American Telegraph Company.
As the assumption of this subsidy by the General Government was under a distinct
and seperate article of the terms of Confederation, and has no communication by
etcfm across the straits, the undersigned object to its being included in the expendi-
ture for the improvement of steam communication. This subsidy, for twelve years,
amounts to $23,372. The Committee of Council include also in their memorandum
the subsidies lor the summer mail service and for the winter crossing at the capes.
As fcimilar amounls were paid by the Island Government previous to Confederation,
and as 1 hey represent only the cost of maintaining the communication which the
island b?d before the union, the undersigned cannot admit that they should be
included as expenditure for improving the means of communication.

The undersigned consider that these various items to which they have taken
objection, should be deducted from the amount which the Committee of Council
claim to have expended, when the memorandum of expenditure would read as
follows :

—

Amount claimed to have been expended $951,698
Deduct for Cape Tormentine pier, not expended.. $150,000
Allow one-half paid as subsidy to Cape Tormen-

tine Branch Eailway and deduct balance... 108,400
Deduct half of summer mail and ice-boat service 196,073
Deduct for Cape Traverse pier 12,400
Deduct cable service 23 372

- 490,245

having $461,453
10
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as the amount actually expended within the last twelve years to meet the wishes of

the island and to give improved means of communication with the mainland.

In the foregoing pages the undersigned have endeavored to show and, as they

consider, have clearly established :

—

1. That the Dominion Government voluntarily, and without any Holicitation on

the part of the island, covenanted to provide continuous communication by efficient

steam service, winter and summer, between the island and the ma nland— that thia

engagement they have entirely failed to carry out. Further, that the Dominion

Government have never, up to the present winter, provided in any manner for the

transport of passengers when obliged to resort to the capes' route, where they have

not even attempted the use of steamers; that they have failed to carry out the

promises made by the Ministers to the representatives of the island ; and, generally,

that they have displayed great inactivity and reluctance to improve such communi-

cation as has been afforded.

2. That the Committee of Council have erred in representing that the Dominion

expenditures exceed, by more than three times, the amount received from the island

;

the undersigned having plainly demonstrated, as they believe, that the island con-

tributes to the Dominion Exchequer an amount far in excess of what is expended.

3. That the amount which the Committee of Council claim to have been

expended by the Dominion Government in the improvement of the meats of com-

munication with the mainland is largely in excess of the sum actually paid therefor.

Referring to other points, the Committee of Council state that " since the union,

a subsidy of $1,000 a year has been paid by the Dominion Government to the Prince

Edward Island Steam Navigation Company, to run steamers daily during the season

of open navigation, from Shediac, in New Brunswick, to Summerside, on the island,

and from Pictou, in Nova Scotia, to Charlottetown and Georgetown." The under-

signed desire to correct a misapprehension under which the Committee of Council

seem to labor, that daily communication exists between Nova Scotia and the island.

This is not the case, as the steamers connect with Pictou only four times a week. Lest

it might be inferred that the payment of $10,000 a year for this service was under a

recent agreement entered into by the Dominion Government with the Steam Naviga-

tion Company, the undersigned desire to say that such agreement was made by the

Island Government previous to Confederation, and the Dominion, in now paying the

amount, is only carrying out that agreement.

The statement of the Committee of Council that " previous to the union, paddle-

wheel steamers were employed," might lead to the supposition that since then the

Dominion Government have obtained the substitution of screw-steamers. The under-

signed desire to say that the identical boats, which plied on the route for nearly ten

years previous to the union, are still the only ones employed in that service.

Adverting to the report of the. Committee of Parliament m 1883, upon the best

means of improving the communication between the island and the mainland, the

undersigned find that many recommendations were made upon which they desire to

offer some remarks.
.

. ,
"'

, ,

That Committee recommended that the crossing at the cape should be under-

taken by the Government, rather than let by contract, yet this suggestion was not

acted upon until the present winter. v

In regard to the iceboat service at the capes, the Committee of Parliament recom-

mended that stations for observation and signal service should be adopted for the

guidance of the boats while crossing. No such stations have been provided

.

The Committee of Parliament also stated it as their opinion, from the evidence

before them, that a small screw-steamer could be used during a considerable portion

of the winter in connection with the iceboats, and could be safely docked in the board

ice when not at work, and they recommended the Government to take measures to test,

by actual experiment, the feasibility of this project. No such steamer has been pro-

vided nor has any attempt been made to test the practicability of ^uch a project.

The Committee of Parliament further reported that the boats of the Steam Navi-

gation Company, subsidised by the Dominion Government, weie altogether made-
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quate to perform the work required of them, that, being driven by paddle-wheels,
they are not capable of contending with ice, and that suitable screw-boats could con-
tinue crossing about three weeks later in the fall, and commence two or three weeks
earlier in the spring, and they recommend that good substantial boats should be
provided to meet tho requirements or the island, and that at least one of these boats
should be a screw-boat, of such construction as would enable her to run as late in
the fall and as early in the spring as a proper regard for the safety of life and pro-
perty would permit.

This recommendation has been wholly disregarded, and, notwithstanding the
fact that the contract with the Steam Navigation Company expired two years
ago, the same paddle-wheel boats, which have been engaged in the service for the
last twenty-two years, are still employed.

The Committee of Parliament further recommended that, inasmuch as the
evidence taken before them went to show that the " Northern Light " was fast becom-
ing unfit for service, another suitable steamer should be provided to take her place.

This recommendation has also been disregarded, the " Northern Light " being
Still employed, and although she annually undergoes some repairs, her seaworthiness
is open to grave question.

The undersigned have thus deemed it necessary to call attention, at considerable
length, to the indifference shown by the Dominion Governmen t to the recommenda-
tions of a Committee of Parliament who, the Committee of Council state, reached their
conclusions " after long and careful consideration of the subject, an examination of
persons, papers and records."

The Committee of Council say that " the change from sailing vessels to steamers
for summer, appears to have been tho only improvement effected by the Island Gov-
ernment iu their means of communication in fifty years, although having control of
a larger sum in revenue than the island now pays into the Dominion." The unfair-
ness of the latter part of this statement, the undersigned having already pointed out,
they need not again refer to it. They would merely remark, that the promise to
overcome the obstructions which, for so large a portion of the year, had cut the peo-
ple of the island off from connection with the mainland, was one of the principal
inducements for them to enter the union, and they considered that, by confeder-
ating with Canada, the co-operation of many of the people of the other provinces,
who were interested equally with the people of the island, would be secured.

The correctness of this calculation, it is instructive to note that about three years
ago an order was issued by the Department of Marine, restricting the number of
passengers upon any trip to 30. The making of such an order, the undersigned
submit, is sufficient proof that at times the passenger travel is large; indeed the
steamer has occasionally carried from 80 to 100 cersons. It may be remarked that
the officers of the " Northern Light" have found it impossible to enforce the order
restricting the number of passengers to 30, and that it has remained inoperative
almost ever since its promulgation.

On this point the undersigned desire to introduce an extract from a speech de-
livered last session in the Senate by the Hon. Mr. Haythorne, wherein he called at-
tention to the very large number of passengers crossing at times in the " Northern
Light," and to the want of accommodation afforded by that steamer. He spoke as
follows :

—

" On my return home from my duties in this House last spring, I was detained
en the mainland for two or three days awaiting a change of weather, which would
enable the " Northern Light " to come to Pictou. A telegram informed us that she
ha i left Georgetown on her passage. Ultimately she arrived, bringing, as it was
said, about 100 passengers. The point to which I wish to draw the attention of the
Huuse, and particularly the attention of the Government, is, that there were from 75
to 87 passengers on board on her return. My hon. friend who sits opposite (Mr.
Montgomery) says there were 81 passengers on board, but this I have no hesitation
in saying, there was barely standing room, to say nothing of sitting accommodation
which one expects to find in a passenger steamer. Hon. gentlemen might suppose

12
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that there was a simple remedy for this by instructing the captain not to take more
than a certain number of passengers on board. Well, that of course would be a

remedy, but it would be a vast inconvenience, and it would be something more, it

would be a cruel thing, because it is within my knowledge that last spring numbers

of poor people were waiting for a passage across and they had not the means to pay

their expenses if they had been long detained there. I was informed that some of

them went out and sought work while waiting for the arrival of the " Northern

Light " and therefore, while taking fewer passengers might be a remedy for the

danger, it would be cruel, when the Government have another vessel fully capable of

assisting the "Northern Light," to detain passengers there."

The Committee of Council state that the small passenger list of the " Northern

Light " and the large annual deficit in working the Island Eailway are the best

evidence of the limited travel to be provided for. The undersigned submit that this

argument constitutes no justification for the failure of the Dominion Government to

carry out their obligations to the island. So long as communication with the main-

land is at all certain the traffic is large, but with the irregular movements of the
" Northern Light " and the doubt that exists as to her seaworthiness, it is not extra-

ordinary that travel and traffic are limited. So far as the Island Eailway is concerned,

traffic is restricted for the reason that after the close of navigation no shipments can

be made from the island. Were the island's communication with the Intercolonial

Eailway and the other railways of the Dominion continuous, as Canada solemnly

promised it should be, the case would be different.

The Committee of Council desire it to be borne in mind that the Dominion

Government did m>t undertake the carrying of agricultural produce, nor freight of

any kind, although they have at all times afforded facility for the transport of any

freight offering. The facility afforded may be judged of when it is explained that the

freight capacity of the "Northern Light " is not more than 200 barrels. But while

it is true that the Dominion Government did not expressly undertake the carrying of

freight, it is well known that the freight traffic is more remunerative than passenger

traffic, and that if a large and more powerful steamer had been provided, having

increased cargo room, the returns would have been much greater and the outlay pro-

portionately less.

The Committee of Council say "that it will be claimed, on behalf of the island,

that the population consumes goods the produce of the mainland, but that while this

is true, the same occurred previous to the Confederation," and they proceed to quote

the value of the imports of the island from the Dominion in 1873, upon which duies

were collected at $1,067,480. The undersigned desire to say that this amount

accurately represents the value of the island's imports in 1872, from and through the

Dominion of Canada, but that in those imports there were included dutiable goods

the growth and manufacture of other countries, valued at $371,163, as also articles on

which the island levied no duty, valued at $58,190; so that, these amounts being

deducted, the sum of $638,127, would represent the real value of our imports from

the Dominion.
The Committee of Council state that the total value of goods entered for consump-

tion in Prince Edward Island from all countries in 187 -', was $1,605,241. The under-

signed cannot conceive where such information was obtained. They have carefully

examined the trade returns of the island for that year and they find that the total

imports into the island amounted in value to $2,439,078, nearly, if not all, of which

were entered for home consumption. The undersigned must express their regret

that so grave a misapprehension should be entertained by the Committee of Council

as to the trade of the island.

The Committee of Council say that " no doubt the same interprovincial trade

continues with this chango in favor of Prince Edward Island, that the good.^ from the

other provinces are now free of duty, whilst previous to the union they paid duties

the same as on importations from other countries." There can be no doubt that

interprovincial trade continues as die present tariff of the Dominion is framed with

the special view of encouraging manufactures. This trade is, however, much more
18
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advantageous to the other provinces than to the island, as it is impossible that manu-
factures can be carried on on the island to any great extent, while regular communi-
cation with the mainland is interrupted for over four months of the year That the
people of the island obtain certain goods from the other provinces, free of duty is
true, but the statement is, nevertheless, misleading. Protected by a high Customs
duty the Quebec or Ontario manufacturer is able to obtain, in many lines prices
nearly, if not altogether, equal to the cost on duty of the same goods of British or
foreign manufacture. Situated as Canada is, and having a view to the infant state of
her manufactures and the tariff policy of the United States, the undersigned believe
the fiscal policy of Canada to be a justifiable one, but while the terms of union in
the matter of steam communication remain unfulfilled, the people of the island are
precluded to a considerable extent from participating in the benefits which that policy
is calculated to nrmfrvr f 7

The Committee of Council, while admitting that the island may have felt incon-
venience from the interruption of the trips of the " Northern Light," yet consider that
the material interests of the province have not greatly suffered owing to the fact that
its exports to foreign countries have nearly doubled from 1872 to 1884. The undersigned
fail to comprehend why this argument should be admitted in justification of the failure
of the Dominion Government to carry out the terms of union. That the island has
improved, is notwithstanding the inaction of the Dominion Government and its pro-
gress is due to its natural resources and the great industry of its people and tends toshow how much greater its prosperity would have been had it enjoyed the continuous
communication which was guaranteed it, and which it had a right to expect. The
island s contributions to the Federal Treasury in excess of the expenditure, together
with the money which has been uselessly expended upon the inefficient communica-
tion afforded would very properly be adequate to defray the interest upon a sum
necessary to construct a work which would effectually overcome its isolation Here
the undersigned desire to say that tne Ministry of Prince Edward Island so far from
regarding the Canadian Pacific Eailway as a local work for the benefit of
-British Columbia only (as alleged by the Committee of Council) have always warmly
supported the present administration of the Dominion in their policy of constructing
that great national highway, and all that they now ask is that a work of vast impor-
tance not only to the island but to the whole of the Dominion as solemnly guaran-
teed as was the railway to British Columbia, should be undertaken and brought to a
successful completion. °

Within the past few months a scheme has been proposed, which, it is claimed,
will successfully remove the disabilities from which the island has so long suffered.
Jingmeers of the highest standing in America and whose reputations are well estab-
lished in Britain, have given it as their opinion that it is practicable to lay a metallic
sub-way across the Straits of Northumberland, through which railway communica-
tion could be effected, and that the cost of such an undertaking would not exceed asum which it would not be unreasonable to ask the Government of Canada to expend
During the past summer soundings were taken, and the bed of the straits was found
to be admirably adapted for the lying of the tube, the Admiralty charts corroborating
the results of the examination which was made.

+u
The Committee of Counoil 8Peak of the "liberal treatment" of the island by

the Dominion Government, and that it has received special consideration on account
of its isolated position, though possessing a population less than some cities on
the mainland. To this statement the undersigned desire to except. They
have clearly proved, as they believe, that Prince Edward Island contributes to the
general revenue more than is returned in expenditure. To the unfortunate misap-
prehension that the island is being treated with exceptional liberality, and that it
does not return to the general revenue one-third of the amount expended, is probably
due the invidious distinction made by the General Government in the remuneration
of their officials on the island. The same erroneous impression has possibly influenced
the General Government in declining, up to the present time, to maintain many of
the public piers in the Province, although expressly bound to do so by the British
North America Act. J
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The Committee of Council say the " Northern Light " was placed at Cbirlotte-
town as headquarters, her officers and crew are inhabitants of the island, and her
unceasing and hazardous efforts to make communication, in the severest weather,
caDnot be unknown to the Island Government. The Committee of Council seem to
entertain the idea that the officers and crew of the " Northern Light," being island
men, are, consequently, bold enthusiasts, and would be willing to incur great risk in
the effort to maintain communication with the mainland. The undersigned desire to
remark that, whatever zeal the officers of the " Northern Light " have displayed in
the performance of their duties, thejr ardor must have been considerably dampened
by the instructions which were issued some time ago by the Department of
Marine, and which are as follows :~

" Ottawa, 16th January, 1883,

t* Captain Finlayson, steamer ' Northern Light.

'

" Telegram received urging Department order you run. Eesponsibility is with
yon. Expect you to run no undue risks.

" A. W. McLELAN."

Two days later, on receipt of a telegram from Captain Finlayson asking instruc-
tions, the following was sent him :

—
" Ottawa, 18th January, 1883.

" Captain Finlayson, steamer ' Northern Light.

'

" With knowledge of the ice, you must be judge, and held responsible for safety
of boat. Incur no undue risks.

" Wm. SillTH."

" Ottawa, 12th January, 1884.

" Sie,—Referring to my letter of 14th December, 1882, I have again to instruct
you to use your own judgment as to whether the ** Northern Light " should run, and
you are to incur no risk whereby the safety of the vessel may be endangered by
being caught in the ice : No risk also is to be incurred for the purpose of carrying
over any particular passenger or passengers, and the Department expects that yon
will use your judgment in all matters affecting the running of the boat, and will
hold you responsible for her safety.

" Wm. SMITH, Deputy Minister of Marine.'
1

" Captain A. Finlayson, steamer " Northern Light."

The undersigned submit that these instructions were quite sufficient to dis-
courage and deter the officers of the " Northern Light " from making those strenuous
efforts to effect a crossing which otherwise they might have been disposed to do.

Under the British North America Act, and the terms agreed upon subsequently,
with the various Provinces, Canada undertook to effect the following great public
works, with the object of connecting, by the bonds of commercial relationship, the
political union which had been entered into, viz. :—The Canadian Pacific Railway,
the Intercolonial Railway, the deepening and widening of the great canal^, and com-
munication by steam, winter and summer, wiih Prince Edward Island. The first

three of these undertakings have been carried out with the cordial concurrence and
support of the people of Prince Edward Island. The sum of about $43,000,000, a
much larger amount than was anticipated, has been spent on the Intercolonial Rail-
way, and although that road has not yet paid more than the working expenses, the
General Government have granted large subsidies to a competing line of ra lway.
The people of Prince Edward Island are very far from objecting to the faith of the
country being maintained inviolate, and to liberal expenditure being made for neces-
sary public works, and have cheerfully borne their bhare of the barrens, but they do
complain that the communication guaranteed them by the terms of Confederation
is not provide!, although the expenditure necessary to do so would be very small
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compared with the enormous outlay iDCurred on the other public works to which
the undersigned have referred.

With regard to the claim for compensation by reason of the non-fulfilment of the
terms of Confederation, the undersigned submit that a review of the facts adduced
will conclusively show that the island has suffered great loss, and is therefore entitled

to indemnity. Should further evidence on this point be needed, the undersigned will

be pleased to supply the same, as well as to furnish any other information that may
be required by your Lordship, in order to obtain a full consideration of the whole
case.

We have the honor to be your Lordship's most obedient humble servants,

W. W. SULLIVAN.
D. FERGUSON.

Eight Hon. Earl Granville, K.G., Secretary of State for the Colonies.

(Confidential .

)

Printedfor the use of the Colonial Office.

North American, 1

No. 117. j
Prince Edward Island.

Memorandum by Sir Charles Tupperonthe observations submitted by the Prince Edward*
Island delegates to Earl Granville in their paper of 1st March, 1886

.

The lejoinder, addressed to Earl Granville, of the Prince Edward Island dele-

gates, Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson, to the report of the Committee of the Privy
Council ot Canada, respecting the memorial to Her Majesty on the subject of the

communication between the island and the mainland, commences by a general justifi-

cation of the memorial in question.

Then they quote from the report of the Committee of the Privy Council, Messrs.

McLelan and Campbell, " that it is altogether improbable that any man who had
seen the Straits of Northumberland, or had any knowledge of ice obstruction in mid-

winter, could have supposed it possible to construct a steamer capable of crossing

when the ice is at its heaviest in that season." They do not, however, comment upon
this fctatement or deny it, but content themselves by remarking that the offer of con-

tinuous steam communication, summer and winter, was entirely a voluntary act on
the part of the Dominion and they bubmit that it should be carried out. They do
not contend that it is practicable to do so, but merely repeat the language of the

memorial to Her Majesty that "no sufficient disposition has been shown by the
Dominion Government to fulfil their obligations towards the island in this matter."

Then they state the failure of the first vessel employed in 18*74 and lb75, the " Albert."

The unsuitability of the " Northern Light," put in the service in 1876, is also com-
mented upon and it is added that " she was specially designed for the service." The
report of Messrs. McLelan and Campbell gives a clear answer to the allegations so far

mentioned, in the first place they point out very fairly that prior to Confederation

there was a regular service during the summer season, but that for five months or

more during the latter part of tho autumn, the winter and ihe early spring, there was
no steam (service at all, the mails, and presumably passengers, being carried by ice

boats from Cape Traverse to Cape Tormentine and thence by sleigh to Amherst, the

land carriage being 5'J miles and a distance from cape to cape nine miles. This

appears to demonstrate very clearly that the Island Government had not found

"contiguous steam service" practicable during the winter season, otherwise the

assumpcion is that they would have adopted it before Confederation. But they appear

to imagine that all the difficulties which to them had been insurmountable should

have entirely vanished when the island joined the Dominion. In the circumstances

the phrase ; ' continuous stoam service " might fairly and properly have been accepted

with the qualification " as far as practicable," and the obligations have been carried

out by the Dominion Government in this spirit. The impossibility of continuous
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steam communication in mid-winter has been fully demonstrated, as pointed out by-
Messrs. McLelan and Campbell, but the efforts of the Dominion have been so far
successful as to reduce the period of interruption to an average of one-third ot what
it was previous to the union. Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson say that the * Northern
Light " is not suitable for the service, and was not specially designed for the work.
They apparently forget that in the joint address to the Governor General from the
.Legislative Council and the House of Assembly, in 1881, this same vessel is spoken
of as having been " constructed expressly for the work and placed upon the route,"
although complaint was made of the irregular and unsatisfactory trips she made.
Upon this point Messrs. McLelan and Campbell say: "The Dominion Government,
after a most careful and anxious enquiry, contracted with a Mr. Sewell, of Quebec,
to complete a powerful steamer on a model specially designed for ice service. In
December, 1816, this steamer, named the " Northern Light," was completed and
placed upon the route between Pictou and Charlottetown, and has been maintained
each winter to date at an aggregate cost, including construction, of $249,956.57.

No representation appears to have been made in the matter to the Dominion
Government until 1881, although the " Northern Light " was put on in 1876. Messrs.
Sullivan and Ferguson state the average period the vessel is unavailable during the
winter as seventy days; in the address to Her Majesty, sixty-four days is given.
and the Parliamentary Committee at Ottawa, 1883, gave forty-eight days as the
average. The latter also said in their report that " the early records kept by the
captain of the ' Northern Light/ and the testimony given by the officers, show that
the heavy ice encountered was the cause that compelled him to discontinue crossing in
midwinter," and further that " the evidence of the officers examined is also to the
effect that the steamer is not sufficient to overcome the difficulties of the winter
navigation, and although they suggest slight improvements on her model, which
would better fit her for the purposes for which she was intended, still are unani-
mously of opinion that no steamship can be built capable of keeping up continuous
communication in mid-winter between the island and the mainland." They add:
* We examined personally several gentlemen of large practical experience in cross-
ing from the island in the winter season, all of whom confirmed the above, and
whose evidence is hereto appended." This committee consisted of three representa-
tives from Prince Edward Island and two from the mainland, and surely their opinions
are worthy of credence and justify the contention of the Dominion Government that
the utmost has been done to carry out the terms under which the island entered the
union. Messrs. McLelan and Campbell, in their report also say: " If continuous
steam communication has not been maintained, it is certainly not because the
Dominion Government sought to avoid expense. The,' Northern Light ' is as
large and powerful a steamer as experience in Arctic exploration has proved advis-
able, and she is kept on full expense, equipped and ready to run at all times during
the entire winter, and were it possible to do so no additional expense would be incur-
red, except for fuel, whilst the cost of the ice-boat service would be saved, and the
construction of railways, piers and boathouses to and at Capes Traverse and Tormen-
tine rendered unnecessary." The Government have, it may be added, or are com-
mitted to spend about $951,698 in connection with the communication between
Prince Edward Island and the mainland. The remainder of the rejoinder addressed
to Lord Granville refers to other matters, some of which do not directly refer to the
questions at issue,

Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson call attention to the speech of Sir Alexander
Campbell in the Senate, in 1884, respecting the provisions of one of the lighthouse
steamers to supplement the " Northern Light " during the -winter, which certainly
seems to have been promised. Considering the narrowness of the strait, it appears
doubtful if a second steamer would be of much advantage. But in any case there is

no mention of the matter in the papers in the possession of the High Commissioner
for Canada.

They admit, as Messrs. McLelan and Campbell contended, that a railway to Cape
Traverse had been built and a pier constructed, although stating that the latter
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requires some alterations ; also that the railway to Cape Tormentine is being made
with the aid of a large subsidy from the Dominion Government. Complaint is made
that although appropriation has been made for a pier at, Cape Tormentine, its con-

struction has not yet been commenced. But the Dominion Government have said!

that it will be built, and no doubt the delay is owing to the time taken in laying the
railway with which it will be connected.

Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson combat the statement of Messrs. McLelan and
Campbell that the Island Government were fully conversant with the whole action

and plans of the Dominion Government, and raise a question respecting tho erection

of ooathouses in which some delay occurred. The boathouses were, however, finished1

last year, and the criticism mentioned therefore »eems, in this view, to be rather cap-

tious, specially as nothing is said in the same paragiaph about the railway and pier

at Cape Traverse, and the railway to, and the pier at Cape Tormentine, which the
Government have warmly taken up and of which it must be presumed tho Island

Government were fully informed,

It is stated also by Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson that " the Dominion Govern-

ment have totally neglected, ever since Confederation, to make any provision what-

ever for the transport of passengers when compelled to resort to the capes' route."

In explanation of this may be quoted an extract from a letter that has recently been

received from Mr. McLelan, the late Minister of Marine and Fisheries of Canada.
"

* The Northern Light' made regular trips this season untill the 27th January, or

some time last week. I took, as Minister of Marine and Fisheries, charge of the

crossing at the capes and there is now a good organization and equipment. The dele-

gates crossed by that route and I believe they said it was the first tine that they had

ever been brought over—that is, they had, on all previous occasions, to work their

Messrs. McLelan and Campbell, referring to the Parliamentary Committee of 1883,

state " it is the unanimous opinion of members of the Committee, confirmed by the tes-

timony of witnesses of large practical experience, that no steamships are capable of

keeping up continuous communication in mid-winter." Messrs. Sullivan and Fergu-

son say :
" The undersigned have examined the report of the said Par liamentary Com-

mittee and have failed to discover therein that they came to this conclusion." This may
be literally correct, but the actual wording of the report quoted below, of the Commit-

tee, shows that Messrs. McLelan and Campbell had every foundation for making the

statement. " The evidence of the officers examined is also to the effect that the steamer

is not sufficient to overcome the difficulties of the winter navigation, and although

they suggest slight improvements on her model which would better fit her for the

purposes for which she was intended, still are unanimously of opinion that no steam-

ship can be built capable of keeping up continuous communication in mid-winter

between the island and the mainland." " We examined personally several gentle-

men of large practical experience in crossing from the island in the winter seasons,

all of whom confirmed the above, and whose evidence is hereto appended."

Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson in their rejoinder deprecate the action of Messrs*

McLelan and Campbell in comparing the amounts contributed to the revenue by
British Columbia and-Prince Edward Island respectively. But they should remember
that the controversy was started in the memorial to Her Majesty by drawing attention

to the treatment the former Province was said to have received by the rapid con-

struction of the Canadian Pacific Eailway, although its population of white people

was comparatively small. It would have been far better had the special question at

issue been dealt with upon its merits ; but for the departure from this sound principle

the Dominion Government cannot be blamed.

Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson dispute altogether the accuracy of the proportion

of the revenue of the Dominion contributed by the island as specified by Messrs.

McLelan and Campbell, but before going into details they remark that in any such

calculations interest should be allowed on $1,250,000, the proportion of the Halifax

fishery award claimed by the island, which they say would annually amount to

$50 000. It must be remembered in the first place that the position in this matter of
18
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is ia^rrect, and gives an inaccurate ideaof the actual position of the island in this respect, opens up an interminable sourceof argument. Messrs. McLelan and Campbell quote this revenue as $193 47 4 asagainst $942,095 in British Columbia and $891,683 in Manitoba and the North ^est
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outside Canada, and that since Confederation a very large portion of the articlesconsumed come from the Maritime Provinces aod Quebec and Ontario, bavin*
?SS?J^Jutym those Provinces which should, in any revenue calculation, becredited to the inland They proceed to make hypothetical estimates of the actualimports and of the actual revenue, on various bases, assuming the importations to havebeen made direct and chargeable at an average duty of 18-64 per cent. Bv thesemethods they bring up the revenue contributed by the island to $764 559

hVnnT?^ free calculation. Then the larger figures of British Colum-
bia and Manitoba and the North-West Territories are accounted for by stating
that at that time (1884) British Columbia possessed no direct means ofcommunication with the settled portions of the Dominion, at any season ofthe year and accordingly was compelled to purchase almost all its supplies
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British Columbia, and the amounts collected are credited to that province. Thesame reasons they allege also applied to Manitoba and the North- West Territories,
lnis does not seem to bear upon the question of " continuous steam service." It can-
not, however, be too often stated that the communication between the island and themainland has been more regular in winter since 1873, than bsfore Confederation, and
that the period of interruption is now not more than one-third of what it was, and
that a regular daily steam service is an impossibility as evidenced by the report of
the Parliamentary Committee, which, in 1883, enquired into the matter. But aparttrom this, the reasons advanced by Prince Edward Island to account for its small
revenue apply to every province more or less as there is a large general interprovincial
trade and as the island admittedly participates in such trade it must be presumed that
the inhabitants of the province find it to their advantage to do so rather than to get
their imports from other sources. &

ui.
Th

f
amounts spent annually in Prince Edward Island (in 1884 it was $689,954although this is disputed also) demonstrates the way in which the island has been

treated by the Dominion Government, and npon this point Messrs. McLelan and
Campbell say: "The liberal treatment of Prince Edward Island results from
the policy and practice of the Dominion Government, to watch over the interests
oi the smaller provinces, and Prince Edward Island from her isolated position,and with a population less than some cities on the mainland has received a special
<»nsideia;ion. Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson admit that the exports from the
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island to countries beyond the Dominion in 1884 were 81J per cent, more than they

were in 1872, and that the amount per head deposited in the savings bank averages

$16.59, as against $7.66 for the rest of the Dominion. This does not indicate that

much injury has resulted to the island from the want of continuous steam service,

and clearly proves the benefit derived from the connection of the island with the

Confederation ai=d the improved service since 18*73. The total Customs revenue of

the island in 1872 was about $302,000, and admitting for the sake of argument that

it amounts to $764,559, now this increase of 120 per cent, does not support their

case that injury has resulted to the island from the terms of the union not having

been fulfilled, and that it has obtained no advantage from joining the Dominion, and

from the encouragement that has been given to inter-provincial trade and manu-

facturing industries. Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson also object to the figures given

by Messrs. McLelan and Campbell as representing the expenditure upon the island

in 1884. The amount specified is $689,954, but they contend that $79,308 should be

deducted. The total they admit, however, is $610,646, and the difference relates to

controversial matters. . ^ .

Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson say "the statement,of the Committee of Council,

that previous to the union paddle-wheel steamers were employed, might lead to the

supposition that since then the Dominion Government had obtained the substitution

of screw steamers, but the undersigned desire to say that the identical boats which

plied on the route for nearly ten years previous to the union are still the only ones

employed in the service." What Messrs. McLelan and Campbell did say was, "pre-

vious to the union paddle-wheeled steamers were employed, and it was very gener-

ally believed, and for good reaBons, that a screw steamer would maintain steam com-

munication to a much later period, but it is altogether improbable that any man who

had seen the Straits of Northumberland, or had any knowledge of the ice obstruction

in midwinter, could have supposed it possible to construct a steamer capable of cross-

ing when the ice is at its heaviest in that season, and it is proper to assume that

both contracting parties to the union, having such knowledge, understood that the

Dominion Government would provide and maintain the means which science and

experience might determine as the best and most efficient for the end in view within

the range of possibility." This full extract places a different light upon the matter,

and it has been amp'y demonstrated above that the Dominion Government has done

its best to provide continuous steam service " within the range of possibility," and

that its efforts have been beneficial to the island.

Objection is also taken to the remarks of the Committee of Council " that the

change from sailing vessels to steamers for summer appears to have been the only

improvement effected by the Island Government m their means of communication in

fifty years, although having control of a larger sum in revenue than the island now

pays into the Dominion." The first part is not denied by Messrs. Sullivan and

Ferguson, but the revenue question is again disputed. They go on to say that the

prospect of continuous steam service was one of the principal inducements that led

the island to enter the Dominion. Messrs. McLelan and Campbell's report gives the

impression that they desired to convey the idea that although the Island Government

had not done much before Confederation to provide continuous steam service in

winter, the Dominion Government had since that time much improved communica-

tion, and this cannot be denied.

The next point of difference is the number of passengers using the route. Messrs,

McLelan and Campbell say that during the past two winter seasons the average num-

ber of passengers in each crossing of the " Northern Light " was only nine (the

average of the present season so far is said to have been only six) ;
also, that the lo-

on the Island Kailway since its opening has been $843,911, besides an expenditu

thereon on capital account of about $500,000. Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson

reply give instances of 100 passengers crossing at one time. This only proves how

small the number must have been on other occasions if the average of each crossing
!

is only nine. Then they say that the number of passengers would be greater if the i

service were more regular, and the seaworthiness ofjthe ship more assured. This

20

I

loss

111



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 76.) A. 1886

latter is a grave charge against the Dominion Government and cannot be allowed to
pass without protest, and especially as the statement is but a general one and unsub-
stantiated.

Exception is also made to the remark of the Committee of Council " that the
Dominion Government did not undertake the carrying of agricultural produce or
freight of any kind, although they have at all times afforded facility for the trans-
port of any offering." Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson say :

" The facility afforded
may be judged of when it is explained that the freight capacity of the " Northern
Light" is not more than 200 barrels." It must be remembered that the phrase
" continuous steam service " applied to passengers and mails only, and any provision
for freight is therefore a gain to the province.

Messrs. McLelan and Campbell say :
" It will be claimed on behalf of the island

that the population consumes goods the produce of the mainland. No doubt this is

true, but the same occurred previous to the Confederation." The figures for 1872
are given as $1,667,480. The Prince Edward Island delegates state that of this

$ 71,163 came from countries other than Canada, although through Dominion ports,
reducing the imports from Canada to $638,127. The accuracy of these figures (there
is no means of checking them in the office of the High Commissioner) does not
affect the general question.

The Dominion Government gave the total value of the goods entered for con-
sumption in the island in 1872 as $1,605,241. This Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson
object to, and state that the figures should be $2,469,078. There are no means of
checking this in the office of the High Commissioner.

Messrs. McLelan and Campbell say that, " No doubt the same inter-provincial
trade continues with this change in favor of Prince Edward Island, that
the goods from the other Provinces are now free of duty, whilst previous
to the union they paid duties the same as on importations from other
countries." Messrs Sullivan and Ferguson do not object to this, and express
their concurrence in the present fiscal policy of Canada; but they say
that the existing tariff is more favorable to other Provinces than to the island,
as the latter has no manufactures, and that the Quebec and Ontario manufacturers
" protected by a high Customs duty," are able to obtain in many lines of goods prices
nearly if not altogether equal to the cost and duty of the same goods of British or
foreign manufacture. This sounds rather paradoxical, but it is evident from the
increased prosperity of the island from its increased exports, and from its increased
savings bank deposits, that no injury has resulted to the Province from the present
fiscal policy of the Dominion; but, on the other hand, much benefit. Besides what
applies to the consumer of home manufactured lines of goods in Prince Edward Is-

land, affects equally the people of the other Provinces ; and instead of enhancing the
price of goods, it is notorious that since the adoption of the present fiscal policy, of
which Messrs Sullivan and Ferguson approve, the prices of many articles of con-
sumption have declined in every part of Canada.

Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson admit in a subsequent paragraph that the island
has prospered, as they put it, " notwithstanding the inaction of the Dominion Gov-
ernment" This statement, in view of what has already been stated, may be left to
take care of itself ; but the object of the representation appears to be to secure the
laying of a metallic sub-way across the Straits of Northumberland, through which
railway communication could be effected, the cost of which undertaking, Messrs
Sullivan and Ferguson say, would not exceed a sum of which it would not be un-
reasonable to ask the Government of Canada to expend. If it can be shown that*

such a work is practicable, that it can be constructed for a reasonable outlay and
maintained without a large expenditure, the matter seems to be the one that may
fairly be placed before the Canadian Government for consideration.

Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson again return to the charge of the revenue con-
tributed to the Dominion. They take exception to the statement that the island has
received liberal treatment from the Dominion and repeat that it pays more to the
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Dominion annually than it receives, which is certainly open to argument, although
it does not bear upon the question of the feasibility of "continuous steam service."

Messrs. McLel&n and Campbell say the " Northern Light " was placed at
Charlottetown as headquarters, her officers and crew are inhabitants of the island,
and her unceasing and hazardous efforts to make communication in the severest
weather, cannot be unknown to the Island Government. The delegates remark upon
this :

" The Committee of Council seem to entertain the idea that the officers and
crew of the * Northern Light ' being island men, are consequently bold enthusiasts,
and would be willing to incur great risk in the effort to maintain communication
with the mainland." They then go on apparently to complain that the running of
the ship was left to the discretion of the officer in charge, and that he was ordered
not to incur any undue risks. That unceasing and hazardous efforts have been made is
proved by the memorial from Prince Edward Island to Her Majesty, which states that
u at times she (

l Northern Light ') has been ice-bound for periods varying from ten to
twenty-four days, to the imminent danger of passengers and mails. Upon one occa-
sion, four years ago, some of the passengers, among them women and children, were
forced, after remaining on board several days, to leave her and walk a distance of
many miles to the shore, when, night overtaking them, they received injuries from
cold and exposure which resulted ultimately in the death of one of the party." This
shows that ihe (fficers and crew have made hazardous efforts to keep up communica-
tion, and the necessity of discretion and the avoidance of undue risks. It also proves
the impossibility of continuous steam service which the island insists on. It must
be remarked that it was the officers of the " Northern Light " who gave evidence to
the effect "that no steamship can be built capable of keeping up continuous com-
munication in mid-winter between the island and the mainland."

Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson coEclude their rejoinder by saying: M With regard
to the claim for compensation by reason of the non-fulfilment of the terms of Con-
federation, the undersigned submit that a review of the facts adduced will conclusively
show that the island has suffered great loss, and is therefore entitled to indemnity."
In the first place, it is incorrect to say that the terms of Confederation have not been
complied with. Only one of the "terms" has been brought forward as not having
being cariied out, and proof has been adduced that continuous steam service has been
provided, go far as was practicable. Daily steam communication is not feasible, it

being impossible, in the opinion of competent witnesses, to construct a steamship to
fulfil such cord i liens. The period of interruption prior to Confederation has been
reduced by two-thirds, and instead of suffering any injury the island has, since 1873,
made rapid advances in wealth and prosperity, which may fairly be attributable to
the more advantageous position the island occupies as a member of the union, to the
efforts of the Dominion Government to aid in the develoj ment of its resources and
to the vastly improved communication with the mainland that has been provided.

The foregoing remarks uf on Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson's letter are not so
complete as they might be made, owing to the short time that the undersigned has
been in possession of the views of those gentlemen.

CHARLES TUPPER.
9 Victoria Chambers, London, S.W., 12th March, 1886
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RETURN
(SUPPLEMENTARY)

(16a)

To an Address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1886 ;—For

copies of all Despatches from or correspondence with the Imperial

Government respecting the complaint of the Legislature or Govern-

ment of Prince Edward Island, that the Terms of Union between that

Island and the Dominion have not been carried out, or with respect to

the mission of Delegates to the Imperial Government from Prince

Edward Island on the subject of such complaint,

By Command,

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

30th April, 1886.

Certified Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved

by His Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 1th November, 1885.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had under consideration a despatch,

dated 4th August, 1885, from the Lieutenant-Governor of Prince Edward Island,

transmitting Joint Addresses of the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of

that Province to Her Majesty the Queen, praying her intervention on behalf of

Prince Edwsrd Island to obtain from the Dominion Government a fulfilment of its

engagement " to maintain efficient steam service for the conveyance of mails and

passengers between the island and the mainland, summer and winter."

The Committee advise that Your Excellency be moved to forward the aforesaid

Joint Addresses of the Legislative Council and Assembly of Prince Edward Island to

Her Majesty the Queen.
The Committee, concurring in the report herewith of the Sub-Committee of

Council, to whom the despatch and enclosures were referred, further advise that a

copy of this minute and of the annexed report, if approved, be forwarded, together

with a copy of the said Joint Addresses, to the Eight Hon. the Secretary of State for

the Colonies.

All which is respectfully submitted for Your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE, Clerk Privy Council

{Confidential)

Your Sub-Committee find that the Government of P. E. Island, previous to Con-

federation, subsidized two steamers for the conveyance of mails and passengers to and

from the mainland during the summer season, and that for a period of five months or

more mails were carried by ice-boats from Cape Traverse to Cape Tormentine, and

thence by sleigh to Amherst, the land carriage being fifty-two miles, and from cape

to cape, over ice and water, nine miles.

Since the union, a subsidy of ten thousand dollars a year has been paid by the

Dominion Government to the P. E. Island Steam Navigation Company, to run steam-
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ers daily during the season of open navigation, from Shediac, in New Brunswick to
Summerside, in the island, aud from Pictou, in Nova Scotia, to Charlottetown and
Georgetown. This service has been regularly and satisfactorily maintained by that
company

;
but as their steamers have to lay up early in the fall, the Dominion Gov-

ernment steamer « Northern Light " then takes up the service and continues it as
long as the ice permits. .

Previous to the union, paddle-wheel steamers only were employed, and it was
very generally believed, and for good reasons, that a screw steamer would maintain
steam communication to a much later period; but it is altogether improbable that
any man who had seen the Straits of Northumberland, or had any knowledge of the
ice obstruction in midwinter, could have supposed it possible to construct a steamer
capable of crossing when the ice is at its heaviest in that season, and it is proper to
assume that both contracting parties to the union, having such knowledge, under-
stood that the Dominion Government would provide and maintain the means which
science and experience might determine as the best and most efficient for the end in
view, within the range of possibility.

The Dominion Government, willing and most anxious to do all that was possiblem the interests of P. E. Island, in the season next following the union, sought by
public advertisements for persons to undertake the service, and eventually secured a
contract for ten years with a Mr. King, who claimed to have a steamer specially
tittea tor ice work. She proved, however, unable to run longer than until the fourth
of January. On the part of itfr. King, it was claimed that the season was of unusual
severity, and. by the inhabitants of P. IS. Island it was alleged that the steamer was
wanting m power, and of a model unsuited to the service. The contract, after this
trial, was annulled, and the Dominion Government, after the most careful and anxious
enquiry contracted with a Mr. Sewell, of Quebec, to complete a powerful steamer on
a model specially designed for ice service. •

In December, 1876, this steamer, named the " Northern Light," was completed
and placed upon the route between Pictou and Charlottetown, and has been main-
tained each winter to date at an aggregate cost, including construction, of $249,956.57.

As was feared, the « Northern Light " has been, during the severest parts of the
winters, unable to force a way through the enormous fields of ice which block the
straits at that season, but whilst demonstrating fully the impossibility of continuous
steam communication in midwinter has reduced the period of interruption to an
average of one-third of that previous to the union.

In the session of the Dominion Parliament of 1883 a Committee of the House of
Commons, composed of three representatives from Prince Edward Island ani two
from the mainland, was appointed on the 23rd February to investigate the question
ot steam communication with the island. All the members of the Committee had
personal knowledge of the obstruction to navigation in the straits by ice in winter,
and were well qualified for the duty asHigned to them.

After long and careful consideration of the subject and examination " of persons,
papers and records," the Committee reported on the 18th April, 1883, in the follow-
ing words:--" It is the unanimous opinion of the members of the Committee, con-
firmed by the testimony of witnesses of large practical experience, that no steamships
oan be built capable of keeping up continuous communication in mid-winter." The
following extracts from the report set this forth more at large :—

"House op Commons, Committee Room, 18th April, 1883.
*| Your Committee beg leave to report as follows :—
"When Prince Edward Island was admitted into the union the following was

oneof the stipulations on the part of the Dominion Government contained in the
terms of union :

+
'
<

/
1

En
]
cientsteam service for the conveyance of mails and passengers to be

established and maintained between the island and the Dominion, winter and sum-
mer thus placing the island in continuous communication with the Intercolonial
Railway and the railway system of the Dominion.'
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"This communication has been maintained in the summer season by the Prince
Edward Island Steam Navigation Company between Summerside and Shediac, and
betweeD Charlottetown and Pictou, calling at G-eorgetown, and in the winter season
by the " Northern Light." between Georgetown and Pictou and by ice boats between
Capes Traverse and Tormentine.

"To determine the efficiency of this service in the past, and how communication
may be most regularly and efficiently maintained in the future, the Committee care-
fully examined the records of the trips made by the " Northern Light " during the
seasons she has been on the route ; also summoned and examined some of the officers

in charge, and find that she performed the following number of trips, and failed the
number of days marked opposite each season :—

" That on an average there were forty-eight days in mid-winter she was unable
to effect the crossing.

" The daily records kept by the captain of the " Northern Light" and the testi-

mony given by the officers show that the heavy ice encountered was the cause which
compelled him to discontinue crossing in mid-winter.

"The evidence of the officers examined is also to the effect that the steamer is

not sufficient to overcome the difficulties of the winter navigation, and although they
suggest slight improvements on her model which would better fit her for the pur-
poses for which she was intended, still are unanimously of opinion that no steamship
can be built capable of keeping up continuous communication in mid-winter between
the island and the mainland.

" We examined personally ' several gentlemen of large practical experience in
crossing from the island in the winter season, all of whom confirm the above, and
whose evidence is hereto appended.' "

The committee having reached this conclusion made certain suggestions for the
improvement of the route by the capes. The most important of which, viz., the con-
struction of lines of railway to the capes, and suitable shipping piers had been pre-
viously decided upon by the Dominion Government.

The address points out tha^ the distance from the Intercolonial Kailway to Capo
Tormentine is forty miles, and from the Island Railway to Cape Traverse, twelve
miles, which, it is stated, had to be travelled " in ^pen sleighs in the coldest and
most stormy portion of the year," but omits to state that a railway to Cape Tormen-
tine was under construction, and a large sum provided for the erection of a shipping
pier, whilst t > Cape Traverse, on the island side, tie railway had been completed,
and, as suggested *by the committee of Parliament, houses of shelter for passengers,
boatmen and boats had been erected.

The language of the address in alleging that the Dominion Government have
" shown no sufficient disposition to fulfil its obligation toward the island," and with
having " unaccountably neglected and treated with apathy and indifference " ihe
interests of the island, seems to the undersigned, in view of all the circumstances,
unwarranted.

For half a century the Government of Prince Edward Island forwarded mails
and passengers by ice-boats across the straits, and by open sleighs overland for five

months in each year, and more recently by subsidized steamers, in summer, instead
of sailing packets. This change from sailing vessels to steame s for summer appears
to have been the only change or improvement made by the Island Government ia
fifty years, although having control of a larger sum in revenue than the island now
pays into the Dominion treasury.

The efforts of the Dominion Government as marked by expenditure to meet the
wishes of the people of Prince Edward Island and to give them improve! means of
communication with the mainland, are of course known to the Legislative Council
and Assembly, although they have been overlooked by them when preparing the
address. That expenditure may be summarily stated as follows :

—

Cost and maintenance of "Northern Light " $249,956 57 •

Subsidies for summer service and for ice-boats at capes 1 J6,073 75
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Construction of Cape Traverse Branch Eailway and
enlargement of pier 199,190 03

Expended by Public Works Department in connection
with piers, boathouses and cable service 25,678 53

To pay Island Government for pier required in cape
services 12)40 00

bubsidy tor constiuction of railway to Cape Tormen tine 118,400 00
Appropriation tor pier at Cape Tormentine 150,000 00

Total
. .$951,698 00

This large expenditure^ the transmission, in comfort, of passengers to and from
the capes, is worthy of more consideration in view of the fact that in the last two seasons
the average number of passengers in each crossing of the Northern Light was only a
fraction over nine, and of the further fact that the Dominion Government has main-
tained the Island Eailway at a cost, since its opening to 30th June, 1884, of $843,911
in excess of all its receipts, besides an expenditure thereon on capital account of about
half a million dollars.

The passenger list of the " Northern Light" for the winters 1884-85, averaging
only nine per trip, and the large annual deficit in working the Island Eailway are the
best evidence of the limited travel to be provided for, and although it may be some
inconvenience to have steam communication suspended for a period of forty-eight
days, yet it does not warrant the language of the address that "an incalculable loss
has been suffered by the people of Prince Edward Island by the failure of the Domi-
nion Government " to do what a Committee of Parliament says is impossible.

}
? ^e accompanying address, passed by the Legislature in 1S$4, it is claimed

that the loss is great, because the chief pursuit of the island people is agriculture, and
the compensation for damages is placed at five million dollars, as due to the date of
the address.

In considering this assertion it must be borne in mind that the Dominion Gov-
ernment did not undertake the carrying of agricultural produce nor freight of any
Jmid, although it has, at all times, afforded facility for the transport of any freight

It is further stated in the addrees that Prince Edward Island has been unjustly
and invidiously treated, inasmuch as the Dominion Government has contracted at a
cost of many millions of dollars " for 3,000 miles of a railway to British Columbia, a
i^rovmce with 10,000 of a population, exclusive of Indians and Chinese, whilst in the
case oi Prince Edward Island, a sacred obligation is being violated and an immense
injury done to a large body of people."

In the distribution of public moneys Prince Edward Island has no cause of com-
plaint. It is true that large expenditures have been made for railways and canals in
the general interest, but the local wants of the Provinces have not been overlooked,
and Prince Edward Island has been dealt with in a most liberal manner, and appar-
ently without regard to her contribution to the general revenue.

The address seeks in its reierence to the constructing of the Canadian Pacific
Jiaiiway an opportunity to establish and emphasize a wrong to Prince Edward Island.
Doubtless the maintenance of continuous steam communication between the island
and the mainland in mid-winter is of as much interest to the people of the Province
as is the construction of the Canadian Pacific Eailway, although in the one case it
means the transpoit of nine passengers a day for an average period of forty-eight
days a year in mid-winter, whilst in the other it is a great national work, providing a
highway in common lor the eastern and western Provinces, and the opening up of
vast aieas of the richest soil, upon which,; many settlers from the older Pro-
vinces, inducing Prince Edward Island, are finding homes, instead of in the United
States.^ To take the view indicated by the address, that the construction of the
Canadian Pacific Eailway is merely a local work, the comparison then suggested
with Prince Edward Island should not bo confined to British Columbia, as Ontario,
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Manitoba and the North-West Territories receive as much local benefit therefrom as

does British Columbia.
In a strictly local view, it is not urijust to say that expenditure shall in some

measure be governed by receipts, present or prospective, and the tone of the Legisla-

ture of Prince Edwaid Island in speaking, in 1884, of " British Columbia as a Pro-
vince of 10,000 people, exclusive of Indians and Chinese," and in 1885 "of 15,000,"

demands a comparison of revenue returns from the two Provinces.

In the returns last published—30th June, 1884—Prince Edward Island is

credited with:
From Customs $170,863 40

Excise 22,615 26

Total contribution to revenues $193,478 66

In the same year British Columbia is credited with

:

From Customs $884,076 21
Excise..... 58,018 89

Total contribution to revenues $942,095 10

nearly five times as much as Prince Edward Island.

In the comparison which is called for by the reference to

the Canadian Pacific Bailway, in the address, Manitoba and the

North-West Territories should be included as follows :

From Customs $734,185 77
Excise 157,417 99

891,683 76

Total revenue contributed by British Columbia, Mani-
toba and the North-West Territories $1,833,698 86

As against Prince Edward Island 193,478 66

If evidence were wanting of the anxious desire of the Dominion Government to

promote the interests of Prince Edward Island in every possible way, it may be found
in the same public returns of the expenditure in and for the island in 1884, which is

by no means exceptional, viz.

:

Payment of interest upon her public debt $195,407 55
Subsidy to Local Government for local purposes 164,510 00
Postal expenses $46,465 21

Less postal revenue 29,154 80
17,311 41

Expenses of operating railway in excess rev. receipts

.

91,924 01

Militia and Defence 12,141 10
Collection of Customs 20,856 21

Collection of Excise 2,506 89

Administration of Justice .. 18,800 00
Maintenance of lights and buoys 19,059 62

Protection of fisheries and fish breeding, exclusive of
bounty payments 3,539 38

Superannuation 2,056 00
Lieutenant Governor's salary 7,000 00
Subsidies to steamers and winter service 32,876 00

Subsidy to Fishwick's steamboat 3,000 00

Outside Expenses

:

Lights 3,000 00
Indians 1,993 87
Public^ health 885 40
Audit and Asst. Eeceiver General's Offices 4,845 92
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Subsidy to telegraph connection 1 945 qq
Expenditure on harbors and rivers 28,581 88
Public buildings

, 7861 89
Construction oi lights .. .7.7.7. .7

* 2158 60
Interest upon a capital expenditure on Island

Kailwayof $578,920 28,946 00
Belief of sick seamen $1 226 31
Less dues

„ '684 46
541 75

Expenditure by Department of Agriculture 1,389 88
[Representation—say 15,000 00
Repairs of dredges 1714 99

Total: $6.*9,954 91

t
Jt

^iol
111™

*
e ^served that while th© expenditure for the fiscal year ended 30th

;!?!' S 1S 3689,954.91, the total revenue derived from all sources is but
$J.yo,47o.oo.

•
1 ^ak

[
n? a* expenditure of over $6 per head of the population (112,000) of the

island, whilst the total receipts are only $1.72 per head.
It will be claimed on behalf of the island that the population consumes o-oods the

produce of the mainland. No doubt this is true, but *he same occurred previous to
the Confederation. In 1872 the imports of the colony of Prince Edward Island from
the Dominion was

:

From Old Canada $3gl ^9
Nova Scotia ........7.77.7.777!! 35^961
New Brunswick 327 340

Total • $1,067,480
upon which duties were collected.

The total entered for consumption from all countries was $1,605,241
And the total revenue 302 757

The total exports of the colony were $1,497,058
Of which Nova Scotia and New Brunswick took $749,129 ; or, say, one half.

r D . S!?
1 the samo interProvincial trade continues, with this change in favor

of Prince Edward Island
: that the goods from the other Provinces are now free ofduty

whilst previous to the union they paid duties, the same as on importations from
other countries. That Prince Edward Island may have felt inconvenience from the inter-
ruption in the trips of the "Northern Light" may be admitted; but that her
material interests have suffered greatly is disproved by the fact that her exports to
foreign countries have nearly doubled from 1872 to 1884, whilst the increase of the
whole Dominion for the same period has been only ten and a-half per cent. (lOfco/o;)

In making this comparison of the payments to the general revenue by P E
Island and British Columbia, and the North-West, and in stating the annual expen-
ditures for the island, the undersigned are moved thereto, only, by the implied
charge on the address, that the western Provinces are being treated by the Domin-
ion (government more generously than the Island, and it is not intended that the
liberal manner in which all the public services of the island have been dealt with
regardless of the revenue receipts, shall be taken as a consideration or recompense for
the alleged failure to carry out the terms of the union.

The liberal treatment of Prince Edward Island results from the policy and practice
of the Dominion G-orernment to watch over the interests of the smaller provinces
and Prince Edward Island, from her isolated positiou and with a population less than
some cities on the mainland, has received especial consideration.

If continuous steam communication has not been maintained, it is certainly not
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because the Dominion Government sought to avoid expense. The " Northern Light

"

is as large and powerful a steamer as experience in Arctic exploration has proved
advisable and she is kept on full expense, equipped and ready to run at all times
during the entire winter, and were it possible to do so, no additional expense would
be incurred, except for fuel, whilst the cost of the ice boat service would be saved,

and the construction of railways, piers, and boathouses to and at Capes Traverse and
Tormentine, rendered unnecessary.

It is stated in the addresses that " beyond the formal acknowledgments of mem-
orials from the Island Government, no other answers were given," but the action

taken by the Dominion Government was a better answer than any paper declaration.

The " Northern Light " was constructed and placed at Charlottetown, as headquarters.

Her officers and crew are inhabitants of the Island, and her unceasing and hazardous
efforts to make communication in the severest weather, cannot be unknown to the
Island Government. The representatives of the island were in Parliament when
appropriations were made for the construction of the railway to Cape Traverse, and
for the erection of piers. It was publicly known that a railway was under construc-

tion to Cape Tormentine, where the Dominion Government had appropriated

$150,000 to erect a suitable shipping pier in connection with the road (to hasten the

completion of which a subsidy of $118,400 has now been granted), and that boat
houses had been erected at the capes as recommended by the Committee of Parlia-

ment hereinbefore referred to. That the Island Government was fully conversant
with the whole action and plans of the Dominion Government may be assumed from
the fact that it demanded payment of $12,400 for an old public wharf that was
utilized in the construction of the pier at Cape Traverse.

In brief, the Island Government knew that every possible effort had been made
by the Dominion Government to navigate the Straits from Charlottetown and
Georgetown to Pictou, with a failure of an average of 48 days ; it knew that the
Dominion Government in making great expenditures on railway lines to the Capes,

was most anxious to reorganize and improve, if possible, that route, notwithstanding

that in the ordinary annual local services of the island, the Dominion Government
was returning more than three dollars for every dollar received.

Government House, P. E. I., Charlottetown, 4th August, 1885.

Sir,— I have the honor to forward herewith to His Excellency the Governor
General of Canada for transmission to Her Majesty the Queen a joint address from
the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of this Province, praying Her Majesty's

most gracious intervention in order to obtain from the Government ofCanada a fulfil-

ment of the terms upon which this island entered the Confederation in respect to

communication with the mainland, and also of compensation to this Province for the

loss sustained by its people in consequence of the failure of the Dominion Govern-

ment to carry out the aforesaid terms. I also enclose copies of the following papers

relating to this subject to be forwarded with said address.

Despatch No. 18, of 7th April, 1881, from Lieutenant-Governor of Prince Edward
Island to Secretary of State, Ottawa, transmitting joint address of both branches of

this Legislature to His Excellency the Governor General, praying that immediate
measures may be adopted by the Dominion Government to fulfil the terms of Con-

federation with this Province ; also a copy of that address and the acknowledgment
of its receipt by the Secretary of State at Ottawa, bearing date 16th April, 1881.

Despatch No. 9, of 28tb February, 1882, from the Lieutenant-Governor to the

Secretary of State, Ottawa, informing him that no reply bad been received to the

above address, and that this Government is anxious to have the reply with as little

delay as possible, also the acknowledgment of the receipt of this despatch by the

Secretary of State, dated 8th March, 1882.

Extract from the minutes of the Executive Council of this island, dated 31st

January, 1883, to His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor, forwarded by him to the

Secretary of State, Ottawa, again bringing the subject to the notice of His Excellency
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tLrefnr^
a reP^ to the foriner addr^s of the Council and Assembly

to th^^r^^n!?* ^ 27th March
»
1883

'
from the Lieutenant-Governor

to the Secretary of State, Ottawa, requesting reply be laid before the Legislaturethen m session, with acknowledgment from the Secretary of State, informing theLieutenant-Governor that the subject was under consideration
g

Despatch No. 8, of 18th April, 1884, from the Lieutenant-Governor transmitting

^w,^reM
°l

ihQ
n
hQS^tive Council and House of Assembly of this Province toHis Excellency tne Governor General, again representing the failure of the DominionGovernment to carry out part of the terms of Confederation, and praying thS HisExcellency the Governor General in Council will take such action as shall cause thisgrievance to be remedied, and also that compensation be paid to this island for non-

if 9A?u f a M
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ioo^'

wit\the
T
joint address referred to and the despatch No. 1110

litrS^^^ from the Undersecretary of State, Ottawa, acknowledging
receipt thereof, and stating that the matter will receive due consideration.

g g
Despatch No. 27, of 28th February, 1885, from the Lieutenant-Governor to thebecretary of State,- Ottawa, transmitting for the consideration of His Excellency the(xovernor General m Council, an approved minute of Council on the non-fulfilment
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the miaute therein mentioned and despatch No.1788 dated Ottawa 6th March, 1885, acknowledging the receipt of the above

^ *k- v* I i L^i8lative Council and another from the House of Assemblyof this Province at the last session, to the Lieutenant-Governor, with respect to the

Her Maje^y the Qaeen^
*"* pM8ed by both bran°heS °f th° L°gislat™> *>

Extract from the minutes of the Executive Council of this island, dated the 4thAugust, 1835, advising, for the reason therein stated, that the joint address of both

fcn9"
F ^ Le^lafcllr0 t0 Her Majesty the Queen, together with enclosurestherein referred to, and the separate addresses to the Lieutenant-Governor from theProvincial Legislative Council and House of Assembly, and the Minutes of Councilin connection therewith, be immediately forwarded to His Excellency the GovernorGeneral for transmission to Her Majesty the Queen.

I have, &c,

A. A. MACDONALD, Lieutenant-Governor.

Department op the Secretary of State, Ottawa, 10th August, 1885.
Sir,—J have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch of the 4th

instant transmitting a joint address to Her Majesty the Queen from the Legislative
Council and House of Assembly of Prince Edward Island on the subject of commun-
ication with the mainland, together with other documents relative thereto and
specified in your despatch.

I have, &c,

G. POWELL, Under Secretary of State.
To His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor of Prince Edward Island, Charlottetown.

To the Queen's Most Excellent Majesty :

tfeA T
M°?T

T

(

f?
A0

J?
us Sovereign :-We, yout Majesty's most dutiful and loyal subjects,the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of Prince Edward Islandf in generaassembly convened, humbly approach Your Majesty, and represent that:-

S

„ ,
V^^^a^Islana entered the Confederation of the Dominion of Canadaupon the 1st July, 1873, on certain terms and conditions set forth in the Order ofYour Majesty in Council,dated 26th June,1873,and of which terms the followingis one

;

lne Dominion Government shall assume and defray all the charges for the follow-ing service viz of efficient steam service for the conveyance of mails and passengersto be established and maintained between the island and the mainland of the Domin-
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ion, winter and summer, thus placing the island in continuous communication with;

the Intercolonial Railway and the railway system of the Dominion. "

2. During no winter season since the time of the said union has the service

provided by the Dominion Government been efficient or the communication with the
mainland continuous.

3. The Dominion Government having shown no sufficient disposition to fulfil

their obligation towards the island in this matter, we are reluctantly compelled to?

approach Your Majesty as one of the parties to the articles of Confederation and pray
Your Majesty's intervention to obtain for us that justice to which as a Province or
Canada we are entitled by the terms of union.

4- Prince Edward Island is separated from the mainland Provinces of Canada by
the Strait of Northumberland, and during the winter season which generally begins

about the first of December and lasts until the end of April the harbors and rivers

are frozen, while the passage of the strait is impeded, though at no rime wholly pre-

vented by floating ice. Previous to the union the only connection with the main-
land during the winter was by means of ordinary boats dragged across the drifting

ice and propelled by oars through the stretches of open water between Cape Traverse

on the island, and Cape Tormentine in New Brunswick, a distance of nine miles.

5. During the first winter after Confederation (1873-74) no attempt was made
by the Dominion Government to provide such steam service. Daring the two sab-

sequent years (1374-5 1875-6) an old wooden steamboat which had for years been

engaged in ordinary navigation, but without a single qualification to fit her for the

winter navigation of the strait, was placed upon tne route between Georgetown, one
of the island ports, and Pictou, in the Province ofNova Scotia, and as was to be ex-

pected, she utterly failed in the service required of her. At the commencement of

the winter of 1876-77 a new steamer, called the " Northern Light," was placed upon
the route. This steamer was not constructed for the service, but was design d for

another purpose, and therefore her work can be regarded only in the light of an
experiment.

6. The service performed by the " Northern Light " has been most unsatisfactory,

her trips being irregular and the accommodation she has afforded has been neither con-

tinuous nor efficient. According to the official returns for the last four years there

has been an average in each winter of 64 days during which she had been entirely

laid up, nor does this furnish any idea of the irregularity of her trips before she en-

tirely ceased running in each of these years, but only of the continued period when
she was laid up and inoperative. At times she has been icebound for periods ranging

from 10 to 24 days to the imminent danger of passengers and mails. Upon one
occasion four years ago, some of the passengers, among them womon and children,

were forced, after remaining on board several days, to leave her and walk a distance

of many miles to the shore, when night overtaking them they received injuries front

cold and exposure which resulted ultimately in the death of one of the party.

7. During the time when the " Northern Light " is laid up the people of the island

are obliged to resort to the old method of crossing between the capes (Traverse and
Tormentine) already described, a route attended with much hardship and great danger.

In the month of January last, a party of 22 persons were detained on the ice for two

days and one night in one attempt to make the passage when they suffered most

severly from cold and exposure—the majority of them being badly frozen— and

several have since suffered amputation of their limbs as a result of the injuries then,

received,

8. One of the principal inducements held out to the people of this island to enter

the Confederation was the promise contained in that clause of the terms of union

quoted at the opening of this memorial, and they naturally expected that a union

with the Dominion would bring them uninterrupted communication at all seasons of

the year with the rest of Canada and of the world. They believed that they would

thereafter enjoy equal facilities for intercourse with the other provinces as those pro-

vinces enjoy between themselves, and that thenceforth they would participate in the

many benefits and advantages accruing from the Intercolonial Railway and other
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public works upon the mainland, from which they had previously been debarred for
a great portion of the year. Cut off, as they had always been, for nearly five months
of the twelve, from all communication with the mainland, except by a most uncertain
and dangerous route, the promise of continuous communication with the Intercolonial
Railway and the railway system of the Dominion was indeed a strong incentive to
them to surrender their selfgovernment and unite with Canada.

9. The inconvenience and loss which they had suffered in consequence of the
failure of the Dominion Government to provide them with the efficient communica-
tion promised are incalculable, while the disappointment in their reasonable expec-
tations has not tended to enhance, in their estimation, the value of a connection with
the Dominion, but, on the contrary, has awakened a feeling of discontent which,
though a matter of regret, is not unnatural under the circumstances. Were it only
the transport of freight and merchandise that was stopped during the winter, they
would have good reason to complain of being precluded from the benefits of the
Intercolonial and other railways which their more fortunate neighbors on the main-
land enjoy, but their chief grievance is that, in direct violation of the solemn compact
upon which they entered the Confederation, and to which Your Majesty was
graciously pleased to be a party, the Dominion Government have not provided that
efficient or continuous means whereby mails and passengers can be transported to
and from the mainland.

10. The people of this province, we submit, have just ground of complaint at the
inaction of the Dominion Government and at the extraordinary apathy which has
fceen shown in regard to the interest of this island in the matter of communication
with the mainland. Nine winters have passed since the " Northern Light " was
placed on the route and notwithstanding the fact that her inefficiency for the service
was apparent from the outset no other steps have been taken to fulfil the terms of
union. From the time the "Northern Light" ceases running until she again
resumes her trips, a period averaging as already mentioned sixty-four days each year,
the Post Office Department transmits the mails by the route between Capes Traverse
and Tormentine, and during this period in each year the Dominion Government have
at no time since Confederation made any provision whatever for the transport of pas-
sengers, who are forced to make such arrangements as best they can for crossing to
and from the mainland. This inaccountable neglect on the part of the Government
of Canada is the most direct violation of the terms of union which we are called upon
to represent to Your Majesty ; moreover,the Dominion Government have established no
communication between the Intercolonial Railway and Cape Tormentine so that tra-
vellers are compelled in passing between these points to drive in open sleighs a distance
offorty miles in the coldest and most stormy portion of the year.

Between Cape Traverse and the line of the Prince Edward Island Railway, a dis-
tance of about twelve miles, railway connection has been opened and that but partially,
only this winter, although provided for by Parliament three years ago.

11. The derangement of business consequent upon the irregularity of the mail
service, when for many days at times no communication is had with the rest of
Canada, exercises a most prejudicial effect upon the interest of the island. The hard-
ships of travelling, which only the strong and robust are able to endure, and the
dangers attendant upon the present mode, which have been most painfully exemplified
this winter are other disadvantages from which the people of this province suffer most
acutely.

12. The feeling that they are being unjustly treated is not without strong founda-
tion. In order to fulfil the terms of union with British Columbia, a province of less
than 15,000 of a population, exclusive of Indians and Chinese, Canada has contracted
for the construction of nearly 3,000 miles of railway at a cost of more than
$80,000,000. This gigantic undertaking is being pushed forward at a rate unparalleled
in the world's history, and a vast expenditure is being made and still more is contem-
plated in acquiring and subsidizing other railroads and in forging the link* to bind
the scattered provinces from the Atlantic to the Pacific, yet the fulfilment of the
terms of union with this island, by providing the means of communication over a
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strait only nine miles wide is postponed from year to year, without any thought ; it

would seem tbat thereby a sacred obligation is being violated and an immense injury

being done to a large body of people.

13. This grievance, of which we here complain, has been repeatedly brought to
the notice of the General Government, while, session after session, the representa-

tives of the island in the Dominion Government have called attention to the non-

fulfilment by Canada of her pledged faith with this island. In 1881 we addressed

the Governor General in Council upon the subject, and prayed for the adoption of

measures to remedy the sta fe of affairs complained of, as well as for compensation
for the loss sustained on account of the non-fulfilment of the terms of union. This
address was only acknowledged, but no practical results followed, and, upon the

notice of the Dominion Government being again directed thereto, assurances were
returned in both of the years 1882 and 1883, that the question was under their con-

sideration.

Again last year we addressed His Excellency in Council with a like petition,

and claiming $5,000,000 for the loss sustained to that time on account of the non-

fulfilment of the said terms, and we also informed the Dominion Government that

we then approached them for the last time, and that unless a favorable answer was
accorded without delay Your Majesty's interference would be invoked.

Beyond a simple acknowledgment of this address no attention has been paid to

it. Again on 20th February last, the Executive Council of this island called the

attention of the Dominion Government to the various steps which has been taken by
the island to obtain a settlement of the question, and reminded them the decision at

which we had arrived last year to appeal to Your Majesty, and that no alternative

was left except to carry that determination into effect. To this minute the same
unsatisfactory answer was received which has been invariably given ; copies of the

correspondence referred to will be transmitted to Your Majesty herewith.

14. In this the twelfth year of their connection with the Dominion, instead of

enjoying that efficient and continuous steam communication with the mainland
which was guaranteed them, the people of Prince Edward Island are, for a very
considerable portion of the year, dependent upon the mode which their fathers

initiated upwards of sixty years ago, before steam power was ever applied for

purposes of locomotion* During these twelve years they have patiently awaited the
fulfilment by the General Government of the terms of the union in this particular

until we are reluctantly constrained to say that the Dominion Government have
evinced a marked indifference, not only for the welfare of this island, but for tbe
sanctity of their own obligations as well.

15. Satisfied tbat this state of things cannot longer continue without a breach of

that harmony which is eo indisp nsable between the provinces of the Confederation,and

feeling that the island is being treated unjustly and its prosperity seriously retarded,

we appeal to Your Majesty, and humbly pray that you will take the premies into your
most gracious consideration, and require that justice be done by the Government of
Canada to Your Majesty's loyal subjects of this Province, by the immediate "estab-

lishment and maintenance of efficient steam service for the conveyance of mails and
passengers between this island and the mainland of the Dominion both winter and
summer, so as to place the island in continuous communication with the Intercolonial

Railway and the railway system of the Dominion ;" and further, tbat Your Majesty
will be pleased to require that the Government of Canada compensate this island for

the loss which has resulted to its inhabitants by reason of the non-fulfilment of the
terms of Confederation in the particulars complained therein.

Legislative Council Chamber, 27th March, 1885.

JOHN BALDEESON, President

House of Assembly, 27th March, 1885.

JOHN A. MACDONALD, Speaker,
7<S-3 33
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PAPERS RELATING TO COMMUNICATION BETWEEN PRINCE EDWARD
ISLAND AND THE MAINLAND OF THE DOMINION, UNDKR THETERMS OF CON FEDERATION, TO BE FORWARDED TO HER MAJESTYTHE QUEEN.

Province of Prinoe Edward Island,
Government House, 7th April, 1881.

Sir,—I have the honor to transmit herewith a joint address from the Legislative
Council and House of Assembly to His Excellency the Governor General, praying
that immediate measures may be adopted by the Dominion Government to fulfil the
terms of Confederation with Prince Edward Island, by establishing and maintaining
efficient ^tearn service for the conveyance of mails and passengers between the island
and the mainland of the Dominion winter and summer, thus placing the province in
continuous communication with the Intercolonial Railway and the railway system of
the Dominion, and by causing to be placed at the disposal of the island compensation
for the failure on the part of the Dominion to carry out SRid terms, and also a joint
address from the Council and Assembly requesting me to cause the said address to
His Excellency to be laid before him.

I have, &c,

T. HEATH HAVILAND, Lieutenant-Governor.

Joint Address, Session op 1881.

To His Excellency the Right Honorable Sir John Douglas Sutherland Campbell {com-
monly called the Marquis ofLome), Knight of the Most Ancient and Most Noble Order
of the Thistle, Knight Grand Gross of the Most distinguished Order of Saint Michael
and Saint George

f
Governor General of Canada and Vice Admiral of the same,

&C> (SCC.y (SOCs

We, Her Majesty's dutiful and loyal subjects, the Legislative Council and House
of Assembly of Prince Edward Island, in general assembly convened, approach Your
Excellency and represent :

—
1. That upon the 1st day of July, 1873, Prince Edward Island entered the Con-

federation of the Dominion of Canada upon certain terms and conditions set forth in
an Order of Her Majesty the Queen in Council, dated 26th June, 1873.

2. That in the said terms and conditions of union it was expressly stipulated
that the Dominion Government should assume and defray all the charges for the
establishment and maintenance of efficient steam service for the conveyance of mails
and passengers between this island and the mainland of the Dominion, winter and
summer, so as to place this island in continuous communication with the Intercolonial
Railway and the railway system of the Dominion.

3. That during no winter season intervening between the year 1873 and the
present time has the steam service provided by the Dominion Goverment been
efficient, or the communication with the mainland in any degree continuous.

4. That during the first winter season after the union no attempt was made by
the General Government to provide such steam service ; that during the two sub-
sequent winter seasons, viz., those of 1874-75 and 1875-76, a wooden steamboat
called the " Albert " was placed upon the route between Georgetown and Pictou, but
she failed to perform the service satisfactorily. That at the commencement of the
winter season of 1876-77, a new steamer called the " Northern Light," which had
been constructed expressly for the work, was placed upon the route.

5. That the records of the trips made by this steamboat are inaccessible to us,

bat it is notorious that these trips have been most irregular and unsatisfactory,
and that at times she has been detained, ice-bound, for periods ranging from ten to
twenty-four days, to the imminent danger of the passengers and mails. On more than
one occasion during the present winter, some of the passengers, among whom were
several females and children, were forced, after remaining on board the vessel for

several days, to leave her and walk a distanoe ofmany miles to the shore, when uight
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overtaking them they received severe injuries from cold and exposure and one of

them has been crippled for life.

6. That the people of this province have suffered great loss by reason of the

frequent interruption of the winter steam service, involving extraordinary delay, not

only in the transmission of important letters by rail, bat also in the conveyance of

passengers, thereby causing serious derangement of trade and immense inconvenience

to the entire community.
7. That the experience of the last five years fully convinces us that the steamer

" Northern Light " is totally unfitted to perform that efficient service undertaken by
the Dominion Government, and as we are of opinion that ample time has been allowed

for experiments, we submit that means should be adopted without further delay to

secure to this province continuous communication in accordance with the terms of

union.

8. That one of the principal inducements held out to this province to enter Con-

federation was the promise of constant communication with the mainland, and the

prospect of participating in the benefits arising from the Intercolonial Eailway and

other public works, from which its inhabitants had been previously debarred for a

large portion of the year, and to the maintenance of which they are called upon to con-

tribute without deriving any corresponding advantage.

9. We submit that the good faith of the Dominion Government is pledged to the

fulfilment of the compact o{^Confederation, involving the establishment and mainten-

ance of efficient steam service with the mainland and continuous communication with

the Intercolonial and other Dominion railways, and we represent that Prince Edward
Island is justly entitled to receive from the Dominion, compensation for the non-

fulfilment by the Dominion Government of the terms of union in the particular here-

in mentioned.
Wherefore, the Legislative Council and House of Assembly pray that your

Excellency in Council will take the foregoing facts into your most serious considera-

tion, and adopt vigorous and immediate measures to remedy the grievances com-

plained of, and cause to be placed at the disposal of Prince Edward Island the com-

pensation to which the Province is entitled by reason of the non-fulfilment by'the

Dominion Government of the terms of Confederation.

And as in duty bound we will ever pray.

A true copy,

FREDERICK W\ HUGHES, Asst. Clerk House of Assembly,

Ottawa, 16th April, 1881.

Sir,—I am directed to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch of the 7th inst.

enclosing a joint address of the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of the

Province of Prince Edward Island, in reference to the establishment and maintenance

of steam service for the conveyance of mails and passengers between the province

and the mainland.
I have, &c,

EDOUARD J. LANGEVIN, Under Secretary of State.

His Honor The Lieutenant-Governor of Prince Edward Island, Charlottetown.

Province of Prince Edward Island,

Government House, 28th February, 1882.

Sir,—My Government having by a Minute of Council recommended me to bring

to the notice of the Dominion Government that this province is yet without a reply

from the Privy Council of Uanada to the joint address of the Legislative Council and

House of Assembly, passed last session, on the subject of the failure of the Dominion

Government to carry out the terms of Confederation by providing continuous com-

munication winter and summer, between this island and the mainland provinces of
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the Dominion. As the General Assembly meets on the 8th March, my Government
are anxious to have the reply with as little delay as possible.

I have, &o.

T. HEATH HAYILiND, Lieutenant Governor.
The Honorable the Secretary of State, Ottawa,

Ottawa, 8th March, 1882.

oq^^u"1 have the honor t0 ackn<>wledge the receipt of your despatch, No. 9 ofthe
J8th ultimo, requesting a reply to a joint Address of the Legislative Council and House
ol Assembly of the Province of Prince Edward Island passed during their last session,
respecting continuous communication between that province and the mainland
provinces of the Dominion.

I have, &c,

EDOUARD J, LANGEVIN, Under Secretary of State.

His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor of Prince Edward Island, Charlottetown.

This Minute was handed to His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor and by him was
forwarded to the Secretary of State, Ottawa, the receipt thereof was acknowledged.

Extract from the Minutes of the Executive Council of Prince Edward Island.

Council Chamber 31st January, 1883.

At a meeting of the Executive Council in Committee.

present :

The Honorable Messieurs

:

Sullivan, Ferguson,
Campbell, Prowse,
McLeod, Lefurgey,

Arsenault.

The Executive Council in Committee has had under consideration the failure of
the Dominion to fulfil that condition of the terms of Confedeiation which stipulates
that the Government of Canada shall assume " and defray all the charges for the
establishment and maintenance of efficient steam service for the conveyance of mails
and passengers between Prince Edward Island and the mainland of the Dominion
winter and summer, so as to place the island in continuous communication with the
Intercolonial Railway and the railway system of the Dominion."

In a joint address of the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of this
province to His Excellency the Governor General, adopted in the session of 1 881,
were set forth the enormous disadvantages under which the inhabitants of this island
labor by reason of the insufficiency of the means provided for the transport of mails
and passengers during the winter season, and a request was made for the immediate
adoption of vigorous measures for the removal of the grievances complained of, as
well as for the allowance of compensation by reason of the non-tulfilment in such
respect of the terms of Confederation. The receipt of this address was duly
acknowledged by the Secretary of State in a despatch dated 16th April, 1881, and
upon the notice of the Dominion Government being again directed thereto, and a
reply requested^ it was learned that the question was receiving their earnest
consideration.

The Council in Committee desire to draw the attention of the General Government
to the fact that although nearly two years have elapsed since the acknowledgment
of the receipt of the said address, no attempt has baen made to improve the means
of communication with the mainland provinces of the Dominion, and that the
grievances of therein still remain.
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Daring the first winter succeeding the union, it was not expected that much

could be effected towards providing "continuous communication," but the inhabi-

tants of the island patiently awaited the result of the experiment being made by the

Dominion Government, to demonstrate the practicability of the winter navigation of

the Gulf of St. Lawrence. The futile attempts of the steamer '« Northern Light"

during the last seven years to maintain « continuous communication 'j are notorious.

Experience warrants the assertion that she is unfitted for the service. Her trips

during the few weeks of winter in which she runs are irregular; her carrying

capacity is exceedingly limited, and her model is generally condemned.

A strong inducement for this province to enter Confederation was the promise

of " continuous communication with the Intercolonial Hailway and the railway sys-

tem of the Dominion." A service that would be as thoroughly efficient and regular

as the railways with which such communication was guaranteed ; in short, that

Prince Edward Island should have equal facilities for intercourse with the other

provinces as those provinces enjoy between themselves, and should participate in all

the benefits arising from the Intercolonial Hallway and other public works upon the

mainland, from which it had formerly been debarred for a great portion of the year,

and to which it contributes without receiving any corresponding advantage.

The inconvenience and loss sustained by the people of this Province in conse-

qence of the imperfect means of winter transport are incalculable. Irregularity of

the mail service in which delays of ten consecutive days are often experienced, the

consequent derangement of business, the hardships of travelling, which only the

strong and robust are able to endure, the dangers attendant upon the winter routes,

the total stoppage of all transport for freight or merchandise ; these are some of the

disadvantages attending the present mode of winter communication between this

province and the mainland. .1x1 A
Of continuous steam communication summer and winter, with the mainland,

Prince Edward Island received an assurance and guarantee at the time of its entry

into the Confederation in 1873. Nearly ten years have now elapsed since that event,

and but one abortive attempt has been made by the General Government to carry

out the solemn engagement into which they then entered. It is not the office of the

Government of this province to dictate to the Dominion Government as to the way

in which they shall carry out the terms of union in respect to continuous communica-

tion, but the Council in Committee are bound to express the opinion that only a

very feeble attempt has been made to accomplish this object, and that the means of

obtaining this most desirable end have not been nearly exhausted.

To carry out the terms of Confederation with British Columbia, the Government

is expending an immense sum ofmoney in the construction of the Pacific Eailway
;
yet

to provide the means of communication between two provinces, over a distance

of scarcely nine miles, and thus fulfil an obligation equally as binding as that with

British Columbia, the general Government have displayed a marked indifference.

The Council in Committee feel that the Government of Canada are justly charge-

able with a most serious violation of the terms of union in this respect
;
they desire

once more to bring the matter prominently before the notice of Your Excellency in

Council with the earnest hope that the ensuing session ofParliament will not be allowed

to pass without the adoption of effective measures for the immediate fulfilment of the

terms of Confederation ; they request that they may be furnished with a reply to the

address of the Council and Assembly herein referred to, as well as to this minute in

sufficient time to submit the same to the Legislature of this province at the approach-

ing session thereof. Should the Dominion Government fail to comply with the just

request of this province, its Government will be reluctantly compelled to lay the griev-

ance complained of at the foot of the Throne, and to appeal for redress to Her Majesty

the Queen as one of the parties to the articles of Confederation.

Certified a true extract,

R. F. DEBLOIS, Clerk Executive Council.
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(Telegram.)

To the Secretary of State, Ottawa.
Charlotteown, 27th March, 1883.

Kequired immediately to lay before the Legislature now in session DominionGovernment s answer to joint address of Legislature of April, 1881, relativeTtoTeam
rsTmTsub^

1'11 mainIaDd
'

aDd al9° t0 MiMte 0f °°™« of Vanuaryi^^on

T. HBATH HAVILAND, Lieutenant Governor.

(Telegram.)

Ottawa, 28th March, 1883.
To the Lieutenant Governor of Prince Edward Island, Oharlottetown.

Subject referred to in your message of the 27th instant, under consideration.

G. POWELL, Under Secretary of State.

Government HorsE, Oharlottetown, P. E. I., 18th April, 1884.
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Cyin Counoil wiU take *«<* action as Arilcause the grievance complained of to be remedied and the terms of union to be ful-

^tiS&V^t^*""*" be Paid t0 Pri™ ««-W— for the

I have, &c,
T. HEATH HAVILAND, Lieutenant Governor.

To the Hon. the Secretary of State, Ottawa.

Ottawa, 24th April, 1884.
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nor t0 acknowledge the receipt of your despatch, No. 8, of

Wwk 1D
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trans
Hllttin^ in ord<* that the same may be laid before His Excel-
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Gen
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'
a j0int address from the legislative Council and Houseof Assembly of Prince Edward Island, on the subject of an efficient steam service fortde conveyance of mails and passengers between that province and the mainland of

8ideratSn
m0n ™ 8ummer

>
and to state that the matter will receive due con-

I have, &cM
G. POWELL, Under Secretary of State.

His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor of Prince Edward Island, Oharlottetown.

Government House, Oharlottetown, P.E.I., 28th February, 1885.
Sir,—I have the honor to transmit herewith, for the consideration of His

Excellency the Governor General in Council, an approved minute of my Council,
passed on the 28th instant, upon the subject of the non-fulfilment of the terms of
Confederation in respect to communication with the mainland, together with thecopy therein referred to of the address of the Legislature of the island as passed in
the Session of 1884 on the same subject.

I have, &c,

rru xr ti xi n A
* A - MACLONALD, Lieutenant-Governor.

±ne Honorable the Secretary of State, Ottawa.
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Ottawa, 6th March, 1885.

Sir,—-I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch of the 28th
ult., transmitting lor submission to His Excellency the Governor General an approved
Minute of the Executive Council of Prince Edward Island in respect to winter com-
munication with the mainland, together with a copy to which the same refers of the
address of the Legislature of the island as passed in the session of 1884 upon the
subject, and to state that the same will receive due consideration

.

I have, &c,

G. POWELL, Under Secretary of State.

His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor of Prince Edward Island, Cbarlottetown.

Legislative Council, Session of 1885.

To His Honor the Honorable Andrew Archibald Macdonald, Lieutenant Governor of the
Province of Prince Edward Island, &c, <kc, &c.

May it Please Your Honor,—
Whereas, during the present session of the General Assembly this House did

join with the House of Assembly in a memorial to Her Majesty the Queen, praying
Her Majesty's most gracious intervention in order to obtain irom the Government of
Canada a fulfilment of the terms upon which this island entered the Confederation
in respect to communication with the mainland, and also the payment of compensa-
tion to this province for the loss sustained by its people in consequence of the failure
of the Dominion Government to carry out the said terms, and a joint address of both
Houses has been adopted requesting your Honor to forward the said memorial to His
Excellency the Governor General for transmission to Her Majesty the Queen •

And whereas since the adoption of the said memorial and address, an insurrection
has unfortunately been incited in the North-West Provinces, whereby not only the
peace and welfare of the Dominion have been disturbed, but the lives and property
of the citizens are endangered, while some of Her Majesty's subjects have met their
death in bravely endeavoring to uphold the authority of the British Crown

;And, whereas, this House recognizes the paramount obligation of the General
Government to suppress lawlessness and rebellion, and it is the imperative duty of
every British subject to assist the constituted authorities in the restoration of quiet-
ness and good order and in the maintenance of the Queen's supremacy

;

Therefore, this House unwilling to embarrass the General Government while
occupied with matters of such weighty moment to the Empire, and looking to a
speedy termination of the insurrection, desire to postpone for the present the carry-
ing out of the constitutional means of which it seeks to redress a grievance of the
people of this province, and request your Honor not to forward the said memorial
until su:h time during the approaching legislative recess as in the opinion of your
advisers shall be deemed opportune.

Whilst this House regrets that an insurrection has been incited in the North-
west Territories, whereby not only the peace and welfare of the Dominion has been
disturbed, but that the lives and property of its citizens have been endangered yet
as our case is a very urgent one in our opinion, there should be no unnecessary delaym forwarding the said memorial to Her Most Gracious Majesty the Queen, praying
Her Majesty's most gracious intervention, in order to obtain from the Government of
Canada a fulfilment of the terms of Confederation in respect to communication with
the mainland, and also compensation to the province for the loss sustained by its
people in consequence of the failure of the Dominion Government to carry out said
terms. •

A true copy.

JOHN BALL, Clerk Legislative Council
39



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No.?6) A. 188«

House op Assembly, Session of 1385.

To Hs Honor the Honorable Andrew Archibald McDonald, Lieutenant-Governor of the
Frovmce of Prince Edward Island, &c, dkc, <&c.

Mat it please Your Honor,—Whereas, during the present Session of the
General Assembly the House of Assembly did join with the Legislative Council in a
memorial to Her Majesty the Queen, praying Her Majesty's most gracious interven-
tion in order to obtain irom the Government of Canada a fulfilment of the terms
upon which this island entered the Confederation in respect to communication with
the mainlaud and also the payment of compensation to this province for the loss sus-
tained by its people in consequence of the failure of the Dominion Government to
carry out the said terms, and a joint address of both Houses has been adopted
requesting your Honor to forward the said memorial to His Excellency the Governor
General for transmission to Her Majesty the Queen

;

And, whereas, since the adoption of the said memorial and address, an insur-
rection has unfortunately been incited in the North-West Territories whereby not
only the peace and welfare of the Dominion have been disturbed, but the lives and
property of its citizens are endangered, while some of Her Majesty's subjects have
met their death m bravely endeavoring to uphold the authority of the British
Crown

;

*

And, whereas, this House recognizes the paramount obligation of the General
Government to suppress lawlessness and rebellion, and it is the imperative duty of
every British subject to assist the constituted authorities in the restoration of quiet-
ness and good order and in the maintenance of the Queen's supremacy

;

Therefore, this House unwilling to embarrass the General Government while
occupied with matters of such weighty moment to the Empire, and looking to a speedy
termination of the insurrection, desire to postpone for the present the carrying out of
the constitutional means by which it seeks to redress a grievance of the people of
this province, and request your Honor not to forward the said memorial until such
time during the approaching legislative recess as in the opinion of your advisers
shall be deemed opportune.

A true copy.

FREDERICK W. HUGHES, Assistant Clerk House of Assembly.

Extract from Minutes of the Executive Council of Prince Edward Island.

Council Chamber, 4th August, 1865.

The Executive Council in Committee have had under consideration the separate
addresses of the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of this province, to His
Honor the Lieutenant-Governor, passed during their last session, requesting that
owing to their unwillingness to embarrass the Government of Canada during the
existence of the insurrection in the North-West Territories, their joint memorial to
Her Majesty the Queen, praying Her Majesty's most gracious intervention, in order
to obtain from the Government of Canada a fulfilment of the terms upon which this
island entered the Confederation in respect to communication with the mainland, and
also the payment of compensation to this province for the loss sustained by its
people in consequence of the failure of the Dominion Government to carry out the
aforesaid terms should not be forwarded until such time during the then approaching
recess as in the opinion of His Honor's advisers should be deemed opportune.

The Council in Committee advise that, as the insurrection has been effectually
suppressed and order restored in the North-West Territories, the said joint address to
Her Majesty the Queen, together with the enclosures therein referred to, the said
separate addresses to His Honor and a copy of this Minute, be immediately forwarded
to His Excellency the Governor for transmission to Her Majesty the Queen.

Certified a true extract.

K. F. DeBLOIS, Olerk Executive Council
40
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RETURN
(775.)

To an Addeess of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886 ; For a

copy of Keport of the Minister of Marine and Fisheries to the Privy

Council under date of 15th of December, 1869.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secretary of State, . Secretary of State*

22nd April, 1886.

(Strictly confidential.)

Department op Marine and Fisheries, Ottawa, 15th December, 1869.

The Minister of Marine and Fisheries respectfully offers the following observa-

tions on a memorandum submitted in July last by the late Minister of Finance, in

conference at Washington with the British Minister and the American Secretary of

State, as the basis of proposed negotiations on the part of Great Britain and the

United States relative to fisheries arid navigation, in connection with existing trade

relations between the United States and Canada.

Article 1 proposes (in substance) to grant the United States citizens the same
fishing privileges which were secured to them by the Treaty of 1854, with the impor-

tant addition of similar freedom of our inland fishings, and whatever extension of the

privileges accorded by the former compact the altered circumstances of the time may
render necessary.

The ostensible equivalent for such extensive concessions is, from reference to

Article 5, an interchange of the natural productions of both countries—the same as

are enumerated in the free schedule adopted under the Keciprocity Treaty of 1854—
on reciprocal terms, subject to certain Customs duties, the measure of which impost

to be the scale of internal revenue taxation in the United States.

This proposal is objectionable chiefly with respect to the fishing privileges it

would concede to Americans, and the omission of corresponding privileges in favor

of Canadians.
The Treaty of Washington admitted American fishermen, in common, to all the-

privileges of " sea fishery "—taking and curing fish, landing, drying nets, &c, &c.,—

which are reserved exclusively to British subjects by the Convention of 1818; but it

made special reservations as regards the inshore and river fisheries—the salmon,

shad and shell—fish fishery being excepted in express terms. Also, it defended the

prior occupancy of British fishermen, and all private or proprietary rights, both

actual and prospective.

Keciprocal privileges of a precisely similar nature ware, by the same instrument,

extended to Her Majesty's subjects along the eastern sea- coasts of the union from

Maine to North Carolina.

The present proposal would superadd to the advantages of unrestricted access to

our coast and river fisheries, freedom of fishing throughout the inland waters of the

Dominion, whilst no reciprocal stipulation is made for concurrent privileges in either

the tidal or fresh waters of the United States.
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Practically, therefore, such a condition would at once add immeasurably to the
already ample equivalent for free trade afforded by the concessions made in 1854
while at the same time relinquishing all of the corresponding privileges which were
allowed to British subjects, besides abandoning the important exemptions then made;

The effects of such an arrangement would prove most obnoxious to both our
interior and seaboard populations, and in the highest degree injurious to that large
class of persons and the very lucrative business dependent more or less on the
abundant fisheries of our tidal estuaries, lakes and rivers.

The undersigned is well aware that the recipi ocal privileges of fishing in certain
United States waters as described in the Eeciprocity Treaty, amounted to a mere
formal concession, of no practical use to colonial fishermen aud of no material benefit
to Great Britain. The omission to provide anew for its continuance is not hercy
remarked upon as involving any curtailment of the reciprocity in fishing which was
stipulated for in the former treaty, but rather to mark the absence of reciprocal pro-
visions in this proposal. If it is likely to be regarded as a substantial part of the
reciprocity we propose to secure, its omission may be thus explained j but it should
nevertheless appear as a nominal concession among the provisions of any treaty that
may hereafter be agreed upon.

The proposed extension of American fishing privileges to our inland waters, and
the implied waiver of reservations which were contained in the Treaty of 1854p

demand serious notice. Such a proposal, even with the most unequivocal compen-
satory benefitp, is liable to many objections ; and presented as it is without like con-
cessions from the other of the high contracting parties, is perfectly inadmissible om
any grounds of reciprocity or justice.

The specific fishings which were mutually reserved by the first article of the
Eeciprocity Treaty, were the salmon, shad and shell-fish fisheries, and generally all

fisheries in rivers and the mouths of rivers. These important privileges are peculiar
in their nature, value and situation. In British waters they are prolific, convenient
and rapidly improving under the system of protection and management applied to»

them through our fishery laws and regulations. Those in American waters are,
comparatively speaking, barren, inaccessible to us, and fast deteriorating. We have
a regularly organized system of protection ; the United States authorities have none.
They have refused and persistently neglected to legislate for the protection of fish

in the waters which border on our own, and where the property in them may be
said to be common to both. Where our salmon and shad fishings are carried on
large establishments have been formed, and considerable private capital is now
invested. The rivers are in numerous instances under lease for several years at
annual rentals. Their productive capacity has been enlarged by improvements both
at public and individual expense, and their natural produce yearly increases through
the economical fishing imposed by law, and the efficient protection applied to them.
Besides the acquired rights of persons holding titles from the Crown, there exist
other vested rights associated with grants of the soil and ol fishery, and also the
preferences of riparian settlers, none of which could now be disturbed without
giving rise to claims for compensation. The idea, therefore, of admitting foreigners
to the possible enjoyment of any of the fruits of such private enterprise and public-

outlay, either inside of the rivers, in the estuaries, or along the coast outs-id e of the
mouths of rivers, cannot, with just regard to ourselves and the industry of our
people, be favorably entertained.

Then, as affects the lake fisheries, there could in reality bo no reciprocity, since
the fishing grounds on the United States shores are so much inferior to our own, and
are now so densely pre-occupied and over-fished as to render it improbable that Cana-
dian fishermen could obtain any vacant places, even if it was worth their while ta
forsake the superior limits which they now enjoy on the northern coasts of the great
lakes. The numerous rivers and streams emptying into these lakes along their
northern shores, being peculiarly adapted to the breeding and feeding of the various
kinds of fish which frequent the lake region, give to the Canadian fresh-water fish-

ings a value and permanency which are not possessed by those of the southern coasts.

2
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Mutual freedom of resort would be on this account alone, so unequal as to operate

altogether to the detriment of Canada, and inure to the advantage of foreigners. And
besides injuring such of our people as are engaged in fishing pursuits, the admission

of Americans, whose catch would largely be exported fresh to United States ports,

would, by diminishing our catch, cause a scarcity of fish in Canadian markets and

thus increase their cost to consumers. The competition and rivalry which would

ensue between native and foreign fishermen must necessarily expose our inland

waters to the dangers of excessive fishing, and would devolve ou the public greatly

increased expense for regulating and protecting them. In the case of the Magdalen

Islands, for instance, the presence of a fleet of United States vessels and boats resort-

ing there every spring for the mackerel and herring fisheries, compels our Govern-

ment to nend there an armed vessel to preserve order and protect the inhabitants

from iniury and outrage. Sometimes it becomes necessary to employ a boat's crew

there throughout the spring, summer and autumn fishery. Daring these seasons the

bays and harbors are crowded with American vessels and fishermen, who, combining

together, and having superior numbers and better means, crowd out the resident

fishers. These foreigners occupy the shores and seining places without regarding

the prior right and just privileges of the natives. They ignore also the effect of

actual settlement on the coasts of these islands, which precludes them under the

Convention of 1818 from continuing to fish and land there without the previous con-

sent of the settlers. It is not at all advisable to reproduce this state of things on the

coasts of the great lakes.
, .

At present, owing to the improved condition of our lake and river fisheries since

they have been properly protected by fishery ofiicers and subjected to judicious re-

strictions imposed by the fishery laws their occupation has become more than ever

desirable to our own people. There is every reason to consider this improvement

progressive in its character, and the signal success attending our endeavors to

augment the natural supplies of fish food by means of artificial propagation place it

almost beyond a doubt that the inland fishings of the Dominion will soon become a

source of great wealth to the country. The definition of exclusive holdings and the

placing of them under leases or licenses to native fishermen is calculated to ensure

greater regularity in the prosecution of this branch of industry and to create more

confidence in the pursuit. Americans have already offered considerable rents for

leases of exclusive fishery limits in our inland waters. Were these waters to be now

opened to United States citizens, under whatsoever reservations as to prior occupancy,

they would at once cut off the run of fish to and fro between the deep water and the

inshore fishing places now laid out and rented as stations. Take for an example, the

case of Lake Erie and the Detroit river. The islands and reefs situated off the pen-

insular section of the Province of Ontario are chief resorts of fish which breed in the

western part of Lake Erie, and the channels to the north-west of these along the

Canadian side of the boundary line are the routes by which fish enter the Detroit and

St. Clair rivers and pass upwards to the north. Were United States fishermen to be

allowed to place their nets in these localities, the river and island fishings would be

stopped, and gradually the fishery at both would become extinct. There are many

other places in the various lakes where the greatest possible injury might be thus

done by Americans without any actual trespass on the inshore limits of our fishermen.

Furthermore, we are now entering into possession of the North-Western .terri-

tories, extending from Lake Superior to the Kocky Mountains, in which are com-

prised immense bodies of fresh water teaming with fish of the most valuable kmds.

The resources of these waters will be of moment in the current settlement of that

extensive tract, and must in due course open up a new field for domestic production.

They occupy everywhere the valley region, and are so situated in relation to the

neighboring countries as to afford those ready and permanent supplies of fish-food so

necessary to the vigorous and hardy settlers of North-West America. Their exclusive

control should be jealously preserved as well on our own behalf as for the sake ot the

Indian population. The forest hunting grounds of the Indian tribes cannot co-exist

with agricultural and lumbering enterprises, and the game of the plains will here, as

3
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it has dono everywhere else, disappear as the country becomes settled. Bat thewaters may be fished without sensibly diminishing their supplies so long as kent
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tlOD8 on ^lch Canada expects to export fish to the United
States, that if Americans are allowed free fishing in British waters, provincial caught
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ted e(luall7 free into United States markets. This is a suctionwhich, while it undervalues the right of fishery, is inconsistent with our previous
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I* ww advanced by Mr. Seward, in 1866-it was suggested
also ^ Mr. Merrell before the colonial delegation at Washington-and again
adverted to in.1868. On each occasion it was met by most emphatic disapproval onthe part of the Canadian Government. (Reference is requested to the Minute of

?q«q
C

<?

dated 18th June
>
1866

J
al«o a report from this Department of 27th February

1868, afterwards approved by the Privy Council.)
J>

It is submitted that the terms of the Treaty of 1854, in so far as they relate to the
fisheries, are sufficiently favorable to the United States without any such extensions
as would probably be demanded under article 1 of Mr. Rose's memorandum Thevery liberal and conciliatory spirit in which those terms were conceived was further
supplemented by the decisions of the joint commission named by the British andAmerican Governments to define the limits of reserved privileges. The awards of
that commission, of which the present Secretary of State for the Provinces CHon.
Jos. Howe) was a distinguished member, are conspicuous for their liberality and
Ti
aV

-! f o?^7
en
^anced the value of the original concessions made in the treaty toUnited States citizens. J

The undersigned is, for the several reasons above stated, clearly of opinion thatno new or additional concessions affecting the Canadian fisheries should be offered or
sanctioned m any proposals for another commercial treaty.

Article 2 enlarges on the right of navigating the inland waters of Canada, as it
existed under the former treaty, without however making such extension mutual
but leaves the otber reciprocal rights named in the fourth article of the said treaty
the same. It adds a conditional obligation to undertake certain canal improvements
adapted to the better accommodation of American vessels. Such an undertaking
would doubtless occasion a heavy expenditure, which should not be lost sight of incomputing rates of duty intended to equalize the internal taxation of the United
otates.

In this connection also it is of some consequence to bear in mind that there are
other projects of internal navigation more directly beneficial to the couniry at lar^e
and of much greater urgency as relates to the necessary interior communications
which our north-western extension will necessitate. It is very probable indeed that
the general desire of the country to improve the great natural opportunities which
the valley of the Upper Ottawa presents, at the earliest possible moment when the
public exchequer admits of such an outlay, may defer, for the time being, any frontier
improvements designed for the immediate benefit of foreign commerce?

The limited extent to which Canadian crafts avail themselves of this feature in
the proposed reciprocity, compared with the facilities it affords to the American
carrying trade, renders the concession an important one, entirely favorable to the
United btates, and such as should ensure some adequate equivalent. Our experience
of the reciprocal use of American canals, with which Canadian tonnage has been
heretofore favored, is not calculated to inspire hopes of any equivalent in kind The
almost entire exclusion from the various state canals of all merchandise carried in
British bottoms, even daring the existence of the Reciprocity Treaty, in which the
federal Government engaged to urge upon the state authorities to secure to us then-
ce on terms of equality with American inhabitants, but which they failed to accom-
plish, forbids us to expect anything from engagements of an indirect nature.

4
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Article 3 proposes to deal, firstly (a), with the laws regulating the coasting trade.

The policy of the United States on this subject is of the most restrictive and

unfriendly character. It is not merely a defensive one on their part, conceived in

the spirit of protection, but is levelled and enforced against Canadian shipping with

extreme rigor-notwithstanding that both Imperial and colonial legislation affecting

the foreign mercantile marine have been, meanwhile, of the most liberal tendency

The invidious operation of this policy is explained in another part of the present

report; and borne remedial changes should be insisted upon m any future disposal of

the subject. JSo new treaty of commerce would, in the opinion of the undersigned

prove acceptable to the Dominion in which the required alterations are not provided

for, or after which Canadian vessels shall be excluded from registration in the United

States. The terms on which this reciprocal privilege may be secured might be

agreed upon on the basis of a Customs tax proportioned to the internal revenue tax-

ation, as in other oases

;

"

, ^u;««
Secondly (b), to revise the patent and copyright laws. There are strong objec-

tions to abandoning the vantage ground we at present occupy as regards foreign

inventions . And unless, in relaxing our patent laws for the advantage of American

inventors as part of a general scheme of reciprocity, it ensures some general privi-

leges to British publishers, we should retain the advantages at our command ;

Thirdly (c), to extend the principle of extradition. The moral considerations

in support of such provisions as shall reach other offences than those for which

fugitives from justice may now be extradited apply equally to both countries, but

thl larger extent and population of the United States, and necessarily the greater

frequency of divers grades of crime which it is the commercial no less than the

social interest of the American Government and people to be enabled to suppress,

make this proposal rather favorable towards them.
m ,« ..

Article 4 provides for the continuance of transit through American and Canadian

territories respectively. This system, as at present existing, is, so far as Canada is

concerned, quite as free from restrictions as it is possible to make it
;
but the charges

and hindrances to which goods in transitu through United States territory are sub-

ject for protective reasons, make the arrangement burdensome only to our trade.

In order to be mutually beneficial these facilities should be as nearly as may be

Teduced to a uniform system, having some guarantee of permanence.

Article 5 being the chief of these propositions as relating to an exchange of the

natural products of both countries, agrees in the main with the principle ot recipro-

city and mutual advantage on which the negotiations profess to be based.

There is an omission in the schedule referred to as adopted under the former

treaty of the article of "hay," which occasion should be taken to supply. I iw one

of the staple agricultural productions in certain portions of the Maritime Provinces

and was probably overlooked in the preparation of the free list. The omission ought

to be supplied in any future arrangements.

If the duties to be placed on the articles enumerated are to be measured by the

internal revenue taxes of the United States, as suggested m this ^«we»»™J^
necessary to distinguish between the existing and exceptional state of taxation there,

and the altered condition of things which it is reasonable to anticipate as a near

result of the vast resources and the great energy and industry of the American people.

Article 6 promises to assimilate the Excise duty on certain articles ofluxury, and

to devise means to assist United States officials in the prevention of smuggling, inis

also involves a small amount of taxation on our people which may not
>

beataU

necessary for our own revenue purposes. It might be difficult to compute the value

of such assistance as could be afforded through the co-operation of our Customs and

Excise officers; but as the local burden of thus rendering aid rests on us, while it

relievos our neighbors from extra exertions and may save them from revenue losses

this offer amounts to something more than a proof of friendly disposition towards

thei
The foregoing proposals by the late Finance Minister, taken as a whole, seem to

present in tie most advantageous form those concessions which it may be found

5
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Government, let us make up our minds that such is the only practical
reciprocity our neighbors are likely to appreciate. Canadians may profit further

»y the lesson m self-reliance, and will bear with patriotic spirit and loyal patiencewhatever temporary disadvantages can attend the trial.
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the American Secretary of State to the British Minister at

Washington, in June last, to open negotiations touching the fisheries and navigation,
reference to the resolution then recently passed by Congress.
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10n Proposes securing to United States citizens "the rightsclaimed by them in the fisheries of the British provinces in America."
±he undersigned perceives in this expression the chief obstacle to arranging anyterms of reciprocal trade into which the concession of fishing privileges enters as an

equivalent. Americans do not realize either the extent or value of the common
privileges of fishery thus acquired in our waters. They have been taught, and nownrmly believe, that their rights on our shores are nearly as extensive and almost as
valuable as our own. Their fishermen have carried out in practice this cherished
• u *?? nabltual faot of their free and easy admission everywhere among our
inshore fishing grounds is regarded by them as a tacit acknowledgment of the claims
always set up m their behalf and maintained at critical junctures by their Govern-

* TT
Th

°J <?
re educated t0 a88ert a construction of the Convention of 1818 favorable

to United States citizons, and subversive of the claims of British subjects. In their
official reports, sanctioned by authority, in their state papers, in the speeches of their
representatives m their public press, the American people advance claims affecting
our inshore fisheries which are extravagant in fact, and which the highest legal
authorities of Great Britain have declared to be untenable in law. United States
fishermen not having for some fourteen years past been brought face to face with
anything more than a mere formal denial of such extreme pretensions, whilst
studiously informed of only the popular version of them, amplified in many instances
beyond the bounds of reason, they have really no practical idea of the wide difference.
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between what is maintainable at public law as the exclusive property of Her
^iiijesty's subjects, and what they, as foreigners, can establish under treaty stipula-

tion which they are bound to respect. And just so long as they shall continue to

cherish this undefined and exaggerated conviction there can be no real appreciation,

on their part of any concessions, however extensive and valuable that are made by
Canada. FeeliDg no pressure from the narrowness of their national liberty of fishing,

and not being compelled to join issue on the whole fishery question, they will

assuredly continue to enjoy what they call their privileges, without any equivalent,

in despite of license systems or warnings which experience teaches and circum-

stances enable them easily to evade.

The prevalence of this convenient misapprehension is fraught with danger to

the peace of both nations. Long continuance of a,temporizing policy transparent te

everyone as conceived in fear of bringing to speedy settlement a troublesome inter-

national dispute, and executed, also, with such tender formalities as to defeat itself*

can have no other influence than to confirm unjust pretensions and embolden aggres-

sion. Nor can we, in the light of human experience, anticipate any other result as>

the legitimate sequel to our weak demands than that, ultimately, we shall be con-

fronted by some sudden individual enforcement of a firm belief in the national claim.

The danger of a crisis of this kind is strikingly illustrated by the public intima-

tion brought under the notice of our Government by Mr. Thornton's despatch of

20th October last, enclosing a copy of an article from the New York Tribune of that

date, in which the Gloucester fishermen are represented as arming themselves to

enforce their "right" to cruise in Canadian waters without licenses, and to resist

British crusiers molesting them. The language of this article is just such as would

impel United States fishermen to act in the manner indicated, and it suggests what

may be at any moment the grievous effect of those undisputed convictions on this»

subject which American fishermen have come to regard as irresistible from any British

point of view. Allusion is made to the persistent and annoying interference of

British cruisers " in their legitimate pursuit" of cruising and taking fish in our fish-

ing grounds. The determination is expressed no longer to submit " toexpulsion

from waters in which they believe themselves ent-tled to cruise and fish
;
" they are

satisfied " that their just privileges have been invaded," and they will not hesitate

to fire on any naval or fishery officers who shall molest them.

In the true interests of peace, therefore, no less than in justice to the present

wants and future prospects of this country, it is desirable to put an end to such an.

awkward misbelief, and to insist on rights of exclusion which the laws of civilized

nations declare to be ours.
.

The material worth and national importance to Canada of the coast and inshore

fisheries in British American waters, can scarcely be overestimated. Their produce

and control are of especial value to Nova Scotia, and that province might reasonably-

expect from the union of colonial interests some accession to the vigor and authority^

with which our claim to exclusive fishery rights within treaty limits have been

already maintained by the Maritime Province*. These rights are based on public law,

and are limited only by treaty stipulations. The extent to which they are so limited

by the Convention of London, dated 20th October, 1818, between G eat Britain and

the United States, is still in controversy. Great Britain contends that the prescribed

limits of three marine miles, as the limit of exclusion, should be measured from head-

land to headland ; while the Onitel States Government contends that it should be

measured from the interior of the bays and sinuosities of the coast. In support of

the British view reference is made as well to the exact terms of the convention a&

to the law and practice of nations re- aiding their sovereign rights and territorial

jurisdiction. The legal authorities on these points are cited at length in a special

report herewith, by an oflucer of this Department, marked A, to which reference ie*

respectfully requested. The American Government, on the other hand, claims that

an exceptional definition of tha limit of a marine league running everywhere parallel

to the coast line, describing the course of indentation, &c, instead of detining the

mouths of bays and other indentations, by lines drawn across from one headland te

7
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another, is founded in the peculiar circumstances of the case. That, as United States
citizens had formerly used these inshore fisheries under a favorable construction of
certain liberties of fishing accorded them by the treaty of peace with Great Britain
in 1783, and as the subsequent Convention of 1818 was an amicable adjustment of
differences growing out of such user, the renunciation of their claim to concurrent
privileges in the inshore fisheries, made in the latter convention, should not be
rigidly construed to their entire exclusion.

Such is substantially the " fishery question " as it stood at the time of entering
into the .Reciprocity Treaty of 1854, and as it was revived on the abrogation of that
treaty by the United States.

This brief resumi of the fishery dispute between Great Britain and the United
States, and a passing reference to the considerate measures subsequently adopted,
will serve to explain the attitude which it is at present recommended that Canada
should assume.

The various departmental reports and minutes of Council, forming part of the
printed return herewith, marked B, relate to the continuance of the system of issuing
season licenses to American fishing vessels on merely nominal terms, and also prove,
hy referring to Imperial despatches, that Her Majesty's Government and the Cana-
dian Executive distinctly provided at the outset that such system should be of tem-
porary duration and contingent on the mutual adoption, at an early date, of a treaty
of commerce between Great Britain and the United States. This provisional system
lias now continued for four years, its renewal each successive year having been
assented to by Canada as a temporary expedient, the termination of which was
jooked forward to before the recurrence of another season. The expectation that
such temperate and moderate measures—if the Americans really desired to renew
the commercial intercourse which had subsisted in former times between themselves
and these colonies—would lead to at least a tolerably satisfactory arrangement of
pome kind sufficient to obviate any immediate revival of those irritating differences
so amicably compromised by the reciprocal concessions acceded to in 1854, had not
been realized.

The undersigned further begs to call the attention of Council to the position of
our maritime interests and the questions raised by the United States with reference
1o navigating the River St. Lawrence and the Gut of Canso. In a report prepared
by direction of Council and submitted on the 2nd April, 1868, a copy of which is
hereto annexed, marked C, occasion was taken to point out the disabilities under
-which the colonial merchant marine labors, and to contrast the relative treatment in
respect of tonnage and other dues of British and American vessels in the ports of the
Tespective countries. It was shown that the duties on British tonnage and other
Customs charges imposed on British vessels entering United States ports, are unjust
and burdensome, and that they are further aggravated by various other advantages
conferred on American craft to such an extent as virtually to prohibit competition
in British bottoms in the carrying trade of the lakes and seaboard. These advan-
tages induce parties to invest in American tonnage to the detriment of Canadian
ship-owners.

It will be perceived, on referring to the above-mentioned report, that the British
vessels are prohibited from carrying passengers or freight between United States
ports, and from state to state, while down to last season American vessels could carry
goods and passengers between any or all of the provinces of the Empire. Since
1849 the liberal policy of the Imperial Government has permitted the ships of foreign
nations to trade freely between the different colonies, and also between each colony
and the mother country. The statutes giving such important privileges to foreigners
provided, moreover, that any colony could, if it so desired, by an address to the Crown,
throw open the local coasting trade. The Act 32 Vic, cap. 2, cited as " The
Merchant Shipping (Colonial) Act, 1869," alters the position of this colony as res-
pects this trade* It provides that unless within two years from the date of its procla-
mation (which in Canada took place on the 23rd October, 1869), any colony or
colonies shall by positive enactment legislate to the contrary, their coasting trade

8
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shall remain open to all foreign nations. Thus, without the legislative action above

prescribed, Americans will, in addition to the privileges they already enjoy, be freely

admitted to participate in our coasting trade, while they jealously exclude us from all

participation m^e^ir^^Qwg^ although we permit all foreign built vessels to be

registered in Canada, American laws and regulation deny to British-built vessels the

privilege of registration in United States ports ; and that, while no duties are charged

upon American ships in Canada, other than those chargeable to our own vessels, and

there are no Government charges of any kind for United States vessels frequenting

our lake ports—except in cases where they may use the canals, paying only the same

tolls jas our own vessels—yet ;British craft entering their ports on the lakes are

subject to a special tax of 30 cents (in gold) per ton. Their own vessels are exempted

from this charge, if holding licenses, to trade between different districts within the

union and nearly all of them hold such licenses—or when engaged in the fisheries,

or plying between Mexican, North American and West Indian ports, and pay tonnage

duty annually. But as foreign vessels cannot procure licenses, this special tax is

levied on each entry into United Stales ports during every season. The lake traffic

consequently becomes absorbed by American tonnage, and the development of our

shipping interests sustains a serious check. This constructive method of exclusion

by a licensing system available only to Americans, approximates very closely to a

differential duty against our ships and in favor of their own. Canada would have been

authorized under the 113rd section of the Imperial Statute 16 and 1/ Vic, cap. 107,

and justified by the circumstances, to impose on United States vessels counter-vail-

ing charges; but has refrained from doing so, in accordance with the conciliatory tor-

bearance which has in other respects prompted our policy towards the Americans.

A practice also prevails in United States ports of exacting an arbitrary fee ot $5

payable to customs officers, together with some minor charges for each entry and

clearance of Canadian vessels, although no such fees are collected in our ports. Ihis

tax bears so heavily in the case of steamers as practically to prohibit the employ-

ment of colonial tonnage in that kind of business, especially since such drawback on

our trade is supplemented by exemptions applied to American steamcraft, discrim-

inatory in their effect as against Canadians. ,.,,.- • A +^„wlo
Also, in connection with pilot* ge, there is a studied disfavor evinced towards

an
American vessels are exempicd from compulsory pilolage in voyaging between

certain United States ports o;. the Atlantic frontier, but are compelled, as are an

vessels of certain dimensions, to engage pilots when £oing to, or returning Irom

British waters, and clearing to and from colonial ports.
_

Then, again, in the matter of light-dues which, anterior to the union ot these

provinces wire in certain ports chargeable on all shipping, but have been removed

by the Dominion Government, there was no exception made against American ves-

sels The law imposing a tux of ten cents per ton on vessels navigating the irut or

Can'so has also been allowed to expire. As the American fishing fleet reach the ash-

ing grounds through this passage, and have been so permitted so to use it tor years

pattf these free terms certainly enhance a concession which might be at any time

withheld, it being the opinion of Her Majesty's Government (referred to elsewhere)

that foreigners have no right whatever to navigate the same.

Americans have enjoyed the use of our canals on the same footing with Cana-

dians, and still deny our tonnage the use of theirs on reciprocal conditions, iney

depreciate this boon. In the course of discussion among the delegatesjat|W«>hingtoa

in 1864, the Chairman of the Committee of Ways and Means affirmed that the u,e ot

our canals by United States vessels was rather an advantage to us than a ^orto

them. Even in the carrying trade through these canals, as for example, from Chicago

or Detroit to Oswego, a distinction is made against colonial tonnage, on the g'™™
of its being a coasting voyage, although it is impossible for "7^ m^eit

without passing through British territory. We are thus completely excluded trom

the benefits of this considerable trade.

776—2 9
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^^i1^narder case exists, which absolutely closes that peculiar branch of tradeagainst British subjects. The American citizen entering his lumber at Boston or else,where, values it on entry, say at $40 per thousand superficial feet, which price heclaims it to be worth to him at St. John, the place ofshipment, thus taking the marketvalue in Boston, $45, ess freight and charges of $5, as the nominal value at the place

of export, and enters it accordingly.
p

The British shipper, adopting the same rule of taking the value at
Boston, say

, $45
Less freight and charges

m $5
Also less duty, 20 per cent., which, though'he has to pay]

the American exporter escapes from, say 9

— 14

leaves $31 as the value at St. John. Such valuation, manifestly fair, *the UnitedStates authorities refuse to recognize, but exact duty on just one-fifth more than theactual worth or cost at the place of shipment. This exaction is felt to be a great in-
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aDd feends t0 force Persons engaged in manufacturing lumber toeither abandon the business or protect themselves by becoming naturalized as Am-encan citizens m order to carry on their operations without loss.
lne undersigned has endeavored to show, by reference to existing facts andinstances of hardship, that the policy of concession and conciliation has failed inobtaining from the American Government the removal of restraints on international

trade and navigation and how effectually the legislation and executive action of theUnited states have been directed towards monopolizing trade between the two coun-
tries, and to what extent such restrictions and discrimination have succeeded inexcluding Canadian tonnage from all participation in carrying trade. The continu-ance of feuch a onesided state of things is not only detrimental to our trade and ship-
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pin* interests, but it is calculated to sap the loyalty of our intelligent populations

living along the great lakes, or who are interested in our tonnage and commerce,

and weakening tfieir confidence in our too complacent system of government These

people cannot fail to draw unfavorable comparisons between the treatment which

their interests receive on the other side of the boundary line and that which is

enjoyed by Americans trading in Canada. There are, as respects the article of coal

and salt, strong reasons why
6
we should consider them specially with reference to

the United States tariff; but as the Ministers of Finance and Customs will doubtless

embrace the subject in matters coming within their province, it is unnecessary to

enla
ifis"?n

n
conclusion, respectfully recommended that all privileges of a concessory

nature, affecting our inshore fisheries and the navigation of the Gut of Canso, be

withdrawn, and that the same tonnage duties and other charges as are now imposed

by American legislation on British tonnage be reciprocally applied to American

tonnage, as provided for by the Imperial Act, 3a Vic, chap 11, sec 173, and that if

it be deemed inexpedient to prohibit altogether the use of the Gut of Canso, its pas-

sage being intimately connected with fishing pursuits in or near our own waters, a

spfcial tonnage tax be levied on foreign vessels navigating the same Also that

during the ensuing session of Parliament the necessary legislation shall be proposed

to foreclose foreigl nations from the freedom of our coasting trade, as prescribed by

the Colonial Merchant Shipping Act of 1869. _

The undersigned wishes to be clearly understood that in making the above

recommendations, he has no leaning whatever to a policy of:'^P08^/!?*™^^
commerce. On the contrary, his views are entirely favorable to the fullest freedom

of commercial intercourse between all nations on fair a,nd reciprocal terms. But in

?he present case it would be idle to conceal from ourselves the entire absence on the

part of the United States, of that equitable spirit which should govern the commer-

cial relations of contiguous countries at peace with each other, and rival only in the

energetic pursuit of national development conducive to their mutual prosperity,
energetic purs

recommended £ one of expediency, based on the only principle

of reciprocity which seems to find favor in the estimation of American statesmen

namely protecting ourselves by equalizing the burdens which circumstoncesimpose

on our natural products and domestic industries, and on our privileges of fishery and

navi8 1
•

Tlie wll0le respectfully submitted.

P. MITCHELL, Minister of Marine and Fisheries.

11
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RETURN
(77rf)

To an Address of the House of Commons, dated 5th April, 1 886 ;—For copies

of all correspondence between the Government of British Columbia, or

any person, and the Dominion Government, with regard to the deep

water Fisheries on the coast of British Columbia.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Secretary of State.

Department of the Secretary of State,

29th April, 1886,

Copt of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Executive Council, approved by

His Honor the Lieutenant Governor the 16th Ftbruary, 1884.

On a memorandum from the Honorable the Provincial Secretary, dated the 15th

February, 1884, recommending approval of an Address to His Honor the Lieutenant

Governor which has been passed by the Legislative Assembly, viz. :—
" That whereas it is generally admitted that valuable deep water fisheries exist

along the coast of this Province that would contribute largely to the interest and

welfare of the country if they were thoroughly known and developed
;

" And whereas no survey has ever been made with the o\ ject of discovering and

making public the localities where fish may betaken in wuiiicieiit quantities to ind.ee

Capital and labor to profitably engago in the development of the deep-water fisheries
;

"And whereas under section 5, sub-section E of the terms of Union, Can'a^a

agreed to assume and defray the charges for the protection and encouragement of iho

fisheries in this Province
;

•« And whereas it is absolutely necessary, in order to fully develop the deep-

water fisheries of this Province, that a thorough survey should be made to discover

and make known the localities where deep water fish may be taken
;

" Be it therefore resolved, That an humble Address be presented to His Honor

the Lieutenant Governor, praying that His Honor may bo pleased to urge upon th»

Dominion Government that it is desirable and necessaiy to equip and maintain a

vessel on this coast for the purpose of searching for codfish and halibut banks, oyster

beds and other kinds of shell-fish* which may be found, and to take land-marks, and

define and make an accurate survey of all fishing banks that may be discovered, and

report from time to time to this Government."

The Committee advise that this Minute be approved, and a copy hereof forwarded

to the Honorable the Secretary of State for Canada.

Certified.

JOHN ROBSON, Clerk Executive Council.
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RETURN
To an Address of theHouse of Commons, dated 1st April, 1886 ;—-For copies

of all Petitions from the Legislature of Nova Scotia and all correspon-

dence between the G-overnment of Nova Scotia, or any member thereof,

and the Dominion Government, or any member thereof ; and all the

Orders in Council of either Government respecting the re-adjustment

or increase of the money subsidy paid, or to be paid by the Dominion
Government to the Government of Nova Scotia, not already brought

down.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Secretary of State.

Department of the Secretary of State,

29th May, 188b*.

Certified Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved
by Hi$ Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 12th May, 1880.

On a report, dated 31st March, 1880, from the Honorable the Minister of Finance?
stating that he has had under consideration a memorandum from the accountant to

the Treasury Board, approved by the Deputy Minister of Finance, upon the subject

of the accounts in dispute between the Province of Nova Scotia and the Dominion,
The Minister states that the first item is the claim of the Province for interest

upon the value of the lighthouse and other stores taken over at Confederation, from
the 1st July, 1867, to 30th June, 1878, the date the value of the stores was allowed
to the Province, that the amount claimed is $32,430.41, and he recommends that, as
in a similar case interest was allowed to New Brunswick, authority be given to credit

the Province with the amount.
That the second is in connection with a charge made against the Province im

1878 for the amount ($8,367.77) of the defalcation in the Halifax post oflice.

That as there is no doubt the entry was an erroneous one he recommends that

it be reversed and that the interest upon the amount from the date the entry was
passed to the date of tho next adjustment of the balance, viz., 30ih of June next,

amounting to $1,004.13 be also allowed to the Province.

That with regard to the charge of $19,873.08 also made against the Province in

1878 on money order account, and which the Provincial Secretary claims is not a
legitimate charge, he, the Minister, is unable to recommend that any alteration be
made.

That the next and final matter referred to in the memorandum is the claim of
the Dominion against the Province for the balance, $31,295.20, standing at the debit

of the Nova Scotia Kailway suspense account.

For the reasons stated in the memorandum and in that of Mr. Tims, which
accompanies it, the Minister states that he is of opinion that the claim is a valid one
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against the Province and he accordingly recommends that the amount be charged to
the Province of &ova Scotia debt account.

The Committee submit the foregoing recommendations for Your Excellency's
approval

.

Clerk Privy Council.

Further Memorandum upon the accounts in dispute between the Dominion and the Province
of Nova Scotia,

I have examined the letter of Mr. Costly, dated the 26th February, and ad-
dressed to the Hon. L. H. Holmes, in relation to the previous correspondence upon
the subject of the accounts in dispute between the Dominion aod the Province of
Nova Scotia, and am of opinion that, as there is a precedent in the case of New Bruns-
wick, it would he but right to allow interest upon the amount granted to the Province
as the value of the lighthouse and other stores taken over at Confederation ; this
being interest at 5 per cent, from 1st July, 18G7, to 30th June, 1878, the date of pay-
ment, upon $58,96 1. 38 would amount to $32,430. 41.

I would also recommend that authority be obtained to credit the Province with
$9,3*71 90, being in reversal of the entry passed on the 4th February, 1878, erroneously
charging the Province with $8,367 77, the amount of the defalcation in the Halifax
post office in 1873, and for interest from the date of the entry to the date of the next
adjustment of the balance, viz , 30 June next.

I am unable to coincide with Mr. Costly's opinion as to the larger amount,
$19,873 08 charged on money order account. There is no doubt the provincial
authorities were aware of the claim. In fact the Order in Council of the 5th Nov-
ember, 1874, states as much, and I feel compelled still to hold this to be a legitimate
charge against the Province.

With regard to the claim for the balance of $31,295 20, standing at the debit of
the Nova Scotia Railway suspense account, which is objected to : it will be seen from
the statement of account annexed, and from the accompanying memorandum of Mr.
Tims who had the settlement of these accounts, that Mr. Costly only perpetuates the
error fallen into by both Governments at the time of their adjustment, the error
being the apportionment between the Dominion and the Province of the final balance
paid to Mr. Fleming only, no notice whatever being taken of a previous payment on
account, part of which was also properly chargeable against Nova Scotia.

The conclusions arrived at are susceptible of the clearest proof and are supported
by original documents in the possession of the Department, and from a personal ex-
amination of these documents I am more than ever convinced that the claim is a
valid one and should not be relinquished.

W. REGINALD BAKER.
I concur with the above.

J. M. COURTNEY, Deputy Minister of Finance.
Finance Department, 3 IstMarch, 1880.

THE NOYA SCOTIA RAILWAY SUSPENSE ACCOUNT.

This account originated in an error made in 1869, in apportioning between the
Dominion and the Province of Nova Scotia certain claims of Mr. Sandford Fleming
for extras in connection with his contract for the construction of the railway between
Truro and Pictou.

The whole of these claims amounted to $95,245 52
Of which the Dominion Government assumed 47,498 03

Leaving a balance chargeable to debt ofNova Scotia of. $47,747 49
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Composed of the following items :

—

Payments to old contractors $20,034 32
Baring & Co., balance 3,723 50
Construction of telegraph 8,943 46
Platform cars , 6,334 55
Hails and clips $41,537 06
Maintenance 12,031 25
Half expenditure working telegraph 1,182 02

$54,750 33
Of which payable by Dominion (vide S.

Fleming's Eeport) 47,502 03
7,248 30

Paid Esson & Co 1,459 36

$47,743 49

Instead, however, of dividing the extras, both Governments fell into the same
mistake in apportioning only the balance of Mr. Fleming's general account with the
Eailway Department, which, owing to a payment in the interim, on account, had
been reduced to $63,092.92 when the final settlement was effected.

Of this sum $47,498.03 was correctly assumed by the Dominion, and the balance

of $15,594.89 only charged to the Province. The difference, therefore, between the
latter amount and the $47,747.49 really chargeable to Nova Scotia, is, therefore,

$32,152.60 Nova Scotia currency, equal to $31,295.20 Canada currency.

A summary of Mr. Fleming's account, of which a copy is annexed, was handed
to the then Provincial Secretary, in Halifax, in May, 1875.

The original reports and accounts connected with the whole matter, which I
then left in the hands of the Hon. Mr. Vail and the Hon. Stayler Brown, for

examination, were subsequently returned to me and still remain in my possession.

The error was discovered by me during my first audit of the railway accounts,

in Halifax, in July, 1870, and immediately reported to the then Auditor General,

nnder whose directions the amount was placed at debit of a suspense account, pend-

ing the formal sanction from the Local Government being obtained to transfer it to

the debt of their Province.

Although I have frequently called attention to the matter since then, no formal

decision appears to have been come to in reference to it, although there can be no
doubt that the amount is really a proper charge to the debt of the Province of Nova
Scotia.

Respectfully submitted.
THOMAS D. TIMS, Financial Inspector.

Finance Department, Ottawa, 31st March, 1880.

78-1J
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Government House, Halifax, N.S., 3rd March, 1880.

SIR)—I have the honor to enclose you, for the information of His Excellency the

Governor General, a certified copy of a minute of our Executive Council made on the

28th ult., adopting the report of the Honorable the Attorney-General on the subject

of the claim of Nova Scotia to arrears of interest on certain parts of the sum allowed

to this Province by the Parliament of Canada on debt account, together with the

report of the Attorney General therein referred t3, and have to request that you will

be good enough to transmit these papers to His Excellency the Governor General

with a view to their being brought as early as possible to the notice of the Govern-

ment of the Dominion.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

ADAMS G. ARCHIBALD, Lieutenant-Governor.

Hon. Secretary of State, Ottawa.

Copy of Minute of Council passed and approved by His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor

in Council 28/A February, 1880.

The Council having had under consideration the report of the Attorney-Gen

oral, dated 27th February, 1880, on the subject of the claims of Nova Scotia for

arrears of interest upon the additional advances made to the Province on debt

account, under the Canadian Statutes of 1869 and 1878. It is recommended that

said report be adopted, and that the same be transmitted by His Honor the Lieuten-

ant-Governor to His Excellency the Governor General, with a respectful request that

the subject thereol may be taken into early and favorable consideration.

I certify that the above is a correct copy of Minute of Council passed 28th

February, 1880.
S. H. HOLMES, Clerk of Council.

Attorney-General's Office, Halifax, N.S., 27th February, 1880.

The undersigned has had his attention directed to the provisions of the Canadian

Statutes of 1869 and 1873 by which the debts of Nova Scotia and the other provinces

of the Dominion were re-arranged, a question having arisen as to the true interpreta-

tion of these statutes as regards the interest moneys which the Province of Nova
Scotia is entitled to draw from the Dominion Treasury upon the amount by which

the allowance of debt thereby made to this province exceeded the actual debt which

she had incurred.

By the 112th section of the British North America Act (1867) the Provinces of

Ontario and Quebec were made liable to Canada for the amount of debt, if any, by

which the debt of the Province of Canada exceeded at the union $ J2,500,000 and

per interest on such excess at the rate of 5 per cent, per annum.

By the 114th section, Nova Scotia was made liable for the amount, if any, by

which its public debt exceeded at the union $8,000,000 and per interest thereon at

the rate of 5 per cent.
, ,

By the 116th section it was provided that in case the debt of Nova Sootiadidnot

amount to $8,000,000 she should receive interest from Canada at 5 per cent, per

annum on the difference between the actual amount of her debt and such stipulated

amount.
By section 1 of chap. 2 of the Dominion statutes of 1869, it is provided: Nova

Scotia shall be liable to Canada for the amount (if any) by winch its public debt at

the union exceeded $9,186,756, and shall be chargeable with interest on such excess

only, and shall be entitled to interest on any amount by which its public debt then

fell short of that sum as if the said sum were mentioned in sections 114 and 116 of

the British North America Act, 1867, instead of that of $3,000,000."

Chapter 30 of the Dominion Acts of 1873 as construed under chap. 3 of 1874,

extended the allowance of debt which had been made to Ontario and Quebec front

5



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. T8.) A. 1886

$62,500,000 to $73,006,088.84 and the allowance to Nova Scotia in the same propor
tion, making her debt allowance then $10,731,026 instead of $8,000,000.

The following statement shows how the increase to Nova Scotia progressed ;—
Allowance by British North America Act, 1867 $8,000 000

do Act of 1869 ;. 1,186,756
do do 1873 1,344,780
do do 1874 199,490

$10,731,026

From the passage of these statutes of 1869, 1873 and 1874 the Province of Nova
Scotia has been paid an interest regularly on the sum by which her actual debt fell
below the increased allowance, and the question has arisen whether she is not entitled
to be paid interest thereon from the date of the union; or, in other words, whether
the Acts of 1869 and 1873 are not retrospective and do not rectify, as from the
beginning, the acknowledged inadequacy of the original debt allowance.

The preamble to the statute of 1869 admits that " it is just and expedient to add
to the sums payable to Nova Scotia under the British North America Act, 1867."
The demand that these sums should be added to, was based on the state of affairs
existing in the province at the time of the union, aDd if it was just in 1869 that they
should be increased it was equally so in 1867. The words, however, upon which I
would lay particular stress are these quoted; "(Nova Scotia) shall be entitled to
interest on any amount by which its public debt then " (that is, at the time of the
union) "fell short of that sum " (that is the increased sum), "as if the said sum were
mentioned in sections 114 and 116 of the British North America Act, 1867, instead
of that of eight million Jollars."

I claim that this statute is by its express terms retrospective and should relate
back to 1867. If it were intended to be otherwise there need not have been and should
not have been any reference in the passage which I have just quoted, to the amount

°i ^T v .

exiBtlDS at the time of the union
J
the Act would have said "Nova Scotia

shall be entitled to interest on any amount by which its public debt now falls short of
that sum." But I think that the concluding words are likewise exceedingly strong
in favor of such a construction and operate in such away as to place Nova Scotia in
just the same position as though the larger amount were mentioned in sections 114
and 116 oi the British North America Act instead of eight millions.

The second section of the Act supports to the fullest extent my contention, that
the increased allowances made in 1869 were made in consequence of the province
having established her light to have received better terms at the time of the union,
becaube it is still more plain and strong in its language in dealing with the matter
of additional subsidy. The words are these :

" The arrears thereof un to the first
days of July, 1869, being capitalized," &c, &c. It may be contended that inasmuch
as the arrears are specially mentioned in the second section, and not in the first, an
inference is to be drawn that arrears on subsidy account were intended to be paid,
but not arrears on debt account, under the principle of expressum facit cessere
acitum, and this would probably be a cogent argument if the second section e xpressly
declared that Nova Scotia should receive the arrears of subsidy since 1867, but I
contend that in both cases the arrears are intended to be paid, and that the arrears
of subsidy are only mentioned specifically in the second section in order to provide
that they should be capitalized for ten years, instead of being paid to the province at
once.

The statute of 1873 is equally strong as supporting this construction. The
amounts payable to and chargeable against the said province respectively, in so far
as they depend on the amount of debt with which each province entered the union
shall be calculated, &c. Hero is a similar reference back to the state of things
existing at the time of the union, and then the Act proceeds: "As if the sum fixed
by the 112th section of the British North America Act were increased," &o.
Obviously " the amounts payable to and chargeable against " Nova Scotia " in so

a
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cafar as they depend on the amount of deht with which " she "-entered the umo.

cannot « he calculated and allowed as if the time fixed by the British North Amor

Act 1867, were increased," unless she receives from the date of the British

North America Act coming into force the fruit of that increase, namely, an allow-

ance of interest on the larger amount. ki>.4-J.

In relation to this statute of 1873, it has been contended that the preamble fore-

Bhadows a different meaning than that which I claim for it, because of these words

« and whereas it is expedient to relieve the said Provinces ot Ontario and Quebec

from the said change and for that purpose hereafter to consider the fixed amount in

their case as increased, &c, 4c» On this point I must observe that there.appear*'to-

me to be no conflict here with the construction which I have put on the Act. It the

statute expressly declared the right of the Province of Nova Scot,a to receive arm,

m

Of interest there would still be do inconsistency in the preamble, reciting that she

should hereafter be considered as entitled to tbe increased al-wance. Acts which

are avowedly retiospective in their operation only come into f< .roe from the date of

their passage and there would be nothing inconsisteLt in a statute declaring " heie-

after Ft shall be considered that the Province of Nova Scotia was entitled to enter the

SrionwUh a large allowance of debt, and she shall accordingly be allowed
I

interest

lereon from the first day of July, 1867." If there would be no mconsisJenoy in fnch

words then there is none in the preamble read with the Act construed re respectively.

I would add, however, that the preamble cannot control the plain words ot the Act

arTthat the omission of the word " hereafter " in the enacting parts seems to me to

deprive that word of any significance. „
fi

.
P
The second section of the Act of 1873, like the second section of the WrfM,

dealt with the question of subsidies, but did not contain any words,from ^ich retro-

spective intention could be inferred, as did the second section of the Act of 1869 and

the first section of the Act of 1873. It is as follows:—
«

(2.) The subsidies to the several Provinces in July, 1873, shall be paid in

accordance with the foregoing provisions of this Act."

In order to make good thVdefect and-as I contend-to put the matter of ub-

sidies on tbe same footing as the debt allowance, as regards relating back to the time

defederation, cap. 3 of the Dominion Acts of 1874 was passed. It recites that

drubts had arisen under the Act of 1873 « as to whether the increased subsidy-to be

allowed to the Province of Nova Scotia under the said Act should be bused on the

sum of $8 000,000 mentioned in the 114th section of the British Not th Amor ca Acs

Hn the sum of $9,186,756 to which the said sum of $8,000,000 was increased by

fVift Act of 1869." It then enacts :

—

. . ,.w , ^ „„^the Act ot ,8b ^ _

s^ _

ntention ^ tfae Act tl0D6d («, y,e cap

VA that the increased sub-idy to be allowed to the Province of Nova bcot;a, under

in. safd ict,X«m be based
y
upon tbe said sum of^$9 186,756 as if that sum^id been

mentioned in the 1 14th section of the British North America Act, 1867, instead ot the

^S^Tould^X'sibletogive effect to this statute without consideri^ the

larger amount of debt as instituted for all purposes for the smaller in the Bnush

North America Act of 1867 in the same way and to as full an extent as it it haa

^iV^J^SSXn***. that the Act of 1873 has leceived from Par-

liament the retrospective construction for which I contend, and the statute of lbbS i»

noTess favorable in its terms than that of 1873, and is free from the
,
pream le wmch

I have remarked upon before and upon which some argument, has been bu, ea

As an argument in favor of the reason and justice of the construction or which

I have contended I would say that it appears to me to be but log.ca and prop* that

if the Dominion of Canada was bound, as its Parliament admitted, bj^ AA
thereto 1 have quoted, assume on behalf of Nova Scotia the capital enm of ^.'W»
b, 1867 the should be ikewise bound to allow tbe province interest from that period

OT tne amount by which the actual debt of the province tell short of that amount.

7
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•^iS^iSSffiS^^^- W» «1 WT8 were passed in
allowance in mi, thlt they werJ7^M IZtTJ ^^

?
he 'k****

declaratory statutes Ythink the?X ^ th^Tp176
•

C°D8t
f"i?

tion and be read •«
to receive from the Domin oo'o Canaa^ wL2S ^fT"* ?' N?TO Scotia is entitle*
annum from the 1st Juk• l^M• „nth* k

re8t *Vht rat« of Ave per cent, per
exceeded the actual deto the' p'ovi^e^nttl^ ^T^T* M0W™°°

credit, in which^seL -^hT^^^^^fc^^.P^il-r
JNO. S. D. THOMPSON, Attorney-General.

6th March, 1880.

3rd i^knt eTc.5j? *'&&£$%£?#?V"T* N° "' °f*'
with the reports of ?fle itwrne^n«~iT •

y^
Ur E*ecutlv<> Council, together

claims of Nova Scotia to treZZ^Zrl t

°m ??*** t0
'
0a the 8ab

i
eot <* *<>

that province by theVadSt5 cZT^ onVeottcoLT
°f ""m^^ *

I have, &c.,

To His Hnn. a t •

BD0UAilD^GHVIN, Mrtr Secretary of State.lo His Honor the Lieutenant Governor of Nova Scotia, Halifax.

-sussrsrjcat.S'si' ••-—

•

CterA Pn'yy Council

Respectfully submitted,

Ottawa, 29th October, 1880.
S

'
L

'
T1LLEY

>
Mi™ter of Finance.

Fuether Memorandum upon the financial affairs of the Province of Nova Scotia

8.
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cation to his address from the Deputy Secretary replying to a memorandum prepared

by myself in connection with the request of the Provincial Government for a re-adjust-

ment of the provincial subsidy, and another letter of the 2nd instant from the Pro-

vincial Secretary on the same subject, has .'»!so been referred. I regret that delay has

taken place in replying to the letter of March last, the delay, however, was unavoid-

able, as the letter arrived in the middle of the session and at a time when I was inca-

pacitated by serious illness from attending to business matters; my subsequent

departure for England necessitated further delay, and as the matter involved is one

of great moment I had again to postpone making a report until I could get sufficient

time to look fully into all the circumstances.

Before criticising the allegations contained in the letters or making any comments

thereon, I beg to point out that throughout the whole of the documents submitted,

whether in the original communications from the Provincial Secretary, or whether

in the separate addresses from both branches of the Legislature, or whether in the sub-

sequent correspondence, lies this inadmissible argument that because the province is

financially embarrassed the Dominion must come forward and rescue it from its unfor-

tunate position.

Whilst I deeply regret that Nova Scotia should be in its present state, I think ife

but right that this argument should not be entertained; to allow it to stand unnoticed

would be on the part of the Dominion 3-overnment to tacitly consent to its being

correct, and if such an idea becomes general it would materially help to destroy eco-

nomical tendencies in Provincial Legislatures and might be fraught with dangerous

consequences to the Dominion. In pointing out this matter, I do not wish to reflect

for one moment upon either of the political parties in the province, and the memorial

itself, for that matter, frankly states that " both political parties were in accord from

the beginning that the balance of debt should be appropriated towards the construc-

tion of public works to further inter-communication and promote the interests of the

people of the province in this direction ;" bat I simply wish to point out that pro-

vinces like individuals should hold to engagements once made and settled as being

final, especially so in the case of Nova Scotia, when after full examination, the Par-

liament of Canada revised the terms of union and granted in full settlement an

increased amount of capital.

Having thus far pointed out what I consider to be erroneous, I propose, in a very-

few words, to reply to the friendly strictures of the deputy secretary on the figures im

my former memorandum.
Generally, I thought that the statement of revenues as shown in the letter of the

2nd January, 1879, was under the mark and that the estimated expenditures men-

tioned in the same letter might be curtailed, I am still of the same opinion—to quote

the words of the original letter will best show the contention ; it is there stated, " our

present and future revenues under existing circumstances have be«n already

indicated

:

Dominion subsidy $380,000 00

Crown lands, and royalty on coal, about 65,000 00

GazetteOme , 4,000 00

Fees from Provincial Secretary's office including mar-

riage licenses 6,000 00

$455,000 00

Our Expenditure $600,000 00

Our Revenue 455,000 00

Future annual deficit $145,000 00

Such are the words of the letters. Now, if we turn to the last letter received,

dated on the 2nd October last, we are told that the '• revenue from all sources for

1880 will not exceed $470,000, while the expenditure, notwithstanding economy m
9
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J^™,f H * '
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be reasonableTo

piXd
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Mhrbandil,S ofreceiPt8 and strict economy inBl branches ot the public expenditure, but if it has been found that such great differ-ence has been made in the original calculations submitted and the actual result for
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ded that the Provincial Government could carry on the administra-
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a"8, at an annual cost of $520,000 or even at the higher rate of$080,000.and I think that no one now will dispute that it might be done it the latterngure, and ,f the Dominion Ministry were to entertain the proposal to gran be erterms ard to submit the same to Parliament the question might be raised, why shouldthis proposal be granted, seeing that the province had not long eince an incomeequa; for all wants? For proof thereof reference would be made to the DomZ
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8^l' ^ber.

ein !t is ebown tbat the Province received fromlhe
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J
0md ™mher*< 6ome $'50,000. It is true that theten years grant of $80,000 has since dropped, but if the province had then, exclusively

of the ten year grant, an annual income from the Dominion of $470,000 to whichmutt be added the local revenues, amounting to about $80,000, I confess I do notsee what answer could be made to such a point, nor would I thick the Ministry doright to ask for a concession to restore to a province a position once given and lost

™?«, • vT'fw be*n
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,

hat Nova Scotia should have more because other provinces, and more
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"eighboring Province of New Brunswick, receive, it is said, pro-portioratelylaiger subsidies than that received by Nova Scotia
lo give every argument its proper weight I have taken the trouble to look intothe poMt.on of each p.ovince, and liteially I see no very striking difference boweenNew Brunswick and Nova Scotia. Eliminating interest on .ho balance of the debt

a. count and taking the existing subsidy of NovaScotia at $370,240 in ronnd numbers,by the kst ceneus the province receives 95 cents per capita; following the same
course wuh Lew Brunswick taking the subsidy at $428,475.20 and deducting stump-
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l belie™ the Now Brunswickdebt is alout $900,000 and that ihe result il the ,,. • 6cnt figures conld be got, wouldwsnly approximate, bnt even taking the latest published figures I cannot really seetbat any cat-e has been made out.
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a ground for equitable consideration if it could be« abhthed
;
the ground would le this if JSova Scotia largely in excess of other pro-vn ces ccnuibuUd to the revenues of the Dominion, if she paid out of this execs thegnat*, proportion of ibe-public expenditures, ard if she cor tributed more largely

tcwaids 1he payment of the heavy obligations now being incurred by the Dominion
I a\V.

ai,
f
mtn

J;

ald
l
te development of the newer ten itories, then it might be

said that although
i

not legally bound to readjust her position, yet it would not be
Wlaif to tike such position into account and endeavor to give her in some way some
i*l ef fiom her embankment, bnt what aie the facts? Charging the province only
? ,,h inteiebt onihedebt allowed to her, and that at five plr Sent., although thiu in en paid by the Dominion for such debt incurred before confederation was really
six K*r cent., and givirg her credit for all revenues paid in without deducting therelumed dntieb, Which 1 estimate at the lowebt as $240,000, and only charging herwith tbe actual expenditme separately paid on her account, excluding even such
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joint expenditures as the dredging and surveys performed on her coast, the con-

struction of the Dorchester penitentiary and other items which, being lumped in the

statements, are unable to be separated, and which I estimate at fully m all $300,000,

I find that from the 1st July, 1867, to the 30th June, 1879, as per statement annexed,

that Nova Scotia paid in $18,203,364.52, and had spent upon her $17,594,937.65, or

an apparent surplus of $608,426.87, in other words giving her credit for everything,

she has abcut paid her way for the local charges ; but towards the cost of civil gov-

ernment, federal legislation, the Supreme Court, the Geological Survey and the

observatories, the census, pensions and superannuations, the militia, the Dominion

steamers and other marine charges, the working of the railways and other general

charges, she has contributed nothing, much less contributed towards the heavy obli-

gations for the extensive capital charges incurred by the Dominion, including the

construction of the Intercolonial Eailway.
. .

If then after consideration of the foregoing the Government are of opinion tnat

inasmuch as Nova Scotia has not contributed in proportion to the other provinces

which first entered into the union towards the general purposes of the Dominion

that she has had and lost a position better than that to which she tow ahpirea, that

she has not been treated unfairly in comparison with other provinces and that finally

with care and economy she could still pay her way, then it only remains to inform

the Local Government that their application cannot be entertained, and that tne pro-

position to grant a sum of $200,000 per annum, for a limited period m consideration

of the abandonment of the royalty on coal cannot be acceded to.

I have so far referred only to the application made by the Local Government

for a re-adjustment of subsidy, but perhars it might not be out of place here to draw

attention to an apparent outstanding claim (the last) the Dominion has against Nova

5COtl

If reference is made to the Dominion balance sheet in the Public Accounts there

will be found one account called the " Province of Nova Scotia Pailway Debt bus-

Dense Account," with an alleged balance due the Dominion of $31,295.20

This account came into existence in the Dominion books m June, lfe70, througb

trotter entries made ly Mr. Tims for the purpose of adhjattog the Nova Scotia rail-

way accounts, and entirely arises from extra claims paid to Mr. Sandford Fleming m
September, 1869, for the construction of the Tiuro and Pictou Eailway.

I find frcm Mr. Tim's memorandum that the total of these claims amounted to

$95 245 52, of which the share payable by Nova Scotia was $47,747.49, and by the

Dominion Government $47,498.03, or nearly half and half; but when the runmn

account of Mr. Fleming was settled the amount fcund due to him was $63 oy<5. yz ,

this amount unfortunately ^as taken by both Governments to be the amount to be

aDnoitiored, and whiht the Dominion assumed its full share, Nova Scotia was only

chained the difference, $15,594.89, the difference between the amount charged and

the full amount is that which is now in the above named suspense account.

I cannot find that any action was taken by the Dominion Government to have

this aco>unt adjusted until seme time in 1S75, when Mr Tims acquainted Mr. Tail

witb th) matter, and the papers were laid before Mr. Hill. Nothing else seems to

aVe
The

n
pres

n

ent Local Government objects to the amount being charged to the debt

account, on the grounds that the payments were madefy Dominion cfircials after

Confederation, that they had no means of verifying the amount and that they pre-

sumed with good reason that the sum charged was in full of all demands. I cannot

say but what there is some reason in their objections, and as the Dominion Govern-

ment was in error in only charging the smaller amount it might be desirable to

assume the balance, and by so doing, entirely close up the accounts with the province.

Kespectfully submitted,

J. M. COUKTNEY.

11
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Appendix.

1867-68 .,
^P'9

: OK
fcpwdttn..

1868-69 Hlitt 11 *M61,179 87
1869-70 r&SX « 1,190,673 44
1870-71 J

,33f98 16 1,225,414 82
1871-72 J'SS'S

4889 1,236^83 36
1872-73 ..::;:;:;: jffi!f « j^i,«8s 56
1873-74 ... ?$£#£& 1,575,899 <9

1874-75
I,677,3b0 73 1,691,433 52

1876-77 Wa« 2? ',768,018 67

1877-78 ;; r^'oL1 51 1,647,592 73
1878-79 J'™'280 78 1,518,400 097 7

__*,560,699 66 1,5741575 03

818,203,364 52 $17,594,937 65
Ottawa, 29th October, 1880.

'

o™ T„ . t .

Ottawa, 30th January, 1884.

waA~encl^ I should for-
with a committee of /oar Government I ZS

«l
*

* * should ha™ a conference
early a day as possible. M^SKta toZU^XT

"

W an iM™ * "?

I remain, yours truly,

HON. THOMAS F. MORRISON,
Hon. Mr. Chapleau, Secretary of State.

per A
*
S

*
M*

THE HALIFAX DEBT.
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e Sar ,

termS as Nw Bfiaswick. TheAuditor General
to bfmade to ?h^ w q" ?'calatiou OQ *M« basis, reported that the additionto be made to the Nova Sootia debt account was $1,188,756, but by a clerical error
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in the Act passed, carrying out this covenant, the amount placed to the credit of the
Province was $1,186,756. The balance ($2,000), with interest, since 1st July, 1867r
is due to the Province, and should be placed to its credit.

THOMAS F. MORKISON, M.E.G. of Nova Scotia.

Halifax, N.S.

THE DOMINION OF CANADA TO THE PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA.

1st July, 1867.—To interest on $400,000, due by the
city of Halifax to the Province,
to date, $216,749.38. Nova Scotia

currency equal in Dominion cur-

rencyto $210,969 37
1st January, 1884.—Interest on same 265,580 93

$476,550 30

Copy of a Minute of Council pasted at Halifax on the 1st day of October, 1867.

The mayor of the city of Halifax having sent to the Government a resolution?
passed by the city council of which the following is a copy :

Resolved, That in consideration that the Government of Nova Scotia shall release
and discharge the city of Halifax from all present or future liability under the various*
Acts of the Province respecting the provincial railways, His Worship the Atayor oi"

the Recorder of this city is authorized to discharge and release the said Province of
JKTova Scotia, and the Dominion of Canada from all claims in or right to any portion or
share in said railways.

" It it also hereby further resolved that this council consent that the present suit
sgainst the city shall be settled upon the terms of each party paying their own
costs."

It is resolved by His Excellency and Council that the Attorney-General be
authorized to discontinue said suit, and that the costs on the part of the Government
be paid.

Approved.
W. F. WILLIAMS.

22nd October, 1867.

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct copy.

H. CROSSKILL, Deputy Provincial Secretary.
Halifax, 2nd January, 1884.

13
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Provincial Secretary's Office, Halifax, N.S.
The Dominion of Canada to the Province of Nova Scotia.

1867.

July 1.. . To $2,000 allowed the Pro-
vince of Nova Scotia
under the arrangemen
of 1869 that has nevei
yet been paid

$ cts.

2,000 00
50 00

2,050 00
51 25

1875.

Dec. 31...

1876.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

1877.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

1878.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

1879.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

1880.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

1881.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

1888.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

1883.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

B
To 6i

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

«

6

6

6

rought forward
nonths' interest

do

do

do

do

do

do

do

do

do

do

do

do

do

do

do ......

do

Total-

$ cts.

2,968 97
74 22

3,043 19

Dec. 31.. To 6 months' interest

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

« do

Carried forward

76 08

1868.

June 30..

3,119 27
77 98

Dec. 31...
2,101 25

52 53

2,153 78
53 84

3,197 25
79 93

1869.

June 30...

3,277 18
'

81 93

Dec. 31...
2,207 62

55 19

3,359 11
83 98

1870.

June 30...
2,262 81

56 57

3,443 09
86 07

Dec. 31...

1871.

June 30...

2,319 38
57 93

2,377 36
59 43

2,436 79
60 92

2,497 71

62 44

3,529 16
88 23

3,617 39
90 43

Dec. 31...

1872.

June 30...

3,707 82
92 69

3,805~5T
95 01

Dec. 31...
2,560 15

64 00

3,895 52
97 39

1873.

June 30...
2,624 15

65 60

3,992 91
99 82

Dec. 31...
2,689 75

67 24

4,092 73
102 31

1874.

Jute 30...
2,756 99

68 92

4, 195 04
104 87

Dec. 31...
2,825 91

70 65

2,896 56
72 41

4,299 91
107 50

1875.

June 30...

4,407 41
110 18

2,968 97
4,517 59

14
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Provincial Secretary's Office, Halifax, N.S.

The Dominion of Canada to the Province of Nova Scotia.

1867.

July 1... To $400,000.00 due by the

city of Halifax to the

Province o f Nova
Scotia in Nova Scotia
currency—equal in

Dominion currency
to

6 months' interest

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do ......

6 do

6 do

6 do ...«•

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do ......

6 do

6 do

Carried forward...

$ cts.

389,333 32

9,733 33

1875.

Dec. 31...

1876.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

1877.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

1878.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

1879.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

1880.

June 30...

Dec. 81.,.

1881.

June 30...

Dec. 31...
$

1882.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

1883.

June 30...

Dec. 31...

Brought forward...

To 6 months' interest......

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do «....

6 do

6 do ......

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do ......

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

Total

$ eta.

577,967 45

14,449 18

Dec. 31...

592,416 63
14,810 41

1868.

June 30...

399,066 65
9,976 66

409,043 31

10,226 08

607,227 04
15,180 67

Dec. 31...

622,407 71
15,560 19

1869.

June 30...

419,269 39
10,481 73

637,967 90
15,949 20

Dec. 31...

429,751 12

10,743 78

653,917 10
16,347 93

1870.

Jane 30...

440,494 90
11,012 37

451,507 27

11,287 68

670,265 03
16,756 62

Dec. 31...

687,021 65
17,175 54

1871.

Jane 30...

462,794 95
11,569 87

704,197 19
17,604 93

Dec. 31...

474,364 82
11,859 12

721,802 12

18,045 05

1872.

Jane 30...

486,223 94
12,155 60

739,847 17
18,496 18

Dec. 31...

498,379 54
12,459 49

510,839 03
12,770 97

758,343 35
18,958 58

1873.

Jane 30...

777,301 93
19,432 56

Dea. 31...

523,610 00

13,090 25

796,734 48
19,918 36

1874.

June 30...

536,700 25

13,417 50

816,652 84
20,416 32

Dec. 31...

550,117 75
13,752 94

563,870 69
14,096 76

837,069 16
20,926 73

sg» 1875.

June 30...

857,995 89
21,449 90

577,967 45 879,445 7»
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tk>*Y of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by Bis
Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 13th May, 1884.

« •T
h
fo??

n
i
mitte

?
oi^e Priv^ Council have had before them a despatch dated 18thApril 1884, from the Lieutenant-Governor of Nova Scotia forwardicg a joint address

passed by the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of that province, respect-
ang the necessity for the re-adjustment of the financial terms of the union

The Minister of Finance to whom the despatch and enclosure have been referred,recommends that a copy of the Act passed at the last Session of the Parliament ofCanada, giving increased subsidies to the several provinces ofthe Dominion be trans-
mitted to the Lieutenant-Governor of that Province.

The Committee submit the above recommendation |for Your Excellency's

Clerk Privy Council.

Government House, Halifax, N.S., 18th April, 1884.
Sir,—I have the honor to forward herewith a joint address just passed by the

Legislative Council and House of Assembly of this province, and I have the honor to
request you will be so good as to lay the same before His Excellency the Governor
'General for his consideration.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

__ _ _ ' »a '

m
M. H. KICHEY, Lieutenant-Governor.

The Hon. the Secretary of State for Canada, Ottawa.

To His Excellency the Most Honorable Henry Charles Keith Petty Fitzmaurice,
Marquis of Lansdowne, in the County of Somerset, Earl of Wycombe, of Chip-
ping Wycombe, in the County of Bucks, Viscount Cain and Cainstone, in the
County of Wilts, and Lord Wycombe, Baron of Chipping Wycombe, in the
County of Bucks, in the Peerage of Great Britain j Earl of Kerry and Earl of
ShelburDe, Viscount Cianmaurice and Filzmaurice, Baron of Kerry, Lixnaw and
Dunkerron, in the Peerage of Ireland, Governor General of Canada, and Vice-
Admiral of the same.

May it Please Your Excellency,—We, the members of the Legislative Council
and House of Assembly of Nova Scotia, convened, beg leave to approach Your
Excellency for the purpose of representing that the financial condition of the Pro-
vince of Nova Scotia is so unsatisfactory that we must call Your Excellency's
attention to the urgent necessity for the readjustment of the financial terms of tho
onion.

That previous to the union of the provinces the Province of Nova Scotia was in
a most healthy financial condition.

That by the terms of the union the chief sources of revenue were transferred to
the Dominion.

That strong objection was taken at the time of the union to the financial terms
thereof relating to the Province of Nova Scotia as being wholly inadequate to meet
the requirements of the various services left under the management of the Provincial
Parliament

That an appeal was made to the Imperial Ministrylfor a repeal of the union as
for as it related to this province.

That while they refused to grant such repeal until a further trial of the union
was had, they, in their despatch of the 10th of June, 1868, through the Colonial
Secretary to Lord Monck, Your Excellency's predecessor, requested that the Govern-
ment and Parliament of Canada would modify any arrangement respecting taxation,
or respecting the regulation of trade and fisheries, which might prejudice the interests
of Nova Scotia.

That on the 6th day of October, 1868, the Eight Honorable Sir John A, Mao-
donald, in a letter to the Honorable Joseph Howe, referring to the above despatch.
»tated as follows :

—
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^ i

Th
,
e CaDadian Government are not only ready but anxious to enter upon a

frank and full discussion of these points, and are prepared, in case the pressure of
taxation should be shown to be unequal or unjust to Nova Scotia, to relieve that pres-
sure by every means in their power. They are also ready to discuss any financial or
commercial questions that may be raised bv the Nova Scotia Government or your-
self, and representatives of Nova Scotia in the Parliament of the Dominion " And he
further-said :

" You may remember that I suggested to the Committee that Mr.
Annand, the Pmance Minister of the province, or any other gentleman selected for
the purpose, should visit Ottawa, and sit down with the Finance Minister here, for the
purpose of ascertaining whether any inequality or injustice exists, the extent of such
inequality, and the best remedy. And I now reiterate the assurance 1 then gave that
the Government here will consider the question, not in a rigid, but in the most liberal
epint, with a desire to do even more than justice for the sake of securing the co-oper-
ation of the people of Nova Scotia in working the new constitution. We will enter
upon the enquiry whenever it suits your convenience, and the Canadian Government
engage to press upon Parliament, with all the influence they possess, the legislation;
required to carry out any financial readjustment that may be agreed to."

That the Dominion Government, or the Dominion Parliament, have never carried
out the request or desire of the Imperial Ministry and the promise of the Eight
Honorable Sir John A. Macdonald, as above quoted.

That after sixteen years under the union, successive Governments have found
that the objections which were urged against the terms of union at first apply with
still greater force now than in the first year of the union, and the feeling of discontent
with regard to the financial arrangement is now more general and more deeply fixed
than ever before.

That a notable inequality exists in the Customs duties collected in Nova Scotia,
as compared with Customs duties collected in Ontario and Quebec,

That Nova Scotia paid in 1882 on her importations of $6,889,508 of dutiable*
goods $197,728 more than the two Provinces of Canada (Ontario and Quebec) did on
the same amount of these dutiable goods in that year, and has also paid on her
importation of $6,550,887 of dutiable goods in 1883, $213,000 more than the above
two provinces paid on the same amount of their importations of dutiable goods for the
same year.

That under the request of the Colonial Secretary above referred to, and the
promise of the Eight Honorable Sir John A. Macdonald, this anomalous state of
taxation should not be continued, and some arrangement should be made by which
the Province of Nova Scotia would receive back the amount she pays in excess ofthe
rate paid by the two provinces above referred to.

That the financial condition of Nova Scotia is in a most unsatisfactory state, as
compared with the other provinces of the Dominion, after the union, is seen fronx
the following statement

:

That Nova Scotia in 1861 had a population of 330,857, and in 1866, the year
before the union of the provinces, she imported $14,381,008 worth of goods, dutiable
and free, on which she collected $1,226,398.87 of duties, being $8.54 on each $100
worth of goods imported, and she collected in the same year $3, 106.08 Excise duties,
being less than one cent on each of her population. With the above revenue, and
the revenue derived from her public works, mines, Crown lands and other minor
sources of revenue, she paid the interest on her public debt, and paid the expense of
maintaining and operating her railroads, building and maintaining her lighthouses
and other public works, provided liberally for education, and the maintenance of
justice. She paid her legislative expenses, and provided fairly for all her wants,
and gave to the road and bridge service a very liberal amount per year. In 1881
Nova Scotia had a population of 440,572, and she imported in lb82 $8,701,589 worth
of goods, dutiable and free, on which the Dominion Government collected $1,757,-
99S.07 in duties, being $20.20 on each $100 worth of goods imported, and on the
$6,889,508 of dutiable goods, Nova Scotia has paid $25.51 for every $100 worth im-
ported.
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Nova Scotia imports a large quantity of goods from New Brunswick and the
Provinces of Ontario and Quebec, which have paid duties in those provinces. She
also purchabes ] u) ge quantities of goods manufactured in Ontario, Quebec and New
Brunswick, which sell as high in Nova Scotia as those paying duties, so that Nova
Scotia has to pay the high duties directh or indirectly on all her importations.

Nova Scotia paid Excise duties in 1882 to the amount of $262,231.43, which is

59f cents on each of her population of 440,r.72, and notwithstanding this great in-

crease in Customs and Excise duties, Nova Scotia, after providing very scantily for
iier other local wants, can give only $120,000 for her road, and bridge service, just
one-half the amount she could and did give before the union.

The importation into the Provinces of Ontario and Quebec in 1865, amounted to
$44,620,469, the duties collected on which amounted to $5,663,277, being $12.69 on
each $100 worth of their importations— dutiable and free—or about 50 per cent, more
than Nova Scotia paid; and they paid in the same year, $1,302,975,31 Excise
duties, which was about 52 cents per head of their population, or more than fifty

times as much as each of the population of Nova Scotia had to pay in the same year.
In 1881, the two Provinces of Ontario and Quebec had a population of 3,882,255.

They imported $73,616,816 worth of goods, on which they paid about $17.44 on
each $100 worth of goods they imported; while Nova Scotia paid $20.20 on each $100
of her importations.

Ontario, in lb81, had a population of 1,923,228, and she had a revenue in 1882
for local purposes of $2,880,450.40, which gave her $1.49| for each of her population.

Quebec, in 1881, had a population of 1,3:^9,027, and she had a revenue of
$2,864,612, which gave her $2. 10J per head of her population.

New Brunswick had a population, iu <881, of 321,233, and she had a revenue of

$628,447, which gave her $1.9oJ per head of her population for local purposes.
Nova Scotia had, in 1*81, a population of 440,572, and she had, in 1882, a

revenue of $5^2,998.22, which gave her only $1.18J per head of her population for
local purposes.

Ontario has, for local purposes, 31 cents more per head of her population than
Nova Scotia has. Quebec has 91 cents more ; and New Brunswick has 76f cents more.

Nova Scotia, previous to the union, had the lowest tariff, and was in the best
financial condition ot any of the provinces entering the union, therefore we submit
that the Province of Nova Scotia should be placed on an equal footing with the other
provinces; she having made the greatest sacrifices at the time of the union, should
not be left in a worse financial condition than any of the other provinces.

At the time of the union it was calculated that a sum amounting to 28J per
cent, of the Customs revenue collected under a 15 per cent, tariff, together with the
revenue obtainable from local source* in the several provinces, would be sufficient to

meet all demands against the Local Government, and that the balance of the Customs
duties amounting to 71J per cent., together with the Excise duties and other sources

of revenue conceded to the General Government would be sufficient to meet all

demands against it. Experience has shown that the calculation was erroneous, and
that the 15 per cent, tariff did not give enough revenue to meet the wants of the
country. The Dominion Government, having the power, has added 50 or 55 per
cent, to the 15 per cent tariff, and has taken the whole amount of the increase and
applied it to the wants of the General Government, leaving the provinces with increas-

ing demands upon them in the same financial position they were placed in at the
time of the union.

That the several governments of this produce since the union, after exercising

the most rigid economy, have found it impossible to provide for the increasing wants
of the province with the revenue granted under the present terms of union.

That an additional revenue has become an absolute necessity to this province,

and the only available means of securing it is through the Federal Government, as

our people will not submit to direct taxation for local purposes, while they believe

that if justice were done, Nova Scotia would have ample means to provide for her
local wants.
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That the Dominion Government and Parliament have recently still further
affected the interests of this province by appropriating, to the general purposes of the
Dominion, the amount received under the fishery award for privileges conceded
American fishermen within the territorial limits of Nova Scotia and the other mari-
time provinces.

That we submit as the taxation of this country has been increased since the
union at least 50 per cent, the same ratio should be added to the provincial subsidy
given to this province in 18o7.

That we make these representations to your Excellency, firmly believing and
with the fall assurance that they will receive the consideration and attention at your
hands which their great importance to the people of Nova Scotia merit.

EOBT. BOAK, President Legislative Council,

A. MacGillivray, Speaker House of Assembly,

Halifax, Nova Scotia, 16th April, A.D. 1884.

Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by Mis
Excellency thejO-ovemor General in Council on the 13th May, 1884.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had before them a despatch dated 18th
April, 1884, from the Lieutenant-Governor of Nova Scotia forwarding a joint address
passed by the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of that province respecting
the necessity for the re adjustment of the financial terms of the union.

The Minister of Finance, to whom the despatch and enclosure have been referred,

recommends that a copy of the Act passed at the last session of the Parliament of
Canada giving increased subsidies to the several provinces of the Dominion, be trans-

mitted to the Lieutenant Governor of that province.

The Committee submit the above recommendation for your Excellency's approval

JOHN J. McGBB, Clerk Privy Council
The Hon. Secretary of State.

June, 1884.

Sir,—With reference to the joint address of the Legislative Council and House of
Assembly of the Province of Nova Scotia, transmitted with your Honor's despatch
of the 18th of April last, respecting the necessity of a re-adjustment of the financial

terms of the union, I have the honor to transmit to you, herewith, for the informa-

tion of your Government, a copy of an Act passed during the last session of the
Parliament of Canada, 47 Yic, chap. 34, intituled :

" An Act to readjust the yearly
subsidies to be allowed by Canada to the several Provinces now included in the

Dominion."
I have, &c,

J. A. CHAPLEAJJ, Secretary of State.

His Hon. the Lieutenent Governor of Nova Scotia, Halifax, N.S.

Government House, Halifax, Nova Scotia, 1 1th June, 1884.

Sir,—I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 7th inst;,

transmitting a copy of an Act passed during the last Session of the Parliament of

Canada, intituled :
;< A.n Act to re-adjust tbe yearly subsidies to be allowed by Canada

to the several Provinces in the Dominion," and I have the honor to say that I have
forwarded the same to the members of my Government for their information.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

M. H. EICHEY, Lieutenant-Governor.

Hon. tbe Secretary of State for Canada, Ottawa.
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5th January, 1885.

Sir,—I have the honor to transmit, at the instance of my Government, a certi-

fied copy of a Minute of the Executive Council of this province, bearing date the 30th
of December last, and relating to the claim which this province makes upon the
Government of the Dominion for a refund cf moneys expended since 1st July, 1867„

on the construction and repair of piers, breakwaters, public wharves, &c. The*

detailed statement of such expenditures for each year, and showing a total of
$153,617.45, not including interest referred to in the said minute, is also enclosed

herewith, and 1 have the honor to submit the request of my Government that the
same may be laid before His Excellency the Governor General in Council, and that

His Excellency may be requested to cause the proper action to be taken to enquire
into the claim, and to pay to the Province of Nova Scotia the sum to which it shall

be found to be justly entitled.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your most obedient servant,

M. H. EICHEY, Lieutenant-Governor.

Hon. the Secretary of State for Canada, Ottawa.

JSxtract from the Minutes of the Executive Council of the Province of Nova Scotia of th&
31st December, A.D. 1884, approved by His Honor the Lieutenant Governor,

On a memorandum from the Honorable Provincial Secretary respecting the
claim of the province upon the Government of the Dominion for a refund of moneys
expended since 1st July, 1867, on the construction and repair of piers, breakwaters^

public wharves, &c.
The Secretary submits a detailed statement of such expenditures for each year^

showing a total of $153,677.45, not including interest. It being understood that the
Government of the Dominion have now fully recognized their responsibility for

expenditures of this character, in the case of the claim of the Province of Prince

Edward Island, the Secretary recommends that the detailed statement be forwarded

to Ottawa through His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor, to be laid before His Excel-

lency the Governor General in Council, and that His Excellency be requested to*

cause the proper action to be taker* to enquire into the claim, and to pay to the Pro-

vince of Nova Scotia the sum to which it shall be found justly entitled.

The Council approve the recommendation and respectfully request His Honor
the Lieutenant-Governor to forward the statement, together with a copy of this

minute, to*be laid before His Excellency the Governor General in Council.

I hereby ceitify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a minute o£
Council passed and approved as aforesaid.

H. CEOSSKILL, Deputy Provincial Secretary.

Halifax, N.S., 30th December, 1884.
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Statement of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Sootia for the service
known as Navigation Securities—construction and repair of piers, breakwaters,
public wharves, &c, from 1st July, 1867, tor which the Government of Nova
Scotia claim to be reimbursed by the Government of the Dominion with interest

from date of each payment.

To whom Paid.

1867.

A. MacNab
Alex. McXab

do
John Mt»ckler
T. D. Archibald
Simon Chompe...
K. W. Freeman ,

J. F. Moses
J. We3thaver
C.B. Everett
John Munroe
E. Yoahg
Ross & Foote
George Robar ,.

Basdet& Foret ,

E. Theriau ,

Churchill & Wright.
Munroe & McNeil . -.

Mack <fc Butler
A. McNab
Jas. Orichton

,

D. McLeod
D. Forbes
M. H. Chute-
Charles Tooker
George Ord

Chas. Boyd
R. W. Freeman .

T. W. Goodwin-
John O'Brien ....

Wm. LeBlance....
Jno. Forbes
Thos. Saulnier...,

Urban Doucette.,
Jno. Mockler
Ira Raymond
Sanders & Mack

Robert Donkin

B. Woodworth..
J. H. Churchill.

1868.

Chas. McCabe
Geo. Griffin

Jno. Sheridan
Thos. Buddick
Robt. McDougall
Alex. Rankin
Jno. & B. Murphy
Budd, Holdsworth & Quirk...
"Wm. Muir
Budd, Holdsworth & Quirk...
Daniel & T. Boyd
Budd, Holdsworth & Quirk...
W. D. Macks «

Place of Expenditure.

Repairs to Parrsboro' Wharf.
Wharf at Plaster Cove
To complete Parrsboro' Pier
Sxpenditure on Brule Wharf.
Breakwater at Cow Bay
Grant to Oheticamp
Removing obstructions, Jordan River

do Misener to Lunenburg County Line
Wharf at Young's Landing. .. ,

Break at St. Mary's Bay
Veal's Harbor
Slip at Entrance, Back Harbor
Chipman's Brook Pier
Clearing river below Robar's Mills, Lunenburg County
Grant to Arichat Harbor , ,

Comeauville Breakwater
Public Pier at Digby
Deepening Harbor, Portuguese Cove
Clearing obstructions, Bear Riv^r, Digby
Wharf at Plaster Cove
Wharf at Pictou Island
Broad Cove Wharf
Pictou Wharf, Abercrombie Point
Removing obstructions from Bear River, Annapolis County.
Removing obstructions, Yarmouth Harbor ,

do from Milford Brook, Annapolis
County

do Clyde River, Shelburne County
do Jordan River do
do Sissiboo River, Digby County
do from N.E. Branch Digby Harbor
do Salmon River, Digby County

Repairing wharf at Poiat Brule »

Breakwater at Saulnierville Cove, Digby County
Public pi j,r at Meteghan, Digby County ......

Point Brule Wharf
Bartlett Breakwater
To remove obstructions from Lake George, to County Line,

King's County
To remove obstructions from South Branch River Philip,

Cumberland.County ..

Pier, Oak Point, King's County
Expenditure on pier, Digby

Amount.

Parrsboro' Pier, Cumberland County
Breakwater at Lewis' Head, Shelburne County
fmproving harbor at Herring Cove
Repairing pier at Digby
Beach, west side of Port Hood
Breakwater at Cape Mabou
Repairing wharf at Port Hood
Digby Pier
Pier, Shelburne Harbor
Digbv Pier ,

do ,

do
West branch of Bear River «..«..«• ....

21

$ cts.

1,000 00
2,000 00
600 00
53 29

2,000 00
1,000 00
130 00
199 99
50 0o
100 00
300 00
200 00
300 00
200 00

2,000 00
200 00

2,<*00 00
400 00
200 00

1,000 00
400 00
400 0«
260) 4!

400 00
911

100 00
150 0O
150 00
450 00
200 00
100 00
80 00
260 00
300 00
20 00

200 00

400 00

1C0 00
200 00
246 07

74 80
175 00
995 52
20 13

263 55
399 35
38 64

2,100 00
17 00

1,088 87
400 00

1,937 76
200 00
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Statement of Moneys expended by the Government of- Nova Scotia, &c.

—

Continued*

To whom Paid.

Budd, Holdsworth & Quirk-
do do

Hunt & Pinkney
Vincent Oomeau
Budd, Holdsworth & Quirk...

Jno. Munroe
Jno. Tynell
George Murrey
Thos. Buddicks
David Patterson
Jno. Monroe

1869.

Justemin Gomeau
Budd, Holdsworth & Quirk.
George Fraser....

David Pinkney
O. 0. Laurence
Jno, Murphy
Alex. Rankin „

Vincent Comeau
J. B. Young
D.M. Dickey
George Fraser
David Patterson

A. McLean
Joseph While
Thos. Perry
Ed. Newcomb
Alex. McGinnes ....

J H. Minhard ,

"Win. Barnes
J. H. Minhard

,

Duncan Cameron.
Smith & MrAdam..
Samuel Babine

,

W. H. Ryer ....

Peter Donahoe
John Munroe ......

Jno. Jarrin
Gohoon & Parnell

David Pinkney .,.

J.R.Hunt
A. S Meianson ...

Urbin Saulnier ...

B. F. Kenney
Wm. McKay

A. Thurston....,

Jas. F. Rice
JR. W. Freeman

JJd. Lockwood .

4Uhas. Bower

Jno. Baxter
J. if. Roscoe
Augustus Levmger.

Jas. Phelan
Jer. Huit,...,

Place of Expenditure.

Digby Pier
do ,

Repairing Victoria Bridge, Digby.
Breakwater at Meteglan River ....

bigby Pier
Breakwater at McNeil's Harbor, Victoria County.
Breakwater at Gros Nez, Richmond County
Deepening Barney's River, Pictou County
Repairing wharf at Digby
Deepening Barney's River
Breakwater, Neil's ifarbor, Victoria County ,

Meteghan River breakwater
Digby Pier
Landing at Big Harbor Ferry, Victoria County
Repairing draw of Victoria Bridge
Port Hood wharf.

do do
Whart at Port Bain, Inverness County
Breakwater, Meteghan River, Digby County
Liverpool Bar, Queen's County >

Grant to County of King's
Landing at Big Harbor Ferry, Victoria
Deepening bar of river from bridge to main channel, County

of Pictou
Building pier in Shelburne Harbor
Replacing buoy on Tusket River, Yarmouth
Building block at Green Cove Breakwater, Yarmouth Co....

Breakwater at Avonport, County of King's
Bridge from Port Hood to South-West Mabou «

Repairing Ledge dam, Liverpool River .....

Surveying site for bridge over St. Mary's River
Ledge dam, Liverpool River, balance
Repairing bridge across South-West River, Inverness
Arisaig Pier, County of Antigonish
Clearing out Ell Brcok, County of Yarmouth „
Vo improve river from Shelburne Bridge to Philip Bowser's
Repairing bank of Gilbert's Cove, Digby County
Repairing Neil's Breakwater, Vicloria

Repairing breastwork, Tracadie Harbor
To improve the river from Charlestown to Mill Village,

Queen's County ,

—

Repairing Victoria Bridge, Annapolis County
Repairing Victoria Bridge, Digby County .....

do Clare Cove Wharf
do Saulnier's Wharf.
do Barrington Landing

To improve river from Clyde River to head, County of

Shelburne.--
Repairing Cranberry Head Breakwater, Yarmouth m

Removing obstructions from West Branch Bear River
Improving river from Jordan River to head, County of

Queen's ,

Clearing out Allan River, Annapolis County...
To improve river from Bower's to Big Lake, Shelburne

County.. ,

Repairing breakwater, King's County
do do

Road towards Backhand's Harbor, Bouchie, Antigonish
County ,

Grant for County of Richmond -

Breakwater, County of King's

22

50 00-

316 66
100 GO



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. *78.) A. 1886

Statement of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &G.—Continu:d.

To whom Paid.

Tho*. Perry
Wm. Smith
A. F. Comeau ....

Tios. Robertson.
Jno. McHulay ....

C. M. Melanson ..

Robert Innis

Jas. McDonald....

Hugh McLean
Nicholas Deveau
fl. R. Dodaworth....,

Ab. Gavel
Gordon Corcum .. .

Lot. P. Jacques
Jas. Moody.
Wm. Bezanson.......

Oliver M. Doucette.

Jno. Munroe
Peter McDougall....

Jno. J. Davidson,...

Burns & Saunders..

1870.

Justemin Comeau .....

John Munroe
Hugh McLean ,

James Phelan
Jno. Myra
Jno. Perry
S. C. Campbell
Neil Kennedy
Alex. Rankin
G. C- Laurence
ADgus Smith ».,

Donald McLeod
Jno. McLellan
Alex. McNab
Jno. McLellan
Donald McDonald
Ingles & O'Dell
Thos. Perry
Eph. Bockman
Robt. Donahoe
R. J. Fitzrandolph...

Jos. White
Jno. Quirk
Gilbert Lent
Malcom McLean
Jno. Tynell
David Fraser

Place of Expenditure.

David Murray
Geo. McLeod and others-

Donald McDonald-
Donald McLean
Thos. Read

Benj. Robicheau
James Harlow
W H. Ryer

John Smith

Green Cove Breakwater, County of Yarmouth. ., ,

Improving navigation, Barney's River, Pictou ......

Repairing Thireau Wharf, Digby County.

Ferrv Landing, Barrington Passage •

Repairing shelter beacon, St. Anne's Gut, Victoria •..,

do Church Point Wharf, County of Digby

do breakwater, Hunt's Point, Queen's i ounty

To improve Beach Locke's Island with mainland, County of

Shelburne «••

Breakwater at Port Mutton, Queen's

do Salmon River, County of Digby

Repairing bridge, Mills Village, Cumberland County

Replacing buoys in Joggin's River, Digby..... .....

Removing rocks from Corcum'sBoat Harbor. Queen's County

Repairing Victoria Wharf, County of King's

do breakwater at Port Mutton, Queen's County

do Blackrock Breakwater, King's County -.

do do Cape St. Mary's, Digby ...

Breakwater at Neil's Harbor, Victoria County

do at Judique Intervale

do and repair road near Capt. Dill's, Colchester....

Repairing sea wall, Digby County »

Amount.

do Meteghan River breakwater, Digby County.

Neil's Haibor breakwater, Victoria . .-«

Breakwater at Port Mutton
Wharf at Lennox Passage, Richmond County

do Law Pitt, Lunenburg County
Pier at Ross' Beach, Shelburne County
Breakwater at Neil's Harbor, Victoria

do Light Point, Inverness

Port Bain wharf, Inverness •

Public wharf at Port Hood, Inverness

Arisaigpier, Antigonish .. »

Breakwater, Marsh Point, Broad Cove, Inverness

Margaree Island wharf >

Survey of Main-a-Dieu Harbor, C.B ••<

Breakwater at Widow Allan's Brook, Inverness..,

Repairing Boat Harbor, Black Rock, Victoria

do Annapolis ferry slip

Green Cove breakwater, Yarmouth ,

Bridge across Annapolis River. •

Breakwater at Gilbert's Cove, Digby County

Repairing embankment north of pier, Digby

do
do
do
do
do

buoys, Tusket River, Yarmouth,
embankment, southern part Digby Harbor

Lent's wharf, St. Mary's Bay, Digby

boat landing, Washabuck, Victoria

Grandigue ferry, Richmond
north side Grandique, County ofAbutments to ferry wnarf

Richmond
Deepening Barney's River, Pictou County..

Public wharf at Brooklyn, Queen's County
do Port flood, Inverness

Boat landing, Englishtown, Victoria

To improve river from mouth of Shelburne Harbor to head

ot river

Repairing Meteghan Cove, ©igby County

To clear port, Herbert River, Shelburne County

To improve river at mouth of harbor at head of Roseway

River
To open bar at Smith's Harbor, Victoria

23

$ cts.

333 34
400 0O
250 00
50 00
208 12
200 0O
299 84

75 00
157 50
300 00
120 49
30 0O
25 0O

250 00
179 50
200 00
200 00
117 70
22 00
40 09
200 0O

100 00
217 59

3 25
633 34
244 14
37 37
35 00
131 97
510 79
256 23-

31 14
150 00
150 00
145 00
40 00
90 00
500 00
133 00
500 00
30 00

200 00
40 00
100 00
60 00
50 00
120 00

229 36
166 6Q
200 00
68 34
50 00

100 00
100 00
20 00

100 0O
150 09



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 78.) A. 1886

Statement of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &c.—Continued.

To whom Paid.

1870.

H. W. Freeman...
Ed.'Newcombs
EldredOohoon....
J. E. Woodworth.
John McLean
Plast. Belliveau...
Just. Comeau..
"Wm. McKay
Wentzell & Leslie.
John Harris
Peter Belliveau
Augst. Comeau
Jos. Smith

C J. Rawling....,

C. B. Weaver
P. A. Margeson.,
G. Dunbar

J. P. Rice
Thomas Perry
David Murray
Jos. H. Graves ,

Roderick McNeil ,

Ezkl. Dexter
Smith & McAdams
B )bert Innes
Chandler & Oockburn.
Hugh McLean
Charles Smith

,

G. W. A. Lowdon
Donald McDonald..
A. Patterson
Ezkl. Dexter

David Murray

.

1871.

Thos. Perry
Chris. Smith ,

David Esenhauer
Donald McDonald
J. McDonald & Chisholm.
J. E. Woodworth
Robert lnnis
Neil Kennedy ..

J. E. Woodworth..
Cory O'Dell
&d. Ncwcombe
Jao. A1«yra
HughMcAdam
Dominie White
W. H Towensend.

R. S. Fitzrandolph.
Hart & Ingrahaui.
J. Ai Bonif'ent

Doucette & Burns...
Nelson Stronish
A. F. Comeau
Daniel Clough
D. McPherson

Place of Expenditure.

For clearing Jordan River, Shelburne County
Repairing A vonport Wharf, King's County mmmTo improve harbor, Port Midway, Queen's.
Repairing Oak Point Pier, King's County... ".'..

To clear out boat landing, North Shore, Victoria...
3'.'.'

To repairing Bellev. au's Cove Breakwater, Digbv
do Metegha- Wharf. ....

To clear Clyde River, Shelburne County .".'"."!!! '!".'

Breakwater at Eaglehead, Queen's County .'

Clearing Bricktuwn River, ShHburne County
Repairing Clan Cove Breakwater do

do Little Brook do do '.'."*...".".'.'..'""'.'.'.'

Removing obstructions from West Branch of Avon River!
County of Hants

County of King's ...!".!!!!. .".!J""11T"
Repairing Port George Pier, AJmvSS^Z!!iIILilZ^

do Margaretville do
Clearing obstructions on N.E. Branch Sissiboo River,' Diebv

County l^
B J

West Branch Bear River ..!!"......!!.!...*.......... "!*!!!

Green Cove Breakwater, Yarmouth County*!!!!]'.!!!!!!!!
!"

Deepening Barney's River, Pictou County -„„„
Repairing Port William's Pier
Wharf landing at Grand Narrow, C.B '.!!!!...V!!!!!!

.'!!!!'"'

Repairing dams on Sissiboo River, Digby
ArisaigPier, Antigonish
Hant's Point Breakwater, Queen's County...." ."!!!..".!.

To remove rock from boat harbor do "
Breakwater, Port Mutton do !!!!!.!....!!!....!!

do Port Greville, Cumberland County "!!!".".'.'.!!

Wharf and landing at Knoydart, Pictou
Boat harbor at Black Rock, Victoria County
King's County
Clearing out stream, North Branch Sissibooi aiver/'Diebv

County '
e *

Deepening Barney's River, Pictou County.V.V.Vl!.!!! !!!!!.!!

Repairing Green Core Breakwater, Yarmouth
do Breakwater, W.S. Harbor, Port Hood
do Beach at Long Island, Shelburne
do Port Hood wharf „ '.

Building Long Point wharf, Inverness !

Balance of grant for 1870, Oak Point Pier, King's
Over expenditure Hunts Point Breakwater, County Queen',*
Balance of grant for 1870, breakwater at site, Point Inver-

ness
Repairing Oak Point Pier, King's County

do Granville Ferry Slip, Annapolis
On account of Avonport wharf, King's
Wharf at Law Pit, Lunenburg

,

\risa'g Pier, Antigonish ......"."..!!....

Beach at Margaree, Inverness
To pay over expenditure on Green Cove Breakwater, 1870,

Yarmouth
Repairing bank, East PubUc Pier, Digby. !..'....!!!!...!!!!!!'

Steamboat wharf, Port Hawkesbury
Repairing Saulnier wharf, Digby

do Friar Head, Inverness
Margaretville Pier, Annapolis
Repairing Comeauville wharf, Digby.., ...

On account of pier, Lennox Passage
Removing rock at Knoydart, Antigonish. !

24



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 78.) A. 1880

Statement of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &c.

—

Continued,

To whom Paid.

1871.

Jno. Quirk
Jacob Locke ,

Robt. Robertson ,

Jno. McLean
Thos. Perry
Andrew Mack
Luke Deveau, ,

David Fraser
Vital Thibedeau
Jas. Murray
Wnitman Leslie ......

Garves Slocum ........

Wm. McKay
Samuel Babin
Js. McGray
John Smith
John Hollingsworth
Thomas Hogg
Robert Barnaby
Wm. Smith
John Mirard
James Murray
B. F. Robicheau
Chas. Smith.
Neil McLeod
Angus Buchanan ....

Oliver West
Geo. Sholes
Jas. Donavan ....

David Fraser
Mark Lamrock
Urban Belliveau
Isaac Wilson
James A. Arkill
S. A. Foster
Donald McDonald ...

Angus Buchanan . ...

J. H. Dunlop
James Davis ,

Ab. Thurston
Samuel Doane ........

Richardson & Pearl.
M. McLeod
W. Morrison ,

1872.

Jos. Hooper
M. Murphy
G. A. Christie

Henry Croft
Luke Deveau ,

Chisholm & Pascal
D. & J. Macdonald.
Albert Pearl
J. O'Connor ..

Isaac McLeod
Donald Chisholm ..

Chas. Lenoir
Gilbert Roach
John Anthony
Peter Sutherland .

.

Thos. Perry
Black Bros

Place of Expenditure.

Repairing Bank at Digby
do Lockport Harbor, Shelburne

Deepening channel at McLellans Shore, Pictou
Boat landing, Victoria
Green Cove Breakwater, Yatmouth
Removing obstructions in Silver River, Yarmouth
Repairing Cape Cove wharf, Digby
Pier N.S., Lennox Passage, Richmond
Repairing Church Point Wharf, Digby
Remove obstructions from French River Channel, Pictou
Breakwater at Eaglestead
Port William's Pier, Annapolis
Remove obstructions from Clyde River, Shelburne ...

Improve landing at Eel Brook
do Tusket River

Repairing boat harbor, Victoria County
To improve Jordan River
Repairing Hamilton Branch, Shelburne
To improve Port Medway, River Queen's —
Removing rocks, Victoria _ .

To improve Liverpool River »

Removing obstructions from French River Channel.
Repairing Meteghan Cove Wnarf, Digby
Breakwater at Port Greville, Cumberland
Build landing, McLean's Brooks, Victoria ,

Repairing North Harbor Breakwater
Build boat harbor, Queen's
Haulover between Clyde and Port LaTour
Landing French Cove, Victoria •

Pier at Grandigue, Richmond
Deepen Rocky Creek, Shelburne . ...

Repairing Belliveau's Cove Wharf
do Barrington Passage

Harborville Pier
Repairing Fisher Grant, Pictou
Build landing, Black Rock, Victoria «.«».
Improve landing, Neil's Harbor
Repairing buoys, Liverpool Harbor ., ;

Improve road, Long Lake, Shelburne —
Hugh Head Breakwater, Yarmouth
Opening beach, Red Head, Shelburne..
On account breakwater, Tan cook Island, Lunenburg County
Service at International Pier
Wharf at Salmon Hole, Colchester

Amount.

Dredge boat for Fouchie Harbor
On account of proposed harbor, L' Ardoise ....

Repairing breaKwater
Building boat landing, Western Head, Queen'
Cape Cove Breakwater, Digby .

Tracadie Harbor Breakwater, Antigonish
Long Point Wharf, Inverness County
Breakwater, Tancook Island, Lunenburg
Harbor Bouchie, Antigonish .....

Margaree bland Breakwater, Inverness
Tracadie Harbor Breakwater, Antigonish
Breakwater in Lennox Passage, Richmond
Port George Pier
William's Breakwater, Annapolis .

Breakwater, Shelburne County
To protect beach around Bay
Breakwater, Tracadie Harbor

$ eta.

194 67
98 87
19 47
97 33
292 00
155 73
389 33
486 67
292 00
243 33
194 67
399 33
97 33
19 47
38 93
87 60
146 00
97 3*
29 19
38 40
29 20
77 87
97 33

438 00
48 03

29,5 00
19 4 67
243 33
97 33

557 93
97 33

245 52
110 50
73 00
97 33
46 00
58 40
433 00
24 33
146 00
146 00
292 00
5 00

142 52

259 87
100 00
29 50
190 77"

86 80?

333 3$
140 00
97 33
54 40

261 50

2831 33
200 00
4C0 00
100 00
40 00
33 OS



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 78.) A. 1886

Statement of Moneys expended by the GovernmeDt of Nova Scotia, &c— Continued.

To whom Paid.

1872.

Henry Croft
Bonald McLeod
JSfeil McLean
Isaac Publiconer,
O B. Bawer
Thomas F. Walker...
Andrew Mack aM H. Ryer
John McNeil
Hichardson & Pearl.
John McLean
Mark Lamrock
Gilbert Roche .........

J. F.Rice
Lewis White .....

Chag. Lenoir.
James McGregor
John Cossit ...,., „....

B. A. Belliveau. ......

A. J. Comeau' ...... ...

Whitman Leslie ......

Tiros. Hogg
Jesse Roper
James Murjhy
C. E. Burbridge ,

Oliver West
Roland flulbert ,

Stephen Goudy
M. D'Entremont
Jos. Cahill
Geo. Grilroy « ...

Wm. Chapman
W. £L Woodward-...
Donald McKinnon ...

Donald McLean .......

Geo. Sholes
,

W. H. Woodward ....

Ed. Cohoon
Jos. C. McDonald....
fiichardson & Pearl
John Forbes..

,

Ab. Thurston
As. Gray M
L. P. Jacques
S. E. Burbridge
Kenneth Matheson...
Wm. McDonald

,

1873.

B. & J. McDonald ...

H. M. Robicheau .......

Thos. Smith
,

Wm. Arbuckles
Bonald Chisholm....,
Jno. McLeod

,

Thos. Farmsworth ....

Jno. McDonald
IX & J. McDonald ...,

A. Buchanan
Joa. Rawling
David Eisenhaur ......

U. W. Richardson m „

J&ichL Cripps., M

Place of Expenditure.

Boat harbor, Western Head, Queen's
Wharf, Marsh Point, Broad Cove, Inverness
Ferry landing, Baddeck, Victoria

,

Placing buoys in Cove Blanford, Lunenburg ,

Improve Shelburne Road River ,

To improve Jordan River, Shelburne t

do Silver do ,

do Shelburne do «.,......,

Ferry landing, Big Bras d'Or, Victoria
Breakwater at Tancook Island, Lunenburg
Path End, near Smoky, Victoria
Breakwater, Shelburne
Port George and Breakwater
To remove obstructions from Bear River, Digby
Breakwater, Yarmouth

do Lennox Passage, Richmond.
Repairing Island Wharf, Pictou
Wharf and buoys at Digby ,....,

Pier Cove Breakwater
,

Little Brook Breakwater „..

Breakwater, Eagle Head, Queen's
Shelburne .„ „
Boat landing, French Cove, Victoria
Opening boat harbor at Inverness
Breakwater, Roes Creek, King's
Boat harbor at White Point, Queen's County.
Rebuild bridge by meadow, Yarmouth
Green Cove Breakwater
Improve landing, Lobster Bay
Givan's Wharf, Canada Creek, King's
River Philip Bridge, Cumberland

,

Pugwash Bridge, Cumberland » ,

Chipman Brook Pier, East King's
Embankment, Bailey Brook, Pictou.
Boat harbor, Malagwatch, Inverness
Breakwater, Cape Argo, Shelburne
Chipman's Brook Pier, West King's
Port Medway Harbor, Queen's County
Landing for steamer u Neptune," Grand Narrows, C.B.
Breakwater, Tancook Island, Luner,burg
Kempt Bridge to Fall, Yarmouth
Breakwater, Cranberry Head Yarmouth
Little Branch, Tusket River, Yai mouth
Victoria Wharf, King's
Breakwater, King's County #••........,

Breakwater, North-East Harbor, Victoria .......

Pier Harbor, Port Jolly, Queen's
,

Breakwater, Long Point, Inverness County ....

Meteghan River Breakwater, Digby *

Ferry wharf, Merigomish, Pictou
Shore at Arbuckles
Tracadie Harbor, Antigonish
Boat landing, New Haven, Victoria „
Morden Pier, King's

,

Deepening Barney's River, Pictou !,

Breakwater, Long Point, Inverness County....
Neil's Harbor Breakwater, Victoria
Morden Pier, King's County
To improve beach, Lockport, Shelburne
Breakwater at Tancook Island, Lunenburg,...
Repairing buoys, Harbor Buchie, Antigonish.

26



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. IS.) A 1886

Statement of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &c—Continued.

To whom Paid.

1873.

Due can McKinnon....

Neil McLean
Donald McLeod
Chas. Lenoir
Horton Dawling
Simon Griffin

M. Comeau
Gilbert Roche
Vm. Graham
"W. H. Woodward....
Jn«. McNeil.... ..

Tital Thibaudeau....
Oliver West
El. Burbridge
Jno. McLeod
JRoiy McLeod
Peter McLean
W. H. Ryer
Richardson & Pearl

J. S. Walker
<J. H. Logan
A. Durkee...*...-

Jno. Robertson
"Wm. ^mith
H. Mynard
Thos. Hogg
B. C- Burbidge
Donald McLean
2Jeil McLean
Angus McNeil
Henry Robicheau ...

Henry Eaton
John McLean-
H. A. Comeau
Luke Doucette
A. B. Hooper
John Perry
Duncan McDonald..
H. Thome
"Wm. Scott
Thomas Anthony ..

TVm. Graham
decrgeSholes
Hugh Nicholson ....

J. R. Pipes....

James (jilispie

T. H. Eiooks
3 C. Raymond
A. U. Porter
Samuel Bushie
Warren Churchill..

B.H. Morton „
A. Grant
<J. E. Parker
James Littimore ....

.Angus McLellan....

Thtmas B Smith .

,

"Wm. McGrath

1874.

Shore road, Bailey's Brook, Pictou

Ferry landiDg, Baddeck, Victoria

Wharf, Malaga Watch, Inverness <

Pier, Grandigue Ferry, Richmond ..,

Lockeport Harbor, County of Shelburne

Breakwater, Lewis Head, Shelburne

Saulnierville Breakwater, Digby
Port George Pier, Annapolis

Pier, Bayfield, Antigonish •

Chipman Brook Pier, Kmg's
Bras d'Or Ferry, Victoria .,

;

Church Point Breakwater, Digby
Breakwater, White Point, Queen's

Ross Creek Breakwater, King's

New Have do Victoria

South eide Bras d'Or, Victoria

Washabuck Ferry
To improve river mouth, Shelburne

Tancook Breakwater, Lunenburg
To improve Jordan River, Shelburne

Mill Brock Breakwater.
Carleton River Breakwater, Yarmouth
Wharf and Bridge, St. Ames, Victoria

Pier, Port Hood Island, Inverness

Liverpool River Breakwater, Queen's

Rocky Creek, Clyde River, Shelburne ....

Ross Creek Breakwater, King's

Englishtown Ferry, Victoria

Baddeck Ferry do «••

Opening haibor, Big Bond, C.B
Meteghan Cove Breakwater, Digby
Repairing packet wharf, King's ••

Path End, near Smoky
Repairing wharf, Little Brook, Digby
Belliveau's Cove Breakwater do

Entrance to Fouchie Harbor, Richmond
Wharf at Brookfield, County of Digby
Pier, Long Point, Inverness

do Hall's Harbor, King's County
Fisher's Grand Ferry Landing, Pictou

Ogilvie's Pier, King's County
New wharf, Bayfield Antigouieh

Baulover, Cape Negro, Shelburne
Building scow, Long Island Ferry, C.B ,

Port Philip Breakwater Bridge

Bar at Partridge Island

Wharf, Hampton Bayshore, Annapolis

do near shipyard, Digby
Clear bar at Wedge, Yarmouth
Bouchie's Landing
Cheboggin Breakwater, Yarmouth
Tusket River •

Port William's Pier, Annapolis
Chipman's Brook Breakwater, King's

Pier at Grandigue Ferry, Richmond
Neil's Haibor Breakwater, Victoria

Wharf and landing, at Merigomish, Pictou.

Canal at Prospect

John Ross
Anihony Montague
Donald McMaster...

Little Narrows Ferry, Victoria

Clear bar, Frost Island, Yarmouth
Long Point Pier, Inverness

27

$ Ct3.

33 86
50 76
24 00
617 70
4 OO

200 0O-

250 0O .

20$ 00
200 00
20 00
50 00
300 0<>

600 53
166 66
125 CO
50 00
50 00
150 00
484 43
150 OO
180 OO
50 00
217 20
300 00
50 00
75 OO
333 34
50 OO
50 00
400 00
250 00
55 00
50 00
638 00
400 00
100 00
100 CO
ioo no
50 00
168 20

• 120 00
132 50
150 OO
139 53
351 34
20 CO
400 OO
100 OO
40 00
40 OO
100 Co
60 CO

200 Oo
50 CO
143 94
500 OO
24 00
211 53

60 00
20 OO
200 OO



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 78.) A. 1386

Statement of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, ks.-Continued.

To whom Paid.

1874.

Donald Ohisholm...
Doaal 1 McDonald ..

JB- J Fitzrandolph .

Charles Chinist
Hjau Murphy
D. McLeod
•>. McLeod
M. Oomeau
Wm. Arbuckles ....

D. McLaren
A. F. Comeau
Vital Thibaudeau ...

Thos. Jennings
I>. McKenzie
Joa. Smith

John Forbes
J. H MynardW D. Smiih
A. D. McGill

C. R. Bower
,

Alex. McKcnzie
,

JKandall & Graham .

John McLean
W. D'Entremont..
G. D. Acker
H. F. McDougall
Peter McLean
John Arnold
L. A. D'Entremont .

John Heatfield
John Hollingsworth
Charles Lenoir
F. Rice

W. Morton
W. D'Entremont.
A. O. Porter
Wm. Martzeli ....

Donald McLean..
IK. Stronich

,

D J. Morton
John Baxter ,.

Juo. McLeod
P. A. Belliveau ...

A. Thurston
,

B. Hulbert
,

M. Forbes
,

8. Doucette
Jos. Leslie
Jas. Cahill
Ed. Eaton
Thos. McKay
D. McKean
A. Durkee
T. R. Brooks
Geo. Sholes
W. a. Lovitt
H. Thorpe
John Arnold
Jno. McDonald ....

W. 1) G. Bower ..,

Paul Foster
,

Place of Expenditure.

Repairing Tracadie Harbor
Militia Point Pier, Inverness
Joggin's River Breakwater^, Digby ... "iii." "il"
Repairing buoy near Gilpin's Rock. Lockport .."""...
Building pier aad openiug channel upper end of Port Hood
Wharf, Broad Cove Marsh, Inverness :..

do at Bayfield, Antigonish
Saulnierville Breakwater, Digby , ...... .,

Public landing, Gnlf Shore, Pictou .
"".iiiii"

Building pier, Porter's i.ake Bridge....
'

Oomeau 's Breakwater, Digby
,

Church Point Breakwater, Digby
Draw of PalmerstAn Bridge, Cumberland
Big Harbor, S.S

, Victoria
Removing obstructions from West Branch River Avon.* Hants

County
Breakwater, Point Brule, Colchester . ....

'.'.'.'.'

"Z
do Liverpool River, Queen's .....

Piers, Port Hood, Inverness
Improve Shelburne River from mouth of harbor'to head of

River
Improve Jordan River, Shelburne

'"
"'.'...

.......
South point Neil's Harbor, Victoria
Wharf at Bayfield, Antigonish

,

Boat harbor, Path End, Victoria
Landing, West Pubnico, Yarmouth '.

Birchtown Point, Shelburne
Steamer landing, Christmas Island, O.B ......."."..

Ferry, Washabuck, Victoria ".*.'

Chipman's Brook Pier, King's County .......
Wharf at Double Island, Yarmouth .,

Public wharf, Port Greville, Cumberland ,....'.'.'.'.'..

Pier, Jordan Harbor, Shelburne ,..,„
N.S. side Lenn. x Passage ."""

Remove obstructions from West Branch Bear" River,' Dierbv
County

;

6 J

Clear East Branch Tusket River, Yarmouth".V..V."
.".'."'

"."in-
complete wharf, W^t Pubnico do
Tusket Wedg-
Breakwater, Black Point, Queen'

J*

".".iii.'ii'.iiii'.i'.iii'.'.iiiiV.iiiiii

Canal between Malagawatch and River Dennis.....'.'.....'.'"*"
Margaretsville Pier, Annapolis
Centreville Breakwater, Digby .,

Breakwater, Baxter's Harbor, King's '"''i.iiii''""New Haven Landing, Victoria .'....

Clare Cove Breakwater, Digby i.'.i'iiiii ...."...

Breakwater, Cranberry Head, Yarmouth
do Tusket River do
do Arpyle do ....

Cape Cove Breakwater, Digby
Eagle Head do Queen's .........!...'....

Givac's Harbor do King's
Victoria Wharf, King's i"

.*..'""'..*'.!!"

Remove obstructions, Bloody Creek, Clyde River
,'

Shelburne
Breakwater at Port Caledonia, C.B

do Catalone, Yarmouth
,

Wharf at Hampton Bay shore, Annapolis
Haulover, Cape Nee^ro, Shelburne
Chipman's Brook Pier, King's County
Hall's Harbor Pier. King's
Chipman's Brook Pier, King's
Neil's Harbor Landing, Victoria ...
Clear and dam East tfranch Clyde River," Shelburne
Wharf at Fisher's Grant Ferry, Pictou

Z8

Amount.

$ eta.

24 25
240 00
200 00
11 80

180 00
'250 00
666 66
250 00
70 00

219 64
250 00
200 00
498 78
50 00

200 00
200 00
50 00
52 85

130 00
50 00

100 00
1,322 88

80 00
50 00
20 00
174 00
30 00
66 67
40 24
100 00
150 00
596 47

100 00
60 00
52 31
40 00
150 00
100 00
100 00
200 00
100 00
80 00

419 23
400 00
40 00
100 00
200 00
450 00
100 00
150 00
60 00

1,317 30
60 00

600 00
75 00
50 00

150 00
133 33
100 00
150 00
150 00
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Statement of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia

—

Continued.

To whom Paid.

1874.

A. Urquhart
Jas. Moser
P. Ryerson
N. Robertson , ..

Angus McGillivray.
Thomas Anthony ..,

A. C. 0. Condon..
D. McKinnon

1875.

Don. Smith
M. McDonald
Rodk. McNeill
J. S McNeil ...

Wm. Goodwin......

Thos. Hawby
D. McDonald
Angus McLeod —
Wm. Wilson
Jno. Ross
D. R. Katon
Jno. McLellan
J. F. Downie
W. D. Smith
D. McDonald
Jno. Hiity
S. Griffin

Jno. Harlow
A. Friday
Bryan Murphy ....

Wm. McDonald...
H. Berry
Js. Goodwin
Js. Harvey
Jos G&mon ,

Hy. Sutherland ....

Mi. B. Weaver
Hugh Fraser
McRea & Growdis
Lewis Romkil
G. D. Asker...
Hugh McDonald..
Geo. McLeod
Enos Freeman
Sutton Walker ,

Oliver West
L. Willet ...

M. Sutherland
D. Campbell

do
Thos. McKay
D. Matheson.,
N. McLaue
J. R. Pipes
Jos. Bissett

Jas* McKay
H. t. McDougall..
Jno. Hatfield
D. B. C. Madden..
J.S.Baxter
Jno. Mahan
A. R. Durkeo
W. H. Ryer

Place of Expenditure.

Black Rock Landing, Pictou
Straightening Leander River, Hants
Repairing Yarmouth Harbor Beacon
Pier, Port Jolly, Queen's
Wharf, Bailey's Brook, Pictou
Ogilvie's Pier, King's County
Beach from mainland to Lockeport...
Wharf, Bailey's Brook

Boat Landing, Green Coves, Victoria
Bay St. Lawrence and Sligar Reef.
Building landing for steamer " Neptune" ,

Breakwater, tig Narrows, C.B
Public wharf, Argyle Sound, Yarmouth
Ferry landing, ingonish Victoria
Long Point Pier, Inverness
Little Harbor and L'Ardoise Piers ,

Breakwater protecting road west side Avon River ..

Ferry landing, Little Narrows, Victoria
Breakwater, Three Sisters, Cumberland
Wharf, Margaree Island, Inverness
Public sewers, New Glasgow
Pier, Outer Island, Port Hood
Militico Point Pier, Inverness
To improve narrows at Indian Channel, Lunenburg
Breakwater, Lewis' Head, JSheiburne
Clear obstruction, Bear River, Digby ,

Deepen c»nal at Chester
Breakwater, Whitnoy Point

Amount.

Public wharf, Big Bra-i d'Or, Victoria
Ligbthouse Road, Partridge Island
Public wharf. Harding; Dyke
Ferry slip at Avondale, Hants
Dyke at Lawrencetown, Halifax
Breakwater, Shelburne County
Port George Pier
Wharf at Abercrombie Point, Pictou
Margaree Breakwater. Inverness
Deepen channel, Lahave Islands
Clear Birchtown River, Shelburne
Survey, Bayfield Wharf -

Pnblic wh^rr, Brooklyn, Queen's
Port la Tour, mouth of harbor to head of river, Shelburne...
Indian River to heal, Shelburne
Breakwater, White Point, Queen's
Granville Ferry Slip, Annapolis
Obstructions from Rocky Creek, Shelburne,.
Landing, Bridge Island, Victoria

do do #

Clyde ttiver, Shelburne
Boat landing French Cove, Victoria «

Wharf, i edueck Ferry Landing
Repairing draw, Port Phillip bridge «
Cutting beach, Little Antz, Richmond
Geddress bridge to Queen's bridge, Shelburne
Steamer landing, Christmas Island
Public wharf, Port Greville, Cumberland
Ferry slip, north shore sides Grandique ferry
Baxter's Harbor, King's
Dover to Peggy's Cove
Carlton River, Martasket, Yarmouth
To improve Shelburne River ,.

29
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Statement of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &o.

—

Continued.

To whom Paid.

1875.

Kodk. McLeod ,

Jno. Miller
,

A. Duffy
C. Melanson ..

Jno. Hilty
K. 0. Hulbert
Luke Deveau.....

En. Arnold
Jno. Harris

Luke Comeau
Angus McLeod
David Smith ,

Cory O'Dell
Donald McLean
W. A. Bower ,

J. W. Roscoe «
Ed. Eaton

,

Jno. Brown ,

W. D. D'Entremont.
Norman McLeod ,

O' Dell A Carbett ....

Thos, Anthony.......
Angus Buchanan
Wm. McKenzie
Jos. D. McDonald ....

Jno. McDonald
Jos. Chandler
Jacob Locke
A. Thurston

1876.

Mcintosh & McAchern
Thos. Smith
Thos. W. Ferguson
Jno. Ryder .c

Jno. Cameron
Hugh McLean
Jas. Sanford
Thos. Raper ,

Jno. Goodwin
Jas. Andro
K. McLeod
Isaac Goodwin ,.

Luke Deveau ,..,

dory O'Dell
"Wm. McKenzie
Donald Cameron
Wm. McKenzie
D. Ferguson.,
J. A. Matheson
E. Hericau
R. McLeod
Thos. Raper ........

D. B. Woodworth ,

Jas. Brenton
Wm. Arbuckles
Gates Publicone
Hyram Spinney..
EtridgeHart
Thos. H. Ferguson
Donald Smith
Martin Rynard..;

Place of Expenditure.

Breakwater, Victoria County
Road, seawall, Peggy's Cove
Breakwater, Saulnierville, Digby ,

Church Point breakwater
To improve channel at Narrows, Long Point
Tusket River, Yarmouth „

Breakwater, Cape Cove. Digby
Chipman's Brook pier, King's
To improve river from Geo. McKay's bridge to Little Gold

Lake
Belliveau Cove breakwatpr, Digby
Breakwater, L'Ardoise, Richmond
Abetto at Selmah, Hants
Annapolis ferry slip^

Building slip, Englistown, Victoria „
East Branch Long Cape, Clyde River
Hall's Harbor pier, King's
Breakwater, King's ~

do at Brule, Colchester
Wharf, Wfst Pubnico, Yarmouth ,

Landing, Pathend, Victoria
Breakwater, Annapolis ,

Ogilvie's wharf, King's County
Neil's Harbor, Victoria

Amount.

Breakwater, Long Point, Judique, Inverness
Pier, Neil's Harbor, Victoria
Boat Harbor, Beach Meadow, Queen's ....

Repairing buoys, Lockeport
Breakwater, Cranberry dead, Yarmouth

Build Victoria wharf, River Inhabitants.
Wharf, Smith's Point, Pictou County ....

Canal at White Haven, Guysboro*
,

Public wharf, end Ryder's Road
,

Big Island wharf, Pictou
,

Breakwater at Maton, Queen's
Wharf at Coikengin, Hants
Public pier at Jackson Point
Public wharf, Lower Point Sound
do pier at Lower East Pubnico

Building wharf, South Gut, St. Anne's..,
Public wharf, Hardin gs Dyke, Argyle ....

Cape St. Mary's breakwater, Digby
Annapolis ferry slip

Public wharf, L'Ardoise ,

Harbor, Bird's Island, Victoria
Wharf at Bullardoise, Victoria

do Little Narrows, Victoria
do north side Big Harbor

Breakwater, Hericau Cove, Digby
Public wharf, south side Victoria
Jackson Point, Victoria
King's County
Port Williams pier, Annapolis ...

Landing, Gulf Shore, Pictou ..

Public wharf, Lunenburg
do Argyle

Margaree pier, East Inverness
Canal, White Haven, Guysboro'
Slip at Green Cove, Victoria
Broad Cove breakwater, Lunenburg

30
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Statement of MoneyR expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &c— Continued.

To whom Paid.

1876.

D. McDonald
E. Cohooa
D. McFadden
Byron Murphy
Jno Armstrong
Thos. Chosan
C. H. Bower
M. Burns
Chas. Boadroit

R. B. Eaton
J. J. O'Brien

H. G. Sutherland *...

Wm. Crooke
G. A. Borden
Jno. Harris

A. Stronish
Angus McLeod
Wm. Harlow
Ferguson & McKay ». .

T. H. Ferguson
Sutton & Walker
Wm. McKay.!.
Jas. McKay
Jno. Hatfield

J. B. Gnow
Jno. Hiltz

Ed. DeLoney
Geo. Daeper
B. F. Rolicheau
Jno. Mathews
D. R. Eaton ....

Geo. L. Deveau
M. H. Allison

8. Champ
Andrew Hilts

0. H. Denton
L. A. D'Entremont
A. R. Durkel
H. Halbert
J. B. Gnow
Jno. McAndrew
Jno. Hilta

Ed. DeLoney
Wm. Gates
Jacob Spicer
Jas. Andrews
Jacob Locke
Jos. Blenton
T. A. Belliveau

A. J. Comeau
Jno. Kelly
Norman McKenzie
H. F. McDougall
Wm. Smith
Jacob Locke
Samuel Bouchie
Geo. Sholes
H. Goodwin
Jas. Mahar
Forbes & Craig
Jno. Anderson .....i..

D. McKinnon.,
K. Morrison

Place of Expenditure.

Long Point wharf, Inverness •>-

Public wharf, East Port Medway «

Breakwater West Ray, Inverness

Port Hood pier, Inverness.

Breakwater at end Avon Bridge

Friar Head, Cheticamp, Inverness

Mouth Shelbarne Harbor to head of River

Doueette's Cove, Inverness

Repairs to steamer " Richmond ".... -

Public landing, Maitland, Hants

Road to public landinsr, Noel, Hants

Obstructions, Clyde River, Shelburne

Laurencetown Bridge, Halifax

Wharf at Avonport, King's ..................

Birchtown River, mouth of harbor to head ot river.

Margaretsville Wharf, Annapolis

Breakwater at L'Ardoise •

Improving Port LaBear River..

Milford Bridge, Draw
Canal at White Haven «

Improving Jordan Harbor •

Removing obstructions from Clyde River

Breakwater, Clyde River

Public wharf, Port Greville
(

Repairing Hampton Pier, Annapolis —
Channel at Narrows, Indian Point, Lunenburg

Public wharf, Tracadie, Antigonish

Improving Birchtown River

Meteghan River Breakwater
Canal on Causo Island

Breakwater at Eatonville, Cumberland....

do Round Hill, Digby «

Hants County
Big Port Breakwater, Inverness >

Binkavon River, Windsor .

Wharf at Digby -

do West Pubnico, Yarmouth
Clearing Carlton River, Yarmouth
Tusket River, Yarmouth
Hampton Pier, Annapolis
Port George Harbor, Annapolis
Breakwater at Lunenburg.
Wharf at Tracadie, Antigonish

do Blanford, Lunenburg -

Protection bar, Spencer Island, Lunenburg

Bridge, Oroxheath, C.B •• •••

Repairing buoy, Lockport, Shelburne... —
Wharf at Port William's, Annapolis

Clear Cove Breakwater, Digby ••«

Little Brook Breakwater, Digby
Breakwater, Kelly's Cove, Yarmouth
Gibbon's Bridge, C.B ..

Steamer landing, Christmas Island

Port Hood Outer Island Pier

Building buoys, Lockport -•

Public landing near Bouchie' s Landing » ....

Haulover port la Tour, Shelburne -

Breakwater, Argyle, Yarmouth
Opening Andrew's Creek....

o""i'
Repairing Wharf and Breakwater at Brule

Draw of Jeddore Bridge .

Breakwater at Barroi's, St. Anne s

do Little River, Victoria

31

Amount

$ cts.

35 00
100 00
150 00
100 00
40 00
150 00
120 00
100 00
500 00
150 00
54 75
100 00
70 00
83 33
80 00

300 00
150 OO
70 00*

200 00
266 6T
150 00
100 oo
50 00
ioo oo
250 00
100 00»

400 00
20 00
100 00
100 oo
225 00
100 00
250 00
250 00
12 50

285 OO
50 00
50 00
80 00
250 00
76 75

111 55
197 40
333 34
125 00
150 00
113 78
100 00
297 54
400 00
125 00
50 00
97 OO
100 00
16 35
25 00
40 00
100 00
66 66
250 00
238 65
50 00
31 00)
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Statement of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &g.—Continued.

1877.

Simon Giffin

Jno McAuley
Jno. McMahon
Geo. A. Borden
Hiram Spinney
W. Goodwin
Jno. Goodwin
Norman McAskell..
Wm. McLeod
Jas. Mahon
D. McDonald.........
Randal Graham
Jos Goodwin
Hector Carmichael.
R. McLeod
Hiram Spinney
Geo. Henessey .......

Geo. L. Deveau. ...

Randal Graham
D. 0. 0. Madden
D. McKenzie
Blozed Poirier
M. Cunningham
Peter Himmelmar. ....

R. McLeod-.
W. D. Smith
D. McFadden
D. A. Starratt
H. LeBlanc
John Payzant
J. Cornwell
JS. Gohoon
A. Hobart
John Harlow
John Hart
Wm. Wentzell
D. Harris
Jas. E. Dunne
Neil McNeil
E. Walsh ,

Geo. McLeod
L. Romkey
R. Sutherland
John Thomkins
R. Moody
J. D. Kelly

,

John Goodwin.........

W. E. Morris
i>. Harris

,

A. Harlow
,

C. Volger
J. E. McDonald „

B Burgess
Wm. harlow
T. W. Ferguson..
P. Cooke .,

ft. McKenzie
Goo. D. Arcker
A. Bower..
H. L. Sutherland
Sutton Walker
John J. Dimock
Randal & Graham _

Breakwater, Lewis Head, Shelburne
Boat harbor, Grand River, Richmond

,

Opening Cariboo River, Digby
Wharf at Avonport, King's

,

Public wharf, Argyle, Yarmouth
,

do at Sound do
Wharf near Pubnico
Breakwater, North Shore, Victoria !..."'.!

Ferry Slide, Brasdoire Lake, Victoria
Opening Andersons Creek, Guysboro'
Breakwater, Kelly's Cove, Victoria

.

Public wharf, Bayfieid, Antigonish
Public wharf dyke, Yarmouth'
Breakwater, Victoria County."

,

On account of public wharf, Victoria County
Public wharf, Yarmouth
Wharf, Port Hawkesbury, Inverness
Over-expenditure on Pownal ;Hill Breakwater, h 1876,

Digby County
Public wharf, Bayfield, Guysboro'
Piers, Grandigue Ferry, Richmond
Slip, Roger's Ferry, Victoria
Breakwater, Ohetticamp Chapel
Public landing, Antigonish
Repairing sluices, eastern passage .'

Boat landing, north shore, Victoria
Port Hood, outer island pier
Dredging head West Bay, Inverness

'".'.

Breakwater, Colchester
do Saulnierville, Digby ."".'.!!!«

Public wharf, Port Milton, Queen's
Bridge over North Cape, St. Mary's Bay
Public wharf, east Port Medway ^
Cleaning out Five Mile River, Hants
Clearing rocks, Bear River, Digby
Embankment near Palmer's M 11, Digby
Breakwater, Peterson's Rock, Queen's
Removing obstructions, Annapolis River
Bridge, Morgan's Road to Negro Hill „,
Slip at McNeil Ferry, Victoria
Removing obstructions, Bear River ,

Public wharf, Brooklyn, Queen's
Passage, East End Beach, Lunenburg ......"!!!

Removing obstructions, Queen's Falis and Sutherland Mill
Breakwater, Friar's Cove Head, Inverness ,

Wallace Ferry slip, Cumberland
Breakwater, Kelly's Cove, Yarmouth

,

Public pier, Lower Argyle Sound «

Public wharf, Cumberland
,

Hemlock Creek, branch Clyde River
Improving branch Sydney River
Widening passage across Conrad's Beach
Wharf at Grand Narrows, C.B
Ferry slip, Burlington, Hants
Port le Bear Harbor, Shelburne
Canal White Lead, Guysboro'
Point wharf, Chebeque Harbor

,

Slip, Sand Point Ferry, Victoria
,

Birchtown River, Shelburne
,

Pier on river near Bower's
Removing obstructions, Clyde River
Jordan Ha»bor River, Shelburne
Breakwater near Sweet's, Hants
Public wharf, Bayfield, Antigonish...

32
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Statement of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &c,—Comimed.

To whom Paid.

1877.

V. Comeau <

A. McDougall
John Kelly
R. McGill
John Harris

J. F. Maryatt
Thos. Saulnier
W. H. Gavel
Stephen Mallet

R. McLeod
John McMahon .,

S. Surrette
F. Battyce
Angus McLeod —•
N. Deveau,
J Conrad
Jas. McKinnon
S B. Dimock
H. Carmichael
D. McLean „

A. Mackay
John Bain..:...

W. J. McDonald
John Ryder
H. B. Porter
Jas. Harlow
J. F. Slaughenwhite ..

Dunbar & John
J.B. Doysdal
John McMahon
H. B. Porter

1878.

Geo. Ditmars
B. Grant -

Jos. Oropley
Randall & Graham
Hugh McAdam
A. M. Cunningham
Ed. DeLoney
J. C. McDonald
W. & B. Morris ,

D. McLeod <fc F. Salter ..

C. H. Denton
Benj. Robieheau
F. Hibeaden
J. R. Hunt
C. P. Comeau
J. F. Marryatt
F. Himmelman
Henry Morson
G. C. Lawrence
R. & W. Phillips

A. McEachern
B. White
Stairs, Son & Morrow .

.

B. Perrior
Arnold & Lovitt
Bolser & Hall
Owners str. "Lahave",

do
Jno. Publicover
Lahave Steamer Co

786-3

Place of Expenditure.

Meteghan River Breakwater •

Breakwater at Five Mile River, Hanta

do Kelly's Cove, Yarmouth
Improving Shelburne River

do Birchtown do
Bridge, uong Cove Pennant
Saulnierville Breakwater, Digby
Building ice breakwater and repairing bridge

Salmon River Breakwater, £>igby «

Boat landing, north shore, Victoria

Clearing head of water, Tusket River

Public wharf, Eel Brook, Yarmouth
Morris' Pier, Wallace Bridge, Cumberland
Breakwater, L'Ardoise, Richmond County
Jos. Melanson's Bridge, Digby--... ••

Widening and deepening Cove Ferry Hill, Luneuburg.

Public landing, Cape Negro Island

Breakwater, Scotch Village, Hants
Public wharf, North River, Victoria

Slip, ferry, Englishtowu, Victoria

Boat landing, Victoria

Amount.

Repairing Brule Breakwater, Colchester..

Road and wharf, Port Jolly, Queen's
Public wharf at Ryder's Cove, Yarmouth
Repairing wharf, Tusket Wedge
Bear River obstructions, Digby
Clearing river, Terence Bay
Sissiboo River obstructions

Fishway and clearing river and bay
Tusket and Silver River obstructions

Wharf at Tusket Wedge

Replacing buoy, Victoria Bridge

On the Port William River

do Pier -

To repair Bayfield Pier

do Arisaig Pier ~

Public wharf, Antigonish
To repair Tracadie Wharf
Repairing wharf, Grand Narrows «...

Public wharf at Advocate
do Diligent River

Breakwater at Centreville

Meteghan Breakwater ...»

Church Point do •». •••«

Buoy at Victoria Bridge
Therien Breakwater
Long Cove 8ridge
Beach Road
Repairing Beach Road
Public wharf, Port Hastings
Breakwater, North-East Margaree ,

do Smith's Cove
Repairing beach, Margaree
Goods per bill, Margaree
North-eastern harbor wharf, Cheticamp. ..

Chipman Broke Pier •

do
Balance of grant ,

Removing obstructions, Liverpool Harbor.

Public wharf at Blanford

Clearing channel, Rahar River. .».*..

$ cts.

100 00
53 00
28 00
60 00
50 00
100 00
400 00
87 00
29 92

400 00
300 00

50 00
150 00
104 91

204 90
150 00
100 00
150 00

126 62

41 40
17 60
153 00
100 00
50 00
166 66
200 00
100 00
200 00
99 85
200 00
333 34

62 50
100 00
100 00
294 00
50 00
45 00
120 00
213 00
100 00
10Q 00
200 00
500 00
200 00
64 59
100 00
127 50
52 00
100 00
216 25
40 00
250 00
52 0C
124 83
124 00
150 00
250 00
180 00
120 00
200 00
100 00
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Statement of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &c— Continued.

To whom Paid.

1878.

Francis Young
D. Cameron ..„

A. McKenzie
G. R. McKenzie
Thomas 8. Smith
E. Gohoon
John McKay ......

William Darrow
E. Freeman
J. S. Wentzell
George McKenzie
W. S. Symonds & Co

do
D. 0. 0. Madden...
L. Sampson -

A. Harlow
James Sheppard

,

Gordon McKay «...

William Harlow..
John Bower
G. D. Acker
Henry Harlow
Benj. Hopkins
A. L. Swain
John Harris
J. F. Swain
William Donavon
Donald Smith
John McDermott
Stephen McNeil ...

John Matheson
John McFarlane
Stephen McNeil
Neil McLean
John Matheson
John McFarlane
Stephen McNeil
R. McLeod
James Matheson
T. fl. Ulman.....
Wm. Hulbert
D. Crowell
J. Harding
L. King
8. Surrette

1879.

Htigh McDonald ,

Jas. Reid
Hugh McDonald
J. H. Salter

do
Jas. Reid . ,

J. B. Snow
H. Uoss
Geo. Joslin

Roscoe & Thorpe .«.

Steam-tug " Lahave "

D. 0. C. Madden
E. ti. Perry
Jno. Ryder
MilfordSima
iJftS. Anisro immmiiiimmhiiiimii

Place of Expenditure.

Public landing at Martin's Brook „ ...

Bridge and pier, Boat Harbor
Archibald Brook, Cape John
Big Gut Bridge and Pier „...,

Repairing Merigomi&h Wharf
Public wharf, iLast Port Medway
Repairing Summerville Harbor
Boat landing, Black Bear,
Building dams, Liverpool River
To remove rock, Wemzell Brook
St. Peter's Ferry to Decouse
Boiler and funnel, steamer "Richmond"
Supplies do
Repairs steamboat landing, Grandique
To build pier, cutting beach, L'Ardoise
To improve dam, Sydney River
Build embankment, Shelburne
To improve Jordan River

,

do Port la Bear River
do Shelburne do
do Birchtown do
do Sable River
do do

No. 4
To improve Birchtown River ,„
No. 2
Building slip at ferry, Ingonish , ,

do breakwater, Green's Point .

do do
,

On account building public wharf at Grand Narrows
Wharf at Little Narrows

,

Baddeck River Bridge
Public wharf, Grand Narrows
Baddeck Ferry Wharf
Wharf, Little Narrows
Baddeck River Bridge ,

Public wharf, Grand Narrows
do South Gut ,

Repairing slip, Big Harbor Ferry
Carlton to Wentworth, clear river
Tusket River ,

do upper part
Public wharf, Harding's Dyke
fusket River, between Melanson Sabines' Mills
Public pier, Eel Brook ,

Repairing ferry slip ,

do Granville Ferry Slip
Pipes, Annapolis Slip
On Annapolis Slip

do do ,

do do
On Hampton Pier
Goase's Landing.., ,

Public do Tatamagouche
Wharf and bridge, Hall's Harbor
Keeping open navigation, Lunenburg
Pier, Grandigue, str. "Richmond"
Public landing, Cape Negro Island
Pier at Argyle
Public wharf, Plymouth ,

do L. E. Pubnico

34
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Statement of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, ^.-Concluded.

To whom Paid.

1879.

A. McDonald
J. E. Payzaat
Wm. Fralick
Wentzell & Leslie

Wm. Darrow
Thos Burnaby...
Jno. McDonald ...

R. McLeod
Stephen McNeil. ..

Place of Expenditure.

Public pier at M. McDonald's

Wharf, Port Melton

Hunt's Point Whatf
Eagle Head Breakwater

Boat landing at Blicberry

To repair dams, Big Palls

Dominion Wharf, Port Jolly..

Wharf at South Gut
do Grand Narrows ....

Amount.

Total.

$ cts.

100 00
154 71

298 71

300 00
133 34
500 00
100 00
219 52
466 70

153,677 45

M. S. FIELDING, Provincial Secretary.

Provincial Secretary's Office, Halifax, N.S., 29th Dec, 1884.

Ottawa, 8th January, 1885.

Sir,-I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of yonr despatch (No. !2)
i

of

the oVhinst- transmitting, at the instance of your Government, and in order

Sit the same » Z laidtefore His Excellency the Governor General in Council

a cei^fiedTp^of an approved minute of the Honorable the Executive Council of

Nova Scotia dated 30th ult., having reference to a claim which your Government

makes for a refund of moneys expended since 1st July 1867, by the Government °/

Nova Scotia, on the construction^ repair of piers breakwaters ffblic w^W
&c , together with a copy of the detailed statement therein referred to, and to state

that the matter will receive due consideration.

I have, &c,

HENRYJJ. MORGAN, Acting Under Secretary of State.

To His Honor Lieutenant-Governor of Nova Scotia, Halifax, N.S.

Certified Copt of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Pri^y Council, approved

by His Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 9th December, 1885.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had under ~^d
^^"J

* ^SJfJ
from the members of the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of the Province

of Nova Scotia on the subject of better terms for that province. .,„_-- ih
'

f

The Sub Committee of Council, to whom the matter was *°^v?{»^*™
the memorial sets forth, in the first place, that previous to the union of the_provrnoes

the Province of Nova Scotia was in a most healthy financial condition that by the

terms of the union the chief sources of the revenue were transferred to the

Dominion ; that strong objection was taken at the time of the union to the financial

ferms^herW relating^L Province of Nova Scotia as being wholly inadequate to

meet the requirements of the various services left under the GOTern
?

e$ ** ™V™
vincial Legislature; and that an appeal was made to the Imperial Ministry for a

repeal of the union as far as it related to the province. It then proceeds to Mt forth

certain correspondence between the Colonial Office and Lord Monck, and also a

better from the
P
Right Honorable Sir John A. Macdonald to the Honorab a^ Joseph

Howe on the subject of better terms for the province, and a statement follows
_

that

the Dominion Government or the Dominion Parliament ha 1 never carried out the

request or desire of the Imperial Ministry or the promise of the Right Honorable Sir

John A. Macdonald, as quoted.
qO
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•w, T
hG ^-Committee observe, further, that in consequence of the correspondence

wiKteTre to'ded with^T °*l ^^T^ *""*» thereinTonSd a"d
32-33 Vi T oJn 9 ™ h ^ova

D
Sc^a

\
n the most liberal possible spirit the Act

wlii«lu P\' Wa
? ^

a88
?f B^ this Act the sum of $8,000,000, which was fixed

between whlh^^ *!^ Nart
} AmeHca Act as tke »™ oHhe difference

of tr un^ th^l -

G aCtUal fTnnt
°L

the Pub,ic debt of No™ Sc°tia at the timeot the union the province was to be paid interest by the Dominion at the rate of fiveper cent, per annum, was increased to the sum of h^S^^llSmth^
^^^r^lT^f10^^^ debtfl0i WS^i^l^ed toJNova bcotia at confederation to $27.50 per capita allowed to New Brunswick thelarger amount having been allowed the latter provirce on account ][HsZn exist

Stf.ff^W^ bGiDg iD eXCe8S of^e of tbe Pl0vince of Nova LoTiatt^ qU
?
ted Act

'
*h

,°> an additio^l a^nal allowance of $82,698 was%ranted

SS^qZ^H^^a^S*Tivalent 0f the a™ of 163,000 pe/annum

IreatXor^XitT10n ACt t0
^?T

*run8wick for ten years on account of the

«™ \1 •
y

7 a
w-

the larger
,

am0UIlt xt had t0 Pay for roads and bridges in proper-

Ac? 32% PvP
Ull10%tha

r
th
/ ^ther P^inoes had. It will thus be

g
Seen thatThe

£™*iT«i Vl
S*'

caP\2 ' Placed Nova Scotia on exactly the same footing as NewBrunswick, and gave her the utmost allowance that had been granted to Iny otheT

SZSSi'T
1 in

.

viewof
.

the foregoing facts the Sub-Committee submit Tat theSKS^o1^ U aSSe
f

rtiD
^

that the Dominion Government or Parliament7Stew 6«T or desire of the Imperial Ministry and the promise

J\JtL g honorable Sir John A. Macdonald
; and they further submit that no

£5Z£2S£K?* ex,cfq wit
,
h

n
egard toNova Scotia as comPared with th°°^provmces regarding the sums and allowances paid that province.

„«M - n
em0ml

.
th<

?

n Proceeds ^ state that after sixteen years of the union, sue-

S°JtSft 5*7
f

°T
d ^ ft

8 °bjeCti0DS whi<* were urS°d aA t\e

thITnfnn LTT t v
"*' #Ply Wlth 8tiU Sreater force now than in th* fi^ year of

rZrZT' th
f
f6e
i
1Dg of dl8C°ntent with regard to the financial arrangement isnow more general and more deeply fixed then ever before

™Jri\t^'^
mm[

^T arG DOt PrePared t0 admit that the feeling of discontent with

2KJE ™ancial arrangement is now more general and more deeply fixed thanever before, and they cannot but feel that when the concessions made to the province

IZJa ift f
to
^
con8lderation there should at the present time be no financialgrounds left for discontent. It must be borne in mind that since the Act of 1869 in

SJSSrrtS t>

1I
?
Creas

?
d
x
amount placed to the credit of the debt account as above men-

SSSSLfS ?%
Y1T °?

.

N°Va Sc
.

0tia in 18^ rand in 1884, in common with the other

K°aZ? he P ™?1011
'
received further increase of the amount to be credited to

J*Lvf

bt a?TDt
;

These increases will be noticed further on in this report, but itmay be stated in this connection that the province has received in proportion to themoney paid by it into the treasury a larger return in the way of local expenditure

Edward
y
is^nd

F°V1DCe
'
With the excePtion, possibly, of the Province of Prince

r.„af
The

j
nemor

j

al th
?
n

.

goes on to state that " a notable inequality exists in theCustoms duty collected m Nova Scotia as compared with the Customs duty collectedm Ontario and Quebec.

"

It then proceeds to illustrate this point by asserting that Nova Scotia in 1882on her importation of $6,889,508 of dutiable goods paid $197,728 more than the two
Provinces of Canada (Ontario and Quebec) did on the same amount of these dutiable

^! ?n
iQfo?o

a
o
,

n
a
n
n
n
dha8a,SO Paidon her importations of $6,550,887 of dutiable

goods in 1883 $213,000 more than the above two provinces paid on the same amount of
tneir importations of dutiable goods for the same year.

+u r^\
th re£ard t° this the Sub-Committee have to report that although as stated in

the Customs returns for the year 1883, the percentage of duty paid on the total of
the several imports, dutiable and free, is apparently greater in Nova Scotia than in
Ontario and Quebec, yet on reference to the same report it will be found that the
amount of Customs duties per head of population paid in each province is less in
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Nova Scotia than in the provinces named, less in fact than m any other^ province

with the exception of Prince Edward Island, and it will be also found that the higher

rate of percentage of duty in the table of value of imports entered for consumption

dutiable and free, is made up by the following causes :—
,

(a ) That Nova Scotia imported a larger proportion of beer and spirits than were

imported into Ontario and Quebec, the latter province using a larger quantity of

excisable beer and spirits, and in this connection it must be bor^J^^^J^
province importing the largest proportion of goods subject to the h,gher rates of

LLssuchas spirits and tobacco, will show a proportionately higher per^e
It will be seen from the statements annexed that while Nova Scotia paid during the

fiscal year 1883 about 56 cents per head on the spirits and beer entered for home

consumption through the Customs as against 60 cents per head paid by Quebec and

8 cents per bead by Ontario, on the other hand, Nova Scotia paid only 6 f cents

per head of Excise duty for the same period as compared with $1.59 per head paid by

Quebec and $1.10 per head by Ontario. It will also be seen on examination of the

report ofthe Commissioner of Inland Revenue, appended to the blue book of 1884, that

the percentages of consumption per head during the year 1884 of the undermentioned

articles paying Excise duty are as follows :—

Spirits. Beer. Wine.

•967 4-519 -030

!!!"!"!".""!.»*. *

ick

Nova Scotia,

Ontario yo « * aw vov
yntan0 1-271 2-069 -265

815 '805

573 -782 -061

Quebec 1-271 2-069 -2o&

^ew Bru^wTck" 1P '«» '°™

(b ) That in Nova Scotia a larger amount of duty is collected from the sugai

imported for the use of the sugar refineries at Halifax, the rate on which is from 40

0^50 per cent and a large portion of which is now consumed in the other provinces.

From the subjoined tablefit will appear that the duty per capita paid on sugar in

Nov? Scot is about 94 cents, as compared with $1.07 per head paid in Quebec, and

9 cents in Ontario.
' C

Th:
n
me=i then sets out the population of Ontario-^ft*"*^

wick and JSova Scotia and the amounts they severally had in 1882 for local purposes,

LoThe amount per head which these revenues gave each, fj^"*^
noint the Sub Committee beg to submit that had the Government of Nova Scotia not

Withdrawn from the credit of the debt account large ^"^.^'^^rhave
in railway extension and other public works the amount which they would have

of the Act of 1869 before referred to, when the amount was increased to the sum ot

*9 186 756 this increase to take effect from the date of Confederation.
$9,1

Tak ng tWs incre

a
as

e

e into consideration it will be found that the.balance
,

at the

credit of tbe Nova Scotia debt account on the 30th June, 1868, was $924,455.dd. Jn

873 by the AcT^Vk, cap. 30, Sl.344.78C.was added, and thi,.amount was for-

ther supplemented in the following year under the Act 37 Vic cap 3. by*™^
and apain bv Act 17 Vic , cap. 4, another increase of 8793,368.71 was made, wnicn

£onEm.£ tteMnce 'at the present time to the.^^^^'^
ferneXled '£?£. mTf'rom the capita. of the^^JJ ~™?SSS 2f
these withdrawals, however, the amount on the ™WJ^^A?£^£k
the account and on which they are receiving interest, is only $1,052,345 representing.

say, $52,615 of income.
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It will therefore be seen that had the capital been allowed to remain unimpaired
the province would now have been in receipt of over $110,000 more of yearly revenue
from this source.

The memorial goes on to state amongst other things that the Dominion Govern-
ment and Parliament have recently still further affected the interest of the province
by appropriating to the general purposes of the Dominion the amount received under
the fishery award for privileges conceded American fishermen within the territorial
limits of Nova Scotia and the other maritime provinces. A large sum has been
during the past few years returned to the fishermen of Canada in the shape of boun-
ties of which the people of Nova Scotia receive by far the largest portion. In addi-
tion to this the Government has always provided large sums in the interest of Nova
Scotia for the protection of the shore and river fisheries of that province and in the
estimates for the Session of Parliament of 1885 Parliament has been asked to pro-
vide for a large sum to protect the sea fisheries.

The Sub-Committee regret that after the most careful consideration they are
unable to recommend to council that any further allowance should be made to the
Province of Nova Scotia, as they are of opinion that had the extra expenditures
referred to not been made the sums from time to time carried to the credit of the
province placed her in as good a position as any of the other provinces and gave her
a suitable revenue for local purposes.

Before concluding their report, the Sub-Committee venture to observe with regard
to the memorial, that to concede the principle that when, through exceptional ex-
penditures, any of the provinces of the union become financially embarrassed it is the
part of the Dominion Government to go to their relief, would destroy the whole fin-

ancial basis of confederation.

^
Although not appertaining to the memorial, the Sub-Committee have further to

notice two matters which were presented to them by the members of the delegation
from Nova Scotia who appeared before them, Messrs. Church and Morrison. The
first is in reference to an alleged clerical error made in the Act 32-33 Vic, cap. 2,
viz., that the figures therein stated as $9, 186,156 should be $9,188,156.

The sub committee find on examination, that the clerical error claimed was made
and that a further clerical error of two dollars was made in the same calculation,
and that therefore the figures in the first section of the Act 32-33 Vic, cap 2, should
have been $9,188,158, which has been rectified during the Session of Parliament of
1885.

8

#

The second claim is with reference to the Halifax railway debt, with regard to
which the Subcommittee beg to report as follows:

—

By the revised Statutes of Nova Scotia (2nd series) cap. 70, page 256, it is en-
acted " that the city of Halifax shall be considered as holding stock in such railways"
(i. e, the trunk line from the harbor of Halifax to the frontier of New Brunswick
with branch lines to Pictou and Yictoria Beach) "to the extent of one-tenth of the
actual cost, such tenth, however, not to exceed in the whole the sum of £100,000,
and the city is to be assessed for such annual sum as will pay their proportion of the
interest and sinking fund." The railways were constructed by the Government

;

disputes arose, the city of Halifax complained that faith had been broken with them
by the railways stopping short of Halifax harbor at one end, and being only carried
half way to the frontier of New Brunswick on the other, and while the trunk line

was thus incomplete, a branch railway was constructed as far as Windsor in a west-
erly direction, and refused to pay. A stringent Act was passed to assess the city ; the
city authorities remonstrated against the royal assent being given (see despatches
of Lord Mulgrave, then Lieutenant-Governor of Nova Scotia, and of the Duke of New-
castle, then Colonial Secretary, in Nova Scotia Journals, 1862, Appendix No. 3, pa>re

1 of that appendix). Time passed on; other legislation took place dividing the
sum to be constituted by Halifax over five years, but the law was not enforced.
Actions were brought against the city as early as 1862, but none of them reached a
judgment and up to the time of Confederation Halifax had not paid anything upon
the stock assigned to it, and in this state of the question the railways became the
property of the Dominion Government.

38
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Mr Morrison contended that this claim upon the city of Halifax is an asset for

which Nova Scotia should have received credit. He brought it up, it seems, in 1874,

and stated the case before the then Attorney-General of Canada Sir Aime Donon.

In the arrangements for Confederation, the Government of Nova Scotia assumed

to be complete owners of these railways; no mention is made of any interest being

claimed or alleged to be owned by the city of Halifax, and upon this basis their

financial position was arranged.
m .

The Sub-Committee are of opinion that if the claim exists, it is one ot the Pro-

vince of Nova Scotia against the city of Halifax for an unpaid debt due by the city

to the province, and that it is impossible now to treat the matter in the light in

which it is presented by Mr. Morrison

.

The Sub Committee, therefore, regret that they are unable to recommend that

this claim be allowed. _ .

The Committee concur in the above report, and they advise that a despatch,

based upon this minute, be forwarded to the Lieutenant-Governor of Nova Scotia for

the information of his Government, to be conveyed to the memorialists, the members

o p the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of the Province of Nova Scotia.

All which is respectfully submitted for Your Excellency's approval.

Clerk Privy Council

39
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Statement showing amount of Excise Duty paid by the Provinces of Ontario, Quebec

and Nova Scotia, as per Inland Eevenue Returns, 18*3.

Province.

Ontario

Quebee

Nova Scotia

Excise Duty.

$ cts.

3,273,606 88

2,162,119 12

252,440 37

Remarks.

$1.70 per capita*

$1.59 do

$0.57 do

, . n«a «+,•+*> Valn<» and Dutv Paid on Sugar entered for Home
fc
"SSS.S^I ctt^ff^SWacato, a* pelade and Navigation

Returns of 18*3. ___ .,

Ontario.

Kind
of

Sugar.

Above No. 14

Nos. 9 to 14

Belotr No. 9.

Quantity Value Duty.

Lbs.

1,028,496

8,164,582

407,920

9,600,998

42,763

15,656

369,115

Quebec.

Quantity.

$ ets.

25,252 01

154,443 40

6,736 44

186,451 85

Lbs.

523,6

34,292,942

59,142,549

93,959,189

Value.

Nova Scotia.

%

20,334

1,180,515

1,821,049

3,021,898

Duty.

% cts.

112,353 88

611,356 97

842,027 73

Quantity. Value

1,465,738 58

Lbs.

1,486,023

10,659,944

12,566,003

24,711,970

%

52,286

385,798

412,252

Duty.

850,336

% cts.

33,160 81

195,688 m
186,488 60

415,337 W

Duty per capita paid Ontario, 9&c.

d0 do Quebec, $1.07&.

d do Nova Scotia, 94I
2 c

786-4 41
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RETURN
m

To an Address of the House of Commons, dated 14th April, 1886 ;—For

a copy of the memorial of the North-West Council, presented to the

Government by Messrs. Wilson and Ross, members of said Council,

and of any answer made to said memorial, and of any correspondence

between the G-overnment and the Lieutenant Governor of the North-

West Territories or other parties in reference thereto.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

19th April, 1886.

Lieutenant Governor's Office, Kegina, 31st December, 1885.

Sir,—I have the honor to enclose you herewith copies of a number of resolutions

passed by the Council of the North-West Territories, sitting in Legislative Session on

the 15th December, 1885.

I would request that you will please submit the same at an early date for the

consideration oi the Government.

I have, &c,

B. DEWDNEY, Lieutenant-Governor.

Hon. Secretary of State, Ottawa.

[Resolutions passed by the Council of the North- West Territories on 15th December, 1885.

To Mis Honor the Lieutenant-Governor in Council :

Your Committee appointed to memorialize the Dominion Government on certain

matters, beg leave to report :

—

That the wishes and representations of the Council would, in the opinion of

your Committee, be brought more directly to the notice of the several heads of the

Government departments by resolutions of the council separate on each subject,

instead of by memorial as was formerly done.
And recommend that the following resolutions be passed by the Council, and

forwarded by the Lieutenant-Governor to the Government at Ottawa,

All of which is respectfully submitted.
T. W. JACKSON, Chairman.

1. That power should be given to the North-West Council to incorporate com-

panies having purely territorial objects.

2. That all old established trails should be at once surveyed by the Government
and afterwards vested in the North-West Council.

3. That this Council is informed that there are yet many old settlers' claims

unsettled, principally in the Prince Albert and Edmonton districts, and urgently

recommend that immediate steps be taken to determine such matters, and that in the

79—1 1
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settlement of claims the possessory rights of squatters to land, as regards extent of
claims, as recognised by the custom of the country prior to the passing of the Domin-
ion Lands Act of 1879, and the right to transfer such claims should be recognized.

4. That notwithstanding the repeated assertions to the contrary, the freight
rates imposed by the Canadian Pacific Railway are yet found to be a severe tax on
the products of the North-West. This Council therefore respectfully suggests that
the influence of the Government should be used to induce the Canadian Pacific Eail-
way Company to reduce their rates so as to compare favorably with rates in the
provinces of the Dominion, who have the advantage of railway competition, also
that exceptionably favorable rates should be given on lumber coming into the Ter-
ritories from British Columbia.

5. That no charge be made for any wood used for fuel purposes by bond fide
settlers, and not cut for sale; and that each homestead be allowed 4,000 lineal feet
of building timber on free permit.

6. That the improvement heretofore suggested by the North-West Council ofthe
navigation of the North Saskatchewan river should receive the further and favorable
consideration of the Government, in order that the settlements of the northern parts
of this country, far removed from the benefits of the Canadian Pacific Railway, might
advantage by the natural highway, as an outlet for the products of that portion of
the country.

1. That the rights of habeas corpus be granted to the North-West Territories.
8. That all lands cancelled for any cause should be thrown open for free home-

steading on ordinary homestead conditions, and not held for purposes of sale.

9.^ That owing to the great expense now attending appeals to the Court of
Queen's Bench of Manitoba, and the rapid settlement of the country and increase of
litigation in the Territories, this Council recommends the establishment of a Terri-
torial Court of Appeal for the North-West Territories.

10. That this Council recommends to the favorable consideration of the Govern-
ment a certain petition, a copy of which is hereto annexed adopted at a public meet-
ing at Edmonton, 30th June, 1884, asking that a trail be constructed from that point
into the Peace River country.

To the Lieutenant Governor of the North-West Territories in Council

:

The petition of the undersigned residents of the electoral district of Edmonton,

Humbly Showbth :

—

1. The population of the said district already exceeds five thousand, of whom
nearly the entire number is composed of farmers, and others engaged in agricultural
pursuits and stock raising.

2. That the said farmers are now raising a surplus of grain and other agricultural
produce, and are also now raising a surplus of cattle and other stock over and above
the requirements both of themselves and of the said district at large : that owing to
the following facts, viz.

:

(a.) That there is no line of railway nearer them than 200 miles.
(6.) That the only means of transportation to said railway is by carts.
(c.) That the freight rates by such means are enormous, and only less excessive

by said railway to the east, the said farmers and agriculturists are precluded from
shipping their said surplus stock and produce to the eastern markets, which being at
present the only ones available to them under any (even the above detailed) circum-
stances, they are practically without any market whatever for such surplus, and the
same consequently remains on their hands, not merely as production, but also a
source of direct loss to them, and as a further consequence of the facts above set
forth, they find it difficult, if not impossible, either to obtain credit from or to pay
their debts to the merchants and the tradesmen of the said district or elsewhere, and
therefore the means of gaining more than a mere livelihood, and certainly the means
of improving their condition, are at present totally unavailable to them.

2
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3. That on the other hand, your petitioners' natural market lies in the country

to the north and north-west of the said district, where there is a population of twenty

thousand Indians about the water system tributary to the Mackenzie River, but the

said natural market is at present inaccessible to your petitioners ; that the said

Indians trade chiefly with parties bringing their goods from Great Britain, whereas

if proper communication were opened up and traders could get access to the market

last aforesaid, goods manufactured in Canada would be purchased and used by the

said Indians, and large quantities of flour, provisions and produce (of which they are

now deprived) would be shipped to them, and a valuable trade would be established

with them to the advantage not only of your petitioners, but also of the inhabitants

of other districts in the Territories and of the eastern provinces of Canada.

4. That the said natural market has as its centre the point of confluence of the

Smoky .River with the Peace River in Athabasca District, and after the said point

has been reached only three short portages occur till the Arctic Ocean is reached, so

that the vast country between such point and the said ocean would thus also bo

thrown open to your petitioners, and the inhabitants of the said other districts and
eastern provinces, but it is impossible to take advantage of the said market, inasmuch
as the present means of access thereto are by a mixed land and water route, whereas

the said market can be tapped advantageously and profitably only by constructing a

waggon and cart road thereto.

5. That there are three routes practicable from Edmonton to said market, and

they may be described as follows :

—

(a.) The old Hudson Bay route via Fort Assiniboine. Of this the worst parts are

between the Athabasca and Pembina Rivers, and for the last forty miles before

reaching Little Silver Lake. This, however, is the shortest route, and is recommended

by your petitioners as being on the whole the best.

(b.) The route from Edmonton via Lake St. Anne to the mouth of the McLeod
River, thence up the Big Hawk River and on in a north-west direction to the mouth

of Smoky River. This route is almost entirely through small timber from Lac Ste.

Anne to the mouth of Smoky River, but it is nevertheless believed that a fair road

can be secured this way.
(c.) The route from Edmonton to the Athabasca Landing, thence following the

Athabasca River to its northern bend, between the 55th and 56th parallels of lati-

tude, thence in a direction slightly north of west to the Raspberry Mountains, where

an old pack trail is used, thence along the said trail to Slave Lake Post, at the west

end of Little Slave Lake, thence by the Hudson Bay cut route to the confluence of

the Smoky and Peace Rivers. The distance between the Landing and Slave Lake
Post is about one hundred and sixty miles, and the country traversed by this route

is of a rolling and sandy character, with a scattered growth of small poplar and

pitch pine ridges. Only one muskeg has to be crossed, and it is believed that by

building three miles of corduroy this route, as regards said muskeg, would be made
practicable. This is the longest of the eaid three available routes.

6. That the easy access to the said natural market, and the said country between

the same and the said ocean, which would be given by the construction of one of the

three above described routes would result, not only in improving your petitioners'

condition, but also in materially developing the agricultural, mineral and other

resources of a tract of country containing seven hundred and fifty thousand square

miles; and, moreover, the Dominion Government would thereby derive great benefit

in the prosecution of their surveys and explorations, and in the reduction of freights

and other expenses in connection with such surveys and explorations, and in connec-

tion with their treaties with and government of the Indians in the country under

consideration.

Wherefore your petitioners humbly pray

:

1. That your honorable body will taken into immediate and earnest considera-

tion the facts hereintofore set forth.

2. That you will select and adopt one of the said three routes, and cause the

same to be so improved and such work to be done upon it as to make it a practicable

road for the purposes aforesaid.

3
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3. And that, if necessary, you will memorialize the Dominion Government and
Parliament to assist in promoting the prayer of this petition and in farthering the
objects thereof, as being a fact of more than local importance.

And yourjpetitioners will ever pray.

Dated at Edmonton, in Alberta Territory, this 30th day of June, 1884.

11. This council respectfully submits that it is in the interests of Canada, as a
whole, as well as the North-West Territories, that the people of the Territories should
be represented in the Senate and House of Commons of Canada ; and in the sub-divi-
sion of the country for representative purposes, that reference should be had as well
to territorial area as to population.

12. That the Torrens system, introduced into Parliament last Session, should be
made applicable to the North West Territories at once; and so soon as the system
becomes law all titles to land should come under its operations, so as to avoid two
systems ot registration being in operation at the same time.

13. That settlers who have entered for a homestead and pre-emption, and who
are now, or may hereafter be entitled to a patent for their homestead quarter section,
be allowed to enter their pre-emption as a second homestead on condition of an addi-
tional three years' homestead duties on their former homestead quarter section, and
cultivation duties on present pre-emption or homestead as circumstances will permit.

14. That all settlers who have been in any way engaged in the service of the
Government or in the transport service during and in connection with the late rebel-
lion, be allowed the time so engaged to count as actual residence on their home-
stead.

15. That the Dominion Government should encourage the building of branch
lines of railways, particularly those running north and south through the Territories

;

such lines would not only enable those settlements now far removed from the Cana-
dian Pacific Eailway to reap the advantages hoped to be derived from the completion
of that national work, but would as well open for settlement some of the finest areas
of land in the Territories. That such encouragement, if at all practicable, should be
by cash subsidy, or guarantee by the Government of the bonds of companies con-
structing such lines, thus preserving the public lands for purposes of settlement.

16. That the benefits derived from the National Policy to the older provinces of
the Dominion do not apply to the North- West Territories as regards agricultural
implements and lumber ; and it being necessary to the future development of the
country that every encouragement should be extended to the agricultural interests
of the North-West, this council recommends that a rebate should be given equal to
the duty now imposed on agricultural implements and lumber.

17. That the fact of the odd-numbered sections of land being principally held by
companies and individuals for speculation purposes, and in most instances such lands,
particularly in the Canadian Pacific Eailway belt, being exempt from taxation, is a
bar to settlement and progress. This council recommends that immediate steps
should be taken by the Dominion Government towards acquiring the odd-numbered
sections and opening them for homesteading purposes.

18. That moneys voted by Parliament for expenses of Government in the North-
West Territories, including printing, roads, bridges, ferries, aid to schools, etc*, should
be vested in the North-West Council as representatives of the people.

19. That it is of the utmost importance to the North-West Territories that the
Hudson Bay Eailway may be constructed as rapidly as possible, if the scheme is
found practicable.

That the success of the North-West very largely depends on the agricultural
industries of the country, and the cost of transport now, and as must be, we fear, in
the future, is a very severe tax on the industries of the North- West in consequence of
its great distance from European markets. This Council is of opinion that the most
liberal encouragement should be extended to the scheme by the Government of
Canada.
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20; That notwithstanding the settlement of a, very large number of claims

amongst the half-breede, and the very satisfactory manner in which the commission-

ers appointed for that purpose porformed tbeir work, so far as the urae occupied by

them would permit, there yet remains a very large number of half-breeds who are

entitled to a recognition of their claims, we cannot impress too strongly upon the

Dominion Government the desirability of settling all half-breed claims without

delay, and would strongly urge the immediate appoiatment of a commission to con-

tinue the work until thoroughly completed

.

,

21. That claims for compensation from the Government for loss sustained

during the late rebellion should, in the opinion of this council, be promptly settled

by the Government, it being within our knowledge that great inconvenience and

hardship is now being undergone by some, who have lost heavily in consequence of

the outbreak. . ,

This council would recommend in this connection that most searching and

rigorous enquiry be had as to the nature of claims, so that any who were a party

to their own loss may not receive the same consideration as those who were loyal to

the Government. .
_ „ ,,, , ... ,

Also that goods and supplies furnished to troops in good faith by settlers and

merchants should be paid for. •

22 That where stock is kept by a homesteader some rjule should be adopted and

made a part of the land regulations, so that the stock of homesteaders over a fixed

number might be allowed to count as cultivation duties, m whole or in part,
;
and

that encouragement should be given to tree-planting in prairie sections of the coun-

try, and to count also as cultivation duties.
p #

23 That the council respectfully intimates that, in their opinion, it would be

most satisfactory to the people of these Territories were the Government in future to

fill appointments to positions of trust and emolument from amongst the residents ot

these Territories. . , _ xl . ,, ,

24 That owing to the unexpectedly rapid development of the agricultural

resources of the territories, and to the erection of gristing mills at several points, as

well as the extent of the cattle interests of the North-West, this council recom-

mends both in the interests of the Government and the settler, that in the future all

food supplies, both for the North-West Mounted Police and for the Indians,

should be purchased in the Territories.
.

.

We were aware that the issue of beef to Indians instead of the American pork

would be more satisfactory to all the tribes. We would suggest that contracts be

called for in smaller quantities, the spurity deposit not to exceed 5 per cent., and

without official routine which has attended the letting of contracts heretofore.

In this manner, we believe the settler will be helped, and the Government will

receive a cheaper and a better article.
\ m m ,

25 That the position of several town sites in the Territories, in which the Grown

is interested, proves from year to year more unsatisfactory owing to the impossibility

of collecting taxes from unsold lots therein, which are increased in value owing to

the expenditure of taxes paid by the residents of such towns, the Crown thereby

being benefitted without sharing any of the burdens of taxation.
<

.

And as great difficulties are met with in establishing and sustaining schools and

municipal organizations in such town sites, in the opinion of the Council, it is

advisable that the Government should at once dispose of their interests in such town

sites so that the same may be made available for taxation.

26 Whereas representations have been made to this Council by the elected

members of Prince Albert, St. Albert and Edmonton, that certain colonization

companies in and near their electoral districts, viz. : The Prince Albert Colonization

Company and the Edmonton and Saskatchewan Land and Colonization Company

have not complied with their agreements, the effect of which is that large blocks of

land are locked up from settlement, and the progress of these districts materially

retarded.
79-2 5
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Therefore, this Council requests that immediate steps be taken to have those
companies inspected, and if it is found that such representations are correct, to insistupon such companies carrying out their agreements entered into with the Govern-
ment, or the cancellation of their grants.

27. That this council has learned with satisfaction that it is the intention of the(government to distribute medals to the volunteers who were engaged in suppressing
the late rebellion. We would beg to recommend that a like recognition of the vali£
able services rendered by the North-West mounted, and the Prince Albert and Battle-
ford special forces should be made. We believe that on every occasion, where the
forces had an opportunity, they showed themselves of that material of whichCanada is justly proud Also that services rendered by many loyal half-breeds dur-
ing the outbreak ehould be recognized by the Government.
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(sod)

STATEMENT
Of Militia Pensions awarded by Orders in Council, consequent upon the

Rebellion of 1885, North-West Territories.

Date
of

O. in C.

Not. 19

do 19

Dec. 3

do
do

do

do

do 3

do 5
do 5

do 5
do 5
do 5
do 5
do 5

do 5
do 5

do 6

do 5
do 18

do 18

do 18

do 18

do 18
do 18

do 18
do 18

do 18

do 23
do 23
1886.

Jan. 8
do 8

do 8
do 8
do 8
do 8
do 13

do
do

Rank.

Captain
Staff Sergeant...
Gunner
Trumpeter
Corporal
Private
do
do
do
do
do

Gunner „
Bugler
Private
do
do
do
do

Lieutenant
Private
do
do

do
Color Sergeant..
Private
Trooper
Gunner
Sergeant

Name. Corps.

Mary F. French, widow c

Capt. French
4 children—girl, 11 ; boys, 9,

7 and 1
,

Catharine Cook, widow
Gunner W. Cook „ ,

1 daughter 4 years old
Marie Lebel Demanally, wi-
dow of Gunner H. Deman-
ally..

Catharine Armworth, widow
of Gunner C. Armworth . ..

Hannah Dobbs, widow of Pri
vate H. Dobbs

3 children—girl, 1 1 ; boys, J

and 3
Wm. Clark
W. Mawhinney
B. A. Aaeelin ,

W. J. Wilson
W. A. Kemp.
C. H. Kemp
D. Hislop
W. W. Mathews ,

H. B. Perrin
A. L. Young
W. H. Canniff

,

Albert Mulvey
,

Michael Gaughan
,

James Eager
,

James Cane
Robert Henry Dunn ,

Henry Jones
Richard Jones
A. E. Doucet, A.D.O ,

Alexander S.. Martin
Simcoe Mackintosh Daly
Samuel Gray

Private.

80d—1

Thomas Agnew
Francis Francis
Alexander P. Graham.
Valentine Bruce
Samuel Parkhill
Edward Walling
Catharine Hutchison, widow

of Private James Hutchison.
1 daughter 11 years old
Samuel Bell ..

French's Scouts

"A" Battery....

"A" Battery...,

do

Battleford Rifles

90th Batt
'A" Battery....

do .....

do
90th Batt

do
do
do

Boulton's Scouts
90th Batt

do
"A" Battery....

10th Batt
do
do

"C"Co.,I.SC.
do
do

10th Batt
Midland Batt ...

10th Batt

Pension.

Rate
per

diem.

$Ct8

2nd do
10th do

,

2nd do
Boulton's M. I

A " Battery,
do

90th Batt.

Midland Batt 60

Rate
per

annum.

$ cts.

614 65

411 72

73 00
14 60

73 00

73 00

91 25

54 75
400 00
328 50
200 75
200 75
164 25
109 50
109 50
109 50
109 5©
83 95
200 00
219 00
58 40
182 50
200 75
200 75

109 50
182 50
280 00
250 00
182 50
146 00

91 25
109 50
91 25
200 75

109 50
328 50

91 25
18 2

219 00

Remarkg.

102.f3

ea. 18.25
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Statement of Militia Pensions

—

Continued.

Pate
of

O. in 0.

1886.

Jan. 26
do 26

26
26
26

26

do
do
do
ao

do 26
do 26

do 26

Feb.
do
do

do 25

do 25

do 25

do 25

do 25

do 25
do 25

do 25

do 25

do 25
do 25
do 25

do 25
do 25
do 26
do 25
Mar. 27

do 27

do 27

do 27
do 27
do 27
do 27

April 5

Rank.

Captain
Lieutenant.
Sergeant ....

Gunner
Private ,

Private,

Act'g. Bombard
Private

Gunner
Private
do ...

Sergeant
do

Driver
Act'g Bombard
Gunner .....

do
do

Corporal
Qr. Mr. Sergt...

Bugler

Name.

Corporal ,

Gunner ,

Private, ,

do
Transport clerk,

Samuel F. Peters
John B. Halliwell

John W. McLintock
Thos. J. Stout
John Davidson ...

Jeremiah Osgoode, father of

Private Wm. Osgoode
George Phillips

Mrs. Hannah Harvey, grand-
mother of Pte. Wm. Ennis

H. H. Swinford, father of

Lieut. Chas. Swinford .

Douglas H. Taylor
Joseph Mcllveen .

Miss Ella D. Osgoode, sister of
Private Wm. Osgoode...

Mrs. Elizabeth Lydia Brown,
mother of Capt. Brown

Mrs. Marois, widow of Private
Th' ophile Marois

Her five children

James Harrison -

James Henderson
Chas. F. Guy
James F. Gaffeny
James Young
Gaudias Houde.
Thos Reynolds
Victor Cleroult
Walter Y. Woodman
Pierre Langlois

,

Alex. Bcucher
Mathew Donnelly
Edward Gilbert
Ruby Jane Muligh, widow of

Private W. H. Muligh..

Her infant child

Margaret McDonald, widow of

Private Frederick Marwick
John Edward Lethbridge
Eugene Moisan ...-

Jacques Zachariah
Jean-Baptiste Fortin.

John Vinen M

Corps.

7th Batt
Midland Batt ....

7th do ....

A" Battery....

7th Batt

Ottawa S S
10th Batt. ...

90th do

90th do
"A" Battery.

10th Batt

Ottawa S. S

B.M.I

9th Batt.

"A" Battery....

Midland Batt . ...

do
"B" Battery...,

H. P. B,
"B" Battery....

do
do

"A" Battery...,

do
9th Batt ,

14th do
Battleford Rifles

H. P. Batt

H. P. Batt
90th do
"A" Battery...

"C" Co.,I.S.O
9th Batt
Str. Northeote...

Pknsion.

Rate
per
diem.

$cts,

80
60
60

15

25

2 00
23
20

71

30
55
25
90
60
55
55

9 25
05

18|
90
50
30
55
45

Rate
per

annum.

Total Pensions awarded up to 30th April, 1886.

$ cts.

1,000 00
280 00
292 00
219 00
219 00

91 25
54 75

91 25

730 00
83 95
73 00

45 62

259 15

68 44
70 19

109 50
200 75
91 25
328 50
219 00
200 75
200 75
200 75
182 50
182 50
83 95
73 00

109 50

91 25
18 25

68 44
328 50
182 50
109 50
200 75

164 25

Remarks.

$13,517 06
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COPY
(80e)

Of a Eeport of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by His Excel-

lency the Governor G-eneral in Council on the 8th July, 1885,

respecting Regulations as to Pensions and G-ratuities, Rebellion, North-

West Territories.

Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by His
Excellency the Governor General in Council on the Hth July, 1885.

On a memorandum, dated 30th June, 1885. from the Minister of Militia and
Defence, submitting for Your Excellency's approval the annexed regulations relating
to gratuities and pensions to be granted under the provisions of section 68 of the
Consolidated Militia Act of 1883, to officers and me a of the Active Militia, who have
been or may be killed or wounded in actual service after the 20th day of March, 1835,
or who have died since that date, or may die hereafter from illness or injuries contracted
in actual service.

The Minister observes that the proposed rates of pension to officers and soldiers
for wounds or injuries received in action, and the regulations unier which they are
to bo issued are the same as granted by order of the Governor General in Council,
dated 21st of August, 1866, to officers and s>ldws wounded or iujired during the
invasion of Canada by Fenians in 1866 and following years.

The Minister represents that the rates of pensions and gratuities proposed to be
granted to widows, children and relatives of officers and soldiers killed in action, or
who have died or may hereafter die from wounds received in action, or from illness

or injuries contracted on actual service, are based as fara^ practicable upon Imperial
Army Regulations, but as on that army pensions are not granted to the widows ana
families of deceased soldiers, the Minister considers that a change should be made for
the reason that the conditions of service of Canada bring to the ranks of the active
militia a class of the community whose claims are in his opinion as deserving of
consideration as those of the officers. He has, therefore, adopted as far as practic-
able the raUs allowed on the Imperial Regular service to the widows and families of
deceased officers, and made similar provisions for the widows and families of
deceased soldiers, based as in the case of officers on the respective ranks of those on
whose account the pensions and gratuities are to be issued.

The Minister further represents that the distinction made in the Imperial Regu-
lations has been followed in granting a higher rate of ponton to those killed in
action or who die from wounds received in action than to those who die from injuries
or illness contracted on actual service. In both cases the rates fixed tor lieutenants
colonels, majors and captains closely approximate ihose adopted in the Imperial
Army but are less for Lieutenants owing to the Imperial rate tor that rank being in
excess of the actual difference in pay. Also there are two rates of pay for lieuten-
ants in the active militia, the one in the permanent corps being higher than the
other, and he, therefore, recommends in order to bnag the rate of pension in that
rank nearer to that in the Imperial army, that the minimum rate of pay for pension
on account of deceased lieutenants, in all corps of the active militia be counted at
$2.44 per diem, which is the rate paid to lieutenants on appointment on the per-
manent corps of the Dominion. The Committee advise the adoption of the annexed
regulations and they submit the same for Your Excellence's approval.

JOHN J. McGBB, Clerk Privy Council,

Vide Militia General Order No. 14, of the 9th July, 1835, attached, showing
rates of pensions, etc.

8Q<2-1J 3
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—»

(Extract from " The Canada Gazette" of Saturday, Uth July, 1885.)

MILITIA GENERAL ORDERS.

Head Quarters, Ottawa, 9th July, 1885.

General Orders (14).

No. 1.

The Regulations and Orders for the Militia, 1883, having been amended by
order of Hid Excellency the Governor General in Council, dated 8th July, 1885, by
adding IT paragraphs under the heading of " Gratuities and Pensions," the Regula-
tions under the heading " Casualties " so amended are now published for general
information :

—

CASUALTIES.

Casualties—Actual Service.

995. When any officer or man is killed in actual service, or dies from wounds or
disease contracted on actual service, provision shall be made for his wife and family;
out of the public funds.

996. And all cases of permanent disability, arising from injuries received or
illness contracted on actual service shall be reported on by a Medical Board and
compensation awarded, under such regulations as may be made from time to time by
the Governor in Council ; and any medical practitioner who shall sign a false certi-
ficate in any such case, shall incur a penalty of four hundred dollars. 46 Vic., chap,
11, sec. 68.

r

Injury or Illness—Actual Service.

997. If any officer of the Militia shall receive injury or contract illness on actual
service, which, although of a temporary nature, shall necessitate his discharge from
such service, he shall be conveyed to his home at the public expense, and shall receive
a sum equal to the daily pay and allowance of his rank, for the period during which
according to the certificate of two qualified medical practitioners, he shall have been
actually and necessarily incapacitated from following his usual occupation. And no
allowance for medical attendance shall in any such case be made. Par. 149 R & O
1870. > • •>

998. If any militiaman shall receive injury or contract illness on actual service
which, although of a temporary nature, shall necessitate his discharge from such
service, he shall be placed either in a military or civil hospital, and on his discharge
from hospital he shall be conveyed to his home at the public expense ; and he shall
receive compensation for loss of time at the rate of one dollar a day, for the period
during which he has been detained in hospital. But in case he should elect to be
sent to bis own home in place of the hospital, he shall receive compensation for loss
of time at the rate of one dollar a day, for the period during which, according to the
certificate of two qualified medical practitioners, he shall have been actually and
necessarily incapacitated from iollowing his ordinary occupation ; and no allowance
for medical attendance shall in any such case be given. Far. 150, R. & O. 1870.

Gratuities and Pensions .

The following rates of compensation by gratuity and pension will be allowed
under the provisions of sec. 68, chap. 11 ot 46 Victoria.—The Consolidated Militia
A.ct, 1883, to militiamen wounded or disabled, or who may be hereafter wounded or
disabled in actual service, and to the widows and children of those who have been
killed in battle or have died from injuries or illness contracted on actual service.
O. C. July, 1885.

4
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Wounds and Injuries received in Action.

1. An officer who shall be certified to have received a wound in action which
shall have occasioned the loss of an eye, or a limb, or the use of a limb; or to have
received bodily injury equivalent to the loss of a limb, shall in the first instance,
receive a gratuity in money of one year's lull pay of the appointment held by him at
the time of his wound.

2. From the expiration of one year, from the date of the wound or injury, the
wounded officer referred to in the preceding paragraph, may, subject to the conditions
of paragraphs 3 to 5, be granted a pension according to the following scale :

—

Rank or relative rank of officer. Annual pension.

Lieutenant Colonel * , $1,200
Major 800
Captain 400
Lieutenant 280

3. No claim to a gratuity or pension shall be entertained unless the officer ghali
apply for the same within five years after being wounded.

4. A pension shall not be granted for the loss of an eye, consequent upon a
wound received in action, unless loss of vision shall have occurred within five years
after the wound, and shall be solely attributable to such wound.

5. A pension shall be granted according to Militia rank, or in the case of a
departmental officer, relative rank, held by the officer at the time of being wounded.

Soldiers' Pensions.

6. Pensions may be granted to militiamen discharged as unfit for further service
from wound or injuries received in action.

First
degree.

Second
degree.

Third
degree.

Fourth
degree.

Rank.

8 £>i^ £
0> « f m «-»
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60

45

60

45

30

90

60

55

45

30

23

60

45

30

30

23

15

45
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Corporal

Private , M
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PENSIONS TO WIDOWS AND CHII DREN OF OFFICERS AND SOLDIERS IF IN REDUCED OE
NEEDY CIRCUMSTANCES.

Bates of Pension.

I. If the deceased officer or soldier has been killed in action, or has died from
wounds "eceived in action, withiD iwelve months of having been wounded:

—

(a.) To the widow a pension annually equal to one half the daily pay of the
officer or soldier during twelve months, and in addition for the first year a
gratuity equal to twelve months' pay.

(b.) To each child, a compassionate allowance annually at the rate of one tenth
of the pay of the officer or soldier, and in addition for the first year a gratuity
equal to four months' pay.

If the deceased officer or soldier died from illness which can be directly traced to

fatigue, privation or exposure incident to active operations in the field, within six

months after his having been finally incapacitated for duty, or if the deceased officer

or soldier shall have lost his life in consequence of wounds received in the execution
of military duty otherwise than in action

.

(a.) To the widow a pension annually equrl to three eighths of the daily pay of

the officer or soldier during twelve months.

(5.) To each child a compassionate allowance annually at the rate of one-
thirteenth of the pay of the officer or soldier.

8. A pension to the wicow or other relative of a deceased officer or soldier shall

only be granted as a reward of good, faithful and gallant service rendered, and shall

not be claimed as a right. It shall not be conferred it the applicant be left in wealthy
circumstances, or is already in possession of any pension, provision, or allowance
from the public.

9. A widow's pension shall, as a rule, commence the day following that of her
husband's death, and shall be discontinued should she subsequently prove unworthy
of it, or attain to wealthy circumstances.

10. The pension of a widow who re marries shall be suspended from the date of
her re-marrisge ; but in the event of her again becoming a widow, her pension may
be restored, upcn prcof that she is not in wealthy circumstances, and is otherwise
deserving.

|

Children.

II. Compassionate allowances as shown in paragraph 7, may, subject to the con*

ditions which apply to widows' pensions, be granted to the children of deceased

officers and soldiers. They shall not be granted to sons over the age of eighteen, nor

to daughters over the age of twenty-one except in very special cases in which it shall

be shown that the sons or daughters became afflicted during the officer's or soldier's

life with some mental or bodily infirmity rendering them dependent upon him, and
permanently incapable of making adequate exertion for their support; and that such
incapacity dates from a period before the children reached the limit of age, as above
laid down, and that they are in distressed circumstances.

12. The allowances granted under paragraph 11, to the sons of officers and
soldiers may be continued until they respectively attain the age of eighteen, or are

otherwise previously provided for; and those to the daughters may be continued until

they respectively marry or attain the age of twenty-one, whichever shall first happen,

and no longer ; except in very special cases, in which it shall be shown that such

children are afflicted with any mental or bodily infirmity rendering them incapable

of making adequate exertion for their own support ; and that tbey are in distressed

circumstances.

13. In the case of an officer or soldier killed in action or dying from wounds
received in action within twelve months after such wounds shall have been received,

and not leaving a widow, but a daughter or daughters only, an annual allowance

equal to half the rate of widow's pension may, under special circumstances, to bo
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determined by the Minister of Militia and Defence, be granted instead of the com-

paesionate allowances referred to in paragraph 11, to such daughter or to such

daughters collectively. Such allowance may be continued until the daughter, or the

last survivorofthem in case there be more than one, may become disqualified by

marriage or otherwise. : _, ,

14 A compassionate allowance shall be paid from the date of the officer s or

soldier's death to the 30th June next ensuing ; and subsequent payments shall be

made yearly in advance from 1st July in each year.

Mother,

15 The mother of an officer or soldier killed in action, or dying of wounds

received in action within twelve months after such wonnds shall have been receive^

without leaving either widow, or legitimate child, such mother being herselfa widow

and in distressed circumstances, and having been mainly dependent upon the deceased

officer or soldier for support, may be granted an annual al owance, according
^
o the

rank of the officer or soldier, and at half the rate of widow's pension
;
but if she shall

be in receipt of a pension as an officer's or soldier's widow or shall have any other

provision of any kind from the public, no allowance shall be made to her on account

of her son, unless she relinquish such pension or provision. In the event oi her

allowance ceasing in consequence of re-marriage or death, it shall not be transferable

to her daughters.

Sisters,

16. The sister or sisters collectively of an officer or soldier killed in action or

dying of wounds received in action, within twelvemonths after such wounds shall

have been received, without leaving widow, legitimate child or mother, and provided

ahe or they be an orphan or orphans, without surviving brother and mainly depen-

dent for support upon the officer or soldier deceased, may under special circum-

stances, to be determined by the Minister of Militia and Defence, be granted an

allowance equal to half the rate of widow's pension.

17. In instances where the regulations do not meet the circumstances of indivi-

dual cases, they may be specially considered by His Excellency the Governor

*G
™hTwhAmvm rate of pay for pension on account of deceased lieutenants in all

corps of the Active Militia will be counted at two dollars per diem.

Permanent Disability.

1007. All cases of permanent disability, arising from injuries received.<nillness

contracted by officers or men on actual service, shall be sported on ^y * ™*££
board, and compensation awarded for the same according to the merits of the case,

Par. 152, E, & O.

Begulatuns for Claims,

The following regulations apply when claims to pensions, ™^ityo*^uifi

of death or wound! of officers or men, or of disability from illness contracted while on

actual service, require to be established. „...(„«„„ nf th«
1008. A board of officers composed of one field officer and two captains

.

o the

Active MilUia will be assembled at such time and place as may be ordered, and shall

S£ toStod and report on the various claims presented for its consideration.

*"• WoA^'e^claims are on account of disability, the cause degree and pro-

duced before the board of officers referred to in the above paragraph. The claims

will be divided into three clashes.

1



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 80.) A. 1886

1st Glass.

(!.) Claims on the part of relatives of militiamen who have b9en killed in action
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2nd Class.
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having taken the necessary evidence, will make its report-

Sot on t^Z^ SUch araonnt8 °f pension and gratuity, subject to the regala-

^TXT^L, \^&y aPP«ar «qnitable. The report of the board will be silelyon the evidence which is embodied in the proceedings. Par. 376, B. & O. 1870
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Boards of Medical Officers*

1011. The following applies to such boards as may be assembled for purposes
mentioned in paragraph 1009, to investigate cases of disability of militiamen occa-

sioned by wounds or injuries received, or by disease contracted on actual service.

These cases are divided into two classes. Par. 387, R. & O. 1870.

J . Cases of militiamen who have received wounds or injuries, or have contracted

disease on actual service, such as to incapacitate them wholly from following their

former trade or profession.

2. Cases of militiamen who have received wounds or injuries, or have contracted

disease, on actual service, such as to incapacitate them for a time from following their

former trade or profession.

1012. The board will take such evidence as may be produced, and will report ita

own opinion thereupon, either as to the total or partial disability of the claimant ; if

the disability is partial, the board will state the amount of injury or incapacity under
which the claimant is suffering at the date of investigation, and its probable dura-

tion ; the opinion of the board will, of course, be based solely on the evidence whick
is embodied in the proceedings Far. 378, R. & O. 1870.

1013. FORM A*

I hereby certify of.

18 .

..Battalion

*
day of.

at on the.

18 .

Commanding Batt

.

1014.

I hereby certify that

FORM B.

18
of Battalion.

•wasf ...on day of.. 18 .

The nature ofJ
Surgeon Battalion.

A duplicate copy of the certificate is to be forwarded, through the Deputy-
Adjutant General of District, to the Adjutant-General of Militia.

1015. FORM C.

FORM OF PRIVATE PRACKTIONER'S BILL.

Battalion. 18 .

Dr. to

Rank.
Patient's
Name. Date.

Daily Prescrip-
tions,

.

Visits, &c.

Charges. Remarks—by Surged*

$ cts. Commanding Officer.

Total ....«$

• Here state whether killed in action with the enemy, or was wounded, or died of injuries received,

or sickness contracted on service, or is still suffering from wounis or injuries received, or disease con-
tracted, on actual service.

iflere state wounded in action with the enemy, or otherwise, whilst on active service.

Here give a detailed account of wound or disease.

9
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This form is to be made out in duplicate, to be submitted to the commanding
cfficer for Remarks, and to be forwarded by him to the Deputy Adjutant-General of
the District, who will forward one copy to the AdjutantGeneral, and have the other
laid before the board of executive officers.

1016. FORM D.

Proceedings of a Board of Medical Officers, assembled by order of
to enquire into the nature of the disability of. of. on day
of. 18 .

J

President.

We declare, upon our honor, that we have duly and impartially enquired into
the case of of. Battalion, who appeared before this Board this
day, *nd we find the above-named is (1)We do further declare, upon our honor, that we consider the above (2) „...„
10 De (3) and that the injuiy is equal to (4) and that he will
he (5) for service or his usual occupation.

Signed, President.

"""!«!**!" [Members.

By Command,
WALKER POWELL, Colonel,

^^^ Adjutant General of Militia, Canada.

(1) Here give a particnlar description of wound or disease.
(2) Here state sickness incurred on actual service or wound received in action.
(3) Heie say severe, dangerous or slight, as the case may be.

*.*. S*) Fere say if the di6ability is equal to the loss cf arm or leg, or eye; or any other observation,
ihe board may deem sufficientlto meet the case.

(6) Here state he will ever be fit or never be fit, or probable length of time in which he will be fit.

RETURN
(80/.)

To an Oedee of the House of Commons, dated the 31st March, 1886;

—

Por Copies of Instructions to Major Bell, Major-General Laurie, S. L.

Bedson and other Non-combatants employed during the North-West
Campaign, from the Minister of Militia, Major-General Middleton or

the Adjutant-General of Militia, and of Correspondence between the

last named authorities and such Non-combatants.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

3rd May, 1886.

10
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Department of Militia and Defence, Ottawa, 1st May, 1886.

Sib,—I am directed by the Minister of Militia arid Defence to transmit to you,

herewith, copy of the correspondence exchanged between the general officer com-

manding the Militia and Major-General Laurie during the last campaign in the

North-We6t, in reply to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886.

The general officer commanding states, in connection with this return, that he

has given no written instructions, as far as he can remember, to either Major Bell or

Mr. S. L. Bedson mentioned in the Order above quoted.

The Department has paid the sum of $1.50 for the copying of the said document,

and the time employed by the staff of the Department in correcting and revising the

same is valued at $1.50.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

ELJG. C. PANET, Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.

The Under Secretary of State, Ottawa.

30 Miles from Fort Qu'Appelle, April 7th, 1885.

Major-General Laurie, Winnipeg.

Am well on my way to relieve Battleford, and there is only a small detachment

at Tioy, and as a number of troops are coming up you might remain at Winnipeg

till thev arrive. It may be well for you to buy a horse.
*

'

* FEED. MIDDLETON, Major-General.

Clarke's Crossing, 16th April, 1885.

To Officer Commanding at Swift Current.

Send the four companies of the 35th, Col. O'Brien's Battalion, to join the head

Quarters at Fort Qu'Appelle. ™^.„ ,„ . „ 7

FEED. MIDDLETON, Major-General.

Clarke's Crossing, 22nd April, 1885.

Major-General Laurie, Swift Current.

Send oats on flat boats, or in whatever way is most expeditious. Very much in

FEED. MIDDLETON, Major-General.

Camp Central, The Salt Plain, 13th April, 1885.

General Middleton.

Fhre tons hay and 850 bushels oats arrived here to-night ; 30 tons of loose hay

and i,500 bushels oats reported at Touchwood, and 30 tons baled hay. Plenty oi

oats at Qu'Appelle Hill. I hope to reach Indian Farm to-™^*
laUEIE

Winnipeg, 21st April, 1885.

General Middleton.

Copy of telegram just received from our officers at Battleford. Are we going to

have assistance ; when and how ; we hold place.
WEIGLEY

Swift Corrent, 21st April, 1885.

General Middleton.

I telegraphed on Saturday that Otter had started^and he is probably to-night

over 50 miles on his way. He expected to arrive on Wednesday or Thursday. He

is pushing on fast, and our d,fficulty is to follow with supplies, but no ^^Bgared..

11
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Swift Current, 21st April, 1885.
General Middleton.

Ferry at landing has again broken down. I am wiring r*nt«i» qu rt„ ( jw *

thirty m.lw by mght, and the steamer will start Thursday morning;, ilend half of

njrer yesterday without arms. I have tri^repeated.y ttc^nYn^olta n 2ft?

StmeTsrrgoi^tfo
m
tL
w seDt s™u Jort f™ «Aft£ffl

J. W. LAUEIE, Major-General.

Clarke's Crossing, 22nd April, 1885.
General Laurie.

I received information from Straubenzie of arrival of corps of survevors and Tanswered thinking it was really sent by yon, directing them to patrol oTt^n OldWives Lake and Cypress Hills. I did not want them divided. Please do not makeany dispositions without referring to me, unless something serious necessitated itDo not send any more escorts of troops with teams. I have ordered some more ar™to be sent for teamsters, but it is all nonsense. They only want them to shoot ducksand geese with We want oats badly. Send rest of Midland Regiment up^here bvfirst opportunity
; 7th Regiment will go to Swift Current.

P 7

FRED. MIDDLETON, Major-General.

Swift Current, 23rd April, 1885.
Major-General Middleton.

aions"fTf~' lf befor^rn^day withWi,liam9 '

hal^^^tand load provi-

weT T ini F*
Surve

y°rs ?orP« .

h
f
8 Sone to Elbow as centre and thence east andwest I will open communication with them via Moose Jaw. I have instructedLieutenant Beatty to examine best possible route between railway'and river so ae tonse-Northcote" to Clarke's Crossing, as I find ferry on BatLford Zte vervunsatisfactory. I have sent Leonard to expedite transport to Otto.-at ferry anTnorth side

;
it was imperatively necessary, and I have taken Lieutenant Weller of late*$ tW™^"^^i*t™t,*ndholdmdl*nd Battalion ready to pSwd 2"Northcote's " next trip. There is no news of Gait's steamer.

P

J. W. LAURIE.

Fish Creek, 25th April, 1885.
General Laurie, Swift Current.

tlunn
1
??T°Z

6
}
hQ
J
6Vr

Z
hJ ali me^n8

'
WhQ™™ the field hospital and doctors? Ithought I had ordered them to Clarke's Crossing, but now fanc7 they are at Swift

'2E* k *?
1

8?dlDg
J
my W0UDded and »ick back to Clarke's Crossing, and would

^tt^^J0rmed
l
h6r

t
i0\ th

? bad ca8es not able to travel, the remainder

lr«hfi p
W1

-

ft °™nt
i/°

*e Cbief h08Pital at S*ift Current. Arrange to sendHalifax Kegiment to Medicine Hat to remain there. Shall get your telegramsthrough Humboldt. All right about Moose Jaw.
w>iegrama

FRED. MIDDLETON, Major-General.

Fish Creek, 25th April, 1885.
Major-General Laurie, Swift Current.

Send the 9th on to Calgary with orders to report to General Strange. Lt.-Col,wilhams whole regiment to go to Clarke's Crossing, and the 7th also to be pushedonto Clarke s Crossing. Halifax Regiment ordered to Swift Current. Shall be
12
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away from the telegraph lor a few days. Had an affair yesterday ; was attacked and
drove off enemy after a sharp fight. My two A. D. C.'s both shot—one in arm, the
other in leg, and I had a shot through my fur cap. Keep steamers going and send
supplies, oats and ammunition, and as rapidly as possible.

FEED. MIDDLETON, Major-General

Swift Current, 26th and 21th April, 1885.

General Middleton, Front.

Field hospital of two doctors, nine dressers, and one orderly, with fair supply
of comforts, and surgical instruments, splints and bandages, left on " Northcote " on
23rd, but if you wish more assistance Dr. Eoddick is prepared to join you vid
Qu'Appelle. Ninth Battalion leaves on Tuesday for Calgary, and 7th will
follow Midland to Clarke's Crossing, and if Halifax Battalion go to Medicine Hat,
Swift Current and Saskatchewan Landing will be left entirely without troops to
protect stores. Have arranged with Dennis of Surveyors' Corps that if fugitives in
any numbers attempt to pass pickets he will advise me and 1 will support him by
moving body infantry out on trail.

J. W. LAUEIE,

(Swift Current, 27th April, 1885

.

General Middleton, Camp.

What arrangements do you wish made in regard to forwarding supplies to Colonel
Otter, to what point shall they be sent, and whether for stationary or moving force ?

J* W. LAUEIE.

Swift Current, 27th and 28th April, 1885.

General Middleton.

Small Gait's steamer " Minnow " arrived to-day . Barges said to be following
in a day or two. " Minnow " cannot carry passengers or freight, but captain thinks
he can tow barges down the river, but not up, and believes barges will go down
quicker without steamer. Shall I load barges ? Probably thirty tons each, and let

steamer go with them ? What freight do you wish on them ?

J. W. LAUEIE.

Swift Current, 29th April, 1885.

General Middleton.

As no building exists here suitable, principal medical officer purposes immediate
erection of temporary wooden hospital to receive forty patients, and will take tenders.
Have cut off lt Minnow " to take surgeons and comforts off "Northcote" and bring:
back wounded, and Dr. Eoddick and staff leave to-night to cross by Moose Jaw to
join you. * Northcote " makes slow progress over shoals at Elbow. In arranging
distribution of troops along railway, I would submit that fifty men fatigue daily here.
It is very desirable that whole battalion should remain here, and detachment of another
at ferry, as about thirty are employed in transferring stores, besides wood cutting
party.

J. W. LAUEIE.

Swift Current, 1st May, 1885.

General Middleton.

You will see by my last despatch that I am using every means to get surgeon*
to go and to relieve wounded. Men on barge have struck, and I am sending barges*
with her well experienced rafters from Midland Eegiment under Lieutenant Weller.
" Minnow " has left to pick up surgeons. Otter is sending back almost all his teams*
and I am still sending him oats and provisions j same trails as before. Eiver has risen

13
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eight inches to-day, and hope steamer will soon have water to leave. Wri°"ley sends
material and workmen to build ten barges, and will convey them to river to-morrow
JRoute from Chaplin Station to river highly recommended as being short and good
but Moose Jaw has railway facilities for large business. Bell thinks with me we
might try pony transport from Moose Jaw and save carrying hay.

J. W. LAUEIE.
From Swift Current, N.W.T., 30M, to Hon. A. P. Oaron.

Ottawa, 1st May, 1885.
As soon as received positive news that "Northcote" was aground in river Iordered « Minnow to proceed to take off doctors and Gatling guofand pounder andammunition and proceed immediately to Clarke's Crossing, and Dr. Sullivan for-warded ambulance outfit from Qu' Appelle two days ago to General Middleton, and

burgeon-General Roddick, after consulting with me, proceeded yesterday with six
medical staff vid Moose Jaw across country to Clarke's Crossing. Nothing will be
neglected to assuage suffering of wounded.

J. W. LAUEIE.

Telegram to Major- General Laurie, Swift Current, N.W.T.

Ottawa, 1st May, 1885.
You have done well. Hurry supplies to General. What has become of Williamsand his command ?

A. P. CAROK
Swift Current, 2nd May, 1885.

General Middleton.

Very happy to say that the river has risen two feet to-day and have had toemploy detachment all night in moving stores from sand ; also my courier from
-fcilbaw reports that the " Northcote " is off and has passed the Elbow but the rise of
water has not yet reached that point, though it will probably bring you the doctors
and Lieut Weller with his Peterborough men, and will, I trust, bring you the barges.Wngleys barge contractor will arrive with eight tons of ba-ge material, however,
moving and provisions, to furnish barges to carry one hundred tons in twenty-four
hours after I dehver material at the river, and it shall be there to-morrow night and
the supplies will also be there in good time. I balieve you may now rely upon the
river, and I think there will be no need to unload the « Northcote." Gait also reports
the river rising at Medicine Hat and that barge steamers will soon come on, and in
this case do you wish other supplies also forwarded down river to Clarke's Cross-
ing f

_
If the river works well it will be most economical. The deta mment at the

river is very much driven with fatigue, and all the men who are employed all day
with duties are complaining. It would be very afvisable to give working pay at
the rate of five cents an hour if you will approve. The fatigues are heavy but don't
come daily on the same men. Governor Dewdney has requested a detachment of
seventy-five men at Maple Creek, to allow the Mounted Police to patrol the country,

fu \ltii !?
n8 Were tnreatenmg» and I send Col. Deacon and two companies of

the Midland to-morrow, who have reports of strange Indians and half-breeds attempt-
ing to pass Intelligence pickets, and hold men and engine in readiness to move out
along the railway. Halifax regiment arrived with oriers to stay here. I would
strongly recommend they remain a few days, as they have not knowledge of camp
lite and will benefit alongside an experienced regiment. If you find river route
satisfactory, and retain this as base, will you authorize the erection of a temporary
wooden hospital as proposed ? It will cost eight hundred dollars and will probably
sell for a store when no longer wanted fyr hospital.

J. W. LAURIE.
14
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From Swift Current, N. W.T., 2nd., to Hon. A. P. Caron.

Ottawa, 3rd May, 1885.

Col. Williams, with half battalion, Midland Regiment, by river in « Northcote "

to join General Middleton, and last advices was still on board with Gatlmg gun. My
patrols from surveyors' corps, who are at Elbow, report " Northcote " passed there

three days ago, but she may have grounded lower down, although river has risen 2

feet in two days. The crews of Gait barges struck, and I send Lieut. Weller with

ten barges, and he will do it. Contractor Boyd has arrived with them and material

to build ten barges, which will be ready on Tuesday to take down 200 tons of sup-

plies; and Gait steamers start to-morrow from Medicine Hat, and will, I hope, carry

about 400 tons to Clark's Crossing.
'

nnr_
J. W. LAUrCLE.

Ottawa, 3rd May, 1885.

To Major-General Laurie, Swift Current.

Please provision steamers when they arrive at Swift Current, and save delay.

Keep memorandum of what they get.
OARON

From Swift Current, N.W.'L., Mh, to Hoa. A. P. Caron.

Ottawa, 4th May, 1885.

If the water holds at present depth, the " Northcote " would be most service-

able in transporting sick and wounded, as she has a state-room. I shall have great

faith in utilizing the water for which Canadians are specially qualified, and would

wish to not await report from Capt. Sheets before sending, but would also like to

know terms on which the steamers are hired, so as to ascertain comparative cost of

moving supplies. J - W -
LAURIE.

From Swift Current, N.W.T., ±th
t
to Hon. A. P. Caron.

Ottawa, 4th May, 1885.

Steamer has been as yet delayed from any cause that of our service could

remedy. Every requisition has been immediately complied with, and captain here

has been offered every assistance, and shall do in future.
LAURIE

Fish Creek, 5th May, 1885.

General Laurie, Swift Current.

One hundred and forty-four Shrapnel and 88 common shell arrived by steamer

« Northcote." Only 60 percussion fuses ; wanted 50 more. Also 150 " five second

time fuses and 300 friction tubes; also 25 pounds of R. F. G. powder and 75 filled

cartridges for 9 pounder. Rush them on if with you. nm„„ .. . „™ s F FRED MIDDLETON, Major-General.

Saskatchewan Landing via Swift Current, 6th May, 1885.

General Middleton.

Very pleased to hear that " Northcote " has reached you, and trust your urgent

wants are now supplied. " Baroness " will be loaded to-morrow night with 200 tons,

mainly oats and provisions, and Captain Davis expects to reach you in three days,

and "Alberta " will follow in two days with 150 tons, whilst Boyd s barges will be

readv on Wednesday, and will take 200 tons of this forward to work Should I send

supplies for Otter by Clarke's Crossing it will save me 100 miles of land hauling, 1

15
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propose sending two companies, Midland, in the two steamers, and will send on ColonelBeacon s detachment from Maple Creek as soon as I can call it in, and I will holdSeventh ready to follow if the river route keeps good.

J. W. LAURIE.

Ottawa, 7th May, 1885.
Major-General Laurie, Swift Current.

wir
a8e

*
et ™ kTW 7^{Prdo™ were Siven V General Middleton in reference

to Williams' regiment, and if his orders were carried out,

A. P. CARON.
From Swift Current, nth, to Bon. 4. P. Caron.

Ottawa, 8th May, 1885.

m

Am not aware of any order given by General Middleton in reference to Williams'
regiments, or any other except that he and his battalion were to so on the
« Northcote, and they were sent, but I believe they want water bottles and cloth-
ing, and I have repeatedly asked for both, but I have not received either.

J. W. LAURIE.
From Swift Current, 12th, to Hon. A. P. Caron.

Ottawa, 13th May, 1885.
Teams now at Calgary would be most conveniently employed with General

Strange s brigade. North of Calgary, just now, there are plenty teams on line running
from Swift Current and if we move base to Moose Jaw shall not require anV more
but ox-teams

;
would probably be best at the extreme north end of the line as theoxen would not want any hay but few oats. Will wire General Middleton to know

if he wants any with him.

J. W. LAURIE.

Ottawa, 13th May, 1885.
To Major-General Laubie, Swift Current.

All right. I think your suggestion a good one. You can act upon it.

A. P. CARON.

Ottawa, 16th May, 1885.
To Major-General Laurie, Swift Current.

mandr*
7°U ^^^ t0 gi™^ communication bv river with Strange's com-

A. P. CARON.

From Winnipeg, 16th, to Hon. A. P. Caron.

Ottawa, 16th May, 1885.

f^Jihl? t
™Por* from Col. Otter that supply teams were captured thirteen miles

5Tr5? ^ *

-?u
6y C0Dtamed Provisions and forage but no ammunition. I wired

Col. Otter askirg if he can clear danger part of road near Battleford so as to allowteams to pass for the present, and meantime have stopped outgoing teams at river.
It was most providential that river ferry had been out of order for some days, and
consequently very few teams were on road. I had received orders that no escort
should be sent north of river, and there should not be any danger for strong convoys
till it leached within

t
forty miles of Battleford. Since my proposal to Col Otter to

clear out that part of that road, I am now preparing convoy of provisions at rivernumbering one hundred and thirty teams, and with this number of armed teamsters
16
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and email party of convalescents returning to duty, and some newly engaged scouts,

all under Lieut. Blake's command I propose sending ammunition provided strong
escort can be sent out from Battleford to meet it.

J. W. LAUKIE.

From Winnipeg, Manitoba, Vlth, to Ron. A. P. Garon.

Ottawa, 17th May, 1885.

I have loaded with supplies and sent forward to General Middleton all the
steamers that reported to me for Fervice, and they are now with him, but water com-
munication with General Strange could only be established on the North Saskat-
chewan, and I understand General Middleton is moving with steamers towards
Prince Albert, when, if water is high enough, he will doubtless open up communica-
tion with General Strange.

J. W. LAUKIE.

Ottawa, 21st May, 1885.

To Major-General Laurie, Swift Current.

Please forward with all possible despatch supplies for Grenadiers, by Moose Jaw
Trail.

A. P. CARON.

From Swift Current, N. W.T., 22nd, to Bon. A. P. Caron.

Ottawa, *3rd May, 1885.

Car from Toronto for Grenadiers delayed on railway, and arrived just too late to
be sent forward by troops, but I have just accepted contract for Moose Jaw Trail, and
I hope teams will go on road to-morrow, and the contents of car will be at once for-

warded, but since arrival to present moment there has been no opportunity to send
it forward. The presents for Queen's Own were brought bacs to river, to save them
from capture by Indians.

J. W. LAUKIE.

Telegram to General Middleton at Battleford.

Moose Jaw, 24th May, 1885.

Moved detachment Halifax regiment and teams from Swift Current to Moose
Jaw yesterday and commenced hauling to Elbow on new contract to-day. I sent

Surgeon Corbett to Col. Turnbull last Tuesday and have ordered Coshry forward from
Saskatchewan landing with escort, and send ammunition as Otter specially requiied

it. There will be about five hundred tons supplies piled at Short's landing ready to

load, and have half detachment of Halifax regiment at landing for protection, and as

water is now three and a half feet above low level, " Northcote " should be able to

bring all to Clarke's Crossing in two loads by taking barge with Gait Company have
sent down. Can you spare " Northcote " for this purpose ? She could bring up inva-

lids to Elbow each trip.

J. W. LAUKIE.

Telegram to General Middleton at Battleford.

Swipt Current, 21st May, via Prince Albert, 26th M.ay, 1885.

I reported to you that I had accepted tenders by which goods could be taken
from Mcose Jaw to Clarke's Crossing much more economically than by days' work,
and that I was prepared to move the troops now here as soon as I could get supply
depot cleared out, and as Col. Otter now reports road open to Battleford. I hope
with escort oi a few scouts to get supply teams away. I have not interfered with the

Qu'Appelle route but work from Moose Jaw instead of Swift Current as you directed

80d—
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and will report to you when experience and coairact figares willshow which is most
satisfactory. I have refused, however, to take any teams on day work at five

dollars and fouud which is a material reduction on rates lately paid. I have rented
hospital and accommodation for female nurses at Moose Jaw and arranged for trans-

port of wounded from Elbow. Mr, Wrigley tells ma that no stipulation was made
thai troops should go as escort on barges, but contractors at first claimed it was a
condition and his men would not go alone. I refused to send men to Medicine t£at

ior steamer but tent a detachment with each to cut wood, and so have trains a* I

know you wished these to arrive as quickly as possible, t am advised that Otter's

supplies can be sent by trail from Clarke's Crossing to Telegraph Creek and thence
hy North Branch to Battleford. Do you wish this route adopted ?

J. W. LAURIE.

Telegram to General Middleton at Battleford.

Regina, 26th May. 1885.

Have received following from Swift Current : Thompson, scout, and Todd, half-

breed mail carrier, just arrived with mail from Battleford. They left on Saturday
morning. Thompson reports having seen a fre«h trail about sixty miles this side of
Battleford. Trail appears to lead from Cut Knife Creek, and is supposed to be made
by a large body, under Big Bear, who are going to Poundmaker, who is encamped in

Eagle Hills. They had evidently crossed eastwards on Satuid iy night. Thompson
reports having seen Indian scouts only twenty-five miles west of trail, until they
crossed Eagle Creek. All traces of them lost at Eagle Creek.

J. W. LAURIE.

Telegram to General Middleton at Battleford.

Moose Jaw, 29th May, 1885.

Major Bell now here to consult as to most desirous means of removing about four

hundred tons supplies, forage, Swift Current, Saskatchewan Lauding. If any steamer
could be obtained, and barges used, it could bo taken to Clarke's Crossing probably
for $30 a ton, and then to Battleford. By trail would cost nearly $100, and stores

may deteriorate, and it may be less loss to pay a little more and move by land at

once. Major Bell says net cost of teaming from Landiog to Battleford would not
exceed $150 a ton, and I agree with him, and probably lower figures can be obtained

by contract, if you decide to employ teams. Major Bell could immediately obtain
sufficient of them now being discharged, and action could be taken forthwith.

J. W. LAURIE.

Moose Jaw, 22nd June, 1885.
General Middleton, Pitt.

Have carried out instructions, and notified Mr. White, Transport Officer, that
you intend sending "Alberta" for supplies to Saskatchewan Landing, and not to

ship more by rail. Have also instructed him to collect all Government property
aiid furnish lists, and will forward when collected, and to state how soon he can
dispense depot clerkn and other employes, so that they can be paid off by staff pay-
master, and if you instruct him to accept my signatures as vouchers it will avoid much
delay.

J. W. LAURIE.

Moose Jaw, 23rd June, 1885.

Major-General Middleton.

Otter's scouts returned from Battleford with certified accounts. Sent on to Col.

Forrest for payment, and matter referred to Col, Jack-on, but payment refused. Tais
has now bijen outstanding three weeks at heavy expanse. £ am referred from one
Department to another. Will you pleaae wire authority ?

J. W. LAURIE.
18
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{Memorandum.) — Fifteen scouts were employed at Swift Current by General
Laurie to accompany supplies to Battleford for Lieut. Colonel Otter's column. These
men claimed $5 per day. I referred the matter to General Middleton, who author-
ized $4 per day where the men furnished their own horses ; consequently I deducted
$1 per day from those who rode Government horses. The pay lists show that alt

were paid $4 per day except one.

W. EL JACKSOST, Lt.-Col., D.A.G., Chairman War Claims Commission.

Moose Jaw, 23rd June, 1885.

General Middleton.

Immediately on receipt of your message about "Alberta" briD gin or barges for

freight on Saskatchewan River, I notified Mr. White, who replied; written extract
given Thos. Howard by Whitehead, of which I have written notice in my possession.

In pursuance ot same, contractor has about 100 teams now here and has engaged 100
more from convoys returned from Battleford. Lewis ferry having prove! useless, I

took over Gait's barge for ferrying, discharged teams to south side of river tor ship-

ment, and taking supplies across on return trip. The system is working satisfactorily,

though slow. About 150 tons already gone north under contract, leaving about 300
tons on south side river, and balance consumed and being loaded on contractor's

waggons on north side. Under above circumstances, and taking into account con-
tractor's prospecting claims for compensation for his large expense already incurred
in bringing teams here, I should strongly advise that above contract be completed,
using all possible dispatch. Please advise me further in matter. In view of above, I
replied, asking terras of contract, whether by day or by hundred, as to transport of
teams, and when bound to complete work by rail. I cannot get reply. Shall I allow
him, under circumstances, to carry out contract, or to cancel it, and let steamer take
freight ? If tender, as I recommended, had been accepted by transport officer, all

supplies unloaded would have left river ten days ago and have been delivered in

Battleford for $6.*75 a hundred. And now ferry is broken, and great delay ensues
;

even if teams carry portion it will be well to let steamer and barges clear up river
banks.

J. W. LAURIE.

Moose Jaw, 24th June, 1885.

Major General Middleton, Front.

Just heard from White at Saskatchewan Landing. Contract for hauling to Bat-

tleford made with Whitehead. Winnipeg is by hundred, and time i3 not essential to

contract, and Government forage team, which waiting at Landing, as ferry has been

broken for eleven days

.

J. W. LAURIE.

Moose Jaw, 24th June, 1885.

Major General Middleton, Pitt.

Telegram just received from. Purveyor General from Minister Militia instructing

Dominion auctioneer to sell hospital stores here and to consult with me and make
arrangements in concerc. In view of last of freighting, scouts' horses and other pub-

lic property which could not be economically stored, and better prices could be got

here than in Winnipeg, and quantity of forage now stacked or stored here which is

perishable, he strongly recommends all to be auctioned here same time as hospital

stores. Lirge .sale will bring in people from distance and command better prices

and close up more rapidly, he thinks. Auction could come off in a week's time if you
approve.

J. W, LAURIE.
bOd—2£ 19
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Moose Jaw, 26th June, 1885.

Major General Middleton.

^
Mr. Metcalfe, good auctioneer, gave cogent reasons for sale at local points,

which led to my recommending this action as it appears financially advantageous*
but will, of course, carry out whatever instructions you may give, if you wish me to
co-operate with Dr. Sullivan and Mr. Metcalfe and dispose of horses and other
property along with medical stores.

J. W. LAUK1E.

Moose Jaw, 27th June, 1885.

General Middleton, Pitt.

All civil supply and transport staff, but ore transport officer discharged, and he
leaves to-morrow, and business temporarily conducted with military assistance.
Ambulance now on road bringing in wounded from Saskatoon. When aboard will
complete unloading, and all Government property will be collected for storage for
sale as you may direct. Kepeated applications were made to authorities, both police
and militia, to pay off scours who could not be dismissed without funds to carry them
home, but each placed responsibility on officer; so telegraphed Minister urging set-
tlement and took the responsibility of dismissing them, but they cannot leave with-
out money.

J. W. LAUEIE.

Battlepord, 5th Ju^y, 1885.

General Laurie.

Astonished to fird you still at Moose Jaw, your duties having ceased with the
breaking up of the base. The Minister in answer to a question was informed by me
some days ago that you had left Moose Jaw.

Lt.-Col. Brennan must carry out the duties now required at Moose Jaw.

FEED MIDDLETON, Major-General

RETURN
To an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886;—For a

Return showing names of all Militia Officers and Non-combatants

appointed as Transport and Supply Officers, giving rank and corps of

Militia Officers, with dates of appointment, rates of pay, by whom
appointed, and whose recommendation, and total payments to each to

date.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Secretary of State.

Department of the Secretary of State,

Ottawa, 12th May, 1886.

20
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Department of Militia and Defence*

Ottawa, 3rd May, 1886.

Sib,—In transmitting to you, herewith, a statement showing the names of

militia officers and non-combatants appointed as transport and supplies officers,

during the campaign in the North-West Territories last year, in accordance with am
Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, 1 am directed by the*

Minister of Militia and Defence to inform you that some of the appointments

referred to were made on different trails, as circumstances required, by those

previously appointed by officers on the spot, without reference to any higher author-

ity ; in consequence, we have no record showing the names of the persons who
made the appointments.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

EUGENE C. PANET.
Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence-

To the Under Secretary of State, Ottawa.

21
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RETURN
(80A.)

To an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886 ;—For a

Return of all horses, ponies, cattle, furs, waggons, carts and other pro-

perty seized by the Mounted Police or Expeditionary Force, while on

service in the North-West, between March 27th and August 1st, with

the disposition made of the same, the names of persons from whom

such seizures were made, and the amount (if any) paid, received, or

now payable or receivable, on account of such property.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEATJ,

Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.
*

12th May, 1886.

To Officers Commanding N. W.M. Police, Batileford.

Camp, Fort Pitt, 30th June, 1885.

It would he advisable to take in charge all the property of all tho8e half-breeds

now at Battleford, who lately delivered themselves up from rebel camp, until thoir

innocence is proved, there being strong doubts on the loyalty of the whole of them.

FRED. M1DDLBTON, Major- General.

RETURN
(80t)

To an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886 ;—For a

Eetnrn stating name, rank and corps of all officers composing the

Staff of Major-General Middleton, and the capacity in which each

served.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,

Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of St ite.^
12th May, 1886.
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Namb, Rank and Corps of all Officers composing the Staff of Major-General
Middleton, and the capacity in which each served.

Name.

Sir P . D. Middleton, K.C.M6
Henry E. Wise

,

A. B. Doncet
A. 0. Freer
Viscount Melgund
€harles F. Houghton
Herbert de H. Haig
B. VanStraubenzie
Charles G. Harston
Samuel L. Bedsoa
J. H. E. Secretan
Major Henry Smith
Hon. Capt. H Swinford
George F. Oole

Rank.

Maj.-Gen
Capt. in Mil....

Lieut
do

Lieut. -Colonel,
do

Captain
Lieut. -Colonel

,

Captain

do ,

Captain
Quartermaster ....

Late Lieutenant

Corps.

Lt. Sco Rif. ...

Act. Mil
S. Staff R
Act. Militia
Staff.

R. Rng
Staff.

10th Battalion

0' Co. I.S. C.
90th Battalion
N. B. Bde. G. A.

Capacity.

Commanding.
A. D. C. to G. O. C.

do
do

Chief of Staff.

D. A. G.
A. Q. M. G.
Comdg. Inf. Brigade.
Brigade Major.
Chief Transport Officer.
Assistant do
Asst. Adjt. Gen.
Chief Commissariat Officer.
Camp Quartermaster. >

Ottawa, 3rd May, 1886.

EUGENE C. PANET,
Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence,

(80;)
RETURN

To an Order of the House op Commons, dated 31st March, 1886 :—For
copies of all correspondence between one James Anderson and the
Minister of Militia, Major-General Middleton, and any Member of the
Government, with respect to the purchasing of supplies, cost of trans-
port, and other expenditure incurred during the North-West Kebellion.

By Command.

t, r , „ J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

12th May, 1886.
y J

Department op Militia and Defence, Ottawa, 4th May, 1886.
Sir,—In reply to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March last,

asking for copy of correspondence between James Anderson and the Minister of
Militia and Defence, the Major General Commanding, and any members of the Gov-

Ti^o^V™th
JF
e8pec

1

t to the Purchasing of supplies during the North-West rebellion
ot 1885, 1 am directed by the Minister of Militia and Defence to inform you that no
such correspondence exists in this Department relating to above matter.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

EUG. C. PANET,
mu tt a a re ~ Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.
The Under Secretary of State, Ottawa.

24
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RETURN
(SOk)

To an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886 :—For a
Eeturn of names of all persons employed as purchasing agents, showing
when, by whom, and on whose recommendation appointed, rate ofpay
and length of employment.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department < f the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

12th May, 18-6.

Department op Militia and Defence, Ottawa, 3rd May, 188ff.

Sib,—In reply to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March last, asfc*
ing for a return showing the isames of persons employed as purchasing agents, foi-
this department, during the late rebellion in the North-West, I am directed by the>
Minister of Militia and Defence to inform you that no such agents were appointed or
detailed, during the campaign of 18S5, in the North- West, and that the purchasing-
was done by the Hudson Bay Company.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
EUGENE C. PANET, Deputy Minister of Militia and Defsnee.

The Under Secretary of State, Ottawa.

RETURN
(80/)

To an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886 :—Far
a Eeturn showing names of all Contractors from whom Teams were
engaged for transport, number of Teams engaged from each, with rate?

of pay per day per team, and the total amount paid to each of suck
Contractors.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State

21st May, 1886.
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Department of Militia and Defence, Account Branch,
Ottawa, 2Jnd February, 1886.

Memorandum, in re the proceeding of the Commission on War Claims, under date
23rd ultimo.

War claim No. 1, Bell, Lewis & Co., for hauling freight by the ton, $5,093.24;and for hire of teams, at $5 a day, $6,718.24.
& & ' >* >

n
h& Honorable the Minister of Militia and Defence, on the recommendation of

the Commission, has approved of certain reductions, and ordered Bell, Lewis & Co.
to be tarnished with a transcript from the proceeding, and paid in accordance with
the award as stated hereunder, viz. :—" It being necessary to make deductions to
cover rations and forage supplied by Government (in accordance with the terms of
contract) upon all stores hauled by the ton," in this account as well as in previous
accounts, the following amounts are deducted, viz.

:

716Jtons, at $10.00 $7 i 65 00
100* do 7.50 .... '753 76

J <Jo 6.50 3 25
3J do 5.50. 17 87
Mi do 3.75 r.r.z;; 249 35
9 do 2.25 , 20 25
19J do 1.00 19 so

""^
$8,228 97

Less deducted from previous vouchers 2,985 30

$5,243 67

SUMMARY.

Total amount of the two claims $6,718 24
Deduct above amount 5,243 67

Balance $1,474 57

This balance is recommended for payment in full of all claims. A copy of this
report to be forwarded to Messrs. Bell, Lewis & Co. with the cheque.

By order, GBOKGB GUY, Major, P. M. N.-W. Fortes.

To Messrs. Bell, Lewis & Co., Lachine, P.Q.
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RETURN
(80m)

To an Adbbess of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886 ;—For
copies of all correspondence between the Government of the United
Kingdom and the Canadian Government, or any members, officers or
employees thereof, respecting the medals to be given to the volunteers-
who served in the recent insurrection in the North-West.

By Command.

t> , u o
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

J^&t

^zgr**
ry of state

> secretar
« **«*•

Ottawa, 20th May, 1886.
SiR,--In reply to your Order of Eeference of the 1st April, on a motion of theHouse of Commons for -copies of correspondence between the Governments of the

United .Kingdom and Canada respecting the medals to be given to the volunteers '*

I have the honor to forward herewith copies of the correspondence in question,
as per schedule annexed. No order of reference is herewith returned

.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant
HBNEY STEEATFIELD, Captain,

av tt j o nc Governor General's Secretary.Tne Under Secretary of State

.

y

Lord Lansdowne to Lord Derby.

(Confidential.) Ottawa, 19th May, 1885.

n^^twT'r1
* hy lu^> alT6t a matter of cei1ainly that a proposal will bemade that the troops^which have been engaged in the suppression of the recent out-

hlverendlred
r r6CeiVe S°me reccSnition of the services which they

2. From the reports which I have received from General Middleton and fromother sources, I do not hesitate to say that such a reward would be well deserved
3. Xhe hardships and difficulties of the campaign have been exceptional • thedangers encountered, owing to the nature of the ground and the character of theenemy, have been unusually great, and the loss sustained by our forces has i amsorry to say, been considerable. Of their conduct, General Middleton speaks interms of high commendation. It is, moreover, to be remembered that nearly theW

J 5 a
men eDSaged bave pursuits or professions in civil life which they haveabandoned at great personal inconvenience, and, in many case, at considerable loss

4. No proposal has yet been made to me by my Ministers, nor have 1 had anycommunication with them upon this subject, but I think it likely that 1 shall berequested to approve the issue by the Dominion Government of a Canadian medal tothe forces engaged.
I have, however, no doubt, that if the medal was to be awarded by theImperial Government the distinction would be much more appreciated by the

recipients of the medal, by the volunteers of the Dominion, and by the people of thiscountry generally. J * *
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5. Under the above circainstances 1 should be glad to learn from your Lordship.
1. Whether there would be any objection to the grant of a medal by the Cana-

dian Government.
2, Whether there would be any prospect of the grant of an Imperial medal.
6. As this matter may come under discussion at any moment, I should be very

glad if your Lordship could advise me by telegraph in regard to it.

I have, &c.

LANSDOWNB.
The Earl of Derby.

Lord Lansdowne to Colonel Stanley.

(Confidential.} Ottawa, 10th July, 1885.

Sir,—1 had the honor of addressing to your predecessor, on the 19th May last, a
despatch marked confidential, in which I mentioned to him that it was probable that

an application might be made for the grant of a medal to the forces engaged in the
recent operations against the half-breeds in the North-West, and I requested his

instructions upon the subject.

2. Now that most of the troops are on their way home, the recognition whioh is

likely to be accorded to their services is being generally discussed, and a hope has
been expressed in many quarters that they will be allowed to receive a medal.

3. I enquired of your predecessor whether there was any prospect of the grant
of an Imperial medal, and, if not, whether any objection would be raised to the grant
of a medal by the Colonial Government. It is, however, my decided impression that

the medal would not be valued by the recipients, and had better not be granted
unless it is the gift of the Crown.

4. I have, as stated in my despatch already referred to, no means of ascertain-

ing the precedent which would be applicable in such a case. I would, however,
venture to urge upon you that a favorable consideration should, if possible, be given
to the suggestion which I have made.

5i The operations in the North-West were conducted in the face of very serious

difficulties, and have been completely successful. Nothing could be more commend-
able than the spirit in which the volunteers have responded to the call which has
been made upon them. They have shown much courage and endurance, both in

action and during the long and tedious marches which preceded it. They have sus-

tained considerable losses in killed and wounded and from sickness, and they have
submitted cheerfully to the sacrifices which are inevitable when the soldiers of a
volunteer army are obliged to relinquish their engagements in civil life for active

service in the field.

• 6. The campaign has been the means of greatly stimulating the military spirit

of the country, and of creating a disposition among its people to rely more upon
themselves for its defence. Under such circumstauces, the encouragement which
would be undoubtedly afforded by the grant of an Imperial medal could not fail to

have excellent effects.

7. It is desirable that I should be made aware as soon as possible of the views of

Her Majesty's Government with respect to this matter, and I have therefore the
honor to request that you will be so good as to acquaint me of your decision by
telegraph.

I have, &c,
Colonel Stanley. LANSDOWNE.

Colonel Stanley to Lord Lansdowne.

(Canala— Confidential.) Downing Street, 22nd July, 1885.

My Lord,—I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt ofyour confidential des-

patch of the 19th May, on the subject of the grant of a medal to the troops which have
been engaged in the suppression of the recent outbreak in the North-West.
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Your Lordship enquires whether, in the event of the subject coming under dis-

cussion with your ministers, there would be objections to the grant of a medal by the
Canadian Government, and whether there would be any prospect of the grant of an.

Imperial medal.
1 have ascertained, after communicating with the Secretary of State for War, that

there would be no objection to submitting to the Queen the proposal that an Imperial
medal should oe issued on this occasion.

• Should the subject therefore be brought before you by your Ministers, your Lord-
ship will be at liberty to state that any formal recommendation which the Governmen t

of the D >miniou might wish to make, for the grant of an Imperial medal in recogni-
tion of the services recently rendered by the Canadian troops, would receive favorable
consideration.

I have, &c,
FEED. STANLEY.

Governor General.

The Most Hon. the Ma? vjnts of Lansdowne, G.C.M.,G., &c, &c,

Lord Lansdowne to Colonel Stanley.

(Confidential.) Toronto, 5th August, 1885.

Sir,—I have the honor to acknowledge your confidential despatch of the 32nd
July, upon the subject of the grant of a medal to the troops which have been engaged
in the suppression of the recent outbreak in the North-West. You will, since the
the date oi that despatch, have received mine of the lOtb July, dealing with the
same matter

2. It gives me muoh pleasure to learn that Her Majesty's Government see no
objection to submitting to the Queen a proposal that an Imperial medal should be
isbiied upon this occasion. For the reasons thai I have already given, [ believe that
the grant of such a medal will have an excellent effect upon the militia force,

aud that it will be generally appreciated by the people of this country.
3. I should be glad to bo favored with any suggestions which the War Office

may be able to make as to the design of the medal, which should, I apprehend,
resemble those usually granted to the Imperial forces. The obverse will, I assume,
represent the Queen's head, and the reverse might be engraved with a design dis-

tinctive of the Dominion.
I have, &c,

Colonel Stanley. LANSDOWNE.

Lord Lansdowne to Colonel Stanley.

(Confidential.) Ottawa, 31st August, 1885.

Sir,—With reference to my despatches, marked confidential, of the 19th May,
10th July and 5th August of the present year upon this subJ3Ct of the medal to be
given to the volunteers engaged in the suppression of the recent rebellion in the
North-West

;
I should be glad if, whether the expense be borne by the Canadian

Government or not, the medals could be supplied through the War Department. If

this could be done it would be desirable that a design Hhould be prepared under in-

structions from that Department, and that it should be forwarded to me for consider-

ation before it is finally approved.
Tbo medal should be oi the kind usually bestowed upon the Imperial troops and

should have Her Majesty's head upon the obverse side. The dies necessary for thia

impression are I presume already in existence. The reverse of the medal should be
oruamented with a wreath of maple loaves, in the centre cf which the words " The
North-West, 1885," might be impressed.

Patterns of the ribbon might be forwarded to me at the same time.

I have, &c,
LANSDOWNE.

Colonel, the Hon. F. A. Stanley.
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" ——— *

Sir W. J. Ritchie to Colonel Stanley,

Ottawa, 21st September, 1885.

Sir,— I have the honor to forward herewith for your information three copies of
the Canada Gazette of the 19th inst, containing a notification in the Militia General
Orders of the 18th inst., of the grant of an Imperial medal to the troops recently
engaged in the suppression of the rebellion in the North-West Territories.

I have, &c,
W. J. EITCHIE.

Colonel Stanley to Lord Lansdowne.

Downing Street, 6th November, 1885.

My Lord,-—With reference to previous correspondence respecting the grant of
an Imperial medal to the Canadian troops employed j^^ suppressing the recent out-

break in the North-West, I have the hoDor to acquit you, for the information of

your Lordship's Government that Her Majesty's Government have decided to defray
the expenses connected with the gift of the medals from Imperial funds.

I have, &c,
F. A. STANLEY.

Governor General,

The Most Hon. the Marquis of Lansdowne, G.C M.G., &c, &c,

Colonel Stanley to Lord Lansdowne.

Downing Street, 23rd November, 1885.

My Lord,—With reference to my despatch, No. 266, of the 6th instant, on the

subject of the defrayal from Imperial funds of expenbes in connection with the grant
of war medals to the troops engaged in repressing the rebellion in the North-West, I

liave the honor to request that you will inform me, as accurately as possiblo, of the

number of medals that are likely to be required, with a view to the preparation of a
Supplementary Estimate for the service in question.

I have, &c,
FRED. STANLEY.

Governor General,

The Most Hon. the Marquis of Lansdowne, G.C.M.G., &c, &c,

Lord Lansdowne to Colonel Stanley.

Ottawa, 14th December, 1885.

Sir,—I communicated to my Ministers a copy of your despatch, No. 266, of the
6th ultimo, acquainting me of ihe decision of Her Majesty's Government to defray,

from Imperial funds, the expenses connected with the grant of a medal to the volun-
teers who were employed in the suppression of the late outbreak in the North-Wewt
Territories, and I have now the honor to forward herewith a copy of an approved
report of a Committee of the Privy Council, conveying to Her Majesty's Government
u the thanks of the Government oi Canada for thin generous and courteous favor."

I have, &c,
LANSDOWNE.

Colonel Stanley.

Certified Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council,

approved by His Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 2th Leeember,
1885.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had before them a despatch dated 6th
November, lfc'85, from the Eight Honorable the Secretary of State for the Colonies,

respecting the grant of an Imperial medal to the Canadian troops employed in sup-
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pressing the recent outbreak in the North-West, and advising that Her Majesty's
Government have decided to defray the expenses connected with the eif t of the
medal from Imperial funds. 6 g

The Minister of Militia and Defence, to whom the despatch has been referred
recommends that the thanks of the Government of Canada be offered to Her Majes-
ty s Government for this generous and courteous favor.

The Committee concur in the recommendation of the Minister of Militia and
Defence and they respectfully advise that Your Excellency be moved to convey to
Colonel Stanley the thanks of the Government of Canada for this generoue and
courteous favor, 8

JOHN J. McGBB, Clerk Privy Council

Lord hansdowne to Colonel Stanley.

Ottawa, 16th December, 1885.

Sir,—In reply to your despatch marked " Parliamentary Grant," of the 23rd
ult., I have the honor to forward herewith a copy of a communication from the
Department of Militia and Defence, stating that the probable number of war medals
for the Canadian Volunteers who were employed in repressing the rebellion in the
North-West Territories will be 5,250.

6

I have, &c,

Colonel Stanley.

Department of Militia and Defence,
Ottawa, 15th December, 1885.

Sir,—In reply to the enquiry contained in the despatch from the Right, Honor-
able the Secretary of State for the Colonies, dated the 23rd ultimo, [ have rbo honor
by direction of the Minister of Militia and Defence, to state that the probable number
St
wa

1

r
^
medals lor lne Canadian troop3 engaged in repressing the rebellion in the

North-West, will be five thousand two hundred and fifty (5,250).
1 have, &c.,

m. „ „
BUG. C PANET, Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.

The Governor General s Secretary, Ottawa.

Lord Lansdowne to Colonel Stanley.

Ottawa, 29th December, 1885.
Sir,—With reference to previous correspondence relating to the grant of an

Imperial medal to the Canadian troops who were employed in suppressing the late
rebellion in the North-West Territory, I have the honor to enclose a copy of a letter
froin Major General Sir F. D. Middleton, C.B , K.C.M.G., commanding the militia of
the Dominion, recommendiLg "that a clasp with ' Saskatchewan ' on it should be
granted to all those troops actually engaged at Fish Creek, Cut Knife, Batoche and
Frenchman's Butte, and tha'. a second clasp with l Batoche ' on it, be giren to all
those actually engaged there, deluding those on board the steamer < Northcote ' that
engagement having been the tecisive and final engagement of the campaign."

2. The proposal made by Major General Sir F. Middleton is warmly supported
by my Minister of Militia, upot the ground that it is highly desirable that some dis-
tinction should be made between those volunteers who were engaged in the principal
actions of the campaign, and those who, though present in the North-West while the
campaign was in progress and consequently entitled to receive the medal, were not
under fire or actually engaged in the operations which led to the suppression of the
rebellion.

rr

3. I am glad to rwommead Sir F. Middleton's suggestion to your favorable con,
Siderauon. I have, &c,
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Ottawa, 18th December, 1885.

Sir,—With reference to the issue, by the Imperial Government, of a medal to

the troops engaged in the late North-West campaign, I hare the honor to strongly

recommend that a clasp, with "Saskatchewan " on it, should be granted to all those

troops actually engaged at Fish Creek, Cut Knife, Batoche and Frenchman's Batte,

and that a second cla9p, with " Batoohe " on it, be given to all thooo actually

engaged there, including those on board the steamer " Norfchcote," that engagement;

having been the decisive and final engagement of the campaign.

I have, &c,

FRED. MIDDLETON, Major General Commanding Canadian Militia.

Hon. Sir Adolphe Caron, K.C.M.G., Minister of Militia and Defence.

Col. Stanley to Lord La. Slovene.

Downi.nq Street, 5th February, 1886.

My Lord,—T caused to he forwarded, for the consideration of the Secretary of

State lor War, a copy of Your Lordship's despatch, No. 35 j, of the 29th of December
last, recommending that clasps should be added to the medals now being prepared
for presentation to such of the Canadian troops as were actually engaged with the
rebels during the recent operations in the Noith-West Territories.

1 have now the honor to inform you that a letter has been received from the
War Office, stating that His Royal Highness the Field Marshal Commanding in

Chief, in concurrence with the Secretary of State for War, is of opinion that this

application oanuot properly be acceded to, as the issue of clasps for small engage-
ments, during an internal rebellion, would be unavoidable,

I have, &c,

JOHN BRAM3TON for the Secretary of State.

Governor General,

The Marquis of Lansdowne, GC.M.G., &c, &c,
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RETURN
(81)

To an Address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1886 ;—For

copies of all petitions, despatches and correspondence, Eeports to

Council and Orders in Council, touching upon and relating to the

disallowance of Railway Charters in Manitoba, not already brought

down.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

28th April, 1886.

Department op Justice, Ottawa, 25th August, 1885.

Sir,—-I am directed by the Minister of Justice to call the attention of the Minis-
ter of Kailways and Canals to the following Acts, respecting railways, passed by the
Legislature of the Province of Manitoba, in the Session holden at Winnipeg, on the
13th March, 1884, and closed by prorogation on the 3rd June following.

1. Chapter 66
f
intituled :

*' An Act to amend the Act to incorporate the
Northern Junction Railway Company."

The second section of this Act is as follows

:

2. The third section of the said Act of incorporation is hereby amended by
striking thereout the words :

" the terminus of the Canadian Pacific Eailway at

Stonewall," in the fourth and fifth lines thereof, and inserting therein in the place of
the said words so struck out the words " the city of Winnipeg," and adding thereto
the following :

" Provided always, that the said company is hereby authorized to

construct and operate a branch line of railway from any point of their line between
Stonewall and Shoal Lake to the town of Selkirk."

The third section of the Act of Incorporation is further amended by Chapter 67,
intituled, " An Act to further amend the Act to incorporate the Northern Junction
Eailway Company," the first section of which is as follows :

" 1. The third section of the Act of incorporation is hereby repealed, and the
following substituted therefor

:

" * The said company shall have full power and authority to locate, build, make,
furnish, operate, alter and keep in repair a railway with double or single track, and
an electric telegraph along the same, commencing at or near the city of Winnipeg,
and running thence north-westerly to the northern boundary of the Province of
Manitoba, with power to construct a branch line from any point on the main line to

a point at or near the city of Brandon, and the company shall have power to con-

struct the different sections of the said railway in such order as they see fit, keeping
in view the general directions as herein provided.'

"

2. Chapter 68, intituled, "An Act to incorporate the Emerson and North-
western Eailway Company."

By the second section the company have fall power and authority to lay out,

construet, complete and operate an iron or steel railway, from a point in the city of

Emerson, in a north westeily direction to the town of Portage la Prairie, also a
81—1 1
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branch line from some point on the said line north of the Pembina Mountain Branch
of the Canadian Pacific Eailway, in a westerly or north-westerly direction to the
western boundary of tbe Province.

Provided, that nothing herein contained shall be held as authorizing the building
of the road within fifteen miles of the International boundary, in the territory lately
added to the Province.

3. Chapter 69, intituled, " An Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central Eailway
Company."

By this Act, section 2 of Chapter 56, 46-47 Victoria, intituled, " An Act to
incorporate the Manitoba Central Eailway Company," is repealed and the following
substituted therefor

:

*

" 2. The said company shall have full power and authority to lay out, construct
and operate a railway with double or single iron or steel track, and an electric tele-
graph line or lines along the same, such railway to commence at the town of Morris,
thence running westerly or north-westerly to the western boundary of the Province,
and from the town of Morris northerly to the city of Winnipeg, and a branch of said
railway running easterly or north easterly from the town of Morris to the Lake of
the Woods. Provided always, that no line of railway constructed under the author-
ity of this Act shall run within fifteen miles of the International Boundary line, in
that portion of the Province which was added by Acts of the Parliament of Canada,
and of the Legislature of Manitoba, in the year one thousand eight hundred and
eighty-one."

4. Chapter TO, intituled :
" An Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba

Central Eailway Company, and amending Acts."
" By the first section of this Act, the Act last mentioned (chapter 69) is amended

as follows i
l By adding after the word ' Winnipeg,' in the seventh line thereof, tbe

following words :
' and from the town of Morris southerly to the boundary line of the

said Province, between the Eod Eiver and the first principal meridian in the said
Province,' and by adding the following words to said section :

l Provided also that no
portion of said railway shall be built in the portion of territory added to this Pro-
vince in the year 1881, in such a way as to contravene the terms on which such ter-
ritory was added to the Province.' "

5. Chapter 71, intituled: "An Act to incorporate the Brandon, Souris and
Turtle Mountain Eailway*"

By the third section of this Act, the company "shall have full power and
authority to locate, lay out, construct, build, make, furnish, operate, alter and keep
in repair, a railway with one or more sets of rails or tracks, commencing from a
point at or near the city of Brandon, thence south-westerly to a point at or near
Turtle Mountain, and westerly to the western boundary of the said Province of
Manitoba, with the power to build bridges and construct and operate an electric
telegraph line along the said railway, and tbe company shall have power to construct
the different sections of the said railway in such order as they see fit, keeping in
view the general directions as herein provided. Provided always that the said com-
pany shall not coastructany portion of its lines within fifteen miles of the Interna-
tional boundary line between this Province and the United States."

6. Chapter 72, intituled :
" An Act to incorporate the * Winnipeg and North-

Eastern Eailway Company of Manitoba.' "

By the 2nd section, the company have full power to " lay out, construct, com-
plete, maintain and operate an iron or steel railway from a point at or near the town
of East Selkirk, in a northerly direction on the east side of Lake Winnipeg to a point
within the Province at or near Family Lake or Borens' Eiver, and from the first men-
tioned point southerly to the city of Winnipeg ; and thence westerly on the south
side of the Eiver Assiniboine to the town of Portage la Prairie, crossing the Eiver
Assiniboine at such point as may appear to the company to be best; also a branch
line from the town of East Selkirk westerly to any point on the main line of the
Canadian Pacific Eailway, or upon the Manitoba and North-Western Eailway, east of
the White Mud Eiver."

2
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7, Chapter 73, intituled: "An Act to give the town of Nelson certain powers
for the construction of a railway."

By the 1st section " the town of Nelson, hereinafter called l the town/ shall be,

and hereby is, authorized and empowered to lay out, construct, complete, equip and
operate a line of railway and electric telegraph from any point within the town, to
connect with the Pembina Mountain Branch of the Canadian Pacific Eailway, at or
near Morden, a station on the said branch."

I am to state that the Minister of Justice sees no objection to leaving these Acts
to their operation, except there are objections touching the general railway policy of
the Dominion, and so far as he is able to judge, there is no objection from this point
of view, to leaving chapters 66, 67 and 71 to their operation, but with respect to this

as well as to the question as to how far the other charters may be in accordance with
the policy of the Government, respecting the granting of charters to railways in

Manitoba and the North-West Territory, he would be glad to be favored with the
views of the Minister of Eailways and Canals.

I have, &c,

GEO. W. BUEBIDGE, D.M.J.

Ottawa, 21st October, 1885.

Sir,—With reference to your letter of the 25th August last, I send, by direction,

herewith a copy of the general map published by the Department of the Interior,

which shows the location of the different lines of railway of which your communica-
tion makes mention.

I am, Sir, your obedient servant,

A. P. BRADLEY, Secretary.

G. W. Burbidge, Esq., Deputy Minister of Justice, Ottawa.

Department op Justice, Ottawa, 21st January, 1886.

Sir,—On the 25th August last I addressed you a letter calling the attention of

the Minister of Eiilways and Canals to certain Acts (Chaps. 66, 67, 68, 69, 70, 71, 72
and 73) respecting railways, passed by the Legislature of the Province of Manitoba
in the Session of 1884, and requesting to be favored with the view of the Minister of

Eailways and Canals thereon.

I am to ask for an early reply to my letter.

I have, &c,

GEO. W. BURBIDGE, D.M.J.

The Secretary of the Department of Eailways and Canals.

Department op Eailways and Canals, Ottawa, 20th February, 1886.

Sir,—Eeplying to your letters of the 25th of August and 21st of January last,

by which you ask to be informed as to the views of the Minister of this Department
in respect to certain railway Acts, passed by the Legislature of the Province of

Manitoba in the session of 1884, I have the honor, by direction, to state that the

charters so granted to the undermentioned railways should be disallowed, viz. : The
Emerson and North-Western Railway Company, and the Manitoba Central Eiilway
Company.

With regard to the other lines enumerated, the Minister does not consider that

interference is necessary.

I have, &c,

A, P. BRADLEY, Secretary.

The Deputy of the Minister of Justice.

3
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Department op Justice, Ottawa, 25th February, 1886.

To His Excellency the Governor General in Council:

The undersigned has the honor to report upon the Acts of the Legislature of the
Province of Manitoba, passed in the Session held in the year 1884, which are men-
tioned in the annexed schedule, and which were reserved for a separate report.

With the papers will be found correspondence between the Minister of Justice
and the Minister of .Railways and Canals with respect to these Acts. From this cor-
respondence it will be observed that the Minister of Eailways and Canals is of opinion
that the Acts relating to the Emerson and North-Western Kailway Company, and
the Manitoba Central .Railway Company, should be disallowed.

The undersigned understands that the objection of the Minister to these Acts is
based upon an apprehension that thereby the companies mentioned will be able to
divert trade from the Canadian system of railways to the railways of the United
States, and that the objection applies to chapter 68, intituled, " An Act to incorporate
the Emerson and North-Western Eailway Company," and Chapter 70, intituled,
" An Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central Eailway Company
and amending Acts," but not to Chapter 69, intituled, " An Act to amend an Act to
incorporate the Manitoba Central Eailway Company."

The undersigned has the honor respectfully to submit the correspondence for the
consideration of Your Excellency in Council.

JOHN S. D. THOMPSON,
Minister of Justice.

Certified Copy of a report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved
by His Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 22nd March, 1886.

On a memorandum, dated 25th February, 1886, from the Minister of Justice, sub-
mitting the annexed correspondence with the Minister of Eailways and Canals, with
respect to certain Acts of the Legislature of the Province of Manitoba, passed in the
session held in the year 1884, and which were reserved for a separate report.

The Minister observes that it will be seen from this correspondence that the
Minister of Eailways and Canals is of opinion that the Acts relating to the Emerson
and North-Western Eailway Company and the Manitoba Central Eailway Company
should be disallowed

.

The Minister further observes that the objection of the Minister of Eailways and
Canals to these Acts is based upon an apprehension that thereby the companies men-
tioned will be able to divert trade from the Canadian system of railways to the rail-

ways of the United States, and that the objection applies to chapter 68, intituled :

" An Act to incorporate the Emerson and North Western Eailway Company," and
chapter 70, intituled : " An Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba
Central Eailway Company, and amending Acts," but not to chapter 69, intituled :

" An Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central Eailway Company."
The Minister submits the correspondence for the consideration of Your Excel-

lency in Council.

The Committee advises that the Acts of the Legislature of Manitoba, passed in
the session held in the year 1884, chapter 68, intituled: " An Act to incorporate the
Emerson and North-Western Eailway Company," and chapter 70, intituled: "An
Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central Eailway Company, and
amending Acts," be disallowed accordingly, but that the powers of disallowance be
not exercised with regard to the Act, chapter 69, intituled : " An Act to amend
an Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central Eailway Company."

JOHN J. McGEE, Clerk Privy Council.
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Government House, Ottawa., Monday, 22nd day of March, 188 -J.

Present :

His Excellence the Governor General in Council.

Whereas the Lieutenant Governor of the Province of Manitoba, with the Legis-
lative Assembly of that Province, did, on the 29th day of April, 1834, pass the Act,
chaptered 68, intituled "An Act to incorporate the Emerson and is orth Western
Bailway Company," raid did, on the 3rd June, 1884, pass the Act, chaptered 70,
intituled u An Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central Eailway
Company and amending Acts."

And whereas these Acts have been laid before the Governor General in Council,
together with a report from the Minister of Justice, recommending that they should
be disallowed,

—

Flis Excellency the Governor General has thereupon this day been pleased, by
and with the advice of the Queen's Privy Council for Canada, to declare his disallow-
ance of the said Acts, and the same are disallowed accordingly.

Whereof the Lieutenant Governor of the Province of Manitoba and all other,
persons whom it may concern are to take notice and govern themselves accordingly.

JOHN J. McGEE, Clerk Privy Council.

I, Sir Henry Charles Keith Petty Pitzmaurice, Marquis of Lansdowne, Governor
General cf Canada, do hereby certify that the undermentioned Acts passed by the
Legislature of the Province of Manitoba, in the Session of 1884, chapter 68, intituled
" An Act to incorporate the Emerson and North Western Eailway Company," and
chapter 70, intituled "An Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central
Eailway Company, and amending Acts " were received by me on the 28th dav of
March, 1885.

J

Given under my hand and seal this 22nd day of March, 1886.

[L.S.]
,

LANSDOWNE,

Department of State, Ottawa, 2nd April, 1886.

Sir,—I have the honor to acquaint you, for the information of your Government,
that His Excellency the Governor General has had.under his consideration in Council
certain Acts of the Legislature of the Province of Manitoba, passed in the session
held in the year 1884, whicu were reserved for separate consideration, and that His
Excellency is advised that the power of disallowance be exercised with regard to
two of the said Acts, viz. :—Chap. 68, intituled :

" An Act to incorporate the Emerson
and North-Western Eailway Company," and Cap. 70, intituled : " An Act to amend
an Act incorporating the Manitoba and North-Western Eailway Company, and
amending Acts."

I enclose an order of His Excellency the Governor General declaring bis disal-
lowance of the Acts above mentioned, to which is attached the certificate of His
Excellency as to the date of the receipt of the said Acts.

The objection to the Actb disallowed is based upon an apprehension that the
companies to which they relate would be able to divert trade from the Canadian
system of railways to the railways of the United States.

I have at the same time to inform you that His Excellency is advised that the
power of disallowance be not exercieed with regard to the Act passed in the said
session, Chap. 69, intituled: "An Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba
Central Eailway Company."

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

J. A. CHAPLEAU, Secretary of State.

His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor of Manitoba, Winnipeg.
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RETURN
(86)

To an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886 ;—For

a Return giving :

—

1. The number of Chinese immigrants that have arrived in

Canada from the 20th day of August, 1885; to the 31st day of

January, 1886, specifying the ports at which such immigrants

have arrived.

2. The number that have arrived direct from China.

3. The number that have arrived from other countries, specify-

ing the countries.

* 4. The total amount of duty collected from such immigrants.

5. The number of Chinese that have entered as tourists, merchants,

men of science or students.

6. "Whether in either case (if any) certificates were presented from

the Chinese Government, endorsed by the Charge d'Affaires,

Consul or Consular Agent, or other representative of Her

Majesty, at the place where the same was granted, or at the

port or place of departure.

7. The cost to the Department of Customs in consequence of the

administration by that Department of the Acts restricting

and regulating Chinese immigration into Canada.

8. Copies of all the correspondence (if any) between Trades Unions

or other Societies, corporate or incorporate, or persons and the

Department of Customs, urging more strict supervision over

Chinese immigration, together with complaints (if any) against

any Officer of Customs in connection with the administration

of said Chinese Restriction Act.

9. The total number of Chinese persons that have left Canada

during the same period.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

7th May, 1 886.
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Eeturn as asked for by an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886
giving the number of Chinese Immigrants that have arrived in Canada from the
20th of August, 1885, to 31st of January, 1886, specifying the ports at which
they have arrived, &c.

a
1

*
The num*)er of Chinese immigrants that have arrived in Canada from the 20th

of August, 1885, to 31st of January, 1886, specifying the ports at which such immi-
grants have arrived: 234 arrived at Yictoria and 1 at Nanaimo, B.C.

2. The number that have arrived direct from China : Nil.
3. The number that have arrived from other countries, specifying the countries •

235 arrived from the United States.
4. The total amount of duty collected from such immigrants : $8,550.

.

5. The number of Chinese that have entered as tourists, merchants, men of
science or students : 64.

«. Whether in either case (if any) certificates were presented from the Chinese
Government, endorsed by the charge d'affaires, consul or consular agent, or other
representative of Her Majesty, at the place where the same was granted, or at the
port or place of departure : No certificates were presented.

1. The cost to the Department of Customs in consequence of the administration
by that Department of the Act restricting and regulating Chinese immigration into
Canada: $616.59.

&

8. Copies of all the correspondence (if any) between Trades Unions or other
societies, corporate or incorporate, or persons and the Department of Customs, urging
more strict supervision over Chinese immigration ; together with complaints (if any)
against any officer of Customs in connection with the administration of said Chinese
.Restriction Act : Attached.

9. The total number of Chinese persons that have left Canada during the same
period

: 686 left Yictoria and 2 left Nanaimo.

Custom House, Victoria, B.C., 3rd November, 1885.

SiR,—I enclose for your perusal a correspondence which was published on Sun-
day morning in the Colonist newspaper, on which I may perhaps be expected to
make some observations. I enclose also an extract from the Victoria Times of the
day before which contains (what the Colonist does not) a tolerable correct account of
the matters in question. The letters I am told were taken first to the editor of the
Victoria Times to publish, which he had the good sense and the good feeling to
refuse to do.

From the 1st of September, when the Chinese Act came in force, to this present
day, every dollar due under the Act has been collected, there has been no breach of
the Act requiring legal proceedings, and no Chinaman has gone away from the
Custom house without having his case attended to. 1 don't see how it would be pos-
sible, with such means as were at my disposal, for the Act more perfectly to be put
in force. If a controller was appointed, as the law provides, he could give his whole
time to it, and go among the Chinamen and enquire into particular oases. An inter-
preter could examine them and find out if their statements were true. I have to do
the best I can and trust to what they say themselves.

Mr. Shakespeare mentions one particular case brought, he says, to my knowledge
where I refused to prosecute. I told him of this myself ; he came to the Custom
house to see the printed forms, and among other things said he had heard that false
certificates were used. I told him one case only had come to my knowledge and I
gave him the particulars.

Several Chinamen came over by the " Olympian " from Port Townsend. One
of them we suspected had a certificate not issued to himself. He had no money to
pay the $50 fee, his friends in the town tried to make it up for him and failed. He
was kept on board the steamer, not allowed to land, and sent back to the American
side. Mr. Shakespeare said I ought to have prosecuted. I told him it would have
been difficult to prove the case, very expensive to the Government, and if we suo-
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ceeded in getting a conviction, the man had not a dollar in the world to pay the fine.

He said it would have made an example. I doubt very much if the American Gov-
ernment would have been pleased to hear of a man dragged by force from one of

their vessels lying in our port, for the sake of a prosecution and an example.
Unless you send me positive orders to the contrary, I should do again what I did

then, and believe that I am doing right. The folly of the Chinamen on the other
side using certificates granted here is almost transparent at the first glance. If they
want to come here on business, they have only to go to their own Custom house and
a permit to leave and return, vised by the British consul, is granted to them for

nothing. They do it constantly, exactly as our Chinamen get permits to leave and
return here. There is no trouble about it, and no secret, and nothing to tempt them
to resort to the practice of fraud.

That I concerned myself in any way with the Act itself—the necessity for it or

its utility—if anyone has made such a statement, I give it an emphatic denial. No
man in the community has kept himself more aloof from all political questions and
public matters. I had scarcely heard of the existence of this Act till I was told, by
telegram, to put it in force. For several weeks I was left without forms and without
assistance to make the best of as troublesome a business as could well fall to a public
servant.

I cannot say I expected the treatment I have met with, but the people before

whom one side of the matter has been so freely placed, will judge for themselves and
find nothing, I am sure, derogatory to me.

I am, Sir, your obedient servant,

W. HAMLEY.

To His Excellency Sir Henry Charles Keith Petty Fitzmaurice, Marquis of Lans-
downe, in the County of Somerset, Earl of Wycombe, of Chipping Wycombe, in

the County of Bucks, Viscount Calne and Calnestone, in the County ofWilts, and
Lord Wycombe, Baron of Chipping Wycombe, in the County of Bucks, in the
Peerage of Great Britain ; Earl of Kerry and Earl of Shelbourne, Yiscount Clan-
maurice and Fitzmaurice, Baron of Kerry, Lixnaw and Dunkerron, in the Peer-
age of Ireland ; Knight Grand Cross of the Most Honorable Order of Saint
Michael and Saint George ; Governor General of the Dominion of Canada, and
Vice-Admiral of the same.

May it please Your Excellency,—We, the members of the Anti-Chinese
Union, beg heartily to welcome you to our shores and humbly to thank you as head
of the Executive, and the members of your Cabinet, for the Act passed last session

of Parliament restricting the immigration of Chinese.

We would, furthermore, represent to Your Excellency that the Act, though in

itself a wise one, is made virtually inoperative by the fact that proper means have
not been secured to insure its being carried into eifect.

We beg most respectfully to say that in our judgment the Customs authorities

are not the proper persons to enforce the Act, as the whole of their time is already
occupied without these extra and unpaid duties being given them ; and hence we
think that a controller should be appointed whose sole business it shall be to carry
out the provisions of the Act.

We respectfully call Your Excellency's attention to this fact, begging that you
may be pleased to give such instructions as may cause a remedy to be brought to the
evil, and so, as in duty bound, your humble petitioners will ever pray.

A small deputation would be glad to lay the facts before you if Your Excellency
be pleased to find it convenient to receive them

.

Signed on behalf of the Executive Committee of Anti-Chinese Union.

ARCHIBALD DODS, Secretary.

Spring Ridge, Victoria, B. C, 7th October, 1885.
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Ottawa, 20th November, 1885.

The undersigned, Minister of Customs, having had referred to him by the Gov-
ernor General in Council the petition of the anti-Chinese Union, of Yictoria, British
Colombia, bearing date the *7th October, 1885, signed on behalf of said Union by its

Secretary, Archibald Dods, Esq., addressed to His Excellency the Marquis of Lans-
downe, etc., Governor General of Canada, " thanking the members of His Excellency's
Cabinet for the Act passed last Session of Parliament restricting the immigration of
Chinese into Canada, and complaining that the Act, though in itself a wise one, is

made virtually inoperative by the fact that proper means have not been secured to
insure its being carried into effect," has the honor to report thereon as follows:

—

The Act provides, among other things, that His Excellency the Governor Gen-
eral may appoint one or more persons to carry the provisions of the Act into effect,

and assign the duties in connection therewith to any officer or person in the employ
of the Government. As the Department of Customs is constituted, it has the neces-
sary and complete machinery in the personnel of its staff for the effective and eco-
nomical administration of the Act, its officers being stationed in every port, town
and city of importance in the Dominion. These officers, with such assistance as may
be found necessary at one or two places, are competent and available for the service.

Every care has been taken to provide for the effective enforcing of the provi-
sions of the Act, collectors of Customs at the various ports in the Dominion having
been appointed controllers and furnished with forms and explicit instructions, calcu-
lated to guard against preventable errors and to meet all foreseen difficulties.

The appointment of special controllers at the various ports of entry, under the
circumstances, is wholly unnecessary.

The Minister submits that in putting into force the provisions of a law restrict-

ing the immigration of Chinese into Canada, some friction and errors may occur

;

but with the aid of a staff of experienced Customs officers such friction and errors
must be less than would be the case were the administration of the Act entrusted to
new and inexperienced officers.

The officer of the Department of Customs to whom has been entrusted the
important duties of inaugurating a system by which the provisions of the Chinese
Restriction Act can be enforced, has given much attention and study to the work-
ing of somewhat similar Acts in the neighboring Republic and other countries, and
is therefore eminently qualified to prepare such rules and regulations as will fully
and effectively carry out the intentions of Parliament in placing such a law upon the
Statute-book, and to provide against the failures and difficulties which have been
experienced in countries where laws of a somewhat similar character are being
enforced.

For these reasons the undersigned is of opinion that it would be impolitic and
detrimental to the proper and effective working of the Act to make any change in

the regulations which have been adopted providing for its enforcement.

M. BOWELL.

Victoria, B.C., 13th October, 1885.

Dear Sir,—I desire to call your attention to the fact that in my opinion the
appointing of Customs officials to carry out the provisions of the Cninese Restriction
Act is a farce . I propose to give one or two reasons why I think so

.

In the first place, so far as Victoria is concerned, the whole of their time is taken
up in connection with the Customs, and if they had time they have not been notified

that they were to receive any extra pay for the extra work, and hence they could
not be expected to take the interest in it as is necessary ; the result is, the law is

hardly enforced in any one particular. I know of cases myself where one Chinaman
has been guilty of personating another Chinaman, and the matter has been brought
to the notice of Mr. Hamley, and yet the provisions of the sixteenth clause of the
Chinese Act has not been put in force

.
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If the Government intend carrying out the provisions of the law, it can only be

done by appointing a proper person to fill the position of controller, and pay him a

decent salary so as to induce him to take a pleasure in his work. Mr. Hamley takes

no interest in it at all, in fact he says it is impossible for him to attend to it.

The Government can well afford to pay an officer ; the receipts already under

this Act at this port are nearly four thousand dollars within six weeks.

I hope you will do your best to have the necessary machinery set to work at

once for the proper enforcement of the Act.

I remain, yours obediently,

JS. SHAKESPEAEE, M.P.
To the Hon. the Minister of Customs, Ottawa.

Ottawa, 22nd October, 1885.

My Dear Shakespeare,—T have your favor of the 13th inst., in re Chinese Act.

That there may be a little friction in the beginning, I am not at all surprised,

but every step has been taken that can be to enforce the Act, and as difficulties arise

they will be provided for.

You may rest assured that it is not only the desire but the intention of the Gov-

ernment to enforce the Act.

The collector has been instructed to employ a man to assist him in carrying out

the provisions, and I am satisfied it will be done better in this way than by multiply-

ing officials, and if Mr. Hamley does not attend to it he will be called to account.

I note you gay that " the Customs officials if they had time " to do the work
necessary in connection with the enforcement of the Act "have not been notified

that they were to receive any extra pay."

I take it for granted that men in the employment of the Government should be

treated in precisely the same way as if employed by any business man, that it is

their duty to attend to any duties allotted to them during their working hours, with-

out asking additional remuneration, but it seems to be a general opinion that when
one is employed by the Government, he must only do a certain thing, and beyond

that receive extra payment.
That is not the principle on which I have endeavored to conduct the Department.

Customs officers must do such work as is relegated to them, during the proper hours,

without extra pay.

If Mr. Hamley knows of personation by any Chinaman, he is culpable for not

punishing, and will be so informed

.

It is not for the collector to say whether he approves of the Act or not. His duty

is to enforce its provisions, and we will see that he does so.

I shall be very glad, at any time, to receive anything from you pointing out any

defects in the working of the Act, or dereliction of duty on the part of the officers.

Trusting you are enjoying good health, and that we shall see you here as vigorous

as ever in a few months.
I am, yours truly,

M. BOWELL.
N. Shakespeare, Esq., M.P., Victoria, B.C.
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